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LIST OF SESSIONAL PAPERS
Arranged in Numerical Order, with their Tilles at full length ; the Dates

when Ordered and when Presented to both Houses of Parliament; the
Name of the Member who moved for each Sessional Paper, and whether
it is Ordered to be Printed or Not Printed.

ERRATA FOR LIST OF 1885.
On page 11, Return No. 14, read 1883 instead of 1884. On page 50, Return No. 127, read Not

printed instead of Piinted for Distribution only. On page 53, Return No. 140, read Printed for
Sessional Papers only instead of Printed for Distribution only.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME A.
Census of the Three Provisional Districts of the North-West Territories, 1884-85-

Printed for both Distribution and Sessioal Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 1.
IL Tables of the Trade and Navigation of the Dominion of Canada, for the fiscal year ended 30th

June, 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st March, 1886, by Hon. M. Bowell-
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papera.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 2.
2. Public Accounts of Canada, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1885. Presented to the House

of Comlmons, lst March, 1886, by Hon. A. W. McLelan. Estimates of the sums required for
the service of the Dominion, for the year eiding 30th June, 1887 ; presente 1 24th March, 1886.
Supplementary. Estimates of Canada for the fiscal year ending 30th June, 1886 ; presented 26th
May, 1886. Supplementary Estimates of Canada for the fiscal year ending 30th June, 1887;
Presented 28th May, 1886.........................Printed for bot/h Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 8.
3. Annual Report df the Auditor-General on Appropriation Accounts, for the fiscal year ended

30th June, 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st March, 1886, by Hon. A. W.
McLelan........'-........................................Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 4.
A. Annual Report of the Department of Indian Affairs, for the year ended 31st December, 1885.

Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd March, 186, by Sir John A. Macdonald-
Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

6. Annual Report, Returns and Statistics of the Inland Revenues of the Dominion of Canada, forthe fiscal year ended 30th June, 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st March, 1886-
by H on. J. Costigan...-----------..............Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

*a. Canal Statistics for season of navigation, 1885, being Supplement No. 1 to the Inland Revenue
Report, for the year ended 30th June, 1885. Presented to tie House of Commons, 3rd May,
1886, by Hon. J. Costigan. Twelfth Report on Inspection of Weights, Measures and Gas,
being Supplement No. 2 to the Report of the Department of Inland Revenue. Presented 2nd
June, 1886 ........................ Printedfor both Distribution and Seasional Papers.
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CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 5.
o. Annual Report of the Depr rtment of Militia and Defence of the Dominion of Canada, for the

year ended 31st December, 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th March, 1886, by Sir
Adolphe Caron.......................................Printed for both Distribution and Se8sional Papers.

6a. Report upon the suppression of the rebellion in the North-West Territories, and matters in
connection therewith, in 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 20th May, 1886, by Sir
Adolphe Caron..... . ... .......... Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 6.1
7. Annual Report of the Postmaster-General, ior the year ended 30th June, 1885. Presented to.

the House of Commons, 5th March, 1886, by Sir Hector Langevin-
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

s. Annual Report of the Department of the Interior, for the year ended 31st December, 1885.
Presented to the House of Commons, 8th March, 1886, by Hon. Thos. White-

Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

Sa. Annual Report of the Commissioner of the North-West Mounted Police Force, for the year
1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 24th March, 1886, by Sir Hector Langevin-

Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

8. Detailed Report upon all claims to land and right to participate in the North-West Half-breed
grant by settlers along the South Saskatchewan and vicinity west of Range 26, West 2nd
Meridian, being the settlements commonly known as St. Louis de Langevin, St. Laurent or
Batoche and Duck Lake. Presented to the House of Commons, 15th April, 1886, by the Hon.
Thos. White............................................Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 7.
9. Annual Report of the Secretary of State of Canada, for the year ended 31st December, 1885.

Presented to the House of Commons, 12th March, 1886, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau-
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

9a. Synopsis of companies incorporated under the Canada Joint Stock Companies Act of 1869 and
1877, from 7th May, 1869, to 31st December, 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 12th
March, 1886, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau ............................................ ................... Notprinted.

]o. Annual Report of the Minister of Agriculture for the Dominion of Canada, for the year ended
81st December, 1885. Presented to the House of Gommons, 15th April, 1886, by Hon. J.
Carling...........................Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

»ea. Criminal Statisties for the year 1884.........Printedfor both Distribution and Sesional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 8.
10. Report on Canadian Archives, 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 20th May, 1886,

by Hon. J. Carling.........--------..................Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Paper.

10c. Abstracts of the Returns of Mortuary Statistics for the year 1885-
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 9.
U1. Eighteenth Annual Report of the Department of Marine, for the fiscal year ended 30th June,

1885. Presented to the House of Commons, lst March, 1886, by Hon. G. E. Foster-

Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

La. Report of the Chairman of the Board of Steamboat Inspection for the calendar year ended
31st December, 1885................. Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
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lb. Annual Report of the Departmeit of l'ishbeies, DoiPinion of Canada, for the ye.ar: lål.
Presented to the House of Cgxoons, 2.7th May, 1886, by HoQ. G. E. Foster-

Pringedfar bQth DistributiQh, qnd Sessional Papers.

11ç. Report of the second Hudson Bay Exploration, under the command of Lieut. A. R. Gordon,
R.N., 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th May, 1886, by Hon. G. E. Foster-

Printedfor Sessional Iaper8 only.
Ild. Charte showing the mean, monthly and annual temperatures of Hudson Bay region and

eastern Canada, September, 1884, to October, 1885, by Andrew R. Gordon. Presented to the
Hlouse of Commons, 10th May, 1886, by Hon. G. E. Foster.................... .Notprinted.

CONTFNT$ OF VO4UME No. 10.
UN. Annual Report of the Minister of Public Works of Canada, for the fiscal year ended 30th June,

1885, on the works under his control Presented to the House of Commons, 26th February,
1886, by Sir Hector Langevin....................Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

13. Annual Report of tJe Minister of Railways and Çanals for the past fiscal year, from 1st July,
1884, to 30th June, 1, on tb woks under Ws control. Presented to the House of Commons,8th March, 1886, by Hon. J. H. Pope. .. Printe4fo boh Distribution and Sessional vapers.

13a. Reports and Railway Statistics of Canada, and capital, traffic and working expenditure of
the railways of the Dominion, 1884-85. Presented to the House of Commons, 7th May, 1886,
by Sir Rector Langevin.......... ................. Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Paper.

1M. Abstract of Statements of Fire and Inland Marine Insurance Companies in Canada, for the
year 1885. Presentçd to the.House of Commons, 2nd April, 1886, by Hon. A. W. McLelan-

Printed-for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 11.
15. Annual Report of the Ministers of Justice as to Penitentiaries in Canada, for the year ended

30th June, 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st March, 1886, by Hon. J. S. D.
Thompson...--------............. ............... Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

3àa. COrrespondence, Reports of the Minister of Justice, and Orders in Council upon the gubject
of provincial legislation, 1867-84. Presented to the House of Commons, lst April, 1886, by
Ron. J. S. D. Thompson.........................................................rtnted for Distributio4 only.

16. Report of the Joint Librarians of Parliament on the state of the Library of Parliament.
Presented to the -House of Commons, 25th February, 1886, by Hon. Mr. Speaker-

Printedfor Sessional PapKr only.
17. Shareholders in the Chartered Banks of the Dominion of Canada, as on the 81st December,

1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 17th March, 1886, by Hon. A. W. McLelan-
Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

18. Accounts of the late Province of Canada and the Provinces of Ontario and Quebec with the
Dominion Of Canada, from Tst July, 1867, to 30th June, 1885. Presented to the House of
Comons, 29th May, 1886, by Hon. A. W. McLelasi-

Printed for both Distribution and Sessionai Papers.

»s. Return to an Order of the fouse of Copmons, dated 30th March, 1885, for a Return showing
the date and hour of departure from Toronto an4d arrival at Brockville of all trains on the
Grand Trunk Railway carrying Her Majesty's mails, from 1st February to the 80th April, in
the years 1881, 1882, 1883, 1884, and in the present year up to the date of the Return; also thedate and 1ur of depairturç from Brockville and Ottawa and of arrival at Ottawa and Brock-
Ville of all similar trains 9n that portion cf the Canadian Pacific Railway betwen the two
Points last namned diring the same periods of time. Presented to the House of Commons, lst,ach, 1886--r. Cape.Snq (Jfiddlesez)......... ............................. ................... inted.

A. 188#
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19a.,Supplementary Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1885, for
copies of the Returns as required to be made under the Consolidated Railway Act of 1879 and
the Acts in amendment thereof of 1881 and 1884, by the Grand Trunk Railway Company, for
the fiscal year 1883-84, in each case separately; and lst. The number of miles of main Une of
Grand Trunk, with statement of actual total cost of construction and equipment thereof. The
separate cost per mile of construction thereof, without rolling stock. The total amount of
capital account now standing against the said railway, including its equipment. 2nd. A
statement in detail showing the several branches or side Unes now owned by the said com-
pany, including the number of miles in each, with the amounta severally paid for each. How
such amounts were paid ; whether paid in cash or securities, and the statement and character
thereof in detail. The amount for which each of such securities was sold, and the net amounts
which were realized in each. 3rd. A statement in detail of any railway line or Unes leased by
the Grand Trunk Company or agreed to be worked by them on a percentage of earnings or
other terms, with the length of each of such Unes and the conditions in detail of the agree-
ments in relation thereto. 4th. A statement in detail of any interest the Grand Trunk Railway
may have in any other railway or railways, with the securities in detail that they may hold in
relation thereto. 5th. A statement in detail of the net earnings of each of the railways men-
tioned in the four preceding clauses after the payment of working expenses for the past
financial year of each of the said railways, with a statement in detail of the percentage that
working expenses bear in each case to the gross earnings. 6th. Whether any and what amounts
were paid by the Grand Trunk Company towards the construction of the Toronto and Ottawa,
Railway; and the amount thereof, with the statement of the gross as well as the net earnings
of the said railway for the past financial year of the said railway; and a statement of where
these funds came from; also a statement as to where they appear in the accounts of the Grand
Trunk Company's accounts or returns. Presented to the House of Commons, lst March,
1886.- Mr. Mitcheil.........................-................................. .............................. Not printed.

1b9. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1885, for a list of the
names, in detail, with the residence or business address of each of the several stockholders of
the Grand Trunk Railway Company of Canada, on the first day of January, last. Presented
to the House of Commons, 2nd March, 1886.-Mr. Mitchelil.................. Notprinted.

20. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 3rd March, 1884, for a statement showing the respective amounts of Dominion, Provin-
cial and Municipal money paid, or grants of land given, either by way of bonus or otherwise,
paid towards the construction or equipment of railways (other than the Canadian Pacific Rail-

way) since Confederation, with dates of such payments and names of the respective railways
so aided. Presented to the louse of Commons, 1st March, 1886.-Mr. Mulock......Not printeL

20a. Return te an Order of the House of Commons, dated lst March, 1886, for a Return showing
all grants of land made to Mr. Valin, M.P., in the North-West Territories, with the date of the
Letters Patent therefor, the quantity, location, price and payments; also all grants so made
either to Mr. Valin alone, or to others jointly with him. Presented to the House of Commons,
16th March, 1886.-Hr. Casgrain......................................-N.t printecL

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 12.
2ob. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a Return showing

1. The total number of acres of grazing land placed under lease up to Ist March, 1886. 2. The
names of grazing land lessees who have cattle upon their leaseholds, the number of acres in
each leasehold, the date of the lease, the location of the land covered by the same, the number
of lease, the number of cattle reported on each leasehold, the date when the leasehold was first
stocked with cattle, and the aggregate area covered by such leases. 3. The names of grazing
laidds lessees who have not placed cattle upon their leaseholds, the number of acres in each
leasehold, the location of the land covered by the same, the number of the lease, and the
aggregate area covered by such leases. 4. The total revenue derived from pasture land
leases.-All Returns asked for to be brought down to lst March, 1886. Presented to the House
of Commons, 22nd April, 1886.-M. Charlton............Printedfor Sessional Papera oné>.

8
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2oc. A certified copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by
the Honorable the Deputy Governor in Council on the 19th day of May, 1885, respecting the
North-West Coal and Navigation Company. Presented to the House of Commons, 28th April,
1886, by Hon. Thos. White................................................ ......... à oS pritied.

Sod. A certified copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by
His Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 29th March, 1886, respecting the
Winnipeg and Hudson Bay Railway and Steamship Company. Presented to the House of
Commons, 28th April, 1886, by Hon. Thos. White.................... ........................... Not printed

20.. Return to an Address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 4th May,
1886, for a list giving the names of all persons occupying, under annual leases, Government
Properties situated in the Seigniory of Sorel. Presented to the Senate, 19th May, 1886.-Ron.
Z r. Guévremont ................................. ............................................................. Not printed.

20f. Copies of Orders in Council, correspondence, etc., relating to grants of Dominion Lands to
the following railway companies: Wood Mountain and Qu'Appelle Railway Company; North-
West Central Railway Comp4ny; and Manitoba and North-Western Railway Company.
Presented to the House of Commons, 27th May, 1886, by Hon. Thos. White...........Not printed.

21. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 7th May, 1883, for copies of all corres-
pondence, reports, accounts and other papers relating to any claim made by D. B. Woodworth
and others, for compensation for gravel, said to have been taken from claimants' land for use
on the Pembina Branch of the Canadian Pacific Railway; together with a copy of the evidence
respecting such claim taken before the Board of Dominion Arbitrators, showing the amount
claimed and the award, if any, made by said Arbitrators, and what sums have been paid
thereunder. Presented te the House of Commons, lst March, 1886.-Mr. Casey.....Notprinited.

22. Statement of all superannuations and retiring allowances in the Civil Service during the year
ended 31st December, 1885, giving the name and rank of each person superannuated, or
retired; his salary, age, ilength of service, allowance granted him on retirement, cause of his
Superannuation, and whether the vacancy has been subsequently filled, and, if so, whether by
Promotion or by new appointment, and the salary of the new appointee, under the Act 46
Victoria, chapter 8, section 15. Presented to the House of Commons, lst March, 1886, by Hon.
A. W. McLelan.............................................................. Printed for Sessional Papers only.

22a. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 2nd April, 1884, for copies of all corre-
pondence, papers and telegrams between the Government or any member thereof, and any
person or persons, relating to the superannuation of James Hearn, late Preventive Officer at
Arichat, N.S.; and also all correspondence and telegrams relating to the appointment of his
successor and the continuance of the latter in office. Presented to the House of Commons,
9th March, 1886.-M r. Kirk........................... ................................................. 3 otprinted

22b. Returu to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for a Return showing:
lst. The name of each person on the superannuation list on the first of January, A.D. 1886.
2nd. The date at which each of such persons was superannuated. 3rd. The amount paid into
the superannuation fnnd by each person now on the list. 4th. The total amount paid to each
person now on the superannuation list up to the first of January, 1886. Presented to the
House of Commons, 20th April, 1886.-Mr. McMullen.......................................... No printed.

28. Statement of payments charged to Unforeseen Expenses under Orders in Council, from Ist
July, 1885, to date; in accordance with the Act 48 Victoria, chapter 41. Presented to the
House of Commons, 1st March, 1886, by Hon. A. W. McLelan-

Printed for Sessional Paper only.

Statement of Governor General's Warrants issued since last Session of Parliament, on account
Of fiscal years 1885-86; issued under the authority of-41 Victoria, chapter 7, section, 32, mbn
section 2. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st March, 1886, by Hon. A. W. McLelan-

Nol printaš

• Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 16th February, 1885, for a Retura
showing the expenses, in détail, with dates, ineurred by the several members of the Govera-

U
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nent and any other person or persons in the service of the Goverament, sent to England or
elsewhere, on behalf of the Government, from 28th January, 1884, to date. Presented to the
Blouse of Commons, 3rd March, 1886.-.r. Somerville (Brant).............................N et printed.

S6. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to lis Excellency the Governor General,
dated 12th March, 1885, for copies of all correspondence between the Government of, Prigce
Edward Island and the Government of the Dominion, since the last Session of Parliainent,
relating to the claim macle by the former Government for moneys expended by them in the
construction and maintenance of piers and wharves, fron lst July, 1873, to January, 1883;
also of all reports made to the Minister of Public Works, or any of his officials, since last
Session upon such claims, together with all Orders in Council made thereon. Presented to
the House of Commons, 3rd March, 1886.-Mr. Davies............... Printedfor Distribution only.

Ia. Return to au Order of the House of Commons, dated 5th March, 1886, for copies of all corres-
pondence with the Department of Public Works, the Minister of Railways and Canals, and the
Minister of Marine and Pisheries, relative to repairs of the public wharf at Port Hastings,
Inverness, N.S. Presented to the House of Commons, 31st March, 1886.-Mr. Oameron
(Inverness).........;...................................................................................N ot printed.

27. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for copies of corres-
pondence and petitions on the subject of the cases of criminal libel against Saunders and
Wood, tried in December, 1884, before a judicial functionary in the North-West Territories.
Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd March, 1886.-Nr. Blake.......................Not printed

28. Return (in part) to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor
General, dated 9th March, 1885, for a copy of the short-hand notes of the argument before the
Privy Council in the late dispute between Manitoba and the Provin ce of Ontario, as to the
westerly boundary of the Province of Ontario; also copy of the claim as presented by the
Attorney-General of Ontario before the Privy Council; also a statement of the, reasons given
by the Attorney-General of Ontario for abandoning his claim to that part of the territory
Iying between the Lake of the Woods and the Rocky Mountains; also a copy of all corres-
pondence between the Government of the Dominion and the Government of Ontario in refer-
ence to the arbitration and award, and also in reference to the decision of the Privy Council
not already moved for or brought down. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd March,
1886.-Mr. Rykert............................................................Printed for Sessional Paper8 only.

Sa. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to Ris Excellency the Governor General,
dated 8th March, 1886, for copies of all correspondence between the Government of Canada
and the Government of Ontario in reference to proposed Imperial legislation to confirm the
decision of the Queen in Council upon the west and north-west boundaries of Ontario.
Presented to the House of Commons, lst April, 1886.-Mr. Mills-

Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

nv. Draft of the Revised Statutes of Canada, laid before Parliament on the 3rd February, 1885,
with which have been incorporated the Acts passed in the Session held in the 48th and 49th
years of Her Majesty's reign. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd March, 1886, by Hon.
J. S. D. Thompeon............................................................................................N ot printed.

29a. Return in conformity with the Act 31 Victoria, chapter 1, section 14, Distribution of the
Statutes of Canada during the year 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 8th March,
1886, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau............................................................................ Not printed

Se. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated lt March, 1886, for a Return showing
the names of all persons who tendered for the contract for carrying the mail froin Calgary to
Fort McLeod, the amcunt of each tender, to whom the contract was let, together with all
papers and correspondence relating to said contract. Presented to the Bonse of Commonis,
4th March, 1886.-A(r. Landerkin,.................... ............................ Not printed.

30a. Return to an Order of the fouse of Commons, dated 3rd March, 1886, for7a Return of the
number of post offices established in the Muskoka, Parry Sound and Nipissing districts, with
the cost and revenue of each office for each year respectively, since 1879. Presented to
Bouse of Commons, 22nd Marcb, 1886.-r. Cook......... Notprited

10
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fob. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 5th March, 1886, for copies-of all reports
made by Inspector Sweetnam concerning alleged irregularities in connection with the manage-
ment of Pickering post office, in the county of Ontario, and in particular of his report upon the
investigation held by him at the village of Pickering in December, 1883; and copies of all
correspondence between Inspector Sweetnam and the Post Office Department relating in any
way to charges made against the management of said post office, and a copy of instructions to
the inspector given upon such report. Presented to the House of Commons, 19th April, 1886.
-- M r. E dgar....................................................................................................N ot printed.

81L Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated :1st March, 1886, for a Return of the
receipt and expenditure, in detail, chargeable to the Consolidated Fund, from the lst day of
July, 1884, to the let day of March, 1885, and from the lst day of July, 1885, to the lt day of
March, 1886. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th March, 1886.-Sir Richard Cartwright.

Printed for Distribution only.

3. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 9th March, 1885, for copies of all papers, letters, correspondence and Minutes of Council
relative to making Port Mulgrave, in the county of G uysboro', a sub-port of Port Hawkesbury,
in the county of Inverness. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th March, 1886.-fr. Kirk.

Not printed.

3a. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 23rd April, 1883, for a Retwqr of the
number of children's carriages imported into Canada each and every year from the lst July,
1878, to the lst July, 1882, with the amount of duty collected in each year. Presented to the
flouse of Commons, 5th March, 1886.-Mr. McCraney..........................................Not printed.

34. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for copies of all papers.
orders, letters, vouchers, correspondence or any other memoranda whatever in the possession
or under the control of the Department of the Minister of Customs, or any of the members of
the Government, or of any of the officials of the Government, relating to, or in any way con-
flected with, the alleged violations of the Customs laws by swearing to false invoices, or in
any other mode, by one John Leander McKenzie, of Canning, King's county, Nova Scotia,
and of the firm of Sheffield & McKenzie, of the same place, with a copy of the decision of the
CUstoms Department in such cases. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th March, 1886.-

ir. M ofat.......................................... ...................................... N o printe d.

*a Supplementary Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for
Copies of all papers, orders, letters, vouchers, correspondence or any other memoranda what-
ever in the possession or under the control of the Department of the Minister of Customs, or
anuy of the members of the Government, or of any of the officials of the Government relatmg
to, or in any way connected with, the alleged violations of the Customs laws by swearing to
false invoices, or in any other mode, by one John Leander McKenzie, of Canning, King's
toulnty, Nova Scotia, and of the firm of Sheffield & McKenzie of the same place, with a copy of
the decision of the Customs Department in such cases. Presented to the House of Commons,
27th April, 1 88 6.- Er. .Mofat.............................................................................N ot printed.

85. Return (in part) under-Resolution of the House of Commons, passed on the 20th February,
1882, on all subjects affecting the Canadian Pacific Railway, respecting details as to : 1. The
selection of the route. 2. The progress of the work. 3. The selection or reservation of land.
4. The payment of moneys. 5. The laying out of branches. 6. The progress thereon. 7. The
rates of tolls for passengers and freight. 8. The particulars required by the Consolidated
Railway Act and amendments thereto, up to the end of the previous fiscal year. 9. Like
particulars up to the latest practicable date before the presentation of the Return. 10. Copies
of all Orders in Council and of all correspondence between the Government and the railway
cofimpany, or any member or officer of either, relating to the affairs of the company. Presented
to the flouse of Commons, 8th March, 1886, by Hon. A. W. McLelan-

Printed for Sessional Papers Qnly.
*5a. Supplementary Return under Resolution of the flouse of Commons, passed on the 20th-

February, 1882, on all subjects affecting the Canadian Pacific Railway, respecting details as
to: 1. The selection of the route. 2. The rogress of the work. 3. The selection or reserva-
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tion of land. 4. The payment of moneys. 5. The laying out of branches. 6. The progrens
thereon. 7. The rates of tolls for passenge-s and freight. 8. The particulars required by the
Consolidated Railway Act and amendments thereto, up to the end of the previous fiscal year.
9. Like particulars up to the latest practicable date before the presentation of the Return.
10. Copies of ail Orders in Council and of all correspondence between the Government and
the railway company, or any member or officer of either, relating to the affairs of the company.
Presented to the House of Commons, 1lth March, 1886, by Hon. J. H. Pope-

Printedfor Sessional Paper only.

35b. Return of correspondence between the Canadian Pacifie Railway Company and the Depart-
ment of the Interior, as required by Resolution of the House of Commons of the 20th February,
1882. Presented to the House of Commons, 1lth March, 1886, by Hon. Thos. White-

Printedfor Sessional Papers oniy.

asc. Articles of agreement entered into between Andrew Onderdonk and Her Majesty Queen
Victoria, represented by the Minister of Railways and Canais of Canada, to erect and complete
a combined passenger and freight building at North Bend; one at Chinaman's Ranche, and one
at Pennie's, on the Canadian Pacifie Railway, in British Columbia. Also between Wilson
and McCrady and Her Majesty Queen Victoria, represented by the Minister of Railways
and Canais of Canada, to erect a ten-stall engine house on the station ground of the Canadian
Pacifie Railway at North Bend, British Columbia. Also between Messrs. Head, Wrightson
& Company and Her Majesty Queen Victoria, represented by the Minister of Railways and
Canais of Canada, to supply iron piles, caps and points for the Canadian Pacifie Railway
Wharf at Port Moody, British Columbia. Presented to the House of Commons, 19th March,
1886, by Hon. J. H. Pope..................................................Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

:35d. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 5th March, 1886, for copies of all correspondence between the Government, or any member
of the Government, with the Canadian Pacifie Railway Company and the North Shore Rail-
way Company, and between the two companies concerning the prolongation of the line of the
Canadian Pacifie Railway to the harbor of Quebec; of all contracts between the said two
railway companies in reference to the saine; of all Orders in Council passed in reference to the
saine ; together with a statement of ail moneys paid by the Government, and of the names of
the persons to whom such payments were made, also in reference to the saine, and in con-
formity with the Acts 47 Victoria, chapter 8, and 48-49 Victoria, chapter 58. Presented to the
House of Commons, 15th April, 1886.-Mr. Laurier..............Prîntedfor Sessional Papers only.

35e. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for copies of any
agreements or contracts entered into between the Canadian Pacifie Railway Company and the
Northern Railway Company of Canada, and the Hamilton and North-Western Railway Com-
pany as lessees of the Northern and Pacifie Junction line from Gravenhurst to Callander,
providing for through rates and fares and proper traffic arrangements for freight and pas-
sengers over the line of the Canadian Pacific Railway, as stipulated in the agreement of 12th
April,"j1884, under which the Government granted the subsidy of $12,000 per mile for the
construction of the railway from Gravenhurst to Callander. Presented to the House of
Commons, 15th April, 1886.-Mr. Edgar.............................Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

35f. Copies of letters from James A. Dickey, Office of Government Inspecting Engineer, summit of
the Selkirks, enclosing extracts from diary, as to weather reports, snow-slides, etc. Presented
to the House of Commons, 3rd May, 1886, by Hon. J. H. Pope-

Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

36. Return under Act 48-49 Victoria, chapter 3, intituled: " An Act to provide for the taking of
the Census in the Province of Manitoba, the North-West Territories aad the District of Kee-
watin." Presented to the House of Commons, 9th March, 1886, by Hon. J. Carling-

Printedfor Sessional Papes. only.

Sea. Report of expenditure incurred on account of the Census of 1881, required by the " Census
and Statistics Act, 1879." Also a report of all things done and expenditure made under the
Act 48-49 Victoria, chapter 3, intituled : " An Act to provide for the taking of a Census in the
Province of Manitoba, the North-West Territories and the District of Keewatin." Presented
to the House of Commons, 15th March, 1886, by Hon. J. Carling..........................ffotprinte.l

12
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36b. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 31st March, 1886, for a copy of the appointment of Angus McDonald, of Upper Washa-
buck, Victoria county, N.S., as census enumerator in 1881; also copies of all correspondence
between the Government, or any member thereof, and any other person relative to the cancel-
lation thereof. Presented to the House of Commons, 29th April, 1886.- Mr. Kirk....Not printed.

37. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 30th March, 1885, for a Return showing
the number of persons who, on the 30th June, 1884, had deposits in the Post Office Savings
Bank of the following amounts:-Number having sums not exceeding $100; number having
sums between $100 and $300; number having sums between $300 and $500; number having
Sums between $500 and $1,000; and (if any) number having sums exceeding $1,000, and the
amoutnt (if any) of the several sums exceeding $1,000, and in each class giving the number of
males and females depositing, also the Province in which the deposit was made, and the same
information in all respects regarding depositors in the Government Savings Banks. Presented
to the flouse of Commons, 9th March, 1886.-Mr. Fairbank.................................Notprinted.

3 7a. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for a Return showing
the anount held by the Government, through the several savings banks and Post Office
Savings Banks throughout the Dominion, on the 30th June last, giving the location of each
savings bank or Post Office Savings Bank, aüd the sum held by the Government through each
seParately. Presented to the House of Commons, 'rth May, 1886.-Mr. McMullen....Notprinted.

as. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for a statement showing:
1. The number of lots sold in the township of Viger, Témiscouata, belonging to the Indians,
the amount of the sale and the name of the purchaser. 2. The payments made to the Depart-
ment, to the agent, Mr. G. H. Deschêne, and to Mr. Antoine LeBel, showing in detail the date
of such payments, when made and the amount of each payment. 3. A detailed statement of
the anounts transmitted to the Department by Messrs. D>eschêne and LeBel, out of all moneys
received by them up to date, and the date of such transmission. 4. Copies ot the report of Mr.
Dingman, on the occasion of his visit to the Viger agency, in September, 1884. 5. Copies of
correspondence with the Department in relation to the claims of Edouard Morin, and others,
for lands purchased by them in the said Indian Reserve. Presented to the fouse of Commons,
9th March, 1886.--Mr. De St. Georges.................................. Not printed.

38a. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for copies of minutes
of the councils held by the Six Nation Indian chiefs during the month of December, 1885.
Presented to the flouse of Commons, 22nd March, 1886.-Hr. Paterson (Brant).....ot printed.

386. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 4th March, 1886, for a Return showing the amounts of money paid to Chief Kah-ke-wa-
quo-na-by (otherwise known as Chief Jones) editor of " The Indian Newspaper," during the
past four years, with a statement of the services rendered for such payments, and all corres-
pondence and Orders in Council in connection therewith. Presented'to the House of Commons,
23rd March, 1886.-Mr. Somerville (Brant) .....................................-------.----------. Not printed.

ase. Return ( inpart) to an Address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General, dated
16th April, 1885, for copies of all correspondence between the Government of the United-States
and that of Canada, relative to the presence of American Indians on Canadian soil, all com-
nnications from officers of the Mounted Police upon that subject, and all Orders in Council

or Departmental instructions relating thereto, which have not already been published in the
Annual Report of the Indian Branch of the lepartment of the Interior. Also an estimate of
the increase or decrease of the Indian population of the North-West, based upon the numbers
who were paid at the varions treaties made in 1871, and subsequent years, and the number now
paid; such information regarding the number of Indians who have adopted agricultural pur-
suits not hitherto printed, and copies of complaints (if any) from the Aborigines Protection
Society, the bishops and clergy of the varions missionary bodies in the North-West, and froim
others, regarding the treatment of the Indians of the North-West. Also an approximate
estimate of the cost of -food supplies furnished to these Indians since Treaty No. 1, in 1871.
Presenïted to the Senate, 23rd March, 1886.-Hon. Mr. Yehultz.... .... Not printed.

.13



.49 Victoria. List of Sessional Papers.

Sd. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 8th March, 1886, for reports made by
persons not in the service of the Government to whom samples of flour for the Indians in the
North-West were submitted for inspection during the years 1883, 1884, and 1885. Presented
to the House of Commons, 12th April, 1886.-Mr. Paterson (Brant).....................Not printed.

38e. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 31st March, 1886, for a copy of the Order in Council appointing certain persons as
inspectors or commissioners of Indian Affairs in the North-West in the year 1878, together with
the report, if any, of said inspectors or commissioners. Presented to the House of Commons,
14th April, 1886.-Mr. Landercin ................................................................... Not printed.

3Sf. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General, of
the 4th March, 1886, for a Return showing copies of all reports, communications, letters or
other papers from any Government agent or other person, to any member of the Government
or to any Department of the Government, since the first of April, 1882, referring to the insuffi-
ciency of the food, either as to quality or quantity, supplied by the Government to any Indians
in the North-West Territories, or referring to the case of any North-West Indians who may
have suffered or died from starvation. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th April, 1886.
-M r. M ulock ................................................................................................... N ot printed.

38g. Return to agi Order of the House of Commons, dated lst April, 1886, for copies of all corres-
pondence between the Superintendent-General of Indian Affaire, or any official of the Indian
Department, or the revising officer for West Elgin, and Mr. Beattie, Indian Agent for the
Indian Reserve in the township of Orford, in regard to his duties or action in connection with
the registration of Indian voters, or as to the qualification of any Indian. Presented to the
House of Commons, 21st April, 1886.--Mr. Casey..........................Not printed.

ash. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for a Return showing:
1. A copy of all contracts with I. G. Baker & Co. for supplies agreed t be furnished by them
to the Indians for the years 1884 and 1885. 2. A copy of all accounts for such supplies for said
years by said I. G. Baker & Co. Presented t the House of Commons, 28th April, 1886.-fr.
Cameron (Huron) ............................. .............................................................. N t printed.

3si. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 8th March, 1886, for a Return of aIl
statements and estimates made by the Department of Indian Affairs, of moneys due to Indians
under the Robinson Treaty; also of all correspondence and documents whatever in relation to
the same subject. Presented to the flouse of Commons, 4th May, 1886.-Mr. Dawson-

Not printed.
39. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 8th April, 1885, for a statement of all

sums entered in the Public Accounts of Canada as having been expended for railways, canals
and navigation in British Columbia, the North-West Territories, Keewatin, Manitoba, Ontario,
Quebec, New Brunswick, Prince Edward Island, Nova Scotia proper, and Cape Breton Island,
up t the lst January, 1885; also the superficies and population of each of the said divisions of
Canada respectively. Presented to the House of Commons, 9th March, 188.-Mr. Vanasse-

Printedfor Sessional Paper only.

40.Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for a Return of all
moneys received by the Government as export duty levied on oak, pine and spruce loge since
Confederation, up to lot January, 1885, showing the amounts received from each shipping
point where such duties were levied, giving in detail the amounts collected each year, and
giving the names of each person from whom duties have been collected, and also the amounts
he or she has paid each year. Presented t the House of Commons, 9th March, 1886.-Mr.
Edgar....................................... .............. ............. Net printed.

41. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 12th March, 1885, for copies of all reports, Orders in Council and correspondence, net
already ordered, on the subject of the effect of the decision of the Supreme Court as t the
License Act of -1883, and of the steps to be taken t review the same, and of the steps to be
taken underthe Act meanwhile, With copies of alLletters or telegrams t the commissioners or
iRspectors*giving ,themiistructions as t 'their conduct or action, or information as t the
intentions or action of theGoverument. Presented t the fHouse of Commons, 9th March,
1886.-Hr. Blake....................................... . ............ Printedfor Sesaional Papers only.

A. 1886
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41a. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 2nd March, 1885, for the number and title of all causes entered for argument upon the
docket of the Supreme Court of New Brunswick in banco, the date of each entry thereof, the
date of the argument of each cause, and the date when judgment was given in each cause, the
Return to include all causes from lst May, 1879, to 31st December, 1884, and to specify the
causes in which questions arising under the provisions of the Canada Temperance Act of 1878
or the Liquor License Act of 1883 were involved, and the cities or counties in which said
actions were brought or such questions were first raised. Presented to the House of Commons,
3]st March, 1886.- Mr. Foster.................. ......................................................... N otprinted.

41b. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 19th April, 1886, for a statement of the names of all cases in which judgment has been
given by the Supreme Court of Canada, the reports of which have not yet been published,
together with the respective dates on which such judgments were delivered. Presented to the
House of Commons, 1lth May, 1886.-Mr. Barker...............................................Notprinte.

42. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 1st March, 1886, for a Return in the form
used in the statements usually published in the Gazette, of the exports and imports from the
lst day of July, 1884, to the 1st day of February, 1885, and from the 1st day of July, 1885, to
the 1st day of February, 1886, distinguishing the products of Canada and those of other
countries. Presented to the House of Commons, 9th March, 1886.-Sir Richard Cartwright-

. Notprinted.

43. Returu to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated lst March, 1886, for a copy of the report of the medical men appointed by the Govern-
ment to enquire into the mental condition of Louis Riel, after his conviction. Presented to the
House of Commons, 9th March, 1886.-Mr. Cour8ol-

Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

48a. Memorandum of Sir Alexauder Campbell in the case of Louis Riel, convicted of treason and
executed therefor. Presented to the House of Commons, lth March, 1886, by Hon. J. A.
Chapleau................................................Printed for bot/h Distribution and Sessional Papert.

43b. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 5th March, 1886, for copies of all commissions, letters, telegrams or instructions what-
soever, given, furnished or sent by the Government, by any minister or ministers, or any
officer of the Department of Justice, to His Honor Mr. Justice Hugh Richardson, in relation to
the trial of Louis Riel at Regina. Also copies -of any instructions given to any person whom-
soever on the staff of the court presided over by the said judge, and to the counsel representing
the Government at the said trial. Presented to the House of Commons, 12th March, 1886.-
Mr. Amyot....... .................. Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

43c. Return to an Address of the flouse of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 3rd March, 1886, for copies of all documents forming the record in the case of Her Mjesty
against Louis Riel, tried at Regina, including the jury list, the names of the jurors challenged
and by whom they were challenged, the list of the jurors empannelled, the motions and affi-
davits filed, the evidence, the incidents of the trial, the addresses of counsel and of the
prisoner, the charge of the judgei the names of the judges or assistant judges who tried the
case, the names of the counsel for the prosecution and for the defence; and, in short, of every
document whatsoever relating to the trial, and also of the verdict and of the recommendation
to the mercy of the court. Presented to the House of Commons, 15th March, 1886.-Mr.
Amyot .................................................. Printedfo- both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

41d. Return to an Address of the House of Oommons to His Excellency the Governor Generàl,
dated 4th March, 1886, for: 1. A copy of the âho-thand notes of the application to postpone
the trial of Louis Riel for one inonth from the 21st July, 1886; the arguments of prisoner's
counsel in favor of and the arguments of the Crown counsel against snch postponement, and
the observations and decisions or ratings of the judge thereon. 2. The shorthand notes o
that portion of Charles Nolin's cassa-xaminationwherein Riel's counsel endeavored to estab-
lish Riel's insanity ; RiePa proteats against that line of defence and his desire to dispense with
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the services of his counsel; and the arguments of counsel and the observations and decisions
or rulings of the judge thereon. Presented to the House of Commons, 15th March, 1886.- Mr.
Cameron (Huron)....................................Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

4se. Petitions addressed to His Excellency the Governor General:-Of A. B. Dunnet, and others,
of Regina, N.W. T., and of A. Q. Hamilton, and others, of Moosomin, N.W.T., severally pray-
ing that the sentence passed upon Louis Riel be not disturbed in any way; that the )nw be
permitted to take its course, and that Executive clemency be refused. A communication
signed by James Boddy, district secretary, on behalf of the Loyal Orange Association of West
Toronto, urging the carrying out of the sentence of death passed upon Louis Riel. Also a
letter addressed to the Honorable the Privy Council, signed by Charles O'Hara, of Cran-
bourne, in the province of Quebec, laborer, setting forth the necessity of the carrying out of
the sentence of death passed upon Louis Riel. Presented to the House of Commons, 18th
March, 1886, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau........Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

4sf. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 4th March, 1886, for copies of all petitions, communications and representations in favor
of the commutation of the sentence of Louis Riel. Presented to the House of Commons, 23rd
March, 1886.-Mr. Laurier........................Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

43g. The Queen versus Louis Riel, accused and convicted of the crime of high treason. Report of'
the trial at Regina; Appeal to the Court of Queen's Bench, Manitoba; Appeal to the Privy
Council, England; Petition for medical examination of the convict; List of petitions for com-
mutation of sentence. Presented to the House of Commons, 1lth March, 1886, by Hon. J. A.
Chapleau........................................................................ ....... Printedfor D istribution only.

4s. Return (in part) to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for copies of
all papers found in the council room of the insurgents, or elsewhere at Batoche, especially
including: 1. The diary of Louis Riel. 2. The minute book and Orders in Council of the
insurgent council. 3. The correspondenoe of Louis Riel. Presented to the House of Commons,
17th May, 1886.-Mr. Laurier............................................Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

ami. Supplementary Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th Marcb, 1886, for
copies of all papers found in the council room of the insurgents, or elsewhere at Batoche,
especially including: 1. The diary of Louis Riel. 2. The minute book and Orders in Council
of the insurgent council. 3. The correspondence of Louis Riel. Presented to the House of
Commons, 17th May, 1886.-Mr. Laurier............................Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

44. Report of the Commissioner, Dominion Police, in compliance with the Act 31 Victoria, chapter
73. Presented to the House of Commons, 11th March, 1886, by Hon. J. S. D. Thompson-

Not printed.

4aa. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1886, for a Return showing
the names and number of those who acted as police scouts during the North-West insurrection;
also the names of those who have since applied for a land grant bounty for said services, the
same as that given to the volunteers. Presented to the House of Commons, 11th May, 1886.-
M r. Sproule .................................... ................................................................ N otprinted.

45. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 5th March, 1886, for copies of all Orders in Council in relation to the Half-breed prisoners
in the North-West, passed during the three months next preceding the 16th November, 1885.
Presented to the House of Commons, 11th March, 1886.-Mr. Desaulniers (Maskinong)..-

Notprinted.

45. Return to an Order of the flouse of Gommons, dated 4th March, 1886, for a Return showing
the number of Half-breeds of the North-West Territories who proved their claims before the
Commission at.Fort Qu'Appelle, Touchwood Hills, Qu'Appelle Valley, Regina, Maple Creek,
Calgary, Fort McLeod, Pincher Creek, Edmonton, St. Albert, Fort Saskatchewan, Victoria,
Fort Pitt, Battleford, Prince Albert, Batoche, Duck Lake, Forks of Saskatchewan, Fort à la
Corne, Cumberland House, Moose Jaw and Willow Branch, in the North-West Territories;
also at Grand Rapids, in Keewatin, and Winnipeg andGriswold, in Manitoba, giving in each

16



49 Victoria. List of Sessional Papers. A. 1886

case the number of heads of families and minors; also the number of males and females ; also
copies of ail the petitions filed in the Department of the Interior praying that grievances be
redressed, with the names of such petitioners, distinguishing those who had their claims
already settled in Manitoba and those who had not.; also the number of Manitoba Half-breeds
who proved their claims prior to the 20th of April last on the supplementary list, and those
vho have proved their claims since that date. Presented to the House of Commons, 24th

March, 1886 -- M1r. ROîs............................Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

45b. Supplementary Return to an Order of the House of Communs, dated 7th March, 1883, for
copies of ail correspondence and memorials relating to the claims of the inhabitants of Prince
Albert, and the neighboring districts in the North-West Territories, in respect of the lands
they occupy, and to other mlatters affecting their condition. Presented to the House of
Commons, 5th April, 1886.-Mr. Blake......Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

45c. Return to an Address of the Bouse of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 14th April, 1886, tor copies of all the depositions or other evidence submitted in favor of
Half-breeds or Metis sentenced to inprisoniment in thc gaol at Regina and in the Provincial
Penitentiary of Manitoba ; and also ail depositions submitted on behalf of André Nault and
Abraham Monteur, Metis prisoners confined at Regina and Battleford. Presented to the House
of Commons, 17th May, 1886. -Mr. Mills.................. ...... Printedfor Sessional Paper8 only.

46. Return to an Order of the Iouse of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for a Return showing, in
detail, sums borrowed by way of temporary loan by the Government, on lst March, 1886, from
banks or other parties, in Canada or elsewhere. Presented to the Bouse of Commons, 1lth
March, 1886.- Sir Richard Cartwright...............................................................N ot printed.

47. Return to an Address Of the House of Commons to bis Excellency the Governor General,
dated 9th March, 1885, for copies of ail memorials and papers presented to the Government, or
any mniember thereof, relating tO the Canada Temperance Act by deputations, on Thursday,
the 19th February last. Presented to the House of Commons, 11th March, 1886.-Mr. Kranz-

Not printed.

4 7a. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for a Return showing
the amount paid P. M. Bartker, of Orangeville, returniug officer under the Canada Temperance
Act for the county of Dulierin, Ontario, for the vote taken uner the provisions of said Act on
the 30th day of October, 1884, giving a detailed statement of his accouat and the amount paid
him, giving each item separately. Presented to the House of Commons, 15th March, 1886.-
M r. M chM ullen.......................................... .. ................................... N ot printed.

47b. Return to an Order of the Bouse of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a Retura showing
the amount paid to P. Rt. Jarvis, Esq., of the city of Stratford, county of Perth, returning
officer under the 'emperance Act for the county of Perth, Ontario, for the vote taken under
the provisions of the Act on the 18th day of June, 1885 ; a detailed statement of ail monies
paid to such returning officer, for what purpose, and tu whom paid by him. Presented to
the H ouse of Commons, 15ti April, 1886. -Mr. Trow........... ........................ Notprinted.

47c. Leturn to an Order of the House Of Commons, dated 28th April, 1886, for a Return showing
the number of' establishments n1ow in opcration in Canada in which liquors of all kinds are
manufactured; tic number of hands employed ; the amount of capital invested, and wages
paid to employees during the year ending 31st December, 1885. Presented to the Bouse of
Commons, 6th May, 1886.--Mr. Robert son (Shelburne).........................................Not printed.

47d. Return to an Order of the Bouse of Commons, dated 28th April, 1886, for a statement showing
the amount of liquor of ail kinds malufactured in Canada during the year 1885; the amount
ut sane exported, and the estimated value of same. Presented to the bouse of Commons,
6th May, 1886.-Mr. Robertson (Shelburne) ......- -............. .............................. No printed.

4 7e. Returu to an Order of the Bouse of Commons, dated 28th April, 1886, for a statement showing
the amount of liquor of ail kinds imported into Canada during the year 1885, and duties
collected for sane. Presented to the House of Commus, 1lth May, 1886.-Mr. Robertson

(l/ebre.................... .lié ... bè................ ...... 'g priUoc4.
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CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 13.
48. The Civil Service List of Canada, on the 1st July; 1885, under the 59th section of the Civil

Service Act. Presented to the Bouse of Commons, 3rd May, 1886, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau-
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

48a. A Return of the names and salaries of ail persons appointed to or promoted in the Civil
Service during the year ending 1885, specifyiig the office to which each has been appointed or
promoted. (Section 58, sub-section 2, " Civil Service Act.") Presented to the House of
Commons, 15th March, 1886, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau......... Printedfor Sessional P>apers only.

4Û. Detailed statement of ail bonds and securities registered in the Department of the Secretary of
State of Canada, in conformity with the Act 31 Victoria, chapter 37, section 15. Presented to
the House of Commons, 12th March, 1886, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau.......................Not printed.

50. Return of expenditure under appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expens.es and losses arising
out of the:troubles in the North-West Territories, from lst July, 1885, to 15th March, 1886; and
subsidiary statement, " Hudson Bay Company's Supplies." Presented to the House of
Conmons, 30th March, 1886, by Hon. A. W. McLelan-

Printedfor both Distribution and Sesional Paper.

5oa. lleport of the Board of Examiners for the Civil Service in Canada, for the year ended 31st
December, 1885. Presented to the louse Of Commons, 19th April, 1886, by Hon. J. A.
Chapleau..........................Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Paper.

51. Return to an Order of the House Of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for copies of ahl corres-
pondence, reports, recommendations and representations received at, and sent from, the
Departmeut of Customs since the year A.D. 1880 to this day, on the subject of the Richibucto
harbor, the Customs business done thereat, and in any way relating to the Customs service
thereat, including ail claims made for extra services by or on behalf of any preventive officer
of the ports of Richibucto and Kingston. Presented to the House of Commons, 15th March,
1886.-Mr. Landry (Kent)..........................................Not printed.

51a. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 5th March, 1886, for copies of ail corres-
pondence with the Departfhent of Public Works relative to protection required to the north of
Smith's Island to prevent the total destruction of Port Hood harbor, Inverness, N.S.; also a
copy of the engineer's report thereon. Presented to the House of Commons, 31st March, 1886.
-Mr. Cameron (Inverness)..........................................Not printed

o5b. IReturn to an Order of the flouse of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for copies of ahl corres-
pondence between the Municipal Council of Bayfield or other persons and the Department of
Public Works, in reference to the repairs to the harbor of Bayfield. Presented to the louse of
Commons, 6th April, 1886.-;ir Richard Cartwrig ht ........................................... ot printed

59. Return to an Address of the louse of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 5th March, 1886, for copies of all documents forming the record in the cases of Her
Majesty against the different parties tried in connection with the late rebellion, including the
jury lists, the names of the jurors, the lists of the jurors empannelled, the motions and affi-
davits filed, the evidence, the incidents of the trial, the charges of the judge, the names of the
judges who tried the different cases, the names of the counsel for the prosecution and for the
defence, the pleas entered, the verdicts and the sentences, and, in short, of every document
whatever relating to the said trials. Presented to the House of Commons, 15th March, 1886.
.-Mr. Laurier ......................................... Printed for b oth Distribution and Seesional Paper.

»9a e b. A Supplementary Return and afinal Supplementary Return to an Address of the House
of commons to fis Excellency the Goveror General, dated 5th March, 1886, for copies of ahl
documents forming the record in the cases of Her Majesty against the different parties tried in
connection with the late rebellion, including the jury lists, the names of the jurors, the lists of
the jurors empannelled, the motions and affidavits filed, the evidence, the incidents of the trial,

q çjarges Qf the judge, the names of the judges whQ trie4 the dfizrent Ç*ses, the 4ames Qf
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the counsel for the prosecution and for the defence, the pleas entered, the verdicts and the
sentences, and, in short, of every document whatever relatIng to the said trials. Presented to
the House of Commons, 19th March, 188.-Mr. Laurier-

Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

52c. Message from His Excellency the Governor General, transmitting copies of certain letters of
a confidential character respecting the rebellion in the North-West Territories during the year
1885. Presented;to the House of Commons, 29th March, 1886, by Hon. Mr. Speaker-

Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

52d. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a'Return showing
all sums of moncy paid to any member or members of this House or the Senate, on account of
services rendered in connection with the North-West rebellion, giving the names. the services
performed and the respective sums paid each, the date at which the services commenced and
terminated ; also all sums paid on account of travelling expenses, outfit or otherwise, giving
each name, amount paid, what for, and date of payment, separately. Presented to the House
of Commons, 1lth May, 1886.-Mr. MIciMullen. .................................................... Notprinted.

52e. Return to an Address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 5th April,

1886, for a Return setting forth the total amount of the claims which have been already
acknowledged by the Government for losses sustained by the Tludson Bay Company and
private parties, arising out of the North-West rebellion, up to the Ist March, 1886, giving the
names and amounts. Presented to the Senate, 20th May, 1886.-Hon. Mr. Alexander-

Not printed.

52f. Return to an Address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 7th April,
1886, for copies of the commission or commissions, and instructions issued to the commissioners
appointed to, enquire into and report upon the losses sustained in the North-West Territories
during the recent rebellion. Presented to the Senate, 20th'May, 1886.-Hon. Mr. Power-

Printedfor Sessional Papera onlye

53. The Governor General transmits to the House of Commons, copies of despatches and other

papers with reference to the transfer of Cape Race lighthouse and steam fog-whistle from the

Imperial Government to the Government of the Dominion of Canada. Presented to the House
of Commons, 19th March, 1886, by Hon. G. E. Foster..........................................Notprinted.

53a. Return to an Address of the louse of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 19th April, 1886, for copies of all correspondence and telegrams between the Government
of Canada, or any member thereof, and the late superintendent of Scatterie fog-whistle, and
any other person or persons, and any Order or Orders in Council relative to the dismissal or
resignation of the said superintendent and the appointment of his successor. Presented to the
fouse of Commons, 2nd June, 1886.-Kr. Kirk.................................................. Notprinted.

54. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 4th Marcb, 1886, for copies of instructions or circulars issued to revising officers in
regard to the performance of their duties under the Electoral Franchise Act of 1885. Presented
to the House of Commons, 22nd March, 1886.-3r. Casey....................................Not printed.

55. General statements and returns of baptisms, marriages and burials in the districts of Iberville,
Montmagny and Quebec, for the year 1885. Presented.to the House of Commons, 22nd March,

'1886. General statements and returns of baptisms, marriages and burials in the districts of
Arthabaska, Gaspé, Kamouraska, Saguenay and Terrebonne, for the year 1885. Presented to
the House of Commons, 19th April, 1886, by Hon. Mr. Speaker. Returns for the district of St.
Francis ; presented 2nd June, 1886....................................................................N ot printed.

56. Statement of the affairs of the Britis'i Canadian Loan and Investment Company, on 31st
December, 1885. Presented to the House of Commons, 22nd March, 1886, by Hon. Mr. Speaker.

*Not printed.
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57. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to Ris Excellency the Governor General,
dated 28th March, 1884, for a statement showing the amount of bonuses that have been granted
for railway purposes by the townships of Artemesia, Bentinck, Egremont, Glenelg, Normanby
and the town of Durham ; also for statement showing the amount expended by the Provincial
Government in aid of railways within said townships. Presented to the House of Commons,
24th March, 1886.-Kr. Thompson (IHaldimand).................................................Not printed.

58. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 8th March, 1886, for a Return of the
expenditure made by the St. John Bridge and Railway Extension Company on their railway
and bridge connecting the Intercolonial and New Brunswick Railway, together with a state-
ment of the amounts advanced by the Government to the said company, and the dates of such
advances. Presented to the House of Commons, 24th March, 1886.-Mr. Weldon...Not printed.

59. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 1st March, 1886, for copies of all petitions or memorials received by the Government,
since the lst January, 1882, from riparian owners on the Richelieu river, complaining that the
piers constructed in the said river near the towns of St. John and Iberville by the Stanstead,
Shefford and Chambly Railway Company raise the waters of the said river, and that their
lands are consequently flooded, and praying for relief. Presented to the House of Commons,
24th March, 1886.-Mr. Béchard.......................................Not printed.

60. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 30th March, 1885, for a copy of the report of the commissioners appointed to enquire
into the claims of the merchants and fishermen of Prince Edward Island for a refund of duties
paid by them in the years 1871 and 1872, on fish exported to the United States. Also all
instructions furnished to said commissioner, and all correspondence between the commissioner
and the Government, or any of the Departments, relating to the said refund, or the evidence
or report of the said commissioner. Presented to the House of Commons, 24th March, 1886.-
M r. M ills........................................----......................... .......... ................ N ot p rinted.

61. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 2nd February, 1885, for a Return
showing : lst. The total number of timber licenses or permits to cut timber granted since lst
February, 1883, and the total area covered by such licenses or permits. 2nd. The total
amount of bonuses or premiums paid on such licenses or permits. 3rd. The name and residence
of each grantee of a timber license or permit ; the number of the license or permit ; the area
covered by each; the date of application for the same; the bonus or premium per square mile
paid upon each ; whethei the survey of each berth or area covered by license or permit was
made by the Government previous to granting the same, for the purpose of obtaining informa-
tion as to its value; and the information, if any, in the possession of the Government as to the
quantity, quality and kind of timber upon each ; also the location of each berth or limit; also
the names of all assignees of such licenses, and the consideration expressed in the assignment.
4th. The Crown dues or stumpage charged or chargeable on each license or permit. 5th.
Whether in each case where a license or permit was granted the berth was first put up at
public auction after public notice inviting tenders was given, and was sold to the highest
bidder, or whether granted upon application from the grantee without public competition
being invited. 6th. Copies of all petitions, remonstrances, claims or communications sent or
made to the Government respecting such timber licenses or permits ; and copies of all corres-
pondence had with the Government respecting such lands, licenses or timber, and the action
of the Government thereon. Presented to the House of Commons, 24th March, 1886.-Mr.
Charlton ................................................................................... . ................... N ot p r inted.

6la. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for copies of corres-
pondence between the Indians of the Fort William Reserve, or anyone on their behalf, and the
Indian Department, and between the Indian Department and Indian agent, whether by tele-
graph or otherwise, on the subject of the action taken under the existing timber licenses.
Presented to the House of Commons, lst April, 1886.--Mr. Blake.........................Notprinted.

6ib. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1886, showing the names of
the persons who respectively owe the arrears of $43,860.95, on account of cullers' fees, which
appear to be according to the Report of the Department of the Interior for the year 1885, at
page 23. Presented.to.the House of Commons, 10th May, 1886.-AIr. Casgrain.....Not printed.
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61c. Return to an Address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 16th
July, 1885, for copies of all memorials, letters or telegrams, addressed to the Department of
the Interior or any member of the Privy Council, respecting the land and timber regulations
affecting Dominion Lands in British Columbia. Presented to the Senate, 20th May, 1886.-
B on. Mfr. M cInnes ................................................................................... ......... N otp rinted.

62. Reports of the Chief Engineer and General Manager, Government Railway1 ; the Dominion
Government Agent in British Columbia; and the Engineer who personally srected the
Esquimalt and Nanaimo Railway. Presented to the louse of Commons, 2nd April, 1EE6 by
Hon. J. H. Pope................................Prited for Seesio ic.Parers only.

62q. Copies of telegraphie communications respecting the Esquimalt and Naniaim: railway. Pre-
sented to the House of Commons, 5th April, 1886, by Hon. J. H. Pope-

Pri ted for Sessional Papers only.

63. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a copy of the
report made F. N. Gisborne in February, 1885, on the application of the inhabitants of Bryer
and Long Islands, Digby county, for telegraphic communication with the mainland. Pre-
sented to the House of Commons, 5th April, 1886.-Mr. Vail...............................Not printed.

64. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a statement, in
detail, of the several assets forming the sum of $72,791,837, stated by the Minister of Finance
to be available in reduction of the gross debt of the Dominion. Presented to the House of
Commons, 5th April, 1886.-Mr. Charlton..Priited for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

65. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 27th April, 1885, for copies of all memorials or papers relating to reciprocal trade
between the United States and Canada, and of all correspondence between the Government
of Canada and the British Government, the British Minister at Washington, or the Govern-
ment of the United States, upon the subject of reciprocal trade relations with the United
States; also copies of all reports, if any, made by agents of the Canadian Governtnent upon
the same subject. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th April, 1886.-mr. Charlton-

Not prinited.

66. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for a Return of the
rolling stock repaired at the Government workshops at Moncton for the Intercolonial Railway
during the year ending 31st December, 1885; also of the rolling stock of the said railway
repaired at other workshops during the same period, the places where such repairs were made,
and the amounts paid. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th April, 1886.-Mr. Weldoe--

Not printed.

6 6a. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for a Return of the
number of private or official cars built or purchased for the Intercolonial Railway since the
year 1878, and the cost of each car. Presented to the House of Commons, 12th April, 1886.-
M ,. W eldon ...........................- ...... -..... ...................................................... N otp linted .

66b. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for a Return showing
the quantity of rolling stock purchased for the Intercolonial Railway during the last six
months of the year ending 31st December, 1885, giving each kind of rolling stock, and whether
purchased under contract or otherwise, the parties from whom bougit and the cost of each
kind. Also a statement showing what has been built in Government workshops of each kind.
Presented to the House of Commons, 14th April, 1886. -.Mr. Weldon .................... Notp. inted.

66c. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for a Return showing
the cost and monies expended upon the rail way station building in St. John, N.B., and of the
furniture and fittings therein, the amount of the several contracts, names of contractors, and
the place of manufacture of such furniture and fittings. Presented to the House of Commons,
15th April, 1886.-lr. Wêldon......... ............................... Not printed.21
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66d. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for copies of a report
made by Mr. Joseph Simard, Dominion Arbitrator, under date of 16th October, 1883, recom-
mending that a sum of money should be paid to George Lavoie, of the parish of Ste. Cêcile du
Bic, for damages caused to bis property by the Intercolonial Railway, or fixing the amount of
such damages. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd May, 1886.-Mr. Langelier-

Not printed.
66e. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 14th April, 1886, for c·opies of all docu-

ments addressed to the Honorable the Minister of Railways, praying, on the part of Jean
Baptiste Plante, of St. Charles, that lis claim for two horses killed on the Intercolonial Rail-
way may be referred anew to the Dominion Arbitrators. Presented to the House of Commons,
6th May, 1886.- Hr. Amyo ................. ........................ ..... ............................. ot printed.

60f. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 28th April, 1886, for copies of the award
or report of the Dominion Arbitrators, with the evidence and papers connected therewith, in
the matter of claims in connection with section 16 of the Intercolonial Railway, on the part of
the estate of the late John Bannon, Esq. ; the late William Muirhead, Esq. ; William Wilkin-
son, Esq., and the other claims investigated at the same time as those named above, and
connected with the said report or award. Presented to the louse of Commons, 31st May,
1886.-Mr. Mitchell ......................................................... Printed for Sessional Pape -r only.

68g. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for a Return showing
the quantity of stores purchased and taken into stock for the Intercolonial Railway during the
last six months of the year ending 31st December, 1885, specifying what stores and of what
kind purchased under contract, and the names of the several contractors, and the several
amounts paid under such contracts. Presented to the House of Commons, 31st May, 1886.-
M r. W eldon..................................... .....- .............. .................. N ot printed.

66A. Return to an Order of the flouse of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a Return of the
earnings and working expenses of the Intercolonial Railway for each month from 1st July,1885, to 1st February, 1886, specifying the different sources of earnings and the amount (if
any) in each month, credited from mechanical stores account to earnings. Presented to the
House of Commons, 31st May, 1886.-Mr. Weldon .............Printed for Sessional Papers only.

6si. Return to an Order of the flouse of Commons, dated 4th March, 1886, for a Return showing
the number of men employed on the Intercolonial Railway between Campbellton and Halifax
and between St. John and Shediac, including the men employed at the different stations, speci-
fying the number at each station and the men employed on the machiue shops at Moncton ; the
number and names of men dismissed or discharged from the employment of the railway since
1st October last, and the several causes of such dismissal or discharges; also any reduction of
wages payable to the employees or any of them since the first day of October last. Presented
to the House of Commons, 31st May, 1886.-itr. W ldon.......... .......... Not p: inted.

67. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,dated 8th March, 1886, for copies of all Orders in Council passed for the granting of the sub-
sidy authorized by the Acts 47 Victoria, chapter 8, and 48-49 Victoria, chapter 58, " for a linè
of railway connecting Montreal with the harbors of St. John and Halifax by the shortest and
best practicable route; " of all reports of engineers upon which said Orders in Council maybe based, together with a statement of all mones paid in connection with the same, and of all
persons to whom such payments may have been made. Presented to the House of Commons,
5th April, 1886.-lfr. Laurier............................................................................ d ot p, inted.

67a. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General
dated 1st April, 1886, for copies of all correspondence between the Government of the
Dominion of Canada and the Government of Nova Scotia, in reference to the Short Line Rail-
way in Nova Scotia, and legislation affecting the same. Presented to the House of Commons,
28th April, 1886.-M-. Tupper........................,...............0Notpri ted

67b. Report of the Chief Engineer of Government Railways, submitting the reports of Messrs.
Donken and Hyndman on Cape Breton surveys, 1886. Presented to the House of Commons,
19th May, 1886, by Hon. J. S. D. Thompson-

Printedfor both Distribution and Sessional Papers,
22
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6s. CoPY of an agreement between the Chignecto Marine Transport Railway Company (Limited)
and Her Majesty Queen Victoria, represented by the Minister of Railways and Canals of
Canada, dated 4th March, 1886. Presented < to he o1uje of Commons, 5th April, 1886, by Hon.H . Pope................................................................................................. ... N ot printed.

69. Return to an Address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 15th April,1885, for a copy of all correspondence between the Department of Justice and any member of
arliament or others in relation to the investigation which took place last summer in regardto the administration of the penitentiary of St. Vincent de Paul, and the difficulties in the

adrnnistration of the said institution. Presented to the Senate, 30th March, 1886.-Ho>. If-.elleroe . ........................................................ Notp iinted.
6 9n. Return to an Address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General, dated Ist March,1886, for a copy of a protest of the deputy warden of St. Vincent de Paul Penitentiary Téles-

phore Ouimet} objecting to the evidence of Hector Demers, summoned as a witness on the 14th
JuIy, 1884, being taken before the commission of enquiry named to enquire into the manage-
ment of the aforesaid penitentiary in 1884. Presented to the Senate, 30th March, 1886.-Hon.

rAf. B eller0  .................................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .N ot p -inted.

69b, Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 3rd March, 1886, fbr a Return showingthe iuteber of convicts in the Dominion penitentiaries for the years 1884-85, who were
employed at work that competes with free labor; the kind of work employed at; the number
emplyed at each kind of work; the number employed outside by contractors ; and the amounteceived per day by the Government for each convict so employed; and where the goods somanufactured Were disposed of. Presented to the House of Commons, 22nd April, 1886.-Mr.

.. ............ ..................................... . ................................... N otprinted.

70. Message from Bis Excellency the Governor General, transmitting copies of the several des-Patches from the Imperial Government in reference to the engineers' certificates of competency
in the Brtish mercantile marine. Presented to the House of Gommons, 9th April, 1886, by SirHector Langevm ~...-... -..... ...... ................................................................ N otprited.

71. Return to an Order of the House of Commons> dated 31st March, 1886, for a Return showingthe amount of notes of the several banks of the Dominion in circulation on the 1st March last
the amount of Dominion notes in circulation and in the hands of the banks on the same date;and the amount of gold held by the Government and the banks for the redemption of Dominionand bank notes at the same date. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th April, 1886.-Mr.

"- - ~~--......... ...... ......................... ................................................. N otprited.

72. Returi to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1885, for copies of all corres-Pooderce minutes of evidence taken, reports, memoranda or telegrams whatsoever, relatingto r cansing the dismissal of one Brenton H. Dodge, of Kentville, King's county, Nova Scotia,frorm mhe ofice of collector of the port of Kentville, Nova Scotia. Presented to the House ofGommons, 151h April, l886.--r. Mofat. .................. .............. Notprinted.
78, Retrnto an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a Return showing

oficias me at the port of Winnipeg, or any of its ouiports, by the Gustoms officers or
deposits feteen 1st January, 1885, and the lith March, 1886, in which fies were imposed,
feposj werfeipd, or goods sold after seizure; giving the names of the persons upon whomfinu Were Posed, Who forfeited deposits, or whose goods were sold after seizure; giving the
a.IOun î Of eac fine umposed, of each forfeit deposited, and of the amount obtained in each case
of whice gooda Were sold; and statihg in detail the name, official position and salary of each
opicer to Whom any part of the money so realized was paid, and the amount in each case thugpad to bhe said officer. Presented to the House of Commons, 1th April, 1886.-M-r. Paterson(B ', " "'"-.. . - - .............. ... ........................ . ...... ....... ........ o printed.

74. Retordaed to an Address of the House of Gommons to His Excellency the Governor General,
a t arc, 1886, for copies of all the evidence, together with the judge's charge, and

Papers relating to the trial of Loison Mongrain for the murder of David L. Cowan, a
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policeman, late of the county of Carleton. Also all petitions, correspondence and Orders in
Council relating to the commutation of the d2ath sentence of Loison Mongrain. Presented to
the House of Gommons, 19th April, 1886.-Mr. T ow............................................Not printed.

75. Message from His Excellency the Governor General, transmitting copies of certain despatches
from the Right Honorable the Secretary of State for the Colonies, and of other papers, with
reference to the Aspy Bay affair. Presented to the House of Commons, 20th April, 1886, by
Sir Hector Langevin.........................................................Printedfor Sessional Pape s o ly.

76. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 19th April, 1886, for copies of all despatches from or correspondence with the Imperial
Government, respecting the complaint of the Legislature or Government of Prince Edward
Island that the terms of Union between that Island and the Dominion have not been carried
out, or with respect to the mission of delegates to the Imperial Government from Prince
Edward Island on the subject of such complaint. Presented to the House of Commons, 19th
April, 1886.-Mr. àlcrntye........................Printedfo- both Distributio- and Sessional Pape 8.

76a. Supplementary Return- to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the
Governor General, dated 19th April, 1886, for copies of all despatches from or correspondence
with the Imperial Government, respecting the complaint of the Legislature or Government of
Prince Edward Island that the terms of Union between that Island and the Dominion have not
been carried out, or with respect to the mission of delegates to the Imperial Government from
Prince Edward Island on the subject of such complaint. Presented to the House of Gommons,
30th April, 1886.-Mr. McIntyre................ Printedfor both Dist'ibution and Sessiontal Pape S.

77. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a Return of names,
tonnage, number of nien and armament of steamers or sailing vessels forming the present
Marine Police Force of Canada, the extension of which is referred to in the Speech from the
Throne. Presented to the House of Commons, 22nd April, 1886.-M. Mitchell.......Notprinted.

77a. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886, for a Return of the
numbers and names of United States fishing vessels frequenting the inshores of Canada for
fishing and kindred purposes, during each of the several years that the Treaty of Washington
has been in operation; also the kinds and estimated quantities of fish taken yearly by each
American vessel, and the probable period of each fishing voyage or voyages. Presented to the
House -of Commons, 22nd April, 1886.-Mr. Mitchell............................................. Notprin ted.

77b. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 29th March, 1888, for a copy of the Report of the Minister of Marine and Fisheries to the
Privy Council under date of 15th December, 1869. Presented to the House of Gommons, 22nd
April, 1886.-Mr. Mitchell..................... .......................... Prined for Se8sional Paper8 only.

77c. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated lst April, 1886, for copies of all fishery regulations or official notices, and of instructions
to fishery officers or other persons commanding the alleged Marine Police Force of Canada,
under the Fishery Act of 1868, relative to fishng practices by United States citizens exercising
privileges conceded by the Treaty of Washington in common with Canadian fishermen, the
said copies to be accompanied by a description of the various instances and of the manner and
effect of enforcing the said regulations or notices. Presented to the House of Commons,
28th April, 1886.- M r. Mitchell........................................................................N ot printed.

'7d. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,'
dated 5th April, 1886, for copies of all correspondence between the Government of British
Columbia, or any person, and the Dominion Government, with regard to the deep-water
fisheries on the coast of British Columbia. Presented to the House of Commons, 29th April,
1886.-f.r. Shakespeare.....................................................Printedfor Sessional Papera only.

*V!e. Return to an Order of the House of Gommons, dated 19th April, 1886, for a Return giving the
number of whitefish fry at the various fish hatcheries of the Dominion for distribution next

24
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spring; also the number of pickerel and black bass ; also the instructions that have been givenfor their distribution. Presented to theHouse of Commons, lth May, 1886.-M. Go don-
Not printed.

77f. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 14th April, 1886, for copies of ail claimsfor fishing bounties by Louis Pinault and Michel Pinault, of Ste. Cécile, Bic, fishermen; of ailaffidavits or declarations in support of~the said claims; of ail correspondence in relation tosqch claims between the Department of Fisheries or any other Department of the Governmentand the said Louis Pinault and Michel Pinault or other persons; also of ail reports of fisheryoverseers in relation to the said claims. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th May, 1886.-M r. Langelie -..... .............................................................. N o t printed.

7s. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 2nd March, 1885, for a Return of the
namnes of the president, vice-president, directors (or provisional directors, as the case may be)and shareholders of the varions railway companies for whose lines subsidies have been grantedby the Parliament of Canada, and the amount of the stock held by each individual. Presentedto the Bouse of Commons, 28th April, 1886.-Kr Lister.......................................Notprinted.

7sa. Papers, corresponden ce, etc., respecting subsidies to certain railway companies, and towards
the construction of certain railways, as follows: Moncton and Buctouche Railway Company;line of railway, Ingersoll to Chatham, Ontario; Northern and Western Railway Company;the Caraquet Railway Company; Lake Erie, Essex and Detroit Railway Company; Thunder
Bay ColoIzation Railway Company; Parry Sound Colonization Railway Company; railwayfrom New Glasgow to Montcalm, Quebec; railway from Hereford to Eaton, Quebec; railwayfrom St. Félix to Lake St. Gabriel, Quebec; ràilway from Glenannan to Wingham, Ontario;railway fromn McCann Station to Joggins, Nova Scotia; railway from L'Assomption to L'Epi-phanie, Quebec; Montreal and Western Railway Company; railway from St. Andrews to
Lachute, Quebec; Canada Atlantic Railway Company; railway from Truro to Newport, NovaScotia; Quebec and Lake St. John Railway Company; Cap Rouge and St. Lawrence RailwayCompany; Long Sault to Lake Témiscamingue; Gananoque to Delta; line of railway alongStewiacke Valley ; Perth Station to Plaister Rock Island, New Brunswick; Fredericton to
Prince William, New Brunswick; Newcastle to Douglastown, New Brunswick; point on
Canadian Pacific Railway to Eganville, Ontario; Napanee, Tamworth and Quebec Railway
Company; and Albert Railway Company. Presented to the House of Commons, 27th May,1886, by Sir Hector Langevin............................................................................. e t printed

78b. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,dated ist April, 1886, for copies of ail petitions from the Legislature of Nova Scotia or anymember thereof, and the Dominion Government or any member thereof; and ail Orders in
Council of either Government, respecting the re-adjustment or increase of the money subsidypaid, or to be paid, by the Dominion Government to the Government of Nova Scotia, notalready brought down. Presented to the House of Commons, 31st May, 1886.-Mr. Kirk-

Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

79. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 14th April, 1886, for a copy of the memorial of the North-West Council presented to the
Government by Messrs. Wilson and Ross, members of said Council, and of any answer made to
said memorial and of any correspondence between the Government and the Lieutenant-Gov-
ernor of the NOrth..West Territories or other parties in reference thereto. Presented to the
House of Commons, 29th April, 1886.-Mr. Watson-

Printedfor both Distribution and Sesional Papers.

so. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for Return of names,
rank and corps of the oficers composing the Military Claims Commission, while at Winnipeg;
stating also any subsequent changes in the personnel of the ''ommission, with reasons for
the same. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd May, 1886.-Mr. Trow ........ Not printed.

»a. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 7th April, 1886, for copies of ail corres-
pondence between the Minister of Militia and Defence and any official of the Militia Depart-
3 25
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ment, and any officers of volunteer corps, whether on active service or not, all officials ofrifle associations, and other parties, in reference to the character of the ammunition made atthe Quebec Cartridge Factory and supplied for use in the field, for practice, or at rifle matches;including reports of all tests of such ammunition made by any such officers or officials of rifle
associations. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd May, 1886.-Mr. Casey......Notprinted.

Sob. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for a Return of names
of the staff paymasters appointed, showing whether non-combatants or not, with rank and
corps of such as were in the active militia; with rate of pay and length of services in al 'cases.
Presented to the House of Commons, 7th May, 1886.-Mr. Trow...........................Not printed.

SOc. Supplementary Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 7th April, 1886, for
copies of all correspondence between the Minister of Militia and Defence and any official of the
Militia Department, and any officers of volunteer corps, whéther on active service or not, all
officials of rifle associations, and other parties, in reference to the character of the ammunition
made at the Quebec Cartridge Factory and supplied for use in the field, for practice, or at rifle
matches; including reports of all tests of such ammunition made by any such officers or
officials of rifle associations. Presented to the House of Commons, 11th May, 1886.-Kr.
Casey .................................................................. ... .......................... N ot p rinted.

SOd. Statement of militia pensions, awarded by Order in Council, consequent upon the rebellion
0t 1885, North-West Territories. Presented to the House of Commons, 13th May, 1886, by Sir
Adolphe Caron..................................Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

7SOe. COpy of a Report of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by His Excellency the
Governor General in Council on the 8th July, 1885, respecting regulations as to pensions and
gratuities, rebellion, North-West Territories. Presented to the House of Commons, 13th May,
1886, by Sir Adolphe Caron................................................Pintedfor Sessiornal Papers only.

sof. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for copies of instruc-
tions to Major Bell, Major-General Laurie, S. L. Bedson, and other non-combatants, employed
during the North-West campaign, from the Minister of Militia, Major-General Middleton, or
the Adjutant-General of Militia, and of correspondence between the last-named authorities
and such non-combatants. Presented to the House of Commons, 13th May, 1886.-Mr. Trow-

Printedfor Sessional Papers only.
Sog. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for a Return showing

names of all militia officers and non-combatants appointed as transport and supply officers,
giving rank and corps of militia officers, with dates of appointment, rates of pay, by whom
appointed, and on whose recommendation, and total payments to each to date. Presented to
the House Of Commons, 14th May, 1886.-Mr. Trow...... ........ Printedfor Sessional Papera only.

S'oh. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st Marcb, 1886, for a Return of all
horses, ponies, cattle, furs, waggons, carts and other property seized by the Mounted Police or
Epeditionary Force, while on service in the North-West between 27th March and 1st August,with the disposition made of the same, the names of persons from whom such seizures werenade, and the amounts (if any) paid, received, or now payable or receivable, on account of
such property. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th May, 1886.-Mr. Trow-

Printed for Sessional Papers only.
soi. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for a Return stating

name, rank and corps of all officers composing the staff of Major-General Middleton, and thecapacity in which each served. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th May, 1886.-Mr.
row....--.-------...............................................................Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

80j. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for copies of all corres-
pondence between one James Anderson and the Minister of Militia,'Major-General Middleton,and any member of the Government, with respect to the purchasing of supplies, 'cost of trans-
port and Other expenditure incurred during the North-West Rebellion. Presented to the Houseof Commons, 14th May, 1886.-Mr. Trou.............................Pritedfor Sessional Papera only.
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SOk. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for a Return of namesof al persons employed as puchasing agents, showing when, by whom, and on whose recom-
mendation appointed, rate of pay, and length of employment. Presented to the Flouse of
Gommons, 14th May, 1886. -M. Trow.................Printedfor Sessional Papers only.

SOI. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, for a Return showing
names. o all contractors from whom teams were engaged for transport, number of teams
engaged from each, with rate of pay per day per team, and the total amount paid to each of

contractors. Presented to the House of Commons, 25th May, 1886.-Mr. Trow-
Printedfor Sesional Papers only.

som. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to Bis Excellency the Governor General,dated 31st March, 1886, for copies of all correspondence between the Government of the UnitedRingdom and the Canadian Government, or any members, officers or employees thereof,
respecting the medals to be given to the volunteers who served in the recent insurrection inthe North-West. Presented to the Flouse of Commons, 25th May, 1886.-Mr. Amyot-

Prinzted for Sessional Papera only.
81. Returu to an Address of the House of Commons to fis Excellency the Governor General,dated 19th April, 1886, for copies of all petitions, despatches and correspondence, reports to

cGuch l and Orders in Council touching upon and relating to the disallowance of railway
harters in Manitoba, not already brought down. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rdMay, 1886.---r. 'Watson............... ........... Printedfor Sesional Papers only.

.eturn to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 9th April, 1886, for a copy of the report of Mr. Justice Hensley upon the trial of Alex-afder Giis, for murder, at Charlottetown, in January last, together with a copy of the reportOf the Minister of Justice recommending a commutation of the sentence of death passed uponGillis, and all telegrams and letters upon the subject. Presented to the House of Commons,
3rd May, 18 86.-Mr. Davies............. ....... ......... ................... Notprinted.

sa. Return to an Order of the Flouse of Commons, dated 5th March, 1886, for copies of all corres-Posidence relative to the dismissal of Isaac McLeod, Esq., Strathbone, Inverness, from the
osition of postmaster at that place, including the Post Office Inspector's report. Presented

to the fouse of Commons, 3rd May, 1886.-Ar. Cameron (Inverness),...........Notprinted.

naiof an agreement between Her Majesty Queen Victoria, represented by the Minister of
1885.as and Canals, and the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, dated 7th November,Presented to the House of Commons, 6th May, 1886, by Sir Hector Langevin-

Not printed.

16. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated'29th March, 1886, for a Return givirlig :
1. Th 85umber of Chinese immigrants that have arrived in Canada from the 20th day of Aug-Ust, d , to the 3 1st day of January, 1886, specifying the ports at which such immigrants havearrivedf 2. The number that have arrived direct from China. 3. The number that havearrive d frOrm other conre
fro uountries, specifying the countries. 4. The total amount of duty collected
men of u migrants. 5. The number of Chinese that have entered as tourists, merchants,
froUm thscience or students. 6. Whether in either case (if any) cèrtificates Were presented
other re ese Government endorsed by the chargé d'affaires, consul or consular agent, or
or epresentative of Her Majesty, at the place where the same was granted, or at the port
ormiiat o departure. 7. The cost to the Department of Customs, in consequence of the

into Caion by that Department of the Act restricting and regulating Chinese immigration
societie a. 8. Copies of all the correspondence (if any) between trades unions or other
strict s, crporate or incorporate, or persons and the Department of Customs, urging more
officer Of Curson over Chinese immigration, together with complaints (if any) against any

h ol ustoms in connection with the administration of said Chinese Restriction Act. 9.
to the ousuber of Chinese persons that have left Canada during the same period. Presented

Commons, 1lth May, 1886.-Mr. Gordon.... Printedfor Sessional Papers only.
27
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87. Return to ari Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 4th March, 1886, for copies of: 1. All Orders in Council or Departmental Orders respect-
ing the putting in operation "l The Act respecting the Electoral Franchise." 2. Ail correspon-
dence between the Government or any Department of it and said revising officers. Presented

'to the louse of Commons, 25th May, 1886.-Mr. Cameron (Huron).....................Not printed.

87a. Return (in part) to an Order of the House of Gommons, dated lst April, 1886, for statements
from all revising officers in regard to the arrangements made by them for the printing of the
voters' lists in their respective electoral divisions, showing whether tenders were called for,
for such printing, or written contracts entered into for its performance, with copies of such
contracts ; names of parties with whom agreements (written or verbal) were made for such
printing, and number of times lists are to be printed ; stating rates allowed, per name or other-
wise, number of names on first list, whether first list is printed by polling sub-divisions or not,
manner of making alterations and additions after first printing, and all other details of such
arrangements, agreements and contracts for printing said lists. Presented to the House of
Commons, 29th May, 1886.- Mr. Casey................................................... ........ Not printed.

88. Memorandum as to whether it bas come to the notice of the Government that American tow
boats have been towing in British Columbia harbors and within the " three mile limit " in Do-
minion waters. Presented to the Senate, 19th May, 1886.--Hon. Mr. àfacdonald.. .Not printed.

89. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1886, for copies of correspon-
dence, not already brought down, between the Government and the captain or any of the crew
of the Life-Saving Service at Port Rowan, province of Ontario. Presented to the House of
Commons, 27th May, 1886.- . Jackson........................................................ Notprinted.

90. Correspondence, etc., in connection with the suit of The Queen vs. the St. Catharines Milling-
and Lumbering Company. Presented to the House of Commons, 29th May, 1886, by Hon.
Thom as W hite................................................................................................. N ot printed.

91. Return to an Address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 29th March, 1886, for a Return of particulars of any claim made by John Heney, of
Ottawa, for a refund of toils paid by him upon vessels or wood passing through the Govern-
ment canals, together with copies of all Orders in Council passed·by the Government in rela-
tion to such claim, and copies of all correspondence between the Government and the said John
Heney, or any other person, respecting such claims for refund. Presented tothe House of Com-
inons, 3

1st May, 1886.-Mr. Trow.................................................----....... Not prined.
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NOTE.

Members of the Civil Service desiring to make correction of errors in da49

respecting themselves should communicate with the Deputy Heads of their respO

tive ]Departments not later than the 30th June next ensuing.

DEPARTMENT OF TRI SECRETARY OF STATE,

OTTAwA, March, 1886.

A. 1886,49 Victoria.
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THE GOVERNOR GENERAL OF THE DOMINION OF CANADA AND STAFF.

QOvernor General.-His Exoellency the biost Htonourable Kanax Cxatas Kari PaTTTr-
ZÂtrzice, MARQUESS oF LMaSDowNE, G.C.X.G., &o., &c. (Appointed l8th August4 1883;

& i at the city of Quebec, 23rd October, 1883.)

STAFF.

Govepor Generars Secretary ani Yilitarg &erezary-Captain Henry Streatfeila, Grenadier Guarda,
4PPointed 29th December, 1885.)

44iO&de-Camp-The Honourable Henry James Anson, Lieutenant Tst Battalion Highland Light

(Appointed 24th Oct., 1883; Capt. Hon. Alfred J. «. Byng, 7th (Queen's Own) Hussars.
<&Ppoiinted 4th Feb., 1886); Extra Aidae-de-Coamp-Lieut. Col. Hewitt Bernard, C.M.G. (Appointed

1865); Captain Russell Stephenson. (Appointed 26th December, 1878.)

A. 1886
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MEMiB.RS OF TUE CABINET.

(By Seniority of Appointment.)

1 The Riglit Honourable Sir JoHN ALkXANDER MA000NALD, P.C., G.C.B., D.C.L., LL.D.,
Q.C., President of the Queen's Privy Council, and Superintendeat-General of Indian Affairs
(Prime Minister.)

2. The Hloinourab:e Sir AGEXANDER. CAMPBELL, K.C.M.G., Postinaster General.

3. The Ionqurable Sie H1EØToR L JUrs LANGiviN, K.C.X.G., C.B., LL.D., Q.C., Minister of Publie

Works.

4. The Ilonourable JOHN IIENRY POPE, Minister of Railways and Canals.

5. The Ilonourable MACKENZLE BOWELL, Minister of Custoins.

6. The HlonoUrable Sir ADOLPIE P. CARON, R C.11.G, Q.C., Minister of Militia and Defence.

Thé [fonourable ARCUIBALD WoODBURY M0E Minister of Finance.

8. The Honourable JOaEi CARLiNG, MInI ster oî Agrioulture and Statistics.

9. Tia Ionourable Joux COSTLar, MàiisLer o,' IAlsnd Revenue.

10. The FIonourable FRANK SM.ra, (wiihût pur fooij)•

11. The Hon urable JosEPH ADoipEi CHAPLEAU U.D., Q.C., Secretary of State.
12. The Honourable THoMAs WaiE, Minister of the Interior.

13. The Honourable JoHN SPAIRRow DAVID THOSsON, Q.C., Minister of Justice.

14. The Honourable GEORGE EULAs FoSTER, Minister of Marine and Fisheries.

DEPUTY HEADS OF DEPARTMENTS.

(By seniority Of Appointment.)

1. WILLIAM IENRY GRIFFIN, IDeputy Postnaster General.

2. JOsEP CHARLEs TACHE, MD., D. L., Depuy Minder of Agrienlture and Statistics.

3. ToussAiNr TRzUDEAU, C.E., Deputy Minister of Rlaihvays and Canais.

4. WILLIAM SMfrH, Deputy Minister of Marine.

5. ALFRED RICRARD CECIL SELWYN, F.R.S., LL.D., Direutor Geological Survey of Canada.

6. JAMES JOHNSON, Cominissioner of Customs.

7. Lt.-Col. CHARLES EUGENE PANEr, Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.
8. Colonel WALKER POWELL, Adjutant General of Militia.

9. JON MORTIMER COURTNEY, Deputy Minister of Finance.

10. GEoiRGE FLEDERiC BAILLAIRGE, C.E., Deputy Minister of Public Works.

11. L VwEscA VANicouGHNEr, Deputy Superintendent General of lndian Alfairs.

12. JoHN JosEPH MCIEE, Clerk of the Privy Couneil.

13. GEORGE WHEELOCK BURSIDGE, Q.C., Deputy Minister of Justice.
14. GRANT POWELL, Under Secretary of State.
15. EDWARD MIALL, Commissioner of Inlaud Revenue.

16. ALBXANDER MACKINNON BURGEsS, Deputy Minister of the Interior.

17. FREDERICK WHITE, Comiptroller of the North West Mounted Police.
18. JouN TILTON, Deputy Minister of Fisheries.

AUDITOR GENERAL OF CANADA:

JOHN LORN MCDOUGALL (41 Vic., cap. 7.)

HIGII COMMISSIONER FOR CANADA IN LONDON.

Hon. Sir CiiARLEs Turrcn, G. .M. G., C.B. (appointed 24 May, 1884 , 9 and 10 Victoria ChamberS
London, S.W.

ecretary Canaidin Gomrernment Qflces in L>nion-Joseph G. Colîner (address as above.)

Asstant Secretary and Accountant-Clarence C. Clipnan.
IV
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THE SEVERAL DEPARTMENTS OF THE CIVIL SERVICE
OF CANADA.

-- (o)

1.-THE GOVERNOR GENERAL'S SECRETARY'S OFFICE.

Present Date of Date of
Name. Present Rank. t f First Ap-

thereoýçf. Salary. Birth pointment.

Sets.
Charles Jeroe....... Chief Clerk............ 1 July'83 1,900 00 4 Dec. '47 1 July '75

pbel, William ......... 1st class Clerk......... 1 July '83 1,500 00 20 Dec. '52 1 Nov.'72

cl)ermott Peter Lawrence. 2nd class " ......... 1 May '84 1,150 00 25Juñe '53 1 July '83

ith, George........... Messenger.. ......... 11 May '52 500 00 13 Nov. '19 Il May '52

arke, George Henry....... Orderly ... ............ 5 Dec. '79 490 00 25 Dec. '48 5 Dec. '79

2.-TIIE PRIVY COUNCIL OFFICE.

Gee John Joseph ........ Clerk Privy Counil.... 20 May '82 3,200 00 6 Aug. '45 '67

Pierre Janviert
talde .................. Assistant Clerk of Privy

Council & Chief Clerk 30 May '84 1,850 00 4 Nov. '43 7 Feb. '63

eXander, Henry........ lst class Clerk ......... 1 July '81 1,700 0W 8 Jan. '37 23 Apr. '56

William Horace.......lst clas " ..... July '81 1,659 00 12 Feb. '44 23 Dec. '61

t Lewis Johnston..... 2nd chss "........ 1 July 'eQ 1,350 00 19 Apr. '46 1 July '67
iRobert Warren.... 2nd class "......... 1 July '83 1,200 00 3 Apr. '49 3 June '74

1 ett, Francis Kent.. ... 2nd class ".... 1 Oct. '83 1,200 00 25 Apr. '54 1 July '75

nan Patrick John... ... 2nd class "..... 1 July '84 1,150 00 31 Dec. '53 24 Nov. '83
'*ievre, Siréon............ 2nd class " . .... 1 July '84 1,150 00 3 Nov. '59 April '82

e*by, Frank............. 3rd class "......... 23 Oct. '73 1,000 00 1 Apr. '51 Mar. '72

011, 0 scar Louis Eugene... 3rd class " ...... 1 July '80 600 00 21 June '49 1 Jul'y '80

hUte, Lyinan Harris. 3rd class ".... 1 Jan. 82 700 90 2 May '5l 1 Jan. '82
...Y s Ird «ls c.....1Jn 8 0

, euri 4rthur ........ 3rd class ......... 1 May '84 » 00 6 Aug.'65 1 May '4

James............... 3rd clas " ......... 1 July '85 700 00 21 Oct. '52 1 July '85

aughten, Michael ....... Doorkeepeî & Ilessenger 10 Feb. '41 000 00 Sept. '18 1 Oct. '40

00one, William........... Messenger............ 21 May '74 500 00 22 Jan. '28 21 May '74

4olds, Winliam.........Messenger............ 9 Feb. '75 500 00 15 Sep. '43 9 Feb. '7

'ehiton, Benjamin........ Messenger............ 4 Jan. '79 490 00 '33 4 Jan. '79
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3.-THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Preseît Rank. Date
thereof.

'Burbidge, Geo. Wheelock,
Q.C..................... Deputy Minister....... 1 June '82

Power, Augustus.......... Chief Clerk...........1 Jan. '79

Leslie, John................ lst class Clerk ........ 1 June '82

Fraser, Geo. Levack Bower. . lst class. ........ 1 July '83

Keefer, Augustus...........

Gisborne, Francis Hernaman.

Hodgins, Wm. Egerton.....

Blackadar, Wn. Hill .......

Coté, Pierre Martial.........

Moylan, James George......

Foster, Geo. Lawrence......

Low, Henry................

Lane, Hy. Bowyer Smith ...

Clay, John.................

Curran, Patrick............

1st class " ........

1st class "...

2nd class .......

3rd class ........

3rd class "........

Insp. of Penitentiaries..

Accountant do

2nd class Clerk.......

3rd class " ........

Messenger.. ........

Messenger ............

1 July 83

1 July '83

1 Nov.'83

12 May '80

11 Jan. '83

1 Nov.'75

7 July '80

1 July '80

1 Mar.'79

1 July '81

1 July '82

Present
Salary.

S ets.
3,600 00

2,150 00

1,550 00

1,500 00

1,500 00<

1,500 00

1,150 00

1,000 00

750 00

2,800 00

1,500 00

1,300 00

1,000 00

470 00

290 00

THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

KINGSTON PENITENrIARY-PoRT'sMOTH ONT.

Lavell, Michael, M.D....... Warden............... 3 Feb. '85

Sullivan, William.......... Dep'ity Wardenî....... 1 Sept.'81

Strange, Orlando S., M.D... Surgeon............... 9 Feb. '85

Scobell, Sidney William.. .... Accountant ........... Dec. 79

Leahy, Mary............... Matron ............... 1 Oct. '70)

Cartwright, Rev. Conway
Edward, B.A........... Protestant Chaplain ... 25 Oct. '75

Twohey, Rev. Patrick A..... Roman Cath. Chaplain. 18 Dec.'

Creighton, Robt. Robison... Warden's Clerk........ 1 Feb. '82

O'Donnell, Patrick ......... Storekeeper ........... 15 July '70

Adams, James.............. Clerk of Works........ 19 Jan. 70

Weir, James ............... Steward .... 1 Sept.'81

Gemmill, William.......... Trade Instructo...... J1 Jau. '70

2, 600 00

1, 400 0<)

1.800 00

.1 000 00

550 00

1.200 00<

1,2000

800 00

900 00

11.100 00

700 0

1,000 00

29 Dec. '25

6 May '36

13 June'26

21 Oct. '24

10 Sept.'38

....... '37

... . '49

27 Aug. '61

17 Mar.'36

29 Oct. '33

15 Oct. '50

1 Oct.

1 Feb.

3 Nov.

1 Dec. '9

15 Jan.

25 Oct.

18 Dec.

1 Feb.

19 June

1 Mar.

31 Oct.

6 Jan. '16 19 Jan.

Is also Solicitor to lepartmtent of ]ndian Affairs.
2

A. 1886

Date of
Birth.

6 Feb. '47

22 Dec. '47

10 Oct. '47

14 Oct. '51

21 Oct. '19

19 May '58

3 Oct. '51

29 Mar. '32

30 Apr. '61

11 Jan. '26

13 May '40

'41

12 Oct. '55

25 Nov.'39

23 Dec. '67

Date of
First Ap-

pointilent.

1 June '82

1 July '75

1 May '72

13 Sept.'7 6

1 Jan. '74

15 Feb. '82

1 Nov.'83

12 May '80

Il Jan. '83

1 June'6 9

Il Aug.'74

1 Aug.'7e

1 Mar.'79

1 July '81

1 July '82

49 Victoria.,
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DEPARTMENT OF JUSTJCE-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

KINGSTON PENn'ENTIARY-Continued.

Present Rank.

Iathewsn, Jas. Bolwer..... Schoolmaster ..........
Raliday, James............ Hospital Keeper.......

otridge, Mary ........... Deputy Matron ........
od1, Nial P ............. Farmer and Gardener..

0 connor, Patrick.......... Miller................

a W illiam........... Baker ................
kennedy, Michael..........

leahy, Michael..........

'141ingham, David......
aere, Alexander...

bi0o Thomas .......

ans James...............
ewto Robt ..............

A Pre, Peter..............

cee,, Bernard...........

4o%eY, Edward...........
i" l icholas.............

Ollaknd, George ............

na i Michael...........

?riestly, Robert ............

so1 James . . . . . . . . . .

deoll, Jeremiah........
a3lue, Thomas

. . . . . . . . . .

pitagibbOn. Daniel.........

ithl. Thounas.............

. ohn..............

ei., Charles... ... ...
o...........

Thomas.............

Messenger ............

Keeper................

't

Guard

"i

"d

"

"

...... ......... ..

Date
thereof.

26 Sept.'72

29 Jan. '67

1 Oct. '71

1 June'85

18 Dec. '82

6 Juie '76

1 May '84

1 Nov.'59

8 Jan. '83

1 Jan. '71

1 Feb. '71

1 Nov. '81

1 May '82

4 May '85

1 Mar.'59

27 Sept.'64

1 Mar.'65

1 Apil. '66

3 Oct. '65

4 June '55

7 June '66

10 Oct. '66

13 Dec.'66

1 Jan. '68

19 Mar. '60

18 Oct. '59

18 Aug. '59

8 Aug. '68

4 May '70

9 May'70

Date of Date of
rth First A-

pointmeilt.

Present
Salary.

e ts.
600 00

750 00

350 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 OU

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

60000

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

e500 00

500 00

5000

500 00

000 

500 00

500 00

500 0OU

1
'59

'67

'70

'85

A. 1886

4 July '36

26 June '27

4 Mar. '26

'40

7 Aug. 53

19 June '55

18 Apr. '57

10 May '31

15 Aug. '31

29 May '29

12 May '33

12 July '36

4 Aug. '42

29 July '60

20 Nov.'37

10 Aug. '43

12 Feb. '23

'20

4 July '43

12 Mar.'24

1 Aug. '25

17 Nov.'31

12 Aug. '23

25 Dec. '28

12 Sept.'36

5 Dec. '29

31 Oct. '20

10 Apr. '39

4 Apr. '37

8 Aug. '44

6 Sept.

29 Jan.

1 Feb.

1 June

18 Dec.

6 June

1 Apr.

1 Nov.

8 Jan.

13 Apr.

1 Nov.

18 Jan.

1 Apr.

4 May

1 Mar.

27 Sept.

1 Mar.

1 Apr.

3 Oct.

4 June

7 June

10 Oct.

13 Dec.

1 Jan.

19 Mar.

18 Oct.

18 Atig.

8 Aug.

4 May

9 Ma y
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DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

KINGSTON PENITENTAIRY-Continued.

Name. I resent Rauk.

Burke, Edward............. Guard ................

M ills, John........... ... ... ......... ...

McCauley, Robert..........."..............

McCauley, George.........

Walsh, Lawrence...........

Hurst, William.............

Atkins, Richard ........... " ........ . .......

Adams, Edwiii J......... .

Jamieson, Andrew.......... ................

Donnelly, John............. ..........

Appleton, Robert.......... .. ..... . ........

Kennedy, John............. ...............

Baldock, las. George ....... "

Bostridge, Charles ......... "

Thompson, Thomas. ......... ".

Cunningbam, .Joh ..n ........ . .............

Darragh, John.......... ................

Rutherford, Jas. A. ......

McCormack, William. ....... 4 . . ... . ... . ... . ..

M ills, Jam es............... ................

Weir, Robert .................. ...........

Woodhouse, Henry... ... Teainster..............

Bell, William Charles.. Teamster ..............

Bur:ke, Edward.............

MeConville, Charles . Gar..... ........

Date Present Date of Date of
thereof. Salary. Birth. FiNt Asi-

poimtintit.

$ ets.

20 June'68 500 00 1 Apr.'18 20 June '68

17 Oct. '75 500 00 1 Jan. '51 17 Oct. '7'

31 Jan. '68 500 00 i22 .une '42 31 Jan. '6

2 Oct. '76 500 00 24 July '40 2 Oct. '76

18 Dec. '76 500 00 14 Jan. '44 18 Dec. '76

13 Mar. '77 500 00 20 Jan. '41 13 Mar. 'îl
I A5 f r00 00 C 'e

p .

1 July '71

2 Aug.'79

7 Nov.'79

1 July '80

1 June'81

1 A ug. '81

10 Api. '82

18 May *83

2 July '83

1 Feb. '84

1 Mar. '84

1 Mar.'84

2 Oct. '76

13 Oct. '79

1 Nov.'72

1 Api. '77

. . ...... ..

1 July '77

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

400 00

400 00

400 O

500 00

-4 Dec. 60
26 Feb. '59

June '57

8 May '55

16 Mar. '4,3

12 .July ',52

15 July '50

20 Nov.'48

17 Jan. '43

1 April

1 July

2 Aug.

7 Nov.

1 July

1 June

1 Aug.

10 April

18 M1ay

0 ov. 6i 2 Jujy

10 Nov.'50 1 Feb.

17 Feb. '51 1 Mar.

22 June '51 1 ¥ar.
11 JuIy '41 2 Qct.

2 May '48 13 Oct.

'36 1 Nov.

11i lune '45 1 April

i Jan. '61 .......

9 Nov. '47 1 Juily

8T. ViNCENT DE PAUL PENITEN'IARY--ST. VINCENT DE PAuLt, P.

Laviolette, odfroy........ Warden............... 21 Nov.'81 2,600 00 \ 1Nov.'26 21 Nov.

Godin, RZev. Jos. Octave .... Roman Catholie ('hap.. 29 Sept.'83 1,200 00 17 Jan. '37 29 Sept.

Allan, Rev. John........... Protestant Ciaplain.... 20 May '73 1,200 00 6 Sept.13 20 May

A. 1886
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DEPA1tTMENT OÉ JUSTICE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

ST. VINCENT DE PAUL PENITENTIARY.-Contilued.

Name.

'lalet, Telesphore.........

7a1nville, Jos. T., M.D....

alepart, Geo. Stanislas....

-Illetot, Hypolite..........

MeCarthy, Thomas.........

Ularche, Geo. Bricot......

kazuret, Landre..........

liu , Jam es..............

.ing, John ............

'nuY, Edward............

s Jos. Theodore.......

74diy, Jean ..............

errien Isidore...........

lanc, Thomas...........

Q 8, Procope............

44e, Auguste ............

1llParlant, Noel..........

vre Adolphe ..........

,John ...............

n, Onesime...........

ain, Francis Patrick...

80t'tueau, Jean Baptiste...

~~Janmes ............

Joseph.............

RoInuald..........

> Alphonse .........

Zphirm .........

Q , Jean Baptiste.....

1neau, Napoleon.....

Gilbeit..........

ames'

Present Rank. tlte

Deputy Warden .......

Surgeon ..............

Accountant ...........

Clerk................

Chief Keeper.......

Store Keeper..........

Steward ............

Engineer ..............

Hospital K-eeper . ....

Farmer and Gardener..

Schoolmaster..........

Instructor ..........

Messengr............

Keeper..... .......

Guard

'c

15 Dec. '81

20 May '73

1 June'82

15 Dec. '75

1 Dec. '81

1 Mar. 80

20 May 73

1 Dec. '74

1 May '82

1 Jan. '76

22 July '82

20 May '73

1 Jan. '80

23 Oct. '81

20 May '73

20 May '73

15 Apl. '77

13 July '73

20 May '73

19 May '73

20 May '73

20 May '73

20 May '73

1 Jan. '78

1 Feb. '78

1 May '80

14 July '73

1 July '73

7 July '73

13 July '73

7 Dec. '76

$ (ts.
1,400 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

700 00

800 00

750 00

610 00

600 00

70000

700 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

500 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

550 0

550 00

550 00

550 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 0

500 00

A. 1886

Date o> Date of
Bit. First Ap-

pointmeut.

19 Jan. '44 15 Mar. '79

16 Nov.'24 20 May '73

23 May '49 1 June '82

1 Apr.'16 15 Dec. '75

27 Apr. '37 1 Dec. '81

23 Apr. '42 1 Mar. '80

25 Nov.'25 20 May '73

3Nov.'50 1 Dec. '74

15 May '51 13 July '92

29 Apr. '50 1 Jan. '74

16 Oct. '43 22 July '82

17 Aug.'28 1 20 May '73

20 Dec. '38 12 Jan. '80

22 Dec. '20 23 Oct. '81

1 Jan. '47 20 May '73

10 Feb. '37 20 May '78

24 Dec.-'32 15 April '77

12 May '40 13 July '73

27 May '38 20 May .'73

21 Sept.'36 19 May '73

28 Dec. '40 20 May '73

9 Mar.'37 1 July '73

24 Nov.'34 20 May '73

1 June'47 19 May '73

11 Feb. '47 19 May '73

17 Nov.'37 19 May '73

2 July '28 14 July '73

5 Nov.'42 1 July '73

28 June'50 7 JulY '73

6 July '41 13 July '73

24 July '27 7 Dec. '76



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE-OUTSIDE SERVICE.
ST. VINCENT DE PAUL PENITENTIARY-Continued.

Namte. Present Rank. te Present Date of Date of
a .Pe tthereof. Salary. Bith. pointment,

$ ts.
Ciartrand, Ubald......... Guard............... 1 Jan. '78 500 00 1 Jan, '43 1 Jan. '78

Lemkay, Jean Baptiste ....... ................ 1 June'79 500 00 2 Aug.'38 1 Jule 179

Taillon, Charles ........... 1 May '80 500 09 18 Aug. '38

Couvrette, Frangois .. .... ... 44 ......... 2 a18
C*-rte ...a...... 12 May '81 500 00 26 June '39 12 May'8

Chartrand, Ferdinand..... c ................ 8 Nov.'81 500 00 9 May '35 8 Nov. '81

Prévost, Edouard........... i ................ 20 Oct. '81 500 00 22 Aug. '50 20 oct. '8i

Rochon, Aristide ........... i ................ 1 Mar.'82 500 00 2 Oct. '42 1 Mar. '8c

Plouffe, Npoeo........... .............. 6 Mar.'82 500 00 17 May '50 6 Mar.

Duroeher, Jos. Edouard...... ................ 13 Mar.82 500 00 21 Apr. '40 13 Mar.

Lemaire, Olivier ............ .................. 21 ApI. '82 500 00 22 Sep. '30 21 April '8e

Labelle. Roch.............. ................ 20 May '82 500 00 4 Dec. '39 20 May '8

Plouffe, François............ ................ 16 May '82 500 00 17 July '39 16 May

Boyer, Henri.............. ................ 18 Aug.'82 500 00 19Aug. '34 18 Aug.

O'Shea, David.............. ................ 22 Aug.'82 500 00 2 Mar. '60 22 Aug.

Plouffe, Antoine............ ....... 20 June'83 500 00 9 Apr. '46 20 June

Lesage, Felix. .............. e" ................ 12 Nov.'83 500 00 10 July '41 12 Nov

Nixon, George. ............. ................ 6 Aug.'83 500 00 22 Oct. '44 6 Aug

Malepart. Jean Baptiste...."..... ....... 1Ma38............. JenB1it May '83 500 00 21 Jan. '46 1 May

Bisson. Vincent ............ ................ 12 July'84 500 00 24 June '55 12 July

Bastock, William Thomas.... ................ 1 Oct. '84 500.00 1 May '43 1 Oct.

Catellier, Adoiplie .......... ................ 24 Dec. '84 500 0 18 Jan. '47 24 Dec.

Paré, Alberic Victor........ " ................ 17 Apl. '85 500 00 16 Aug. '41 17 April

Sunders, Isaac.·..... " ............... 7 May '8.udes.Is.c. 7 May '85 500 00 29 July '42 7 May

Cloutier, Isaie.............. Teamster.............. 8 Nov.'81

Leblane, Jérémie ........... ...... 9 Nov.'81 400 00 21 Oct. '48 9 Noi.

Béland, Edouard*........... Clerk of Works........ 2 Sept.'81 1000 00 '32 2 Sep.

Dagiiee, Elzéar*......... Caretaker of Tools... 5 Aug.'81 560 00 5 Sep. '35 5 Aug-

Pageau, Narcisse'.........Instructor........... 22 Nov.'81 700 00 23 Feb. '22 22 Nov.

Oburn, Dephus............. 22 June'82 700 00 4 Dec. '43 22 Jule
Cuisson, ilés... 13 May '78 700 00 21 May '41 13 May

'These five employees represent the Department of Public Works
6

in this Institution.



Sessional Papers (No. 4S.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

DORCHESTER PENITENTIARY-DRCHESiEl N. B.

Name. Present Rank. Date Present Date of Fate Athereof. Salary. Birth. p-pointment.

$ cts.
otstord Blair.. . ....... Warden .............. 22 June '79 2,000 00 4 Jan. '21 22 June '79

orster, John Baker........ Deputy Warden....... 22 June'79 1,200 00 5 Apr. '42 22 June '79

John Andrew .... ... Accountant............ 1 Sept.'80 1,000 00 30 May '53 1 Sept. '80
Mitchell, Robert, M.D ..... Surgeon............... 1 July '80 1,200 00 25 June '35 1 July '80
Ca¤apbell, Rev. John Roy... Protestant Chaplain.... 1 Oct. '83 550 00 7 Aug. '41 1 Oct. '83
Labbé, Rev. Edouard E..... R. C. Chaplain........ 1 July '80 550 00 '43 1 July '80
keeffe, George............. Chief Keeper.......... 5 Aug. '76 800 00 20 Mar.'23 1 Dec. '61
Praser, John ............... .Store Keeper .......... 1 July '80 700 00 14 Nov.'36 1 July '80

P's, Charles............... Steward............... 1 July '80 700 00 4 Mar.'35 1 Nov. '67

?iercy, James.............. Engineer.............. 11 May '85 800 00 19 Aug. '52 11 May '85

McGowan, Patrick ......... Hospital Overseer...... 1 July '80 600 00 7 Jan'y '43 1 July '80

Thomas ...... ....... School Master......... 1 July '80 600 00 6 Mar. '55 1 July '80

ller, Charles............. Carpenter Instructor.. . 1 Mar. '79 700 00 20 Mar.'48 1 Mar. '68

b eey, John.............. Blacksmith Instructor.. 1 May '68 700 00 17 Mar. '40 1 May '68
1ktrie, Nathan .......... Shoemaker Instructor.. 1 July '83 600 00 3 Apr. '44 1 Sept. '77

l , Herbert SidneyF....... Farmer...... 1 June'81 600 00 31 Oct. '55 1 June '81

Ogan, William............ Keeper................ 1 Sept.'72 550 00 16 Apr. '42 1 Jan. '69
Û0e, Henry .............. ............... 1 Aug.'73 550 00 25 Dec..'33 1 Aug. '69

a4ton, John .......... ..... 15 June '81 550 00 11 July '42 20 Mar. '71

laougall, James......... Messenger............. 1 July '83 500 00 19 July '41 1 Jan. '73
ai, Richard............ Guard................ 1 Mayi'72 500 00 8 May '17 1 May '72

alie, Robert............... ................ 3 Oct. '72 500 00 11 Mar.'41 3 Oct. '72
rues, Samuel ............ " ................ 1 Jan. '74 500 00 19 Sept.'34 1 Jan. '74

errah, Charles Nathaniel... " ................ 1 July '78 500 00 15 July '45 1 July '78

exander, William ........ ................ 1 July '80 500 00 31 Aug.'46 1 July '80
Woowd, Robert Vincent.. " ................ 1 July '80 500 00 22 Feb. '37 1 July 80

Orau, John............. ................ 1 July '80 500 00 12 Apr. '48 1 July '80
Rere, Vital......... .......... 1 July '80 500 00 May '45 1 July '80

Pell, Patrick ......... " ................ 1 Aug. '81 500 00 6 Aug. '50 1 July '80

ier, Jude............ " ... . . . 8 Nov.'81 500 00 30Nov.'36 8 Nov. '81

49 Vcoi.



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.

DORCHESTER PENITENTIARY.-Concluded.

Name.

Colburn, Robert ...........

ËcNeil, Alexander..........

Luther, James .............

Lane, James Ambose........

Le Blanc, Joseph ...........

Wathen, Robert............

ilutchinson, Willard.......

Allain, Adolphus..........

Present Ranxk.

Guard................

"................

"............. ...

S . .... .... .......

Poole, Henry Chessel........ Teanster.............

Date Present Date of,
thereof. Salary. Birth.

$ ets.
1 Jan. '82 500 00 10 July '

15 Mar. '82 500 00 il Oct. 't

9 May '82 500 00 1June',

1 June 82

1 May '83

1 July '83

16 July '83

1 Dec. '83

1 May '84

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

350 00

14 Oct. '4

2j M~4
1y 48

2 Oct. '59

I Dec. '36

Feb. '55

2 Apr. '44

Date of
First Ap-
pomtment.

56 1 Aug. '81

58 15 Mar. 'Se

39 9 May '82

43 1 July '80
' --

1 May 0

1 Juie '83

16 July '83

10 July 'S

1 May '84

MANTOBA PENITENTiARY--STONY MOUNTAIN, MAN.

Bedson, Samuel Lawrence... Warden...............

Crookshank, Andrew Colville. Accoun't. & Storekeeperi

Green, Rev. Francis....... Protestant Chaplain....

Cloutier, Rev. Gabriel....... R. Catholie Chaplain...

Sutherland, W. R. D., M.D. Surgeon...............

McDonell, Æneas Donald O.. Chief Keeper..........

Perrie, John Robert ........ Engineer..............

Mustard, John............. Steward & Schoolmaster

Garven, Alexander Beattie B. Guard & Trade Instr...

Hall, Henry............. Gward...... ......

Preston, Benjamin........., ................

Ennis, Patrick.............. " ................

Mulvaney, William........ " ................

McCormick, Samuel......... " ................

Fairbairn, James .......... " ................

Nelmes, Joseph............. ...............

Smith, John,............... Guard & Blacks'th Inst.

Watson, Jos. Henry ........ ................

8

23 May '71

4 Oct. '82

1 June '82

4 Apl. '83

1 May '82

18 Jan. '81

19 Aug.'84

1 Sep. '84

1 July '78

16 Jan. '79

1 Sept.'82

1 Oct. '83

2 Dec. '77

1 Nov. '80

29 Apl. '82

1 Sept.'83

10 Dec.'83

1 Apl. '84

2,000 00

1,000 00

500 00

500 00

600 00

900 00

90b 00

1,000 00

820 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 Ôo
600 00

600 00

600 00

13 Feb. '42 23 May

'61

. .. -- - ... 

'57

8 Jan. '46

30 Junle '19

12 Juine '44

19 May '39

Aug. '34

9 Nov. '41

17 Mar. '40

'50

18 July '59

14 Jan. '52

5 Dec. '36

8 Dec. '48

12 Mar. '54

4 Oct.

1 June '8e

4 April '

1 May

21 Sep.

19 Aug.

16 April '

i April

24 May'

1 Sep.

1 Oct.

2 Dec. '71

26 Sep. '76

29 April

1 Sep.

10 Dec.

1 April

A. 1SS

... .... .... .. . ..

.



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

MANITOBA PENITENTIARY-Concluded.

Date Present Date of Date of
Name. .Present Rank. thereof. Salary. Birth. First Ap-

pointment.

$ ets.

head, Wm. Henry....... Guard & Tailor Inst..... 1 Feb. '85 600 00 21 Jan..'47 1 Feb. '85

lugh, John.... ......... .. ................ 24 Mar.'85 600 00 24 June '44 24 Mar. '85

l'don, George .............. ." & Gardener ...... 15 Apl. '85 600 00 31 Jan. '46 15 April '85

BinI'IsH CoLUMBIA PENITENTIARY--NEW WESTMINsTER. B. C.

àe1Pride, Arthur Hill........ Warden............... 16 May '78 1,750 00 27 June'35 Oct. '63

itzsimmois, James. .. . . Deputy Warden....... 1 Mar. '79 1,100 00 21 Mar.'41 1 Sept. '57

trew, Charles Newland, M.D. Surgeon . ,............. 9 Aug. '78 600 00 25 Feb. '38 7 Mar. '72

,ary, William H olland . . . . Accouitant, Store Keep-
er and Schoolmaster . 10 Mar. 84 1 000 00 27 Apr. '57 10 Mar. '84

JanIlieson, Rev. Robert...... Protestant Chaplain.... 4 Jan. V'79 500 00 28 Oct. '29 4 Jan. '7à

'arris, Rev. Ed. M.J.,O.M.I. Roman Cath. Chaplain. 27 Sept.'78 500 00 Aug.'32 27 Sept. '78

1
elnnes, Thomas Archibald. Steward............... 10 May '82 700 00 15 Mar. '60 10 May '82

M1ackenzie, George .......... Trade Instructor....... 1 Nov.'83 750 00 4 July '54 1 Nov. '8

MReoberts, John "......... 18 Apr. '84 750 00 2 Apr. '43 18 Apr. '84

eitzgerald, Janes.......... Guard ................ 15 Apr. '79 600 00 26 Dec. '42 15 Apr. '794

Qnilty, Thomas William .... ................ 18 Jan. '82 600 00 1 July '50 18 Jan. '8ý

11tehinson, George .. ......... .. 16 Apr. '83 600 00 17 Mar. '48 16 Apt. '83

JDaniel ............. ................ 1 Mar.'84 600 00 17 May '55 1 Mar. '84

iordon, Alexander .......... ................ 1 Jan. '84 600 00 15 July '55 1 Jai. '84

ojrdon, John Stuart ........ ................ 1 May '8i 600 00 21 Jan. '58 1 May '84

Cassidy, William .......... . t ................ 1 Apr. '85 600 00 15 June '50 1 Apr. '85

Stewàt Finlay........... ............... 1 Apr. '85 600 00 16 Aug. '52 1 Àpr. '85

MeRee, Hamilton .......... ... . . . 7 Nov.'84 600 00 24 May' 49 7 Nov. '84

ee, James ............. " ................ 1 June '85 600 00 22 Mar. '54 1 Juie '8

MeDonald, Alex. Ronald.... Messenger and Guard.. 1 July '85 600 00 2 Nov.'52 1 July '85

8
ryth, Patrick.......... .. Teamnster.............. 21 Feb. '79 600 00 4 Mar. '43 21 Feb. '79'



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4.8.) A. 1SS

4.-THE DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DEFENCE-INSIDE SERVICE.

NaLme. Present Rank.

Panet, Lt. Col. Chas. Eugene Dep. Min. of Mil. & Def.

sulte, Benjamin ............ 1st class Clerk ........

Lane, Henry David James... 2nd class " . ........

Benoit, Alphouse ........... 2nd class "........

Campbell, Colin ............. 2nd class

Lemieux, Edmond Emile.... 3rd class ........

Casault, Napoléon .......... Messenger.............

O'Meara, Cornewall Herbert. Chief Clerk Accountant.

Macdonald, Lt. Col. Dold. A. lst class Clerk ........

Lambert, Frangois Xavier.. Ist class "........

Aumond, Wi. Henry....... 2nd class a ........ ,

Hoit, Edmd. Burnham ...... 2nd class " ........

Aldrich, Frederick Ernest P. 3rd class " ........

Genest, Joseph Matie Eusebe. 3rd class " . ........

Gow, John Wm............. Messenger ...........

ieacpherson, Lt. Col. John.. Chf. Clk. Dir. of Stores.

Bacon, Lt. Col. Thomas..... Ist class Clerk ........

Donaldson, Capt. Jas. Ball.. 2nd class "........

Clarke, Patrick ............. 3rd clasm .

Knight, Francis Edward. . .. 3rd class "........

Foley, Lawrence ............ I3rd class "........

James, Henry. ............. .Architect, 1st class.

White, Lieut. Frederick Wm. 3rd clas Clerk........

Wright, Wm. Richard ...... Chief Clerk ...........

Seymour, Grant............. lst class Clerk ........

Larose, Telesphore Chagnon. 2nd class "

Wainwright, Maj.WillisR. S. 2nd class ........

Dion, Chrysostome Jean..... Messenger..... .......

Verrault, Eugéne........... Packer................

Date Present Date Of
thereof. Salary. Birth.

4 Feb. '75

19 May '70

1 July '79

20 Jan. '80

1 Apr. '82

7 Jan. '85

7 Aug.'67

1 July '81

2 Feb. '75

1 July '79

1 Feb. '73

21 June'84

1 May '82

30 June'84,

1 July '67

25 Apr. '81

4 Dec. '83

30 June'84

22 May '77

15 Feb. '84

5 Aug.'85

30 June'84

30 June'84

1 July '69

'67

1 July '79

27 Apr. '85

12 Oct. '72

3 Apr. '82

$ ets.
3,200 00

1,800 00

1,400 00

1,350 00

1,250 00

600 00

500 00

2,250 00

1,800 00

1,550 00

1,400 00

1,150 00

1,000 00

450 00

500 00

3,000 00

1,450 00

1,150 00

1,000 00

900 00

450 00

1,600 GO

850 00

2,350 00

1,450 00

1,400 00

1,100 00

500 00

490 00

17 Nov.'30

17 Sep. '41

7 Oct. '49

14 Sep. '42

9 Oct. '46

14 May '63

15 June '41

25 May '33

31 Oct. '45

6 Feb. '33

15 Jan. '40

1 June '40

2 May '54

7 Feb. '61

25 Sep. '37

8 Jan. '30

21 May '25

5 Aug.'42

17 Mar.'32

21 June'50

4 July '55

10 May '38

16 June '64

26 May '22

27 Apr. '41

20 July '37

22 June '37

27 Jan. '21

29 June '51

Date of
First Ap.

pOifltmellt.

4 Feb. '75

19 Nov. '67

1 Dec. '67

1 July '73

13 Jan. '72

1 July '83

7 Aug. '67

1 June '61

22 Oct. '73

10 Dec. '59

16 Mar. '67

23 May '82

1 May '82

30 June '84

1 Sept. '56

1 Sep. '72

14 Dec. '66

1 Sep. '82

22 May '77

15 Feb. '84

5 Aug. '85

30 June '84

30 June '84

April '44

May '61

12 Aug. '62

13 June '79

12 Oct. '72

3 April '82



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF MIIATIA AND DEFENCE.-OUTSIDE SElVICE.

Date Present
N amne. Present ank. tlIrof. Salarv.

$ets.
Iiddleton. Major Gen. Sir
Fred'k D., K. C.M.G., C. B. Maj. Gei. Coi'gIMilitiai 23 May '84 4,000 00

o"'Wel., Colonel Walker...... Adjutant General .... 21 Apr. '75 3,200 00

ise, Capt. Henry Ellison.. Aide-de-Camp to Gen.. . 28 Oct. 84 1,000 00

in, Lt. Col. De la Cherois T. Inspector of Artillery... 14 Jan. '76 2,300 00
1acksonli, Lt. Col. Wn. Hayes De . Adjt. Gen. Dist.

NO. I.............. 26 Dec. '73 1,700 00
4 Yhner Lt. Col. IJon.

Matthew.. . .............. Brigade MNlajor.. ...... 13 Mar. 74 1,(00 0

awsqon, Lt. Col. Melvillel
seBi..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . District Pa aster 8 Fe. '84 0

Deîaison, Lt. Col. Robert
B'itton.................. Dep. Adjt. Gen. Dist.

No. 2.............. 1 Jan. '81 1,700 00

1iloin, Lt. Col. Thoinas.... Brigade Major.. ... 18 Mar. '63 1,200 00

Alger, Lt. Col. Wm. NorcotttDist. Payiaster. ...... June'79 600 00

'Villiers, Lt. Col. Henry De .. Adjt. Gien. Dist.
Phillipe Villiers......... o. 3 ............... 1 Apr. '81 1,700 00

eg, Major William........ Dist. Paymaster. 10 JuIy '79 600 00

Lablontagne, Lt. Col. Elzéar. De . Adjt. Gen. Dist.
l W. 4 .............. 1 Dec. '83 1,200 00

Lew', t.Col Js. in...Brgade Major ......... 1 Dec.'83 1,200 00

Van Straubenzee, Lt. Col.
Bowen...................

Worsey, Lt. Col. Pennyman
W hite...................

)4attice, Lt. Col. Gregor....

bBellefeuille, Lt. Col. C. L.

l1rwood Lt. Col. Antoine
Chartier de Lotbinière.....

ughe, Lt. Col. Geo. Edou'd

ul.hesnay, Lt. Col. Théodore
Juchereau................

aschereau, Lt. Col. Joseph
rnlest De Montarville....

eoirest, Lt. Col. Wm. Hy...

Dep. Adjt. Gen. Dist.
No. 5 ..............

Brigade Major.........

Brigade Major.........

Dist. Payma.ster.......

De?. Adjt. .Gen. Dist.
No. 6 .............

Brigade Major...... ...

Dep. Adjt. GIen. Dist.
o. 7...............

Brigade Major..........

Dist. Paymaster.......

il

6 May '76

14 Dec. '78

26 Dec. '73

26 July '81

23 Dec.'68

17 Dec. '83

6 May '76

1 Dec. '83

19 Jan. '69

1,700 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

900 00

1,700 00

1,200 00

1,700 00

Date of
Birth.

4 Nov.'25

20 May '28

29 Sept.'59

31 Mar. '43

Date of
First Ap-

pointmelnt.

23 May

19 Aug.

28 Oct.

14 Jan.

31 Mar.'28 i 28 Nov. '62

28 Mar. '42

28 Nov. '36

24 Apr. '21

27 Jan. '19

7 Sept.'09

28 June '31

18 Oct. '37

28 June '31

13 Mar. '34

2 Apr.'29

14 Aug.'38

13 May '45

7 Aug. '32

23 Apr. '25

5 July '47

2 Apr. '36

1,200 00 29 Mar.'46

600 00 27 Mar. '33

13 Dec. '71

18 Feb. '84

28 Nov.

18 Mar.

19 Jan.

28 Nov. '62

9 Mar. '74

1 Dec. '61

1 Dec. '88

6 May '76

2 Sept. '70

26 Dec. '73

Nov. '62

23 Dec. '68

17 Dec. 83

21 Nov. '62

1 Dec. '83

30 Nov. '66

A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (Not 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DEFENCE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Naime. Present ank. theof.

Mainsell. Lt. Col. Geo. Jos.. Dep..Adjt. Gen. Dist.
N .8 . ..... ....... ..

Baird, Lt. Col. Wm. Tell. ... Dist. Paymaster.......

MacShane. Lt. Col. James!
Ravenhill ................ Brigade Major.........

Murray, Lt. Col. John Robert Dist. Paymaster........

Houghton, Lt. Col. Charles Dep. Adjt. Gen. Dist.
Frederick................ o. 10 ......... ..

l'eebles, Lt. Col. Adam J. L. Dist. Paymaster.

Holmes, Lt. Col. Josiah Dep. Adjt. Gen. Dist.
Greenwood............... No. 1 ..............

McDonell, Major Ranald John Dist. Paymaster.......

Freeland, Lt.Col.lussell Geo. Brigade Major .........

Cropley, Major Robt. Adaúis. Dist. Paymaster.......

iHewett, Lt. Col. Edward
Osborne, C.M.G.......... Comindt. R. M. College

D'Orsonnens. Lt. Col. Louis
Gustave d'Odet ......... Com'g. Inf. Sch'l Corpsi

Otter, Lt. Col. Wm. Dillon.. Com'g. Iuf. Sch'l Corps

Taylor, Lt. Col. John Barton. 'Com'g Inf. Seb'l Corps.

5 Sept.'75 1,200 00

1 Feb. '84 900 00

21 Mar.'73 1,700 00

1 Nov.'77 500 00

6 Apr. '83 1,700 00

25 June'79 500 00

1 Jan. '81 1,200 00

25 une '79 500 00

10 Nov.'75 3,163 00

9 July '83 1,440 00

9 July '83 1,440 00

8 July '85 1,440 00

A. 1886

22 Apr. '33

9 Feb. '36

17 Apr. '39

24 Oct. '12

10 Nov.

21 Jan.

25 July

21 Jan.

'25 Sept.'35

17 Apr. '42

3 Dec. '43

14 June '30

5 Sept. '75

1 Feb. 84

21 Mar. '73

'67

10 July

24 Apr.

4 Nov.

10 Aug.

10 Nov. '7

3 Jan.

9 July

12 May



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

5.-THE DEPARTMENT OF SECRETAl1Y OF STATE-INSIDE SEl VICE.

D)ate Preseiit Date of Date of'
Name. Present Rank. thereof. Salary. Birth. Fist Ap-

pointmneut.

iOW3 ] Giet2 a.'' ts.
e Grant.............. Under Secy. o 2 3,200 00 2 Sept.'19 1 May '39

organ, Henry James....... Chief Clerk............ 22 Dec. '75 2,300 00 14 Nov.'42 19 Nov. '53

olson, Frederick........... 2nd class Clerk........ 20 Jan. '85 1,200 00 23 July '54 20 Jan. '85

ord, Ernest George...... 3rd class ".... 7 Feb. '81 900 00 7 July '47 2 Dec. '78

ond Gustave............ 3rd class "........ 1 Jan. '82 800 00 21 Oct. '62 8 Dec. '80

Charles Baskerville. 3rd class ........ 7 Feb. '81 800 00 17 Oct. '48 15 Aug. '79
larrison, Major Edward.... 3rd class " ..... 1 Feb. '85 700 0O 24 May '52 30 July '82

Lae1le, Leonce Crebassa.... 3rd class " .... 1 Apl. '85 600 GO 6 Sept.'61 1 Jan. '85

é, Louis Henri.......... Private Secretary...... 1 Aug.'82

tatellier, Ludger Aimé...... Deputy Registrar Genl.
Chief Clerk.... ..... 31 Oct. '73 2,300 GO 26 Mar.'35 13 Aug. '59-'

Atidet, Lieut. Col. Alphonse. Keeper of Records &
C hiefClerk.......... 6 Jan. '83 2,100 00 14 Nov.'41 il Feh. '79

1oU<seau, Elzear........... lst class Clerk........ 1 July '80 1,650 GO 12 June'35 1 Feb. '64

rra William .......... 12nd class ".... 1 July '85 1,100 GO 17 Sept.'47 20 Oct. '73

John ................ 3rd class "........ 1 Jan. '74 1,000 OU 10 7Feb. '73

4aroyd, Arthur Gilpiii...... 3rd class .... Jan. '79 1,000 0O 15 Juiie'53 20 Oct. '73

4klius, George ............. 3rd class .... 1 July '85 900 0O 29 June'31 21 Mar. '74

Charles............ 3rd class ... 24 Feb. '81 800 GO 23 Sept.'32 28 Feb. '79

an, Philip Treacy...... 3rd class .... 1 Nov. '79 750 GO 29 Sept.'52 10 Sept. '78

'tlI)nald, Donald D....... 3rd class .... 1 Feb. '80 750 GO 7 Feb. '48 I Oct. '78
'illemure, Cajetan L .... 1rd clas " ........ 1 Ap. '85 400 79 17 Jan. '63 ô Oct. '84

Ukh1111berlin, Lieut. Col.
4OW.n, c. b. (., ). C. L... Quee n's. Printer & Chiet

lerk .............. 17 June '70 2,4 0 GO 26 Mar'27 7 June '70

William.........lt class Clerk........ July '85 1,400 GO 18 Mar.'33 1 Oct. '71

1ýf'-s8eau, Albert Olivier. ... 2nd las "..... 7 Jan. '84 1,150 GO 26 Dec. '57 1 May '80
otvi, Auguste..........3rd clas " ........ 1 Jan. '79 1,000 GO 7 July '47 7 Dee. '69

Louis Armand ..... 3rd lass ........ 1 June'82 850 GO 9 Ap. '3L 1 July '76

tlchele, NorbCert . '.. . 3rd class "........1 June'82 7 0 G0 9 Apl. 51 1 June '82

George ........... 3rd clas . .... 7 Jan. '84 450 GO 25Aug.'48 5 Dec. '83

on', James............ Chief Clerk (Stationery
Brandc) ............ 1 Juy '83 1,950 0 12 Feb. '29 18 sept. '69

kÛbertsoi , Thomas......... 3rd class Clerk... ..... 1 Jan. '79 1,000 GO 10 Feb. '53 1 July '71
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DEPARTMENT OF SECRETARY OF STATE-INSIDE SERVICE.

Date Present Date of Date of
Name. Present Rank. thereof. Salary. Birth. First Ap-

ponîtmenit.

~~3rd c ts.

Roxborough, Thomas........ 3rd class Clerk........ 1 Jan. '79 1,000 00 13 Ang. '31 1 Dec. '69

Walsh, William......... 3rd class ".... 1 June'82 850 00 1 Aug. '32 1 Jan. '76

Gouldthrite, Frank Slocum. . 3rd class ".... 1 May '81 700 00 2 Nov.'63 Dec. '78

Hughes, John.............. Messenger............. 4 Aug,'73 500 00 28 Mar. '46 1 June '70

O'Keefe, Thomas............ Messenger............. 1 Jan. '74 500 00 23 Mar. '34 1 June '66

Allen, Harry............ Messenger ............ 1 Jan. '80 500 00 12 Jan. '47 1 June '74

Foran, John............. Messenger ............ 1 July '83 360 00 17 Mar.'43 1 July '83

Elie, Alfred................ Messenger ............ 15 Jan. '84 330 00 14 Oct. '42 15 Jan. '84

CLERK OF THE CROWN IN CHANCERY.

Attached to the Department of the Secretary of State.

Pope, Richard.............. Clerk of the Crown in
Chancery and Chief
Clerk ............. 21 Oct. '73 2,200 00 19 Oct. '27 7 Apr. 6u

BOAnD OF CIVIL SERVICE EXAMINERs.

Supervised by the Secretary of State.

'Thorburn,John,M.A.,LL.D. Chairman Bd. C.S.Exrs. 24 July '82 600 00 10 Oct. '30 24 July '8î

†Decelles, Alfred Duelos ..... Civil Service Examiner. 24 July '82 600 00 13 Aug.'43 24 July '8b

0 .. S. Exr. & Secretary. 600 00LeSueur, Peter . as Secretary. 24 July '82 700 00 10 Jan. 14 1 May '54

Xeays, James Alexander..... 13rd class Clerk........ 1 Jan. '85 550 00 27 Mar. 62 Oct. '84

Is also Lihrarian to Geological and Natural History Survey.
j -s also Actiing Librarian of Parliament.
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6.-THE DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR.-INSIDE SERVICE.

SECRETARY's BRANCH.

hall, John Richard......... Secretary .............
b 01glas, Peter Brown....... Ilst class Clerk & Asst.

eury, Kossuth Jarvis......

4ley, George Urquhart.....

:, Joseph...... .....

k1llioch, Henry ............

perira, Lyndwode Charles ..

koWe, William.............

hogers, Chriatopher Chapman
1hisholm, Arthur...........

hothwell, Thomas Gainsford.

heckley, Frank Stewart.

Arthur Leonard F....

h1gh, James Simpson.....

hfellow, Robert Miles.....

4douin, George Germain....

Secretary .. ........

1st class Clerk & Regis-
trar of Correspondence

îst class Clerk in charge
Timber and Mines...

Ist class Clerk & Private
Secretary to Premier.

Tst clas Clerk.........

2nd class Clerk & Private
Secretary ...........

2nd clasm Clerk........

2nd class " ... . ...

2nd clas "........

2nd clas "........

2nd class "........

2nd class "........

3rd class "........

3rd class "........

3rd class "........

L'toile, Joseph............ 3ru class

PaLrke, George Angrove
ouithwell ................ 3rd class

best, Ernest............ 3rd clam
eterson, Washington Geo.. 3rd class

ktch, Walter........... 3rd class

elson, Francis ............ 3rd class

1preol, Frederick Chase.... 3rd class

e, Herbert Elsworth .... 3rd class
t7er, François ............ 3rd clasa

1 July '83

1 July '84

1 July '82

1 July '83

1 July

1 Jan.

1 Oct.

1 July '73

1 July '78

17 June'83

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 Jan. '85

1 Jan. '83

1 Jan. '83

15 Jan. 83

1 Apr. '82

1 July '82

1 June '82

1 July '79

22 Aug. '82

1 June '85

15 Feb. '84

1 June '85

1 July '82

2,300 00 13 Aug.'47

1,450 00 21 Dec. '41

1,550 00 5 A pr. '52

1,500 00 16 June'52

1,500 00

1,400 00

1,800 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,200 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,100 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

850 00

850 00

850 00

850 O

800 00

700 00

700 00

600 00

600 00

550 00

16 Aug. '54

9 June '48

19 Feb. '52

27 July '48

24 Nov.'40

Il Nov.'50

1 Feb. '51

7 June '51

17 June '52

21 Jan. '50

22 Feb. '51

30 Mar. '51

1 Nov.'47

21 May '64

16 Aug. '58

6 Aug. '58

19 Nov,'56

12 June'59

17 Oct. '60

31 Aug. '67

15 June'63

A. 1886

1 July 'G5

21 Dec. '72

30 June '71

18 Feb. '82

3 Dec.

7 Sept.

1 Jan.

30 June

16 Sept.

23 Feb.

1 Jan.

Apr.

1 Sept.

28 Sept.

15 Jan.

5 June

1 May

May

1 Aug.

10 Aug.

4 Nov.

24 Apr.

27 May

16 Feb.
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DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR.-INSIDE SERVICE.

SECRETARY'S BRANCH-Continued.

I

'I

I

Date Present
Name. Present Ranik. - thereof. Salary.

$ets.
Belleau, Marie Réué A. E... 3rd class Clerk ........ 1 June '85 550 00

Rell, George............... 3rd class "...... 1 June '85 550 00

)unne, John Patrick........ 3rd class "... 1 Mar. '83 500 00

Date of Date of
Birth. First ap--

pointmnent.

21 Aug. '58 June '82

14 Jan. '50 2 Apr. '83

27 May '60 1 Jan. '83

Deville, Edouard Gaston D.. Chief Clerk & Sur. Gen.

King, Wm. Frederick....... lst class clerk and ln-
spector of Surveys ...

Grignard, Albert Marie E. . . 2nd class Clerk.

Symes, Peter Barclay ....... 2nd class " ........

Lacasse, Louis Telesphore.... 3rd class ........

Billings, Baddish B. 3rd class

Rauscher, Rudolph E. F.. 3rd class ........

Sowter, Thomas Walter E... 3rd class ........

Brady, Martin.............. 3rd class "........

Connell, John Steers ........ 3rd class' ........

(oodeve, William Moreap... Clhief Clerk ...........

Tetu, Nazarie ............ 2nd class Clerk........

Wallis, Browi ............. 2nd ca a ........

Cox, Francis Henry Cowper. 3rd class "........

Buchaunai, Peter Toronto . .. 13rd class ........

Slierwood. Henry........... 3rd class "

Gliddon, Wim. Seaile. ....... 3rd class ........

Dunn, Daniel............ 3rd class ........

Bruce, Henry Barnard D. .. . 3rd clas ........

Lambart, Hon. HeinryOctavius 3rd class ........

A. 1886

SUiRYEY's BPANCH.

1 Jan. '85

13 June '81

1 Aug. '82

1 July '83

1 Aug. '73

1 July '83

1 Jan. '83

1 Apr. '82

1 July '79

June '85

2,200 00

1,600 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

950 00

850 00

800 00

700 001

21 Feb. '49

19 Feb. '54

14 Feb. '46
2 4 Sep. '47

13 Oct. '48

6 July '46

2 Oct. '34

9Oct. '60

13 Nov.'56

10 July '49

13 June '81

13 Junie '81

9 Mar. '80

June '70

2 Aug. '71

May '71

8 Feb. '80

5 Mar. '7

July fil

LAND GRANTS BRANCHI.

1 Jan. '85

1 Jan. '75

1 June'82

1 Aug. '73

21 June '84

1 Jan. '83

10 Dec. '83

10 Dec. '83

1 June'85

21 June '82

1,800

1,400

1,250

1,000

1,000

900

900

750

700

600

6 Jan. '49

1 Apr. '39

21 June '34

13 Mar. '40

7 May '44

8 Aug.'55

7 Apr. '58

10 Mar.'50

29 July '48

10 Jan. '55

8 Feb. '66

20 Jan. 67

Feb.

15 Apr.

19 Dec. 7
26 Apr. '80

1 Jan.

1 Nov.

24 Dec.

i Oct. '
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DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR.-INSIDE SERVICE.

AccoUNrs BRANer.

Date Present Date of Date of
Name. Present Rank. thereof. Salary. Birth. First Ap-pomntmeiit.

$ cts.

n'uard, Joseph Achille....... Chief Clerk Accountant 1 July '85 1,800 00 11 Mar. '42 11 Jan. '79

beddoe, Charles Henry...... 1st class Asst. Account't 1 July '85 1,400 00 17 Aug. '50 30 Apr. '83

TrIIner, Henry Hamish... .3rd class Clerk........ 1 Mar. '84 650 00 21 Sept.'49 10 Sept. '83

ORDNANCE AND ADMIRALTY LANDS.

ills, William............. 1st class Clerk 1 July '73 1,800 00 17 July '24 10 Aug. '58

Xeyes Perley George....... 3rd class " ........ 17 July '78 1,000 00 15 Feb. '53 17 July '78

CHIEF DRAUGHTSMAN.

Johnston, John............. st class Clerk......... 4 Mar. '74 1,800 00 3 June.'30 May '56

SURVEY ]RECORDS.

clayton, Frank............. .. st class Clerk......... .. 1 June '82 1,600 00 22 Dec. '47 Mar. '72

MESS~ENGERS.

n0 wie, Christopher......... Chief Messenger....... 1 July '73 500 00 23 Nov..'24 13 Mar. '68

¾inburn, Arthur Richard .. Messenger ............ 1 Jan. '75 500 00 9 June '55 1 Oct. '7a

oertson, Peter ........... Messenger ............ 17 Feb. '77 500 00 4 Nov.'53 17 Feb. '77

linett, James .... ...... Messenger ............ 1 July '79 480 00 4 Feb. '47 1 Apr. '78

GEOLOGICAL AND NATURAL HISTORY SURVEY.

Sej Alfred R. C., LL.D.
. d . .. .. . Director & Dep'y Head. 1 Jan. '83 4,000 00 28 July '24 1 Dec. '69

bawson, George M., Ds.e
P.G.S. ................... Asst. Dir'tor, Geologist &

Reort M ) A DChief Clerk....,..... 1 July '83 1,950 00 1 Aug. '49 19 July '75

C.M., F.G.S............. Asst.Dir'tor, Geologist &
do do ......... 1 July '83 1,950 00 3 June'41 Mar. '57

hiteaves, Joseph F., F.G.S. Assistant Director and
Paleoiitologist do do. 1 July '77 1,950 00 26 Dec.'35 1 Jan. '71

48-2

A. 1886
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DEPARTMENT OF INTElUIOR.-INSIDE SERVICE.

G ra. AxN NATUnA . H ronYu SUR:VET.-Concluded.

NmPtts PreseatPrusent lir. *tlw reof. Salary.

H1offlmnn-, Georgre Chiristian. st Director, Chemis
and Miner'alogist dJo

do ............ 1 J lv ' 1,900

Macoun. Johi, F. L.S....... Botanist. 1st class clerk 1 Jan. '82 1,650 00

Barlow, Scott ............ Chief Draughtsmau. 1s1
class clerk .......... 1 Ju11y '80 1500 00

.Marshall, John............. See'y & Accountant. 1st
class clerk ........... 1 July '83 1,500 00

Fletcher, Hugli. . . .. . . .. . . Field Geologist, do 1 Jan. '83 1,500 00

Ells, Robert Whelock....... Field (eologist, do 1 July '83 1,500 00

Weston, Thomas Chesner. .. Liry & Asst.Cnutor'
ud class clerk. ...... 1 July '81 11300 00

McConnell, Richard George . FieldGCeologist, do 1 July '83 1,300 00

Adams, Frank Dawson......IAssistant Chemist and
Lithologist, do 1 July '83 1.200

Tyrrell, Joseph B., F. G.S... Field Geologist, do 1 Juiv '83 1,200 00

Coste, Marius Antoine Eugene M ining Geologist, 2m
class clerk .......... 1 J uly '85 1,100 00

Ingail, Elfric Drew... .. Mining Geologist, do 1 J1uly '85 1,100 00

Lambe, Lawrence Morris.... Artist, 3rd class clerk. . 1 Mar. '85 1000 00

Willimott, Charles William Asst. Curator. Minera o-
gical branch. do 1 1 Jv '80 1,000 00

Cochrane, Augustus Sont hby. Ast. Topourapher, 2nId
class er .......... July '85 1,100 00

McMillan, John. ........... Surveyor & Explorer.3rd
class clerk........... i '82 850 00

Low, Albert Peter.......... Surveyor and Explorer,
3rd class clerk....... .111v '82 850 00

Ami, lenry Mar ........... 2nd Asst. Palontolog.:
ist, 3rd class clerk . . . 1 July 3 8000

Faribault, Eugène Rodo 1phe. Surveyor and Exploror.
3rd classelerk........ 1in1111 3 800 00

Broadbent. Ralph Lawton... . Museum Asst., do l 1 July '82 650 00

'Brumell, Henry P. H....... Museum Asst.. do 1 July '83 (;oo ()

•Thorburn,rIJohn, M.A.. LLD D ibrarian ............. 12 A pr. '82 1 6(oK 00

O'Farrell, Miehael. ...... .. aretaker & Messenger 1 Jul '77 700 00

Meade, John .............. Mess .ge......... .Jnl '77 o)

Is also Chairian of Board of Civil Sevie Examnrsv.

Date of iate of
Birth.

7 June '37

17 Apr. '32

27 Feb. '35

18 Sept.'56

9 Dec. '48

26 July '45

17 Oct. '32

26 Mar. '57

17 Sept.'59

1 Nov. '58

8 July '59

13 May '58

27 Aug.'63

1 Feb. '52

4 Sept.'50

24 May '60

24 May '61

23Nov. '58

4 Nov.'60

14 Apr. '59

28 Oct. '63

10 Oct. '30

28 Sept.'76

24 June '56

1 Sept. '72

1 Jan.

1 Dec.

1 Mar.

1 Sept.

1 May

1 Feb.

12 Mav

15 Ang.

July

July

Dec.

15 Jan.

May

27 Aug.

Jun e91

13 .une

Ju~ly

26 Jan.

1 May

12 ApI.

1 Dec-

4 A pr.

A. 1ss

1
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DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.
LAND BoARD AT WINNIPEG; DOMINIoN LANDS AND CROWN TIMBER AGENCIES IN MÍANITOdA,

NORTH-WEST TERRITORIES AND BRITIsH COLUMBIA.

PreentRun. Date Presenit
Nae. Present ank. thereof. Salary.

th, Henry Hall......... Commissioner of Domi.t
Lands for Manitoba
and N. W. T........il1 Iar.'85 5,000 00

William........... Superintendent of Mines
for Manitoba and N.

15 Mar. '84 3,200 00

I Sept.'82 2,000 00

1 May '84 1,095 00

W. T., and Member
of the Land Board.
Winnipeg...........

l, Thoias Richard... Sec. to Land Board.
Winnipeg ..........

ItherlanldJames Mcl'herson Clerk in Commissioner's
Office...............

tp)henson, Rufus .......... Insp. of Colon. Assns.
in Man. & N. W. T. .

Whiteher, Arthur Henry. .... Dom. Lands Agent ....

enne, Joseph............ Clerk.................
ine, Herbert Lachlan.... Clerk.................

Eith, Eugene Clementi .... Dom. Lands Agent....

tld, Williami George .. Dom. Lands Agent....

William Henry...... Dom. Lands Agent....

alliard, Wm. Myers....... Dom. Lands Agent....

Yi, James Alexander..... Dom. Lands Agent ....

ens ni, Wm. Henry..... Dom. Lands Agent

'er, Alex. James.. ..... Asst. Dom. Lands Agent

on, John Macdonald. . . . Dom. Lands Agent.

aggart, Johns........... Dom. Lands Agent ....

reuPerre FrancoisrV ................. Dom. Lands Agent....

Qlugh, John Joseph . Dominion Lands Agent.

lhenson, Edwin Fredk.. Crown Timber Agent...

lub, Geo. Henderson.. Aent................

ersoi, ihon îas.......... Crown Tinber Agent...

Chas. Louis......... Crowu Timuber Agent...

~'goe1 , ) s d Jas .... Crowii Tiuiber iî

ch, Hon. .losepi Wimî. Besident A of Can,.
Cin British Columbia.

3,000 00

2 400 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1.200 00

1,095 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200

1,200

1,600

1,200

1.200

L.200

1,.200)

23 May '82

4 July '82

23 May '82

1 Jan. '75

12 Apr. '82

1 Nov.'82

1 May '84-

1 July '83

1 May '84

4 June '83

1 May '84

1 May '82

1 Dec. '84

1 May '84

1 May' '84

1 July '82

1 Jai. '75

29 Aug.'81

4 MIay '83

1 July 'S3

9 Dec. '79

Is also employed by Departmnlent of Public Works.
19

Date of
Birth.

17 Dec. '46

1 Feb. '48

22 Aug. '48

Date of
Firat ap-

pointmeint.

15 May '84

4 Feb. '82

'64

1 Jan. '61 1l July '79

14 June '35

10 Apr. '40

12 Sept.'46

12 Feb.'28

3 Dec. '49

24 Oct. '16

19 May '33

8 Apr. '24

13 Oct. '34

12 Dec. '26

25 Feb. '57

10 Dec. '56

14 Sept.'46

1 Sept.'54

18 June '52

29 Nov.'58

13 Aug.'47

22 July '25

14 Dec. '30

5 Sep. '31

18 Jan. '26

23 May '82

8 May '72

23 May '82

1 Oct. '73

12 July '80

1 Apr. '82

7 Aug. '82

1 July '83

1 Dec. '82

1 Dec. '82

25 Apr. '79

25 Apr. '75

1 May '84

1 July '80

1 May '84

25 Mar. '81

1 Feb. '73

29 Aug. '81

4 May '83

1 July '83

9 Dec. '79

A. 1886

2.500 00
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DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

NoTuIî-WEST COUNCIL.

Name. Present Rank. Date Present Date of Date ofthereof. Salary. Birth. First Ap-
poinltmient.

$ ets.
Forg'et, Amédée Emanuel.... Clerk ofthe North-West

Couil............. 7 Oct. '76 1,800 00 12 Nov.'47 7 Oct. '76

DIsTRICT OF KEEWATIN.

Kirby, Walter Thomas...... Secretary to Lieut. Gov.
of the'District of Kee-
watin.............. 2 Dec. '82 600 00 19 May '58 2 Dec.

lBEGIsTRARS FOR NORTu-WEST TERRITORIEs.

Scott, William James ...... ilegistrar..............

Sproat, Alexander .......... Registrar..............

MeLean, Thomas Alexander. Registrar..........

Montgomery, Geo. Arclibald Registrar..............

7 Oct. '76

9Dec. '80

12 June '84

1 July '84

2,000

1,000

1,200

1,200

00 13 Apr. '42 7 Oct.

00 19 June'34 9 Dec.

00 28 May '28 12 Juie

00 8 Feb. '25 1 July

CAR'ETAKEIRS OF ORNsANcE LANDS.

Purcell, William, jun... Caretaker of Ord. Lands

Malhiot, Joseph........... .Caretaker of Ord. Lands

May, John................. Caretaker of Ord. Landsi

Conover, Peter ........ Caretaker of Ord. Lands

1 Nov.'83

13 Apr. '74

16 Apr. '79

1 Feb. '81

25c. per
diem ..

60 00

200 00

50 00

21 June'63

29 Aug.'48

24 June'33

22 Dec.'22

1 Nov.

13 Apr.

16 Apr.

1 Feb.

Lavoie, Louis.............. Caretaker of Ord. Lands 21 May '77 50c. per
diei .. 1 Feb. '37 21 Mar.

7.-THE OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER OF THE NORTH-WEST MOUNTEDPOLICE.-INSIDE SERVICE.

White, Frederick......... Comptroller and Deputy I
Head ............... 1 July '83 3,200 00 16 Feb. '47 3 Mar.

Fortescue, Laurence ........ 1st class clerk.........1 July '81 1,550 00 17 Aug. '45 1 June
Fisher, Alexander .......... 2nd class " ......... 1 July '80 1,350 00 11 Oct. '30 1 Julf

Gallwey, Reginald Muuro M. 3rd class ".... 1 July '84 600 00 16 Dec. '63 1 JuIl

Duplessis, Léonidas J. T. R.. 3ix4 class "......... 1 July '84 600 00 1 Sept.'63 i Julf

A. 1SSG
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NORTH-WEST MOUNTED POLICE FORCE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

N e. Present Rak. t PSet Date of Date of

Irvine, Lt.-Col. Atcheson G.. Commissioner.........1 Nov.'80 2600 00 7 Dcc. '37 7 Mac '75

Crozier Major Lief Newry
itzroy.................. Asst. Comminssioner .... 1 Apr. '85 1.600 O0 Il June'46 4 Nov. '73

lerchmer, Lt.-Col. Wim. M. Superintendent........ 1 Jan. '81 1,40000 13 Dec.'44 1 Au* '76

(Otton, Major John......... Superintendent........ 24 Jan. '82 1,400 00 19 Oct. '53 1 Mar. 79

Mellîree, Major John lHenry. Superintendent........ 24 Jan. '82 1.400 OÙ 28 Fei. '49 1 Apr. '74

2Iagnon, Major Sévère....... Superintendent........ 1 Apr. '83 1.400 00 8 Jan. '45 3 Apr. '74

beane, Major Richard Burton Superintendent........ 1 Apr. '84 1400 OÙ 30 Apr. '48 1 July '83
1Neale, Major Percy Reginald. Superintendent........ 1 Apr. '84 1400 OÙ 14 Feh. '50 15 July '75

Steele, Samuel B ........... Sub-inspector ......... 31 Aug.'78 1,400 00............31Aug. '78

Perry, Aylesford Bowen.. Inspector ............. 24 Jan. '82 1,400 00 21 Aug.'60 24 Jan: '82

rieshacy, Arthur Henry.. .. Sub-Inspector ......... 1 Juin '75 1.400 00 22 Oc

11acdonell, Alexander Rodk. Sub-Inspector ......... 1 Sept.'78 1,400 00 8 Oct. '40 1 Sept. '78

bickens, Francis Jeffrey..... Sub-Inspector ......... 4 Nov.'78 1,000 00 15 Jan. '45 4 Nov. '74

Antrobus, William Denny... Sub-Inspector......... 1 Mar. '76 1,000 OÙ 8Aug.'45 1 Mar. '76

bowling, Tlioms.. . ........ Sub-Inspector ......... 15 Sept.'78 1.000 00 12 May'28 15 Sept. '78

orman, Francis ............ Inspector ............. 24 Jan. '82 1'000 OÙ 19 Nov.'46 6 May 74

Iowe, Joseph. ............. Inspector ............. 1 July '83 1,000 00 5 Sept.'55 1 July '83

koffatt, George Buchanan... Inspector ............. 1 Sept.'83 U00 OÙ 13 Dec.'54 1 Sept. '83

White-Fraser, Montagne Hy. Inspector ............. 1 May '84 1,000 00 24 June53 1 May '84

Morris, William S. M....... Inspector ............. 1 May '84 1,000 00 6 Sept.'47 1 May '84
8 anders, Gilbert Edward .... Inspector ............. 1 Sept.'84 1,000 25 Dec.'63 1 Sept. '84

brayiier, Frederie........,.. Inspector ............. 15 Oct. '84 1)0O O0 13 Mar.'63 15 Oc. '84

Jukes, Augustus, M.B...... Senior Surgeon........ 24 Jan. '82 1,400 O0 30 Oct.'21 24 Jan. '82

Millar, Robert, M.D........ Assistant Surgeon... 25 Oct. '75 1,20 16 Mar.'47 25 Oct. '75

nnedy, George Allan, M.B. Assistant Surgeon...1 Oct. '78 1,200 00 16 Apr. '58 1 Oct. '78

1,_40 00 13_ec.'4 ___ug.'7

A. 1886
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8.-THE DEPARTMENT OF INDIAN AFFAIRS.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Vankouglinet, Lawrence ... . ».Supt.Gen.of Indian
f fairs............

Sinclair, 1obert ............ Chief Lk. & AcCount..

Plumnuer, William........... Conr.of Lands & Timber

Austin, William Augustus... Ch.Sur. & Draughtsnan

ilurbidge, George W.. Q. C.. Soliuitor...........

Dingian, Absaloi...... .. st ciass Clerk........

DeBoucherville, Jovite Ver.. 2nd class "

McNeili, Allan Napier...... 2nd class "........

Smjiti,. Frederick Williami ... 2nd classa

Kirkpatrick, Thomas Fred. S. 2nd (class ......

McLean, John Douglas ...... 2nd cass "........

Scott, Duncan Campbell. 2nd class "'.........

Dalton, Robert Gladstone... . 2nd class "........

Benson. Martin ............ 2nd class "....

Stewart. Samuel ............ 2nd class ........

M cG ir', .Johîn.............. 2nd elass ........

Bray, Samuel............ 3rd class " ........

Brook, Henry John....... 3rd class ........

Delisle, Joseph............ 3rd class "...

Coffey, Thomas........... 3rd class ........

Ross, Henry Clarkson....... 3rd class "........

Maingy,HelenusGilbertMcL. 3rd class ........

McKay, Hiram........... 3rd elass ........

Shore, John Willoughby.. . . 3rd class ........

Orr, William Andrew....... 3rd class ........

Kemp, Alfred E............ 3rd class ........

Yielding, Fanny........... 3rd class . ........

Reiffenstein, Caroline....... 3rd class " ........

Bliss.Forster Donald Canieron 3rd class ........

Hunton, William Alplieus... 3rd clas ........

Austin, John ............... (1. .. .

Starner, Thoinas.........Housekeeper.

Siocoilbe, James............ M essenger.............

22

Date
thereof.

1 July '74

14 July '81

24 Nov.'83

7 June'83

1 June'82

22 July '82

1 Apr. '74

8 July '74

1 Jan. '81

1 Jan. '81

1 May '82

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 Dec.'84

1 Dec. '84

1 July '85

14 June'84

3 Apr.'82

23 June '80

17 July '78

12 Jan. '83

1 July '79

9 July '80

24 Mar.'84

24 Nov.'83

1 Feb. '84

3 Apr. '82

24 Nov.'83

Il Mar. '85

Il May '85

30 June '85

1 July '83

1 Nov.'83

Present
Salary.

$ ets.
3,200 00

2,200 
00

L

1,800 00

1,700 00

400 00

1,500 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,300 00

1,300 00

1,250 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,100 00

1,000 00

850 00

800 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

580 00

500 00

600 00

650 00

600 00

450 00

400 00

400 00

550 00

460 00

330 00

Date of Date of
Birth. First Ap-

pomntment.

7 Oct. '36 13 Feb. '61

15 Feb. '29 7 June '59

'19 May '68

Il May '29 7 June '83

6 Feb. '47 1 June '82

13 July '27 22 July '8

8 Sept.'29 May '65

20 Nov.'46 8 July '74

8 Oct. '48 Oct. '70

28 Mar.'37 6 Aug. '73

13 Mar. '55 1 Oct. '76

8 Oct. '60 8 Oct. '80

25 Oct. '48 July '71

15 June'45 22 Apr. '76

6 Jan. '52 1 July '79

31 July '46 1 Aug. '77

5 Nov.'46 14 June '84

21 Nov.'36 1 Jan. '71

15 Feb. '60 23 June '80
2 May '57 17 July '78

6 Jan. '62 12 Jan. '83

22 Aug. '40 1 July '79

23 Dec. '55 9 July '80

3 Jan. '58 24 Mar. '84

25 Apr. '55 24 Nov. '83

25 Aug. '54 1 Feb. '84

12 June'42 3 Apr. '82

23 Apr. '46 24 Nov. '83

27 Oct. '63 Il Mar. '85

31 Oct. '63 Il May 'S5

5 Apr. '47 30 June '86

2 Jan. '22 1 July '83

1 Mar. '23 1 Nov. '83

A. 1886



Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF INDIAN AFFAIRS.-OUTSIDE SEIVICE.

Namne. Preaent Rank.

'G~Siiso, Lieut.-Col. JasperT. ISupt. & Commissioner..

Andrews, Henry ........... 3rd class Clerk. ........

'1ordoni, Thomas ........... Indian Agent .........

heattie, .1ohn .............. Indian Agent.........

alton, Thomas S .......... Indian Agent .........

Abott, William Van....... Indian Agent .........

hipps, James Charles......Indian Agent .... . ....

Ironside, Alexander McGregorClerk...............

Cowan, Alexander Buchanan Indian Land Agent. ....

Uoss, Benjamin Walker..... Indian Land Agent ....

Savage, Charles Bullen...... Indian Land Agent ....

onnely, J. P............ Indian Agent .........

il, Matthew......... .... Indian Agent .........

llackeray, John............ Indian Agent.........

'tephenson, James Richard.. Indian Agent .........

Lrris Edwin.............. Indian Agent .........

kephee, Duncan J......... Indian Agent.........

McKelvey, Alexander....... Indian Agent .........

glish, Adam............. Indian Agent .........

trasseau, Alexander........ Indian Agent .........

Mtartin, Jlames............. Indian Agent. ........
Jernyn, J. W.............. Indian Agent.,.......

Irc-Dermott, George Burton. . Indian Agent. . ......

SteP}hen, Rich'd Milne, M.D. Physician ............

Conaway, James Telfer...... Indian Agent .........

otis, Ladislas Eucher....... Indian Agent .........
Boucier, Louis Fortunat.... Indian Superintendent.

Yassal, Henry.............. Indian Agent .........

]ýither, Robt. John Nicholson Indian Agent..........

11artineau, lerman ....... Indian Agent .........
14cPherson, George......... Indian Agent .........

A. 1886

Date of
First ap-

pointment.

24 Mar. '62

1 Apr. '55

30 Oct. '76

16 May '79

10 Apr. '84

Mar. '73

1 Apr. '73

8 Sept.'63

13 Jan. '73

1 Aug. '79

30 Apr. '78

23 Jan. '83

8 Oct. '72

31 Jan. '83

31 Jan. '83

31 Jan. '83

..........

18 Aug. '83

18 Aug. '83

Il Sept.'84

6 Feb. '85

16 Mar.'85

31 July '83

1 June.'82

9 June'85

'73

27 Sept.'79

'73

Feb. '70

July '76

'76

13 Mar.'14

29 July '12

28 Apr. '26

15 Apr. '41

. . .... . ...

25 May '31

14 Jan. '26

18 Apr. '38

15 May '35

2 May '38

9 May '40

26 Mar. '33

25 May '40

13 Jan. '35

29 July'34

19 Oct. '45

..........

21 Mar. '28

29 Aug.'30

..........

. .. .... . ..

..........

8 May '58

13 Oct. '55

17 May '37

23 Feb. '41

26 Apr. '32

29 Oct. '24

18 Aug. 45

10 Aug.'14

24 Mar.

1 Apr.

30 Oct.

16 May

1 Apr.

Mar.

1 Apr.

8 Sept.

13 Jan.

1 Aug.

30 Apr.

23 Jan.

8 Oct.

31 Jan.

31 Jan.

31 Jan.

720 00

250 00

400 00

400 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

400 00

600 00

500 00

150 00

1,000 00

500 00

300 00

400 00

200 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

...........

18 Aug. '83

18 Aug. '83

Il Sept. '84

6 Feb. '85

16 Mar. '85

31 July '83

1 June '82

9 June '85

'73

27 Sept. '79

'73

Feu. '70

July '76

'76

49 Vcori. .



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF INDIAN AFFAIRS.-OUTSIDE.

Nane. IPresent Ranik.

McKay, Angus ............. Indian Agent .........

Hlerehamer, Laurence William Indian Agent .........

McDonald. Allan ........... Indian Agent.........I

Chastellaine, N ............. Interpreter............I

MeColl, Ebenezer .......... Inspector of Agencies.

Muckle, Alexander Montgon-
ery.. ...... .......... Indian Agent .........

Léveque, Lue Joseph Arthur. Clerk

Wright, John Philip....... Clerk.................

• Dewdney, lon. Edgar.... Commr. for Manitoba &
i N. W. Territories....

Wadsworth, Thomas Page. .. Inspector of Farms and
Agencies............

M cGirr, W illiam ............ Clerk.................

Anderson, William-....... Indian Agent.......

Rae, John Maeplierson ..... Indian Agent..........

Macrae, James Ansdell ..... Indian Agent..........

Ogletree, Francis ........... Indian Agent... ....

McIntyre, John ............ Indian Agent..........

Girard, F. X............. Medical Officer ........

Pocklington, William Boleyn lIndian Agent..........

Powell, Lieut.-Col. Isracl W. Indian Commissioner for
British Columbia ....

Moffatt, Hamilton.......... Clerk.................

Lomas, William Henry...... indian Agent..........

Blenkinsop, George......... Indian Agent.......

Mackay, Joseph William. ... Indian Agent..........

McTiernan, Patriek......... Indian Agent.......

Guillcd, Harry.............. Indian Agent.......

Reed, Hayter............... Asst. Indian Commissr.
Manitoba & N. W. T.

Date
thereof.

7 Oet. '7

5 Oct. '7

June '7

..........

1 Sept.'77

23 Apr. '81

5 July '77

1 Apr. '76

1 May '79

27 July '79

Dec. '81

21 Aug. '80

1 Apr. '80

26 July '80

il Jan. '77

25 Nov.'80

18 May '83

17 Oct. '81

7 Oct. '72

14 June '83

Apr. '81

Apr. '81

Oct. '83

5 Apr. '81

18 Mar. '82

1 Mar. '81

Present
Salary.

$ etsr
1,000 00

1,200 00

1.200 00

250 00

2,200 00

900 00

100 00

1,100 00

3,200 00

1 800

1,400

1,200

1,200

900

800

£00

1,200

1,200

3,000 00

1,800 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,600 00

Date of
Date of First ap-
Birth. pointient.

i

7 Oct. '78

5 Oct. '78

June '77

1 Sept. '77

23 Apr.

5 July

1 Apr.

1Nov. '36

25 A pr. '40

19 May '32

. ....... ..

13 Aug. '35

3 Dec. '44

27 Nov. '46

3 Sept. 51

5 Nov.'35

Jan. '42

17 Dec. '55

8 Apr. '28

4 June'47

. . ...... ..

4 Apr. '26

8 Aug.'18

.... ... . ..

28 Jan. '47

27 Apr. '37

12 June '32

25 Nov.'40

18 Nov.'22

31 Jan. '29

17 Mar. '30

20 Aug.'38

26 May '49

• Is also Lieutenant-Goverlor of the North-West Territories.

A. 1SS

1 May '79

27 July '79

Dec. '81

21 Aug. '80

1 Apr. '80

26 July 'SO

Il Jan. '77

25 Nov. 'S0

18 May '83

17 Oct. '81

7 Oct. '72

1 Mar. .'73

Apr. '81

Apr. '81

Oct. '83

5 Apr. '81

18 Mar. '82

1 Mar. '81



Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

9.-THE OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL.-INSIDE SERVICE.

DateN amne. Present Rank. tl 1 f.

McDougall John Lorn...... Auditor General ....... 1 Aug. '78

atterson, James ............ Asst. AI itor General&

S 'hief 'lerk..... . .. 1 Oct. '78

p, John Barker ....... 1st class clerk... . . .... 1 July '80
8 ltherland, Edward Davenp. lst class

ofrman, John. ........ .. st class

hayter, Frederick. ......... 1 st class

unllevie, Horace Gerald. . .. 2nd class
1Yich, John Bernard....... 2nd classa

alderson, John lewett.. . . . 2nd class '

ray, larry Hamilton 0 .... i3rd class

nrter, Thomas.. ......... 3rd class

>son, John tHugh Peden.. . 3rd classa

'olton Georne Cahill....... 3rd classa

MacDonald, John C'arroll.. . . 3rd class

sSOnnettb, Louis Adolphe.. 3rd class

Bartlett Arthur. .3rd class

ldwin, Hanna Adelaide. . . 3rd class

oo, Beverley Wilimot.. 3rd class

'sault, F ranois......... Messenger ...
1'elnder, John.. ............... Messenge.

.. . ..

1 July '83

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 Nov.'73

1 July '83

1 July '84

1 July'82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 Auig.'80

10 June '79

1 Jan. '83

11 Feb. '84

1 July '85

1 iNov.'83

23 Apr. '53

Il Nov.'57

Present
Salaix'.

$ ets.
3,200 00

2,600 00

1,600 00

1,500 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,200 00

1,150 00

1 000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

950 00

850 00

800 00

800 00

500 00

450 00

500 00

500 00

Date of Date of
Birth. First Ap-

pointient.

6 Nov.'38 1 Aug. '78

15 Dec. '31

16 Feb.'42

19 Nov.'53

7.June '48

30 une '56

29 Oct. '38

14 May '59

Il Jan. '59

7 Apr. '55

11 May '38

23 Sept.'34

5 Feb. '40

19 Apr. '52

15 Nov.'54

15 Apr. '59

7 Aug.'51

13 June'59

18 Dec.'31

15 Sept.'33

10 Der. '55

4 Dec. '65

13 July '71

13 Aug. '79

20 Aug. '79

7 Aug. '57

1 Nov. '79

1 Jai. '83

1 May '73

1 May '73

29 Jan. '79

1 May '80

17 Jan. '79

1 Jan. '83

Il Feb. '84

1 July '85

1 Nov. '83

23 Apr. '53

11 Nov. '51

49 vrietOria.



49 Victoiii. Sessional Papers (No. 4S.)

1(.-THE FINANCE DEPARTMENT-INSIDE SERVICE.

Naime. Present Rank.

Courtiey, John Mortimer . Deputy Minister ......

Ross, Lieut.-Col. Thornas. ... Chief Clk & Accountant
of Contingencies.. . . .

Toller, Frederick........... Chief Clk & Comptrollerl
1 of Dominion Currency

Anderson, Charles Joseph... Chief Clerk & Head ofl
Savings Bank Branch.!

Torrance, John Andrew..... Chief Clerk & Dominion
Book-keeper.........

Baxter, Richard Watson.... 1st class Clerk........

Robins, John............. st class "........

Dickieson, Matthew George. 1st class "........

Lowe, George, jun.......... lst class "........

Gough, Charles Archer...... lst class "........

Jarvis, George Murray .... Supernumerary do do .

Neeve, John Bonner H. .... 2nd class Clerk ........

Nash, Lt.-Col. John Richard. 2nd class ...

Turgeon, Charles Edward. ... 2nd class

Street, Charles Frederick. ... 2nd class ...

Fripp, Herbert Russell...... 2nd class ...

Clayton, James Alfred....... 2nd class ...

Wi, in E il St 24 d A
ggà s, ze e one.. ...

Crookshank, George Young..

Garland, Nicholas Surrey ...

Hopkirk, James .........

MeNichol, John......... ...

Treadwell, Clarence William.

Fraser, John ...............

Belfour, John ...........

Stanton, Cameron ..........

Blair, William Livingston...

Nutting, James Peasley.. .

n class

2nd class

.2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

2nd class

Date Present Date of
thereof. salary. Birth.

' ets.
Aug.'78 4,200 00 22 Julv '38

June '58 2,600 00 8 July '21

1 July '81

1 July '74

1 July '80

I July '66

1 June '80

1 July '80

,1 Jan. '85

1 Apr. '85

Apr. '67

29 Mar. '65

1Jan. '72

1 Feb.'76

1 July '73

1 July'74

1 Oct. '76

2 Dec. '78

1 Jan. '82

1 July '75

1 June '82

1 June '82

1 Oct. '83

1 Oct. '83

1 Oct. '83

1 Oct. '83

1 Jan. '85

1 Apr. ý85

2,400 00

2,350 00

2,250 00

1,800 00

1,800 00

1,600 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,350 00

1,250 00

1,250 00

1,250 00

1,250 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1.150 00

1,100 00

1,1

21 July '41

21 Feb. '35

15 Dec. '18

27 Nov.'36

20 Jan. '28

7 Feb. '49

25 Dec. '41

16 Aug.'42

13 Apr. '24

4 Jan. '35

18 Sept.'15

22 Mar. '46

7 Sept.'43

25 Nov.'30

3 Sept. '42

4 Dec. '39

25 Mar. '56

8 June '45

3 Mar.'36

28 Aug. '40

5.July '54

13 Dec. '52

10 Mar. '39

13 July '61

28 Dec. '52

0ù 00 1 Aug. '56 Il Mar.

* Is also Secretary to the Treasury Board.

A. 1SS

Date of
First AP-

pomltmen'jt

2 June 69

Nov. 39

1 Oct.

16 Nov.

1 Apr. '6

16 Feb. «'

3 May

1 Jan.

Feb.

30 Apr.

943

20 Mar.

June

1 Feb.

1 June

1 July

26 Jan.

5 Dec.

10 Aug.

22June

15 June

1 Sept.

18 Nov.

21 May

1 July >"

1 June

15 Nov7



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 1 S.)

FINANCE )EPARTiNENT.-INSII)E SERVICE.

. a ll I >resiiît fliî,îk.

Taske, Charles James... . . 3rd i lass 1C.k....

alPbert Eiile............ 3rd class.".........

Gilmour, Thomas.........3rd lass ...

Frederick Ashley. rd .

Iville, Thomas Cooper.. . . ...

Tlabor, Charles Wmn. Clifton. 3rd (h ....

lrittainî, Edward L.........3rd ulass

tlak, Ernest Augustus.. .. 3rd

Pter, Albert Brunswick ...

aes, William Hazen. 3'd cas

ender. Patrick .......... Messegr.........

olly. Peter .......... Messenger.........
0
srwiIialn Ilenr .... esngr..........

Date Present Date of'
thereof . Salary. Birth.

1 Fe b. '73 1 cts. 13 Nov.'33

1 Oct. '81 900 00 7 Mai. '40

1 Feb.'82 850 00 Il Mar. '37

1 Feb. 82 850 00 12 Fei. '58

26 Jan. '83 650 00 14Mar. '60

26Jan. '83 600 00 4Au '63

1 May '84 500 00 1 Feb. '66

4 Ot. '79 750 00 17 Jue '60

1 Oct. '84

1 Oct. '84

1Nov. '56

1 Nov.'67

1 July '78

450 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

11 Oct. '68

Il July 759

17 Mar. '35

17 Mar. '47

13 Apr. '42

FINANCE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

s Thomas Dillon. ...... Financial Inspector. ...

Aderson, Charles Edward B. Chf. Clk. Insur. Branch

Iaekadar, Alfred Kimball... 1st class Clk. Insur. Br.

1n, William John R... 2nd class Clerk........

1lI1pbell, Charles James.... Asst. Receiver (eneral,
Toronto.............

out John Grant......... Teller.................
ot Granville Percival..... Junior Clerk ..........

ison, Stuart............ Junior Clerk..........

enderson, James.......... Messenger & Caretaker.

lace, John Roberts...... Asst. Receiver General,
Halifax..........

arker, Lewis.............. Clk. in A. R. G. Office.
,h]nst 0on, Arthur Clement.. . Clk. in Sav. Bk. Halifax

ýecora, John Horton....... Telr. in Sav. Bk.lHalifax
8 ,thgow. John Thomas. Teller Savings Bank...

y John Patrick........ Clerk in Savings Bank.

7

1 Nov.'71

1 July '75

1 Oct. '83

1 July '83

9 Nov.'83

22 July '77

16 Aug '76

1 Mar. '84

1 Nov.'73

30 June '63

Apr. '72

10 Nov.'71

15 June '77

l'Oct. '80

7 Nov.'76

2,600

2,400

1,450

1,200

3,000 00

1,400 00

1,200 00

450 00

600 00

2,200

1,200

1,100

900

750

800

6 Jan. '25

17 Nov.'16

24 Oct. '52

21 Apr. '56

'21

20 Apr. '45

6 Dec. '53

'66

28 Mar.'27

15 Feb. '23

16 Oct. '44

15 Dec. '53

'41

25 Jan. '56

4 May '54

A. 1886

Date of
First ap-

pointient.

19 Feb. '7

12 Feb. '8

18 Sept. '8:

27 Sept. '7

26 Jan. '8

26 Jan. '8

1 May '8

29 May '7

1 Oct. '8

1 Oct. '8

1 Nov. '5

1 Nov. '6

1 June '7

8 Sept.

16 May

1 Mar.

1 July

9 Nov.

8 July

17 July

1 Mar.

1 Nov.

Nov.

10 Nov.

15 June

il Oct.

7 Nov.



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

FINANCE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

DatetRak 14 Prosent Date of Date of
Name. Pesent Rank. th ieor. Salary. Birth. First a1'

p)ointmlellt*

C'rookshank, Riobert William. A sst. Reeeiver General.
St. John, N.B. 31 May '73 21200 00 25 1 June

Paterson, Sydney Bolton... Teller Savings Bak .. Ang.'73 1,200 00 31 Mar.'34 mar.

Robinson, James............ Account. A. R. G. Office Aug.'73 1,100 00 1 Feb. '30 Aug.'73

Lancton, G. Frederic........ Teller S. Bk. St. John. July '76 1,100 00 '42 July '7

Salter, A. C. A ........... Clerk S. Bk. St. John. 1 Oct. '84 800 00 '34 1 Oct.

Lawson, Thomas Stanford... Jaiitor Dom. Buildings 1 May '79 500 'y

Drumnmond, Henry Mowat. ,sst. Receiver General,
Winnipeg ........... Mayli'79) '.0 0 1 tg'8 11 ay'

McMicken, Albert Clifton... Clerk in A. . GCenl's 79
Office ...... ........ 1 July '82 1,100 00 '60 May

Armstrong, Edward Wmi. H. Teller Savings Bank. .. . June '82 1.000 00 '63 June

Mott, James A. Smith ...... . in A. R. G. Office. 1 July '83 1,000 00 '43 1 July

Graham, John........... A. R. Gen.,VictoriaB.C Mar.'72 3,000 2

Chambers, Coote Mulloy.. Acet. A. R. Gen. Office
& Savings Bank.... 9 De. '73 1,600 00 3 July'37 9 )ec.

Green, Roland Edward .... Teller Sav. Bk. & Audit 24 Mar.'75 1-200 00 8 Oct. '48 24 Mar.

Maclaughlin, Joseph Hugh.. Clerk A. R. G. Office... July '84 i 1,000 00 15 Apr. '39 Jnly

Ilowe, Sydenham........... 'Dom. Auditor, Halifax. 14 Feb. '70 1,900 00 3 Mar.'43 Ijniy

Seeley, William ............ Dom. Auditor, St. John. 30 Nov.'68 1,900 00 21 Oct. '14

Pope, Percy...............Dom.Auditor,Charlotte-
town .............. 1 July '83 1,800 00 '55 1 July

Foley, Thomas ............. Account. Sav. Branch:
Charlottetown....... 9 Jan. '74 1,00000 12Dec.'44 9Jan,

Leitch, William............ Clk.Audit Office &S.Bk 9 Jan. '74 800 00 20 Dec. 54 9 ian.

Preset Dat ofe

Walker, George...........Clk.AuditOffice&S.B, 30 an. '82 450 00 '27 30 Jun.

0Ast. Messr. & Janitor, 0
Dominion Buildings. 15 May '82 450 00 '38 15 May

Loughran, Francis........Clk. Audit Offie& .Bk 1 July '82 600 00 '3 1 July

A. 1SS6



49 Vict

Name. Present Rank.

kiall, Edward.............. Cormr. of Inld. Revenue
and Com. of Standards

tbins, Paul Moyle ......... Acet. and Chief Clerk..

Ilimisworth, William........ Chief Clerk, Secretary..

keasam, Frederick.......... Supernumerary lst class

lieron, William Lewis..... Supernumerary 1st class

Calpeau,Fabien René Edou'd Asst. Acet. lst class ...

alin, Joseph Elzéar ........ st class clerk.........
liall, Charles Russell........ lst class "........

LaMothe, Henri Guillaume.. 2nd class ........
1

arter, William............ 2nd class "........

ettle, Richard ............ Supernunerary do do.

latch, Frederick Kendall... 2nd class

Teakles, Brenton Halliburton 2nd class

'alsh, Matthew Francis. 2nd class
a# Fn As Private Secretary...

stt8ignan, Alphonse ........ 2nd class clerk.........

Stewart, Neil .............. 2nd class " ........
' .
evin, Richard ............ 2nd class "........

aW, James Fitzwilliam .... 2ud class ........

Chibbuck, Charles Edward.. 2nd class ........
bOyon, Joseph Alfred....... 2nd class ........

unel, John............... 2nd class

towl, James Farnham..... 3rd class " ........

Powler, John............... 3rd class " .......

unel, George............. 3rd class ........

hyrnes, John............... 3rd class " ........

e0Wler, George ............. Messenger.............

'Archambault, Romuald .... Messenger.............

Courtman, John............ Messenger.............

Date
thereof.

Present Date of Date of'
salary. Birtlî. First Ap-alaientnt

$ ct s.
3,200 00

800 00 D

2,200 00 13July'42 22Jan. '68

1,850 00 23 Dec. '47 3OJule '65

1,800 00 13 Jan. '30 1 Aug. '6

1,700 00 2 Sept.'42 7 Oct. '72

1,650 00 19 July '44 6 Nov. '71

1,500 00 17 Oct. '49 12Jule '74

1,4500 6Sep. '54 8Jan. '77

S,400 00 17 June'50 1 Feb. '78

1 Jan.'83 {
1 Oct. '78

1 July '84

1 July '73

1 Oct. '78

1 July '81

1 July '83

19 May'84

19 May '84

1 Oct. '79

1 July '81

1 Dec. '80

1 July'81

24 June '82
1 Aug.'82

1 July '83

19 May '84

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 July '85

1 July '83

1 July '81

1 June'82

16 Jane '83

9 June'69

1 June'76

14 June '84

4 Nov.'33

29 July '15

Il Feb. '41

20 Oct. '44

13 July'35

27 Sept.'43

23 Mar. '41

25 May '44

14 May '56

13 July '48

23 Mar. '51

13 Apr. '48

9 Oct. '29

6 May '40

18 July '46

29 May '59

10 May '49

21 May '52

20 Mar. '54

1 July

13 July

1 Jan.

30 June

24 June '82

20 Feb. '74

1 Sep. '64

June '73

1 Jan. '72

13 July '73

7 Feb. '76

17 June '73

25 Jan. '65

21 Oct. '67

1 Oct. '76

16 Jan. '83

9 June '69

7 May '75

1 Nov. '83

oria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

11.-THE DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-INSIDE SERVICE.

i

1,350 00

1,300 00

1,300 00

1,300 00

1,250 00
600 00

1,200 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,150 00

1,100 00

900 00

900 00

850 00

650 00

500 00

500 00

330 00



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4S.) A. iSSG

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Presunt Ihî,nk.

Adams, John Stavrick...... 3rd class Exciseman. ...

Adams, William Cornish. . .. Asst. Inspector W.& M..

Alexander, Thomas......... Coll'r Inland Revenue..

Allan, Robert Kellock........ Probationary Exciseman

Allison, Charles ............ Inspector of W. & M...

Amor, William............. 3rd class Exciseman ...

Arahill, John ............ Clerk (Canals).........

Atherton, Robert... ...... Deputy Collector ......

Aubin, Napoléon ......... Gas Inspector ........
As Consulting Inspector

Baby, John Charles ......... Special Class Excisenian

Baby, Joseph............... 3rd class Exciseman....

Baby, Wolstan Alex. Dixie.. 2nd class Exciseman ...

Barber, John Shortiss....... 2nd class Exciseman...

Barker, Charles ............ 2nd class Exciseman .. .

Barrett, John .............. Collector (Canals) ......

Barrett, John Kelley........ District Inspector.....

Barrett, Thomas James .. . . . 1st class Exciseman. ...

Battle, Martin ........... Coll'r Inland Revenue..

Battle, Timothy .......... Asst. Collector (Canals).

Beasley, Richard ......... Accountant ...........

Beattie, Thomas............ Asst. Inspector W.& M.

Beauchamp, J. Pantaléon ... lst class Exciseman ....

Bédard, William George.. .. . 3rd class Exciseman ....

Belland, Joseplh Elzéar...... Specificat'n Clk(Cullers)

Bellemare, Raphacl....... District Inspector.

Bellerive, Charles........... Clerk (Cullers) ........

Bennett, James............. Deputy Collector......

Berger, Norbert ............ Asst. Collector of Canals

Bish, Philip ............. 2nd class Exciseman ...

Black, Charles Edward Stuart!Asst. Insp. of W. & M.

-Blair, James Burns. ....... Special class Exciseman.

thereof.

1 May '76

8 Jan. '80

1 July '83

5 Sept.'82

1 Nov.'79

3 Oct. '83

1 July '83

19 Aug. '85

} 9 Feb. '75

1 Nov.'80

1 Jan. '83

1 July'84

1 July '84

1 July'84

19 Apr. '49

1 May '85

1 Jan. '85

1 Jan. '73

1 Jan. '83

1 July '84

3 Aug.'80

1 July '84

20 Oct. '80

20 Aug.'63

9 Oct. '69

1 May '77

1 Jan. '81

16 Sept.'65

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '76

Presenit
Salar y.

$ ets.
690 00

500 00

1,450 00

600 00

800 00

630 00

800 00

805 00

(1.400 00
1 60000

1,200 00

630 00

805 00

805 00

850 00

900 00

1,800 00

800 00

1,500 00

800 00

900 00

600 00

i,000 00

750 00

700 00

2,400 00

550 00

1,430 00

500 00

700 00

600 00

1,200 00

Presen t
Salary.

4

24

30

11 J

22S

6 J

1 J

23 J

12

18]

5 J

131

25

10

22J

6J

8<

A

22

271

4

4

10S

9]

21

24J

7<

7

12 S

12J

24

Apr. '30

Apr. '24

)ct. '45

une '61

ept.'21

uly '41

une '28

une '35

Date of
First ut.

1 Feb.

8 Jan.

1 Dec.

5 Sept.

1 Nov.

9 Oct.

3 May

3 Sept.

Nov. '12! 9 Feb. '73

May '48 16 Dec. '79

une '51 1 Nov. '80

pr. '57 30 Nov. '76

Nov.'52 20 June '79

Mar. '20 8 Nov. '69

une '18 19 Apr. '49

une '50 5 Sept. '73

)ct. '55 2 July '81

ug. '28 Apr. '60

Dec. '40 28 May '76

eb. '39 22 Dec. '79

Apr. '34 14 Aug. '79

Aug. '54 1 June '76

ept.'44 25 May '78

Dec.'43 20 Aug. '63

Feb. '21 6 June '56

uly '46 1 May '7

)ct. '27 Il Feb. '71

)ct. '37 16 Sept. '65

ept.'38 10 Oct.

une'41 1 May '83

July'48 6 Oct. '73



'J' cto a,

DEPART MIENT OF INLAND REVEN UE.-OUTSlDE SERVICE.

Nane. Present Rank.

bo8s George Walter.. Asst. Insp. of W. & M.

s, George A...........Asst. Colr. of W. & M.

tovX,, Charles Alphonse.... Cour. lnland Revenue..

hoister, George Jever.......spector of W. & M...
h tner, Joseph Boyle.......st class Exciseman....

h01Tad aile, Richardson.. District Inspector
U 5sa, George .......... 3rd class Exciseman ....

olDlrassa, Philippe Edouard..

O1J1-rget, Onésime...........

4O0,teiller, George Antoine...

oadfoot, Samuel...........

tougham, Michael Edward.

, John Johnstone.....
h owne, George Wheatland..

h3nier, William ...........

s, William..........

hnmière, Frank.............

Qhil, Joseph Hickey.......

Thomas ..........

erou, Donald MePherson.

pbell, George Johnston..

QetIpbell, John McDiarmid..

Pbell Thomas..........

,'"yré, Joseph Narcisse. ...
11rol, Daniel.............

4rter, William Hill .......

arver, George William.....

4eY, Thomas .............

Alexander ..........

William............

Asst. Insp. of W. & M.

3rd class Exciseman...

Special class Exciseman.

1st classExciseman. ...

3rd class Exciseman ....

Tst class Exciseman ....

2nd class Exciseman...

2nd class Exciseman...

Gas Inspector&Collector
of Canal Tolls.......

Clerk (Canals) .........

Deputy Collector......

3rd class Exciseman. .
Gas Inspector.......

Special class Exciseman

3rd class Exciseman....

Special class Exciseman

Ferryman..........

2nd class Exciseman...

2nd class Exciseman...

Clerk (Culler's) ........

3rd class Exciseman....

3rd class Exciseman....

Collect6r Inland Rev...

Ist class Exciseman....

Uy

2 May '79

1 Oct. '83

3 Feb. '85

16 Dec. '73

1 July '85

200 00

630 00

750 00

1,600 00

1,000 00

g. i

lA ug. '39

4 )eu. '52

1 Sept.'38

13 Sept. 36

12 Jan. '60

2 May '79

17 May '80

26 Aug. '79

1 Mar. '69

Oct. '77

Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1S86

Date Present Date of Date of
thereof. Salary. Birth. Fint me-

pointitent.

e ts.
27 July '80 500 00 3Apr.'16 14Aug. '7*

21 July '80 600 00 20 Feb. '31 21 July 8o

28 Jan. '74 800 00 25 Dec.'44 19 Jan. '6d

3 Aug.'80 1,00000 17 May 35 14 Aug. '7e

1 Aug.'82 1,000 00 12 Nov.'50 1 Feb. '80

6 Jan. '74 2,200 00 5 Sept.'34 28 Max. '66

1 June'68 800 00 Dec. '24 1 June '68

14 Aug.'79 600 00 15Jan. '54 14Aug. '79

1 Oct. '83 630 00 21 Fcb.'55 1 sel. '80

1 Jan. '83 1,200 00 14 Oct. '59 19 Aug. U6

1 July '85 800 00 20 Dec.'53 12 July '80

4 Apl. '76 750 00 29 Sep. '29 Il June '2

1 Jan.'83 92000 19Feb.'54 5Jan. '80

1 July '73 80500 2] Jan. '33 2eFeb. '69

2 June'75 835 00 9Aug.'29 1 Oct. '72

29 June'82 1000 00 22 Mar.'29 14Aug. '79

7 Mar. '76 800 00 9 Oct. '49 7 Mar. '76

3 Apr. '82 1,200 00 7 jan. '38 1 May '60

1lJan. 185 00 00}20 Dcc. '39{ 14 Aug. '79
0 103Aug. '80

1 Nov.'80 1)200 00 5 Dec. '55 1 Nov. '72

12 July '72 500 00 5 Nov.'32 1 Apr. '63

1 Jan. 83 1,20000 28July541 19July '67

1 Mar. '75 400 00 1 Apr. '32 1 May '75

2 June'75 805 00 10 Nov.39 18 Nov. '72

1 T..1.'QA onr "an A A , 'A' 10 I. '%,r ý ?



49 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.--OUTSlDE SERVICE.

Name.

Chabot, Frangois Xavier ....

Chalut, Joseph Olier........

Chaloner, Henry J..........

Christie, William John......

Clark, Albert Forneret......

Clark, Eleazar..............

Clark, William Beverley ....

Code, Abraham ............

Coles, Frank Halstaff.......

Collier, Henry Haight......

Conway, Bartley J..........

Cornellier, Hypolite.........

Cosgrove, John.............

Cosgrove, John Joseph......

Costigan, Henry A.......

Côté, Louis Abdon.......

* Coulter, Robert...........

Courtney, John J...........

Cowan, Edgar..........

Cowley, Walter .........

Coyle, James...............

Cox, James Edward.........

Craig, Joseph ..............

Crawford, William Patrick..

Crévier, William............

Crowe, Walter..............

Crysler, Charles Blaker....

Inspector of W. & M...

Assistant Accountant..

Collector of Canal Tolls.

Special Class Exciseman

Probationary Exciseman

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

3rd class Exciseman....

Iispector W. & M. .. }
Gas Inspector....1

Inspector W. & M.....

Collector Canal Tolls...

2nd class Exciseman...

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

3rd class Exciseman....

Probationary Exciseman

Special Class Exciseman

2nd class Exciseman...

Clerk (Canal Office)....

lst class Exciseman....

Inspector of W. & M...

31 Aug.'80

1 Oct. '83

1 July'77

1 July'81

1 July '82

6 Feb. '85

13 Dec. '83

22 Apr.'84 {
14 Aug.'79

2 Mar. '78

1 July '85

17 Aug. '80

il Nov.'84

1 Oct. '83

5 Sept.'84

1 Oct. '84

1 July '84

l7Aug. '81

1 July '84

31 Aug.'80

* Alio holds an appointient in Department of Customs.
32

A. 1886

Date of
Birth.Present Rank. Date

thereof.

Asst. Inspector W. & M. 23 Aug. '80

Inspector of W. & M... 20 Aug.'81

Crown Timber Agent
and Collector of Slidei
dues (Quebec) ....... 1 May '82

lst class Exciseman.... 1 Jan. '83

Accountant ........... 1 July '85

Inspector of W. & M... 14 Aug.'79

Collector of Canal Tols. 1 Julv '83

Date of
First "l'

pointielt,,

7 June

18 Dec.

Present
Salary.

S ets.
500 00

1,300 00

2,200 00

1,000 00

900 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,200 00

900 00

200 00

1,200 00

500 00

500 00

690 00

1,200 00)
200 00 .
1, 200 00

720 00

700 00

600 00

600 00

630 00

500 00

1,200 00

850 00

S2per diem
during sea-
son of na-
vigation...

920 00

1,000 00

6 Apr. '36

22 Mar. '47

18 Dec. '23

18Mar. '56

21 Oct. '36

23 Feb. '11

3 Mar.' 56

28 Dec.'29

15 July '38

28 Nov.'18

25 July '50

4 Feb. '20

. .........

6 Oct. '52

26 Dec. '60

13 Feb. '28

30 Apr. '24

29 Nov.'56

7 Feb. '44

16 Apr. '62

1 May '20

Il Jan. '61

20 June '40

29 Sept.'38

14 May '40

16 Sept.'46

15 Dec.'10

17 Aug.

29 Dec.

14 Aug.

1 May

6 Feb.

28 Sep.

14 Aug.

1 May

14 Aug.

16 Apr.

1 July

22 Jan.

1 Sept.

6 Feb.

17 Nov.

1 Oct.

14 Aug-

2 Mar.

13 Jan.

14 Aug.

il NoY.

il Oct.

5 Sept.

7 Mar.

1 Mar.



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

1'eet ak Date Present Date of Date of

Name. Present thereof. Salary. Birth. Frst AP-
_________________________________ Iporntment.

$ tsj

leu, Patrick........... Messenger........... 14Aug.'83 500 00 9June'36 14Âug. '83

anis, Antoine Dosithée.. ... Collector Canal Tolls... 1 Oct. '79 850 00 5 Feb. '39 1 Oct. '79

b st, Joseph A ........... Asst. Inspector W. & M. 4June '80 700 00 14 Oct. '44 4Juxe '80

7, John................ Clk.CrownTimber Office 1 Aug.'83 850 00 28 Nov.'39 1 May '75

tluy, George ............ Dep. Superv. of Cullers 2 May '79 900 00 8 Oct. '52 2 May '79

John .............. District Inspector and
Insp. of Distilleries.. 1 Dec.'72 2,500 QO 19 July '37 7 Oct. '62

Thomas George .... Special Class Exciseman 1 Apr. '75 1,200 00 15 Aug. '47 1 Nov. '73

soW8xn, William.......... 2nd Class Exciseman... 1 July '85 700 00 9 Feb. '48 12 Nov.'8a

e, Joseph. . . ... . . ... . . Collector Canal Tolls... 1 July '70 700 00 16 Dec. '57 5 Apr. '5,

beMartigny, Charles Prime. Specification Clerk..... 6 May '78 700 00 29 Jan. '42 6 May '78

beschamps, Jean-Baptiste... Clerk (Canals)......... 1 May '82 7
sseres, Gaspard.......... Book-Keeper .......... 7 Oct. '79 400 00 10 Oct. '55 7 Oct. '79

tivières, François Lamy.. Asst. Inspector W. & M. 6 Jan. '80 500 00 25 July'16 6 Nov. ''75
1 'ehes, David........... Collr. Iuland Revenue. 1 July '83 650 90 10 Mar. '38 1 Feb. '80

ibblee, William........... Dep. Coll. Inland Rev. 27 Aug.'77 300 00 19 Oct. '34 9 Nov. '75
'ikJaies Walter......... 2nd class Exciseinan... 1 Jan. '85 700 90 il Oct. '57 4 Jan. '83

Charles Thompson. Special class Exciseman. 1 Mar. '76 1,200 00 20 June48 15 Dec.'68

on, Stephen .......... Asst. Inspector W.& M. 6 Jan. '80 600 00 29 Sept.'23 6 Jan. '80

, Norman J........ Deputy Collector ...... 1 June'82 1,200 00 25 May '45 17 Feb. '7à

Richard Benjamin... Deputy Collector ...... 1 May '84 1,400 00 23 Dec. '40 17 Dec. '66

John................ Deputy Collector ...... 1 May '79 1,430 00 3 Sept.'19 14 May '67

Edward William .... 3rd class Exciseman .... 1 Jan. '83 1 630 00 12 Sept.'62 21 Nov. '81

7'y, William ........ Special Class Exciseman 1 Apr.'75 1,200 01 30 Oct. '41 1 Aug. '73

"'<>Jr1 George Théophile ... Asst. Inspector W.& M. 14 Aug.'79 - 750 00 24 May '46 14 Aug. '79

, Alphonse .......... Col. Tmbr & Slides Dues Dec. '60 350 90 17 June'20 May '59

dley, William Hipwell... Ist class Exciseman.... 1 July'84 920 0 15 Apr. '43 22 Dec. '79
7, Joseph............ ProbationaryExciseman 1 July '82 500 00 28 Apr. 16 1 Sept. '80

bbrille, John........... Collr. Inland Revenue. 6 Apr. '85 1,400 00 2 May '23 6 Apr. '85

I hrille, Richard Willie .. 3rd class Exciseman.... 1 Oct. '83 630 00 17 July '58 il Sept. '82

'410chel, Léandre. 2nd class Exciseman... 1 July '85 700 00 24 Dec. '46 17 Jan. '82
pi Charles ......... Deputy Colleetor.......5 Aug.'80 1,100 00 9 Dec. '39 4 Mr. '73



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present llank. Date
thereofL

Duplessis, Charles Zephirin. 3rd clas Exciseman. ... 1 July '83

Dupont, Charles T .......... Distiict Inspector . 1 June '73

Dutan, William Moffatt ... Deputy Collector I. R.. Nov. '84

Earle, Robert Henry ........ Special class Exciseman 1 July '75

Egan, James............... Inspector W. & M. 14 Aug.'79

Egener, Adolph............. 2nd clas Exciseman... 20 Aug. '80

Elwood, George Vesey....... 2nd class Exciseman... 16 Dec.'73

Erb, Abram Albert.......... 3rd class Exciseman ... 1 July '84

Evans, George Thomas...... 1st class Exciseman .... 1 July '85

Evans, Henry Sugden....... Chief Analyst......... 1 Sept. '84

Fahey, Edward............. Canal Clerk & 3rd class
Exciseman. .. ... ... .. 1Au.'2

Fahey, Owen.,............. 3rd class Excisema.... 1 Feb. '85

Falcouer, James E.......... 3rd class Exciseman.... 1 Nov.'77

Farley, James Frederick.....,Collector Canal Tolls...

Ferguson, John..........

Flynn, Daniel..............

Forest, Eugène Roch. .......

Fortier, Charles Gaspé,......

Fortier, Jean Jacques Odilon.

Fournier, Joseph Alfred.....

Fox, John David ...........

Tox, Thomas...............

Fraser, George James .......

Frederickson, John.........

Freeze, Edward Charles.....

Galbraith, Thomas Jefferson.

Grallagher, Francis........

Ganong, John Edward ......

Gerald, Charles.............

Gerald, Walter Henry.......

*Gerald, William...........

3rd class Exciseman. ...

Asst. Insp. W. & M...

3rd class Exciseman. .,. .

Collr. Inland Revenue..

Collr. Inland Revenue..

Asst. Collr. Canal Tolls

Probationary Exciseman

1st clas Exciseman....

2nd elass Exciseman...

3rd clam Exciseman ....

Inspector W. & M.

Collector Canal Tolls...

Specification Clerk.....

2nd class Exciseman...

Special class Exciseman

3rd class Exciseman....

Preventive Officer.....

8 Oct. '79

1 Nov.'77

1 July '84

7 Mar.'85

i Nov.'79

17 Mar.'85

1 May '73

5 June'83

1 Nov.'80

1 July '85

13 Feb.'74

17 Aug. '80

9 Sept.'65

12 Dec. '83

9 Dec.'67

1 Nov.'80

1 Nov.'84

24 Aug. '53

Present
Salary.

$ ets.
630 00

2,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

805 00

850 00

720 00

800 0

2,000 00

500 00
290 00

600 00

690 00

1,200 00

690 00

600 00

600 00

1,600 00

550 00

500 00

50000

980 00

700 00

750 00

800 00

500 00

600 00

800 00

1,200 00

600 00

200 00

* Also holds an appointment in Customs Department.

Date of
Birth.

Date of
First AP

pointmuenlt

2 Jan. '49 13 Dec.

26 Sept.'37 4 Sept.

8 Oct. '57 7 Feb.

1 July '50 17 Feb.

19 July '30 14.Aug.

26 Sept.'27 13 Aug.

20 Sept.'40 22 Mar. 70

8 Mar.'29 14 Aug-

23 Nov.'54 1 Nov. '80

19 May '30 1 Sept.

13 July '41 30 Dec.

18 July '48 31 July

20 July '56 23 Dec.

17 Aug.'32 8 Oct. 7

17 Apr. '26 16 Nov. 76

4 Dec.'44 24 Dec.

5 Sept.'54 2 Julf

16 Feb. '18 1 Apr.

25 Sept.'48 17 Mar.

21 Dec.'30 1 May '73

25 Mar.'65 5 June

10 Aug.'45 21 Apr.

6 July '41 1 JulY

31 May '13 1 Sept.

l Aug.'25 9 Oct.

5 Mar.'41 9 sept•66

24 Dec. '34 12 Dec. $

24 Jan. '14 9 Dec.

23 Oct. '52 16 Dec.

6 Sept.'57 14 Apr.

25 Mar.'23 24 AVg.

A. 1S8 6



.9 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank. Date Present Date of Fiat Afthereof. Salary. Birth. pointmep
1 

pointment.

William John....... lnsp. of Tob. Factories. 1 July '83 2,100 0b 27 July '50 4 Apr· '67
William Wells....... Asst. Inspr. W. & M... 31 Aug.'80 600 00 22 Sept.'30 14 Aug. '79

e William ........... Deputy Collector..... 1 May '80 1,200 00 1 July '37 19 Dec. '70
Irénée............ 2nd class Exciseman... 10 Apr. '81 805 00 24 July '47 3 May '80

d(ilestone, Robert John M. 3rd class Exciseman ... 14 Jan. '75 690 00 14 Nov.'43 17 Feb. '73
qo Alphonse Philarome. Clerk (Canals) ........ 1 Aug. '84 600 00 23 Feb. '47 14 Oct. '82

Henry ............. Chief Inspector of In-
land Revenue........ 1 Jan. '73 2,800 00 17 June '25 1 Feb. '62

-Henry Berkeley...... Collector of lui. Rev... 1 Nov. '73 1,600 00 21 Sept.'30 22 Aug. '73

nan, Michael........... Asst. Inspr. of W. & W.1 31 Aug. '80 600 00 15 Dec. '25 14 Aug. '79
Gro% David .............. 2nd class Exciseman... 1 July '80 805 00 20 Aug.'44 1 Nov.' 75

Osnel, Thomas Salter ...... lst class Exciseman.... 1 Nov.'80 920 00 - June '50 27 Jan. '76

, James................ Collr. Inland Rev. 28 Nov.'66 1,950 00 17 Oct. '26 24 Nov. '66

CWen, Edmund ........... General Office Clerk ... 19Aug. '74 1,100 00 11 Apr. '36 19 Aug. '74

William Johnstone. Collr. Inland Rev..... 1 Apr. '74 1,000 00 16 Feb.'44 27 Feb. '68
Ut, Henry Hugh. ........ CoUr. Inland Rev...... 15 Oct. '81 1,550 00 15 Apr. '39 1 Oct. '79

vWely, William ........... ColIr. Inland Rev... . . . 1 May '72 1,200 00 17 May '14 25 Feb. '67

f , John ................ Deputy Collector ..... 15 Nov.'84 1,200 00 25 Dec. '42 27 May '84

' , Samuel............ Special class Exciseman 1 Apr. '75 1,200 00 3 July '22 26 Apr. .'67

'rason, Thomas ........ 3rd class Exciseman... 1 Oct. '83 630 00 23 Feb. '56 7 Apr. '81

oga] Stephen Patrick.... Specification Clerk..... 15 Nov.'72 550 00 10 Dec. '54 15 Nov. '72

garty, Patrick ........... 3rd class Exciseman.... 6 Apr. '69 700 00 5 Apr. '37 6 Apr. '69
141, John Joseph.......... Collector In. Rev...... 1 Sept.'73 700 00 28 Mar.'31 1 Sept. '73

iton, Colin Macauley... i3rd class Exciseman.... 1 Jan. '83 630 00 1 20 May '49 18 Aug. '81

1Iilton, Thomas Chetwood 3rd class Exciseman.... Nov.'83 630 00 31 Oct..'64 10 Nov. '81

'%ilton, William L ...... District Inspector . 1 Feb.'82 2,100 00 26 Mar.'42 7 Dec. '68

ond, Eugène............ Preventive Officer..... 4 Apr. '85 150 00 23 Aug.'36 4 Apr. '85

Aford, Thomas ........... District Inspector . 9 Dec. '67 2,000 00 2 Sept.'13 9 Dec. '67

lanley, Archibald.......... Book-keeper ........... 1 July '85 ' 800 00 20 June '46 1 July '80

arney, Thomas........ . .. Messenger ............ 1 May '82 500 00 27 Nov. '47 1 May '82

Philip Dacres......... 2nd class Exciseman... 1 July '64 805 00 18 Dec.'51 7 Jan. '80

artley, Robert Alexander.. Deputy Collector...... 14 May '67 1,100 00 25 Nov. '24 20 Nov. '66

A. ISS



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

H1arwood, Robert Unwin .... 1st class Exciseman ....

Hastie, William............ Exciseian............

Haun, James Robert........ Clerk (Canals)........

Hawkins, William Louis.... ISpecial class Exciseman

Hayward, Walter John..... Inspector W. & M.....

Hébert, Charles Dupont.. ... Collr. Inland Rev ......

HIelliwell, Horatio Nelson... 2nd chws Exciseman...

Ilenderson, Thomas......... Mechanical Asst. W. &
Measures..........

Henderson, Wilbur........ 1,t class Excisemau ....

ieney, John Joseph........ i3rd class Exciseman..

lenry, John Maxwell Barry. Deputy Collector......

Henwood, George.......... 2nd class Exciseman...

Hesson, Charles Ashton..... 2nd class Exciseman...

Hicks, William Henry ..... 3rd class Excisemian....

Hill, Arthur Marcus...... Excise Officer.... .....

Hobbs, George N......... 2nd class Exciseman...

Howie, Alexander .......... 8rd class Exciseman....

Ilubertus, Henry John...... Inspector of Gas.......

Hudon, Alphonse.......... Exciseman .........

luggard, Richard Thomp- Inspector of W. & M...
son.................... J Preventive Officer. ...

Hughes, Thomas........... Probationary Excisemnai

lier, Burrit................ Special clas Excisemai

Ironside, George Arthur.. Collector Inland Rev..

Irwin, Sainuel............. Asst. Inspr. W. & M..

Jackson, John. .... ...... Messenger...........

James. Thomas Cuthbert .... Accountant..........

Jodoin, Augustin Pierre.. . . Collector Canal Tolls..

J Inspector W. & M...
Johinson, William......... Inspector of Gas.

Johnston, George Elliot...... 3rd class Exciseman...

DDfate oDate Present IDate of Darte AI)
t.hereof. SBiith. pointmen .

$ ets.
1 July '85 800 00 20 Sept.'57 27 Oct. '80

Oct. '64 900 00 13 Oct. '25 5 Mar. '61

1 Nov.'83 400 00 7 Dec.'41 1 Nov.

1 Jan. '8.3 1,200 00 26 Jan. '64 18 Sept.
' c

27 July 80

20 Oct. '80

1 July '85

9 Dec. '83

1 Jan. '85

i Oct. '83

1 JuIy '73

1 July '85

1 Jan. '85

1 Oct. '80

28 Sept. '75

1 Jan. '85

20 Oct. '80

18 Oct. '78

28 May '79

22 Apr. '84

n 28 May '85

ný 1Nov. '86

1 Apr.'70

.9 Apr. '85

.1 Aug. '71

. 1 July '83

. il Mar.'78

1 Nov.80 {
.l1Oct. '83

1,)000 00

1,000 00

700 0

700 00

800 00

630 00

1,100 00

700 00

700 00

630 00

400 00

700 00.

690 0Q

700 00,

1,000 0

800 00
300 00

500 00

1,200 00

750 00

500 00

500 00

900 00

1,000 00

1,000 001
150 005

630 00

18 Feb. '8

6 Oct. '45

18 Oct. '58

8 Jan. '42

2 Oct. '56

27 May'61

27 Jan. '28

22 Sept.'64

28 Mar. '60

13 Mar. '55

1 July '41

19 Feb. '55

1 Jan. '37

13 July '31

31 Jan. '43

6 June '34

20 Jan. '55

27 Nov.'51

2 Jan. '40

8 May '28

1 Oct. '35

29 Apr. '56

30 June '33

28 Sept.'42

17 June '32

14 Aug.

Il Oct.

7 Nov.

9 Dec.

8 Mar.

2 Sept.

6.May 'b'

19 Dec.

17 Jan.

14 Mar. '8I

28 Sept.

15 May

18 Aug.

18 Oct.

1 Aug.

9 July

28 May

4 Jan.

1 Apr.

9 Apr.

1 Aug.

il Sept.

il Mar.

14 AUg.

21 Oct.

* Also holds an appointmient in Custonis Department.
b6

A. ISS



9 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Johiistone, Washington J.... Chief Insp. of Standards

4O1nes, Richard......... Inspec t r W. & M...
Inspector of Gas .. .. ..

1ilty, Thomas........ .. Deputy Collector......

ellock, Daniel ........ .. Collector Inland Rev...

kelley, Mencer.............

ýenniedy, James Donaldson..

411ing, James Hogan......

keogh, Peter Mary.........

kg, Richard Marsters......

kinnee, Daniel.............

kttson, Robert Henry......

eight, Joseph.............

kowlson, James Baine .....
1*fontaine, Albert.......

he, John.................

1 g, Victor...............

ieîglois, François Xavier...

>rte, George ............

4Ose, Simeon Chagnon ....

George..............
1lor, Henry..............

I'qWlor, Richard A. ........

f Jules..........

4corapte, Salen........

Henri Théophile....
, Edward...............

, Henri............

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

2nd class Exciseman....

Collector Inland Rev...

3rd class Exciseman....

Inspector W. & M.

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

Gas Inspector .........

Deputy Collector......

Preventive Officer .. ...

Dep. Super. of Cullers.'

Srd class Exciseman... .

3rd class Exciseman....

3rd class Exciseman....

Clerk Crown Timber
Office ...............

Collector Inland Rev...

Deputy Collector......

Collector lnland Rev.
Gas Inspector........J

Collector Canal Tols...

Specification Clerk ....

Assistant Accountant..

2nd class Exciseman....

Clerk (Canal)..........

gget, John Edward....... Clerk (Canals) ........

1ie, James MePherson. District Inspector.

Date
thereof.

1 Mar.'84

1 Aug.'84 {
1 July '85

1 Mar. '74

27 Dec. '80

1 July '71

1 Aug.'82

1 Sept.'80

12 Aug.'80

3 Aug. '80

14Aug. '79

30 Apr. '7

1 Jan. '69

1 Oct. '83

1 Apr. '84

1 July '79

1 Oct. '83

1 Oct. '83

1 Apr. '83

23 Aug. '80

1 July '84

1 Jan. '84{

9 Apr. '50

1 Jan. '83

1 July '83

1 July '85

10 May '82

10 May '70

12 Oct. '69

A. 1886

Present
Salary.

$ cts.
1,800 00

1,000 00 1
200 00

1,100 00

1,200 00

500 00

850 00

1.600 00

690 00

1,200 00

700 00

500 00

200 00

600 00

400 00

1,600 00

690 00

630 00

630 00

850 00

1,550 00

1,400 00

1,000 001
300 00 j

600 00

700 00

940 00

700 00

1.90 per
di'mdur-
ing Nav.

800 00

2,200 00

Date of
Birth.

23 July '25

4 Feb. '51

26 July '38

15 Jan. '38

3 Feb. '53

22 Sept.'21

26 Apr. '85

24 June '42

22 Feb. '43

19 Oct. '31

6 Nov.'17

4 July '28

15 Apr. '33

21 Mar. '20

8 May '30

29 Sept.'41

23 May '80

13 July"'45

May '55

Dec. '34

Dec. '53

11 July '52

25 Aug.'17

22 Mar.'35

22 Feb. '35

14 July '41

29 Dec. '52

18 Oct. '46

21 Feb.'25

Date of
First Ap-

pointment.

May '74

1 Aug. '84

15 Dec. '79

21 May '69

27 Dec. '80

1 Feb. '67

24 Jan. '67

1 Sept. '79

14 Aug. '79

4 Aug. '79

27 Aug. '78

30 Apr. '78

1 Oct. '63

31 Jan. '81

1 Apr. '84

1 July '72

28 Oct. '80

1 Sept. '82

Aug.

Feb.

Oct.

1 June '83

9 Apr. '50

31 Dec. '81

1 Dec. '79

23 Aug. '81

10 May

10 May

23 June



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Lemoine, Jules............

Lépine, Louis...........

Leprohon, Roch Martial. . .

Lett, Frederick Piercy Austin

Levasseur, Louis Nazaire Z..

Levasseur, Zéphirin ........

Lindsay, William ..........

Logan, John ...............

Lyneh, Patrick.............

Lynes, Kiernan............

Lyons, John ...............

Macdonald, Dugald .........

Macdonell, Angus Duncan...

Mackay, George William. ...

Present Rank, iDate
thereof

3rd class Exciseman ... 1 Oct. '83

3rd class Exciseman ... 1 Oct. '83

Collector Inland Rev. 20 Oct. '80

3rd class Exciseman ... 1 Oct. '83

Inspector of Cas....... 2 Oct. '78

Specification Clerk .... 1 June '66

3rd class Exciseman.... 1 July '84

3rd class Exciseman ... 1 Nov.'77

Asst. Inspr. W. & M.. 1 Apr. '84

1st class Exciseman.... 1 Jan. '85

Asst. Inspr. W. & M.. 3 Aug.'80

Accountaint ........... 1 July '82

Deputy Collector...... 4 May '67

3rd class Exciseman ... 20 Oct. '80

Malo, Toussaint............ 12nd class Exciseman...

Manning, James .......... 3rd clasa Exciseman ...

Marchand, Narcisse ....... Inspector of Gas.......

Marentette, Alexandre...... Asst. Inspr. W. & M..

Marshall, Ferdinand ........ 3rd class Exciseman ...

Mason, Frederick......... Special class Exciseman

Mason, James.............. 3rd clas Exciseman ...

Miller, Archibald........... Inspector of Gas.......

Miller, Joseph Elwood ...... 2nd clas Exciseman...

Miller, Henry John......... Asst. Crown Timber
Agent..............

Miller, Pierre .............. Clerk in Crown Timber
Office...............

Miller, William Frederic.... Special class Exciseman

Millier, Elie ............... 3rd class Exciseman ...

Milliken, Edwin ......... 2nd class Exciseman ...

Moore, John Nugent........ Book-Keeper..........

Moore, Theophilus .......... 2n1d class Exciseman...

1 July '84

1 Nov.'75

2 Jan. '82

14 Aug.'79

1 Nov.'77

1 July '75

1 Aug.'74

1 Dec. '75

1 July '85

22 Sept.'83

Nov.'72

July '75

July *83

Nov.'80

Nov.'78

July '84

1,200 00

1,200

1,200

700

805

1,000

805

17 Feb.'49

8 July '31

23 Nov.'41

11 Dec.'44

Il Nov.'47

23 Oct. '32

6 May '42

A. 1886

Present Date of
Salary. Birth.

$ cts.
630 00 19 Oct. '54

630 00 19 Oct. '38

900 00 14 Oct. '32

630 00 17 Apr.'63

1,000 00 6 Feb. '48

650 00 18 May '22

600 00 3 Nov.'43

690 00 22 Nov.'30

500 00 - Mar.'27

800 00 25 Oct. '56

700 00 18 Sept.'25

1,200 00 28 Dec.'38

1,100 00 10 Mar.'18

690 00 4 Sept.'41

805 00 16 July '29

750 00 22 Nov.'33

200 00 4 Sept.'49

600 00 19 Feb. '34

690 00 5 Feb.'35

1,200 00 5 Apr.'50

660 00 28 Aug.'17

1,200 00 1 June'35

700 00 19 Mar. '59

Date of
First AP-

pointiment.

20 July '80

18 Oct.

8 July 79

8 Nov. '81

2 Oct.

1 June 66

19 Aug. 82

'6
27 Oct.

9 Oct.

14 Aug. '79

14 Dee. '70

- Mar.

13 Aug. 179

27 July

- Nov.

2 Jan. '

14 Aug. '79

5 Dec. '16

24 Feb.

1 Aug.

1 Dec.

12 Dec.

22 Sept-

22 MaY

15 July

7 JulIY

2 Mayi

20 Nov.

1 Jan.



z Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 1 S.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

1 a)ate of Date of
Name. Present liank. thereof. Salary. Birth. t .

- i pointment.

core, William............ 2nd class Exciseman.. 18 Sept.'77 850 00 19 Sept.'19 23 Apr. '67

oreau, Joseph Altred ...... Caretaker of W. & M. &
Gas Office ........... 1 My '84 30000 15 Jan.'34 1 May '84

orrow, John.............. District Inspector .... 1 Dec. '80 2,400 00 17 ov. 32 28 Nov. '66

lhern, Michael Matthew Collector 1iii. Revenue. 1 July '83 700 00t Canal lerk .......... ........... 00

1lligan, Joseph......... 3rd class Exciseman.... 14 Jan. '75 690 00 14 Oct. '31 17 May '72

( Asst. Collr. lui Rev... 60nro, Hughi David.... Asst. Inspr. of Gs. 1. 1 '84 100 00'84

Mrphy, Daniel............ Collector Canal Tolls... 1 July '72 600 00 - June'46 1 July '72

r4nI'phy, Francis........... 3rd class Excisema.... 1 Feb. '69 700 00 8 June'13 23 Aug. '56

'iUrray, Alfred Sutton E .... 2nd class Exciseman... 20 Oct. '80 805 00 17Aug.'4g 1 Jan. '71

4Allister, Andrew......... Collector InId. Rev. .... 1 Feb. '82 1.300 00 14 Aug. '43 21 May '72

coy, William............ 3rd class Exciseinai.... 1 Sept.'84 60 7July'55 Mar. '84

eDOnald, John............ Asst. Inspr. W. & M... 1 Jan. '82 80000 1 May '36 1 Feb. '81

eCDonald, John Arthur.. .. 2nd cias Exciseman... 1 July '85 7 19 Sept.'57 5 Mer. '83

Mebonald, Michael Allen... Collr. luland Rev...... 12 Aug.'80 750 00 22 Sept.'52 9 July 7e

4eDonnell, William John... Asst. Inspr. W. & M.. 29 June '80 800 00 17 June'38 29 June '80

#04ehern, Archibald ...... Collr. Inld. Rev....... - '60 450 00 20 Sept.'19 27 Jan. '60

Mearland, Duncan Elliot.. Cour. Canal ToUs. Sept.'75 1,400 00 1 Jan. '31 1 Sept. '75

40ugh, Francis Jérome J. .jlst class Exciseman.... 1 Jan. '85 800 00 17 Nov. '57 26 Dec. '79

Iekay, John..............nspr. W. & M........3 Sept.'S i 900 00 1 Jan. '29 3 Sept. '80

elay, John H..........Collector Iuld. Rev.... 2 July '85 700 0 7 June'50 2 Juy '85

tenezie, Thomas Howard. lnspr. W. & M........3 Aug.'80 1,300 00 12 Aug. '11 14 Aug. '79

CLaDonald ........... Collr. Inilandi Rev.i Apr. '77 46550 00 18 Dec. '19 27 Feb. '68

~x1(kilan, Robert Pringle... Collr. Canal Tolls..... 14 June'64 750 0 12 Mar. '43 14 June '64

14% ara, Matthew ..... 1s3rd class Exciseman.... 6 Feb. '74 750 0 - May ' 21 May '60
ealy, Thomas ......... IClerk (Canais) ......... 1 Jan. '73 1,200 00 4 May'34 - '55

Charles Stewart.... Asst.CrownTimberAgt. 23 Jan. '64 2,000 0 26 Jan. '15 13 AP. '58

IIerson Andrew F. ISpecial cla.ss Exciseman 1 July'76 1,200 00 14 Feb. '40 16 Nov. '71

1Phie, Donald........... s Inspector.........i Sept.'76 1,000 00 28 June'36 1 Sept. '76

)4ephilliPs, Henry T ringl... Ast. Inspr. W. & M... 7 May '85 500 0 18 Mar. '50 7 May '85

4eena James ....... 3r cIslas Exciseman.... 6 Jan. '80 920 0 26 Nov.'5 30 May '76



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4S.)

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Naine. Present Rank.

Nash, Samuel C............ Collector Inland Rev.. .

Neelands, Hlamilton ........ 3rd class Excisean....

Nicholls, James Thomas. . . 3rd class Exciseman....

O'Brien, James Francis. 3rd class Exciseman....

O'Donnell, John......... 3rd clas Exciseman....

O'Leary, Thomas Joseph.... 3rd class Exciseman....

O'Neil, John............... Collector Canal ToIls...

Outram, Joseph ............ 3rd class Exciseman....

Painchaud, Jean Baptiste F.. Preventive Officer......

Panneton, George Edouard.. 3rd class Exciseman....

Paré, Louis ................ Collector Canal Tols...

Park, Robert Samuel........ Aset. Inspector W. & M.

Parks, James D ............ Asst. Inspector W. & M.

Patton, James.............. Supervisor of Cullers...

Pennoyer, Henry Jesse...... 3rd class Exciseman....

Perkins, Daniel C......... Collector 1nland Rev...

Perkins, Levi Allan ........ tDeputy Collector ......

Perry, George Lafayette..... 3rd class Exciseman....

Petit, Jean Baptiste ........ Asst. Inspector W. & M

Phelan, James Augustine....

Pinsonnault, Alfred.........

Piper, Harry...............

Pirritte, John..............

Pole, Charles William.

Poliquin, Ferdinand.

Pominville, Louis ..........

Poupore, John..............

Powell, John Bleeker........

Power, Richard.............

Power, Thomas....... .....

Pridham, Alexander........

Collector Canal Tols...

3rd class Exciseman....

Inspector W. & M.....

Asst. Coll. Canal Tols..

Book-Keeper .......

Clerk.................

Clerk.................

Crown Timber Agent..

Deputy Collector ......

Clerk in Culler's Office.

Deputy Collector......

Collector Canal Tolls...

Date Present Date of FDat 
thereof. 1Salary. Birth. poinstmAI

pointmet-

Sets.

4 Oct. '34

27 June '33

2 July '79

1 Oct. '83

20 Dec. '73

1 Oct. '83

1 July '84

1 Oct. '83

1 Feb.'73

Nov.'84

1 July '80

Nov.'84

2 June '82

4 Nov.'80

1 July '84

30 June '82

1 Jan. '84

1 June '73

16 Apr. '68

30 June '84

6 Jan. '80

7 Dec.'64

1 May '84

19 May '81

1 July '83

1 July '85

29 Aug.'74

17 Oct. '72

14 Oct. '82

1June'82.

1 Oct. '84

1 Sept.'80

1 May'79

l'y

,sq

1,000 00

630 00W

750 00

630 00

600 00

600 00

1,800 00

600 00

300 00

630 00

1,000 00

300 00

600 00)

2,200 00

600 00

1,550 00

420 00

700 00

150 00

1,000 00

630 00

1,200 00

800 00

800 00

600 00

900 00

2,400 00

1,155 00

700 00

1,000 00

800 00

A. 1SS

12 Dec.

15 June

7 July

9 Oct.

17 Feb.

1 Jan.

1 Apr.

12 Nov.

1 July

5 Aug.

2 Junc

14 Aug.

1 Jan.

30 June

30 Oct.

1 June

16 Apr.

6 June

6 Jan.

7 Dec.

4 No .

4 Aug

6 May

1 June

29 Aug.

17 Oct.

14 Oct.

9 July

1 Oct.

9 Mar.

75

8%

'85

'8$

'8$

'79

'75

'68

'7?'

'8$

'8$

'78

'8$

'14

'7$

'7$

'7$
'79



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

hPovost, Jean Jacques....... Asst. Inspector W. & M.

Quai]n, Redmond .......... Collector of Bridge Tolls

9aesnel, Jules.............. Collector Canal Tolls...

quinn, John Dwyer......... lst class Exciseman....

kamaon, Pierre ........... Deputy Collector .......

heddan, William. ........ Special class Exciseman

ýichard, Jean Urgel........ Asst. Inspr. W. & M...

ledSImond, John ............ Asst. Timber Counter..

eegnier, Pierre............. Collector of Inland Rev..

keid, John.............. Collector Canal Tolls...

hichard, Dasithé ........... Asst. Inspr. W. & M...

keddin, James ............. Inspr. W. & M........

ichard, Raymond ........ 2nd class Exciseman...

lichey, William Metcalf .... Collector Canal Tolls...

kitchie,'James............. Accountant,Crown Tim.,
ber Office...........

çobson, James ............. 3rd class Exciseman ...

4Ogerson, James Mounsey... Special class Exciseman

hoss, Samuel Foster ....... Deputy Collector......

louleau, Joseph............ 3rd class Exciseman

hwan, Archibald .......... Inspector of Gas.. .

Wland, Edward .......... 2nd class Exciseman ...

iOwland, Fleming ........ Collector Inland Rev...

ýlls8ell, Alexander John..... Draughtsman. Crown
Timber Office .......

ehol6eld, James Scholfield.. Clerk of Canal Tolls ...

chram, Burwell ........... .st class Exciseman....

40ovil, Walter Bates ........ Inspr. W. & M. . . .

enllicn, William James.... 2nd class Exciseman...

7'*-Our, James ............ Collector Inland Rev...

, Henri ............. Asst. Inspr. W. & M...

Pson, Arthur Fisher... .. Collector Inland Rev...

Date
thereof.

1 Nov.'80

1 May '80

1 Apr. '79

1 July,'85

I July '83

1 July '76

26 Aug.'80

7 Jan. '84

1 June '63

1 July '85

7 July '80

12 Aug.'80

1 July '71

1July '72

1 July '73

1 Oct. '83

1 July '76

1 Dec. '73

8 Dec. '69

17 Nov.'75

1 July '84

1 May '76

1 Apr. '67

16 Oct. '56

1 July '84

14 Aug.'79

1 Jan. '85

6 Jan. '74

6 Jan. '80

18 June '85

Present 1Date of
Salary. 1 Birth.

$ ets.
500 00 9 Sept.'39

800 00 27 Mar. '59

800 00 24 Jan. '33

80 00 6 Jan. '49

1,430 00 28 Aug.'33

1,200 00 5 Nov.'33

600 00 17 Oct. '41

600 00 -- Aug.'a3

600 00 16 May '29

750 00 29 Nov.'32

500 00 .26 July '34

1,0000 16 June'22

950 00 16 Aug.'23

2000 8 Apr. '31

1,600 00

690 00

1,200 00

1,300 00

750 00

1,100 00

805 00

1,550 00

1,200 00

800 00

920 00

800 00

700 00

1,400 00

500 00

1,000 00

10 May'36

2 July '20

8 Apr. '29

6 Apr. '24

1 Nov.'28

30 Oct. '30

20 Feb.'30

10 Aug.'39

4 July '52

1 Oct. '22

9 May '36

2 Nov.'24

6 Sept.'57

5 Nov.'25

12 Feb. '32

31 July'48

A. 1886

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

'80

'80

1 Apr. 'f67

16 Oct. '56

29 Oct. '73

14 Aug. '79

1 Aug. '82

14 Dec. '70

20 Nov. '75

18 June '85

1 Nov.

1 May

1 Apr.

1 Jan.

17 Feb.

17 Feb.

14 Aug.

1 May

1 June

30 .May

7 July

14 Aug.

16 Dec.

1 July

19 May

22 Nov.

6 Mar.

14 May

6 Dec.

17 Nov.

26 June

7 July



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OTTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank. Date Present Date of Date of
thereof. Salary. Birth. First Ap-

pointment.

$ ets.
Slater, James .............. Clerk................. 1 Apr. '83 850 00 30 Apr. '47 21 Apr. '77

Slattery, Ralph ............ 2nd class Exciseman... 1 July '85 700 00 3 Feb.'42 16 Apr. '83

Slattery, Thomas........... Asst. Inspr. W. & M... 20 May '84 500 00 20 Apr. '38 20 May '84

Smith, Edward Thomas..... Clerk................. 1 July '70 1,200 00 26 Nov.'46 23 June '64

Smith, Henry Anida........ Book-Keeper.......... 20 July '71 1,000 00 13 Nov. '27 - Aug. '69

.Smith, Peter................ Asst. Inspr. W. & M... 26 Aug. '80 500 00 27 Jan. '23 14 Aug. '79

Spence, Francis Henry...... lst class Exciseman.... 1 July '85 800 0)0 28 May '63 29 July '80

Spence, Joln............... Collector Inland Rev... 1 May '76 1,400 00 28 July '30 15 June '68

Spereman, James Joseph..... Special class Exciseman 1 Nov.'80 1,200 00 28 May '54 6 Apr. '78

Standish, Joseph Gerald..... 1st class Exciseman ... 1 Jan. '85 800 00 25 Jan. '49 18 Jan. '83

Steen, Jaies............... Timber Counter....... 7 Jan. '84 600 00 17 June'30 29 May '61

Stewart, James ............ 2nd class Exciseman... 1 Jan. '85 700 00 10 June '48 7 May '83

Stratton, William Cox ...... Collector Inland Rev... 1 Dec. '80 1,950 00 31 July '46 Il Feb. '71

Sutherland, George ....... Inspector of Gas....... 8 Aug. '76 1,200 00 24 Apr. '27 8 Aug. '76

St. Louis, Adelard.......... Assistant Accountant.. - Nov.'83 1,000 00 20 June '50 1 June '76

St. Louis, Joseph........... Clerk............... 20 Oct. '80 800 00 3 Feb.'55 28 Apr. '79

Ste. Marie, Jean B. E. L. ... 3rd class Exciseman. 20 Oct. '80 750 00 14 Feb. '36 26 June '76

Ste. Marie, Louis Césaire A.. Book-Keeper.......... 1 July '84 800 00 24 Nov. '47 1 June '74

Tansey, James Patrick F.... 2nd class Exciseman... 1 July '84 805 00 31 Mar. '59 18 June '79

Taylor, James F............ 2nd class Exciseman... 29 July '80 805 00 13 July '54 16 Apr. '72

Till, Thomas Mercer ........ Probationary Exciseman 5 Oct. '82 500 00 18 Mpy '47 5 Oct. '82

Tipton, Thomas Lewis M. ... Collector Canal Tolls... 1 Nov.'62 750 00 28 July '28 1 Nov. '62

Tompkins, Patrick.......... 3rd class Exciseman.... 15 Nov. '82 720 00 12 Dec. '46 14 Aug. '79

Toupin, Francois X. J. A ... 3rd class Exciseman.... -Nov. '84 600 00 29 Nov. '47 24 Oct.' 83
Travis, George............. Deputy Collector ...... 16 Aug.'77 1,100 00 23 Aug. '21 9 Dec. Pol

Tremaine, Louis E ......... Inspr. W. & M........ 12 Aug. '80 800 00 1 Nov.'30 28 Oct. '76

Urquhart, James Ronald.... Asst. Inspr. W. & M... 28 June '80 800 00 2 Apr. '54 28 June '80

Villeneuve, Jacques ....... Excise Officer........... 7 Jan. '69 800 00 30 Jan. '38 - Oct. '68

Vincent, Joseph Louis ...... Collector Inland Rev... 1 May '79 1,950 00 19 Mar. '35 1 Aug. '61

Wainwright, Frederick G... 3rd class Exciseman.... 1 May '76 750 00 1 Aug.'40 21 Nov- '78

Walsh, Thaddeus Joseph.... Cashier..... .......... 1 Jan. '04 1,500 00 6 June '36 1 July '64

42

A. 1886



9 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Watkins. John Andrew......

Webster, Thomas...........

Westman, Thomas.

Weyms, Charles............

Whelan, William Frederick..

Whitteker, William.........

Williams, John........ m.

Wilmot, John Bentley ......

ilson, Robert.............

itton, Henry Buckingham.

Woodward, George W.......

Wright, Robert J...........

a83tes, James McGee........

Present Rank.

3rd class Exciseman....

3rd class Exciseman....

Messenger ............

2nd clas Exciseman...

Specification Clerk.....

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

Gas Inspector .........

Inspector W. & M.....

3rd class Exciseman....

Inspector of Canals....

Special Class Exciseman

Asst. Inspector W. & M.

2nd class Exciseman...

Date
thereof.

1 July '83

1 July '83

3 May '84

1 July '84

26 May '74

31 Aug. '80

1 July '83

17 Aug.'80

20 Oct. '80

1 Dec. '79

1 Jan. '83

1 Jan. '81

1 July '84

Present
Salary.

$ cts.
630 00

660 00

400 00

805 00

1,000 00

500 00

1,000 00

1,200 00

690 00

1,600 00

1,200 00

600 00

805 00

Da te of Date of
Birth. First Ap-

pointment.

20 Jan. '31

27 July '36

26 Jan. '63

4 Mar.'42

17 May '32

14 Sept.'34

27 Nov.'26

9 Feb. '42

21 Jan. '21

21 Oct. '31

22 Apr. '40

24 Dec. '51

27 Feb. '46

10 Oct.

21 Sept.

3 May

5 Feb.

26 May

14 Aug.

15 Nov.

14 Aug.

29 Apr.

1 Dec.

11 July

1 Jan.

11 Feb.

A. 1886



4If9 V ictoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

12.-THE DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Nanie. Present Rank.

Johnson, James......... Commissioner .........

Parmelee, William Grannis.. Assistant Commissioner

Barry, James, .............. Chief Clerk ...........

Watters, Thomas John. ..... lst class Clerk.........

Ince, George Vincent........ 2nd class " ........

Fairweather, Joseph Sydney. 2nd class " ........

Harding, ClarenceHoldsworth 2nd class " ........

Bennet, Frederick George.... 2nd class " ........

McKiel, Charles Edward.... 2nd class " ........

Bleakney, Arthur Crawley.. 2nd class ........

Fawcett, Guilford Hebe. ... 2nd class "

Baker, William Chipman ... 2nd class " ........

Campbell, James Joseph.. ... 3rd class " ........

Russell, William............ 3rd class ........

Robertson, George Stokes.... 3rd clas " ........

Sanders, Edwin Lewis .... ; 3rd class " ........
1 Private Secretary......

Ackers, John ............ 3rd class " ...

Bliss, Thomas Alder Dickson 3rd chtss " ........

Dunlevie, Sidney Alfred..... 3rd class " ........

Courtney, John............. 3rd class ........

Code, Thomas James........ 3rd class ........

Farrow, Robinson Russell.... 3rd class ........

Grafton, William Henry .... 3rd class " ........

Lacerte, Alide............... 3rd class ".......

Morin, Alfred............ 3rd class " ........

Christie, Jessie Blackburn... 3rd class " ........

McKenzie, William John .... 3rd class 4 ....

Walls, John................ Messenger.........

Carleton, John.............. .............

Is also Chairman of the Board of Customs.

Uate Present Date of Date Af
thereof. salary. Birth. First Ap

pointmel

$ets.
1 Jan. '75 4,200 00 20 May '16 Aug.

1 Jan. '85 2,800 00 27 Aug.'33 19 Jan.

1 June '82 1 950 00 10 Sept.'32 2 Apr.

1 July '80 1,800 00 29 Nov.'52 1 July

1 July '81 1,300 00 Il Jan. '35 Feb.

1 July '81 1,300 00 Il Oct. '46 18 Nov.

1 July '81 1,300 00 3 Feb. '52 1 May

1 July '81 1,300 00 10 Mar.'52 24 Aug.

1 July '82 1,250 00 24 Apr. '46 1 Dec.

1 July '82 1,250 00 12 Aug.'53 1 Sept.

1 July '82 1,250 00 13 Nov.'50 1 6 Feb.

1 July '82 1,200 00 16 July '53 Oct.

82P~ ' 0 0n~¶ ',- -

1 Feb. '82

1 July '81

1 July '83

1 June '80

1 Oct. '82

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 Apr. '82

1 June '84

1 Feb. '85

1 June '82

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

6 July '58

16 June'81

850 00

80000

800 00 1
300 00 j

750 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

750 00

450 00

500 00

600 00

500 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

10 July 51

28 May '44

22 Apr. '55

17 Mar.'56

16 July '46

28 June '57

4 June '47

27 June '48

29 Jan. '64

7 Mar.'63

29 Nov.'50

4 July '65

10 Jan. '57

26 June '61

15 Mar. '63

il Mar.'28

2 Apr. '47

12~ Apr. .

1 June '76

1 July '81

Aug. '8

Feb. '79

23 May '8

4 June '80

7 Feb. '8

1 Apr. 's2

15 Jan.'8

1 Feb.

1 June '8

15 June '76

May '84

Nov. '84

6 July '58

Nov. '80

A. 1886

t.

67

76

61

69

69

70

71

7;

74

7e

73

73

'70



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Naine. Present Rank. Date Presentthercof. Salary.

Amherstburg.

Gott, George............... Collector. ........

own, John............... Landing Waiter.

bemning, Herbert Vilender... Landing Waiter.......

Beleville.

Webster, William......... Collector..........

'eamish, William Adderley.. Landiig Waiter.....

azier, Richard Leonard.. Landing Waiter.......

overt, John............... Preventive Officer.....1

rWin, John............. Landing Waiter.......

Berlin.

]owman, Anson Lewis....... Collector ..............

Brantford.

Leming, Henry Blakey..... Collector............

)IcMichael, àolon W....... Clerk & L. Waiter.....

Ostrom, William Albert..... Clerk & L. Waiter.....

OSter, Thomas............. Landing Waiter.......

Brighton.

4kwood, Milton Kingsley.. Collector..............

Brockville. I

aston, George ......... Collector ..........

ibbald, Charles.......... L. W. & Cleik........

Stewart, Alexander..........iLanding Waiter.......
8 'lnpson, David............ Landing Waiter.......

klinro, John McNab........ Sub-Collector..........

taYner, Thomas A ........ Tide Waiter...........

Chatham, Ont.

llenneflather, John Going. ... Collector..............

)4cGregor, Abraham R...... L. W. & Clerk........

1liek, John................ Landing Waiter.......

eoatsworth, Caleb.......... Preventive Officer.....

Xberts, Joseph Melchoir..... Landing Waiter.......

24 July

27 Mar.

23 July

18 Oct. '78

8 June '58

20 Sep. '71

1 June'81

28 May '83

8 Apr. '80

1 May '76

5Nov. '73

1 Jan. '84

27 Oct. '76

6 Apr. '71

21 Mar. '68

14 Jan. '57

24-Jan, '50

1 July '84

1 Aug. '83

1 July '85

9 May '51

5 Oct. '56

13 Feb. '65

5 Apr. '70

1 Sept.'8.4

SS cts.

1,000

500

600

1,300

900

300

300

600

00

00

Date of Date of
Birth. First Ap-

pointment.

18 Oct. '27 1 Nov. '73

2 Aug. '28 27 Mar. '74

3 July '30 23 July '74

4 Dec. '44 18 Oct. '73

14 Dec. '32 8 June '58

28Sept.'30 20 Sept. '71

6 Jan. '25 1 June '81

8 Feb. '44 28 May '83

850 00 26 Nov. '47

1,300

800

700

600

600 00

1,300

800

700

600

400

500

1,100 00

800 00

500 00

300 00

350 00

5 Oct. '30

18 Nov. '48

29 Aug. '53

7 Dec. '39

27 June, '25

19 Dec. '12

23 Sept.'19

5 Jan. '29

13 Oct. '43

4 Apr. '43

13 Aug. '53

19 Sept. '25

10 Oct. '34

7 Feb. '24

6 Nov. '28

21 Aug. '40

8 Apr. '80

1 May '76

5 Mar. '73

1 Jan. '84

27 Oct. '76

6 Apr. 71

21 Mar.

14 Jan.

24 Jan.

1 July

1 Aug.

1 July

9 May '51

5 Oct. '56

13 Feb. '65

5 Apr. '76

1 Sept. '84

A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-'-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Naine.

Clifton.

Loeggett, William...........

Brown, Joseph Pell.........

Rogers, Henry B...........

Cannon, John Henry........

Culhane, Patrick........

Battle, John................

Wills, John................

Bender, Hiram..........

Harvey, Thomas Brunswick..

Flynn, James Joseph. .......

Jackson, James.............

:Battle, John Clarence.......

JParker, William McMicking.

Johnson, John J.........

Brown, James ..............

Flynn, James Patrick.......

McKenzie, Charles Jamer.

Cobourg.
Ewing, Charles Eldon.......

MicAllister, Daniel........

Godard, Alared Henry ....

Port Colborne.

McFarland, Duncan Elliott..

Bcholfield, James Scholfield..

Present Rank.

Collector.............

Clerk.................

Landing Waiter.......

Landing Waiter.......

Landing Waiter.......

Sub-Collector..........

Landing Waiter.......

Landing Waiter.......

'Sub-Collectoi...........

Landing Waiter.......

Landing Waiter.......

Landing Waiter.......

Landing Waiter.......

Preventive Officer.....

Clerk & L. Waiter.....

Clerk & L. Waiter.....

Clerk & L. Waiter.....

Collector..............

Landing Waiter.......

Preventive Officer.....

Collector.............

Landing Waiter.......

Biaun, James Robert........IPreventive Officer.....

Collingwood.

Watson, George............ Collector..............

logg, William A...........;Landing Waiter.......

Galna, John............... Landing Waiter.......

Cornwall. -
Macmillan, Alexander V .... Collector.............

Cook, Durtiam............. Landing Waiter.......

Ridley, John ............ Landing Waiter.......

A. 1886

Date
thereof.

Il July '38

18 Dec. '65

June '54

11 Nov. '69

1 July '72

23 July, '74

1 July '75

2 Sept.'79

Il Sept.'79

-Mar. '80

- Nov.'79

14 Mar. '82

29 Mar. '82

18 June '80

1 Oct. '84

1 Oct. '84

1 Oct. '84

6 Nov. '65

2 Mar. '82

26 Nov. '69

1 Sept.'75

18 Oct. '56

1 May '84

22 Nov.'66

3 Apr. '82

5 July '81

2 Dec. '78

15 Oct. '78

15 Oct. '78

1,000

700

400

300 00

300 00

250-00

1,000 00

500 00

400 00

Present
Salary.

S rn .

8 cts.

1,800 (0

1,000 00

900 00

650 00

650 00

700 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

Date of
Birth.

7 May '11

10 Feb. '37

20 Aug. '21

16 Apr. '41'

- '29

31 Jan. '57

29 Feb. '40

16 Oct. '42

..........

31 Aug. '58

2 Aug.'22

21 Aug. '57

30 July '51

4 Oct. '40

20 May '44

6 Dec. '64

22 Mar.'47

Apr.

Feb.

Dec.

1 Jan. '31

1 Oct. '22

7 Dec. '41

2 Dec. '28

23 Jan. '59

22 Feb. '49

14 Apr. '48

1 Nov.'38

12 Feb.'51

Date of
First Ap-

pointimlent.

Il July

18 Dec,

- June

Il Nov.

1 July

23 July

1 July

2 Sept.

11 Sept.

- Mar.

- Nov.

14 Mar.

29 Mar.

18 June

1 Oct.

1 Oct.

1 Oct.

Nov.

Mar.

Nov.

1 Sept.

18 Oct.

1 May

22 Nov.

3 Apr.

5 July

Il Aug.-7
5

15 Oct. '78

15 Oct.



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Cramahe.

Owler, George Orchard..... Collector..............

Darlington.

41kin, John .............. Collector ..............

4Clellan, James........... Landing Waiter .......

Dover.

"%rrett, Theobald Butler.... ICollector...........

aQtthews, John........... Sub-Collector.

a"Ybee, Simon Pitt........ Sub-Collector.

Desoronto.
Pile, Thomas Gibbet........ Collector..............

Dundas.

Cllespy, William......... Collector...........

Dunînville.

ownson, AIT............. Collector..............

albraith, Thomas Jefferson. Landing Waiter ........

Fort Erie.

okfield,Emmanuel Wilters Collector..............

arren, Robert Grant ...... Landing Waiter........

reble, Charles............. Landing Waiter.......

chardson, Robert Watson.. Landing Waiter.......

is, Charles Wesley. ..... Clerk & L. Waiter.....

'hryer, Joseph............ Landing Waiter.......

ewbigging, Thomas Leslie.. Landing Waiter.......

ery8ler, John A ............ Landing Waiter.......

'Wilkins, Oscar Fitzalwyn... Landing Waiter.......

Galt.

eck, Thomas.............. Collector..............

Gananoque.
%Ythiston, John ............ Collector ..............

Goderich.
'rrow, Ascher................

hadeliffe, Richard.......... Clerk.................

A. 1886

Date
thereof.

15 July '77

Nov. '70

7 Jan. '64

9 Feb.

1 Nov.

July

25 Oct. '76

1 Apr. '71

12 Nov.'74

6 Apr. '76

1 May '85

16 Nov.'55

22 July '56

16 Jan. '70

1 Dec. '75

28 Feb.'74

27 Feb. '74

1 Sept.'84

1 Sept.'84

8 Apr. '84

17 Apr. '58

1 July '84

Sept. 55

Present
Salary.

$ ets.

550 00

1,200 0<)

600 00

875 001

600 00

500 00

600 00

1,200 00

800 00

100 00

1,200 00

900 00

700 00

600 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

600 00<

600 00

750 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

700 00

Date of
Birth.

5 July '32

Oct. '20

Oct. '10

17 Nov.'17

29 June '39

4 Jan. '27

29Sept.'14

24Nov. '29

23 Jan. '21

5 Mar. '41

.. . .... .. ...

16 Oct. '37

7 Apr. '25

26 Nov. '44

9 Oct. '47

3 Oct. '35

13 June'42

6 Nov. '53

2 July '36

.2 Sept. '21

3 Mar. '34

17 Apr. '40

9 Apr. 38

Date of
First Ap-

pointment.

13 July '77

Nov. '70

7 Jan. '64

25 June '53

1 Nov. '84

July '76

25 Oct. '76

9 Dec. '69

12 Nov. '74

6 Apr. '76

1 May '85

16 Nov. '55

22 July '56

16 Jan. '70

1 Dec. '75

28 Feb. '74

27 Feb. '74

1 Sept. '84

1 Sept. '84

8 Apr. '84

17 Apr. '58

1 July '84

Sept. '55

1



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank. Date Present Date of Fit of
thereof. Salary. Birth. pointme)t.

Guelph. $ cts.

Hefferman, Thomas Augustus Collector .............. 16 May '79 1,200 00 11 May '37 16 May '79

Hutton, Edwin Henry..... Clerk................. 1 Nov.'75 800 00 6 Nov. '55 1 Nov. '75

MÇcNamara, Michael........ 'Sub-Collector........... 1 Oct. '80 400 00 7 Mar. '41 1 Oct. '80

Hamilton.

McKenzie, Alexander Innes.. Surv'r & Act. Collector. 25 Oct. '76 1,500 00 6 Feb. '26 28 Mar. '76

Whyte, Ralph Little........;Chief Clerk............ 27 Oct. '76 1,400 00 30 May '20 27 Oct.'76

Thomson, John ............ Appraiser.............. 1 Mar. '73 1,300 00 June '35 1 Mar. '73

Wyllie, Andrew Allison ..... Asst. Appraiser........ 14 July '79 1,100 00 14 Sept. '26 14 July '79

Shepherd, Francis ......... Clerk ................ 1 July '56 1,100 00 4 Apr. '20 1 July '56

Woodward, Henry William.. Clerk................. 1 Aug. '66 1,000 00 2 Apr. '26 1 Aug. '66

Murray, Hugh...........Clerk................. 1 Nov. '83 1,000 00 26 June '43 1 Nov. '83

Townsend, Samuel Watton.. Clerk................. 1 May '77 700 00 4 Nov.'21 1 May '77

Galbraith, David Blomfeld. . Clerk................. 1 Oct. '78 600 00 18 Feb. '19 1 Oct. '78

Alexander, A ............ .ICerk................. 1 June '84 600 00 29 July '32 1 June '84

Dixon, Herbert Anthony L.. IChief L. Waiter........ 5 Apr. '67 850 00 13 Apr. '19 3 Apr. '67

Paterson, Mark Johnstone. .. Landing Waiter....... 19 May '74 650 00 20 Sept. '42 19 May '74

O'Heir, Peter............... Landing Waiter....... 1 Mar. '72 600 00 May '20 1 Mar. '79

McKinty, John............. Landing Waiter....... 28 May '74 600 00 18 Oct. '27 28 May'1

Wingfield, A. H............ Landing Waiter....... 8 Oct. '77 600 00 1 Aug. '28 8 Oct. 77
Halcrow, James............ Locker and Gauger..... 1 June '74 600 00 9 Jan. '39 1 Juie

Cleary, Stephen............ Searcher and Packer ... 6 May '74 550 00 Dec. '33 6 Mary

Ferguson, Alexander........ Mesenger............. 1 May '80 450 00 20 Nov.'46 1 May '80

Port Hope.

Burton, Edward J. W....... Collector.............. 15Sept.'72 1,200 00 5 Jan. '48 15 Sept.

Lauder, George P........... Clerk................. 18 June '57 750 00 Nov. '28 18 June.'5 7

Hagerman, Christopher A... Landing Waiter..... 1 June '80 600 00 18 Oct. '42 1 June '80

Kincardine.

Williamson, Archibald M.... Collector.............. 8 Sept. '82, 600 00 4 July '37 8 Sept. 8

Davis, Henry ........... Sub-Collector.......... 1 Oct. '82 350 00 4 June '43 1 Oct.

Kingston.

Hamilton, Clarke........... Collector ............ 29 June '82 1,700 00 17 Mar. '33 29 June '8



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Nane PesntRak. Date Present Date of Date o!Present Rank. thereof. Salary. Birth. t
pointment.

$ ts.
Kingston (Con.) t

kacalister, Alexander... Surveyor............. 24 Dec. '73 1,100 00 29 May '19 24 Dec. '73

Abraham............ Chief Clerk ........... 19 Jan. '75 1,100 00 11 Dec. '48 19 Jan. '75

glin R. D............ 3rd class Clerk........ 23 Feb.'73 900 00 8 Dec. '38 23 Feb. '73

a"ddigan, M. J........... 3rd class ".... 2 Aug.'77 550 00 10 Jan. '26 2 Aug. '77
ýeish, William ............. 3rd class ".... 23 July '77 600 00 18 Jan. '34 23 July '77

riVer, Thomas...........Appraiser............ 23 June'75 1,000 00 15Aug.'42 23June '75

1eagher, Thomas...... ... Landing Waiter .. l.... 11 Apr. '55 650 00 30 Oct. '24 Il Apr. '55

Joseph ............. Landing Waiter....... 14 Jan. '57 650 00 17 Dec.'25 14 Jan. '57
rtllphy, Josepli............ Landing Waiter..... .. 1 Jan. '62 600 00 15 Aug. '18 1 Jan. '62

kobinson, T ................ Landing Waiter........ 1 Apr. '72 600 00 1 May '20 1 Apr. '72

chiillan, J ............... Landing Waiter....... 1 Dec. '79 600 00 26 June '34 1 Dec. '79

egle, John................ Sub-Collector.......... 1 Jan. '77 450 00 25 Nov.'26 1 Jan. '7T

ggs, George W .......... .Preventive Officer...... 10 July '76 550 00 - '40 10 July '76

'gdale, Alfred H.........¶Preventive Officer. 27 July '83 300 00 19 June '61 27 July '8&
bawson, John............Preventive Officer. 4 Sept.'67 200 00 11 Feb. '28 4 Sept. '67

u, Almon.............. Preventive Officer...... ............ 150 00 ............ ............

lakin, David J.......... Preventive Oflicer... .16 Mar. '82 150 00 30 Mar. '33 16 Mar. '82

gEon, George H......... Messenger and Packer.. 29 July '74 500 60 21 July '21 29 July '74

kgent, Peter............. Packer.............. 1 May '81 500 00 27 July '57 1 May '81

%akin, Thomas.......... Tide Waiter........... 1 June '85 600 00 ............ 1 June '85

Kingsville.

k , Sidney Arthur....... Collector .............. 1 Mar. '73 400 00 23 Jan. '44 1 Mar. '73

ormick, David.... ..... Sub-Collector.......... 10 July '79 300 00 29 July '15 10 July '79<
t, Matthew William.... Sub-Collector.......... 10 Jan. '81 300 00 1 Nov.'37 10 Jan. '81

Lindsay.
ne, David............. Collector .............. 5 Apr. '73 600 00 - '28 5 Apr. '73

%stello, John............ Landing Waiter....... 1 Nov.'73 400 00 25 Dec. '40 1 Nov. '73

London, Ont.
llobert............... Collector.............. 1 Jan. '78 1,9C0 00 1 Tan. '.2 1 Jan. '78

(elktt, Edward S. M....... Cl4ief Clerk........... 19 July '65 1,3C0 -00 19 July 'î6 19 July T$

49
48-4

A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

D)ate of
Naie. Prsn in. Date Present Date of FDate ofPresent Rank. thereof. Salary. Birth. posi ti-t.

Sets.

London, Ont. (Con.) 1 1 '

Siddons, John........... Appraiser........... 28 Oct. '73 1,300 00 4'Apr.'27 28 Oct. '73

Sutherland, George D....... Assistant Appraiser ... 1 May '82 1,200 00 17 Jan. '32 1 May '8e

Millar, Thomas............. Clerk................. 25 Apr. '76 850 00 13 May '41 25 Apr. '76

Irwin, Richard ............. Landing Waiter....... 22 Dec.'55 800 00 25 Sept.'25 22 Dec. '55

Evans, Richard Jones....... Landing Waiter....... 1 Oct. '71 750 00 3 Nov. '18 1 Oct. '71

Williams, John bang....... Clerk and Locker...... 7 Feb. '80 650 00 - '30 7 Feb. '80

Armstrong, Thomas. ..... .Su-Collector... ....... 1 June '80 600 00 15 Apr. '15 1 June '80

Taylor, James F............ Sub-Collector.......... 4 Sept.'82 300 00 13 July '54 4 Sept. 'S

Keightly, Robert........... Preventive Ollicer... ... 1 Oct. '84 500 00 18 Dec. '45 1 Oct.

McDiarmid, Finlay ........ Preventive Officer... ... 5 Apr. '70 100 00 28 Mar. '29 5 Apr.

Taylor, William .......... Clerk ................. .1 Oct. '73 500 00 ............ i Oct.

Morrisburg.

Carnian, Hiram........... Collector.............. 24 Dec. '67 800 00 Il Jan. '28 24 Dec.

Perkins, James............. Sub-Collector.......... 24 Dec. '79 400 00 22 June '28 24 Dec.

Napanee.

Elliott, George M ......... Collector............. 1 Feb. '84 900 00 17 Oct. '52 I Feb.

Perry, Charles B ........... Landing Waiter.......1 May '79 500 00 16 Sept.'27 1 May

Newcastle.

Farncomb, Frederick........ Collector............... 30 J une'55 700 00 15 Jan. '26 30 June

Niagara.

Kirby, William ............ Collector.............. 1 July '71 900 00 13 Oct. '17 1 July

Thompson, Edward lenry... Landing Waiter....... 18 Oct. '73 600 00 12 June '39 18 Oct. À

Lowrey, David J .......... Landing Waiter ....... 1 Apr. '82 400 00 10 June '25 Apr.

Oakville.

Chisholi, Robert Ke. Collector.............. 30 Aug.'42 700 00 25 May '19 30 Aug.

Foster, Henry. .......... Sub-Collector.......... 24 Sept.'80 400 00 5 Feb. '24 24 Sept.

Sharp, Daniel M............ Preventive Oflicer... 23 June'85 150 00 ............ 23 June

Oshawa.

Blamey, Geo. Frederick. Collector.............1 Jan. '82 700 00 26 Nov.'33 I Jan.

O'Dea, James.............. Landing Waiter....... 6 Feb. '78 550 00 20 Mar.'35 6 Feb.



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Ottawa.

Wilson, Zachariah......... .

bartram, Joseph Thomas....

4etey, Alexander..........
Patterson, Thomas ..........

1oran, Gordian John.......

Present Rank.

Collector..............

Surveyor.. ............

Landing Waiter .......

Appraiser.............

Clerk and Ldg. Wtr....

"teacy, John Butler ........ Clerk and Ldg. Wtr....

keir, Samuel Cochrane...... Locker and Ldg. Wtr..

ilarier, Pierre .............. Landing Waiter .......

lteGovern, John James..... 'Packer and GenI. Asst.
8Cott, Charles Stinson ...... Clerk......... .....

op, Richard Saniuel.. . .. Clerk ................

arren, Joseph............ .. Sub-Collector....

Owen Sound.
Rteyens, James Crispen . Collector..........

ý'g, Cyrus Richmond...... Sub-Collector..........

Paris.

all Thomas .............. Collector ..............

ýflear, A. M............. Landing Waiter .......

Penetanguishene.

' pson, William M ...... Collector...........
rk, George.............. Sub-Collector..........

Peterboro.
tratton, James.......... Collector...........

enenti, Charles Hamilton. Clerk and Ldg. Wtr....

Picton.

MW alter T............. Collector..............

andeville, Francis W...... Landing Waiter .......

)4t*an, William Henry.... Landing Waiter .......

I'nger, John .............. Preventive Officer......

an, Joshua Malle. ...... Preventive Officer......

Date Present Date of
thereof. Salary. Birth.

c ets.

1 Feb.'73 1,800 00 7 Mar. '19

9 June '76 1,300 00 24 June '41

15 Dec. '54 800 00 5June '21

1 Apr. '83 1,200 00 11 May '21

1 Apr. '71 800 00 1 Apr. '25

5 Apr. '73 800 00 10 Feb. '27

4 Nov. '74

13 May '81

1 Sept. '81

1 July '83

1 July '84

19 May '76

1 Aug. '82

12 Nov.'72

1 Mar. '78

26 May'75

21 June '84

8 Apr. '82

18 July '76.

17 Dec. '84

23 May '78

49 Feb. '49

20 Oct. '64

13 Sept. '66

16 Dec. '71

600 00

600 00

600 00

800 00

600 00

400 00

700 ,00

400 00

1,000 00

600 00

500 00

500 00

1,000 00

600 00

10 Mar.'07

20 Feb. '20

4 Feb. '52

22 Dec. '42

28 Sept.'62

15 Apr. '26

23 Jan. 'Q

21 Dec. '25

31 Jan. '35

............

10 Nov. '58

25 Jan. '31

22 May '30

2 Mar. '61

22 Jan. '47

2 June '16

22 Sept.'22

2 Sept. '19

Il Jan. '10

48~~.4j

A. 1886

Date of
Firt Ap.
pointmeiit.

1 Feb.

1 Jan.

15 Dec.

1 Apr.

à Apr.

5 Apr.

4 Nov.

13 May

1 Sept.

12 June

1 July

19 May

1 Aug. '82

12 Nov. '72

1 Mar. '78

26 May '75

21 June '84

8 Apr. .'82

18 July '76

17 Dec. '84

23 May

2 Feb.

20 Oct.

13 Sept.

16 Dec.



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Namne. Present Rank. Datethereof.

Prescott.

Jessup, Hamilton D ........ Collector .............. 7 Oct. '67

Bellamy, Samuel Josephus. . Surveyor............. 6 Nov. '77

Dowsley, Matthew.......... Clerk, L. W. & Searcher 21 Dec. '70

Gerald, William............ Landiiig Waiter....... 14Sept.'53

Murphy, John .............. Landing Waiter ....... 1 July '74

Gerald, Asahel Scott........ Preventive Officer... 25 Jan. '62

Hollingsworth, Samuel ...... Preventive Officer.. 1 July '83

iReed. John................. Sub-Collector........ .2 Oct. '79

Mooney, John.............Su-Collector.......... 28 Mar. '76

Port Arthur.

Nicholson, Peter ........... Collector.............. 16 May '74

Livingstoiie, John. ......... Collector.......... 1 May '72

St. Catharines.

Collier. Henry Haiglit...... o1lector............ 13 Juty '77

Anderson, Miuhael John. ... Surveyor ............. 26 Oct. '57

Hodge, Archibald........... Landing Waiter & Clerk 13 Mar. '76

McClive, John ......... . .. Ldg. Waiter & Searcher 13 Mar. '76

Spillette, Silas W......... Sub-Collector & L. W.. 12 May '82

St. Thomas.

Dunham, Ephraim A ....... Collector ............. 9 Sept.'56

King. John Dufficy.........SubCollector....... .. 23 Dec. '79

Simellie, Jolit Reid ......... Ldg. Waiter & Searcher 12 July '75

Finlay, James Thos. Clark... Sub-Collector.........28 Mar. '74

'Payne, Manuel...........Sub-Collector......... 1 July '84

Backhouse, William. ...... Sub-Colletor......... July '81

Thompson, Th1omas........ Preventive Officer ..... 5 Apr. '70

Sarnia.

Matheson, George N. ..... Collectr............ 26 Jan. '56

Adams, Joshua Fourth...... Landing Waiter....... 10 Aug.'74

McIntyre, Joseph........... Landing Waiter........ Sept. '74

Present Date of Date of-
Salary. Birth. point .it

$ cts.

1,200

900

800

700

550

600

500

125

400

700 00

600 00

1.200

800

800

600

600

1,000

800

750

700

300

200

100

1,400 00

700 00

600 00

2 May '17

17 May '49

8 Apr. '27

21 Mar. '23

28 Mar. '45

31 Aug. '38

8 Dec. '32

29 Nov.'32

7 Oct. '24

- '35

30 Oct. '26

28 Nov.'18

29 Sept.'1 5

17 July '32

5 Jau. '50

15 Jan. '37

23 July '14

20 June '20

31 Mar. '29

7 Dec. '39

10 Feb. '45

Mar.'39

- '20

2 Dec. '35

22 Apr. '40

25 Nov.'33

7 Oct.

6 Nov.

21 Dec.

14 Sept.

1 July

25 Jan.

1 July

18 May

28 Mar.

16 May '14

1 May 'le

13 July

26 Oct.

19 May

13 Mar.

29 May

19 Sept.

25 Sept. '54

12 JuIY

28 Max.

1 July

5 JuIy 'ai

Apr.

26 Jan.

10 Aug.

Sept.

A. 1SS6



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Sarnia (Cou.) 1
Collier, John C............. Landing Waiter.......

bartlet, William ........ .. Landing Waiter.......

llawson, Daniel ............ Sub-Collector..........

leath, Edwin Lee.......... Sub-Collector..........

Alcock, James.............. Preventive Officer.

I£cLagan, John ............ iLanding Waiter.......

Saugeen.
plemning, James ............ Collector ..............

Sault Ste Marie.

Wilson, Joseph............. .. Deputy Collector ......

'onside, James Symington..

ront, Frank...........

aglish, Richard........

Ite, Benjamin Walker.....

e.4 lamorandière, Charles...,

Stratford.

nailton, John ............

1SOn, John Lake..........

)aeGregor, Chas. John ....

ord, William Nelson ......

bmmore, David...........

Toronto.

pa'ttn,Hon. Jas. LL.D.,Q.C

boUglas, John..............

eLean, Thomas...........

aton, Robert Graham Alex..

Plemuing, John Beverley.....

eaty, John............

be'ter, Charles Wesley.....

olding, Joseph............

Clerk.................

Sub-Collector....

Sub-Collector...

Sub-Collector.........

Landing Waiter.......

Collector ..............

Landing Waiter.......

Clerk.................

Sub-Collector..........

Sub-Collector... ..

Collector..............

Surveyor.............

Chief Clerk ...........

Cashier ...............

Asst. Cashier & Clerk..

Clerk ..............

Clerk.................

Clerk.................

Date
thereof.

A. 1886

Present
Salary.

$ ets.

600 00

600 00

700 00

600 00

500 00

600 00

300 00

Feb. '80

4 Nov.'74

16 Oct. '73

1Sept.'79

18 June '84

1 Aug. '79

1 May '76

24 Feb. '48

31 Aug.'80

1 Oct. '79

19 Apr. '71

6 July '80

6 June'74

21 July '66

1 June '73

9 Apr.'85

1 June '78

12 July '83

14 Apr. '81

1 Jan. '58

1 Mar. '71

1 Jan. '77

1 Dec. '79

1 Apr. '65

22 Oct. '73

17 Jan. '76

1,200 00

600 00

600 00

500 00

400 00

3,750

2,000

1,400

1,200

850

1,200

750

1,000

Date of
Birth.

2 Oct. '35

23 May '16

16 Mar.'35

9 Jan. '39

11 July '45

31 Oct. '41

18 July '22

18 Mar.'18

13 July '35

26 Oct. '40

7 Feb. '34

2 May '37

10 June '17

20 Feb.'32

9 Jan. '23

..........

25 Oct.'27

12 May '30

10 June '24

19 Mar.'26

22 Jan. '31

16 Mar.'30

22 Aug.'54

8 June'26

19 Jan. '57

29 Mar.'31

Date of
First Ap-

pointmnent.

Feb.

4 Nov.

16 Oct.

1 Sept.

18 June

1 Aug.

1 May '76

14 Oct. '43

31 Aug. '80

1 Oct. '79

19 Apr. '71

6 July '80

6 June '74

21 July '66

1 June '7.3

9 Apr. '85

1 June '78

12 July '83

14 Apr. '81

1 Jan. '58

1 1ar. '71

16 Nov. '55

1 Dec. '72

1 Apr. '65

22 Oct. '73

17 Jan. '76

1,100

600

500

500

400

300



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4'.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. P tRank. Date
Nain. 1'eseit Rnk. thereof.

Toronto (Con.)

Ridgway, Robert........... Clerk............... 1 July '76

Heakes, James Robert ...... Clerk................. 1 May '78

Moffitt, Alexander James . - Clerk.. ... ...... 1 July '78

Cowan, John Arpen. l ....... Cerk................. 1 July '78

Charlesworth, John......... Clerk................. 1Aug. '80

McCaffry, James Robert .... Clerk................ 26 May '69

Pearson, Wesley............ Clerk................. 13 May '82

Patterson, jr., Alexander Clerk.............. 1 July '82

Taylor, Conynugham Crawford Clerk................. 22 Jan. '83

Ardagh, Henry Hatton..Clerk................. 6 Feb. '83

Tiiining, William Karr S.... Clerk................. 1 May '82

Reiddy, Charles.......... Clerk................ 1 July '83

Griffith, W illiam........... Clerk................. 1 Sept.'81

Bovell, Howard ............ Clerk.............. 1 Apr. '84

Sargant, Thomas ........... Appraiser ............. 14 Apr. '75

Blackwood, Thomas Ferguson Appraiser ............. 1 July '81

Baker, Charles ............ Appraiser .............

Miller, James George........ Assistant Appraiser..

MeCaw, Hugh...........Assistant Appraiser ....

Diiff, Alexander. ..... . .... .Locker & Gauger ......

Bel], Robert ............... Gauger ...............

Horgan, Jeremiah Warren... Locker & Ldg. Waiter.

Lester, William Hollis...... Locker................

Yorston, James ............ Locker................

Venier, John............... Locker................

McCarthy, Timothy .... '... Chief Landing Waiter.

Hllwe, William........... Landing Waiter.......

Anderson, Bouchette........ Landing Waiter.......

Monro, George........... Landing Waiter.......

Gowan, Harcourt Potter.. . Landing Waiter.......

1 Apr. '72

1 July '73

1 July '77

1 Mar. '66

1 Apr. '83

13 Oct. '63

1 Mar.'73

1 July '77

1 July '82

9 May '51

17 Mar. '64

1 June '70

20 May '72

5 Jan. '46

A. 1886

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

i

650 00

Date of
Birth.

800 00

650 00.

700 00

700 00

650 00

1,000 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

650 00

600 00

1,500 00

1,500 00

1,300 00

800 00

800 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

900 00

800 00

700 00

600 00

1,000 00

650 00

700 00

650 00

I I

Date of
First Ap-

pointmeflt.

20 Oct. '23

Il July '49

11 June'50

Il Oct. '50

1 Aug.'22

6 Feb. '51

17 Feb. '51

4 Aug.'57

9 Aug.'23

Il Sept.'53

29 Aug.'62

22 July '40

27 Mar. '27

29 Mar.'40

16 Sept. '38

27 Dec. '33

26 Aug.'33

15 Apr. '32

10 Dec. '32

Il Aug.'20

8 June '32

Dec. '19

15 Jan. '33

12 July '44

14Feb. '32

17 Mar. '18

6 May '26

29 Deo. '47

8 Aug. '31

9 Oct. '36

1 July

1 May

1 July

1 July

1 Aug.

26 May

13 May

1 July

22 Jan.

6 Feb.

1 May

1 July

1 Sept.

1 Apr.

14 Apr.

1 July

1 Apr.

1 July

1 July

1 Mar.

1 Apr.

13 Oct.

1 Mar

1 July

1 July

9 May

17 Mar.

1 June

20 May

5 Jan.

YI(

Y7ý

y4i

1



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4S.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Date Present Date of Date of
INaml-e. Present Rank. tleo. P se DahE First Ap-thereof. Salary. Birth. pointment.

Toronto (Cou.)

Loarden, Cornelius. ......... Landinîg Waiter.......

cOtt, Andrew ............. Landing Waiter .......

eClain, William .......... Landing Waiter.......

Powler, Edwin............. Tide Waiter...........

tnrns, William ........... Tide Waiter ........

LoWther, John............. Tide Waiter.. .........

efroy, George ............. Lauding Waiter.......

biekey, Walter............. Landing Waiter........

itehell. Thomas........... Landing Waiter.......

ýickerstaff, Joseph.......... Lauding Waiter.......

Jlack, David Nathaniel.... Landùig Waiter.......
hIunkett, William.......... Landing Waiter.......

Edward ............ Tide Waiter..........

Milburn, Robert Baldwin.... Preventive Officer.. ...

"irahami, Nicliolas .......... Packer..............

dson, John Wilkinson... . Packer............

'IFarrall, Robert........... Packer.................

Y, George.............. Packer................
Lloyd, Frank............ Packer............

ý'homxipson, John............ Packer.................

erry, Thonas.............. Packer................

'Wright, Robert............. Packer................

hyers, Henry.............. Packer................

eid, W illiam .............. Packer................

'owbridge, John.. .. P..............

le1min, Charles ............ House Keeper & Mes-
senger .............

iams, Thomas......... Asst. Messenger.......

John G.............. Sub-Collector..........

C1pbell, Robert Peel...... iSub-Collector..........

Trenton.
Francis J......... Collector ..............

16 May '72

1 Apr. '73

1 June '73

22 Oct. '73

22 Oct. '73

22 Oct. '72

28 Feb. '74

1 July '77

1 May '78

15Aug. '81

1Sept.'83

1 May '84

6 Mar. '73

1 July '81

1 July '81

1 July '81

1 July '81

1 July '81

1 July '82

25 Mar. '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

4 June'70

1 May '78

1 May '77

14 Dec. '81

9 July '75

$ ets.

650 00

700 00

700 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

650 00

700 00

650 00

650 00

600 00

600 00

500 00

600 00

500 00)

500 00

50000

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

450 00

500 00

500 00

550 00

21 Dec. '33

10 Nov.'47

- '23

9 Oct. '34

2June '26

22 May '35

29 Dec. '29

24 June '32

22 Jan. '44

19Nov.'32

1Nov. '37

1 July '52

5 Jan. '22

22 Dec. '48

12 July '33

14 Feb. '41

13Nov. '38

17 Mar. '25

1 Dec. '52

23 July '40

12 July '29

13Mar. '58

3Mar. '56

10 June '45

29 July '52

20 Dec. '31

10 Aug. '39

31 Aug. '32

25 Aug. '38

- '25

16 May '72

1 Apr. '73

1 June '73

22 Oct. '73

22 Oct. '73

22 Oct. '72

28 Feb. '74

1 July '77

1 May '78

15 Aug. '81

1 Sept. '83

1 May '84

6 Mar. '73

1 July '81

1 July '81

1 July '81

1 July '81

1 July '81

1 July '82

1 July '82

25 Mar. '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

4 June '70

1 May '78

1 May '77

14 Dec. '81

9 July '75

A. 1SSG



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4S.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Naime. Present Rank.

Wallaceburg.

Fraser, Charles............. Collectcr......

Cronk, Asa................. Out Port Collector..

Mlullins, Andrew........... Landing Waiter....

Whitby.

Carson, George Alva........ Collector...........

Taylor, Charles ............. Landing Waiter....

O'Leary, Louis............. Landing Waiter....

b Windsor, Ont.

Benson, William........... Collector...........

Morton, William......... jSurveyor ........

Cowan, Miles Richard Buck. Clerk..............

Marentette, Joseph Laurent . Landing Waiter....

Watson, John.............. Landing Waiter....

Baby, William Lewis....... Landing Waiter....

Ohevalier, Samuel.......... Sub-Collector.....

Gibson, James.............. Landing Waiter....

Hanrahan, Patrick... ...... Landing Waiter....

Drouillard, Albert.......... Landing Waiter....

Brassard, Denis....., ....... ILdg. Waiter & Clert

McKee, Thomas............ Preventive Officer..

Fraser, James Malcolm...... Appraiser..........

Jai4sse, James D............ Preventive Officer..

Bailey, Henry A............ Landing Waiter....

Woodstock.

Van Ingen, William Henry.. Collector...........

Hook, William............. Sub-Collector.......

Banting, Charles........... Ldg. Waiter & Clerl

Clarenceville.

Pattison, William Mead..... Collector..........

Date Present Date of Date of
thereof. Salary. Birth. First A -

pointnwlit.

$ cts.

25 Apr. '56 700 00 14 Feb. '25 25 Apr. '56

7 June '84 500 00 - '33 7 June '84

7 Apr. '73 500 00 2 Mar. '22 7 Apr. '73

2 Aug. '75

1 Mar. '78

3 Oct. '78

2 June' 69

14 Mar. '54

1 Apr. '58

26 Sept.'55

23 July '65

30 Oct. '73

15 Feb. '73

21 Nov.'79

5 May '82

19 Dec. '83

15 Jan. '83

24 Sept.'80

1 Dec. '80

16 Dec. '84

1 Sept.'81

22 Nov. '66

11 Aug. '75

1 July '84

3 Nov.'73

800 00

60000

300 00

1,800

1,000

1,200

650

600

e0o
250

600

500

500

500

350

1,000

500

500

1,200 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

23 Feb. '32

28 Aug. '36

8 June '42

24 Jan. '12

17 Apr. '22

5 Mar. '33

19 Mar. '34

16 Jan. '24

13 Apr. '12

7 May '31

5 June '37

5 June '48

12 May '51

10 Jan. '32

16 May '27

4 Jan. '25

2 Apr. '46

14 Mar. '52

31 Oct.

30 July

7 Apr.

8 Feb. '28

2 Aug.

1 Mar.

3 Oct.

4 Nov.

25 Nov.

29 Nov.

26 Sept.

23 July

30 Oct.

15 Feb.

21 Nov.

5 May

19 Dec.

15 Jan.

24 Sept.

1 Dec.

16 Dec.

1 Sept.

6 Apr.

il Aug.

1 July

28 No.

A. 1SS6



~4t~ . --

) ia. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

DNam. Present Rank. tof Date of
Nai.PeetRn. thereof. Salary. Birth. First Ap-

pointment.

Coaticook.

George Orel.......... Collector.............. 1 July '85 1,300 00 ............ 1 July '85

'lkroix, Hilaire ............ Landing Waiter....... 17 June '57 850 00 27 Mar. 28 17 June '57

Glrant, John Blackwood..... Landing Waiter....... 17 Dec. '60 900 00 16 May '38 1 17 Dec. '60

chllrchil, James....... .. Clerk& LandingWaiter 1 Aug.'63 700 00 1 Sept.'47 1 Aug. '83

r11otcher, Jean Baptiste..... Landing Waiter....... 12 July '83 600 00 8 May '50 12 July '83

YOung, David.............. Preventive Officer. . ... 12 Nov.'64 400 00 4 Feb. '22 12 Nov. '64

ýan, Edwin............... Sub-Collector...... 1 June '77 450 00 - '36 1 June '77

Dundee.
8rith, Merritt Munson.....1Collector.............. 15 Sept.'7 9  550 00 8 Dec. '34 14 Mar. '64

Robert.:............ Sub-Collector......... 20 Feb. '65 500 00 17 Aug. '12 20 Feb. '65

GOibbon, John...... ..... Sub-Collector.......... 14 Nov.'59 350 00 26 Apr. '23 14 Nov. '59

Frelighsburg.

Baker, William Calet....... Collector........... 11 Apr. '82 650 00 18 Jan. '32 1 Apr. '82

ella, George Washington.. Preventive Officer., .... 9 May '59 200 00 23 Nov.'25 9 May '59

Gaspé.

an&agh, Joseph John... Collector .............. 1 Dec. '81 800 00 27 Aug. '23 18 June' 55
GQie, Donald Barnabas .... Sub-Collector... ...... . 5 May '71 400 00 Il Oct. '37 5 May '71

Gros, Peter Esnouf....... Landing Waiter.,..... 14 May '83 500 00 28 Nov.'41 14 May '83

Hlemmingford.

oPer, Frederick Scrince... .Collector.............. 1 Jan. '77 600 00 14 Dec. '39 12 Mar. '68

%Ûerts, Arthur............. Preventive Officer... 1 Apr. '82 300 00 23 Jan. '43 1 Apr. '82

98sbery, William Clayton. Preventive Officer...... 1 Apr. '82 200 00 28 Apr. '41 1 Apr. '82

Lacolle.

b is, Pierre .............. Collector ............. 12 Apr. '79 600 00 5'ýpr. '25 18 Jan. '65

Magdalen Islands.

?alnchaud, Jean Baptiste F. Collector............. 1 July '80 700 00 1 Jan. '27 1 July '80

Pierre Leger........ Landing Waiter....... 8 Sept.'75 500 O0 10 May '51 - Sept. '75

Montreal.

Michael Patrick...... Collector .............. 1 July '82 4,000 00 29 Sept.'25 1 July '82

John ... .......... Surveyor.............. Jan. '59 2,500 00 17 May '20 Aug. '41

5'



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4S.) A. 1SS 6

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

t DDate of
Name. Present Rank. Date Present Date of First AP-thereof. Salary. Birth. pointment.

Montreal (Con.) $ t

Meyer, Edward............. Chief Landing Waiter.. 23 Aug. '71 1,400 00 22 July '23 23 Jule

Nelson, John............... Landing Waiter....... - Sept. '63 1,400 00 12 July '17 3 Jan. 54

Blomeley, Edwin........... Landing Waiter....... 16 Dec. '63 1,200 00 31 Jan. '24 16 Dec.

Tidmarsh, Samuel.......... Landing Waiter....... 26 Mar.'74 1,200 00 14 Nov.'22

Lamer, Joseph Emmanuel... Landing Waiter....... 26 Mar. '74 750 00 4.Feb. '44 1 July

Charland, Magloire......... Landing Waiter....... 26 Mar. '74 750 00 4 Sept.'36 1 Apr.

Mercier, Edward Henry..... Landing Waiter....... 26 Mar. '74 750 00 26 Oct. '38 26 Mar.

Brosseau, Julien........... Landing Waiter....... 7 Apr. '73 1,000 00 10 Mar. '42 7 Apr.

Boyer Remi.... ............ Tide Surveyor......... 7 Apr.,'72 1,000 00 1 Oct. '42 7 Apr. '

Crispo, Francis ........... Chief Clerk........... 12 June '59 2,000 00 18 Oct. '19 31 July'

Selby, Charles.............. Cashier............... 11 Apr. '55 1,700 00 28 Jan. '28 11 Apr.

Lavoie, François Arthur..... Assistant Cashier...... 17 Apr. '82 1,100 00 26 Sept.'33 20 Jan.

Purcell, John Pike.......... Chief Stat. Clerk ..... 24 Sept.'55 1,600 00 4 Dec. '25 24 Sept.

O'Hara, William Jerrold.... Clerk................. 1 July '69 1,400 00 14 Apr. '48 1 July

Cox, John.............. Clerk................ 26 Mar. '79 1,400 00 22 Dec. '34 June

Dunne, James ...... '........ Clerk.............. . 12Mar. '68 800 00 10 July '27 12 Mar.

Jordan, John Astralake... . .. Clerk................. 1 Aug. '71 700 00 17 Mar. '32 1 Aug.

Laurin, Alphonse........... IClerk................ .1 July '69 1,100 00 2 July '43 1 July '69

Thomson, John Reid........ Clerk ................. - May '60 850 00 7 Feb. '37 - MaY

Malbouf, Arthur ........... Clerk ................ 1 Apr. '71 850 00 8 Dec. '36 1 Apr.

Lemieux, Hermidas A....... Clerk................. 26 Mar. '74 1,000 00 19 Jan. '37 26 Mar.

Chambers, Thomas......... Clerk................. 26 Mar. '74 950 00 26 May '43 - Apr.

Campbell, John Francis..... Clerk................. 24 June' 76 700 00 4 Mar. '49 24 June

Smith, George. .. ........ Clerk................. 24June '76 700 00 30 June '50 24 June

Tighe, Edward............. Clerk................. 1 Apr. '82 600 00 26 Nov.'47 1 Apr.

Trestler, Henre Rodolphe S.. Clerk................. 1 Apr. '74 900 00 24 Nov.'35 1 Apr.

Donovan, Peter ............ Clerk................. 1 July '83 700 00 14 June '53 1 July

Barrett, Robert Phipps...... Clerk................. 1 July '83 700 00 28 May '44 1 JulY

Duncan, David Logan....... Clerk................. 1 July '83 700 00 22 Apr. '52 1 JulY

Miller, John Stewart ........ Clerk ................. 1 July '83 700 00 22 Apr. '34 1 July

Davis, John..... . ........ Clerk............... 1 July '83 650 00 9 Nov.'39 1 July



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Naie. Present IRaik.

Montreal-(Con.)

an, George William....... Clerk...............

Samuel.............. Clerk.................
8orley, James Stewart. . Clerk........ . ....
1 aacson, Herbert Noel...... Clerk.................

ltair, Gaspard Adelard P... Clerk...............

niIoit, Michel............. Clerk.................

rard, Adolphe............ Clerk.................

Itier, Tobias.............. Clerk ...............

akisch, H ................. Clerk.................

4ir, Archibald............ Appraiser .............

John Fisher ........ Appraiser .............

84fenson, (ames......... Appraiser ...........

ereier, Pierre Alexis....... Asst. Appraiser .......

ard, Lucien Hector..... Asst. Appraiser .......

et'lkner, George........... Asst. Appraiser .......
44thier, Auguste.......... Asst. Appraiser .......

oges, Narcisse .......... Asst. Appr. & Packer..

&b1brose, John David Long.. Appraiser .............
ktchette, John............ Appraiser .............

las, Richard Thain..... Ex-Warehouse Keeper.
0(J1er, Samuel............. Weigher & Gauger.....

Jean, Louis............. Asst. Weigher & Gauger

ýI1ier, Jean Baptiste. Chf. Locker & Ins. B'nds

1111iez, Odilon .......... .Ticket Clerk ..........
Ven, George ............. Warehouseman ........

aillou , Joseph............ Packer ................

'luan, John.............. Packer .......... ..

%tttant, Ludger............ Packer. ...............

e Grégoire..... .... Packer ................

ges, John.............. 1st class Tidewaiter....

Date
tlireofu.

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July 83

1 July '83

1 July '83

14 June '84

Dec. '73

July '84

- '80

1 Aug. '77

8 Dec. '79

25 Oct. '80

Jan. '66

10 Mar. '82

1 Apr. '74

4 Apr. '74

1 Nov. '80

1 Apr. '82

1 July '82

16 May '74

30 Apr. '72

30 Apr. '72

30 Apr. '72

28 June '76

1 Mar. '84

1 Nov. '67

26 Mar. '74

26 Mar. '74

26 Mar. '74

1 May '72

Dte of[Pre\,sent Date of Fiate Aof
Salary. Birth. FrtA-

pointment.

$ ets.

700 00 22 Aug. '42 1 July '83

650 00 9 Dec. '47 1 July '83

600 00 14 Aug. '60 1 July '83

600 00 6 Nov.'55 1 July '83

600 00 15 Sept.'58 1 July '83

1,000 00 ............ 14 June '84

600 00 5 May '46 Dec. '73

550 00 June '56 July '84

- '45

26 July '20

19 Aug. '30

2 Dec. '30

4 May '35

25 Mar. '46

14 Feb. '29

20 Mar. '38

18 Oct. '21

28 Jan. '38

24 May '34

15Nov. '40

4 Sept. '26

17 Oct. '45

26 Oct. '44

22 Aug. '36

-- '37

7 Apr. '31

24 June'21

8 Dec. '46

16 Dec. '42

13 Dec. '19

- '80

1 Aug. '77

8 Dec. '79

25 Oct. '80

Jan. '66

10 Mar. '82

1 Apr. '74

4 Apr. '74

1 Nov. '80

1 Apr. '82

1 July '82

16 May '74

- May '56

30 Apr.'7W

30 Apr. '72

28 June '76

1 Mar. '84

1 Nov. '67

15 Feb. '65

May '65

15 Feb. '65

May'47

A. 1886

750

1,800

1,800

1,800

1,200

1,200

1,200

1,200

600

1,600

1,400

1,000

1,000

600

750

700

550

500

500

500

500

600



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTM1%ENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank. Date Present Date of ate
thereof. Salary. Birth. pintme

_ _ _ _ _ _th _ _ _ _ i _ _ _
lit.

Montreal (Con.)

Mullins, Henry ............ ist class Tidewaiter....

Montanari, Ambroise P. .. ist class Tidewaiter....

Tester, Thomas............ .. st class Tidewaiter.. . .

Morrison, John............ .lst class Tidewaiter....

Lapierre, Philias .......... i.. 1st class Tidewaiter...

Gallet, Alphonse............ I1st clas Tidewaiter....

Madden, Hugli.............Ist class Tidewaiter....

Prendergast, John.......... 1st class Tidewaiter...

Garault, Maxime .......... .lst class Tidevaiter....

Tuff, David ................ 2nd class Tidewaiter...

Nicholson, Thomas William. 2nd class Tidewaiter...

Bennett, Frederick......... 2nd class Tidewaiter ...

McCluskey, John..... .... 2nd class Tidewaiter.

Tessier, Louis Joseph........ 2nd class Tidewaiter...

Fenoglio, Alexander......... j2nd class Tidewaiter.. .

Green, Thomas........... 2nd class Tidewaiter...

O'Leary, John B............ 2nd class Tidewaiter...

$anguinette, Léonidas ...... 2nd class Tidewaiter...

Johnston, James............ 2nd class Tidewaiter...

Leclerc, Paschal............ 2nd class Tidewaiter...

Murren, Henry............. 2nd class Tidewaiter.#.'

Bourret, Arthur ............ 2nd class Tidewaiter...

Lambert, Jeremiah .. . . .. . .2nd class Tidewaiter...

Vallée, Henri............... 2nd class Tidewaiter...

Corbeil, Joseph Zéphirin .... Tidewaiter & Locker...

Valois, Joseph Almeida..... Tidewaiter & Locker...

Porteous, John ............ Tidewaiter & Locker...

Wilkes, Edward Thomas .... Tidewaiter & Locker...

Richardson, William Henry. Tidewaiter & Locker...

McNeil, Peter............. Tidewaiter............

Rawley, William ........... Tidewaiter............

$ets.o

-- '66

1 May '72

1 May '72

1 May '72

1 May '72

1 May '72

1 May '72

1 May '72

Oct. '74

,lune '72

June *72

June '72

June '72

June '72

- '72

Apr. '72

1 May '72

30 June '72

May '72

May '72

27 Sept.'72

26 Mar. '74

26 Mar. '74

26 Mar. '74

1 Oct. '83

1 Apr. '84

1 Mar. '84

1 May '84

1 May '84

1 Feb. '85r

1 June '85

60

60

60

60

60

60

60

600

600

55

55

55(

60<

60<

55

55

55

55

55

60<

55

55

55

55<

600

50(

500

600

500

600<

500<

A. 1886

00 29 Dec. '40 --

000 8 Oct. '23 ---

0 00 22 Jun. ?39 6

000 29 July '32 --

>00 8 May '46

000 20 Sept.'36 May

00 20 Nov. '23 18 Mar.

00 7 May'24 i May 6

00 26 July '34 Oct.

00 1 Dec. '46 Joue

()0 17 Jan. '38 i Joue

00 15 Dec. '32 June

>00 25 Dec. '45 Julie l

)00 20 May '42 Jue

>00 2 Apr. '34 -

00 J0ue '18 APr

(0 12 Mar.'20

>00 21lFeb. '48 Io0 jolie

00 9 Sept. '35 00ay'

00 Jun '31 sa'

>00 25 M-ai. '26 27 Sept-7

>00 4 Nov.'42 Nv'

00 Apr'. '37 ApI'r

00 27May'47

>00 14 Dec. 15o 1 o

>00 29 Apr. '52 1 Ape,

>00 10OMay'44 1 MAX.

00 19 June '44 1 May

>00 9 sept. '52 1Ma

>00 31iOct. '40 1ji

0 . . .. . .00



9 Victoria· Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

1 Dae Prsen Dat of Date of
Name. Present Rank. t e re. Set Bi te of First Ap-

pointment.

New Carlisle.

teauehesne, Pierre Clovis ... Collector .............. 5 May '71
keagher, William Thomas .. Clerk................ 4 May '55 600 00 27 Sept.'26 4 May '55

d, William............ Landing Waiter.......1 Aug. '74 0

histie, Hugli ........... Preventive Officer. 2-3 May '73 400 23 Sept.32 23 May '73

eetmanî. Patriek ........ Landing Waiter ....... 8 May '7 100 O 13 July '23 I 8 ay '7

Percé.

William............ Collector.............. I Apr.'79 600 00 23 July '36 18,111ne'58

Joseph Octave........ Ldg Waiter & Surveyor 25 June '79 450 00 29 Jan. '35 25 Juie '79

Potton.

Walter............ Collector.............. 1 May 79 600 Où 7 Mar. '47 1 ifay '79

?erkins, Calvin Colburn.. ... Landing Waiter ....... 3 Oct. '74 400 00 5 Dec. '33 3 <et. 74

etOfley, Amos Austin....... Preventive Officer..... 1 Jan. '78 400 00 8 Aîîg. '31 1 Jan. '78
Joln Fitz ............ reveitivOfficer. 19 Aug.1'73 200 00 26 Apr. '35 19ag. '71

Quebec.

et, Ho. JosephG. M. D Collector ............. 1 Nov.'83 3,200 00 7 .ue '29 1 Noy. '83

Dominick D .... $urveyor... .......... 424 July '83 1600 00 15 Jan. '40 1 No . '70

William Henry....Chief Clerk...........9 May '71 1,400 00 17 May 36 9 Lay '71

Vincent...........Caier..............2 Nov.'72 1,200 00 18 June '31 8 Ja. '60

George.............Clerk... ........ 8 Sept.'59 1,200 00 24 Apr. '14 8 Sept. '58#
Charles .......... 'lerk ............... 28 Apr. '60 1,200 W 2 Aug. '30 28 Ap. '60

hwk, Alfred George...Clek...............20 Dec. '60 1,000 00 13 May '24 20 Dec. '60

Edouard...........Cerk................ Apr. '72 800 00 28 July'46 3 Apr. '72

Elzéar Louis Joseph. Clerk...............1 Oct. '73- 600 00 6 Jan. '39 1 Oct. '78
klleau, Narcisse Louis Gon. Clerk ............... 20 Oct. '73 700 00 6 Jan. '55 20 Oct. '73

acet, Eugèn .... D.... Clerk. .............. 2 Mar. '74 550 00 21 Ang. '40 1 Mar. '74

Airelien V r......... Clerk ... .......... 27 Oct. '77 700 00 18 May '39 27 Oct. '77

a VncAlfred............ Surveyor........ 18 Au.'73 1,000 O 1 8 June '33 4 Ma. '61
ey Paiet Edward....... Assistant Tide Surveyor 1 Sept.'73 1,000 O 3 Jan. '43 8 Sept. 73
k19evin, Alfred Edwar.... Chief Ldg. Waiter...... 20 Oct. '70 1,200 00 19 Nov'28 16 Mar. '68

1511gera Fau ois Xavier... Landing Waiter........ 5 Aug. '81 600 0 6 Dec. '50 5 Aug. '81

A. 1886

1



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Nane. Preseit Rank. Date Present
thereof. Salary.

Sets.
Quebec (Con.)

Laurin, Louis Napoléon. Landing Waiter. 12June '82 600 00

Dugal, Léandre............. Warehouse. Keeper...j 31 Oct. '70 900 00

Gray, Frost Wood.......... Preventive Oflicer......

Gauvin, Michel.............'Assistant Appraiser. 

Scott, Benjamin Alexander.. Sub-Collector..........

Radford, James............. Preventive Officer......

3ussières, Achille Gassard... Sub-Collector..........

3ilodeau, Ambroise....... Preventive Officer......

HIamond, Eugène........... Preventive Officer......

Griffiths, Jacob............ House-Keeper.........

Jiogan, John............... Locker................

Rouillard, Jean ............. Locker................

Batterton, James........... Locker................

Dion, Jeau Baptiste ........ Locker............

Cauchon, Romain.......... Locker................

Edge, W . E................ Locker................

Trudel, Edmond............ Tide Waiter ........

Beauchamp, Andrew ........ Messenger.........

Juneau, Charles.......... Fireman...........

Deavy, John............... Porter................

Hannon, Owen............. Porter............

Rimouski.

Martin, Joseph Adhemar.... Collector..............

Fatton, John Iloopteller..... Ldg. Waiter and Surv'r

Coté, Majorique.. ... .. ... Preventive Officer.

Russeltown.

Rogers, Robert.. ......... .. Collector ..............

St. Armand.

Bourret, Edmond Augustus. . Collector..............

Guy, George John William.. Tide Waiter...........

600 00

750 00

300 00

300 00

500 00

100 00

150 00

550 00

650 00

650 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

650 00

500 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

Apr.84

29 Dec. '79

17 July '83-

- '47

4 July 66

1 Dec. '81

27 Mar.'85

1 July '69

- '62

- Dec. '72

23 Oct. '73

1 Sept.'73

10 Nov.'74

1 Sept.'75

22 Sept.'74

1 July '84

1 May'66

-- '69

- May '53

8 May '84

Il June'72

27 May '80

27 Apr. '57

1 June'77

1 May '74

Date of
Birth.

700 00 16 Nov.'40

600 00 23 Apr. '44

A. 1886

Date of
First AP)-

pointmnenlt.

8 July '52

4 Sept. '36

4 Apr. '42

- Sept.'24

- '59

- '13

29 Nov.'32

- '32

...........

24 Feb. '32

28 May '28

31 July '40

15 June '32

7 Jan. '27

6 May '33

24 June'34

3 Mar. '42

6 Sept.'49

12 Mar. '26

- July '26

8 Dec. '30

12 Mar. '47

10 Dec.'34

29 Nov.'23

22 May '22 24 July

15 Oct.6

1 May.

12 June

31 Oct.

9 Apr.

17 July

4 July

1 Dec.

27 Mar.

i July

- Dec.

1 Sept.

10 Nov.

1 Sept.

22 Sept.

1 July

1 gay

- May

8 May

il Junie

27 May

600 00



19 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-CUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

St. Armand (Con.)

ý'5o]nette, Jean Baptiste..'

e, Philip Edward .......

St. Hyacinthe.

el, Joseph Antoine.

St. Johns.

?thard, Henry George.....

8'gUon, Amédée.........

Charles.............

14hurst, William John....

Sherbrooke.

P ,Charles Ermatinger..
hilt, William Josiah. .....

S, Thomas.............

Sorel.

ieu, Joseph............

Stanstead.

Charles Stewart...
kelirnan, Lucien Thomas..

,William Morrill......

John Wallace ........

OWan, William jr.......

Sutton.

', John............

Joseph Thiburn ..

, Jeremy..........

Three Rivers.

ler Arthur Aurélien ...

Bathurst.

,William J .......

David.............

Present Rank. tîîeof.

Landing Waiter .......

Sub-Collector..........

Collector ........ ..

ICollector..............

Landing Waiter........

Landing Waiter .......

Landing Waiter .......

Collector..............

Landing Waiter .......

Sub-Collector..........

Collector..............

Collector............

Sub-Collector....... ...

Landing Waiter .......

Landing Waiter .......

Landing Waiter .......

Acting Collector.......

Preventive Officer......

îPreventive Officer... . ..

4 Nov.'74

1 Nov.'77

11 Feb. '79

1 May '68

20 Dec. '81

14 July '83

29 Nov.'84

1 Jan.'75

18 Jan. '81

1 July '79

9 Apr.'84

3 May '70

14 Aug.'79

1 Sept.'79

1 July '80

6 Dec. '80

1 Aug.'77

31 Jan. '81

16 Sept.'73

. Collector .............. 1 14 Mar. '79

Collector..........

Clerk & Landing Waiter

8 Jan. '77

1 Aug. '83

Present
Salary.

8 ets.

600 00

250 00

600 00

1,000 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

1,20000

600 00

1,400 00

500 00

1.100

700

500

400

430

400

200

100

Date of
Birth.

22 Oct. '22

23 July '28

13 Aug.'33

17 Feb. '41

13 Aug.'48

12 June '55

11 July '45

17Mar. '39

18 Sept.'43

1 May '23

20 Jan. '37

20 Mar. '20

20 Mar. '31

22 July '48

22 Jan. '62

24 Feb. '49

May

Mar.

May

Date of
First Ap,

pointmnent.

4 Nov. '74

15 Mar. '64

11 Feb. '7e

1 May

20 Dec.

14 July

29 Nov.

Feb.

Juie

May

9 Apr. '84

20 Feb.

1 Apr.

1 Sept.

1 July

6 Dec.

1 Aug.

31 Jan.

16 Sept.

1,000 00 15 Oct. '45 23 Oct. '73

800 00 28 July '56 8 Jan. '77

500 00 13 May '54 1 Aug. '83

A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.-

Name. Present Rank. Date
thereof.

Bathurst (Con.)

Foley, Patrick J.........

Armstrong, William........ Preventive Officer......

Foley, Patrick............ Preventive Officer.

Campobello.

Farmer, John.............. iCollector ..............

Wooster, Turner............ Sub-Collector..........

Caraquet.

Blackhall. James George C.. Collector..........

Bourgeois, Mederic E.......Sub-Collector.......

Benoit, Joseph........... Preventive Officer......

Landry, James R........... Preventive Officer.

Chatham, N. B.

Ferguson, Daniel.........

Crimmen. Thomas ..........

Anderson, William..........

Connors, William T ........

Dalhousie.

Montgomery, William.......

Stewart, Edmond James....

Jamieson, William..........

McMillan, James...........

Doyle, William .............

McKenzie, Archibald .......

Chamberlin, Alexander Rufus

Collector..............

Appraiser..........

Locker...............

Landing Waiter .......

Collector.............

Landing Waiter & Sear-
cher................

Preventive Officer., ....

Preventive Officer......

Preventive Officer......

Sub-Collector.....

Landing Waiter & Sear-
cher................

Dorelester.

Dobson, Walter........... Collector..... ......

Boudreau, Alexandre........ Sub-Collector..........

Belliveau, Frank............ Tide Waiter...........

25 Aug. '74

- Oct. '66

4 Dec. '83

1 Oct. '66

1 July '71

16 Apr. '59

17 Apr. '75

16 June'83

1 July '83

27 Mar. '65

19 May '81

12 May '70

12 May '71

1 July '71

14 May '67

1 July'67
1 July '67
1 Jnly '67

12 July '83

7 Apr. '73

1 July '84

8 May '84

1 Aug.'53

A. iSS

Present
Salary.

$ ets.

400 00

250 00

150 00

800 00

300 00

600 00

200 00

60 00

100 00

Date of
Birth.

1 May '42

1 Apr.'34

5 June '36

12 Dec. '12

8 Oct. '19

27 Jan. '27

15 Apr. '39

15 June '37

7 Nov.'45

30 Apr.'26

22 Sept.'48

13 June '26

3 Jan. '47

6 Oct. '38

21 Dec. '19

15 Dec. '23

1 Aug. '13

3 Nov.'27

29 May '41

31 Oct. '22

5 May '54

15 May '32

Date of
Firsit AP-

poinitmen't.

25 Aug. 74

- Oct.

4 Dec. 8

1 Oct.

1 Jluly'7

16 Apr.

17 Apr.

16 June

1 July

27 Mar.

2 Aug.

1 May

18 May

1 July

14 May

1 July

1 July

1 July

12 July

7 Apr.

i July

8 May

1



v49 1ictoa. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

NamDe. Present Rank. Date Present Date of
Nan.Prsn Rn. thereof. Salary-. Birth.

$ cts.
Fredericton.

ýtreet, Alfred Foxcraft ...... Collector. ............ 1 Aug.'73 1,500 00 28 Jan. '44

W'inter, Herbert Gayner .... Appraiser............ 1 Jan. '71 1,000 00 9 Nov.'50

ýicharts, James Frederick... Clerk ................. 1 1ay '78 600 00 28 Nov.'52

r, James Hamilton .. . . . .. Landing Waiter ....... 17 Apr. '74 550 00 27 Jan. '49

Hillsboro'.
8teven1s, William Edwin. ... Collector .............. . 19 June'80 600 00 22 Feb.'39

Cleaveland, David.......... Sub-Collector.......... 1 May '85 300 00 - '39

vYewster, Gilbert........... Sub-Collector.......... 1 May '85 300 00 3 Sept.'30

egCKinley, Charles H ....... Preventive Officer...... 1 Sept,'75 200 00 20 Mar. '40

Aderson, Charles W ....... Preventive Officer...... 1 May '85 100 00 7 Jan. '43

rewster, John W.......... Tide Waites........... 26 June '67 100 00 16 Oct. '19

lkin, Samuel............. Tide Waiter........... 1 May'73 100 00 25May '31

Moncton. 1

Iey, irvine Whitty. . ... ,Collector .............. 16 Dec. '74 1,000 00 10 July '41

Ysart, Andrew K.......... Sub-Collector. ......... 1 May '73 500 00 30 Aug.'38

%YWorth, John Snowtall.... Landing Waiter....... 19 Aug.'85 500 00 ..........

4queen, Alexander ........ Sub-Collector.......... 26 Apr. '71 300 00 24 Oct. '20

Newcastle, N. B.

k4dow, Richard B.... ... Collector............. 1 May '73 1,200 00 5 Dec. '30

ruar, Daniel.......... .Locker ............... 1 June '60 600 00 29 May '15

er, Herbert Edwin...... Clerk................ 1 July '72 500 00 22 Dec. '54
'Vheeler, Patrick............ Tide Waiter......... 1 Nov.'73 500 00 25 Dec. '46

Richibucto.

John... .......... Collector.............. 1 Aug. '77 1,100 00 23 Dec. '25

k d, Auguste......... Sub-Collector.......... 1 Mar. '81 500 00 30 Oct. '30

William Horen Botsford Tide Waiter.......... 1 July '77 200 00 23 Jan. '38

tWick, David............ Tide Waiter........... 1 June'78 100 00 30 Jan. '35

Sackville.

r, William C ........ Collector .............. 10 Dec. '81 800 00 20 Jan. '46

1Scott, William........... Sub-Collector.......... 1 May '73 200 00 24 Feb. '46

ti5
48- 5

A. 1886

Date of
Frst Ap-
pointment.

1 Jan.

1 Jan.

1 May

17 Apr.

19 June

1 May

1 May

1 Sept.

1 May

26 June

1 May

16 Dec.

1 May

19 Aug.

26 Apr.

1 May

1 July

1 Nov.

1 Aug.

1 Mar.

1 July

1 June

10 Dec.

1 May



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Present Rank. Date Present
tiereof. Salary.

Sackville (Con.)

Ward, Rufus Cote.........Sub-Collector.

Siddall, Stephen.......... Preventive Officer......

Shippagan.

Sormany, Henry Armand.... Collector .............

St. Andrew's, N. B.

Gove, Charles M............ Collector .............

Whitlock, William ........ Landing Waiter & Clerk

Brown, John............. Preventive Officer......

Stinson, Thomas............ Preventive Officer......

Dixon, James E............ Sub-Collectox'.........

St. George, N. B.

MIcKay, James........... Collector, ..........

St. John, N.B.

Ruel, James R............. Collector........

Matthew, George F......... Chief Clerk........

Barber, James............. Clerk.............

Olive, Charles F ..... .. ..... Clerk .................

MeLaren, John............. Cashier...........

Sandall, John.............. Clerk.................

Atcheson, Anthony......... Clerk.................

Sandall, Henry P........... Clerk ................

Smiler, David........... Clerk.................

Suider, George H ........... Clerk.................

Xaini, Samuel W ........... Clerk.................

Barber Keith A............. Clerk.................

Gleeson, D. J............ Clerk..............

Turner, Henry............ Clerk.................

Gerow, Stephen E ......... Landing Surveyor......

Daly, Paul.............. Waiter & Searcher.

Humphry, John............ Waiter & Searcher.....

$ ets.

1 Dec. '81 100 00

24 May '58 100 00

1 Aug.'77

1 Jan. '70

25 Jan. '70

1 Oct. '71

1 Apr. '74

July '67

1 Oct. '79

1 Nov.'70

28 May '79

16 June '74

22 May '66

- Jan. '68

24Apr. '68

4 Mar. '70

4 May '71

1 Apr. '69

1 May'78

1 Feb. '83

1 Nov.'83

1 Nov.'83

1 Nov.'83

7 Jan. '70

1 Aug.'74

1 Aug. '74

600 00

1,200

800

600

500

400

600 00

3,000 00

1,500 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,100 00

1,200 00

950 00

800 00

850 00

700 00

450 00

550 00

550 00

500 00

1,500 00

900 00

900 00

A. 1886

Date of
Birth.

1 July '44

26 July '14

23 Oct. '35

4 Sept.'14

1 Apr. '48

- Apr. '31

17 Jan. '44

- '18

11 Feb. '37

22 Oct. '20

12 Aug.'37

19 May '19

21 Dec. '48

20 Feb. '45

24 Jan. '10

10 Aug. '41

18 Mar. '50

4 Nov.'28

28 Ap. '50

13 Jan. '64

11 Oct. '57

21 Jan. '60

27 Oct. '51

25 Dec. '22

- Feb. '20

24 Feb. '22

Date of
First Ap-

pointmelit-

1 Dec. '81

24 May '58

1 Aug.

1 July

1 Mar.

1 Oct.

1 Apr.

1 Aug.

1 Oct. '79

1 Nov. '0

i May

15 July

22 May '66

- Jan.

- Apr.

4 Mar.

4 May

1 Apr,

1 May

1 Feb.

1 NoV.

1 NoV.

1 NoV•

1 Apr.

-- Sept.

4 Juie0



49 VictOria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Naine. Present Rank.

St. John, N. B. (Con.)

JOhson, William........... Tide Surveyor.........

#eBeath, Allan............ Appraiser.............

Whittaker, James E ........ Appraiser .............

eIlston, Joseph........... Packer for Appraiser...
Stwart, Edwin N. S....... Gauger ...............

k'hinson, Samuel........... Asst. Gauger .......... I

kurphy, Timothy.......... Sampler Gauger.......
tUstin, Thomas E .......... Warehouse Locker..

Carleton, William.......... Warehouse Locker..

çlive, William H........... Warehouse Locker.....

Pigeon, Charles............ Warehouse Locker.....
<1Wens, Michael B.......... Warehouse Locker.....

e9lQey, Thomas Bahi ........ Warehouse Locker.....

e'1dall, Thomas 0......... Tide Waiter...........

Whiting, James M. F....... Tide Waiter...........

s'aciton, Gedeon Knight..... Sub-Collector..........

n011, Joseph............. Sub-Collector..........

Albert T............ Sub-Collector..........

4yle, James............... Preventive Officer.....

"eellaee, George Il.......... Sub-Collector .........

Sats ................ Sub-Collector..........

M1l'olly, J. G.............. Landing Waiter.......

rd, Charles.............. Messenger.............

ve, Isaac................ Tide W aiter.. .........

»Yth, William......... Tide Waiter.........

bobbin, Wilson L.......... Tide Waiter.........

y, George R............ Tide Waiter...........

Henry G.......... Tide Waiter........

, William............ Tide Waiter...........
plie, George............... Boatman..............

Date
thereof.

23 July '74

Il Aug.'73

1 Mar. '84

- July '68

- Sept.'74

1 July '75

1 July '75

1 July '67

19 June '65

1 July '71

1 Sept.'75

1 July'76

3 Sept.'73

10 May '60

1 July '73

26 Sept.'70-

1 Sept.'71

1 Sept.'71

16 June '74

16 May '79

- Oct. '71

1 Aug. '84

1 Nov.'58

1 July '72

4 Feb. '73

23 July '74

1 Aug. '74

1 Aug. '74

1 Aug. '74

-Sept.'74

67
48.-5

A. 1886

Present
Salary.

$ ets.

1,000 00

1,200 00

800 00

600 00

900 00

850 00

500 00

650 00

650 00

650 00

650 00

650 00

650 00

650 00

650 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

200 00

500 00

900 00

500 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

Date of
Birth.

2 July '29

26Apr. '28

30 June '31

25 Dec. '25

6 June '39

10 May '35

27 Dec.'29

17 Mar. '25

20 Nov.'31

27 Sept.'09

- Dec. '43

- Sept.'36

4 Jan. '33

29 Aug. '34

- Oct. '28

- '29

4 July '38

6 Feb.'42

30 July '30

25 Mar. '37

28 Feb, '26

2 Feb. '53

1 2Juine'30

21 Nov.'12

- Sept.'38

15 Feb. '50

14 Nov.'35

7 Feb. '30

18 Jan. '32

- Oct. '39

Date of
First Ap-

pointment.

1 Apr .'54

Il Aug. '73

1 Mar. '84

- July '68

- Sept. '74

1 Nov. '71

1 July '75

1 July '67

19 June '65

1 Apr. '68

3 Sept. '70

1 June '71

3 Sept. '73

10 May '60

1 July '73

26 Sept. '70

1 Sept.''71

1 Sept. '71

16 June '74

16 May '79

- Oct. '71

1 Aug. .'84

1 Nov. '58

1 July '72

4 Feb. '73

- June '67

1 Aug. '74

1 Aug. '74

1 Aug. '74

- Sept. '74



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

CUSTOMS DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present lank. Date
the(reof.

St. John, N. B. (Con.)

Fulton, Robert............ Boatman...............-Sept.'75

Cowan, C. W............ Tide Waiter........... 1 July '76

McAdoo, R. J.............. Tide Waiter............ 1 May '78

O'Keeffe, Philip J.......... Tide Waiter........... 6 Sept.'79

Hutton, Samuel-.........Boatm .............- Nov.'81

Dougherty, William A...... Tide Waiter........... 8 June '82

Barton, William H......... Tide Waiter........... 29 June '82

Lowry. John............... Tide Waiter............ Nov. '83

Coran, J. L ............ Tide Waiter........... 1 Nov.'83

Cochran, J oh.............. Tide Wvaiter..................

St. Stephenî.

Webber, Henry............ olletor.............. 1 Feb. '70

Hill, Artliur Marcus........ Surveyor & Gauge.I 30 Oct. '75

Grimer. William Henr v.. .Appraiser ............. 9 Dec. '69

Stevens, William Henry. Waiter& Searcher..... 6 June'76

McAdam. Hugh. .... Preventive Otticer.....3 June '79

McGowan, Moses........... Preventive Officer.... 1 Mar. '84

Woodstock, N.B.

Merritt, David Finley....... Collector.............

Brown, Frederick Williau... Sub-Collector..........

Bedell, George Augustus .... Sub-Collector..........

Scholey, Henry Tysou ...... Sub-Collector...

Hart, John................. Sub-Collector...........

Killburn, lvory............. Preventive Officer..

Wolhampton, Hanford...... Preventive Offiecer..

Kearney, Charles........... Preventive Officer..

Baird, George........... . .. Preventive Officer..

Violette. Francis ........... Preventive Officer..

Daigle, Firini............. Preventive Officer..

Lynch, John............. Preventive Officer..

6

1 Feb.'75

5 Nov.'74

5 Nov. '74.

15 Sept.'74

19 Feb. '79

15 Sept.'74

10 Nov. '66

5Apr. '82

16 Apr. '73

24 Mar. '73

15 Apr. '79

31 Aug. '80

Present
Salary.

Date of Date of
Birth. 1i>nst Ae

$ cts.1

1

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

500 00

550 00

550 00

600 00

750 00

700 00

650 00

700 00

500 00

900 00

500 00

600 00

300 00

400 00

400 00

150 00

200 00

200 00

150 00

200 00

100 00

- Oct. '44

13 Sept.'36

15 July '44

6 Sept.'49

10 July '45

25 Feb. '41

- Apr. '51

- '57

6 Jan. '48

12 Sept.'17

1 July '41

1 June '16

19Mar. '36

8 Feb. '36

3 June '32

1 Sept.'40

5 Oct. '23

30 June'33

6 June '38

- '16

13 July '30

15Mar. '15

- May '36

'21

'40

24Aug. '30

9 Mar. '30

- Sept.

1 July

1 July

6 Sept.

- Nov.

8 June

29 June

- Mar.

1 Nov.

1 Feb.

30 Oct.

9 Dec.

6 June

3 June

1 Mar.

1 Feb.

- Oct.

5 Nov.

15 Sept.

19 Feb.

15 Sept.

10 Nov.

5 Apr.

16 Apr.

24 Mar.

15 Apr.

31 Aug.

A. 1SS6

1



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Date Present
Name. Present Rank. thereof. Salary.

WOodstock, N. B. (Con.) $

Richard............. Preventive Officer.. .i. 15 Aug.'53 100 00

olinson, George ........... Preventive Oflicer.. . 15 Sept.'74 250 00

Amherst, N.S.

PpPer, Nathan........... Collector..........,...5 Nov. '73 1,200 00

atchford, Charles Edward..

Ulack, John Henry .........

offeatt, John ..............

a'UOdige, Joseph Chappell..

4%, John Moore .. . ... ...

orrest, George W..........

pm au , A lbert D .. . . .

err, Charles E ............

Annapolis.

,erton, Augustus ........

bitl4ars, Gilbert Fowler.....
P Orter, Edgar Harold .......

es, James Henry ........
ey, Thomas .............

Antigonish.

t, Roderick............

eorbet, Edward ............

ka14call, Edward G .........

elsaac, Alexander.. ........

onald, Alexander.......

Arichat.
'oit, Rémi...............

, James A.............

ry:ner, William..........

Donald ........

.lliam S...........

Clerk & Appraiser.

Sub-Collector..........

Sub-Collector..........

Sub-Collector .........

Sub-Collector .........

Preventive Officer-.....

Preventive Officer ......

Sub-Collector.......

Collector..............

Sub-Collector..........

Sub-Collector..........

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Collector..............

Sub-Collector..........

Sub-Collector..........

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Collector..............

Preventive Officer.

Sub-Collector... ..

Sub-Collector..........

Sub-Collector.......

I I
17 Nov. '77

17 Dec. '72

Il May '64

1 July '71

1 Apr. '80

- '64

2 July '51

2 Nov.'84

1 May '73

15 Apr. '41

1l Aug. '75

3 May '82

10 Apr.'75

1 Nov. '79

12 Apr. '53

1 July '65

1 Aug. '84

1 Aug. '84

12Feb. '79

1 Sept.'67

7 Oct. '72

7 Oct. '72

6 June '76

600 00

450 00

300 00

200 00

100 00

60 00

60 00

250 00

150 00

Date of Date of
Birteh. Fiist Ap.

Bit. pointmelÎt.

A. ISS

15 May'38

11 Nov. '32

28 July '23

9 May '45

16 June '26

3 Oct. '35

4 Sept. '37

9 June '46

18 Jan. '38

9 Feb. '28

3 June'33

16 July '31

14Aug.'10

5 Apr. '51

20 Nov. '40

18 Apr. '19

6 Jan. '35

26 Dec. '16

25 May '36

6 Jan. '33

15 Jan. '20

3 Jan. '42

24 Dec. '38

2 Nov. '26

25 June '29

31 Oct. '56

15 Aug. '53

15 Sept. '74

5 Nov. '73

27 Nov. '72

17 Dec. '72

11 May '64

1 July'71

1 Apr. '80

-'64

2 July '51

2 Nov. '84

1 May '73

15 Apr. '41

11 Aug.'75

3 May'82

10 Apr.'75

1 Nov. '79

12 Apr. '53

1 July '65

1 Aug. '84

1 Aug. '84

12 Feb. '79

1 Sept. '67

7 Oct. '72

7 Oct. '72

6 June '76



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Naine. Present 1ank. I

Arichat, (Con.

LeLacheur, Peter........... Preventive Oflicer .....

Fuller, Charles J ........... Preventive Officer.....

LeLacheur, Colin P......... Preventive Officer ......

Fougère, Peter T ........... Preventive Officer.

Baddeck.

Campbell, Laughlin .. Collector...........

McAuley, Donald........... Sub-Collector..........

McDonald, David .......... Sub-Collector.......

Campbell, Donald.......... Sub-Collector..........

Shea, James................ Sub-Collector... ....

McLeod, Duncan........... Preventive Officer ......

Kerr, Duncan........... Preventive Of.icer .. . .

McDonald, William ........ .Boatman..........

Morrison, Norman........ Boatnan............

Barrington.

Sargent. Daniel ............ Collector ..............

Taylor, John W............ Sub-Collector..........

Snow, Nathan........... Landing Waiter .......

Smith, Seth ............... Landing Waite........

Trefry, Hervey D........... Landing Waiter.......

Bridgetown.

Ruggles, Stephen S ......... Collector. ... ......

Graves, Walter........... Sub-Collector..........

Brooks, Timothy R........Preventive Offic.. . .

Chute, Aaron M............ Preveuntive Oficer ......

Cornwallis.

Rand, Ebenezer............ Collector..............

Orpen, John E ............. Sub-Collector..........

Morris, Henry.............. Sub-Collector.

Barnaby, G. W............. Sub-Collector..........

Date
thereof.

Aug. '61

30 July '83

10 Dec. '83

1 Oct. '84

21 Jan. '82

27 Sept. '75

1 July '71

25Aug. '74

1 June '77

15 June '71

6 Apr. '76

1l Aug. '75

il Aug. '75

4 A pr. '65.

15 Sept. '79

7 Sept. '53

Il May '64

3 Oct. '74

1 July

4 May

7 Sept.

29 May

1 Oct.

14 Mar.

1 Nov.

4 Aug.

'59

7 A

Present
Salary.

S ets.

100 00

300 00

100 00

100 00

Date of
Birth.

24 Apr. '31

1 Jan. '40

13 Dec. '55

1 Nov. '43

20 Dec. '54

15 July '45

14 May '40

10 June '32

4 Aug. '45

-- '26

- '34

8 May '20

9 Oct. '25

27 Sept.'26

9 Dec.'37

- '22

23 Dec. '23

4 Jan. '40

10 Apr. '45

27 Sept.'27

2 Dec. '02

10 Apr. '26

Jan. '20

Date of
First Ap

pointmelnt.

Aug.

30 Ju1

10 Dec.

1 Oct.

21 Jan. 82

27 Sept,

1 July

25 Aug.'74

1 June '71

15 June'71

6 Apr. '76

11 Aug.

11 Aug.'p

4 Apr.65

15 Sept.'79

7 Sept.

il May'6 4

3 Oct.

1 July

4 May 65

7 Sept. '

29 May

1 Oct.

1i àVuV VV 11Jan. 12 -

'60 200 00 18 Mar. '25 1 NOV .

'83 500 00 ............ 4 Aug.

A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4 S.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Ranik. Datethereof.

Cornswallis (Con.)

Rawding, Stephen W ....... Sub-Collector...........

tockwood, George S ..... j... Sub-Collector..........

bavis, Joseph Benjamin...

Ogilvie, Abram.............

?Orter, Simon N............

Digby.

Iiets, Botsford..........

rtoop, John..... ........

11ggles, Benjamin H.......

' hurber, Isaiah ............

)4eKay, Edward............

teardon William..........

Potter. Edward Wallace.....

Sub-Collector .........

Preventive Officer ......

Preveitive Offieer ......

Collctor. . ..... ..... .

Sub-Colecto........

Sub-Collector..........

Sub-Collector..........

Sub-Collector...........

Preventive Oflicer ......

Preventive O)fficer ....

Guysborough.

OrY, James Alexander ...... Collector ............

YOUng, James William... . .. Sub-Collectoi... . ... I. ..

aileoner, Alexander F ...... Sub-Collectoi..........

n, Joseph D... ..... .. Sub-Collector.

eylow, James ............ SubColector.

ýeltmate, James H. Preventive Officer .....
kilward, Thomas Frederick . Preventive Officer.....

4eRenzie, William S....... Preventive Officer .....

keCutcheon, Hugh......... Preventive Officer.

Halifax.

Hon. William ........ Collector...........

ealdwell, Samuel R....... Surveyor............

orris, James George........ Clerk ................. I

rrison, W illiam A ........ Clerk.................I

1oble, Samuel.............. Cashier .... .......
on, Charles M.......... Chief Clerk & Registrar

of Shipping. .

18 June '79

1 July '73

3 Apr. '80

3 June '65

30 Dec. '64

27 May

5 Sept.

May

18 July

2 May

A pr.

1 May '73

1 Mar.'80

10 June '80

29Apr. '74

26 July '75

26 June '72

1 July '75

14June '75

27 Oct. '77

5 Nov.'74

1 Aug. '63

12 Dec. '64

8 June '68

1 July '70

1 May '65

Present

Salary.

cts.

200

200

250

60

60

800

400

200

200

200

60

60

650

350

150

100

100

60

60

60

60

3,000

1,500

850

800

1,200

1,400 00

Dte of Date of
First Ap-Birth. pointment.

28 Jan. '35

7 Feb. '29

- '33

10 Sept.'26

Il Apr. '17

4 July '10

3 Apr. '26

9 June'11

29 Dec.'15

18 July '34

14 Mar. '29

23 Apr. '20

14 Dec.'22

10 Feb. '35

19 June '38

- '27

24 May '30

- '59

- '17

9 Aug.'39

2 June '52

27 Dec. '26

11 May '13

Il June '48

10 June '42

26 Aug.'25

24 Aug.'47

18 June '79

1 July '60

3 Apr. '80

29 Apr. '56

30 Dec. '64

-'58

27 May '80

5 Sept. '50

May '67

18 July '81

2 May '65

Apr. '63

5 May '70

1 Mar. '80

10 June '80

29 Apr. '74'

26 July -75

26 June '72

1 July' 75

14 June '75

27 Oct. '77

5 Nov. '74

1 Aug. '63

12 Dec. '64

8 June '68

1 July '70

21 June '65

A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Present I

Name. Present Rank.

Halifax (Con.)

Crawford, Samuel........... Clerk................I

Richardson, James F ........ Clerk...............

O'Brien, James............. Clerk.................

Fenerty, Arthur............ Clerk.................

Eckersley, John............ Chief Warehouse Clerk.

Tupper, Conrad W. ........ Clerk.................

Pryor, Oswald.............. Clerk.................

Cronan, William M.......Clerk..............

Hil, Philip Carteret ........ Clerk.................

Withers, Edward........... Statistical Clerk.......

Caldwell, Thomas........... Statistical Clerk.......

Tremaine, Arthur D. B...... Clerk.................

Blackwood, David .......... Appraiser ...........

Beckwith, R. N............ Appraiser ............

Woodill, Frederick B....... Assistant Appraiser ....

Romans, Charles..........Gauger & Prev. Officer.

Kerr, James......... .... Landing Waiter .......

Paw, George A. V .......... Landing Waiter .......

Jost, Thomas P.........., . Landing Waiter .......

Geldert, John Morris........ Landing Waiter .......

.Artz, John................. Locker..... .......

Reynolds, Wellwood ........ Locker................

Gray, George G............. Locker................

McDonald, Norman...... ... Locker.............

Date
thereof.

3 May '82

5 May'68

15 Aug.'74

5 Jan. '77

1 July '68

1 Sept.'74

1 July '75

1 Mar.'78

1 Oct. '83

30 May '73

9 Dec. '81

1 Aug. '84

5 May '75

1 May '83

1 Jan. '82

5 May '75

1 Jan. '49

1 Jan. '71

1 July'71

30 Sept.'72

29 May'76

1 Apr. '60

1 Nov.'64

16 Apr. '60

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

650 00

800 00

700 00

600 00

1,200 00

650 00

650 00

650 00

550 00

800 00

800 00

550 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

900 00

800 00

800 00

650 00

650 00

730 00

Date of
Birth.

26 Jan. '40

12 Sept.'26

15 Nov.'38

12 May '51

21 Apr. '37

26, Oct. '49

20 July '50

8 Jan. '51

8 Apr. '57

28 June '37

24 June'50

18 June'56

20 Jan. '34

2 Apr. '34

27 June '45

9 Dec. 136

17 Sept.'26

30 Dec. '12

6 Apr. '22

8 Nov.'24

2 Mar. '30

28 Mar. '26

17 July '07

22 Dec. '24

Burnham, J. F............. Locker................ May'66 650 0O 27 Oct. '18

McCurdy, W. J.......... Locker............. 18 Mar. '68 600 00 27 Nov.'26

Pitts, William ............. ILocker............. il Mai. '68 600 00 1 Apr.'32

Conrod, Nelsoii........... Tide Waiter........... 1 Dec.'72 600 00 17 Mar. '34

Bashford, W. H............ Tide Waiter........... 20 June'72 650 00 15 Nov.'28

Chipman, W. A.......... Tide Waiter........... 1 July '71 550 Do 30 June '18

A. 1886

Date of
First AP-~

pointieilt.

3 May $

5 May 6&

Sept. 68

5 Jan.

1 July 68,

1 Sept. 7

i July

Nov.

i Oct.

30 May 7a

1 June

1 Aug.

19 May

1 May

1 Jan.

5 May

1 Jan.

1 Jan.

i July

30 Sept

29 May

1 Apr.

1 Nov.

16 Apr.

May

i Mar. 6

il Mar.

1 Dec.

20 June

1 JuIy



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Naime. Present Rank. te Prese t Date ofa. thereof . Salary. Birth.

$ ets.
Halifax (Con.)

haer, Alexander......... Tide Waiter........... 3 Mar.'81 500 00 24 Mar. '23

harnstead, Edward H.... . Tide Waiter........... 11 Aug.'75 600 00 4 July 34

hodges, Robert............. Tide Waiter........... Sept.'66 600 00 22 Dec. '34

ellY, Alexander ........... Tide Surveyor......... 1 May '59 900 00 1 Mar. '20

r&ray, John ............. Locker ............... 1 Mar. '73 600 00 18 July '32

a Peter S............. Tide Waiter........... Il Apr. '68 600 00 25 Feb. '38
,khite, Stephen .......... Tide Waiter.......... 1 Aug.'66 600 00 30 May '31

'hanks, William E ......... Tide Waiter........... 13 Dec. '72 600 00 29 Aug.'40

'1ider, Henry W......... Tide Waiter.......... l Mar.'71 500 00 2 Jan. '45

reITy, William............. Tide Waiter........... 26 Apr. '72 600 00 26 Oct. '42

son, Henry Grahami...... Tide Waiter........... 4 Dec. '76 600 00 24Aug.'51

oWe, Philip J............. Boatman ............. 1 Jan. '72 500 00 1 21 July '39

k1inn, William............. Boatman ............. 1 Apr.'66 600 00 19 Nov.'33

azley, John .............. fBoatman ............. 22 Apr. '66 500 00 28 Oct. '41

Power, William............

lackinan, William.........

bertson, Alexander.......
Carlton, Robert.............

OWer, John R.............

aldwell, Albert H.........
a garty, Heirv B..........

ilton, Hugh F..........

ards, John Thelison.....
#itchell, James A..........

W&%hood, Josepli C.
bonnell, John M, ........

eating, M . E..............

cParlane, Malcolm ........

Boatman .............

Messenger.........

Tide Waiter...........

Tide Waiter...........

Tide Waiter...........

Tide Waiter...........

Clerk.................

Tide Waiter...........

Tide Waiter...........

Tide Waiter...........

Tide Waiter...........

Tide Waiter........

Packer................

Sub-Collector..........

1enley, William. C ........ Preventive Officer......
ons, John.............. Preventive Officer......

7:

Mar. '66

1 Jan. '63

1 Dec. '72

1 Dec. '80

12 Apr. '80

6 Aug. '81

9 Dec. '81

23 Apr. '78

1 Aug. '83

18 Nov.'83

9 Jan. '78

1 Nov.'82

1 Dec. '84

7 Mar. '73

9 Nov.'80.

9 Nov.'80

.3

500 00

550 00

600 00

500 00

600 00

550 00

550 00

550 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

200 00

60 00

60 00

10 Feb. '31

19 Mar. '23

17 Mar. '32

26 Feb. '45

7 Oct. '52

30 July '61

14 June'58

13 Jan. '39

12 Jan. .44

13 May '63

1 Jan. '40

23 Dec. '49

24 July '60

2 Apr. '22

24 Jan. '54

31 Jan. '38

Date of
First Ap-

pointment.

1

A. 1886

3 Mar. '81

11 Aug. '75

Sept. '66

1 May '59

1 Mar. '73

11 Apr. '68

1 Aug. '66

13 Dec. '72

1 Mar. '71

26 Apr. '72

4 Dec. '76

1 Jan. '72

1 Apr. '66

22 Apr. '66

Mar. '66

1 Jan. '63

1 Dec. '72

1 Dec. '80

12 Apr. '80

6 Aug. '81

9 Dec. '81

23 Apr. '78'

1 Aug. '83

18 Nov. '83

9 Jan. '78

1 Nov. '82

1 Dec. '84

7 Mar. '73

9 Nov. '80

9 Nov. '80



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Date of
Name. Present Rank. Date Present Date of First AP-thereof. Salary. Birth. pointment.

Halifax (Con.)

Bawlings, George...........

Jamison, George H.........

Liverpool, N. S.

Dunlap, John Hugh ........

Freeman, Newton Perkins...

Lockeport.

Stailker, George.............

Londonderry.

Dill, Robert................

Fulmer, William Andrew....

Corbett, Aiidrew Y.........

Fulmer, Harris.............

Lunenburg.

Dowling, Edward.........

Wentzel, William Reuben...

Reinhardt, Henry A ........

Butler, William H..........

Morash, John...........

Preventive Officer......

Preventive Officer......

Collector ............

Landing Waiter .......

9 Nov.'80

1 July '83

17 May '78

1 May '77

Collector.............. 25 May '68

Collector..............

Sub-Collector..........

Sub-Collector..........

Preventive Officer.....

Collector..............

Sub-Collector.........

Sub-Collector..........

Sub-Collector..........

Tide Waiter...........

Bates, James William.....I.. Landing Waiter.......

Rudolf, Josiah.............. Preventive Officer .....

Mills, George H .......... Preventive Officer.

Margaretsville.

Lauders, David W........ Collector.....,........

Elliott, Charles A........... Sub-Collector .........

North Sydney.

HIlamilton, Alexander G..... Collector.............

Collins, Patrick............ Preventive Officer.

McDonald, Murdock........ Sub-Collector.......

Eagen Denis............... Boatman.......... .

Phoran, Martin J......... Preventive Officer.....

9 Jan.

23 Jan.

1 July

1 Oct. '69

1 Mar. '79

5 Oct. '80

5 Oct. '75

1 Apr. '79

5 Apr. '74

1 May'65

1 May '66

1 Oct. '63

17 June '81

1 May '79

16 June '74

16June'74

1 Aug.'80

25 Jan. '82

$ cts.

60 00

60 00

900 00

600 00

600 00

800 00

400 00

400 00

150 00

500 00

100 00

100 00

100 00

500 00

200 00

4 Nov.'44

15 Apr.'43

4 Nov.'38

17 Nov.'53

2 Feb. '36

- '12

21 Aug.'30

5 Dec. '19

26Feb. '35

26 Jan. '25

4 Dec. '44

28 Apr. '53

7 Feb.'46

7 Apr. '26

Il Dec.'16

18 June '27

- Sept.'26

13 May'34

Il Feb.'30

16 Mar. '35

- '33

15 Sept.'10

15 Sept.'32

29 Aug.'43

9 Nov. '80

1 July '83

27 May

I May

25 May 68

9 Jan.

12 Dec. '71

27 Mar. '61

---

1 Oct. 69

1 Mar.

5 Oct. 80

5 Oct.

1 Apr.

5 Apr.

1 May

1 May

1 Oct. 63

17 Jule

1 May

- May 6

16 June

1 Aug.

25 Jan-

A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4S.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

Parrsboro'.

'townshend, Alexander Stew't

atfield, Francis Fraser.....

ard, James...............

ard, John W.............

Qillispie, Edward...........

Pictou.

eicDonald, Daniel. .........

s5sell, James Anthony.....

a hnston, George Elliott....

%Ipbell, James Alex. Glen.

eDCbonald, John Fredcrick..

4eG!regor, Donald..........

4 1uell, W illiam ...........

'%pbell, David...........

enry, John Robert.........

)4ebonald, Angus........
1 per. Montgomery........

4'Qtherland, George.........

port Hawkesbury, N. S.

hourinot, Marshall..........

erbes, Henry Arthur.......

rray, David, jr........

4dley, George B...........

derson, Jesse ............

Port Hood.

ain, Edward D........

Present Rank.

Collector .............

Sub-Collector..........

Sub-Collector..........

Sub-Collector....... .

Clerk.................

Collector and Registrar.

Clerk .................

Clerk.................

Sub-Collector...

Sub-Collector.......

Sub-Collector..........

Landing Waiter.......

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Appraiser.............

Tide Waiter...........

Collector..............

Sub-Collector..........

Sub-Collector..........

Preventive Officer.

Preventive Officer.

Collector..............

Miles A............. Sub-Collector........ ..
ý& Coin, Severin........... Preventive Officer.....

t, William............. 'Preventive Officer.

Port Medway.

t8on Joseph Jones........ Collector.... ......

A. 1886

Date
thereof.

1 July '71

July '64

7 May '80

28 Nov.'72

16 Aug. '81

1 July '74

1 Mar. '77

16 Dec. '81

26 Oct. '76

1 May'79

24 Aug.'81

8 May '73

22 Oct. '73

12 Apr. '75

1 Nov.'84

1 Dec. '79

13 July '85

18 Nov.'79

23 May'78

12 May '73

27 Dec. '65

13 June '61

8 May '59

1 Nov.'83

1 July '85

1 May '84

1 June '57

Present.
Salary.

5 cts.

500 00

200 00

150 00

150 00

150 00

1,200 00

500 00

600 00

300 00

900 00

100 00

500 00

100 00

200 00

400 00

600 00

500 00

600 00

100 00

350 00

60 00

60 00

500 00

Date of
Birth.

2 Aug.'41

18 Aug.'05

12 Feb. '20

- '38

1 May '62

31 Oct. '35

22 Oct. '55

4June '49

25 Aug.'50

30 Sept.'50

27 Apr. '37

22 Jan. '34

14 Jan. '27

25 Jan. '51

17 Aug.'33

3 May '29

11 May '38

19July '43

19 May '33

30 Aug.'41

16 July '10

18 May'39

16 Oct. '51

15 Feb. '42

20 Oct. '31

16 May '08

Date of
First Ap-

pointmnent.

1 July '71

July '64

7 May '80

28 Nov. '72

16 Aug. '81

1 July '74

1 Mar. '77

16 Dec. '81

26 Oct. '76

1 May '79

24Aug. '81

8 May '73

22 Oct. '7

12 Apr. '75

1 Nov. '84

1 Dec. '79

13 July '85

18 Nov. '79

3 Aug. '66

12 May '73

27 Dec. '65

13 June '61

8 May '59

1 Nov. '83

i July. '85

1 May '84

1 June '57



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Date tPreseilt Date of 'Date of
NPresent Rank. thereof. Salary. Birth. pistment

Shelburne, N. S. cts.

Atwood, Warren Wilson. Collector ............. 1 Dec. '75 400 00 16 Apr. '41 1 Dec. '75

McKenzie, Mathew D....... Sub-Collector.......... 7 A pr. '73 150 00 3 Apr. '27 7 Apr. 73

Sydney.

McDonald, Rowald.......... Collector.......... . 1 Aug. 82 800 00 20 Nov.'40 1 Aug.

Rigby, Charles Henry....... Sub-Collector........ .16 Jan. '66 300 00 28 Oct. '43 16 Jan. '66

Kavanagli, Lawrence........ Sub-Collector....... '59 150 00 - '18 - '59

Rigby, George............Sub.Collector........ 28 June '69 150 00 17Apr. '09 Jan.

Bown, William Waine...... Sub-Collector.......... 14 June'61 350 00 26 Sept.'24 14 June '61

McKeen, David .......... Sub-Collector........ 7 July '69 250 00 20 Sept.'39 7 July '69

Young, Walter............. Sub-Collector.......... 21 June '84 150 00 - '40 21 June '8

McLean, Roderick.......... Sub-Collector.......... 5Mar. '80 200 00 24 Dec. '30 5 Mar. '80

Townsend, Joseph.......... Preventive Officer..... 1 May '60 60 00 - '06 1 May '60

Muggah, Charles........... Landing Waiter ....... 17 Sept. '74 400 00 13 Feb. 13 17 Sept.

Truro.

Nelson, George P.......... Collector.............. 1 May '85 750 00 .......... 1 May

Blair, Henry C.......... Clerk .................. 1 June '82 750 00 8 May '59 1 June

McCurdy, James ........... Sub-Collector.......... 3 Nov.'60 200 00 15 Dec. '33 3 Nov.

Creelman, George .......... Preventive Officci ...... 1 Nov.'60 60 00 20 Apr. '29 4 Nov.

Weymouth.
Jones, Norman B........... Collector.............. 6 Dec. '81 600 00 18 May '34 6 Dec.

Bourneuf, Ambroise ........ Sub-Collector... . . .. . . . 6 May '52 300 00 - '21 6 May

Stuart, James Valentine..... Sub-Collector.......... 10 Mar. '65 250 00 14 Ab. '06 10 Mar. 65

Sanderson, Richard........ Sub-Collector......... 11 May '64 250 00 - '24 Il May

Robicheau, Basil A.......... Sub-Collector.......... - '64 100 00 - '07 - 64

Windsor, N. S.

O'Brien, Edward...... ... Collector.............. 3 June'61 1,200 00 " Oct. '14 3 Jue61

Sterling, John ............. Landing Waiter....... 5 July'58 450 00 27 Nov.'15 5 JuIy

Lawrence, James W ........ !Sub-Collector.......... 14 July '81 250 00 26 Mar. '45 14 July

Malcolm, Thomas A......... Sub-Collector....,..... 24 Apr.'61 200 00 14 July '28 24 Apr.

Roy, Alexander.. ........ Sb-Collector......... 26 Mar.'74 200 00 Jan. '26 26 Mar.

Parker, A. McNeil.......... Sub-Collector......... 13 Mar. '67 150 00 Jan. '23 13 Mar. '61

O'Brien, James Mitchell . ... Preventive Officer . 9 Dec. '69 60 00 '25 9 Dec.
0'Brien,~~~ ~~ Jaericel.. v__



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARITMENT OF USTOMS.--OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Namne. Present Rank.

Yarmiouth.

O' dy, W illiam l......... Collecto,..............i
e4ill, William.......... Clerk..............

Thomas S........... ISpecial Officer.........

akipbell, William L .... .. Appraistr.. ........

t'aldwelI, Marsden.......Gaugcr............

obbins, Ansel............. Lamîdim........

erry, Reuben......... sub-Collecto........

utremont, Peter Stillman

POter, David Leo ......... Sb.Colleuhr.

Adolpus G......... ugrvetive O .ur.....

4Iilgaye, Williami Eubert . .. icolietor ...........

-11 l, Johni Moon ......... Surveyor ...........

Ç' Thonmas ............ Chief Appraser and
Landing Waiter.....

JohinS..............ChiefClerk........
Francis Jo........Chief Statistical Clerk .

William Hery.. Casler.............
khatney, Robert Tbert...Chief Checker.........

'lWel, Bruce MeGregor... Manifest Clerk ........

I, Tobert Murait...... Statistical Clerk .a

a4Ys, Ediuund Clharles ... iStatistical Clerk ...

0 I1 , Richard ......... iLanding Waiter ......
W JhZacary Taylor ...... Chief Locker..........
4, ran Richard Inglis........ Landing Waiter.k.

Jolsn Lindsay. . Landing Waiter.......

rav, Robe.......... SubCollector.......

t , Ril............. Sub-Collector ......

Emuerson.

'is, Edward Dixon...... Collector..........

ars1a

he, William Peel ...... ,. Sub-Collector.......

77

Date Present

Dae Presenit
tivreof. Salaoy.

$ ets.

1 July '83

1 Feb. '75

1 Mar. '81

1 May '79

1 July '83

1 July '84

Aug. '58

30 May '64

9 Aug. '83

19 Apr. '84

30 Oct. '73

5 Dec. '83

1 June '83

1 Dec. '81

1 July '83

10 Apr. '81

1 July '83

1 July '84

1 July '83

1 Dec. '84

1 Dec. '84

1 Dec. '84

1 Jan. '81

1 Feb. '81

13 Apr. '83

1 June '83

23 Nov.'53

10 Nov.'83

1,200 00

900 00

800 00

700 00

650 00

500 00

150 00

150 00

120 00

75 00

3,000 00

1,800 00

1,700

1,400

1,200

1 200

1,000

1,000

1,000

800

1,000

800

800

700

1,200

1.000

u
00

00

Date of , Date of
Birth. First Ap-

pontment.

1 July

1 Feb.

1 May

6 Dec.

1 July

1 July

Aug.

30 May

9 1 1 1g.

19 Air.

13 Nov.'36

29 July '42

26 July '36

20 Sept. '35

2 Mar. '33

29 Aug.'32

24 Nov.'24

6 July '20

2 Apr. '47

2 Mar. '48

28 Feb.'24

1 Oct. '56

31 Mar.'32

30 Dec. '41

3 Feb. '56

28 Juin '59

20 Jan. '58

4 Nov.'58

15 Mar. 52

1 Jan. '64

23 Feb. '43

17 Nov.'60

4 June'50

22 Jan. '34

3 Sept.'24

17 J une '58

ý81

'83

'83

1,500 00 27 Jan. '28 23 Nov. '53

1,000 00 27 Nov.'52 1 May '74

|

1 Jue ý54

Oct. '78

6 Nov.

1 Dee.

1 July

10 Apr.

1 July

1 July

1 July

1 Dec.

1 Dec.

1 Dec.

1 Nov.

1 Feb.

13 Apr.

1 June



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Naine.

Emerson (Con.)

Mills, William..........

Kane, Roland ..............

Charlottetown, P.E.I.

Currie, James ...........

Bremner,- George.........

McKenna, Henry Albert.....

MacLeod, Alexander Duncan.

White, Edwin .............

McNeill, Duncan...........

Mloran, Michael Joseph......

Hogg, Robert ............

Iacdonald, James ..........

3cPhillips, Bernard........

Passmore, William.

Lawson, James David .......

Curtis, James Frederick.....

MlcKenna, Jaines Barron....

]Robinson, George Frederick..

Hughes, Felix A............

McRae, James..............

Chandler, Edward.........

Hanghes, John..............

3cPhee, Allan..............

Owen, Charles ..............

Hession, Thomas George.....

Dalziel, William............

Foley, Michael .............

McEachern, Bennett ........

Lavie, Charles ..............

McLean, Daniel ............

Chaisson, Alexandre ........

Present Rank. Date Preseut Date ofthereot. Salary. Birth.

$ ets.I

Clerk & Landiiig Waiter 1 Feb. '81 850 00 18 Dec. '49

Clerk................. 1 July '83 850 00 29 Jan. '53

Collector & Registrar... 10 May '80 1,800 00 7 Jan. '35

Assistant Collector .... 1 July '73 1,200 00 31 Jan. '40

Chief Clerk ........... 1 Nov.'81 900 00 25 Oct. '47

Clerk & Cashier........ 8 May '77 600 00 20 Aug. '43

Clerk................. 1 Oct. '78 600 00 3 Jan. '54

Clerk................. 5 Nov.'81 600 00 25 Dec. '54

Clerk................. 1 June '85 500 00 15 June '55

Appraiser ............ 18 May '80 1,000 00 13 Apr. '46

Measuring Surveyor.... 13 Jan. '74 500 00 25 Jan. '36

Locker.............. 7 Nov.'73 600 00 17 May '23

Landing Waiter ....... 8 Jan. '74 500 00 22 Apr. '13

Gauger .............. 1 Sept.'80 600 00 12 Aug.'52

Chief Landing Waiter.. 1 Apr. '81 600 00 23 Feb. '43

Landing Waiter....... 8 Jan. '74 500 00 14Aug.'20

Landing Waiter ....... 14 Nov.'74 500 00 14 Jan. '24

Boatman............ 26 July '72 150 00 - '47

Preventive Officer...... 16 Nov.'74 50 00 3 May '34

Preventive Officer...... 10 Mar.'75 50 00 24 Feb.'12

Preventive Officer...... 7 Nov.'74 40 00 - '39

Preventive Officer...... 20 Nov.'75 50 00 30 June'45

Sub-Collector .,.. . 7 Nov.'73 700 00 1 Apr. '38

Landing Waiter....... 19 Jan. '74 400 00 23 Feb.'36

Locker................ 7 Nov.'73 300 00 4 June'26

Sub-Collector . ...... . .. 13 Nov.'80 400 00 26 Oct. '49

Preventive Officer ...... 13 Nov.'80 100 00 31 Mar. '36

Preventive Officer..... 13 Nov.'80 100 00 5 Apr. '37

Preventive Officer ..... 1 July '74 40 00 - '49

Preventive Officer..... 1Il Aug.'81 40 00 I7 July '40

78

A. 1886

Date of
First All

poinltInelit*

1 Apr.

i July '8

10 May

Apr.

1 July '73

8 May

1 Oct. '78

5 Nov.

1 June

18 May

13 Jan.

7 Nov. 173

8 Jan.

i Sept. 80

15 May

3 Nov.

14 Nov.

26 July

16 Nov.

10 Mar.

7 Nov.

20 Nov.

7 Nov.

14 Pec.

7 NoV'

13 Nov.

13 Nov.

13 Nov.

12 SePt.

11 Aug.



9 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. SG

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Date Present Date of Date of
Name. Present Rank. thereof. Salary. Birth. First Ap

pointment.

Charlottetown (Con). $ ets.I

:achern, Stephen. . e....... Pventive Officer . 1 June '84 40 00 1 May '42 1 June '84

Solomon James Benj.. Sub-Collector .......... July '74 250 00 - '40 23 May '73

era, Wesley ............. Preventive Officer. 16 Feb.'75 50 00 - '45 1 July '74

Isaac................ Preventive Officer. 1 May '82 100 00 6 Nov.'14 1 May '82

Aitken, James Montague .... Sub-Collector..,....... Il Aug,'81 150 00 21 July '38 Il Aug. '81

haut, Henry James. Sub-Collector ......... 1 Nov.'74 150 00 5 Jan. '35 1 Nov. '74

«Eb0onald, John John-...... Sub-Collector ......... 1 July '74 75 00 26 Apr. '29 5 May '73

Leod, John............. Preventive Officer... 14 Nov.'74 60 00 22 Apr. '20 14 Nov. '74

4e, Thomas........... Preventive Officer... 14 Nov.'74 40 00 8 May '21 14 Nov. '74

kpWen, Edward........... Sub-Collector.......... 14 Nov.'74 100 00 13 Mar. '15 14 Nov. '74

Sby, Charles Alexander... Preventive Officer .. . .. 14 Nov.'74 50 00 22 Mar.'22 14 Nov. '74

#cbonald. James.......... Sub-Collector ......... 7 May '80 120 00 13 Mar. '32 7 May '80

s, William Peterson.... Sub-Collector ......... 23 Jan. '80- 120 00 - '31 23 Jan. '80

ison, Angus.......... Sub-Collector ......... 7 Nov.'74 100 00 3 Jan. '29 7 Nov. '74

le, Thomas............. Sub-Collector ......... 7 Nov.'74 75 00 8 Dec. '44 7 Nov. '74

ainerside (P.E. Island).

Charles Wesley..... Collector.............. 5 May '73 1,000 00 2 July '29 5 May '73

nPhy, Charles.......... Clerk ................ 1 Oct. '82 600 00 15 July '49 1 Oct. '82

tbbe, George............. Clerk................. 8 Jan. '74 500 00 June '29 8 Jan. '74

Charles Russell....... Chief Landing Waiter.. 8 Jan. '74 400 00 17 Sept.'36 8 Jan. '74

n, Patrick........... Landing Waiter....... 8 Jan. '74 300 00 10 Feb. '20 8 Jan. '74

Francis........... Preventive Officer..... 7 Nov.'74 50 00 - '32 7 Nov. '74

147 Felix.. ... ... Preventive Officer..... 31 Jan. '81 50 00 29 Dec. '32 31 Jan. '81
utt, James MarshaU .... Sub-Collector ......... 1 Nov.'74- 150 00 4 June '26 1 Nov. '74
art Robert............ Preventive Officer..... 1 Nov.'75 50 00 29 Oct. '38 1 Nov. '75

ebell, Stephen.......... Preventive Officer..... 2 Feb.'81 50 00 6 Juiie '46 2 Feb. '81

George............. Sub-Collector ......... 31 Jan. '81 250 00 13 June '60 31 Jan. '81

ames................ Preventive Officer..... 16 Jan. '75 50 00 Dec. '22 16 Jan. '75
,%od, William.......... Sub-Collector ......... 20 Nov. '75 250 00 14 Feb.'22 20 Nov. '75

knhur, Samuel ....... :. Preventive Officer..... 16 Feb. '75 60 00 3 Aug. '43 16 Feb. '74

SPreventive Officer..... - '74 50 00 17Sept.'78 -- '74



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Naime. Present Rank. thereof.

Summerside P. E. I. (Con.)

Brennan, John Peter ....... Sub-Collector .. ..... .. Oct. '79

Callaghan, William........ Preventive Officer..... Mar. '77

Stewart, Alexander......... Preventive Officer.. .. 5 July '81

New Westminster (B.C.)

Clute, John Stillwell....... Collector .............. 1 Aug.'78

Grant, Peter ............... iLanding Waiter & Clerk May '83

Haynes, John Carmichael... Deputy Collector ..... 25 Feb. '62

Norris, John Gustavus...... Sub-Collector ......... 21 July '76

Johus, Isaac................

Victoria (B.C.)

Hamley, Hon. Wyimond....

Finlayson, Charles Studdest.

Frye, George ...............

Milne, Alexander Roland....

Hunter, Richard...........

Fawcett, Edgar ............

Newbury, John C..........

Lawson, Robert.........

Landing Waiter.......

Collector..............

Chief Clerk............

Surveyor .......

Appraiser.............

Sub-Collector .........

Clerk.................

Clerk.................

Tide Waiter.....

Morrison, Frederick J...... Tide Waiter...........

Woollocott, Phillip......... Locker ...............

Franklin, Williem A ...... Landing Waiter .......

Bunting, Charles Edward... Landing Waiter........

Nanaimo.

Smith, Bedford H.......... Collector..............

Peck, Thomas Erie.......... Sub-Collector .........

Board of Customs.

Johnson, James............. Chairman.............

Grose, John A............ Special Officer.........

Watters, Albert Livingstone. Special Officer.........
Evans, Henry Sugden....... Chief Analyst.........t

8 Oct. '77

Sept. '58

8 June'60

1 May '62

1 Jan. '75

- '66

Sept. '83

1 Sept.'83

1 Feb. '69

1 July '80

Aug.'83

8 Apr. '84

13 May'78

22 Oct. '84

15 Mar. '75

27 Nov.'83

27 Nov.'83

1 July'78

1 Sept.'84

Present
Salary.

$ ets.

250 00

50 00

50 00

1,400 00

1,000 00

1,704 00

1,600 00

1,000 00

3,800 00

1,800 00

1,704 00

1,600 00

1,600 00

900 00

900 00

696 00

700 00

800 00

800 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

800 00

800 00

1,000 00-

2,000 00

Date ofDate of First AIBirth. pi tn

May '54

24 June '32

1 Dec. '39

15 June'40

27 Dec.'47

12 July '34

4 Oct. '29

- '39

..........

31 May '23

14 Mar. '24

20 Dec, '42

31 Jan. '39

1 Feb. '47

6 Feb. '62

3 May'29

3 Sept.'47

1 Feb. '42

2 Sept.'33

-r-'28

1 June '49

23 July '38

Oct.

Mar.

5 July

1 Ang.

May

25 Feb.

21 July

8 Oct.

Sept.

8 Jule

I May

1 Jan.
'66,

Sept.

1 Sept.

i Feb.

1 July

Aug.

8 Apr.

13 May

22 Oct.

15 Mar.

20 May '16 27 No"'

6 Mar. '56 1 July

18 Feb. '58 1 Sept.

........ Sept

A. 1886



'4 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Nae.Prset an. Date Present Date of FDate ofName. Present Rank. thereof. Salary. Birth. f t
pointment.

Inspector of Ports. c ts

avaUagh, Henry........ Inspector ............. 4 Jan. '66 2,000 00 9 Nov.'17 14 Aug. '39

fewburn, Thomas Chilton.. Inspector ............. 1 July '77 2,000 00 .......... Oct.'75

ill, William H............ Inspector ............. 1 June'84 2,000 00 13 Oct. '36 5 Apr. '65

Olff, James Fitzgerald..... Special Agent......... 1 July'79 1,600 00 30 Mar. '42 June '64

bitaille, Louis............ Inspector ............. 31 July '85 2,000 00 28 Nov.'36 1 May '73

eudlip, John W .......... Inspector ............. 1 July '74 2,000 00 ........... 1 July '74

Since deceased.

81

8--6

A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

13. THE POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Nanw. 1>iusvnt Bank.

Gruiin, William Henry...... Deputy P. M. General

White, Lieut.-Col. William.. Chief Clerk, Secretary..

Wicksteed, Major Horatio
Asprey .................. Chief Clerk, Accountant!

Stewart, John Cunningham . .Ch'f Cl'k Su 't Mone
Order & Sv',gs Bandý
Branches.........

Ashworth, Join... ......... Chief Clerk, Cashier...

Smithson, William Ilenry... Chief Clerk, Assistant
Accountant .........

Lesueur, William Dawson. .. Ch'f Cl'k, Ass't. See'y.J

Everett, George Frederick... Cl'f Cl'k Ass't Sup't
Money Order Office..

Matheson, David........... Ch'f CI'k Ass't Sup't
Savings Bank Office.

Smith, Sidney, jr............ Ch'f Cl'k Sup't of Print-
ing & Supply Branch.

Weatherley, Major Henry
Stewart.................. ilst class clerk .........

Bucke, Philip Eustace ...... lst class clerk .........

Walsh, Major John.......... lst class clerk.........

Plunkett, James ............ 1st class clerk.........

Lindsay, Arthur........... 1st class clerk .........

Barrett, William John..... lst class clerk.........

Hopkirk, Henry Glassford... lst class clerk .........

larrington, William Hague. Ist class clerk .........

Fortier, Joseph Octave....... Proby. lst class clerk ..

Brophy, John Purcell....... 2nd class clerk.........

Benjamin, Emanuel Hyman. 2nd class clerk.........

Jlargrave, George Henry .... 2nd class clerk........

Griffin, Henry Wilmot...... 2nd class clerk.........

Graham, John .............. 2nd class clerk.........

Sangster, Charles......... 2nd class clerk.........

Creighton, Frideric William. !2nd class clerk.........

Smith, John Rcse........... 2nd class clerk.........

Shaw, Richard John........ 2nd class clerk.........

Present Date of
Salary. Birth.

$ cts

12 June'57 3,200 00

1 July '69 2,800 00

1 Jluly '69

25 Jan. '68

1 July '69

1 July '73

1 July '80

1 Oct. '81

1 Oct. '81

1 June'82

1 July '57

1 July'73

1 Jan. '79

1 July '81

6 Oct. '81

1 Apr. '82

1 July '83

1 July '84

1 Apr. '85

1 July '69

1 July '70

1 July' 70

1 July '72

1 July '73

1 Nov.'74

1 Dec.'77

1 Jan. '79

1 Jan.'79

2,800 00

2,800 00

2,350 00

2,350 00

2,250 00

2,200 00

2,000 00

1,950 00

1,800 00

1,800 00

1,700 00

1,600 00

1,550 00

1,550 00

1,500 00

1,450 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 CO

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

7 Aug.'12

6 Jan. '30

Il July '11

6 Nov.'39 25 Jan. '50

4 Apr. '24 27 Apr. '43

28 Feb.'34

19 Feb. '40

1 Mar.'30

25 Oct. '40

29 July '50

3 Apr. '32

13 Jan. '31

13 Nov.'43

26 Aug.'36

17 Apr.'40

3 Apr. '44

26 Nov.'51

19 Apr. '53

16 Nov.'40

- Feb. '25

21 Nov.'32

8 Sept.'26

5 Aug. '40

12 Feb.'45

16 July '22

18 Sept.'38

31 Aug.'50

23 Sept.'20

A. 1886

Date of
First Ap.

poinitmlen .

23 Apr. '31

1 Dec. '5

i May '3

l May '60

23 Feb. '6

8 June '7"

23 o 63

23 Jan.

3 Nov. 3

1 Jan.

21 Mar.

26 Mar. '61

1 July
-'74

15 Jun'e

20 Jule

30 Nov.

15 June

-Sept.

1 Jan.

26 May

1 Apr.

28 May

20 Mar.

1 Jan.

1 July
1 66

I12 Apr.



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-INSIDE SERVICE.

PretRn. Date Present Date of Date of
Name. Present Rank. thereof. Salary Birth. F'st Ap-

pointinient.

n1alchet, Ludger ......... 2iid class clerk......... 1 Jan. '79 ]; 2

ggins, Connell James B... 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '80 1,350 00 4 May34 26 June '67

»atrick, George Muir........ 2nd class clerk......... 1 Oct. '81 1,250 00 25 July'32 2 July '66
1 roop, Arthur William . .. 2nd class clerk......... 1 Oct. '81 1,250 00 a Dec.'51 20 Aug. '69

gleson, William Henry . . . 2nd cla-ss clerk......... 1 July '83 1,200 00 12 Mar.'51 20 Oct. '70

alConer, Charles........... 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '83 1,200 00 12 Apr. '54 19 sept. '71

Wite, George Rivers...... 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '83 1,200 00 3 Oct. '56 27 Oct. '71

%eary, James Manus ...... 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '83 1,200 00 Il Apr. '37 26 Dec. '71
'horne, Stephen Sneden .... 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '83 1,200 0O 31 Dcc. '51 1 Jan. '68

cPherson, Donald ........ 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '83 1,200 0O 22 Mar. '42 6 Mar. '74

airweather, James ledly... 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '83 1,200 00 27 July '59 28 Apr.'76

nh'stone, Washington J... 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '83 1,200 00 20 Oct. '54 25 Oct.'76

Lennai, Andrew......... 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '84 1,150 6O 28 JuIy '40 12 Mar. '74

iks, George John ........ .2nd class clerk......... 1 July '84 1,150 GO 24 Feb.'48 13Aug. '74

#Carthy, Denis Francis .... Proby. 2nd class clerk. 1 June' 85 1,100 00 18 Feb. '46 22 May '68

Edward Bowen. ........ Proby. 2nd class clerk. . 1 July '85 1,100 0O 6 Feb. '44 June '70

James Francis........ Proby. 2nd class clerk.. 1 July '85 1,100 00 Il Apr. '31 19 Feb. '70

ePs, William Henricus ... Proby. 2nd class clerk.. 1 July '85 1,100 0O 30 June '50 4 Aug. '70

onliot, Louis Herménégilde. Proby. 2nd class clerk.. 1 July '85 1,100 00 15 May '52 12 Feb. '75
bAuteuil, Norbert George.. Proby. 2nd class clerk.. 1 July '85 1,100 0O 16 Apr. '43 4 Jan. '79

rean, Godfroi............ Proby. 2nd class clerk.. 1 July '85 1,100 0O 10 Scpt. '58 29 Dec.'79

eton, Edmund Patrick... Proby. 2nd class clerk.. 1 July '85 1,100 00 25 Mar. '54 14 Feb. '74

ý rien, William Daniel.... Proby. 2nd class clerk. 1 July '85 1,100 0O 17 Mar. '45 8 May'62

%lver, Robert John......... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 1,000 0O 1 Aug. '51 9 Oct. '67

Olevie, Michael Krumm.. 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 1,000 0O 14 Feb.'50 28 June'68

rtier, James George....... 3rd class clerk........ 1 July '79 1,000 0O 8 Nov. '18 1 Dec. '71

e8, Edmund Alexander D. 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 1,000 00 22 May '48 19 Sept. '71

8, William Hague... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 1,000 0O 17 July '52 2 Feb. '72

John Cid .......... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 1,000 00 30 Jan. '44 7 Dec. '71

Artliur William ...... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 950 00 14 Sept.' 4 8  12Jule '72

'1cer, James Hervey . 3rd class clerk......... 1 Jan. '80 950 0O 3 Feb. '48 19 June'72

etty, John George ....... 3.. rd class clerk......... 1 Apr. '82 850 o 21 July '54 1 Apr. '82

83



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Date Present Date of Date o
Name. Present Rank. thereof. Salary. Birth. Frst nt

$ ets.

Leahy, Patrick Thomas..... 3rd class clerk ......... 1 July '82 850 00 25 July '52 22 Aug.

MacDonald, Duncan A. C... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 850 00 10 June'31 23 Feb. 7
McDermid, Angus John..... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 850 00 5 Nov. '33 25 Feb.

MacDonald, John Archtbald. 3rd class clerk ......... 1 July '82 850 00 30,Mar.'57 24 Aug.

Frechette, William Joseph .. 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 850 00 29 May '49 il Sept.

Rance, George.............. 3rd class clerk. ...... 1 July'82 850 00 19 Sept.'23 1 Apr. '68

Morton, Henry Hawtry...... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Oct. '76 800 00 16 Nov.'47 7 Oct. "5

Barrett, Donald Alexander.. 3rd class clerk......... 1 Oct. '76 850 00 19 Sept.'49 18 Dec.

Doucet, Charles Odilon...... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Jan. '83 800 00 9 Jan. '32 1 Oct.

Carter, Janes .............. 3rd class clerk.. ....... 1 Jan. '77 850 00 13 May '46 15 Apr. '73

MceGrail. Thomas........... 3rd class clerk......... 8 Oct. '78 700 00 25 June'59 8 Oct. 73

Knauf, Lenry. ............. 3rd class clerk ........ 25 Apr. '79 850 00 30 May '46 15-Dec. '77

Chaimard, John.............13rd class clerk ......... 1 July '80 650 00 20 May '56 12 June' 9

Bollard, Joseph Henry ...... i3rd class clerk......... 1 Oct. '80 600 00 19 Jan. '58 il Sept. 79

Brooks. Ernest Russell H ... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Oct. '80 600 00 10 Nov.'57 il Oct.

Taylor, Plunket Bourchier .. 3rd class clerk......... 1 Jan. '81 650 00 11 Aug. '63 17 Feb.

Burpee, William Henry.....,3rd class clerk......... 1 Feb. '81 600 00 22 Apr. '54 1 Feb. '81

Taylor, Edward Ellegood F.. 3rd class clerk....... . 1 Aug. '81 600 00 19 Dec. '65 16 July'80

Chesley, Henry Neville P... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Jan.'82 650 00 29 Oct. '63 1 Jan. 8

Heming, Albert Edward. .... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 650 00 17 Apr. '63 4 Jan.

Finn, Michael John ........ 13rd class clerk. . . .... . . . 23 Jan. '82 550 00 22 Sept. '60 3 Nov.

Little, William Carruthers.. 3rd class clerk ......... 1 Apr. '82 650 00 12 Dec. '61 23 Mar. 81

Jarvis, Ernest Frederick ... 13rd class clerk......... 1 Apr. '82 650 00 16 Sept.'62 23 Nar. '81

Devine, Andrew............ 3rd class clerk ......... 3 Apr. '82 550 00 17 May '60 3 Apr.

Brown, Johin............... 3rd class clerk ......... 1 May '82 600 00 29 Apr. '59 1 MaY

Lally, Conrad Whitley...... 3rd class élerk......... 28 June '82 750 00 3 Oct. '57 27 Jal.

Stewart, William Charles E. 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 600 00 13 July '64 22Jnne'

Geddes, Alfred Forbes L.. 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 650 00 25 June'62 7 SePt.

Mailleue, George Alfred Duff. 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 600 00 23 Feb. '62 1 Oct.

Powell, Perey Brigham...... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 550 00 12 July '63 1 Jan. '89

Jenkins, Frank Maurice S... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 550 00 6 July '59 23 Jan.

Champagne, Napoléon....... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 550 00 4 May '61 1 Mar.

84

A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.'-INSIDE SERVICE.

Date reset Dae of Date of
Nane. Present Rank. th eof. Prent Bato Fh it Ap

therof.~ 3aary Bith. pointruent.

Olivercts.
Oliver, Thomas Mackey..'...3rd class clerk........ 1 July '82 550 00 1 Aug.'56 24 Apr. '8

ereer, Francis Hubert F... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 550 00

out, Francis Eric Sewell.. 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 650 00 Il June'66 1 June '8

Inderson, Robert.......... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 550 00 17 Sept.59 1 June '8

&derson, George Clayton... 3rd class clerk ......... 1 July '82 650 00 1 Apr.'58 1 June '8

1, Théophile ............. 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 550 00 6 June'63 28 June '8

, Francis Graham...I...13rd class clerk......... 3 Nov.'82 1,000 00 8 Oct. '60 3 Nov. '8

ilson, Edward............. 3rd class clerk........ 15 Jan. '83 950 00 21 Nov.'53 1 Aug. '7

ais8er, Thomas Egbert...... 3rd class clerk......... 6 Nov.'83 550 00 31 Jan. '55 23 Mar. '8

"%Pman, Archibald....... 3rd class clerk......... 6 Nov.'83 550 00 17 Nov.'61 16 Jan. '8

4chester, Francis King.. 3rd class clerk......... 20 Mar. '83 550 00 31 July '61 20 Mar. '8

card, Charles Pierre V ... 3rd class clerk ...... ... 23 Mar. '83 600 00 3 Aug.'45 23 Mar. '8

]eGillivray, Hugh......... 3rd class clerk........27 Mar. '83 600 O0 9 Jan. '57 27 Mar. 'S

aniiley, William Robert..... 3rd class clerk......... 25 Mar. '83 550 00 16 Dec.'58 14 May '8

sWi5on, William Thomas.... 3rd class clerk ...... ... 4 June '83 550 00 4 Jan. '58 19 Mar. '8
flivever, Joseph Lactance 3rd class clerk.........5 Aug.'79 850 00 12 Mar. '49 5 Aug. '7

orthrop, Bradbury Mills...3rd class clerk.........7June '83 600 00 19 Aug. '54 7 June '8

FYlor, Ernest Luringston.. 3rd class clerk........28 June83 500 00 9 Sept.'64 28 June '

ieux, Francis Xavier.... 3rd clas clerk.........1 July '83 500 00 8 Apr. '39 2 Jan. '

an, Walter...........3rd class clerk....... 1 July '83 950 00 25 May '57 Oct. '

4entield, John Richard M.. 3rd class clerk.........1 July '83 650 00 5 Nov.'51 1 July 'i

abney, Edwin.........3rd class clerk.........1 July '83 600 00 27 Dec. '45 1 July '

Jeremiah.........3rd class clerk..8 sept.'83 600 00 9 Jan. '65 1 July '

oyd,Edward Long. 3rd class clerk........21 Sept.'83 450 00 19 Oct. '64 8 Sept. '

apnIbell, Herbert Sheridan. 3rd c]ass cerk.........1 Oct. '83 550 00 30 Apr. '62 1 Oct. '
Edmrnond ........... 3rd class clerk ......... 1 Oct. '83 450 00 30 July'54 24 Sept.

Rhaw) Henry Soden ........ 3rd class clerk......... 4 Oct. '83 860 00 12 June '55 il Nov.

lintton, j Craig Leonard .... 3rd class clerk......... 2 Dec. '83 450 00 24 Sept.'53 6 Nov.

S'George Carleton .... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Jan. '84 850 00 4 Nov.'24 12 Mar.
À'llY"Orughl Thoinas ..... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Feb. '84 500 00 - Aug. '48 26 Jan. '

el, Edwin Clay ....... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Mar. '84 500 00 7 Apr. '58 9 Feb. '

, George Hobart....... 3rd class clerk......... 22 Apr. '84

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

0

3

3

3

3

3

'3

9

13

13

82

3

83

83

83

72

83

74

83

84

84

A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rani. Datethereof.

Brenot, Honoré Alexandre... 3rd class clerk.........

Alford, William.......... 3rd class clerk.........

Curtis, Nathan William..... 3rd class clerk.........

Pope, Charles.............. 3rd class elerk.........

Pelton, James Edward....... 3rd class clerk.........

Breadner, Robert Walker. ... 3rd class clerk.........

Conroy, Joseph Matthew....

Robertson, Charles Robert...

Stevenson, James S.........

Weldon, Edward Dixon.....

Prendergast, Jérémie........

Jackson,"John Anderson ....

Merrick, Kathleen..........

Traversy, Isidore.... .......

Robinson, Lucy............

Regan, Patrick.............

Plunkett, George Lynn......

Bennett, Maurice........

Dodd, John............

Graham, Samuel ............

Courtney, Denis............

Short, Samuel..............

Greenfield, Samuel..........

Ferguson, William ..........

Clark, Charles Allnactt... . . .

Cooch, William.............

Proby. 3rd class clerk..

Proby. 3rd class clerk..

Proby. 3rd class clerk..

Proby. 3rd class clerk..

Proby. 3rd class clerk..

Proby. 3rd class clerk..

Proby. 3rd class clerk..

3rd class clerk.........

Proby. 3rd class clerk. .

Proby. 3rd class clerk..

3rd class clerk.........

Messenger...... ......

Messenger ............

Messenger ............

Messen ger............

Messenger.......... ..

Packer and Sorter... ...

Packer and Sorter... . ..

Packer and Sorter......

Packer and Sorter......

Galvin, Michael............ Packer

Hartnedy, Timothy......... Packer

Caffarati, Thomas Angelo... Packer

Elbourne, George........... Packer

Briggs, John............... Packer

Barrett, James............. Packer

and Sorter.....

and Sorter.....

and Sorter.....

and Sorter.....

and Sorter.....

and Sorter....

2 May '84

5 May '84

8 May '84

30 May '84

Il Sept.'84

13 Sept.'84

30 Sept.'84

1 Oct. '84

19 Oct. '84

20 Oct. '84

1 Jan. '85

1 Apr. '85

1 Apr. '85

1 May '85

1J une '85

17 June '85

1 July '85

15 Junie'63

25 Apr. '79

22 June '81

2.3 May '82

21 Oct. '84

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

1 July '83

A. 1836

P>resen t
Salary.

$ cts.
550 00

500 00

1,000 00

860 00

400 00

450 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

450 00

400 00

850 00

400 00

400 00

800 00

500 00

500 00

480 00

455 00

300 00

500 00

500 00

500 00

485 00

470 00

470 00

455 00

455 00

440 00

425 00

Date of
Birth.

13 June '56

8 Jan. '50

4 Mar. '34

24 Mar. '58

24 Feb. '65

13 Jan. '65

12 Nov.'63

17 Apr. '61

15 Nov.'63

15 July '63

7 Sept.'64

4 Feb. '64

6 Oct. '61

26 Sept.'54

24 Jan. '61,

21 Oct. '65

24 Dec. '57

-- '39

16 Oct. '26

- '47

- Mar..'45

21 Mar. '67

14 Mar. '23

27 Mar. '43

18 June '35

30 May '40

13 May '45

1 Nov.'30

9 Oct. '41

7 Jan. '44

31 Aug. '49

- '60

Date of
First AI
pintmieni

15 Feb. 81

5 May

29 Jan. 57

17 Oct.

8 Sept.

13 Sept. '

30 Sept. 8

I Oct. '84

13 Oct.

20 Oct. '8I

1 Jan.

1 Apr.

1 Apr.

1 May

1 June'

17 June

4 Aug.
'60

27 Jan.

22 june

23 May

21 Oct.

1 July 60

15 Oct.

1 JuIly

5 Aug-

1 Oct.

28 Dec.

21 Dec.

1 Sep t

1 July

1 Apr.



49 Vitoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

korse, Alfred.............

lrabut, Daniel...........

%liott, James Henry.......

4l1rie, John Burnet.......

Marier, Joseph.........

IRei1, W illiam.............

Wheatley, Ambrose........

oUlden, Daniel Henry.....

eraley, John.............

ahion, Martin Joseph.....

leu, John................

Present Dank '83 42n0

.9ets.

. Packer and Sorter..... 1 July '83 425 00

Packer and Sorter.... 1 July '83 425 00

Packer and Sorter..... 1 July '83 425 00

.Packer and Sorter.. . . . 1 July '83 360 00

Packer and Sorter.. . .. 17 June'83, 470 00

. Packer and Sorter.. . . 28 June '83 360 00

Packer and Sorter.. . 21 Sept.'83 330 00

Packer and Sorter.. . 26 Sept.'83 330 00

Packer and Sorter.. ... 24 Mar. '84 330 00

Packer and Sorter.. . . 1 Apr. '84 330 00

. Packer and Sorter.. . .. 21 Oct. '84 500 00

POST OFFICE )EPART'LMENT.-OU''SIDE SERVICE.

MARINE MAIL SERvFleE.

Iowes, William Flavelle 'st cl Marine Mail C'ký 14 Apr. '66 1,000 00 23 M

Qreen, Samuel Turner.. ..... st cl. Marine Mail C'k 1 Aug. '66 1,000 00 19 A

erguson, James..........T.. 1st cl. Marine Mail C'k 1 Apr. '66 1,000 00 Ap

'liara, James.............t c. Marine Mail C'k 1 May '70 1,000 00 26 A

tlstone, Charles Harry E.. . 1st cl. Marine Mail C'k 1 Oct.'73 800 00 10 M

Mickleburgh, Francis Hunt.. 1 st cl. Marine Mail C'k 1 Nov. '74 800 00 30 Se

ent, Frank Pierce......... 1st cl. Marine Mail C'ký 14 Mar. '82 800 00 7 M

CHIEF 1NSP'ECTOR's OFFICE.

eWé, John ............... Chief luspector. ....... 25 May '70

eingy, Lefevre Anstruther. 1st class clerk ......... 1 Jan. '82

2,800 00

1,250 00

ay '36 16 Mar.'56

pr. '18 13 Apr. '60

r. '34 26 Mar. '61

pr. '36 8 June '65

ar. '30 20 May '71

pt.'42 17 Sept. '70

ay '5
6 7 June '72

5 July '21

17 Nov.'47

5 July '43

15 Nov. '75

ToRONTo DivIsIoN.

%'eetman, Matthew........ Inspector..............

hýrnham, George Albert .... Assistant Inspector ....

flith, William Edward ... lst class clerk .........

Onett, George Thomas B.. 2nd class clerk.........

13 June '5

6 Juiy '8

1 Oct. '7

1 July'7

7 2,600 00 17 Oct. '31 1 July '52

0 1,450 00 18 Apr. '41 30 July '61

4 1,400 00 20 Nov. '36 Il Jan. '62

9 1,170 00 27 Oct. '42 18 Oct. '73

A. 1886

Date of Date of
Bit. First Ap-

pointment.

27 Oct. '40 1 May '81

27 Oct. '49 10 July '76

14 May '43 16 July '72

19 May '33 2 July '82

14 Feb. '50 1 Jan. '80

28 July '68 28 June '83

17 Aug. '61 21 Sept.' 83

15Aug. '60 24 Sept. '83

27 May '56 10 Mar. '84

16Aug.'59 10 Mar. '84

25 Apr. '46 19 June '72



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

ToRoNrO DivisloN.-Continued.

Date Present Date of Date of
Name. Present haik. thereof. Salarv. Birth. pointlent.

$ cts.

Greaves, Walter............ 2nd class clerk......... 1 May '81 1,090 00 10 Dc '51 19 May '79

Henry, John ............ 2nd elass clerk ........ 1 Apr.'82 1,050 00 13 Jan. '54 13 Feb. '73

Crocker, William ........... 2n1d class clerk ........ 1 June '82 1,050 00 1 J 5 21 Julie

Smallpiece, Henry William.. 3rd class clerk .. .. . 21 May '79 800 6 Feb. '27 21May

Sweetman, George Booker. .. !3rd class clerk ......... 19 Apr. '84 440 00 13 Mar.'63 7 Apr. '84

McKillop, John............. Messenîger ............ 4 Jan. '82 490 00 28Aug. '44 4Jan. g2

Harper, James Frederick .... 'Mail Transfer Agent ... 9 Aug.'84 400 00 31 July '57 9Aig,

Seholes, Adam ............. Mail Transfer Agent.. . 5 June '85 430 00 17 Nov.'57 15 Sept

Winstanley, Charles James H Prob. Chf Ry. Mail C'k 1 July '84 1,000 00 29 Apr.'47 12 Nov. 67

Saulter, Joseph ............. lst class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Oct. '73 960 00 22 May'32 16 Ang. 58,

McCormick, Thomas ........ 1st classlRy. Mail Clerk 1 Oct. '73 960 00 28 May '23 4 Sept.

Bennett, John Othniel...... Ist class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Mar. '74 960 00 14 May '31 24Jine 64

Beatty, William............ 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk! 1 May '75- 960 00 14 Dec.'39 19Mar. 60

Ashdown, William C . ...... 1st. class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Sept.'79 960 006

Tyner, Frederick.......... st class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Sept.'79 960 00 il O.'3 1 Auli6

Burns, George Ferrier........ Ist class Ry. Mail Clerki 1 Sept.'79 960 00 4 Ang.>35 5Juli '66

Shaw, George Alexander .. .. lst class Ry. Mail Clerki 1 Oct. '79 960 00 24Jnne'43 2 May '67

Birchall, ThomasShivers.... lst class Rty. Mail Clerk 1 Oct. '79 960 00 27 Oct.'33 22 Jan. '68

Byrne, Lawrence Vincent. .. 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 July '84 960 00 June'46 12 Oct.

Noble, William..... .. ...... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Jan. '73 800 00

Egan, John............. 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Jan. '73 800 00 20 Aug.'35 8Aig.

Thompson, Andrew ......... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 July '74 800 00 14 Ang.'30 l Jnly

Dundas, James ............ .2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Dec. '74 800 00 25 Ang.'45 25 NOV.

Costello, Peter John. ...... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Apr. '76 800 O0 9 Jly'39 5 Ja.

Skelly, Dennis Joseph. ..... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Oct. '77 720 00 il Anc '50 4

McLeod, John Edmond. . .. 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 July '79 720 00 3 Junc '54 1 Apr.

Findlay, Alexander........ 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 July '79 720 00 10 Ang.'42 30 Oct. 16

Bell, Charles Thonas........ 2nd class URy. Mail Clerk 9 Oct. '79 720 00 Oct. '42

Matthews, George ........... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Jan. '78 720 00 lYJane '45 1 J[ui 1

Higgins, Frank O'Connor .. . 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Nov.'80 720 00 24 Aug. '58 i Oct.

Beatty, Alexander.......... 2nd class Riy. Mail Clerk 1 Jan. '81 720 00 13 Oct. '57 23

88

A. 1886



1etoriä. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. ISSG

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERV 1CE.

ToRONTo DivisION-Continued.

Dat lPreseiit D)ate of Dtef

Name Present lIank. I ther Bf. l. Fiitî Ap-
therolpointmnt.

U ts~
oyle n Osimund ...... 2nd class Rv. Mail Clerk 1 Oct. '81 720 00 12 May '60 22Aug. '79

Platt lla Mrdt .. I
lliam Meredith .... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Sept.'81 720 00 8 Aug.'48 1 Sept. 774

ott, Nelson Frame....... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Fe b. '82 720 00 14 jai. '58 13 Jan. S0
onior, William......... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Fe. 720 0 12 Nov.'38 13 Ja.

liam Burton. . . .. 2nd class Rky. Mail Clerk 1 Aug. '82 640 00 31 Dec. '57 13 July
' .Jaes- ........... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 July '83 640 0 18 Sept.'45 20 Dc. '8

Griftur, William......... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 June '81 720 00 28 Sept.'53 29 Apr. '79
r1 ) Gilbert Wakefield. .. 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Sept.'81 720 00 21 Oct. '47 A u '78

ns> Albert
........... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Dec.7- 800 90 1 Ail 40 17 Sept.'

a"id BiY' iSS '........ Prob. 2nd cl. Ry. M. C'k1 1 July'84 600 00 28 July '40 10 July '82

la'e > Johu Thomas... ... Prob. 2nd cl. Ry. M. C'k 1 July '85 600 0 23 Sept50 30 Ar. 2
ale llaChrles .......... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 10 Feb. '81

lea Je'....-.....3rd class Ry. Mail Clerkj 26 June '82 520 00 24Mai. '52 26 June '82

c >eorge Michael... . 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 26 June '82 520 00 7 Sept.'60 26 June '72C1rke p

rancis Carlisle. 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 30 June '82 520 00 13 Mat'.'62 15 July '81
............. 3rd clas R. Mail Clerk 10 July '8210 July '8Litt8 Jnll. 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 25 May '83

ree a. . ........ 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 25 May '83 520 00 29 Oct.'62 25 May '8

e, Jrm... ........ 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 14 Jne '83 520 0 9 Feb. '42 2 Oct. '78

Jeloime..... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 15 Feu.'84 480 00 20 Oct. '60 15 FeU. '84
willi

lalJames..3rd class Riy. Mail Clerk 1 Aug. '8 4 480 00 15 Feb. '59 29 Juiy '84

l 1 liam........ 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 6 Sept.'84 480 00 2June'56 6 Sept. '84

(he ohn Thomas. 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Jan. '85 480 00 20 May '61 1 .Tai. '85
Af(.iv seph. t13rul class By. Mail Clerk 1 Feb. '85 480 00 10 Apr. '61 1 Feb. '85

Lo.-uiox Diviîsioç.

~ohrt illam . nsectrPreMsent40 Dae0f at o

er..Salary .M , 13 Jan. '39 1 ANov.
AswVsistant îîpectoî'. 1 J '81 1,450 00 13 Apr. '49 10 NoS. '68

bla'r, .. .... lst as clerk .. . 1 Nov.'76 1,300 00 12 Jan. '28 1 July '60
............. id class clcrk.........1 July '84 950 0 22 Dec. '48 7 Jule '72

lain. ,l dlass cerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 18 Oc.0'4 13 Jap. '72



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

LoNDoNe DIVIsiON--Continued.

Naie. Present lank.

H1-ampton. George. .......... 3rd class clerk.........

Matthews, Frederick William 3rd class clerk.........

Johnîson, Joseph............ 3rd cass clerk.........

McNeil, Robert............. Messenger.............

Purdoi, Percy ............ st class Ry. Mail Clerk

Rorison, Basil I)uiar 1). ... st class Ry. Mail Clerk

Wynnî, Johm.. ............. Tst class Ry. Mail Clerk

McWhiey.,Af rhur Gorlou. 1st class Rv. Mail ClerkI

Matthews. Williaiin......... lst class Ry. Mail Clerk

Wright. J1oshua Gsarrard. Tht class Ry. Mail Clerk

Cousins, Hugh............. Tst class Ry. Mail Clerk

Essex. Tiedore James...... lst claass Ry. Mail Clerk

Mitchell, William.......... 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

Yorick. Join............... Tst class Ry. Mail Clerk

Edgar, William............. 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

O'Meara, Timothy James. ... 2nd elass Ry. Mail Clerk

Wright, Richaid Pennefatheri2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Flynn, Joli............... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Mitchell, John ............. 2n1d class Ry. Mail Clerk

Gemmill, Francis Alexander. 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

MecLaren, James William.... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Doyle, James Joseph........ 2id class Ry. Mail Clerk

Tye, William Daniel ........ 2njd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Cousins, Walter ............ 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Rogers, Edward O'Brien. 2d class Ry. Mail Clerk

Elliott, James Lewis Gordon . 2nid class Ry. Mail Clerk

Seanlan. John Franscis . 2nd class RZy. Mail Clerk

Cleary, William Ambrose. 2nîd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Farrow, John Moses..2...... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Coulter, Archibald F ........ 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

McLean;. Duncan John...... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Date Present
thereof. Salary.

1 $ets.
1 Apr. '80 80000

1 Apr. '82 720 00

11 Apr. '83 480 00

15 Feb. '80 1 490 00

1 July '57 960 00

1 July '57 960 00

1 July '57 960 00

1 Oct. '65 960 00

1 Oct. '68 960 00

1 Oct. '69 960 00

1 Nov.'73 960 00

1 May '75 960 00

1 July '84 960 00

1 July '84 960 00

1 July '84 960 00

1 Aug.'74 800 00

1 Apr. '75 800 00

1 Apr. '76 800 00

1 Feb.'77 800 00

1 June '77 800 00

27 Mar. '78 720 00

1 Jan. '80 720 00

1 July'80 720 00

1 Aug. '81 72000

1 Nov.'81 720 00

2 June'82 640 00

1 July '80 720 00

1 Jan. '84 640 00

1 July '84 600 00

1 July '84 600 00

1 July'84 600 00

9j

A. 1SS6

Date of
Birth.

17 Nov.'46

11 Oct. '57

1 Apr. '54

15 Mar. '46

6 Sept.'27

19 July '34

5 Oct. '31

22 Dec. '37

25 Sept.'37

16 May'36

8 Feb. '37

18 Jan. '41

27 Dec. '51

14 May '48

7 May'47

17 July '48

16 May 'C4

4 June '51

10 Apr. '32

1 Apr. '46

4 Nov,'53

13June '52

5 Oct. '59

18 Apr. '57

29 Nov.'59

Sept.'42

17 Sept.'.49

4 Mar. '47

2 Dec.'61

6 Jan. '60

16 Aug.'63

Date of
First AP-
pointient.

1 Nov.

1 Aug. 75

16 Jan.

15 Feb. 80

15 Mar.

il Nov.

i Nov.

23 Dec.

15 Oct.

18 May

10 July

22 Sept.

24 Oct.

29 Feb.

13 Jan.

7 Apr.

21 Mar.

29 Dec.

21 Sept.

6 May

28 Jau.

16 Aug'

29 Oct. 71
10 July

20 Oct.

1 2 JU'80

4 June

12 Ja.

1 June -

23 mer.

23 ga'.

n=nnn"n---



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4S.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

LoNDoN DivisioN-Continued.

Name.

1 vWson, Joseph ............
k1.ott, Herbert............

land, William Henry.....

a4grain, Joseph Philip.....

William........

)'2)&illan, William Jenning.

ýYo1thwood, Alexander......

'leair, Coll McLean.......

ý01rig, George William.....

eleal, William Lewis.....

reoran, John. ............

Present Rank..

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Date
thereof.

1 July '84

1 Jan. '81

6 May '82

19 May '82

23 Mar. '83

1 Oct. '83

5 Nov. '83

24 Nov.'83

24 Nov.'83

21 Dec. '83

22 Apr. '84

Peet Date of
alry. Birth.

$ ets.
600 00 14 Jan. '64

520 00 Apr. '59

520 00 14 Feb. '62

520 00 16 Mar.'61

520 00 3 Feb. '65

480 00 31 May '48

480 00 25 Nov.'56

480 00 13 Mar. '59

480 00 24 Mar. '59

480 00 20 Oct. '63

480 00 17 Mar.'59

BARRIE DIVISION.

Y, Daniel............ Inspector ...........
4e Iderson, James.......... Asst. Inspector........

OrsYth, John.............. lst class clerk.........

Of1, George John......... 2nd class clerk ........

rd, James............... 3rd class clerk.........

ell, John............. 3rd class clerk.........

14s, Thomas Ross ......... Proby. 3rd class clerk..

arris, John............... Messenger.............

kearthy, Alexander....... Chief Ry. Mail Clerk...

4ýes, Patrick............. 1st class Ry. Ma'il Clerk
elly, Mathew Eyre........ 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

e, John Samuel ........ 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

i, Robert.......... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk
uennor, James ........... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

4 , Edward Joseph...... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Thomas............ 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

In, Thomas ............ 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

A. 1SSG

Date of
poirst Ap-
poîntmcult.

25 June

1 Jan.

21 Apr.

8 Mar.

23 Mar.

1 Oct.

5 Nov.

24 Nov.

24 Nov.

21 Dec.

22 Apr.

26 May'76

14 Dec. '77

1 July'76

1 Sept.'76

1 July'82

1 July '82

1 July '85

13Nov. '79

1 July '76

1 Nov. '79

1 Jan. '73

1 Aug. '74

1 Jan. '75

1 Feb. '81

1 Feb. '81

1 Mar. '81

1 Aug. '81

2,200 00

1,250 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

560 00

520 00

400 00

490 00

1,500 00

960 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

29 Nov.'35

14 Jan. '42

26 Mar.'36

20 Sept.'30

20 Aug. '44

10 Sept. '45

17 Mar. '64

14 Apr. '25

16 Dec. '26

1 May '30

10 May '42

18 July '51

22 Sept. '40

24 Dec.'42

6 Jan. '54

26 Sept. '41

28 Sept. '54

19 Apr. '54

16 Dec. '71

25 Mar. '58

1 Feb. '55

17 Apr. '80

8 Apr. '82

6 Apr. '85

13 Nov. '79

5 July '52

18 May '64

16 Jan. '71

- Oct. '71

8 July'73

11 Jan. '79

11 Jan. '79

11 Jan. '79

28 June '79



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

BARRIE DivisioN--Continued.

Date Present Date of rate of
Namîe. Present Rank. .thereof. Salary. Birth. Fist -lt.

Bennett, John Henry ....... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerkt

Dun, Thonas ........... ,. 2id class Ry. Mail Clerk

Moloney, Miehael........... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Stokes, William........... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Lagate, James .............. 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Cunningham, James David.. 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Pierson, Charles............ 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

McDonald, Lowther P. M... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Golden, John Joseph ........ 13rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Atkins, John James ........ .3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Duffy, Patrick Josepli....... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Leadley, William........... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Swan, William Henry ...... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerki

$ ets.
1 Aug. '81 720 00 1 June '57 28 June 79

1 Nov. '81 640 00 14 Aug. '43 29 Oct.

1 Aug. '82

1 July '83

10 Dec. '80

23 May '82

26 June '82

26 June '82

30 June '82

24 Nov. '83

24 Nov. '83

1 Dec. '84

1 Dec. '84

640 00

640 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

480 00

560 00

480 00

480 00

21 Oct. '57

7 June '44

1 Oct. '56

4 May '62

29 Mar.'54

26 Oct. '59

15 Nov. '55

29 Dec. '52

26 May '60

31 May '60

7 Feb. '58

KINGSTON DIVIsION.

Griffin, Gilbert Elliott ......

Jones, Allan................

Meagher, Jeremiah .........

Macarow, Philip Henry......

lopkirk, John Ewart.......

Strange, James Campbell....

Seobell, Frederick ........

Hayland, John..........

Ketcheson, Henry Freeman..

Walker, David James, jr....

Doller, Willet Jacob ........

Inspector ...........

Assistant Inspector....

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.. . ... . , .

3rd class clerk.........

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

1 July '80

14 Aug.'79

1 July'74

1 Nov. '81

1 July '82

- '82

I Oct. '81

24 Nov. '81

1 Dec.'84

31 Dec. '84

1 Feb. '85

2,400

1,250

1,200

1,040

1,150

560

720

520

480

480

480

20 Aug. '20

5 Aug. '47

14 Feb. '14

7 Jan. '58

26 Nov. '50

24 Sept. '62

10 June '48

28 Dec. '30

25 Oct. '62

25 Apr. '62

27 June '65

23 Jiune

29 Dec. 80

10 Dec. '80

23 May

26Jule ,

26 June 9

30 June s

24 No 8

10 Dec '7

1 Dec.

1 Dec. 4

1 Oct.

1 Sept. 9

1 Feb.

17 Mar.

8 Feb.

10 Dee'

22 Ag.9

24 NOV•

21 Aug.

31 Dec.

1 Feb.

OTTAwA DivisION.

French, Thomas Patrick.. Inspector ............. 15 Sept. '73 2,400 00 July'26 17 Sept.

Bolduc, Archelas..........ssistant Inspector.... Jan. '84 1,250 00 27 Nov. '58 8 Ma

A. 1S86



1î~

Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

OTTAwA Ivis ox--ontinued

Nae. Present k.esent Date of
Naie. resntl-ink. I Salary. Birth. Fiu3t Ap-

I Pomntment.

e ts.
'ieur, Charles Philip..... 1st class elerk......... 1 Jan. '84 1,300 00 1 8 Dec. '47 1 Mar. '74

OtloIey, Daniel......... 2nd class clerk ........ 1 July '84 950 00 22 Nov. '41 28 Mar. '71

9eOnlor, John Francis.. Proby. 2nd class clerk.. 1 July '85 une 24 Nov. '74

race, David Arthur........ 13d class elerk......... 21 July '84 1 400 00 26 Aug. '60 21 July'84

ofpson, James Donald ... 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Oct. '66 960 00 29 Aug.'33 28 Jan. '57

Edward............ 1st class Ey. Mail Clerkl 1 Apr. '76 960 00 12 Aug.'33 5 June '66

uIiham, William Frederick 1st class By. Mail Clerk 23 Jan. '82 960 00 28 July'44 17 Dec. '66

trell, George Taylor ...... lst class Ey. Mail Ulerk 1 Mai. '82 960 00 24 Oct.'44

4ede, Robert...........st clasa Iy. Mail 1 July '84 960 00 14 May'49 5 Jan. '71

Vrier, Joseph Alphonse . . d class 13y. Mail ClerkI 1 Mai. '79 720 00 9 Aug. '40 12 Feb. '79

gendre, Jean Baptiste Z... 2nd lass Ey. Mail <ierk 1 July '80 720 00 2 Dec. '38 23 Apr. '78

¼air, Adolphus.........2nd class By. Mail Clerk 23 Jan. '82 720 00 2 Feb. '40 9 Mai. '77
tgomey, Robert........ 21st class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Mar. '82 720 00 24 May'54 9 Feb. '80

l ClIarlesn..........2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Oct. '81 720 0 18 Ap. '48 22 Aug. '79

Philîp Aîstruther. . 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 June '83 760 00 18 June'49 25 Oct. '71

raili, Louis Charles A. . . 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Apr. '84 750 0 1 May '51 14 Aug. '74

tg Josep Bennett.... 12nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 July '84 640 00 15 Aug.'51 1 sept. 78
Charles............ .2nd class R y. Mail Clerki 1 July '84 640 0 9 Sept.'55 23 May '82

, Frederik Iloward.... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 2 June'84 600 0 2 Dec.'59 2June '84

,Loui a .. .dProationary 2nd Cl 1A .
lty. Mail Ulerk ... 11 Oct. '84 600 00 30 Oct. '57 1 Oct. '84

e Hsietor Patterson .... 3rd class Rty. Mail Clerk 6 Nov.83 520 00 24 Feb. '56 25 Jan. '53
Cato rl, Stwt.........3 2d class Ry. Mail Clerk 15 Feb. '84 480 00 2 Mar. '63 10 Jan. '84

Sth, John ............ 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 30 Ap . '84 480 00 8 Jply '29 22 Apr. '84

onillii Hnri-y... Probationarv 3d class
Ry. Mail Clerk ..... 1 Dct. '84 480 00 5 Nov.'59 9 Ar. '84

ohn, eor ......... .. 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 4 Dec. '84 480 0 12 May '60 4 Dcc. '84
ton, S aJohn James ........ 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Jan. '85 480 00 6 Mar. '60 1 Jan. '85
tly, John Josep......... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Jair. '85 480 00 8 May '63. 1 Jai. '85

SAlexander Hugh J.. 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Jain. '85 480 00 17 Nov.'62 1 Jan. '85
Wtheriiamisny...... Probationary 3rd class

Ry. Mail Clerk...... Dune '85 480 00 29 Jai. '59 2 June '85



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

BELLEVILLE PosT OFFICE.

Naime. Present Rank. Date Preseltt h e r o f . a a y

$cet
:Neaclam, James Hubbard... Postmaster ........... 30 June'82 1,400 00

Reid, James................ Assistant Postmaster.. . 30 June '82 1,100 00

Duncan, ThomasP............ Prolationay 2nd class
clerk.............. 1 Jan. '85 900 00

Gilleni, Alfred ........... 3rd class clerk......... - '82 520 00

Lazier, Samuel Wilmot . 3rd class clerk........ 23 June'84 440 00

Walker, William Blaind . .3rd class clerk......... 1 July '84 440 00

Newbery, Isabella Mary.. . .. 3 a < lerk.. .... ... 8 Sept.'84 400 00

Embury, William James .... 3rd cla clerk......... 1 Dec.'84 400 00

IL AMILToN Po IST OFFICE.

'ase, loratio Nelson ....... Postiaster............ 17 N

Colbeck, Henry ............ Assistant Postmaster... 1 N

Eager, Henry Abram ....... 1st class clerk......... 1 M

Buîrnîs, Tiomas............. 2nd class clerk., ....... 1 Ji

Bull, George Harcourt ...... 2nd class clerk......... .1 Ja

Ross, George................ 2nd class clerk., ....... 1 Ja

Crisp, Alfred Clarles........ 3rd class clerk......... 1 Ji

Mathews, John Sutherland. 3rd class clerk......... 1 Ji

Dunnett, Edward Howard... 3rd class clerk......... 1 J

Barber, Benjamin Frankin 3rd class clerk......... 1 J

Ecclestone, William Robert.. 3rd class clerk......... -

Dinsse, Henry.............. 3rd class clerk......... -

Smith, William ............ 3rd class clerk......... -

O'Donnell, Patrick Joseph... 3rd class clerk. . -

Fitzgerald, Robert Michael. 3rd class clerk......... -

Flynn, William............ 3rd class clerk ......... -

Campbell, Donald Denooni. .. 3rd class clerk ......... -

Waterman, Walter Lincoln.. 3rd class clerk......... -

Hill, Harry Frederic........ 3rd class clerk.........

Webber, John Albert. ...... 3rd class clerk......... -

ov.'74

ov.'69

ar. '82

uly '71

n. '85

n. '85

uly '79

uly '79

uly '79

ulv '79

'82

- '82

- '82
-. '82

- '82

- '82

'82

- '82

-'82

-'82

2,400 00

1,800 00,

1,300 00

1,200 o0

900 00

900 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

680 00

680 00

680 00

680 00

600 00

600 00

560 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

Date of
Birth.

18 Nov.'07

4 May'25

28 Mar. '61

10 May '59

25 Nov.'62

28 Junie'63

14 Nov.'54

0 6 A pr.'56

11 Nov.'11

24 Oct. '24

1 Apr. '32

21 Aug.'40

8 May '51

21 Feb. '53

17 Jan. '55

3Aug. '51

9 Jan. '55

6 Sept.'43

7 Dec.'56

4 Nov.'35

31 Jan. '59

19 Mar. '35

27 Aug. '57

3 Juine '56

6 Nov. '57

13 July '62

11 Aug. '62

10 Dec. '62

A. 1886

Date (If
First AP

pointimellt*

30 June

30 Junie

30 June

28 Junie

23 Nov.

15 Jan.

8 Sept.

25 Oct.

17 Nov.

1 sept.

1 Jal.

12 MeNar. 64
'71

1 Feb.

14 Juue

17 Mar.

12 Juie

22 July 74

9 Oct.

10 7ay

10 Oct. '6

7 May

3 Mfty

13 Mly

22 JuIne

24 Ja"

12 APr.

24 Oct.



Victoria

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

HAMILTON PoSr OFF I(E-Conitiiiued.

Naine.

eiano, Henry Edward J...

4 , Charles..............

4tty, Oliver..............

rden, Joseph Ralph ......

kay, Jane Emily Blanche

Cloch, John Oliver.....

on, Robert James.......

ePhy, John...........

Present Rank. tef.

3rd class clerk......... - '82

3rd class clerk......... 21 Sept.'83

3rd class clerk........ 23 Jan. '83

3rd class clerk ..... J... 15 Feb. '84

3rd class clerk........ 23 Dec. '84

3rd class clerk......... 10 Mar.'85

3rd class clerk.........

Supt. Letter Carrier ....
4 stin, Thomas Bernard S.. Letter

John................. Letter

Inside, John Henry...... Letter

, William George..... Letter

es, Henry Mansfield.... Letter

Ti1g, Charles Walter W. Letter

i , Joseph............. Letter

4l4er, John............ Letter

8tton, Robert............ Letter

William............ Letter
lhes John Ezekiel Smith.. Letter

ie, William............ Letter

e7, Charles ............ Letter

re, David Cook........ Letter

Y, Thomas 'Henry...... Letter

% , Andrew............ Letter

, William........... Letter

vies, William Henry...... Letter

m il ............... Letter

> John Webster........ Letter

>ekle, Charles Harris...... Letter

gate, George.......... Letter

Meredith.......... Letter

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier .........

Carrier.........

Carrier..........

Carrier..........

Carrier.........

Carrier..........

Carrier........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier .........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

0 Mar. '84

1 Apr. '75

10 May '75

10 May '75

10 May '75

10 May '75

20 Oct. '75

3 Nov.'75

14Nov.'76

17 Jan. '78

4 July '78

20 Jan. '80

12Mar. '80

20 Mar.'80

3 Feb. '81

24Aug.'81

31 Aug.'81

4 May '82

28June '82

28 June '82

28 June'82

21 Sept.'83

26 Sept.'83

4 Dec. '83

4 Dec. '83

i

Date of Date of
Birth. Firt Ap-pointiiielt.

Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

1

Present
Salary.

$ cts.
520 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

460 00

470 00

470 00

430 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

7 June '61

5 Dec. '48

3 Mar.'67

30 Oct. '62

5 Sept.'65

15 Dec. '67

9 Dec. '65

30 Nov.'58

15Nov.'55

30 Nov.'32

18 Aug. '58

13 Sept.'32

25 Oct. '22

16 Oct. '56

11 Mar. '49

24 Dec.'30

25 Oct. '32

20 Sept.'51

12 June'59

Il Dec.'36

11 Apr. '61

25 Oct. '56

29 May '56

26 Feb.'45

7 Apr. '63

5 Oct. '55

28 July '59

14 Sept.'53

25 June '60

20 June '63

30 Aug. '37

27 Mar. '82

19 Sept. '83

6 Nov. '83

Il Feb. '84

23 Dec. '84

10 Mar. '85

10 Mar. '85

10 May '75

10 May '75

10 May '75

10 May '75

10 May '75

20 Oct. '75

3 Nov. '75

14 Nov. '76

17 Jan. '78

4 July '78

20 Jan. '80

12 Mar. '80

20 Mar. '80

3 Feb. '81

24 Aug. '81

31 Aug. '81

4 May '82

28 June '82

28 Junîe '82

28 June '82

21 Sept. '83

26 Sept. '83

29 Nov. '83

4 Dec. '83



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

HAMILTON PosT OFFIcE-Continued.

Date o
INane. Preset alùik. ~Date Present Date of Fii-t APthereof. Salary. Birth. { aointmeut.

Set.
Sevier, Edward........... Letter Carrier......... 7 Jan. '84 390 00 21 Aug.'44 31 Dec.

Mundy, Willian Autipas .... Letter Carrier..... ... 10 Mar.'84 390 00 19 Nov.'52 4 Mar.

Walsh, David.............. Messeiger............. 1 Oct. '75 540 00 15 Aug.'41 1 Oct.

KINoSTON POST OFFICE.

Shannon, James............ Postmaster............ 6 Jan. '80 1,800 00 2June'29 6 Jan.

Shannon, William ......... Assistant Postmaster... 21 Jan. '70 1,400 00 23 Feb.'24 14 Sept,

Kelly, John....... ........ 1st class clerk.......... 1 Mar.'82 1,300 00 29 Apr.'29 17 Jlie

Burns, Robert Taylor ...... 2nd class clerk.........1 July '73 0

Strachan, John George ...... 3rd class clerk ........ 23 Dec.'78 800 00 13 Nov.'32 6 Feb.

Smyth, William Stuart. .... 3rd class clerk......... 4 Sept.'80 800 00 11 June54 Il Aug.

McBride, James............ 3rd class clerk......... - '82 600 00 23 May'51 26 Dec.

Renton, John Lockhart. .... 3rd class clerk......... - '82 560 0 31 oct. '56 12 NO

Pense, James Phillips.. ... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Jan. '80 680 00 31 Dec. '50 20 Sept.

Voigt, Frederick Charles. ... 3rd class clerk......... - '82 520 O0 18 Apr. '60 16 Dec.

McDonald, Frank.......... 3rd class clerk.......,. - Dec. '83 800 00 17 Apr. '36 27 Mar-

D'Arcy, Robert Jamas ...... 3rd class clerk......... 11 Apr. '75 440 00 16 May '62 19 Apr.

Moore, Thomas............. 3rd class clerk......... 12 Feb. '85 400 O0 6De,.'56 12Feb.

Miller, Albert Henry........ Letter Carrier......... 28 Dec. '78 510 O0 12 Sept.'51 28 Per.

Collins, John............ Letter Carrier......... 1 Jan. '80 470 00 8 Dec. '47 24 Mar.

Lewers, Robert............. Letter Carrier......... 28 June'82 390 00 26 Feb.'47 28 Juie

O'Reilly, William James.. Letter Carrier......... 1 Dec. '84 360 O0 24 Aug.'65 1 Dec.

Howland, Patrick Joseph.... Letter Carrier......... 1 Dec. '84 360 O0 18 Oct. '65 1 Dec,

Dunbar, H ry............ Messeger ............ 18 Feb. '71 540 00 15 Apr. '21 18 Feb.

L(xoxý,DN POSTr OFI.'î

Dawson, RihrJoseph C'.. . Postustrr. .......... 1 June '81 2,200 00 3 Oct. '35 13 JuY

Sharma, John Denis.. . Assistant Postmastr... 1 J8une '81 1,600 00 29 Dec. '32 6 Feb.

Dalton, Henry Dixo....st clas clerk.........1 Mar. '82 1,300 28 Apr. '43 1 Aug.

unter, Johl.............2l clss clerk ......... 1 July '79 1,170 00 19 Oct. '25 8 Aug

96



Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

LONDON POST OFFICE-Continued.

Nam. reen Jaik. Date Present Date of Daîte of
Namre. Present Rank. t-re . P D A

pointment.

Sets.
atthews, Richard Fitzgerald 2nd class clerk. ........ 1 July '79 1,170 00 1 Nov.'32 26 Dec. '66

2nd class clerk......... - '82 900 00 29 Sept.'55 26 Feb. '8

ard, John ............... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 7 Oct. '54 7 June '72

on, Alfred Edwin. . ..... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 15 Dec. '38 3 June '74

%haily, Charles James N. ... 3rd class clerk .... .... - '82 800 00 20 Dec. '19 13 Jan. '72

Nei, Neil............ 3rd class clerk......... 1 Apr. '82 720 00 20 Oct. '49 1 Apr. '78

4wless, Lawrence......... 3rd class clerk........ - '82 600 00 4 Sept.'47 26 May '79

el&4ler, Frederick Charles.. 3rd class clerk......... - '82 520 00 7 Sept.'55 Il May '81
olls, William .......... 3rd class clerk.........- '82 600 00 4 Mar. '52 13 June '79

4 er, William Henry .... 3rd class elerk ........- '82 520 00 4 Nov.'60 8 Aug. '81

i Robert Angus........,3rd class clerk........- '82 520 00 30 Mar. '60 6 Feb. '82

eara John............. 3rd class clerk........ - '82 520 00 22 Dec.' 64 6 Feb. '83

7, James Patrick...... 3rd class clerk......... 26 Sept.'83 440 00 Il May '66 26 Sept. '83

ther, Arthur.......... 3rd class clerk.. ....... 1 Jan. '84 440 00 17 Apr. '59 11 Apr. '82

b n'IlIey, Francis Joseph... 3rd class clerk..... ... 27 Sept.'84 400 00 24 Oct. '59 1 Sept. '84

lal, James Henry...... Prob. 3rd class clerk... 1 July '85 400 00 14 Mar. '63 1 July '85

4ytead, Martin........... Supt. Letter Carrier.... 2 Oct. '84 670 00 9 Aug. '53 3 Feb. '80

edy, John ........... Letter Carrier......... 19Apr. '76 600 00 25 Dec. '49 19 Apr. '76

,..............Letter Carrier........ 19 Apr. '76 600 00 24 June'29 19 Apr. '76
ýttie Jhohn Nasmyth...... Letter Carrier...... ... 19 Apr.'76 600 00 4 Jan. '36 19 Apr. '76

George. ... . ...... Letter Carrier... .... .19 Apr. '76 600 00 21 Oct. '55 19 Apr. '76

John Alexander. .. Letter Carrier..... .... 6 Mar. '77 600 00 20 Sept. 149 6 Mar. '77

Goodison ........... Letter Carrier......... 1 Sept.'77 600 .00 12 July '53 1 Sept. '77

Ott William Stephen..... Letter Carrier.......... 1 Feb. '80 500 00 20 Aug. '46 1 Feb. '80

% joseph.............. Letter Carrier......... 3 Feb. '80 470 00 18 Nov.'58 3 Feb. '80

ha Frederick W .. Letter Carrier....... .. 1 Feb. '81 430 00 9 Jan. '56 1 Feb. '81

William Patrick..... Letter Carrier......... 12 May '81 420 00 6 Dec. '54 12 May '81

Thomas........... Letter Carrier.......... 26 June '82 890 00 23 Nov.'62 26 June '82

ercy............. Letter Carrier.......... 26June'82 390 00 17 Apr. '57 26 June '82

Tlt oas William... Letter Carrier.......... 26 June'82 390 00 19 Aug.'51 26 June '82

john, Jr........... Letter Carrier.......... 26 June '82 390 00 6 May '54 26 Juine '82

48-7 97l



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4S.) A. 1SS6

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

LoNDON POST OFFICE-Continued.

Date of Date of
Present Rank. thereof. Salary. Birth.

$ ts
Phair, Thomas....... ...... Letter Carrier......... 26 June'82 390 00 10 Nov.'57 26 'June

Pontey, Francis............ Letter Carrier.........26Juue'82 390 00 29 Oct. '58 26 June

Walsh, Robert....... ...... Letter Carrier......... 21 Sept.'83 390 00 27 Mar. '58 26 July

Maitland, Malcolm John. .... Letter Carrier......... 2 May '84 390 00 17 Nov.'62 29 Mar-

Cushing, John.............. Letter Carrier......... 9 Aug.'84 360 00 13 Apr. '62 2 JuUe

Southcott, William Frederick Letter Carrier......... 1 Sept.'84 360 00 9 Feb. '60 1 Sept.

Cushing, James Joseph...... Letter Carrier......... 1 Apr. '85 360 00 21 Dec. '54 1 Apty

Nicholson, James ......... Letter Carrier......... 1 July '85 360 00 20 July'55 1 JUIY

Kern, John Wesley........ Box Collector......... 21 Dec. '74 600 00 7 Oct. '21 21 Dec.

Wright, Richard............ Box Collector......... 3 Feb. '80 470 00 7 Sept.32 3 Feb.

O'Meara, Martin Messenger............1 Apr. '66 590 00 2 Dec. '36 1 Apr.

OTTAWA POST OFFICE.

Gouin, James Alfred . I.Postmaster............ 3 Feb. '85 2,000 00 19 Mar. '35 3 Feb.

Hawken, Frank..........Assistant Postmaster... 20 Feb. '73 1,800 2 4 Nov.'47 1 July

French, Fleming .......... st cas clerk.........1 Nov.'82 1,300 00 8 Nov.'39 1 APr

Baes, Edward Bruce... 2d class clerk.........1 Jan. '78 1,200 00 12 Sept. '49 2 Jul

McDermott, Enmett S. .2nd class clerk........31 July '79 990 00 26 Dec. '50 5 Apr,

O'Connor, Edward John.... 2nd class clerk.........1 July3'79 1,170 00 18 Nov. '40 16 M'

Shaw, Charles............2nd class clerk...... 1 Jan. '82 1,050 00 18 Oct. '29 14 Feb.

Pennock, William Henry Proby. 2nd clas clerk.. 1 July'85 800 00 29 Nov.'59 30 e.

Postoa, James Glover...... 3rd clas clerk......... 1 Nov.'76 800 00 8 July '29 2 Mpr

Gordon, Daniel Baillie...... class clerk .......... July '79 800 00 7 JulyFe53

Mercer, William Otterbur.. 13rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 30 Nov. '56 7

Bmith, Albert Alexander 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 25 May '57 26 APr'

Wood, Ebirt B urs....... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July'79 800 00 21Aug. '56

O'Nein, Hugh ........... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 12Aug. '57 13 -Pr'

Whitty, Moses........... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July 81 760 00 15 Dec. '55 ' 82

artlett, John Henry........ 3rd class clerk.........7 .' 640 00 9Ag. '36 7 o 0v.

Landria, Eugène........ 3rd class clerk......... 14 Jan. '82 520 00 20 Apr. '63 4

98



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

OTTAWA POST OFFIcE-Continued

Name. Present Rank.

Poole, Harry ............... 3rd class clerk.........

Bradbury, Samuel........ 3rd class clerk.........

Carroll, Henry ............. 3rd class clerk.........

Macdonald, Charles William. 3rd class clerk.........

Yorke, Alexander........... 3rd class clerk.........

Chevrier, Eugène Louis.... 3rd class clerk.........

McQueen, George Robert .... 3rd class clerk.........

(Garrett, Lenox............. 3rd class clerk.........

Gallup, Asa Henry.......... 3rd class clerk.........

Noël, Louis Elizé ........... 3rd class clerk.........

Matthewman, Ernest H.. 3rd class clerk........

Brophy, William Martin. ... 3rd class clerk.........

Myers, Frederick Louis... 3rd class clerk.........

Gemmill, William Henry M. 3rd class clerk.........

Catellier, George. ......... Proby. 3rd class clerk..

Warwicker, Frederick Spurge Supt. Letter Carrier...

Brown, John............... Letter Carrier.........

Larue, Philias.............. Letter

Dolan, Michael ............. Letter

Robert, Pierre .............. Letter

Dupuis, Adolphe........... Letter

George, Frederick........... Letter

Cuddie, Thomas............ 'Letter

Lamb, William............. Letter

Egan, Michael James....... iLetter

Favreau, Joseph Napoleon ... Letter

Larne, Josepli Napoleon.....'Letter

Bédard, Joseph Théodule.... Letter

Fagan, Michael............. Letter

Barrow, John .............. Letter

Marion, Nelson............. Letter

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier .........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier... ... ...

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Date Present Date Of' Date of

thereof. Sa, ry. Birth. Fîrst Al-

pointment.

$ cts.
12 Jan. '82 680 00 17 Apr. '53 26 Apr. '75

23 May '82 520 00 11 Aug. '64 18 Feb. '82

23 May '82 640 00 20 Feb. '37 2 June '77

1 Dec. '83 600 00 8 Sept.'40 20 May '78

29 May'85 720 00 24 June'53 27 Feb. '82

6 Feb. '83

22 Feb. '83

20 May '84

24 Nov.'83

15 Feb. '84

24 Mar. '84

1 May '85

6 Sept.'84

16 Feb. '85

15 June '85

18 Nov.'80

8 Nov. '80

15 July '74

10 July '76

17 July '76

3 June'78

7 Oct. '78

9 June'80

1 Jan. '82

29 Jan. '82

28 Feb.'82

21 Sept.'83

1 Jan. '84

15 Feb.'84

8 May '84

6 Sept.'84

9
48 -4

480 00

480 00

540 00

440 00

440 00

440 00

790 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

800 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

460 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

360 00

16 Jan. '60

16 Dec. '58

21 Mar. '62

27 Mar. '66

30 Apr. '63

8 Oct. '64

10 May '56

9 Aug.'66

25 Nov.'66

24 Mar.'66

18 May '46

8 Apr. '37

25 Mar. '53

24 June '39

25 Oct. '55

5 Sept.'44

5 Feb. '52

28 July '56

22 Nov. '58

23 Dec.'62

10 Oct. '54

24 Oct. '64

16 Oct. '64

29 Sept.'63

2 Dec. '50

26 June'64

6 Feb.

22 Feb.

20 May

24 Nov.

24 Jan.

5 Mar.

27 May

19 Aug.

16 Feb.

13 June

19 Apr.

Oct.

21 Nov.

10 July

17 July

3 June

7 Oct.

10 May

1 Dec.

19 Dec.

28 Feb.

21 Mar.

1 Dec.

11 Feb.

7 May

1 Aug.

A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4S.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

OTTAwA POST OFFICE-Continued.

Name. Present Rank. Date
thereof.

Pegg, Alfred............... Letter Carrier..........

Duggan, Hugh Henry...... Letter Carrier .........

Darcey, William............ Box Collector..........

Goodwin, William........ Box Collector.......

Duggan, Henry............ Messencrer............

1 Oct. '84

1 Dec. '84

4 Jan. '75

26 Jan. '75

16 Apr.'75

Present
Salary.

$ ets.
360 00

360 00

600 00

600 00

540 00

ate of 1Date of
D First APBirth. pointmet

3 Apr. '63 22 Sept.

16 Aug.'63 31 Oct.

19 Nov. '39 4 Jan.

24 Apr. '47 8 Jan.

16 Mar. '38 16 Apr.

ToorNro PosT OFFICE.

Pattesoni, Thomas Charles. . . Postmaste .............

Carruthers, John. .......... Assistant Postnaster..

Davis, John Henry......... Ist class clerk.........

Cooper. Alfred. ........... st class clerk.........

Moersehfelder, Jacob. ........ 1,st class clerk .........

Corke, Alfred............... 1st class clerk .........

Thompson,Archibald Graham 1st class clerk.........

Harstonie. Archibald........ 2nd class clerk.........

Falkiner, lenry Frederick. . 2nd class clerk.........

Londen. William........... 2nd class clerk.........

Armstrong, Bartholomew M. 2nd class clerk.........

Monaghan, John......... 2nd class clerk.........

Langley, Benjamin ......... '2nd class clerk.........

Bascomii, Benjamin.......... 2nd class clerk ........

Chadd, Richard Edwin.....2nd class clerk ........

Beatty, Alexander.......... 2nd class clerk ........

Riddell, Robert William . ... 2nd class clerk ........

Hassard, Richard ........... 2nd class clerk.

Middleton, Alexander T. M.. 2nd class clerk ........

Macpherson, Williai ..... 3rd class clerk.........

Gorman, James Alphonse.... 3rd class clerk.........

Curran, Alfred ........... 3rd class clerk.........

Douglas, William Henry. 3rd class clerk..

12 Feb. '79

1 Feb. '74

I Jan. '71

1 Feb. '75

1 Feb. '75

1 Sept.'79

1 Jan. '85

1 Jan. '73

1 Jan. '75

1 July '79

1 July '79

1 July '79

1 July '79

1 July '79

1 July '79

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 July '85

1 July '79

1 July '79

1 July '79

1 July '79

100

3,000 00

2,000 00

1,400 00

1,:200 00

1,400 00

1,200 00

1.200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,170 00

1,170 00

1,170 00

1,170 00

1,170 00

1,170 00

950 00

950 00

950 00

900 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

et. '36 12 Feb.

12 Nov. '31 7 May

18 June '31 7 MaY

14 May '34 il June

28 Feb. '46 13 Jau.

20 Mar. '25 1 Apr.

16 Aug.'53 12 Feb.

- 30 30 M&ar.

13 Jan. '34 20 Mar.

4 Dec. '36 12 No'

31 Mar. '49 SNo '

15 A pr. '30 12 No•

31 Jan. '35 22 Dec.

17 Jan. '53 1 3 Ja

31 Dec. '44 29 0.

24 July '42 6 Dec

24 Jan. '54 10 Feb.

15 Mar. '58 2 J

17 Aug. '53 7

17 Oct. '48 10

6 Mar. '49 16AI'

14 Sept. '57 1 6M

24 May '51 7

A. iSS6



49Vyietoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. ISSG

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

ToRONTo POsT CFFICE-Continued.

Date Prescrit Date o aeo

Name. Presenit Rank. thateof.Nai.PrsD Rn. thereof. Salatry. irth. F!rst Ap-
poinillent.

1 inb ..ar, John ............. .3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 23Dtc.' 48 29 Dec. '74

llel' lery Sherrard. . rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 25 jari. '56 1 Jan. 'î5

James.. .... ... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '9 800 00 15 Nov. '37 1 '9gî 5
John Hugh .......... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Jan. '82 800 00 13 July '49 1 Jan. '82

l r', Iieury........... 3rd class clerk......... 11 Jan. '82 720 00 29 Jan. '37 il Jan. '82

William ......... 3rd class.clerk......... 20 Nov.'76 680 00 29 Nov. '52 20 Nov. '76

% > Robert-.......... 3rd class clerk... .Mar. ' Dec.

,och Amyot ...... 3rd class clerk......... .- '82 1 560 00 26 Auu '63 9 Oct. '79

eorge Arthur .. .'. . 3rd82 520 00 2 Apr. '55 23 Oct. '79

ichael Edward .... 3rd class clerk...... Sept. '62 8 Sept. '80
Wiliam Langley...... 3rd class clerk......... .-- '82 520 00 21 May '60 16 July '81

osWp eph ............ 3rd class clerk..........- '82 520 00 14 Jan. '63 29 Nov. '81

p illiam John...... 3rd class clerk......... '82 520 00 29 Sept. '64 26 Dec. '81

seph Robert....... r3rd class clerk ...... '... - 82 520 00 22 Mai. '62 3 Ap'. '82

.as .............. 3rd class clerk......... - '82 520 00 6 Apr. '61 12 Aug. '81
Albert Edward...... 3rd class clerk......... - '82 520 00 9 Jan. '54 23 May '82
jp es Albert D ... 3rd class clerk......... 6 Feb. '83 480 00 31 Jan. '64 24 Jan. '83

1 '&.ur Albert........ 3rd class clerk......... 5 Apr. '83 480 00 6 Nov. '59 15 Sept. '82
> illi
Gr am Edward. ... 3rd class clerk......... 5 Apr. '83 480 00 Il Aug. '63 12 Sept. '82

James.........3rd class clerk ......... 1 July '83 480 00 1 Sept. '61 6 Oct. '82
e John Alexander 3rd class clerk ......... 1 July '83 480 00 16 July '64 19 Feb. '83

11urdoch........ 3rd class clerk ......... 4 Sept. '83 440 00 3 Oct. '55 30 «Au,. '83

Arth. ............ 3rd class clerk......... 4 Sept. '83 440 00 28 May '63 1 Sept. '83
am........... 3rd class clerk ......... 4 Sept. '83 440 00 17 Apr. '52 3 Sept. '83

't ichard Alfred .... 3rd class clerk ......... 21 Sept. '83 440 00 21 Oct. '64 18 Apr. '83
'William........... 3rd class clerk......... 21 Sept. '83 440 00 12 Ju]y '60 4 June'83

th > Arhiald. 3rd class clerk......... 21 Sept. '83 670 00 7 May '50 3 Oct. '75

t ames. . ...... 3rd class clerk ......... 21 Sept. '83 440 00 5 Feb. '52 21 Sept. '83

James Kennedy.. 3rd class clerk......... 26 Sept. '83 440 00 28 Oct. '49 1 Sept. '83
> .chrd. 3rd class clerk......... 1 Feb. '84 800 00 27 Aug. '36 1 Jan. '72

%esoervil .. 3rd class clerk......... 1 Jan. '84 440 00 19 May '53 16 July '83

101



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEIAITMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

To ioæerro Post OFFI(C E-Contilnued.

Name.

Smuith, Charles Edmunid .... 3rd ia clerk.........

Durham, Robert Franucis.... 3rd class (lerk.........

Dwyer, Henry Alexander.... 3rd cass clerk.........

Briggs, James Robert ....... 3rd class clerk.........

Sparks, Walter.... . .. . 3rd class cehrk .........

Spencer, Edward ........... 3rd class clerk..........

McCandIlessu, Thomas Ilolnes 3rd class clerk..,.....

Hynes, William Albert . 3rd class clerk.........

Patterson, Thomas... .... .3rd class clerk.........

Gill, Thomas............ 3rd class clerk. .

Whiteside, James Arthur . Proby. 3rd class clerk.

Clode, John.............. Letter Carrier .........

Foster, William........... Letter Carrier .........

Packham, Alfred ........... Letter Carrier .........

Reeves, Charles ............ Letter Carrier .........

Kenuy, William. ........... Letter Carrier .........

Watkinis, John Lloyd....... Letter Carrier .........

Barnes, James........... Letter Carrier .........

Cofley, Michael ............ Letter Carrier .........

Curley, Thomas............ Letter Carrier.........

Weatherbee, Joseph Howe .. Letter Carrier .........

Yates, George .............. Letter Carrier .........

Williams, Joseph. . ......... Letter Carrier .........

Stewart, John,............. Letter Carrier .........

Sargent, William Patriek..Letter Carrier .........

Stoddart, James............ Letter Carrier .........

Sullivan, Michael........... Letter Carrier .........

Moore, Charles Northwood .. Letter Carrier .........

Culroî s, Charles............ Letter Carrier ..........

Cuthbertson, James Radeliffe Letter Carrier .........

Murphy, Edward........... iLetter Carrier..........

19

22

22

30

.30

1

21

21

1I

1

4

Apr. '84 44

Apr. '84 000

Apr. '84 440 00

Apr. '84 44000

Apr. '84 440 00

July '84 440 00

Oct. '84 40000

Oct. '84 400 00

Feb. '85 400 00

Feb. '85 400 00

Julie '85 I400 00

4 Dec. '68

19 June '72

4 Feb. '74

17 Dec. '74

17 Dec. '74

17 Dec. '74

15 Feb. '75

15 Feb. '75

15Feb. '75

15 Feb. '75

15 Feb. '75

18 May '75

2 Sept. '76

1 July '76

9 Aug. '76

10 Feb. '77

16 July '77

28 Feb. '78

1OJune '78

16 May '79

102

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

500 00

A. 1886

8 Dec. '53

17 Apr. '63

21 Sept. '64

26 Feb. '47

8 Apr. '63

3 Dec. '63

24 Feb. '58

4 July '66

24 Dec. '50

Il Nov. '56

6 Dec. '66

15 Feb. '23

3 Apr. '37

26 Aug. '49

24 July '49

8 Dec. '34

29 July '31

14 July '29

15 June '49

21 Dec. '28

27 June '42

7 Aug.'35

14 Feb. '50

26 Apr. '41

20 May '42

29 Jan. '48

16 Mar. '48

5 Jan. '42

21 Sept. '42

6 Sept. '48

22 Feb. '56

19 Apr.

11 Sept.

11 Apr.?8

4 June

12 Dec.

30 Apr.

21 Oct.

21 Oct.

30 Dec.

8 Feb.

4 Jo e8 5

4 Dec'

19 J , Ie

24 Feb.

17 Feb.

17 Oct'

17 De'*

15 Fel'

15 Fe '

15 Feb

1 6 y
15 Feb

15

18

11
9 ~. 1

10

16

28

10~



4 9 ictria.

POST OFFICE DEPIARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

TouoNTo PoST OFFICE-Continued.

Name.

SIomias........... Letter
Marks John. ........ Letter

John............. Letter

re Thomas............. Letter

,obert........... Letter
aes»l Uobert........... Letter

............... Letter

3o lo ............. Letter

ess, John ......... Letter

tobert ............. Letter

larm.......... Letter

1 er' ihard Beeel . . Letter

' David..-.......Letter

Part' Robert ............ Letter

liamâ Stewart .... Letter

lO1 1)Rbert Calvinl W. .. Letter

Robet........... Letter

t' Charles · ·....... Letter
S . ·...... ... Letter

eury ... . . . . . . . . . .  Letter

'Yroa llaudolpl.. .. Letter

lfred ienri .. Letter1Irederic
A1er ............ Letter

t ).ohn ............ Letter

S harle dward...... Letter
Sl illia.Henry.. Letter

ollo()e 1llm Robert. . Letter

eid orge .......... Letter

.............. Letter

.... Letter

Presenit lank.

Carrier..........

Carrier ..........
Carrier.. . .

Carrier.. . .

Carrier.... .

Carrier ..........carriel..........

Carrier.........

CariliCarrieri.. .... .. ..
Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier .........

Carrier.. . . . . .

Callier .........

Carrier .........

Carrier .........

Carrier .........

Carrier ...

Carrier .......

Carrier .........

Carrier.........Carrier.....

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier........
Carrier....

Carrier.....

A. 1SS

Date
thereof.

10 Oct. '79

22 Dec.'79

22 Dec. '79

6 Jan. '80

10 Jan. '80

12Mar. '0

19Apr. '80

22 Nov. 780

15 Dec. '80

24 Dec. '80

1 Mar. '81

1 Mar. '81

6 Feb. '82

22 Mar. '82

15 Apr.'82

12 May '82

23 May'82

28 May '82

28 June '82

27 Mar. '83

5 Apr.'83

5 Apr. '83

4Sept.'83

21 Sept.'83

21 Sept.'83

10 Mar.'84

24 Mar. '84

19 Apr. '84

30 Apr. '84

30 Apr. '84

15 May,84

Present
Salary.

e cts.

470 00

510 00

470 00

470 00

470 00

470 00

460 00

430 00

430 00

430 00

430 00

430 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

Date of
Birth.

16 Mar. '57

24 June '34

23 Mar.'54

12 Dec. '53

13 Sept.'53

12 July '48

17 Mar.'53

1 Feb. '58

2 Feb. '54

2 Dec. '59

31 Dec.'54

14 Feb. '60

15 Sept.'61

15 July '63

25 July '59

2 Nov.'57

25 Sept.'59

14 May '63

3 Sept.'61

29 Aug.'64

4 Aug. '60

27 Apr. '55

24 Sept.'63

14 Apr. '65

8 Feb.'64

5 Mar.'57

6 Nov.'55

10 May '63

17 Oct. '54

7 Aug.'56

4 July'54

Date of
First Ap-

pointment.

10 Oct. '79

9 Feb. '79

22 Dec. '79

6 Jan. '80

10 Jan. '80

12 Mar. '80

19 Apr. '80

22 Nov. '80

15 Dec. '80

10 Feb. '80

4 Feb. '81

14 Feb. '81

6 Feb. '82

22 Mar. '82

15 Apr. '82

12 May '82

23 May '82

23 May '82

28 June '82

27 Mar. '83

19 Mar. '83

19 Mar. '83

4 Sept. '83

14 Sept. '82

4 Juie '83

7 Mar. '84

7 Mar. '84

27 Mar. '84

17 Sept. '83

17 Sept. '83

15 May '84

Sessional Papers (No. 4S.)



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

TORoNTO POST OFFICE-Continued.

Name. Present RUai)k. Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Booth, George.............. Letter Carrier......... 21 June '84 390 00
Thompson, Charles... . Letter Carrier.. 10 Aug.'84

Platt, William James ....... Letter Carrier ......... 10 Aug.'84 36000

Atkinson, Henry Rowland .. Letter Carrier......... .16 Feb. '85 360 00

Smith, Thomas.......... Letter Carrier......... 20 Feb. '85 360 00

Ternent, David Robertson. Letter Carrier......... 13 Mar. '85 360 00

Weir, Robert............... Letter Carrier......... 1 Apr. '83 360 00

Reid, John ................ Letter Carrier......... 1 Apr. '85 360 00

McNair, William Cameron .. lLetter Carrier......... 1 May '85 360 00

Smith, Theophilus.......... Letter Carrier........ . 22 May '85 360 00

Ellis, George .............. Letter Carrier......... 1 July '85 360 00

Mleadows, Edwin ........... Letter Carrier......... 1 July'85 360 00

Butler, John ............... Letter Carrier......... 1 July '85 360 00

Baxter, John Alexander..... Letter Carrier......... 1 July '85 360 00

McMordie, Alexander....... Letter Carrier......... 1 July '85 360 00

Ingram, John Albert ........ Letter Carrier......... 1 July '85 360 00

Kirk, Robert............... Porter ................ 5 Apr. '73 490 00

Hutty, Robert Howland Gray Porter .............. 14 Oct. '80 390 00

Parrett, James.............. Porter ................ 27 Dec. '81 390 00
Reynolds, James Whiteside.. Office Keeper..........7 Oct. '82 490 00

Date of F A
Birth. o Fi t A t

Bit. pointmeflt.

12 July '63

28 Dec. '65

16 Jan. '61

27 Jan. '57

1 Dec. '62

9 June '61

26 Feb. '66

20 Oct. '62

20 Sept.'60

18 Mar.'64

31 Jan. '64

23 Sept.'60

26 Dec. '56

12 Aug.'62

12 Aug.'54

16 May '61

About '26

17 Mar. '62

18 Oct. '51

24 Jan. '40

27 May 1

6 June 8

14 July '83

16 Feb.

20 Feb.

13 Mar.

1 Apr.

1 Apr.

1 May '85
20 May

15 Aug.

15 Aug.

15 Aug.

16 Aug.

17 Dec.

4 Apr.

5 Apr.

14 Obt.

27 Dec.

22 Dec.

WINDSOR POST OFFICE.

Wice, Alfred .............. Postmaster .........

Meloche, Frangois Xavier.... Assistant Postmaster...

Conway, William Alphonsus. Proby. 2nd class clerk..

Langlois, Albert Charles .... 3rd class clerk.........

O'Connor, Eleanor........... 3rd class clerk .........

Cousins, Alexander Mortimer 3rd class clerk.........

Wagner, Elizabeth Rozena .. 3rd class clerk.........

Wagner, Mary Antonia. 3rd class clerk.........

18 Sept.'80

18 Sept.'80

1 July'85

1 Mar.'82

1 Mar. '82

1 Mar.'82

- '82

- '82

10>4

A. 1886

1,400 0n

1,100 00

900 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

520 00

520 00

28 July '48

5 Apr. '40

27 Oct. '58

17 May '52

17 July '46

26 July '53

1 Oct. '49

8 June '57

18 Sept

18 SePt'iset 80
18 Sept. S

18 Sept.

18 Sept.

18 Sept.

18 Sept. '

is Sept.



Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

WINDSOR PosT OFFICE-Continued.

Nanie.

itt Margaret Wilson...
ven, Adolphus.........

Il8lgh, Peter Joseph......

81ýglett, Charles ........

i patrick. ........... ...jeftte1. Joseph..............
Mitchell Robert ............

Present Rank. Date Present Date of Fiat of
thereof. Salary. Birth. paintment.paitment.

___ $ ets.l
3rd class clerk.. . 2 520 o0 28 July '50 12 Apr. '81

3rd class clerk.........- '82 520 00 3 Mar. '65 30 June '82

3rd class clerk ......... 4 June '83 480 00 About '61 4 June '83

3rd class clerk......... 13 June '83 480 00 2 Nov.'60 13 June '83

3rd class clerk......... 1 July '83 500 00 18 May '63 15 Oct. '80

Messenger............ 28 June 82 390 00 16 Mar. '28 28 June '82

Porter ......... .... 28 Juine'82 390 00 29 Dec. '54 28 June '82

MONTREAL DIVIsION.

SFrancis...... Inspector............. 21 Jan. '61

David. ........... lAssistant Inspector. .. . 14 Dec. '77
e' Frederick Joh....... 2nd class clerk......... 1 Jan. '75

Joseph A dolphe. . . . 2nd class clerk ......... 1 July '84

Joseph Eugène..... 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '84

eir Joseph Ferreol.... 3rd class clerk......... 4 Oct. '82
1. lY, Matthew .......... 3rd class clerk......... 4 Oct. '82

Janes Anthony ... 3rd class clerk......... 30 Sept.'84

> Patrick........... Messenger... ........... 1 Apr. '57
l .Fredeick.......... Chief Ry. Mail Clerk... 1 Oct. '79

, ~ Alexanderî....... st class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Feb. '67
James ............ ist class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Dec. '72

J r>Etc......... st class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 July '73jleGeorg....

lteeb. . .. ·......... 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Jan. '74

vallée ......... ist class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Feb. '74
seph1 ½xi Se-ph ........... lst class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Mar. '74

e re .............. st class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Apr. '76

e A.gust.s.......... 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Sept.'79

Alphouse ...... lst class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Apr.'84

rmlia. . . . lst class Ry. Mail Clerk 30 Apr. '84
irew......... 2nd class clerk......... 1 Apr. '62

I _1__

A. 1886

2,600 00

1,250 00

1,200 00

950 00

950 00

560 00

680 00

400 00

590 00

1,500 00

1,200 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 0

960 00

960 00

800 00

12 May '30

Il July '48

19 May '26

3 Mar. '55

19 July '53

19 Oct. '47

31 Oct. '54

27 Sept.'58

13 Mar. '22

3 Apr. '43

28 Apr. '25

24 Mar. '26

2 Apr. '37

4 Sept.'35

3 Aug.'24

14 June '32

1 Nov.'40

31 Jan. '43

13 Nov.'43

26 Juie '52

30 May '42

5 Mar. '46

22 Nov. '67

18 Aug. '66

7 Oct. '74

1 July '80

25 Aug. '79

15 Nov. '75

17 July '84

1 Apr. '57

17 Mar. '66

11 June '56

12 Feb. '60

26 Mar. '61

26 Mar. '61

12 Jan. '63

9 Aug. '61

21 Nov. '64

16 Aug. '66

30 May '71

7 June '71

6 Feb. '60

kuVictoria



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. is6

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

MONTREAL DivISION-Conitiniued.

Naine.

Beatty, Christopher Charles.'

Aniderson, Jacob Dewitt.....

Filion, Henri Dominique. ...

Fairman, Daniel............

Hayden, Charles ............

Beaudoin, Charles..........

Channell, Henry Edgar .....

Dorion, Edouard............

Goodfellow, Henry Groves...

Beique, Louis ............

Labréche, Viger Joseph.....

O'Regan, William Henry ....

Crevier, Louis Célestin......

Armstrong, Arthur .... .....

Dewar, Guy Richards.......

Murphy, John .............

Hall, John Peasley.... .....

Frost, Daniel Taylor........

Mackenzie, James Edward...

Genest, Joseph Valère .......

Guévremont, Jean Baptiste..

Smith, Eustache LaHaie....

Peters, William Norman ....

Tuck, Frederick............

McRobie, James Alexander..

Webb, Frederick Whitcomb.

Evans, Albert Hale.........

Whitcher, Charles Frank. ...

Ford, John.................

Chavot, Cyprien............

Jones, William Emerson C...

Present Rank.

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk..

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Date
thereof.

1 Dec. '73

1 Jan. '74

1 July'74

1 Sept.'74

1 Mar. '75

1 May '75

1 Aug. '75

1 Oct. '75

14 Mar. '77

1 July '79

1 July'79

1 July'79

1 July '79

1 Jan. '80

1 July '80

1 July '80

1 July '80

1 Nov.'80

1 Jan. '81

1 Jan. '81

1 Apr. '81

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 Apr. '85

22 Mar. '80

30 Oct. '80

28 Feb. '81

23 Mar. '83

1 July '84

1 July '84

Present
Salary.

$ cts.
800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

560 00

520 00

520 00

520 00

480 00

480 00

Date of
Birth.

7 Sept.'50

20 Nov.'44

21 May '44

3 Oct. '44

23 Feb. '53

30 Jan. '48

27 Feb. '54,

10 Nov.'42

23 Aug. '40

19 Sept.'29

3 May '42

10 May '44

10 Aug. '40

19 May '58

1 Feb. '41

5 Sept.'51

13 Mar. '52

20 July '35

1 Oct. '48

12 Dec. '23

6 May '53

18 Dec. '58

14 Jan. '42

29 Oct. '53

18 Aug. '58

20 Dec. '59

16 Oct. '53

1 Dec. '55

21 Oct. '50

22 Apr. '55

1 July '58

1u6

Date Of
First AP

pointielnt*

18 Jan.

19 Oct.

1 Feb.

9 Aug.

13 Feb.

26 Apr.

8 July

20 Feb.

2 Feb.

25 Apr. '

18 Nov.

26 Mar.

28 Ap.

15 Oct.

18 Apr.

1 Apr.

31 May

8 Oct.

23 Dec.

23 Dec.

17 Mar.

21 No *

30 Jule

23 July

20 May

22 Mar.

30 Oct.

28 Feb.

20 Mar.

1 jul

17 Jule



'Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

MONTREAL DIvisION--Continued.

Naine. Presenit lank. t)e Pr. s t
tixereof. Salary.

$ ets.
'rPhy, William......... 3rd class liv. Mail Clerk 9 Aug. '84 590 00

Edward William...... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 31 Mar. '85 480 00
Clark............... Mail Transfer Agent... 6 Sept.'84 400 00

Date of'
Bîrth.

28 May '55

17 May '61

4 Mar. '51

QIiiaEc DivisioN.

ppard, William Grut... Inspector ........

1 Jean Laughlin....... Asst. Inspector ........
réchette, Olesiphore....... 2nd class clerk.........

* Cyprien Joseph....... 2nd class clerk.........

Joseph Emile ....... 3rd class clerk.........

'oSeph Guillaume.. 3rd class clerk.. . .. ...

'Jules George........ Messenger ............

Joseph......... 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

Grégoire......... 1st class Ry. Mail Clerkl

" oel, Athanase.. ... 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk

1 F. E. ,lit Eugène. Ist class Ry. Mail Clerk
ne, Louis Napoléon. 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

'y Basile Tancrède.... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Y3 li1enrY John ........ 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

4r , Donat Sévérin .... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

ouis Honoré...... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

OSeph Octave...... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

igobert Goderick.. 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk
kea Octave Zephirin..... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

'Joeph tienne ....... 2id class Ry. Mail Clerk

La eph Leger. 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

t t ran9Çois Xavier..... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

drel, douard Erie G.. 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk
L60 11 Eniile.--...... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

bavid Calixte. 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

deceased

1 Feb. '61

8 Feb. '79

1 Jan. '73

1 Apr. '82

- '82

1 Feb. '84

1 Oct. '69

1 Oct. '79

1 Sept.'80

1 June '81

1 Oct. '81

1 Aug. '72

1 July '73

1 July '73

1 Feb. '74

1 Nov.'74

1 Oct. '75

1 Nov.'75

1 Oct. '77

1 Oct. '77

1 July'79

1 Oct. '79

1 Janl. '80

1 Mar. '81

1 Mar. '81

2,400 00

1,250 00

1,200 00

1,050 00

680 00

760 00

490 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

960 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

800 00

720 00

720 00

14 Sept-'29

25 Jai. '32

6 Sept.'30

23 May '45

29 Aug. '48

19 July '50

28 Sept.'37

26 May '21

6 May '32

24 Dec. '25

17 Aug. '40

7 Aug. '41

4 June'43

8 Oct. '46

20 May '48

14 June '47

28 Dec. '37

27 Oct. '48

10 Sept.'52

13 Feb. '38

14 May '38

1 Mar.'41

13 Feb. '52

16 Nov. '44

720 00 1 8 Jan. '38

107

A. 1886

Date of
First Ap-

pointmen t.

1 Apr. '75

31 Mar. '85

1 Apr. '84

7 Sept. '54

25 Jan. '61

30 Jan. '62

1 July '70

20 Sept. '75

26 Mar. '74

1 Oct. '69

30 May '67

7 Aug. '67

17 Feb. '65

1 Nov. '67

20 Apr. '70

30 May '71

7 June '71

25 Nov. '71

29 Oct. '72

6 Sept. '73

7 Apr. '73

8 Oct. '75

8 Oct. '75

1 July '76

1 June '6â

12 Dec. '77

12 Feb. '79

12 Feb. '79



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

QUEBFC DivISaoN-Continued.

Present Rnk. Date Present
thereof. Salary.

Mi(juelon, Arsêne ('vi'.

Miquelon, Arsòne Cyr... . . ... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Bédard, Charles............ 2n1d class Ry. Mail Clerk

Beaudry, Pierre A. L. A .... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Methot, Arthur............. 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerkj

Laberge, Michel Philias..... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Blondeau, Antoine .......... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Green, Sanuel Tanner...... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Thibault, Louis Philippe.... Mail Porter...........

THREE RIV

Bourgeois, George A........ Inspector.... ......

Chillas, Joseph Philip....... Assistant Inspcctor.. ..

Bailey, George Oscar ........ 3rd class clerk.........

Dorais, Louis Napoléon A... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

I Aug. '81

1 Jone '82 I
14 Jan. '84

Il Feb. '82

7 Jan. '84

2 May '84

1 July '85

1 Feb. '79

ER's DivisioN.

26 July '79

25 June '81

- '82

6 Feb. *83

MONTREAI PosT OFFICE.

LaMothe, Guillaume........ Postmaster ...........

Emery, Michel ............. Assistant Postmaster.. .

Bourret, Hormidas Alexis... Ist class clerk.........

Huddell, Henry Allison R.. . lst class clerk..........

McKeon, John.............. !st class clerk..........

Baillargeon, Vital.......... lst class clerk.........

Palmer, Joseph Lawrence .... 1st class clerk .........

Larseneur, Thomas François. 1st class clerk.........

Senez, Joseph........... st class clerk..........

Pridham, Frederick......... 2nd class clerk .... ....

Mayer, Edouard ............ 2nd class clerk.........

Sims, James Campbell ...... 2nd class clerk.........

Clement, Olivier......... 2nd class clerk.........

Loftus, Anthony............ 2nd class clerk.........

18 July '74

1 Nov. '72

1 Jan. '71

1 July '71

1 Feb.'72

1 Feb. '72

1 Dec. '72

1 July '74

1 July '85

1 July '71

1 Apr. '74

1 July '74

1 July '74

1 July '76

108

$ ets
720 00

640 00

800 00

520 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

490 00

2,000 00

1,250 00

560 00

520 00

4,000 00

2,000 00

1,500 00

1,400 00

1,500 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,300 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1.200 00

Date of
Birth.

25 June '61

5 May '41

25 Aug. '48

18 July '58

28 Sept.'58

25 Oct. '48

21 Feb. '64

12 Feb. '55

Date 01
First Ap-

pointmnel
t'

19 May

27 May

21 May

Il Feb. '

20 Mar.

28 Apr.

l July '85

21 Jan.

1 Oct. '32 26 July

27 Oct. '50 7 JaI.

16 July '49 4 Oct.

17 Jan. '59 6 Feb.

14 Sept.'24

3 Jan. '25

3 Feb. '39

30 Nov.'28

14 Oct. '30

19 Mar. '23

2 Dec. '40

27 Jan. '35

24 Feb. '43

.. . .... .. . .

16 Sept. '33

4 Feb. '42

6 Mar. '36

24 June '45

18 July

i July

9 Aug.

3 Sept.

24 Jule

26 Mar.

9 Aug.

9 Aug-

2 7 June

2 Apr.

S'et

23 Aug.

il Jai.

A. 1886



19 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. ISSG

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE

Momum. PT e çOFF l-(ontinued

Nae Prest ank. t Preseit Date of Date of
i.Peet .tleîof. ~ sa1ar. Br pointmllent.

esta cts.
"ng, Alfred de........ 2nd class clerk......... 21 July '76 1,200 00 28 July '41 1 Apr. '75

esfloyers, Thomas........2nd class clerk.........1 July '79 1,130 00 1 Mar. '38 16 Dec. '67

(Ioyette Henri........... 2nd class clerk.. .... ... 1 July '79 1,170 00 26 Mar. '46 3 Apr. '68
baoust

Jean Baptiste A .... 2nd class clerk......... 1 July'79 1,170 00 28 Nov.'42 27June '70
t Vre, Gaspard Joseph D. ,2nd class clerk......... 1 Apr. '84 950 00 6 Feb. '54 10 Apr. '74

4adilg> Thomas .......... 2nd class clerk ........ 1 July '84 950 00 18 Sept.'48 20 May '73

) Robert............ 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '85 900 00 24 Aug. '42 25 Jan. '68
rk ichard James ...... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Oct. '73 800 00 26 Dec. '39 18 Jan. '6i

Arthur Edouard... 3rd class clerk.. ....... 1 Oct. '73 800 00 21 May '28 Jan. '54
tult, Marie Joseph T.. 3rd class clerk......... 1 Apr. '75 800 00 10 Apr. '50 14Aug. '72

Alfred Amable....... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Aug.'75 800 00 16 Mar. '48 23 Apr. '72

George........... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 30 Jan. '52 29 Feb. '72
e oseph Edmond .... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 15 Oct. '54 21 Mar. '73Yre> Louis . . . . . . ...... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 22 Dec.'49 7 Nov. '71

Edmond.......... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 9 Nov.'58 18 Dec. '6:

Wiliam .......... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 15 May '56 1 June '74
Charles Anatole T... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July'79 800 00 30'May '49 1 June '74

~P50fl> James......... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 23 Feb.'37 12 May '71

a sargiso ....... 3rd class clerk ......... 1 July '79 800 00 7 Feb. '48 23 May '72
Aulatol 

.

I * --........ 3rd class clerk ......... 1 July '79 800 00 10 Mar. '53 31 Oct. '72
e 1a1uce D .

a y · · · · ·.... ... ,.3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 27 Aug.'50 10 Aug. '74

'ont r3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 15 Oct. '53 3 Sept. '74

Lord eGeorge ............ 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 30 Jan. '56 27 Oct. '73

.............. 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 Il July '45 9 Nov. '74
Oseph . . . . . . . . .ef . '-.. ..... 3rd class (lerk......... 1 July '79 760 00 21 Mar. '57 16 Nov. '74

on. ...... 3rd class clerk .. .... ... 1 Jan. '82 720 00 July '51 6 Feb. '-1
hi ·......... 3rd class clerk........ 23 May '82 720 00 4 Jan. '39 28 Dec. '74

a ...·......... 3rd class clerk......... 23 May '82 720 00 23 May '45 13 Jan. '75
euette obert Thomas. 3rd class clerk......... - '82 680 00 2 Jan. '43 1 Jan. '76

dbato ouard enfri. .. 3rd class clerk.. ......- '82 600 00 27 A pr. '51 5 Sept. '78
...... .3rd class clerk........ - '82 680 00 2ý Jan. '33 27 Aug. '77

109u



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

MONTREAL POST OFFIcE-Continued.

Date reset Dae of Date Of
Name. Present Rank. tFirst APthereof. Salary. Birth. onlei,

e ts.1  7
Forbes, Edmond Henri... 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 600 00 15 Oct. '26 29 Apr

McElroy, William Joseph.. . 3rd class clerk..k....... 1 July '82 520 00 10 May'50 23 June '80

Lapointe, Théophile Pierre.. 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 520 00 8 Mar. '60 13 July

Larin, Arthur Ovila ........ 3rd class clerk.........1 July '82 520 00 24 July '61 1 Jan.

Whelan, James Patrick..... 3rd class clerk ......... 1 July '82 520 00 6 July '59 9 Feb.

Tansey, Denis ............. 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 520 00 Il Mar. '63 30 JuI'

O'Neill, Patrick ....... ... 3rd class clerk ......... 6 Feb. '83 480 00 1 May '48 6 Fe

Jolicoeur, Eugène........... 3rd class clerk......... 22 Feb. '83 480 00 27 Mar. '47 22 Feb.

Mayer, Louis Dominique E.. 3rd class clerk......... 5 Apr. '83 480 00 18 Dec. '61 21 Mar-

Larivière, Charles.......... 3rd class clerk ......... 13 June.'83 480 00 22 Dec.'57 5 Julle

Beresford, John............ 3rd class clerk......... 21 Sept.'83 440 0) 15 May '53 i sept.

Guillemette, Joseph Edmond. 3rd class clerk. ......... 4 Oct. '83 440 00 17 Oct. '58 4 Oct.

O'Donoghue, Daniel........ 3rd class clerk......... 1 Jan. '84 440 00 27 Feb.'58 28 J'il",

Plouffe, François........... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Jan. '84 440 00 25 Apr. '59 8 Jule

Lorange, Oscar............. 3rd class clerk......... 1 Feb. '84 440 00 17 Nov.'62 1 Feb.

Chandler, Henri .......... 3rd class clerk........ 10 Mar. '84 440 00 21 Feb. '65 3 Mar.

McIntosh, Alfred Dieudonné. 3rd class clerk........10 Mar. '84 440 00 10 Apr. '63 4 Oct.

Lamoureux, Edouard A...... 3rd class clerk......... 10 Mar. '84 440 00 16 Ju]y '65 4 Mar-

Lamoureux, Arthur Edouard. 3rd class clerk......... 19 Apr. '84 440 00 30 Oct. '64 8 ApT.

Giroux, Théophile Avila.. 3rd class clerk......... 22 Apr. '84 440 00 25 July '62 22 APTg

Sauriol, Alphonse......... 3rd class clerk ......... 6 Sept.'84 400 00 18 Oct. '63 4 Oct.

Barbe, Wilfrid............. 3rd class clerk......... 6 Sept.'84 400 00 3 June '65 5 Se

Clermont, Uldéric.......... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Oct. '84 400 00 14 Dec. '63 28 June

Leclaire, Charles Joseph A .. 3rd class clerk......... 1 Oct. '84 400 00 6 May '63 24 Sov.

Gaudet, Michel Henri A..... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Oct. '84 400 00 14 Apr. '65 19 APe'

Côté, Allen Bernard........ 3rd class clerk......... 1 Oct. '84 400 00 21 Sept.'52 10 T.

Carpenter, George Arthur. .. 3rd class clerk......... 1 Dec. '84 400 00 25 Aug. '65 13 Jufle

Crowe, William Joseph...... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Dec. '84 400 00 6 Jan. '63 24 Ma"

Grondin, Albert Louis ...... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Dec. '84 400 00 5Ang. '60 24 No"g
Florence, Charles........... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Dec. '84 400 00 18 Dec. '60 1 PC 8

Simard, Maxime. ...... .. 3rd class clerk........ 13 Dec. '84 400 00 1 13 Nov. '63 13 eCC

110



nia, Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 13S6

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

MONTREAL POsT OFFICE-Continued.

Name. PresentDate Present Date of Date of
PeetRn. thereof. Salary. Birth. First Ap.

pointment.

Y1 Thomas.......... 3rd class clerk....... 23 Dec.'84 400 00 9 Dec. '65 23 Dec. '84

d. .. ... ....... 3rd class clerk......... 26 Dec. '84 400 00 2OAug. '57 26 Dec. '84

atinger, Philip T. H..... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Feb. '85 400 00 lAug. '58 12 Jan. '8i

an'qe, Thomas. ....... 3rd class clerk......... .19 Feb. '85 400 00 10 July '54 19 Feb. '85

Alcidas............. 3rd class clerk......... 16 May '85 400 00 27 Feb. '65 16 May '85

gène Oscar Henri 3rd class clerk......... 22 May '85 400 00 19 Feb.'64 22 May '85

dWard Christopher.. Letter Carrier .......... 14 Feb. '70 600 00 lOJune'48 14 Feb. '70
L&ýite 1: Prospère...... ... Letter Carrier......... 28 Mar. '70 600 00 22 Nov.'30 28 Mai. '70

e, Auguste........ Letter Carrier........ 30 Mar. '70 600 00 26 Oct. '45 30 Mar. '70
Jean Baptiste....... Letter Carrier......... 1Aug. '71 600 00 20 Jan. '38 1 Aug. '71

e a"........... Letter Carrier......... 10 Apr. '73 600 00 18 June'48 10 Apr. 'i3
a 'es'............. Letter Carrier......... 28 Apr. '73 600 00 26 Dec.'31 28 Apr. '73eeIky3 Patrick

.).4atrick............ Letter Carrier.........19 May '73 600 00 19 May '44 19 May '73

............. Letter Carrier......... 4 Aug. '73 600 00 20 Oct. '27 4 Aug. '73

1 Jean............ Letter Carrier......... 15 July '74 600 00 28 Feb.'20 18 Dec. '73

C iar ............. Letter Carrier.. . ... .. .1 July '75 600 00 5 Apr. '54 1 July '74

'4 ..ati...... «.......Letter Carrier.........i1 July '75 600 00 10 Dec. '45 1 Sept. '74
Wlam............ Letter Carrier......... 1 July '75 j 600 00 18 Dec. '41 1 Sept. '74
e ''ar•.......... Letter Carrier......... 1 July '75 600 00 17 Jan. '56 1 sept. '74
hilli

lat ... ....... ... Letter Carrier......... 1 July '75 600 00 23 Aug. '51 I1 Sept. '74
aes............ Letter Carrier......... 1 July '75 600 00 1 Apr. '57 18 Feb. '75

4tte A-Xtojne Isaie... Letter Carrier ......... i1 July '75 600 00 2 Dec. '43 24 Mar. '75

IlrJuidas...Letter Carrier ......... 1 July '75 600 00 20 Mar. '53 8 June '75
.t t .......... Letter Carrier......... 1 July '75 600 00 24 Apr. '41 17 June '75

ese

.......... Letter Carrier......... 1 July '75 600 00 29 Jan. '53 I July 75
Thonet Iaïdr E Letter Carrier......... 1 July '75 600 00 9 Oct. '54 1 Sept. '74

feb j ''''. - Letter Carrier......... 1 July '75 00 00 6 Mar.'37 28 May '75
Ter aein.. . •....... Letter Carrier.t.. 1Jl 7

harles .Alexa.dr Letter Carrier......... 1 Dec. '75 600 00 29 Scpt.'47 28 Dec. '75
r r ......... Letter Carrier......... 7 Feb. '76 600 00 23 Apr. '30 7 Feb '76

areisse
..... Letter Carrier......... 4 Jan. '77 600 00 29 Dec. '39 4Jan. '77

ptiste...... Letter Carrier........ 23 Mar. '77 600 -0 30 Dec. '45 28 Mar. '77

Prsn'DtIf aeo



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

MONTREAL POST OFFIcE-Continued.

Naime. Present Rank. thel f Preî Dato First AI
Salar-. Brth. poiilleut,

_____ - $ ets.

Jacques, Pierre........... Letter Carrier......... 7 Dec. '77 600 00 14 Aug. '39 7 Dec.

MeShane, James Francis.... Letter Carrier......... 4 Apr. '78 600 00 12 July '54 4 Apr.

Lussier, Joseph ............ Letter Carrier........ 12 May '81 420 00 5 Nov. '48 12 May

Callaghan, Thomas......... Letter Carrier........ 26 Aug.'81 390 00 3 July '57 26 Aug

Guertin, Toussaint.......... Letter Carrier......... 21 Oct. '81 390 00 1 Oct. '60 21 Oct.

Flanagan, Henry........... Letter Carrier......... 1 Dec. '81 390 00 22 Jan. '60 1 Dec-

Boudreau, Jacques Achille... Letter Carrier......... 23 Jan. '82 390 00 18 Dec. '63 23 dan.

Doray, Joseph Louis Exelda. Letter Carrier......... 28 Jan. '82 I 390 00 28 May '50 28 Jail.

Grant, James............... Letter Carrier......... 21 Feb. '82 390 00 7 Jan. '62 21 Feb.

Carrière, Alphonse.......... Letter Carrier......... 25 Apr. '82 390 00 12 Apr. '49 25 APr.

Power, John............... Letter Carrier......... 3 June '82 390 00 17 Mar. '53 3 June

McAfee, John.............. Letter Carrier......... 29 Oct. '82 390 00 29 Apr. '57 il Sept.

Fenaughty, John........... Letter Carrier......... 22 Feb. '83 390 00 24 dune'61 15 Feb-

Meehan, John............. Letter Carrier........ 23Mar. '83 390 00 10Ag '62 5 Mar.

Carle, Louis Eugène........ Letter Carrier......... 2 Apr. '83 390 00 9 Feb. '65 2 &Fr.

Taylor, James.............. Letter Carrier......... 4 Sept.'83 390 00 15 Aug.'65 30 AU9

Mitchell, William Francis. . Letter Carrier......... 21 Sept.'83 390 00 4 Aug.'44 28

Bourgeois, Joseph.......... Letter Carrier......... 21 Sept.'83 390 00 22 dan. '49 21 sept.

Dumesnil, Alfred Emile.. . .. Letter Carrier......... 4 Oct. '83 390 00 5 May '62 4 Oct.

Dagenais, Fabien........... Letter Carrier......... 4 Oct. '83 390 00 8 Aug.'52 4 Oct.

Daoust, Damase Ludger Avila Letter Carrier......... 5 Nov.'83 390 00 23 duly ' i 1Ov

Mathieu, Alfred.......... Letter Carrier........ 24 Nov. '83 390 00 6Aug. '60 24 N'

Valeur, Joseph Alfred ....... Letter Carrier........ 10 Dec. '8 390 00 27 May '58 1

Mazurette, Wilfrid.......... Letter Carrier......... 10 Dec. '83 39 00 13 Oct. '59 10 Der.

Nugent, James............. Letter Carrier......... 15 Feb. '84 390 00 1 Nov.'58 1

Giguère, Joseph............ Letter Carrier......... 22 Apr. '84 390 00 10 Oct. '59 10

Collard, Josepli Anitoine.....!Letter Carrier......... 30 Apr. '84 390 00 1l May '56 21 AI)"

King, Jseph............ Letter Carrier...... .15 May '84 390 00 20 July'64 15 May

Duboulay, Adolphe........Letter Carrier......... 21 July '84 360 00 31 Oct. '55 7 J 0

Lepine, Magloire........... Letter Carrier......... 6 Sept.'84 360 00 20 Apr. '64 10

Pépin, Joseph.............. Ltter Carrier......... 6 Sept.'84 360 00 2 Sept.'59 10

Date



9

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

MONTREAL POST OFFICE-Continued.

Nanie. Present Rank.

Thomas......... Letter Carrier.........

> Jean Baptiste. Letter Carrier.........

o"sePh Louis........ Letter Carrier.........

7>'1 Y, Myles........... Letter Carrier.........
Aiphonse ........... Letter Carrier.........

Thomas John........ Letter Carrier.........
Arthur. ............. Letter Carrier.........
,Arthur........... Letter Carrier......

Tho
e omas..... ...... .. Letter Carrier.........

oseph Théophile H Letter Carrier.........

hdt, Denis Romulus .... Letter Carrier.........

............... Letter Carrier.........

ohn'............. Messenger & Porter....

.t . s....... ....... M essenger & Porter.....

.............. Messenger & Porter....

.e..............Messenger & Porter ....

Date
thereof.

1 Oct. '84

3 Oct. '84

1 Nov.'84

1 Nov.'84

16 Dec. '84

23 Dec. '84

26 Dec. '84

16 Feb. '85

1 Apr. '85

1 May '85

22 May '85

27 June '85

1 Oct. '74

23 Nov.'77

31 Mar. '82

1 Jan. '81

QUEBEC PosT OFFIcE.

Adoiphe, N.P.. Postmaster ...........

?h Etienne..... Asst. Postmaster......

Charles ...... 2nd class clerk........

ed& William.. 2nd class clerk........

llia ......... 2nd class clerk ........

1 Amibroise.... 2nd class clerk........

............. 3rd class clerk.........

.......... 3rd class clerk.........

............. 3rd class clerk.........

............. 3rd class clerk.........

...... 13rd class clerk.........

.........

5 July'83

1 July '75

1 Jan. '71

12 Dec. '77

1 July '79

1 July '85

1 July '74

1 July '79

1 July '79

1 July '79

1 July '79

23 May '82

L3

Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 186

Present
Salary.

$ ets.
360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

360 00

600 00

590 00

390 00

590 00

Date of
Birth.

16 Mar. '52

1 Sept. '62

23 May'58

21 Mar. '50

Il Sept.'66

9 Sept.'52

4 Dec. '56

5 Nov.'60

14 Nov.'66

24 Jan. '62

24 June '61

3 Feb. '63

29 June '36

5 Sept.'32

25 Apr. '57

20 Oct. '34

Date of
First Ap-

pointment.

29 Sept.

20 Sept.

1 Nov.

1 Nov.

16 Dec.

23 Dec.

26 Dec.

16 Feb.

1 Apr.

1 May

22 May

27 June

25 Apr.

23 Nov.

31 Mar.

28 May

kbin, 3e~y

serilf

2,000

1,400

1,200

1,200

1,170

950

800

800

800

800

800

800

15 Jan. '31

1 July '28

24 Nov.'32

Il Nov.'38

9 July'30

8 Jan. '33

28 Apr. '51

9 Mar. '42

il Aug. '51

17 Nov.'45

5 Nov.'46

26Aug. '51

5 July '83

1 Nov. '54

3 Oct. '59

13 Apr. '74

21 July '66

20 Nov. '60

6 Nov. '71

17 Aug. '72

29 Oct. '72

12 Aug. '71

22 Oct. '73

24 June '73

- - 1



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

QUEBEC POST OFFICE-Coiutinued.

Name.

Caouette, Jean Baptiste.....

Turner, James Bailey.......

Plamondon, Olivier.........

Lane, Patrick Edward......

Morrissette, Honoré.........

L'Heureux, Louis .......

Workman, Charles........

Eckhardt, William Henry A.

Battle, Johit James........

Gagnon, Charles Alphonse...;

Larue, Louis Joseph Henry. .

Pelletier, Maxime ..........

Present Rank. .

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........I

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

Angers, Frangois.......... Letter Carrier.........

Giasson, Nicolas.......... Letter

Reynar, Thomas........... Letter

Wilkinson, Robert.......... Letter

Mercier, George ............ Letter

Houle, Victor........... Letter

Pelletier, Frangois Xavier R. Letter

Kelly, Henry Pierce ........ Letter

Guay, Louis.............. Letter

Gingras, Jean Philippe T.... Letter

Gauvin, Pierre Napoléon ... Letter

Desroches, Joseph......... Letter

Mercier, Jean Adolphe D .... Letter

Duhault, Charles Eusèbe. ... Letter

O'Dowd, Francis........... Letter

Pelletier, Joseph Amable.... Letter

Joannet, Napoléon Ubric.... Letter

Boulet, Wilfrid Joseph A... Letter

Ouellet, François Xavier. ... 1Letter

Carrier .........

Carrier.........

Carrier., .......

Carrier .......

Carrier.........
Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

Carrier.........

11

Date
thereof.

4..L

A. 1886

1

Date of
Birth.

23 May '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

17 Apr. '83

7 Jan. '84

3 Oct. '84

2 Mar. '85

2 Mar. '85

1 July '85

14 Apr. '59

18 Apr. '72

15 July '74

19 Mar. '75

20 Mar. '75

20 Mar. '75

23 Mar. '75

28 June '78

6 Feb. '79

23 Mar. '79

1 Juie '82

6 June '82

4 Jan. '83

1 Feb. '83

6Feb. '83

6 Nov. '83

1 July '84

1 July '84

1 July '84

Present
Salary.

$ ets.
720 00

640 00

560 00

560 00

520 00

520 00

480 00

440 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

500 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

510 00

510 00

390 00

490 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390,00

390 00

390 00

390 00

29 July'54

24 Aug. '51

17 Oct. '54

7 Jan. '47

24 Feb. '46

29 June'34

28 Mar. '65

28 Dec. '56

29 May '63

23 June '51

19 Apr. '67

23 Feb. '60

17 Jan. '27

26 Jan. '36

6 Feb. '46

22 Sept.'45

23 Aug. '40

27 July '51

7 Nov.'40

9 Aug. '59

15 Nov.'42

7 Mar. '48

18 Aug. '55

20 Aug. '44

16 Nov.'56

24 Oct. '45

Il July '55

25 July '53

8 July '61

20 Oct. '52

21 Mar. '55

Date of
First AP

pointmeu
t '

16 Apr.

1 Mar.

26 Sept -

18 Mar.

12 Jan.

23 Jal.

17 Apr.

7 Jan.

3 Oct.

2 Mar-

2 M9-

25 June

14 Apr.

18 Apr

19JlY

19 3fai.

20 Mr'

20 M
23 Mat.

28 Julie

6 Feb.

23 M '

i June

27 SePt.

4 JO'

28 Juli

6 Feb

1 5 Juli

6 ])CC

15 Apr



Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMEMT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

QUEBEC POST OFFIcE-Continued

Name. Present Rank.

1akburn, Robert.......... Letter Carrier.........

Johnl.. . . . . . . . . . . . Messenger .........
enéchaud, Télesphore...... Office Keeper & Letter

Collector .........

cki4 lon. John. . Inspector...........

liam.......... st class clerk. ..........
hittaker' William C...... 1st class clerk.........
4ery' illiam Richard..... 2nd class clerk........

a Willoigiby........ 3rd class clerk.......

Charles Alex....... 3rd class clerk... ....
k ister, William........ Messenger.............

Frederick Wiggins.. 1st class Ry. Mail Clerk.

erderIck Augustus . . 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

eo6 Melville ...... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

SWlter...,, ....... 2ud class Ry. Mail Cle rk

anles.............. 2nd class By. Mail Clerk

illia John, jr.. 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

acob Robert...... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

lut eoge Augustus. ... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk
Albert John.......... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

enry'............ 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

''. . ........ 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk
Q ardin~er......2nclsRyMalCek
Ga Dawson........ 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

~i'...k. ..w.O.l. 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerkljjit8 a je, ai s... ....... 2nd class Riy. M ail Clerk-

c Graha. 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

anleî Rutherford .... 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk-

'W. Rice.......3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

.c3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

Date Present
thereof. Salary,

$ ets

1 Nov.'84 360 00

24 Nov.'69 490 00

1 May '74 860 00

7 Aug.'67

1 July '70

1 July '81

1 July '79

28 June '82

4 Oct. '83

1 July '67

1 Jan. '80

1 Jan. '73

1 Jan. '73

1 Aug.'74

1 Aug. '74

1 Aug.'74

1 Feb. '75

1 Sept.'76

1 Oct. '76

1 July '79

1 July'79

1 July.'79

1 Sept.'81

1 Apr. '84

1 Apr. '84

1 Apr. '84

1 Jan. '82

20 Mar. '82

2,200 00

1,400 00

1,350 00

1,170 00

720 00

800 00

550 00

960 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

720 00

640 00

640 00

640 00

520 00

520 00

A. 188(

Date of
Birth.

25 July '53

27 Aug. '22

23 Oct. '20

4 Aug.'16

4 Nov.'31

6 Sept.'37

16 Apr.'56

29 June '26

7 Mar. '48

19 June '18

17 Oct. '46

5 Aug. '39

3 Nov. '54

17 Mar.'46

14 June '21

13 May '54

10 Apr. '30

20 Feb.'46

28 Sept.'55

17 Dec. '39

25 July '43

30 Nov.'45

5 Apr. '59

21 Mar. '59

1i June '52

23 Mar. '54

17 Sept.'45

18 Dec. '61

Date of
First Ap-

pointment.

3 Sept. '84

24 Nov. '69

1 May '74

7 Aug. '67

1 July '67

9 Dec. '65

25 June '69

16 June '76

1 Apr. '81

1 July '67

1 July '67

16 Jan. '71

16 Jan. '71

29 Jan. '72

19 Aug. '72

1 Aug. '72

1 Feb. '73

28 Aug. '74

1 Oct. '74

1 July '76

i July '76

1 July '76

1 Sept. '79

1 Jan. '82

20 Mar. '82

20 Mar. '82

1 Jan. '82

20 Mar. '82

NK Bv D- ION

'ta sâ 115



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

NEw BRUNSWICK D1VIsIoN-Continued.

Date Present Date of Date Of
Name. Present Rank. thereof. Salary. Birth. First AP

poinitlnelt*

$ cts.
Freeze, Robert John........ 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 30 June'82 520 00 26 July'48 30 Jane

Oulton, George Heber....... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 4 Oct. '83 520 00 14 Apr. '44 4 Oct

Murray, Alexander......... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 24 May '84 480 00 16 June'56 24 'ar

Campbell, John.......... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 8 May '84 480 00 22 Dec. '38 8 May

Hoyt, John Wesley......... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerkl 1 Dec. '84 480 00 26 Sept.'54 1 De '8*

Edgecombe, Arthur Clarence. 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 28 Feb. '85 480 00 25 Apr. '66 28 Feb

Ketchum, Francis Edwin.... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 6 Mar. '85 480 00 12 Nov.'58 6

FREDERICTON POST OFFICE.

McPeake, Patrick.......... Postmaster............ 1 Aug.'80 1,600 00 16 Apr. '36 1 Aug ego

Cameron, John... ......... 2nd class clerk......... 1 May '75July

Phair, William Barry ...... 3rd class clerk.........1 July '79 800 00 25 July '53 13 Jan

Vavasour, Edwin W ........ 3rd class clerk.........1 July '82 680 00 4 Oct. '54 1 Jan.

Wilson, Albert Edward. .... 3rd class clerk......... 21 Sept.'83 440 00 8 June'61 21 sept.

Phillips, Robert Bedford H.. 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '85 400 00 24 July'61 2 Apr.

Phair, Andrew Stratton..Letter Carrier.........10 June'79 500 00 22 Dec. '61 10 June

ST. JOHN POST OFFICE.

King, Stephen James.

Woodrow, James.......

Potter, Michael James ......

Reed, Augustus William ....

Otty, Henry Phipps ........

McNichol, Andrew..........

McIntyre, Robert Charles. ..

Ring, George Frederick......

Flaglor, James Second.......

Finen, James Louis.........

Ring, John Wightman......

Woodrow, Ross Dougal......

Postmaster............

Assistant Postmaster...

Ist class clerk.........

1st class clerk..... ....

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk........

2nd class clerk.... ....

2nd class clerk........

2nd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk........

3rd class clerk..........

8rd class clerk.........

A. 1886

11 Feb. '80

1 July'68

1 Mar. '77

1 July'85

1 July '79

1 July '81

1 July'81

31 Jan. '82

1 July '82

1 July '85

1 July '79

1 July '79

2,400 00

1,500 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,170 00

1,090 00

1,090 00

1,200 00

1,050 00

900 00

800 00

800 00

16 Jan. '38

17 Mar. '33

3 Dec. '44

3 Oct. '54

31 Jan. '24

24 Mar. 45

27 Feb. '45

2 May '41

15 Mar. '53

7 Dec. '59

2 July '54

23 May '57

11 Feb.

22 Oct.

6 Apr.

1 Sept.

1 Nol-

2 Nov.

7 Jan.

31 Jan.

i An '

1 5 A pl

1 AU

6 oct.

116



V Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 4 8.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

ST. JOH PosT OFFICE-Continued.

Naime. Preseit Rank. t fate
titercof».

a lOss Alexander . ... 3rd class clerk.........
ins, Thomas....... .. 3rd class clerk.........

tclie, Jieseph iinter. . 3... 3rd class clerk.........

John Parker......... 3rd class clerk.

Alexander....... 3rd class lerk.........
Jamnes Clarence....... 3rd class clerk.........

ery Pery ........... 3rd class clerk ........
'ri, John1 Swaison.. .3rd class lerk.........

ir'Weather, Edmund W. H. 3rd lass clerk.. . ....

e Frederick ..... 3rd class clerk..

John Rowe........... 3rd class clerk.........
"e>, John Parkenson.... 3rd class clerk.........

1aý Wll,WlimI Seymouth .... 3rd class clerk.........

aughin, Robert........ Letter Carrier.........
8, Will~

tely iam ........... Letter Carrier. . .
ea, .Cale .............. Letter Carrier.........

Wil eorge William . . Letter Carrier.........

am.............. Letter Carrier.........

James... ...... Letter Carrier.........

Joh.
'.............Letter Carrier.........

l Orge Edward .... Letter Carrier .......

.. ........ Letter Carrier..... ....

Archibald......... Letter Carrier.........
lhes.t

.at ......... Letter Carrier... . .

ael 'hr eery...... Letter Carrier..........

eorge. .'.......... Office Keeper..........

1 July '79

1 July'79

1 Jul '79

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

26 Jan. '83

20 Oct. '84

1 Dec. '84

1 Apr. '85

30 May '85

1 July '85

1 June'75

1 June '75

18 May '75

19 May '75

29 May '75

16 Nov.'77

16 Jan. '80

21 Sept.'83

21 Sept.'83

19 Apr.'84

1 July '84

1 Dec.'84

1 Dec.'84

26 May '71

Present
Salary.

$ ets.
800 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

720 00M

520 00 I

480 00

480 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

400 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

470 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

390 00

360 00

360 00

490 00

NovA SCOTIA DIVISION.

nald, ChaeJon.'
tory Johlarles John.... Inspector ............. 19 May '79

...... Assistant Inspector. . .. 1 June '75

117

2,200 00

1,250 00

4 Apr. '41 19 May '79

3 Apr. '52 1 Jan. '69

A. 1886

Date of Date of
Birthî. }'irst Ap-

pointment.

18 Dec. 55 1 Jan. '74

24 Apr. 57 6 Aug. '75

1 May '54 6 Aug. '75

18 lune '32 1 Sept. '77

29 Aug.'57 6 Sept. '77

8 Sept. '61 1 Jan. '82

30 Aug. 756 27 Sept. '82

15 Apr.'60 26 Jan. '83

24 Mar. '51 20 Oct. '84

28 Feb1. '66 27 Nov. '84

19 Jan. '60 1 Apr. '85

10 Apr. '58 30 May '85

13 Dec. '50 1 July '85

18 May '22 1 June '75

19 Jan. 22 1 June '75

12 July '45 18 May '75

21 May '29 19 May '75

25 Mar. '58 29 May '75

8 May 38 16 Nov. '77

19 July'41 16 Jan. '80

22 Apr. '63 1 Nov. '82

8 May '37 27 Feb. '83

4 Apr. '49 19 Apr. '84

27 Nov.41 7 May '83

25 Mav '55 30 June '82

16 July '39 Il Mar. '84

2 Nov. '12 26 May '71



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

NovA SCOTIA DIVIsIox-Continued.

Date ofDate Present Date of Dat A-
Name. Present Rank. thereof. Salar. Birth. pi t •

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ -ets.

Stewart, Douglas.......... 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '84 970 00 17 Jan. '55 1 Apr.

Davison, Thomas Edun... 2nd class clerk..... ... 1 July '84 950 00 Il Sept. '56 Q Sept.

Sircom, Steplien John Rupert 3rd elass clerk. ... ... 1 July '82 680 00 1 Oct. '58 23 NoV.

Costley, Alfred............. 3rd class clerk......... 20 Jan. '82 520 00 95 1ul '62 20 Jau. Sc

Kearns, William..........3rd class clerk .... .... 4 Oct. '83 440 00 24Aig. '55 4 Oct.

Meagher, Michael Henry .... Messenger ............ 4 9et. '83 430 00 18 June'36 4 Oct.

Bent, Edgar Augustus ...... Chf. Ev. Mail Clerk.... 1 Jan. '82 1500 00 14 Mav '51 13 Oct.

Gabriel, James McNutt...... lst class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Apr. '85 960 00 23 Sept. '55 26 Nov.

Browne, Alfred........... 2nd classRy. Mail Clerk' 1 Mar. '74 800 00 10 July'48 2 Fe].

Davison, Robert. .*......... 2nd elass Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Dec. '74 800 00 6 Fei. e34 25 Nov.

Cameron, John William IL. 2nd class lly. Mail Clerk! 1 Oct. '75 800 00 24 May '41 10 sept.

McNeill, John.............. 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Aug.'76 800 00 17 Fel. '48 2 IV

Crowley, William........... 2nd class Ey. Mail Clerk 1 July '79 1 720 00 Il Apr.'50 16 )ec.

Hall, Samuel ............. 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Nov. '81 720 00 2 Dec. '44 4 Oct

Hawkesworth, George Alex.. 2nd class Rv. Mail Clerk 1 Nov. '81 720 00 17 JuIv '58 4 Oct.'79

Ross, John David............ nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Apr.'85 600 00 10 Dec. '5 17 Pec-

Campbell, John ........... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 17 Dec. '80

Hustis, Sydney Osborne..... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 20 Jan. '82 520 00 19 Aug. '54 20 Je".

McKinnon, William Crane .. 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerkl 20 Jan. '82 52000 15 Sept. '59 20 J9n
McLean, David Von R...... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 20 Jan. '82 520 00 26 May '62 20 Je"

Keith, James Thomas........ 3rd class ty. Mail Clerk 3 May '82 520 00 7 May '58 3 'Y

McRobert. William e enry .. 3rd class liy. Mail Clerk 3 May '82 520 00 26 Feb.'54 3 May

Bennett, William.......... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 3 Mav '82 520 00 22 July '43 3 115

Power, Charles Edward... ... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 28 June '82 520 00 27 May '63 98 Jun

Eaton, William Payzauf ..... 3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk 21 Sept. '83 480 00 7 Aug. '54 21 sept

outhail, Frýderick.......3rd class ly. Mail Clerk 921 July '84 480 00 20 Feb. '60 21 Ap

HALIFAX POST OFFICE.

Blackadar Hugli William... Postmaste......... ... 5 Nov. '74 2,400 00 4 Mar. '43 2

M.'5 1,50000 1Ma'5 13Ot

Tremain, Frederick Valentine Assistant Postmaster... 1)600 00 17 Jan. '45 4 juuly

7 1 r 1



49 itoria. Sess ional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

HALIFAX POST OFFICE-Continued.

N~amie. Present Rank.

C i1gham, Arthur Henry. 2nd class clerk . .. . 1
eh4Jxberlain, William H .... 2nl class clerk ......... 1

Joseph Stanislas. ... 2nd class clerk. ........

caey1ghton, Thomnas Grassil ... 2nd class clerk,..... ... 1
Thomas William.. 3rd class clerk.........

am Villiers.. 3rd class clerk .... ... 1
#xLtahy Patrick Joseph. .... 3rd class clerk.........

eharles Dauiel...... 3rd 31ass clerk .... ...

Charles Matthew R. 3rd class clerk ..... ...
2 ran.k Joseph........ 3rd class clerk ........

e"i Whitney... ... 3rd class clerk .........

iliam............. 3rd class clerk.........
... ard Joseph.... 3rd class clerk .... ....

e Crawley ...... 3rd class clerk..... ....

"am Henry.. ... 3rd class clerk .........

e Alfred ...... 3rd class clerk.... .... 2

kW ndfl Addy .... 3rd class clerk ......... 1
Crossley....... 3rd class clerk ........ 1

Alfred
de...•............ 3rd class clerk ........

a .-..... Supt. Letter Carrier....
d iames........... Letter Carrier......... 2

........... Letter Carrier .... ...

......... ... Letter Carrier ........

rd) ' ienry Salter.... Letter Carrier ........

)41eJoh,1 Letter Carrier........ 1

•....... ..... Letter Carrier .......

t ''''' . ..-. Letter Carrier.........I

A.chibald...... Letter Carrier ......... 2
14% OhnACbd

. -''. *...... Letter Carrier......... 1

r.......... ... Letter Carrier......... 1

119

Date
thereof.

July'76

July '84

July '84

1July '84

July'79

1July'79

July '79

1 July '79

1 July'79

I July '82

1 Juiy '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

3 Mar. '83

5 Feb. '84

5 Feb. '84

2 Aug. '84

1 July'75

3 Jan. '67

1 July'71

1 Apr. '72

7 Feb. '74

8 June'75

8 June'75

9 Nov. '77

5 Dec. '78

8 June '81

7 Feb. '82

7 Feb.'82

Present
Salary.

$ ets.j
1,200 00

950 00

950 00

950 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

800 00

680 00

680 00

680 00

680 00

600 00

600 00

480 00

440 00

440 00

400 00

700 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

420 00

390 00

Date of
Birth.

15 N ov. '52

4 Sept. '40

8 Feb. '59

23 Nov.'50

27 July '49

15 Apr.'54

28 Feb. '55

12 Oct. '57

17 June '57

16 Aug. '60

23 Apr. '40

2 Feb.'59

5 Aug.'54

29 Oct. '45

15 July '60

21 Jan. '58

13 Aug 61

7 July'63

19 May '63

15 Apr.'50

24 Apr. '41

15 Aug.'36

22 Mar.'42

28 Juie '36

28 Nov.'43

12 July '44

16 Oct. '50

13 July '26

21 July '57

8 Apr. '35

390 00 16 Feb.'27

A. 1SS

Date of
First Ap-

pointment.

15 May '68

15 Mar. '69

16 Apr. '73

1 Sept.'73

1 Apr. '73

21 Feb. '74

1 Jan. '75

15 July '75

15 July '75

1 Nov.'75

1 May '73

1 Dec. '76

16 Dec. '76

26 Mar.'79

16 May.'79

23 Mar. '83

4 Feb. '84

2 Feb. '84

2 Aug. '84

1 Nov.'70

23 Jan. '67

1 July'71

1 Apr. '72

7 Feb. '74

18 June'75

18 June '75

9 Nov.'77

5 Dec. '78

28 June '81

17Feb. '82

17Feb. '82

1--l



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

HALIFAX POST OFFICE-Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Wood, John Samuel Michael. Box Collector..........

Mulcahy, Joseph James. ... Box Collector.........

Payne, Edward............. Box Collector.........

Theakston, MajorJohn.. ... Messenger.............

Date Present
thereof. Salary.

$ ets.
25 Sept.'75 600 00

20 July'78 580 00

25 July '81 390 00

5 Apr. '83 390 00

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND DIVISION.

Crable, Otto Russell ........ 2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 July '79

Haszard, Thomas Walter.... l2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk 1 Oct. '83

720 00 Il Apr. '57 23 Juie

640 00 27 Jan. '54 il Aug.

CHARLOTTETOWN POST OFFICE.

flrecken, Hon. Frederick de
St. Croix, Q.C.

Harris, William Henry......

Lawson, John Auld.........

White, Nicholas............

Trainor, Bernard ...........

Campbell, John Munro. ....

McCarey, Joseph.........

Macdonald, Daniel Joseph...

Brown, John George W......

Murýhy, Mathew William...

Robertson, John Neill.......

MANITOBA DIVISION.

McLeod, William Wallace...

McGillis, Alexander ........

Tuck, Charles Favor ........

Broughton, James Leeman...

Macpherson, William T.....

Marshall, Thomas Hadzor...

Inspector..............

2ud class clerk.

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.. .......

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

1 Mar.'82

5 Aug.'81

1 July '82

23 Mar.'83

1 July '85

1 July '85

120

2,200 00

1,050 00

680 00

480 00

400 00

400 00

25 Mar. '49

23 Dec. '22

1 July '61

7 Jan. '52

21 July '59

30 Apr. '61

1 Aug-

20 Jupe

1 Oct-

1 Juie

1 Oct-

1 APr.

6 Pee-

1 SePt

i ArP-

6 SePt

'0
6 JU>

1 91?eb"

28

23 M~

1jly

1jlf

A. 1SSO

Date of
Birth.

21 Feb. '54

22 Aug. '47

17 Mar. '46

5 Nov. '58

Date o
First APy

25 Sep t'

20 july

25 JulYi

5 Apr.

Postmaster and Assist.
Inspector ........... 1 Aug.'84 2,000 00 9 Dec. '28

2nd class clerk.......... 1 Mar. '82 1,050 00 21 Mar. '45

3rd class clerk......... 1 Oct. '74 800 00 23 July '42

3rd class clerk......... 1 July'79 800 00 l3Sept.'55

3rd class clerk......... 1 July '79 800 00 16 Apr. '56

3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 680 00 13 Apr.'56

3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 520 00 15 Jan. '64

3rd class clerk.. . . 1 July '82 520 00 4 May'58

3rd class clerk......... 5 Apr. '83 480 00 20 Oct. '62

3rd class clerk......... 6 Sept.'84 400 00 13 Nov.'60

3rd class lerk ......... 1 Juy '85 400 00 30 Jan. '42



victoria.

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

MANITOBA DIvIvis1oN-Continued.

Charles E .......

nd"rewý Jackson. .. ..

amres Adam Roy...
Wil4 Thomas. ........

Jales George........

Charles Richard....
I4aIiJames Thomas....

Langley............

nohI Green... ....

1 oseph Henry Patrick
william entt..

Ienlry llavelock..

rancis Edgar..

Orilrs......

Present Rank.

Chief R y. Mail Clerk ..

lst class R1y. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2ndclasslRy. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

3rd class Ry. Mail Clerk

WINNIPEG POsT OFFICE.

Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

Date
thereof.

15 Apr. '82

1 Dec.'72

1 May '83

1 Feb. '72

I Nov.'81

1 July '84

1 July '85

1 Aug.'72

25 Oct. '81

5 Nov,'83

4 Dec. '83

22 Apr. '84

8 May '84

1 Sept.'84

1 Sept.'84

Prescit
Solary.

$ ets.
1,200 00

960 00

800 00

800 00

720 00

600 00

600 00

800 00)

520 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

480 00

Date of
Birth.

31 Mar. '56

2 Dec. '38

16 Mar. '54

12 Mar. '51

27 Nov.'57

26June '53

23 Sept.'50

14 Mar.'50

21 Sept.'35

Il Mar. '63

27 Aug. '62

19 Feb. '62

13 Nov.'62

1 Feb. '61

11 July '61

Date of
First AI-
pointment.

1 Aug. '80

21 July '65

17 Sept. '72

20 Aug. '69

4 Oct. '79

1 May '82

18 Apr. '82

4 Jan. '70

10 Oct. '81

5 Nov. '83

4 Dec. '83

23 May '82

8 May '84

1 Sept. '84

1 Sept. '84



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

WINNIPEI POST OFFIcE-Contiued.

Name.

Cairns, Thomas Alfred......

Rice, William Anglin.......

Lamothe, Alfred Felix W....

Hargrave, George Arthur.....

Braden, William............

Arneil, Frank............

Monkman, Arthur..........

Smith, Daniel James........

Griffith, Edward Alfred.....

Cuningham, William ......

Miller, Robert..............

Brown, John...............

Present Rank.

3rd class clerk .........

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.

3rd class clerk .........

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk, ........

Supt. Letter Carrier....

Letter Carrier .........

Letter Carrier .........

Messenger ............

Date
thereof.

6 June '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '82

27 Mar.'83

25 May '83

21 Sept.'83

1 July '79

9 Jan. '84

12 Apr. '82

28 June '82

28 June '82

Present
Salary.

$ ets.
720 00

560 00

560 00

520 00

480 00

480 00

440 00

800 00

490 00

490 00

490 00

590 00

Date of
Bi 4

Date of
Ft Ar

j oDt''. po utli

18 Aug. '52 6 june

25 June '63 16 Feb.

21 Sept.'65 24 Mar.

21 Nov.'64 28 June

6 Jan. '58 7 SeP '

9 Mar. '57 9 SePt'

8 Oct. '57 21 SeP'

19 Jan. '51 1 Méar-

.......... 12' APr.

.......... 12Apr.

27 Feb. '61 28 JO'

29 Dec. '46 28 jaIe

BR1TISH COLUMBIA DIVIsION.

Fletcher, Everard Hyde.....

Dornan, William Henry ....

Ferguson, Horace Albert....

Rooney, John ..............

Inspector ...........

2nd class clerk ........

3rd class clerk.........I

2nd class Ry. Mail Clerk

1 July '84

1 May '76

21 June '84

1 Oct. '73

2,000

1,200

800

800

00

00

00

00

8 May '51

23 Oct. '56

21 Mar. '54

16 Oct. '52

VICTORIA POST OFFICE.

Wallace, Robert............ Postmaster............ 1 Feb. '84 2,20000 8Dec.'20

Chadwick, Thomas........ 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '82 560 00 16 July '63

Newberry, Cowper William.. 3rd class clerk......... 20 May '84 440 00 21 Apr. '66

Finlayson, Charles William.. 3rd class clerk......... 1 Dec. '84 40000 20 Oct.'66

4 Junl~

4,

1 May

8.Jil3

22 Oct.

15 Dec

20 gafY1 eC

122

A.



Yictoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

14.-THE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Present Rank. Date
thereof.

Present
Salary.

Date of Date of
Birth. First Ap-pîointilent.

ets.
4 seph Charles, M. D., Deputy Minister of Ag-

riculture.......... 11 Aug. '64 3,200 00 24 Dec. '20

.... Secretary, Chief Clerk.. 29 Sept. '71 2,500 00 20 Feb. '24

RESPONDENCE A NI) i MMI(IATIO>N.RANCR 1.--Fr.sT DVIls10ý.-COR

ry Beaumont.... Chief Clerk.........

liamn Frears. . 2nd class clerk ........

]ewett Wilson. 2nd class clerk.

s . . . . . . . .... 3rd class clerk.........

Charles ......... 3rd class clerk.........

sePhvarste... 3rd class clerk .........

hele......... .Messenger ..........

e ''..............M sseîigcr

iWfred Alfred. Messenger..........

? "hSeph........... Packer................

............... Packer................

1 Jan. '85

29 June '82

S May '84

19 Jnec '82

7 June '83

23 May '82

1 Aug. '63

23 May '82

15 Feb. '84

21 Junwe'84

21 June '84

1,800 00

1,250 00

1.200 00

1,000 00

880 00

700 00

500 00

390 00

330 O0

330 00

330 00

31 Oct. '31

1 Mar. '48

26 July '49

29 Apr. '49

10 July '48

22 Nov.'31

27 Jan. '20

25 Mar. '58

26 July '59

25 Apr. '36

23 Nov.'43

5 Dec. '5e

29 .July '70

8 Feb. '68

12 Feb. '80

1 Nov. '78

22 Apr. '72

24 Nov. '81

20 N ov. '62

--- '52

14 Dec. '80

28 Mar. '81

25 Nov. '80

7 Ot. '67

SECOND DIVISION.-iIsTORICAL A

nglas........lst class clerk & Ar-
' chivist ............. 23 June '80

seph Etiie E. 2nd1 class clerk & Asst.
Archivist .......... 14 July '83

TiHIRD DIVIsION.-COPYRIGHTs. TRADE

rwall st class clerk .. .. 14 June'83

re 12nd class clerk........ 12 Nov.'74

RCHIVEs.

1,700 00

1.300 00

MARKs, &c.

3 July '23 26 June '72

25 Oct. '44 24 Oct. '67

1,550 00 31 Oct. '46 12 Sept. '65

1,400 00 1 Aug. '38 Il Feb. '64

BRANci 2.-FRsT DivIsioN.

Ler Jefrey... Chief Clerk........... 30 Nov

h jar.S.. 2nd class clerk ........ .. 23 May

.... 2nld class clerk........ 23 May

123

.'69

'82

'82

A. 1SSG

2,350 00

1,250 00

1,250 00

13 Mar. '35

7 Nov.'42

30 Jan. '53

15 Sept. '57

12 July '64

15 Aug. '64

7

1

1



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE-INSIDE SERVICE.

BRANCH 2.-FIRsT DIvIsioN-Continued.

Béland, Louis Joseph.......

Verner, James William David

Copping. John George E....

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

23 May '82

1 June '84

20 May '84

900 00 15 Mar. '53

650 00 14 Mar. '45

650 00 15 July '38

SECOND DIVISION.

Dionne, Joseph Ferréol ...... lst class clerk.........

Lévèque. Auguste ........... 3rd class clerk.........

Caron, ('harles Francis 0.... 3rd class clerk.

Lyster, John Henry........ 3rd class clerk.........

lainright, William........ 3rd class clerk.

1 July '83

23 May '82

23 May '82

23 May '82

23 May'82

THIRD DIVIsION.

Casgrain, Herménégilde..... lst class clerk......... 12 Nov.'74

Routhier, David Alfred ...... 2nd class clerk...... .. 12 Nov.'74

Taché, Arthur Guillaume. .... 3rd class clerk......... 1 Julv '79

1,500

900

850

850

650

1,600 00

1,400 00

650 00

FOURTii DIVIsiON.

McCabe, Thoinas......... 2nI class clerk ........ 1 July '83 1,300 00

Fraser, Joseph Alexandre.... 3rd class clerk......... 22 Jan. '81 900 0

Léveillé, Joseph. ......... Model Repairer....... 19 Nov.'70 500 0

Lemaitre, George .......... Model Guardian ....... 1 ay '0
Chabot, Louis Zacharie......;Model Guardian....... 10 May '80 500 00

BRANCH 3.-STATIsTIcs AND CENsUrS.

8 Mar. '35

9 Mar. '50

1 Oct. '47

17 Oct. '55

13 Mar. '49

27 Apr. '42

1 Oct. '44

24 Dec. '57

22 July '34

15 June '38

16 July '43

18 Sept.'36

25 Oct. '40

Layton, John Gregory G .... Statistical Officer......

'Tanguay, iRev. Cyprien, D.L. Attaché Special ... ...

Bt. Denis, Emery Henri..... 3rd class clerk.........

Lyster, Mrs. Amy Florence.. 3rd class clerk .........

Fraser, Mrs. Henriette Lydia 3rd class clerk.........

124

23 Oct. '19 18

15 Sept.'19

18 July '51 9

20 Oct. '59

24 Jan. '50 12

A. 18

1]gay

12May
- -

8 pr

18 Apr.

4 July

18

20 De

7 e

4

15 r

19 N''

20

25

30 Sept.'84 1,550 00

1 July '68 1,400 00

23 May '82 850 00

12 May '84 600 00

12 May '84 450 00



9 Vietoria Sessional Papers (No. 4S.)

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Date
thereof.

Name. Present Rank.

achn Clapp....... Assistant Inspector. ...
Charles B3........... Caretaker Quarantine

Hospital............

illi"aa, M.D. .... Mortuary StatisticalOffi-
ChiPman ei ' cer .............

arence Campbell 2nd class clerk & Acet.,

Clarke, J London Office.......
ohn, M.D......... Mortuary StatisticalOffi-

S Acer...............
, Albert W.......Veterinary Inspector...

orge Rayward.... Mortuary StatisticalOffi-

1 Tcer..................
7, Thomas.......... Emigration Agent, Dub-

lin....... ..........

Joseph Alphonse... Suerintendent Cattle
Quarantine. ....... .

ohWaterhoise,M.D MortuaryStatisticalOffi-
1 cer..................

' nnd William A.. 3rd class clerk.........

ey Sadler... Government Agent Liv-
l'tel Qat lenerpool.... .......

enry, M.D... Mortuarv StatisticalOffi-
loy e C ........... .cer..............

Q11 a •- .-.......... Emigration Agent......

............. Emigration Agent... ...

eodore.......... Constable, Sheep Scab
Quarantine..........

-M. D. Medical Superintendent

...... Quar. Offi'r,Vict'ia, B.C

.............. Immigration Agent, Vic-
toria, B.C ..........

........ . .Mortuary Statis'l Officer

a .D.. MortuaryStatis'l Officer

40 ..e e .... Inspecting Physician...

i1 ':le, Chfl1e B-~. M.D Mortuary Statis'l Officer

b ' ........ Veterinary Inspector...

o.... nstable and Guardian

Present
Salary.

$ ets.

800 00

400 00

316 03

1,800 00

117 03

$5 p.day

115 54

1,000 00

800 00

165 31

600 00

- '67

11 Apr. '85

1 May '83

26 Sept. '83

1 Aug. '71

21 May '79

7 Feb. '83

Il Feb. '74

12 May '84

21 June '84

23 May '84

1 Feb. '82

Il Apr.'85

1 Jan. '84

26 Sept.'83

7 May '80

21 May '79

7 Feb. '88

Il Feb. '74

29 Apr. '78

23 Mar. '85

14 Oct. '69

17 Oct. '72

7 Apr. '85

29 May '74

18 Aug. '83

4 Dec. '83

5 Apr. '83

7 Mar. '85

1 July '79

10 Feb. '83

7 Apr. '85

7 Apr. '85

135 22

1,000 00

1,300 00

600 00

400 00

*1.000 00

1,000 00

128 71

124 72

400 00

451 86

1,800 00

600 00

- '40

26 Oct. '28

20 Mar. '40

. .........

28 Dec.'15

28 Nov. '34

. .. . ... ...

10 Nov. '30

30 Oct. '37

1 May'36

21 July'23

20 Jan. '27

20 Jan. '27

23 Mar. '85

14 Oct. '69

17 Oct. '72

7 Apr.'85

29 May '74

18 Aug. '83

4 Dec.'83

5 Apr'83

7 Mar. '85

1 July'79

10 Feb. '$3

7 Apr.'85

7 Apr. '85

I2~

A. 188G

Date ofDate of FisAiBit. First Ap-Birth. pointment.

23 Dec. '49, 26 May '79

30 Sept.'31 21 June '84

- '30 23 Mar. '83

2,100 00 1............ 29 Apr. '78

- '55

10 Mar. '50

9 Feb. '57

- '55

10 July '24

15 Dec. '50

27 Jan. '45

26 Dec. '57



49 Victoria. •Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1S6

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank.

Lévesque, Charles .......... Veterinary Inspector...

Miquelon, Joseph Zoel Cyr . . Asst. Iinmigra'nr Agent.

Morin, Edward, M.D....... Mortuary Statis'l Officer

McEachran, Duncan........ Chief Vet. Inspector ...

McEachran, Charles ........ Veterinary Inspector ...

McLeod, William M., M.D. Insp'ng Phy'n, Sydney.

Neilson, William J., M.D..i Mortuary Statis'1 Officer

O'Reilly, Francis........... Messenger, Quebec.. .

i-aré, Frédéric, M .D..... . Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Robillard, Adolphe, M. D. .. Mortuary Statis'l Oflicer

Rowand, Alexander E., M.D Medical Insp'r, Quebec.

Rutherford, James Page, M. D Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Eyall, lsaac, M. D. ......... Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Sith, Andrew............. ef Veterinary Insp'r
' for Ontario..........

St. Germain, J. H. L., M.D Mortuary Statis'lOfficer

Sylvester, George Perry, M. D Mortuary Statis'l Ofliceri

Sylvestre, 1saie, M. D....... Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Tracy, Robert, M.D........ Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Wickwire, William N., M.D Inspecting Physieian,
EIlifatx....... ......

Devlin, John .............. Steward, Quarantine
Station, Halifax.....

Devlin, Mary.............. Quarantine Matron ...

Harding, William S., M. D.. Inspecting Physician . .

Doherty, Catherine....... .. Stewardess...........

Matheson, George Gordon.. . Steward Quarantine
Hospital............

Mclsaac, Donald John ...... Caretaker Quarantine,
Hospital............

Stafford, Lawrence...... . Immig'tion Agent, Que.
bec.................

Doyle, Patrick....... ...... Asslt. lmmigra'n Agent,
Quebec............

-Stein, Léon ce Francois L. .... Chief Clerk of Immigra-
tion Office, Quebec...

126

Date Present Date of
thereof. Salary. Birth.

$ ets.
7 Apr. '85

5 June '77 1

$5 p. day

800 00

256 Il

1,500 00

1,800 00

1,00 00

119 96

' 365 
00

118 07

168 53

1,200 00

119 58

189 90

10 May '83

Il Feb. '84

12 May'84

16 Mar. '85

1 Aug.'83

4 Aug. '83

1 Aug.'81

9 Fe b.'85

10 Feb. '83

1 Mar. '65

29 Jan. '85

23 Mar. '83

20 Mar. '82

20 Feb. '85

20 Feb. '85

2 July '85

16 June '85

- '71

15 July '65

13 Aug. '73

3 June '74

1 Feb. '75

Il Aug.'81

12 Jan. '85

3 July '68

5 June'77

560

150

1,200

300

300 00

400 00

1,700 00

1,100 00

1,000 00

24 Jan. '38

Il Feb. '34

20 Apr. '54

27 Oct. '41

28 May '63

4 July'54

4 Mar.'54

3 Aug. '31

23 Sept.'37

18 Sept. '36

25 Dec. '20

Il Dec. '44

12 May '30

- '36

15 July'33

19 Dec. '52

22 Aug. '46

20 Feb. '36

18 Nov.'39

- '31

- '37

18 Jan. '14

1 May '37

3 Jan. '51

- '42

1 Apr. '20

21 May '38

21 Feb. '50

Date o
First Ar

7 Apr.

10 May

11 Feb.

12 1aty8

16 Mar.

1 Aug.

4Aug.~

9 Feb.

10 Feb'

1 Mar

29 Ja5j3

23 Mr.

20 ga.

20 Feb

22

20 JeI

16 Jafi•

15 JtiY

13 Au#'

14 Alug'

1 Feb-

12Ja"-

20 P"

1,200 00



49 victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

4ÀallloSC.........

nGeorge

Xavier

J ean~ Baptist.

doar...........tl11all aTho

ileedale,àjl

,wlah, > Ioh B., 'm. D...
*Williamil.......

Asst.Steward, urosseIsle j

B3oatian, Grosse Isle...

Boatmian, Grosse Isle..

Boatnan, Grosse Isle..

Boatman, Grosse Isle..

Baker, Grosse Isle.....

Mortuary Statis'l Officer

Date
thereof.

Naine. Present Rank.

e William... ...... Iterpreter.........
ale, John Joseph ........ Imjncration .. t.,Mon-

Pheao0l4ih't'a .............

rson, Richard... Immigration Agent,

Uitell Kingston.........
t arry..........Caretaker..........

'Wls, WVill.
liam J0 :. ..  Iînînigra'îî Agt.,Ottawa

1alds John Andrew. . ..

> Andrew Join. lininigtiî.Agt.,lamilt'n

George ...... Imit. At.,London.

amuel.......... mgtîî, Agt.,St. John

y . Imigtn. Agt., Halifax

William Cameron B. Immigration Agt., Win-

Otiett, Thonas nspeg...........
......... Imigtn. Agt., Branîdon

Jacob.......Immigration Agent....

Jarnes Michael... Immigration Agent,
Port Artihur....

J'"Eieiiii n.e. .. Ilmnigration Agtent,
Emnerson ..........

et, )Flrederick,MD Medical Snperintend't,
Grosse Isle ........

Henry.........Steward, Grosse Isle.
SAfldrewI........Interpreter, Grosse Ise.

Imtnigration Agt.,Mon

Mortuary Statis'l Officer J10 Jan. '85

Foreman, Cattle Qua-
rantine ............. 1 May '77

127

A. 1886

Present
Salary.

$ ets.

660 00

1.300 00

1,300

$1.25
day..

1,300

1,650

1,250

1,000

1,000

1.000

24 Apr. '68

7Aug. '69

2 May '70

6 May '72

17 Aug. '61

1 Sept.'64

30 Sept.'74

May '74

Il Feb. '80

2 Mar. '84

5 Feb. '83

12 Apr. '82

1 Apr. '83

5 June '84'

1 Apr. '76

18 Mar. '69

Il Aug.'83

1 May '55

27 Apr. '72

20 Apr. '72

I July '79

20 Apr. '72

1 July '79

8 Apr. '74

30 Apr. '83

1,200

600

400

266

350

240

350

240

400

190

120

600 00

Date of
Birth.

22 June '40

4 Sept.'42

23 Sept.'31

24 Dec. '37

25 June'18

4 Mar. '16

18 Mar. '28

29 Apr. '24

13 Dec. '13

20 July '59

18 Mar. '35

14 Nov.'30

22 Sept.'21

29 Sept.'54

26 Dec. '49

3 Feb. '43

. . ... . ....

26 May '30

31 Mar. '31

2 Feb. '49

4 Sept. '41

1 May '49

. ...... ...

22 Sept.'42

16 July '43

16 Oct. '23

21 Sept.'52

Date of
First Ap-
pointment.

Apr. '67

7 Aug. '69

2 May '70

6 May '72

17 Aug. '61

- '61

30 Sept. '74

- '66

11 Feb. '80

1 Nov. '82

23 Feb. '78

12 Apr. '82

16 Apr. '83

23 May '82

1 Apr. '76

18 Mar. '69

11 Aug. '83

1 May '55

27 Apr. '72

20 Apr. '72

1 July '79

20 Apr. '72

1 July '79

8 Apr. '74

30 Apr. '83

10 Jan. '85

13 May '72

1, 400 00

1,400 00

400 00

1.000 00

1,000 00



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Naine. Present Rank.

Colmer, Josepli Grose... .. ... Secretary to High Com-
missioner in England

Robert, Frangois........... Constable Sheep Scab
Quarantine ..........

Héroux, Moise ............. Contable Sheep Scab
Quarantine..........

Date
thereof'.

25 Oct. '81

16 Mar.'85

16 Mar. '85

Present Date of
Salary. Birth.

$ ets.

1,800 00 3 Jan. '56

600 00 ..........

600 00 ..........

15.-THE DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-1NSIDE SERVICE.

Smith, William............ Deputy Minister.

Hardie, John ............ Chief Clerk .........

Magee, William Loftus...... lst class clerk.......

Glourdeau, François Evariste. Chief Clerk........

Anderson, William Patrick. . 1st class clerk.. . .

Alexander, William Hewitson 12nd class clerk........

McElhinney, Mark Patton. . 2nd class clerk ........

Oxley, James Macdonald. ... 3rd class clerk........

Carleton, William Byron.... 3rd class clerk. ........

Halkett, James Brooke...... 3rd class clerk.........

Nicholson, Moses Vernon C. 3rd class clerk.........

Stumbles, William W....... 3rd class clerk .......

Owen, Alfred Wallace....... 3rd class clerk.........

McLelan, Thomas Edwin.... 3rd class clerk.........

Steele, Henry Vivian.....3rd class clerk.........

Hlalkett, Andrew......... 3rd elass clerk.........

McClenaghan, James Edward 3rd class clerk.........

Morin, Jules.............. Messenger ............

Robertson, James Alexander. Messenger ............

l1Nov.'67

22 Jan. '72

1 July '73

1 July '85

1 July '80

15 June'82

1 Aug. '82

17 Apr. '83

23 Nov.'71

7 Nov.'73

10 July '79

1 July '80

29 Oct. '81

15 June '82

1 May '84

1 July '79

1 July '83

7 Oct. '72

6 June '74

3,200 00 12 June'21

2,400 00

1,800 00

1,800 00

1.700 00

1,250 00

1.250 00

1,000 00

950 00

950 00

950 00

900 00

950 00

850 00

800 00

700 00

550 00

500 00

500 00

25 Aug. '33

18 Sept.'40

20 Oct. '44

4 Sept.'51

5 Mar. '47

18 Mar. '37

22 Oct. '55

31 Oct. '49

24 Sept.'45

10 July '46

20 Mar. '46

19 Apr. '43

19 Dec. '58

18 June '47

28 Oct. '54

21 Jan. '62

7 Oct. '42

25 July '60

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

&GENCY AT QUEBEC.

128

A. 1886

Date of
First J-e

1 p)oiftlt

- Mar.

16 Mar.

16 Mar.

11

il i

13

1

11 Z

17

23

10 J

1 J

29

15

1il
12
1]

7

6J

ov 1

Feb.

MIay

May

Aug.

A'pr.

Noiuly

ruly

Oct.

Juîly

ruJ

Oct.

une

Gregory, John Uriah........ Agent ................ 1 July '85 2,200 00 7 Nov.'30

Buteau, E. E............... Clerk to Agent........ 1 July '76 900 00 23 May '37

22 Aug.

1 JulY



k Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-OUTS1DE SERVICE.

AGENCY AT QUEBEC.-Continued

Name.

1anchette, Louis Alfred....

John Gregory..

Present Rank.

Clerk to Agent.

Clerk to Agent........

Date Present Date of
thereof. Salary. Birth.

$ ets.
1 July '82 1,000 00 28 May '48

1 Dec. '72 821 25 11 Nov.'57

AGENCY AT ST. JOHN, NEW BRUNswICK.

8 John Henry....... Agent ..............

ardiug Frederick J.. Clerk to Agent.

AGENCY AT HALIFA

b .enry Wentworth. Agent ................
Y, l1en~.

...... Clerk to Agent ........

A NCY AT VICTORIA,

lie Ge.tge .o.g.. Agent .............

1 July '83

1 Jan. '84

1,800 00

800 00

x, NOVA SCOTIA.

1 July '80

1 July '80

2,000 00

1,100 00

BRITISU COLUMBIA.

Il May '85 1,600 00 2 Jan. '30 11 May '85

AGENCY AT CHARLOTTETOWN, PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND.

...... Agent ................ 1 Sept.'84 1,200 00 14 May '36 1 Jan. '81

SUPERINTENDENT OF LIGIT HousEs.

,Ju ames
Întchin8 ''........ Supt. of Lights.......

aýrb Oharles Alfred.... Supt. of Lights.......
V illiam4  'Wi m........... Supt. of Lights.......

............ Supt. of Lights.......

1 Nov.'71

15Feb. '84

23 Mar. '83

1 July '83

1,200

1,200

1 200

1,200

10 Oct. '25

4 Dec. '42

16 Oct. '31

'25 May '35

1 Nov. '71

15 Feb. '84

10 May 80

1 June '80

BOARD OF EXAMINERS OF MHASTERS AND M1ATES.

11-tt, 
.

aYle JO . eter Astle, R.N Chairman ............. 25 May '82 2,000 00

........ Clerk to Chairman.. 5 Nov.'83 550 00

25 Feb. '16 7 Mar. 71

1 Aug.'52 5 Nov. 83

129

A. 1886

Date of
First Ap-

pointment.

14 May '72

1 Dec. '72

2 Jan. '18

1 Aug. '53

25 May '34

4 Apr. '18

1 Oct. '71

1 Nov. '71

1 Dec. '67

4 Jan. '73

e a



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

BOARD OF STEAM BoAT INSPECTION.

Name. Present Rank.

Risley, Samuel ............. Chairman..........

Smith, William Morgan..... Deputy Chairman......

Meneilly, Walter James.. ... ;Inspector..........

Burgess, John...........'... Inspector...........

Adams, Edward ........... Inspector....... ......

Samson, Joseph ............ Inspector... .......

Abell, Edmund R.......... Inspector..........

St. John, Oliver Phelps..... Inspector..........

Vigor, Edward Samuel...... Inspector..............

Date
thereof.

27 July '57

5 July '54

1 July '84

7 July '73

2 May '83_

1 Jan. '85

24 Nov.'83

19 Apr. '84

30 Apr. '84

INSPECTORS oF HULLS AND EQUIPMENT.

Coker, Charles R............

Harbottle, Thomas..... ....

Brunelle, Pierre.........

McElhinney, Mark Paton...

Dick, James................

Inspector..............

Inspector..........

Inspector..............

Inspector..............

Inspector..............

METEOROLOGICAL SERVICE.

Carpmael, Charles..........

Menzies, Thomas...........

stewart, William Alleyne...

Davison, William Fletcher..

Superintendent of Me-
teorological Office and
Director of Magnetie
Observatory at To-
ronto . .............. 1

Observer, Magnetic Ob-
servatory.........

Observer, Magnetic Ob-
servatory ...........

Observer, Magnetic Ob-
servatorv ...........

13)

3 Jan. '80

Apr. '53

Apr. '53

June '65

2.000 00 &
Director'sI
House, es-
tinatedat
$400.,... 19Sept.'46

540 00 29 May '21

540 00 25 Jan. '28

540 00 4 Mav '37

A. 18

Present
Salary.

$ cts.
1,800 00

1,400 00

1,300 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,200 00

Date of
Birth.

14 May '22

4 Nov.'18

28 Nov.'31

20 Nov.'25

22 Nov.'40

4 Nov.'33

11 Apr. '26

28 Apr. '46

7 July'47

Date o
First AP

pointniee

27 JulY

5 July

2 Mar.

7 JulY

2 MaY

24 Jan.

2 Feb.

19 Apr.

30 Apr.

5 Apr. '83

5 Apr. '83

5 Apr. '83

5 Apr. '83

22 Apr. '84

1,000 00 1

1,000 00

1,000 00

800 00

15 July '25

10 Aug. '29

29 Jan. '29

18 Mar.'37

29 Apr. '26

26 Sept

5 Ap'

5 Apr.

5 Apr.

22 Apr.

13 Jan'

Apf,

Apr.ApV



49 VictOria, Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

LIGHT HOUSE SERVICE.

Present Rank. Date Present Date of Date ofthereof. Salary. Birth. pointient.

Lights above Montreal.

ackett Ande . . . . . . . . . . . Keeper..............1 Oct. '75

ampb Thomas.......... Keeper......... ....... 1 Apr.'75
Turcotte Colise............ Keeper ............... 1 Nov.'77

beWiia, McGregor. Keeper................ 1 Oct. '80

............... Keeper................ 28 Mar.'68

~enjamin Booth...Keeper................ 8 Oct. '75
8WetnaX Frederick ........ Keeper............. .31 Mar '63

na George...........Keeper of Light and Fog
e...... ... .. ... .31 May '54

George Nicolson. Light Keeper.........

LberAlbert ....... Light Keeper... .

lfred ............ lLight Keeper...
patt

te Grret Wellington Light Keeper.

lliam.......... Light Keeper........

odi eorge............ Assistant Light Keepere0diCk, Robert............ Light Keeper.... .....

G), eorge............Light Keeper.........

ere, Pierre R. . Light Keeper.

Le imon............. Light Keeper..........
erdit P-

e 'rislien, Charles.. Light Keeper...

aileOlivier..... Light Keeper..........
TailUefer) Isaïe
Jol > Geare -........... Liglit Keeper..........

hii~ George H........Light Keepe. .........

Thoras ailenry.

allace n y ..a...a.. Ligt Keeper.......

... Light Keeper.

4R 13:

1 Apr. '75

15 Dec. '63

26 Jan. '66

27 Apr. '81

27 Sept.'66

27 Sept.'66

Mar. '72

1 Apr. '78

1 Apr. '84

1 May '80

1 May '80

29 Apr. '82

1 Apr. '81

18 Mar. '59

1 July '84

22 July '82

Sets.

4 Oct. '44 13 Jan. '64

1 Apr.'32 1 Apr. '75

15 May'32 1 Nov. '77

20 Sept.'44 1 Oct. '80

6 Oct. '45 28 Mar. 68

3 Jan. '27 8 Oct. '75

'25 31 Mar. '63

17 Feb.'27 31 May '54

13 July '40 1 Apr. '73

1J-n. '37 15 Dec. '63

2 Feb. '36 26 Jan. '66

4 Feb. '32 27 Apr. '81

- '44 27 Sept. '66

18 Nov.'51 27 Sept. '66

685, allow-
ed for
buoys
$150

300 00

250 00

450 00

425, allow-
ance $10

350 00

425, allow-i
ance $10'

1425, allw
ance $110

400, allow.
ance $lu

250 00

240, allow-
ance

350, allow-
ance $10'

425, allow<
ance $101

175 ou

500 00

650 00

400 00

250 00

200 00

300 00

300 00

250, allow-
ance $75

325 oc

250 O0

Mar. '72

1 Apr. 'w

24 Sept. '80

1 May '80

1 May '80

23 Nov.'39 29 Apr. '72

28 Feb. '41 1 1 Apr. '81

27 Dec. '31 18 Mar. '59

10 Apr. '52 1 July '77

16 May '54 1 July '81

A. 1886

2 Jan. '40

15Sept.'44

2 July '44

22 May '32

26 Feb. '24



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-OUTSIDE SERViCE.

LIGHT HOUSE SERvIcE-Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Mackenzie, Donald........ Light Keeper..........

Woodward, Henry Hitchcock Light Keeper..........

Dickinson, William E....... Light Keeper..........

Cullis, William............. Light Keeper and Fog
Xlarm Engineer.

Davieau, Hyacinthe........ Light Keeper..........

Smithers, Richard Hudson.. Light Keeper ..........

Chisholm, Robert Kerr...... Light Keeper.......

Dunlop, Albert............ Light Keeper.......

Collins, George ............. Liglit Keeper ..........

Lawson, Adam Alexander... Light Keeper.........

Charlebois, Edmond........ Light Keeper..........

Leclerc, Moïse.............. Light Keeper..........

Gloude, Benjamin.......... Light Keeper.......

Grubb, William Andrew.. . . Light Keeper..........

Burlingham, James......... Light Keeper..........

Pringer, Joln .............. Light Reeper.

Dick, Andrew.............. Light Keeper... . .

Sutherland, Alexander...... Light Keeper..........

Fortier, David Hugh A. Light Keeper and Fog
Alarm Engineer. .

Hunter, David........... Light Keeper..........

Scholfield, Fergus........... Light Keeper.

Ead, Charles............... Light Keeper..........

Morgan, Henry............. Light Keeper..........

Simpson, George Benedict ... Keeper and Guardian of
Presqu'Isle Lights &
Buoys.. . .........

Sherwood, William Henry... Light Keeper..........

Hudgins, Louis ............. Light Keeper. .... .. . .

Pye, Robert............... Light Keeper..........

Date
thereof.

21 May '74

24 May '69

30 Sept.'79

19 Sept.'82

1 July '81

20 Feb. '73

1 Oct. '66

28 Feb. '72

1 Jan. '75

1 July '85

1 May '74

19 Sept.'63

7 Sept.'72

1 Sept.'78

1 May '76

4 Jan. '67

10 Aug. '80

1 Apr. '76

31 Jan. '79

1 July '83

10 Apr.'71

25 Feb.'78

20 Oct. '64

1 Sept.

1 Apr.

25 Mar.

5 Apr.

132

Present •
Salary.

$ ets.
350 00

425, allow.
ance $10

400, allow-I
ance $10

700 00

400 00

400, allow-
anee $10

200 00

350 00

425 00

400 00

200 00

300 00

300 00

500 00

400 00

300 00

400 00

225 00

500

350

350

300

260

Date of
Birth.

28 Jan. '28

9 Nov.'29

24 Aug.'38

24 Aug.'50

15 Aug.'30

7 Sept.'24

25 May '19

21 Apr. '45

1l Jan. '17

4 May '46

1 Feb. '40

7 Jan. '27

22 Nov.'51

2 Mar.'50

5 Mar.'37

2Sept.'19

13 Oct. '32

14 Nov.'54

12 July '40

4 Aug.'30

4 July '44

20 Oct. '35

1OSept.'04

Date of
First AP

poifltmeo

20 May

24 MaY

30 Sept.

711Oct.

1 July

20 Feb.

1 Oct.

28 Feb.

20 Sept.

1 Nov.

i May

19 Sept.

7 Sept'

1 Sept.

1 May

4 Jan.

10 Aug'

7 v1ay

il Al)r.

29 Oct'

10 Apt,

7 Ju11

20 Oct.

475 00 13 July '13 28 Jan

375 00 24 Dec. '35 29 AP"

300 00 15 Jan. '15 25

400 CO 28 Apr. '26 5 APr

A. ISS0



49 y
ietOria.

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

LiGHr HousE SERVIcE-Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

athaniel Taylor....... Light Keeper..........

ks011' William.......... Light Keeper.....

her> Wlliam....... ... Light Keeper...........

John............ Light Keeper.......
1 ,'Williain .. . . i

.......... Ligit Keeper..........

e emuel s..... . .. ..Light Keeper..... ....
.am ........... Light Keeper..........

e dward........... Light Keeper ..........

.............. Light Keeper........

J .N............. Light Keeper..........
la Tho ma.1 . .J . ...  . . .Light Keeper.......

p leu .. .. .. .. .... ..Light Keeper..........

.ia... ......... Light Keeper ..........
Charles Stephen. ... Light Keeper..........

obert.......... Liglit Keeper........

(eorge Scott......... Light Keeper..........

·o1 . . .. . . . . . . . . . Light Keeper..........
8a Daniel.. ..... . . Light Keeper..........

I> Bryan.............. Light Keeper..........

Date
thereof.

2 Oct. '68

1 Aug. '80

23 Oct. '69

12 Nov.'70

1 Oct. '83

10 May '80

1 July '80

23 May '82

13 Sept.'25

8 Oct. '75

11 Apr. '83

1 Sept.'76

8 Aug.'76

21 Mar. '77

27 Aug. '77

1 Oct. '83

1 July '82

1 June '81

1 May '84

26 Oct. '21

LIGHTS BETWftENN IoN'REAL AND QUIÇBi.C.

Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

Present Date of
Salary. Birth.

$ ets.
425, allow-
ance $70 14 Feb. '22

400, allow-
ance $50 30 June '30

300, allow-
ance $25 Il May '17

200 00 30 Oct. '20

350 00 24 Jan. '24

150 00 10 Jan. '30

150 00 9 Nov.'30

300 00 8 May '37

500 00 9 Jan. '56

200 00 29 Mar.'15

500 00 12 Dec. '45

400 00 16 Oct. '17

150 00 19 July '05

500 00 21 Aug.'35

500 00 15 Feb.'38

350 00 31 July '35

150 00 22 Apr. '12

200 00 6 Jan. '25

200 00 20 Mar.'33

300 00 8 Oct. '41

Date of
First Ap-
dointment.

2 Oct. '68

1 Aug. '80

23 Oct. '69

12 Nov. '70

5 Mar. '75

10 May '80

1 Apr. '75

23 May '82

13 Sept. '75

8 Oct. '75

1 May '80

1 Sept. '76

8 Aug. '76

21 Mar. '77

27 Aug. '77

2 Oct. '79

11 Feb. '80

1 June '81

1 Oct. '81

26 Oct. '81



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

LIGHTs BETWEEN MONTREAL AND QUEBEC-Contlnued.

Date of
Name. Present Rank. Date Present Date of First AP-thereof. Salary. Birth. poinitmnen't

$ ets.
Martin, Paul, jr............ Light Keeper.......... 28 Apr. '73 150 00 10 July '33 28 Apr

Hammond, Ira W ........ Light Keeper .......... 8 Sept.'75 200 00 2 Apr. '52 8 Sept.

LImurs BELOW QUEBEC.

Cormier, William........... Light Keeper .........

Gagné, Thomas.....,........ Light Keeper ..........

Pope, Edward.............. Light Keeper..........

Carter, William........... Light Keeper.......

Malouin, Alfred............ Light Keeper ..........

Galibo's, Jean Baptiste... ... Light Keeper..........

Col'en, Michael ............ Light Keeper ..........

Parent, Etienne ........... Light Keeper, ..........

Turbide, Télésphore ....... Light Keeper.......... 1

Richard, Alphonse........ Light Keeper... ....

Côté, Louis Tréflé........... Light Keeper.........

Dion, Samnuel .............. Light Keeper .........

Locke, Henry .............. Light Keeper..........

Trudeau, Auguste ........... Light Keeper..........

Landry, Elimine............ Light Keeper...........

Painchaud, Joseph.......... Light Keeper..........

Setter, Robert.............. Light Keeper..........i

Cassidy, James............ Light Keeper.......

Wyatt, Matthew Thomas. . Light Keeper ..........

Esnouf, Charles Dumaresq... Lt. Keeper & Engineer.

Lindsay, Gilbert William... Light Keeper ..........

Desjardins, Thomas Roy .... ILight Keeper ..........

Boulliane, Pierre ............ Light Keeper ..........

Côté, Paul................. Light Keeper.........

Bertrand, Auguste........ Light Keeper.......

Desjardins, Octave......... Light Keeper..........

26 Apr. '71

9 Sept.'68

21 Oct. '57

1 Oct. '80

1 July '84

23 June '80

1 Jan. '83

19 July '80

16 Sept.'81

7 Oct. '78

10 Sept.'74

1 Jan. '85

Il Nov.'72

17 Oct. '63

27 Oct. '73

1 Oct. '64

9 Oct. '66

9 Oct. '74

26 Sept.'79

19 Sept.'73

11 Feb. '67

1 July '83

2 Dec. '74

3Nov.'71

21 Dec. '77

23 May'79

300 00

400 00

400 0i

900 00

400 00

320 00

900 00

600 00

1,300 00

400 00

300 00

400 00

500 00

400 00

300 00

320 00

200 00

300 00

800 00

800 00

500 00

450 00

200 00

500 00

300 00

250 00

21 June '46 26 Apr.

Oct. '22 9 Sept.

Il Mar. '23 21 Oct.

17 Feb. '44 1 Oct.

1 Apr. '52 1 July

23 Jan. '41 23 Juie

9 Oct. '51 1 Apr.

15 July '28 19 July

6 June '48 16 Sept'

1 Oct. '46 7 Oct.

26 Aug. '37 10 Sept'

3 May '42 17 June

21 June '37 11 No

24 Mar. '36 17 Oct.

7 Apr. '24 1 Apr.

15 July '44 1 Oct.

31 Mar. '17 9 Oct.

24 Sept.'36 23 SePt.

13 Mar. '32 2 6 Sept.7 1

3 Nov.'50 19 Sept

24 May '28 il Feb

9 June '26 14 Nov.

12 July '30 14 Apr.

29 Mar.'40 3 5oq.

25 Dec.'45 21 vec

2 Aug '30 23
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DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

LIGHTS BELOW QuEBEo-Continued.

Name.

Simard, Edouard...........

Desjardins, David..........

Uabin, Louis Damase, jr....

Tafford, Louis Ferdinand. ...

Loisel, John................

Lemieux, Ferdinand........

Chabot, Edouard........

Tremblay, Dorilas..........

Rodrique, François Fredéric..

Frazer, Elzier..............

Lafleur, Léon...............

Thurber, William...........

Martin, Jules...........

Beck, John................

Pelletier, Edouard........

Leblanc, Capt. Régis.......

Delisle, Trefflé..........

Gourdeau, Capt. Isaac .....

Present Rank.

Light Keeper ..........

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper ..........

Light Keeper.......

Light Keeper .......

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper ..........

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper..,.......

Light Keeper ..........

Light Keeper .......

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper ..........

Light Keeper, Light
Ship & F. W........

Light Keeper ..........

Light Keeper Light Ship

Beaubien, Joseph Hudon dit. Li ht Keeper 2 Range
Lights .............

Guay, Louis................ Light Keeper..........

Gauthier, Jean...... ..... Light Keeper ..........

Arcand, Flavien............ Light Keeper..........

Beaumont, Louis Couillard de Light Keeper..........

Savard, Jean............... Light Keeper .........

Tremblay, Hilaire.......... Light Keeper ..........

Ascah, James.... ........ Light Keeper.......

Date
thereof.

2

2

1 July '83

1 Apr. '81

3 Feb. '74

6 Oct. '72

1 Mar.'79

8 Oct. '81

1 Aug.'80

1 May'75

2 Jan. '58

22 Oct.'61

15 Mar.'67

5 Oct.'78

23 Dec. '79

1 Sept.'74

15 July '82

Il Jan.'78

27 May'80

8 May '66

29 Oct. '75

1 May '77

21 Feb.'76

20 Apr. '7

23 May '7

4 June'8

4 June'8

2 Sept.'8

Present
Salary.

$ ets.
300 00

340 00

450 00

400 00

150 00

400 00

300 00

350 00

2E0 00

500 00

150 00

175 00

300 00

400 00

1,500 00

500 00

500 00

2,300 00

250 00

300 00

300 00

6 500 00

400 00

3 300 00

3 300 00

0 400 00

Date of
Birth.

18 Dec. '44

9 Apr.'26 .

16 Aug.'48

5 Mar.'23

15 Mar.'22

12 Nov.'29

19 Jan. '46

8 Aug.'35

26 Dec. '37

12 Mar.'37

7 Aug.'23

1 June '35

-- '56

23 Apr. '29

11 Jan. '28

21 Apr. '38

24 May '54

29 Mar.'36

25 Oct. '45

............

7 Jan. '41

2 Sept.'30

22 May'32

9 Mar.'07

14 Jan. '33

17 Mar.'31

Date of
First Ap-

poimtment.

28 Oct. '70

1 Apr. '81

23 Feb. '74

26 Oct. '72

1 Mar. '79

28 Oct. '81

1 Aug. '80

18 Feb. '75

22 Jan. '58

22 Oct. '61

15 Mar. '67

5 Oct. '78

23 Dec. '79

1 Sept. '74

16 May '79

11 Jan. '78

27 May '80

8 May '66

29 Oct. '75

13 Aug. '75

21 Feb. '76

20 Apr. '76

23 May '78

25 Oct. '76

25 Oct. '76

2 Sept. 80

LIGHTs IN NOVA ScoTIA.

MacFarlane, John .......... Light Keeper ........ 27 Oct. '79 450 00 10 July '31 27 Oct. '79

Ellis, William Enslie ....... Light Keeper ......... 8 Mar.'75 800 00 25 Sept.'37 8 Mar.'75
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

LIGHTS IN NovA SCOTIA-Continued.

Nae. Present Rank. Date Present Date of pDat ofthereof. Salary. Birth. FoirstmAp-

------------

e ts.
Tate, James............. Liglit Keeper......... 1 Jan.'67 380 00 15Jan.'20 1Jan.

DeCoste, Christopher........ Light Keeper ......... 14June '75 250 00 24 Dec. '44 l4June'75

Snow, George Henry........ Light Keeper ......... 1 Apr. '81 850 00 29Mar.'56 ].Apr. '8

Hall, John William....... Light Keeper ......... 8 Oct. '77 400 00 10 Feb. '48 80ct. '77

Morrison, Donald.......... Light Keeper ........ 31 Mar. '68 350 00 18 Aug/23 1 31 Mar.' 6 8

Ruggles, Henry M.......... Liglit Keeper ......... 1 Dec. '64 400 00 31r'37 1Dec.'6 4

Power, Lawrence........... Light Keeper ......... 14 Jan. '79 200 00 10 Dec. '41 14.Jan4'7 9

Robichaud, Mathurin ....... Light Keeper ......... 31 Mar.'68 500 00 9 Nov.'10 31 Mar.'6S

Doane, Isaac............ Light Keeper ......... 1 July '71 800 00 13 Sept.'54 1 july '71

McKenzie, Roderick ....... Light Keeper ......... 1 Aug.'81 30000 20Jan.'33 1Aug.'SI

Johnson, Edward.......... Light Keeper ........ 14 May'72 500 00 29 M ' 14 May '7

LeQuesne, John........... Light Keeper........18 Ma '81 300 00 D. ' 18 May'81

Creighton, Henry H........ Liglit Keeper ......... 6 May'74 200 00 il Sept.'37 6May'74

Smith, George Edward...... Liglit Keeper.........7 July '80 8

Fulker, Benjamin ......... Light Keeper ......... 4 Oct. '78 380 00 12 May'19 1A.'6

Condon, William, jr..... .. Light Keeper ......... 6 May '74 500 00 1 Mar.'55 6May'74

White, Joseph B........... Light Keeper ......... 16 Nov.'64 280 00 19 Mar.'16 16Nov.'64

Sellon, S. T. N............. Light Keeper ......... 1 Jan. '55 240 00 27 Dec. '08 1Jan.p66

Duarie, William............ Light Keeper ......... 30 Oct. '71 500.OO 15 Sept.43 30 Oct. '71

Pearl, Albert............... Light Keeper ......... 29 Dec. '73 500 00 29 Nov.'40 29Dec.'7$

Orchard, Lorenzo Dow...... Light Keeper ......... 1 Jan. '77 400 00 30May'50 1 Jan.'77

McDougall, Laughlin....... Light Keeper......... 30 Nov.'57 420 00 30June '25 30Nov.'61

Wolf, Enos ................ Light Keeper ......... 11July'64 360 00 9 July'22 il July '64

Crooks, Seth ............ Light Keeper ........ 2OJune '72 350 00 16 May'30 2OJune'72

MacDonall, Alexander...... Light Keeper......... 3 Dec. '72 500 00 15 July'37 3 Dec

Firth, Charles Morrison..... Light Keeper ......... 3OJune'80 350 00 23Nov.'47 30June!8 0

Peters, John Grant......... Light Keeper ......... 1 Oct. '65 460 00 16 Jan. '32 1 Oct. '65

Ernst, John Andrew........ Light Keeper......... 29 Oct. '64 300 00 19 Feb. '04 29 Oct

Burke, James........... Light Keeper......... 2 May'71 300 00 4 Sept.'22 2 May '71

Early, William............. Light Keeper......... Oct. '58 230 00 17Apr. '06 Oct.

40-0 01e. 438Ot.7



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPAR 'MENT OF MARINE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

LIGHTS IN NovA ScoTIA-Continued.

Name. Dae 'PresentPresent Rank. there f. Saythro. Salary.

Edward..............ILight Keeper.
Mullins, Zebud.............Liglt Keeper.

James..........Light Keep

Meay, Robie.......... Liht Keeper.
Newcomb, John Hatfield.... Light Keeper.

iOgg, James William.......Light Keeper.
Qhisholm, Colin A..........Light Keeper.
houner, George..........Light Keeper.

elonald, John Allan. Light Keeper
liebolald Joseph H... Light Keeper.

onald, James ..... Light Keeper.

erry, s...Light Keeper.

James M...........Liglt Keeper.

ew, Mathurin.........Light Keeper.
eaton, Angus ............. Light Keeper.

Glkie, Alfred............Light Keeper.

àtxndeli, Joseph..........Light Keeper.
James William. hSpt. and Keeperof .u-

mane Establishment
L tand Fog Whistle .. ..
Lght.Keepe r Lighthouse a

Engmneer Fo. Whistle
Angus Bain. Light Keeper.........

13 'by) Charles William .... Light Keeper ..........

ig, Francis .......... LightKeeperLt.&F.W.
Edward.........Light Keeper .......

Basil..........Light Keeper ..........

eorge...........Light Keeper .........

~~ut1h1 U ÏJTUna j pert; De George.. Light Keeper .......

..............Light Keeper ..........

J Light Keeper..........
Light Keeper ..........

137

A. 18868

e s.

Date of
Birth.

500 00

250 00

300 00

350 00

340 00

400 00

350 00

150 00

280 00

150 00

250 00

260 00

260 00

240 00

300 00

400 00

400 00

,

1

1 Feb.'79

1 May'84

1 July '85

4 Feb. '82

30 June'74

1 July'81

5 Mar.'77

18 Apr. '74

10 May '80

1 July '80

1 Apr. '75

31 Dec. '53

26 Oct. '59

15 Dec.'53

1Nov.'78

1 July '81

18 Oct. '69

5June '85

16 Apr.'80

17 Jan. '76

9Nov.'74

10 May '80

3 Dec. '80

17 Apr. '71

11 Aug. '75

16 June '75

1!May '67

1 July '71

23.Feb. '74

23 Oct. '21

8 Aug.'23

10 May '29

12 Aug.'45

10 May '10

27 Sept.'52

17 Jan. '42

31 Oct. '38

7 June'45

14 Oct. '50

17 Mar.'22

11 Aug.'30

8 Feb. '41

18 Oct. '21

12 Aug.'24

16 Aug.'50

23 Feb. '44-

5 June'34

27 Mar.'46

Il Jan. '42

15 June '23

12 May '54

13 Oct. '28

25 Dec. '18

2 Feb. '37

14 Aug. '53

1 Jan. '39

23 Dec. '44

30Jan. '31

800 00 l

800 00

140 00

200 00

400 00

250 00

200 00

250 00

300 00

400 00

800 00

350 00,

Date of
First Ap-

dointment.

31 Mar.'6&

16June '74

20 June '72

4 Feb. '82

30 June '74

1 July '81

5 Mar.'77

18 Apr. '74

10 May'80>

3 Nov.'77

15 Mar.'70

31 Dec. '5a

26 Oct. '59

15 Dec. '53

1 Nov.'78

8 Jan. '77

18 Oct. '69

22 July '75

1 May'73

17 Jan. '76

9 Nov. '74

10 May '80

7 July '7a

17 Apr. '71

20 June '72

16 June''75

1 May '67

1 July '71

23 Feb. '74



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

LIGHTS IN NOVA ScoTIA-Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

Latimer, Charles............ Light Keeper.........

Smith, Robert Innis ........ Light Keeper ..........

McNeil, Stephen........... Light Keeper..........

McKay, Donald John....... Light Keeper..........

Quinn, James ............. Light Keeper ..........

Saulnier, John Hilaire....... Light Keeper ..........

Wrayton, William Walsh... Light Keeper ..........

Samson, Cyrille............. Light Keeper ..........

Campbell, Samuel Cunard... Keeper of the two light-
houses & Supt. of Hu-
mane Establishment
on St. Paul's Island..

Muirhead, Robert........... Engineer of Fog Whistle

Kenney, James Rodman.. ... Light Keeper..........

Christian, Patrick, sr...... Light Keeper..........

McRae, Donald........... Light Keeper.......

Gerrior, Dennis............ Light Keeper..........

Palmer, Howard Walter..... Light Keeper..........

Gilkie, Alexander........... Engineer & Keeper of
og Whistle ... ..

Winton, Robert Bruce...... Light Keeper .........

Wrayton, Arthur McAvoy.. Light Keeper ..........

Bollong, James............. Light Keeper..........

.Card, Nelson............... Light Keeper..........

Rand, Allan T.............. Engineer Fog Whistle.

Perry, John ........... . .. Light Keeper ..........

Baker, 'Thomas............. Light Keeper ..........

Webb, William John ....... Light Keeper ..........

Monroe, William Leander... Light Keeper ..........

McLeod, Angus.......... Light Keeper..........

Ferguson, John............ Light Keeper..........

Date
thereof.

1 Dec. '74

11 Nov.'73

14 Mar.'74

14Mar. '74

1 Apr. '75

8 Aug. '78

13 Jan. '80

1 Dec. '74

17 Apr. '71

6 Nov.'74

27 May '75

27 Sept. 75

29 Nov.'75

17 June '78

22 May '78

8 Jan. '77

1 May '78

25 Nov.'74

6Aug.'77

12 Nov.'77

5 Sept.'77

17 Dec. '78

1 Oct. '83

26 Sept.'79

28 Oct. '79

27 Oct. '80

29 Oct. '80
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Present
Salary.

$ ets.
300 00

300 00

120 00

160 00

200 00

200 00

350 00

350 00

600

500

500

500

200

250

200

500

450

150

300

500

500

500

350

200

300

400

120

Date of
Birth.

14 Jan. '30

15 May '44

June '40

3OMar. '25

- '24

20 June '49

22 Mar. '57

15 Sept.'31

19 Oct. '36

14 Nov. '51

24 Jan. '20

28 July '31

15 June '35

25 Mar. '54

11 Sept.'59

..........

2 Mar.'30

20 Sept.'49

12 Apr. '39

15 Mar.'18

26 Mar. '41

20 May '37

26 Jan. '38

7 Feb.'55

21 Oct. '52

15 Mar. '37

21 Apr. '40

Date of
First Ap-

pointmeit.

1 Dec. '74

il Nov. '73

14 Mar. 7

14 Mar. 74

13 Apr. '74

8 Aug. '78

13 Jan. '80

1 Dec. '74

17 Apr.

6 Nov.

27 May

27 Sept.

29 Nov.

17 June

22 May

8 Jan. '71

28 Apr. '71

25 Nov. '74

6 Aug. 'I

12 Nov. '7

5 Sept. '7

17 Dec. '1

19 May '79

26 Sept. '79

28 Oct. '79

27 Oct. '80

29 Oct. '80



19 Victoria. bessionai rapers ýiNo. io.>

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

LIGHTS IN NEW BRUNSWICK.

Name.

U1therland George A ........

ent, Arthur Wellesley. ....

al5cklock, George Coleman..

4lanc, Charles Placide....

hps, Thomas...........

'lliston, William W.......
et Oliver Arthur ........

ýeifsbUrrow, Robert ........
eEwen, David.........

b7îy, Timothy.............

'on, James...........

lant, William Abel ......

9tyra'st, James.............

hichard, Fabien .........

Pendlebury, George Alex....

Present Rank.

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper.......

Light Keeper.......

Light Keeper........

Liglit Keeper..........

Light Keeper...........

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper.......

Liglit Keeper........

, Timothy............. Light Keeper..........
ko5son, Duncan.......... Light Keeper..........

rtson, Mier..... ...... Light Keeper.

earesq, Francis.Xavier... Light Keeper.

Iow, Ezra.............. Light Keeper .........

1el1t, John Ward........... Light Keeper .........
07, Thomas............. Light Keeper.........

&tcher, William............ Light Keeper.........
obichaux, Dosithé J. B.... Light Keeper ........

, John............ Light Keeper ........
asttoJae

, eJames. ........ ... ... Light Keeper .........

Edward Dukes ....... Light Keeper .........
orbes, Joseph ............. Light Keeper ........

, Alexaxder........ Light Keeper........

kaloey, lugh............ Light Keeper.......

139

Date
thereof.

1 JuIy '85

15 Sept.'75

19 May '73

4 May '72

19 Sept.'73

31 May '73

20 Jan. '80

12 Oct. '72

22 July '75

1 Oct. '78

1 Jan. '83

14 June '75

8 Dec. '81

1 July '75

6 Apr. '52

7 Jan. '84

25 Feb. '80

7 Apr. '77

3OApr. '84

19 Sept.'82

1 Apr. '73

9 July'73

7 Nov.'72

20 Apr. '71

7 May '75

1 May '75

19 Sept. '82

19 Mar.'77

7 Apr.'77

13 Nov.'83

Present
Salary.

$ cts.
200 00

300 00

400 00

250 00

800 00

300 00

600 00

200 00

300 00

700 00

800 00

400 00

200 00

185 00

300, allow-
ance $20

470 00

300 00

250 00

280 00

500 00

400 00

200 00

240 00

250 00

200 00

500 00

650 00

150 00

250 00

350 00

Date of
First Ap-

pointment.
Date of
Birth.

23 Mar.'39

20 Dec.'44

18 Oct. '26

17 Oct. '41

11 July '24

29 Dec. '43

3 Apr.'37

10 May '15

3 July '44

30 June '30

16 May '32

28 Nov.'44

4 Aug.'18

6 Jan. '13

14 Feb.'19

4 Dec. '36

29Dec. '28

29 July '42

12Dec. '40

12 Mar.'34

23 June '40

17 Dec.'18

22 Dec.'46

14 Aug.'30

10 Jan. '35

28 May '09

31 Aug.'18

15Feb. '20

27Nov.'27

29 May '16

6 Apr. '52

20 Dec. '72

25 Feb. '80

29 Dec. '73

9Nov. '72

15 Jan. '76

1 Apr. '73

9 July'73

7 Nov.'72

1 Apr. 75

7 May'75

1 July'74

3 Apr. '73

19 Mar.'77

7 Apr.'77

IOAug.'80

£I. -LUU

20 Mar.

15 Sept.

19 May

4 May

19 Sept.

31 May

20 Jan.

12 Oct.

22 July

1 Oct.

5 Dec.

1 Apr.

8 Dec.

1 May



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.
LIGHTS iN NEW BRUNSWIcK-Continued.

Name. Present Rank. there f.

Ross, Elijah................. Light Keeper ......... 27 Jan. '80

Hamm, Charles Philip...... Light Keeper......... 14 Jan.'79

Léger, Pacifique ............ Light Keelier ......... 1 16 May '79

Roy, Hilarion.............. Light Keeper ......... 25 June'79

Helms, George.............. .Light Keeper ......... 3 May'82

MeLaughlin, Walter B ...... Light Keeper........ 29 Oct. '79

Seely, Neil................. Light Keeper ......... 3 May'80

Daggett, Mark............. Light Keeper......... 15Nov.'83

McKnight, Joseph .......... Light Keeper......., 1 July '81

Hachey, Octave ............ Light Keeper ........ 12 July'81

Present
Salary.

$ ets.
300 00

300, allow-
ance $25

200 00

150 00

400 00

500 00

700 00

400 00

150 00

150 00

Date of
Birth.

17 Aug.'45

20 Feb. '32

10 May '33

22Nov.'19

4 Feb. '33

24 Jan. '29

12 May '46

10 Oct. '36

28 July '36

-'34

Date of
Firtt AP-

pointillent.

5 Mar.'7
8

14 Jan. 79

16 May '

25June'79

3 May '82

1 Apr.'53

'3 May '80

15Nov.'8 3

1 iJulys'8

12 July'8 1

LIGHTS IN BRITIsHl Co.xUMBIA.

Argyle, Thomas ........... Light Keeper .......... 1 Jan. '80 1,500 00 3 Aug.'39 2OJuly

Cox, Emanuel............ Light Keeper.......... 21 Dec. '77 500 00 20 Jan. '32 .21 Dec.

Erwin, Walter ............. Light Keeper.......... 5 Oct. '80 700 00 14Aug. '52 5 Oct.

McKinnon, Alexander...... Light Keeper .......... 21 Dec. '77 500 00 25 Dec. '36 21 Dec.

Gray, Robert............... Light Keeper.......... Nov.'76 600 00 12 Oct. '35 5 Nov.

LIGHTS IN PRINCE hD w ARD IsLAND.

McLaine, Archibald ........

McCabe, John..............

Beaton, Alexander Rentforth.

McLellan, Angus Jerome. ...

McDonald, William.........

McLeod, Michael...........

Ronaghan, Peter.........

McDonald, William.........

McMillan, James...........

Light Keeper .........

Light Keeper ..........

Liglit Keeper .........

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper.... ...

Light Keeper..........

Light Keeper..........

Walsh, James............... Liglit Keeper .........

McDonald, Angus (Neil's son) Light Keeper..........

Hewson, William.,......... Light Keeper..........

Munn, Thomas Hugh.. .ILight Keeper..........

A. 18S6

26 July '73

il May '85

26 July '75

30 Oct. '80

30 Oct. '80

26 July '75

26 July '75

1 Dec. '75

7 Oct. '80

15 Nov.'81

13 Nov.'80

18 Aug. '81

11 Nov.'81

300 00

200 00

250 00

250 00

300 00

300 00

250 00

300 00

250 00

300 00

200 00

200 00

300 00

5 Aug. '23

28 Jan. '55

1 Nov.'22

30 Nov.'12

6 Jan. '27

27 Mar. '24

16 Apr. '46

29 Aug.'46

9 May '29

20 Feb. '30

10 May '31

8 Sept.'34

8 Oct. '34

3 Apr. '67

1 June '80

10 July '67

20 Apr. '73

20 Nov. '5

3 June '73

21 Apr. '73

1 Dec. '76

7 Sept. '76

15 Nov. '81

13 Nov. '80

18 Aug.' 81

il Nov. '81
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16.-THE DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank. thereof.

Major John.......... Deputy Minister.......

tauset, Samuel Pierre ...... Chiet Clerk...........

Vennllg, Robert Norris .... 2nd class clerk.........
'Webster, James Sutton. .... 3rd class clerk.........

Belliveau, Aimé Henri....... 3rd class clerk.........
Kent, Silas Blair..... ...... .3rd class clerk.........

Aond, Telmont .......... 3rd class clerk .........

John Adam........3rd classe clerk.........

1 July '84

21 Sept.'85

15June '82

15 June.'82

15 June'82

1 June '82

1 July '83

15 June'82

DEPARTMENT OF FISH ERIES.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

ot, Samuel ............ Supt. of Fish Culture..

not, Charles........... In charge of Newcastle,
Ont., Fish Hatchery
& Clerk to Supt .....

aRrker, William............ In charge of Sandwich.
Ont., Fish Hatchery.

'eord, Joseph.......... In charue of Tadousac,
Que. fish Hatchery..

bert, Philip .............. ln char ofGaspé (Que)
Fish atchery .... ...

Alexander.......... In charge of Restigouche
(Que.) Fish Hatchery.

,Aan Head .. ....... In charge of Magog(Que)
Fish Hatchery .. ....

Asa Burnham...... In charge of Bedford
Basin (N. S.) Fish
Hatchery...........

Nuharson, C. A......... In charge of Sydney
(N. S.) Fish Hatchery

heasgreen, Isaac........... In char ge of Mirimachi
l(N.B.) Fish Hatchery

1cClUskey, Charles......... lIn charge of St. John
River (N. B.) Fish

e H a t c h e r y . . . . . . . . . . .
,lenry.-.. .... .... .l I chare of Dunk River

(P.E.1) FishlHatchery
Thomas........... In charge ofFraser River

(B.C.) Fish Hatchery.

8Since deceased.

1 July '76

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July'74

1 Jan. '85

1 Sept.'82

1 Feb.'81

1 Nov.'75

1 Sept.'81

1 Jan. '74

Aug.'82

1 July '80 1.

1 Aug.'85

2,000 00

750 001
250 00

750 00

22 Aug.'22

2 Apr. '55

15 Aug.'42

600 00 1............

300 00

600 00

600 00

800 00

500 00

27 Jan. '44

22 Sept.'56

20 Apr. '36

15 Nov.'46

20 Dec. '35

500 00 !..........

600 00

400 00

1,200 00

Aug. '21

22 Apr. '34

15 May '59

A. 1886

Presenit
Salary.

$ cts.
3,200 00

1,800 00

1,250 00

850 00

850 00

850 00

750 00

550 00

Date of
Birtli.

27 Mar.'37

6 Dec. '32

14 Feb. '54

14 Dec. '46

20Apr. '54

28 Apr. '55

15 Sept.'51

20 Oct. '59

Date of
Fi*rst Ap-

pointment.

11 Nov. '67

- Apr. '54

15 July '69

1 Sept. '69

8 Oct. '78

23 June '82

Il Feb. '81

13 Feb. '80

1 June '66

1 July '82

1 July '82

1 July '74

1 Jan. '85

1 Feb. '82

1 Feb. '81

Y Nov. '75

1 Sept. '81

1 Jan. '74

1 Aug. '82

1 July '80

1 Aug. '85
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DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Date of
Name. Present Rank. Date Present Date of First Ap-thereof. Salary. Birth· pointment

$ ets.
Rogers, William Henry.....Insp. of Fisheries for ,68

Nova Scotia......... 1 July '81 1,800 00 14 June '22 Sept.

Venning, William Henry .... Inp. of Fisheries for 671 ew Brunswick..... 1 Aug.'67 1,800 00 5 July '22 1 Aug.

Duvar, John Hunter ........ Insp. of Fisheries for '79
Prince Edward Island 16 May '79 800 00 29 Aug.'30 16 May

Bertram, Alexander Charles. Fishery Officer for Cape '84
Breton Island........ 22 Apr.'84 500 00 - '50 22 Apr.

Pittendrigh, George ........ Insp. of Fisheries for
British Columbia.... 10 Aug.'84 800 00 1 Sept.'31 1 July 79

McQueen, Alexander........ Insp. of Fisheries for
Manitoba & N.W.T.. 1 Dec.'84 900 00 22 Jan..'50 1 Dec.

Gilchrist, Frederick Charles . Fisherv Overseer,
1 Qu'Àppeile District.. 22 Oct. '84 300 00 20 Apr.'59 22 Oct.

Wakeham, William......... Commander of Fisheries!
Protection S t e a m e ri
"La Canadienne." .. 2 June '79 1,200 00 30 Nov.'45 2 June
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17.-THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Name.

ailliargé, George F., C.E .. '
Gobeil Antoine ............

?erley, Major Henry F., C.E

"'ller, Thomas.............

lionne, Octave ............
Steekel, Louis Joseph René..
4?floldi, John Rogers........

aepherson, Major James P.

ce, Edmond Pierre......

1ty Elzébert ..............

Prsn Rn. Date Present Date ofPresentRank' tlcreof. Sahry. Birt .

$ cts.
Deputy Minister....... 4 Oct. '79 3,200 00 16 Oct. '24

Secretary & Chief Clerk 29 June '85 1,800 00 22 Sept.'53

Chief Engineer........ 15 Nov.'80 3,200 00 5 Mar.'31

Chief Architect........ 9 Dec.'81 3,200 00 8 Mar.'23

Acct't. & Chief Clerk. 10 Dec.'79 2,050 00 8 Mar.'35

iChief Clerk ........... 1 July '80 2,050 00 6 Sept.'44

Mechanical Engineer
and Chief Clerk.....

Chief Clerk ...........

2nd class clerk, Ac-
countant's Branch...

{2nd cla ss clerk . .2ve Sec. to, Minister

8ightfoot, Francis Cuthbert.. 2nd class clerk, Engi-
neering Branch......

Taché, Joseph Charles....... 2nd class clerk, Chief
Draughtsman .......

MPherson, Donald Alma... 3rd class clerk, Corre-
spondence Branch .

ttier, Pierre.............. 3rd ciass clerk, Corre-
spondence Branch ...

8ston, Alfred George .... 3rd class clerk, Accounts
Branch... .......

e, Ernest ............ 3rd class clerk, Accounts
Branch .............

erralit, Jules Edouard..... Clk., Secretary's Branch

' Isidore............... 3rd class clerk, Secre-
tary's Branch .......

, Horace........... Clk., Secretary's Branch
l1ien,) Stephen Edward... 3rd class clerk Engi-

neering Branch ......

au, Antoine E... .. ... Clk., Secretary's Branch

itEdmund John ...... 3rd class clerk, Secre-
tary's Branch .......

ennessey, George Francis.. 3rd class clerk. Chief
Clerk, Architect's Br.

HUenri.............. Messenger.............
ot Joseph Alfred....... Messenger.............

7 July '83

15 Feb.'84

1 July'80

1 July'84 {
1 July'83

1 July'83

25 Aug.'81

31 Oct. '81

7 Feb. '82

1 July '83

13 Oct. '79

23 Aug.'79

13 Oct. '79

23 May '82

10 Mar.'84

18 May '85

4 June'83

22 June'61

4 June'83

2,100 00

1,800 00

1,350 00

1,1500 
001400 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

950 00

650 00

650 00

550 00

550 00

600 00

31 Jan. '39

29 May '39

25 Feb.'40

13 Oct. '60

3 Apr. '47

25 Mar.'50

28 Nov.'55

19 Feb.'50

28 Nov.'53

10 Oct. '54

21Aug. '49

10 May'42

1 Jan. '48

1 Sept.'64

8 July '54

2 Apr.'62

26 Dec.'64

21 Oct. '26

27 Oct. '63

143

A. 1886

Date of
First Ap.

pointment.

22 Sept.

17 May

1 May'

Oct.

27 Apr.

Jan.

6 Dec. '59

1 May '64

- '72

1 Feb. '82

1 July '74

Jan. '72

10 July '74

27 Oct. '78

24 June '72

29 June '81

13 Oct. '79

23 Aug. '79

13 Oct. '79

1 Sept. '80

10 Mar. '84

4 June '82

4 June

22 June

4 June
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

TELEGRAPH ANI SIGNAL SERvIcE IN BRiTIsa COLUMBIA.

Date of
Name. Present Rank. Date Present Date of First AP-thereof. Salray. Birth. pointment'

$ ets.
per month.

Archibald, William F....... Manager & Asst. Supt.. 1 Jan. '81 100 00 17 Dec.'37 1 Jan. '81

Sinclair, George A.......... Assistant Operator..... 1 Dec.'82 60 00 27 Feb.'06 1 Dec. '82

-Christie, William .......... Night Operator........ 1 Jan. '85 75 00 5 Feb.'63 1 Jan.

Leclaire, Maximilien........ Assistant & Messenger.. 1 Aug. '82 30 00 29 May '68 1 Aug.

-Jacklin, Thomas J .......... Messenger............. 1 Nov.'85 15 00 20 Sept.'71 1 Nov.

Smith, John................iCaretaker ............. 1 Jan. '82 - 5 00 .......... 1 Jan.

Sherwood, Charles H........ Operator and Repairer.. 8 Jan. '84 50 00 15 Mar.'62 8 Jan.

Skinner, Mrs............... Operator.............. Testing office no salary attached-

Conway, Annie ............ Operator and Repairer.. 1 Ang.'85 60 00 7 May '54 1 Aug.

Callaghan, Jeremiah A ...... Operator and Repairer .. 1 ug.'83 80 00 28 Feb.'55 1 Aug. 88

O'Neil, Maurice ............ Messenger............. 16 Dec.'84 10 00 21 Dec. '72 16 Dec.

Wake, Baldwin H .......... Operator and Repairer.. 15 Aug. '81 30 30 Jan. '52 15 Aug. '81

Edwards, Henry J .......... Operator and Repairer.. 1 June'81 50 00 29 Oct. '67 1 June '8

Wilson, James ........ ... District Superintendent 22 May '80 125 00 13 July '56 22 May '80

Mackintosh, Samuel T ...... Manager & Asst. Supt.. 9 May '82 100 00 1 Mar.'61 9 May '82

MacLure, Susan E........ Assistant Operator..... 1 May '81 60 00 23 Oct. '57 1 May P

liadley, Mark L......... Night Operator........ 8 July '85 75 00 8 Aug.'60 8 July '85

McMurphy, George......... Messenger............. 1 Dec.'84 20 00 21 Dec.'70 1 Dec. 84

Sood, John H............ Operator ............ 22 Nov.'84 40 00 14 July'70 22 Nov.

Maclure, John ............. Operator and Repairer.. 1 Mar. '65 60 00 il July '31 1 Mar. 66

McCutchen, John ......... Operator and Repairer.. 15 June '65 50 00 8 Jan. '42 15 Jun

Ryder, Roland.............. Operator and Repairer.. 1 Jan. '83 30 00 22 Mar. '55 1 Jan.

Wirth, Jordan M ........... Operator and Repairer.. 1 June'85 50 00 8 Mar.'68 1 June '
'81

Brown, Frederick S........ Operator....... .... .. 13 May '81 50 00 13 Aug.'60 13 May

Fraser, William............ Messenger ............ 1 Aug.'83 30 00 27 Mar.'70 1 Aug.

Pearson, Edward............ Operator and Repairer.. 20 July '85 50 00 28 Aug.'36 20 July '86

Reynolds, William K ....... Operator and Repairer. 10 June '85 60 00 Il Dec.'56 10 JuIe8

O'Hare, Daniel........... Operator and Repairer. 27 May '80 60 00 11 Nov.'54 27 May

Good, Henry L............. Operator and Repairer.. 16 Feb. '85 60 00 16 Oct. '63 16 Feb.

Mackay, John J............ Operator and Repairer.. 20 Sept.'85 60 00 4 Feb.'52 20 Sept.'86
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

TELEGRAPH AND SIGNAL SERVICE IN BRITISH COLUMBIA-Continued.

Name.

enu Albert J.............

ourdais, Alhert J........

alker, William ..........

Y Htes aenry..............

arlo Isabel..............

, James..............

7, Frederick C.........

Present Rank.

Operator and Repairer..

Operator and Repairer..

Operator and Repairer..

Operator and Repairer..

Operator and Repairer..

Operator and Repairer..

Operator and Repairer..

48--o
145

A. 1SSG

Date
thereof.

28 Oct. '81

23 Sept.'82

1 May '80

June '66

20 Apr. '82

17 Feb.'73

29 July '85

Present
Salary.

$ cts.
per month.

60 00

50 00

50 00

60 00

47 00

83 33

40 00

Date of
Birth.

Il Apr.'61

28 Jan. '59

1 Oct. '39

Mar.'32

6 May'65

10 Feb.'43

17 Jan. '52

Date Of
First Ap.
pointment.

28 Oct.

23 Sept.

1 May

June

20 Apr.

17 Feb.

29 July
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18.-THE DEPARTMENT OF RA1LWAYS AND CANALS.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Name. Present Rank. theof.

Trudeau, Toussaint, C.E. .... Deputy Minister.......

Page, John, C.E.......... Chief Engineer Canals.

Schreiber, Collingwood, C.E. Chief Engineer & Gen-
eral Manager Gov't
Rys., & Chief Engin-
eer C. P. R ailway....

Bradley, Alexander Priestly. Secretary .............

Baine, James............ Accountant & Chiefi
Clerk ...............

Cross, Thomas.............. Chf. Clerk Intercol. Ry.1

Fissiault, Hypolite Adolphe. ILaw Clerk.. ..........

Bonneville, Jean Francis N.. Ist class clerk .........

Tilley, William James ...... lst class clerk.........

Maynard, Martin Wilkins... Ist class clerk .........

Joues, Louis Kossuth. lst class clerk.........

Dixon, Frederick Augustus.. 1st class clerk.........

Stewart, Douglas Bayne.,... lst class clerk & Assist-
ant Accountant.....

McLaughlin, Samuel........ 2nd class clerk........

Filteau, Louis Honoré....... 2nd class clerk........

Greenfield, Arthur Narraway 2nd class clerk........

Costin, Charles............ 2nd class clerk ........

Almon, Andrew Uniacke.... 2nd class clerk........

Fortier, Lucien Napoléon.... 3rd class clerk.........

Dion, Louis Didier....... 3rd class clerk.........

Shannon, Samuel Leonard... 3rd class clerk.........

Cameron, Alexander Walker. 3rd class clerk.. .......

Hill, William Bruce Almon. 3rd class clerk.........

Pugsley, John William...... 3rd class clerk.........

Méthot, Joseph Eugène...... 3rd class clerk.........

Deslauriers, Isidore N....... Chief Messenger.......

Nevill, Christie Stephen .... Assistant Messenger...

Deslauriers, Isidore......... Assistant Messenger...

18 Mar. '64

15 Mar. '64

Oct. '73
July '80

Present
Salary.

$ ets.
4,100 00

4,500 00

{ 4,000 00

23 May '82 | 2,400 00

1 July '72

1 Feb.'80

21 Dec. '69

8 Oct. '78

8 Oct. '78

23 Mar. '80

1 Feb. '80

1 Jan. '81

23 May '82

July '71

22 Oct.'73

1 June '82

30 June '82

1 Mar.'83

1 July '73

9 July '73

22 May '82

29 June '82

29 June '81

1 July '83

1 July '83

Oct. '67

16 Jan. '80

1 July '82

2,400 00

2,050 00

1,800 00

1,700 00

1,700 00

1,550 00

1,550 00

1,550 00

1,350 00

1,400 00

1,250 00

1,250 00

1,250 00

1,300 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

850 00

850 00

600 00

800 00

800 00

500 00

460 00

390 00

143

A. 1SS6

Date of
Birth.

28 Sept.'26

9 July '15

14 Dec. '31

26 Oct. '31

7 Sept.'22

9 Dec.'36

8 Oct. '28

27 Feb.'29

18 May '39

25 Feb.'49

9 June '50

7 May'43

20 June '50

28 Jan. '26

27 June'44

1 Jan. '59

1 June '29

25 July'52

6 Apr. '49

26 May '43

18 Jan. '62

25 May '52

22 Dec. '59

12Mar. '61

5 Nov.'57

28 Apr. '35

....... ...

24 Mar. '64

Date of
First Ap'

pointinelnt.

13 Dec.

Sept.

1 May '64

9 Sept.

31 Jan.

June

15 Junie '60

5 Feb.

11 July '69

May

Nov.

15 Apr.

9 Jan.

Oct.

8 Mar.

May

21 Dec. 79

1 Nov.

1 Oct.

13 Feb.

29 Juie

25 Feb.

24 Dec.

May

1 july

t-----
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DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

MISCELLANEOUS.

omlinson, Joseph..........

Br'ophy, John Byrne........*

Inspector of Bridges....

Divisional Engineer, C.1
P.R., B.C..........

$ etsE
9Feb. '80 2,500 00

1 Apr. '80 2,160 00

DOMINION OFFICIAL ARBITRATORs.

Qowan, James..............

Qompton, William..........

ard, Joseph.............

na, Henry..............

hibault, Charles...........

Official Arbitrator......

Official Arbitrator......

Official Arbitrator.

Official Arbitrator.

Secretary to Board of
Officiai Arbitrators...

24 May '69

24 May '69

13 Dec. '79

1 Oct. '83

22 Nov.'80

1,000 00

1,000- 00

1,000 00

1,000 00

2,000 00

3 Nov.'03 24 May '69.

12.Feb. '26 24 May '69

- 28 13 Dec. '79

2 Oct. '25 2 Sept. '73

16 Sept.'40 22 Nov. '80

CORNWALL CANAL.

1-doll,% Duncan Allan ...

aberry, William . . . . . . . .

n................

pie, Daniel............

% % »1 illiam ...........

e " 1 w ard ..............

e Wlley, James........ .

ene 
e, John ...... 

..urner, John A........
"iith, John

e ..............

.a ............esle, Johnic

Supt. of Canals........

Lock Master..........

Lock Master..........

Lock Master..........

Lock Master..........

Lock Master..........

Bridge Keeper.........

Assistant Keeper......

Lighthouse Keeper.....

Lock Laborer.........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer........1

22 June '16

24 Feb. '44

1 Jan. '70

1 Jan. '76

Sept.'49

Aug.'49

Mar. '75

Nov.'84

Mar.'75

Dec. '48

Mar. '69

Apr. '68

Sept. '81

Apr. '77

May '84

May '84

Apr. '80

July '70

Sept.'81

Oct. '80

May'67

-- · '64

1,400 00

1. 50 p. day

1. 25 p. day

1. 25 p. day

1. 25 p.day

1. 25 p. day

1. 25 p. day

1. 25 p. day

75c. p. day

1.25 p.day

1.25 p.day

1.25 p.day

1. 25 p. day

1.25 p.day

1.25 p.day

1.25 p.day

1.25 p. day

i.25 p. day

Dec. '16

Oct. '28

Jan. '45

Oct. '30

Aug. '32

- '18

Sept. '47

- 44

Nov. '47

- '45

- '42

July '56

Mar. '43

Nov. '39

Dec. '57

Feb. '39r

Apr. '36

- '35

Oct. '34

Aug. '49

June '62

May '50

Sept. 1'54

Dec. '48

Mar.' '69

Apr. '68

Sept. '81

Apr. '77

May '84

May '84

Apr. '80

July '70

Sept. '81

Oct. '80

May '67

- '64
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DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

CORNWALL CANÀl-COntinued.

aate Present Date of Date of
thereof. Salary. Birth. First Ap-

pointment.

Robinson, Thomas.......

O'Keefe, Owen.............

Gollinger, George...........

Adams, Alexander..........

Gillespie, David............

lYeath, Angus..............

Heath, Daniel..............

Bridges, William...........

Kennedy, William John....

çleason, James.............

Grnes, James..............

Derousil, James............

Rosu, John.................

Fraser, James............

Chisholm, John.............

Sheales, Timothy...........

Oaffney, Lawrence..........

Winters, Williain .........

Dawson, Francis............

Macdonell, Duncan.........

Lockerbury, Robert.........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer........,.

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

:Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer.....

Lôck Laborer.

Lock Laborer..........

Carpenter & Diver.....

Carpenter.............

McLaughlin, Edward ....... Lock Master..........

Bradley, Robert............ Assistant.............

McNamara, John......... Bridge Master.........

Neil, John................. Lock Master...,......

Ryckman, David........... Assistant..............

Swayzie, Rufus............. Assistant .............

Beuter, Jacob............ Bridge Master.........

Higgins, Nelson............ Bridge Master..........

Upper, Albert Horatio...... Bridge Master.........

Apr. '73

Aug. '57

May '69

May '72

- '80

May '72

Apr. '73

Oct. '61

Jan. '80

May '70

Nov. '84

June '83

May '72

Apr. '73

Mar. '75

Apr. '69

May '67

Nov. '71

June '82

JUly '67

July '67

20 Apr. '80

4 July '62

14 Oct. '63

16 Oct. '78

6 July'80

Apr.'60

2 Aug.'71

11 Aug.'65

1 May'81

148

$ 2pts.j
1.25 p.day

1.25 p.day

1.25 p.day
1.25 p.day

1.25 p.day

1.25 p.day

1.25 p.day

1.25p.day

1.25 p.day

1.25 p.day

1. 25 p. day

1.25 p.day

1.25 p.day

1.25 p.day

1.25p.day
1. 25 p.day

1.25 p.day

1.25 p.day

1.25 p.day

3.00 p.day

2.00 p.day

per month.
38 00

38 00

38 00

42 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

- '52

July '25

June '45

- '32

- '59

- '47

- '49

- '37

Nov. '49

May '42

- '57

Jan. '41

'51

- '41

July '45

Aug. '43

July '33

- '44

- '39

Oct. '25

Mar: '30

25 Sept.'29

26June'35

-'24

16 Jan. '34

15 Mar.'45

-- '31

27 Sept.'29

18 June'40

27 Aug.'52

Apr.
Aug.

May

May

May

Apr.
Oct.

Jan.

May

Nov.

June

May

Apr.

Mar.

Apr.

May

Nov.

June

July

July

20 Apr. '80

4 July 

14Oct. '6

16 Oct.

6 July

Apr.

2Aug.'

11Ag

1 a

A. 1886
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DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

CORNWALL CANAL-Continued.

Name.

Wggins, William...........
Mosier, Lewis...........

»iggins, Aaron.............

Gearon, John...............

Present Rank.

Lock Master.......

Assistant .............

Lock Master..........

Foreman on Banks....

WELLAND CANAL.-FEEDER CANAL.

eott, John Edwin .......... Overseer ..............

hallah, George.......... Lock Master ........
hta-rris, George.............. Bridoe Master.........

orean, Michael....... .Lock Master ..........

rLsh, Charles...... .... Regulator of Water ....

17 Apr. '71 800 00

per month.
May '56 38 00

May '66 38 00

9 July '75 38 00

Nov. '50 38 00

9 May '37 12 May

28 Mar.'29 May

5Aug.'15 May

15 Oct. '35 9 July

4Nov.'15 Nov.

ST. PETER'S CANAL, N. S.

gh Wallace Morgan.. Lock Master .......... 3June '70 540 00

RIDEAU CANAL.

ederick Ayshford M.,.... ............ Sul
&bott, prancis..... ..... Bo(

SIroi, JaInes............For

pRobert Wallace...... Cie

, William George.... Lo
'Peter

.. a .......... 
Loc

............ Lo
Sh, illiain

hg • . . . . . . . . . . Loc

a•orge............ Lo

> John.

......Bri

erintend't Engineer.

ok-keeper and Pay-
aster ..............

eman of Works.....

rk and Wharfinger. .

ck Master..........

ck Laborer..........

ck Laborer.....

ck Laborer. ..

ck Laborer..........

ck Laborer..........

dge Tender ........

149
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Date
thereof.

July '51

27 Mar.'75

Apr. '50

2 Aug.'71

Present
Salary.

$ ets.
per month.

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

Date of
Birth.

4 Oct. '24

- '37

1 Oct. '30

22Dec. '31

Date of
First Ap-

pointment-

July' 51

27 Mar.'75

Apr. '50

23Feb. '64

22 Oct. '37 3 June '70,

1 Oct. '72

23 Dec. '72

Il Nov.'72.

1 Jan. '73

10 Jan. '57

1 July '46

15Apr. '50

9 June '68

14 May '70

20 June '73

1 Nov.'66

2,000 00

1,000 00

750 00

800 0-)

per diem.
2 00

1 00

1 20

1 20

1 20

1 20

1 00

31 July '34

27 Feb.'22

21 Apr. '32

4 Dec. '40

12 Dec. '21

12 July '10

17 Mar.'22

1 May '28

26.Dec. '18

12 Nov.'17

15 Apr. '33

1 Oct. '72

20 Apr.

11 Nov.

1 Jan.

10 Jan.

1 July

15 Apr.

9 June

14 May

20June

1 Nov.



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.
RIDEAU CANAL-Continued.

1ame. Present Rank.

Pilson, Henry .............. Lock Master ..........

Pudvah, Joseph............ Lock Laborer..........

Gleeson, Thomas............ Lock Laborer.........

Nevins, Nicholas........... Lock Laborer..........

Hardy, Robert Evens ....... Lock Master ..........

Healey, James...........Lock Laborer..........

Clarke, George.,........... Lock Master..........

Driscoll, Thomas........... Lock Laborer..

Driscoll, Jerry........... Lock Laborer........

Driscoll, James............. Bridge Tender.........

Beckett, Thomas........... Bridge Tender ........

Todd, James................ Lock Master..........j

McGowan, Patrick... Bridge Tender. ....

Newman, William.......... Lock Master..........

Real, Patrick............... Lock Master..........

Lincas, John............. Bridge Tender .........

Newman, John Jarvis.......

Miller, Peter.............

Johnston, Mathew Henry....

Lisson, John ..............

Gorman, Thomas...........

Newcome, William Alfred.. .

Newcome, Albert Edward...

Mills, William Wesley ......

Lill, Henry .............

McCreary, Robert..........

Phillips,, John..........

Richey, William Metcalfe...

Jones, James Gordon........

Jones, Arthur Sidney.......

Pearson, William Omond...

Lock Master ..........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Master..........

Lock Laborer .........

Lock Laborer.........

Lock Master ..........

Lock Laborer.........

Lock Master ..........

Lock Laborer .........

Lock Master ..........

Lock Laborer .........

Lock Master..........

Lock Master........

Lock Laborer.........

Lock Master........

Date
tiiereof.

19 Mar. '69

1 Sept.'58

1 Sept.'77

1 July '78

1 Nov.'66

15 Apr. '41

3 Apr. '82

2Sept.'70

12 Apr. '80

4 Aug.'71

25June '67

16 Jan. '80

15 Apr. '45

1 July '71

15 Apr. '70

15 Apr.'72

1 July'71

15 Apr. '72

1 Sept.'69

18 Apr. '81

15.Apr. '73

1 July '71

15 Apr.'72

1 May '67

18 Apr. '81

20 May '82

1 July'71

13 May '71

1 July '71

12 July '72

1 July '71

150

Date of
Birth.

A. 1886

Present
Salary.

$ ets.
per diem..

90

1 00

1 00

1 00

90

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

90

90

90

90

90

1 00

1 00

90

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

90

1 00

90

1 00

90

1 00

1 00

90

1 00

90

10 Aug.'39

3t1Apr. '34

6 Jan. '42

6 Sept.'48

15 May '34

15 Aug.'17

9 Oct. '45

3 Aug.'51

- '62

7 May'49

15 Feb. '11

20 Dec. '33

14 Mar.'23

20 Dec. '40

25 Mar.'28

10 Jan. '40

29 Aug.'45

22 Mar.'31

14 Dec. '42

Apr. '41

30 Nov.'42

12 Dec. '48

31 Aug. '52

28 May'35

20 Jan. '60

11 June '35

16Dec. '19

8 Apr. '31

26 Oct. '53

1 June'55

13 Dec. '51

Date of
First Ap-

pointmenlt.

19 Mar. '69

1Sept. '58

1 Sept. '77

i July '78

1 Nov. '66

15 Apr. '41

3Apr. '82

2 Sept. '70

12 Apr. '80

4Aug. '71

25 June '67

16 Jan. '80

15 Apr.

1 Nov. '66

15 Apr. '70

15 Apr. '72

15 Apr. '64

15 Apr.

15 Apr.

18 Apr. '81

15 Apr.

15 Apr.

15 Apr. '72

15 Apr. 51

18 Apr. '81

20 May '82

1 July 71

13 Mar. '71

15 Apr.

12 July

1 July 71



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

WELLAND CANAL.

Date Present Date of Date of
Name. Present Rank. thereof. Salary. Birth. First Ap.

pointment.

$ cts.

s, William.............. Superintendent........ 1 Jan. '80 2,900 00 31 Aug.'26 1 Jan. '80

bulin, Richard Douglas..... Paymaster ............ 2 Dec. '74 1,400 00 12 July '22 2 Dec. '74
beare, Jacob Griffiths . Overseer .............. 1 May '82 900 00 8 Aug.'48 22 Mar.'71
kamulton, Andrew.......... Overseer.............. 30 May '76 600 00 I7 Aug.'33 24 Aug.'64

4OOke, William ............ Harbor Master ........ 4 Mar.'73 750 00 June '24 4 Mar.'73
Carter, Charles Henry...... Harbor Master ........ 30 May '76 750 00 15 Aug.'21 30 May '76

per month.
OOdall, Jonathan May.... Lock Master .......... 1 May '82 42 00 30 Sept.'50 18 Aug.'71

iowe, George .............. Assistant ............. 24 Mar.'75 45 00 4 Nov.'57 24 Mar.'75

Pton, John .............. Assistant ............. 24 Mar.'75 45 00 14 Mar.'37 24 May '75

0rian, Cornelius......... Assistant ............. 24 Mar.'75 45 00 10 Mar.'41 24 Mar.'75

John ............... Bridge Master......... Apr. '71 45 00 12 Apr. '54 - Apr. '71

Comnolly Briggs...... Lock Master .......... 1 May '82 47 00 2 June'52 13Oct. '74
eman, Richard .......... Assistant ............. 24 Mar.'75 45 00 - '30 24 Mar.'75

ey, James............. Lock Master .......... 4 Mar.'65 47 00 15 Jan. '45 4 Mar.'65

4"ey, James........... Assistant ............ 20 July'81 45 00 8 Sept.'45 20 July '81

k ' yenry............... Assistant ............. 10 Opt. '67 45 00 17 Aug.'32 10 Oct. '67

Alexander.......... Assistant ............. - Sept.'73 45 00 24 Feb. '55 - Sept. '73

g, William............ Lock Master ....... .. 15 May '73 47600 2 Feb. '53 15 May '73

aomas........... Assistant ............ 17 Mar.'76 45 00 18 Dec. '47 17Mar.'76

7, James............ Assistant ............. July '76 45 00 23 Oct. '36 - July '76

Austin ............. Assistant ............. Dec. '52 45 00 - '32 - Dec. '52
J, John...- -.......... Assistant ............. 27 Mar.'75 45 00 17 May '42 27 Mar.'75

.Thoma............. Assistant ............. 5 Nov.'75 45 00 7 Mar.'58 5 Nov.'75
amara,.Patrick......... Assistant ............. 24 Mar.'75 45 00 Feb. '34 24 Mar.'75

Thomas....... Assistant ............. 21 Oct. '76 45 00 -- '43 21 Oct. '76
John........... Assistant............. 18 Aug.'71 45 00 3 May '35 18Aug.'71

li(eCth, Michael....... Lock Master ......... 27 Mar.'75 47 00 -'41 27 Mar.'75
rOljl Chale IL es enry ...... Lock Master .......... 13 Oct. '74 42 00 -'42 13 Oct.'747 'rederick

>ric ............ Assistant ............. 7 Aug. '77 45 00 - '35 7 Aug.'7 7

Rich ........... Bridge Master......... 24 June'73 45 00 15 Mar.'44 24June '73

151



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

WELLANn CANAL-Continued.

Name. Present Rank.

O'Leary, Daniel............ Bridge Master.........

O'Leary, Bartholomew...... Bridge Master.........

Thompson, George......... Assistant ..........

McCoppin, James........... Lock Master ..........

Walsh, James ............. Assistant .............

Edmonds, James ........... Bridge Master.........

Foster, James ............. Bridge Master.........

Hannah, Charles .......... Bridge Master.........

Hannah, Alexander........ Assistant ..........

Bonaberg, Emil .......... Bridge Master.........

Henshaw, John............. Lock Master ..........

Cook, John ................ Assistant .............

Stevens, John.............. Assistant Lock Tender.

Aikens, William ........... Assistant Lock Tender.

Bradley, John.............. Ferry Man............

Date
thereof.

6 Dec.'62

21 Oct. '76

10 July '59

6 Dec.'62

24 Aug.'63

23 Feb. '66

29 Aug.'68

3 Feb.'65

13 July '71

3OApr. '80

1 July'83

27 Mar.'75

27 Mar.'75

27 Mar.'75

4Nov.'80

Present
Salary.

$ cts.
per month.

45 00

45 00

45 00

47 00

45 00

45 00

45 00

45 00

45 00

45 00

42 00

42 00

42 00

42 00

42 00

OLD WELLAND CANAL.

Smith, John Bradley ....... Overseer.............. 17 May '73 100 00 20 June'24 17 May'
Duffin, Samnuel............ Lock Master... ...... i1 May '82 420 1Ap.'9 2Ma'~

Smith, William Lee ........ Assistant ............. 2 July '75 42 00 30 July'26 2 Ju1y'#

Edgroft, Robert .......... Assistant ............ 24 Mar.'75 42 00 9 May '25 24 Mar.'IO

Weaver, Walter.......... Lock Master .......... 1 July '83 42 00 27 June'23 15Apt'

Johnson, Terrence.......... Assistant ............. 24 Mar.'75 42 00 22 May '35 24Mar.'lb

Charles, Henry............. Assistant ............. 24 Mar.'75 42 00 17Feb. '31 24Mar'le

Sullivan, John ........... Assistant ............ 22Apr. '80 42 00 15June'32 2Z'Apr'

McClorey, William.......... Bridge Master......... 8 Sept.'81 88 00 27 Dec. '26 8 sept.'âý

Sullivan, Timothy .......... Assistant ............. 12 June'77 38 00 - '41 12JunC'

Walker, Alexander......... Lock Master.......... 13 June'83 38 00 20 Aug.'37 j15ept.'l

Sherer, Frederick........... Assistant ............. 18Aug.'71 38 00 -July'34 18Aug.'1

Livingstone, James......... Lo. Master.......... 18 Sept. '8o 42 00 -Sept.'ý7 18 SePt.'8

152

A. 1885

Date of
Birth.

3 Mar.'32

-'40

11 Dec. '25

- '34

-'24

11 Nov.'22

2 Dec. '22

11 May '33

12 Aug.'36

1 June'55

Mar. '34

12 Mar.'49

28 Oct. '50

16 May '44

10Nov.'38

Date of
First AP-

pointment-

6 Dec.'ô

21 Oct. 'I

10 July 'e

6 Dec.'6

24 Aug.'d

23Feb.'66

29 Aug.'6*

3 Feb.'1

13'July '7

30 Apr. '80

- May '6

27 Mar.'le

27 Mar.'7e

27 Mar.'7 5

4Nov.'8 0



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.
OLD WELLAND CANAL--ContinUed

Name.

White, Michael ..........

oy1le, Robert ..............

tadley, Arthur Wellington.

Garke, Bernard.........

traley, Casper Wright.....
Xestor, Martin.............

James ..............

b&tey, Barnett ............
'bson , ]Robert ............

, Edward..............

ey Michael.........

ot1y, William...... ......

Ston John.............

ons> James Williami....

James............

Duncan..........

rter, Alfred..........

ert.............

hn Euis..........

' Thomas..........
craford ...........

t william
m.Par............

4nPatrick
eys James............

-e J x e........... .

Charles
keiWlivray, lien.

be4,Joseph li.... .

",Id jh..............
Yie , J . .............

agat rb ......

eo4ors, Mar .'.....

Present Rank.

Lock Master..........

Lock Master........

Assistant .............

Lock Master./........

Assistant .............

Assistant.............

Lock Master..........

Lock Master..........

Assistant .............

Lock Laborer.... .....

Lock Master..........

Lock Laborer .........

Lock Master..........

Lock Master .... ......

Lock Laborer.........

Bridge Tender .........

Lock Master ..........

Lock Master..........

Lock Laborer.........

Lock Laborer..... ....

Lock Laborer ....... ..

Lock Laborer..... ....

Lock Master..........

Lock Laborer .........

Lock Laborer .........

Lock Master..........

Lock Master..........

Lock Laborer. ........

Lock Laborer..........

Lock Laborer. ........

Lock Laborer........

153
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Date
thereof.

9 July'75

-Apr. '54

15Aug.'64

Sept. '56

5 Nov.'70

14 Sept.'63

May '55

18 Aug.'71

17 Mar.'68

17 June'72

1Dec.'74

15Apr. '75

- '57

- '57

4 Aug.'68

25 July '74

14 May '64

1 July '71

1 May '81

-Apr. '44

1 July '71

15Apr. '74

- '57

15Apr. '63

15 Apr. '71

9 Oct. '82

9 Sept.'67

22 June'54

15Apr. '57

15Apr. '68

1 Apr. '73

Present
Salary.

$ ets.
per month.

42 00

42 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00
per day.

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

100

90

1 00

1 50

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

1 00

Date of
Birth.

- '50

-'32

12 June '44

-Apr.'36

12 Mar.'50

- Nov.'26

- Jan. '25

30 Aug.'50

19 May '36

14 Mar.'36

17 Aug.'6

15 Apr. '49

16 July '17

26 Mar.'23

9 Aug.'27

15 Oct. '15

1 Feb. '49

6 Aug.'36

2 May '54

-Nov.'21

July '45

-May '34

-Nov.'28

- May '45

25 Feb.'48

1 July'55

16 Dec. '37

29 Sept.'26

1 Apr. '26

25 Oct. '53

4 Oct. '49

Date of
First Ap.

pointment.

9 July'75

Apr.'54

15 Aug.'64

Sept. '56

5 Nov.'70

14 Sept.'63

May '55

18 Aug.'71

17 Mar.'68

17 June '72

14 Apr. '70>

15 Apr. '75

9 Apr. '42

- Apr. '38

4 Aug. '68

25 July '74

14 May '64

15 Apr. '61

1 May '81

- Apr. '44

1 July '71

15 Apr. '74

15 Sept. '44

15 Apr. '63

15 Apr. '71

18 Sept. '70

5 Apr. '59F

22 June '54

15 Apr. '57

15 Apr. '68

1 Apr. '73



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

TRENT CANAL WORKs.

Date ofDate Present Date of iDate of-
Name. Present Rank. thereof. Salary. Birth. oirst nt

$ ets.
per an.

Brownscomb, William ...... Lock Master .......... 26 Aug.'75 200 0Q - Jan. '30 26 Aug.

Coughlin, Timothy......... Lock Master.... ...... 26 Aug.'44 200 00 -- '07 -

CARILLON AND GRENVILLE CANALS.

Forbes, William Billsbury... Superintendent........

Hartley, George Christopher.

Brophy, John ..............

Mason, Henry Edward......

Hartley, Horatio.... .......

Foreman, Thomas..........

Cox, William Richards......

Williamson, Thomas Hugh..

Cumming, Hugh...........

Overseer .............

Lock Master........

Lock Master ..........

Lock Master........

Lock Master.... ......

Lock Master ..........

Lock Master..........

Lock Moster ..........

Perrier, William............ Lock Laborer.........

Lafrance, Martin ........... Lock Laborer .........

Sauvé, François.......... Lock Laborer ... .....

Poirier, Alphonse........... Lock Laborer. ........

Teck, Joseph............. Lack Laborer.......

1 May '67

17 Sept.'83

12 June '72

3 Aug.'71

1 Oct. '75

1 Apr. '68

4 Sept.'73

9 May '70

15 June '56

1 May '70

1 May '66

23 June '69

1 July '69

1 June '70

1,300 00
per day.

2 00

. 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

i 25

1 25

28 May '31

30 Oct. '35

15 Jan.'35

8 Nov.'48

24 Jan. '51

8 Mar.'48

28 Mar.'44

18 Mar.'54

19 May '13

1 July '36

18 Dec. '37

3 Nov.'32

1 Mar.'42

10 Apr. '54

441

15 Apr.

30 May

12 June

3 Aug.

1 July '61

1 Apr.

4 Sept.

9 Mayl

15 June '66

1 May '10

1 May '66

23 June '69

1 July

1 June

ST. ANNE's LocK.

Daoust, Joseph Lumina..... Superintendent ........

Larente,Régis....... ...... Lockman....... ......

Macdonell, Alexander G... . Superintendent Wil-
iamsburgh Canals...

Casselman, William Ira..... Lock Master..........

Toye, Robert............... Lock Master..........i

Caldwell, Henry............ Lock Master..........

Farley, Christopher J....... Lock Master..........

18 Dec. '78

25 Jan. '77

26 Apr.'75

1 Jan.'73

Sept.' 68

1 May'71

1 Apr.'72

154

800 00

per day.

1 25

1,400 00
per day.

1 25.1
1 25

1 25

1 25

10 Aug.'43 18 Dec.

10 Sept.'41 25Jan.

19 Feb. '16 26 Apr.

26 May'30 1 Jan.

6 May'23 Sept-

17 Mar.'25 1 May

17 Apr.'49 1 Apt.

A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

Nae.Prset an. Date Present Date of Date ofName. Present Rank. theref. Salary. Birh. isAp
pointment.

$ ets.
8 titt per day.t, John................. Lock Master.......... 2 Dec.'79 1 25 13 Oct. '32 2 Dec. '79
korgat, Rodney............ Lock Laborer ......... 29 Apr.'79 1 25 - '21 29 Apr. '79

4t1er, Amelia............. Lock Laborer ......... 23 Aug.'71 1 25 5 July '29 23 Aug. '71

)4cbougall, Hugh .......... Lock Laborer ......... Aug.'71 1 25 6 Aug.'24 Aug. '71

«Uen, Thomas............ Lock Laborer ......... 1 May '73 1 25 10 Aug.'49 1 May '73
j9hnnon , James ............ Lock Laborer ......... 1 July '79 1 25 12 Nov.'34 1 July '79

John.. ......... Lock Laborer ......... 30 Dec.'79 1 25 3 May '37 30 Dec. '79
Robert ............ Lock Laborer ......... 29 July '54 1 25 26 Nov.'26 29 July '54

)elon, John............... Lock Laborer..........3 Apr.'51 1 25 12 July '26 3 Apr. '51

, Alexander......... Lock Laborer ......... 15 Oct. '72 1 25 24 May '37 15 Oct. '72

Ynh, jr., James......... .. . Lock Laborer ......... 26 May '83 1 25 7 May '48 26 May '83

"%Strong, Robert.......... Foreman on Repairs.... 3 Oct. '78 1 50 22 Dec.'36 3 Oct. '78

CHAMBLY CANAL.

'uillaume......... Lock Master No. 1. 9 May '74 1 25 28 Mar.'18 9 May '74

aluel.·............ Lock Master No. 2..... 17 Oct. '70 1 25 Il Mar.'41 17 Oct. '70

seièe Israel.. Lock Master No. 3..... 1 Jan. '81 1 25 15 Feb.'39 1 Jan. '81

eb nd....... ..... Lock Master No. 4. ... 1 May '54 1 25 18 Feb.'25 Apr. '46
Lbanc, pire. ....

ierre............. Lock Master Mo. 5.... 1 May '54 1 25 29June'31 Apr. '50
ot, Solomon........... Lock Master No. 6.... 7 Nov.'63 1 25 15 June'19 7 Nov. '63

Fra 2 Ois Xavier..... Lock Master No. 7.... 14 Nov.'61 1 25 8 Oct. '15 14 Nov. '61

Jorb.•••........ Lock Master No. 8.... 30 Sept.'73 1 25 1 Jan. '30 30 Sept. '73
S •orbert........... Lock Master No. 9.... 1 May'54 1 25 12Jun. '17 1 May '54

Thomas

a . '••''•.. . Bridge Keeper No. 2.. 20 June '68 1 25 3 Mar.'36 20 June 68

Pa o '''....... Bridge Keeper No. 3 .. 9 May '54 1 25 3 May'22 Sept. 50

collet Louis.......... Bridge Keeper No. 4.. 15 May 7 i 25 15 Nov.'51 15 May '79'tte Jaqe
t acque......... Bridge Keeper No. 5 .. 1 May'54 1 25 15 July '37 May '54

e oseph ..... Bridge Keeper No. 6 .. 15 May '79 1 25 5 Apr.'25 15 May '79
a Charlotte......... Bridge Keeper No. 7 .. 7 Sept.'63 1 25 15 May'20 7 Sept. '63

........... Bridge Keeper No. 8 .. 20 June'74 1 25 15 June'45 20 June '74

155
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

ET. OuRs LocK.

Name. Present Rank.

Larue, Lévi................ Superintendent ........

Duval, Félix............ Lockman ..........

Lemay, Charles .......... Lockman ...........

Date
thereof.

24 Apr.'58

1 Oct. '53

25 May '55

Present
Salary.

$ cts.
per day.

2 00

1 25

1 25

Date of
Date of Ap-
Birth. point

4 June'10

19 Nov.'20

13 Apr.'23

PAYMASTER s OFFICE.

Dowker, George ............ Paymaster ............ .1 July '82 $1,600 00
per year. 28 Oct. '30

24 Apr.

1 Oct.

25 May

31 Dec.

LACHINE CANAL

Conway, Michael ........... Superintendent........

Fitzpatrick, Patrick ........ Lock Master No. 1. ...

Conway, John.............. Lock Master No. 2....

Simard, Léon .............. Bridge Keeper No. 1

Newman, Ralph............ Bridge Keeper No. 2..

Redmond, Patrick.......... Lock Master No. 3....

McKeown, Edward......... Bridge Keeper No. 3 ..

Rinahan, James............ Lock Master No. 4....

Charlebois, Arsène...... ... Bridge Keeper No. 5 ..

Enright, James ............ Lock Master No. 5....

Gauthier, Pierre............ Bridge Keeper No. 6..

Neagle, John .............. Boom Master..........

Morrissey, John............

Carroll, James..............

Walker, James.............

O'Brien, William ..........

Grenuan, Thomas...........

Enright, Michael...........

Deschamps, sr., Joseph.

Murphy, William..........

Corbeille, Frangois.

Lockman No. 1 .......

Asst.Bridge KeeperNo.1

Asst. Bridge KeeperNo.1

Lockman No. 3 .......

Lockman No. 3 .......

Asst.Bridge KeeperNo.3

Lockman No. 4 .......

Asst.Bridge KeeperNo.5

Wharfinger ...........

1 July '76

1 May'81

1 May'75

1 June '70

1 May '58

26 May '57

24 Oct. '81

1 Sept.'82

1 May'74

1 Apr.'82

1 Mar.'77

June'56

Oct. '67

1 June '68

1 Nov.'83

1 Sept.'68

1 Aug.'70

May '63

1 May'70

May '74

10 Sept.'74

156

1,800 00
per month.

38 00

38 00 1

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

38 00

45 00
per day.

1 2

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

1 25

700 00

13 May '32

16 Jan. '32

20 Dec.'35

1 Feb.'45

22 May '30

Mar.'26

5 May '27

23 Dec.'39

15 Dec.'16

25 Nov.'43

29 June '42

May'24

20 Jan. '24

July '15

15 June'38

Aug.'26

Dec. '20

Nov.'45

Mar.'16

- '20

5 Apr.'50

18 Sept.

1 May

1 May

1 June

1 May

May

24 Oct.

15 Jan-

1 May

1 May

1 Mar.

May

Oct.

1 June

i May

1 Sept.

1 Aug.

May

Sept.

28 June

A. 188&
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DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

STICX DREDGE No. 1.

Nane PesntRak. Date Present Date of Date ofName. Present Rank. ths of a. i hthereof. Salary. Buh1is p
1 Birth pointinent.

cts.i
Cock per day.

urn, Alexander......,. Captain .............. 1 Aug.'56 2 50 22 June'82 1 Aug. '56

1 per month.
et1en, Ennis ......... Engineer............. 1 Nov.'64 75 00 15 Mar.'38 1 Nov. '64

BEAUHARNOIS CANAL.

JosephFlavien...... Superintendent. ...... 1 Dec. '83 1,400 00 5Feb. '29 26 Mar. '74
per day.

Jean Baptiste.......... Lock Master No. 6.... 29 Apr. '81 1 25 26 Aug.'37 29 Apr. '81

fort> Pierre.............. Lock Master No. 7 .... 1 June '72 1 25 17 Aug.'50 1 June '72
rboais, Olivier........Lock Master No. 8.... 30 Sept.'61 1 25 4 Feb.'21 30 Sept. '61

84Ult, ùilbert .......... Lock Master Mo. 9.... 10 Mar.'76 1 25 21 Sept.'51 10 Mar. '76

iuth, Samuel............. Lock Master No. 11.. 14 Apr. '60 1 25 31 Jan. '26 14 Apr. '60

ktaud, Louis...... ...... Lock Mester No. 12. .. 5Feb. '80 1 25 5 Sept.'50 5 Feb. '80

Anatoine ..... ..... Lock Master No. 14.. . I 22 June '71 1 25 10 Jan. '35 22June '71
IIlier, Pierre ........ Bridge Keeper........ 28 June '76 . 1 25 20 Dec.'33 28 June '76

'Olivier ............ Ferry Keeper No. 1.... 1 Sept.'65 1 25 15 Apr.'37 1 Sept. '65
4 r Joseph ............. Ferry Keeper No. 2.... Il Mar.'52 1 25 5 Feb.'26 Il Mar. '52

% , Pierre............ Lockman No. 6 ...... 27 Oct. '79 1 25 15 June'52 27 Oct. '79

o u c............... Lockman No. 6....... 5 July '72 1 25 30 Sept.'37 5 July '72
chel............. Lockman No. 7. ...... 3OApr. '70 1 25 12Aug.'27 30 Apr. '70

rol, Charles .......... ILockman No. 7 ...... 22June '71 1 25 14 July '21 22 June '71

............... Lockman No. 8 ...... 24 Aug.'69 1 25 15 Mar.'40 24 Aug. '69
>cU2 Isidore............. Lockman No. 8....... 5Feb. '80 1 25 16Aug.'49 5 F.b. '80

............... Lockman No. 9....... 5 Feb. '80 1 25 10 Nov.'46 5 Feb. '80
Toue s . . Lockman No. 10....1 May'64 1 25 16 July'26 1 May '64

ose'............... Lockman No. 10...... 30Sept.'73 1 25 29Nov.'48 30 Sept. '73

Adoph·......... Lockman No. Il...... 7 Aug.'76 1 25 25 July '41 7 Aug. '76
Andrew

ore ' '• **.*......... Lockman No. 12...... 24 Apr.'74 1 25 22 Oct. '36 24 Apr. '74
ie ,E tie ..

'Charette • • . Lockman No. 12...... 24 Apr. '74 1 25 28 Mar.'36 24 Apr. '74

Ledite, il •........ Lockman No. 13...... 29 Apr. '81 1 25 30 July '50 1 29 Apr. '81

...... Lockman No. 13.......Nov.'56 Nov. '56
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DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS AND CANALS.-OUTSIDE SERVICE.

BEAUHARNOIS CANAL-Continued.

Date of
Name. Present Rank. Date Present Date of Tirst Ap-thereof. Salary. Birth. pointmant.

Pitre, Léon................

Denault, Benjamin Gedéon..

Lockman No. 4 ....... 25Apr. '80

Wharfinger........... 19 Oct. '84

$ cts.
1 25

750 00

5 May 49

27 Apr. '30

25 Apr.

26 Apr.

SUPERINTENDING ENGINEEFR.'s OFFICE.

Lesage, Louis Alphonse . Secretary & Accountant 1 July '84 1,400

Pottinger, David......... Chief Superindt. I. C.R

Taylor, George............. General Freight Agent
I.C.R ............

Whitney, Henry Augustus.. Mechanical Superinten-
dent I.C.R.........

Thomas, William, .......... Chief Acet. & Treasurer

Wallace, Joseph J.......... District Supt. I. C. R.
Halifax& St John Div

Trites, Edward Trueman.... Paymaster I. C. R ....

Dec. '81

1 Jan. '83

1 Jan. '83

July '82

1 May '83

Jan. '83

00 18 Apr.'49 17 Aug.
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INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

4,000 00

2,400 00

3,200 00

2,400 00

1,900 00

1,400 00

7 Oct. '43

28 Aug.'32

Feb. '34

June '46

Apr. '47

Apr. '44

July

3 June

July

Aug.

25 May

Oct.



49 Victoria.

Name.

84Igevin, Edouard Joseph,[
X.P........... ..........

Adamson, James...... .....

Creighton, James George A..

4ude; Ven'able J.S.,D.C.L

1o.lcher, Antoine Alphonse..

4I11el, Peter...............

Stephen, Robert William ....

outte; Alexander Robert..

eau, Alfred.........

Itoine, J. de St Denis.

Ivarhoe.............

Gi1b% Charles Theophilus..

eFrederick Augustus

Réné Edouard......

Jean Baptiste......

tI1e, Peter...........

Pierre...............
y0ung 

Charles

ert, Frederick.......

e'pe],Tomas .. .. . ... ...
1 11e John

.... .~......

e, André

,4 h b a u lt , .M l ........'Oon...

joseph
p .e . . .........~~4 ter. Joseph Il

..............11, Tht)ras,

Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

19.-THE SENATE OF CANADA.

nDatePresent Rank. thereof.

Clerk of the Senate, Mas-
ter in Chancery,Cash-
ier and Accountant .. 7 Feb. '83

Clerk Asst. and Master
in Chancery......... 27 June '82

Law Clerk, Master in
Chancery,Clk. of Com-
'tees & Eng. Trans'tor 27 June '82

Chaplain. ............ 9 Nov.'83

2nd Clerk Asst., Master
in Chancery and Chief
French Translator. .. 10 Mar.'84

lst Eng. Clerk & Clerk
of English Journals.. 16 Feb.'83

2nd Eng. Clerk & Clerk
of Routine Proceed'gs 10 Mar.'84

3rd Eng. Clerk & Clerk
of Private Bills., .... 27 May '83

lst French Translator.. 14 May '73

Sergeant-at-Arms...... 9 Feb.'84

Clk. of French Journals
& Depy. Sgt.-at-Arms 16 Mar.'84

Assistait Accountant.. 17 July '85

Junior Clerk.......... 10 Mar.'84

Gentleman Usher of the
Black Rod.......... 4 June '75

Postmaster........... 20 Mar.'68

House Keeper......... 1 Sept.'74

Door Keeper.......... 1 Nov.'74

Speaker's Messenger.... 15 Mar.'76

Keeper of the Wardrobe
& Asst. Door Keeper. 10 Mar.'84

Newsroom Keeper. . 1 Nov.'83

Bank Messenger ....... 10 Mar.'84

House Carpenter ...... 9 Apr. '77

Permanent Messenger.. 5 May'82

Permanent Messenger.. 1 Jan. '83

Permanent Messenger.. 10 Mar.'84

Permanent Messenger.. 10 Mar.'84

159

1,350

1,200

1,200

800

800

750 00

800 00

750 00

700 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

Date of Date of
Birth. First Ap.

pointment.

1 Oct. '33 4 Jeh. '65

15 Oct. '26 15 Sept.'42

Present
Salary.

$ cts.

3,400 00

2,800 00

2,200 00

400 00

2,200 00

1,600 00

1,400 00

1,400 00

1,900 00

1,200 00

1,200 00

900 00

900 00

2 Mar. '82

9 Nov. '83

1 May '57

Apr. '68

- '73

Nov. '74

-- '61

18 May '69

12 June '50

21 Mar.'29

6 Feb. '31

4 July '37%

3 Aug.'39

11 July'46

20 Dec.'36

13 July '50

6 Nov.'36

28 Jan. '47

29 Aug.'56

24 Vec. '46

10 Oct. '29

25 Mar.'24

13June '34

29 Jan. '52

24 Aug.'26

17 Dec. '24

2 June'39

30 Mar.'29

26Aug.'42

19 Aug.'49

8 Apr. '50

28 Dec.'55

- '56

6 Nov. '67

Mar. '66

'66

-- '62

-- '65

10 Apr. '74

Feb. '71

17 Mar.

10 Mar.

10 Mar.

4 June

7 Feb.

1 Sept.

7 Feb.
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20.-THE HOUSE OF COMMONS OF CANADA.-INSIDE SERVICE.

Date of
Nam. reen Rk. Date Present Date of Date Ap-

Name. Present Rank. thereof. Salary. B hrtl.

Sets.
Bourimot, John George ...... Clerk of the House. ... 1 Dec. '80 1 3,400 00 24 Oct. '37 -

Rouleau, François Fortunat.. Assistant Clerk........ 1 June '82 2,400 00 4 July '49 1 June 8

Macdonell, Donald William. Sergeant-at-Arms...... 14 June '54 2,400 00 7 May '24 14 June 54

* Smith, Major Henry Robert Depy. Sergeant-at-Armsý Jan. '72 1,400 00 30 Dec. '43 1 May
(1st class clerk.) 1 Jnly '85

CHIEF BRANcH.

Ross, William Blow...,..... Chief Clerk........... 1 July '85 1,950 00 10 May '32 18 Jan.

- Poetter, Herrman........ 1st class clerk......... 1 July '85 1,750 00 13 Dec. '17 12 Aug.

Chapleau, Joseph Raoul E lst class clerk......... 1 July '85 1,800 00 28 Apr. '44 -

MacGillivray, Farquhar..î... 1st class clerk......... 1 July '85 1,650 00 4 Jan. '33 June

Taylor, Alexander George D. 1st class clerk.......... 1 July '85 1,550 00 10 Nov.'30 -

Rivet, Pierre...... ...... 1st class clerk.........1 July '85 1,750 00 30 Apr. '32 -

Bowles, William Cochrane. .. 1st class clerk......... 1 July '85 1,650 00 23 Sept.'41 23 Feb.

'Taylor, Isaac Bolton........ 2nd class clerk......... I July '85 1,250 00 20 Feb. '30 -

Dalton, James.............. 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '85 1,100 00 - June '40 -

Balzaretti, Napoléon........ 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '85 1,000 00 - '52

Tassé, Elie............... st class clerk......... 1 July '85 1,500 00 23 Nov.'51

Vuvernay, Ludger Denis. 3rd class clerk......... 1 July '85 1,000 00 23 Ang.'36 --

Panet, Charles....... .... 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '85 1,400 00 17 Dec. '39 Feb.

Todd, Walter.............. 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '85 1,250 00 6 Oct. '56 1 July

Hartney, Edward Patrick... 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '85 ,400 00 6 Mar.'51 .--

Moffat, Robert McGowan D.. 2nd class clerk......... 1 July '85 1,400 00 22 Apr. '40 Nov.

LAw AND TRANsLATIoN BRANcH.

Wicksteed, Gustavus W.,Q.C Law Clerk........... 14 June '41 3,400 00 21 Dec. 1799 Oct.

Wilson, William, M.D..... Chief Clerk...... ..... 1 July '85 2,200 00 22 Nov.'5 Apr.

Coursolles, Toussaint Gédéon. Chief Clerk.... ....... 1 July '85 2,200 00 1 Oct. '32 Juie

Genand, Joseph Auguste .... lst class clerk......... 1 July '85 1,500 00 19 Dec. '39 Atg.

Fréchette, Léonard Achille. 1st class clerk......... 1 July '85 1,500 00 13 Oct. '47 Mar.

* Also Private Secretary to the Speaker.
t Since deceased.
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HOUSE OF COMMONS.-INSIDE SERVICE.

LAW AND TRANSLATION BRANCH-Continued.

SI i

Present Rank.

L181arboise, Louis......... 1st class clerk.........

besanjIiers, Joseph M. A. D lst class clerk.........

bers, Frangois Xavier .... 2nd class clerk .........
Perrim, Emiry........... 2nd class clerk .........

ey, Eie............... 2nd class clerk .........

1ayes, Fin Barr........... 1st class clerk.........

'eksteed, Richard John. ... 2nd class clerk.........

Date
thereof.

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

1 July '85

Present Date of
Salary. Birth.

$ ets.
1,400 00 10 July '40

1,400 00 21 Aug.'53

1,250 00 28 Feb. '46

1,100 00 13 Dec. '43

1,100 00 12 Oct. '49

1,650 0 Nov.'I0
1,250 00 3 Oct. '42

jDate of
First Ap-

pointment.

1 Oct. '76

1 Jan. '81

'84

- '79

Feb. '74

26 Feb. '58

Apr. '72

MISCELLANEOUs BRANcH.

Rey, Heury............
wer, Robert..........

%aiUe, Robert.........

Charles Edward......

1enlry Boulton ......

eIet, Trm............

wilfred .... .........

Narcisse .........

tandeld Joshua...........
Pelletier Alphonse Edouard.

e Frangois Xavier L.

AccQuntant...........

2nd class clerk .........

1st class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

.............. . . . .

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

3rd class clerk.........

2nd class clerk .........

3rd class clerk .........

3rd class clerk.........

31 Mar.'74 2,800 00

1 July '85 1,250 00

1 July '85 1,550 00

1 July '85 650 00

1 July '85 1,200 00

1 July '85 900 00

1 July '85 400 00

1 July '85 650 00

1 July '85 1,150 00

1 July '85 850 00

1 July '85 400 00

THE SERGEANT-AT-ARMs' DEPARTMENT.

MvIessenge

4bIj, Lljcie]n...'......... Chief Messenger & House
Keeper .............

Narcisse........Assistant Messenger &
House Keeper.......

r J ''e'' ......... Curator Reading Roon.

eph.'''.........Bank Messenger.......8icli Jam~es

obe re, Olive' .... ....... H ouse Carpenter ......

'..........Messenger .........

Mar. '74

1 July '82

- '76

- '71 i

- '60

- '54
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Name.

10 Aug.'22

8 July '48

21 July '20

28 Sept.'49

23 Nov.'20

26 Mar.'47

18 May '68

- '55

19 July '49

16 June '59

12 June '52

Nov. '38

Mar. '74

1 Feb. '79

- '84

- '39

- '81

- '82

- 80

- '69

- '78

- '79

rs, Etc.

1,200 00

900 00

800 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

30Sept.'42

31 Mar.'45

28 June'19

15 Dec. '22

3 Mar.'29

20 July '34

Mar.'74

- '59
2 Sept.'52

Dec.'53

- '64
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HOUSE OF COMMONS.-INSIDE SERVICE.

TE SERGEANT-AT-ARMs' DEPARTMENT-Continued.

Name.

Laflamme, Magloire.........

Asselin, Joseph Emile.......

Smith, George..............

Craig, Robert..............

Lizotte, Gappit.............

Cairns, William............

Boudreault, George André...

Hugg, Claire...............

Harris, Richardson .........

Present Rank.

Messenger ............

Messenger ............

Night Watchman.

Night Watchman.

Messenger ............

Messenger ............

The Clerk's Messenger.

Messenger ............

Door Keeper..........

DÂARaTMUNT or TUB PRINTING OF PARLIAMENT.

Hartney, Henry............ Clerk Joint Print. Com.

Brewer, Robert............. Voucher Clerk . ....

Romaine, Robert........... Supt. of the Printing of
Sessional Papers of
Parliament .........

Clarke, Charles Edward..... Assistant Proof Reader.

Botterell, Edward.......... Distributor of Printed
Documents.... .....

Boulet, Napoleo ........... 1st Asst. Distributor..

Botterell, Henry Alfred..... 2nd Asst. Distributor..

Wiltshire, John............ 1Permanent Messenger..

162
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Date
thereof.

- '55

May '68

21 Sept.'67

- '85

Oct. '76

- '83

1 May '81

- '74

-- '76

Present
Salary.

$ ets.

700 00

700 00

600 00

600 00

600 00

530 00

530 00

400 00

380 00

Date Of
Fixst Ar
pointmeît

Feb.'0

3fal

21 Sept

Oct.'06

----

---

-- -

Date of
Birth.

27Sept.'18

8 May '54

11 Nov.'43

1 May '29

- '27

9 Apr. '49

23 Dec. '62

22 Apr.'59

- '19

-- '59

- May '82

1 July '85

1 July '85

- '69

- '69

1 July'85

- '85

1,400

1,000

800

500

1 Feb~

.....

--

---

--~
----

11 May '34

27 Oct. '47

23Feb. '59

12Sept.'47
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21.-THE LIBRARY OF PARLIAMENT.

Name.

beCelles, Alfred Duclos....

4Perriere, Augustin........

1 Major Alfred Hamlyn.

itcher, James............

ain, Louis Phillipe.....

yne, E. Stewart.........

C8ayalt, Louis Joseph .......

James Henderson..

Joseph William......

,tteys Joseph Napoléon....

rkerÛent, Duncan Wm. McD.

1634 8 --11
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Date
thereof.Present Rank.

Assistant Librarian....

Senior Clerk (French)..

Senior Clerk (English).

Accountant ...........

Junior Clerk (French &
English) ............

Catalogue Clerk.......

Caretaker & Chief Mes-J
senger..............

Messenger ............

Messenger ............

Messenger .........

Clerk in charg of Su-
preme Court LawBooks

May '78

- '84

- '76

Feb. '77

9 Feb.'77

1 Aug.'77

23 May '82

Present
Salary:

2,400

1,800

1,400

1,150

1,000 00

1,000 00

900 00

700 00

700 00

700 00

600 00

Date of
Birth.

15 Aug.'43

28 Dec. '29

25 Oct. '51

28 Mar.'52

2 Oct. '45

6 May '36

9 May '38

13 May '45

- 30

3 Mar.'57

June '29

Date of
First Ap.

pointment.

12 Feb.

16 June

1 Apr.

1 July

1 May '78

14 Nov. '79

1 Feb. '56

1 Feb. '72

9 Feb. '77

- '66

-- '79

12Feb. '80

1 July '80

1 July '80

1 July '80

1-1
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APPENDIX NO. 1.

48-49 VIC., CAP. 46.
AIR Act to amend and consolidate the Civil Service Acts

of 1882, 1883 and 1884.

[Assented to 201h July, 1885.]

'RER Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of the PreambleF

j-'l-Senate and House of Commons of Canada, enacts as
follows .-

SHORT TITLE.

1. This Act may be cited as " The Civil Service Act." Short titre..

INTERPRETATION.

2. In this Act, unless the conteit otherwise requires,- Ii®teTP"t&-
1 tion.

.l) The expression " Head of a Department" means the "Head of a

lilnister of the Crown for the time being presiding overDepartment.'
Deh ]epart ment;

(b.) The expression " Deputy," " Deputy Head " or " Deputy "Del"t
ad of the Department," means the Deputy of the Minister

f tlhe Crown presiding over such department and also in-
the " Auditor General," in all cases where such

aning is not inconsistent with his powers and duties
ccour t6c'" Act to provide for the better auditing of the Public

CONSTITUTION OF THE CIVIL SERVICE.

n The Civil Service, for the purposes of this Act, includes Of whom the

eOISists of all classes of employees in or under the sall consist-

Canada departments of the Executive Government of
iatada, and in, the office of the Auditor General, included
ove scheduies A and B to this Act, appointed by the

first danorn COUncil or other competent authority before the
ay Of July, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-two,

49 Victoria. A. 1884
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or thereafter appointed in the manner provided by the Civil
As to North. Service Act for the time being in force, and such officers
West Terri- and employees in the North-West Territories holding
tories, positions, which, if held in other parts of Canada, would

bring tnem under the provisions of the Civil Service Acts,
as the Governor in Council brings under the provisions of
such Acts.

Two divisions. 4. The service shall be divided into two divisions:-

Inside The First or Inside Departmental Division shall comprise
division. employees of those classes mentioned in schedule A, em-

ployed on the several Departmental staffs at Ottawa, and in
the office of the Auditor Ueneral:

Outside The Second or Outside Departmental Division shall com-
division, prise emplovees of those classes mentioned in schedule B.

and who are employed otherwise than on the Departmental
staffs at Ottawa.

Rlet ulations 5. The Governor in Council may, from time to time, make
Order in general rules and regulations, not inconsistent with the
Council. provisions of this Act, respecting the appointments and

promotions of the officers in the Civil Service and all other
matters pertaining thereto.

Governor ia 6. From time to time the Governor in Council shall
Council to
detenuine determine the number of officers, chief clerks, clerks, mes-
number of sengers and other employees that are required for the work-
employees. ing of the several departments in each division of the Civil

Service, but the collective amount of the salaries of each
department shall, in no case, exceed that provided for by
vote of Parliament for that purpose :

If the actual 2. If the number of employees then attached to any depart-
xceds that ment in either division thereof is greater than the number

allowed. allowed to t he department, as herein pro vided, the Governor
in Council shall name the persons to fill the several offices ;
and the remainder shall be supernumerary clerks, without
being eligible for increase of salary, of that class respectively
which they rank, and shall so remain until promoted in the
manner herein provided or until severed from the service.

Ao e- hen 7. Any person who is a member of the Civil Service at
this Act the time of the passing of this Act, shall be classified in the
p asseS. respective class in which he has been appointed.

BOARD OF EXAMINERS.

Board of 8. A Board of Examiners shall, from time to time, be
Examers of appointed by the Governor in Council, who, for the pur-
the service, poses of this Act, shall be known and are hereinafter referred

166
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to as " the Board," consisting of three members, one of their appint-
WIlhomr may be appointed secretary of the Board; and they ® ian

all examine all candidates for admission to the Civil
Service of Canada, and give certificates of qualification to
SQch persons as are found qualified, according to such
reglations as are authorized by the Governor in Council
for the guidance of the Board:

2. The Board shall be supervised by the Secretary of Su1 ision

8. The meetings of the Board shall be held at such times, Meetings-
and the proceedings thereof shall be governed by such rules

.di4 regulations as the Governor in Council from time to
t1)ne determines

Each member of the Board shall receive a salary of six Salary ofmem-
t&iidred dollars per annum: bers.

e. The members of the Board shall be paid such travelling Travelling ex-
e Peuses while engaged in their work as are determined by penses.

the Governor in Council:

th6- Such persons as are selected by the Board to assist Assistants.
he*l in the conduct of examinations may receive such sum,

gqot exceeding five dollars per diem, as is fixed by the
GuVernor in Council:

th The Governor in Council may appoint a secretary to Secretary.
pe oard, with a salary not exceeding one thousand dollars
the aniuml, and a clerk holding a certificate of having passed
te ifying examination, to assist the Board; and the lat-

8"11 be a third-class clerk.

ha The Board may obtain the assistance of persons who Who ma be
ad viad experience in the education of the youth of Canada, as°sita..~ With s
Periodica euch assistance shall hold, or cause to be held,
n the. examinations for admission to the Civil Service,
Çkebp ecities of Halifax, St. John, N.B., Charlottetown, Places and

i.W 4e, Montreal,, Ottawa, Toronto, Hamilton, London, times of ex.

by the g, Victoria, and such other places as are determined anatons.
hold Gchovernor in Council ; it shall not be necessary to
nd plac examinations in all the said places, but the times

be det,-rat which the examinations shall be held, shall
Cil. ,ed, from time to time, by the Governor in oxpai.

g examinations shall, as far as possible, be in writ-gid the cost thereof shall be defrayed out of moneys
voted by Parliament for that purpose.

APPo'NTMENTS AND SALARIES IN THE SERVICE.
* Except as herein otherwise provided,-

167
Conditions o!
appointment,
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(a.) All appointments to the Civil Service shall be dur-
ing pleasure, and no person shall be appointed
or promoted to any place below that of a Deputy
Head unless he has passed the requisite exami-
nation and served the probationary terni herein-
after mentioned:

Limits as to (b.) No person shall be appointed to any place in the
ag . First or Inside Departmental Division of the Civil

Service, other than that of a Deputy Head, oh
probation or otherwise, whose age exceeds thirty-
five years, or who has not attained, in case the
appointment is to y' lower grade than that
of a third class clerk, the full age of fifteen years,
or in other cases the full age of eighteen years.

Aointment 11. The Deputy Heads of Departments shall be appointed
Heads t be by the Governor in Council, and shall hold office during
during pleasure; but whenever such pleasure is exercised in the
pleasure. direction of removing a Deputy Head from his office, a state-

ment of the reasons for so doing shall be laid on the table of
both Houses of Parliament within the first fifteen days of
the next following session.

Salaries. 12. The salaries of the Deputy Heads shall be determined
by the Governor in Council, according to the duties aud

Minimum. responsibilities of their respective departments; the m1ni-
mum salary of a Deputy Head shall be three thousand two

Maximum. hundred dollars, and the maximffm salary shall be font
thousand dollars.

Duties and 13. The Deputy Head of each department shall, subject to
pwers of the directions of the Head of the department, oversee and
Heads. direct the officers, clerks and employees in the departments

and shall have general control of the business thereof,
and shall perform such other duties as are assigned to
him by the Governor in Council.

f-mYein ri e 14. In the absence of any Deputy Head, a chief clerk
absence. named by the Head of the Department shall perform the

duties of such Deputy Head, unless the performance of such
duties is otherwise provided for by the Governor in Council;
and there shall be in the office of the Auditor General a
chief clerk, who shall at all times, act for the Auditor GeW-
eral in his absence.

Chief clerk. 15. A chief clerkship in any department shall only be
siP. created by Order in Council, passed after-
Condition of
creation of (a.) The Deputy Head has reported that such an officer
office. is necessary ir the proper performance of the

public business in the department, stating the
reasons on which he has arrived at that conclusiohi;
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(b.) The concurrence of the Head of the Department in Concurrence
such report; and after the salary has been voted of Head, ac.
by Parliament.

16. The minimum salary paid to a chief clerk shall be Salary.
onle thousand eight hundred dollars, with an annual increase
of fifty dollars up to a maximum of two thousand four
htudred dollars.

17. A first-class clerkship shall only be created by Order First-class
l Council, passed on the report of the Deputy Head clerkship,
%Uccrred in by the Head of the Department, setting creation.
forth the reasons for creating the office, and after the salary
has been voted by Parliament.

18. The minimum salary of a first-class clerk shall be one Salary.
.housand four hundred dollars per annum, with an annual
Icrease of fifty dollars up to a maximum of one thousand

eight hundred dollars.

o19 A second-class clerkship shall only be created by second.ciass
rder in Council passed on the report of the Deputy Head, lerkship,

QonClrre condition,-of
OcUrred in by the Head of the Department, setting creation.frth the reasons for creating the office, and after the salary

hm been voted by Parliament.

20. The minimum salary of a second-class clerk shall be salary.
one thouisand one hundred dollars per annum, with an
annal increase of fifty dollars up to a maximum of one

ottsand four hundred dollars.

A third-class clerkship or the office of a messenger, a Third-classthik r dls clrkhi Clerkship, &c.,
Pa r oa sorter, shall only be created by Order in Council condition of
Red on the report of the Deputy Head, concurred in creation.
th Head of the Department, setting forth the reasons for

parting the office, and after the salary has been voted byP1L1 ament.

fo2. The minimum salary of a third-class clerk shall be salaries or
ft h dred dollars per annum, with an annual increase of tleir .ass

dollars up to a maximum of one thousand dollars.
s The minimum salary of a messenger, packer or sorter Of messen-

nale be three hundred dollars per annum, with an annual gers, ac*
dollaase of thirty dollars up to a maximum of five hundred

2' The salary of a clerk on appointment or promotion to Initials alary
i1n th a, shall begin at the minimum of suchl cliss, except and increase.

tionecase of third-class clerks, who may receive, in addi-
four,) fftY dollars for each optional subject (not to exceed

in Which they may have passed before their appoint-
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Promotion. ment, and except in the case of lower grade permanent
employees who, upon passing the qualifying examination,
may be appointed third-class clerks, provided there is no
increase ot salary.

salaries to be 25. The officers, clerks and employees mentioned in sche-
regulated as dule B to this Act shall be paid according to the scale thereby

established; and the salaries of officers, clerks and employees
in the Second or Outside Division of departments other than
the Customs, Inland Revenue and Post Office Departments
shall, subject to the provisions of any Act relating thereto,
be fixed in each case by the Qovernor in Council.

Conditions of 26. No officer, clerk or employee shall receive any increaseincrease. of salary except by Order in Council passed on the report
of the Deputy Head, concurred in by the Head of the Depart-
ment, stating that such officer, clerk or employee is deserving
of such increase:

May be sus- 2. The increase of salary of any officer, clerk or employeepended for
neglect. authorized under this Act for the then current year ray be

suspended by the Head of the Department for neglect of
duty or misconduct, and may be subsequently restored by
such Head, but without arrears.

From what 27. The increase of salary shall be payable from the firsttime payable. day of the official quarter next succeeding the date on which,
from his length of service, any clerk or employee for
whom such increase is recommended is eligible for such
mcrease:

In case of 2. In case of promotion, thec increase of salary shall become
promotion. payable from the day on which such promotion takes

place.

Must have 28. No salary shall be paid to any member of the Civil
been appoint-
ed according Service, whose appointment or promotion, or whose in-
.to law. crease of salary after the first day of July, one thousand eight

hundred and eighty-two, has not been made in the manner
provided by the Civil Service Act in force at the time of
such appointment, promotion or increase.

EXAMINATIONS.

No appoint- 29. Except as herein otherwise provided, no appointmentment without shall be made to either division of the Civil Service unless
the person appointed has passed an examination, which
shall be of two kinds-

Preliminary, The first or " preliminary " examination to qualify for the
for what ap- following appointments, that is to say, as-pointments.

Messengers in either division,
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Porters
Sorters,
Packers
Letter carriers,
Mail transfer agents,
30x collectors,

Tide waiters,
&ssistant inspectors of Weights and Measures,
Temaporary copyists, and-

?or such other offices in the lower grades as are deter-
in1ed by the Governor in Council:

The second or " qualifying " examination to qualify for
te following appointments :-

To third-class clerkships in the First Division;

To third-class clerkships and to the offices of landing-
aiters and lockers, in the Second Division for Customs'

t1To third-class clerkships and to the office of exciseman, in
ae secoid division for Inland Revenue service;

ele third-class clerkships, to railway and marine mail
and to the offices in the Second Division for Post

service;

e othing in this section shall be construed to prevent Candidates
"Ididates passing both examinations, at their option. nay pass both

examninations
voluntarily.

or • No Person shall be admitted either to the preliminary Conditions for
nay examination uit il he has satisfied the Board- preliminary or

CD qualifying ex-
anunations.

(a.) That at the time appointed for such examination he
will, if the examination is for a place below that
of a third-class clerk, be of the full age of fifteen
years, and in other cases be of the full age of
eighteen years, and if for the Inside Departmental
Division, that his age will not then be more than
thirty-five years;

(b.> That he is free from any physical defect or disease
which would be likely to interfere with the pro-
per discharge of his duties;

(C.) That his character is such as to qualify him for
employment in the service.

e heldThe Preliminary and qualifying examinations shall To be held un-
under such regulations not inconsistent with this tios.
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Act as are, from time to time, made by the Governor iln
Council and published in the English and French languages
in the Canada Gazette.

To whom 32. The examinations shall be open to all persons who
examinations. comply with the requirements of this Act as to proof of age,

health and character, and conform to the regulations made
Fees. as herein provided, upon payment of such fees as are deter'

mined by the Governor in Council; and all examinatiol 5

In either under this Act shall be held in the English or French
language. language, or in both, at the option of the candidate.

Notice of time 33. Notice of every examination to be held under this Act
adiace of for admission into the Civil Service shall be published inl

the English and French languages in the Canada Gazette ae
least one month before the date fixed for the examinatiol,
and the notice so published shall state -

(a.) When and where the examination is to be held;

(b ) The subjects to which the examination will extend.

Lists of per- 34. Immediately after each examination a list of the per'
°aified to sons who are found qualified shall be made out and pub-

e ade. lished in the Canada Gazette.

NEW APPOINTMENTS.

Proceedings 35. When it becomes necessary to make any appoint-
when new ap. t
pointments ment to any of the classes to which it is herein provided
are required. that first appointments shall only be made after qualifyint%

examination, such necessity shall be reported to the lead
of the Department by his Deputy; and upon such report
being approved by the Head of the Department, and after
the salary to be paid has been voted by Parliament, the

Selection of Head of the Department shall select and submait to the
candidates. Governor in Council. for probation, from the lists of qualified

candidates made by the Board, a person fitted for the vacant
place:

Probation. 2. The person so selected shail not receive a permanelit
appointment until he has served a probationary term of at
least six months:

iejectiOn 3. The Head of the Department or the Deputy Head maY'
during pro- at any time during the period of probation, reject any clerI
bation. or employee appointed to his department.

ed before 6. No probationary clerk shall remain in any depar
permanent ment more than one year, unless, at or before the end 0
appointment. that time, the Deputy Head signifies to the Head of the

Department, in writing, that the clerk is considered by hira
competent for the duty of the department:

172

49 Victoria,. A. 1886



Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

2. If he is rejected the Head of the Department shall Provision in
elPort to the Governor in Council the reasons for rejecting ca®e.of rejec.

him, and another clerk shall thereupon be selected in like
mXanner in his stead; and the Head of the Department shall
decide whether the naine of the person rejected shall be
Struck off the list as unfit for the service generally, or
'whether he shall be allowed another trial.

37. When the Deputy Head of a Department in which a As to offices
Vacaicy occurs, reports that, for reasons set forth in such requing

report secial quali-
fications.

(a.) The qualifications requisite for such office or em-
ployment are wholly or in part professional or
technical; and-

(b.) The requisite qualifications are not possessed by
any person then in the service of that depart-
ment ;

(c.) That it would be for the public interest that the
examination herein provided for should, as re-
gards such vacancy, be wholly or partially dis-
pensed with ;

The Governor in Council may, without reference to the Selection and
age of the person (if the Head of the Department concurs in apipomtment.

8tLch report), select and appoint such person as is deemed best
atted to fill the vacancy, subject to such examination as is
Btuggested in the report ; and such appointment shall be Fron the

~romthe f au theeinService ifade from the Civil Service, if any person employed therein lable.lsfonnd available :

2. City Postmasters; Inspectors, Collectors and Pre- Exception as
VQltive officers in the Customs Department ; inspectors tncerain

e 'Weights and Measures; Deputy Collectors and Pre- officers.
ive officers in the Inland Revenue Department may

th, PPointed without examination and without reference to
erules for promotion herein prescribed:

te The qualifying examination may be dispensed with in In what cases
the case of any person actually and continuously employed on qualifying"'Id silice the eparmentwit
ad eine the first day of July, one thousand eight hundred exmina dion

the cogt5y-two, if the Deputy Head of the Departmient, with pensea with.
the ncurrence of the Head of the Department, reports that
to e t1 'Ployee has the requisite qualifications for the place
apoied by him; and such person may receive an
eligib neut in the Civil Service for which he is otherwise
did 'if at the date of such temporary employment his age

exceed thirty-five years.
as.

e th a vacancy occurs in the office of the Auditor Gen- VAeao ein.
to the rgeport required to fill such vacancy shall be made eral's office.

llster of Finance.
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PROMOTIONS.

Promotion to 39. No promotion in either division of the Civil ServicO
ation under shall take place without special examination, under regul-
reations. tions made by the Governor in Council:

To whom 2. Excepf as herein otherwise provided, such examinatiol
open. shall be open to any person who holds a position below that

to which the promotion is to be made in either division Of
the service of the department in which the vacancy to be
filled by promotion exists ; and shall be in such subjects as

""ets fex. may be determined from time to time for each department
by the Governor in Council, and in such subjects, as bY
report of the Deputy Head of the Department in which
the promotion is to be made, concurred in by the Head Of
the Department, are submitted to the Board as best
adapted to test the fitness of the candidates for the vacant
office:.

In inside 8. When the vacancy to be filled by promotion exists indivision. the Inside Division the examination shall not be open to
persons employed in the Outside Division who, at the date
of their first appointment, were of a greater age than thirty
five years:

May be dis- 4. In the case of barristers, attorneys, engineers (militafY
pensed with or civil), officers of artillery in the Militia Department, andas to profès- ithesional men. graduates of the Royal Military College, architects, actuaries,

land surveyors and draughtsmen, when employed or whenl
seeking promotion in the line of their profession, the exami-
nation may be dispensed with on a report from the DeputY
Head, concurred in by the Head of the Department, that it
is not necessary:

special case of 5. No such examination shall be required for the re-er-
excisemen. ployment or promotion of excisemen who passed the depart-

mental examinations for the special class in the Excise set
vice before the first day of July, one thousand eight hundred
and eighty-two.

Yearly esti- 40. Once in each year, the Deputy Head of each depart-
mate Of
probable ment shall make an estimate of the number of vacancied
vacancies. likely to occur therein, during the ensuing year, in the First

Division in the classes of-

In first (a.) Chief clerks ;
division. (b ) First-class clerks;

(c.) Second-class clerks:

Additions. 2. To the number so estimated shall be added such fur-
ther number as the Deputy Head of the Department deernlS
necessary to compensate for any death, failure of health, Or
other contingency:

1I
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3. A similar estimate shall be made at the same time of In second
the number of vacancies likely to occur in the Second Divi- division.

Sion, to which promotions can be made:

4. The numbers so estimated shall be those with reference use of
to which the examinations for promotion shall be held, as stimate.
herein provided.

41. Notice of each examination for promotion in the ser- Notices of ex-
'Vice shall be published in the English and French languages aminations.

il, the Canada Gazette at least one month before the exami-
nation is to be held; and such notice shall state the number
Of promotions expected in each class in each division.

4 2. Except as herein otherwise provided, when any Selection fo.

'vacancy occurs in one of the higher classes, in either divi- vacies i

S1on, the Head of the Department shall select from the list elser.
of successful candidates for promotion, the person whom he
considers best fitted for the office, having due reference to
aiy special duties incident to such office, to the qualification
8&d fitness shown by the candidates respectively, during
t heir examination, and to the record of their previous con-
duct in the service: Provided, that when no person employed Proviso: if
11 the department is found suitable for promotion therein, no officer is
an examination shall be held of persons employed in the found fit.

service of other departments, with a view to the promotion
4ing made, as far as practicable, from the service.

43. Every promotion so made shall be subject to a pro- Promotion
bation of not less than six months; but at any time during aton
the first year the Head of the Department may reject the
Derson promoted, or he may be definitely accepted at any time
dunring the second period of six months after his promotion;

t 2. If the person so selected is rejected he shall then return If rejected.
0 the performance of the duties in which he was previously

engaged.

44* When any clerk who is promoted on probation is Further
rejected, the Head of the Department shall select another inel°ion.
his stead from the candidates still remaining on the lists of
Clualified persons made by the Board.

45. During the period for which a clerk is promoted on His former
Probation the duties of the office previously held by him hi'' es.,hali if necessary, be performed by a pei son selected for that formed.
IýLrpose by the Head of the Department.

6* An exchange of positions between two officers serving Exhanth e of
eaIrffterent departments, or in different divisions of the oerswith-

rent dbePartment, and the filling of a vacancy in one depart. out examina-
y a transfer from another division of the same depart- t°°
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ment or from another department, may be authorized by the
Governor in Council to be made without examination Of
either officer, but such exchange or transfer shall be made

Condition. without increase of salary of the person exchanging or trans-
ferred, and no person shall be transferred from an Outside
to an Inside Division whose age at the date of his first ap-
pointment exceeded thirty-five years.

SUPERNUMERARY AND TEMPORARY CLERKS.

Employment 47. When, from a temporary pressure of work, or froin
of assistance any other cause, the assistance of temporary clerks becomesin cases of
temporary necessary in any branch of the first or second division, the
pressure. Head of the Department may -if he is satisfied that such

necessity exists-on the requisition of the Deputy Head of
the Department, select from the lists of qualified candidates,
for whom no vacancies have, up to that time, been found,
such number of temporary clerks as are required, or may
employ any other person qualified for the service in question,

Term of em- if the list does not furnish such a person. But such other
i t e.nt person shall not be continued in such temporary employmentimitd, &.after the period in which a preliminary or qualifying exain

ination is held, unless he presents himself for examination
and obtains a certificate of having passed the necessary
examination :

The same, 2. The services of persons in the temporary employment
ate of of the several departments on the first day of July, one thou-

sand eight hundred and eighty-two, may be continued in
such employment so long as the Heads of the respective
departments deem necessary; the rate of remuneration to be
paid for such temporary service shall not, however, exceed
tha minimum salary o. a third-class clerk, unless the service
to be performed is technical and requires special qualifica-
tions ; and such temporary employment shall not be cou-
sidered as giving any claim to permanent appointment:

-Out of what 3. The temporary and supernumerary clerks so employed
u s pay- shall be paid only out of money voted by Parliament for

payment of the contingencies of the department, division or
office of the service in which such clerks are employed, or
out of money voted by Parliament for the construction of
works upon which they are employed.

PRIVATE SECRETARIES.

Private 48. Any member of the Civil Service may be appointed
Mnris o private secretary to the Head of a Department, and may be
saliry. paid an additional salary not exceeding six hundred dollars

per annum whilst so acting:

Must have 2. No salary shall be payable to any private secretarbeen voted. unless the amount has been voted by Parliament.
176
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GENERAL PROVISIONS.

49. The Head of a Department, and, in his absence, the As to leave of
Deputy Head of such Department, may grant to each chief absence.

elerk, officer, clerk or other employee, leave of absence for
purposes of recreation, for a period not exceeding three weeks
ln each vear; and every such officer, clerk or employee,
Whether'in the First or Second Division, shall take the leave
go granted at such time during each year as the Head or
Deputy Head of the Department determines:

2. In case of illness, or for any other reason which to him in case of
Seems sufficient, the Governor in Council may grant to any ines.

Officer, chief clerk, clerk or other emplo ee, leave of absence
for a period not exceeding twelve months.

50. The Head of a Department, and in his absence the Suspension of
l)uputy Head of such Department, may,- ®, for

(a.) Suspend from the performance of his duty or from the In what
receipt of his salary any officer or employee guilty of mis- cs.'
conduct or negligence in the performance of his duties;

(b.) Remove such suspension; but no person shall receive Removal of
11Y salary or pay for the time during which he was under ""P®"Si°"-

SUspension:

2. All cases of suspension by the Deputy Head of the Reportinsuch
DePartment shall be reported bv him to the Head of the cae'
]epartment.

.t. No extra salary or additional remuneration of any in what cases
d whatsoever shal be paid to any Deputy Head, officer aly ad diton.

b employee in the Civil Service of Canada, unless a sum has anlowed.
een placed for that purpose, in each case, in the estimates

'buitted to and voted by Parliament:

2. When the duties of any superior officer or clerk during Case of infer-
18 absnce, or officer per.lis absence, or by reason of his demise, but not. through forming dutiea

k pranuation, are continuously performed by an officer or of superior.
rkof an inferior class or junior rank, during a period of

o0re than three months, the officer or clerk performing suchbuties inay, on the report of the Deputy Head, concurred in
by the Ilead of the Department, under an Order in Council,
en" Provided that funds are available under parliamentary
Vote for such payment, receive, in addition to his ordinary
Pay, the difference between such ordinary pay and the pay
of the officer or clerk whose duties he has performed, for the
tUlne he has performed such duties:

hi. •When the absence of an officer is not occasioned by Deuction
a eS ploymaent on other duties by the Government, by znoamy48--12 177 absence,
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leave of absence or on accouant of illness, certified by au
authorized medical practitioner, appointed by the Governor
for that pirpose his ÏalaIârfÔr esh day of gunh absèece
shall be dedheteU rotniis mnÂnxly kalr.

As to officers 2. Any 6fftçr, clerk Or èrtployee #hô hasresigned, häli
n e éli1ble, eithout exat ination, uíder the anthiority 'f bii

mshing to re- Ordér mÈi Connei, toý re-eiiter the eérvlce, it the saie Àalarenter ernee the ls hi Which he wa s'i-viüg at ihe thMie of suoh
resignation, and vidided that fXuis éaié â ailable fôi the
payment of his salary.

Certain pay. 53. Ail payments of mnôney to permànent employees,
ments tn other th an salat-ies, to be made ûñnder the provisiois of thiî
under Orjer Act, and whether specifcally etatd in 'thé eàtlI1tèà àÛ
mn conneii' mitted to Parliament, or payable undersub-section two of

section fifty-one, shall be maàde oily nudèr the authority of
the Governor in Oôn-I-.

Act n.t to 54. Nthing containe'd in this AÂt shåll prejudicially
Pl"odè' ce r- áfifet the sl r oemolumieits of axy" t ead, ocer,tain offcers. a P,,,, p y H d,£

cle or emiiee in' the ivil Service of Canada, appointed
on or before the first day of July, one thousand eighit
hundted and eighty-two, so long s Le ià cotinued in oflice,
nor àhall anything hérein contained affeet -any salary or
emolument granted and fixed by any Act in force at thé
time hereinbefore mentioned.

Powers of 55. No provision herein coitained shâll impair the powé
Governor in of the Governor in Council to remove or dismiss any DéputyCouncil flot
inpaired. Head, officer, clerk or employee, but no such Deputy Head,

officer, or employee, whose appointment is of a permanent
nature, shall be removed from office except by authority of
the Governor in Couneil.

Attendance 56. There shall be kept in each department, and in the
books to be
kept, their office of the Auditor General, at the seat of Government, and
use. in each office of the Second Division, a book or books, to be

called the attendance book, which shall be in such form as
is determined by the Governor in Council, in which eao
officer and employee of such office or department shall sigd
his name, at such times as are determined by the Governor
in Council.

Oath of aile. 57. The Deputy Heads of Departments and all officers,
giance by

afficefr and chief clerks, clerks, messengers, sorters and packers of the
employees. Civil Service who have not already doue so, and everl

Deputy Head, officer, chief clerk, clerk, messenger, sorter or
packer hereafter appointed, before any salary is paid hirni
shall take and subscribe the oath of allegiance and also the
oath contained iir schedule O to this Act, or such other oath
as is provided by some other Act in that behalf:

1718
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2. In the case of the- Clerk of the Privy Council, and all Addition to
officers under him, and in the case of any officer of whom o th i cer.
the Governor in Conneil requires the same, there shall be tai c
added to the oath at the asterisks, in the form of the oath in
the said schedule C, the words contained in schedule D to
this Act:

3. The Clerk of the Queen's Privy Council for Canada Clerk of P.O.
shall take and subscribe the said oaths before the Governor for Canada.

General or some one appointed by him to administer the
sanie:

4. In the case of persons residing or coming to reside at Before whom
the city of Ottawa, the oaths shall be taken and subcribed in Ottawa.
before the Clerk of the Privy Council:

5. In other cases the aths may be taken and subscribed And else-
before a justice of the peace or other proper authority, who where.
Shall forward the same to the clerk of the Privy Council:

6. The Clerk of the Privy Council shall keep a register Register.
Of ail such oaths.

58. The Secretary of State shall lay before Parliament, Annuaire-
Within fifteen days after the commencement of each session, ;oState,
a report of thé proceedings of the Board of Examiners under and what it
this Act during the preceding year, which report shall must show.
iliclude a copy of the examination papers, a statement of all
examinations held and of the number of candidates at each,
and the names of the successful candidates, and also the rules
anld regulations made during the year under the provisions
of section five of this Act :

2. The Secretary of State shall lay before Parliament in Further par.
like manner a return of the names and salaries of all persons ticulare.

aPpointed to or promoted in the Civil Service during the
said year, specifying the office to which each has been
aPPointed or promoted.

59. The Secreta of State shall cause to be printed each Yearly Civil
Year a list, to be called the Civil Service List of Canada, of be rinted and
all persons employed in the several departments of the Civil laid before

I'arliament.
service together with those employed in the two Houses of
. arliamient, upon the first day of July last preceding, show-
11.9 the dates of their several appointments and promotions,
their age, rank in the service, and salary; and shall lay the
samie before Parliament within the first fifteen days of each
Ses&S4on

60. The several Acts passed in the forty-fifth, forty-eixth Former Acta
and forty-seventh years of Her Majesty's reign, consolidating repeaied.
and aneUding the Civil Service Acts are hereby repealed.

.49 Victoria A. 1188
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SCHEDULE A.

(a.) Deputy Heads of Departments;

(b.) Officers who have special professional or technical
qualifications;

(c.) Chief Clerks;

(d) First-class Clerks;

(e.) Second-class Clerks;

(f.) Third-class Clerks;

(g.) Messengers, Packers and Sorters.

SCHEDULE B.

All the officers, clerks, and employees hereinafter enume-
rated, and such other officers in the lower grades as are
determined by Order in Council :

OUSTOMS.

Inspectors......... .....................
Collectors .................. ...........
Surveyors ..............................
Chief Clerks...........................
Clerks ...................................
Chief Landing Waiters...... .....
Landing Waiters................
Gaugers .......... .....................
Chief Lockers ................ ......
Lockers ... ......................... ...

Tide Surveyors................. ......
Tide Waiters ..........................
Messengers ....................
Appraisers ............................
Assistant Appraisers.................

salary fro

INLAND REVENUE.

Chief Inspector.....................
Inspectors............................................
Collectors ...........................................
Deputy Collectors.................................
Clerks (Accountants)..............................
Special Class Excisemen........................
First, Second and Third-class Excisemen...
Probationary Excisemen .......................
Messengers... .........................
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Scale of Salaries.
n $1,600 to 2,500

$1

"9 400 to
"i 1,200 to
"i 1,200 to

400 to
800 to
400 to
600 to
800 to
400 to
800 to
400 to
200 to
800 to
600 to

4,000
2,500
2,000
1,200
1,200
1,000
1,200
1,200

800
1,000

600
500

2,000
1,500

$2,800
,600 to 2,500
500 to 2,200
400 to 1,500
600 to 1,200

1,200
600 to 1,000

500
200 to 500
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To which may be added for surveys of important manu-
factories an additional salary for the special class Excisemen
Who perform that duty, not exceeding $200 per annum.

POST OFFICE.

Post Office Inspectors:

Chief Inspector............................. $2,800
1st Class, on appointment................................... 2,200

After 10 years' service............... . . 2,400
" 20 ...... .............. 2,600

2nd Class, on appointment....... .. *. 2,000
After 10 years' service...... ...... .. ..... 2,200

" 20 " ................. 2,400

Assistant Post Office Inspectors:

On appointment, $1,200, with an annual increase of $50,
to a maximum of $1,600:

The scale of -salaries of clerks in Post Office Inspectors'
Offices shall be the same as for clerks in City Post Offices:

Railway Mail Clerks:

On Appoint- -b__

ment. Ç QS C CL)

Chief Cerk--........... 1,000 ...... 1,200 ...... 1,50  ...... 1,500  ......
lot CSs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  720 880 800 1,000 880 1,100 960 1,200

Ca -............... 600 720 640 800 720 880 800 1,000

480 600 520 640 560 700 640 800

no e rke other than Chief Clerks, in addition to regular salary, an allowance
Ce. ng half a cent per mile for every mile travelled on duty in the Post Office
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Mariiie Mail Clerks:

After After After After
2 years. 5 years. 10 years. 15 years.

-s tO e~ s s sOC a
17U2 U72

st Class .... 480 80 540 80 600 80 800 100 1,000 100

2nd Class... 360 *50 420 50 ............ . .......

NOTE.-Trip means the round voyage from Quebec or Halifax to Liverpool and
back.

*Only one-half, or $25, to be allowed whilst learning duty.

City Postmasters:
Class 1, where postage collections exceed-

$80,000....... ..... $2,600
do 2, do are from 60,000 to $80,000...... 2,400
do 3, do 40,000 to 60,000...... 2,200
do 4, do 20,000 to 40,000...... 2,000
do 5, do are less than 20,000...... 1,400

to 1,800, as the Postmaster-General détermines. These
salaries shall not be supplemented by any allowances, com-
missions or perquisites whatsoever.

Assistant Postmasters:
Class 1.........................................................$2,000

do 2......................................................... 1,800
do s ......................... 1,600
do 4 ................................ ......... ............... 1,400

do 5................................$1,100 to 1,400
Clerks in City Post Offices :

3rd Class, $400 by annual increase of $40 to $800.
2nd Class, $900 by annual increase of $50 to $1,200.
let class-Specific duties in each case with fixed salaries

to be determined by the Postmaster-General ; no salary shall
be less than $1,200 or more than $1,500;

Superintendent of Letter Carriers, not to exceed $800;
Mail Transfer Agents, $400 with an annual increase of $40

to a maximum of $600;
Letter Carriers, Messengers, Box Collectors and Porters

$860 to $600 by annual increase of $30.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.

Inspector of Penitentiaries:
The same scale as Post Office Inspector.
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SCHEDULE O.

I (A.B.) solemnly and sincerely swear that I will faith-
fully and honestly fulfil the duties which devolve upon me
as , and that I will not ask or receive
any sum of money, services, recompense or matter or thing
Whatsoever, directly or indirectly, in return for what I
have done or may do in the discharge of any of the duties
of ny said office, except my salary or what may be allowed
me by law or by an Order of the Governor in Council; *
* * * So help me God'.

SOHEDULE D.

And that I will not, without due authority in that behalf,
disclose or make known any matter or thing which comes
to mIy knowledge by reason of my employment as (as the
case may be).

OTTAWA ;-Printed by BRowN CHAMBERLIN, Law Printer to the Queen's Most
Excellent Majesty.
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Victoria.

APPENDIX No. 2.

46 VIC., CAP. 8.

kAl Aet to amend and consolidate the Acts relating to
the Superannuation of persons employed in the Civil
Service of Canada.

[Assented to 25th May, 1888.]

4 ER Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of therreambie.
Senate and House of Commons of Canada, enacts as

0llows:-

1. The Civil Service for the purposes of this Act shall in- who to be
ellde and consist of- deemed civi

servants.

. All officers, clerks and employés in or under the several Those to
epartments of the Executive Government who are paid a Cm 4, applie.

Yearly salary, nd to whom, " The Canada Civil Service Act,
882,' applies, and those who in case they were or are

aPoinÙted after the coming into force of that Act were or are
appointed in conformity with its provisions:

2. All such officers, clerks and employés of the second or Certain r
Ott8ide division of the Civil Service, to whom " The Canada Bo"Mide
P:Vil'Service Act, 1882," does not apply, and who are employed vice.

a<8n established capacity, and paid a yearly salary as the
'Vernor in Council may, from time to time, designate:

8. The permanent officers and servants of the Senate and Officers and
e"1se of Commons, and the permanent officers and servants seatsuf

in the Library of Parliament, who for the purposes commons.
this Act shall be held to be in the Civil Service of Canada,vlng always all legal rights and privileges of either House
respects the appointment or removal of its officers and

servants or any of them:

P4 All persons now contributing to the Superannuation Present con.

the fund.
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Certain 5. All persons to whom the Acts relating to superannua-
others. tion hereby repealed are by some other Act not repealed de

clared to apply.

Conditions 2. The Governor in Council may grant to any persol
and rates of having served in an established capacity in the Civil ServiCe
allowance. for ten years or upwards, and having attained the age Of

sixty years, or being incapacitated by bodily infirmity fro0
properly performing his duties, a superannuation allowance
calculated on his average yearly salary during the then last
three years, and not exceeding the following rates, that is to
say:-If he has served for ten years, but less than eleven
years, an allowance of ten-fiftieths of such average salary, and
if for eleven years and under twelve years an annual alloW
ance of eleven-fiftieths thereof, and in like manner a further
addition of one-fiftieth of such average salary for each addi-

Maximum tional year of service up to thirty-five years, when an annual
rate, for 35 allowance of thirty-five-fiftieths may be granted, but UO
years. addition shall be made for any service beyond thirty-five

Breaks inser- years; if the service has not been continuons, the period Or
vice ot periods during which such service has ben interrupted shall
count. not be counted, and the Order in Council made in such case

shall be laid before Parliament at its then or then next ses-
sion.

Governor in 3. The Governor in Council may, in the case of any per-
Council xnay ~o lit
add to service son who entered the Civil Service after the age of thirty
of persons years, as being possessed of some peculiar professional or
account of other qualifications or attainments required for the office to
special quali- which he was appointed, and not ordinarily to be acquired
fications. in the public service, add to the actual number of years ser-

vice of such person, such further number not exceeding teI,
as may be considered equitable, for reasons stated in the
Order in Council made in the case; and such additional
number of years shall be taken as part of the term of service
on which the superannuation allowance of such person shall
be computed,-the Order in Council in any such case being
laid before Parliament, at its then or then next session.

Preliminary 4. The superannuation of any civil servant shall be pre'
"enry ceded by an enquiry by the Treasury Board,-
Board on cer-

tmaePoit (a) Whether the person it is proposed to superannuate
requisite. is eligible within the meaning of this Act; and--'

(b) Whether his superannuation will result in benefit
to the service, and is therefore in the public inter'
est ; or-

(c) Whether it has become necessary in consequence Of
his mental or physical infirmity:
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2. And no civil servant shall be superannuated unless the Report of
Treasury Board reports that he is eligible within the mean- Board.

1n1g of this Act and that such superannuation will be in the
D'Qblic interest.

5. Towards making good the superannuation allowances 2 per cent, de-
hereinbefore mentioned, an abatement shall be made from salaries of
the salary of each person in the Civil Service to whom this $600 or more,
Act applies, at the rate of two per centum per annum on om persa1ae
"lech salary, if it be six hundred dollars or upwards, and of below $600.
onle and a quarter per centum per annum thereon, if it be
les than six hundred dollars, and the sum so deducted shall
'Or part of the Consolidated Revenue Fund; but such Proviso.

abatement shall be made only during the first thirty-five
years of service.

6. The full superannuation allowance as aforesaid shall 10 years' con-
1.l Ytbe granted to persons who have been subject to the tribution re-

ment during ten years or upwards ; the superan- a owance.

'11nation allowance of any person who has not paid it, or has
Paid it for a less period, being subject to a diminution of one Diminution
er Centum for every year less than ten during which he of con
as not paid it ; except that the superannuation allowance tion.

of any person hereafter retiring, shall not be subject to any
fthI diminution by reason of his not having paid the abate- Exception.
1neIt hereinbefore mentioüed, during any;year or years after

s fhist thirty-five years of service.

Retirement shall be compulsory on any person to whom Compulsory
the Superannuation allowance hereinbefore mentioned shail retirement.

e Offered and such offer shall not be considered as implying
4'Y censure upon the person to whom it is made; nor shall

Persoir be considered as having any absolute right to Allowance
ch allowance, but it shall be granted only in consideration co"gndnal
*ood and faithful service during the time upon which it service

%B ealculated; and nothing herein contained shall be under- Right of dis-
d as imnpairing or affecting the right of the Governor :to iussal not

or remove any person from'the Civil Service. impaired.

If the Head of a Department reports with respect to Diminution
Persn employed in his Department, and about to be ®e®, Depty

Hlead reports
perannuated, from any cause other than that of ilbhealtl unsatistactory

tage, that the service of such person has not been satisfac- service.

ory, the Governor in Council may grant such person a
p'erannation allowance being less than that to which he

W*0"d have otherwise been entitled, as to him may seem fit.

fr. If any Person to whom this Act applies, is constrained Gratuity
rO1 ay . when yearly

bef ay'nfrmity of mind or body to quit the Civil Service allowance otih the period at which a superannuation allowance earned.
e granted him, the Governor in Council may, allow

aS i 198
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Gratuity in him a gratuity not exceeding one month's pay for each year
of bodily of his service; and if any such person is so constrained to

duty. quit the service before such period, by reason of severe
bodily injury received without his own fault in the discharge
of his public duty, the Governor in Council may allow him'
a gratuity not exceeding three month's pay for every tWO
year's service, or a superannuation allowance not exceedilg
one-fifth of his average salary during the then last thre7
years.

Provision for 10. If any person to whom this Act applies is removOd
abolition of from office in consequence of the abolition thereof, in order
office, reduc-.oftef W
tion of staff to the improvement of the organization of the, department to
&c. which he belongs or is removed or retired from office to

promote efficiency or economy in the Civil Service, the
Governor in Council may grant him such gratuity or super-
annuation allowance as will fairly compensate him for hi
loss of office, not exceeding such as he would have bee"
entitled to if he had retired in consequence of permanelit
infirmity of body or mind, after adding ten years to his actual
term of service.

Pensioners 11. Any person receiving a superannuation allowance, and
under 60 being under the age of sixty years, and not disabled by bodili

bleguired or mental infirmity shall be liable to be called upon to fill
under penalty in any part of Canada, any public office or situation for
aliowance. which his previous services render him eligible, and 11ot

lower in rank or emolument than that from which he retired,
and, if he refuse or neglect so to do, he shall forfeit his said
allowance.

Service before 12. Service in an established capacity in any of thi
Confedera- public departments of the Government or offices of tii0

counted. Legislature of any of the Provinces now included in the
Dominion of Canada, before such Province became a
portion of the Dominion, by any person who has thereafter
entered the Civil Service of Canada shall be reckoned iO
computing his period of service for the purposes of this -Act'

Disecretion- 13. in any case of doubt the Governor in Council mayy b
of Governor general or special regulations, determine to what persons the
in council. provisions of this Act do or do not apply, and the conditiOi*

on which, and the manner in which, they shall apply in aIu
case or class of cases.

rayment of 114. The allowances and gratuities granted under this Act'
allowances. shall be payable out of the Consolidated Revenue Fund of

Canada.

Annual re- 1. The Minister of Finance shall lay hefore Parliani6tr
tur° to be within fifteen days after the commencement of each sessinl.muade to Par-
iiament. a return of all superannuations and retiring allowances i
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the Civil Service within the year, giving the name and
rank of each person superannuated or retired, his salary, his
age, length of service, the allowance granted to him on
retirement, the cause of his superannuation and whether the
vacancy has been subsequently filled, and if so, whether by
Promotion or by a new appointment, and the salary of the
lew appointee.

16. The following Acts and parts of Acts are hereby Repeal of foiî
Tepealed :- mer Acts.

33 Vic., c. 4, intituled "An Act for beller ensuring the
etlciency of the Civil Service of Canada, by providzng for the
Superannuation of persons employed therein, in certain cases."

36 Vic., c 32, intituled " An Act to amend the Civil Service
uperannuation Act."

88 Vic., c. 9, intituled "An Act to further amend the Civil
Service Superann ,ation Act."

"Section 54 and sub-section 3 of section 55, of "The Canada
Civil Service Act, 1882."

18. This Act may be cited as " The Civil Service Super- short titie.
annuation Act, 1883."

OTTAWA: Printed by BROWN CHAMBERLIN, Law Printer to the Queen's
Most Excellent Majesty.
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Tupper, Sir Chas............................
Tupper, Nathan............................
Tupper, Conrad W.........................
Turbide, Telesphore................
Turcotte, Colise............................
Turcotte, Xavier................... ........
Turcotte, Jean Baptiste.....................
Turenne, Joseph ............................
Turgeon, Charles Edward...................
Turgeon, Narcisse .........................
Turner, Henry.............................
Turner, James B............ .........
Turner, Henry Hamish.....................
Tweedale John B., M. D ...............
Twohey, Rev. Pati*ck A....................
Tye, W illiam D ............................
Tyner, Frederick...........................
Tyre, Robert...............................
Tyrrell, Joseph B., F.G.S..................

87
141
27
54
42
69

160
163
150
26

147
42
26
71
42

113
76
48
75

154
126
69

120
86
42

119
26
47,
70

103
118
75
72
42

135
135
127

58
9

73
158
71
55
62
19

146
134
61

106
120

60
iv
69
72

134
131
127
127
19
26

161
66

114
17

127
2

90
88
57
18

Umlah, Richard ............................ 7
Upper, Albert H.....,...................... 14

Urquhart, Donsa .......................... 42Urquhiart, James Ronald........ ..

Valin, Josep Elzéar......................05
Vallée, Joseph............................. 0
Vallée, Henri............................. 3
Valois, Félix............................... 13
Valois, Jos. Almeida ....................... 6
Vanlngen, Wm. Henry...................... 22
Vankoughnet, Laurence.......... ......... 1v
VanStraubenzee, Lieut.-Col. Bowen..........
Vassal, Henry..............................131
Vaudry, Olivier............................ 1
Vaudry, Jean.......................... 116Vavasour Edwin W........................
Venn, Albert J.............14.
Venning, Robert N............... 4.2
Venning, William H .......... .........
Verner, John ................. . ..........
Verner James W. D....................43
Verrauit, Jules E........................... 10
Verrault Eugène..........................
Vézina, i ri ................ .............
Vibert, Philip.............................7I
Victs, Botsford ........................... î30
Vigor, Edward S..........................42'
Villeneuve, Jacq ues...... ................ il
Villiers, Lt.-CoL. Henry P. V...............
Vincent, Joseph Louis....... ..........
Violette, Francis...........................
Virtue, Crawford....... ................ sS
Visser, Thomas Egbert................ ..
Vohli, Cyprien Joseph....................... 10
Voigt, Fr derick C.........................

22:

Wadsworth, Thomas P......................
Waggoner, David James ....................
W agner, Elizabeth R.......................
W agner, Mary A...........................
Wamwright, Frederick G ...................
Wainwright, Major Willis R. S..........
W ake, Baldwin H..........................
Wakeham, William ............... ........
W alker, George.................. ..........
Walker, William H ....................
W alker, W illiam...........................
W alker, Alexander.........................
W alker, James............................
W alker, David J., jr.......................
W alker, W illiam B.........................
W all, John ................................
Wall, Arthur William... .......... .......
W all, James Francis.......................
Wallace, John Robeits......................
Wallace, Robert.....................
Wallace, John G.....................
Wallace, Martin .......... ..........
Wallace, Joseph J....................
Wallace, George H........ ..........
Wallis, Brown......................
Walls, John ..........................
Walmsley, Alexander... ................
Walsh, Lawrenîce........... .........
Walsh, William... ................
Walsh, Matthe, F........ ..........
W alsl, W illiam. ..... .......................
W alsh, Jam es. ................ ...........
Walsh, James........... ............
Walsh, Major Jolni ...................
Walsh, Robi ert.......... ...........
Walsh, David............ ..........
Walsh, Thaddeus Josephi...............
Walton, Thomas S..................

8
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W ilson, James.............................
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W inters, W illiam..........................
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W ooster, Turner............................
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RETURN
(48a)

01 the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in
the Civil Service during the year 1885, specifying the office to which
each has been appointed or promoted. (Sec. 68, sub-see. 2, ' Civil Ser-
'Vice Act.")

By Commaw

bsjsrtent of the Secretary of State,
12th Maroh, 1886.

J. A. CHAPLEAUI
Secretary of State.

Of the Names and Salaries of all Persona appointed to or promoted in the
C'vil Service, during the Tear 1885, specifying the office to which each has been
!PIoeinted or promoted. (Sec. 58, sub-sec. 2, " Civil Service Act.")

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.

APPOINTMENTS-ILa.

PROMOTIONS.

same.

.................
..........

y.............. .............

I I
Age.

Date
of Appoint-

mentor
Promotion.

Jan.
July
do
do

Nov.

29...
1...
1...
1...

23...

Inside
or Rank or Office.

Outaide.

Inside... Secretary, Chief Clerk............
do ... 2nd lass ................
do ... do ............................
do... do ................
do ... Ist .as . ... .. ...

DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES.
APPOINTHENTS.

•ta ........... 27 Aug. 1... Outside. Ufficer in charge of the Fraaer 1,200 40
River Hatchery, British Ool-

PROMOTIONS.

A. 1888

8alary.

$ t.

1,800 00
1,100 00e
1,100 00
1,100 00
1,400 00
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RETuRN of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in th&
Civil Service during the Year 1885--ontinued.

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE.

APPOINTMENTS.

Date Inside
Name. Age. of A ppoint- or Rank or Offee. Salary-

ment or Outside.
Promotion.

Eenry George Lewis........... 11... 1Outaide. Agent at Victoria, British Col-
umbia.

PROMOTIONS.

Françoiq Frédério Gourdeau. 41 July 1... Inside... Chief Olerk and Accountant .. 1,8
A ùred Wallace Owen........... 42 October 1... do ... 2nd Class Olerk ..................... 1,1

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE.
APPOINTMENTS.

I. Tracey .......................
J. B. Tweedale ...................
J« P. Rutherford...........
F. Paré ................
G. P. Sylvester.....................
J. H. L. St. Germain ...........

-Tbos. Hating...................
B. B. Fee ...................
Wm. Jackson...............
J. Clark ................
J. Sylvestre ....... .........-.
J. G. Badeau........................
T. V. Hutchinson.................
Thos. Casey.. ................
W. G. Ibbotson..... ......

61
40
47
32
51
48
45

35
38
39
44
42
58

Jan. 16...
do 16...
do 29...

Feb. 9...
do 20 .
do 20...

March 7...
do 23...
do 27...

April 4...
July 10...
October 27...
Dec. 10...
February3...
July 31...

Outside.
do ...
do ...
do ...
do
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do..

Inside...
Outside.

Health Officer .............
do
do
do. .........
do
do
do
do
do
do............ .....
do
do
do ......,...............do...........

3rd Class Clerk......................
Immigration Agent....... .........

PROMOTIONS.

B. B. Small .................... 54 January 1... Inside... Obief l.......
I. H. Bailey .................. 37 Dec. 4... do ... 2nd Class Clerk.. ..................

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.
APPOINTMENTS.

120

1i911¶
114

-1 1*

B. P. Dinning. ..............
J. D. Sherman .....................

-J. T. Oolton........ .......... ....
J. Baxter........... ..,..............
A. McMordie .......................
B. Meadows........................
J. Butler......................
G. Bllis ........... ...................
D. H. Goulden .................
J. A. Ingram................
I. F. Thompson ..................
H. Cooch ............................

Sept.
do

Oct.
July
do
do
do
do
do
d o

Sept.
July

26 .. Outside.
26... do ...

1... do ...
1... do
1... do
1... do
1... do
1... do

26... do ..
1... 1 ; 

2

3rd Class, R.M.0............. .....
do ..................
do .............

Letter Carrier ................
do ......................
do ....... ,....... .
do .................
do ........ ..............

3rd Olase...... ....................
Letter Garrier ....... ....... 
.Id Ulass, R.M.0...................
Packer.,........,. ..........

A. 1 886
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URN of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the
Civil Service during the Year 1885-Continued.

POST OFFICE DEPARThtENT-Continued.
APPOINTMENTS-Continued.

Name.

0ague ..................
>ad g...........
rack

n............

O'Connor ...... .........

Robertson ...............
a.eo................

.R. hillips ............
Lawrence...............
>Ur ..........
6but....

urroWs
Ithbert, jun.

or .. ... ..............

Sgn..........

therington ........
e ....................

reival

unkett.. .........
'field ..........

'liier ................
ris ette. .
'Mn ~.........

Ada...........
ibault.. '......... .r.

.....g..... ......i u. .............>r "' . .........

miour........ ..

'gan.
rench.

arso. .......
............. ...

?fý"*** ............
RRLrs ........ .....

.ly

Ol'oar..........

Age.

35
25
23
26
27
34
45
17
27
34
21
24
35
47
36
25
24
25
25
28
27
24
26
19
30
22
22
28
31
21
19
34
22
33
22
20
21
30
50
45
31
35
21
30
22
35
36
30
19
26
29
22
24
23
18
23
27
28
18

Rank or Office.

Date Inside
of Appoint- or

Mn9rOutside.
Promotion.

July 1... do
October 1... Outeide.
do 10... do
do 1... do
do 1... do
do 10... do

July 1... Ineide...
do 1... do

Nov. 1... do
July 1... do
do 1... do
do 1... Outaide.

Nov. 9... do
July 1... Inside...
do 1... do
do 1... Outaide.
do 1... do

October 1... do
July 1... do
October 17... Ineide...
May 30... E)utaide.
June 1... Inside...
do 2... Outeide.
do 4... do

July 1... do
do 1... do

June 27... do
July 1... Ineide.
August 5... do
July 24... Outeide.
June 15... do
August 1... do

do 1... do
do 5... do
do 1... do

June 17... Ineide...
July 24... do
Sept. 21... Outaide.
October 1... do
August 14... do
April 1... do
Sept. 19... do
July 1... do
Sept. 19... do
do 21... do
do 21... do
do 19... Inside...
do 19... do
do 19... Outaide.

July 1... do
Sept. 19... do
do 19... do
do 19... do
do 9... do

October 1... fnslde...
do 1... do
do 1... do

Sept. 21... ide
do 26.1 do ...

Ousd.

do
do

Srd Class
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do

.............. .........
Railway Mail Clerk..

do ...
do

..................... ........
Railway Mail Clerk..
.......... ...................

.. .. ......................
Railway Mail Olerk..

do ...
do

.... .... ...... ..... 6.........
u ......... ....................

Letter Carrier ........................
3rd Class...................
Messenger ....................... ......
Packer ........ ....... . .........
3rd Class Railway Mail Clerk..

do do ...

3rd Class .............................
do ....... ......

Letter Carrier ...... .....
3rd Class ................ .... .

do ...... ............. .....
do R.M.0 ..........
do ..........................
do ............ .................
do .........................
do .........................
do ........................
do ...... .....................

Letter Carrier........................
3rd Clasa ........................ .....

do ..............................
Letter Carrier .................

do .......... .............
3rd Olasa ............................. ,

do ..............................
do .............................

3rd Clus ..............................
do ......... .........
do Railway Mail Clerk...
do ........... .................

Let er Carrier ............. ..........
3rd Glase....... ...................
Lei ter Carrier.................
3rd Clas..............................

do ...............................
d o ...................... .........
do ..... ,..... .......... ......
do Railway Mail Clerk...

Lei ter Carrier ................
Assistant Inspector.................
3rd Olass..........................

10 . ............. ..........
(10 ................. , ........

Mail Transfer Agent.............
Letter Carrier........................

Salary.

$ CIe.
40000
400 00
360 00
400 00
40000
480 0
400 00
400 00
40000
40000
400 00
40000
360 00
400 00
425 0
36000
360 00
40000
500 00
40000
400 00
40000
480 00
400 00
360 00
4000
360 00
800 OU
50000
480 00
400 00
48 00
360 00

1,100 00
400 00
400 00
400 OU
490 0W
460 00
36000
360 0W
480 00
48000
480 00
400 OU
480000
400 00
450 00
480 00
400 00
48 00
400 00
40000
360 00
40000
30000
300 00
480 00
480 0
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RETURN of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in th0
Civil Service during the Year 1885-Continued.

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT-Continued.
,APPOINTMENTS-Concluded.

Name.

0. Fcx ................................
J. J. Lally ..........................
T. Mollard .........................
A. J. Cbeyne........... ............
J. Pre.dergast ...........
W. J. Doller ........................
A. H. J. Coburn ..........
Thos. Gill...... ..........
P. T. f. Ermatinger ............
Thos. Patteron ....... ............
Thos Mvore ...................
W. H M. Gemmill ......
A. Masse ....... ....................
Hy &. Atkinson ........ .........
Tho. L amauque ....... ....... ....
Thos.;8mitih,.................
A. Edge comb . ..................
L. J. W. Larue ..............
A. G;anon.......................
F. E. Ketchum .....................
Robt. 'Karron ............
J. O. McCulloch ..........
W. J Mankey ......
Henry Spiers ...... ......
D. R. Ternent ......................
E. W; Hay .... ..... .........
Jno. A. Jackson ............. .....
Thos. Moore .........................
John Reid.........................
J. R. copp ..........................
R. Weir ..... ........ 
K. MArrick .......................
T. L'Ecuyer (declined appoint-

nient)..............................
J. T. H. Lapierre...... ...........
A. Korin..............................
E. O. H. Lacroix . ...............
'. Leblane ..........................
W. 0. Meair...... ...... .......
Theo. 8mith ................. .....
D. R. Perrault ................
O. A Meikle (on account of

illness, declined appoint-
ment)........ .................. 

Age.

35
23
25
25
22
21
24
30
28
36
30
20
26
29
32
24
20
19
35
28
21
19
25
30
25
25
22
20
24
26
26
25

26
24
21
22

..... 
26
21
24

.......I do 22... jInside...

Rank or OfRee.
Date

of Appoint- Insideorment or Outside.
Promotion.

iept. 26... Outaide.
January 1... do ...

do 1... do ...
February 1... do ...
January 1... Inside ..
Fpbruary 1... outside.
January I... do ...
February 1... do ...

do 1... do ...
do 1... do ...
do 12... do ...
do 16... do ...
do 16... do ...
do 16.. do ...
do 19... do ...
do 20... do ...
do 28... do...

March 2... do
do 2... do ...
do 2.. do ...
do 10... do ...
do 10... do ...
do 13... do ...
do 13... do ...
do 23... do
do 31... do...

April 1... Inside...
do 1... Outsid8.
do 1... do ...
do 1... do ...
do 1... do ...
do 1... Inside...

May 1... Ouide.
do 1... do
do 16... do...
do ,2... do...
do 26... do...
do 1... do ...
do 22... do ...
do 22... do ...

PROMOTIONS.

A . G. Thompson..... ............
G . Rosa ....................... , ...
G. H Bull ...... .................
A* J. Mcgobie, ...................
D. F. M1cCarthy ......... .........
O. Portier... ............
.1T O'Loane. ...........
J. D Ross.................
J. McN. Gabriel...............
G. Marsan .....................

3 A January 1...
30 do 1...
34 do 1...
28 April 1...
40 June 1...
45 April 1...
3& July 1...
34 April 1...
30 do 1...
27 July 1...

Outside.
do ...
do ...
do ...

Inside ...
do ...

Outside.
do ...
do ...

Inside...
4

1st Class Olerk.........
2nd Class

do......... ...
do Railway, Mail Olerk.
do do

lst class do
2nd %lass -o

do do
do do ...

,Ist 01ass do ...

A. 1886

Salsf.~

4800
4800

480,00
40000
4800
480,00
4000
400,00
400
400
400 0#400
360100

300
4800

40

4000
4000
4000-

40000600

360 0
où

360 00
360 00

400,00

360
3600

360 0J

109

960:
1,100

3rd Class Railway Mail 0lerk.
do do ...
do do
do do
do Clerk .....................
do Railway Mail 0lerk.
do do ...
do ......... ....................
do ......... ....................
do ..................
do .... . .......... .........

do .....................
Letter Carrier ...............

do ....
3rd glass ....... ..................
Letter Carrier ...... ........ .......
3rd Class Railway Mail Clerk,

do do .,
do do ...
do do ..,
do ..................
do ...... .....................

Letter Carrier...... ....
do ...........-- .........
do ......... ..............

3rd Class Railway Mail Olerk.
do 0lerk ...............

Letter Carrier ............ ...........
do ........................

3rd Clas ........................
Letter Carrier .......................
3rd Class ................

Letter Carrier...... .......
do ........................

3rd Glass ..........................
do ...... ...................

Letter Carrier .................
do . ....... ..............
do ........................
do ...............

3rd Glass . .....................



49 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

RJtURN of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the
Civil Service during the Year 1885-Continued.

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT-Concluded.
PRO MOTIONS-Conclu led.

Name.

L~' j9Bre~........... ...
ouliot

D.P "'n Auteuil

Wel .. ...............
reps. ........

S on............

SReed.............
S .............

Age. 1

DEP

.. .... .. r ...t e .... 3
. en*

S...... . 3

oa . ........ 30
..... 46

21
.4.1 - Xh.......43

iyt"FI.P-raall27
e 8 ... 35eea ~ ~~. .............. 27

...........stj . . . . . . . . . . . 358
. uia2

22
28

Ieo ......... .40
39

la... ........... ......... 398rg ......... ......... 48
~ ~Gego....... 48

or .................... 52
cei......................49

S el ..........36
11.. .............. 58
.................. 39

35
. ... 46

551 Ij....... .... ........ 44
inoiton ..... 44

oriQ -''**' . ....... 40
30
45
45 8

er. ............... 35

- .........
.. 32

52

Date
of Appoint-

ient or
Promotion,

July
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do
do

Insideor
Outside.

1..~ µo ..1.4 Inýde..

1.. do
1.,~ do ..
1..~ do ..
1..~ do ...
1... Ontside.
1...do....
1.. do ...
1.. do ...
1.. do ...
1... do ...
I... do ...
1... do ...
1..- do
1... do ...

Rank or Office.

2nd clasm...............................
do ................ ........

do .............. ........ .....
do ..............................
do ..............................
do ..... .................
do ........ ......
do ............ .............
do ............................
do ...... ...........
do ....... .... ......

lst Class ............ ..............
2nd Class .................. ...........

do ............... .... .... ......
lst Class ......... ..... ..... .........
2nd Class ...... ..... ......

do ...............

ARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.
APPOINTMENTS.

October 1... Outoide.
Nov. 17... do
Dec. 1... do
do 1... do...
do 1... do...
do 1... do...
do 1... do...

Februaryl... [naide...
July 1... do
June i... do
July 1... do..
January 1 ... Ontaide.
February 1... do

do 5... do...
A pril 1... do
do 9... do ...
do 14... do ...

Februaryl... do ...
gay 1... do ...
do 16... do ...
do 1... do ...
do 1... do...
do 1... do ...
do do...
do do...

June 1... 'do
do i... do ...
do 1... do ...
uluy I... do ...
do 1... do ...
do 13.. do...
do 1... do...

June 1... do...
Juny 1... do
Augut 1... do

5

Preventive Officer . ...........
Sub-Oollector ..........

do ........................
do ........................

Preventive Officer .................
Clerk ..................................
Sub-Collector ......................
3rd Class Glerk .....................

do .... ...............
do ...................-
do ..... ...............

Preventive Officer ............ .....
Olerk and Assistant Appraiser.
Tide Waiter ...................
Preventive Officer ..................
Olerk ...... ..... ........... ..........
Preventive Officer ..............
Tide Walter...........................
Collector .. .... ......
Preventive Officer ...........

do ....... ......
do .. .......

Sub-Collector ........ .....
do ............... ~. ...

Oollector . ....... .............
Olerk ......................

do ..............
Tide Waiter .........-.............
collector. .............................
Landing Waiter ....................
Tide Waiter ........ .................
Preventive Officer . .......
Tide Waiter...... .........

do ......... ........ .....
Collector.... ...... ........... .....

A. 1886

Salary.

s eta.
1,100 00
1,10000
1,100 00
1,10000
1,100 00
11100 00
1,100 00

900 00
900 00
90000
900 00

1,200 00
90000
900 00

1,200 00
90000
900 00

30000
50000
200 00
400 00
50 00

1,000 00
1,000 00

450 00
.500 00Mr~o O.000 00
600 OU
50000
750 00
550 OU
550 00

.600 00
15000
600 00

1,200 00
150 00
150 OU
10000
30000
300 00
75o (0

1,000 00
500 00
500 O0

1,300 00
500 00
50000
150 0
60000
50000

1,200 00



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

RETURN of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in th0
Civil Service during the Year 1885, &c.-Continued.

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTO[S-Concluded.
APPOINTMENTS-Concluded.

Name. Âge.

H. S. Creighton ............ ...... 25
F. Robidoux ..... . ..................
L. Robitail!e....... ......... 49
H. S. Evans ............ ...... ..... 55
J. Walker ................. ......
H. St. G. Hawkins ............... 35
G. J. Chadd. ........................ 48
P. Flynn ............................. 53
E. Pelletier .......................... 60
J. M. G. Dixon .... ......... 43
D. J. Lemieux ............ ......... 32
T. Lose .................. 41
A. haut ................. 41
L. D. Perham ...................... 30
T. K. Oahill.................. 40
J. orrison...................5

Date
of Appoint-

ment or
Promotion.

August 1.,
do 1...

July 1...
do 1...

Sept. 8...
do 8...

October 1...
do 1...
do 19...

July 1...
do 1...
do 1...
do 1...
do 1...
do 1...

Nov. 10...

Outside
or

Inside.

Outside.
do ...
do
do
do
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do
do
do

Rank or Office.

Clerk .............................. .....
9ub-Collector .......................
Inspector ...................... .......
Analyst ....... ........................
Preventive Officer...................
Sub-Collector .................

do ............ ......-
Collector. .............. .... ........
Sub-Oollector ..... ....... 
Tide Waiter and Locker .........

do .........
do ........
do .........
do .........
do .........

Packer ..... ... ............

PROMOTIONS.

R. Boyer ........................ ..... July 1... Outside. Tide Surveyor.. ...... 1,00
J. 0. Collier ....................... Dec. 1... do ... Sub-Collector..... . 1,00
A. Robert on................. .. Augut 19... do ... Gauger ........ ....................... B0
N. G. Parmalee ................... 52 January 1... Insida... Assistant Commissioner ......... 2,80

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE.
APPOINTMENTS.

Thos. B. Cahill................
Thos. Oasey.........................
John J. Cosgrove............
1. J. O. Fortin ..............
B. Forest ........... .......
Bamuel lrwin ......
John Dumbrille ...... ...... .....
Eugène Hammond ...... .........
a. McPhillips .................
Thos. Hughes ...... ...............
Wm. M. Kelly ............ .........
A. P. Simpson...... ............
J. D. Fox ............ ...............
John H. McKay..............
John Yeuill ....... .. ......
Geo. Williams .....................
Barnard B. Smyth ......... ......
James J. Coleman ......... .....
R P. McMillan.....................
Jos. Devine . ... .........
Michael Shanacy.........
Arthur W. Goodman.
Burwell Sehram ..........
J. J. Oosgrove . ..... ......
John W. Ostello..............
Geu. Rennie . ..........
R. A. 0ostigan.,,.....,...... ...
I. T. Euggard......... ............

47 Jan. 23...
........ Feb. 3...

32 do 6...
........ March 9...
...... do 16...
......... do 16...

.do 16 ...
........ April 4...
........ do 4
....... May ..
......... .......
......... June 5
........ do 5...
......... do 5..

..... Aug. 6...
. Sept. 3...
. Oct. 23...

do 23...
........ do 27...

Nov. 23...
......... do 23...
......... o 27...

49 do 23...
32 do 27...

......... Dec. 9...

...... - do 21...

......... Nov. 27..
.Dec. 9..

Ontside. Probationary Exciseman .........
do... do .. ....
do ... Assistant Inspector of W. & M.
do ... Collector of Inland Revenue....
do ... Exciseman.. ......... ............... -
do ... Assistant Inspector of W. & M.
dg ... (jollector of Inland Revenue....
do ... Preventive Officer ..........
do ... Assistant Inspect r of W. & M.,
do ... Probationary Exciseman.......
do ... Preventive Offieer ........ ........
do ... Collector of Inland Revenue ...
do ... Probationary Exciseman .........
do ... Collector of Inland Revenue...
do ... Asistant Inspector of W. & M.
do ... Deputy Collector ot Inland Rev.
do ... Probationary Exciseman ......
do... do
do ... Olerk of Canal Office..............
do ... Depnty Collector of Inland Rev.
do ... do
do ... Probationary Exciseman .....
do ... Chief Preventive Officer .........
do ... Prev. Officer .........
do ... Assistant nuspector of W. & K..
do ... Deputy Oollector of Inland Rev.
do ... do ...
do ... Inspector of Gas ..............

Saar-

70000
2,000 O

800 0>
40e 0
400 0@
400 0@

1500
'400 00

Ilà 0&

6000

50000

7500

1400006000
500 0
150 00

50000
0o0 00
300:
500 00

000
500:690000

400
4000
00
00

5e00 00
1900

00 

1,



& Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

IfTURN of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in thO
Civil Service during the Year 1885-Continued.

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE-Concluded.
PROMOTIONS.

Name.

arre*t .........
e S ....................
Shaw...............

I bubbck...............

Standish ..........
linderson ...........
.- J. MceHugh........,...
. Barrett...... ............
Ine..... ..................

SBarwood...........
nllion...... ............

J Pence...........
S tewart...... . ... . .. .. .....

Q . s ................. . ..
, Bobbs ...... ..................

S .esson............
.BeliWel ............. .......

J J. Fraer......... .........
. MDonald ...... .... ... .. .

!ee W on ........................enuwoodr.............
.... ........................

teYb.......
J. l ry ...... .....................
L.Ur............... .........1T Q, oueil .~.................

.... ...... (
'.Fraser--arks

Jo s w g Ol ...... 

.g.rd.... ...... «

Promotion to date from July 1, 1884.
do January 1, i885.
do July 1, 1885.

Inside
or

Outside.

Date
Age. of Appoint-

ment or
Promotion.

35 April 20...
......... June 30...
......... *July 31...
......... & do 31...
........ * do 31...
....... do 31...
........ do 31...

27 do 31...
29 do 31...
. . do 31...
27 do 31...

........ do 31...
........ do 31...
........ do 31...

25 do 31...
........ do 31...

30 do 31...
. do 31...

31 fAug. 5...
do 5...
do 5...

...... do 5...
20 do 5...

. d o 5...
28 do 5...

. . do 5...

. . do 5...
38 do 5...
46 tOct. 23...

To date from
Feb. 6 Feb. 1, '85
Mar. 16 July 1, '84
do 16 Feb. 1, '85

May Il July 1, '84
Oct. 23 do 1, '85

do 27 .........
do 27 July 1, '85
do 27 do 1, '85

Dec. 21 Jan. 1, '86
do 9 do 1, '86

Rank or Office.

District Inopector of Inland Rev.
2nd Clase Cierk.....................

do .....................
do ................
do .....................

lst Class Exciseman ...... ........
do ...............
do ..............
do ..............
do ..............

2nd Class Exciseman .............
do ...............
do ...............
do ..............
do ...........
do ...............
do ........ ,......
do ...............
do ............
do ..............
do
do ...............
do ...... ... ...
do ...............
do .............
do ...............
do .............
do ..............

Deputy Collector of Inland Rev.

Exciseman ................
Assistant Inspector of W. & M.
Excimeman ..... ............... ......

do ......... ...................
Bookkeeper Excise ................
Collector of Inland Revenue....
Collector of Canal Tolls .........
Bookkeeper, Inland Revenue....
Exciseman ......................
Inspector of Weights & Measures

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE.
APPOINTMENTS.

Dec. 1... Inside... Superintendent of Insurance ...
Oct. 1... do ... 3rd Class ...............................
Dec. 1... Outside. Clerk, G. B., Winnipeg..........J
Nov. 1... do ... do Victoria............

2,800 c0
500 00

1,0(0 00
900 0

A 1886

Salary.

$ CI& .
1,800
1,100 0.
1,100 00
1,100 00
1,100 00

800 00
800 0S
800 0(>
800 0
800:00
70 00
700 00
700 00

708 0.
700 0M

700 00
70 04>6
700 00
70(0 00
70> 00,
70> 0
700 0M
100 ce
700 &>

700-0<>
1,L1600

604>0<>
600 00b
60t70<>
60900<c
800)0M
700 0<Þ
750, 0»
809 0<
6(#00

1,0t& 0<>

Outside.
Inside...

do
do
do ...

Outside.
do ...
do ...
do ...
do
do
do
do
do
do
do ...
do ...
do
do
do ...
do ...
do
do
do ...
do
do
do ...
do ...
do ...

do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

RETURN of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the

Civil Service during the year 1885--Cotinued.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE-Concluded.

PROMOTIONS.

Name.

Geo. Lowe, jr. . .... .........
0. A. Gough........................
W. L. Blair.............
J. P. Nutting ......... ..... ......

Age.

44
33
23
29

Date Inside
of Appoint- orment or Oùtside.
Promotion.

Jan .
April
Jan.
àpril

1... Inside...
1... do ...
1... do...
1... d o...

Rank or Office.

lt Class ............ ...............
do ,..............................

2nd Class ..............................
do ............ .................

DEPARTMENT OF AUDITOR GENERAL.
APPOINTMENTS.

Barm A. Baldwin ................. 34 July 1... Inside... 3rd Clase...............................

PROMOTIONS.

John Gorman...... .. 37 IJuly 1... Inside... it Class ..............
Frederick Hayter 29 do 1... do do ......................

500 
0

1
1 400
14000

DEPARTMENT OF INDIAN AFFAIRS.
APPOINTMENTS.

Laurence Donald Cameron
Foster Blis,...........

William Alpheus Hunton.
John Ansten .... .....
James Martin................
John Webb Jermyn........... ...
Janes Telfez Çonway..........

March 16...
May 11...
July 6...
Pebruary6...
Match 16...
Julne 9...

Inside ...
do ...
do ...

Outside
do ...
do ...

3rd Claus................... ......
do ..............................
do .............................

Indian Agent........................
do .......................
do' .....................

PROMOTIONS.

Bamuel Stewart ................ 33
Martin Benson...................... 40
John McGirr......................... 39
B. W. Wright .. . . .. 34
L. W. Herchmer.......... ...... 45

Dec. 1, '84... Inside... 2nd Clas............................... 1:100 00
do 1,'84... do ... do ........ 1 ... ........ 1,100

July 1... do ... do . ............ ... ............ 1, 00
October 23... Outside. Indian Agent.......... ........ 1

do 23... do ... Inspector of Agencies ....... 1,

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR.
APPOINTMENTS.

Frank Nelson.................
E. B. D. Bruce. ................
0. J. Steers .... ...................
H. E. Hume ..... ..... .............
George Bell............
Eugène Belleau ...... ..............
I. a. Nash.. .. ..........

26 Jure
37 do
36 do
18 do
35 do
27 do

34 Auguet

1... Inside... 3rd Class Clerk........ ......... ...
1... do... do ....................
1... do... do ....................
1... do... do ......... ..........
1... do... do .....................
1... do... do ................... I
5... Outside. Agent of Dominion Lands for

S8 . the Dist.of BattlefordN.W.T.

A. 188&

Salary.

1,400 0
1,400 0

100 0oo

400
400

600

500



tg ictOria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1886

N of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the
Civil Service during the Year 1885 - Continued.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTER[OR-Concluded.
APPOINITMENTS-ConluIed.

Date
of Apon Inside

.ge. ment or Rank or Office. Salary Naenteo Outaide.
Promotion.

4iI Om e ''''.... 3

.- 48 Sept. 3... Outeide. Agent of Dominion Landes for
the Dist. of al. N.W.T... 1,20000

.......... ..... 37 &uguet 3... do ... Re33istrar for
S D y..monton, N W.T............1,200

.D Ri.kard -............ 37 Nov. 27... do ... Permanent Staff of the Otside
Service ln Manitoba and
North-West Territories ........ 1,095 GO

PROMOTIONS.

SDOrigîM......... 43 July 1, '84... Inside ... let Class Olerk and Atsistant

e De'i•.. Secretary.......... ........ 1,400e. è......... 36 January 1... do ... Chief Clerk and Snrveyor-Gen-
i do t d eral....... ......... ......... 2,200 0If' .x ooee....... 6 d . .. Ch-.ff Clerk of Patenta .......... 1,ý800 00

,ýDate 
Inside

p b6 f, le 6 --Sept. 37 do 3... do ... let lass OlerkL........ r.......1400
e26 do 1 do ... 2nd olas Clerk N.W.T... 1,100 00

- 4 p...kugs33 do 1... do ... doRe i............ .... 1 i 
VPir .. .1, ddnon N .T ............... 1,200 0

S
8edÏ-d .............. 43 July 1 ... do ... Chief Clerk andl Accountant. 1,800 W0

3 do 1... do ... Ist las lerk and Assistant
Accountant............. - 14W00 

8rit 5 1t1 ..... ....... 38 March 11 ... Outaide. Oommnissioner of *Dominioni
Sand for Province of Mani-

ortoba and N.W.T... ........ , ,095 G

July.. 1, Se 843... Isde ... spcoofDmnnLad

Agenciea and Member of the
Land Board. ................ 2,000

GEOLOGICAL SURVEY.

APPOINTREIiTS.

st ~~~mb . 22 Xarch L:., [uside ... Artist ................ >............ 1,000 0O
.....g..... 2 do 1 ... do ... Vining Geologist.............1,10000. .27 do 1... do ... do 1,10000

PROMOTIONS.
Cohra.i....... 36 July 1... Inside... 2nd Class and Assistant Topo-

grapher ........ ......... 1,100 GO

L-PÂIThiENT 0F SElRETARY 0F STATE-



.49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

.ETURN of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in th
Civil Service duriig the Year 1885-Continued.

DEPARTMENT OF SECRETARY OF STATE-Concludd.
PROMOTIONS.

Name.

William Gliddon ............
Ira William Storr..... ........
Gustave Emond ..........

Age.

51
38
23

Date
of Appoint-

ment or
Promotion.

Juily 1...
do 1...

Dec. 1...

Inside
or

Outside.

Inside...
do
do

Rank of Office.

1st Clas .............
2nd Class ... .. ............... ......

do ......... ....................

DEPARTMKNT OF MILITIA AND DEFENCE.
APPOINTMENTS.

1,10000
1,10000

Majqr Jamea.Douglas Irving...

Lieut.-Ool. John Barton Taylor

Lawrence Foley............ ......

-Capt. Lawrence Buchan .......

Alfred Codd, M.D..............

Lieut.-Col. Pennyman White
Worsley.

Lieut. George Hunter Ogilvie.

Lient Oscar Charles Casgrain
Pelletier.

Capt.'Jas. Chas. McDougall..

Vapt. James Alex. Bremner...

Lieut. Robert Cartwright ......

Lieut. J. Edmond Chinic .......

Oapt. J. Chas. Gaspard Drolet

James Kidd Oswald............

John Bray Cochrane.............

Alfred Geo. Godfrey Wurtele.

41 April

55 July

30 August

39 1 do

4... Outside.

8... do ...

5... Inside...

15... Outside.

do 15...

23...

29...

29...

29...

29...

29...

29...

29...

29...

23...

23...

Brigade Major, District 12 .....

Ccmmandant Mounted Infantry

3rd Clase Olerk, Accountant
Branch.

ICaptain, Mounted Infantry......

do ... Surgeon, Mounted Infantry .....

do ... Deputy Adjutant-General, Dis-
tricts 9 and 12.

do ... Lieutenant, Regt. Canadian
Artillery.

do ... do do ...

do ... Lieutenant, Inf. School Corps..

do ... do do

do ... do do

do ... Lieutenant, Infantry School....

do ... Lieutenant, Mounted Infantry..

do ... do do

do ... Professor, Royal Mil. College...

do ... do do

1,200
per su

perdice

with ';
a0

450eper

300
per di

with q 0
1,700
per 0

per di0e

20
per did2 0
per dia*-*

per di*

per de

pr2 00
per dOO-

,000
per a
1,000

PROMOTIONS.

arWillis Reddick Stowej 48 April 27...1nside .. 2nd Olass Clerk...................... i
Waitrnwright.-

DEPAR PMENT OF JUSTICE.
APPOINTMENTS.

Orlando Sampson Strange...... 59 February 7... Outide. Surgeon, Kingston Penitentiary 1
ý ON-rarya

A. 18



49 Victoria.

N of the

Sessional Papers (No. 48.) A. 1SS

Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the
Civil Service during the Year 188-Contimud.

DEPARTMENT OF .USTICE-Concuded.

PROMOTIONS.

Date Inside
Name. Age. ofppoint- or Rank of Office. Salary.ment or Outside.

Promotion.

a , M.D ............ 60 1February 3... Outside. Warden, Kingston Penitentiary 2,0 0&

DEPARTMENT 0F PRIVY COUNCIL.
APPOINTMENTS.

4ees G. Foley ............ 33 July 1... Inside... 3rd Clas Clerk........ 70nder Roberon ......... 30 Novem. 27... do ... Messenger .....................

PROMOTIONS-NIL.

DEPARTMENT OF LIBRARY.

i i. G
X. Mae · · ·.

. 
-. ..............

ohn mitormac ......... .........
A. ord0 ."...... ...........

. on ..............

APPOINTMENTS.

38 August
30 Novem.
44 March
19 Novem.
43 do

6... Inside ... fParliamentary Librarian.
27... do ... 2nd Class 0lerk...........
2... do ... Extra Olerk .. .... .

27... do ... 3rd Class Clerk ........ .
27 ... 1do ... 1 Me8senger ..........- 1.......

PROMOTIONS.

†. l . .. ............
L ehe """ ...................

. ••... .............

t...................--....... I
July
Novem.

do
do
do

1... Inside ... General Librarian ..................
27... do ... ilst lass Clerk ...............
27... do ... lIt do ..... .........
27... do ... 2nd do ...............
27... do ... 3rd do ........

Lth was appointed an Extra Clerk on 2nd March, and was made a permanent officer of the
.bY Order in Council of 27th November, 1885, at a salary of $750. Up to the present time%

.1 amount has not been paid. (See contra).
,er in Council of 27th November, Mr. Todd's salary was raised to $1,600 per annum, butUlý been paid at rate ot $1,400 per annum up to the present time.
lit was appointed permanently by Order in Council of 27th November, 1885, but has onlyary at the rate of $730 per annum. (See contra).

DEPARTMENT OF H0USE OF COMMONS.
APPOINTMENTS.

P d D .............tau ......... .....
h4e çis .a .-..".......

O rai emieux •......
ngg ".....................

July
do
do
do
do

20... [nside ... 2nd Class Clerk .. 1,100 00
20... do ... 3rd do .......... ... I 400<
20... do ... 3rd do ................... 40000
20... do ... Night Watchman ............ 600 00
20... do ... iesenger ................... . .

3,000 0M
1,100 0

730 00
400 0050S0S

3,00000
1,600 0<
1,400 00
1,100 00

750 00



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 48.)

RTUMN of the Names and Salaries of all Persons appointed to or promoted in the
Civil Service during the Year 1885-Concluded.

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSE OF COMMONS-Conclude

PROMOTIONS.

Date Inside
Name. Age. men po or Rank or Office. ¿Salary.

Promotion. Outside.

'Wm. (1. Bowles.................... 44 December' ... Inside.. Olerk of Votes and Proceedinge 1,650 00
1. B Taylor .......................... 55 do ... do ... Assistant Clerk of ,Votes and

Proceedings ............... 1,250 00

DEPARTMENT OF SENATE.

APPOINTMENTS-NIL.

PROMOTIONS.

0. T. Gibbs ...................... 38 jJuly 17... lInside.. Assistant Accountant ............. 900 00

A. 1886



YVictonia. Sessional Papers (No. 50) A. 1886

EXPENDITURE
(50)

t14er Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising
Out of troubles in the North-West Territories, from lst July, 1885, to

15th March, 1886. Also Subsidiary Statement of Expenditure under

8alne Appropriation, &c., Hudson Bay supplies, &c.

?D1ITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising
Out Of troubles in the North-West Territories, from 1st July, 1885, to 15th Mareh,
1886.

EXPIrDITUr AT OTTWA. $ ts. $ ets. $ ctU.

Olerks &c.-
ol1kinghorne, 267 days, at $2....................... 534 00

246 do 2_............................... 492 00
cOann 243 do 2............... ....... , ......... 486 00
Sproule 226 do 2............................... 452 00

. Pardey 194 do 2 ............................... 388 00
1 Taggart 172 do 2.......... ...................... 344 00

ais 120 do 2.......................... ..... 240 00
. Maybee, to Jan. 31, at $1.50 per day, $309.50;

. boti machine oil, 40c. ........ ...... .......... 309 90
a.tilley, secretary, Surgeon-General's office,-86 days,

J. e $2 ......................... ............................................ 172 00
A. gLOir, Surgeon-General's office, 58 days..................... 58 00

palPnet, Copying, 45,800 words, at 10c. per folio ......... 45 80
t inn do 22,177 do do ......... 22 18

S ell aU, copying documents ........................ .......... 35 00
4. . . Wood, copying 13 folios, Surgeon-Genl.'s office.. 2 60

. Ot, extra work.......... .......................................... 500 00

0 . rich, extra work.......................................... 400 00
ir tof~ - 4,481 48

'o' pb elMinister.................. ............................. 211 05
$p.eii .ae $4 50 - . . ...... i 25ymeals, $6.75; cabs, $4.50 ...... ... ..... .................. ......... 12

½ht , eal at Commons for Minister's secretaries doing
. 'W ork, March to July....... ............................. .......... .................. 66 85

in 2elegraph Co., telegrams................................... 3,821 88
%da Banxpress Co.. freight ....................................... 3,185 94
preparkNote Eugravmng and Prnting Co.-

plate Og Stone, $50 ; 300 copies maps, $15........ ..... 65 00
and warrant, and 6,000 copies of do ...... ............ 567 50

. e.- 632 50Ste Valade, professional services.................................... .................. 300 00
'alSpecting boots, at $5 per day. ..................... ..... .. 113 74

nuley, 5eegraph Co., $4.15; 1 embossing press, $13... ....... .......... 17 15
copies " Our Volunteers in the North-West" .................. 8 40

-3 ; cartage, $6............ ............................. ...... ......... 19 20
-- 12,8U«44

s t G]::RÂIAL SUPPLIES.

& CO., lqontreal-
013 rifler great coats, at $5.48.. ... ... 29,592 00

0artille do 5.48..... ............... 11,031 242 0 avalry do 5.76..... .......................... 5,760 00
24 school do 7.22.....................,.......... 1,805 00

do 6.59................................. 158 16
48,346 40
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EXPENDITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to iefray expensos and losss ard"4
out of tioubles in the Nortb-West Territories. &c.-Continued.

GENERÂL SUPPLIS-Ontinued. $ ets. $ cts. S -

H. Shorey & Co)., Montreal, clotbing ...................................... 41,511 03
W. E. Santord & Co., Hamilton, clothing.................... ........... 10,000 00
3. & H. Borbridge, Ottawa-

33 prs. stirrup leathers, stirrup irons, &c., at $34.12........... 1,125 96
33 tapaderos, at $2.20, $72 60; 9 extra linches, $27.. ........ 9960
5 heavy felt numnahp. $150; 50 oak-tanned halters, $325.. 475 00
12 sacks, $2 40; 115 riflA belts, at 85c., $97 75................... 100 15
6,560 white haverseeks, at 40c., $2,624; 550 black haver-

sacks, at 55c., $302 50 .................... ......... 2,926 50
1,000 halter shanks, $330; 1,000 brown leather great coat

straps, $300 ...... . ................... .... .............. 630 00
501 knapsack straps, $50 10; samples, $76 20 ........... ........ 126 30
799 prs. leggings, at q68c........ .......... 543 32

6,026 83
VeIntyre & Sons, Montreal, 2,001 single grey blankets, at $1.45.............2,904 35
Young, Bigg»r & Co., Gait, 2,500 pro. leather mitts, at 46e.................1,150 00
J. Hamel et Frères, Quebec-

4,002 prs. wool socks, at 25e........................... 1,000 50
2,000 linen towels, at 17Î...................... .357 50

1,358 00
Liss-Freight charges ............................ ......... 6 86

1135115

J. M. Garland, Ottawa- 1 1311

1,037 pis. blankets, at $1.49 .................. 9.............. 1,5645 13
2,698 towels, at 17je ......... . . .......... 4...... ... ~. .. 482 27

-- 2,027 40
Tooke Bros, Montreal, 1,000 shirts, at 46o............. .................. 94 35
S. Ds.vidson, Toronto, 55 doz. wool caps, at $4, $220; express,

$3... ........................ , 223 00
J. inendethose, Egariville, 200 blankets, at $.80........... ................ 30 00
R. J. Devlin, 68 8cotch caps, at $7.50, $51; making over 2,

helmets, $1rg chare . ............. ................................... 52 20
Jantlie, Ewa & Co., Montreal-

2,501 sute underplotsng, at $ 1.10 . ......... 2,751 10
LEss-Freig t charges .............................. 20 82

- - 2,730 48
Goodyear Rubber Go., Montral, 375 army tent blankets, a.t.. . .. ................. 318 75
W. Lee, 565 pairs green serge trou..ers.............. . .................. 1,553 75
J. Coristine & Go., 1,000 hair seal wedge caps . . ........................... 1,000 00
J. G. Deormeau & Co., 1,438 pairs yellow caribou mitt e .................... 787 31
Paeking cases with goods................. ........... 69 90
Jaimes ockhar & Co., Toronto-

50 doz. woo mitts, at $4.50, $225; 43 scafs, at $6, $258.... 483 00
2 doz. scarfs, t ot, $14 ; 2 doz. scafs, at $8, $16............30 00
2 cases, at $1.75 ; expenses, $2.25.... ....................... 4 26

-- 511 25
Rev. Père Pauadis, O.M.I., Ottawa, 1 doz. bottues mosquito o,

at 50e ....... ki cases ........................ ................................ 600
e. F. & J. Gat, Winnipeg-

350 dbo. coffoe, at 18e., $63; 480 bs. tea, at 25., $120..... 183 00
52 do pepper,at :ý5c.(151l3;3787lbs.eheese, atl3c.,$492.31 505 31

3,750 do sugar, at 9c, $356 25 ; 937 bs. sait, $9........... 365 62
1,875 do pot barley, t 4e $2.2...... .......................... 4 00

Woods & Co., Winnipeg-.---.j 1289
30,029 lbs. biscuit, t aw., less 10 per cent..... .......... 1486 44

351 packages, 40e...................... ..... 140 40

Shaw & Materman, Winnipeg-
4(83 bush. potatoes, t 8;0 ..... . a .......... .$.. ....... 326 60

LEss-Freight paid Ca ............ . .. ....................... 142 6
-- 183 941

Masterban & Benard, Vinnipeg 2657 pbs. beef, t .. ......... 18 383 98
W. Bateman & Go. do 7,77 do brea8 . at ..... ........ 259 06Gallagher & Sons do 258 do beef, at 10 c....................
W. J. Boyd do 532 do brea, at 3 .................... 1729
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NPJKDITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and loSSes arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.-Continued.

J. (~.

Victoria, 560 lb.. beef, at 150., $84 ; 10J bush.10 50.. .. ......................................
boria, 758 lbs. beef, 15e.....................
'n, board of two men ......................
Beaver River, attendance on horses........... .........
ehead-
Of Yacht and sundry payments meeting General2kirk
20 ; hire of dishes, $2.65............................
Year old rye, $15 ; 2 doz. Margàn, $17.50............
4olinaris, $4 ; 2 doz. English soda, $3.50.............

enessey brandy, $2 75 ; 1 bottle bitters, $1.
.03 ; 1 box cigarettes, $1.75.......... ......... .........
50; o tongue, turkey, shrimps, $27.70.............

Cos, Calgary, bullet mould ...... ........ .
t pe g and poles....... ............... ........ ....seaulless sacks ..............................

Ba'teford, luniber............. ..........
Battleford-

a'Y, at $16, $156 1 ox, $90 ...... ..................ugar, 8 .25c. $191 ; 864 lbs., at 30c., $259.20.......il $80c. rope, $23.25............................ ..
Y, s Pans, dishes and plates, $6. ...........r.e .... ...t 65..

- ----
..... ..........
.. ... ..........
......... ..,1......
..................

6 75
13 85
32 50
7 50
3 75

14 75
30 20

246 00
450 20

24 05
14 00
2 60

ets.

8 00
1 72

6 00

1 41

GENERAL SUPPLIES-Continued. $ Cts. $
an & Co., Winnipeg, 80 bush. potatoes........,.......... .................. 2

Banning & Co. do lumber ..... ..... ..... ...... ............ 3
rnard do 1 day's board and lodging of

6 wounded ..... .................. ................. E

1Rargrave, Winnipeg--
cords wood, $85.25; 384 lbo. biscuit, at 64e, $24.96..... 110 21
lbS. meat, at 17e., $68 ; 48 lbo. cheese, a lc., $7.20 75 20
do tea, at 40c., $2.40 ; 48 lbs. sugar, at 7j, $3.60 ..... 6 00

- - - - 19
nBro Winnipeg-

6913 bush. oats, at 60c., $4,616 ; 338 seamless bais, $84.50 4,700 50relght paid Qanadian Pacifie Railway, $975.91; 795 forage
rations, $183.82............... ......... .. ........................... 1,159 73

------- 5,86ib & o. Calgary, provisions ............... 58.......... . ...... ......... ... 11
i' ckenzie& Powis, 3,000 lbs. sugar, at 1e............ ......... 45, asterman, 13,000 lbs. beef, at 16e........................ ......... ................. 2,08

)811.BaY Company, Calgary, provisions............................ ......... 67ng & Co. do materials for flags.................. .................. 1
tcthel do 10 tons hay............. .............. .................. 16
jarnples do 765 lb.. beef, at 13e........ ..........- 9
L cas do provisions......... ...... ... ....... ...... 12

seauley, Edmonton, 3,398 lb.. beef, at 15c., $509.70; 9
'.Erg 'E bSSsa cks, $4 50 ........ ......... .... ........................... ........... 51
rica ertson Moose Jaw, 9,8854 lbs. bread, at 3ie...... ........ ....... 3
1o flotel, Winnipeg, board of men .......................... 3

b , Edmonton, 55J bush. wheat, $55.53; 46M bush.
'I. y , $46.54 ........... »..... ....-... ............... ......................... ......... ......... 1

dgao , E dmonton, 20J bush. potatoes. ...... ... . .......... ..................
do 1474# bush barley........... .................. 1

. r al do 550 lbs,. beef, at 15e .......................... ...........
1 497le, Clarke's Crossing-

624 bu. meat, at 25e , $374.25; 350 lbs. beef, at 17c., $59.50 433 75
eah. Potatoes, at $2.50, $156. 25 ; 65 loaves bread,

Board $ 275........ ..,... ........, ................... ........,. .... ......... 179 00
48 b ad lOdging, $31.75; stabling, 17.85 ................. ..... 49 60
1 sadrrel, $60; rent, $80. ......... .................... 140 00

cony dle and bridle, $30; 3 cords wood, $15 ......... ..... 45 00
Blg Message from Fish Creek............................... 30 00

877 35

94 50
113 70

13 00
60 00

109 30
4 00

32 50
6 50
7 05

$ oIE.

0
9
0
0
9
6
0
9
6

4
45
17

02
20
47
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-EXPENDITIUEE under Appropriation of $2,q00,000 to defray expenses and Iosses arisiD$
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.-Continued.

GOENRAL é UPPLIEs-Concluded.
$ ets. $ C5 1

Maihaffy & Clinkskill, Battleford-
9 cords wood, $36 ; 200 rounds cartridges, $6......... ...... 42 00
Rope, $33.50 ; 40 bushels lime, $40 ........................ ......... 73 50
1,200 lbs. sugar, at 14c., $168 ; 5 lbs. nails, 75c ................. 168 75

-- 284 25

4. B. Rouleau, Battieford-
Horse brushes and curry comb, $5.60 ; pails, shovels, &c.,

$7.70....................... ............... ............................... 13 30
Lumber and shingles........................ ............................. 48 00

- 61 30
-7. Otten, 4 loads hay, $64 ; bake tins, $10 ; 9 loade wood, $36............... 110 00
B. Warden, 1 cook stove................................................................... 45 00
R. Guthrie, 1 buckboard.................. ................................................. 80 00
D. L. Clink, Battleford, luniber... ............. ............ 30 00
W. Latour do shoeing horses....... ........... 14 25
J. Simpson do 1 heifer ............ .. ............... .... 75 00
'T. Deman do 1 ox........................... ............ ........... 96 90
B. Dufers do 1 ox ............... .................... ................. 9000
R. Guthrie do - 2,050 Ibe. beef, at 17c., $348.50; 1

calf, $20 ......... .............................. ................. 368 50
H. Nash, 19 bush. oats, at $2.50 . ..................................................... 47 50
D. Finlayson, 1,500 lbs. hay, at 80c. cwt..................................... 12 00
L. Sayers, Battleford, 1,200 lbs. meat, at 17c......... .............................. 204 00
R. Wyld do 9 cords wood..................................... 38 25
Hudson Bay Co. do 392 lbs. tea, at 45e.............. ................... 176 40
Oallagher & :ons, Battleford, 5,069 lbs. beef, at 18c........ ................ 760 42
Inspector Normand, N.W.M P., 555 rations, groceries, meat,

&o., at F'ort Osborne ............................... ..................... 229 21 îîo

HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL SERVICE.

Dr. Bergin, balance of pay (£C2 10s.) ... ......................... 1,261 49
do transport,............................................... .15 33

-- 1,276 82

Dr. Suillivan, pay ($5.87 and $3,60 allowance)............................. .... 1,320 47
Dr. Roddick, advance on account pay .............................................. 1,000 00
Dr. F. W. Strange, pay,........... ........................... .................. 830 10
Dr. Nattress, balance of pay ............ . ............... ....... 413 25

do do expenses of Red Cross corps....i... 106 75
520 00

Dr. Reddick, pay, $469.95:; travelling expenses, $50.55 .................. ...... 520 50
Dr. K~. Hooper, pay, $45535; do $21.00 ........................ 476 35
Dr. E. A. Gra'rely, pay and allowances ........ ....................... ...- 271 20
Dr. M. *O. Cloutier, pay $470 25 ; travelling expenses, $42.25.......... . ....... 512 60
Dr. N. O. Walker, pay and allowauce .................................... ......... 85 75
Dr. J. W. Whitford do .............................. ......... ......... 105 40
Dr. H. R. Casgrain, balance of psy and expenses ...................... ......... 19 00
Dr. Pelletier, balance of expenses............ ...... ......... ... ........ ........ 40 66
Dr. J. A. Grant, jum., pay, $164. 15 ; travelling expenses, $26 25 ............... 190 40
Dr. Murray, pay, $48 75; goods returned, $1.50 ............................... 53 25
Dr. F. H. Powell, field allowance, $81; travelling expenses, $27............ 108 0ou
Dr. F. H. Newburn, pay ........................................... ........ ......... 163 80
Dr. J. Kerr do -. ................. ........................ ................. 318 07
Dr. Edwards do .............. ........................ ......... ......... 175 15
Dr. Might do ............................................... ......... 120 90
Dr. Jas. Bell do ................ ......... ......... ........ .... .... ...- 4'16 07
Dr. A. Henderson do ..... ..................................................... 232 50
Dr. Oodd do ......................................... ................. 261 17
Dr. Roîston do .............................................. .............. 165 00
J. P. Tobin, assistant purveyor, psy, $464.25; expenses, 5$4.50.......... ......... 603 75
J. Thomson & Co., Winnipeg, funeral expenses of Dr. Corbett........... .30 00
Dr. Griffen, Hauiillon, attendance on private Jarvis .... .... ............. 19 0)
Pay of medical board at Toronto ................... ............................... 1?0 45
Board of wounded at Winnipeg general hospital ............-............ ... .. 1,824 25
Psy of ambulance corps ........................................................... b,289 45
Psy of dresses, bospital sergeants, &cý ............. .... ...... . ........... 763 80

4
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NXPENDITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,0O0 to defray expenses and losses arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories-Continued

HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL SERVICE-0flt'nUed.

Týraveuling expenses, J. Rea, $7.75; W. H. Wilbur, $35; F.
h W ininett, $9............................ ................................... ..o d at Winnipeg .................................

. Jackson, Winnipeg, drugs ................. ............ .........
w . Caldwell do ...... ....................................

. Mitchell do .... .... ...................... ... ......
r. 1tage and cabs at Winnipeg ....... ................................

* - Scott, W innipeg. 20 stretcber4 ........ , . ........ .................T er, McKeand & Co., Winnipeg, provisions...................
CLing for ambulance corps ..... .... ................ .............

t. 1 . Houghton, travelling expeases of medical board to
k irtle and býck. ... .... ........................................

kea rvloe, bringing in dead soldiers under fire.......,..............
jeruB at Calgary, $119.50; drugs, $176 12..............................
At T'ing at Calgary, $1.50; casing coffins, $80 ..............

roy, cook, $14; waggon hire, $22; cushions and neck-
A oke, $8,5 ................ ......... ................ ..... ..
attleford, washing, $99.50; milk and eggs, $98.87.....

do provisions, $53.70; knives, dishes, $33.86 ........
do meals, $43.05; drugs, $13.15 ........ ...............

edd. ets, $1.25 ; rent at Prince A lbert, $16...................
1 removed from steamers with invalids ......... ...............

e4it0ba Penitentiary, 3 lined buffalo robes for Fish Creek......

4t F3askatoon
'derly, $130.75 ; chaplain, Moosejaw, $150.....................
L {t, labor and wahing.... ........................
purber, $194.67; tinware, $566.79......... .........
L risions, $246.82 ; fuel, $ô5 58................., . .. .....
pa or and cooking, $703.37 ; cartage, $665............. .....

7y of n1ursesà andafr
àtoos jaw -........................ .................. ..........

BoOts, $20.95; blankets, $31........ . ................................
ovisions, $49.28; drugs, $8.60 ........................... .........
aartess, $15.25; washing, $34.30...... ....... .......a ersupply, $16; slings, $2.75 .. ....... ............

1 , O $80; telegrams, $86.67 .................. .......................

ras hig, $7 ; milk, $6.60. ........................
prositons, $86.50; 1 box, $3.50 ...... ....................

M Q ,A urrent, provisions............ .......................... ........
4t I',Pel , board of invalida ............ .............................

A. ortage meals for invalida ........................... ...........
OJ. ]1eiiderson, professional services rendered Lieut.-Col.

y. i --U....................... .................... . .............
. MU.a, services at Victoria hospital..............

'. Ei ins, 12 team. .......... .....................
otham, McLeod, drugs.....................

.. erron , Conveying Dr. Rolph to irort Pitt.............
. rr, 1 Cow.....* ort' ". . .. ....... ....... . .. .--..."" ."".

< G aetz m' Winnipeg, stationery .............................
c. ac Led Deer, drugs............ ...............
c. avl.ean (B. M. Infantry Co ) hospital charges, $61.50;

cOG. e g expenses $38.90. ..... ... ........ ..... ......
Q. eases askatoon, 112 days' pay, $336 ; travelling ex-

'Jît. a .$40 _y ... trvlln
4. p Pay of' Qu Appelle, hotel expenses at Winnipeg ...........

arti & 0nads at Montreal....... ................
la. Pepartnen 0's Montreal, 1 copy regulations for medical

. tea l , 1. M.Ps army...... .......... ........................ .....
l. ira&Y and travelling expenses........ .. ...............100 , New York-1carck cots, at $3.75 ....... ..............

s rubber bandages .................. .....................
5

$ ets. $ ets. $ etS4

........... ......

.... .......,.....
,...............
...... ............
........ .......................... ,..
...... ............
... ...... ...........................
.................
..................
....................................
..................

280 75
104 26
761 46
302 40

1,368 37
769 90

51 95
57 88
d9 55
18 75

166 67

13 60
90 00

................

............

375 00|
65 63

51 75
218 70
261 64
2?5 20

;8 10
19$ 00

20 00
78 03

122 50

50 00
10 00

295 62
81 50

44 50
198 37

87 56
56 20

141 00
21 75
39 00

3,587 14

344 80

103 60
55 00
59 60
1 05

40 00
50 00

546 00
150 00
35 00
20 00

3 00
12 00

100 40

Vctoria.
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XUPENDITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arisiflg
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.-Continued.

HOSPITAL AND MEDIGAL SERviCi-Concluded. $ ets. $ ets. *
A. H. Girard, New York-

Commission, 15 per cent. on $1,841.88.............................. 276 2t)
Bank charges ...................................... ........................ 1 86
Medical supplit (voucher ot received yet) ........ ............ 73 35

Lyman Sons & Co., Montreal, medical supplies ............ ......... 4,22529
Dr. K. b. Graham, Ottawa, drugs ......... ........... ................ 332 86
Evans, Sons & Co., Monireal do ..................................... ................. . 29 65
T. D. Daniel & Co., Toronto do ........... ................ 312 96
W. L. Wood, Toronto, 6i doz. snow spectacles .......... . ................. 41 67
D. B. Rose & Co., Cornwall, building one army medical trans-

port cart ..... .................. .................. 200 00
Canada Atlantic Railway, f reight on cots .......................... 24 60
Dr. Bergin, sundry office expenses,......................................... 18 83
J. Bergin, Cornwall, drawing contract " rmy medical eart,"

& c..... ..... ..................................................................... ................. 0
Travelling expenses and subsistence of invalide...................... .................. 94 25
Bundry supplies at Saskatoon...................................... ........ ........ 35
.eals at Moosomin .................................................. 10 50
Qarpenters at Saskatoon ...................... ................ .....a............... 297 20

TRtANSPORT AND MAIL SEavîCiH.

(Janadian Pacifie Railwsy, transport, $2,009; advance,$400,000. ............. 402e009 00
Grand Trunk Railway........................................... ............ ..... 10,402 29
Worth Shore do ........................................ .... .. 1,939 80
Intercolonial do ............................................. ......... ......... 724 96
New Brunswick do .....-......................................... ......... ..... ... 664 52
Ma&nitoba and North-Western IRailway ........................... ......... ......... 594 40
Northern and North-Western do ............................ .................. 514 68
eanada Transport CJo...... ..................................... 213 721
]Prince Bdward Island Railway...... ........... ......... .............. ... .49 75j
St. Lawrence and Ottawa Railway....................... 22 20
ingston and Pembroke do ............................... ......... ......... 16 20

North-West Ceai and Navigation Co., advances .................. ........ ... 20,COO 00â
Winnipeg and Western Navigation Co.-

Steamer "Northeote, " April 7 to June 3, 58 deys, at $250 14,500 00
do "North-West," àlay12 toJuly 12,62 days, at$250. 15,500 00
do "Marqiiis of Lorne," May 1 to Ju]y 12, 73 days, at

$250............... ......... 18,250 00
Transport of bRggage by Iramway at Grand Rapids ...... 141 00
Ipamage to "1N orthcoîe " at Itatoche.... ......... 950 0
Transport of Winnipeg Liglit Infantry, Fort Pitt to Battie-

ford ....................................... -...... ............ 1,385 50
150726 50

2lorth-West Navigation Co.-
Freight on gun -wheels, $1712 ; on horses, $34......... ....... 51 12
Transport of 1,440 en, a t $5...........................7,200 00

do 145 officers, at $9.......................1,305 00
Meals, 758 50 ; special t p,. ................................ .. 858 50
4 fares, at do ........... ............................................. .. . 54 00

2<orth-West Transport Co., Sarnia--
Transport 3 officers and 341 non.con.mi..oned officersand

men, Port Arthr to Sarnia........................3,305 50
2,584 meal, at 25c., $646; forage, $12.80............. 658 80
Transport of horses .................................. .50 00

j3arnia to Halifax-
2,244 meals, at 35., $785..40; Pulmans, $155.................940 40
374 efficers and men, 1,351 miles, at 2e............................. 10e10 48
Freight on horses, $92 ; 144 meals, at 25c., $36....... ....... 128 00

-- 15,188 18
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eexNDITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arisiLg
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &.-Continued.

TRANsPoRT AND MAIL SiRVICE-ContsnWed. $ cts. $ cts. Ots.

1 Stewart, freighting-
s0Oe Jaw to Clarke's Crossing, 572¾¾ tons, at $110........... 63,021 80
do to Saskatoon, 22W% tons, at $100 ................... 215 50

euming, at $5 a day.... .... .... ...................................... 560 00

63,797 30
Lass-Forage and rations supplied ....... ...... $3,652 76

Shortage, $962.01; damage, $50 ...... 1,012 01
Teiegrams....................... ............... 1 33

-- 4666 10
-~ 59,131 20

LeWis & Co., Winnipeg, freighting-
11Y to Clarke's Crossing, 318 13 tons, at $140.00 ......... 44 523 29

Troy to Humboldt, 9112 Î do 105.00 ... 9,635 r,8
7fOY to Touchwood, 9Hâl do 52.60........... b01 90

54,660 77
Lasa-Shortage, $93.60; freight on shortage, $655.20. 748 80

Sinclair, Winnipeg, freighting, &c.- - 53,911 97
?Tansport of Winnipeg Light Infantry, Battleford to Swift

Vurrent.. ...... ........... ................... ............ ...... 4,010 00
500 bags, at 16c , $240 ; 5 day s teaming do, $25... ........ 265 00

UaUling supplies from Telegraph Coulée to Fort Pitt...... 350 00
2 ming 36 700 lbs., Battleford to Prince Albert........,... ,713 89
'M bage, at 12jc., $31.25; 24 days teaming, at $5, $120.... 151 25
"eatiing 7th Fusiliers, Clarke's Crossing to Moose Jaw ..... 690 00

alance of freighting account, as settled by War Commission 45,802 81
------- 52,982 95

ard Wright, freighting, Saskatchewan Landing to Battle-
176% tons, at $125 ........................ ......... ...- .. .. ................. 22,(58 81

Sowaro, freightiig, Saskatchewan Landing to Battle-
,oT4 160NÜ tons, at $125...... ...... .......... ........ 20,107 44
Laas--bhortage and freight on do ....... . ......... 99 70I21,110 74

111 days each, at $5 .................. ........... ...........
Co Mceod-21,117 74aer & Co. Fort McLeod-

teams, 8 days each, at $9.................................... ...... 1,296 00
2 een Fort McLeod and lidmonton-
2 daY with 9 6-yoke ox teams, at $15........... .............. 11,070 00
3* do 24 do do ...... ....................... 00

e15 een Fort McLeod and Calgary-
15 days with 8 6-yoke ox teams, at $15.................... 1,800 00

do 6 do do .............................. 1,35000

ie le Valley Farmiing Co.- 6760
Un1g, 1,019 days, at $10............... ............. 10,19000

o 308 do 5.................................. 1,540 
do 30 do 8 ..... ............. .................. 240 flO

S1,1910 00

11,070) 00

'748-ercbarge, 2,420 days, at $2..................... 4,840 00
l, 90- 7,130 00

4 c p in express charges and freight .......................... ..... ..... ...... 192 35
XCnOenald, damages to schooner "M. L. Buck,*' used

ln Ood g north shore, Lake Superior...... ........- ................. .. ...... 245 50
Q ood and Lake Superior Line, transport of Montreal
w i n a A rtilery........ ......... ...................... ............... .................. 897 00

nt Port Arthur, 335 teams transporting troops, at $6 ............. 2,010 00

Riddell-.
%porting nurse Miller, Moose Jaw to Saskatoon........... 80 00

ae JaW and Clarke's Crossing, 17 loads, at 50c... 8 50
ays teaming, at 45........................................... 2,085 O

j - - 2,173 50



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No.50.) A. 1886

EXPENDITURE Under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and 108808 ariOi<
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.--Continued.

TRANsPORT AND MAIL SERVICE-ContiUel. $ cts.
G. J. Chink, Battleford-

9,.005 lbs. stores, Swift Carrent to Battleford, at 3c............ 270 15
Transport of 25 men, at $6........................ ........-...... 150 00

_________ 420 15
G. Ronan, freighting 162 tons oats, Clarke's Crossing to Hudson

Bay Crossing, at $20 ......................... .................. 8,240 00
Leeson t dcott- .

1 man, Calgary to Edmonton...................... ........ ........... 25 00
1 man, Battleford to Swift Current................................... 25 00

-1 50 00)
8. A. Kerr, 2 men to Moose Jaw and Clarke'@ Crosing .............................. 30 0
H. Keith, teaming 35,810 lbs. from mail station, Touchwood, to

Government farm, at 15e a cwt....... ....... ............ ................ .53 71
H. Nasb, teaming 960 Ilbs, Switt Current t, Battleford, at 4c... ............. 38 40
J. A. MacFarlane, Battlefard, transport of two men, Battleford

to Swift Current. ....................... ........ ................... . .................. 50 OU
Teaming at Calgary-

15 4-horse teams, 1,065 days, at $12.......... ....................... 12,780 00
3 do 102 do 9................................. 918 00

17 2-horse teams, 1,299 do 8.......... ....................... 10,392 00
6 do 246 do 6.................... 1,476 00
1 do 4 do 5. ............ ....... ........... 20 00
9 carts, 317 days, at $3 50..... ..................... 1,109 50
1 do 48 do 3.00........... ................................... 144 00
1 horse, 19 do 1.00................... 19 00

At Edmonton-
3 2-horse teams, 182 days, at $8........................ 1,456 00
2 do 43 do 6 .................................- 258 00
Sundry teaming .................. .. ...... 245 00
1 cart, 10 days, at $3 .............. ................... 30 00

Calgary and Edmonton-
2 2-horse teams, 63 days, at $8.......................... 504 00
24 carts, 888 days, at $3.50......... .......... 3,108 00

Calgary, Edmonton and Fort Pitt, 8 2-horse teams, 797 days, 6,600
at $8......... ............... ......... ..... ....................................... ......... .......,. 6 3 6 0

Calgary and Fort Pitt-
1 4-horse team, 93 %ays at $12.......................... .............. 1,116 00
2 2-horse teams, 191 days at $8...... ................................ 1,552 00
1 horse, 10 days, at $1.50................................................. 15 00

At Battleford-
5 teams, 142 days, at $4......... .......................................... 568 00
Mail service............................,.... ............... 97 50

- 6655<)
At Swif t Current, 5 days, at $4.50. ........................... . ........... 22 50
At Winnipeg-

2 teams, 29 days, at $6 .......................... ...... ..... 174 00
1 do 32 do 5...... .......................... 160 00
Sundry teaming..,.... . ... ....... 459 50

S7930
~At Fort McLeod, 4 tesas, 283 days, at $8 .......o................. 2,2640

At Red Deer-
1 4-herse tearo, 10 days, at $8 ................... ......... ..... 80 00
1 2-hrse do 10 do 6.3........................0 6000
1 ez team, 10 days, at $5............. ................. .............. 50 00)

510 00'

Calgary and Battie River, 4 2-horse teame, 48 days, $5 .. ............... ...... 240 <0
do High Riiver................... ........................ ........ 1400

Fort Saskatchewan, 1 team, 9 days, %~t $6..0................... .............. 64 90
Battlehrd and Swift Carrent, 34 carts ............... ... ............... j 810 0
Meese Jaw and Clarke's Orossing, 1 team, 14 days, at $5 .............. 70 0<)
Fish Creek and Msoose Jaw, 16 day., at $6.50..... ... ..... ......... ......... I 104 O0
Saskatoon and Moose Jaw, 21 days, at $8 ............. ... . ....... I 168 00)

8
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PNDITUuE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arisrDg
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &o.-Continued.

2 2-ho
1 do
2 4 -ho
113 da

are
17 do

TRANs'PORT AND MAIL SsRvi0E-Continued. $ ets.

, Calgary-
rse teams, 395 da y, at $12 00............................... 4,740 00
rse do 192 do 8.00.................... 1,536 00

do 24 do 6.00,............ .................. 144 0
rse do 48 do 9 .............. ......... 432 00
YB as transport officer, at 3.50............ .. .. ...... ...... 395 50

, Calgary-
ts, 989 days, at $3.50. ............................. ,.............. 3,391 50

57b do 3.00....,. ....................................... 1,734 00

co.tt, Qu'Appell, teaming and transport............ .........
Onlies at Regina, 20 days, at $3 ................... .........
Bank, Winnipeg, 2 horses ...... ..... ......................... ..
3rican Ranche Company, 1 team..................... ........

tion for 3 horses killed......................... ........
2 mules and wagon lost .. .................... , ...........

Wagon lost...... ....... .. ................... ............ ...
1, pay of boat-builders .............. ........................... .......
.e', Prince Albert, express on boxes and bales ... .i........

Pims, freighting and transport. ..................... .........
'16 teamas on transport duty...................... ........
t Navigation Company, freight on stores................. .....
1lun, Moosomin, livery hire and transport, $30; board,

Red Deer, team hire and work..................... ..........
%tty, Red Deer, freighting 1,904 bush. oats, at 5c.............
tnib2r at Calgary, $3 ; hauling lumber, $3....................

101 days' team hire, at $12.............................
24 do do 9.............. ........... ......

101 do do 8. ..................... .................
àt, removing freight out of reach of water.......... .........
Con, Parkdale, teams and meals...................... ......
er, Battieford, teaming, &.............
hauling hay. ........ ... ....... ..... ....................... ......
cDonnell, horse hire ........ .. ... ,...... ............. .......
ransport 8 men, Russell. to Moosomin .................. .........
Y1 Clarke's Crossing, bire and loss of boat ....... ..........

eseur, Fort McLeod, 30 days' transport of R.M.R .............
algary, bonus for Eatisfactory travelling........ .. .........
"ng for lost horses................ .... , ......................... ........Of Boultonis Mounted Infantry at Birtle............ . ......Lamb, care of sick horse ........... ................... .......Ild, blacksmithiug and rent of shop...... .......................
e-ltosh, freight and express ..... .................... ...1wift ourrent, freight on helmets........................
herson, carting powder and shot, Red Deer to Cal-

CO, Winnipeg wagon tongues, whiffle-trees, &c.. .......
e Toronto, 20 cart covers.. ....... ......... ......... .........0i.) Calgary 1 light wagon, $80 ; cartage, $8 .............Yth, buckboard and harness...... ................... .........

GOOse Jaw, 2 tents and poles ................ ............
easo, 1 Chatham wagon . . ..............................
e h, bOX, pole, &. .......... .................
CO., Calgary, wagon poles and lumber. ................

do stove pipes, &c..... ...................... .
derny s October voucher 2-i1 ; no details .................. .........

Montana cattle ....... ...... ............... ......Master, 142 days at $t.00 .............. .......................
304 do 3.50 .. ... ........ ..... .......... .......
89 do 2.50 ....................

524 do 3.50 . ................ .......... ......
245 do 3.00 ý................ ........... ...... ..

19 do 2.50 ........ ........
763 do 1.75 .............. ..................

33 do 0.75...............................................
9

a

$ etr$ ets.

7,247 50

5,125 50
81 00
60 00

400 00
275 00
R00 00
515 00

20 00
48 50
49 75
29 00
60 50
7 40

36 75
95 50
93 20

6 0)
1,212 0

216 00
808 00

6 25
22 00

136 00
5 00
3 00

40 00
25 00

210 00
10 (0
25 00
38 00
21 00

149 50
15 85
16 20

15 03
536 00
95 00
88 00
90 00
3z 00
70 00
20 00
15 08

9 37
325 50
111 00
568 00

1,064 00
222 50

1,834 00
735 00
47 25

1,335 25
24 75

"9 Victoria.
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EXPENDITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arisio
out of tronbles in the North-West Territories, &.-Continued.

TRANSPORT AND MAIL SERVICE-COClUded. $ cts- $ ets. $ *

1 cook 93 days, at $2.50....................................232 50
2 do 61 do 2.00......... ......... .................... 122 00
3 watchmen 12 do 3.50......... ..... ........................ ..... 42 00
1 stableman 22 do 2.00 ..... ............................... 44 00
Labor, at Calgary, $5; at Saskatchewan Landing, $9.. ......... 14 00
Boree-shoeing, Edinonton, $212 ; Calgary, $277.16 ........................ 489 16
Cabs, Winnipeg, $6; teaming, at Selkirk, $32.20.............. ... 38 20
Norris & Carey. Edmonton, 4 pairs blankets, $12 ; curry

combe, &c., $2.15.............. ................................................... 14 15
Leo Gaetz, Red Deer, 19 boxes axle grease .............. ... ............... 4 75
Forage, Calgary, $67.75; Qu'Appelle, $5. . ...... 7 75

dao Winnipeg, $168 ; Bear's Bill, $22 50... .................. ...... 50
do Swift Current, $17.70 ; Blindman's River, $2....................... 19 70

ERepairs to waggons, buckboards, &c ................................... 314 60
Kent of stables and offices, Calgary, $80; Qu'Appelle, $18.75... . 98 75
leals at Calgary, $298.02 ; telegrams, $2.47 ............................. 290 49

Depot clerks and storemen ....... ....... ........................................... 712 00
'9 ravelling expenses of depot clerks, &c......... ............ ................. 186 60
Lumber at Regina, $36.26; Building ferry at Red Deer, $5 ................... 41 26

wirming horses at, Red Deer, $9 ; drawing luber, $9 ...................... 18 00

]Bo.d à Orowe, Winnipeg-
Freighting 527 tons across river at Clarke's Crossing ..... 395 25
2 barges for noving wounded .............................250 00
Toos, rope, nails, &c., for apt. Andrews....................22 00
Ferrying 62 tons, a 75c.................................. 46 50

1 -- 713 75
Bow River ferry, $39 ; Batte River ferry, $200............ ........ 239 00

ed Deer ferry, $84993 ; Swift Ourrent, $99.20........... .... 949 13
erying at Calgary, $228; at QuAppelle, $32.25..................260 25

do Saskatchewan.................................. 6 83
do Fort McLod.......... ......................... 60 45
do Regina......................... .58 45
do Edmonton .................................... 212 35

.F. Damoureux, ferrying . ............... 00 0

................ 7 08

lontgomerie & Workman, shipping charges on rifles, ..................... 3,006 55

TECLEGRAPH SERVICE.

J. Stewar.t, transporting telegraph poles, &c., from Moose Jaw
to Wood ounta ..... ........ ................. 4,000 00

Great North-Western Telegraph CJo.-
Operator Linkýkai, 127 daysr,at $4 ........................508 00

do Pike, 127 days nded .... ................................... 508 00
Lineman and operator Hall, 120 days, at$5.................... 600 00
Assistant linesan Biggar, 119 days, at $2.507..c... .............. 297 50
Lineman Labele, 142 days, at $3 ........................... 426 00
Personal and travelling expenses ....$. wt r ...... ,................. 315 95
Wi $2250 insulators, $14... ................... ......... 36 50
Id e ins, $6 spkes, $1. 50............................................ 7 50
o Rdes, $6; shovels, $.. ................................ 7 50

2 setsfildinstrumnt ............. .................... 5 2 95
10,560 feet wire, incliuding dut>', freight charges, &c..... 358 17
1 tool bag, pliera. spurs, Ac-........................... ........ 22 95
.Mcellaneou articles .................................. 13 82
Boni and repaire telephone Inagnetics .... ..... .......... .... 25 (0
5 diggin g bars ..................................... ..... ......... 7 50

3,187 34
T. Lewis, Touchwood Huis, 83 days' psy as operator, at $1 50 ...... .......... 124 50
W. P. Harris, pay as operator, 139 days. Nt~ $2 .................. . .............. 278 00

. n. Wood, chief operator, 4 month, at $75 .................. ....... ........... 300 00
W . oLimont, 129 d .ysat $2............................................. . 258 00

Ln as-Unexpended balance of advance .................. 6 50
- 251 50
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XXPNDITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising
out of troubies in the North-West Territories, &c.-Continued.

TELEGRAPH SERVICE-Concluded. $ ts. $ ets. $ 04.

rnoperator-
27 days' pay, at $2............. ....................... 54 00
108 days' living allowance, at 76c...... ........................... 82 08
Advance for expenses..............,.................. .. ........... 10 00

0. Melab, operator-
e4 days' pay, at $2 .................................... 128 00
eGard, $66 ; travelling expenses, $57............. ................. 123 00

---- ---- 251 00
14Cleneghan, operator-

14 days' pay, $28 ; board, $28 50 ; travelling expenses, $94. 150 50
Liss-A dvance, $60 ; goods supplied, $24.: 0.. 74 20

9. n -- ',3 30
J.' rnWeâ, operator, 15 days' pay ............... ... .. ...... ................. 30 00

e. Macdonald, operator, pay, 133 days, $266; travelling
4 J'lienses, $228.................. ............... ........ ..................... ........ ......... 494 00

, all, in charge of outfit, expenses, meals, board, &c......... 45 45
P Outfit..... ......... ......... ................ ...... 19 30

Q. g ------ 64 75
. Carnpbell, Winnipeg, 3 tickets, Winnipeg to Qu'Appelle.. ................. 34 80

-- 9,238 27

STAFF AN Onxc0Rs.

ajor-General Sir F. F. Middleton, staff allowance, at $5 per
Ikj ay, $725 ; travelling expenees, $63.......... ..... ......... ........ 788 00

01"General'Strange, pay and allowances, $2,670; travellirg
oi r-penses, $82..65s...... ..... ......... ...................................... ..... ......... 2,752 65

.General Laurie, balance of pay ............................. ...... ...... ........... 475 TO
ui B. E. Wise, Aide-de-Camp, 138 dayb' pay and allow-

l4 e tces, $483 ; travelling expenses, $12.50........... .................. 495 501teiant A. E. Doucet, Aide-de-Camp, 210 days' pay, $714;
baia days' field allowance, $123 ................ ...................... 837 00

7y antence, $176 25; travellin g expenses, $25 50.... .......... 201 754 d travelling expenses of nurse, $145; medicines, $29.10.. 174 10
t..g--- 1,212 85

01. Jackson, pay and allowances, $!,691.55; travelling
'Cl $7 lth3.70 ...................................................... 1,765 25

14 .Whitehead, pay and allowances, $1,688.05; travelling
ùt.-Clpeses ,$100.35...... ......... ................ ...... .................. 1,788 38

se, orrf8t, pay and allcwa aces, $1,490 ; travelling expen-
.-col F .4 ................ ... ........... . ....... .................. 1,524 45

la raser psy and allowances, $987 08 ; car fares, Win-ajr peg, $3  ....... ,........... ................ ........ ......... 899 08
O4 Gy, Pay and allcwances, $2,063.50 : travelling expenses,

. - p P, et .......... -... e.......... .... 2................................ ................. 2,111 24

of deebles, difference of pay of rank and superintendent
1.- ci t8 ............................ ......................... .................. 829 50

do ,pay and -llowances................ ..................................... 1,781 89
o a 8traubenzee, pay and allowances....... ............... .................. 1,092 16

jor ong ton, 10 days' field al lowan ce... ................... .................. 10 00
3 e, ay and allowances, $795.90; travelling expenses,aj r E .................. . ... ..............- ......................... ............ ..... 848 904 o . risbois, pay, $296.90; travelling expenses, $99.... .................. 495 90

,taff allcwance, $283.50 ; travelling expenses,
dro 14.45 ................... ,....... 297 95du Gri ghan, 88 days' allowance ..... .................. ......... ......... ........ 146 16
i aebach 91 days' pay ............................. ......... .................. 273 00
ID Rani )P............................................... ......... ......... s Mco

a1tain Pa x ay and allowances, $512.60; board, $138..... .............. 650 60
a, $53.an do $249.55; travelling expen-
tin.25 ................................. . ........................ 302 80
e.qxpe l aig, R.E., pay and allowances, $583; travelling

%tp e, $13 .............. ..... I......... ......... ......... ......... ..... 717 00I
'à 86 ,) pay and allcwances, $422.22; travelling expen-

1... ........ 48297
il
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EXPENDITURE9 under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and lo.ses aiir g
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &e.-Coninued.

"STAFF AND OFFIcERs-Continued. $ ets $ ets

Captain Wright pay and allowances....., ................ .............................. 312 36
do A. W . Morton do ....................................... .................. 195 0S
do W. G. Mutton do ......... ................................... 733 08
do Drury, travelling expenses . ......................................... 45 0O
do H. Hamilton, pay and allowances ....... ......... .......... 78 10
do B. Swinford do ........................ ..... ..... .. ....... 820 20
do Hudson, pay and allowances, $449.96; travelling

expenses, $92.15....................... ....... . ............... ............ 542 Il
do Harston, acting Brigade-Major, allowances........ ......... .................. 185 00
do Young do balance of pay ........... .... ..... 139 32
do E. Palliser, pay, allowances, &................................ 148 34
do Kirwan, 5 days' pay and subsistence ..................... ......... 17 90
do Lavasseur, extra work ......................... ...... ............. 38 O

Lieutenant Sears, pay and allowances.................................1,155 74
Lieutenant Dixon, pay and allowances, $574.88; travelling

expenses, $79.95. ............................................. 654 83
Major Street, pay ............... .......... .......................... 258 00
Lieutenant H. G. Bate, pay and allowances, $249.98; travelling

expenses, $26.40. ....... ......... ...... ......... ..... 274 38
Lieutenant Cole, pay and allowances,.... ................................... 410 59
Lieutenant R. W. Leonard, pay and allowances, $504.70;

travelling expenses, $60.50...... ............ ,........ . ............ .... 565 20
Lieutenant H. B. Strange, pay and allowances, $860.78; hotel

expenses, $27. 50............. ............ ....................... ....... ............. 888 28
Lieutenant E. R. A. Taschereau, pay and allowances, $87,25;

travelling expenees, $9........................................... 96 2
Rev. W. P. Mackenzie, Chaplain, Alberta Field Force, 76 days'

pay and allowance....... ......... ........ ......................... ................... 271 33
Major Vaughan, field allowance...................................................... ...... . 31 00
Quartermaster Disbrowe, pay and allowances, $196.98; small

payments, $4 ..................... .................................. ...... ....... ......... .200 98
H. Bach, Orderly to General Middleton...... . ....... ......... .................. 143 20
Staff-Sergeant Potts, in lieu of clothing........... ....................................... 12 GO

do Benn, pay ......... ....... .................................... ,.............. .158 GO
S. L. Bedson, Transport i fficer, pay............... . ........ ............ .................. 1590 0O
J. H. S. Secretan, 159 days' pay, 51,351; travelling expenses,

$13.50 ....... ....... .... ................ ............ .... 1,36450
A. McGibbon, T.O., pay and allowances, $1,359. 40 ; travelling

expenses, $31 . .......... . .............. ......... .............. .......... .................. 1,390 40
P. H. Underwood, S.0., pay and allowances .................... .................. 423 90
J. K. Strachan, pay, $53t.90; travelling expenses, &c., $784.79 ................ 1,319 69
M. T. Feron, S.O., pay and allowances, $337.80; travelling

expenses, y20 ......... ....... ...... ............................ 357 80
James Anderson, S.O., pay and allowances, $l,056.86; travel-

ling expenses, $118.95 ................................ .............. ,175 81
J. 0. Woolsey, 8.0 , pay, $217.25; travelling expenses, $7.95.. ................ 305 20
A. McQueen, 8.0 , Troy, pay ....................................... 18140
S. Swinford, Apsist. Commissary, 73 days' pay and allowances. .......... 357 70
Dr. Duncan, V.S., 146 days' pay and allowances .......... ...... .......... 511 
J. R. Benson-

17 days purchasing horses, at $3.90 ........ ...... 66 30
16 do team hire....... ......... ....................... 80 00
2 saddles ............... ...... ......... ....... ............. ... 45 00

191 30
J. C. Nelson-

15 days purchasing horses ..... .......................................... 75 00
15 do board, $45; travelling expenses, &c., $43.60......... 88 60

- 163 60
W. R. Murray, W.F.B, 98 days' allowance as postmaster.........245 G
T. Hourie, 100 days as courier with Majar-General Middleton.... ........... 00 GO
8. Ballandine, 13 days as guide do . do . ..... ...... 165 GO
North-West Uattle CJo, 1 horse....... .................. ................... ............ 130 
T. F. Burns, commission and expenses ou sale of 2 horses......... ................. 15 50
Major Jarvis, 17 days' attendauce Riel's trial ...... . . ..... ....... ................. 6 30
Captain Young do do .................... ........ 47 94
At Winnipeg-

Pay of Winnipeg Commissary Staff ....... . ... 3,080 86

3123
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t1t]PUDITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.-Continued.

STAFF AND OFFICERs-COnCluded. $ ts.ts. $
& n1llupeg--..

• R. Tel. Co, $2,072.03 G. N. W. Tel. Co., $147.83... ................ 2,219 86Oniinion Express Co., freiglt, $356.96; N. W. Navigation
Co., freight, $3 75............................ ......... 60 71
81 at Winnipeg, $86.05; cartage, $521.95.................... .................. 8 00
k,& ,at Winnipeg, $652.90; labor, $127.85 ..... .................... 80 75
t of ofiet, furniture and safe, $322 telephone, $30 ... ... .............. 353 00

Onveyances, $25.80; water supply, J25............ ...... ...... .................. 5080s5 e hire, $22 ; forage, $98 50 . ................. ................. .................. .120 50
n1ture, $10.50; repairs, $14.65.................................... 25 15

8 ttdware, $14.83; wood, $49.75...................................64 58
D Ionery, :162.45; postage, $39.28 . .................. ...... ........ 201 73

Ou , $48.95: board at Winnipeg Hospital, $392.75......... .................. 441 70
and lamps, $ 7.50 ; board, $12 ................................................... 39 50
.'ry supplies, $5 50 ; ice, $6.50 .......... ............ ........ ........ 00

8 ,vering Iost goods .. ........................................ 14 25
Atal- Ra, $36. 79; value, $6 ......................... .... ... . . ...... 42 79

t. 0clerks, &0 , $2,000; labor, $155.10......... . .................. 2155
a onery, stamps, &c., $25.18............... .......... ................. 236
eage, $78; transport. $25 .................. ........... ...... 103 00

1 t ,. $268.45 ; forage, $32.50 ....... ......... ....... ..... ........ .................. 30095
$45.9 ; hardware, $29.70........................ ........... 75 61

? o, S7.25; water, $3 00; 1 valise, $5.75 .......... .................. 16 (10
Dru ture, $15.50; rent $70; storage, $43 ....... 2. ..... .. 50 ....... ......

9 g 5; Dr. A. Henderson, professional services, $25 .............. 30 50

al clerks, &c , $878.85; travelling expenses, $98 10..... ...... ........... 976 95
r and provisions, $12; building shed, $313 ....... . ...... ............... 325 O

a of clerks, &c., $80; supplies, $6.10 .......... ................. 86 10

fclerks &c , $323 50 ; labor, $68 95 .......... .................. 391 45
tt1ef250 ;elegrams, $10-97 ; provisions, $q....... ......... .................. 266 97

o jrd, rent, $7.50; stationery and supplies, $8.15......... .................. 15 65
pY aw...
Ir c'lerks &c., $149; rent, $qo.................................. ............. ...
prOYi.ure, $198 05; repairs, $8.50 ................. ... ........ 06 55

, $15 60; teaming, $36....................................... 51 60
M fw re, $79.05; lumber, $19 43 ................................... ..... 108 48

ort phurrent, pay of clerks, &c., $84; rent, $2 50.................. ......... 136 50
d Der pay of staff, &c................. .................. 3990

4t attl e do. ....... ....... .. ....... ............ ...... . ... ..... 6800
4t ' te 4Aber do $165; rent, $112.50 ........ ......... .......... 277.50

4irk ert, stitionery ................ ,........................... 6 47
4 skatoohorse hire, $4; telegrams, $3 65 .................. ......... .................. 7 65

ria. rent $20 ; carrying despatches, $18...... ........ ........ ........ 8
Ille ieke, forage, meals, &c ..................... .................. 26 25
right, co horse-shoeing .................. ......... *.. ...... 4 50
%a •--•"-•-•.S ury. o ................. ............... ................ o0atker, C IRa cook stv . 75 00

ver, do 19 rifle cases ............................................. 5340
B set double harness .............. ......... ................. 45 00

gin 0 , 5 pair blankets.. . ... ........ .. .. ..................... 40 00

ont&Iber, $8 23 ; ear tage, $38............................................. 4423
hIi e g ' 1 ) 8.50; furniture, $4........ ............... .. .............. 1250

tb "ne , advertising, $118; printing, $13.50............... ......... ........tn~r arrnig seprnigI30~~F3 tc4 w rogar do.epitg..... ..... ....................... ...... 2150
Rat r i eraid do . . . .. 18 00

ader pavrtising, $26.25; printing, $4.50................... 30 75
secreta .r. .····................. .. ........ .................- il --

en 1 e ryWar Commission, pay and allowance, $3.85;
l. e , $5.25 ...................... .................. 40025

O. u e expenses attending War Commission...... ........ ,........ 38 95
es, ylagevidn do ...... .................. 060

e....... ..................... .,........ .............. 115 50

$1t3 es
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EXPENDITURE under Appropriation )f $2,300,000 to defray expenses and lossoS arigiX'
ont of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.-Continued.

STAFF AND OFFioERs-C0ncludd. $ ots. S ets. $

Major 0. H. Dale, il days' services ....... ................... ...... 1 ................ 64 90
B. . Richardson, stationery for War Commission .................. ......... ......... 05
Aitkens, Culver & Hamilton, legal services.......... ......... ......... ......... .. . 65 50
Sir A. P. Caron, advances for travelling expenses....... ....... ....-... 470 00
J. A. Ouimet, on acdbunt services as commissioner to settle

losses (to be transferred to Governor General's warrant for
that service) .................. ................. 1,000 00

L. W. Verchmer do do ... .......... . 116750

ARMs AND AMMUNITION.

Beaudet & Chinie. Quebec-
20,808 lbs. R.F.G. powder, at 17¾e. ....................... 3,641 40
Freight, $93 60; boxes, $3.50 . ......................... ,................. 97 10

IssUES FROM HER MAJEsTY'S STORES, ENGLAND.

1,000 Martini-aenri rifles, scabbards, bayonets, &c., half paid... ...... ,........... 75,488 86
Paid on account of buff accoutrements. .............. .... ........ 73,000 00

32ND BATTALION.

Express on stores. $3.60 ; telegrams, $5.06 livery, $28.50 ................. 87 16
Board of 7 men, Co. 4, at Paisley, $39 ; A. i1cNeil do $39. ................... 78 00
G. S. Wilson, $10.25; A. E. Campbell, $98; Chas. Briggs,$18;

Chas. King, $11.50. (Expenditure for which vouchers
cannot be obtained) ......... ....................................... 137 25

John P. Kleist, compensation for loss of time tbrough illness............... .8 00
Lieut. Gadsby (15th Battalion) travelling expenses..................- 8 70
Lieut. Hotson (28th do ). .o ................. ........ - 5 00 74

ToRoNTo GARRIsON ARTILLERY.

Pay June 1 to 22.................. ................................................ .................. 690 86
J. 0. Devlin, 990 grocery rations, at 4c........................ ......... .................. 39 60
W. Carlyle, 1,485 ibs of bread, $42.69 ; 990 lbs. potatoes, $9 90. .................. 52 58
G. Beddingfield, 990 lbs. meat, at 7c.................. .................. ..... ............ 74 25
P. Purns, coal ... ..... . ................. ................... ........... .... 7 50

ToRoNTO FIELD BATTERY.

W. H Scripture, drugs, $18 73 ; R. Bovil, ambulance, $1......... ............... 19 73
Lugsden & Barnett, leather, $19.80; J. Spry, repairing harness,

$9.50...................... ..... . ......... .... ........ 29 30
D. Johnson, i doz. brass keys, $1.75 ; P. Kennedy, j doz.

brooms, $1.20 ............................................... 2 95
Toronto Lime Co., lime............... ..... ,........ ........................... 60
W. M. Adams, 2 galls. neat's foot oil, $4; 4 whitewash

brushes, $1......... ...................... . .... o0
H. C. Howard, shoe for sponge stave, 60c. ; J. Leclaire, 4

potato nets, $5...... .................................................. 5 60
J. F. Ross, hardware and oil, $33.80 ; E. Blain & Co., 1 doz.

pails, $2.10 ..................... ,,....... . ...... .... .35 90

14T« BATTÂLION.

S. Canneni, washing ... .... ...................... ...... ..... ... ................. 61 27
G. M. Wilkinson, 6 broome ......... ......................... t............1 50
J. Noble, 99?ff corda of wood................................... ........... 8 54
T. R. Carnoysky, 12,009 lbs. bread........................... ......... J 323 46
J. P. Hlenderson, 2,71L lbs. grocery and potato rations ............. [..... 105 05
J. Gowdy, 2,711 lbs.meat..............................I .-....... .... .... 139 08
S. Loynes & Go., 55t galle. oil................... .......... ....... ........ I 108

14
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'1ý1"DITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.--Continued.

14TH BATTALIoX.-Continued.

r of staff and detachment.............................................
donohue, 9,295 lbs. grocery and potato rations................

d 2,520 lbs. straw, at 30c. per cwt...............
egetching, 9,298 Ibo meat................. .............................

& Birch, 94¾ galls. o1......... ..............................
Capt o paint brushes and lime..............................

J, Spriggs, 13 days extra service ..............................
S I. BRenderson, services and medicines.........................

I Iop, 183 forage rations........................... ....... ........

56TH BATTALION.

la July pay ......... ....... .....................
a. nMan, straw, $4 ; Mrs. H. Press, washing, $4.37.........

O eld, M D., medical attendance...... ........ .... ..............
ar ding, drugs, $i9.37 ; R. McOarthy & Co., wood, $6.

Illard, 6 galle. oil, at 25c., $1.50; 3 scrubbers, at 25c., 75c.
2 0 2 0lmb, 1,347 lbs. beef, at 9c., $121.23 ; Wm. McGrory,

ohn p 0 lbs. bread, at 3c., $60.61............ ....... .........
. aydeu,.1,347 lbs. rations, groceries and potatoes, at 5½c

1ST PRINce OF WALES RIFLES.

'0b and disinfectants, $1.50 ; cab-hire, Lieut. Tait, $1.50.
r .wter, $5.05 ; W. L. Heron, cab-hire, $2.50 ............
rin ?4,, i.t e res.......................... _........................ .........
13# doz o.

a z.Glengarry's, at $7, $96.83 ; badge, $1 ......... .....
1laneufr8 $4 ; 25 yds. bunting, $7.80 ; helmets, $9 ....... .

nterns, 3 do repaired, $5.30 ; box, &c., $4.75 ; tin box
or quartermaster, $1. 75 .............................

. Jare, cleaning accoutrements, $12 ; cartage, 75c ............
tion S, cartage, $13.50 ; Canada Co-Operative Associa-

' tra , b acking, $4.50.................... ......... ...................
B. yPlumbiug, $7.45 ; H. Prince, 4 suare drums, $56.......
Bq. cung, stove pipe, 60c. ; 26 flue tops, at 50c., $13; 6

. es, at $1.75, $10 50 ........ ..................... ....
hire cartage and sundries, $10.05 ; Wm. Bruce, cab.

Coyarington.-
Was Pot, $1.50 oil can 40c., coat oil, 35c............ .......
Uf a n, 35c. ; ladle, 25c. ; strainer, 30c .......................Oc. ; car fares, 30c. ; examining range, $1.20 ......

'l 1t 0
3 

R 3 doz. dish pans, at $6.60...................... ...
rej Orafor doz. towels, at $1.14 ..................... I
k ey r , brooms, brushes and candles ....... ..............
Sehi Le*l. candles, soap, &c..........................., ariont & Co., hardware............... ....................

' PRINcuss LouisE DRAGooN GUARDS.
Borbridge 40 cavalry valises and lettering, at $2.75.

Pay QUEBEC GARRISON ARTILLERY.

aexePenses to Ottawa and return ................

3a pra.sgnner Pag..
oots, at

Livis GARRIsoN ARTILLERY.

....... . ..... .................. . ........... .............
15

$ cts

. .........

....................................

................

97 83
20 80

11 80

.. ............

2 25
0 90
1 60

..... ..........

........ ........

5,383 62
10 00
10 00
8 94

$cts. $ a.
6,501 88

371 92
7 56

510 45
18 01
12 90
33 84

276 00
42 09

-- 9,00 19

830 18
12 10

8 37
71 00
S 2537

2 25

181 84
74 08

3 00
7 55
7 75

4 75
2 ; 65
11 40
17 80
9 81

100 00

1,206 19

110 0W

5,412 56

2,831 40

A. 1886

.....,1 ............

............ .....

..................

............ .....
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EXPENDITURE under AppropriatioD of *2,300,000 to defray expeD8es and loses ariei
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.-Continued.

SUPPLIES-QUEBEc G. A. AND LÉvIs G. A. $ cts. $ ets.

Benaud & Co., 55¾ galls. oil, at 22e .-................................. 12 27
James McCorkell, 11,044* lbs. bread, at 2ýc........... ......... 265 07
T. Delaney, 11,014, lbs. meat, at 6jc..................................... 748 96
Turcotte & Prevost, 10,994 lbs. grocery and potato rations....... 552 33
M. Bropby, 155 rations for horses, $34.88 ; straw, $9.12............ 44 00
irs. Marshall, washing bedding...... .......... 19 62

Mrs. Coyne do ...... ,........... ........ 7 47
Japtain Boulanger, expenses to Quebec as witness................. 5 82

-- 1,655 54

NEw BRUNswIcK PRoVIsIoNAL BATTALION. 9,
9 74

Lt.-Col. Baird, 2 days at Sussex camp, paying battalion.......... ,................. 2 00
George Black, removing 4 sick men....................................... ....... ......... 17 38
Fright and express charges, $9.63 ; cartage, $7.75... .... ......... 44 50
lirs. J. Marshall, washing 890 blanketa. ................................ .................. 23 69
Western Union Telegraph Co., telegrams............................... -- 97

QUEEN's OwN RIFLES.

Pay of officers and men...... ...... .... ......................... ......... ...... 14,439 56
Ration allowances....... ..................................... .................. 752 58
E. F. Hutchings, Winnipeg-

100 days repairing accoutrements . ........... 300 00
Leather trimmings, &c ......... ....... ........... . . ........... 115 76

-- 415 76
65 meals, at 25c ............ ..................... .............. ..... .......... 302 75

7TH BATTALION.

Pay of officers and men.................................... ........... ......... ..... ....
O. S. Hymon & Co.-

312 pro. reg. gaiters, at 75e......... .................. ......... 234 00
125 do tongue boots, at $2.00 ....... 250 00

78 do lace boots, at 1.90. .... ..................... 148 20
56 do do 2.10............ ................. ...... 117 60

5 gross leather laces 3.50........................................ 17 50
254 cans dubbing 0.10...,................................... 25 40

2 cutters. ........ ........................................... 1 50
Packing cases....................................................... ... 4 20

-- 798 40
1,304 meals, at 35e ................................. .... 456 40

347 lbs. beef .................................................... 398 99
ield allowance........ ................................. ............. 531 00

Travelling expenses ........ ............. ......... 113 0
B. B. Elliott, expense bringing son's body, Prince Albert to

London ................................... ................................. ............ 108 15
Robbs, Osborne & Hobbs, tools............ ........................... ... 25 04
8. Stewart, London, pails............ .... ........ ,................................... 25 74
Loughren & Tackaberry, water bottles.................................... 29 05
2j doz. Glengarrys. ..... ................. ........................... 17 25
6 stretchers ......................................................... 19 00
Repairing accoutrements ... ..... ......... . .. ....... . ......... 8 62
Hay and oats ............ ............ ............................... .................. 12 19
Nedicine chest and supplies............................................ 21 60
Ration allowance ... .......................................................................... 3 00
Btabling and feed for 5 horses............................................................. 5 00
H ardware............................ ................................................... 40

9THi BÂTTÂLION.

P&# of afficers aud mren.........................0............... ......... 13,872 23
Martin Bras., Calgary, hardware ............... ......... ...................... 1,587 60
3,273 meals. ........... ..... ................................ ............. ... 1,233 00
Field allawance . ................ ............................. .................. 1,074 06
John Gambe Fort McoLeod, bakig, 56 dayo, at $1.50............ ... uot oa 84 00

16
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XxeJINDITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &O.-Oontinued.

9TH BATTALION-COntinU#d. et.. $ ts.

Il ,e at Quebec.......... ..................................................... ............... 7275
IAearer, Fort McLeod, making 64 palliasses and pillow

. aes at 75c....... ......... ..... 4800
ai , parrow, Calgary, 291 lbs, beef, at 12e............................. 34 92

W ring boots ............................ ....... .... 26 70
r supply....... .................. . ........................... 33 00

Z c straps ................................................... 1240gand Oats<'at ...........m ...... i................................. .................. 16 70

ut Ualnbsistence, Pte. Fortin returning home. ......... .0
Sog' .. Club, Winnipeg, damages to, grand stand,............... ...... 20 OU

48 00 3

IOTE ROYAL GRENADIERS.18203

Oro <~Cers and men ...... ........-..... ................... ......... 21,907 48
led ... ...............................- ... ......... .................... 1,489 80

YO1aPeu t- nce. ......................-....... ..... 1,560 57
13u lustr i lieu of boots and underclothing ...... ....................... 2,070 10

e ~eal, at 35e.................... ............. ....................... 268 80
& Mitchàell 253 pr. leggings, at 90e .................................... 227 70

4dva Ces,~ Lieut. Mforrow ................................ ................. 200 50
J. [1c 'tPay invalida ............. ........................ ....... -,........ 187 50
'1eýj.gr,6 aB $1.25 ..... ................................ .................. 78 75
y &4"ý exPenses, Chaplain Whitcome ............................. ......... .... 117 90
"t j 0f 'nIeen, 46 capp, $1.50......................... ...... ...... ............ 69 00

0'*<». Qra8settno voucher furnished ......................... ................. 168 50

ai tahire.33 0
& , do. flni beef40

y e r u p . f o L ie.. .........t .. .. .. .. . . . . . . . . . . . . .. ..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . i 1 50

16 0

te andgen.........................................................38,90 2

. .... . . . . . . . . ... 500
Uls ........... .......................... ......... ............ . 0 0

kiel, a 3 . ................... ............. 8 29

di rbces,s .... .... ...... ............................. 316 O0
. two p ia................................. 45 01
ras e, 63Pensatio for loss of hoe......... ...... .... 105
.,g ine n4 cs,* ...... ......... ................................................ 90 50

1o ap ettles .....o voucher.fur .... . ......

use O ito n ........................ ...... 13 no

Te .al....eses.for .do ........ .. ............... ......... 13 9

- --- 143 92
repairing saddles.............. ........ ......... 2117 00

............................. Il 25

ci, )yl AND "B" BATTECRIS. 9,0 37
%n Ie( llowance...c.r..a..d men of .A ......... 14,736 95

dr%"........ ...................... 17,047 81
............- 31,784 76U â9ti .dtrave ling expenses .................... ..... ...... 1,453 45bee .................. . ...... .......... .................. 523 10. ..................... . 7 5........................

tou................. 317 90

ai le d........................................................... 169 69
80 Pbnv t&blina.d..edic.ne ......................................... 98 30

tuq~ ,.. .....ne. ...... 40 85
am aggage1n........,......,................................. ...... 5000.... 339

. r 6  5; 35.. caps, $14 40.......... 33 15
tittts, ) t $15,60, $31.20; 56 pairs socks, $54.19 85 39te Inut 1) 168 54

rilqddet p d for expnditure en route.................. ...... 2 00esut m5 doz. pairs mitt. at $8......... ...... ....... 127 29
an oos $4..c.. CO., ..horses, at $150......................... .75 00
u , "e.compe pennaaiOn for horse ot at O t Kni.fe Hill ............... 125 00

veing ho.e . ................................... .. 2 2
- - - - 9 67
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EXPENDITURE unfter Appropriation of $2300,000 t defray expenses and 18osse S
out of t ou b'es in tho North-Wost Territories, &c.-Continued.

"A" AND "B" BATTERIES-Continu d.
$ cts. Ie

Hudson Bay Co.-
100 yards dufile . .................................... ........... 50 (0

8A doz. woollen hose... .......... -............ ......... 69 71
10 boxen soap .. .. .................................... ...... 36 00
4½ doz. knives and forks. ...... ...................... 10 42
4ý doz. shaving brushe ................... ............ 12 50
8, doz spoons. ............ ........................ 7 92

10 galls. 7-year-old rye. .... ....... ................ ... ...... 30 (0
Keg and case ......................................... 2 50
1 case H. V. O. brandy ............................... 19 00

Il caddies tobacco. ............................. ............ 118 25
-- 356 30

R. C. McDonald, 19,680 Ibs. hay ................... .................... ..... 122 49
Hardy & Moffatt, provisions .... ......... ........................ .. .... 112 22
Gallagher & Son, Battleford, 6,008k lbs. beef, at 15c........ .......... 901 27
H. McDougall, Prin"e Albert, 2,02½ lbs. bread, 6c. ....... ......... .. 126 40
Medicine aud provisions.. ...... ..... ......... ................................ .... 37 40
Hudson Bay Co.-

Groceries and provisions .............................. 1,173 il
14 loads hay ..................... ............. 141 0
Leather, $17.15; 2 pairs boots, $18.................................. 36 15
1 wheel, $6 ; hardware, $34.18 .................................... 40 18
5 cords wood, $15; freight, $25 37...............................40 37
1 box matches................ ........ . ........................... ..... 33 00

----- I 1462 81
Htationery ........... ..... ......... .............. ........ . . .. 17 60
Telegram ........................................................................... 23 48

B. H. Caswell, Qu'Appelle-
1,677 Ibs. bread, at 53e , $96.43; 1,265 Ibo. potatoes, at

1ie., $15 81 ..... . ............................. ....... 112 24
891 Ibs. meat, at 124c , $111 37; 227 ibs. mutton, at 18c.,

$40.86 ............ . ... ............ ......... 152 23
Groceries ..... .......... ....... .......... . .... 85 98
ô cords wood, at $3.50. $17.50; candles and coal oil, $4.60 22 10
Hay, oats, straw and bran . ... ................................ 53 90
Lumber, $15.15; hardware, $54.40.................................... 69 53

496 00
1 square tent ...................................................... 15 0U
244 bushels potatoes....... ..... ........... .......................... ......... ..... 24 67
3 corda wood.................................... ..
13J lbs. bread $4 13 ; 41 pairs overstockings, 50c., $20. 50...........- 24 63
8 cotton duck cloth valises, at $3.5> ................................... 28 OU

Board and subsistence . .... .................... .......... 132 44
Milk and washing at Prince Albart................ ............... 12 46
Hudson Bay Co., 6 head collars ............ .............. .... 9 O
Subsistence for 2 invalide..... .......... ................................... 16 60
Contingent expenses...... ................... .......... ...... .............. 96 28
Blacksmithing ...... ................... .... ............................. 32 OU
Herding horses, Swift Ourrent to Battleford .................. ...... 22 O
Re-lining 23 overcoats ...... ....... . ........ .................. ...... 23 O0
Mahaffy & Clinkakill, cook stove.......................................................... 38 00

Liquor permit for " A "......... ................................... .......... 6 0
Saskatchewan lerald, printin. ........................................ il 00
W. J. Mitchell, Winnipeg, 100 pairs goggles............................... 12 50
Carscadden & Peck, 8½ doz. toques, at $5 ......... ...... .... 41 66
J. H. Rogers, Winnipeg, 2 buffalo coats .......................... ..... .... - 4 00

WINNIPECG LIGHT INFANTIRY.

?Pay, officers and mnen................................................ 25,252 go
Field allowance ..................... ............................... 1,321 34
.Allowauce in lieu of rations3..........0............................ 497 94I

William Wellbank, Winnipeg- j27$072 18
294 pairs long boots, a.t $2.75 ..........-.... .. .... 808 50
294 do laced do 1.65 ......... -.........&...... .. 48 101

18
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1PEND1TUJRE un der Appropriation of 82,300,000 to defray expenses and 1osse arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.-Continued.

WINNIPEG LiGET INFANTRY-Cotinudd.

horey & Co., 294 pairs trousers, at $1.75................
~239 .... .. ..................... ................... ....... -... ...

lGraham horse hire while organizing................
Qd rl and Bros., hardware .. ....................... ...............
.Bh Bay Co , 40 pairs blankets . ...........................

.re & Co 292 Glengarry caps. ...... ....................
i c])OQald, B-attleford-2 kOz- rifle oil .................. . ...... . ............

egs butter, 63 lbs.; 2 cheese, 118 ilbs. ; 1 bagrice, 255 lbs.

-4s- coal, and sacking ................. .............. .
158 b be. bread...... ....................... .......

ne, r WateZrl Wter......................................... ..........
.st oxen ...... ............ ....................... .......
Wni ew,5 , repairing 250 rifles................... ...

itre Peg . Co., lumber ........................................ ......
• . 00 , 6 boxes soap, $18 ; 1 case matches, $4 ........
J. .Asha, 1 5 packing cases, at $1.50 ... ....................

P. bOWn, 4 galls. oil, f6; 18 Ibs. pipe-clay, $1.44 .
c rOn, altering clothing.....................................

ulhol la , i Ox .................... .................... ..................... .
. ,A Qd Bros., 7 lbs. pipe-clay ........ ......................

tate r. 0o., 4 bugles, at $7, $28 ; cord, $6 ......................
12th .Dermott, rent ot steamer, 'Pride of West," 2nd to

el April, at $5.......- . . .

e- at r . - -.............. .....-..................01 'qon-

1 Biaing hall and j ton coal .,....................
3 od for batalion ........................................................

o. od .. ........................ ... ........
stoyes, &o

r h , 1 bs. dubbn................ ...................... ........
iaham..... s .. .. .. .

We 0 bo. ................ ...............
r a e l l 1 x p e eF ' . .. ... . ..... .. . .. .. .. .. .... .. ... .... ... . . . .

oss. at Fort Pitt............ . ............................
8 e4: Goldeníonerenpent and damage to stores.............................

reni , 2 kettles.........
a'r g hose .-- ........ ••...n.. .......... .. .........

1 port t se sed by Kildonan Co. ....... . .... ..................
.1 cords ra ellin .expese. and cartage ............................

S o d ' •.. .. •... ........ ... ...... .... ...... ••.. ........ ...... .
bush """-•..

l à gar, oood returned to store..... .....o00.a............or.. ......................
es returned to store ................

MIDLAND BATTALION.

, elkirk ....
e8inggrt , I n , bread and cheese ................................... t 3e....... ...... .........

@bu4 e eg ace , 297 me .l.al. 35 .................uu4d ehe aMston's Dock
l e Bel en route

. GTompse ort aoPe, provisions, &c. ...... .......
eil d 737 lbs. beef ........................

eoio 23; at do 680 ibs. bread .......... .. . . . . . . . . . ....L aQ15 ; ater, $5.25
Oîe r', or, g i 1 "•""".."... ••...... . ". ... " " """".... ... """*"..

fremaris, $19.56 sundry accounts, $343.89
-2  01 late Lt.-ol. Williams ......................

19

$ cts.

... .. ....

... .. . ....
..... .. ....
.. ... .....
..... ......

.......

........
. •... ....

... ...
-- ....

25 00
2 00

18 00
4 00

..................

19 20
6 00
6 50...............

............. ...
....... ..........

...... ...... .....
....•.•......•...

...........

$ ets. $ ets.

514 50
487 65
352 59
269 89
194 25
170 79
118 40
182 50 1

120 60
12 75

128 15
47 00
10 00
12 50
38 51
22 00
22 50
7 44

22 85
90 00

1 05
34 00

55 00
17 05

49 00
14 75
6 00

31 70
59 50
a1 60

8 50
25 00
66 30
75 00
33 1l
48 80
30 90
80 00
90 00

30,770 87
12 73

103 95
15 00
40 65
29 75
55 27
17 00
28 25
27 00
22 40

363 45
200 00

31,947 07

49 victoria.
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EXPENDITURE uüder Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and fosses arisiB
out of troubles in the North.West Territoi ies, &c.-Continued.

MIDLAND BATTALIN-ContsnUed.

Guard of 46th Batt. at Col. Williams' funeral . ............. ........
Lieutenant Halliwell, travelling expenses...........................
Oaptain Clewes do ......... ......................
Lieutenant J. M. Weller do ............... ............
Captain Hunter do .............................
Major Harrison do ...............................
Color-Sergt. W. F. Wrighton do ...............................
Private 8. Bell, advance for compensation ............... ......

do J. Barton, 51 days' do .......... ...... ....

MONTREAL G.AnirsoN ARTILLaRa.

Pay and allowances ........................... ........ ...................
Tinning & Hoskins, Regina, 12,633 grocery rations..... ..........
Colonization Store Co., 1,736 do ................

do 29? lbr. biscuit....... ........ .......
0. Blinn, 21,115½lbs. bread, at 3 e .... ,. ................................
R. Robson, 1,736 do meat, at 11 ............................ ..........

do 12,633 do do 14c...................... ................
Bibbald, Lindsay & Lyon, 4,860 lbs. potatoes, at 1:}c...... .........
McNicol Bros., 2,887 do ie ........ ......
e. Brickland, 4,285 do c c...... .........
Sprague & Scarlett, 30 cords wood.........................
J. Windebank, water supply ........... ......... ..................
CDandles, $1; coal oil, $1.42; lanterns and wick, $2.25 ............
292 meals at Wi-inipeg. at 35e...... ........... .........
292 do Rat Portage ............... ..................................
289 do Toronto Junction................. .................... ....... .
293 do Carleton ...........................................................
293 do Calum et ....... ... ......... ...... ..........................

4 coffee boilers carried away from Calumet ....... ...........
J. Martin, Monuteal, 276 white helmets, at $.80..................
J. Linton & Co, Montreal-

276 pairs leggins, at $1 ; 3 cases, $1 ..................
t0 do ammunition boots, $105; 25 doz. dubbin, $50 .

$ cts. $ cts. $
.................. 4210
............ . 10500
....... . 3610
.......... ..... 610
................. 50
................. 00

.... ....... 800
50 00
51 00

36 102,

..................

..................

..................

................. .

..................

......... .........

......... .........

..................

..................
..... ,........,....

.................
................. ,.
......... ........
......... .........
..................

......... .........

277 00
155 00

R. Tooke, Montreal-
2 doz. tuques, at $6 00 .................................. 34 83
7 . do 5.00 .... .............. ................ ......

134 do 4.50................,................................ 60 75

Captain Trotter, travelling expenses................
Gunner Challacombe do ...........................

do Lee, 21 days in hospital....,. . .............. ...... ......
captain Cole, 5 days' pay, Board of Enquiry..... ...... .........

do Campbell do do .. ......... ........

SHARPSH OOTIERS.

Pay and allowances ........................ ............... .........
'50 meals at Rat Portage, at 35c...... .................................
95 do Toronto Junction .............................................. .
£o do Carleton, at 75e...............................................
Claff Bros., cartage ..........................................................
Citszen Publishing Co , advertising ....................................
8. & H. Borbridge-

51 pairs beef moccasins, at $2.25....................,....... .........
1 pair soled do . ..........................

Private F. H. Cunningham, travelling expenses.............
do J. C. Mullin do ........ .........

Lt.-Col. Ross, for issue of 40 new forage caps to G. G. F. Guards

WINNIPEG TROoP op CAALBT.

114 75
4 50

Pay and allowances ............ .......
Altowance to 34 men for kits, $13.95 each ..... ...........
James Harris, V.8., attendance and medicines ....................... .........'.0

7,889
610
97
29

703
206

1,768
60
38
57

209
11
4

10 1
102
144
146
146
20

496

432 00

2,115 31

119 25
7 50
7 25

10 00

683 59
474 30

26 00

13,456 K

A. 1886

01%

........ ... ...

......... .........

.................

......... .........
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nPENDITURE under Appropriation of $2.300,000 to defray expenDes and 1osses arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &.-Continued.

WINNIPEG TRooP oF CAVALRY-0Continued. $ cs.ts. t.
A. Lindl i deburgh, Touchwood, 2 tons hay ................................. ......... ......... 0Bawlf, Winnipeg, hay and cartage ....... .............. ............ ................. 5 97
. b itobaWarehousing and Cartage Co., cartage........ .................... 10 00

Bell, Portage la Prairie, 16 suppers, at 35c.; 2 lunches, 50e.... .................. 6 10
-__- 1,P235 96

65TH BATTALION.

311
30 7 neals at Medicine Hat, at 50c ......... ........ .................................... 155 50
307 do Mattawa, at 50c...... ........................................................ 5350

2 do i gnace at 35c ... ..................... ...................... 107 45
do Rat Portage, at 35c....... ..................................... 0 70

2,577 bo Calgary, at 50e............................................................... 65 00
1,30 b bread, $10833; provisions, $62.33, Calgary...................... 170 66

.0
0  beef, at 10c., $130; 1,074 Ibs. pork, at 12c., $128.88,

4 d dgary ............... .. ... 258 88

5P p id beef. at 53.50, $14; horse feed, $4.75, Oalgary.................... 18 75
1,740 rs boots, $'38 62; camp outfit, $63.30, Calgary ..... ...................... 201 92
1lbe n read at Red Deer .......................... .. .... ............. 139 00

reCoffee, at 50c., $7 ; provisions, $12.25, Red Deer............... 19 25
o ire, Red Deer................................................. 6900

?royd $520.20; travelling expenses, $10.50, Montreal ...................... 530 70
i Be ar's Hil, $9 ; tobacco, $5 ..... ..... ............................ 14 00
ti Wine 4 ; hospital supplies, $42.80............................... 46 80

tapt al owance, $461.90; 6 bottles rangoon oil, $4.50 ....... ..... 466 40

17 a es Georges, travelling expenses........ ..... .............. .... 88 00
ymte eld allowance from 28th March to 31st July........................19,429 70

îloth, ste account...... ......... ............................................ .............. 41 25
Dt Ing, $27.90; forage caps, $269.....,...... ..................................... 296 90
4 dai,5 to uniform, $1 ; goggles, $10..... . ......... ................................. il 00
]Rri al Pay, board of enquiry, $11.28; labor, $12............................. 23 28
lOeta e'lPenses, $105.92 ; repairing bugle, 25e...... . ............................ 106 17
Ifore and stationery, $91.58; telegrams, $9.55.......... ........ ........ 101 13

1argetîou from Indian guide ... ...... ............................................. 200
rdt raterials $1.85; cartage, $112 50............... ....... 114 35

be $668.31 ; blacksmithing, $40....................... ..... 708 31

-- 23,5U4 40

9OTH BATTALION.

co-nXd 6eld allowance, May, June and July .......................... 16,741 58
A loWasatiou to wounded at Fish Oreek.......... ................. .................. 588 50
kàt io ae Of $13.95 to 292 N. C. O. and men for kit............... ......... 4,073 40

teal 4 2ace, 15th July to 20th.........................................1,175 61
eas a at 40e.y $28.80 ; 141 meals, at 50t., $70.50, Winnipeg. .................. ý9 30

pital e Brandon, $20; 47 lunches, at 25c, $11.75 1o ............ 31 75
I experts 1enses, $16 30; Pte. M. O. Jarvis, travelling
3 airs ·.... . .............. . ................ 34 05

.tons ha y a , at $3.50......... ........... ..............................
ritin ay,' at $2), $70 ; cartage, $10 .................................... 80 00
oea er )lus, $16 ; 50 pairs goggles, $12.50.............................. . 50

-- 23,226 119
91sT BATTALION.

& Peck,Winnipeg, 403 pairs drawers, at $10.50 per doz 357 Co
do do 408 do 6.50 do ... 221 00
do do 408 under shirts 10.50 do ... 357 00
do do 408 do 6.50 do ... 21 00
do do 408 blue serge shirts 15.50 do ... 527 00
do do 408 pair knit shirts 1.00 do ... 408 00
do do 400 pair plain shirts 1.00 do ... 400 00

do 808 pairs shirts and drawers, at
do 16.50 per doz ................. 437 67
do do 1224 pair socks, at $3.45 per doz... 351 90
do do 800 do 3.50 do ... 233 33
do do 808 pair gloves 6.25 do ... 420 83

do 600 pair blankets 2.80...... ......... 1,680 00
21
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EXPENDITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses aris
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.-Continued.

91sT BATTALIoN-ConClUded. $ cts. $ eta. $
Carscaden & PEck,Winnipeg, 350 pairs blankets, at $2.10 ........ 735 00

do do 4 boys' overcoats at 7.50......... 30 00

6,379 73
LEss--Deduction by Lt.-Col. Jackson.................. 2,502 33

J. A. W right, W innipeg, 100 pair blankets.............................. ......... 210 
R. J. Whitla & Co, Winnipeg, 25 pair blankets, 4 75; 106 yds.

Russia crash, $12.72........ ............................................. 87 72
H. Shorey & Co., Montreal, shirts and drawers ................ ..... .................. 4 20
400 pair pants, at $1.90, 1760; 34 doz. tuques, at $7.50, $255... ..................1,015 GO
Pay and field allowance......,....................................... ....... .................... 8,794 18
Ration allowance ............ ................... .................. 2,35 33
433 meals, at 35c., $151.55 ; provisions, $175 22, Regina ........ ............ 326 77
1,444¾ Ibo. bread, $48.15 ; 1,801 lbs. beef, $223.13 do ......... .................. 271 28
Bread, $56.46 ; water supplied, $29.50, Winnipeg ......... ......... ......... ......... 96
63 rubber sheets, at $1.85, $116.55 ; 67 rubber sheets, at $2.00,

$134.00 ................... .................. .................. 250 55
The Ames Holden Co -

408 pairs long boots, at $3.75 ........ ................................ 1,530 00
408 pairs lace do $2.0 O... ........ ........... ..... 1,020 00

4 gross laces .............................. ......... ......... ............... 16 00
-- 2,566 GO

Jas. H. Rogers-
34 caps, at 75c .............. .. ...... 25 50

374 do 60c........................ ................. 224 40
- 249 90

400 pairs shoulder straps, $600.00 ; clothing, $15.20...... ......... .................. 615 20
T. H. Scott, Winnipeg-

7 tables, at $5 00, $35.00 ; 1 table, $4.50; 1 table, $650 46 00
1 doz. chairs, $10.50 ; 1 doz. chairs, $9.00 ............ ...... 19 50

- - 6550
77 lbs. pipe clay, at 15c., $11 5 ; 12 water barrels, $3,00........ ................. .14 55
Hospital furniture, $43 00 ; cotton, $10 35 ............................... 63 35
Bugle, $6.0O ; 2 revolvers, returne d to militia stores by Lt.-Col.

Scott, $26.40 ......... ....... ..... ........... ........ ...... ............ 32 40
Hay and oats, $83.72 , cases and cartage, $49.50..................... ......... ......... 22
116 sacks, at 30c., $34 80 ; 18 lanterns, at $1.00, $18.00 ......... .................. 52 80
.4 boxes caudles, $44.60 ; towelling, $28.42................................. .73 02
Stoves, wood and lamps, $113.43 ; teaming, $73.00 ...... ........ .................. 186 43
Postage and stationery, $39.95 ; felegrams, $19.29 ........... ........ 59 24
Advertising, $8.00 ; lumber, $14.20; labor, $28.00 ...... ................... .50 20
Cleaning privy, $5 00 ; altering tunies, $74.00................ ..... .................. 79 G0

Hardware.................... ...... ............. 471 16.......

"GC INFANTRY SCHOOL.

Pay and field allowance Ist April to 31st October ..................... 5,417 8ç8
Oroceries and potaîces, $124.53 ; 160 ]bs. ineat, at Blc., $14.0<1 ... 138 53
70 meals at Ignace, at 35c., $24.0 0; 73 ineals at Brandon, at

350., $25.55 ....................... .................... ......... ......... 560 OS
73 niea]s at àdoceomin, at 35c., $25-55 ; 160 lbs. bread, Win-

nipeg, at ?je., $'5 Go ..............-.......................... .................. 30 55
15 days' subsisttnce, 1*52.50 uiet. Semrs for forage, $8.00 ..................... 60 50
W. D. Blschford & Bros., WVinnipeg-214 Ibs. soleleather, at

36c., $7.44 ; 5Î lbs. kip, $5.75 .......................... .. ......... ......... 13 19
Travelling exper ses and transport of bagggage, &c. of N.G.O.

and mxen frein Battltford to Swift Gurrent.................. ......... ..... 652 GO
Express charges ......... .. ................................ ..... .................. 220 6,6

GAVÂLRY SCIIoOL GORPS.

Pay and field allowance ...... ......-....................................... 1,782 87
Meals at Quebec, $3.0.00O; 6 rucals at Montreal, at 6Oc., $3 00.............. 33 0O
6 ineals at Ottawa, at 50c., $3.00 ; 50 meals at Garleton Place,

at 50c., $25.00......................................... ....................... 28 0O
48 meals at Mattawa, at 50c., $2400 ; 49 meals at Winnipeg,

at 35c., $17-15 .................................. .................. ..... ........ 41 15

8727
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&PNIDITURE under Appropriation of 82,300,000 to defray expenses and losses ari, ing
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.-Continued.

CATvIY SCHOOL CoRPs-Continued.

eals at Rat Portdge, at 35c., $16.80 ; 47 meals at Broad-
0 , at 35c., $16.45 ............... ..... ......... .................

J te, .V.., Winnipeg, attending mare ............... ..............
V arris, V., attendance and medicines ..................

*W od, Touchwood, shoeing horses .... ...... .................

HALIFAX PROVISIONAL BATTALION.

Q and field allowan ce ...............................
9• McQuaig Medicine Hat-
,930 Ibs. bread, at 4c., 5397.20 ; 5,939 lbs. meat, at 12½c ,

$742.38. ................... ....................
8 potatoes, at $1 per bushel, $117.64 ; groceries,
l1 $4 . ........... ................................ ...........ba. cnuales, at 29c., $23,49 ; 12 lbs. candles, at 35c.,
$420.....

"ords wood .10750 ; 1,845 lbs. bay, $18.45..................
1 Ibo. cats, at 80c. per bushel, $69.54 ; cartage, $19.50

Ptairs Overalis, $25.00; lumber, $18.75; 1 saw, $3.50.
ationery, $1.00 ; 6 axe handles, $2.10 ......................

•'Wells i
2p . yinnipeg-
1 afic hotel ranges, $90 00 ; 1 cooking range, $40.00 .....Dion cooking stove, $34.00; 1 box stove, guard room,

t0-eet smoke chimney........ ..................
8*ove pipe, boilers, &c, *35.85; 32 hours' labor, $16.00....

orey & Co., Mcntreal-350 wool tuques, at $7.50 per doz.

el Ewart, Medicine Rat-
2i e ' $20 ; lu:nber, rope, &c., $24.72......... ......... ..........

swod, $20; 1C lbs. tea, $5.25................

gY8o 1.M. Staff, Halifax-
1 Orf ns case tf instruments and medicine chest............

Per cent. deparimental expenses...................

,Y Broslt Medicine Hat, 1.083 los. mat, at 13c...............
real ter Medicine Hat, 2,296 lbs. bread, at 4c...................

atpt 35c., $ 26 0 40, Winnipeg; 343 meals, at 35c.,$120.05,
ea rage ....... ...... ....................................... .........

d. Yhouth Que, $13.50; water supplied, Moose Jaw, $53.75
ft. lubn g, at 38C., for targets, Moose Jaw.............. .....

atelliw er o argets. Moose Jaw ... ........... ............ ..
Wou, a0 pse s, $32.05; coffin, $16.18 ; target, $3.40.........

a hin bose w $8 ; forage, Truro, $6.13............................
is lanke:t , $1.20; shoemaking, $12 40; tailoring, $2.80.

iig, $3; Postage, $10; cartage, $32 ...... .............. ..

b ý WINNIPEG FIELD BATTERY.

e , 32 men, at $13.95.............,..............................
&&Es-a..upplies at Prince Albert...........................

Caswei ,Dai rey, supplies... .
a b Prince Albert, rent, $18; syrup, $7; eggs, $1.50...

D Prme Albert, 13 doz. eggs..........................
ae Alert .rince Albert, baking................................

. lair, p . es, Printing ..............................................ohnso rince Aibert, altering uniforme.......................
r n, rince Albert, scythe and stone......................

W n ead h, Prince Albert, in.etfering boots.............
A.At,' pri arness for vun ............................ ......takhrnee Albert, hir- of buckboard......... ......... ..... ......,ey Prine.; Albert, extracting teeth..... ................

23

$ e.

......... ........

..................

...... 1...........

......... .........

1,139 58

538 85

27 69
125 95

89 04
47 25

3 10

130 00

40 00
17 00
51 85

........... .......

44 72
25 25

202 09
30 30

......... .........

..................

...... ...... ......

'........ .........
......... .........
........ .......
......... ........

446 40
197 46

$ cts.

33 25
10 00
60 50
50 50

8,911 09

1,971 46

238 85
218 75

69 97

232 39
234 39

91 84

380 45
97 25

9 22
5 60

51 63
14 13
16 40
45 00

3,302 73

$ et ,

2,039 27

12,588 42

A. 1886

......... ........ ,
............ ......
...... ...... ......
............ ......
..... ...... ......
.... ... .......
... ... .........

..................
...... ............
......... .........
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IIXPENDITUIRE under Appropriation of 82.R00.000 to defray expenses and losses arifO«
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.-Continued.

WINNIPEG FIELD BATTERY-ConcUded. $ Cts. $ ete.
J. Paul, ferry At Ba oche ............................................. 18 90
Tea, $1 65; bath brick, 40c. ; postage, $4 ................................. 6 OS
Rewarci for fiAding horse.......... . ......... ............ .................. .............. 10 0
Teaming, $5; dru gs, $2 25.......,....................................... ... . 7 25
Rlacksmithi's work and repaira. ............... ......................... 6 90
Wash basin, 75c. ; gogles, $12 50... ....... ......... .............................. 13 25
J. B. Milflkia, Qu'Appelle, 1 doz. br'dle reins, $9; 2 holsters, $2................ il 0
E. Burling, Winnipeg, 10 halter br dies, $25; narness fittng,

$3302 .......... .. .... .. .. ... ............... . ................... 5802
A. Schmidt, Winnipeg, 4 imnber keys. ....................... .... .... 4 00
Meals for 45 men, 3 lay s, at 60c. per day ...... ................................ 81 0
C, P. R. Dining Roon, Winnipeg, 47 meals . ......... ..... 1 .... 45
J. Hote, Winnipeg, 6 catmp beds ....... ........... ....................... 30 00
J. Stevens & 8ons, 1 veterinary case ..................... ................ 20 50
Drugs at Winnipeg.... ..... ........................ .................... 325 80
G . Strachin, 15 yds. veiling . .... ...... ............................ ...... 3 75
M. Kea hi.i, cartage .......... ............................................. 16 75
Surgeou Uodd, travelling xpenses..................................... 33 60

YORK AND S IMCoN BÂTTALION.

Pay and allowances .................... .... ........ ....... .. .................... 17,194 72
Expenses callitig out ii-nops ........ ................................... 39 25
W. H. Henback, Touchiwuod, 1, 175 lbs. beef, at 1 T-............................ 1199 75
J. Harris, V.S , NloosoLuin. medicines fo, horses....... ...................... e oo0
0. P. R. Dir.irg Rooms, Witinipeiz, 351 meai1s, at, 35e .................. 122 85
J. Uleggarty, Ignace, 35j meals, at 35c ................................... .... 124 25
Water uiply. Winnipeg, $21 ; telegrztins, $; 60 ; baking pow.

der, &c., $5.50 .. ....... ....... ................................ 30 10
Toronto bboe Co., 26 pairs lace cboes ........ . _......... ...... .................. 562 O
Horse hire, $9 ; board, $17.9i _......,........... ...... .. .................. 26 95
Invalids' allceance, $1,2 t; Capt. Uuater, trave. ing expenses,

&c., $66 45........«........................... >........ ......... ..... ..... ...... 189 46

BOULTÇ,)ýi'S MOUI4vED INFANTRY.

Pay .............. »..,,........................................ ............ 7,834 47
Pte. H. B. Perrin, 212 days' comipensation fur wound, $212 ; ex--

penses to WinniDeiZ, $20.05 .................................... ................. 232 OS
Pay T tehmsters. at $7 p,ý day........................... ............ .... 3,926 09
G. W Ludlow, boaîrd atid ineals ........................ ............................ 33 15
F. J. Thonipson. tiavellitig tixpenises home ................ .... .................. 7 50
R. Clavering, 1'teain without waggon 58 days, at >Li....... ..... .................. 232 00
Field allowan)ce, July -2, 1 lio16;- 4 muaths' stationery al-

lowèiuce, $16 ; a1îuwari-e for horse hire, $1,021 ......... ....... ............ 1,147 16
Sanderson & Looly, EiiuoiLLtoui, shoeir.g horsu ......................... ......... 7 50
.A. Doig, Birtie-

4 caudle sticks, $1; 3 pails, $255............. ........ ........ 3 5 5
78 spaons, $4.55 ; 3ý0 plates, $350 ............................. 9 05

12 60
John McDougnd1, Birtie, aitals and borue fred, $115 ;inspecting

hormes, $10. ........ .............................. ............. .......... 125 00
Thos. Yoandlu, Birtie, b1ackýmithing.~..................... .... ....... 20 60
Sherif Adamý, Birtle, meîai8 and bor:3e feel .............. ......... .. .......... 41 15
Thos. Gillnau, Moosomn-

Board, 299 meuls ...................................... ......... 8 ý 85
Board ani lodging . ................................. ......... 80 40

163 25
Jas. S. Aylesworth, Birtie, services buying horses .......... ...... ... 8 0O
Ed. Mariott, keeping 8 horses 6 days ....... ..................' -ý;17 50
Dan. Smith, Prince Alb-'-t iron wrk for posts tethering horse........3 75
J. A. Simipson, Russell, ýoo lbs. chop (sick horses)...... . . .2 50
Georg~e McKeauith, Moosomju, 33 meals ................................ 13 65
George F. Dun, 1 saddle, $10 ; 7 aslmlyen,$42 f

7 das' mplomen, $4 ....... 4 00

George J. Cox, Quartermaster diabursements .................. I .... 26 80
J. P. Wallent, 1ià2 Ibi beet ........................... ...... 1 04 I
W. F. Buchanauj 36 prs. heavy Mexican spurs.............. ........ 46 80

16 4
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~PÀXPIDITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses -riïing
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.-Continued.

BOULTON's MoUNTED INFANTRY-Continued. $ ets. $ Ct.

ope, Shoal Lake-
lay, st June to 22nd July, at 75c.................................. 39 00days' horse hire...... ........ .......................................... 52 00

J. -- 91 00
10 days' hoard, 10 troopers, $1.50 ....................... .. 150 00
18 meald and beds, 2 troopers, at 35c............................. 6 30

: ~156 30
failton, travelling expenses .............................. ...... ...... 2 50

-- 14,192 37
GATLING GUN BRIGADE.

apa i .....-.......... ............ ................................ . ........ .............. 458 25
atli &- ;' . Howard, personal and living expenses........ ............... 214 00

2 g Gun Oompany, Hartford-

2 atling guns ............................. 2,500 00
carriages and limbers .......................... ........................ 560 00

gazi .................... ... 300 00
guns .............................................. ........ 10 00

cOmInission, j per cent..... ................... 4 25
-- 3,374 25

A LEERTA MOUNTED RIFLEs. - 4,046 MB

J ...ount 9,053 77
148 . .3 • meas, .t 25e.................................• ......-. . ... •. 9 0

als algary 7me. ......... .................................... .............. . ........ 18 50
op Lamb, m eals, horse feed and hire.............................. .................. 36 00

. O. D. White, compensation for horse.......... ..... ......... ..... ............ 100 00
. J.*g rrw, Calgary, 747J lba. beef ........ ................ .................. 89 70
k. B a ton do bread .................................... ........ .................. 3 16

di e l injury to a horse .......................... .......... ,....... .................. 8 00
fi ot1el, board and lodging..................... .................. 14 50

er & Co., Calgary, 100 shirts and drawers...... .. ................. 95 00
-- 9,542 13

DENNIs' INTELLIGENOE CORPs.
t ·................... .... .... ,...,,,..................................... .................. 6,912 63

. Of men returning home ................ ........ . .... 568 70
S eloner D.L.8.-
ra B eln expenses .................................................... 35 00
ea.ls and board ........... ............................... 42 00

ayi allowane ................................ 19 00
Ba - 96 00aders, travelling expenses, Troy to Ottawa............... .................. 16 75

6,5940oe
ýFRENcH's SCOUTS.

o scots
. Cook ' aÈl................ ... .... ....... ....... ..--. ................. 12,822 88
. Suth, avance on sick pay..................... .................. 10 O
bridleerland, Qu'Appelle, 1 mare, $225; 1 saddle and

.. ......................................................... ..... ......... 250 00

BATTLEFORD RIFLES.

allo anc s ..... ....... .............. ............ 2,297 18
le ,$52skill, Battleford 3 yds. towelling, 60c. ; blank,

cdO B.·...... ............... ................................. 5 85
100 pg. onald, Battleford -
Qrj,irs blanket- 57 50oerles, $10.50; plates, &c., $37.45....... .............. 47 95

y -SC----- 625 45
Moos MOUNTIN 800Fr8 - -2,928 4

br. 'w 8 hotel e
0..Ba expenses......................................................... 56 75

&o , f, professional s-rvices .................. ... 6 60r & Innilpeg, repairing carbine. ................. ................. 1 50
cuings, 1 doz. wood stirrups ....... ......... .. ......... ................. 3 00

.- -
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EXPENDITUIRE uInder Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expen ses and 8osses a r isi1g
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.-Continued

BATTLEFORD HoME GUARD. $ ets. $ cts.

Pay lust................ .. .................................................. ................ 4,692 67
A llow ance in lieu of kits, 49 at $15............... . ................... .... ................. 735 00
A. MctDonald, Battleford, 1 cook stove, $40 ; 6 pans, $3.75....... . .... ... 43 75
M.ahafy & ClinkEkill, Battleford-

2½ doz. epoons, ai $1, $2.50 , 6 cups, at 15c., 90c. ; knives
and forks, $2..... ............................... 5 40

1 tin, $150 ; 8 soap, $1 ; 1 axe, $1.50 ............ 4 00
tationery, $2.45 ; nails, $1.13. ........... ..... .. ...... 3 58

-- 12 98
BIRTLE COMPANY. .-- ,

Pay list and allowances........................................ ................. ..... ............... 1,376

lROCnY MOUNTAIN RANGERS.

Pay list and allowance ...... ........... ....... 17,050 38
'Travelling expenses Captain Stewart and officers, Ottawa to

Fort McLeod....................... ................. ............................. ..... 279 37
Lieutenant Christie, travelling expenses................. ........... 47 25
. G. Baker & Co., Fort McLeod-

3 pack saddles. $37.50 ; 346J lbs. tope, $69.30 ............. 106 80
-Campas outfit, $105.35 ; 8,700 cartridges, *391.50 ............... 496 85
52 pair$ grey blankets, at $7, z 364; 52 suits underclothing,

at 6 .50, $338 ........ ..... .................. 00
29 bats, at $6, $174 - 7 rubber sheets, $17.50 ; 100 Colt's

pistol cartridges, $3.50 ........... ............ 195 00
- 1,500 65

Quail à Scott, Fort M cLeod, 2 pair stretchers ......... ........ ...... .................. 8 00
J. D. Higinbotham & Co., dings for horses............................. ......... .........
.A. H. Beney à Co., Fort McLeod-

50 gun alirgs, at 75c , $37.50 ; 58 do at $1, $58............... 95 50
e pairs stiriups, at $2, $12 ; 11 bitte, at $1.50, $16.50......... 28 50
2 halters, at.43, $6 ; I linch, $3.50......... . ......... 9 50

G. C. Ring & Co., Calgary-
24 wcollen blouses, at $4.50, $1C8 ; 18'woollen shirts, at

$3.b0, $63 . . ......... ......................... ........ ......... 171 00
25 felt tats, at $3 ......... ...................................... ........ 75 00

-- 246 00
W. F. Fc ster,M*dicine Bat, Ehoeirg horsesand repairing waggon ................. 202 50
C. P. R. Telegraph Co., telegrams ................. . .......... ..................

do freight on saddlery and linen ......... ........ . .... ................. 28 50
Emiler k Claik, Fort McLecd, shoeing, *54; 75picket piLo, $75 ...... ......... 129 00
Ferriage, Fit Kipp, May and June. ............. ............ ............ 16 75
Government telegrapb, telegrams.................................. .. ...... ........ . ô 35
R. Fayne, hoise shoeing........ ............ ............................................ 12 50
Yeri ge at Fort McLeod ............................ .. .... ................ .3 00
Tweed & Ewart, Medicine Bat-

15 Son brero hate, $42.75 ; 12 Montana suits, canvas cloth,
*100.50 ............ ..... ,... ....... ...... ............ ...... ,.. .. 143 J 5

7 paia sjuïs, $ý6 ; 10 halters, at $2.75, $27.50......... ......... 43 50
49 blaLkets ar d 15 hore blankets......,............................. 2'0 50
71J ILs. zope, $14.30 ; ammunition, $36.75.................. 51 05
2 ie nts, tent poles and pins .............. ............................. 35 0
Mallet, hammer, sledge, rope and axe.....................10 95
Drugs, $5.40 ; eau p supplies, $109 45 ; stationery, $22.30 137 15

691 40
Winder & Co.-

82 pairs gré y blankets, ai $6, $492 ; 4 pairs white blankets,
at $7, $28..... ............. .... ................. 520 00

Wsggen Fheet, $14 ; 2 large tents, $50.......,.............,...... 64 00
O te nta and poles........... ................................................ 96 00
Camp supplies .. . ........ .... . ... ....... ......... 144 55

824 55
J. B. Emith & Bro., 50 pair Hudson Psy blankets, trail, at $6... .................. 300 00
Leamer &Sitedmn, hie of team and driver to High River..... ..... ........... 30 00
Tzamajport, Fort McLeod to Calgaiy........ ...... 18 00

26



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No.50.) A. 1886

XPENDITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and losses arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.-Continued.

ROCKY MOUNTAIN RANGERS-0Co0luded. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.

N iani $15 ; cabs, $3 ......... ,....... ......... ........... 17 00,k1l ) $16.50; meals, $13.50 . ........................... 30 00

nee & co. , Ottawa-6 0

250 ammunition belts and knife sheathes with knives ........ 237 65
Packinig ..... ...,... .. ...... ........................ ......... ......... ......... 2 00

-- 239 65
ST. ALBERT MOUNTED RIFLES. - 21,884 0R

........te g....... ............... .... ............ . 2,865 84
i ea a t St. George, travelling expen ses ............. ............. ...... ........... 157 00

8' J. J. M. Lstaux, O. I., St Albert-
863 lbs. flour, at 9., $72.27; 430 lbs. bacon, at 35c., $1.50.50 222 77
, 86 lbs. beet, at 20c., $257.20; 300 lbs. fish, at 6c., $18 ... 275 20

814 rs, potatoes, at $1.50, $12; peas, $3 ; oats, $3... ....... 18 C0
1 bs. tea, at $1, $14.25; 15 lbs. tobacco, at 75c;, $11.25.. 25 50

at 541 47
- Ducharme, Lac La Biche, 1 sack flour.......................................,...... 13 00

-- 3,577 31
SCOUTS WITH MAJOR PERRY.

eAls, $12; hay, &c., $3................................................... ............ ,..... ................ 15 00

SHOAL LAKE HOME GUARD.

11n Shoal Lake, transport of arma and ammunition... .................. ... 14 25

SUPPLIES TO INDIANS.

onell Bros., Gleichen, 4 Ibs. tobacco, at 70c., $2.80; 2 lbs.
a, i$ ...... O T .. I....... ....... .. , ......... .................. ................ . ......... ......... 3 80,

SCOUTS, GUIDEs, OURERS, &c.
8 ' Brown, guide, Red Deer ................ ,..... ............................ 5 00

b. t couts, 88 days, at $2 .............................................. 176 00

acco to each, at 75c........ .................................- 191 00e and forage......................................32775
I)OUaId S rie, 53 days, at $5, W. L. I....... .................................. 265 00

. <etherland, 15 days' horse hire, at $1.50 ......... . .. .................... 22 50
aenauld, Fort Saskatchewan-

s ScOutin g, 77 days, at $3.50...... ........................ 192 50

r3ee1e LEss--Horse, paid by Government ..................... 12500 6750
tro das Scout, 9 days, at $2.50 .................................. 22 50

Pay ,frd Beaver Lake --
scout, 17 days, at $3 ............... . .. ......... .......... .51 00

351 00do 64 do $5 ...... ..... ......... ....................... 3 0 0

ati Ls ors paid by Goverment.........$85 00 00

10 anl,3months ..... ....... 1.......____ .3 4785

-- 238 42
p'" eiiderson Port Saskatchewan-.

ta 76 days, at $2.50. ........................... 9190 00
itationl ,6F3-nflse , paid by Governinent ... . 80 00

forfa il ........ ............. ....... 52 26
- -as 132 26& ste537 75

8pit s th, Hig Fort McLeod, 1 horse, 2 dayu, a.s couier ......... 00&e'n Bg Rier, 49 days' horEe hire, at $1.50 ........................ 73 50
17Hellnriigh River- ~5

26~~6 00 a tc

la~~~6 ..... 0385

180 es 9 for2 hosï320 00

iOn s paid byGv.............................. .... 38
or....... f y 2 ho s................ .............. 47 28

-en 95 70

21



-49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 1886

EXPENDITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray ex pen4e.; and] oises arigilS

out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.--Coninued.

SCOUTs, GDES, CoDanEs, &o.-Concluded. $ ets. $ ets. $

F. Geroche, St. Albert, 17 days' pay, at $2.50.......................... 42 50
N. Delannes do do ...... ..... ................... 42 50
H. St. Amand do do . ........... ...... 42 50
J. Gladu do do .................... . .42 50
G. L. H. Roudelle do do ................................. 42 50
V. Loyer, St. Albert, 17 days' courier, at $2.50 ........................... 42 50
Chas. Henderson, Fort Saskatchewan-

8 davs' scouting, at $3.00. ............. .............................. 24 00
e7 .do 2.50............ 167 50

191 50
Limas- Rations for faily............ 66 50

z. J. (Jollins, Fort Saskatchewan- - - 160

84 days' couting, at $2.50...............................210 0
L s-orse................... ...... 60 .... 4. 5

- 15000
L. . Mukins, Fort Saskatchewan, Il days' scouting, at $2.50................ 27 50
P. Nelson, Fort Saskatchewan-

7 days' scouting, at $2.50 ............ .................. 17 bO
47 do 5.00 ........ . ............. 335 00

352 50
Lzss-Horse paid by Governnient................ 125 00

-- 227 50
J. H. Cummings, Calgary, 52 days' corier service between Cal-

ary %d Edmonton, at $1.00 per day.................................... .... 5,200 00
Pay1list, couriers between Calgary and Fort McLeod ......................... 2,054 25
S 7ylers Bros., carr5ing despatches................................ ......... 7 50
R. 0. Macdonald, despatches from Battieford to Lt.-Col. Otter,

3 days, at $3.50....o ................ ........ 125 00 5

STEE1L'a SCOUTS

Psy and allowanceg ............................................ .................. 16,245 55
aHtain Oswald, pay for extra hazardous services ............... . ........ 1,239 50

P y of invalida E................... ............................. ................. 129 00
Compensation for 8 horses killed an ........................................ 735 0 0
Meals and board at Calgary ......................... .................. ....... 472 50

yorse feed and strbling at Calgary.................. .................. 161 0
Sttionery, $67.60; cartage, $13.25 ............................... 80 85
Blacksmithing, $57.50; rent, $70 ........................ 1........-.. 127 50
1. G. Baker & Co., 1 tent ................. ............................ 14 50
T. J. alaxton, Calgary, bread ............................................... .... 33 17
A. 0. Sparrow do 747, aby. eef, at 12erce........... ...... .... 89 70
T. P. cflugh, 6 cords wood. ...... ......... ......................... .................. 24 0
M. A. Armstrong, making 50 scarfs ..................................... 10 0
Hudson Byy $o., 1 doz. scarlet sashes, $5; rations, $20 90 ........................ 25 90
Jno. Richard, Red Deer, care of horses.............................................. 21 50
R. W. MeLellan, Red Deer-

13G. tons hay, at $25................... . ......... ............. 336 25
Rent, wood, flour, &ea.......... ..................................... 31 0

-- 367 25
Dr. H. . Wilson, Edmonton, drugs, &c .......................................... 56 0
Tin box, $6.50; boot jacks, $1.05 ............................. ........................... 7 55
Hudson Bay o., advance to Sergeant Stiff .................. ..... ....... 17000 00991

SCOUTS WITH COLONEL OTTER.

Psy of men couting ...... ...... ............... ............ 3,466 00
1ire of horses for scouts at $2 per day..................................374 0

D. Smith, 29 days looking for horse . ....................... 0.. 8 0
1,262 bs. beefa t Battoeford, at 17c ............. ............... 1454

EBOORT SCOUTS WITHI CÂPTÂXE DONNELLY.

Il horses for Scouts ................... ............... .................... 1.6.....

7345 00

F. F. Tims, 1 horse and 2 saddles.................................... ....... 153 (00
28



) ictoriat. Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 1886

JR1ý&NbITURE under Appropriation of $2,00,000 to defray expenses and losses arising
out of tronbles in the North-West Territories, &c.-Continued.

eSCORT SCoUTs WITH OAPTAIN DONECLLY-ContinUed $ ets. $ cts. $ cti.
Teko, 2 saddles and 3 bridles................. . ........ ................. 55 00

IBlen, a% $4 per day ... ...................... 949 00
2 do 64 days, at $3.... .................... .................... ...... ............ 192 00

------ 2,994 Oa~

YOnKTON COMPANT.

..... . ......................................... ...... ......... ......... ........ 346 20
2 ae in lieu of rations ........... ................................................. 84 25
e r1 blanket at ................... ................................................... 10 O0e8tine

tt ......--. •.. •••• .••-••• •••• ..................•.. .......... 1000

]or g expenses, Major Watson .................................................. 8 00
Oerge' cap, $2; trueers, $6 .................. . ..................... 8 00oat) $5; boots, $6. .................................... il 82

- 19 00

BATTLUm RIVER BRIDGEM.48BC
43t hoafe guard work.......... .................................. 37 50

ki ttf41aking .......................................... «... ........... ...... 153 41
y6 % er at ....... .................. ......... ....... ........ 68 40

t le, at9c............................. .............. 1684 0
ls a t 5c ..... . .................. .......................................... ...... 800

120ft -Mt Saw .............................................................. 6 50
?,QPi4IOI Pl~ar loge, at 6c ........ ...................... ......... ........ ....... 7 20

0 bePo es..... .--.... . 19.00
t dayh roe pikes ................ ..... ................................. 16 50

,0 • th teai at.e... ..... ................... ................................... 17 50
*ail ver, 9 days superintending.. ......... ..... ..... ........ ............. 45 00
'tCecOaI oil, $4.50; 1 qt. vinegar, 50c.-... ..... .............. 5 00

esPPer and sait ................................ 2 35

I t- imbe

.. ..., ....... .... .. ...... ............. .. ...... . ..... ......
.r.................50.

1 Pt es o bsia trs...............80

'l'................. la............... .............................. .................. 4 55 2

01' vere 9doas srten .... ....... .................. ...... ................. 400
, pep r nd sal...... ........................ .............. 4

la 'tel rt, catteie ...................................... 3 5.. 0

~ot. 1 QIrdo, umer & . .. .. ....... ..... 15 4
8 OR~~,trOlprtngLiutnan Wilr .. .......... 68 40

GO We, tea &C ae......... ........................................ 8 50
do Cr o.................................................. 8 00

1. td do.................................................. . 14 0P ......................... .......................... 40 0

d0a ........................................ ................ 7 00
erice ............. ............................ 16 0

S arre 8irs goe........................ ........ 17 00

0 1 'C . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .uten . . . . . . . .r . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8 55

, dr r C cat.............. > .......... 45 0

Qb at'e -are er, fees....................................... 5: * Q*O

0 1la l os .w .ent.......................... 10 00

pe lo'ine rent

........ ......... 4 00

. ey, ane el e ...... ......... ............ ...... .............. 20 00

•) Ghrae ly, team.. hir .. ............ 5....,.....
a. rn, sudriesn

a ' n e r interpre er ......... ..... ......... ... -..................... .. 4 0

no T le, .aggon .tea s, ......................................... .... ..... e 1

o e o.............................. .... .. 13
et) hl team d hosital ... tores. .................... ........... 1

. , Uge of n. ..... 1.......1..............,.... .....

•h e .atti. .lau.hte ..g. cattl ... ............. ........ ..... ...... 7
9eo,~171 capnerwr
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EXPENDITURE: u'idor A.ppropriation of $83,ioooo to defray expenses and losses arisiD$
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.-Confinued.

SUNDRY EXPENSES. $ ets. $ cte.

Washing 4,198 pairs blankets at 8c., at Winnipeg ................ ......... 335 84
J. Oottingham, Calgary, advance for saddlery..... ................... 5 
At Toronta-

7 horses, 3 days' for funerals, Lieut. Fitch and Moore ........ 21 
P. Burns, use of cat and harntess, 13 days.........,.................................13 00
Pte. Beaumont, balance of pay ... ....... .................................... 20 50
Toronto Garrison Battery, coal o.................................. .......... 62

At Kingston and Port Hope-
Telegrams, $10.97 ; livery hire, $5 .......... ....................... .................. 15 97
Drivers and horses, funeral of Lieut.-Col. Williams........... ................ .16 90
Board of prisoners, Froutenac county gaol........................................ .21 00
McKelvey & Birch, hardware............. ............................................ .17 45
J. O' Brien, cartage......................................................... .34 00

A t Montreal, cartage. ....... ... ................... ......... ................. 18 0
At Quebec, Quebec and Lévis ferry ................... ..... ............. ................. 37 50
North-West Mounted Police, proportion of 0. P Ry.'s. Tele-

graph Co 's. accounts .................... .......... 729 59
Public Works, telegrams over Government lines............... 51 51
4 months' salary, P. Hourie, interpreter ...... ....... ,....... ,.............. 300 00
Bank of Montreal, commission on Hourie's salary ........................ 3
Indian Consolidated Fund, 30 cords wood... ........ .................. ................. 105 O0

Balances in hands of paymasters-
Paymaster Alger, balance, lt Jan................................... 666 99

do King do ......... ........................................... .56t 88
do do subsequent alvances.............................. ..................
do Dei'ellefeuille, balance, 1st Jan.......... .................. 52
do Forrest (at Quebec) do ........................ .................. 5 24
do do subseque at advances............................ .................. 9,000 00
do Peebles, balance, 1st Jan ............................................... 869 06
do do subsequent advances....... ................ ............ ..... O0

Lieut.-Col. Jackson, balance, lst Feb............................... .................. 1,752 02
Bank of Montreal, cost of telegram from Winnipeg, trans-

ferring balance....................................... ......... ........ 56.........
Lieut.-Col. Jackson, February advance ............................ ..................
Major Guy, balance, lst Feb ................... ........................ ....... ......... 11,35534 131,%7561

Bank of Montreal, charges on Lient.-Col. Jackson's drafts... .......................... î,i25
Advances to Hudson Bay Co. (See accompanying state-

ment)............................................... ..................... ......... ........ . . 70 000

RI'UND8. 2558vi

eslances on band, lot Jnly, 1885-
Paymaster Jackson ý...... .... ... ............................ 48,613 20

do Guy ..................... ...................... 12,589 22
do Forrest ......... ............... ......... 8,845 34
do Alger ........ .... 0.................... ............... 236 16

-- 70,283 92
Proceeds of sales of horses, supplies, ke .................. ......... ......... 28,279 44
Gallagher & McGregor, beef retnrned ................................. .... 1,344 00
Refund of advance to O p t. Peters........................ ......... ......... 500 o0
Lieut. Sears. Infantry Sehool, 1 horse .................................... 200 OU

ajrBell & J. Nei1ly, blacksmithing........................... ......... ... 216 75
Hudson Bay Go., paid them in error.................... ..... .... .. 2.
Lieut. Leonard, refund for revolver issued................ ......... ......... 13 20
(Japt. Drury, balance of advance............................. .................. 51 05
Dr. Roddick do ........ .................... ................ - 105 60
Bey. Mother Superior do... .......... ................. ................ 67 00
Suirgeon-General Bergin, Dr. Gaigrain' s travelling ex-

p enses................ .. ............................ ...... ................. 37 10
Dr. Sullivan, refund................................ .................. 48 45
Surgeon Newbura ....................................................... 24 80

do Wright .............. ...... ...................... ......... 91 96
Lient. Cole.......................5.................. 20 O
olst Battalion,_pay, k1. ................ 750
Yorktoii1?,ie Vo.,. epags e.............. . . .... là3

3w
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ePElNDITURE under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray expenses and lossei arising
out of troubles in the North-West Territories, &c.--Concluded.

REruNDs-Concluded.

8teele's Scouts, overpay to Sergeant Stiff..................
lXlnnipeg Light Infantry, rations issued in excess............

. do overdraft on account of Brigade
.jor King...... ...........................jor Kelly, Midland Battalion, refunde...................

. F. Clarke, Clarke's Orossing, over-charge in Guy's
November voucher 182........................

p h-,West Mounted Police, for transport ammunition....
e Works Telegraph Lines, oats supplied........

Net expenditure to date.....................
Lzss-Amount charged to Grernor Gen-

eral's Warrant of 23rd Feb.

$ cts. $ ets.

19 75
25 00

10 50
30 00

0 50
42 86

720 00

..................

..................

$ et.

102,343 75

2,433,553 43

133,55343

2, 300000 00

XPended as follows:-
By the Department of Interior........ . $ 2,167 50

do Militia and Defence............... 2,431385 93
..- 2,433,553 43

Lass-Amount charged to Governor-General's Warrant....... 133,553 43

$2,300,00 00

J. L. McDOUGALL,
Auditor-General.

A. 1886
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SUBSIDIA1RY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000, to defra
expenses and losses arising out of troubles in the North-West Territories.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY'S SUPPLIES.

STAFF AND OFFICERs. $ Cts. $ ets.

Prom Winnipeg, for Troy-
Stationery ...................................................... 59 45

,At Qu'Appelle-
Stationery, $20.85; 9 cases axle grease, $58.50..........................79 35

.At Calgary-
Unloading cars, $24.00 ; storage, $15 00 .......................... 39 00
135 lbs. oats, at 3c., for Lev. J. McDougall...................... 4 05

- 43 05
At PT»nce Albert-

Ssationery, $17 43 ; broom, 40e...... ............................... 17 83
1 gall. coal oil, $2.00 ; matches, 50c.................... 2 50

AtEdmonton- 0
18 tins canned vegetables......................., ........................ 6 30
18 do fruits .. ............... ,.................................. 11 25
4 tins prepared mustard ....... ........................................ 1 60
24 lbs. mustard, $1.00 ; 2 bottles walnuts, $2.50 ............... 3 50
Axe, $1.50 ; 2 anuger bits, 75c .............. ....................... 2 25
3 yds. bun ting, $ L, 20 ; 3 yds cotton, 66c.......... ............... 1 86
2 galils coal uil, $2 C0 ; 5 lamps, $W0........ .. ,................... 12 00
20 lbs. soap, $5 00; 2 butcher knives, $1,50.... ................. 6 50
3 pairs butte, 75c. ; 26 pa es glass, $4.00 ......... ............... 4 75
Nails, $3.10; twine, $1.(J ......... .............. ............. ...... 4 10
Pins, $1.50; cotton, $1.50 ......... .... ,............................... 3 00
Cleaning sheds for stores .................. .............................. 9 00

- - 6611
HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL SERVICE. --

Frwen Winnipeg, for Moose Jaw-
6 yds. oilcloth, $3.17 ; 2½ lbs. yarn, $2.32 ....................................... 549

At Prince Albert-
30 galle. lime juice, at $2.00 ...... ...... ................................. 60 0

.At Cumberland, for Steamer " Alberta "-
500 Ibs. ice, $5.00 ; 20 ibs. fish, $1.00....................... ... 6 0

At Qu'Appelle-
24 Ibo. oatmeal, $1.44 ; 5 lbs. corn meal, 25c..................... 1 69
10 Ibs. butier, $2 00 ; 4 bottles pickels, $1 80..................... 3 80
5 Ibo. butter, at 25c., $1.25 ; 6 cans tomatoes, $1.80.......... .3 OS
20 lbs. soda biscuits, $2.00; 1 tin syrup, $1.60.................. 3 60
4 tins mustard, 80c. ; 1 bottle vinegar, 30e.. ............ ......... 1 10
21 Ibo. bacon, $3.15 ; 12 ibs. cheese, $2.40... ......... ....... 5 55
6 tumnblers, $2 40 ; 2 wash basins, 70e...... ........................ 3 10
2 galls coal oil, 80c. ; wicks, 10c.................................. O 90
6 towels, $1.50 ; toilet soap, 60c......... ....... ................... . 2 10

24 89
ýAt Edmonton-

Lumber, $255 93 ; shingles, $6 25 ...... ............................. 262 18
Buildng paper, $16.44 ; laths, 60e ... . ......... .................. 17 04
Carpenter's work, $378 10; nails, $17.09........................... 395 10
Screws, $2.65 ; chalk and chalk line, 25e....................... .2 90
Lock and bolts, $2.0 ; latch and hinges, 70e................... 3 20
Glass, $6,00 ; tbread and twine, $2.35............... ............ 8 36
30 yds. Hessian, $6 60 ; 17 yds. duck, $5.10 ...... ............... il 70
45 yds. cotton, $5.00; 12 pairs blankets, $84.00 .............. .89 00
Drugs, $240 25 ; 6 bottles chlorodyve, $9 ....................... 249 25
284 ibs. butter, $11.40 ; provisions, $3.20 ..... ....... ......... 14 60
Kettles, pots and pans, $10.10 ; 2 brooms, $1.00 ............. .il 10

nps and saucers, $3.25 ; 100 lb. bran, $1.00 ................ 4 25
6 towels, $3 ; iar soap, $1.80..... .................................. 4 80
6 Ibo. candles, $2 10 ; candlestick, 25e....... ................ .. 2 36
Cleaning boat shed for hospital ......... ................ .8 00

QUNERAL SUPPLIES.

.Winnipeg, for Moose Jaw, &..-
833 doz. corn beef, at $3.75........................ ..... 3,123 75
2,0M Ibo. biscuit, at be.,t $le103.47.; 180 bags sait, $13. .... 1,116 97

32
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a81DIARY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 te defray
expenses, &c.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY SUPPLIES-Continued.

GENERAL SUPPLIES-Continued. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.

,054 Ibq. tea, at 35c , $368.90; 10 kegs syrup, $20.00......... 388 90
b200 bs. sugar, at 91c., $203.50 ; 35 Ibo. pepper, $8.75 ...... 212 25

3ïH bush. beans, at $1.75, $61.16 ; 1,499 Ibs. apples, at7 e , $112.43......................................................... 173 59
10 aek oatmeal, $35 10; 17 sacks, $4.25..................... 39 35
24'4 boxes and barrels .. .................... 124 50
150 Pairs blankets, at $2.80 .......................................... 420 00

- - 5,599 31
-,A Ppelle, 656 Ibo. bacon, at 14c., $91.84; 1 doz. sacks,
t ' 5. ,.............,.............................................................................. 95 59

e lue Albert-
298 lbs. tea, at 75c., $1,573.50; 10,870 Ibs. sugar, at 25c.,

$2,717 50 .... ...... ........ .............................. 4,291 00060 Ibs., at 121e. ; 280 Ibs., at 12c............ ............. 103 60
3bd.evaporated apples, $40; 10 cords wood, $30. ......... 70 00

1 P, 300 lbs., at 18e; 120 lbs., at 20e ............................. 78 00
O aie handles, $5; 1 sheath and belt, $1.05 ............... 6 os

1e, $6.70 ; 2 hammers, $3.90 ............. ........... ........ 9 60
t kathewan-4,558 25

oZ. eanned meat, $36; 2j doz. canned fruit, $18.......... 54 00
21b tes, $4.50; 15 lbs. sugar, $3.75 . .......................... 8 25

12 lb. coffee, $1; 36 loaves bread, $4. 50................. ......... 5 50
I- Mutter, $4.80 ; i month's rent of warehouse, $10...... 44 80

idronton - - 112 55

18,618 lba. bacon, at 25c., $4,654.50; 6,915 lbs. corn beef,
l 0t' 30c., $2,074.50 .......................... 6,729 00
, 4 1

84 bag, at $7, $1,988; 79 bags, at $6, $474...... ... 2,462 00
4 S. tea, at 65C., $1,224.60; 28,382 Ibs. chop feed, at

. 425 ................................... ....... ...... ..... 1,650 32r ,70 lbs., at 25c., $1,687.50; 730 Ibs. beans, at 15c.,
310.50 .............................. ......... 1,797 00

bs. yeast powder, at 70c., $302.40; 4 doz. baking
'der, at $7.20, $28.80 ........... ................ 331 20'

200 Ib. Coffee, $10 ; 455 Ibs. dried apples, at 20c., $91.... 101 00
1,960 Catmeal, $20; 1,728 lbs. potatoes. at lie., $25.92 45 92

5 8salt, at 7ce., $137 20; 2 bris. salt, $30.................. 167 20
21 - pepper, at 50c., $20; 50 Ibo. oats, at 3c., $1.50.... 21 50

2a11, coal oil, $21; 30 Ibo. candles, at 35ce, $10.50.. 31 50
Iebs., at 25c., $ 3 0l Ibo., at 30c , $3.30 ............. 8 30

2 O ree, 96 boxes, at 30c. ; 32 boxes, at 35e............. 40 00
1 esks $20; 1 pair desk handles, 40c 20 40
a sre blanket, $6; 3 saddle blankets, $6.75. ,........... 12 75

625 e gles, $5.25; 3 hay forks, $3. ............................ 8 25
2 ten e sg, $245 ; 579 sacks, $86.85...................... 331 85

8 $60 ;1 reindeer skin, $4.. .... ....... ...... .......... 64 00
21 y* r e, $20.75; 6 ti kettles, $8.30................... 29 05
1 ds annel, $10.75; 80 yards duck, $24..............34 75
2 db print, 1.50 ; 2 do Turkey red, 60c.... .... 2 10
1 duck s 'te cotton, 50c. ; wool and braid, $1 50......... 2 00
2 &X $t $3; darning needles and twine, 37e..... ..... 3 37
a rde8,$.50; 3 butcher knives, $2.75.. ........................ 6 25
ils ai d 2 rasps, $2 ............... ... ........................ 3 00,25 Crews, $2.65; packing case, 25. ........ .......... 2 90

1 0 C ; 253 lbs. lead, at 10., $25.30..................... 25 55

cag Ilpowder, at 70c ..... ....................,........ ........... 105 00 4O 1alIga ...... -------îoso 14,036 16

$1.bacon, at 15C., $1,845.23 ; 600 lbs. beef, at 8c.,
4 ~ ' . . . .. - . . . . ..... 1,953 23

t47.rn beef, at 50c., $27; 991 tins meat, at 25c 1
~'4Oijê d in. ----. .... . . . . . ... 274 75

atisui wn, $6.00j doz. tins ox tongues, $5.101 il 10
8. $314.2at 12e., 592.50; 3,927J lbs. beans, at

•....................................................I 90670
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iSUBSIDIARY Statoment of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defr4
expenses, &.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY SUPPLIES-Continued.

GENCRUAL SUPPLIEs--COntinued. $ ets. $ets.

.At Calgary-
Bread, 2,119k Ibs., at 4c., $84.78; 3,514 lb3., at 31o., $122.99 207 77
823k1bs. cheese, at 25c., $205.69; 975î ibs. rice, at 10c.,

$97.58. . .................. . .. ... ....................... ........... 303 27
Potatoes, 8,525 Ibs , at 2jc., $213.14; 759 Ibo., at 2c., $15.18 228 32
Tes, 112 Ibs., at 65c., $72. 80 ; 1,7681 lbs., at 50e , $884.17 956 97
Sugar, 4,630k Ibs., at 15c., $694.53; 4991 lbs., at 12e.,

$62.40.................. ................ ............... 756 93
345J Ibs. coffee, at 50c., $172.55; 1,856 Ibe. flour, at 3c.,

$55 68 ..... ..... ....... ...... ...................................... 228 23
.194 Ibo. barley, $19.25; 362k Ibs. o$meal, at 6c., $21.73.. 40 98
6741 lbs. salt, at 5c., $33.72; 57J lbs. pepper, at 50c., $28.75 62 47
106 lbs. baking powder, at 50c., $53; 325 Ibs. butter, at

40c., $130........................................................... . .183 00
12J quarts molasses, $1.21; 40 lbs. wine biscuits, $3. ..... 9 21

6 Ibs. fiesh pork, $1.20; i can apples, 75e................. 1 95
1 box extract coffee, 75c.; 1 box extract meat, 75e ......... 1 50
7 bottles pickles, $5.25; 14 bottles Worcester sauce, $7. 12 25
6j doz. canned fruit and vegetables, $24.20; j doz. jelly, $3 27 20

406 lbs. eandles, at 35c., $142. Il ; 46J grosa matches, $46.50 188 61
Soap, 27 boxes, at $6, $162 ; 719 Ibo., at 1 Oc., $71.90 ......... 233 90

2 bs. Castile soap, 40e ; 1 lb. mustard, 75e .................. 1 15
3 quarts eweet oi, $3.50; 4 bottles salad oil, $3 ............ 6 50
1 doz. lime juice, $12; 28 lbs. tobacco, $28 ................ 40 00
2 do briar pipes, $21; 4 buffalo robes, $48.....,.............69 00

242 reamless sacks......................................................... 100 40
Overcoats, 5, at $11 ; 12, at $9 ................. ............. ..... 163 00
1 field glass, $20; 40 towels, $16............. ........................ 36 00
Felt hats, 28, at $2.50; 11, at $2.....................................92 00
42 pairs serge trousers, at $4, $168; 12 duck suite, $120 ...... 288 00
Riding trousets, 5 pairs, at $9; 15 paire, at $7 .................. 150 00
2 suite overalls, $25; 1 pair overall trousers, $1.50 ............ 26 50
6 suite underclothing, $24 ; 21 duck coats, at $8, $168 ....... 192 00
Socks, 2 pairs, at $ì ; . 15 pairs, at 50c............................. . 9 50
Gloves, 35 pairs, at $2.50, $87 50; 15 pairs, at $3, $45 ...... 132 50

do 2 pairs, at $2, $4; riding boots, 3 pairs, at $7.50,
$22.50 ................................................... . . ............. 26 50

Riding boots, 1 pair, at $7; 5 paire, at $6, $30 ................. 37 00
do 18 pairs, at $5.75, $103.50; 31 pairs, at $5,

$155 ........................................ 25850
Blankets, 16 pairs, at $10, $160; 27 pairs, at $8, $216......... 376 00

2 shirts, $5; 6 scarlet belts, $1.50............... ......... ......... 50
28 yds. scarlet merino,, $28; 9j yds. canvas, $2.33.. ......... 30 33
26 do cotton, $3.35; needles and thread, 80c.; tape line,

$2.75 ......... ........ ............ ... ................. . 6 90
372 oart covers, at $3.75, $1,395; 40 doz. axle grease, $80... 1,475 00
Coal oil, 15 galls., nt 70C., $: 0.50; 5 gails., at 60c.i $3....... .13 50
Wicks, 36c.; 10 chimneys, $1 50 ; oil can, $1.............. ...... 2 86
Lanterna, 4, at $1, $4; 15, at 75c., $11.25........................15 25
6 lantern globes, $2. 10 ; 2 lamps. $4.... ......................... .6 10
3 large tente, $75; 1 small tent, $18 ................................. 93 00
8 do flage, $16; 8 do flags, $10...... ................. 26 00
1 set scales, $15; 30 water fiasks, $30 ............................. .45 00
e bridles, $12 ; 3 rifle covers, $4 50.................................16 60
5 rifle slings, $3.75; 2 linches, $2 ......................... 5 75
Towels, 30, at $1, $30 ; 2, at 75c., $1.50 ........ 31 50
Rope, 336 Ibe., at 15c., $50 40; 480 lbs., at 20c., $96........... 146 40
Paint, oil and brushes .................................. 23 30
1 gall. rangoon oil, $4; j doz. castor oil, $1.50 .............. 5 0
3 doz. knives and forks, $7.50 ; 13 doz. spoons, $6.50. .... 14 00
74 do plates, $7.50; 9j doz. cups, $14 25 .................. 21 75
j do glass-coated plates, basins and saucers ............... .4 50

22 frying pans, $11 ; 7 tin pails, $5 25 ......... ................ 16 25
16 can-openers, $4; 1 doz. blacking, $1.75 ..................... 5 75
3 blacking brushes, $1.50; 5 galle. neatafoot oil, $12.50... 14 00
3 brooms, $1.50; 20 butcher knives, $10..... ............ il 50

2047
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IDIB81DARY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &c.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY AOMPANY SUPPLIE8-Continued.

GENERAL SUPPLIEs-CnClUd6d.
Àt $cts. $ cts. $Ctusj

3WlIung, 75c.; window glass and putty, 95c................... 1 70
1 PUdding dishes, $2.75; 3 bare pans, $1 05..... ................. 3 80
1 stePet, $2 ; coffee pot, $1.50; tin kettle, $1.50............... 5 00

, ,a 50c..; dipper, 25e. ; 6 bathbricks, 75e .............. 1 50
1eamp stove, pipes and elbows........................................ 9 65

L Ock and key, $2.50 ; curry comb and brush, $1.15........... 3 65
12ampblack, 40c.; twine, 20c. ; nails and tacks, $3.64...... 4 24
2 bandles, $4.20 ; 12 spades, $15. ............................. 19 20
SS inglg axes, $2; 3 saws, $5 ........................... 7 002 berewdrivers $1.80; 2 hammers, $2.25................... 4 05

&blaces and bits, $6 50; 2 augers, $2.75. ......... ............... 9 25
1 z. files $2.25; 3 chisels, $2 ..................... 4 251dra* knfe $1 &î ht12
s t $ ; 1 hatchet, $1.25........................ 2 25
1  ythe stones, 30c. ; 2 lbs. iron, 20e.................... ......... 0 50

tat aw, $2.25; 200 rounds ammunition, $6.... ......... 8 25
nery . . . .. .. 1305

- - 10,727 37
- - 35,129 23

.&t 9TH BATTALION.

bs. barley, at 4¼e., $3.02 ; 144 lbs. cheese, at 16c.,
18 d $23.04...... .......... .......................................... 26 06
36 do tea, at 35c., $6 30 ; 144 lbs. sugar, at 91c., $13.32... 19 62

do salt 72c. ; 2 lbs. pepper, 51e................................. 1 23
1 oil e at 35C., $8 40 ; 5 galls. oil, $2................... 10 40
1 doza, 85c. ; 6 lbo. candles, $1.26...... .....................- 2 11

"I . lamp ,icks ......................... ............... ,,............. 0 24

&tl. 10~IT GRENADIERS.
rilee Albert-

10 •bWorcester sauce, $3 ; 4 bottles pickles, $3 .......... 6 00
5 gal lcui'ts, '*3 ; 12 tins marmalade, $6 .................... 9 00

2 : -yr $12.50 ; 12 tins lemon sugar, $6.60...... ... 19 10
2 a., $.; 2 tins egg plums, $1.20 ..... . -................. 7 206 o imeuice, $50 ; 60 lbs. lard, at 75c., $45............ 95 00

got 's fruit salt, $7.50 ; 1 bottle essence orange,
crubb "''""". .

" ""
.

"
.

•
. 

--- .
------ '" •"-

. .
-- . . .  8 30lbbla nbrush, 60c. ; 1 enaffie bridle, $2.90 3 50

. 1 15ck paint, 60c. ; 1 padlock, 53c ......................... 1 10
At i e ; a ta e $3.25 ..................... ............... .......... 3 40 1 26

1 ipg,--- - 152 60

d®o. baey, at 4jc., 66c. ; 31 lbs. cheese, at 16c., $4.96. 5 62
4 do coffeat 35c., $l.36 ; 31 lbs. sugar, at 9½c., $2.87.... 4 23

at 3
5c., $1.81 ; salt, 16c. ; pepper, l1c. ..... 2 08

- - 1193
4t g 6 5

TH BATTALION. 164_53

au
d ee , $12 ; 10 lbs. butter, $4............................ 16 00

chewi, $7.20 ; 20 lbs. tea, $13.60.,.................. 20 8026 er tlr g tobacco, $9 ; 10 lbs. oatmeal, $1 ............ 10 00
39 anel shirts, $23; 20 pairs gambroon pants, $55. ...... 78 00

a , $40; 4 pairs drawers, $6.............. ..... 46 00
ar 5c., $27 t, at $4.50, $175.50 ; 42 pairs socks, at

I e............................... ..................... 202 80
S .75 ; 2 kettles, $2.90.................... ...... 6 65

s , $2. 1I2 ,,s o Ï5 1 fying pan, $1 ................. 25
1 d s basin 'i, water barrel, $7..†....................., 12 00
: doz ives a2 ; 40 lbs. castile soap, $12 ............. 14 00

bo' tira " forks, $2. 50 ; doz. teaspoons, $1.80.. 4 30
e, blae 1.g$120 doz. earthenware plates, $1.20. 2 40

)broom, 5oc.10 25
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8UBSIDiARY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &c.-Gontinued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY SUPPLIES-Continued.

65Ta BATTALIoN-Concluded. $ ets. $ ct. $ t

.At Edmonton-
7 lbo. nails, $1 05 ; stationery, $10 50 ........................... il 55
1 bottle horse liniment....................... ......... 0 75

437 75
.At Fort Cumberland, 110 lbo. lump sugar, iit 25c ......... ......... .... ............. 27 50
.At Grand Rapide-

18 lbo. nails, $2.70 ; 2 brooms, $1......................... ......... 3 70
i gross matches ...... ......... ......................................... 1 50

90Tu BATTALION. 520 470

At Prince Albert, 180 lbs. Myrtle Navy tobacco, at $1 ............ ..... ............. 180

91sT BATTALION.

.At Qu' Ap elle-
40 l. tea, at 45c., $18.17 ; 80¾ lbs. sugar, at 10e., $8.07. 26 24
20 do salt, 60c. ; Il lbs. pepper, 63e. ........................... 23
80 do beans, at 8c., $6 46 ; 60J lbs. apples, at 14c., $8.48. 14 94

969 do bread, at 71c., $72.67 ; 646 lb.. potatoes, ait 2c.
$16.15 ............... ...... . ...................... . 88 82

1 cord wood, $4 ; 1 doz. clothes lines, $3................... 7 o0
12 axe handles, $4.20 ; 6 lbs. nails, 36o.... .............. 4 56

-- 142 79
At Winnipeg, 1 ration of groceries..... ......... ,.................................... 45 00

"cA" &ÂND "B" BATTERIES.

At Prince Albert-
60 lb,. lard, $2250; 54 lb.. tobacco, $54 .......... ........... 76 50
Jumipers, 18, at $2; 88, at $1.0 ........... ...... .. ........ 182 80
Overall,. 8e pair,3, at $1.50; 12 paire, ac $1.30 ; 9 pairs, at

$1.10 .......................................... :........ 159 00
* lb,. ehocolate, $5.40 ; 44 lb.. rope, $15.40 .......... ........ 20 80
4 doz. bueketa, $j-70; 4 doz rivets, 60e ...................... 4 30

- 393 40
At Qu' Appelle-

6 bush. oas, at 90e............................................. 5 40
3 dq $1.12 (for Touehwood) ........................ 3 36

88 876

7,368 lbs. beef, at 17e., $1,252.56; 1,197J lb,. beans, at $8.36,
$100.09...................... .... ...................... 1,352 65

862J lb,. augar, at $15.29, $13187'; 145J lbo. tea, ai 44e.,
$6397 ..................................... ..... ... .. ,.195 84

9 lbs. sait, 57e. ; 23 lbo. pepper, $9 54.............. 10 
18-?ô Ibo. coffee, at $./0.68, $3.84; 4313 lb,. do at 655., $34.09 27 93

105 Ib candle, $2 7.14; 33 i l0.. apple., at $5.09.......... .32 23
10 do oatmeal, $1.65; 10 lb.p. soa biscuits, $.50 . ........ 3 15
21 do fl9 ui, $1,67 ; 606 lb.. potatoes, $10 ................. il 67

$600 do ice, $3 ; 13 cord. wood, $39 ............................. .42 0O
4 loads. hay, $30 ; 1 gro4 mal che, $1.20.................. 31 20

24 lb,. coarse sait, $J. 2 ; 25 soonges, $19 25 ................ 22 37
14 do Russet leather, $9.80 ; 3j M lumber, $131,25...... 141 OS

500 ft. scantling, $18.75 ; t keg nails, $9 75 ............. ...... 28 50
Ridirig boots, 2 pairs ai $9. 25; 1 pair ait $8. 75 ........ ....... .27 25

do 3 do 800;6 do 6.50............... 63 00
do i do 6.75 .................... .............. 6 75

Lumber, $17 50 ; sc ntling, $5.50 ..;i ........................... 23 00
1 double waggon, $150; 1 sett double harneas, $65 ......... 215 00
2 bush. eharcoal, $.. tovepipes, $2 55 ... ................ .3 65 >

10 lbo. horsehoe nails, $5; 10 lb . tallow, $2.50............ .7 50
73 ton bay, $8 21 ; ig. sweet ol, $5. ......... ........ 13 96

25 curry omb and bru.be.. ........... .......... ....... 45 0
24 mane comba, $7.20 ; 25 water brushes, $25. ............... 3 0
25 nose bag , at $1.75, $43775; ; 2 lanterna, $1.80............... 45 M

36
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S'1isIDIARY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &c.-Continued.

BUDSON BAY COMPANY SUPPLIES-Continued.

"A" 'ND "B" BATTRIE-Concluded. $ Cts. $ cts. $ Ctc.

lbs. beeswax, $12 ; 10 chain burnishers, $10................. 22 00
12k, i1 cotton, 60c. ; pipe clay, $1.50............................ 3 10

boxes aile grease, $3 ; tools and nails, $10.49............... 13 49
aterials for repaire to harness.................. ..... ............... 4 09

%PS, pitchers, &c., $5.90 ; brooms, pails, &c., $3.50........... 9 40
- - 2,>433 64

CAVALRY SCHOOL CORPS. - 2,835 80
4&t qu' &ppe}k

1,204 lbs. beef, at 20c., $240.90; 1,181J lbs. bread,at 10c.,
85 $118.15 ... .. .... .... ............ ..... 359 95
lb.read, at 7½c., $6.37; 226J lbs. biscuit, at 12c. $27.18 33 55

'a, 581 1bs.. at 60c., $34.83 ; 4E lba. do at 45e., $J.22... 37 05sugar, l16à lbs., at 15c., $17.42: 9Î lbs., at 10c., 99e ....... , 18 41
6 7 Ples, 88¾ lbo., at 16c., $14.19 ; 2j lbs., at 14c., 35o ...... 14 54
at Ib Potatoes, at 2le., $1.67 ; 17¾ lbs. beans, at 8c., $1.39 3 06

5 pe, 14c. ; 30 lbo. soa , $4.50 ................... 4 64
10 alls. coal Oil, at 75c., $3.75 ; anterns, $5.10............ 8 85

0 rds Wood . ........... .............................................. 42 00
- - ......... 521 15

GOVERNOR GENERAL's BODY GUARD.

1Ppe16e.
7 bEr bread, $11.60 ; 116 lbs. beef, $23.20 ......... ......... 34 80do tea, at 60c., $4 35 ; 14J lbs. sugar, $2.17..... 6 52

..... ........ 41 32
HALIFAX BATTALION.

1 barley, at 41c. $6.99 ; 328½ lb.. cheese, at 16c.,
il .5 ........ ......... .. ...................... .......- 59 53

82 % b tea, at 35c., $14.37 ; 328J Ibs. sugar, at 9*e., $30.37 44 74
lbaSalt, $1.64; 4¾ lbs. pepper, $1.15 ..... ................. 2 79

. COffee, at 35c ............ ......................................... 19 16
.............. 126 22

MIDLAND BATTALION.

rd apids, 6 pairs brogan boots, at $2.25 ...................................... 13 50

MONTREAL GARRIsoN ARTILLERT.

2 gIpeg--
do caeese, at 16c., $3.92 ; 3j lbs. tea, at 35c., $1.13 5 05

e Per it, 12,. ; 4¾ lbs. coffee, at 35C., $1.54 .............. 1 66
2 eo 10c ; 13 lbs barley, at 41C., 55e ..... ................... 0 65

Ougar, at 94e ......... ...... ....................-.. ... 2 44
- - .............

QUuEN's OWN RIFLES.
160. 5 N16% lbs. barley, at 4½c. 70c. ; 33¾ lbs. cheese, at

b '.. •...... ......... .......................... .................... 6 00Balt antea, at 35c., $1 46; 33J lbs. sugar, at 9je., $3.06.... 4 52
pepper, 2 9c. ; à½ lbs. coffee, at 25c., $1.93........... 2 22

1 Ionto... WINNIPUG LIGIGT INFANTRY.00ft
38 Pairser, $25; 2 water barrels, $15........ ......... 40 00Shetland pants, at $1.85, $70.30; 38 pairs under

122J lb, ba shirts, at $1.25, $47.50 ..................... 117 80
rley, at 4Ïc., $7.55; 355J lbs. cheese, at 16c.,
$56-82...... .28i do te $5.8.................................... ........ 64 37

8 do at 350. $10.04; 355½ lbs. sugar, at 91c., $33.84 42 88
37 do c f$1-78 ; 3 lbs. pepper, 76c.......................... 2 54

ee, at 3 5c., $13.12; 40 lbo. biscuits, at 5*c.,
l $2.20........... ... ... .... 15 32 , bee3 8 35

- . ........... 291 29
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EuBsIDIARY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY SUPPLIES-Continued.

WINNiPEG TRooP op CAVALRY.

&t Winnipeg-
34 Ibs. barley, at 4le., 14c. ; 6J lbs. cheese, at 16c. $L.02...
Tea, 27c. ; sugar, 21e. ; coffee, 37c.; salt and pepper, 5c....

WINNIPEG FIELD BATTERY.

At Prince Albert-
Bundry supplies to men ...................................................
575 lbs. beef, at 17e , $97.75; 100 lbs. bacon, $30.......

12 bags flour, at $8.50, $102; 15 lbs. soap, $2.70 .............
3 Ibs. mustard, $3.60; 40 Ibo. candles, $20.....................
2 do pepper, $1.25; 2 kegs syrup, $25..................... ....

36 do tobacco, $27; 2 boxes wood matches, $1.......
6 boxes wax matches, $2.22 ; 8 straw hats, $2........
2J cords wood, $7.50 ; 1 doz. axle grease, $3.........
6 whip lashes ........................................................

At Winnipeg-
Drugs and medical supplies ............................
Riding boots, 6 pairs, at $5.25, $31.50; 2 pairs, at $4.25,

$8.50 ........ ........ ......... .........................
8 kegs battery powder, $40; 26 black rubber sheets, $2.20,

$57.20 .......... .........................
3 doz. surcingles, at $14 25, $42.75; 20 yds. cod line, 35c..
4 pickaxes, $4.25; 2 wr' nches........ .. ......... ......
2 pairs farriers pincers, $1 50; J doz. gimlets, 38o... ........
4 axes, $3.84; 8 spades, $7.76................. ................ ......
3 nail hammers, $1.65; I hand hammer, 90c. .............
4 boxes axle grease, 50c. ; 1 qt. machine oil, 50c......., ......

40 lbs. castor oil, $5.20; 2, jack screws, $12 ..... . ...............
4 hand screws, $6; 60 lbs. lixel rope, at 9c., $5 40............

63 lbs. manilla rope, $8. 19 ; 32 lbs. cotton rope, 48............
2 augers, $2.80; 4 lbs. nails, 20e............... ....................
4 bed cords, $1.20; 12 sheet-iron ketties, $5.20................
4 frying pans, $1.30; 2 but chers' knives, 70c.....,............
2 doz. granite plates, $4.32; 2 doz. cups, $1.50.............

$ cts.

1 16
0 90

197 46
127 75
104 70

23 60
26 25
28 00
4 22

10 50
2 40

110 46

40 00

97 20
43 10
5 25
1 88

11 60
2 5
1 00

17 20
11 40
16 19
3 00
6 40
2 00
5 82

YORK AND SIMcoE BATTALION.

At Qu'Appelle-
88 Ibo. bread, $8.80; 88 lbs. meal, $17.60 ....................... 26 40
88 do potatoes, $2.20; 16½ lbs. apples, $2.64 ............... .4 84
11 do sugar, $1.66; Il oze. salt, 4c ........ .................... 1 70
5J do tea, $3.30; pepper, 10e...................................... 3 40

Screwdriver, 5Oc. cold chisel, 50c.......... ...................... .1 00
Hammer, $1 ; 15 lbs. nails, 75c................... .................. 1 75
2J yds. sheeting, $1.25; 6 yds. cotton, $1.20 ................... 2 45

At Winnipeg-
431 Ibs. barley, at 41c. $1.87 ; 87J lbs. cheese, at 16c., $14..
11 do tea, at 35c., $3 84; 87J lbs. sugar, at 91c., $8.09.
Salt, 43c. ; pepper, 30c. ; 14J lbs. coffee, at 35c., $5.12.......

SUPPLIED TO INDIANS.

.At Edmonton-
44 lbs. bacon., at 25c., $11 ; 75 lbs. flour, at 6c., $450.

2 cans corn beef, $1.20; 4 lb. baking powder, 35c..........
210 lbs. oats, $3, $6.30; 8 lbs. tea, at 65c., 5.20... ........
26 do sugar, at 20c., $5.20; 56 lbs. potatoes, at 1¼e., 84c.
16 do tobacco, at 75c., $12 ; 6 bunches matches, 12c......
1 tin pan, 60c. ; 4 slates, 50e.....................

15 87
Il 93

5 85

$ ets.

524 88

375 05

41 54

33 65

-- .... ... .

A. 1886

241G

899A
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%'81IARY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY OOMPANY 8UPPLIES-Contnued.

ALBERTA MOUNTED RIFLES. $ cts $ ets. $ ctS6

dr'nonton-
3 yde. duck, at 25c.. $8.75; twine, $1 ............ .............. 9 75
5 Ibo. butter, $2: 4¾ Ibo. cheese, at 30c., $1.43 ............... 3 43
4t do chewing tobacco, at 60c..................... ............... 2 85

...... 16 03
BoULTON'S MOUNTED INFANTRY.

210 lb,. bacon, at 14c., $29.40 ; 167 bq. biscuit, at 12c., $20.04 49 441 3 do bread, $1.30 ; 16 lbs. am, $4 .... ........... 5 30
C caddie M. N. tobacco, $12; 2 snaffle bridles, $5.......... 17 00

1 Pelbam bridle, $6.50; 1 common bridle, %1.50 ............. 8 00
Wool jackets, $12 ; 2 waterproof shee's. $11 ................ 23 00
Pairs stirrup irons, !8.80; 5 pairs jack straps, $9 ......... 17 80
COW-bell, 75c. ; 1 butcher knffe, 50c........ ................... 1 25
groS pain killer .... ................................................. 21 60

?te -..---.- 143 29
4t Cýe Albert-- 

132

1caddie tobacco, $18; 12 pairs blankets, $108 .................. 126 00
yds. sfroud. $t.50; stat ionery, $1.25 .......................... .ô 75

ger, $1; nails, 30c.; hinges, 30c .......... ....... 1 60
- -----. 133 35

DENNIs' INTELLIGENCE CORPS. 276 64

Albert, 6 yds. red flannel, at 55o. ..................... ...... ...... ..... ,..... ................. 3

EDMONTON VOLUNTEER COMPANY.
Maronton..

Ib. tea, at 65e , $23.50 ; 1,037e lbs flour, at 9c., $9 3. 3 7  116 87
a o 1ugar, at 20c., $37.74; 97ï lbs. potatues, at lic.,

28 d $12.13 ........ .............. ......... ..... ...... ...... 49 87
12 Cofee, at 50c., $'4.02; 621bs. ric, at 20c., $12 57 26 59
1 do biscuit, at 15e.. $1 80; 8 Ibs. apples, at 25c., $2... 3 80

do bseon, at 25e., $J.75; 5 cans corn beef, at 65c.,

do $3.2 .. ...... ...... ...................... 7 00
ab Yeast powder, 17c.; } lb. bsking powder, 35c..,... 0 52

Sdo alt, at 8c , $3.12; 1, lb. pepper, at 40c., 64c.... 3 76
d tIn ustard, 9 0c. : 1 lb. corn starch, 25c.................. 1 15

2 ln luneb tongue, $2.40; 1 can ham, 25c ................ 2 65
t3 1s. raisns, SOc. ; 2 bottles essence lemon, $1 ............ 1 50

O '0ts, at 4c., $3.32; 305 lbs. chopped feed, at lic.,
pik $4 8 . ....... .. ... .......... 7 90

Ib and fail, $28.25 ; lumber, $308 5... ......... 337 00
n rope, at 25c., $2.38; 9j yds cotton, at 12§c., $1.20. 3 58

gantUps. at 25C.. $9 50 ;' 36 tin plates, $3.60. ............... 13 10
3 3ds. coal oil. $6; 35 lbs. gunpowder, at 75c., $26.25... 32 25
5 de- hollan d, $1 05 ; 1 yd. muslin, 30e........................ 1 35

ohalkl' flannel, $2.50 ; buttons. 56e........................ ....... 3 06
1 ai e, 

20
c. ; coffee-pot. $1 50 ................................... 1 70

i l $1 ; i buteber knite, $1....................................... 2 00
l p t es $7.26 ; I0 pans, $(.10. ................................... 13 35
1 P moe,, $ 1.80; 1 granite basin. 75e ..... .............. 2 55

2 si ne,0el ; I meat saw, $1.25...... ............ 1 45
d ,. 60. ; 2 yds. white flannel, $1.20............... .1 80

50rthing. 5 3c.; thread, 15..... ........... ......... 0 68
l a ; i auger, $1 ; nails. 19C. ... .................... 2 69

akes 40C.; 4 towels, 5Oc ............................ 0 90
hes cap, 2 5c.; looking glass, 25 ... ................ 0 50

.......... ....... ........... ....................... ......... 0 79
- - ........... 640 36

4 oos, MOUNTAIN SCOUTS.

Pelle, Medicines, $18.75; 4 axe-haudles, $1.40 ......... ... ..............-........ 20 15

39
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SUBSIDIARY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,OO0 to dfl
expenses, &.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY SUPPLIES-Continued.

MAJOR PERRY's SCOUTS. $ cts. $ 6tW. 5
At . dmonton, 1,155 lbs. oats, at 3c....................................... .................. ..............

STEsIE'S SCOUTS.

At Edmonton-
25 pairs blankets, $125; horse shoeing $35...... ................. 160
Camp supplies ..................... 42 63

ST. ALBERT RIFLE 00.

At Edmonton--
45 pairs blankets, at $3.50, $157.50; 50 lbs. powder, $32.50. 190 00
Shot and caps, $10; moulds, $1.59; seamless sacks, $7.20. 18 70..

STURGEON RIVER ROUE GUARD.

At Edmonton, 500 rifle cartridges.......... ................................ ...

SCOUTS AND CoURIEBs.

At Edmonton-
92 lbs. flour, at 6c., $5.52; 131 lbs. bacon, at 25c, $32.75. 38 27
12 ]bs. tea, at 65c., S7 80; 16 lbs. sugar, at 20c., $3.20 ...... il 0
17 lbs. sugar, at 25c., $ 25; 2 lbs. sugar, at 40c., 80 ....... 5
9 cane corn beef, at 60c., $5.40; 4 cans corn beef, at 65c.,

$ 46 ................. ,.... . .. ...... .................. ... 00
8 tins lunch tongue, at 80c., $6,40 ; 4 tins pigs' feet, at 65c.,

$2,60 . ............ ......... . . ................. 00
3 cane ham, at 35c., S.05 ; 3 lbs. baking powder, $2.10.... 3 15
1 bag sait, 40c. ; yesbt rowder, 70c................ ........ ......... 1 10
10 lbs. biscuit, at 10c , $1.50; I bot. coffee,40c ........ 1 90
Matches, $1.23 ; 4 kel ties, $4.50 ...................................... 73
b tea cups, $1 25; 2 tea belis, $2 .............. .................... 3 25
Knives and forks, $1 ; 4 tin plates, 55o ............... ............ 1 5
43 Ibs flour, at 8c , $3.44; pepper, 26e.............................. 3 70
1 fry pan, $1 ; 1 bread pan, $1 ................ ..................... 200
3 wash basins, $2; tin pail, 90c...... ................ .............. . 2 90
692 lbs. chop feed, at. lic., $10.37; 1,200 lbs. hay, $9 ........ 19 37
255 Ibs. oats, at 3ç., $7.65 ; 4 lb candles, 20o ............... .7 86
2 cotton bags, 40c. ; i tow!~s, 60e..... ............................. 1 00
Curry comb and bruzh, $1.75; soap, 30e ....... ................. 2 05
20 lbs. bail. at 20e , $4; 25 lbs gunpowder, at 6àc., $16.25. 20 25
Gun caps. $1.44; 10 1b9. pitch, $3...................................4 44
If lbs. iail, 38c ; li yds. flirnneî, 75e ...................... 1 13
1 blanket, $4.50; lahor on canoes, $2.................. ..... .. 50
2 canoes, at $25, $50; borse, bridle and halter, $150 ......... 20 0
Pati L. Larocque-5 days' courier, $25; 1 saddle, $10 ....... 5 0
F. Smith, for 2 borses lo5t on conrier service.....................275 0
Horse hire, $10; carryirg de-patches, $6........... ..... ..... 16 00)

TRANSPORT SERVICu.

At Winnipeg-
200 wtàgg-.n covers (for Moose Jaw)................... ......... 950 00 I67S
2 blacksmiths' outflîs (ýwift (jurrent) ......... ................ 214 35
869Î bush. oats, at 55e.......................................... 493 15

At QUI Appelle-
2 montha, 27 daya' use of stable, at $35 ... , ........... 101 51

tons looBe bay, at $20 ...................................... 100 00) 275Stationery, $25 ; padlock and staples, 75o .. . .... 25 76

38 27 2
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S3IDIARy Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2, 00,000 to dofray
expenses, &c.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY SUPPLIES-Concluded.

TRANSPORT SERvIcE-ontinued. $ cts. $ ets. $ ct.

irince Albert-
47 days' rent of warehouse ......................... ,.............. 47 00
8tabling 3 horses, 4.7 days, at 25e ......... .................. ........ 35 25
1 eamag $ ; 3 bush. oats, $4.50.. ...... ... ..... 9 50

amp kettie, $1; 1 tea kettle, $4.75........................... 5 75
ain cups au plates, $2.07; 6 granite plates, $2.40.......... 4 47

is, 7 5c. ; tea pot, $1.60............. .............................. 2 3$
2 gairs kuives and forks, at 50e , $2; 2 table knives, $Z.70 4 70

2 Plate dessert forks, $2.20; 2 lbs. cheese, $1 .............. 3 20
12 8 . sugar, 50c. ; j lb. tea, 37c...... ............. .. ...... 0 87
2 . s- SOia biscuits, $2.40; 2 lbs. fruit biscuits, 70c. ........ 3 10
3 tins chicken, $3.75; 3 tins turkey, $4.50 ........... ....... 8 25
6 !"a sardines, $2.25; 2 cotton bags, 50e......................... 2 75

'n Jam , $3 ...... ...... .................................................. 3 00
130 19

Scows, FLAT BoATs, &c. 2 014 94

1 uber, 42,888 ft., $1,435.42; 7 pieces, F7.. ..................... 1,442 42
e scow, $260 ; material and labor for targets, $6....... :466 00
8 s. oop iron, $18 75 ; ironwork, $28.63..................... 47 38

Pith,1,800 lb.., $180; 347 lbs. rope, at 35c., $86.75. ......... 266 75
186 86 1bs., at 30c., $85.80; 10 galls. tar, $30............. 115 80

0s au, at 40c., $74.40l; iron, 2 Ib., 40e ...... ,. ...... 74 80
4er,$2;file, 25e ............................... .. 2 25

40 lb. bacon, at 25c., $7.50; 100 lbs beef, at 25e , $25..... 32 50
25 beef, at 20c , $8; 130 lbs. flour, at 9c., $11.70 ........ 19 70
20 lb . Our, at 8c., $18.80; 429 lbs. potatoes, $6.04........ 24 84

. Sugar, at 20c., $4; 481 lb.. sugar, at 25c., $12 07... 16 07
Slbs. tea, at 65c., $3.08; 4 lbs. coffee, at 50c., $2......... 5 08
Io2. baking powder, at 70c., $2.10; 14J lbs. rice, at
bc., $2.90 ........ _ ........ .......... ........ 5 CO

5 lbs. apples, $1; 10 lbs. apples, at 25c., $2.50.......... 3 50
b5ar .urrants, $1; 5 lbs. raisins, $1.25......... .......... 2 25

oap rd, 45e. ; salt and pepper, 90c......... ................. 1 35
Cott c. ; Jam, 25c............... ...... . 1 00

ish '25c.;andles, 20e. ; matches, 8c....... .............. ... 0 53
0 . au, ;washpan, 50oc......... .. ............. .. ......... l. 503 ket, $ .50; 15 plates, $1.88....... .............................. 4 38

"peris, $3.75; fry pan, $1........................... 4 75a ll a ding boatmen................................... .............. 40 00and screws, $2.41; hinges, 25c. ; latch, 15c............. 2 81
.............. 2,380 6

Total Hudson Bay Company Supplies............... ...... ... 48,970 63

BANK OF MONTREAL.
Og drafts ou the Hon. the Minister of Militia and

pefene commission on drafts 4-
P days, nt. $960,000 .............. ................................. 600 00Y rterest, at 7 per cent., on draft No. 6 ($250,000).. 383 60
tou dr do 7 ($250,000. 527 45

d 0 raft No. 8 at 30 days ($250,000).............. 1,917 80
do 9 do (1250,000)....... ..... 1,917 80

0 dayS e o 10 do ($100,000).................... 767 1'%
rest on draft No. 10, at 7 per cent................ 383 5-

- -.........-.... 6,497 3Z

55,4679
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SuBusiDIAaY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,0 00 to defraf
expenses, &c.- Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS.

STAFF AND OFFIcERS. $ e&. $ cts.

Depot end Transport Clerks, Winnipeg............... ......... ......... ......... 425 50
do do Edmonton........ ................... ...... 416 00
do do Calgary......................... .................. 120 50
do do Fort Pitt.................................. .................. 148 00
do do Saskatchewan............. ............ ..... 108 00

Labor and watchmen, Edmonton.................... ........ ......... 80 25
do Qu'Appelle........................................ .................. 99 48
do Fort Pitt ........... .,............................. ... ,.............. 3 12

Rent of offices and warehouses, Qu'A ppelle.......................................... 355 85
do do do Station........................ 200 00
do do Troy..... .. ..... .................. ..... 191 40

Office furniture, &c., Edmonton........ .................................. 25 Co
do Qu'A ppelle........ .................................................. 7 50
do do Station............... .................. 18 90

Stationery, Calgary.... ................. 3.. ....... ......... . ... 40
do Trey........... .... ...... ..............- ........ ..... 14 90
do Qu'Appelle Station......... ... .................... ...... ..... ..... 1 95
do Edmonton............ ....................... il 00

O. P. R. Tel. Co., >782.73; G. N.-W. Tel. Co., $1.42........................ 784 15
10. P. Ry., freight. $31.38; Donm. Exp. Co., $7.70..... ...... ...... .... 319 0
P. G. Laurie, Winnipeg, advertising.................................. .1 60
F.Qliver, Edmonton, printing $15; advertising, $?.55...................... 17 r.
Calgary lerald, printng, $307.50; advertising, $9.40.... ........... ...... 316 90
Regina Leader, printing....... . .............. ......... ......... 49 00
Major Entler (with >laj.-Gen. btrange) 42 days' pay, at $5 90................ 24760
Rev. J. McDougall, Morleyville, 77 days as interpreter and guide 308 00

do do 77 days horse hire......... ...... 77
do do Services as chaplain............... 00

- - 435 00
Rev.JCanon McKay, Cnmberland, interpreter and scout........... ......... 1 0
J. Rutherford 62 days waggon master.................................. 186 00
Qu'Appelle falley Farming Co., 3 borses .......... .... ........ ........ 725 00
P. &timson, High River, 2 horses, with saddles, &c........ ................. 425 00
J. Ellis, Calgary, 2 horses.................................................................. 275 00
Geo. Murdock, Red Deer-

3 saddles, $195; 3 bridles, $12 ...... .............................. .20700
50 belts and trogs, $100; 2 pairs blankets, $12........... ..... 112 0O

1 doz. gun straps............... ................................. ...... 6 00

B. McGillvray, Edmonton, 1 saddle ............................................. 35 00
M. Cook ao 1 do ....................................... 16 00
Brown & Curry do 1 bridle...... .................. ..... .................. S 00
J. B. Mlliken. Qu'Appelle, 4 baddle girths, $4; 2 curry coubs

end brushes, $2.50 ............... ................................. 6 50
J. Looly, Edmonton, repairing straps................................................. 2 50
Curiy Bros., dwift Current-

4 pairs blankets, $24; stationery, $1.15......... ............... .25 15
Hardware, $3.25; broom, 80e. ............ ............... 4 û5
Lard.......................................... 2 25

. . 131 45
W. Byers, Calgary, horse shoeing. ...................................... 25 0
J.Mcwen, Qu'Appelle do........... ....... ...... ................. 2 25

els and forage, Horse FBi11 Plains....................... ................ 28 00
do Saskatchewan....... ................. 20 00
do Troy............................ .................. 15 00
do Edmonton. ............................... .......... 18 00

J. Walter, Edmonton, 1 kiff............................................ 740 00
. Congdon, Saskatchewan, 1 skiff.... ................................. 30 0o

Reparing waggo, &c., at Saskatchewan................. ................. 22 00
W. D. Hxirst, rew.ard for repairing w histle of "Northcote,"

under ire a Batoche.................................... . 50
&L J. Donaldson, Saskatchewan-

Warehousing 1,000 bush. oats............................,25 00
.da. team hire............ 8 00

3 3300



40 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 1886

'baIIARY Statement ot Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000, to defray
expenses, &.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS-Continued.

STAFF AND OFFIcERs-Continued. $ ete $ eta. cta.

Rn & Co., Calgary, material for blinds ............................ .2 00
Sowen, Calgary, 1 tent, $12; backing map, $1.50. ... ................ 13 50
Player, Calgary, SupDly Officer, travelling and sundry

flice expenses . ............................................ 47 80
Zance of telegrams, &c., at Calgary. ....... ............ 13 60

.OuOleau, conveying Dr. Kennedy and party from Swift
ulutàlrrent to Battle ford ...................... .... ........ 40 00

"eeying General Laurie to South Branch ............. ............. 2 00

Wismer, Troy- 4200
Bo0 Stove and pipes................ ...................................... 6 90
2 desPatch boxes, $8; 1 pail, 60c. ................................. .8 60

Rgals. coal oil, 80c. ; 1 four scoop, 40c....... ............. .1 20

Caswel, Troy- - 17
ardware, $4.25; 1i cords wood, $6 ..................... ......... 25

2%amPs, $2 ; 2 galle. oil, 80c ...... ........................... 2 80
le Wp -g 13 0lker, algary, lumber...... ........ .................. .... 144 92

ilholland, Qu'Appelle Station-otse hire, i days.................................................... .700
re) J. Anderson, to Qu'Appelle and back ...................... 4 00

4 Colonel Forrest, to Troy....................................... .2 00
te,~ . 13 0e

hk'"918, Qu'Appelle Station, 3.cords woDd. ...............................
VIl& Davis, Qu'A ppelle, corraling horses ......... ......................... 9 00
S'hitehead do 1 day with team....... ................................ 3 00

Eltnpey, Leopold, needles and twine, $1.50; letter clip, 50c................. 2 00
'orarder, Winnipeg, cartage........... ..... ................................... 62 00

Il. Fi. eral Strange, 1 pair top boots .................................. 8 00.drug, &c............... ..... 17 75

Q. HOSPITAL AND MEDICÂL SERVICE.

to0.R &<Co. Calgary, 2 paire blankets, $1,3.00 ; 20 yde
S$2.50 ............. ................. 15 50

e, Calgary, 40 days' labor, $40.00 ; oatmeal, 75e .................. 40 75
11 Veflwart, Calgary, 116 pinte milk, $5.80; 10 iba. oatxneal,

6 30
R2 tearey2 Rdmonton-

eanned fruits and veget ables ........................... 18 80
d *vinegar, $1.00 ; 2 doz. eggs, $1.00 .......... ......... 2 00
<.,IInilk $1.20 ; jam and jelly, St. 15.............. ......... 2 35

al| 
13 0

~PS& pIate3 $4.20; tin Olishes, $1.60................ ...... 5 80
a .,tub, $2.0. ................. 2 50 449

- 33 5
e)URI& Co., Edmonton, inedical supplies .................. 416 00

. Win do 2 medicine c0 40 00
]w on do drugs............................. 17 50

Ortaldk do burial expenees of A. Mc-e i.y lightning........ ............... 9 08

stove pipes and elbowe, $1.60................5 6 30, $220- kettie, $1.25. ............................. 3 45

~aeel -L il..................... ........... 85

als Con, E dt .................. .......... .... 17

e o ; halardw2 ar lanket.$. .00..;..20 ...yds5

lo i u ................................ ....................... ....... 0

.Y Iloiel, algroy, 0dy'lbr 4.0;otel 5..

50ry -Wart agay 11 pits milk, $58000lb.otel

Vr2b t1F Carey, ; Edmonton-5 5

u gÒ k c an d towel ...... adeg bl.................................3 03
- 91 48
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SUBSIDIARY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $3,300,0O0 to deft
expenses, &c.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS-Continued

HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL SERvice-Concluded. $ ets. $ cts

Baker & Lee, Moose Jaw-
Provisions, $27.05 ; soap and candles, 45e...... ................. 27 50
Castor oil, $75c. ; matches, 50c ........ . ................ 1 25
Cups, plates, &c., $2.30; lantern, $125 ................... 3 55
Oil, 25c. ; 3 sacks, 45c.....,. ............................................. 0 70

- - 33 00
E|. M. Robinson, M9ose Jaw-

Provisions, $10.19 ; towel and matches, 25c....... ....... 10 44
4 pairs blankets, $12.00 ; cups, &c., $1.60 ......... .............. 13 60

- 24 04
A. S. Empey, Leopold, cook stove, $13.50 ; 36 yds duck, $9.24 ....... ........ 22 74
Love & Raymond, Troy, 3 doz. lemons.......... ........ ......... 3 .. ... G....
L. Lan is do 1 cord wood .................................... .................. 300
G. H. . Bulyea do 206 Ib3. bread, at 6c ..... .................................... .12 36
L. W. Mulholland, fare, Dr. Wright, to Fort Qu'Appelle. ....................... .2 O0
O. Gibson, Qu'Appelle Station, 16 lbs. bread......... ........ .................. O 96
Curry Bros , Swift Current-

1 Winchester rifle and ammunition ,... ........... ........ 32 00
2 rubber blankets, $5.00 ; 30 knives and forks, $8.00......... 13 00
3 apoons, $1.00 ; 6 ladles, $1 50........................ ..... ......... 2 0
1 lb. butter, 35c. ; 4 tins fruits, $1.30............ .................. 1 65

f. W. Trett, Calgary, 1 horse.........................................................200 GO
J. Lineham do do ............... . ............................. ....... 150 GO
A. 0. Osborne, Edmonton, stationery ........................................... 2 GO
.A.McDonald & Co. do 1 bath tub... ..... .......... .................. 4
M. A. Walker do sewing can vas for stretchers........ .. ............ 2
'T. W elsh, Troy, 114 quarts milk ................. ......................... .................. il 40
A. V. White head, Troy, 9 c rd3 wood ...... ............................ ......... ......... 22 50
North-West Coal and Navigation Co., 1 four-horse team.. .................... 600 G0
J. C. Price, Troy, repairing stretchers............ .......................................... il GO
Wm - Hallett do scrubbing hospital. .......... ..... ,.... . ....................... 4 0
R. W. Caswell, Olarke's Jrossing, 35 days' horse hire for

messengers..... ............................................................... ............... . 15750

GENBSÂL SUPPLIES.

Gallaglier Sans & McGrogor, Winnipeg, 15,7754 lbs. beef, at
17C ...................................... ..................... ............... 2,681 83

Mahaffy & (Jlinskill, Winnipeg, 1,200 Ibo. beef, at l7c .......................... 204 GO
A. El. Sayers, Winnipeg, 1,2:)0 Ibs. beef, at 17e ................... ......... ..... 204 0O
Crswfoid& Robinson, Troy, 385 bustiels potatoes ......................... 385 00
S. Parrish C (o., Calgary-

4,600 Ibo. potatues, at 24c........ ............................. 115 00
50,000 1ba. oats, at 2j ....................... ............. 1,260 0O

-- 1,365 00
J. Sinclair, Calgary, 60,00 lbs. oats, at 2 t ............... ......... ...... 1,650 GO
Il. G. Baker & (Jo., Calgary-

5 p airs blankets, $Z~8 75 ; 3,259 lbs. rops, $651.80 ...... ..... 690 55
288 Ibs. myrtie navy tobacco, at 58oe........ ....... ......... 167 04

92 Ibs. chewing tobacco, at 45e ............ «............ ...... 41 40
à cases axle groase, $28.75c. ; 2 lanterns, $2 ................ 30 75

-- 919 74
T. 0. Power C (o., Calgary, 6,1l98 Ibs. beef, at 13c ... . . .... . ...... 805 74
O. G. King & <o., Calgary, 98J Ibs. iiam, $19.70 ; 175 Ibo.
,* tcoffee, $78. 75 ....... .. ........ ......... ............................ 98 45

P. Quirk, Caigary, blacksmiths' outflt........................... ..... ..... ..... 54 GO
'T. Mfugh, CJalgary, 24 tons hay, at $121..... ............... 1................. 288 GO0
A. G. McDouald, Calgary, 3 tons bale.i hay ................... ........ ............ 60 00
Gay tte & Araott do 353 meals.............. ......... ......... ......... 179 O0
J. Walker do lurnber ........................................... 12 90
,&.'B. Shelton do 10 flags .. .................. ........ ... .......... 5 60
Leeson & 8cott, Calgary-

23 feeds of hay .............. ................. .................. 575
6,944 Ibi. oats (at Blindman's River> at ý8c .................... 555 52

56127
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eJII8IDIARY Statement of Experditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &c.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS-Continued.

GENERAL SUPPLIEs-Oontinudd
nis, Calgary, 3,900 lbs hay ....................

Gibb & Co., Calgary, 100 Ibo. rice............... ................

r& Grant, Calgary-
truck, $15 ; ammunition, $14.75 ...................
galvanized iron box, lettered .... .... ........................

Jalp supplies and general hardware...............................
& Qôté, Calgary, cleaning rifles....... ......................... .........

McuDougall & Co., Edmoaton-
a bushels oats, $450; 13 sacks Jour, $117................

do potatoes, $50; 32 sacks, $16..... , ......... e.........
gallons coal oil $25; 2 oil cana. $5 ..........................

1 & Curry, Edmonton-
119 Ibs. baking powder, at 70c...... ..... ... ................
10 iba. hops, $8; l doz. canned meats, $10.50....... .........

6 axes, $13.50; 3 gross matches, $.80............... ........

& Carey, Edmonton-
6 kgs gunpowder, at $12.50 ..... ..............................

4 b0l"Es Winchester primers................. ....... , .................
34 busbels oats, $17 ; 170 Ibs. beans, $20 40.......................

doz baking powder, $21.60; matches, $3 75.................
do canned fruits andvegetables......,.....,...............

25 j ck ondensed.milk ............................................
-cis ....... .......................................... .....................

25ecauley, Edmonton, beef, 5,653 Ibo., at 20c. ; 1,024 Ibo., at

bare , Edmonton, 36 bushels potatoes, $36 ; 38 bushels

erso Edmonton, 28J bubels oats, $35.62; 14 sacks,

a .ey, Edmonton, horse shoeing...... .... ......... ...........

- buase do 12 loads wood . ..............................
rie 0 barley, at Edmordon, at $1.................................Colee, 20 bushels oats, at $1 . . ....... ... ..................
.J. an, Edmonton, 28 bushels oats, at $1.25...........
kecar do 1 ton bay.................

-Kelly ley do 60 bushels potatoes...............
Collin do 21 sacks for barley ........... ... ........

Es do hauling water......... ................. ........

4.635 bson, Edmonton--
2,248 d s. crushed feed, at 2½c...... ........ ...........................
1,958 o barley, at 2c............... ..... ........ .......... ,

do oats, at 3c ... ........ ..................................
7 do horese-sboe nails, at 30e .... , . .................. ...........

262 d horse-shoes, at 16c............ .................
1 do n ils, at 10c............ ...................... .........
1eet Platform scales ............ .... . .....................

asp .~.................... ..............................................

16s, Fgdmonton-
65 ettles, $35 50; 17 fry pans, $17....... ...........
73 ZP $16.25; 75 plates, $11.25....... ......................
2 r'e iand forks, $29.40; 6 pans, $9............................

eCtore, with pans .......................................

hoe &Looby, Edmonton-

s............,............... ...................

$ ets.

28 75
1100
14 30

567 00
66 00
30 00

83 30
18 50
18 30

112 50
6 00

67 40
25 35
48 50
4 50
7 20

..... ...... ......

.. .............

............. .....

. . .. .. ... .... .. .. .

,......... .. .......

......... .........

......... .........

.... .............

.... ...... I.....

115 88
44 96
58 75
15 00
il 36
26 20
45 00
0 50

50 50
27 50
38 40
6 00

107 50
6 75

54 05
45 00

663 00

120 10

271 45

1,386 60

74 00

39 12
82 75
72 00

555 70
20 00
35 00
15 00
60 00
10 50
15 00

317 65

122 40

$ 6ts,

114 25 L

Sessional Papers (No. 50.)
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'SUBSIDIARY StatOment of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defrs1
expenses, &.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS-Continued.

GENERAL SUPPLIEs--Continued. 3 cîs. $ cts.

L. Larocqu-, ledrmonton, 2,200 lb,. bay ...... ................. .. .
J. Mewbort, Fort Saskatchewan, 50 bush. oats, at $1.35. ...... . ... 67 0
K. Schultz, Fort Saskatchewan, 75 bush. oats...... .. ............ 25
B. MeKenzie, Red Deer, 800 Ibo. beef, at 15c.............................. 120 0
R. W. McClelan, Red Deer-

Use of field for grazing, 1 day......................................... .10 0
2î cords wood...........................................18 00

33 sacks. ................................... . ...... 12 00
- 38 00

J. B. L. Smith, Lone Pine, 12 meals...................... .............. ,, 67 50
Y. Lucas, Pece His, hay........... ............... ................ 104 20
H. McDougall, Prince Albert, baking 2,000 lbbread........................ 40 00
J. D. McCail do 1 649 Ibo. hay, at 18e ... ........ ................ 296 82
A. J. Staiker, Clarke's Grcssing, 175 Ibs. bread, at 10e .......................... 17 50
A. McDonald, 102 bush. oats.........................................................102 00
J. No, 12 bush. potatoes............ ........... . . .... 12 00
e. Spence, Victoria, 700 Ib. beef ................... .... ,................ 140 00
A .ickanow, Bear's illr, 500 17. potatoe a ........ t10................. 20 0
A. W. colpman, 1 doz. canned vegetables. .......... .................................... 5 00

9THl BÂ&TTÂLION, QUEBEo VOLTIGEURS. - - 1

1,826 meals at algary, at ......... ..... ..................................... ......... 913 00
Bed n for officer i at Calgary, 9, at 0ec .................................... ,.......... . 4 0

0. . King & Go., Gatzary-
Straw hats, 51, at c. ; 88, at 15e..................................38 70
24 helmets, $60; i ydd s eetable. ................................. 60 19

5 yds. bine de laine, $1.25; 2j yds. Turkey red, 63c ..... I 88
Butter, 84 lbs., at 30c. ; 61 lbs., at 25e .............. ......... 40.45
270 Ibo. rice, at 74e.; 50 ibe. pipe clay, at 25e.......... ....... 32 75

6 doz. corn beet, at $4.6O; 10 yds. canvas, at 25c.. .... 29 80
Wrapping paper, $1.80; twine, 25c .. ......................... 2 05

20 52
1?. J. Glaxton, Calgary-

Bread, 2,823 Ibo., at 44e.; 9361 Ibs., at de ..................... 173-85
75 Ibe. biscuits, at 16e .......................... ........ ......... 12 0

-- 185 85
A. 0. Sparrow, Calgary, 2.5241 ibe. beef, at 12 . .. ............... ...... 302 94
J. S. Gibb & Go., Galgary, 4 doz. corn beef...... ......... ........ - 24 00
I., G. Baker à Co., supplies for trip to mountains ......... ......... .......... 60 00
e. W. Trott, Calgary, drugu ............................................. 67 85
dGeo. Murdochi do 1 set buggy harneess............................... 45 GO
l. Yarlette do 1 coffin ana case........................ ......... ......... 27 00
A. Lake do cleanig brrack...................... 12 00
'Wm. Byers do 70 Ibs. epikes, $10. 50; blacksmithing, $5 ................ 15 50

8Dominion Express Co., express ......... ................................. 8 30
?elegrams and cartage At Galgary .......................... 18 00
Curry Bros., Swift current, 9 yds. cotton, 90.; 1 ham er, 80e.. ............... .1 70
C. P. R. Tel. o., telegram at Gleichen ................................... ......... 86
P'. Beaupré, Gleichen-

3 bottes syrup, $3; 2 bottes vinegar, 50e .................. 3 50
4 be. botter, $1.60; 4 doz. eags, $1 ......... .. ......... .. 3 20
2 bot7ie lime juice, $1.50; lemons, 25 ................... 32 75
6 bottes pain killer, $1.50; caudies, 15 . at 25...... 1 65

13 plug2 tobacco, $3.25 ; 2 tins lobsters, c...................... 3 75
Goal oiu, 40e.; matches, 25e ...................... ......... 2 065
600 Ib . hay, $9; 115 2bo. bran, $3.45 .bef a ..................... 12 45

26 95
G. Weale, G rowfoot, 921 meals, $203.25 cor uel be d coal o.. , $8.. ............... 238 25
J. Smith, High River-

13 WTeals, $6 50; forage, $2.25........................................ 8 75
Ferrige xpres o.................................................... 59 50

4R. K. Rnnefik, Mosquito ree, 38 mesi, $19; horse feed, $16................. 35 00
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LbSIDIAlY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,00 to defray
expenses, &c.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS-Continued

65T BATTALION. $ cts

all & Co., Edmonton-
ong boots, 4 pairs, at $8, and 2 pairs, at $6............

70 Pairs pants at $10, $t20; 59 pairs socks, at 60c., $35.40,
"8ta underclothing, at $4 ............. .............

towels......................................

God, Edmonton-
pulouth's rent of furniture, $5; 1 large lamp, $4...............

ates, cups, saucers and dishes ..... ........ .................

.Curry, Edmonton-
8 Pairs pants, $13; 33 pairs socks, at 60c , $19.8S............

28 lbs. tobaec, at 75c., $21 ; stationery, $6 ..... ...........

borne, E dmonton, stationery.....................................
McK es . do 1 bag turnips ........................... ...

.aie do 105J Ibo. bread, at 12jc.........
. 11ald & Co. do 2 doz. canned vegetables ...............
ipp do 12 lbs. leather, $12 ; repairing ac-

St. j coutrements, $6 50 ...............
r& 'curry do 3 chairs ..... .........................

. Le y do horse brush and comb ...................
.J. IC4 do shoeing horses .... ý«.... .........,...... ......
oli: esnay travelling expenses ............. .......................
.G. i, , 1, 500 fÉt. 1lum ber ................... ..... .......... ..............

13R& CO., Calgary, 100 yds. cotton, $15; 5 cart covers,

eS olnaid Calgary, hire of buckboard .........................
' . 8e'lt algary, 288 lbs. hinges, $57.60; 76 lbs. boits, $38...

12 ambon, Calgary-
24 argula Ce Stretchers........................ ... ......................

. .ott, Calga.y, drugs .. ...... ...... .... ..........
. alar o stationery ............................. ............
'ly, got do at 50. ...................

82 lbd Deer Crossing-
15 d ta, at 75c., $61.50; 25 lbs. coffee, at 60c., $15.....

120 do OpPer, at 75c., $11.25; 100 Ibo. potatoes, $2.........
200 do arley, at 7c., $8.40; 300 ibs. oats, at 6c., $18.......

o cnats, at 5. $10 ; 74 house logs, $74 .................
Oap, $t ce15; 2 dippers, $1.50 ......... .... ...........0 loek $3 20 flannel shirts, $60............. ...... .... ......

1 ba ' gall. coal oil and can, $1.75 ..................... .
2 c ait, 35C. ; Stationery, $4.50 ............................
1 cofdee.stick, 50c. ; 1 bucket, $1.50 ....... ...................
2 yg e-POt, 75. ; 1 axe, $2.50 ...... ................

102 lb.'pcotto, 50c. ; matches, 65c.......................* POrk)at 25e.......................................

keezzie, Red Deer, 1,346J Ibs. beef, at 18c............ .,..........

1' ,1Lkau, ]Red Deer-
1 lar toye and furnitur7 e4 box sto r.......................

2 , 3 $75ve, $20; pi es and elbows, $12..................
2 doz knive ,d 3 l ps 3.75.......................... ...........

. large en forks, $7 ; i½ doz. table spoon., $1.50......
1.. p $5 1dos. cups and saucers, $3 .........

44 00
455 40
280 00

28 00

9 00
6 70

32 80
27 00

......... ........
..................
..................

..................

..... .............

...... ............
........ ..........
............,.....

30 00
14 40

76 50
13 25
26 40
84 00
16 50
64 50

4 75
4 85
2 00
3 25
1 15

25 50
-----

12 50
8 50
8 00

e411s, 49 days' rent, &c............................
or. 25 bush. barley, $25; 18 bush. potatoes,

. .2 a . .. ..... ..... ... . .. ... ..d 400..tons .................... ........ ................. ........r, 24 Ibo. tes,.............. ............
d. ......................

do ....b............................................

47

$ ets.

807 40

15 70

59
14
2

13
12

18

45 00
10 00
95 60

44 40
50 68
4 25

261 50

322 65
242 37

111 00
15 00

4300
12 00
60 00
2400

A. 1886

1



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. '0.) A. JIo

SUBSIDIARY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defrY
expenses, &c.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYME1TS-Continued.

65Tn BATTALION-ContinUed. $ ets. $ ets. $

W. M[cDonnell, Battle River-
30 lbs. rice, $6 45 Ibo. beans, $9 ............. ............ 15 00

2 sacks flour, $14 ; 10 sacks salt, $4.50 ........................... 18 50
5 Ibo. butter, $2.50 ; rope, $4.25................... 6 75
6 cans baking powder, $3; 24 cakes soap, $3 .........-........ 6 00
5 bottles pain-killer, $2.50; cartage $2....................... 4 50

51 0 75
D. Earker, Birtle River-

1 overcoat, $10 ; 2 sacks potatoes, $2 .............................. 12 00
1 tin pail, $2; 2 auger bits, $1 ......... ................. .... ..... 3 00
Saw, $1.50; plane, $1.50; hammer, 60c ...... . ................ 3 60

-- 18 60
A. Pepin, Battle River, 3 sacks flour ....... ............................. .................. 21 00
A. W. Colpman, Battle River-

1 cook stove, $20 ; 1 cart, $15.......................................... 35 00
2 sets harne es, $10 ; 1 bridle and saddle, $5 ..................... 15 00
2 sacks flour, $16.50 ; 2 sacks potatoes, $6.......... ...... 22 50

100 ibs. dried apples. $26; 65 lbs. beans, at 16c., $10.40 ..... 36 40
25 lbs. soap, $5 ; 50 lbs. split peas, $8 ............................. 13 00
10 do coffe, $5 ; 25 Ibs ta, $13.75 ............................. 18 75
25 do sait, $2.50'; 28 lbs biscuits, $5.04.........-.................. 7 54

4 cans baking powder, $3 ; 8 cans pepper, $4.80 ...... ....... 7 80
7 lbs. hops, $7.70; 2 qts vinegar, $1 .................. ...... ..... 8 70
2 galls. coal oil, $220; 1 lantern, $1.50..... ..................... 3 70

il pairs long boots, $66; 1 moleskin coat and vest, $7.50 ... 73 50
6 do lace do $31.50 ; 2 woollen shirts, $4 ,.............. 35 50
2 shirts, $3.50; 2 towels, $1.70 .............. ....................... 5 20

20 lbs. rope, $4; 25 yards netting, $3.75 ...... ,.................... 7 75
6 pairs overalls, $7 50 ¡ 6 waeh tubs, $12...... ..................... 19 50
9 spades, $15.75; 1 grindstone, $9,01 ....................... . .... 24 76

10 Ibs. wire $750; 7 pails, $750..................................... 15 00
Axes, hatchets and ha ndles ............ ........ ..... ..... 13 25
1 two-man saw, $5.25; nails, $4 .................. 9 25
1 bush. barley $3 ; 1 coffee mill, $2.50 .............................. 5 50
Frying pans and oish pans ...... . ............................... 6 00
Washboard, 80c. ; 3 brooms, $1.50.................................... 2 00

Borews, $1.85; screw-driver, 75c... ......... ............... 2 00
20 yards cotton, $3.40; 1 curry comb and brush, $1 75 5 15
6 bottles gun oil, $4.50; 6 lamp chimneys, $2.10 ............... 6 60
1 auger .......................... ........................................... 1 50

---- 400 850
90TH BATTALION. -

8. H. Caswell, Troy, 262 lbs. meat, at 20e .............................. . . ........ . .......

91sT BATTALION.

Thomson & Nelson, Troy, lumber ....................................... 6 12
8. B. Caswell do stationery ...... . ........................................... 8 95
O. Gibson, Qu'Appelle Station, 105 lbs. bread .............................. 6 00
W. Henly do 12 cords wood................ ..... 30 00
L. W. Mulholland do 3 cords wood, $12; stage fare, $2.. ......... 14 00
A. Wismer do stove and pipes ............. ......... ....... 3 25
L. Lan is do 10 cordB wood ............................. 5250
E. A. N. R. Cameron, team hire, $32; interpreter, $5 ...................... 37 00
Paynaster c peland, travelling expenses ................................ 47 00
Pte. J. Grey, fare Calgary to Qu'Appelle,........ .............. .........- .... 3 25 208

"A" eyND "lB"1 BATTERIES oS' ÂRLTILLERY.

Winnipeg and Western Transport Co., freight .................. ......... ........ 2 60
Freight and chargr-s at Winnîpe............ . 67 95
Owen, Hughes & CJo., Prince Ab~,epsag. ...... . .33 80
Shan'nonl MeLeod, Prince, Albert- ,epesg .......... .... ....

1bhoepacks, 21 pairs, at $3.50; 20 pairs, at $2................ 113 50
4 canvaso jumpers, $6; 1 grose laes, $4....................... 10 00

12350
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%tamIARD Y Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS-Continued.

'' AND " B " BATTERIES OF ARTILLERY-Concluded. $ ct. $ cia.

etoDougall, Saskatchewan, 6,881¾ Ibo. bread ...-. ............ .................. 430 09
bClark & o , Saskatchewan, druga.............................. .................. 27 20

DuUinson, Saskatchewan, 30 qts. milk.............................. .................. 3 00

CAVALRT SCHOOL CORPS.

fi ith, Fort Qu' Appelle, 1 ton ay.............................. ..
V-b Bol ea, Fort Qu'Appelle, I ton bran. ....................... ..

Ss u'Appelle Station, 100 lb. bread....... ................ ..
? 'Sanus, Troy, 50 meals. ........ ....... . . . . ....... .

raneau, Touchwood-
.aggon hire, Touchwood to Qu'Appelle ..................

2 ire, buckboard and harness............. . ..........2 waggons and teama to Troy...........................................

hgaZ, Touchwood, 21 tons hay, at $10.................. .

GOVERNOR GENERAL's BoDY GUARD.

Gi ean, Qu'Appelle, 48 lbs. bread, at 6¼e......................
lette , Qu'Appelle, 16 Ibo. bread, at bc ............................

cnald, 3 days as scout and interpreter .....................

W1NNIPuG LIGET INFANTRY.

eals at falgary, at 50e .................. ..................... ........
P for oß c rs, &c0................................ ............... ......... .
och, Calgar, 25 canteen strapa ....................... .......

0. , Oalgary, re airs to bnckboard ........... ,.................
& o., a gary, 1 water barrel ........ ..................

R. 0 , algary, 1 saddle and briddle . ......... ......... ..............
sis UXminge, Calgary, 2 horses, $185; stabling and forage,

4 . îLo ''- ~~...... ......... ......... ......... ......... .................. ......... .
) Calgary, 2 horses, $210; saddle and bridle, $65.....erlan8trong, 0algary, 90 havelocks............... ..... ............

r j'pa & Co , Calgary, rifle and ammunition........... ....
ro, agary, 186 Ibs. beef, at 12e................... ......©elt Ca] ýary, drugs. $97.20; towels and brushes, $2.75la * I talgary, 4 fiags. ... ............ ..........o Con Calgary, 27 loads waier ......... .......... .............

j . reg , algary, teleg . .............................................
20 p. 0ougall & Co., Edmonton-
42 pai long boots, at $10......................... .....................

5s, $42; 1 buckaw, $3 ............ ..................

Jcoaldrr E dmonton, 190 havelocks, at 35c.........J. lqe '-3'dt nonton, l box for stores............ ..

6bus aPples, at 25e , $42. 50 ; 50 Iba. salit, $12.50 ...........
1 bu h .Potatoes, $6; ô sacks, $5..................................

t bBattle River, 23 sacks potatoes....... .....
t $ o era, I igh River, 65 meals, $32.50; hay for 8

77real ger, Mosquito Or;eeké-1 b $38 50 ; hay for 8 teams, $12. .................. ........
oes, $3.70; 1 bag sait, 25c. ; fuel, $10............

à eale a
aerat Maple Creek, at 50e.....................................

ar, . .. Oxley, 220 meals, $110; hay for men's. .. ...................................
beer...

b e.< t germs $11 ; 10 Ibo. pepper, $4.50..............
* ; 1 padlock, $1 ................................. .......

49

......... .....

.... ..... .......

................
................

10 00
10 00
50 00

.................
..................
.................
...... .......... 
.............. ...
..................

........ ............. ................ ........................ ............................. .................... .. ............ ................ ..........
200 00

45 00

.. ............

55 00
11 00

...... ............

50 50
13 95

......... .........

70 00
110 00

3 00

0 80
................. 10 00

675 00
38 50
25 00

6 50
5 00

25 00

200 0
275 00

90 00
31 00
22 20
99 95

4 00
40 50
25 80

2 #0

245 00
66 50
5 50

15 50
4 00

-------. 19 50

A. 188

2,300 44

$ eia.

688 4

251 0*

13 80,
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SUBSIDIARY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of 82,300,O00 to defmi
expenses, &c.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS-Continued.

WINNIPEG TRooP CAVALRY.

N. Bawlf, Winnipeg, 12J bush. oats, '.t 65c, $7.95; 204 lbs.
hay, $6.30................................... .................. 14 25

Bolman Bros.. Winnipeg, 50 Ibo. potat0es............... ......... .................. 0 53
W m. Scott, Winnipeg, j cord wood......................... ............... .................. 4 00 18

WINNIPEG FIELD BATTERY.

M. Keachie, Winnipeg, hack hire........................................ 9 25
J. F. Caldwell & Ce., Edmonton, medical supplies......... ....... 164 0
Moore & Macdonald, Prince Albert lumaber.............................. 72 OO
'Wm. Gordon, Prince Albert, blacksmithing.................................... 60 75
H. McDougall, Prince Albert, ïbaking 2,523 lbs. flour, at 2c.................. 50 46
J. L. Johnston & Co., Prince Albert, hardware, &c.......................... 35 67
R. H. Bratnober, Prince Albert, repairing sadllery ....... .................. 22 50
T. J. Agnew, Prince Albert-

1 doz. horse brushes, $4 ; 10 curry combe, $3.50.............. .7 50
25 sheets emery cloth, $2.50; 1 gall. oil, $1.50 ........ ......
1 doz. emery, $1 ; padlock, staples and screws, $2 ........... 3 0
2 iron pails...... ............. ......... ......... ............ 2 00

-e 150
W. H. Clark & Co., Prince Albert, medical supplies. ...... .................. 13 15
G. E. Carter, Prince Albert, 1½ bush. potatoes............................. 00

YORK AND SIMCOuI BÂTTÂLION.

Gmilagher, Sons A leGregor, 325 lbs. beef at 17c ........... ......... .... 6 .... 5 25
Dr. Hall, Qu'Appelle, 1 ciise medicine ......................... .................. 33 OS
L. Langis do llond wood.............................. ................. 600
L. W. Mulholland, fare, Troy to Qu'Appelle and return ....... ................. 4 00

ALBERTA MOUNTED RirLEs.

L G. Baker & Co., Calgary-
33 Dutch overcoats, at $8, $264 ; 9 grreat c'oats, at $15, $135 399 0
3 pro. blankets, at $6. 75, $17 25; 48 duck suite, at $7. $336 353 25
50 pairs gauntlets, st $2.75, $13750O; 100 pairs Bocks, st

650., $65 .................................................. 202 50
-- 954 75

J. Oottingham, Calgary, 9 ...le ....................... ......... ......... 297 00
G. Constantine, Calgary, shoeing 17 horpes ..................................... 68 00
41 bats, st $3 25, $1-3 26; 25 igle ticks, t $1.15; $28 75....7 162 0
18 ueamlesa sacks, $4.50; 50 Ibe. rope, $7.50 ........... ........ 12 00
1 yrd. cotton, 15c. ;2 yde. Tr'rkey red, tOc. ;braid, 25e O...... 0M
2 waterproofshbeets, $5; tacks, 25c. ; matches, 25e................ 5 50

180 40
G. Murdoch, Calgary, 3 halters, $12; 6 cartridge belts, $12 .......... ........ 24 00
J. A. McDougall & ANo., EdmonAon-

17 pairs ri diig boots, $170 ; 17 pairs riding breeches, $170. 340 00
17 overehirts, st $3 60, $59.50;- 17 suite underclothing, 468 127 50
34 pairs sock, st 60ce., $2040; 17 bowels, $17...................37 40

1 Hack four, $10 ; 1 box soap, $10....... .................. 20 00
2 scyihes, $350; 2 osnath, $4......... .............................. 7 .0
2 scythe stones, 5Oc. ; 100 revolver cartridges, $3.. 3 50

J. Looly, Edmonton- - 559
30 rifle W ulinge,$30; 7 linces, at $3, $21 ......... ........... si 00

6 Duches, at$1, $6; repairig 14 hes, $14 $3......... 2 00
Repair g halter, $250; 1 stirrup leather, $10 ...... ........ 4 00

- 75 00
R. A. Frser, Willew Creek, 15 meal, $750; horse feed, $7.50 ....... ........ 15 00

6. T. William , Gleichen, 475 lbs. ..t, at 3 ................... ...... 14 25
MJckanow, Edmonton, huse ret for headquarter............................... 5 
J. . Gilchrist, 1 hrse kileid ............................. ........................ 150 0
W. Rowland, 1 days au guide, at $30 ...50 l ............ .................. 178 60
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11831IARY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &c,-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMP&NY PAYMENTS-Continued.

BOULTON'S MOUNTED INFANTRY.
d* $ ets. $es t.

2 gson Smith & Co., Winnipeg-
W inchester rifles, at $21............................................ 525 0010 M cartridges, at $20.90.............................................. 209 00

40 rifle covers, $90 ; 40 cartridge belts, $50...................... 140 00
'Qun oil, $3; lights, $11.10 ; packing, $1.25..................... 15 35

-e 889 35
Pain, transport and expenses of 2 men from Birtle to

Appelle.............. ......................................... 2000
o 1arus, Qu'Appelle, board and lodging ........... ............. .................. 9 50

M. r B Atherton, Qu' Appelle, 3 meals.. .. ......... .............
Ulholland do use of corral........... .............. 4 00

. g • vahs do blacksmithing ..... ... .1 40
McPhaal, Prince Albert, 2 sheet-iron stoves, $26; stove-

pipes, $2 .......................................... 2800

ordon, Prince Albert-
sledRehammer, $5; crowbar, $4............ ..... ,................ 9 00
bOOks, $1; 8 bands, $3................................ 7 00

BratrÀober, Prince Albert, harness and repairs ........... ..... 14 0
Èi' do cups, plates, &c .................................... 7 90

> clair do making and trimming breeches. 3 00
p. Danby, Fort Ellice, 74 bush. oats, at 40c............................. _0

Eason do board and lodging 8 men ... ....... ..... 13 75
eiders.on do ferriage ...................... ............ ... ...... 12 00

a, Birtle, board and team hire........................................... 5 00
'en travelling expenses . ....... ....... ............. .. .... .26 25

rQ~ItUh,'tOiang volunteers to Birtle ................................. .4 0
T "ah, osomin, 17 days' board .......... ........................ .25 50

.red,8 Prince Albert, paid on account of teams for transport .........
nond, Moosoin, medicel attendance .... .... .. ....... 21 00

202000

fi.DNnis' INTELLIGENCE 5O0RS

16 e 8 Qih, Âpelle Station, 60 lbs. bread......-.............. ........... ..... 360
1 W. MO1.dTroy, stajlng .... ..................... ...... .................. 150

VýcK Red Deer, 50 Ibo. beef ...................... ......... ....... - 9SBroa f2 Current-

10Is rOPe, $24; 3 whips, 75c.,.. .......... .......... 24 75
810 aP, $1; doz. botties sweet nitre, $1,20, ..... 2 20

- - 95
41 M

P EDMONTON VOLUNTIDU OOMPÂZIY.

Îrp r1l,$3.0 scouts, $50 .,............ ...... 0...... ......... 984 80
. ""ra $06-3;boatbuilders, $111.70............ ......... 317 23

L.994lardnot, 11950 cartridgesat$3.00,$58,60; 500 bs. - - ,320

rii<w012, 0b........ $1.......... ........... 88 50

è2k fi

tý ê. turry, 1 keg syup, $8; i bucksaw, $1.50 ............ ............ ..... 9 50
13. t>t'&kIng 42 oartridge ponches and 40 powder baga ................ 14 50
te.. -...rton, 20 lbs. bacon, $5; 400 Ibo. bey, $2.... . ....... 7 O0
l. 117 bleeksmting...... . . . . . . .25 90

L 3tonscoa-......-........-............. ............ o

Q %r . lýýe 3 ous12 00

o [ cords 'Wood20 00
S 1 Water barrl. ............... 6 00

dm0nd, Mo n,. m ..e.... .... .... 2 70
b Q's A pelluge for 60t lbs. br............... ..... 2 12

-- 150? o

1br TLI$ iGus B5I..... ............ .....
'tabling

ga ,Edonon1,5 crtides a $.0,$5.5 ;50 ls
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1UBSIDIARY Statement of Exponditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000'to defrsf
expenses, &c.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS-Continued.

MoOsE MOUNTAIN SCOUTS.

J. H. Shillington, Troy-
4 tons hay, $20; 13 loads wood, $52................. ..... 72 00

12 bush. oats ..................... ....... 9 00
-- 81 00

G. H. V. Bulyea, Troy, 150 lbi. bread .,.. ........... ........... ...... 9 00
8. H. Caswell do 2 frying pans ................................. ................. . 1 00
A. N. Wismer, Qu'Appelle Station, 4 lanterne, $3 40 ; 1 frying-

pan, 50e ......... ......... ................. ......... ......... ......... ........ ............ ...... 3 90 1
Hislopany,o blacksmithing ....................................... ............. 14 50 0

MAJOR PERRY'S SCOUTS.

Wm. Connor, Edmonton, 1 saddle......... ............... .................. 45 00
I. Butter do 100 ammunition baga ..... ......... ...... .................. 25 00
Edionton Hotel, 92 meals ...................... .............................. .................. 46 00
L. Gaetz, Red Daer-

Stationery, $1 30; oil, $1; twine, 30c....................... .... , 2 60
Nails, $1 ; 3 pails, $3; 2 washdishes, $1.......................... 5 00
Teapot, $t ; 1 campkettle, 90c .... ........................ 1 90 95W

ST. ALBERT MOUNTED RIFLES.

A. J. McDonald, Edmonton-
1 sack flour, $10; 32 lbs. sugar, $8........................ ......... 18 00
50 Ibs. biscuits, at 25o ..... . .. ......... 12 50

80 50
B. ragé, Edmonton, ton ay........................................15 00
J. A. Youmans, ferrying at Beaver River ............. .. .. 25 00

STEELE's SCOUTs.

1. G. Baker & Co., Calgary-
12 fur lined coats, at $12 ......-........ ................... 144 00
40 yards red cashmere, at 50e................................... 20 00

-- 164 00
8. W. Trott, Calgary, drugs ................ ,...... . ...... .... .....
J. Lwoly, Edmonton-

j doz. belts and knive sheaths.. ..... ..... 9 00
'24 eartridge belts................................. 96 00

Brown & Curry, Edmonton-
3 dandy brushes, $2.25 ; 9 curry combe, $.50 ................ 6 75
2 manilla lines, $1 ; 8 Ibs. rope, $2.40 ....... .. 3 40
2 spades, $3; 1 axe and handie, $1. ........ ... » ................ 5 00
9 horse brushes, $3.50 ; 2 pkgs. condition powders, $1 ...... 14 50

-- 29 65
W. Lenney, Edmonton, shoeing horses......................... ................. 45 W
Banderson & Looly do ................ .................... .1000
W. T. Spearin, rifle broken in service ................ 25 
E. Lafr amboise, Edmonton, 1 saddle and bridle..................... ......... ....... 0
Il horses purchased at Rdmonton ................................ ......... 1,375 O
R. W . 11cClellan, Red Deer, meale .................. ................. .................. 1500
Leo Gaetz, Red Deer-

10 bundles hay, $1.50 ; 13 lb3. rope, $2.60................ 5 10
1 tea pot, 50c. ; 2 camp kettles, $3......... ......... 3 50

P..Wbitford, Victoria-
42 bush. barley, $12 ; 3 bush. wheat, $7.50 ..... ..... ........ 49 50

2 baga flour, $10; 8 bage bran, $8 .... ...... ..... 18 00
6750

là."Lapointep Saddle Leke, 250 bush. barley......... ... ...... ........ 2500> ý19'

TECLUGRÂPE OPERÂTORS.

LW. Vglhollande Qu'Appelle Station, fare H. McCleneghan toilo
F'ort Qu'.&ppel1e ........... #. . .. 9........ ..... 00... 00.... ..... e8661

2
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fkUasIDIARY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &c.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS-Continued'

SCOUTS, COURIERs, &C. $ t.. $ ets. Ch..

cDadCalgary-
Courier service, Fort Saskatchewan to front, under con-

0  tract, 24 days, at $150. ............... ............................. 3,600 00
rier service, Calgary and Edmonton, 14 days, at $50... 700 00

, 664J days in ail, at $5.00....... ................. .... 3,322 50
e 47 do 4.00......................................... .188 00

10 4° 71 do 3.50 ..... .... ..... ..................... 24850
d 109 do 3.00.......................... .......... .. 327 00
do 733 do 2.50.......................................... 1,832 50
d0 92 do 2.00............... ............. ...... 184 0

14o tire 7 do 1.50............. ........ ... 5...........
forage, ferriage, &ac.................................... 80 50

6,193 50
Linss.-.Stoppages for supplies, horse, &c .............. 308 08

18 0 t854

& late, Prnce Albert, carrying deBpatches............... 40 02
@da Cg do...............130300

IL. %buae despatches, Beaver Hill to Batti River:. ........ 8 O0
S.de do do Peace Hisl......................... 10 0<

hoss"'er do to Whitefish and Saddle Lake.... .................. 25 00

4. go do Fort Pitt to Bateford ......... ............ ....... 50 O0
J~ 15f~~ do do ............... ...... 50 00

? Qrautdo do 0........ 50 O0
Piince do do........ .......... .................. 50 00

aeAlbert, 2 days' team hire .................................... 10 00
î.M 'ar e (Sasatchewan) j day's teamn lire ................ .... ...... 300

Or~ Odays' horse hire ................................. ................. 40 OUeW 1oe for, ,e . ............ . ...... .................. ... . 80 00
Le, re of sick horse f p . s c................. ...... ..... 10 O

Yers, Prince Albert-
te and sadd e orse, 3 days. ........................ 69.

25anan, d3datchs, $6; meals and provisions, $19 ............... 25 O0
I.hay, ; 5 bush. oats, $10 .......... ........ . 1 00

Ro. rair do to Whtfs1nade4ae.... ......... 500

, ter dogFrry, 15 mealt, $7.B50a; horse feed, $5.25 ...... . ........... .... 12 75

44 rg8 do do1 ............. 5......... 50 

. drd , neals and hoe ....................................... 50 0
. W . ne Almoton, mea m ...................... 10 00

BWa o, 4fe," forage and rations ................ 3 00
'Jond aPrsean, Batte River, 16 meals, $8; feed, $5.75......... .................. 13 75

. e c a e an or ge ..................... ..................... . ................. 1 0 0
ream bard of en, $25; horse feed, $13.25ays.. ............................. 38 25

18t d 4 5 ,ver Lake-

250 la, 3 das, 6;masadpoiin, 1 ....... 50

8 . hay, $18; ; 5 Ibbs beef, $16. . .................... 3420

a lga ory15a, $ 7.la; ; horse eed, $ 5.25 ...... .................... ... 1287

p .. E...... ..... ................... ................. - - 100
'P wPttersonpRobins ? Fort Saskatchewan, saddle....................... .................. 25 00

011ld g 'Palgary, 1 brid e 6 ........................................... 3 50
ucasr b, Malntond horse hoeing... ............................ ........ ......... 1 15ra ooly do do ............................................... 6 25

18, d a,vrLk-

a0 l ay tear ing, $5; 5,150 lb.. hay, at $20, $51. ........ ......... ....... 56 50
3 àb8. 3ou $313 9 $15 sugar, .25....... 6 .ha....... at$......... .... 4500
a e 2 tons hay, at $I .......................... ..... O.......... ..... 3.

L. eana n,,80 0 Ibs. hay, at $15 ........................ .... 13 50
rOod d bush. oats at $1.25................... .................. 31 25

a g, I e ol y do do 1.00..................,................. .................. 4 25
•e , uroSy Edmonton, 3 bush. oats, $3; ammunition, $20 .................. 23 0
neOt ' 2tns & ha, Edmonton, oat, 160 . buh., at $1,lbOema , 1,0 abs.t 65c., $8.3. ......... 24 72

gori ,rne 25 buh. oats, $ s . . ... $1... . .2 .. 2 trips . .to ............

P o dell 1.00. . ... ........................... . .... ................. 42 7
tcD o ry, Edmonton, 22J bush. oats $3; a u ....... .................. 23 00

gg tlèdton, 13 bush oats $1625 2rpst

hay...... ... ....... .. ............ . .. 2000

53
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BUBSIDIARY Statement -of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,OOO to defrf
expenses, &.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS-Continued.

SCOUTS AND COURIERs-Continued. $ cts. $ cts.

O. Osborne, 1 canoe for scouting .............. ......................... 25 00
Norris & Carey, Edmonton, 100 cartridges, $1.50; 3 boxes

primer,5 ..... . ................................... ..... 1 95
W . G. Rose, 16-lb. trade ball................... .............................. ................. 4 00
J. Chase, Fort Saskatchewan, repairing arms. ......... ....... ..... ................. 30 00
-" Special Constables " at Edmonton-

1 sergeant and 18 men, pay ...... .................................. 213 09
Pay for horses. ........... ................ ........ ........... ........... 375 00
Compensation for disabled borse, $25.50; medicine, $6...... 31 50

-619 50 g
TRANsPORT SERVIcI. -

E. Labrican, Calgary, freighting 21,320 lbo. between Calgary
and Edmonton, at 8c .... ..................... ................... 0 ..... . . . .5 60

P. Laboucane, freighting-
12,060 lbs., Calgary to Edmonton, at 8c .......................... 964 80

830 do Red Deer, at 4c. ......................... 13 20
-- 978 00

]Krs. Gardipie, freighting 5,040 lbs., Calgary to Edmonton, at 8c. .................. 40e 20
B. La Marsh, frei ting-

4,171 Ibs., Calgary to Edmonton, at 8c............................ 333 68
944 do Red Deer, at 4c.............................. 37 76

T. McNicol freighting 40 sacks oats, Saskatchewan Landing to
Swift Ôurrent................ ......... ..................................................... . 40 00

Stewart & Earl, 100 teams, 4,308 days, at $6. 50............. ......... ................. 28,002 O0
Thos. Howard, 74 do 4,664 do 6.50 ........................... 30,316
Howard & Go, 98 do 5,806 do 6.50...... .............. .......... 37g739 00
Sinclair & Flanagan-

54 teams, 5,722 days, at $8 ............................................. 45,776 00
19 do 1,779 do 7 ............................................. 12,453 00

-- 58,229 00
Kanitoba Cartingand Warehousing Go., 12 teama, 432 days, at $8 ................. 3,456 00
Armitt & Kelly, 99 teamg, 7,294 days, at $6.50....................... ......... 47,411 O
Rockwood Teame, 36 teams, 1,466 days, at $8........ .................. 11,728 00
Portage la Prairie, 41 teams, 1,167 days at $8....... ................. ................... 9,336 0
Battieford "B."-

49 teams, 1,432 days, at $8.................. . . 11,456 00
16 do 565 do 7 ...................... .... 3,955 00

6 carts, 347 do 3........................... 1,041 00

Battleford " B. B."-
10 teams, 251 days, at $8.............................. 2,008 00
4 do 116 do 7.. ............. 812 00
6 carts, 119 do 5...............................,................ 595 00
8 do 739 do 3................................................ 2,217 00
5 teams, under paid, 231 days...................................... 231 00

-- 5,863 00
Battleford " E."-

29 teams, 802 days, at $6...... .............. ....... 4,812 00
2 do 18 do 8........................... 144 00

Battleford " F."-
1 team, 60 days, at $8.00............................ ......... 480 00
4 teams, 111 do 7.00........................ .................... 777 00
1 do 29 do 6.50.......... . ... ........... 188 50

11 do 369 do 6.00.. .......... 2,214 00
1 do 30J do 5.00............................................ 152 50

Battleford " U.," 50 teams, 810 days, at $5 ...................
do "W.," 46 teame, 1,093 ays, at $5...................... ............... 5. 5 O,

oose Jaw Il C."-
4 teams, 105 day., at $6............................... .. 630 00

20 carte, 280 do 3. .... .......... . ... 84> 00

54
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4%AIARY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of 82,300,000 to defray
expenses, &o.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS-Contnued.

TRANSPORT SERVicE-Oontinued.

U pelle " E."-.
teams, 1,389 days, at $10 ; less $17 for rifle...................

2 do 79 do 8.............................................
2 do 12 do 5........... . . . .........

14t >le "F."-
lIeaas 212 days, at $f0....................................... ........t eaj 20 days, at $8 ......... ....................................

%yB. B..
22 tean 896 d,

2 do -66 o
do 7 a

$ ets.

13,873 00
632 00,

60 0ù

2,120 00
160 00

$ 8......................... 2,372 00
10..... .......................... ...... ... ......... 660 00
7 49 007 il e% ........... ...... -............... ..........

B. B. B."..-

25 teamsy 158 days, at $10.00 ............................
15 do 1,154 do 8.00.... 0 ............... .....do 2801 do 7.00..........................

do 76 do 6.50.......................................

B, B. B."-

21 a 1 44 days at $10 00.................. .............. ......
2 eame, 772 do 8.00 ........... ................

do 73 do 7.00.... ........................
2 dO 52 do 6.50 ..................... .... ,... .............

'du 8 do 600...........................
1edo 83 do 5.00.............................

a 4 do 4.50.....................

et 1) 3 e1 8 a.,a
D o 3 teams, 18 days, at $7.00.............................12e. D,- D. D.">-.

4 te 8, 98d day, at $6.50................................. ...........
o 6 do 7.00.............................

23
1 2 422 days, at $6................................................
5 46 do 5.. .......... .............................

20
5 tea 762 dayso at $7.00.............................................5 (tu 169 do 7.50.............................................

S 7 do 7.0 , ............................................
do 62 do 6 ..................... ........ ..............

1 t do î..... ........................

X 1 ms, 316 dys, at$5.... .. ........... ......
do Y 9 teams, 290 days, at $5..............................

2.N >, 2 do 795 do 5...............
wn'r1is,' 15 do 498 do 8 ...............

dry a, chers absent (Statement 9).. ..............

9 115,li s t .n 1 ) ................. ....... ... ..

18 ,t-r o asi , 26 a ys at$ 2... ........ ..........

t s 8te 9 . ...... ......
irer. 46 do 5

4 do , ds .. .. .. .... , ............. ...

~ ~1gaf t, ,i1, t. 3).............

41~ do as, 266 di.y,, at $12.....................
87 One teams 29 do .. ...............

do 8, »,0 aS, at $8 ..........
863 do 6...................

1,580 00
9,232 00
1,963 50

494 00

440 00
6,176 00

511 00
338 00

48 00
415 00

18 00

........ ,..........

640 25
252 0

2,532 00
230 00

6,096 00
1,342 50
4,970 00

403 00

280 00)
402 400

4,655 00)

7,040 400
322 400
230 04)

3,192 00
2,631 '00
9,C604' 00
5,178 00

$ cts.

14,565 00

2,280 00

3,081 00

13,269 50

7,946 00
126 00

892 25

2,762 00

12,811 50

5,394
1,580
1,450
3,975
3,984

21,100

7,592 00
184 00

$ ets.,
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&7BSIDIARY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of 82,300,000 to defr
expenses, &c.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY GOPANY PAYMENTS-Continued.

TRANSPORT SERVIcE-Continued. $ cts $ ets.

Between Calgary and Edmonton-
8 carts, 168 days, at $4.00............................................. 672 00

70 do 1,788 do 3.50............................................. 6,258 00
61 do 1,528 do 3.00....... ................. . ............. 4,584 00

3 transport officers, 98 days, at $4.................,...... 392 00
D. McLeod, team hire........................................... ......... 40 00
4 waggon masters, 187 days, at $4.......... ............ 748 00
1 cart driver, 9 days, at $2.......... ......... ........... 18 00
1 head herder, 40 days, at $4......................................... 160 00

24 herdere, 698 days, at $3.50.............. ............ 2,443 00
6 cooks, 208 do 2.00......,...... .................. 416 00

Between Calgary and Fort Pitt- - 36,312 0
17 4-horse teams, 1,618 days, at $12 ................. ..... ........ 19 416 00
1 do 38 do 9................................. 342 00

72 2-horse teams, 6,400 do 8................................. 51,200 00
2 carte, 202 days, at $4.00 ....................... ..................... 8 0 0
! horse, 92 do 1.50 ............................................. 138 00
2 transport officers, 192 days, at $5................................. 960 00
3 waggon masters, 237 days, at $4................................. 948 00
1 farrier, 88 days, at $5........... ..................................... 440 00
1 blacksmith, 90 days. at $1.50......................... ..... ...... 135 00
1 herder, 89 days, at $4...................... .......................... 356 00

18 herders, 1,464 days, at $3.50....................................... 5,124 00
1 cook, 89 days, at $2 50............ ................................... 222 50
1 do 94 do 2.00.......... ...... . . .. 188 00

80,277 50
Lss-deducted for horse shoeing ...... ............ 24 25

Between Calgary, Edmonton and Fort Pitt- 80,253 25
1 4-horse team, 76 days, at $12....,..................................912 00
3 2-horse teams, 247 do 8.......................................1,976 00
2 herders, 194 days. at $3 50..... ........................ ..... 679 0
1 cook, 96 days, at $2................................................,.... 192 04

Calgary Edmonton and Red Deer- 3,59 0>
2 4-horse teams, 63 days, at $12 ...................................... 756 0
1 do 18 do 9......................... 16200
1 2-horse team, 26 do 8....................................... 208 00
1 do 18 do 6 ...................................... 10800
1 waggon master,24 do 4................... ........ 96 43

Calgary and Fort McLeod-
1 4.horse team, 10 daye, at $12............ ...... 120 0

10 do 48 do 10 .... ..... ...... .. 0....0
12 2-horse teams, 94 do 8.........................752 0

Calgary and Red Deer-
4 2-horse teams, 51 days, at $8............. .............. 408 00
Cart driver, 16 days, at $1.75.......................................... 28 0

-- 43600
Calgary, Edmonton and Willow Creek-

1 2-horse team, 39 days, at $8 ......................................... 312 00
1 do 22 do 6.......................................... 132 00

Edmonton and Fort Pitt-
1 4-horse team, 60 days, at $12.....................................720 00

38 2-horse teams, 2,352 days, at $8 ...... ............... 18,816 00
Oate for 2 teamns.. ................-.......................... 8 438

Edmonton and Red Deer- 1,54 08
1 4-horse team , 14 deys at $12 ........ ........................ 168 (0

24 2
14 2here teins 15 do . -. ... 1,276 00

8 do 88 d 6............... 6795200
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118U'IARY Statement of Expenditure under âppropriation of $2,300,000 10 defray
expenses, &.-Continued.

HUDSOt; BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS-Qonttnued.

TRANSPORT SERVIcE-Continued. $ ets. cs. ets.

Idxuonton and Red Deer-
carts, 36 days, at $1 00 ..... ......... ..................... 144 00

Orage and rations . .... ....... ....... ......................... 35 96

onton, Calgary and Victoria-
3 4-horse teams, 183 days, at $12 .............. .................. 2,196 008 2-horse do 249 do 8.......... .............. 1,992 0>

onton and Victoria-
3 2 -horse teams, 23 days, at $8 ............ ... ...................... 184 00
aorse hire, $24.50; veterinary charges, $6 ...................... 30 50

-qh 214 50
onton and Fort Saskatchewan, Il teams ............................. 244 0

do anId Peace Hills, 6 teams .....-.... .... ............... ..... 180

do Fort Saskatchewan and Lac la Biche................... ... ... 90 0

do and Lac la Biche, 1 team ....................... ........... .76 -0
&otdo and Red Deer, 1 horse ....................................... 1500

al icLeod and Medicine Hat, 2 teams....................... .. .. .... 368
F34-ary and Medicine Hat ............................... ...... .............. 40 0

102hewan and Hudson Bay Co.'s Ferry-
10 825 days, at $6.50 ......................... 5,362 50

O 170 do 6.00 ..... ..................... 1,020 00
ats, 99 do 4.00................ ........... 396 t0
do 64 do 3.00 ..... ............... ...... ..... 192 00

1 do 80 do 2.50..... .................. ,........ ........ 280 00
herder, 23 do 2.50 ............................ 57 50

Ouse, cart hire, scouting and courier service between 7,308 00.

Idr on0 ton and Lac la Biche ........ ............. ................. -....-- .......
1 tMng-
1 eau, 24 dys., at $9.00, $216; 4 teams, 162 dys., at $8, $1,296 1,512 00

d 6 do 6.50, 39; 3 do 22 do 6, 132 171 00
it I 45 do 5.00, 225; 1 cart 31 do 1, 31 256 00

do Calgarv, $372; at Edmonton, $162 ...... . ........ ..... 534 00
do 'roy, $24; at Red Deer, $505............................... 529 00

Prince Albert................................. .................... 3 25
hoills -- 3,005 25

0f $10 each to teamsters ..... ............ ............. .230 0
2pôe naa tu 18 teamsters for injuries to horses, &c.......... ........... 1,890 0

1 Qdes se at Prince Albert, 154 days, at $3 50 ............. ..... ......
d, 16 days, at $6 00................... ......... ........ 9600
Rou 15 do 2.00.. .................................... 3000

a asters, 154 do 3 50............ ... 539 00
do er, 8 do 3 00. . ................. ... ...... 24 00

11 do 2.00. ................................... 22 00
a ers ----

do 28 do 400............................ 112 00
2 68 dû Z.00 ................................. 136 00
1 dk248 00

ok, 68 do 2.50 ....................... ........ 170 00
2 43 do 1.00.............................. 43 00

4 r r4 r" 5dys each............. ......... ........ ...... ......... 15 00
a chien 56 do at 61.75........... ................................. . 98 0

do do at 3.50..................... ......................... . 5600
I4a , 4 do at 2.00................................................ 92 00
Q le, Oal . - 148 0

Dell 7 7.50; Qu'A ppelle, $91; Saskatchewan, $95.05 .............. 233 6539 ton ey Farming Co.-
eeoS3 do bod hay, at $20 ............................ 780 00

& t , do 22 ............................ 4,264 35
aeatis b , QulAppelle - 5,044

S $ Toucwood $250; 15 tons at Houghton, $525 775 00
Ore bire,$' $I 0 50; stage tares, $37 ....... .. ... 55 50

con1veyance of mail, $175.......~... 274 (0
1,104 50
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SUBsIDIARY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of 82,300,000 to defray
expenses, &c.-Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMPANY PAYMEiTS-Continued.

TRANSPORT 83ERVIOE-COntinUed. $ ets. $ cts. 5
F. Fraser Tims-

Pony, cart and harness, $100; team hire, $139.50.............. 239 50
Ferriage at Saskatchewan Landing ............. ................... 821 66
Freighting, Swift Current to Saskatchewan Landing, 6,410

Ibo ........ . ... ... ..................................... . 6410
2 saddles and bridle, $45; neck yoke and strap, $10 .......... 65
Freight on horses, $12; stabling, $18 ....................... ...... 30 00
Labor, $3; reward tor finding horses, $5....................... 8 00
Carrying mail, $6; lumner, twine and nails, $7.05 ...... ......

Wm. Schoutts, Winnipeg, 9 tons hay, at $17.50 . ...... ....... 15
J. L. McInnis, Winnipeg, 40 bush. nat.. ........................ ......... 25 15
N. Bawlf, Winnipeg, 112 lbe. hay, $1.68; 224 Ibs. oats, $4.48..... ....... 6 16
G. A. Kerr, transport of Riel and escort, Saskatchewan to

Moose Jaw-
5 double teams, 9 day. each, at $8 ........................ 360 00
3 single buckboards ...... .,.................. ............................. 90 00

- 450 00
J. A. C arson, Edmonton, 39ýý bush. oats, at $1.10...... ........ 87
C. Sanderson do 24zg do barley ................... 24 64
J. Coleman do 69 o ave' horse hire......... ...................... 69 00
J. McDonald, 1 cart collar and harness ...................... .................... 4 00
W. Macdonncell, Peace River, 9 sacks potatoes ...... ............................... Il 75
F. Lucas, Peace Hills 3 bags do ............ .................... 4 50
G. Murdoch, Calgary-

Repairs to harness ..... ........ .......................................... 93 50
Fly nets, $17.25; neck-yokes, Ac., $3 .............................. 20 25

4113 7
J. S. Gibb & Co., Calgary, rope .................................. ** .......1 2 00
R. Mctaellan, 10 tons hay ................ ............ ..... ...... ............1... 400 00
S. W. Trotu, Calgary, drugs .............................. ......... ...... ........... 35 53

G.C. King & Go., 370 lbs. rope, $55.50 ; 36 boxes axie grease,
$12.60 ..... ............... 68 10

J. MEwen, Troy, horseshoeing.. ............ ...... ..... ..... 56 25
J. Gilmour, Moose Jaw, saddlery...................... ............... .49 30
0. B. Fysh do blacksmithing, $62.90; 6 hay racks,'Ïo $0. ...... 92 90
L. Langis, Qu' Appelle-

corda wood. ............... ............................ 12 00
orwarding cases sent by ladies. .......................... 94 50

- 106 50
J. Murphy, teamter................................................. 37 35
J. J. Mebean, Moose Jaw-

43J Ibo. chewing tobacco, $31.75; 1 caddie T & B, $1.75 32 50
18 boxes axe grease, $.0; labor, $14.80....................18 40
Candles, 40c. ; soap, 14; provisions, $58.20..................62 60

- 113 50
McManus $7use, Qu'Appelle, 34 mea3...................................17 00
O. authier, reward finding pony................... .......... ............... 5 0
Baker & Lee, Moose Jaw, 6 doz. axIe grease ............................... 18 00
P. Plante, Moose Jaw, 24 pairs blankets .............................. .75 00
A. M. McLean, Qu'Appelle-

Rent of stables, .. montha .. ...................... ...... 134 00
Use of blacksmith shop..................................i2 40
J set of haMneas, $30; 2 tons hay, $24 ...... .............. 54 00

-- 230 40
Curry Bros., Swift Ourrent-

1 case axe grease, $960 ; horse brushes, c.,$1.40 ,il
Ol cloth, $2.7; . .ine, $1.20................................ 3 95
Tools, $6.25; nau.s and tacks, $1.70............. ....... .... 7 95
Boat, r1.50; camp outfit, 23. 0 ..................... 25 00......

D. J. Campbell, Prince Albert, l tons hay.......................... . 40 00
P. Fraser, do hay for horse, $6; coming and

going for horse $5...... ......... ......... il 00
J. L. Johnson & Co. do carpenteral tool .......... ................. 15 00
J. R. MPail do do........... ......... 68 20

58
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'ýe8IDIRY Statement of Expenditure under Appropriation of $2,300,000 to defray
expenses, &c.-Continued.

HUDSONZ BAY COMPANY PAYMENTS-Continued.

TRANSPORT SERvIcE-Continued. $ ets $ ets. $ etse

J.Agee 4lbert 7imes. printing............. ......... ................... 9 50
dp e Prince Albert, making pack saddle .... ..... ......... ................. 5 40W. McLurray, Qu' Appelle, 3 tons hay...... .............................. ............ 45 00

ý'cWr'awf ean do 1 neck yoke ................. .................. 2 00
8 ord & Robinson, Indian Head-
2½ tons hay, $165; 4 doz. timebooks, $6 ,....................... 171 00

g2ll6. coal tar, 75c. ; 2 Ibs. horseshoe nails, 40e.............. 1 15
J. - 172 15
J. B.ar'8, Qu'Appelle, veterinary surgeon.............................. ................. 186 108. M oiliken, harness and repairs ..................... ................. 15 50

. aswell, Troy, 4 whips, $3.50; rope, 85c.; fry pans, $7... ................ 115
1. T er Qu'A pelle. I cord wood......................... ......... ......... 4 00

o. W. oburn, herding, &c .......... ................................................ 47 00
4. W igby, 94 days' paymaster of teams, at $4.50................ ..... ............ 423 00

.: I.tyer, Troy, coal oil and can, $1.60 ; cups, &c., $5.50...... ..... .... 7 10
.ý v - Bulyea, Leopold, 815 lbq. bread, at 6c.................. ..... .................. 48 89
.ç , Na aver 0reek, 6 tons hay .. .. .. ............ ...... ......... 240 00

Ale4a> Mose Jaw,wood, $8; hav-racks, $15; feed, $9 75... ............ . 32 75
L. W nder do 1 tent, $15; checking freight, $3. .. ................. 18 00

$5 UIholland, Troy, 1 set double harness, $40; horse hire,
.. ...... ............. . ..... ......... ........................ ........ ........,......... 45 00

0 w On, Troy, 2 cordé wood ......... ... ......................... ................. 8 00
T s, u'Appelle, blacksmithing ............................... .................. 122 25

lan roy, repairing buckboard ...... .............................. ................. 3 00
ta 0s& o., Moose Jaw, medicines ......... ................ ........ 5 90

s ose Jaw, 453 meals, at 35c ............. ......... ....... 158 55. o e Moose Jaw, blacksmithing ............ 54 00

raes. $ 4; 3 doz. axle-grease, $7.20 ...... ...................... 17 20
pe $4.35; camp outfit, $60.85 ................. ......... 65 20

ela - - 82 40d o rage at Calgary . ..... ,....................... .................. 585 25
paire b do Edmonton .... ........ ...................... .... 55 50

.. do 0 waggons, Calgary ......................... .................. 10 00

re s . do Edmonton... .. ... ...... ........................... 55 34
te oeing at Calgary0..... ...... ... .... .. ..... . ............ . ........ ........ 9 00

S b "OCompany, reward for repairing whistle

vorn rawng contracts and other instruments between
ernelt and Mr. Sinclair, for treighting, &o .............. ......... 25 00

-- 553,319 88
SCOWS ANO FLAT BOATS.

f Pson, Edmonton--fery sa,'
1,000f ow, $300; 1 capetan. $20 ....... ........................... 320 00
8 block ire rope, $160; 76 Ibs. manilla, $11.40 .......... .... 171 40
?reight 1$18.80; freight on cable, $52.56 . ...................... 71 36

stbarges 6 3
)ý4'tanc, St. Albert--

n'ý 32; tarred rope, $3.25 .... ................................. 5 25
lb . oakum .................................................. 32 753 r cDonald E- 38 001Wt & Cl-r Edmonton, 1 skiff, $30; 1 day's work, $5 . ..... 35 00

, Re3'9150 cotton baga, $27; carpenter's tools, $28.45 . 55 45
b. D eer, carpenter' swork.............. ....... 6 00

Red Deer, lumber ........................................ .................. 65 16
D, à to , a penter's work .................................... ......... ......... . ..... 8 00

e. L y s r 0sc w at Red Deer......... ................................... ................ 10 00
A. oureu, f .... ........... ..... ...................................... ......... ...... 56 00

. Oabo attig scows with aprons.................. .................. 25 OJ
. conald bhp t ..................... ....... ....... ................ .3 00

• berat, 75 lbs. spikes ............ , ............... ........... 9 3
toilQ, arli ýîa-- ............. ..................... I 2 00

. day, ea h . r................. ....................... . 8500
, day.. hand $abor ...... ....... .. ................. 240 0

59
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SUBSIDIARY Statement of Expenditure under Arpropriation of $2,300,000 to defrof
expenses, &c. -Continued.

HUDSON BAY COMiPANY PAYMENTS-Concluded.

ScoWs AND FLAT BOATs-Concluded.

T . McKay, lum ber ..................................................... .........
2 men, 3 days at Edmonton, making trade balls .... .............
57 boat builders and carpenters....... .......... .... ,......................

FERnYING, RoAD MAKiM, &0.

J Walter, ferrying at Edmonton .. ....................
F. Lamoureux, ferrying at Fort Saskatchewan............
G. Hamilton do Bow River ...... .............
T. Bannerman do Red Deer . ..... ...... .........
J. M. Davis, Calgary, 10 days supt. of construction of scow......
J. Stewart do 1,400 ft. timber .......................
R. W. McClellan, lumber for Red Deer ferry .......... ................
Drawing do do ............ .............
S. T. Searlett (at McGibbon Bridge), meals and grain, $15;

labor, $10 ...... . ........ ...... . ......................................
F Greenwood, Edmonton, 2j tons hay..............
K. Cameron, meals, hay and bedding ...................
9 mon making road, 90 days, at $1.50 ..................

12 do repairing Battle River bridge ........ ..... ........................
9 do l days each, repairing roads , ..................................
1 man, with team, 2 days, at $12 ......... ....... ..... ........ ... .....
6 men, telegraph and bridge construction, 71î days, at $4.50...

W . Bird, E dmont'on, horse hire . ... .... ... ..... ......... ..................
Norris & Carey, supplies . ...................... ...........
A. Macdonald, Edmonton, paint, $3; carpenter's tools, $10.40..
8. Watson, toll on Pine Creek bridge........................

Total Hudson Bay Company Payments.......

$ cts. ets $ utS

...... ..... ..... 121 71

......... .... 24 00
1,688 25
-- 2,819

......... . . 804P5

.................. 885

...... . .... 7440
............ .... 7250

............... .. 5000
......... ........ 3 000
.......... ..... 6800
...... ..... 600

. ... ~ ... 2500
......... ..... 2500

.................. 2500

................ 13500
................ 1800

.... ............ 2700
.............. 2400
............... 32290

3 00
2 91

13 40
................. 900 2,3

........ .........

SUMMARY OF HUDSON BAY COMPANY STATE.[ENTS.

Unsettled July lst, 1885 (Auditor General's Report, p. 498)...... ......... 65,852 65
Hudson Bay Co. supplies .......................................... 48,970 63

do payments .. ........................................ 611,671 74
Commission, 5 per cent. on payments ..... ........................ .......... ........ 30,583 59
Bank charges on dratta ........................................................................... 6,497 33

763,515 94
LEass-Balance unsettled ........................ ..................... 63,575 94
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BOARlD OF CIVIL SERVICE EXAMINERs,
OTTAWA, 25th January, 1886.

St)-In obedience to the Rules governing this Board, I have the honor of send-
you herewith a Report of their proceedings for the year ending the 31st December

1• A statement of the number of candidates, of all classes, present at the
lna-tions in May, 1885.

2. A similar statement of the candidates present at the examinations in Novem-
0 of the saIne year.

3 «A complete set of the examination question papers, submitted to the
eSdidates at the examinations in May.

4 A simailar set of those used at the examinations in November.

5 Lists of the successful candidates in May.

6 Ditto of the candidates in November.

• A Statement of the special examinations held during the year.

I have the honor to be, Sir,

Your obedient servant,

P. LSUEURI,

i ehe e ,ar Secretary.

Secretary of State.
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REPORT
OF THE BOARD OF

CIVIL SERVICE EXAMINERS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31sT DECEMBER, 1885.

e onorable

J. A. CHAPLEAU,

Secretary of State.

its ,--The undersigned Commissioners, under the Civil Service Act of 1882 and
araenldments, charged with the duty of examining persons desirous of obtaining

tnployinent in the Civil Service of ,Canada, beg respectfully to report, that during
te Year ended the 31st December, 1885, they held and personally superintended the

eal examinations required by the Act to be held, at Ottawa, Montreal and
"tO, and by employing sub-examiners, caused similar examinations to be held at

a .S., St. John, N.B., Charlottetown, P.E.I., Quebec, Kingston, Hamilton,
O nlipeg and Victoria, B.C.

The spring examinations began, as usual, with the Preliminary or lower grade,
by Was held on Tuesday, the 12th of May. This w'as followed on the 13th and 14th

Op the Qualifying or higher grade, and on the 15th and 16th by the examination in
onlSubjects.

The nlmber of Candidates in attendance at the Preliminary Examination was:
At lH alifax, N.S ... , ............ ... ............................. 7
At St. John, N .B .......................................................... 6
At Charlottetown, P.E.I. ......................................... ..... 1
At Quebec ................................................................. 18
At Montrea.... ...................................... 74
At Ottawa ........................... ..................................... 56
At Kingston..................... ................. il
At Toronto ............... ,........ ........ 47

t ...............................................................
At London ........................................ 11
At W innipeg..................... .................. ................ 6
At Victoria, B.C ........... ........................ 2

In all............... ................................ 252
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At the Qualifying or Higher Grade Examinations, there were Candidatee

present, viz.:-
At H alifax, N .S .................. ..... .. .*.......................... . 8

At St. John, N. B ....................................................... 33
At Charlottetown, P.E.I ..... ....................................... 6
At Quebec ..................................................... ...... ...... 14
At M ontreal .............................................................. 80
At Ottawa ..................... ............................. 80
At Kingston ...................................... 21
A t Toronto .................................................................. 65
At Hamilton ......... .................. ............ 15
A t London .................................................. ............... 37
A t W innipeg................................................................ 11
At V ictoria, B.C. ........ ................................................. 2

327

Of these 63 had taken the Preliminary Examination, so that the total number
Candidates present will be as under.-

Preliminary............... ........................................... 252
Qualifying .............................................. ........... 372
Less those who had taken the Preliminary................... 63

-- 309

Total number present ...................... 561

From among the Qualifying Candidates 133 came up for Optional Subject6
whom 45 gained 1 each, 9 gained 2, 2 gained 3, and 2 gained 4.

On the Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday of the following week a Pro1 .
Examination was held at the various places where there were vacancies to be
From the Inside Service at Ottawa 47 Candidates came forward, and from the O

Service, 37-in all, 84, of whom 55 were successful.

Pursuant to an Order in Council, a special class Excise promotion ex8 amil 4

was held in Montreal and St. John, N.B., commencing on the 17th August, ' 0 0
candidates in the former place and 2 in the latter presented themselves.

previous occasions of Promotion (Excise) Examinations, the work of the CI fo
(which was almost altogether of a technical character) was submitted to e P0'y of
inspection and valuation, and the ascertained results reported to the Se

State.

Concurrently with jhe Special Class Excise Promotion Examination at S Of
N.B., one Candidate from Halifax for the office of Gauger in the Custo0 ti
that city was also examined, and his work was, in like manner, reported

Secretary of State.
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The Fall Examinations began with the Preliminary on Tuesday, the lth day of
Ovenber. This was followed on Wednesday and Thursday by the Qualifying, and
eriday and Saturday by the examination in Optional Subjects.

The number of candidates at the Preliminary Examination was:-

At Halifax, N.S......... .................. ........ . .. 6
St. John, N.B ......... .......................... 10
Quebec.............. . ...................................... 12
M ontreal................................................................... 69
Ottawa.....'...................................... 56
Kingston................... .................... 6
Toronto.................................................... 54
Ham ilton................................. .................. ............... 22
London................... ................... . 20
W innipeg.. .......... ......................... .... ... ......... ,... 8
Victoria, B .C............................................................. 1

264

The number of Candidates present at the Qualifying Examination was:-

At Ualifax.................................................................... 9
St. John, N.B................. ................ 24
Charlottetown................................................... .......... 3
Quebec....................... ................ 20
Montreal ................... ...................... 42
Ottawa................ .......... .......................................... 96
Ringston................................ .............. ... i11
Toronto.......................... ....... ................ 50
Hamilton........................................................... .... 21
London........................... ........ ............. 22
Winnipeg... ........ ...... ............... 17
-Victoria) B

322
bedIct Candidates who came up for this examination as well as

for the Preliminary... ..... ..................... 58

264
Add Prelirminary Candidates.......................................... 264

Total number in attendance............. 528
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At the examination in Optional Subjects, 100 candidates came up, of whor CI

gained, each, one option, five gained 2 each, and one gained 3.

In connection with the Qualifying Examination at Toronto, one candidate

specially examined for the office of Finaneial Inspector, in connection with the

Department of Customs, and his work was reported to the Secretary of State.

We have the honor to be Sir, your obedient servants,

J. THORBURN, LL.D., Chairman.

A. D. DECELLES.

P. LISUEUR, Secretary.

BOARD OF CIVIL SERvIoE EXAMINERSa,

OTTAWA, 28th January, 1886.
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MAY, 1885.

Papers Submitted to the Candidates.

No. 1.

CIVIL SERVICE OF CANADA.

PRELIMINARY OR LOWER GRADE EXAMINATION.

Tuesday, 12th May, 1885, from 10 a.m. to 10.45.

Candidates are required to observe the Regulations strictly.

PENMANsHIP.

60 Copy the following:-

A great deal of talk has been going on lately about the Congo Confer-
ence, and it may not be amiss to state what it all means. Stanley first
thoroughly explored the valley of the Upper Congo and established a
route. He was thon, as representative of the Belgian Geographical
Society, together with Mr. de Brazza acting for the French Government,
commissioned to examine the country more minutely, which he did, and
ostablished trading stations along the river, so forming the country into a
Franco-Belgian territory. Now Portugal stops in and claims it by right of
ancient discovery and occupation. Other European Powers decline to
recognize her claim, and on varions pretexts of treaties with the native
Princes, and of explorations, put in claims for themselves--hence the
Conference. The country seems to be a fertile and salubrious one, and as
a railway through it is already projected, we may soon hear of a large
enigration thereto.

No. 2.

Tuesday, 12th May, 1885, from 10.45 a.m. to noon.

ORTHOGRAPHY.

This exorcise is purposely mis-spelled, and the duty of the Candidates
' ii be to correct the errors. For every mistake 3 marks will be deducted.

60 PAWPERISM.

Pawperism is sayed to be on the increese. If so, it is not dificult to
find the reeson. It is the old storey of intemprance, idelness and waist-
f oppertunities throne away and of good advice unheeded. Parants may
ave done their dooty fathefully by giving their childrin good councila settin befoar them good exampels, yet in manny instances instad of

dPreOiating theese advantages, the young think they must doo as others
a and enjoy dangerous and perhapps and unlawfull pleaz ares, if only for
ah 5 0on. in time, and often when two lait, they find out that, after all,tha rite way is not onley botter, but in reallity eesier, than the wrong, and
bad ' is that alone witch brings trew appinesq, The missery is that the
Shabbits formed meenwhile are very stuborn, and therefour hard toaoerc e. Stili, ther is no cause for despare, for thousans have overcome,

"" wjth iDivine help and good courrage anny one may.
5
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No. 3.

Tuesday, 12th May, 1885, from 1.30 to 3 p.m.
ARITHMETI.

1. State in words the sums given below in figures:

lst line
2nd
3rd
4th
5th
6th

130,000,005
1,000,000,000

1,100,022
33,333,333,333

17,001
10,000,010

Value.
60

3
4
2
6
1
4

10

10

4. Subtract the top line from the lower one:
299,558,672,413
300,699,783,304

5. Multiply the following line of figures by 6k:
8,182,838,485,868,878

6j

6. Divide the following line of figures by 9:

9) 199,666,999,888,999,777

2. Add up the above figures.

3. Add up the following in Dollars and Cents:
Dollars. Cents.
100,231,999.33

19,888,111.05
1,777,222.58

18,996,444.21
113,658,199.87

211.01

A&. 1gg649 Victoria.
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No. 4.

PRELIMINARY OR LowER GRADE EXAMINATION.

Tuesday, 12th May, 1885, 3 p.m. to 4 p.m.

READING PRINT AND MANUSORTPT.

t he reading was accomplished by using soma of the printed and some of the
en matter.

No. 5.

QUALIFYING OR IJIGHER GRADE EXAMINATION.

Wednesday, 13th May, 1885, from 9.30 am. to 10.30 a.m.

The Candidates are required to observe the RulAs strictly.

PENMANBHIP.

Copy the following:

00' The bouse occupied by Gibbon, and in which ho wrote the last half of
his immortal work, is still in good preservation and is the grand object of
attraction to all travellers. "l It was here "-to quote the beautiful passage
in which Gibbon has perpetuated the memory of the event-" it was here
oni the day, or rather on the night of the 29th June, 1787, that I wrote the
last Unes of the last page of my history in a summer-house in my gardon.
After laying down my pen I took several turns in a covered walk which
connands a prospect of the country, the lake and the mountains. The
air was temperate, the sky was serene, the silver orb of the moon was
reflected from the water, and all nature was silent. I will not dissemble
the first emotions of joy on recovery of my freedom, and perbaps the estab-
lishment of my fame; but my pride was soon humbled, and a sober melan-
choly was spread over my mind, by the idea that I had taken an everlast-
ing leave of an old and agreeable companion, and that whatsoever might
be the future fate of my history, the life of the historian must be short
and precarjous."

(From Guide to English Civil Service.)

No. 6.

Wednekday, May 13th, 1885, from 10.30 a.m. to noon.

COMPOSITION.
15

1. Change the following passage from the Indirect to the Direct form
0 speech:-

«ne said it was therefore his opinion that, if his Majesty were to
apply the gold and silver, which now superfluously adorned his men, to
the purpose of hiring an army from Greece, to contend with the Greeks, he
right have some chances for success; otherwise ho saw no reason to

exPect anything else than that his army should be defeated, as all others
1ad been who had encountered the irresistible Macedonians.

7

Sessional Papers (No. 50)



Sessional Papers (No. 50.)

13 2. Substitute other and appropriate words in the following extraCte
for those printed in Italics :-

Towards evening, Columbus returned to bis ships accompanied by M41iY
of the islanders in their boats, which they called canoes, and which, thoU
rudely formed out of the trunk of a single tree, they rowed with surprsil
dexterity.

10 3. Transpose the following passage of poetry into the order of prose

A chieftain's daughter seemed the maid;
Her satin snood, ber silken plaid,
Her golden brooch, such birth betrayed.
And seldom was a snood amid

12

50

100

Such wild luxuriant ringlets hid;
Whose glossy black to shame might bring
The plumage of the raven's wing.

4. Show how the following sentence may be improved:-

If, whilst poets profess only to please, they secretly advise and g*e
instruction, they may now, perhaps, as well as formerly, be esteemed, W
justice, the best and most honourable among authors.

5. Write a letter to a friend, giving him the current news of the 01
(to contain not less than 200 words).

No. 7.

Wednesday, May 13th, 1885, from 1:30 to 3 p.m.

Values. NoTE.-The work of each question must be fully given.

ARITHMETIC.

10 1. A man invested ¾ of bis capital in bank stock, ï of the remainder"'
real estate, and still bas $6,000 left. Find lis capital. a

10 2. A hall is 45 feet long and 11f feet wide ; what will it cost to coe
it with a carpet 27 inches wide, at $1.75 per yard ? dae0

10 3. A mechanic earns on an average 81.87J a day, and works 23 . jt
per month; if his expenses are $25.75 a month, how many years Wl
take to save $ 1,116, there being 12 months in the year ?

20 4. A tradesman marks his goods with two prices, one for ready 0 jrioo
and the other at credit of three months; what ratio ought the tWO P
to bear to each other, allowing 8 per cent. discount ? for

25 5. On the 30th December, 1882, a bill for $350 was discounted
$343; when was it nominally due at 10 per cent ? oit,

25 6. If a building society lends money at the nominal rate of 8 per c
payable half.yearly in advance, what is the real rate of interest ?

100
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No. 8.

Value Thursday, 14th May, 1885, from 3 p.m. to 4 p.m.
100

GEOGRAPHY.

10 1. How many zones are there on the terrestrial globe, and where are
they situated ? What do the terms zodiac, ecliptic, promontories, straits.

10 Peninsulas and archipelagos mean ?
2. Give the boundaries of the seven Provinces of Canada and enumer-

10 ate the principal railways and canals therein.
3. Give the names of three rivera in the Province of Quebec flowing

from the south and discharging their waters into the St. Lawrence; name
10 also the principal lakes and mountains of the same Province.

4. Name the principal cities and towns in the Province of Ontario,
10 and also its larger lakes and rivers.

5. What are the principal harbours, bays and basins of Nova Scotia
and New Brunswick ; the principal towns on the line of the Intercolonial
Railway? What is the strait which separates New Brunswick from

10 Prince Edward Island ?
6. What are the principal lakes and rivers in Manitoba, and the chief

10 products of the Province?
7. What are the principal straits, mountains and Islands in British

10 Columbia ?
8. What are the States and Territories of the American Union bound-

10 lng Canada at the east and west ?
9. What route would a vessel follow in passing from Chicago to Halifax,

10 N. s?
S?10. Name the States comprised in New England and their capitals.

No. 9.

Thursday, May 13tb, 1885, from 9.30 a.m. to Il a.m.

HISTORY.
100

ENGLISH.

5
1: Who was Richard, surnamed Cour de Lion ? Why was he so char-

5 actenzed, and how did ho die?
10 2. With what King did the Stuart dynasty originate ?

t 3. In virtue of what relationship did James the 6th of Scotland ascend
the Throne of England-in other words, what was the connection between

5 he two Royal families ?
10 4. HOw long did James reign, and who was his successor ?

u 5. State as concisely as you can the caises of the great civil war in
gland between the Parliament and Royalists ?

5 FRANCE.

5 6. Prom what historical event did the name of "France " originate.
15 7. Who was the founder of the Royal (Capet) family ?
û 8 Briefly describe the Feudal System and state its disadvantages.
5 9. When was the first standing Army in France formed ?

1ho0* GieO some account of the Chevalier Bayard, when he lived andOw hedied ?
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CANADA.

10 11. Was the liquor traffic in Canada at any time previous to its co0
quest by England the cause of any serious trouble ? If so, give as fall
account of the matter as you can.

5 12. What was the estimated number of immigrants from France i
Canada during the 130 years.the country belonged to France? iob

15 13. Give as fully as yon can the terms ot the Capitulation by Wh
Canada became a British dependency.

No. 10.

Thursday, 14th May, 1885, from 11 a m. to 12 (noon).

Value. ENGLISH GRAMMAR.

il 1. Into what classes are pronouns divided ? Give the compound Per-
sonal pronouns. Distinguish between the use of who, which and that.

8 2. Give an example of that as a relative pronoun, as a pronof0
adjective and as a conjunction. Mention a peculiarity about the relaîiV
that in connection with the word on which its case depends.

14 3. Give the present and perfect participle of the following verb-
bereave, bet, dare, rive, split, wake, wet. of

14 4. What is meant by conjunctive adverbs ? Give six exanmple
these. Ol

21 5. Correct the following sentences, when necessary, giving
reasons:-

a. Was you present at the last meeting?
b. True politeness has its seat in the heart.

1 c. Thou art afraid-else, what ails yon ?
d. It is generally understood that rain seldom or ever falls at Liu""
e. Give no more trouble than you can possibly help. t eoi
f. The Greeks, fearing to be surrounded on all sides, wheeled abol

halted, with the river on their backs. ho00
g. Nor was Philip wanting in his endeavours to corrupt iDenost

as he had most of the leading men of Greece.
32 6. Parse the following couplet:-

Who would not sing for Lycidas ? He knew
Himself to sing, and build the lotty rhyme.

100
No. 11.

Thursday, 13th May, from 1.30 to 2.30 p. m.

ORTHOGRAPHT.

Copy the following extract, correcting the bad spelling but not ch
Value. ing words. Five marks will be deducted for every mistake.

100 Bacon's mynd was wonderfully quick in perceeving annalogies Of a
but like sevrai imminent men we coold mension, he sometimes apP a1
exseedingly defficient in the power of distirnguishing rashonal from fago
annalogies. This wont of ackurate discriminashion has led to mann7 0 frl
pollitical speculations. One othor dedused a theory of Goverm1Onthe001
the propperties of the pyrramids and Southey's sistem of finnance heollogy
grounded on the phennomenna of the evapporation and rane. ln tle



Il ictoria.

this pervarted injenuity has made still widler work. Grave divines have
freequently ben led into expossitions ofscripture of inconceeveable absurdity
by mear incappacity to distinguish annalogies proper from annalogies met-
taphorical; and espeshally the seperate treatise on the sublime and beauti-
full, though written on a subject which the coldest mettaphysician could
hardly treat without being occashonally betrayed into florrid writing, is
the most unadorned of all the works of Burke.

(English Civil Service Guide.)

No. 12.

Thursday, 13th May, 1885, from 2.30 to 3.30 p.m.

TRANSCRIPTION.
,vas a lithographed manuscript paper, purposely interlined

Produe eat and correct copies were to be made. It cannot,
inprint.

and altered,
of course, be

No. 13.

QUALIFYING EXAMINATION.-OPTIONAL SUBJECTS.

Thursday, May 14th, 1885, from 3.30 to 4.30 p. m.

Candidates are required to observe the Regulations strictly.

FRENCH COMPOSITION.

(For candidates who have taken English composition in the Qialifying

15 Examination.)

1. Conjuguez à toutes les personnes du singulier et du pluriel, le verbe
se tromper, à l'inndicatif prèsent

2. Corrigez les phrases qui suivent
(a.) Personne peut espérer réussir dans une entréprise sans travailler.
(b.) Pensez-vous que votre mattre veut laisser vous aller avec moi ?

10 (c.) Je ne veux pas permettre vous de faire cela.
8. Donnez la forme du discours direct au passage qui suit :-
de Il est heureux de revoir son fils et il constate avec plaisir qu'il a fait

de grands progrès dans ses études. Il ne regrette pas les sacrifices qu'il
est imposès pour lui procurer une instruction qui le mettra en état de

50 gagner honorablement sa vie."
4. Ecrivez une lettre sur ce sujet:-Les conséquences de la dècouverte

dea vapeur. (La lettre devra contenir au moins 150 mots.

No. 14.

Friday, May 15th, 1885, from 9.30 to 10.30 a. m.
(English into French-for English Candidates.)

ra TRANSLATION.
a the following article into French:-

lat'e ûaU has spent a life of hard work and business anxiety in order to
large fortune, and before the task has been fully accomplished he has

11
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laid himself down, and loft bis accumulations, not to be shared by his friends
legitimate heirs, but to be divided as plunder by the courts and the lawyers.
fresh illustration has been recently furnished in connection with the estate of a 5b9«
York millionaire. He loft a princely fortune, providing liberally in his will for bas
best loved friends, but there was some legal technicality about a clause, or 8O
phrase which brought the legality of the whole into court, and there it was argU
and considered, and re-argued and re-considered until nearly the entire estate
eaten up in costs. Of course the lawyers struck a rich vein, but the hoirs struck 1
poor. That is very much as it often goes. The principal remedy appears to bo for.4
man to be his own executor so far as bequests of any kind are concerned. Iiowever,
thousands of prosperous business mon are cut down before the matter of bequeo
begins Io be considored.

No. 15.

PRÉCIS.

Friday, 15th May, 1885, from 10.3) a.m. to 12.30 p.m.

NoTn.-The Candidates are expected to make a satisfactory Summary or Précis of this PÉP
within one quarter of the space it embraces.

1. Hudson's Bay, situated between 5 1° and 63° of North Latitude, is a vast sh600
of salt water measuring 1,300 miles in length, with an average width of abot er
miles. It occupies the centre of British North America, and drains a territory
three millions of square miles in superficial extent. From Labrador, in the east,
from the Rocky Mountains, in the west, numerous large rivers flow down throe
Provinces, districts great as Provinces, and vast solitudes into this inland
towards the south the extremity of its basin reaches to the sources of the Mississ
The average depth of this Mediterranean of Canada is seventy fathoms, as statee
Lieutenant Chappelle, R.N., and such is the uniformity of the bottom that Dr.
of the Geological Survey, does not hesitate to assert that, if through any convu tbe
of nature, the water were to retire, we should see an immense plateau similar to
prairies of the West. There are no rocks or dangerous places to impede navigati
the western shore is low, and affords but one well sheltered, spacious and perl
safe harbour, Churchill, situated 200 miles from York Factory. p

2. The temperature of the waters of Hudson's Bay in summer is 14° higber ,
that of the waters of Lake Superior. Storms are very rare, and by nO i ,l
formidable, ard no icebergs are ever to be met with; fogs are of rare occurrence, t0

short duration. The tide is first felt on the western shore, it runs down toward
south and thon up by the east shore. Certain winds are, it is asserted by "
persons, periodical. d

3. Towards the south, a deep opening of the land forms James Bay, , "est
prolongation of Hudson's Bay, situated 281 miles from Lake Superior. Its gre 50
extent from north to south measures 360 miles, its average breadth is about O
miles. The east coast is woody and the west low and swampy. The country titj
Hudson's Bay is extremoly rich in iron ore, according to Dr. Bell. Anthrac'
also found there, and lignite in abundance on James Bay. . ø0

4. The waters of Rudson's Bay reach the Atlantic by way of Hudson's Straitpeio
arm of the sea 500 miles in longth, and with an average breadth of 100 mils• Btto
chief outlet of the Strait is only 45 miles wide, botween Resolutîon Island and .3" i
Islands on the north coast of Labrador. The depth of water is over 340 fathó M
the Strait. The current is very rapid and runs as high as 6 miles an hour' .rd
tide rises from 30 to 40 feet. The coast is very high and bold, especially to o tO
the north, the land in many places, as seen by navigators, attaining frorm ' fieo
2,000 feet in height. Were it not for the presence of the polar ice, whicho

49 Victoria.
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Sfron the great Arctic seas by way of Fox Strait, during the months of April,
o ne and July, Hudson Strait would, it is admitted by all, be exceptionally safe,0ing to the uniform great depth of water and tlae entire absence of reefs or danger-

fro islands These masses of ice, when emerging from the Strait, meet the icebergs
.bavis Straits and Baffin's Bay, and are thus retarded on their way to the ocean.

the chief, if not the only obstacle, which impedes the navigation of the Bay and
y curtails its duration. The Circumpolar charts published by the Hydro-

r'phical Office of the United States Navy Department, show the existence of a
enrr.nt Which passes round Greenland and shows itself to the east of Davis Strait,
ia "g towards Baffin's Bay, and then down in the direction of Labrador, coming

o0nact in its course, with the rush of waters from Hudson's Strait.
5 The Bay of Ungava, a sharp indentation of the Labrador coast, lies at the

nal' rend of ludson's Strait. White porpoise are here to be found in such large
Og rs, that according to eye-witnesses, in calm weather tie water appears as

is 8h it were agitated by a great wind. Salmon abound in all the estuaries, and it
s14Own that the Hudson's Bay Company yearly export large quantities of frozen

t ley n to the English markets. The same Company have a fort, Fort Chimo, where
6earry on a porpoise fishery on a small scale.
* As regards the object in which we are now interested, that enquiry furnishes

pa. 1able information regarding the Navigation of Hudson's Bay. Thus the Com-
V state that between 1719 and 1748, they had sent out two, three and even four

eiden .Year, and yet there is no mention made of a single disaster or the slightest

half • It Would be curious to compare this enquiry, made nearly a century and a
it wo, With some of the evidence collected at the present time by your Committee.
ItV%0 be observed among other things, that the navigation of these unknown seas
Droten characterized as safe and comparatively easy ;-now this facility of ap.
veReh and this safety are found to be confirmed in our time. And if the number of
otsent out by the Company is less in our time, it is because since the establish.

A fet railways to the south of Manitoba, it cost them less to export by this route
PQeto ortion of the goods that they formerly dispatched by way of Moose or York

tay h Besides it is shown by the evidence annexed to this Report, that Hudson's
4Ny, for several years not been frequented only by vessels belonging to the Com-

totthT .he hardy sailors of New England, periodically betake themselves to the
slandPart Of the Bay to carry on the whale fishery, usually wintering on Marble

booty, and sailing back the following season with their vessels laden with a rich
1kd Mention is in fact made of an American who bas established a post on

ayje s Strait. Fishermen from Dundee, Scotland, also occasionally visit Hudson's

lit is Well known that the question of navigating Hudson's Bay has suddenly
"et thi ta new nimportance. It is ever the problem of finding a North West passage,Sveste 11 order to reach the China seas, but to gain access to the immense

10, wheat which await, in the prairies of the west, the European buyer.
th, ngrant arg proportion of importation from Europe would take this road; the
t4 delaa proceeding westward would see that they could shorten the annoyances,Sex " and the costs of a journey across the continent by some 800 to 900 miles;ettdPortsf butchers' meats would alone furnish a considerable portion of the lading

nAand aay steamers; and many persons are of opinion that this route would
0s f t e nsiderable portion of the import and export trade of the north-western

, of the Uion. We speak merely incidentally of the Hudson's Bay fisheries,
bu fo orking of the minerals, almost inexhaustible in their richness, which are

eorfor tre. To sum up the whole, Hudson's Bay appears to us to be destined

the St $same service for the vast territories of the North-West that the Gulf
ctrehill is 2 renIce does for the vast and fertile valley bearing the samie name.

0r 0 t2,926 miles from Liverpool; Montreal is 2,990 via Cape Race, and Newe 1 rail , there is, therefore, a difference of 64 miles over the route by Montreal,
"sOver that by New York, in favour of Churchill.



Sessional Papers (No. 50.)

11. If we sum up the evidence collected by the Committee, as to the preenU of
dition of the navigation in Hudsoi's Bay and Strait, we find that the great maijoriftyf
those who have been there, and consequently who know, reckon the duratioi
navigation in these waters at three and four months. For more than two hut'
and fifty years, sailors have counted upon having an uninterrupted navigation ofjO
two months and one-half to three months, and this without marine charts, W el
an accurate knowledge of these waters, without lighthouses, without a system of .
graphie communication, and without the aid of steam. It is not then an U,
ranted belief, that with all the appliances now at the disposal of nautical science,
navigation will be prolonged for some weeks.

12. There also results, from the evidence gathered by your Committee, a oe
sity for the Government to examine a great number of questions intimatelY t0
nected with the navigation of Hudson's Bay and Strait. Without the interVe
of the State this navigation will remain what it is at the present moment-""
tain, of short duration, without any attraction for capitalists. In this direct
several have set forth their opinions as to the nature of the examinations whih
Government might have made, and as to the organization and character of a pro
surveying and exploring expedition. riod

13. They almost all agree in stating that these observations should cover a p e0
of at least three years, and should be conducted by means of observatories ereot ,
the shores of the Strait, as well as on certain places on the coasts of Huds@on 0øe
The information obtained cannot be said to form a complete examinatiOn r
question ; but your Committee are satisfied if they have been able, by their e e
to contribute to the critical examination, and solution of a problem which will dt
to Canada an immense development of its marine, the monopoly of the trafficO
North-West, and a fresh pledge of pr sperity and grandeur.

The whole of which is respectfully submitted.

No. 16.

Friday, 15th May, 1885, from 1.30 p.m. to 4 p.m.

BOOK-KEEPING. 
i fclue'

NoRs.-The whole work involved in the subjoined statement must be completed, inclusive o
Balance. As neither Day nor Cash book is to be used, the Journal must state the
the transactions in full.

Statement.

The County of Smith bas to repay in London, England, a loan of £20,0000
and for that purpose issues debentures to the extent of $100,000 in batches Of
each, payable 5 years apart, viz., on the 1st day of May of the years 1890
1900, and each succeeding fifth year up to A.D. 1935.

The debentures bear 5 per cent. interest, and Messrs. Mills & Co. Who
employed to dispose of them, are to receive ¾ths of 1 per cent. commissio(o%
face amount, of course).

The lst batch of $10,000 sells at an average of $95 17 per $100.
2nd ""95 79 "
3rd " " 95 86

" 4th 96 03
" 5th 96 31 "

" 6th 96 66 "
" 7th 96 65 "
" 8th 96 98 "
" 9th 97 30 "
" 10th 97 55 "

A. ogsé49 Victoria.
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The Treasurer of the Corporation deposits the proceeds in the Bank of Ottawa,
Pays Mills & Co. their commission by choque.

ý're EPinding the net proceeds will not quite suffice to pay the £20,000 stg., the
d 8Urer (pouding the collection of taxes) obtains permission from the bank to over-

l'ffor what hie may need.
Pa E0 then buys Bills of Exchange on London at 60 days for £20,000 for which ho
]M'7 (by choque on the Bank of Ottawa) 9j per cent. (over the old par, of course).
(forits the Bills to Morton & Co., London, with instructions to take up the bonds

the £- 0 000).
th, 1Morton & Co. get the Bills of Exchange discounted at 5 per cent., and charge
olneterest (60 days) to the Municipality (the County of Smith) togother with j of

Pcent. commission, which it is agreed they are to roceive for their services.
Ournalize, post, and show tte condition of the accounts.

No. 17.

SHORTHAND.

dattSaturday, the 16th May, 1885, at such a time as the Examiner and the Candi-
ltt maY arrange as most convenient. In the absence of Candidates at the hours

tkeed to th Options (or some of them) on Friday the 15th, this subject may be

theSeven (7) minutes will be .allowed for taking the notes and 25 for extending
done'. 1phO Examiner will have to be very precise in timing, and if the work is
the Ca lOs time than is allowed, ho will mark the exact extent to j of a minute on

Ardidate's papers.

Scientißc Materialism a Fallacy.

on 1 eV* Dr. Sexton, in iitroducing his subject, said that the form of skepticism
ttUterey changed, and the form which now had to be contended with was entirely
t û totO that in existence in the early part of the century. He divided the skep-
h0f the present day into three classes-scientific skepticism, the skepticism'eh deni 0 t

Partitular, es the Divine authority of the sacred records, and that which deals more
eposed y with the social side of mankind. It was of the first of these thiat ho

4ligiou h speak. The form in which the skepticism of to-day made its attack on
attack b h said, was an entirely new one-a neutral position being taken, and the

all t Made from the standpoint of ignorance. Those who took this stand
tIei selves Agnostics-a word which seemed very profound but was almostn glos. They said: in effect, "We don't know whether there is a God or not,

Yseu ton t know either." The lecturer said there was a great deal of non-
eh adO the ground that we have no direct sources of information as to the
a anod man's origin-revelation being rejected, and we being left to grope our
as a ong the phenomena of creation. The skeptic therefore said that theology

Pee ""Or peculation; while at the same time designating other great studios,
ý1 arive ntif it could be shown that the prevailing ideas concerning God had

h17 ee at by precisely the same means as wore used in the great sciences, then
rio as 9gY Was entitled to be called a science, and the highest of all sciences.
oe easked how the Copernican system of astronomy was arrived ate arra give a direct answer. The method was really by induction; the facts

elaarod ged and a theory was evolved from them and accepted as a truth when iteth facts t the facts ascortained. If it could be shown that religion squared with
denstra', then its truth was established. The lecturer drew a number of parallelst radng the force of his assertions, and spoke upon the varions experi-

ad proby supporters of both sides in the endeavour to prove their contention,
Poulded to several leading Agnostics, without receiving a single answer,

15
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what may be very briefly set forth as follows: Some form of force, it was adritte
must have been eternal; its highest form was intelligence, therefore intell -
was eternal ; intelligence involved consciousness, and consciousness involved Pebeao
ality, therefore a conscious, intelligent, personal being-God-must have e,eternal. The lecturer met one by one the various objections urged by moderu
tics, giving logical and conclusive arguments in support of his contentions.

No. 18.

TELEGRAPHY.

Saturday, 16th May, 1885, or at such time as may be arranged betweeW
Examiner, the Candidate and the Telegraph office at which the test is to be inade

The Examiner will arrange for the test with the Officer in charge of the telegr
office. gk

The telegraph operator who supervises the test, will understand that 50 to
are allowed for " sending," and 50 for " receiving." These marks mean high exCe oEh
and lower ones will indicate the estimated measure of efficiency if the higheest
not been exhibited. tr'

The operator will please mark the papers and return them by mail to the SeG
tary of the Board of Civil Service Examiners at Ottawa, together with his 0
$2 is allowed for each candidate.

Receiving the following message:-
Singleton, Dunn & Co.'s timber trade circular, dated Glasgow, 5th March, o0

tains the following statement respecting the present condition and the proBPect
the trade: taot

" A somewhat firmer tone prevails in the trade, and this is confirmed by th a
that most of the sawmillers are fully employed-indeed some of them are busY. O
our last several contracts for ships have been placed with builders, and a W e
an important Government order for six boats was received by one firm, and «01
expected some even more important orders from.the same source will find ther
here. In house building no sensible improvement is experienced; yet there areti
some very large contracts in the market which will absorb a considerable Quaof wood. General business is very dull and this acts prejudicially on the ooîlor
tion of low qualities of deals. A spring trade is talked of and this may giVea p
to things. Our Quebec trade is being more keenly than ever run with both
deals and timber and pitchpine. From both sources prices are quite easY, th W
that is caused more by the abnormal depression in freights than by any 1lWer
prices at ports of shipment. Contracting for all kinds of wood has shown fu,
average, though the Clyde has perhaps operated on a smaller scale than usal.

Send the following message:- , bl10

Dr. Bergin bas succeeded in getting Friday next fixed for the discuss10'ie
new Factory Act. The Bill as it now appears is different both from the Gxov e 1
measure of last year and also from the Act which was first intoduced by the
ber for Cornwall this session. It provides that children under thirteen yearos
not be employed in any factory; that young persons, viz., all under the ageo ey'
teen years, and women shall not be employed for more than sixty hours Per 0 5d
All the clauses of the previous Bill relating to the education of children are 0%P ro'
from this measure as being an infringment of the powers of the Local L0gsla 3tP
The rest of the Bill deals with protection from dangerous machinery; meansù
in case of fire ; cleanliness of workrooms and proper sanitary arrangement.



Vitori.j~ Sessional Paperi (No. 50) A. 1886

No. 19.

TYPE WRITING.

th e 0 obe taken on Saturday, the 16th of May, 1886, at the time most convenient to
treat ainer and the Candidates; but if Friday is not altogether occupied with the

ont of other Options, then this Option may be taken on that day.
fre 5 e Candidates must furnish their own instruments, and they will be allowed

to 10 minutes to do the work.
If done in a perfectly satisfactory manner in 5 minutes

they will be awarded.. ..................... 100 marks.
If in 6 minutes. ....................... ...... 90 "
lf in 7 " ................ 80
Ifin 8 "................ 70 "

If in 9 "................60
It in1 " ................ 50

41l Options, this included, must merit 50 marks at least in order to success.
'ille Work will be judged by time, accuracy and neatness, and the Examiners

very particular in marking upon the paper of the Candidates the exact time

PY the following article:-
d 4 American Manufacturer, noticing the fact that the British Government had

engine to firm in the United States the contract for a large number of pumping
t t0o used in forcing water through a line of four-inch pipe across the desert
rit.6il suakim and Berber, a distance of nearly three hundred miles, says:-" The

çId b overnment is about the last one from whicb orders such as those mentioned
o OXpected-for two reasons; first, because England is well supplied with

y e rtries, shipyards and skilled workmen ; and, second, because the people
thls teetofore entertained the idea that they were superior to all others in all

thei .at are Worth knowing or having. But it seems that our good cousins-witht ha er faults We love them still-have at last got their eyes open far enough to see
d fartee are at loast some things which their new-world relatives can do botter

t Iiroîet. than they. And well it is that they have, for we fear that they will havek lively tussle with the False Prophet if they do not make a liberal use of the
ethÎ ohfs, the skill and the genius which are going to waste in the land of the free

l argç hoe of the brave." The Manufacturer expresses the opinion that thanks
bngOl due to the policy of Protection in operation in the United States for

Ring 4bout such a reversal of the order of things as far as England is concerned.

No. 1.

CIVIL SERVICE OF CANADA.

PROMOT1ON EXAMINATION, MAY, 1885.

PENMANSHIP (30 Minutes.)
Candidates are required to observe the Regulations strict ly.
Copy the following article:-

104 SUNSHINE.

loseae Of us will remember the old fashioned parlour, with curtains
elosd ai the year round, save perhaps on some special family gathering,
an When the -minister made a pastoral call-which might be twice a year
'a for half an hour on each occasion. The consequence was a damp

17
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room and an element of disease, which only the large proportion of 0
door life could counteract.

Tho later generation is learning that not only ventilation but s911Sle
is essential to healthy living in the house. Sun light and good air are 0
much food for body and soul as are the meat and grain and vegetableI
eat.

We are too niggardly of sunshine. It cannot be too freelY hs
There is no botter physician than nature, no botter doctor than snl ,We use too little judgment in its enjoyment. It is the gift of God
great boon to man. nt

Open your windows! What if your carpets fade and other orna ote
suffer! Your children in robust bealth are the noblest ornaments of
household. the

Your own health is of more consequence than all the bric-a-brac 1,
world can gather. If either must be sacrified let it be rather the ieo
mate things which are merely the adornments, not the elements of but1 0
happiness.-T auT.

No. 2.

Values. COMPOSITION. (One hour and a half)

20 1. Show how the ambiguity of the following sentences may be re
died:- rob1

(a.) Arbitrary power I look upon as a greater evil than a h
itself, as much as a savage is a savage in a happier state of lifet
galley slave.

(b.) I have hopes that whon W. confronts him, and all the ø
on whose behalf he engages him cast kind looks and wishes Of U
at their champion, he will have some shame.

30 2. In what respect are the following extracts objectionable?
how they may be improved:-

(a.) The academy set up by Cardinal Richelieu, to amuse the itic
of that age and country, and divert them from raking into bis P f01
and ministry, brought this into vogue: and the French wits ha
this last age, been wholly turned to the refinement of their stY
language; and, indeed, with such success that it can hardly be 4e
and runs equally through their verse and their prose. 0,1

(b.) The Britons, daily harassed by the Picts, were forced t.oqgp
in the Saxons for their defence, who, after having repelled the i ito
ers, turned their arms against the Britons themselves, drovO t W
the most remote and mountainous parts of the kingdom, and l tb
the greater part of the island under their dominion, So that, 1 1
course of a century and a half, the country became almOst
Saxon in customs, religion and language.

50 3. Write an official letter to the Deput y Minister of your Dep
in regard to some supposed irregularity that has occurred in yOlr *ofy
showing how it was diecovered, what means have been taken to reo'

-- &c. (This letter to contain not fewer than 250 words.)
100
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No. 3.
Vaîlu

CONSTITUTION OF CANADA-(B. N. AcT.) 1 hour.

1. Which Government is entrusted with the defence of the country ?20 2. What are the powers of the Governor General ?10 3. What are the causes for which a Senator may lose his seat ?
4. By what means can the Provincial Constitutions and the Federal

20 Constitution be amended ?
5. What Legisiature posseseses the power to make laws on the follow-

ing subjects, viz., the regulation of trade and commerce ; navigation and
quarantine , property and civil rights ; banking, prisons, reformatories,

20 penitentiaries, marriage and divorce ?
1,0 6. What are the provisions of the Act of 1867 regarding education ?

7. Can a resolution affecting the publie chest be presented to the Senate-?
100 I

No. 4.

DUTIES-POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT. (1j Bours.)

NOTE-The 4 duties " question papers are prepared by the Deputy
5 Ueads of Departments, who also judge of' the answars.

1. Under what circumstances are redirected letters forwarded without
5 extra charge ?

2. What should be done with a letter having affixed thereon a postage
5 stam3p which had been previously used ?

3. What are the limits in length and width of a packet of miscellane.
5 ous matter ?

4. What is the Post Office definition of a circular, and what is the rate
5 I of Postage thereon ?

5. In what way can book packets posted in Canada for delivery in the
SDominion be registered, and what is the fee ?

6. If a parcel be posted insufficiently pregaid, to what additional post-
.5 age does it become liable ?
t 7. What should be done with an insufficiently prepaid registered letter ?

8. What is done with money contained in Dead Letters, the writer of
6 Whieh cannot be found ?

9. What is the charge, if any, upon a Canada Post Card addressed to
S Te Unlited States ?

10. Name half a dozen of the principal countries comprised in the
10 Postal Union and a similar number of those not in the Union.

11. las the Postmaster General power to enter into contract for per-
fornance of Mail Service without inviting tenders, and if so, within what

12. Can the Postmaster General renew a mail contract, if so, for what
10 erm, and upon what conditions ?

13. What power has the Postmaster General in respect to the convey-
10 ance of mails by Railway ?
10 14. Give an outline of the duties of a P. O. Inspector.

1 post State what you consider to be the principal duties of a City100 PotraaSte
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No. 4.

Tuesday, 19th May, 1885, 2:30 to 4 p.m.

AUDITOR-GENERAL 'S OFFICE-DUTIES OF THE OFFICE.

1. Audit Act, section 29. Describe the parliamentary proceedings which tdo
place in carrying out this section. ra

2. Change the wording of section 30 of the Audit Act so as to make it 9geu
with the practice.

3. Compare the ideas involved in, and the appropriateness of, the phrO
Exchequer Account and Receiver-General's Account. d0

4. Define any difference between the Consolidated Fund Account here an
England.

5. Give reasons for or against the part of section 50 of the Audit Act
begins at Provided and ends at passed by 1im. o the

6. Describe and give reasons for the different duties of an examiner o
account of the expenditure under departmental letters of credit.

7. Give briefly the history of Ways and Means.
8. What principles should be kept in view when classifying for Parlian2exit th

accounts of the expenditure for the year.

No. 4.

Values. DEPARTMENT OF MARINE-DUTIES-(1½ honis.)

10 1. When was the Department of Marine formed, and what dutii
imposed upon it by Acts of Parliament now in force ?

6 I 2. State the different Fnnds under control of the Departue"
what composed and how collected ? the

7 3. Give a general idea of the nature of the work perforned
Department. t rD

7 4. Name the votes usually granted for t4e expenditure of the
ment, and state the nature of the service for which they are intende

6 5. Describe the mode of making payments by the Department, f W
10 6. State the Inethod of keeping an account of the expenditure

Department, both with its officers and with the votes. .h the
7 7. What is the nature of the returns respecting expenditure Wh

law requires to be made periodically to the Auditor General? t?
6 8. What relation do Shipping Masters bear to the Departmen

returns are required of them, and how are they remunerated for theit
vices, and what are their duties? rd

6 9. Give similar information as to Harbour Masters, as reqn
previous question.

6 10. Give similar information in regard to Registrars of ShipP"g
Measuring Surveyors?

6 11. Wbat persons shall be entitled to own British ships ?
6 12. What British ships are required to be registered ? t
6 13. Describe the difference between a Certificate of Service gdra

Master or Mate, and a Certificate of Competency so granted, air n
what persons kuch certificates shal be granted ? O e6 14. What steamboats are exempt from the requirements of the
boat Inspection Act, and what Steamers are partially exempted? 0e

5 15. Name the classes of Steamboat Inspectors, and state how B
- - are claesified.

100
20
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No. 4.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR.

May, 1885.
10 1. Explain the method of balancing the accounts of the Department.
10 2. What is the tenure upon which the Government holds the Naval

Reserve Lands?
10 3. Explain the difference betwoen Capital and General Account.
10 4. In what year and under what authority were the Ordnance and

Admiralty Lands divided into two classes?
10 5. -Define the different kinds of scrip issued by the Department.

6. Where are the Orduance Lands in Class 2 principally situated?

5 7. What commission is allowed to Forest Rangers on seizures ?

8. What duty is entrusted to the Department of the Interior in cou-
nection with the Canada Military Asylum ?

9. State the practice with reference to bond.fees.

10. At what price are wood lots sold ?

11. Explain the difference in the timber dues chargeable to those who
cUt under license and under permit.

12. To what acedunt is the clerical work in connection with the survey
of Dominion Lands charged ?

13. What proportion of the cost of survey of Dominion Lands is
charged to the Hudson's Bay Company ?

14. iHlow is the expense of Homestead Inspection met ?
5

15. What expenditure at Headquarters is charged to Dominion Lands
00 rcome ?

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS.

Tide Surveyor.
at ould be the first duty of a Tide Surveyor, on the arrival at his port of

If a oreign country?
For? 7argo foud on board, what steps should be taken by the Tide

40 ieeOn ber What conditions only, should such cargo be allowed by the Customs
To W'h, tO be landed from such vessel?

Plc 5 ' What don lly, should the goods from such vessel be delivered ?
Per disharouent would form a guide for the Tide Waiter on board, as to the

ge of cargo ?
21
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6. When a day's work is completed, but the vessel is not wholly discharged'
what is the duty of the Tide Survyor ?

7, When the unloading of the vessel is completed, what is the duty of the Tid
Surveyor before he relieves such vessel from the superintendence of the Tide 'Waiter
in charge ?

8. Should other goods than the necessary ships' stores be found on board sac
vessel after her complete discharge according to the manifest, what should be do?

9. What penalties would be incurred through the finding of any goods, in ese
on board such vessel ?

10. In what case only, would such penalties not be exacted ? blO11. If a vessel were not wholly discharged at sunset, and there was no avail '
Tide Waiter to place in charge for the night, what precaution should be taken before
the vessel was left by the officer in charge ?

12. To what fine would the Captain of the vessel be subject, if any hatchwo
fastened by the Custom officer, were afterwards opened by such Captain, or with
assent?

13. If such fine were not paid by the Captain, what might be done to ensutre
payment?

14. State the penalty incurred by any person who procures, hires or indues
person or persons to be concerned in the landing of any goods for which perin1Q6
has not been granted by the Collector or proper officer of Customs ?

15. If, after goods are so illegally landed, any person knowingly conceals
same, to what penalty does such person subject himself ?

16. What goods have been designated as coming properly within the toe
"Ships' Stores," for sailing vessels ?

17. What should be added to such list in the case of a steam vessel? fride
18. If a Canadian vessel arrives in port, and on being boarded by the the

Surveyor the Captain states he has only made a coasting voyage, what should be
action of the Tide Surveyor ?

19. If the goods on board a sea-going vessel on her arrival in port are f1 d
be in excess of those which should properly be claimed as ship's stores (and Ioff
be part of the alleged cargo) what should be done with such excessive ships' stor

20. If the captain de-iras to hava the sim for future use, what may be doue
VALUE-5 marks for each question.

DEPARTMENT OF INDIAN AFFAIRS.

t Correspondence Branch.

1. State concisoly the duties which appertain to the Branch in which Yo0
employed. loi

2. Give a short description of the course through which an official col'tt 1 I a
tion received by the Department, and referring to previous correspondene, s119
pass before it reaches your Branch for reply. 0ror

3. State the precautions, if any, which are observed to guard against er' jofr
the extension of a note into a draft, and the transcription of a draft into the
of a letter. b 0

4. What number of employés are engagad in the Correspondence Braco
how are the duties divided amongst them ? .re'

5. When one or more enclosures are to accompany a letter, what spect '
cautions, if any, are taken that the letter shall not be transmitted without the the

5. State what you know respecting the duties which belong exclusively oo
Registry Branch of the Dopartment, what methods are used in tracing correS?
ence, and how files are kept with a view to easy reference.

«A. 1gg649 Victoria.
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hef. Of what branches other than the Correspondence and Registry Branches
4atur mentioned, is the Department of Indian Affairs composed? state in a few words'If the duties performed in each.
se eral Prom what source are money payments made on account of the Indians in the

ai Provinces of the Dominion other than Ontario and Quebec derived ?
thro • Give the organization of the Department as regards its outside service
wha ahout the Dominion; name the principal officers, where they are located, and

are the duties performed by each.
o• NaIne the agencies in British Columbia ; state their position to each other
R Phically, and give the boundaries of the North-West Coast Ageney.

4Lu&-1 0 marks to each question.

Statistical Brancn.

ÀfaState the particular duties assigned to you in the Department of Indian

Yhie -Namne the several kinds of statistics the examination and compilation of
e18 confided to your Branch of the Department.

4aY * n what way is the Department kept advised of the work done from day to
ràt the f the progress made by the pupils in the varions Indian schools through-

4ith 1orinion.al teaWhat rates of remuneration are granted to teachers of Indian schools ? Are
xit, ahn paid alike? and if not, state what differences in the mode of payment
.a" tËhe Cause therefor.

1e * the average attendance of pupils during any quarter ascertained ?

18 te What places in Ontario are Indian Industrial Schools established ? What
o4 st the Department per pupil at the Mount Elgin Institution, and in what

7 t'O Industrial Sohool at Wikwemikong paid by the Department ?
lEtaS the Industrial School system been extended beyond the Province of%tat ? If 1 s, name the other Province or Provinces in which it is established;te Zhyere they are located and say in what manner schools of that nature outside

lie rovice of Ontario are maintained-whether the cost is defrayed by a yearly
sOt or each pupil, and if not, in what other way, and how funds for the pur-

8e c0e available
poi4ts , 1s a census of the Indians obtained, and what, in detail, are the salient

ID a census return ?
gents YOd keep records of Government property under the charge of Indian

re tht State the periods at which the returns are submitted and the
10. yr0 examnination they undergo in ordor to test their correctness.

'Or4 what fund are schools in the Maritime Provinces built and maintained ?
0 marks to each question.

No. 4.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.

. aDuties-Secreiary.
he W Year after Confederation was the Act regarding the Department of

2.( passed ?
, accordig to the said Act, are the duties of the Secretary ? Give the

D88et 'what Act of Parliament was the Department of Public Works, as at
qo, ". Thr ng, constituted ?

eri rongh what medium can the Secretary communicate to the Provincialen Its, the decisions or demands of the Department which concern them?
23
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5. By what means are properties required for the use of the Department boght
or others sold which are no longer needed ?

6. Of how many branches is the Department of Public Works composed? Na
them.

7. Over what Public Works does the Department exercise control?
8. Of how many Departments is the Government of Canada composed ?

the names of the Ministers, the Deputy Ministers and the Secretaries.
9. Through what hands in the Department must a letter from outside, relat

to Public Works pass, from its reception until the question to which it relatee
settled ?

10. By what process are the contractors for Public Works paid ?
VALUE-10 marks to each question.

No. 4.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.

Duties of Accountant.
Value.

5 1. What is the system of book-keeping in use in the Accouanting 13ra0b
of the Department of Public Works?

5 2. HEow many sets of books are there used ?
5 3. Give the names of the books in each set ? ce
5 4. Through what set of books do the payments made by the Fia

office pass ? ade
5 5. Through what set of books do the payments pass which are

'directly to the Department of Public Works? ode
4 6. On·what side of the Ledger would you enter the payments

on account of grants ?
5 7. If 'entries had to be made in the Individual Ledger on whst

would you enter the payments ?
6 8. Would you pay an account drawn up in this form

The Minister of Public Works,
Dr. To M. Samson,

For wood furnished to the Public Buildings,
Ottawa.............................................. $225 43

8 9. If no, give the reasons for refusing the said payment. ertl
6 10. Who are the officiais of the Department required to er

accounts before payment can be authorized.
11. By whom are the accounts certified ?

(a) For expenses on Public Buildings.
8 (b) For expenses on Harbors, Piers and Slides.

(c) For expenses on Telegraph lines.
(d) For expenses on heating and lighting the Public Buildin"or

8 12. To what grant would yon charge an account of M. Bosango $t.
books and stationery furnighed to the Superintendent of Works "
Maurice. garth

10 13. Two years ago the Department advanced $2,500 to Mr.Jea0 Se
contractor, on account of his contract for the erection of a Custoln toc
at Batoche, N.W.T. The building being now completed the cfolter

demands payment of the balance due him (82,000). The M N'10
authorized the said payment out of the grants placed at his dispOs'o
1881-5. To which of these grants would you charge this paymen f

10 14. The Engineer-in.Chief has transmitted to the D3partmenf del for
ment a progressive estimate (No 3) in favor of Gaspard TIU

24
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8255,850. Orders have been given to pay what may be due the con-
tractor:-

The first estimate was for........................... $155,260
The second do do .............. ............ 220,640
The third do do ... ................... .. 253,850

What was the actual amount of the two first payments, and what will be
the amount of the third after deducting a reserve of 10 per cent. in each
case.

15. What are the sums carried to the credit of Mr. Trudel in each of

100 these cases.

No. 4.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.

Duties in Connection with the Correspondence Branch.
10 1. In how many branches is the Department divided, and who are the

5 persons at the head of each ?
2. Who is the Officer of your Department who has the general direc-

5 tion of the correspondence ?
5 3. Under whose cmntrol are the Archives of the Department ?

4. By what Officer is the erection of Wharves, Piers and Slides con-
5 trolled ?

5. Under whose charge is'the erection and repairs of the Public Build-
10 ings ?

6. What is the usual classification in the Department of the different
o works under its control, in regard of the books of reference ?

7. What is the average number of letters sent and received by the
10 Department per annum ?

8. If you receive a letter from outside, what will you do in reference
10 to it before the question, of which it may treat, is examined ?
10 9. When the matter is settled, what will be done with the letter ?

10. When the answer to a letter has been signed by the Secretary,
10 What will you do with it before and after it has been despatched ?

11. Which Bepartment pays the cost of works performed under the
bepartment of Public Works after the proper officer has granted the

10 Inecessary certificate ?
12. What are the hours, coming and leaving, by the officers of the

100 Department, and can they go out during the day ?

NOVEMBER, 1885,

No. 1.

CIVIL SERVICE OF CANADA.

PRELIMINARY OR LOWER GRADE EXAMINATION.

Tuesday, 10th November, 1885, from 10 a.m. to Il a.m.

PENMANSHIP.

al1  (The candidates must observe the Rules strictly.)
608' Copy the Following extracts:-

&. Portuguese sailor-Magellan--was the first to circumnavigate the
earth. and has left his name stamped forever upon the geography of the
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The gallant Drake, an Englishman, explored the north-west coas o
America as far as Oregon, and followed in Magellan's wake around the
world.

From earlv in the century the maritime nations of Europe pursued the
whale in the Gulf of St Lawrence and fished for cod on the banks of NOg
foundland. In 1578 four hundred vessels gathered the harvest of the Oes
upon these fertile banks. One hundred and fifty were French, and the
rest were English. A profitable trade in peltry along the seaboard a0
far up the St. Lawrence had also sprung up, and is yet, to some ext®
carried on, but the fur-bearing animals have been nearly driven intO the
interior and uninhabited parts of the country. he

In 1497-98 the Portuguese navigator, Vasco de Gama, rounding
Cape of Good Hope, reached the Coast of India-the chief object of the
voyages of discovery of this period.

No. 2.

PRELIMINARY (OR LOWER GRADE) EXAMINATION.

Tuesday, 10th November, 1885, from 11 a.m. to noon.

ORTHOGRAPBT.

Copy the following extract, correcting the errors in the spelling (
have been purposely introduced); 3 marks will be doducted for
mistake.

The reall discovrer of Canada was Jacques Cartier, a natif of St- too
Value, in Britanny. On the 20th of April,1534, he salod from that porte Wlho'

60 small vessells of about sixtey tans eech, and acumpanny in awl of 0 100
dred and twenty too men. In twentey days he reeched the cost of h ybe
foundland, were he was detaned ton dayes by the iso. Saling throogh09

I Strates of Belle Isle he skanned the barron cost of Labrador, and troa
south-westward, passed the Magdalen Islands, abbounding in bardS, t
and berris. On a butiful daye in July ho enterred the large baye toog
on account of the grate heet ho gave the name of Des Chaleurs. > if
at the rockey hedland of Gaspé ho ereckted a large cross bearin thef bid
sheild of France, and tooke posession of the cuntry in the naira 0
Soverein Francis lst. Takin with him too of the natifs, from Whoo

1 learned the ecsistence of a grate river, ho saled up the gulf of St·- b
I ronce til ho coold sea the land on either side. The seeson being %'

ressolved to return, postponing further ecsplorations til the f0log
summer.
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No. 3.

ARITHMETIC.

Tuesday, 10th November, 1885, from 1:30 p.m. to 3 p.m.

1. Express in words the following sums:
100,032,000

300,005
10,024

5,303,609
90,007,020

yalue
60

Por-

lnt

>ioli 3

50 '

5

8
5
9

$898,003.71
1,200,385.29

707,941.85
3,365,892.25

311.90

£619 163. 11d.
1,308 13 9
2,277 5 5

141,919 il il
13 14 2

£

er from the larger sum-
$903,875,643.17
394,986,754.28

8

1,897,679,113,422 by 9
9

Multiply 721,985,346 by 5678.
Multiply 86,935.18 by $325.50.
Livide $896,775.25 by 5.
Divide 35,648,217,900 by 5899.

2. Add up.

3. Add up-

4. Add up-

5. Substract the small

6. Multiply

A. 1886
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No. 4.

Reading treated as at the May examination, which See.

No. 5.

QUALIFYING OR HIGHER GRADE EXAMINATION.

PENMANSIP.

Wednesday, 11th Nov., 1885, from 9:38 a.m. to 10:30 a.m.

Copy the following paper. Flourishing and fanciful letters are
desirable. A plain, neat and easily read hand will find most favor.

THE PROPER FUNOTION OF KNOWLEDGE.

Value, To find right remedies or right methods. Hore is the groat fanctioo
100 of knowledge; here the life of one man may mako a fresh era strai

marks. away, in which a sort of suffering that has existed shall exist no more. tha
the thousands of years, down to the middle of the sixteenth century,
human limbs had been hacked and amputated, nobody know how to
the bleeding except by searing the ends of the vessols with red-hot iroh
But then came a man named Ambrose Paré, who said, " Tie UP of
arteries !" That was a fine word to utter. It contained the statexlOet
a method-a plan by which a particular evil was for ever assuaged.
us try to discuss the men whose words carry that sort of kernel, and 0boO0

such men to be our guides and reprosentatives-not choose platfora 9e
gerers, who bring us nothing but the ocean to make our broth with. AC

To get the chief power into the hands of the wisest, is a probl
old as the very notion of wisdom. Selfishness, stupidity, sloth, pers" Id
trying to adapt the world to their desires, till a time comes when the WOr
manifests itself as too decidedly inconvenient to them. To discern betwoor

the evils that energy can remove and the evils that patience mast begr
makes the difference between manliness and childishness, botwoOnf g00
sense and folly.-From Address to Workingmen, by Felix Rolt. Essays O
" George Eliot."

No. 6.

Wednesday, 11th November, 18C5, from 10:30 a.m. to noOn.

Value. COMPOSITION.

14 1. Define nouns, adjectives and adverbial clauses. In the following
tences indicate the clauses and give the kind to which each belo cJ
The sea which washes the shore of Britain is her best defence. 0 qer
easily explain the reason ho aeted so. % Whilst ho was thinkn the
the matter, the messenger arrived. Where have you been? W
first question asked. aile

12 2. Distinguish between simple, complex and compound sentences.
an example of each' 01

10 3. Form into a single compound sentence the following simple senteoc10
Ie passed through many adventures.

28



Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 50.) A. 1888

He assumed many disguises.
He wandered about in imminent peril during forty-one days.
He escaped in a sloop to Shoreham.
He arrived safe at Fecamp.

10 W Fecamp is in Normandy.
4. What is meant by a rhetorical arrangement of words in sentences ?

How is it characterized ? Give three examples with explanations.
8 5. Distinguish between direct and indirect forms of speech. Give an

example of each.
6. Write a letter of not less than 250 words on the sanitary measures proper

00 to be used in cities and towns for the preservation of health and pre-
venting the ravages of infectious disease.

No. 7.

Wednesday, llth Nov., 1885, from 1.30 p.m. to 3 p.m.

NoTI--The work of each question must be fully given.

10 ARITHMETIC.
1. Find the compound interest on 84,000 at 6 per. cent. per annum for

10 three years (computed yearly).
2. A cistern containing 480 gallons can be filled by one pipe in 32

minutes, by another in 24 minutes, and can be emptied by a third in 16
minutes. If the cistern be empty, and all the pipes open at once, in what

15 time will it be filled ?
3. A bankrupt owes 85,641.25 to A, $3,020.50 to B, and $2,789.75 to

0; his estate is worth $7,424. How much can ho pay in the dollar, and
what will A, B and 0 receive respectively ?

15 4. Simplify 7t+1ll_ 3:t+¾
25 8+3¾¾ 3¾+14 e5. A broker in England advises abroker in Toronto to credit a Loaning

Company with £3,600 sterling. The bank credits the Company with
25 817,430. Find the rate of exchange.

6. Two merchants trade together, A's share in the business being three-
fourths. At the dissolution of the co-partnership the stock in hand
amounted to S [2,820 and the debts due the firm to 818,290. A has the
debts assigned to him at 75 cents in the dollar, and B takes the goods at
5 per cent. discount. How will matters stand between them?

No. 8.

Wednesday, 11th November, 1885, from 3:30 p.m. to 4:30 p.m.

i .1 iEOOGRAPHY.

1. Nane of the different Provinces in Canada and their Capitals. State
2 2. also the populations of the said cities, according to the last census.
15 • What are the principal rivers, canals and raitways in Canada ?

. What are the principal seaporta on the eastern and western coasta of
10 Canada and the ports in the interior, viz., on rivers and lakes ?

- Name the largest mountains in the Provinces of Quebec and British
Columbia.
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10 5. By what Canadian railways will one be able to travel at an early
from the ports in Nova Scotia to those of British Columbia ? to

10 6. What course must a vessel take from Liverpool, in England, in order
reach British Columbia ?

10 7. Name four-in each country-of the chief cities of England, Irelas
I and Scotland.

10 8. What are the principal seaports of France and Belgium ?
5 9. Name the largest rivers and the most considerable seaports le

United States.

No. 9.

Thursday, 12th Nov., 1885, from 9.30 a.m. to 11 a.m.

100 BRITISH AND CANADIAN HISTORY.

10 1. State the alleged causes of the war, of 1812, between Great Britaî
and the United States, in which Canada was also involved.

5 2. Specify the population of the United States and that of Canada
that juncture. i

10 3. Explain the ultimate object of the American GovernmLent tbe
entering upon the sanguinary war, and indicate the political party 10
United States by whom it was promoted. «ak,

10 4. Did the United States reap any real benefits from the - â
and if you think so, mention what they were; if the reverse, explai
fully as you can ? the

10 5. Give some account of the causes of dissension between t
Legislative Assembly of Lower Canada, about the year 1827, a13
Governor General.

10 6. How were the difficulties overcome ? ? bi
5 7. In what year was the first steamboat run on the St. Lawrence

whom ? and on what route? rar
5 8. How was the produce of Upper Canada brought down to MI0

at that time ? Ote
5 9. When were Lakes Erie and Ontario so connected as tO 0re

a navigable passage? by what means ? and by whom was the 0

projected ?
5 10. Who was the first Mayor of Toronto? What was he ? and

did he acquire his influence? lea10
5 11. Who was Lieutenant Governor at that time; why did he

and who succeeded him? d a
10 12. Indicate briefly the nature of the relations between England

Scotland during the Stuart ru le. g:
10 13. What causes led to the passing of the Act of Union betWeeu t

land and Scotland ? What were its principal terms and what its efe

No. 10.

Thursday, 12th Nov., 1885, from 11 a.m. to noon.

Values. GRAMMAR.

6 1. Mention the different ways in which adjectives can be compared,
examples.

A. I
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12 2. Distinguish between the use of later and latter, latest and last, farther
and further.

6 3. In what respect do Interrogative Pronouns chiefly differ from Rela-
tives ?6 4. How are verbs divided with respect to their forms ? Give examples.

8 b. Define regular, irregular, defective, redundant and impersonal verbs.

8 Give an example of each.
6. A verb may be conjugated affirmatively, negatively, interrogatively as

well as interrogatively and negatively. Give an example of each.
7. Correct the following sentences, where necessary, and give reasons for

correction :
a. Al the virtues of mankind are to be counted upon a few fingers,

but his follies and vices are innumerable.
b. It is undoubtedly true what I have heard with respect to bis

commng.
c. What i the cause of the leaves curling ?
d. At this stage of advancement, there is little difficulty in the

pupil's understanding the passive and neuter verbs.
e. Who dares apologize for Pizarro ? Who is but another name for

rapacity.
f. Some people are rash and others timid; these apprehend too

much, those too little.
g. Wert thou some star, which from the ruin'd roof

19 Of shak'd Olympus by mischance didst fall?
8. Parse all the words in the following:

Th' Egyptian Crown I to your hands remit;
And with it take his heart who offers it.

No. 11.
Wednesday, 11th November, 1885.

ORTHOGRAPHY.

NorTI.-Many ot the words in this exercise are purposely mispelled, and it will tlere-
ore be the duty of the candidates to give the proper spelling. For every error 5

tflarks Will be deducted.

100. JAMES ANTHONY FROUDE.

His STILi.-Mr. Froude is amung the best mastirs, liveing or ded, of
the art off riting the English langwidge. His sentenses are allways cleer,
Plane and compleat; there is no slovanliness, no opscurity, and no deffi-
ciency. The reeder is saved all unnecessary effort, and has no nead to go
back and dissintangle the thred of the thought in some illaddjusted qualli-
fying Clauss. He illustrates Mr. Herbert Spencer's principple of stile by
eeconomising the atention of the reeder. Floawing, perspiccuou, and

abundant as Mr. Froude's stile is, it seldom atracks atention to itself. Pro-
bably most of his reeders purruse his works without anny fealing that
they are those of a finished mastir of the art of riting. But a stile wich
had onley the quality we have naimed would fail short of the best.
Smnoothe and cleer staitment is of innestimabel vallue; but in the best
itterature there are higher qualities. When we quoat him we must

quoat him for his thought as well as for his stile. Probably no other
liVeing riter has sayed so many wise things so well. Mr. Froude's career
t a nan of letters is a new prooff that adverse circumstances are useful

o n of strength. If he had not been driven to " make his way acros
cOuntrey on the back of litterature," it is not probable that he would have
o marked his jorney as to interest mankind in the viseissitudes of his life.
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No. 12.

Thursday, 12th November, 18-5, from 2.30 p.m. to 3.30 p.m.

TRANSORIPTION.

CONDITIONS-to be carefully considered by the Candidates.
This exercise is in the nature of a rough manuscript draft, which

Value. candidate is expected to reproduce in proper form. The interlinoqtibo
and marginal additions are to be embodied at the proper places in

100 text, and the words scored out must of course be omitted. With Co
a perfect copy may very easily be made, and therefore the merit O
performance will be estimated by the accuracy and neatness disPlaytep
For every blot, blur, omission and error in orthography, from one to DI marks will be forfeited. Conspicuous siovenliness in writing will also
similarly treated, .oted

The Examiners will deliver to each Candidate one of these pri
slips with the lithographed paper to be transcribed.

No. 13.
OPTIONAL SUBJECTS.

FRENCH COMPOsITION.

Value, This exercise is to be taken by the Candidates who took conposîtl
100 in the English at the Qualifying Examintion.

1. Correct the following phrases:-
5 (a.) Personne est content de son sort.
5 (b.) Je suis faim; je suis soif.
5 (c.) Cet homme et femme sont aimable.
5 (d.) L'un et l'autre a subi son examen avec succès.
5 (e.) Ce navire est entré et est sorti du port de Montréal hier. 0 t

25 2. Give the first person singular of the future and of the subjunctivO 0
50 following verbe :-Parler; venir; voir; prendre. O

3. Write a letter of about 250 words (in French of course) to a fri 0
the importrnce of cultivating habits of industry and persevera0
order to success in life.

No. 14.

TRANSLATION (English into French.)

Friday, 13th November, 1885, from 9:30 a.m., to 10:30 a.1
This exercise is for the Candidates who have taken the QOa1

Value, Examination subjects in English.

100 THE EARLIEST PRINTED BooKs.

The first book that was issued from the presses of Faust and bis as
ates at Mentz was an edition of the Vulgate, commonly called the ga
Bible, a copy having been discovered in the library that owes its
Cardinal Mazarin at Paris. This is supposed to have been 
between the years 1450 and 1455. Several copies of this book have
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to light since its discovery. In 1457 an edition of the Psalter appeared,
and in this the invention was announced to the world in a boasting
Colophon, though certainly not unreasonably bold. Another edition of the
Psalter, one of an ecclesiastical book, Durand's account of liturgical offices,
one of the Constitutions of Pope Clement V, and one of a popular treatise
Ou general science, called the Catholicon, fill up the interval till 1462, when
the second Mentz Bible proceeded from the same printers. This, in the
Opinion of some, is the earliest book in which cast types were employed;
those of the Mazapine Bible having been eut with the hand. But this is
a controverted point. In 1465 Faust and Schoeffer publisbed an edition
of Cicero's Offices, the first tribute of the new art to polite literature. Two
Pupils of their school, Sweenheim and Pannartz, migrated the same year
Ulto Italy, and printed Donatus' g-ammar and the works of Lactantius, at
the moi astry of Subiaco, in the neighborbood of Rome. Venice had the
honor of extendiug her patronage to John of Spira, the first who applied
the art on an extensive scale to the publication of classical writers. The
last twenty years of the Middle Ages, according to the date. which I have
fixed for their termination in treating of political history, might well invit-
one by their brilliancy to dwell upon that golden morning of Italian litere
ture, but in the history of letters they rather appertain to the modern thaa
to the middle period.-Benry Blallam's " Middle Ages."

No. 15.

Friday, 13th November, 1885, from 10:20 a.m. to 12:30 p.m.

PRECIS.

Aý th NO'TI-Give, within about one-fourth of the space taken by the following documents,
100 contents and substances of the sane, specifying each paper in the order in which it

ppeais. The whole must be done with neatness and accuracy, as the manner of the per-
lormance will tell upon the value which may by aHixed thereto. No account will be taken
of papers estimated to be of smaller value than 50 marks.

RETURN
To an Address of the Bouse of Commons, dated 28th March, 1884:-

For copies of all Despatches, Correspondence and Papers having
reference to the notice given to the «United States Goverument, terminat-
ing the Fibhery clauses of the Treaty of Washington, or relating to any
Inegotiations that may have been opened, or steps taken by the Govern-
Imrent, on the subject of the use, by American Fishermen, of the Sea Fisheriesof the Dominion, in view of the approaching termination of those Fisheryclauses,

By Command,
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

Secretary of State.
WASHINGTON, 16th January, 1883,

th SIR,-I have the honor to enclose to you, herewith, printed copy ot
t J 2nt Resolution, introduced into the Senate, providing for the termina-

tjon Of Articles 18 to 25, inclusive, and Article 30 of the Treaty betweenthe United States of America and Her Britannie Majesty, of 8th May, 1871.
I have, &c.,

L. S. SACKVILLE WEST.
entenant-General Sir PATRICK L. MACDOUGALL, K.O.M.G.

oi t [PUBLIO RIESOLUTION-NO. 20.]
nt Resolution providing for the termination of Articles numbered

eighteen to twenty-five, inclusive, and Article numbered thirty of the
Treaty between the United States of America and Her Britannie
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Majesty, concluded at Washington, May eighth, eighteen hand1W
nd seventy-one.

Resolved by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United State
Anerica in Congress assembled:-
That in the judgnient of Congress the provisions of Articles numb

eighteen to twenty-five, inclusive, and of Article thirty of the Trea
Ibetween the United States and Her Britannic Majesty, for an am10a
isettlement of all causes of difference between the two countries, conclad
at Washington on the eighth day of May, anno Domini eighteen hun1dred s0
seventy-one, ought to be terminated at the earliest possible time, and beI
longer in force, and to this end the President be, and he hereby is, direooa
to give notice to Hier Britannic Majesty that the provisions of each
every of the Articles aforesaid will terminate and be of no force o
expiration of two years next after the time ot giving such notice. , 4

SEC. 2. That the President be, and he hereby is, directed to g1. 0o
communicate to the Government of Her Britannic Majesty such noticAe
such termination on the first day of July, anno Domini eighteen hun
and eighty-three, or as soon thereafter as may be. by

SEc 3. Than on and after the expiration of two years' time requ'd
said Treaty, each and every of the said Articles shall be deemed and
to have expired and be of no force and effect, and that every Depart¶
of the Government of the United States shall execute the laws of the 11 if
States (in the premises), in the same manner and to the same effect o$as
said Articles had never been in force; and the Act of Congress, apPIov,
March lst, anno Domini, eighteen hundred and seventy-three, int the
" An Act to carry into effect the provisions of the Treaty betweO' te
United States and Great Britain, signed in the City of Washington the
eighth day of May, eighteen hundred and seventy-one, relating to
fisheries," so far as it relates to the Articles of said Treaty s0 to be ter
ated shall be and stand repealed, and be of no force on and after the ti0
the expiration of said two years.

Apiproved 3rd Mard, 1883. WASHINGTON, 27th February; 18 eo
My Loa,-With reference to my despatch of yesterday's date,

Ithe honor to report that the Senate Joint Resolution for the termina
jArticles 18 to 25 and 30 of the Treaty of Washington, was yesterdaY r
third time in the Eouse, and passed.

I enclose, at the same time, a report of the Congressional Record "o
speech made by Mr. Rice, of the Committee on Foreign Affairs, esPlaitb
the reasons why the United States Government is anxious to don ouflnO
fishery clauses. b the

They are briefly that, in their opinion, the fisheries are not worar f$
sum awarded by the Halifax Commission, and that as the tern of ye0 yt
which compensation was awarded expires next year, the United S âle
would, were no stops taken to free themselves from this obligation, lot
Ito be again called upon to pay largely for privileges which thoY

1 consider worth keeping.

The Earl Granville, K.G. DUDLEY E. SAUR 50tb
Mr. Rice, of Massachusetts:-I think if the gentleman from 1n',,ti1 fy

will hear the explanation which I will briefly give, it may, perhaPl, o b
him on all points, with reference to the propriety of the adoptiou,0 ted t0d
measure. By the Treaty of Washington certain sections were deO0 tb$$
rights given in British waters, to American fishermen. The amnou the
the United States was to pay for the privilege was to be settled ibo55 o'
Halifax Commission. The sum that was to be awarded by that ConI

du Victoria.
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paid for that right for the term of twelve years, and no longer, The
sum awarded by the Halifax Commission was $3,500,000. We must now
give notice, by the lst of next July, of the abrogation of these clauses of
that Treaty, and provision is contained in the Treaty for the abrogation of
these clauses, and nothing else. So that the matter stands by itself, or else
we enter upon another term, for which England may demand ample pay-
ruent from the United States according to the enormons and unjust awards
of the Halifax Commission for privileges which nobody in the United
States, who has investigated the subject, cousiders worth keeping. The
Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs unanimously reported this Resolu-
tion. It was adopted hy the Senate without an objection; and the
Committee on Foreign Affairs of this House, having fully examined
the matter, unanimously instructed me to move the adoption of the Resolu-
ition by the House, which I now do, under that instruction. With this
explanation, I trust that no objection will be made to the consideration of
the Resolution, which, I am very sure, I can satisfy everybody, ought to be
adopted to avoid liability to forther payment of an extortionate sum to
Great Britain, for that which is not considered worth anytbing to us by
parties who are interested in the matter and who have examined into it.

The Speaker.-The Chair will submit the question, whether there is
objection to the present consideration of this joint resolution ?

There was no objection.
The Speaker.-The Joint Recolution is before the House for considera-

tion. Does the gentleman from Massachusetts (Mr. Rice) desire to be
heard on it ?

Mr. Rice, of Massachusetts -I do not desire to occupy any time.
The Speaker.-Does any gentleman desire to be heard in opposition?
(After a pause). The Chair does not observe any gentleman rising in

opposition. The question is on the third reading of the Joint Resolution.
The Joint Resolution was ordered to a third reading, and it was accor-

dingly read the third time, and passed.
DOwNING STREET, 3rd May, 1883.

My Loan,-I have .the honor to transmit to you a copy of a letter
from the Foreign Office. enclosing a note from the United States Minister
ýat this Court, informing fier Majesty's Goverament that a formal notice
Will be given, on the part of the United States Governimnent, on the 2nd ofJuly next, for the termination, after two years frorn that date, of Articles
18 to 25 inclusive, and Article 30 of the Treaty of Washington, of the 8th
of May, 1873.

Although the Articles in question will remain in force for two yearsIafter the notice is given, your Government will, no doubt, agree with me
in the opinion that it is desirable that no time will be lost in taking into
cnsideration the course which it will be best to adopt in regard to the
fisheries question, on the termination of the articles of the £reaty relating
thereto.

Her Majesty's Government wili be glad if your Ministers will favor
them with their views in the matter, as soon as they may be in a position

I have, &c.,
DERBY.

vernor-General, the Right Hon. the
Marquis of Lorne, K.T., G.C.M.G.

LEGATION oF THE UNITED STATES, LoNDON, 18th April, 1883,
L ORD,-I have received to-day from Mr. Frelinghuysen a despatch

yn ing the copy of a Joint Resolution of both flouses of Congress of the
bet ed States, providing for the termintion of certain articles of the Treatyween the Uinited States of America and lier Britannic Majesty, concluded
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at Washington, 8th May, 1811, which articles, under the Protocol, si
I7th June, 1873, took effect on the lst day of July, 1873, and, by the t
of the original Treaty, are subject to termination by either party On 3 1
years' notice being given at the expiration of ten years from lst July,1 •

This Resolution, which was approved 3rd March, 1883, directs the the
dent to give notice to the Government of ler Britannic Majesty that. j
provisions of each and every of the articles numbered 18 to 25 inchls
and of Article 30 of the Treaty of 8th May, 1871, will terminate aind e
no force on the expiration of two years next after the time of giving
notice which the President is further directed to give on the lst day O
1883, or as soon thereafter as may be.

I am, therefore, instructed to comply with the directions of Co1neld
in this matter, as set forth in the Resolution, by giving the notice requi
and, as the lst day of July falls on Sunday, I am directed to give
notice on the next succeeding day.

I beg also, in compliance with farther directions, to inform your J0
ship of the, purport of this instruction, and of my contemplated ac
under it.

I have, &c.J

The Right Hon. the Earl of Granville, K.G.
DOWNING STREET, 30th January, 188 4d- o

M LOD -With reference to my despatches of the 3rd of May 2an
the 28th December last, I have the honor to request that you Wl ' o
your Government to take an early opportunity of placing me in poss eb-
of their views as to the course to be pursued in consequence of the appros
ing termination of the fishery articles of the Treaty of Washington. d

In connection with this subject, you will, no doubt, have observe t
sugges.tion contained in an early part of the Message of the Preside®
the United States, communicated to the two Houses of Congress on th
of December last.

I have, &c., pBY3

Governor General, the Most Honorable
the Marquis of Lansdowne.

LEGATION OF THE UNITED STATES, LONDON, 2nd July, 18
My LoR,-Referring to my note to Your Lordship of the 18th

last, and to Your Lordship's reply of the 27th of the rame month,
the honor to recapitulate the statements I made in that note, to the i.
ing effect: That I received, on the said 18th April, a despatch fr00 :
Frelinghuysen inclosing the copy of a joint resolution of both JJl
Congress of the United States, providing for the termination of corer
articles of the Treaty between the United States of America and 1i
Britannic Majesty, concluded at Washington on the 6th May, 1871 i
Articles, under the Protocol signed on the 7th June, 1873, took effect nP
lst July, 1873, and, by the terms of the original Treaty, are subject ti 01
mination by either party on two years' notice given at the expira
ten years from the lst July, 1873. This resolution, which was 1W erp
Ion the 3rd March, 1883, directs the President to give notice to the e of
jment of Her Britannic Majesty that the provisions of each and
the Articles numbered 18 to 25 inclusive, and of the Article 30 y?
Treaty of the 8th May, 1871, will terminate and be of no force on the O
ration of two years next after the time of giving such notice; wi tr
President is further directed to give on the stJuly, 1883, or a
after as may be, t'

1 am, therefore, instructed by the President of the United St1,ibe
comply with the direction of Congrese in this matter, as set forth
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Resolution, by giving the notice required; and as the lst July falls on
Sunday, I am further instructed to give this notice on the succeeding day.

I do, therefore, this 2nd day of July, 1883, on behalf of the President
Of the United States, hereby give notice to the Government of Her Britannio
Majesty that the provisions of each and every of the Articles numbered 18

, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25 and 30 of the Treaty of the 8th May, 1871, between
,the United States of America and Her Britannic Majesty, will terminate
and be of no force on the expiration of two years next after the time of
giving such notice.

I have, &C., J. R LOWELL.

No. 16.

Friday, 13th November, 1885, from 1.30 p.m. to 4.30 p.m.

BOOK-KEEPING.

NorE.-As no Day Book is required, the business recorded in the
Statement of Transactions must be given in detail in the Journal entries,
but need not be repeated in the Ledger. A Balance Sheet will be wanted
Showing the total debits and credits-and the balances of course-when
there are balances.

ASSETS.
M. Oliver Boswell, of Quebec, pursues no regular calling, but is ready

to enter into any speculations which seem to promise good returns. On
1st May, 1885, his assets are as under:-

No. 1. Cash, $27,825.
2. 50 Shares Chaudière Bank Stock, 850 each, bonght at 15 per

cent. discount.
3. 10 Rai lway Bonds of $ 1,000 each, bought at 65 per cent. discount&
4. The promissory note of Thomas Carter for 85,000, bearing

interest at 10 per cent., dated lst January, 1884, and due 1st
August, 1885.

5. A farm, for which he has paid $6,500.
6. Five-sixteenths of the steamer " Spray," valued at 89,000.

1885. TRANSACTIONS.

May i. Deposits his cash ($27,825) to his credit in the Bank of Com-
merce (as ho does the moneys which subsequently come into
his hands, and draws out by choque the sums ho reqîuires).

5. Buys the fine British Barque " Waverly," wrecked o the Island
of Anticosti, for $13,475, and pays for the same by choque No.
1 on the Bank of Commerce.

lires the Steamer "Dolphin" at $85 per day, and t.wo Schooners
at $25 per day each, and proceeds to Anticosti. Returns in the
Steamer at the end of 9 days, and pays her off as agreed.
Cheque No. 2.

15. Pays 8370 for wages. Choque No. 3.

16. Pays 81,185 for materials and supplies. Cheque;No. 4.

23. The vessel and the two schooners arrive in port; pays off the
two schooners, 17 days each as stipulated. Choque No. 5.
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" 25. Sells the ship's stores and the materials remaining over, to
jobber for $780 cash, which he lodges in the bank.

" 29. Docks the barque at Point Lévi for more complete repairst
insures her against fire for a month, in the sum of 8 4 5 ,000"
per cent., paying the premium by cheque No. 6.

June 10. Pays, by cheque No. 7, $1,922 on account of repairs.

" 17. Pays, by cheque No. 8, $1,385.75, the balance due the
Company for repairs.

18. During a violent thunderstorm at night the "lWaverleY dl
struck by lightning and greatly damaged, and Mr.
receives 813,330 from the insurers.

26. Sells the vessel as she is for £4,000 stg., taking Bills ofExh
on London, which he sells to bis Bank (the Commerce) at 8 Fa
cent. premium, the Bank crediting him their value.

" 28. Sells bis 50 shares of Chaudière Bank stock at 10 discount on
par, and deposits the proceeds to his credit in the Bank.

" 29. Effects an exchange of his Railway bonds for the yacht " 1

which vessel is valued at $5,000.

July 4. Enters the " Foam " for a race, paying $100 by cheque O• .

" 4. Wins 81,000 and sells the yacht for 87,500, and banks both

15. Sells bis intorest in the steamer "Spray " for $8,750, and lo
the money in the same way.

"18. Exchanges bis farm for a bouse in town, paying $3 ,500 to
Cheque No. 10.

Aug. 1. Collects, through the Bank, which credits him with the I01
Thos. Carter's note, with the accrued interest. (See Asset8ý

Falls into bad health. Buys $60,000 Bank of Commerce Stock
er cent. premium, paying by cheque No. 11, together with ie d
rokerage, chque No. 12, gives up business and lives on is di d

No. 17.

sHORT-HAND.

Value. This subject may be taken on FLrDAY afternoon, the 13th
18b5, if there is time, if not, then on SATURDAY forenoon, the 14thb- ,1 yb

100 The Examiner will read the paper to the Candidates, ine
minutes, which will be at the rate of 70 words a minute, and if any O
fail to keep up with the reading, they must of necessity drop out d the

Half an hour will be allowed for the extension of the inotes, 0o
Candidates who present perfectly correct transcriptions will be a
100 marks. 

5 eFor every word omitted, and for every wrong word introduced,
will be deducted from the 100.

38



toria. Sessional Papers (No>. 50.) A. 1886

GRFEK AND ROMAN JEwELLERY.

Greek goldsmiths surpassed all others in taste and skill, and their
lapidaries excelled in the polishing of gems. Rings were worn upon both
hands, although eventually the custom carne to be viewed as efleminate
when adopted by men. Bracelets encircled both the wrists and the upper
arms, sometimes even the ankles, and appear to have been common gifts
in the middle ages. The Roman women are described as wearing them of
the incredible weight of from six to ten pounds. They were aiso given to
soldiers for extraordinary valour. Rings were set with camelian, agate
and other atones, and earrings with pendants of pearls and jewels. Gold
pins and combs were essential to the head-dress of the Greek and Roman
ladies, who also wore pearl necklaces, or gold wrought upon a band with a
fringe of precious stones suspended. Glass beads (from the number which
have been found in various parts) must have been much in use. Associated
with them have been discovered beads of rock, crystal and agate. So lavish
was the use of jewellery by the wealthy, that Pliny the Elder valued the
ornaments of the beautiful wife of Caius Cffsar at between £300,000 and
£400,000 ($1,500,000 and 82,000,000). The cutting of signet rings was
carried to great perfection in Greece. and jewels were employed to enrich
the workmanship of gold and silver goblets and vases.

The ostentation displayed iù many of the bouses was even greater than
that exhibited in dress. Massive silver tables, laden with gold and silver
plate and costly works of art, were displayed in the apartments of the
wealtby, and bowls of the same precious material were spread before the
guests at banquets. Ciosus presented to the oracle at Delphi a golden
bowl weighing nine talents, ard a second of silver much heavier. Such
profusion of wealth rendered the goldsmith's art one of high esteem, and
the naimes of many artists, togetber with their chief productions and the
suns paid them therefor, are often referred to by both Greek and Roman
historians.

No. 18.

TELEGRAPIIY.

SATURDAY, 14th NOVEMBER, 1885, or at such time as may te agreed upon
between the Examiners, the Candidate and the Telegraph Offce at
which the test is to be made.
The Examiner will arrange for the test with the Officer in charge of

the telegraph office.

5The Telegraph Operator who supervises the test will please note that
0 marks are allowed for "sending ' and 50 for " receiving " a message.

Thesle marks mean the highest ability-which can hardly be expected of the
Candidates--and fewer marks, must, therefore, be given if the highest
eOciency has not been exhibited.

The Operator will inscribe upon the papers of the Candidates bis esti.
mate of their performances, attesting the same with bis signature, and will

lease address them by mail to " the Secretary of the Board of Civil Service
eaniners, Ottawa," together with his account, $2 being allowed for each

Candidate tested.
Valie Send the following message:-

lài We learu that Sir William Dawson, Principal of McGill University,kOntreal, has been elected President of the British Association for the
&dvancement of Science, a fitting recognition of bis reputation and attain-
ments As well as a high compliment to Canada. The annual Conference
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of the Association has just been held at Aberdeen, Scotland, and lasted *0
the #th to the 17th instant.

Recoive the following:-
Value, The British press is justly incensed over the recent very injudio

50 and unstatesmanlike speech of Vice- President Hendricks in laudai*on
Parnell and Home Rule for Irelan:. Few people would have beie
that a Vice-President of the United States could so far forget himself as
utter such indiscrete sentiments. Very mnch less has often given sei
offence and caused war between nations. But Mr. Hendricks had not
settled down in the Vice-President's chair before he satisfied all that
was entirely unfitted for his high position, and the speech referred to 0
more clearly demonstrates what was already too apparent.-Scottishl»o
can Journal.

No. 19.
On Saturday morning, November 14th, at 9.30 a.m.

TYPE wRITING.

Five minutes will be allowed for the transcription by the Candida
the paper which follows-a copy of which will be delivered to each
date. For perfect work within the time specified, 100 marks W
awarded i but for each wrong or omitted word, or for any other reald
5 marks will be deducted.

The Candidates will have to supply their own type writers.
THE PARLIAMENT OF CANADA-ROYAL AUTHORITY.

In Canada the King or Queen is represented by a Governor Gefl
who is appointed by the Secretary of State for the Colonies. Anade
trator or other offloer may be appointed to carry on the governm91el '
Canada on behalf of and in the name of the Queen, and ail the P
sions of the Confederation Act, in reference to the Governor General, a
to such administrator, or under whatever other title he may be or,
The Queen may authorize the Governor General to appoint any
persons jcintly or severally, to be his deputy or deputies to exorcise dur
his pleasure, such powers, functions and authoritie2rof the Governor Geo
as the latter may deem necessary or expe lient to assign to him or
subject to any limitations or directions expressed or given by the Q
Any such appointment, however, does not affect the powers, autho1l
and functions of the Governor General himself. The feath of a GoV a;
does not dissolve Parliament. It is called to consult with the Qaee* 00
no-t with him, and there might be ten Governors during the reign 1
Queen, with the same Parliament assisting at the last as weil as the
-Manual of Government.

PROMOTIONS OF MAY, 1885.

No. 4.
DEPARTMENT OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE.

NOTE.-The papers on the " Duties of Officers " are prepared by the
Heads of Departments.

DUTIES OF OFFICE-ORRESPONDENoE BaANCH. (NO. 1.)
1. What is the daily procedure relating to the receipt of all documenti O

Correspondence Branch by the Under-Secretary of State ?
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2. What are the duties of the Register Keeper ?
•What is the immediate action on the receipt of an Address or an Order of thesof Commons at the Department, and how is it deait with thenceforth ?
b escribe the action necessary to complete a Petition for Letters Patent under

bCanada Joint Stock CJompanies' Act, 1877, from the date of its receipt at thepatmlent unitil the Letters Patent are completed.
pla .What is a Petition of Right ? State fully how it is dealt with until it is

in the IRecord by the Attorney-General ?
aWhat would you do on the recommendation of the Attorney-General that a

ebe released from a county jail.
?etiti- State, as concisely as you can, the progress through the Departmnent of a
ahrt h er the Canada Temperance Act, 1878, for bringing into force thue second.
e ?e jeof n a county or city. What would yon do if objections were filed against

8• What are the Estimates ? How are they prepared ?
e • What are the Statutory increases ? How are extra clerks paid ? What ia

stmof paying the permanent employés, and how is it controlled ?
b.Write a IDespatch to the High Commuissioner on the subject of the Oanadiaa
't at the Exhibition at Antwerp.

DUTIEs oF OFFICE-coREsPoNDENcE BaANCH. (No. 2.)

• 2:What is your present position ? State your duties.
divi ?ito how many branches is the Department of the Secretary of Stats
of the br Name the heads of the respective branches. What is the primary function

brarch in which you are ?
htr•What is understood by " Convict cases." Write the letter for non-execuitive

4 reece, in English and in French.
escribhe concisely the registration of the papers received in tihe Departmuent.

Þane athereceipt of a Petition for charter under the Canada .Joint Stockl CJom-
ate t what is the immrediate action? What is the action in the following

dg Viz., application by a Judge for leave of absence, draft commissions to
6O ~raft charters, draft proclamations uder thbe Scott Act.

oine OW Would you deal with the triplicate return from the Prothonotaries of the.
.. oQruebec of the births, deaths and burials in their respective districts.
irte an officiai letter informing an applicant that he has been appointed a
ca8  lerk in the Civil Service.

DUTIEs 0F oFFIcE-TATIONERY OFFICE.

o • i he ames and standard weights of ail the regular sizes of ilandmade
a3tity ?aper is required for 750 copies of a volu me of 452 pages, Demuy, 8vo. Give.

3.y (inBeuding waste) required in reamus, &a., and net value at $3 .05 per ream..
Btdhalanik Biook is required of 750 pages, medium folio; to be rued witk

r rea ing. Give quantity to be issued, including waste, &c., net value atS7.4

*~.1 .. Paper je imported at 70s., stg., per r'eami, charges and freight amnount to

. jty to 22½- per cent, on net price. Give net cost, laid down, in $ and o.
et; e 4.. Pa ei imported at .183. 64., stg., per ream, less 5 per cent. dis-

,~ l$ des amount to 9¾ per cent. on net price. Give net cost, laid down, dulty

aeel2 pens are imported at ls. 91. per gross, less 20 per cent. discountç
7.r As per cent, on net price. Give net cost ini $ and c. 3.

fieat article coste 103., etg., per d. zen, less 5 per cent. discount; charges are bonetprice. Give net cos in $ and C.



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No 50.) A.

DUTIES OF OFFICE-REGIsTRY BRANCH.

1. How to deal with a Security Bond when received, and what are all the
processes through which it has to go, and what is to be done with it ?

2. What is to be done with a Certificate of Association of a Board of Trade?
3. How is an Instrument cancelling a Patent of land to be dealt with ?

No 5.

Wednesdsy, 20th May, 1885, 1.30 to 4 p.m.

AUDITOR GENERAL '5 OFFIC.-ARITHMETIC.

1. Find the average of - 3 of -, 0 9 and -
17 4 6j 25 51'

2. What is the value of .36 of •1458 of 2 miles, 3 poles.
3. A closed vessel, whose external dimensions are 4 feet 4 inches, 6 feet 6 i

Sad 8 feet 8 inches, is 3 inches tbick ard weighs 200 Ibs., find the weight of a 0
of the same material, with dimensions the same as the external dimensions of t

4. Taking the diameter of the earth to be 7,917 miles, and the highest mouh1t to
29,000 feet, fnd to 6 places the decimal of a metre by which the mountain 1oU
berepresented on a globe one yard in diameter, the metre being 39 37079 inch•

5. Extract the square and cubie roots of 51 to 3 places of decimals.
6. Find the value in Canadian currency of 1,000 francs when Exchange bet1

Paris and London is at 25-20 and between Canada and London at 8½. of
7. A, B, C and D begin to play with equal sums, each staking on e-fOuT rlth

what he theu has at the beginning of a game, A wins the first game, B the 0O(-
O7the third, and D the fourth. lu what proportions are the sums which they
at the end of the fourth game ? iofA

8. A clock which shows thIree minutes Io 6 at 6 o'clock in the morning PýOe
to 12 when it is one minute afier noon, find the time in the afternoon when it aPvi
by the clock to be one minute after 2. fo

9. If a note for $50 at one month, one for $100 at two months, and a thi'
$200 at three months, all dated the lst of May, are discounted on the 16th Of
and yield $344.61, find the rate of interest.

10. Find the difference between the sums which at simple and compoulnd in
respectively will amount to $3,000 bt Ihe end of 2j years at 5 per cent. . ste

11. If the Canadian 3½ per cents be at £91 2s. 6d., what sum must be Of d
in order to secure from them an ircome of £S58 after paying an income ta
on the pound, brokexage being at j per cent. r

12. Explain the advantages which would result from adopting the
motric system.

No. 6.

BooK-KEEPING. (2j hours.)
Nor.-This exercise assumes to exhibit ihe operations for one day of a Branch Bank'

Marine Bank. It bas the use of a capital of $400,C00, and has authority to draw upon the Ban
in London at discretion-in sterling, of course. It can also draw upon the New York agenltsl I boPlo
Head Office at Montreal, and upon the other branches of the Bank throughout the couDtry• Coill*
note issue of its own, and it leceives depoEils on current accounts; it also discounts nOteýna151
notes for its customers, and pays their cheques without charge-in otherwords, it does an ordi
general banking business.
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dok 1he exchange on London bought or sold goes to the debit or credit of the Lon-
sil gents' account, at par, and the premium, as well as the premium and commis-

other transactions, to " Exchange and Commission Account."
crited proceeds of Bills discounted, and of Exchange and Drafts bought, are

itd to the parties interested-customers-as are the deposits, while the chequesare in like manner debited to their accounts.
but Journal and Ledger will be sufficient to show the capacity of the candidates,

e as neither Day, Cash nor Bill books are demanded, it becomes necessary that
noal91 entries should be full and explicit.

Transactions.

ed from the Head Office,
Cash (capital to be used in the business)............................... $400,000

4ccount,
Taken from Vault notes....................................................... $10,000
d of Exchange on London agents, for £500 ster-
g at sight, at 10J per cent...............................

-Wed in Deposit (current accounts),
Prom John Smith.............................................................. 8 735 15

George W ithers.................... .................................... 1,102 10
Samuel Trotter.............. ............................................ 213 75
N illiam Trail ........................................................ .. 500 00
Charles Sawyer............... ..................... .330 15
Aaron Risch...... ........ ... ................... 1,970 40

drdrafts on New York agents, for $740, $310, $400 and $30, at Î per
cent. premium ............................................................

dd-rafts on Montreal (Head Office), for $510, $255 and $700, at j per

Cent ..... .......... . . . . .

nted the following notes, and credited the parties with the proceeds-
Por John Smith................................ $ 800 00, interest deducted$14 10

do ....................... ....... 509 20 do ... 9 05
do ............... ............... 455 50 do ... 7 65

Arthur Risch.............................. 1,377 75 do ... 31 09
George Withers.......................... 1,735 75 do ... 43 ?80

William Trail, draft on Victoria, B.C., for $2,500, at 1¾ dis-
and credited him with the proceeds............................

f John Smith, Bills of Exchange on London for £2,800 stg., at 60
days , at 8 per cent., and credited him the proceeds..............

olead Office, Montreal, sundry notes amounting to............. $7,306 10

e nfer from Quebec branch of £2,000 stg., in London, at 9¾ per

ate. .credit of Toronto branch with New York agents, 10,000
at~per cent., to be charged to Hlead Office, Montreal.........
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8old, through New York agents,. Bills of Exchange on London for £5,000
stg., at sight, and at 10½ per cent........................................

2aid cheq ues on Current Accounts, viz.: -
John Smith, 8110, 873.73, 855 and $180.50.
Aaron iRisch, 8800, 81,300, $220.90.
Samuel Trotter, $39.17, $ 17.66.
William Trail, $90, $46, $22, $31, $19.55.

No. 7.

ORTHOGRAPHY. (Balf an Houtr.)

Copy the following extraût, correcting the spelling, which has b00

Value. purposely been made bad. WISE HINTS.
Sydney Smith wrote "Nothink contribbates more certingly tO

100 annimal spirrits than bonnevolence. Servants and comon peeple ar al
about yon, and if you endeavour to please, the efort will insensible 1w
you to a more happey state of mind. Plasure is very reflective an 1 er
give it you will feal it. The plasure you give by kindness of r'a for
returns to you, and, offten, with compound interrest. The receePt it
cheerfullness is not to have one moteve only in the day for living, A
number of little moteves; a man who from the time he rizes til b0d-t i
conducks himself like a gentilman, who throes some littel kondessensi"5'*
his mannor to infeeriors, and who is allways contrifing to lessoir
disstance betwean himself and the poor and ignorent; is allways iMP
ing bis annimal spirrits and adding to bis happinness. t recommen .b

as a grate improver of annimal spirrits. Everry nite the room in Whrit
sit is lited up like a town after a grate naval victorry, and in this ."
gallaxy and with a blazing fire, it is scarsely possible to be lowe sPirr
and I can see the little blew demons skampering off like parrish boj
persued by the beedle.-SYDNEY SMITH.

No. 8.

PRÉCIs WRITING. (2 liours).
NoTE.-The excellence of a Précis or digest-for that is what is meant-consists in present'at io

-the important particulars in a brief, concise and comprehensive manner. The digest shoula
the outside extend to over half the length of the Examination paper.

1. The Select Standing Committee of the House of Commons on Immigratio' 1.
Colonization respectfully submits its Report for the Parliamentary Session of

2. The subjects which mainly occupied the attention of the Committee this
sion have been as follows:-(.) The total immigration arrived from BaUroPO te
the past year; the nunber of the total arrivals settled in the Domii o
.expenditure on immigration, and the migration of settiers from the older Prod
to Manitoba and the North-West Territory of Canada. (2.) The export tr
cattle and sheep from Canada to Great Britain, and the like importa the
Canada. îw

3. From the evidence submitted by Mr. Lowe, the Committee finds tha
total number of immigrants who arrived in Canada for the caleadar year 1ss tf
85,850, of which there settled in Canada 38,505. This shows an increase 1f
-total arrivals for the past year of 45,358 over lhe previous year, 1879. Oit o

44
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talarrivais for the year 1880 there settled in Canada 38,505, from which Manitoba
tCeived 16,422. To the latter number the United States contributed 2,280.
calada .The total arrivals at the various points were 85,850. The actual settlers in
1815a were 38,505. The total expenditure on immigration, for the year 1880 was

to 32.67, covering the outlay for this service in every direction. The expendi-
th r e or 18'19 was $176,343; for 1878 it was $185,856, showing that for the last year

e'eapenditure was slightly in excess of that for the previous year, and about
leSsI1 than that for 1878.

'e . .The Committee find that a portion of the expenditure for 1880 was of an
je tional kind, sucb as $12,000 for the expenses of the Farmers' Delegates from

àritish Isliands, and $10,OO for the publishing of 200,000 copies of their report
pastin. Less thete two exceptional items, the total cost of immigration for the
1 uiYear would have been unprecedently moderate in proportion to the number of
ho.,grants arrived, and for the number which settled in the country. It is believed,
righ , at securing the visit of the Far mers' Delegates was a practical step in the
agric"reti, as being specially adapted to reachîug a most desirable claFs of
ete oral imrigrants, and that the results will be felt to exercise a salutary influ-
desiet Immigration to this country for years to come, and the Committee ere
Islad to suggest the desirability of reaching the small tenant farmers of the British
%d. , by ail such means as may appear to the Government best adapted to that

tt In' Connection with immigration it has come under the notice of the Com-
ae.o that Canada bas not as yet received any considerable proportion of the very

bosible efUx Of German immigration coming into America. In order to secure, if
he cO , a Portion of the very valuable class of immigrants furnished from Ger many,
tils Ilmittee recommend that the Government invite a German Delegation to visit
eniconntry, as bas been done in the case of the British tenant farmer-. A con-elat 1Uedium of communication for this purpose presents itself through the

%Pe ercial and Geographical Association of Germany," with whom a correspond-
Al tbe opened up with a view to reaching the German agricultural class.

leI. it bas been brought out in evidence, that there is a veiy consider-
nit a ltfry movement, with a view to permanent settlement, among the agri-

to otelthass of the older Provinces, to Manitoba and the .North-West, it is pleasingtila a such migration does not arise from 'want of confidence in the agricul-
Ciiat eaabilities of these older Provinces, nor yet from a disatibfaction with their
Sdesir, nor from discontent with their civil and social institutions, but solely from

ta e to Obtain larger holdings in prairie lands, with a view to carrying on agricul-
th fieerationg on the more extended scale which these prairie lands afford. From
a1rady hstance of these vacated lands baving been pur cbased, mainly, by residents

ld à ding lands contiguous to them, it would appear as if the tendency, in the
10 1,ces also, is in the direction of extended land holdings.

4Peeia* 1 referring to the subject of migration, the Uommittee desires to call the
eceotice Of the Government to the revelation brought out, chiefly in Mr. Prittie's

e viz.: That the Grand Trunk and Great Western Railway Companies have
iu4 a.e1nts with the United States land and railway companies by which the

idaents way companies named, pay a much larger percentage to ticket and
I*atin who engage in the sale of tickets for points in the United States, to

e the sartes than is gyiven by these companieis to such agents as canvaiss and
t o10 Of tickets to Manitoba. In some cases it appears that the commissioni t tgv railway companies named, to ticket agents selling for points in the

ets 8to s es, is about three times wbat these companies pay to agents selling
4iderabl anitoba, notwithstanding that the distance is longer and the railway fare
]k r aihgher to Winnipeg than to points of American destination. This

td 'lway discrimination against parties migrating to Manitoba, together with
to lad co equipment in maps, posters, etc., furnished by United States railway

age painies, with the additional stimulus of the much larger commission paid
&]t 8 facting in their interest, by Canadian railway companies, exercises a
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most injurious influence, in the way of being the direct means of influencing CaI
dian migrating settlers to stop within United States territory, in place of procee
to Manitoba and the North-West, as in the majority of such cases they probsbll
would do, if left unbiased by the exertions of active and interested agents of ano
country.

10. A compact of this kind, injurious to Canada, entered into and carried outt bl
railway companies essentially Canadian by location and existence, is a matter dab o
the Committee hope the Government of Canada, being now aware of it, may beabie
to devise some effectual means of counteracting.

THE CATTLE TRADE,

as intimated at the outset of this report, has come under review, and the Commita
is impressed with a conviction of the importance of a due care in fostering the troÀ
in export of cattle to Great Britain, as likely to be, in the near future, one of 0 "'
most important export trades. gb

11. It has been brought prominently to the notice of the Committee, thrio
the evidence of Mr. McEachran, and by communications from shippers, that theroth
much to be done in the way of absolutely necessary improved accommodation for
proper care of cattle and shoep at ports of shipping and also on board ships, in p
to socure sufficient profits and permanency of trade to stock raisers and shippers. ff
found that animals, awaiting shipment at Montreal, are penned in spaces entirelY
amall in area, exposed to the weather and sunk in depths of mud and filth for
sive days, and unprovided with feeding troughs and hay cribs. In other ilstat
they are confined in small dirty yards surrounded by a poisonous atmosf b
sometimes animals are confined for a day or more in railway cars on the whar
out food or water; frequently they are put on board ship, crazed and bruLised
being driven through crowded thoroughfares of traffic, and hustled in this cond e
into the hold of a ship the atmosphere of which is densely ladden with the dast
grain loading;-a combination of circumstances strongly tending both to raPi,
deteriorate the condition of the animals and to induce disease. Also butter V o,
tion and more care of the proper preservation of feed on board ships appear t
mand increased attention. i'

12. In view of the yearly rapid development of the export cattle trade o
country, the Committeà recommends the enactment of the following regulatiof ,,

(1.) Improved accommodation for the due care of animals at the port of shiPP #
especially at Montreal, at present the chiot shipping depot for Canadian cattle thot
in view of the likelihood of a very great increase in the shipment of store cattl'alate
the present regulations affecting space on board ship be modified so as to re e
the allotted spaces to suit the varied sizes of animals to be shipped; and that
stowage of all other freight on board bo completed before any shipment of cattle wi
a ship be commenced; and the simultaneous shipment of grain or other cargo b0r
cattle be prohibited. (2.) That carrying animais on dock from the 15th of 00
to the 1st April, in each year, be prohibited. (3.) That it be made a naecessary
of the Inspector's report to enable cattle carrying ships to obtain a clearanoî 00
wards. That such report contain an assurance that the men going in chargO Of
cattle are provided with suitable sleeping and eating places, and with such fo
quantity and quality, as the Inspector deems nocessary to the health and com ,P
men having arduous duties to perform. If found practicable to obtain a whi
Montreal, set apart exclusively for the shipment of cattle,. it would alleviawsein
the present difficulties in cattle shipment. 'n ttod

13. The only branch of agriculture brought under the notice of the Coi 0
had reference to cultivation of the tobacco plant. Experience seems to have lebi,
strated that tobacco of excellent quality can be grown in Canada, and with pro1 !e
results. There is, however, the ctrawback of lack of general information a3
farmers as to the best modes of cultivation, and the proper methods of prepa
leaf for the manufacturer after it is gathered. The Committee, therefore, reoO
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P1 le Department of Agriculture direct efforts towards the pre paration of a
e let for publication, giving reliable practical directions on the cultivation and

elog of the tobacco plant, and that to such pamphlet there should be annexod a
p8is of the Excise law of Canada regulating the cultivation and sale of tobacco.

Value No. 9.
100.

GEOGRAPHY. (1j hours.)

10 1. State how many degrees of longitude the Dominion extends over.10 2. Give the name of the most south-westerly town in the Dominion,
10 and state what latitude it is in.

3. Give the names of the three largest islands in and bordering upon
110 the Gulf of St. Lawrence.

4. Name the three longest islands on the Pacifie Ocean side of the
5 Dominion.
5 5. What is the principal river in New Brunswick ?
5 6. What is the principal river in British Columbia?

7. Name two of the largest rivers running throu gh the Province of
5 Manitoba.

8. Give the names of two of the largest rivers in the North-West
5 Territories.

10 9. State which is the largest bay in the Dominion.
10. By how many ways (giving their names) can a vossel pass from

5 the Gulf of St. Lawrence into the Atlantic Ocean ?
5 11. What are the principal exports ot Nova Scotia ?
5 12. What are the principal exports of New Brunswick ?
5 13. What are the principal exports of Prince Edward [sland ?
5 14. What are the principal exports of the Province of Quebec ?

15. What are the principal exports of Ontario?

No. 10. (Extra.)

TYPE-WRITING. (5 Minute.)
r v A BREVITIEs.-A note dated on Sunday is void. A note obtained by fraud,

4kor 'oe intoxicated, is void. If a note be lost or stolen, it does not release the
t test pao Y it. An endorser of a note is exempt from liability if not served

inor o its dishonor within twenty-four hours of its non-payment. A note by
(tei a' d. Notes bear interest only when so stated. Principals are rosponsible
a0Unt a ents. Each individual in a partnership is responsible for the whole

al a f t Of the firm. Ignorance of the law excuses no one. It is a fraud to
poss braud. It is illegal to compou id a felony. The law compels no one to do.81 ibiitie.neiP ar3 . An agreement without consideration is void. Signatures in lead

prtne d in law. A receipt for mouey is not legally conclusive. The acts ofto act b'nd all the others. Contracts made on Saadiy cannot be enforced. A
'Wtraca with a minor is void. A contract made with a lunatic is void. Written

oncerning land must be under seal.-THINas WORTH KNOWING.

No. 11. (Extra)

86 t SIORT-HAND-(403 words, 5 minutes allowed).
8eti0i' Is ere anY prospect of establishing a German emigration agency ?-That

aged the attention of the Department during last seaso,. It is really
47
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the most difficult question we have to deal with. There is a large German emig fi
to the United States which we have scarcely been able to touch. Very OtIJ'-
enquiries were made into the means by which such an emigration could be indue
to come to Canada. With the view of prosecuting enquiries, by the instruction.
the Minister I twice visited New York during this summer, and held communicaNio
with the directors of the German steam lines, from whom I obtained a good deal o
valuable information bearing on the question. There are two great German Atlantho
lines, the North German Lloyds and the Hamburg Packet Line. I found that t
North German Lloyds, commencing so early as the very beginning of 1880-if
long before the season of western communication opened-began to receive pred
passages to the extent of about a thousand a month; and each of these prePo
represented five or six other passengers. The Department prepared a pamphî0v
which was translated into German-embodying the suggestions I received, but
were generally told that neither commissions ror information distributed that
would be so successful as we expected, as the Germans depended almost enti
upon the representations of their friends.

87. Friends who bad come to America before them ?-Yes, friends who had4 W
out before them. The large German emigration which took place to the IJ1'0
States, was mainly based upon these representations, supplemented by the assist
of prepaid passage tickets. I have the United States immigration returns, W e
show, for the fiscal year, that 84,638 Germans arrived. We are now endeavor1D u
get up small parties of German settlers. There is one special party to arri et
and go to Manitoba or the North-West in the Lpring. It is the intention Ofit o
Department to take special and particular care of that little colony, to see that
well settled on good land. I am afraid, however, that as far as influencing Ge
immigration, simply by representations we may make, is concerned we shal
succeed by the use of that metbod alone; or, at least, we shall not be so succse
we desire to be. We certainly have not been in the past.-Evidence of Mr.
before the Immigration Committee of the Bouse of Commons, 1881.

LIST OF CANDIDATES WHO PASSED SUCCESSFULLY THE C1
SERVICE PRELIMINARY EXAMINATION.

MAX, 1885.

At B'ahfax.

Blethen, Charles W. Finlay, Wm. James. Mumford, Emmanuel O
Ellis, John. Mahoney, Wm. P. Yuill, John.

At St. John, N.B.

Baxter, Joseph. McVey, Andrew. Thompson, George.
Mailman, John A. O'Brien, Thos. A.

At Charlottetown.
Cameron, John.

At Quebec.
&ubê, Elzéar. Griffith, Gco. A. Renaud, Léon.
Bellerive, Léon E. Langlois, Napoléon. St. Aubin, Marie 13. d
Boivin, David. Marmion, George. St. Aubin, Mad. .
Gingras, A. Elie. Nolin, Ulric.
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At Montreal.

4 jett 'w
lip N.

Dumont, Ovide.
Ducharme, Louis A.
Dupuis, Charles.
Ferry, Edward.
Gendreau, A. B.
Guernon, Ernest.
Gauthier, E. J.
Grant, Edward E.
Hébert, Emile J.
Hunt, Geo. A.
Lalande, J, B. A.
Lapalme, Philias.
Latour, J. A. A. H.
Leclair, Eugène.
Lapage, Joseph Z.
Leriche, Edward.
Le Sieur, T. J.
Martin, James.
Mathyl, Emile.
Mongeon, Joseph.

At Ottawa.

Farrell, W. H.
Ferland, A.
Flenming, Eila E.
Gareau, Fortunat.
Goulden, Robt. A.
Hayes, Jeremiah.
Kelly, Isabella C.
Leslie, George H.
Loucks, Ettie.
Merrick, Bessie L.
Mosgrove, Thomas.
Montgomery, Ida V. B.
Munro, Isabel Adeline.
McEwan, Wm. Rance.

At Kingston.

Fulford, Charles C.
Gilmour, Robert.
Hicks, Amos.

At Toronto.

Gautt, Robt. J.
Goad, Nelson A.
Henderson, Robt. H.
Hodson, Fred. W.
Hurst, Geo.
Hyatt, Fred. F.
Kirby, Thomas.
Martin, Thomas.
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McClenaghan, Michael.
McLaughlin, Francis.
MeMorrin, Hugh.
Nault, Pierre.
Neville, James F.
O'Neill, Patrick.
Pâquet, Jean Flavien.
Paré, Joseph Omer.
Radekir, Alfred.
Renaud, Albert H.
Rosa, Gaudiose.
Roy, John.
Shebhan, Michael.
St. Arnault, Urbain H.
St. Jean, Thomas.
St. Jean, L. J.
St. Onge, Arthur.
Thurlow, Albert Edward.
W helan, Aloysius M.
Yelle, Urgel.

MeNamara, Patrick L.
Murphy, Wm. Henry.
Noonan, P. D.
Norton, Bella.
O'Connor, Herbert.
O'Reilly, Anna.
Patchell, Edward Moore.
Ricard, Urgel.
Sawyer, D. S.
Steele, Mary.
Stioulger, C.
Turner, George H.
Tytler, John.
Wilis, Geo. W.

Roiss, Donald D.
Terrill, Archelaus.
Vanluven, Fred'k.

Page, Mary.
Parker, Albert E.
Pearman, John H1'y.
Perkins, Joseph.
Price, Geo. 0.
Riddall, Norman G.
Robinson, Robt. John.
Rodgers, James.

A. 1886
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Cleary, Michael.
Courtney, Jonathan.
D'Askwith, Edward.
Dench, Thos. Q.
Fowler, James M.

Beatty, Stephen.
Bingham, Albert Job.
Latham, John.

Clarke, John.
Comiskey, Thomas.
Crawford, Walter.

Code, A. R.
Gow, Walter John.

Shakespeare, Henry P.

Mitchell, Robert.
Mooney, Isaac.
McDonDald, John A.
Mclntosh, Alexander.
McKee, Wiiliam.

At Hamilton.

McKay, Richard.
O'Heir, James.
Ross, Thos. H.

At London.

Holland, Charles. -
Lawrence, Chas. M. B.
Orr, Robinson Jno.

At Winnipeg.

Lilley, John Henry.
Marshall, Thomas H.

At Victoria, B. C.

Simpson, Geo. F. D.

(Signed)

Salter, James.
Slean, John.
Spence, James H.
Williamson, James.
Wilson, John McLaren.

Sharples, James.
Thoma, Alexander.
Waterman, Ezra S.

Reaume, James L.
Ryan, William.
Winterbotham, Wm. GO.

Sheppard, Geo. P.

J. THORBURN,;LL.D.,
Chairrnan

A. D. DECELLES,
P. LESUEUR, Secretary.

LIST OF CANDIDATES WHIO PASSED SUCCESSFULLY TUE QUALIf'
EXAMINATION.

MAY, 1885.

At Ralifax.

Graham, Wm. J.
King, Donald A.

Beock, James.
Clark, A. Arthur.
Day, Robert G.
Dunham, W. 0.
Goodspeed, Millard H.
Gross, HIarrison.
Hall, W. S.
Hoben, Charles F.

Little, Hugh R.
McKay, John H.

At St. John, N. B.

Lindsay, Alex. H.
Mailman, John A.
Manro, George.
Nadeau, Hector.
McCloskey, John Rich.
MoLatchy, Asa H.
O'Reilly, Chas. E.
Peck, Henry B.

DO

Peppard, W. W.
Potter, Alexander.

Raymond, Wm. T"E'
Road, Frank S.
Richards, Chas. L.
Robinson, Elisha K•
Smith, Rafus B.
Smyth, Bernard B.
Troop, J. G. C.
Vanbuskirk, Ja¤me0

a.
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Peey, Frederick F.
7,ly Lucius 0.

Chue B. T.
sjardins, Joseph.

At Charlottetown.

Kennedy, James T.
Laverty, Michael.

At Quebec.

Dorion, Napoléon.

MoPhail, Qolin.

Maguire, Thos1 Moore.

At Montreal.

Connolly, Anthony Jas.
Cullinan, Michael.
Curran, James.
Doré, L. J. S.
Dumont, Ovide.
Dubue, Victor.

dit French, Jonas L.
Gendreau, A. B.
Gladu, L. Joseph.
Heriot, Ralph R.
Hunt, George A.
Kane, James J.
Laurin, Alphonse.

At Ottawa.

Howard, John P.
James, Alfred.
Kehoe, Thomas 0.
Lawrence, Charles Lewis.
Lynch, Patrick.

P. Magnan, Francois.
McKenzie, Wm. J.

n. Maybee, Emily Kate.
MeCabe, Francis.
O'Reilly, Anthony.
O'Reilly, Anna.

At Kingston.

Sherman, John D.
Sayers, John R.

At Toronto.

Galbraith, William.
Henry, Thos. H.
Henderson, Robt. 1,
Hipwell, Humphrey T.
Horst, Samuel.
Huggard, John.
Irwin, S.
Moore, Thos. F.
Me Donald, John A.

U

LeSieur, T. J.
Latouche, A. M.
Libert, Emile.
Mantha, J. Arthur.
McEvoy, Patrick.
Prieur, Auguste.
Renaud, A. H.
Rolland, David.
Tessier, W. O.
Tansey, Timothy.
Valeur, Charles.
Whelan, Aloysius.

Parmelee, Alice.
Robillard, R. J.
Robertson, Peter.
Seguin, F. O. Avila.
Short, Samuel.
Stevenson, John.
Shore, Evangeline.
Steele, Mary.
Stewart, Robert.
Taylor, William.
Toms, Fanny E.

Terrill, Archelaus.
Walker, Edward M.

McKee, William.
Noble, John.
Reid, John W.
Riley, Bernard.
Somerville, Archibald.
Spence, Jos. W.
Stewart, Chas. E.
Watson, Wm. E.
Willoughby, Sam. I.

ietOria. A. 1888
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Aikins, Lillie.
Davis, Lydia.
Hall, Mary Anna

Askin, John Fred.
Ayearst, John A.
Belleperche, Peter A.
Clarke, John,
Colton, John Thos.
Coulter, Geo. T.

At lanilton.

Henderson, Anna J. R.
Miller, Robt. S.

At London.

Crawford, Walter.
Coulter, Wm. Watson.
Holland, Charles
iHorton, Charles.
Gott, Ellen Jane.
Northrop, Wm.

At Winnipeg.

Macpherson,Wm. Torrence. Marshall, Thos. Hadzor.

At Victoria, B.C.
Carmichael, Francis A.

Robertson, A. R.
Troup, Jane Lundie.

Regan, Patrick.
Schulte, Sam'l John
State, Joseph.
Steele, Emily C.
Tyrrell, Jeremiali.
Winthrop, Farbrace.

Turnock, Francis Il.

J. THORBURN, LL. D.,
Chairrnan.

A. D. DzCELLES,
P. LESUEUR,

Secretary.

CANDIDATES WHO PASSED IN OPTIONAL SUBJECTS AT THE 00
SERVICE EXAMINATION HEL D IN MAY, 1885.

At Balifax.

John H. MoKay, Precis.

At St. John, Y. B.

Day, Robert G., Precis.
Dunham, W. O., Precis.
Goodspeed, M. H., Precis.
Hoben, Chas. F., Precis.
Nadeau, Hector, Precis.
Read, Frank S., Precis.
Raymond, W. Tyng, Precis.

At Charlottetown.

Haley, Fred. F., Telegraphy.
Laverty, Michael, Precis.

At Montreal.

Amyot, Philippe, Precis.
Audet, F. J., Translation and Precis.
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Bland, B. O., Precis.
Bellerose, L. H. Rival dit, Translation.
Bourret, Roméo, Composition.
Connolly, Anthony James, Translation.
Dumont, Ovide, Translation,
Laurin, Alphonse, Composition and Precis.
Libert Emile, Book-keeping and Precis.
Prieur' Auguste, Precis.
ROlland, David, Translation.

At Ottawa.
Brittain, E. L., Stenography.
Chateauvert, Geo. E., Book-keeping and Precis.
Christie, Jessie B., Typewriting and Precis.
Clarabut, D., Composition.
Portier, James Gordon, Telegraphy.
Hennessy, Geo. F., Translation.
Uoward John P., Precis.
Uunton, Wm. A., Precis.
Lyster Florence, Typewriting and
MzCann John, Precis.
McKenzie, Wm. J., Typewriting, Book-keeping, Precis and Stenography.
O'Reilly, Anna, Precis.
O'Reilly' Anthony, Precis and Stenography.
Parmelee, Alice, Precis.
Robillard, R. J., Book-keeping and Precis.
Steele, Mary, Precis.
Stevenson, James S., Precis.
Taylor, William, Composition, Translation and Precis.

At Kingston.
Cox, Lawrence, Precis.
borland, Philip Hà., Book-keeping.

Turner, H. H., Composition, Precis, Book-keeping and Telegraphy.
alker, Edw. M., Precis.

At loronto.

Galbraith Wm., Precis and Telegraphy.
Renderson, Robert H., Precis and Telegraphy.

lgard, John, Precis.
ole, John, Precis.
idoh W.,Precis.

w4 ey Bernard, Precis.atson, Wm. E., Book-keeping.

At Hamilton.
pderson, Anna J. R., Precis.
Trebrtson, Augustus R., Precis.

oup, Jane Luadie, Precis.

At London.

Yo arst, John A., Precis.
John Thos., Precis.

te 3
UtI, Ge-3. Telegraphy.
une, 1883.
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At Winnipeg.

Marshall, Thos. H., Typewriting, Precis and Stenography.
Turnock, Francis H., Book-keeping and Precis.

J. THORBURN, L.L.D.,
Chairmalf.

A. D. DECELLES,
P. LESUEUR,

Secretary.

LIST OF CANDIDATES WHO PASSE D SUCCESSFULLY TII E CIVIL S0l
PRELIMINARY EXAMl.\ATION.

NoVEMBER, 1885.

At Halîfax.

Ben tly, Percy D.
Brennan, Patrick F.

Baillie, John.
Budge, Benjamin.
Devoe, Wm. Judson.
Driscoll, Daniel Jas.

Battis, Robt. Wm.
Duprat, Jos. L. M.
Giroux, Edmond.

Auger, Arthur L. M.
Beaton, Alex. M.
Bouchard, C. Ed.
Brown, Alfred.
Cadorette, Rodolphe.
Carroll, Edward.
Cecire, Ludger.
Conaughton, James P.
Corbeil, Philippe.
Cormier, Ephrom.
Costigan, James John.
Côté, F. X.
Cotret, L. D. A., Roué de.
Crevier, J. W.
Cross, Gray.
Delorme, Edmond,
Diot, David J.
Doody, Thomas,

McDonald, James J.
Pender, Percy T.

At St. John, -. B.

Fanjoy, Wm. T.
Hunter, George D.
Martin, Thos. J.

At Quebec.

Hamel, Alexander.
Hamel, F. M. M. S.
O'Reilly, Miss M. A.

At Montreal.

Genest, Evariste.
Germain, Clément.
Gibbon, Thos. James.
Gillies, James A.
Gi[oux, André.
Goyer, Augustin.
Grandpré, Arthur.
Gravelle, R. E.
Green, Harvey A.
Ilarney, W. T.
Hlolland, James C.
Jones, Thos. Michael.
Juteau, Abundius.
Knox, James S.
Laberge, J. B. H.
Lamadeleine, Théodore de
Leblanc, Ernest.
Loclorcq, Luc- en.

Theakston, Henry S.
Thompson, David.

Millidge, Louis D. B.
Richards, John T.
Roxborough, Williarn.

Santerre, Louis Napo
Verge, Joseph A.

Mathieu, Joseph.
Moffatt, James S.
Murray, John.
MeRobie, J. T.
Pardellian, A1exa1de•'
Philpot, Harvey W.
Poitras, Therma..
Roach, Michael.
Rollins, Wm. EdW.
Roy, Désiré.
IRyan, Michael J.

yan, John.
Sauvé, J. V.
Sullivan, Thos.
Thêtu, Rodolphe.
Thérien, Charles.
Thomson, F.A.
Vanier, a. J.



,trick.
reau Jules.

Marcil, John.
Martin, Joseph.

At Ottawa.

Healey, James.
Hinton, George C.
Kains, Mary MeM.
Kealy, Theretsa.
Lawies8, Edith M.
Lefebvre, Amanda.
Lepage, Victor.
May, Ida M.
Mathews, Agnes B.
Melamphy, Mary.
McAnulty, James.
McLaren, Robert.
MeMahon, Thos. Jas.
Peck, Jas. W.
Purcell, John.
Roy, Minnie.
Roy, Eugénie.
Roy, Hormidas.

At Kingston.

Elliott, J. J.
Harback, Horace A.

At Toronto.

Denison, Minnie.
Edmand, J. W.,
Frizzell, Albert B.
Ferry, James.
Fowler, P. L.
Grainger, Robert A.
laynes, Lionel S.
Henderson, Alfred.
Hunter, David.
Jackson, F. J.
Jamas, Clarkson W.
Johnston, Richard.
Knowlton, Joseph.
Laws, William.
Linton, John.
Moor, Robert.

Villeneuve, Mathias.
Withell, Rich'd P.

Ryan, John.
Shaw, Mary.
Shaw, Margaret.
Spittal, Robert.
Story, James.
Taylor, James M.
Traversy, Agnes.
Vaillancourt, Damase.
Veilleux, Léon.
Waggoner, S. H.
Warburton, Annie.
Watts, Reginald.
Webber, S. Agnes.
Williams, Louise.
Williams, Wm. Geo.
Wood, George C.
Wright, Samuel E.

Kearns, Robert.
Morriessy, John.

Moor, David.
Mann, Geo. Robt.
McCurrah, John.
McKay, Kenneth.
McMullen, Oliver.
Oxenham, Fred. Chas.
Parker, Thomas G.
Pretty, John.
Scott, John L.
Service, Wm. Alexander.
Smith, Thos. S.

.Summers, Jas. Alex.
Tolley, Wm. James.
Tyner, Wm. Edward.
Vandervoort, Jos. W.

At Hamilton.

Gordon, Robert.
R. Hamilton, Helen Jessie.

Leaver, Uriah.
Mahoney, Robert P.
McCollum, Robert C.
MoDonald, Robert.
Phillips, JQhn.

Rainey, Albert E.
Rolston, Edward.
Smith, Daniel B.
Thomas, James R.
Truman, Charles.
Williams,,Thos. F.

gegsiona Papers (14o. âÒ. À. 1 8M
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At London.

Arnold, John P.
Dalton, Ilarry E.
Dickens, Joseph.
Egan, William.
Finnegan, Edward.
Forsy th, Jam3s F.

Flesher, Frederick O.
Fletcher, Matthew.
lezelwood, Thomas.

Dickson, Chas. Edward.

Hoolihan, Thomas.
Jeffery, Jos. Wm.
Kidner, Edward.
Le o, Frederick.
Macdonald, James.
Minek, Richard Henry.

At Winnipeg.

MeDonald, John.
Pridham, George A.
Smith, Sydney James.

Morrison, Theodore.
Perrin, Charles N.
Peters, Arthur E.
Tanner, William.
Williams, Mary T.

Taylor, Wm. Henry.

At Victoria, B.C.

J. THORBURN, LL. D.,
ChairOa>

A. D. DECELLES,
P. LESUEUR,

L1ST OF CANDIDATES WHO PASSEDI SUCCESSFULLY THE 01
SERVICE QUALIFYING EXAMINATION.

NOVEMBER, 1885.

At Halifax, N. S.

Bentley, Percy D.
Curien, Thomas J.

Allen, Singleton S.
Budge, Benjamin.
Burgess, Sherman W.
Burrell, James George.
Covert, Daniel 1.
Cudlip, Amelius.
Edgecombe, Richard S.

Chouinard, Ephrem.
Fletcher, Cecil Charles.

Bissonette, O. A.
Cecire, Ludger.

Kelley, Willard M.

At St. John, N. B.

Frost, S. L. Tilley.
Guion, Alonzo H.
King, Elmer E.
McLean, Charles.
McCullough, Thomas.
Murray, Frederick Wm.
Myles, Weslay J. S.

At Quebec.

Gosselin, Lopis.
Gosselin, Pierre.

At Montreal.

Dudley, Henry.
Eagleson, James S.

De

Miller, George J.

Nichols, Craig WM.
Reed, Thomas L.
Smith, H. E. L.
Virtue, William J.
White, J. Hanter.
Watt, John H.

Nolet, Jean.

Lippe, Alexandre. l
McClanaghan, gJQich
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coq:
ft gan, James John.
Dl ingham John.

Od'y, Thomas.
L. J. O.

4orett, William

rr rs ha ll n .sd John W.

DnR.
M. R.

A.

John.

l a)

Gawne, D. McLeod.
Laberge, J. B. H.
Lalande, J. B. A.
Li nahen, James F.

At Ottawa.

Ferguson, William.
Finch, George.
Fripp, Fred'k Bowles.
Greenshields, Robert.
Horan, Arthur John.
Johnstone, Winifred.
Kains, Mary MoMillan.
Lynch, David.
Maher, John.
Martin, Annie.
Matheson, George M.
Mathews, Agnes Bertha.
Merrick, Bessie L.
McDonagh, James.

At Kingston.

Hardy, Wm. A. G.
Kinney, John.
Little, Joseph.

At Toronto.

Lougheed, Geo. Edwd.
Lynch, John Joseph.
Martin, Louis K.
McAllister, Geo. D.
Palling, James.
Patterson, Charles.
Pollock, Geo. B.

At Ramilton.

Dempsey, J. H. C,
Elliott, Thomas.
Hamilton, Augusta M.
Hill, Jonathan A.
Hinchliffe, Ada.

At London.

Flynn, W. Joseph.
Harris, Wm. N.
Hastings, Samuel J.
Joues, Samuel.

At Winnipeg.

Ferguson, George L.
Flesher, Fredk. 0.

57

Mathyl, Emile.
Theberge, Phileas.
Ward, Wm E.

McKenzie, Agnes B.
MeLean, Walter.
Parish, Geo. H.
Payne, Alonzo N.
Payne, John L.
Ridley, Constance.
Rochester, James K
Rogers, Herbert R.
Ryan, John.
kSawyer, John A.
Sims, Richard J.
Smith, Josephine E.
Stuart, F. E.
Wright, Samuel E.

Morden, Geo. H.
O'Reilly, Wm. James.

Price, Geo. O.
Richardson, John H.
Roberts, Geo. J. H.
Sanderson, Frank.
Waters, Geo. A. W.
Wilkinson, Alex'r.

Mahony, Robt. P.
McCullough, Hattie.
MoLeod, Carrie.
Smith, Gertrude.

Johnson, R. W. S.
Liawe, Robert.
Minhinnick, W. B.
White, Richard M.

James, Arthur 0.

9v ictoria. A. 1886
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At Victoria, B.C.
Pawoett, Rowland C. Kaye, Ernest Edwd.

J. THORBURN, LL.D.,
Chairmal.

A. D. DECELLES,
P. LESUEUR,

Secretary.

CANDIDATES WHO PASSED IN OPTIONAL SUBJECTS AT THE C
SERVICE EBXAMINATION -HEL D IN NOVEMBER, 1885.

At St. John.

Burgess, Sherman W., Precis.
Murray, Fredk Wm., Precis.
Virtue, Wm. J., Precis.

At Montreal.
Eagleson, James S., Book-keeping.
Gawne, D. McLeod, Precis.
Linahen, James E., Composition and Translation.
Theberge, Phileas, Precis.
Valeur, Charles, Precis.

At Ottawa.
Aird, Geo. B., Precis.
Aird, H. E. Louisa, Compo.ition, Translation and Precis.
Bate, Charles W. C., Precis.
Bell, Marion E., Precis.
Briggs, John, Stenography.
Casey, Maurice W., Precis.
Charles, Joseph HL., Book-keeping and Precis.
Horan, Arthur John, Composition.
Matthews, Agnes Bertha, Precis.
Payne, John L., Precis and Telegraphy.
Parish, Geo. H., Precis.
Rochester, James K., Book-keeping.
Ryan, John, Precis.
Sims, Richard J., Composition and Precis.
Stuart, F. E., Precis.

At Kingston.

Barrett, William, Bookkeeping and Telegraphy.

At Toronto.
McAllister, Geo. D., Book-keeping.

At familton.
Armstrong, Jason R., Precis.
Beresford, Miss M. E., Composition and Precis.
Smith, Gertrude, Precis.

J. THIORBUIRN, LL.P!-3cAaîýfj
A. D. DECELLES,
P. LESUEUR, 5 ecretao
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.7'is paper was accidentally omitted fro•n the English version of the Report of 1884,
18 ilserted here to make the record complete.

No. 6.--(Duties.)

CIVIL SERVICE OF CANADA.

PROMOTION EXAMINATION,

Monday, 19th May, 1884.

POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT-INSIDE SERVICE.

MONET ORDER BRANCH.

10 1. Name the Books and Blanks forming the equipment of a Money
10 Order Office.

2. Describe the various operations connected with the treatment of a
Money Order Account, from the time of its receipt at the Department,

10 until it passes into the Ledger Clerk's hands.
3. In case of a mistake in the addition of the " Issues " in a Postmaster's

Money Order Return, what should make it certain that the error will be
10 discovered in the Head Office ?

4. In case of a loss of a Money Order by the remitter or payee, where
can a duplicate be had ? And what means are taken to prevent the pay-

10 Ment of the original order if subsequently found ?
5. Describe the means by which the Postmaster of a Money Order

Office, who has no official credit at .a neighbouring bank, is placed in
10 Possession of funds to meet Money Orders drawn upon his Office.

6. If a Postmaster in Ontario issues a Money Order on a Foreign
Country and does not account for the amount in his returns to the Depart-
ment, what means does the M. O. Branch possess of discovering the
omnission, and what will be the greatest possible interval between the

Io irregularity and its detection ?
7. Name all the countries, including British possessions, to which

Money may be remitted from Canada by Money Order, distinguishing:-
Ist. Between those in which the original Order, issued in Canada, will

be paid on presentation, and those where a second Order of the
domestic form of the country of payment, will be supplied to the
payee.

And 2nd. Between those having a direct convention or arrangement
with Canada, and those with which the exchange is through the

10 intermediate agency of the Postal Department of a third country.
8. A person in Canada receiving the sum of $100 by Money Order

fron Gerrnany, returns the amount to the remitter by the same mode of
transrmission. Will the remitter ir Germany receive back the exact sum
l' Germnan money, which he paid in in the first place ? If not, what willbe the difference, and how is it explained ? The commission on the Orders

16 need not be considered.
9. What remuneration is allowed to Postmasters of Money Order

Offices, for Money Order duties ? How is it computed, and how paid to
10 themt?

10. Describe the relations between the Money Order and Savings Bank
100 , and the advantages of the arrangements under which Savings

Bank transactions enter into the Money Order Accounts.
59
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RETURN
(IN PART)

(52)
an ADDRESS of the BOUSE OF COMMONS, dated 5th March, 1886;-For

cOPies of all documents forming the record in the cases of Her Majesty
against the different parties tried in connection with the late rebellion
illuding the jury lists, the names of the jurors, the lists of the jurors
enpannelled, the motions and affidavits filed, the evidence, the
'ncidents of the trial, the charges of the Judge, the names of the
3 ndges who tried the different cases, the names of the counsel for the
Prosecution and for the defence, the pleas entered, the verdicts and
the sentences, and, in short, of every document whatever relating to
the said trials.

By Command.
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

partient of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.
15th March, 1886.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, OTTAWA, 15th March, 1886.
4a 4 Pon the reference of an Address of the Honorable the House of Commons,

e . 5th instant, for copies of all documents forming the record in the cases of
t1 id.e8ty against the different parties tried in connection with the late rebellion,

ot1iolug the jury lists, the names of the jurors, the lists of the jurors empannelled, the
48) thand affidavits fyled, the evidence, the incidents of the trial, the charges of the

or the nanes of the judges who tried the different cases, the numes of the counsel
lein p rosecution and for the defence, the pleas entered, the verdicts aun the sen-

hnd in short, of every document whatever relating to the said tr ials, the under-
S honor, in part compliance with the said Address, to trànsmit herewith

ehelPts of the records and proceedings of the fifty-five cases mentioned in theSe hereto annexed.
d at he exception of the transcript of the records and proceedings in the trials
al rtet tieford-which are now being prepared and will forin a supplementary

etr urn-these are all the papers covered by the Address in possession of this
Clerk of the Stipendiary Magistrate's Court at Regina and Battlefoi d

th eIy, have been asked by telegraph to send copies of the records in the cases
r Parties held for trial in connection with the late rebellion.

A. POWER, for Deputy of Minister Justice.

QUEEN VS. OKA-DOKA ET AL.

)1886 M V8. OA-DoA and four other Indians, charged on the 14th Septem-abefore IHis Honor Judge Richardson, when he elected to be tried by a jury,
obimg as follows

A. 1886
- =;Meg
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CANADA:
North-West Territories. J

The information and complaint of Frederick Kolloch Gibson, in the to
Regina, in the North-West Territories of the Dominion of Canada, deputy she4
taken the fourteenth day of September, one thousand eight hundred and eighty
before the undersigned, one of Hier Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in and for
said North.West Territories, who saith:

That Oka-doka, otherwise called The Hole, Wah-mah-de-dota, otherwise
Red Eagle, Cah-bree-ta-mab-hitchi, otherwise called Poor Crow, Mah-to dota, 0 the
wise called Red Beau, and Kon-ah-mah-chee, otherwise called Left Hand, not
ing the duty of their allegiance, but wholly withdrawing the love, obedience, fde
and allegiance which every true and faithfùl subject of our Lady the Queen .
and of right ought, to bear towards our said Lady the Queen, on the twontY-si
day of March, in the year of our Lord one thonsand eight hundred and eightl-ther
and on divers other days, as well before as after that date, together with diverSo the
evil-disposed persons to the said Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, did, withi. 0
Dominion of Uanada compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend, to levy war agat
our said Lady the Queen, within Canada; in order, by force and coinstraint, to co.0
her to change her measures and counsels, and the said felonious compassing, ima
tion, invention, device and intention, then feloniously and wickedly did express,
and declare, by divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to say op

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonioas comp110
imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said persons a
charged, and each of them afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-sixth day of March
the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as after o
day, at and near the locality called Dack Lake, in the North-West Territr'io
Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet together, with di-
other evil-disposed persons to the said Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, to
make and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen î'
this realm. o ail$

And further to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compass
imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said persont L
charged, ard each of thom afterwards, to wit, on the twelfth day of May, 1
year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as after that
at or near the locality known as Batoche, in the said North-West Territor.09
Canada, did conspire, consuit, confederate, assemble and meet together, with .i
other evil-diisposed persons to the said Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, to raj
make and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, e
this realm. akitIoo

In contempt of our said Lady the Queen and her laws, to the evil exat P
all others in the like case offending against the form of the statute in such cas0 e f
and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dig

FRED. K. GIBSO$
Sworn before mô the day and year first above

mentioned, at the town of Regina, in the
North-West Territories of Canada.

BUGH RIaRARDSON,
Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the North- West Territories of Ca

And take notice that you have the option of being tried before a stipo be"d
magistrate and a justice of the peace with the intervention of a jury of six, or rt
a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way, without the intervention of a>
Which do you elect ? bfo!o.

The prisoners were charged on the above charge on 14th September, 1885, be gw
IHis Honor Judge Richardson, and they elected to be tried by a jury, and the
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oeeds on this day Thursday, 17th September, before His Honor Judge Richard-
an' "d Dr. Dodd, J.P.
Mr. Joseph Morin, is sworn as interpreter.
1essrs. D. L. Scott and W. O. Hamilton, counsel for the Crown.

.B. Robertson, counsel for prisoners.
r risoners are asked to plead, which they did, pleading " not guilty," and Mr.
TtsOn says they are ready for their trial.
TebT following jury was sworn: George Wallace, William Williamson, George

Marshall Ingersoll, John Child, Josiah Gilbert.
Charge read to the jury.
dlerk of Court.-Upon this charge the prisoners at the bar have been arraigned,

POn arraignment have pleaded not guilty, your duty therefore is to enquire
er they be guilty or not guilty, and hearken to the evidonc,3.

yot har. Scott.-May it please your Honors, and gentlemen of the jury: The charge
ave just heard read is for the offence known as treason-fIlony, it is punishable

Thi co nviction by such term of imprisonment as the court may sen fit to pronounce.
gain stance of the charge is that these man designed and intended to levy war

tonnt Her Majesty, which means the lawfully con"titutod Government of the
to ary, and, to fulfil that intention, they conspired with others on certain occasions

th and levy rebellion. There are two acts charged. The first is at Duck Lake
26th March. the second is at Batoche on the 12tb Mey. Now, although you

s1a heard of the late rebellion in the north and know all about it, it will be nec-
o for us to show that there was a rebellion, that a rebellion existed there about

reell-ates, we will show that the country in that neighborhood broke out into open
leme IOn about the 18th March last, when a large number cf half-breeds under the

r i of Louis Riel took possession of that part of the counrtry and organized an
et . ellion against the Government with the intention of setting up a Govern-

%ov 0 oPPosition to it. On the 26th March a fight occurred at Duck Lake in which
Sýe7 volunteers and some policemen were killed on the side of the Government,
til Fae loss of life on the part of the rebels. The rebellion, as I said, continued

the 12th May, several fights ensued in that interval, but on that day the Gov-
e rt troops under General Middleton were victorious, the rebels were routed, and

ith "ion in that part of the country was at an end. These prisoners are charged26th ng implicated in that rebellion. The first charge is at Duck Lake on the
ion',arch, we will show that at least one of the prisoners w s there on that occa-

bin We may not be able to show that the others were there-and that he was seen
tortowards the fight, and that he was armed and was seen w7ith the rebels going

e rebel fight, and was seen afterwards on several occasions in the Indian camp-
camp.

Seenhr0 of the others, as will be pointed out to you as the case proceeds, were
t t eral times during the time of the rebellion, with the rebels, and were seen

thoe rifle pits in the rifle pits at Batoche, about the 12th May last They were seen
the .&Ve cannot show that they were seen shooting at all, but they were there in

tho Pits, when One of the witnesses whom we will call was passing through and
41 a a there. That is the substance of the evidence that we will be able to pro-

"nst these prisoners.
1la onor will tell you- whether or not in his opinion such evidence is suffieienn
Wit d Jad you to find them guilty of the offence with which they are charged, that'hi7 th desi -
g tuore0 ging and intending to levy rebellion. I don't know that I need say any-

t ore f have explained the case sufficiently to you, and the evidence will dis-
fullY as it is called.
TommPKIs sworn :-

aed by Mr. Scott:
"8. '~ an interpreter in the Indian Department or wore, at Carlton ? A.

hapPened to you on the 18th March last ? A. I was taken prisoner.
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Q. Where ? A. At Batoche.
Q. By whom ? A. By Riel and his followers.
Q. In what state were they ? A. In a state of rebellion.
Q. How do you know ? A. I seen them all with arms.
Q. H1ow many were they? A. I think about between 400 and 500.
Q. Of what class of people? A. Sioux, Crees and half-breeds.
Q. Was Louis Riel the leader? A. Yes. 10Q. Do you know what their object was ? A. They wanted to have a

Government. (Interpreter interprets this to the prisoners in Sioux and Cree.) h
Q. Where were you taken to on the 18th March ? A. I was taken to the 13c
Q. Where ? A. At Batoche.
Q. How long were you kept there ? A. I was kept there until the next nitl

the night of the 18th. , e
Q. And then what became of you?; A. We were taken over to Walters' w

across the river.
Q. That is, on the west side ? A. Yes. the
Q. How long were you detained there ? A. Kept there until the morning

19th, and then we were removed back to the church.
Q. And then how long did you remain ? A. The next night we

Garnot's house.
Q. Where is that ? A. At Batoche.
Q. In the same settlement ? A. Yes.
Q. Were you taken across the river again ? A. Yes, the time I was takoe

Duck Lake.
Q. When was that ? A. 26th March.
Q. And where were you placed at Duck Lake? A. In Mr. Mitchell's house•
.Q. Did anything happen that day at Duck Lake? A. Yes; the rebels and

police had a fight.
Q. Where ? A. About two miles from Duck Lake.
Q. Did you see it? A. No. thQ. Well, how do you know they had a fight ? A. I heard reports, a8

afterwards Riel came and told us.
Q. You heard the firing; I suppose you mean by the reports ? A. Yes.
Q. And Riel afterwards came and told you ? A. Yes.
Q. Were there any other prisoners there besides you ? A. Yes.
Q Ilow man y? A. Six.
Q. Riel came afterwards; was it on the same day ? A. Yes.
Q. And told you that there had been a fight? A. Yes.
Q. What did ho say about it? A. He said he was glad to have a victory

the police. b
Q. Did be say what had happened during the fight? A. He said that theY

killed quite a nurnber.
Q. Of what? A. Of volunteers and policemen. b
Q. And did ho say what the result was ? A. The result in his way, he

it would favor him.
Q. I suppose he said the result was a victory for him and bis men ? A.
Q. How long wore you detained a prisoner? A. Until the 12th May. d
Q. Where were yeu kept during tat tirne ? A. We were kept arofllnk t

country. We were at Carlton, and then they brought us from Carlton bA
Batoche and put us in Baptiste Boyer's house, and then on the day of the Iish
battle we were puL in a cellar. 0

Q. And how did you know there was a battle at Pish Creek ? A. JÇ5aLr
told me.

Q. You hoard from them that there had been a battle at Fish Creek? A
Q. On that day you were put in the cellar? A. Yes.
Q. How long were you kept there ? A. We were taken out twice.

sure. I think it was twice and then we were put back again when the f
at Batoche, and in the cellar then four days.

A&. 184 9 Victoria.
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. You knew the fight lasted for four days at Batoche ? A. Yes.
Q And ended on the 12th May ? A. Yes.

110w many prisoners were there in the cellar at that time ? A. Six besides

Q. Then on the 12th what happened ? A. We were released.
18Y whoma ? A. Gen. Middleton and his forces. (Interpreted in Cree and

on prisoners.)
q* Theni did that part of the country continue in a state of rebellion for that
'fter the 18th March ? A. Yes.Q' Upto ? A. 12th May.

. id you see any of the prisoners durin that interval ? A. I saw them ail.
SW did yo see No. 1, for instance, The Hole? A. I saw him at Batoche.
'What was he doing ? A. The same as the rest; he had arms, carrying arms.

,y1'low many times did you see him ? A. I seen him frequently. I could notmw any times.
Q What opportunity had you of seeing him? A. Seeing him through the window.

e dhrough the window of the house where you were imprisoned? A. Yes;
9ed to corne out and dance.
Qt Where there any other Indians with him ? A. Yes ; ail the Sioux Indians
4? dace, and the Crees used to join in with them.

• That is ail you remember about him, is it ? A. Yes.Do you know anything else about him besides what you have told? A.¿

No u nly what they-
Q' o•e2.Did you see him, Red Eagle? A. Yes.

? A. At Batoche.

, Thhat Was he doing? A. Carrying arms in rebellion, the same as the rest.
at ail you know about him? A. Yes.

Was he armed ? A. Yes. .No. , Poor Crow ? A. The same-I seen him too.o. 4? A. Yes; Red Bean.
.Just the same ? A. Yes.

Q Nou saw him frequently armed? A. Yes.
q. 5, Left Hand ? A.-I seen him also.Q, here ? A. At Batoche and Duck Lake.
Q, 'Y saw him at Duck Lake on what day ? A. 26th March.
Q w at Was the day of the fight ? A. Yes.

3A6. t a it before or after the fight you saw him? A. He was just going out-.
q. h saw him, and I saw him before the fight.
of the Saw him before the fight, going out where? A. Going out with the

Qlhiec Way ? A. Towards the battle.
SWa s going out towards the battle with the other rebels ? A. Yes.Q he armed ? A Yes.
Q O you saw him afterwards ? A. Yes.
Q b idtat day ? A. H1e used to be riding my horse around.

whyou see him afterwards ? A. Yes ; I saw him frequently after that.
Q ere ? A. At Batoche.
at was he doing at Batoche ? A. Daing the same as the rest, carrying

QQ ~YJXed, Isuppose? A. Yes.
Q. • did you know these prisoners before ? A. I have seen them.

Wthe '6 the rebellion ? A. No, I don't know. I have seen them, but I don't
You 1 kloiw the Cree.
tut thnew him before ? A. Yes.jre. •Were other four you did not know before the rebellion ? A. No.

3o there many Sioux there ? A. Yes, quite a number. (Interpreted in
1oux to the prisoners.)

Sessional Papers (No. 52.)
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Cross-examined by Mr. Robertson:
Q. When yon say you saw these people at Batoche, where was it that you e

a prisoner ? A. At Batoche. 01Q. In the village ? A. Yes. I guess you can call it a village, there are four
five bouses.

Q. On what days of the month can you tell us did you see these different in
at Batoche ? A. I could not.

Q. You cannot say that ? A. No.
Q. Somewhere about the beginning of May ? A. Yes. I seen them on the I

of April, the first, that is when White Cap's band came in.
Q. Where were you when White Cap's band came in ? A. Looking out Of

pane of glass in the window.
Q.How many of them were there ? A. I could not say. I should think thr

was about twenty-five or thirty.
Q. Had you ever seen any of them befbre ? A. I seen White Cap. I UsO

give him rations.
Q. Iad you seen any of the others before ? I could not say.
Q. Yon did not recognize any in particular thon ? A. Yes, I recognized th3e'
Q. At that time ? A. Yes.
Q. You had never seen them before ? A. Yes; but I seen them too often$

wards.
Q. Did you recognize them then, when you saw them first ? A. No, I dJid
Q. Thon you saw the m afterwards at different times about the village? A. tîy
Q. And that is what you refer to when you say that you saw them frequeo

lBatoche ? A. Yes.
Q. iHow long have you known the Indians ? A. About seven years. . t b
Q. And it is a fact is it not that an Indian very rarèly moves about withOu

gun ? A. Yes, generally, they have their gun.
Q. Generally, they carry their guns wherever they go ? A. Yes. tbl
Q. Now, what arms bad these different men that you speak of ; you s8Y

were armed ? A. Do you mean rifle or shot gun ?
Q. Tell us what arms ? A. They had their guis.
Q. Which they generally carried ? A. The Sioux, principally, have rifles•
Q. They generaliy carry them ? A. Yes. cri
Q. And they had then just the same guns and rifles that they generally ca

A. Yes.
Q. When you saw them ? A. Yes.
Q. That is what you mean by saying that they were armed ? A. Yes. it
Q. Where were you just immediately before the fight at Duck Lake? .

were just coming in as they were going out from Batoche.
Q. You were coming in as they were going out? A. Yes.
Q. As who were going out ? A. The rebels.
Q. From Batoche ? A. No ; they had gone the night before to Duck Le,

Batoche, part of them. There was a guard left on us, we went next morninlg.la
Q. You were a prisoner before that ? A. Yes. I was taken on the 18th,

don't know, I think there was about three hundred started the night before t
Batoche and went to Duck Lake, and thon on the next morning we were takel
to Duck Lake, and we were just coming into Duck Lake when part of thern
going out.

Q. When who were going out ? A. The rebels.
Q. From Duck Lake ? A. Yes.
Q. You were just being brought in thon to Duck Lake when this P

rebels was going out from Duck Lake ? A. Yes. iø
Q. And you say that you saw one of these prisoners there on that Oca

A. Yes; but I did not say I saw the Sioux.
Q. You saw the Cree, No. 5, Left Hand ? A. Yes.
Q. You saw the Croc that morning ? A. Yes.
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Now that was before the figbt at all ? A. Yes.
You saw a good many other people there coming and going, did'nt you?

• id you go out with them to where the fight took place ? A. I went out

. Youi did not go at that time ? A. No.
• ou remained at Duck Lake ? A. Yes.

Q· When the lot of them went away, you remained at Duck Lake ? A. Yes.
A 1Ow far was it where you remained from where the fight afterwards occurred ?

a Sonld think it would be about a mile and a half.
Q' 1 10W many did you see going ont from Duck Lake? A. I think there were%bQ 400.

Q. About 400 went out from Duck Lake that morning ? A. Yes.
%o Now, for all you know, some of those men who went out that morning may

"'e gone to where the fight occurred at al ? A. That is so.
eolrt. Shall I have this repeated to the prisoner, Mr. Robertson?

r. iRobertson.-I think not.
JORn W. ASTLEY SWOrn:-

Examined by Mr. Scott :
SWhere do you live, Mr. Astley ? A. Prince Albert.

q What is your occupation ? A. Surveyor and explorer.
er>h hat Were you doing on the 17th March ? A. if I was to give my evidence

een each of these men separutely -
S. i'pl.want to commence at the beginning-where were you on the 1lth March?

%peci Prince Albert, and I went up with Capt. Moore with a certain amount of
tIl Constables and volunteers to Carlton, and when I was at Carlton I went out

Stfor Major Crozier through the French settlement, and I was taken prisoner
8d6th March, three o'clock in the maorning, at Duck Lake, by half breeds' and

q h der the 1< adership of Louis David Riel, in open rebellion against the Queen.
Wat happened on the 26th March ? A. On that same day of the 26th

t Laft ]Riel and a certain amount of half-breeds came in from Batoche, I saw
QtIlanTd.

Ma Ier 'OU in the same-? A. I was in the same room, upstairs, with Tom-
terards aw that Cree, Left Hand, going in the direction of where Riel told me,Q. ds the fight had taken place with the rest of the half-breeds and Indians.
o4?) was going with the rest of the half-breeds and Indians in the direc-

Q.? A. 0f where the fight took place.
lde know a fight took place? A. Yes; Riel came up that same day and

r. tI a fight had taken place near Duck Lake.
rO bertson.-That is not evidence. .

o t I think the statement of Riel is evidence as to what had been done.
. iel's statem ent of a fight having taken place is evidence.
ByMr. Scott -

'th - au you any other means 'of knowing that afight had taken place? A.
towaraounded vol unteer brouglht up into the room, Chailie Newett, and I
Q. 8  is Wounds for him.

ad reother reason for knowing ? A. E xcept seeing the half-breeds going
ed what did they do after they returned, or did tbey do anything ? A.

teers came Up and told us, and that was all, and then of course some of the
as ae from Prince Albert and took the bodies away the following Sunday,

of Ap ved to Carlton, and from that taken to Batoche, and I arrived there tho
and that was the first time, from that on, wben I saw thebe Sioux

A•, 1 2 ou aere imprisoned in the same prison with Tompkins urtil 12thth ay.
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Q. What happened on the 12th May? A. On the 12th May I carried a note O*
for Riel to Geaneral Middleton, and thora was firing going on at that time, and I a<
that.

Q. What did you do on that day ? A. I rode ont 6rat of all to the general.
Q. Riel sont ý ou with a note to General Middleton ? A. Yes.
Q. Took you out of the place where you were confined and sent you with a Soto

to General Middletou ? A. To General Middleton.
Q. How did you get to General Middleton ? A. I rode out on horseback.
Q. What had you to go through to get thera? A. I had to pass through tlhe

rebel lines.
Q. Wore they fighting or not at the time ? A. There was fighting going o1

the time.
Q. You passed through the rebel lines and got to General Middleton ? A.
Q. And after you got there what did you do ? A. i took a note back from bi

to Riel.
Q. Going through the lines the second time? A. Second time, yes.
Q. And then what happened after that ? A. I talked to, Riel some timea

took anotlher note out about two o'clock in the aftern, on.
Q.To whom ? A. To the general, the second time.
Q. You passed through the linos how many times? A. Three times.
Q. Going between IRiel and General Middleton ? A. Yes.
Q. On the 12th May ? A. Oa the 12th May.
Q. Were they firing ? A. They were firing when I went out the first tiM 10t

the firing stopped from half-past ine or ton till half-puat nine. The last twite J
through, there was firing all the time.

Q. Then they were not firing the first time ? The first time they wore firi*
but the firing stopped when I was talking with Riel.

Q. But the second time you went through? A. They were firing.
Q. Where did you see No. 1, The Hole ? A. I saw him at Batoehe when I arrioa

there about the 3rd April.
Q. What was ho doing ? A. In arms from that day until I saw him the la1tda
Q. low many times would you see him during that time ? A. i used tO

him very nearly every day in front of our window.
Q. Did you see him anywhere else? A. The last day I saw him when

coming back the second time and looking for Riel, on horseback. I saw him Wit ,
gun in his hand among where the half-breeds and Indians were. The troops WOe
firing, and of course they were firing, but I could not see him firing at the time.

Q. Who were firing? A. The half-breeds and Indians and troaps.
Q. The half-breeds and Indians with whom No. 1, The Hole, was with atbo

time ? A. Yes. oeQ Where were they? A. He was more to what would be my left, goivg
from the half breed camp.

Q. Bow far trom the settiement ? A. About half-way between the head of
rebel settlement and the general's, among some sand.hills when I was looking
Riel, tha is where the Sioux were situated.

Q. They were among some sand-hills ? Were there any rifle pits in the Dg
borhood of Batoche ? A. There were rifle pits in all directions around there.

Q. Were there any near where these men were that you saw with The J
A. There were some a li.tle further up, near where the troops were.

Q. But there were a number of rebels with him in that place? A. Yes, sea
all through.

Q. Wa, that a place for a man who would want to keep ont of the fight ?
No, not a very good place to keep out of the fight.

Q. Not the best place that ho could have found ? A. No, not the safest P
Q. Was he armed on that occasion ? A. fie was armed at that time. the
Q. No. 2. Red Eagle, where did you first see him ? A. I saw him abo.ilad$

10th April. He belongs to White Cap's band. They were not thore when we arriî
8
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tt- first, and I saw him off and on, armed the same as the r.st of them during
ee Up to 12th May, and thon I saw him in a rifle pit lower down the river

leC Cap' s band was situated when I went out the first time.
U aw him in a rifle pit ? A. Standing up at that time.

Whehn you went out the first time to Generat Middleton ? A. Yes.
'Yu What was ho doing ? A. Several of them standing around and the remainder
g aU.d see with part of the had over the pit. I could see some few of them stand-

0P otd near their pits, but the majority of them would have thoir heads poking
q he pits every now and thon.

'as this man in a pit ? A. Standing alongside of the pit when I saw him.
Was he armed ? A. Armed, at that time.

b r 1eaw far would that ba from the settlement, from the houses ? A. It would'ry near half a maite below where we were imprisoned.
Q. a ud how far from General Middleton's linos ? A. From where the troops

Sthat timae and the General himsolf, it would bo about 400 yards.
A&id about half a mile from Batoche ? A. Yes.

' N'o- . Poor Crow, whore did you seo him ? A. I saw him the same time I

' AbOut the 3rd April ? A. About the 3rd April when we arrived there, andI
Q tnebout the same place on the last day.

S whre was that ? A. Among those sand-hills whon I was coming back from
kgnd trip toGeneral Kiddleton. I waslooking for Riel thon and I had to comaQards and forwards through their linos looking for him.

Qat was the second passage through the lines ? A. My second trip back.Qbat was he doing there ? A. Just around about the sane as No. 1.
kQ ]aO oW far were those sand-hills that you saw No. I and No. 3 in from the

Q A. About half way, perhaps about 200 yards.
t0ý ot half way botween the houses and the general's linos ? A. Yes, the

Q. ?re wre prisoners and the general's lines.
the ro.t ? A. Red Bean, that is I saw him about the 3rd, the sane time that i

Of the o there, armed off and on till the end of the time, but I did not sea

ortdid you see him before the 3rd ? A. No, I did not see him at ail beforo.
Q a ail you can say about him ? A. That is all I know about him.

Q YOu saw him there armed in the rebel camp ? A. In the robel camp.
5) -, LOft Rand ? A. I saw him first at Duck Lake on the 26th Maroh,

e4 direction whore the fight toak place, or whore Riel told me the fight had
thaa'e'wth the rest of the half breeds aad Indians, anl [ saw him off and on

d th , he was with the crowd of halfîbreeds and Indians that were going out.
Q. Wrection ? A. Yes.
e4ýhea he armed ? A. Ho was armed at that time, and thon, the last day at

ue. aW him at the sane place as I saw Oae Arraw, when I went out the first

p t~re did you see him? A. It was whon I was going out the first time.
SP rough where ho was standing with the rest of them on the side of a hiH.
1 t o te Of the same mon firing at the troops at that time. They would stop

I dte hill and fire, and thon fait back again.
e yOu see him firing ? A. No, I did not see him firing.

9. a wlth othrs who were firing ? A. Yes.
9. Whro you saw firing at the troops ? A. Yes.as ni h armed ? A. lie was armed at that tima. Riel went with me anil
Di rough them.

2» n Î know any of those before ? A. I knew Laft Iland, No. 5, and I seen
e age, but I nover saw the others before I saw them at Batoche. (This is

reo and Sioux to the prisoners.)
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Cross-examined by Mr. Robertson:

Q. You saw a great many Indians during that time, Mr. Astley, while you
a prisoner ? A. Yes, of course, I did. Yes.

Q. A good many hundreds of them ? A. Well, I saw between half-breOds
Indiaiis, between 400 and 500.

Q. And most of them you had never seen before ? A. A great many of tee-
Of course, some of those I saw before, but not the rest of them.

Q. Yon say you saw No. 2, Red Eagle ? A. In White Cap's band I have
him before, and No. 5, Left Hand.

Q. You say you never saw the others until you saw them at Batoche? ·
I saw them at Batoche. øU0

Q. Yes, except Left Hand and No. 2 Red Eagle, you had never son them
.you saw them at Batoche ? A. 1 did not see the others before Batoche.

Q. When was it you had seen No. 2, Red Eagle, before ? A. I have seen
witb White Cap's band around through Prince Albert district. He is his sOI3 o
I bolieve. $re

Q. How many of those large bodies of mon that you saw there are you prop 1
to identify ? Well, out of the lot that were in the barracks, those are the OnUI
that I would swear to-those few. eer

Q. These are the only few that you would swear to ? A. Yes. There area
tain amount more outside that I might swear to, but none of these are among
bmrracks men.

Q. I suppose you bave beard of the many very extraordinary cases of miD16h
identity, mistakes people bave made about the identity of people ? A. Weil,
got certain reasons to remember certain me, and I am not very likely toforgTb

Q Then it is because you have certain reasons for remembering? A.
remember those few, more than others.

Q. Tell us what is the certain reason for which you remember No. 1 ? A.. 4i
out talking to Riel one day just after the Fish Creek fight, and Riel told me, 1
ing tome, to keep my eye on some man that was standing behind me with a g >
for fear ho might shoot me. So I remember him quite right. to

Q. And what was the special reason for No. 2 ? A. Because he belonge
White Cap band, and i have seen him. ø

Q. No. 3 ? A. Because I have a particular friend among them there * g
Little Crow, ard I heard the name "Crow" used, and I thought itwasthesamnie f
but one of the balf-breeds pointed him out to me not as Little Crow and I kee*
diffkence. That is the way I came to remember him. 00

Q. No. 4, Red Beau ? A. 1 just remember him, being in front of our
intd out as beiug Red Bean; ho was pointed out to me by some English sP®:d

rench half-breeds. Be used to be in front of our windov-tbe prisoners' *
They used to come and dance in front of our window every day. ArO

Q. Nýo. 5, Left Bard ? A. 0f course i knew him as belonging to
Umd. I have known bim for some years. hiob

Q. I just wanted to be sure ibere was no mistake about them. Now, i
thef e do you say belonged to White Cap's bard? A. Red Bagle, No. 2. t p

Q. lm ibat the only one ? A. Be is the only one that belongs to Wh
band to my knowledge. r

Q. Do you know auytbing about bis previous character? A. Well, as
band isiconcerned, 1 have always beard tbem well spoken of.

Q. White Cap's band bas been always well spoken of ? A. Tes.
Q. Do you know anything about this man in particular against himn? A·

just as 1 aay that I saw him off and ou, aud then on the last day standing
with a rifle.

Q. Then can you tell me anytbing about the character of the Othere
them one after the other ? A. The other three Sioux-I know nothing abo id
character, and 1 don't kncw anything more about them than seeing them:0V
iBatoche right aloing. in
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at u And Left Rand ? A. Wel, he is like One Arrow. All his band are not
You Would call a good specimen of Indians.

,el, they don't work very hard ? A. No, they don't.
b9 as itBut that is about the worst you can say against them ? A. That is about as

1 48tcan be.
no That is your idea; you are a very energetic man? A. That is the wor st I
'w of thei I know nothing against his character, anything worse than that.

Qret Now, when you were riding through the linos on those occasions you were
excited, weren't you ? A. No, I can't say I was excited. I was a little mad.

t al Yu don't consider you are excited when you are mad ? A. No, I was not
OXcited

e tThe bullets were flying pretty thickly about you ? A. Weil, I did not notice
tt ail. I did not bother my head about them.

adq&thAnd yet you were not excited ? A. No, I was not at ail excited, I was just
1bat was all.

q That is rather a strange state of mind. I would like to understand
4i & man riding through between two lines where firirig was going on, actually not

ut. the firing. Do you say that? A. Well, I had something else to think
>rha neaver thought once about it at ail the whole time I was travelling except

Ps an odd man would take a shot at me ja little too close.
o q*Thon you are not prepared to swear there was firing going on ? A. I seen

,%y i tha heard bulkts whistling around in every direction, and what I mean to
t4 I was not excited about it.

t 1'kNow, did you notice the firing or did you not ? A. I noticed it in the respect
4 tot hew the firing was going on by the smoke and the whiz of the bullets, but it

",ecite me at all.
Ya o were running the gauntlet? A. I don't know what you call the gauntlet.
Q. ng My duty.

tw e ou were running the gauntlet of those two fires. You were riding out
Q.J~O eoPPosing lines? A. Certainly.
Q , P0osig yourself to the fires of both lines? A. Yes.

ou Were doing that, and you were very anxious at the time to bring aboutQ. an to stop that firing ? A. Yes, for the sake of the prisoners and Riel.
4 athat was the purpose, and you were running about trying to find ]Riel whenur them, these mn ? A. When I saw these two men, I was perhaps half-an-
q,'g backwards and forwards before I could find him at ail that time.nld &nd you saw a great many other Indians that day ? A. Yes ; but some I

e thoremmber again. I might remember them if I saw them, but I could not
Q, It .e; but those two I remember all right enough.

7ad tirs the only two that you remember ? A. That is all I remember the
Q. e- The first time i saw No. 2, the second time I saw No. 1 and No. 3.Og g)n the first time the circumstances were very much the same, there wasQ.ong on ? A. Piring going on, but it was more distant.
rtio Were riding through the lines just the saine ? A. But it was in a differ-

A hot ane thing going on ? A. Yes.
. bo, fight going on ? A. It was not very hot at that time.
e Mr. A l ey don't you think that it is just possible you may be mistaken

Porh e A If i had not known them for those sane reasons before that,e for hb aP8 not have remembered them so well, but when I knew those same
eand n o. s'me rosons before then, and had reason to know them when I passed

at all, 'ced them ; there were other Indians I passed, not noticing who they

us; Y Want your honest opir3 on about it, and I know that is ail you will
tu toy You think it quietly over, don't you think it is rather stretching a14 o h at yOU can be perfectly positive that these identical men were there,

y not have seen somebody else and mistaken them for these in the
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excitement ot the moment ? A. I don't know ; if I saw you some place I 'oa
remember your face again, and those men can be distinguished from other India

Q. You might see somebcdy else like me and take him for me, because, Wh &
man is familiar with one face and sees another that is like it, another face; when
is in a state of excitement his mind naturally jumps at one idea-that is the mnaa
know ? A. It may be with some people.

Q You have made that mistake yoursolf, haven't you, with people you fan
you knew, and you found out you were mistaken ? A. I may have in an odd 0 ee0
but then I had not the same roason to remember those people that I had to reta
ber these.

Q. Were you thinking of remnembering these pople thon ? A. No, not at ther
time; but I had certain reasons for remembering them, and the moment I saw
I remembered their faces ; but others I did not remember.

Q. Had you any more reason for remembering them than you had, for instan
on other occasions when you have told us you have met people that you mistood or
some person that you know well ? A. I don't know any case where i have
that, but still it may have happened. rof

Q. May it not be that you may be mistaken, just be mistaken in that 8os
way about these men. A. Well, I would not admit it, because I feel perfectly P08

of it.
Case for the Crown closed.
No evidence for defence.
Mr. Robertson. -I am not going to address the jury, and I leave it for 10

Honor.
Court.-Gentlemen of the jury. From what you have heard those two witnoo

state in that witness-box, you are called upon to pronounce whether or not 0 A
ing your province as a jury-whether or not as I say, you are conclusively convi
that al or any one or more of these men who are here before you wore implicat
the rbelhiousch h s are described and set forth, either one or more of th

ous acts which are set forth in the charges preferred against thom ? The 0 h26rg
are generally against them all, and they say they were at Duck Lake. Wel •'
evidence certainly does not show, does not establish that all of thom were at 9bO
Lake. The utmost that could be said upon the evidence, is that the Loft Hand lb
Cree, was at Duck Lake, but not so with regard to the other overt act whtc 1
charged at Batoche, for there, if reliance is to be placed upon the evideace, I
you have ovidence which supports it. .

In disposing of this case, however, gentlemen, recollect that they are ont a
just as much consideration as if they wore not Indians. They are entitled {
same consideration as any white man, or any person who is under the proctioo
the British Crown, and they ought not to be convicted, no conviction ought to
place unless a jury is convinced, conclusively, and as a result from consid0ri
undoubtedly in their minds, that they were implicated. b

If, therefore, you have a doubt as to the reliability of the evidence, or tha.,
witnessos could be mistaken, you think, and a reasonable doubt at that, whyvel
thom or give any of thora the benefit of it. If, on the other hand, you are con1cl" 83
convinced that they were there, thon as deliberatoly say so. der

I don't see that I need detain you longer. I shall ask you to retire and con
and you will thon say how you find them all, or any of thom. thie

Mr. Scott.-I don't know that your Honor has made it sufficiently clear tle
jury, that as to each one of the prisoners, if they find him guilty of either o00e
overt acts, there will be a conviction. ]AI#

Court.-I think I have. Gentlemen, counsel for the Crown doubts whether the
sufficiently explained to you. Guilt as to any one of the charges, or any neon 4 bf
overt acts charged is sufficient to convict themupon proof. If you are coni' a
proof which has been offered to you of com'pligty in any one of these charge,
is sufficient to convict. I drew your attention to each of the charges for the Pti0&
of pointing out that with regard to Duck Lake thore was only one of them ide

12

-49 Victoria.



<9 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 1886

Then, at the same time, [ also drew your attention to the fact that if the wit-
el0 efere to be believed, all of them were at Batoche. Now, what the learned coun-

be Who has charge of the prosecution seemed to think was, that the verdict should
of tributive ; that is not necessary, it is not so. If they're implicated in any one
bput it liOvert acts charged, a verdict of " guilty " should be entered. I think I have

anenough.
to Ja. Sott.-I think your Honor misunderstood my objection. I did not pretend
tribathat at all. I did not mean that. I did not think the verdict should be dis-

tion Jiry retire at 11.30 and return at 12 noon, verdict, "guilty, " with recommenda-
tomercy.

Court here adjourned till 25th September instant.

QUEEN VS. KAH-PAH-YAK-AS-TO-CUM.

orth.. CANADA:
tWest Territories. j

4r-e thirteenth day of August, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hun-
lag Id eighty-five, at the town of Regina, in the North-West Territories, before

Ii chardson, Esquire, one of the stipendiary magistrates of the North-West,
erritories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the North-West

les Act, 1880;
Îth -Pah-yak-as-to-cum, otherwise called " One Arrow," you stand charged on

ore me, as follows:-

o'rth- cANADA:
est Territories.j

a e information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city of
el t, lu the Province of Ontario, in the Dominion of Canada, chief of police,

d thirteenth day of August, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight
stratand eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary
.es in and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith:-

e d at Kah-pah.yak-as-to-cum, otherwise called One Arrow, not regarding
S Yof his allegiance, but wholly withdrawing the love, obedience, fidelity and

'%d ofe which every true and faithful subject of our said Lady the Queen should
Maright ought to bear towards our said Lady the Queen, on the twenty-sixth day

Sethr , in the year aforesaid, and on divers days as welI before as after that day,
knok with divers other evil-disposed persons, to the said Alexander David Stewart
Y War, 'eloniously and wickedly did com pass, imagine, invent, devise and intendto

%traint against our said Lady the Queen within Canada, in order by force and
%iiapasso o rpel her to change her measures and counsels, and the said felonious
"y did g Imagination, invention, device and intention then feloniously and wick-

OIed tbPress, utter and declare, by divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter men-

eut d tO fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his folonious compassing, imagination,
e device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Kah-pah-yak-as-to-cam, other-

aovo rrow, to wit, on the twenty-sixth day of March, in the year
e the l 'moentiOned, on divers other days and times as well before as after that day,
l'IOni 15aItY called Duck Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid,

thr Witand wickedly did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet
0 lo divers other evil-disposed persons, to the said Alexander David Stewart

quen' raise, make and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady
An thml this realm.

agi er, in order to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compass-
on, invention, device and intention aforesaid, ho, the said Kah.pah-yak-

13



as-to-cum, otherwise called One Arrow, afterwards, to wit, on the twentY-1t
day of March, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times as well be
as after that day, at the locality called Duck Lake, in the North-West TerritorieS
Canada aforesaid, together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said
ander David Stewart unknown, armed and arrayed in a wartike manner, that I
say, with guns, rifles, pistols, bayonets and other weapous, being then wickedlY gë
feloniously assembled and gathered togother against our said Lady the Queen,à
wickedly and feloniously did levy and make war against our said Lady the Que1
the said locality known as Duck Lake, in the said the North-West Territorlo
Canada and within this realm.

And further, to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonious cempss
imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, ho, the said Kah.pahY
as-to-cam, otherwise called One Arrow, afterwards, to wit, on the ninth day of b
in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times as well before as after
day, at the locatity calied Batoche, in the North-West Territories of Canada, Oe'
said, feloniously and wickedly did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and Wt
together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said Alexander David Ste
uiknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said
the Queen within this realm.

And further, in order to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compa,
imagination, invention, device and intention atoresaid, he, the said Pah-kah Y
to-cam, otherwise called One Arrow, afterwards, to wit, on the ninth day of May,d,
year aforesiaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as after that
at the locality called Batoche, in the North-West Territories of Canada, afOre
together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said Alexander David Sto
unknown, armed and arrayed in a warlike manner, that is to say with guns, rifiOej fi
tols, bayonets and other weapons, being thon wickedly and feloniously assemb 00l
gathered togother against our said Lady the Queen, most wickedly and feloni
did levy and make war against our said Lady the Queen, at the said locality "
as Batoche, in the said North-West Territories of Canada, and within this realt i
contempt of our said Lady the Queen and her laws, and to the evil exampleo
othets in tho like case offending against the form of the statute in such cas6
and provided, and against the peace of our said Lady the Quoen, her CroWl
dignity.
Sworn bofore me the day and year above mon- A. ). STEWAZ•

tioned at the town of Regina, in the
NorthWest Territories of Canada.

HUGH RICHARDSON,
Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the North- West Territories of CanaMd•l'

And take notice that you have the option of being tried by a stipendiary I
trate and a justice of the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, or .fore
stipendiary magistrate in a summary way and without the intervention of a
pursuant to the Statute of Canada, 43rd Victoria, chapter twnty-five, section slh r
six, sub-section five, as amended by the Stattite of Canada, 48-49 Victoria, ope,
fifty-one. Which do you elect?

Clerk opens court, and reads to prisoner the charge against him.
you ; are you guilty or not guilty ? Prisoner answers " not guilty."

Clerk.-Are yon ready for your trial ?
Mr. F. Beverley Robertson, counsel for prisoner, says he is quite readY *
Clerk (to the prisoner).-Those good men whoni you shall now hear cal

those that are to pass between Our Sovereign Lady the Queen and you. 00o
fore yon will challenge thora, or any of thom, you must challenge them as theY
to the book to be sworn, and before they are sworn, and you shall be heard.

A jury of six is now sworn. teet -
Clerk roads indictment to .the jury. Upon this charge the prisoner a a

has beon arraigned, and upon his arraignment ho has pleaded " not gailtÝ•
inquiry therefore is te enquire if not guilty, and hearken to the evidence.

14
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eIh Xr. Casgrain (for the Crown).-May it please the court, gentlemen of the jury:
tione arge Which you have just heard read puts this man before you on an accusa-
robab treason-felony. The facts which will be brought out in evidence would
a kn warranted the Crown in accusing this man of the higliest crime which
tisgP 'Wn to the law, that is treason, but the Crown, believing that the Indians inOe nrltry have an indefinite notion of thi allogiance which they owe to their

*reign, it was thought proper to bring this man before you on an accusation for
o y 0e Of a lesser degree than that of treason. As you have hoard the charge read

tte ' everal overt acts are laid against this man. He is accused of the crime of
'Qý "et lony, and if in the evidence any of these overt acts are sustained, these

troghtts Sustained by the witnesses, any one of them sustained, then the crime isWt home to him, and there will be probably no difficulty about your verdict,
arYfetWill ndeavor to prove bofore you that on divers days mentioned in the
tahe locality known as Duck Lake, and the locality known as Batoche were in

fee insurrection, that is, that the people, that the half-breeds, in that locality
at a state of rebellion against the Governmeut. Upon this point we thinktoere will be no difficulty in establishing that there was an insurrection.

Ires Arrow the prisoner now before you, was the chief of a band of about 15
the , and his reserve was situated noar Batoche. He is a treaty Indian, and, as
%verge goes on to say, not regarding the allogiance which he owed to the

d th "ent and to the Queen, not regarding that Lroaty which passed betweon bim
ivernmlent of this country, ho joins the rebels at Batoche and at Duck

t seon almost continuously during the poriod which elapsed between the
te arh and the 9th, 10th and 1lth days of May, 1885, in arms with the other

With tb 0 joins thom and fights with them at Duek Lake, and h joins and fights
Shom at Batoche.

Irt gentleoen, if the Crown proves these overt acts, or any of them, as I have
ry a d, you will have no difficulty in coming to a conclusion. The case is a
a'h% 1Pli One in our minds. The evidence will not be long. These Indians

tr a treaty with the Government and being treated by the Government of this
tu Qy 8. Probably no other Indians are treated by any Government, must be made
the oVertand that if they are thus treated by the Goverument they must stand by
%ttntllr ient, they must maintain their allegiance to the Government, to the
t 98aced t the Quen and they must also understand that if any breach o

t a4 rtakes place amongst them, that they will be visited by punishment, and
of the ime against the laws committed by them will be put down by the strongN aw.

t dy 8 entlemen, we will go into the evidence, and it will be short, as I have
ht time. nk the case will not take long, and we request your attention for

W. ASTLEY, sworn

Ze»ined by Mfr. Osler:

t do Mr. Astle, and what is your occupation ? A. Prince
et amn a survoyor and exp orer. (Interpreter states this to prisoner in

te aoii know, Mr. Astley, whether there was existing, in the districts of
id ag uck Lake, during Mardi, April and May of this year, any armedf r0 gainst constituted authorities ? A. Well 1 think so. I was a prisoner9- 'hl 2 6th March till 12th May.

bil . A .ore a prisoner ? A. Yes.taee. prisoner in whose custody ? A. Louis David Riel's, and he was one of

ty . sr was one of his men? A. Yes.
Wer "th court and jury shortly what was the nature of the organization whom

0 Po1ing? A. Well, as far as I know, I was taken prisoner--
15
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Mr. Robertson.-I would ask my learned friend to ask the witness to state
definite facts and not to state in a general way.

Mr. Oler.-I am going on to prove the existence generally òf a rebellion, and
thon I am going to bring it home to this man as participating in it. I cannot do it
otherwise, 1 submit.

Mr. Robertson.-The witness has already made one broad statement.
Mr. Oler.-Not in answer.
Mr. Robertson.-Certainly not in answer; but the witness should be careful to

state only facts within his own knowledge, and he should not state in answer tO a.
general question matters which are only matters of opinion. He seems a little prone
to do that.

Mr. Justice Richardson.-I thought it was from his own knowledge.
Mr. Osler. -l think it will appear it was of his own knowledge.
Q. State, as far as you know yourselt, the nature of the organization and rebel-

lion, who were they rebelling against and who were they opposed to ? A. Well, as
far as I know, I was taken prisoner 26th March, at Duck Lake, by Louis David Riel,
who was in command of the breeds, the half-breeds, Cree Indians and Sioux Indians.

Q. What was the object of the armed force? A. It was against the Government,
the Hudson Bay Company and the police. (This is interpreted to the prisoner in
Cre.)

Q. Do you know of your own knowledge that the prisoner was one of that armed
force? A. I saw him at Duck Lake, the first time, the morning of the 26th March.

Q. In what condition? What was he doing ? A. With a band of armed men
belonging to Riel. That was on the 26th March. (This is interpreted to the prisoner
in Cree.)

Q. Did you see him at any subsequent date? A. The next time I saw him was
after we moved from Carlton to Batoche. After we were at Batoche I saw him, off
and on, ail the time I was prisoner there.

Q. What was he doing? A. Around among the other men. He is chief over a
certain band of Indians, and whenever those Indians were used at all he was the man
that looked after them, as far as I could see.

Q. When did you see him? A. The last day at Batoche, 12th May, I saw him.
Of course, I saw him armed off and on; prisoner from 3rd April till 12th May.

Q. You, as a prisoner, saw him armed on and off from 3rd April till 12th May ?
A. Yes.

Q. Where was that ? A. At Batoehe's. (The interpreter states this to the
prisoner in Cree).

Q. Did you see him do anything particular with reference to the contest that
was going on? On the last day, 12th May, when I went out to see the general with
the first note, I passed his band of Crees, and some of the other Crees when the
g'neral was making an attack on the breeds on the left flank, and he was on the side
of the hill with his Indians and other bands of Indians, and Riel himself went up
with me to the Indians. I saw him there as I was going, and as I was returning with
the first message.

Q. Doing what ? A. Just defending that hill from the attack the general was
making from the left.

Q. Defending the hill from an attack of General Middleton, you mean ? A. Yes;
General Middleton.

Q. That he was making from the left ? A. Yes. (The interpreter states this to
the prisoner in Cree.)

Q. That, I understand, was on the 12th May? A. 12th May, about 9 or half-
past 9 in the morning.

Q. What was he doing ? A. He was there with his braves, or with his followers.
Q. How many ? A. There was most of his band there, and a lot of other Crees

-- about 40 or 50 in that same lot.
Q. What shape were they in? Had they anything with them? A. They were

all armed, every one of them, as far as I could see.

49 Victoria. A. 1886-
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* m2' What were they doing with their arms ? A. Just now and again, when some
0volleys were fired from the general's side, one of them would go up on the

the bill and fire in return.
Did you see that? A. I saw that when I was passing and going.
There was firing from the hill, from what you understood to be the general's

o! ?A. Prom his men, about 400 yards away, and then some Indians would go
ol top of the brow of the hill and fire back again. Those were bis men, and part

ther Crees and Indians.
What was he doing there ? A. At the time I saw him he was standing

e They could not all tire at once ; there was a kind of a hill soooped out, and
etnie they would go up on top of the hill they would fire and come back; but whene back they had ceased firing.

Do you know, from anything you saw on either occasion, who was in com-
A. Among the Indians or the breeds ?

. n ong the Indians? A. Oh, I think I don't know anything about it.
ia a not speaking of the whole forces, but who commanded this band of

? A. The chief was supposed to command his own band.
Neyer mind supposing ? A. I don't say for certain ; I could not tell.

eybid you ever see the prisoner doing anything with hi8 band ? No more
eh' ry tirne when his band would be taken and sent off on any scouting party,

'n'self personally would see him and speak to him, ard then tne prisoner would
as his mene and they would go off and do as they were told. That was the

aY With all the chiefs.
t hat did you see done ? A. Whenever the Indians were sent ont, previous

beinag sent out in any direction as scouting parties, or off to Fis'h Creek,
nee> Riel was seen talking to the chiefs.

ee 7Peaking generally, d:d you ever see Riel talking to the prisoner ? A. I
Q' him talking to One Arrow himself.

I 'Then have you immediately after that seen One Arrow talk to the Indians t
h.ve seqn him talk to his men.

y a at have you seen after that talking ? A. Then I have seen those men goae Ad do whatever-I could not hear what they told him, but I have seen them

SThon fter Riel talked to the prisoner and the prisoner talked to his men,
Q. Bseen the men go away in a body? A. Go away in a body.

Q. what way ? A. Before Fish Creek. They were sent off there one time.
]1d, Wwere they when they went away as to arms ? A. They were alI
.(The interpreter states this to the prisoner in Cree.)

YOU know who commanded the whole movement ? A Yes.
4t Xow do you know what the object of that movement was, from anything
ft ea1 .der told you ? A. Yes; from what Riel told me him elf. Of course hoQ. You rigbt say, his own ends. That is what he was ater.

sup Wat was the object of the moven¶ent as against the Government ? A. It
Q. ied to be for the French half-breeds' claims.

et their r. were they carrying out that claim; in what way ? A. By rebelling
i rights, as far as 1-

ea nthd they any prisoners; had they taken any prisoners ? A. There were
o cellar besides myself, and some in the other rooms.

e, ne Wihere those prisoners held for ? A. Well, just from what he admitted
4 w'eiothed to keep them so- that if himself and his council got in danger, to

'e er thea in making terms.
1ther e seven prisoners kept during all the time you were in prison?
9. Wei y rooma or with me all the time. Six besides myselif.

î Da ofthe What forces were they opposing-fighting against ? A. Against the
troo ndeOvernment. First against the police and volunteers and thon against

. hder Genieral Middleton.
anadian volunteers ? A. Canadian vol unteers.

è2 ,2 17
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Q. And the Canadian mounted police ? A. Mounted police. (The interPre
states this to the prioner in Cree.)

Q. Now were you present on any ocoasions on which there was fight'
between the two armel forces ? A.. Yes; on the 12th May, the last day.

Q. You were present ? A. Yes.
Q. And what went on on the 12th May that you saw ? A. Well, where I 0

tioned that I saw him the first time in the morning at the attack of the geerldare
Q. You told us that particular object, but I gant to know what was the O

of the general fight at Batoche on the 12th day ? A. Between the half breedo
Cree Indians and Sioux, and the troops and voluateers under Gen. Middletonfl

Q. Had that organization anything to do with the organization of which
Riel was chief? A. de was the leader of the breeds, the Crees and Sioux [ndi r

Q. Were you preent at waat is known as Duck Like ? A. I was a prisoere
that time. tbo

Q. Do you know anything of that contest ? A. They came upstairs after
thing was over, and Riel himself claimed that he was the-called on his own 
fire, and was proud of his victory, as far as that went.

Q. Did anything else take place that you know of on that occasion which WOe
indicate a contest ? A. As far as talking about Indians, one time ho told Dea
'reason ho had called the Indians in was because certain people had not joined h

Q. Well, do you know anything about the fight at Duok Lake going on
anything that you saw ? A. Yes; I heard a cannon shot; that was ail I he '
saw the troops going out and I saw them returning.

Q. What troops? A. Hialf-breeds and Indians. 4
Q. You saw them going out in what way? A. In the direction of Carlton

in the direction the police were coming from.
Q. Did you see the prisoner there that day? A. I saw him there that mOrOi

just previous to when they came.
Q. What condition was he in as to arms whenyou saw him? A. Well, 

not like to say what ho bad that day. .eioQ. What was the assembly at Duck Lake for on that occasion? A. Just oPPe-
for their rights; that id what it was supposed to be, against the police and volun

Mr. Robertson :
Q. Iou supposed that? A. No.

lMr. Osler :
Q. Did you see anyb-dy brought in after the fight ? A. There was a

prisoner brought in, and I dressed bis wounds, one of the wounded volunteers.d J

Q. Brought in after the contest? A. Yes, after it was over, and I drs i
wounds for him. 40

Q. Who asked yon to dress his wounds ? A. Well, I may have offered to
when Riel brought him up.

Cross-examined by Mr. Robertson: 4e
Q. Mr. Astley, it was you that so bravely carried the messages between Oà

and General Middleton on the 12th May, I believe? A. Well, I had the pe
.doing that. s0

Q. And it was while you were behaving in that gallant way that yOu
prisoner. as you have told us? A. That is where I.saw him at Batoche. 4

Q. You have lived a good while in that neighborhood, have you? 
nearly four years. we

Q. Du you know the Indians in that neighborhood pretty well? '
know most of them; I know most of the chiefs. op

Q. Have you kaowa this man, the prisoner ? A. I have seen him 0 ff
ever since I have been in the country. pod

Q. Ilave you ever had any transaction with him? A. No, I only StoPP
the reserve perhaps once or twice passing through.

1a
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• Do you know what character ho has always had up to the time of this
A A. Well, not a very good character as far as I have always heard.

9. Now, what did you ever hear against him ? A. Wel, that ho was more fond
an1g around than working; of course that may be a characteristic of the Indian.
t · Was that the worst you ever heard of him? A. Well, I never bothered

th; 1 nover heard anything exeept that. I heard in plain English that ho was a
>Qrt5f48 Indian.

ql* You have beard that about a great many other Indians, haven't you ? A.
,fe, his brother-in-law in particular.

That is your opinion of most Indians, isn't it ? A. No, it is not.
Ar", there many Indians you think are not worthless ? A. Yes, there are

e Of the other chiefs in that part of the country that I would say a good word for.
tI•q But that is the worst you can place or tell us against this man? A. Yes,

e is a worthless hound.
)'OQ ow where was the prisoner the morning of the 36th March, when you say
%e a him at Duck Lake? A. When Louis David Riel came in frgm Batoche in
Jkorning after I had been taken prisoner, I saw One Arrow and some of the other

ns coming in in the same direction with the same body of half-breeds.
of a b hey Scame in with the same body of half-breeds ? A. With the same body

That was ail you saw of him on that day? A. On that day-yes.
Then you saw him again while you were a prisoner at Batoche ? A. At

O s--yes; that would be from the 3rd April till the last day.
'4'' 1w often during that time did you see him? A. Oh, perhaps every day or

6 Ocond day; you might say every second day to be safe.
14 %'Wii you swear positively you saw him every second day ? A. Well, he waa

!,, Uniderneath; that is where he used to stop part of the time, and ho used to
th On Out there, and I might see him perhaps ton times one day and not notice

next. I will swear positively I saw him over thirty times during that time.
• Now *that was between what ? A. 3rd April and 12th Mat.

I4U. S YOIu muet have seen him pretty nearly every day? A. e, that may have

q or or five times one day and perhaps the next day I would not notice him.
er W here were you during that time ? A. A prisoner, part of the time up staira

the rOOM where some of the Indians used to sloep.
q' At the village in Batoche ? A. At the village in Batoche.

Uh ow far back fo-om the rifle pits was that ? A. There were same rifle pits
<%Wrn the river, some 250 yards from the house.

4tookow far was it from the front lino of rifle pits that wore afterwards taken at
Qld b A. The furthest, at right angles to the hoses and parallel to the river,

Q about 300 or 400 yards; that would be the front row rank.
a that the line close to the general ? A. Yes.

Q r ut 400 yards? A. About 400 yards.
9 omn where you were? A. From where we wore-yes.

er dd it Was during th* dme that this prispner was in the same house that
e 12t Own stairs? A. It was during the same time, from the 3rd April until

'4 whore was he on the 12th May? A. I saw him on that day when I
Q' 8 An the first message down on the ontside row of rifle pits.
loth re Was ho on the 11th? A. I don't know; I was in the cellar on the

4% Q und litI.
Ys? &Oucannot say anything about the prisoner's movements during those

et Yen know about his movements during that time is that you saw him
9 "g nothing as you were on your way back ? A. He was with his band.

But ho Indians ? A. Yes,
o Was doing nothing himself ? A. He was not shooting at that time.

4 4 19
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Q. Did you hear him say anything to bis men ? A. No, I did not take yerf
long passing Some of them would go up and fire and come back again.

Q. You don't understand Cree ? A. No, I don't. el rQ. How often wore you a witness to Riel speaking to the prisoner? A. tb»
I could not say for certain, perhaps about ton or fifteen times-ten times say, t
you would see him just talking to bis men and thon the men would be sent of
would make small scouting parties-bis tribe.

Q. They would go off some place ? A. They would go away to Fish Creek.
the Indians were sent off there, and ho would have to speak to each chief, like W
Cap, with bis men and another chief. I know the way the Indians work. The ch
has got the whole run of them.

Q. I am not asking you about the other chiefs, I ask you to tell us on how 10
occasions you saw Riel talking to this prisoner as you have told us ? A. Well I
certain about five different occasions.

Q. Now, when was the first time ? A. The first one, as far as I can remelltm
was some excitement expected from Prince Albert. I was out talking to Riel aM
time, ho spoke to One Arrow and be took bis men with him and went down Of
tfhe ferries as if they were going to cross the river. That was when I was
doors.

Q. That is all you know about that ? A. That time, yes. b
Q. What was the next time ? A. The next time, as far as I can remember

went talking out in front of the window and I saw him go up and speak to
and thon you could see him getting his mon together, and thon they went dOwI
river, about in the same direction.

Q. Down the river ? A. Yes, as if they expected something down the riVer.
Q. Thon the third time ? A. That will be the third time, twice in that sa

way, that they went in the.same direction. And then just previous to the Fish Ge
flght Riel bad a talk, where I was watching from the window, and some of the Or

chiefs, and thon this man at the same time, and thon his band went off in theO
tion of Fish Creek. That would be the fourth time.

Q. Did ho guide them? A. Of course I could not see him. I did not see b
He started at the time with bis mon from there, but I don't know whother be
to Fish Creek. I was not at Fish Creek.

Q. You don't know where any of them went? A. No. The last day whea
went with me personally- ac

Q. [ want to get the difforent occasions on which you heard this taking P
A. That is the fourth time.

Q. That is all you can tell us about each of those occasions ? A. Yes.
Q. What was the fifth time ? A. The last time when I went out with the ,o

No, Riel went with me personally, and in speaking to the Indians right there o tol1
aide of the bill, instead of telling a whole lot of Indians what I was doing, h
One Arrow himself. g"1

Q. You don't know what ho said to him ? A. No, I don't understand CrI
-when I came back of course I saw him in the same potition again, and theY to
not to shoot me, or something.

Q. Was One Arrow painted on that occasion ? A. Not that I noticed.d t
Q. Have you been much on One Arrow's reserve ? A. Oh, I have passe

the reserve off and on every year.
Q. There was a road through that reserve wasn't there? A. A winter ros' tb"

And a Lood deal of traffic on it? A. Yes, a good deal of traflic dur
winter months. e

Q. And you never heard anything worse against One Arrow than that he,
worthless ? A. A worthless hound.

Q. Who used that expression ? A. Well, I think taking the Indian
any man around the country that bas known bis previous record, perhaps a
before ho came to the reserve--

Q. Tell us one that called him worthless? A. It was almost every ¤
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hat 9. Then you can easily tell us one who said it ? A. I have heard it so often
never think of any man's name that mentioned it to me.

. You have heard it so often that you cannot tell us one man that ever said it?
o, not just at the time being.

Q. You have said it yourself ? A. I may have done so.
-'id you ever hear anyone else say it ? A. I have.

Q. Whoaese ? A. I don't remember any nan's name, but it is the general er..
On Used as regards him in that part of the country.
. You can easily tell us ? A. Mr. Lash, the Indian agent.

Q.f on have heard Mr. Lash call him a worthless hound ? A, About to the

8e the lUave you heard him call him a worthless hound ?J [A. No, I won't say those
e exact words.

tionq nybody else ? A. I think Mr. McRae will give him a very good (?) reputa-

lich Mr. McRae ? A. Indian agent that was at Carlton.
y dou ever hear him cal him a worthless hound ? A. That is the plain

Q. bow tis is a matter of practical life and death to this man, or may be; now,
orthoe careful what you say-you have said you heard him frequently called a

s hound? A. That is the general expression used in that part of the country.
•Tell Ine One man you have ever heard use that expression with reference to

de a avA. I gave you two gentlemen that perhaps know that Indian botter than
e yon Mr. Lash and Mr. McRae.9. They know him botter than you do? A.Yes.

eh ce you know Mr. Hughes? A. I know him as a magistrate in that part ot

e Does he know One Arrow? A. Well, he should do it, he has been there
enough.

nof wat hone of the mon who will say ho is a worthless hound ? A. I don't
hathis Opinion might be.. he I0ow, I can't help your memory; tell us somebody else whom you ever heard

% he'!a5a worthloss hound ? A. I can not go and remember a thing like that.
hli. Jou cannot tell us a single man that said that except yourself ? In plain

ion 4 rwhat other expression would you like to use? A. I say the general expres-
Oth egards him as an Indian is that a man is either a hard working Indian or else

oriptOless hound. That is the general expression. It may not mean as bad as that,
t ter ayit does, but as a genoral thing in applying any term to an Indian you apply

r , that is, the half-breeds themiselves.
t o ' an't tell us a single man whom you ever hoard, on your oath ? A. Tust

cannot remember. I don't talk about the mai.
Reexamined by Mr Osier:

1ots a ' far is the reserve this prisoner ought to be on ? A. It adjoins the river

]10 ar f from Batoche ?. A. About four and a quarter iniles from where the

tiiq •Was this mlan on his reserve at that time ? A. He was off the reserve at that

t 6 Wll, on those five different occasions that you saw the interview take place
'e all are and the prisoner and the mon go out, were they armed ? A. They

9.ae at thlat time,
armed? A. Yes.

Byu lfr., Robertson:
en4tIr i n't Indians gonerally carry arms in the most peaceful times ? A. Yon don't

groups when you do, but whon they are hunting they generally carry arme.
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Q Doesn't he generally do so ? A. Not when he is not hunting.
By Mr. Osier :

Q. Were there other armed men around there ? What was the gatber'4
around there ? A. They were ail in arms.

Q. How many men do you stppose you ever saw together in ams ?
Between 400 and 500.

JoHN B. LAsH, sworn:-

Exanined by Mr. Casgrain:
Q. Where have you lived for the last few years, Mr. Lash ? A. Well, I ha

been in the north and south.
Q. Bave you lived near the locality called Batoche ? A. Carlton. I S

there in January last.
Q. You were there in the months of March, April and May last ? A. Yes

best part of the time I was a prtoner.
Q. What position did you occupy ? A. I was a prisoner.
Q. But before you were a prisoner what were you doing there? A. I

Indian agent.
Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. I do.
Q. Where is his reserve situated ? A. About four and a-half milesou

Batoche.
Q. What is the prisoner's position among his people? A. He is chief Of"

bmnd. 1
Q. Had you occasion to see him any time in the month of March last? Ye0'

aaw him about the 18th March, on the reserve. 0
Q. Well, about that time, about the 18th March, and the days subsequelit to

day, what was the state of the country around Batoche and Duck Lake, or in'"'
atate were the people theie ? A. They were a little excited, in arms and one
and another. ter 8o

Q. Well, will you lease tell the jury the exact state in which the peop
at that time ? A. Wel , on the 18th Mai ch, when I was arrested, I was arre
an armed mob of about forty or fifty, i should say.

Q. What people were they ? A. They were chiefly breeds. On the 19t" t
prisoner and his band feol into the band ail armed.

Q. Who was in command of the half-breeds there ? A. Riel.
Q. Louis Riel? A. Yes.
Q. On the 19th you say the prisoner fell in with the rest ? A. He did.
Q. You saw him on the 19th ? A. I saw him on the i9th.
Q. Had ho anything with him ? A. He was armed.
Q. Had he any people with him ? A. Yes.
Q. Iow many atout? A. Atout fifteen or twenty of his band. I cannot

positively hGw many were with him, but there were quite a number with hiln.
Q. Did they carry anything with them ? A. Most of them were arned. P
Q. Well, what did they do on the 19th ? A. On the 19th we were ail ke

the church. They were in there knocking around the church ail day.
Q. These people were ? A. Yes.
Q. You saw the prisoner there that day ? A. Yes.
Q. On the 26th March did anything happen that you know ? A. On the

March I was taken to Duck Lake.
Q. By whom ? A. By an armed guard. I can't give you the names; and J

I was there a short time,I saw the rebels returning from the Duck Lake g% of
heard fighting going on meantime. I saw them return. The prisoner was
them returning. He was returning. 1 could not swear that he was in the
)ut he was returning with the armed mob that came in.

Q. Who was in command of this armed mob ? A. Riel.
22
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thDid you sec the prisoner on any day subsequent to this ? A. I saw him again

Q der what circumstances did you see bim? A. Well, at that time ho had
ole of his band; ho came down to Batoche to the tents.
Was that their usual place of abode? A. No; their usual place was the

est' What were they doiug there ? A. Well, they were all there, armed with the
%of thema, walking around and watching for the enemy, as they called them.

Dho Was the enemy? A. The enemy was supposed to be the Government,
e police, and the Hudson Bay Company.
r., Robetson.-Never mind what was supposed.

A . Irom what you know personally who were the opposing forces there?
O pOlice and the troops under Gen. Middleton.

And on the other side ? A. The breeds and Indians.
e ell, this was on the 3rd April, you say? A. 3rd April we returned to

And you saw the ludians there? A. I saw them from that right along.
yid you see Louis Riel and this man together ever ? A. I have seen them
g;yes.

tQ . After the talk did anything happen ? A. Yes; he would go away over to
e.d and talk to them. I couldn't hear what they were saying; it was some

ldistance off.
% Q' Prom wbat you saw, what were the relations that existed between this man

bsband ?
. Robertson.--Let him tell us what he saw, and don't lot him generalise.
Cagrain.--He bas just been saying what he saw.

Q• hoberson.-Thon it is for the jury to say what their intentions were.
What did this prisoner do after he had any communication ? A. Ho would
and communicate with bis band.

'WQ And then what would his band do ? A. Well, I could not tell you what they
What tbey were away over about a quarter of a mile frcm the house. I couldn't

ba ÎÉ0Y would do.
q ere you not a prisoner at that time ? A. I was.
of you see him on any subsequent days after this-the prisoner? A. I saw

and on there till I was put in the cellar.
&bohat day were you put in the cellar ? A. I can't give you the date. r

Qout what date? A. It was about a week before the attack on Batoche.
e lt d Up to that date you saw the prisoner there all the time ? A. I Eaw him

a'ws ho carrying anytbing? A. He was always armed when I saw himi
r Justice Richardson.-Do you wish this interpreted to the prisoner ?

tith sou.rt ,--No, your Honor; I don't think it is worth while taking up
IýeWt thatÏ.

2-*Jamined by Air. Robertson:
SMr* Lasb, how long do you say you bad known the prisoner ? A. I went

kQ. ar1 e of the agency in January last.
sho] ave only known him a short time ? A. I have only known him a

to n t ow a much travelled road passed through his reserve? A. In the

Q' ids a Winter road.
%rd, bt hYou ever hear anything against him before this ? A. Well, I have

'W9. os nothing, I guess.
1 0 t do you know anything against him before this ? A. I was not long

bid treaty to form an opinion.
b hav You ever describe bim as a worthless bound ? A. No, it is more than

0, fron the stories I have beard about him, I would not say.
23
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Q. Now, what stories did >ou over hoar ? A. I heard that ho was a w o
idian.

Q. What else did you ever hear? A. I can't remember everything that
Q. Can you remember something? A. No, I can't say that I eau. I head

in the broad ôense of the word that ho was a worthless Indian. That comes to
good deal.

Q. You heard there was a prejudice against him. Did ho ever give you
trouble ? A. No, ho did not.

Re-examined by Mr. Casgrain:
Q. You spoke of a treaty, was this Indian a treaty Indian ? A. He was.
HAROLD D. Ross, sworn :-

Examined by Mr. Casgrain:
Q. Where do you reside, Kr. R'ss? A. Prince Albert.
Q. What is your occupation? A. I am deputy sheriff there.
Q. Do you krow the prisoner? A. I do.
Q. When did you see him first? A. 1 first saw him in 1880.
Q. You have known him a long while ? A. I have known him a long time,>'l

lHe fought against us in 1880. Six of us took him prisoner. I was one of the
that took him prisoner in 18 .0 at Duck Lake.

Q. In what state was the country around Batoche and Duck Lake ii e
April and May last? A. Well, it was in a state of great excitement. TheY
.allup in arms.

Q. Who were up in arms? A. Half-breeds and Indians.
Q. Did you have occasion to see the prisoner at that time? A. I sa«

prisoner some time during the day. I forget now when, on the 26th March.
a prisoner thon.

Q. In whose hands were you? A. In the hands of Riel.
Q. What was LDuis Riel at that time ? A. le was leader of the half-breeM

Indians. 1
Q. Against whom ? A. Against the police and volunteors. That is on the

March.
Q. You were a prisoner at that time? A. I was.
Q. What did you see the prisoner do at that time ? or did you se hiin do

thing? A. I did not. I saw him armed. that is all I saw.
Q. What happened that day? A. There was a fight between the VOlan

agnd the police, and the haLf-breels and Indians.
Q. At Duck Lake ? A. At Duck Lake.
Q. How long were you a prisoner ? A. From the morning of the 26th

till the 12th May.
Q. Well, did you see the prisoner subsequently to the 26th March? A

him home time during the winter before that,
Q. I mean between the 26th March and the day you wore roleasel? •bi?

were Laken from Da 3k Lake to Carlton aad from Carlton to Batoche, an1 I 3s foi
there off and on frorn 3rd April, I think it was, until the 12th May, except
hours when we were in the cellar. y

Q. What was ho doing there ? A. Always armed, sitting out in front
window; generally eating 1 saw him.

Q. Who was with him ? A. With all his followers. All his band was th
Q. Is ho a treaty Indian ? A. le is. I have paid him his treaty. aQ. Where does he live with his band ? A. Four and a half miles frot"
Q. fHas ho a reserve ? A. le has.
Mr. Robertson.-I have no questions to ask.
Mr. Justice Richardson.- Do you wish what ho has stated interpreted?
Mr. Robertson.-No, your Honor.
Mr. Osler.-That will be the case for the Crown.

49 victoria.,
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o 1r Aibertson.-I submit that the Crown has not made ont a case to justify
to ors n1 leaving it to the jury. Not a tittle of evidence has been given here

de, hat this man at all participated in the purpose for which this rising waa
.4t he ]'he most that is shown is that he was present when fighting was going on,

idone liself doing nothing. It seems to me that that is the gist of the whole
thatth e- It amounts to nothing more than that. We have Mr. Astley's statement
%e only occasion upon which he saw him where fighting was going on was on

%d.n ing of the 12th May, when he said he was standing; the prisoner was just
Itg there. There is not a tittle of other evidence to show anything of the kind.

Ib -s also said that Riel was seen to speak to him, and he was seen to speak to
la to 7 else, and other men to whom he spoke then moved away. Now nothing.if.ie iferred as to the intent with which those men moved away. Thera is no

l- ance whatever to be attached to the mere circumstance that a conversation
It lace, and men walked away in consequence of it, unless that is to be given to

Ure there were armed men there. Now it is perfectly consistent with the
ce of this man with the armed force that has been spoken of, that he was there

thl Y. It is perfectly consistent with that. There may be 50 reasouns that took
ora He might have been there ont of idle curiosity. He might have had hiM

e, th him perfectly innocently. Your Honors know, as I am informed is the
he toat an Indian rarely moves without his gun, and there is nothing to show that

jltted any overt act at all.
admit that if it were shown that the prisoner was present there unders.

t he k intent with which these people were assembled, if it had been show*
ins tew what they were intending to do, that they were intending to levy war

at Queen for some public general purpose, because it must be that-if ho
ogv jtowl that, his presence there would have been enough; but in the absence of

%tiire Of that, lis presence there is not enough, unless it is shown that ho took
%l Part in it. It is laid down in East's Pleas of the Crown, " joining with rebela

% i4 voluntarily in any rebellion, any act of robellion is levying war agains"
and thia too, though the party was not privy to their intent."

%t the ing them in any act of rebellion"; but it seems necessary in this case either
'ntiParty joining with the rebels and ignorant of their intent at the time (it is

'f the r know their intent) should do some deliberate act towards the execution
oW er deaign, or else should be found to have aided and assisted those who did.

l ibmit that there is no evidenco here to show that the prisoner took such anP et that the jury should be asked even to say whether or not ho onght to be<tfllty.
1 inTherefore, in the cases of Green and Bedell, who with others were indicted for
tih War and pulling down bawdy houses and opening prisons, it being only foundo3r Were present and not fighting, any particular act of force committed byt r bythat they were aiding or assisting to the rest, which is a fact that must bu

>el an? tve jury and cannot be implied (that is in cases left to the jury, if thri te1 idence of it), they were discharged, and if the act of those who suddenlyloxeth e ry an at e ipid(htl ncssIf atejri hr
than urrection being ignorant of their design, appeared to be more inconsid-

t ob th- ilfnl or mischievous, such as throwing up their hands or hallooing with
her .îs will fall under the same lenient consideration."

l a case reported in Cox's criminal cases as to the effect of presens at
an indicassemblage, Queen vs. Atkinson 2, Cox's criminal cases, page 330. Thate nctment for a riot. Oa an indictment for a riot, persons are not fiable

On d co unt Of their having been present and among the mob, even although
Q ra Power of preventing it, unless they by word or act helped, incited and

oW t • That was a case of riot arising out of an election.%'th ) thee evidence, your flonors will see was very strong, it was evidence frout
u -a Probably at first one would be inclined to infer the man was there assist-

s rûne. ura&gilng. The evidence against the principal defendant was that ho took
'ote ataet in the election and was present when there was a serions riot and a

g. th ack upon the houses of the opposite party, and finally upon the polling
LrÂany of the rioters were in his own employment.

25
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Now, a point is attempted to be made here that this man's Indians wore there
that his band were there. li

In tbe election case many of the rioters were in this man's employment, be
anothing to restrain them, and when asked to do so, ho only laughed. It was b
that there was no evidence against him, nor against any others who were re
except such as were proved by word or action to have takon part in, hOP
ineited the riotous proceedings.

Now, it does seem to me upon that that this is a case in which your
discretion would be wisely exercised in withdrawing it from the jury altogethler,>
I don't think that my learned friends ought to press for a verdict upon such evide
as this. It does not seem to me that it shows a sufficient case against him, P
larly bearing in mind the extreme difficulty there is in properly ascertaining
whole of the facts in such a manner as I might be able to do if the prisoner wer
white man. If he were a white man who understood the natuire of a trial and
he was here for, it would be a totally different matter, but your Honors 1 an m
ure know, as I have lately found out how extremely difficult it is to make tl'o

anderstand the nature of the proceedings and make them understand the impO
of explaining the true facts of the case.

I would ask your Honors to say that there is not evidence upon which the
«an properly find him guilty, and if so, it is your Honors' duty to withdraw th"

from the jury.
Mr. Osler.-We think your Honors we have made a very strong case i tb

against the prisoner. We have brought him within the rule of law that caste
onus upon him of explaining his presence there. We have shown organized a
rebellion against the Crown, a contest against Her Majesty's forces, the polic0e
volunteers, and that brings it within the rule laid down in the books. A conve
reference is Archbold, page 786.

Mr. Justice Richardson.-Isn't that case of the Queen vs. School, on all fooo
with this ?

Mr. Osier.-Yes, and the case of Regina vs. the Earl of Essex. They sce
show that it is quite conclusive that the onus is upon the prisoner to explain Is
after such evidence bas been given. rfbor

Mr. Justice iRichardson.-I think, Mr. RobertEon, it must go to the jury. t
is the fact of the fight at Duck Lake, the fact of the rebellion and the tact of the
going on, and he was seen coming back. There was then a fight going on at Bato
fie was on the hill with the party who were firing upon General Middleton.
1 think iL is upon him to explain why hewas there, and that ho was there innocent)1

Mr. Robertson.-His own mouth being closed? 
Mr. Justice Richardson.- His mouth won't be closed, because I shall ask hi,

lie wishes to sag anythiug to the jury, and what ho does say ho can say in his
language, and it will be interpreted. tb

Mr. Robertson. I wish to cal 1 Owen Hughes, as to the prisoner's character, t
is all. (Witness not present.) He promised to be here, and I don't find hi'ra
only a matter of character, and I don't know that it makes very much differOne o

May it please your Honorp, gentlemen of the jury, I am sure you feel as C
one concerned in this case must feel, that the duty we here have to discharge o
very important one, and one involving very serious responsibilities. We ran
feel, that in dealing with these unfortunate Indians we are dealing with a re
people who are unlike ourselves, of whose motives and actions it is extreraely d
cult for us to judge with justice, particularly as our minds are naturally disPe» 'b
antipathy of the race, to judge harshly what they do. The crime with e 00C
prisoner is charged is a very serious one, and one which, no doubt, when a whi
las committed, should be sever ely punished. It is a crime, however, iv0 gg la
altogether in its enormity the ideas peculiar to white people, the people aCCust e
to live under civilized forms of government, and to people who understa tha
owe duties to society at large, ot which an Indian has not the first idea. U rti»
la no notion of the nature of civilized society; ho has no notion of the imp
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te sining law and order. It will be said that lie should be taught that. Truly
W4 . be taught that, and ho muet be taught it, but it is very important, in our

A tbatrt, that we by coming and teaching him that lesson, should teach
Mrne 1 th very essence of the law is fairneiss and mercy. It is a sacred

Mgel Of the law of England, as you all know that no man shall be
40t aguilty of any crime until e is convicted of it, and not upon suspicion,

laon meroly suspicions circumstances which he may find it difflcult to
o%'i beicause of accident or because of his incapacity to take care of his

"btests ; but upon evidence which conclusively establishes, beyond any
¶Wketh .be doubt, that the man committed that crime with the criminal intent
4ed 1 of its essence. So sacred is that principle, and so thoroughly is it recog-
b1 ae thankful to say in this our Dominion, that I am here to try and help you,

1 th hired advocate of this unfortunate man. It is not at his request I am here,
b 'e at the request of the Goverument. The very Government that prosecutescin•gs ne, because, they say, we wish to see that no innocent man or no man

ted unless ho is clearly pioven to be guilty, and to that end we wish some
gtt, Will take the side of the prisoner and do what ho can to help the jury in

p ethe truth, in exercising judgment upon which, practically, thut man's lifeu Pond, because Ihe punishment for this crime may be imprisonment for life,a ow, as I know from what I have seen of the effects 0f the imprisonment,
as thee poor men have endured for only a couple of months. You know

bo know that a punishment, not for life, but for years, a couple of years,
fine eost certainly fatal to any one of them. You know that they die under

It te nt, so that practically you have in your hands to-day the life of that man
trl Ponsibility reste upon you, and it reste upon all of us who are engaged in

4Q*t pprcach the consideration then of the evidence upon which you have to
Io jd that.grave question with perfect fairness and without prejudice, and let us
Ot unfortunate man at least as fairly as if he were a white man. Let
t i grace Our race by any hasty condemnation of another because ho is of a dif-
lce Let us show that we are really supe rior to the unhappy race to which

Sagins 1<ow, is there eviderce that conclusively proves that that man levied
( Mesurt er Majesty with intent by force and constraint to compel her to change

4 hats and counsels? My learned friends, of course, say, on bohaif of the
e that if he levied war the intent may be presumed. No doubt a jury may pre-

~Idd a gainst a white man, in inmany <ases we presume it, because a white man
g ad e bad of armed men, arrayed against the troops, muet know what he was

a ah ta U6t know it, ard a jury would naturally infer it; but it does not follow
at. lury need say that an lndian did that, or was there with any such intent

here t now that an Indian, when any excitement is going on, is very apt to
aiot t excitement is in the hope tlat he might get sornething to eat. Now,go ad roreaslenable felony. It is not treasonable felcny even for a band of Indians

Sband of a store to feed themFelves, by any meanP. Lt is not ireasonable felony
t b t . Indians to go to tîy and release one of their own number that is in

table t la treasonable felony for them to go and attack an individual. lt is not
Ie a it i felonY for them even to riot, to meet in large rumbers and use violence,

i d r public general object. Now, gentlemen, I am speakirg by the
i esay t at. I m not talking at random. To constitute a levying of war,

liaIal p perhaps the best authority we have on the subject, ArchLolo's
i %pai -ing and evidence, there muet be an insurrection, there must be iorce

e h inscurrection and it must be for an objtet of a general nature; for
the e Or th urpose of deposing or imprisoning the Queen or of getting ter into
lot 0 rebels or of forcing ier to put away her minister, or the like, or for

tat PUrp 0 e ecting innovations of a public general nature by an armed forces as
'ea ts au8 Of Attempting by force to obtain the repeal of a statute (something

al le People), to alter the religion established by law, or to obtain the
y Other public grievarce, real or pretendcd, but an insurrection for the
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purpose of throwing down enclosures of a manor, park, common, &c., or upona
.quarrel between private persons, or to deliver one or more particular priso- ors o.
gaol, though not being imprisoned for treason or holding a bouse by force and ag
itie sheriff or posse comitatus is not treason, so that if an armed batch of men on
town, their object boing not to take it or attack the military force there, but Y
to make a demonstration of force, of their strength to the magistrate in order to
cure the liberation or mitigate the punishment of prisoners convicted of Somoe Pdo
cat offence, this, though aggravated misdemeanor, is not high treason. l
not come within the Treason-felony Act, because levying war, under Treason-fl
Aet, is the same thing as levying war that constitutes high treaaon. Now, à
idea, such as any of those, had ibis man? What notion had he of the kind? 
that is of the very essence of the crime. Unless he had some idea of that kin d,a
for instance, ho understood what Mr. Riel was alter, unless ho understood his se
and that ho wanted to depose the Queen, to drive her out of these territories,bo
eStablish a new republic of bis own, unless he understood al] that, and did it for
purpose, and was there encouraging and aiding in that, ie is not guilty of this o --
and it is not for you, with all deforence to what my learned friends say--II sa

*you are not at all bound to make any such inference as they say, from the fact
are before you. The only undoubted facts are that the Indian was there and
his gun. la that an extraordinary thing for an Indian ? Is it an extraordinlary
for him to be off his roserve in a time of excitemeut? And is it an extrao l
thing for him to have his gun with him when he is off it? There is the whol hi

Now, gentlemen, I have an explanation to suggest to you of why he Was,
Unhappily, ho cannot speak English. I cannot acquire his confidence. I dofl'e'n ,
the Indians well enough, and I have not been able to get anyone to assist nee
does know them well enough, to enable me to prepare properly for thoir de
The most that I can do is to sit bore and watch the case made by the CrOW"
appeal 1q) you to consider it leniently, and to bear in mind the difficultiOesl .,jP
unfortunate man's position. Now, the explanation I bave to suggest to you 11
Riel, we know perfectly well, it is matter of public notoriety that Riel carried
whole of this scoundretly business by means of all kinds of intimidation, an
hood and imposture. We know that, and my explanation to you is thatthesPe'J
were frightened and imposed upon by him, just as it was proved at his trial t &t i
imposed upon hundreds; that this poor man, among the rest, was terrified and' 0".
upon until ho was induced, and brought in there, but that it was against bis
that is why we find him there; but we don't find him raising a finger agi 0
body. Now, as matter of fact, he did not raise a finger against anybodY7 Wb
finger-and bis previous character I say is good. Now, I say that, in spito '0 #
Mr. Astley says. Mr. Astley is a very gallant man ; ho deserves all praise 1h
noble conduet on the 12th May, in carrying in the public spirited way in wbll»ot
did those messages between Riel and General Middleton. Undoubtedly ho is a 1
man, but a gallant man is often impetuous, and a gallant man often jumps quI for
conclusions, and that was apparent in that box I think. I would not a d
moment ho wished te injure this man unjustly, but ho was carried away a go' O
by a very bad opinion of all Indians in general, and in fact the deinitionnd
Indian by him is that ho is a worthless bound. He got that into bis boad
said it was a common definition, but ho could not give us a single man that h a1
said it. He is prejudiced against the Indians, there is no doubt about it. Yod b
that, and withal, the worst he could say against this man was that ho har
that, although, remember, there goes through his reserve a public, much-
road, a road much travelled in winter, ho told us himself. Now, gentleIenO1 0 îIJO
were such a bad Indian, if the Indian and bis band wore such bad Indians, did 1
we bave tiard something worse than that against him? One witness her,
polate something; ho said he fought against him, and ho took him prisoneOlr0
it was a most improper thing for that witness to make that statement. f c
cornes as a complete Furprise to me; it has nothing whatever to do with t
.thatis bore, aud I bave no doubt it could be nerfectly explained ifI had had th
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nd had the opportunity of enquiring into it. I think their Honors willtell you that
1t it•Udn t pay the slighest attention to that remark. It was improperly interpolated

have Just showed a little more of that bias against them, against these Indian people
teo cOtteid with in dealing with white people. I don't think you will have that

ttietprejudice, and as you Fit there and upon your oaths to administer British
t tI poor man, I think I may rely upon your perfect impartiality. I am

a t 1 c-'an and I ask you to think over ail the evidence and see what it amounta
Sd jsee if you cannot explain anything that this man appears to have done upon
h esis of that kind, quite consistently with the absence of any intention or

1% his part to subvert the Governmert and compel Her Majesty to change her
y~ hes or counsels or any snch object of a public nature, anything of that kind, h.

'deedhe been there to get some grub in the hope of that, and it is very probable
4e ho wai. Riel fed them when he came there, and no doubt he got nany of
ide t im in that way. Any of these hypotheses is quite consistent with the

rtle given here.
t . ask .yeu, gentlemen, not because I am this man's hired advocate, but jist in the
e snple British justice to consider the facts that are before you carefully and
e think you can upon such mere suspicion as that, convict that man of a

the th h renders him liable practically to the panishment of death-according to
etatute imprisonment for life.

Sr. Oser.--May it please your honors, gentlemen of the jury: The importance of
V4 eue, one of a class, renders it necessary for me, as one of the counsel representing

dji ', to Say a few words telling you why we think the evidence justities you ia
I the prisoner guilty. We are to give him a fair trial. Ris counsel here,*ged by

id be d the Indian Department to see that he gets a fair trial has done ail that
c done, and said ail that could be said in his favor. The charge is a serious one,,tigat, tho'ugh, a capital one, the sentence is in the discretion of the court and aRl

4 ting Circunstances may be brought before the court or, after sentence, before
th!% ruive, you have nothing to do with that. The question for you to pass on is,

anW guilty ?
%ougiory learned friend read you sorne law, but he as not I think gone quite far

%hit is8 general prineiples were no doubt from authority, and given by the
f rty Of the various cases. Ail we have te show however is that there was a stato

"O insurrection for some general purpose existing. Well, we have shown that,
etorLYour satistaction. That is a matter of history, but you must not act upon

Ir. mst aet upon evidence, that is in evidence before you, by the evidence
si Sy. There was an armed insurrection for a general purpose-that is, for-

ed re rtain grievances existing or supposed to, and that insurrection, that
eht. N lOOn was directed against the police, and the armed forces of the Govern-

orh , of that question upon the evidence, there can be no doubt.
Qttiipate hr. being an actual state of war, did the prisoner participate ? If he did

telleri int, individual intent has nothing to do with it. As long as we prove the
1%4tter Whaent, and an actual state of armed force, then everybody who participates, no

' a heir personal intentions ar e, is guilty. That is well laid down. The
plied f eintOntion however, is not capsole cf positive proof, it can only beýbte l'n' overt acts, and every man is supposed to intend the necessary and reason-

e e f bis own acts. I read that to you, bocause it isan authority frora
the ookthat my learned friend has been depending upon. Then, again reading-

ee n4e book, it rnay be necessary here to mention that in the case of war levied
i thhainst th Queen, which this technically is, ail persons assembled and march-
rabli te rebels are guilty of treason, whether they are aware of the purpose of the
.N 9Und aid or assist in committing acts of violence or not.

as*¤ that 'curse, if we were going before a jury here on a case of constructive
6e her 1 iS t by reason of acts, certain acts, treason was to be inferred, and
d rea On a direct act of levying war or open insurrection, what my learned

Ved t YOU would be perfectly and strictly correct, but the moment we have
cual State of existing insurrection, and the moment we prove to your
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tbotsatisfaction that the prisoner took part in that, and was guilty of an overt act th
as charged, thon the evidence is, as I read the law, conclusive against him, Sn'
burden of proof is upon him to show that he was there for some innocent purPos,5

Now can the acte of the prisoner be consistent with innocence ? Granting 00
ho is an Indian, and granting that ho is not to be measured by the same light as
of a more civilized race, we have him a treaty Indian withotit any grievanc8O %*
we have hoard of. He had no part in any half-breed grievance if such existed.
was there, fed and kept by the Government under the treaty ho had made. N40<be
had no right, even if there was a seeming right or a claimed right on the part
balf-breeds in arme, for ho had nothing to redress. Now where do we find
First, with his band ho comes in under arme, on the occasion spoken of by Mr.
Ie goes out with his band under arme to Duck Lake and cornes back. "e

evidence of a contest having taken place and of a wounded man prisoner
-brought in-because I want you to confine yourselves to the evidence here, not
yon have heard in the newspapers. g,

Then at Batoche Mr. Astley sees him, apparently getting orders fromS thel 
Louis Riel, five times. Each time the order is given to him he apparently giVthe
order to his band. You can only judge of the actions. After a communication thedrebel chief to the chief of this band, ho apparently makes a communication an

o off armed in concert. It is for you to say whether they went off armed for a
ful or an unlawful purpose. Thon you have the evidence of Mr. Astley, that  b
the last day of the fight, on the 12th May, this man was apparently in charge o
Indian band and firing at the troops. We don't need to prove a gun in this
hand on that occasion. We don't need to prove that ho fired at the troops. io
believe fromn the evidence that ho was there giving orders ? That ho was ther
charge of hie band, that hie band' were there opposed to the troops, to Genefal
dieton ? The evidence, gentlemen, as to that, is all one way. Now, while We d;afo
if there is a shadow of reasonable doubt as to the guilt of the prisoner, if there &-o
reasonable doubt as to his guilt, that you should give him the benefit of it. 0s
have got, on the other hand, to consider the evidence and say whether yo? lero
justify yourselves to society as it existe here, whether an acquittal upon this 09(ba
would be the proper thing to do. Granted that ho is an Indian, the communitY
got to protect themselves against the lawless acte, against the taking up of
going into insurrection on any occasion or at anybody's request. My iearn st «0
says we have got to educate them. Well, I submit that the best education th 
can give is that when we find them going wrong on sonclusive evidence We Parr
them for that in the way that the law directs. I submit to you, gentlemen' ofl1
fore, that the evidence is of such a nature that it brings home to the prisoner
.- guilt as charged in the papers read to you. o

Mr. Robertson. -Before you Honor addresses the jury-there is no appea wb
ýthis-and although I am irregular I would ask my learned friend's indulgen6e0 ý40
I just point out one thing that I submit is not quite correct in his speech. Ilor
this e a case of direct levying of war against the Queen. Now, it is constr foo
levying of war, and that is just the point in the case. Your Honors will S*0di
the passage I havejust given you, a lino of difference clearly drawn betwOO
levying of war and constructive levying of war. 0o

Ur. Osler.-My learned friend mistakes my statement. I said if it Was ao' a
xnaking ont conetructive treason, but there may be constructive levying of ta o
direct levying of war. There may be constructive treason, and the direct
treason. cOrlaf

Mr. Robertson.-The distinction is between direct levying of war and cOn p
tive levying of war, and your Honore will see that if you read the page I refer

Mr. Justice Richardson.-It is under the title of high treason.
Mr. Robrtson.-True, but it is dealing with the levying of war. Thg at

levied against the Queen is of two kinds, direct and constructive. Levying f «
spoken of as direct whon war is levied directly against the Queen or her for'
intent to do some injury to her person, to i mprison her or the like.
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Mr. Justice Riebardson.-Isn't that what this charge says ?
%> Robertson.-Bt the ovidence does not support anything of the kind; the

l levying of war is where there is a levyng of war for soma publie gene-
aid do 0e or something of that kind. That is the difference, and it is distinotly

agains t s not direct treason and constructive treason, but it is war levied directly
asser4ble Queen. In that case, it is true, as my learned friend says, that all persoa
hipod and marching with the rebels are guilty of treason, whether aware of the

0 of the assembly or not, but in the case of constructive levying of war not
rcot tie levying of treason, none of those aiding and assisting in doing ios
4tw Violence which form the subject of treason are traitors. The distinction is

a constructive and direct levying.
'tin Oseor.-I argue that we bring it right under that-it is levying of war. I
44go18h between constructive treason, but in constructive levying of war, if Ior e acting and aiding with him, the intent may not be made ont.

d 1G • obertson.-That is exactly what I say is the law. Thei'e must be actual
anttand asisting in those acts of violence which form the constructive treason.

%lois e jury to understand it must be shown that the prisoner actually aided and
ere 'n the acts of violence that constituted the constructive levying of war. And
e'5 One other thing I want you to note-my learned friend spoke of the evi-

c Onclusive. Now, the evidence is purely circumstantial of the intent.. Justice Richardson.-No, I understood him to put it in this way : he asked
if the evidence would not bring it around conclusively to the prisoner ?

. RObertson.-That is, that it is conclusively establishei by direct evidence.
end sler.-I think in anticipating your Honor's charge in this way, my learned

a little irregular. He should object .to the court's charge and not to the

Ititr t rson:.-But there is no appeal from the charge.
Jntio ce Richardson.-Wouldn't it be proper for you as I go on to call my

ati0 ertson.-It is purely a matter of grace. It is a rule as to all circum-
. dance that it must be perfectly inconsistent.

4 JuStice Richardson.-Gentlemen of the jury: The charge against tis prisoner
> have heard, a very serions one, and of very serious nature. He is charged

1 .aVog Ehbeen a participant in some of the acts which are pretty notorious in the
T Whjeh has recently been broken up.

ti 'a "laterial points really necessary to be established in order to support a con-
threebl 1 charge against this prisoner are-lst. Was war levied ? That is, was
qs t 1on on ? If you are satisfied on that point, that it was so, thon comes the

te, hetheor or not this individual, the prisoner, was mixed up in it ?
Rive the 10 s an Indian, and, perhaps, very properly you should, in his instance,
to e aatter very deep consideration, but whether you should extend to him moreta tter wOuld extend to any other illiterate person is entirely another matter, and
1 d b4 'w 1 'wich I should say ho is to be measured by the same law that anybody
Aa d e measured by. At any rate, my direction to you would be to give him.

In whichasonable cousideration, realizing the condition in which you see him,og .We know the Indians are to-day.
are W)in' eoference to this charge against the prisoner, I should tell you that if
A at aonvineed by the evidence you have heard there was rebellion or insur-
e ie. b tif YOu are not satisfied on that point, thon ho is entitled to an acquittal

0gt befot YOu are satisfied on that point, thon come the question, what have
a% hre you? What has been brought before you to justify you in saying thati

Wall 48broken the law ?ti a have Mr. Astley, the first witness. Hle tells you ho saw this manu
that the saw this man on the day of what is notorious as the day of the Duck

âQ 11at he saw him on that occasion, and we have further from Mr. Astleyt a Interval between the Duck Lake fight, which was, I think, the 26th.
12th May, we have the assertion of Mr. Astley that he saw hin

si
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frequently about that place, and where the prisoners were oonfined, that he was ot
arms, and that he was holding conversation in a language that Mr. Astley did l
uinderstand at various times with the leader of that insurrection or rebellion, and I
immediately following their interviews certain instructions were given by hilse
the Indians which belorged to his band then collected under arms. We havefu os
that on the day of the Batoche engagement, the taking of Batoche, Astley's asseru
that this man was in charge of the Indians whom ho controlled, more or less arin
that he himself was armed, and that although he did fnot see the prisoner fire tl t

Mer Majesty's troops, his men were moving up and down from the pit or
position they had, and they were firing upon the troops. Well, that firing Of l
is clearly an act of war.

The question for you to consider is, do you believe what Mr. Astley said?
is one thing, but not only have you to consider whether you believe what Mr. Ad
himsolf said, but you have got further to consider whether or not Astley is corrot
rated, and in what way he is corroborated ?

You have the statement of two other witnesses. First, you have Mr. Lash,«bd
says he was Indian agent there, that ho was also a prisoner, and corroborates M
except as to what happened at Batoche on the morning of the 12th May, after A ,
was sent off by Riel to the general; and you have him corroborated also by
Emarold D. Ross, also a prisoner,

Now, you have to determine upon what Mr. Astley and Mr. Ross and gr.
bave stated, whether this man is guilty or not. n0

if you believe the statements they have made, then I think there ca'1D
different course open to you than to determine that he was a participant in the a
Mfl acts which are alleged to have transpired. oIf, on the other hand, reasonable doubts have entered your mind, and YoP
mot bring yourselves to bring this home to him, thon I say on that score he is e
to the benefit of any reasonable doubt and should be acquitted.

Now, I think 1 have put it fairly before you, and shal ask you to considor 10
carefully, and if you can draw no other conclusion for it than that he was a par
pant in these acts, thon that you should find him guilty.

On the other hand, failing that sonclusiveness, thon ho ought to be set free'-g
You may retire gentlemen, and give this matter your consideration. (Thf

here retired and found prisoner " guilty," whereupon the prisoner was romand
aentence~

Friday, 14th August
Clerk opens court at[5.45, p. m.
Mr. Robertson.-I move the sentence of the court upon One Arrow. entenO
Mr. Justice Richardson.-One Arrow, have you anything to say why.sea

ihould not be pronounced upon you for the offence of which you stand conV'
were convicted yesterday ? A

One Arrow through Interpreter Hourie.-I would like to speak for 19 P
The court has charged against me yestorday that I had taken up arms and that n
painted my face with war paint. He says ho could hardly do so when ho los
bis grandchildren lately. ie says ho has thrown away that painting long agO. îao 0'
kept any councilor, held any council. I am just a person alone and keep in 0n be
i have been charged here that I had a gun in my hand and was seen shootinl 0 1
-white men. I never did that. I never did that, to take my gun to shoot at l is
man. There is an old man here that can prove and say that what I am slY'J
true. I thought that I was doing no harm to anybody, but, of course, theY x
the blame on me. Ail that was said against me was thrown upon me falselY• Oa'
mot take up my gun with the intention, with any evil intention to shoot at a11yl W1L
mot at all in the least. I was there on the brink of the hill the whole day, a' "*-

may gun there, but, of course, not with the intention to use the gun against aOY Ire
and when I saw the white mon coming down, the soldiers coming down, thel or
down the bill too, and ran off. I am an old man now. I would not do thbt' ob
any such a thing as that against a white man. I was taken to the place, Bat
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1ï e1 by Gabriel. 1 did not take myself to the place. They took me there. I% lâOt say how many there were of them that took me there, but there was quite
her of them. I was away one side alone and they came for me. There was

large number of them went down to the place.
• Justice Richardson.-I have no objection to hear it, but you are rather drift-

W, Mr. Robertson.
obertson.-I wish that your Honor should give him an opportunity to

iSOner One Arrow.-I could not say that he asked me to do so and so, but he
e to come along. He could not say for what reason he wanted me to go with

to •1. Robertson.--That was in answer to a question that I asked the interpreter- ohim to say what Gabriel told him in order to induce him to go.
Arrow. -1, of course, always listen to what I am told. I was told that I was

ao down at Carlton, so I went there and when I got there I was taken prisoner,
1 Wish that I should be let go. Gabriel took me prisoner. He asked the

h 'us to go down to the place. I now beg your Honors and all yon learnedtere to--I know I have done nothing wrong, I can't see where I have done
Wrong against anybody so I beg of you to let me go, to let me go free, and

%fa• J"ustice ]Richardson.-One Arrow, the difference between your case and
e of those others we have heard here, is that a jury, after hearing

that had to be said, both against you and for you, by a gentleman who
4 eitere by the Indian Department, have found you guilty. You were a par-

You were with an armed mob who were in arms and against the Government,
a treaty Indian too as well as a headman or chief of a band. With your

tt% yo1 have nothing to complain of, for the Government was so interested in one
'kb liefs that ho placed a lawyer here to look after you and see that nothingu[Infairly done against you. Old as you are, and gray-haired as you are,YOI were doing wrong, you knew you had no right to leave your reserve

an had promised to live, and, much as I dislike to punish an Indian, or to
d ybody, much as I dislike to pass sentence on anyone, I shall be as wantingîty to the public and to the Crown as you were if I did not place such aeUt upon you as would make you feel it, as also make the other Indians of

know what would become of them if they followed your bad -example.ee tOrery does not fail me, I recollect giving you personally some words ofgood
t e Or four years ago at Prince Albert, and if you had followed them youy a1t bc here.
sentence of the court upon you, One Arrow, for the offence of which you

of ted, is that you be imprisoned in the penitentiary of Manitoba for the
eyears.

QUEEN vs. " WHITE CAP."

'es~0 t TerritoriesJ
h, -foriation and complaint of Frederick Kelloch Gibson, of the town of

t n the North-West Territories of Panada, deputy sheriff, taken the four-
bfor 'ber,in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-
e sai euandersigned one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in and

olth-West Territories of Canada, who saith:
te -pah-ies.co, otherwise called White Cap, not regarding the duty of his
rue hly 'withdrawing the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance which

Our faithful subject of our Lady the Queen does and of right ought to bear
th id Lady the Queen, on the tenth of April, in the year of our

sand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other days as well'tat.date, together with divers other evil-disposed porsons te the said
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Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, did within the Dominion of Canada, c
imagine, invent, devie and intend to levy war against tour said Lady the o
within Canada, in order by force and constraint to compel ber to change her »k o
sures and counseli, and the said felonious compassing, imagination, inventiol,Or
and intention then fWoniousi and wickedly did express, utter and declare by
overt acts and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to say :-

In order to lulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonious conpassing, ter
nation, invention, devise and intention aforesaid, ho, the said Wah-pah-iss-cO, eo
wise called White Cap, afterwards, to wit, on the tenth day of April, in the of
aforesaid, and on divers other days and times as well before as after that date,c
near the locality called Batoche in the North-\Vest Territories of Canada, did .
spire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet togother with divers other ev
posed persons to the said Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, Vo raise, mak
levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen within this rea

And further, to fulfil and bring into effect his telonious compassing, imag's
device and intention he, the said Wah-pah-iss-co, otherwise called White Cap,d
wards, to wit, on the twenty-fourtb day of April in the year aforesaid, and on0
other days and times as wel 1 as before and after that day, at or near the locality
as Fish Creek in the North-West Territories of Canada, did conspire, consut, c0o$
ate, assemble and meet together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the
Frederick Kelloch Gi bson unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and re
#gaiJst our said Lady the Queen within this realm.

And further, to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonions COP
imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Wah-p y
otherwibe called White Cap, afterwards, to wit, on the twelfth day of May in th
aforesaid and on divers other days ani times as well before as after that do
and near the locality called Batoche, in the North-West Territories of Can 1
conspire, consult, coniederate, assemble and meet together with divers Oth.r
disposed persons to the said Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, to make,
.levy inpurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen within this r

In contempt of our said Lady the Queen and her laws, to the evil examlPae
others in like case offending against the form of the statute in such case .
provided, and against the peace of our said Lady the Queen, her Crown d

FRED. K. G1fl01·
Sworn before me the day and year above

mentioned, at the town of Regina, in the
North-West Territories of Canada.

HUG RICHARDSON,
Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the said North- West Terr

And take notice that you have the option of being tried before a 
magistrate and a justice of the peace with thelintervention of a jury of sie4f0ta
a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way without the intervention 0

Which do you elect ? tJIb
Charge read to the jury by the Clerk, who continues as follows: 1

charges the prisoner at the bar hath been arraigned, and upon his arraigny or
pleaded not guilty. Your duty, therefore, is to enquire whether he be gé
guilty, and hearken to the evidence.

Mr. Scott.-May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury: The o
have heard read against the prisoner is for the offence known as treason-
is.punishable upon conviction by such term of imprisonment as the court
proper to inflict. The prisoner is the chief of a band of Sioux Indians ,WI10  t
reserve a short distance south of Saskatoon, on the south branch of the Saskato
]River. At the time of the breaking out of the rebellion in the north, tha
the 18th March last, as we shall show you, the prisoner was living ol
apparently peaceable. Shortly after the breaking out of the rebelliont
reservation and went north and joined the rebels who were assembled in
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b44d of Batoche, under the leadership of Louis Riel. The rebals had what is
bel a ouncil, that is, their affairs were managed with Louis Riel as leader of theg ot Thair affairs and internal management were6 managed by a council consist-

e Abelve members. Upon the prisoner's arriva in the rebel camp, he was made
t. ýr of that couneil, and sat with the council upon a number of occasions after

it to We will give you a short history of the rebellion, the evidence showing that
4e . enced on the 18th March; that on the 26th March there wasa battie at Duck
tl that neighborhood, at which several volunteers and policemen were killed,to rftorswards at Fish Creek, on the 24th April. there was anothar battle with the
.th Je Government troops, under General Middleton, and that on or about the

a, ) a third battle was fought between the same sides, and the troops were
e4 blds, and Louis Riel and his followers were defeated, and the rebellion came to

4r q that part of the country upon that day. The prisoner remained as a mem-
Sthe council with the rebels until about the 12th May and was arrested shortly

i t That is his connection with the rebellion; he moved with his band up
ber reservation shortly after the breaking out of the rebellion, and was made a

ebl e of the rebel council when he got up there, and acted and conspired with the
he rebetok-p up the rebellion until about the 12th May. That is his history as far
dbe ilon is concerned. Now, the substance of the charge against him is that

and intended to levy war against Her Majesty, that is, against the Gov-
4 ntthe lawful Government of the country, and that in order to bring into effect

and intention, ho committed certain overt acts which are set out, The
one 0tOn the 10th April at Batoche. That is given because we find he was ai

>th Arthe time acting as a member of the rebel council; the second is on the
4 ' at Fish Creek, which is the date of the battle of Fish Creek, and although
%> Ot Present at the battle, although we may not ho able to show that he was

to haY occasion or that he was fighting on any occasion, we are merely calted
ihOW that ho was conspiring with the rebels to keep up that rebellion or to

i one•That is the second overt act-the time of the battle of Fish Creek, and the
t0oas of the 12th May at Batoche. Those are the three charges against him,

optring oni those three occasions to levy war.
. ASTLEY sworn:-
mined by Ar. S cott:

SYOt 'ive at Prince Albert ? A. Yes.
)4t you a surveyor ? A. Yes.

th 8t.joined the Prince Albert volunteer company about the 18th ? A. 19th

• Wi Went to Carlton ? A. Went to Carlton.
. Whatthat company ? A. With that company.
prise appened to you about the 20th March ? A. From that time till I was
414d i on the 26th I was scouting backwards and forwards through the half-

yton f an settlement.
rc e 'sent out by whom ? A. By Major Crozier, and I was taken prisoner

%t wuck Lake by the half-breeds and some.Indians under the leadership
'0 hathO Were in open rebellion against the Queen and Government.

'eed ett ' the state of the country generally there ? A. Through the French
Q. 1 etteont they were ail up in arms.

Yo. flany were there in arms? A. About 400 or 500, I should say,
On 2ere taken prisoner by them and held how long? A. On the 26th
hen March till 12th May.

f ere tOU Were released by-? A. The troops under General Middleton.
The any engagements between the rebels and the police during that

ort ath March, the same day that I was taken prisoner, there was a
t Tha t e from the house I was in.

e Were imprisoned in ? A. That I was imprisoned in. After the
r aj0e himseif came up stairs and said that thore had bean a fight, and.
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he had called on bis men to fire, and shortly afterwards a wounded volunteer
brought up into the room, named Charles Newett, and thon William Tomkin an
man named Luh went to the battle-field afterwards.

Q. Any other fights that you know or board of ? A, At Batoche of course the
was fighting there, Saturday, Sunday, Monday, Tuesday, four days. sQ. Between whom ? A. The troops and the French half-breeds, and the
at Fish Creek. iiQ. What were you doing on the 12th ? A. I carried a note out in the ao
to General M iddleton from Riel, and going down the river in the direction $sO
was sent to find the general, I passed rifle pits where the prisoner was in.
him on my way out that morning the first time.

Q. You passed through the lines f rom Riel's camp? A. To the general's "t01''
to the goneral's linos, and then when I came back again I came back almost a ,io

Q What for? A. To bring a note back from the general to Riel-and I g
saw the prisoner. t

Q. I want to know what you did that day? A. I came back. That WasVto
irst time I came back, and talked to Riel some time, and then I took arother ,

out about two o'clock in the afternoon-went through the lines again and bacl ag
and then after that again I went out a third time. ti os

Q. Then how many times did you pass through the lines? A. Three tireand twice back. I came back with the troops the last time. that y1Q. Then what was the state of the country all that time, from the time e
.were arrested or for some time previous to that, up till the 12th May? A.
rebellion the whole time.

Q. Did you see the prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. When did you first see him alter you were made a prisoner? A.

week after I came to Batoche. That would be somewhere about the 10th APrlitQ. Where did yon see him that day ? A. He and his band I saw arriviDg
Batoche's all on horseback, and all armed.

Q. You saw him and his band coming in on horseback all armed? A. yQ. About how many were there ? A. I would say there were about twe
Q. That is ail you saw ? A. That is all I saw at that time.
Q. Did you see him at any time there after that ? A. I saw hiln on '%

nany occasions from that tili the day of the last battle backwards and for'e
among the half breeds and among bis own Indians, and just previous to th
Oreek fight, about two days before that I saw him addressing his band. I 3abat
addressing his band ont in front of the window whore we were prisoners. wS.
about two days betore the Fish Creek fight, and then I saw the band going ae sø

Q. Did you speak Sioux ? A. No, I could only sce that he wa talking to
Theyse a good many signs in talking the Sioux. t r

Q. Then you say you saw him on the 1uth ? A. When I went out the er
on horseback, and Riel was passing me through the linos, ho called the pris o0
and ho went up from his pit and ho spoke to him something about mey
spoke to him so as to pass me through.

Q. Riel was passing you through the linos ? A. Yes. pQ. And when you were passing ? A. HRe called him up, and ho came
one of the rifle pits.

Q. le was in a rifle pit whon ho was called ? A. Yes. o
Q. iad ho anything in his band ? A. lie was armed, ho had a rifle or

buat ho had arms.
Q. And was coming out of a rifle pit ? A. Yes. 0 itQ. And Riel said something to him, you don't know what ? A.aomething about me I supposed, that is what Riel told me ho bad told hi11-bort *1
Q Whon did you tee him again ? A. When I was coming back a 8a 1aeafterwards I passed the same row of pits. Some Indians of his own band b of tb

ne, the farthest pit from where he was, and 1 was passing and ho came out
3ý6
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oellered something, and then there was no more firing. That was just the same
a8nd ho had a rifle or something in his hand at that time.
Q. You saw him in the same pit that he was in when you were going through?
les.
% .QDid you see him again ? A. I did not see him again that day. I had to take
erent road the last twice.

t 1 (orin, the interproter sworn in this case, says he has been interpreting this to
Prisoner as the evidence proceeded.)

By Mr. Scott :
Did you ever have any conversation with the prisoner ? A. No, I can't talk

Q Re does not speak English, I suppose ? A. No.

By Mr. Robertson
You say that on that occasion, the 12th, when you saw the prisoner in thes tg, Riel went and stopped the firing to enable you to get through? A. I said

'RMe1 went and spoke to him, most likely to give some word.
Dboes Riel speak Sioux ? A. I don't know. He can spoak a word or two I

on but ho talks Cree and English, I know. All ho would have to do in passing
e pointing to me when I had a flag in my hand.
Tere was firing going on at the time ? A. Yes, firing was going on at that

ndQW a pretty brisk fire ? A. No, more like skirmishing.
to ' What is a brisk skirmishing fire ? A. Well, there were a good many shots

noIt the same as in the afternoon.
Itwas a pretty dangerous thing to run the gauntlet to that fire ? A. No, I

You did not think it was ? A. I did not think much about that.
ouYe don't think so now ? A. No, there must be a certain amoant of risk,

yeone is willing to run a risk for a certain object.
to -8t you did not consider it a dangerous thing ? A. No, that did not enter
4y hoad at all.

f e b n were perfectly cool and collected thon? A. I was not excited. I may
Ana little at that time in the morning. I was not even vexed or anything.
- ndyou were nit excited? A. N .t that I am aware of.

er, w many trips had you made through the linos before this? A. That was
triP I made, about 9 o'clock in the moring.

t' What was your object in making that trip ? A. To take up a letter from
eral Middleton.

t rhy did you want to take the letter ? Why did you volunteer to take the
I wanted to do, as far as my ideas were concerned, all I could for the

.nd see if it was not possible to do something-tovards catching Riel.
6 that w prisoners you folt were in danger ? A. We always considered it a

14th ile? A. Well, some of course considered themselves in more danger
ee did. Some days in case of excitement, of course, there was more danger

e .A ight be at other times.
Mo0r0 d that was a day of excitement ? A. Yes; three days provious to that a

9. than it was just at that time.
Iht Id the prisoners thought they were a trifle in danger? A. Yes i some

l. t and some less; they didn't all think the same.
hought they were only a trifle in danger, did you? A. No, some days

. Thtor chances wore rather slim.k1 e t day? A. That day I thought if things worked the way I wished they'
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Q. Suppose they did not work the way you wished? A. They would be
wrong.

Q. Didn't you, as a fact, think that ail the prisoners were in a dangeross-
danger of being killed that day ? A. I did, if things went one way. .bleQ. That was the reason that you wished--? A. To do ail that was pos

Q. But you were not in the least excited about it ? A. No, not that I ama
I was perfectly cool at that time.

Q. How many Indians did you see when passing through these lines ?
did not see all of White Cap's band, and I saw One Arrow's and some more
There may have been, perhaps, about, that first time I saw, about 40 or 50.

Q. And a lot of half-breeds? A. I did not see many half-breeds that timeO.
Q. How was the prisoner dressed ? A; Ie used to be--Q. low was ho dressed on that occasion ? A. I could not notice him on thatd$

I moticed his hair more. I know him by sight well enough to swear to him.
Q. You cannot tell how ho was dressed on that day ? A. No. ore
Q. Can you tell us anything that he wore in particular? No; I know hilm er

by his bair than anything else, by bis features, more by his hair than any
thing I can judge by. e

Q. You cannot tell how ha was dressed ? A. I did not take particular 20
of how ho was dressed, they were ail dressed so much alike.

Q. Indians do all dress very much alike ? A. A great many of them, Yes. i0Q. Well, what is this dress they ail wear, that they ail wore on that occas1
A. Ordinary breeches, whatever you like to call them, breech-clout. Sole oflla
on that day were wearing very slim costume, but some of them bad a kind Of bliIII
coat that time in the early spring, but I would not like to swear what ho Wior t

Q. Don't give us generalities. On that occasion what was this dress that
of them wore? A. Just ordinary blanket leggings, and blanket coat.

Q. What did they have on their heads ? A. Some, nothing at ail. 'eotQ. And others had what ? A. Others had a kind of a fur coat, and some
even as far as a plug hat. ia

Q. Then they did not ail dress the same ? A. No; the general class, as
wore blanket leggings, and blanket coat. Of course, there were exceptions- roQ. But the head dresses were different? A. Just a few; many of the o
without a hat of any description. ti

Q. What head dress did the prisoner have? A. He used to wear-at tha
I did not notice what ho had on that morning, 1ala

Q. Yon don't know what ho had on that morning; now, how manY
were there at Batoebe altogether ? ,A. I saw about 150.Q. That was in the camp? A. Around Bateche.Q. And there were a number of old men among them ? A. Yes; a good eiQ. Now the prisoner says that you are completely mistaken about his t
there; he says that ho was not in the rifle pits that day, that ho was back '
church ? A. Weil, that is where we differ, perhaps. b

Q. Now you are prepared to - ? A. I am prepared to swear that I tpin that rifle pit, e «ro"Q. And you are prepared to swear that, notwithstanding the risk YOu werning? A. Certainly. 
0 ObQ. You were so cool that aithough there were a lot of other old men Out o150 lntiains that oxciteent 0«r150 ndins tat ou ad been in the habit of seeing, in the excitemen ro

moment, when you were not thinking about anyone in particular, but 00
going in the hope of saving the threatened lives of the prisoners, yo0Ur
'Prisoners, 'with a fire going on ai] around you, a rifle fire, although yont d to r
did notice even what head dress the old man had on, yet you are prP ared tOSi
you recegnised his face so distinctly that you can distinguish it from those
men that you saw among the Indians those different times? I did not sec
day by a long sight. I know his face as well as I know my own.Q. You think you do ? A. I do; yes.
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. You are one of those confident men that is always sure ? A. No; not at all.
Q, You are not A. No ; I am certain about that.
Q You are sure you weie not excited ? A. I was not excited.
Q. You are sure of that ? A. I am certain of that.
Q. And you are as sure of that as you are that you saw White Cap ? A. Yes;

%rtailliy.
q. Now where was it you saw him on any other occasion, the second time that

y A. When I was coming back, after taking the Dote to the general, I came
.kas near as I could tell to the same place, so as they would know me, and I saw

again at that same place.
q. That is you saw the same man you hadseen before ? A. Yes; I saw White

Q. Did you notice bis head dress then ? A. Not at all.
Q. Was he bareheaded then ? A. I did not notice-I only noticed when coming
1 was afraid of some of them firing at me in passing rather too close to them,
I heard him holler something, and saw what he meant.
Q. How far were you when you heard him holler? A. About 40 yards.
Q. And there was firing going on? A. Very few shots at that time. Thera
been one shot fired at me, because they did not know what I was doing, I

%posýe.
Q. But there were not mary shots ? A. The general ceased firing, when I
tout and met him the first time.
Q. The Indians had ceased firing ? A. There was an odd shot.
D . You were 40 yards away and heard White Cap -- ? A. I heard him holler
eIthing, but I thought from the way it was done it was to leave me alone.
Q. Are you prepared to swear to that, that you recognized his voice ? A. Well,

Q. .Did you recognize bis voice ? A. I did not recognize any man's voice, but I
tt came from the position where he was.
Q. Were there any other Indians close to him? A. Not that I saw. There
haLve bee n in the pits.
9Q. Re 'was alone thon at that time ? A. Standing on the side of the pit by
elf. I tbougbt ho was doing me a good turn.

Did you see his mouth move ? A. No, I heard-
You did not see his mouth move ? A. Not from where I was.

Q. You heard someone ahout? A. I heard someone sbout.
And you saw him standing there, and now you are prepared to swear it was

a that shouted ? A. I thought so at the time, for I thought he was doing
Zturn,

SQ.You thought you recognized him on the previous occasion also-are you pre-
tth o 8 wear to them both ? A. The first time I went out 1 did not hear him say

You said you recognized him the first time you went out? A. I did re-

. %'ou say also you heard him shout on that occasion ? A. Not on the first
IOn.

On the second occasion ? A. Yes.
You heard him shout? A. Yes.

t Ar-le you prepared to swear you did ? A.'I will swear as near as I feel certain
Ira who hollered,.doing me a good turn.
YOU feel certain now ? A. Yes.
t you felt just as certain it was him that was shouting as you felt it was White

) iBelf ? A. I was certain it was White Cap, but there might have been some-
1e hollering, At the same time I gave him credit for doing so.
e on that was the second occasion on which you saw him ? A. That was
d occasion that day.

Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 1886



Sessional Papers (No. 52.)

Q. When did you see him again ? A. I did not see him again that day at a
The next twice I went ont I had to go a different road.

Q. Where did you see him, before that, or after it ; you say you saw him co0
into Batoche ? A. Yes, somewhere about the 10th of April.

Q. That was into the little hamlet or village at Batoche ? A. Yes.
Q. Were you present ? Yes, up stairs in the front room, in a room over the stor*
Q. Did you see him at Fish Creek? A. No.

By Mr. &ott .A
Q. How long have you known the prisoner? A. Off and on since I he be%

in that part of the country, three or four years.
Q. Then you have known him three or four years? A. Yes.

By Mr. Robertson :
Q. What bas his character been during that time ? A. Always heard White ?

rather well spoken of.
Q. And his band ? A. Lis band always get about the same thing, heard about

ame thing. He kept his band good with him. U gQ. Did you ever hear anything against him before? A. I never heard an
against him.

By Mr. Scott:
Q. Nothing against him ? A. Except this concern of the rebellion.

WILLiAm ToMKiNs sworn-
Exammed by Mr. Scott:

Q. You are interpreter for the Indian Department livin at Carlton? A. y
Q. What happened to you about the i8th March ? A. was taken prisoIer.
Q. By whom ? A. By Riel and his followers.
Q. Where were you taken prisoner? At Bat2che. hQ. Where wero you taken to? What places were you confined in? Ad .

times? A. Confined in the church at Batoche, and afterwards taken over to a
& Baker's store, and from that back to the church again, and from there to tara
restaurant.

Q. y ou say Riel and his followers, of whom did his followers consist i
Indiaus and half breeds.

Q. To what extent? A. 400 or 500 I should think.
Q. What state were they in ? A. In a state of rebellion.
Q. Were they armed ? A. Yes.
Q. Where were you on the 26th March? A. At Duck Lake.
Q. As a prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. What happened on that day ? A. 'A battle took place.Q. Between whom? A. Between Riel and the robels, and tho police and volu" e
Q. How -o you kuow there was a battie? A. Weil there was a woudLtii't

brought up to where they were, and Riel told us himnself.
Q. When did ho toit you? On the same day ? A. Yes.
Q. What did ho tell you about it ? A. lie told us that they had a grand çiO
Q. Did he say what was done ? A. He said that they had killed ki f

people, or there were so many killed.
Q. How long wore you kept a prisoner? A. Two months, all but a daY.
Q. What day were you released ? A. Twelfth of May.
Q. By whom ? A. By General Middleton and his forces.Q. Did you see the prisoner? A. Yes.Q. When did you tirst see him after you were imprisoned ? A. I seen

the 10th April, to the best of my knowlodge.
Q. Whezre? A. At Batoche.
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. What was he doing on that day? A. Well, he came in there with the rest
'of band that used to be generally taking part in butchering cattle. I used to sea

140re killing cattle than anything else.
Q. You saw him coming in on the 10th April with his band ? A. Yes.
Q. Wore they armed or otherwise? A. They were armed.
Q. Where did they camp, do you know ? Did they romain there any length of
? A. Yes, they remained there.

Q. Up to what time? A. I did not see him after the 13th May. I don't know
he went. He remained there till the 12th May, to the best of my knowledge.

Q. How many times do you think you saw him between the 10th April, when
came in, and the 12th May ? A. I could not say to the exact number of

es. I saw him quite frequently.
Q. You did not see him doing anything except butchering cattle ? Yes.Q. Did you see his men doing anything? A. Yes, thev wore helping him.
Q.id you see them doing anything else. A. They were carrying arms.

: That is ail you saw ? A. Yes. (Interpreter says he has interpreted this te
prisoner.)

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. The cattle you saw him killing were the cattle in the camp? A. Yes.
Q. Is it a remarkable thing for an Indian to carry his gun ? A. Nu.9. An Indian carries his gan wherever he goes, doeos't he, at ail tires? A.
exepting they are going after some grub or rations.
Q- 9·Whenever he goes out froin the place where ho ordinarily lives ho almosti
Ys takes his gun ? A. Most generally.

,of White Cap had nothing more with him than he would usually have in time
e ? A. No.
The object of this rising as yon understood it, I beliove was to obtain the

to Of the half-beeeds to their lands ? A. Yes, to make a new Government.
It was to force the Dominion Government wasn't it, to give tbem what they
as their iands? A. Well, that is what they say.

• AIl yon know about it is from what yon heard them say isn't it ? A. Yes. j

By Mr. Scott :
You say they had another objeoct in rising besides getting their rights to the

t ', Wbat was their intention ? A. Their intention was to kilt everyone that waseCountry.

By Mr. Robertson:
o10w do you know that ? A. -

'Scott-He heai d them say it.
By Mr. Robertson:
11iRu everyone in the country ? A. Yes, try to take the country.

By Mr. Scott:
A nd what were they going to do with it ? A. Sell it to the United States

Riel told me.

GARNOT sworn
Rzamined by Mr. Scott:

0 were living at Batoche in Mai ch last, were you not? A. Yes.
't l at happened about the 18th March thora ? Shortly after the beginning

h, th was there anything happened in that neighborhood ? A. From the 18'A
Q, gebeginning of the uprising.Q. at kind of an uprising? A. A rebellion.

ut the 18th March a rebellion broke out there ? A. Yes.

A. 1885
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Q. Who broke out into rebellion at that time ? A. Half-breeds around -Batocob
and the vicinity.

Q. To about what number ? A. On the 18th there was about 40.
Q. And did the number increase or decrease after that ? A. Lt iLcreased aàl1 o

tlaily.
Q. To wbat extent ? A. It must Itve come to about 400 I think.
Q. Are there any others besides balf-breeds there ? A. Half breeds and Indial
Q. Were there any Indians at the first, at the beginning, or did they join tho»

afterwards? A. There were some Indians at the beginning.
Q. And the number of Indians increased as well afterwards ? A. The n

·ef In dians increased as well.
Q. Who was the leader of the rebellion ? A. Mr. Riel was supposed to be.
Q. What did they do during the time they were in rebellion ? A. They

fiEghting
Q. What was the first fight? Where did it take place? A. At Duck Lake-
Q. Were you present ? A. I was not. I was at Batoche.
Q. How do you know there was a fight there ? A. I got into Duck Lake $Pet

lhe fight was over, and I saw the battlefield.
Q. Did vou hear anyone saying anything about it? A. Yes, I heard PeO1'

Ialking about it. erQ. 'Who? A. I could not mention anybody in particular, but almost e
.ody was talking of the fight. I heard the firing frcm Batoche.
Q. You were in the rebellion as well ? A. Yes, I was.
Q. What position did you hold ? A. i was secretary for the council.
Q. To what council ? A. Riel's council
Q. Secretary to the rebel council ? A. Yes.
Q. When was that first constituted ? A. I was not present when it Was
Q. When did you first know of its existence ? A. From the 21st of March.
Q. Was that the date of your appointment as secretary ? A. That was the

tlmt I was brought in there.
Q. To act as secretary ? A. To act as secretary.
Q. And did you continue to act ? A. I continued to act till the end of the

ef May.
Q. How many mombers were there of that council ? A. I think fourtee ".

-would not be positive, though. There was a lot of members absent most of the
Q. Did you see the prisoner there during that time between the 18th of

and the 121h of May ? A. Yes; he was not there at the beginning.
Q. When did you first see him there ? A. I could not tell you the date;

maet have been three weeks anyhow alter the beginning of the rebellion.
Q. Then you think it was about tlat time that you first saw him ? A. t

about that time.
Q. Do you know how hie came in there-how he happened to be there i

Thero was some men sent for him.
Q. By whom ? A. By Riel, I think. I think they were sent by'Riel.
Q. How many ien ? A. Two men.
Q. Is that ail ? A. Yes. ø
Q. Those two men were sent for him by iRiel, and did he come in a short

after, or did the men come back first, which? A. They came in together; con
ame in about a day ahead of him. He was camped about ton miles fro the

then, I think, that is what that man reported. eiQ. Ie reported that White Cap and his band were camped about te»
4*f A. Yes.

Q. And then ho came in next day with the other messenger ? A. YeO-
Q. Him and his band ? A. Yes.Q. Of what number does this band consist ? A. About eighty men.
Q. ln what state were they as to arms ? A. They were mostly all ar •
Q. You saw them, I suppose ? A. I saw them coming in.

A., 1sso4t9 Victoria.
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Q. Was there anything done in the council as to White Cap? Did ho appear
4fore the council at any time ? A. The day that ho came in, or the next day, I

ould not be sure, ho was appointed as a councillor.
Q. As a member of the council ? A. Yes.
Q. Was ho present at the time of his appointment ? A. He was present.
Q. The deliberations of the couneil at that time, at the time of bis appointmont,

what language were they conducted ? A. Mostly always conducted in French

Q. The prisoner, I understand, does not speak Cree ? A. I don't believe he
derstands neither French nor Cree.

Q' You say ho was appointed a member of the council; was ho made aware of

tot 11 hi . There was an interpreter that made him aware of that fact; ho was told,

Q. There was an interpreter there who;was told to tell the prisoner that ho was
aIJPointed ? A. Yes.

Q. That ho was appointed a member of the council ? A. Thathe was appointed
niember of the council.

Q. And then immediately after the interpreter was told that ho spoke to the
Pi1somer ? A. IHIe spoke to him right away.

Q. That is ail you know about it ? A. Yes.
Q. Well, was the prisoner in the council after that, the day of his appointment t

IIe was there occasionally.
Q. 11ow often ? A. I could not say that; that is pretty bard to say; I wasn't

ere all the time mnyself, but I bave seen him there many times.
Q. Did ho ever take any part in the deliberations? A. Only once or twice, I

113k, that I heard him talk to the interpreter, that I remember.
jr rWhat tribe did this interproter belong to ? What was bis name ? A. La-

Q . What Indian nation did ho belong to? A. I think ho is a French half-breed,
I ama not sure.
Q. Did you ever see the prisoner with arms ? A. No, I never saw him with arms.
Q. Did you ever see him doing anything else during the time ho was there? A.

Q. Did you ever see him out side of the council at all? A. Well, I saw him down-
rs, where I met him ail the time I was in the council room.
Q. That is the only place? A. That is the only place where I saw him. (Inter-

>6ted to prisoner by the interpreter.)

By .Mr. Robertson:
oQ. ou saw the prisoner about the camp, didn't you-about the village of

cZ0he ? A. I might have met him, but 1 don't remember seeing him. I might
e seen him, but I don't remember.
Q The cause of this rising, I understand, Mr. Garnot, was that the half-breeds

t rince Albert and that neighborhood were seeking to get the Government to give
titles to the land upon which they squatted up there, the land which they had

ke 1 ocupying-is that true ? And the Government had refused or rather had
g0ected to give them those titles ? A. Well, I have hoard that.
til9. Don't you know it yourself ? A. Don't know anything about the rebellioa

IWas brought into it on the 21st March.
q . You were brought in on the 21st March? A. I was brought in on the 21st

Q. Weli, don't you know that the prime object of the movement aftr the 21st
her 'Was to make the Dominion Government attend to the rights of the half-breeds

e and give them their lands ? A. I have heard so.
. • Well, that is what you understood, as being the secretary of their council?

that is what I understood. Of course, I have beard so. I never saw any
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.)

document that could prove to me that it was for that purpose that the rebellion WSS
commenced.

Q. You were secretary, they made you secretary, of their council, an I that Ws
'what you understood as seocretary, wasn't it? A. Yos, that is what I understood as
secretary.

Q. That was the object of it, to get their lands? A. I think so.
Q. Well, yon understood it so from them ? A. I understood it so, yes; but You

must understand I am under oath, and I can't swear to a thing to be sure of unlets 1 am.
Q. Now, was there any serious expectation that they would be able to di ive the

Dominion Government out of the eountry? A. No, I don't think so.
Q. Isn't it the fact that they were simply rising in the hope that by risii'

they would obtain the attention of the Dominion Government by petition? A
have heard so.

Q. Well, that is what you understood, wasn't it ? A. Yes, that is what I heard.
Q. And did they want anything more ? Were they aiming at anything more

than that, that they would rise aud they would force the Dominion Government tO
attend to them, and then force the Dominion Government to give thom thoir titi0
to their lands ? A. Yes.

Q. That was the whole objeot? A. Yes, because they were expecting every day
that delegates would come.

Q. They were expecting every day that some one would corne from the Goyr'P
mnent and treat with them? A. Yes, I have heard that al most every day.

Q. Now, you were taken thore by force, I believe? A. Yes.
Q. And against your will ? A. Yes.
Q. And made scretary of that council in spite of yourself ? A. Weill of cOurse

I had my choice to run the risk of what might have been done to me if I had refaS
to do so. I was alone in the town. I was the only one that had not joined theol
then.

Q. And yen were afraid, as matter of fact, that if you had not done as they toi&
you it might have been the worse for you ? A. I thought so, yes.

Q. And that is the reason you did act ? A. That is the reason I did act.
Q. Now, it is a fact, is it not, that Mr. Riel and his council, those who e

heartily with him, got a great many people, both Indians and half-breeds, about Il'
by frightening them and threatening them? A. Well, I have heard a great inauf
saying so.

Q. DO you know what means he to* to get this White Cap and his band to
come in and join him ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know was there a council meeting as to what was to be done ?
there any couneil, any discussion at the council, as to what was to be done to gt 0t
and his band to come in? A. I was in the council when the men were sent for bilo
There were two mon sent ont to ask White Cap to come and join them.

Q. Now, hadn't White Cap before that, hadn't they tried before that to get Whito
Cap to join them ? A. They did try, bat it was before I was there. roQ. This was almost immediately after you came in, then, that the messenge
were sent? A. Yes, the 22nd or 23rd March. It was before the Duck Lake figh
that they went.

Q. Now, what was the message? Da you know what message was sent to hnze
A. That is ait I heard, unless there was other messages. I heard Riel say to t
nessenger to ask White Cap to come and join them.Q. Didn't ho send a threat that if he did not come -- ? A. No, I never heard

Q. Are you now under sentence for a part in this ? A. Yes.
Q. You have been sentenced for seven vears, I believe? A. Yes.Q. Do you know that the cattle of White Cap's band were taken possessO or

by the half.breeds ? A. No, I never heard it, that ho had cattie.Q. The fact is, thon, that you know very little about White Cap except that
oWere there when they made him a meomber of the council and told him so? A.

lhat is about ail I know; ail I said is ail I know about it.

A. 1886
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Q. Was he asked before he was made a member of the council if he would join T
A. It would be about the same as what I answered before-I could not say because I
4 n't understand Sioux.

Case for the Crown here closed.

DEFENCE.

GE.RALD WILLOUGHBY sworn:-

Examined by Mr. Robertson:
Q. Mr. Willoughby, you live at Saskatoon I believe? A. Yes.
Q. And have lived there for some time ? A. Yes.
Q. And you have traded in the neighborhood of Prince Albert also, have you 1

• Not as far north as Prince Albert.
Q. What is your occupation ? A. Trader and storekeeper.
Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. I do.
Q. low long have you known him ? A. Nearly three years.
Q. Have you known him well or only slightly during that time? A. I have

own him very well.
Q. Of what nature bas your intercourse with him been? A. Business.
Q. Trading? A. Trading.
Q. With him and bis band? A. With him and his band.
Q. What can you say as to his character for truthfulness, for honesty, for friend-

eNs to the white people; what can you say as to those points? A. As far as I
e known White Cap, I have nevel known him-I can say that I have never known

tO tell me a lie, that is as far as bonesty is concerned, and as to his friendliness
towards the wbites he bas always evinced it and in our neighborhood there ho is treateê

friend by all the whites,
Q. In your neighborhood where he is known ? A. He is perfectly known
Oagh all our settlement, and he is taken as a friend in the whites' houses.
Q. Is he an ordinary Indian or is there anything- ? A. No, I don't consider
ail ordinary Indian.
Q. What do you consider from that point of view ? A. I consider him a very

nä0h superior Indian.
Q. 1s ho kind or is ho cruel ? A. He is very kind.
Q. And bas always been as far as you know ? A. As far as I know.

lî Q. Is there anything remarkable about his manner of life as an Indian ? A. Hoe
a very much more in a civilized way than any other Indian I have ever known,
tries to instil that into his people.
Q. And tries to teach his people to do the same? A. In a farming way.
Q. Does he work at his f arm ? A. He does, he grows grain as far as ho can an&
land under cultivation every year.
Q And does he try to teach his people, bis tribe, the same ? A. He does.

Do you know has ho ever shown you in any way that ho bas a sense of the-
holds in this country, ho is an American lndian? A. Yes, ho ls a.

eican Indian. He bas told me that he is.
What bas been his view of his position in this country ? A. He bas told me

ho eonsiders his position here of course as that ofadependant on the Government
ag an American Indian. One instance that leads me to know more about that
g aniything eise is that a year ago last spring ho came to me and wanted me to

. S--cott.-I object to that statement,
e . Rbe7rtson.-Strictly, perhaps it is not regular. 1 only wished to show that

reOgnized his position bore and was grateful to the Government for it.
.-t-You have got that.
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By Mr. Robertson:
Q. Did you see White Cap at any time during the troubles ? A. Yes, I sawh

twice. Once previous to his starting from home for the front, and at the time Of h"5
going to the front.

Q. Tell us how it came about that you met him on those different occasions ?
The first time, I went down to see Norbert Welch who kept a store at Round Plain%
to get some ammunition for our own use at home at Saskatoon, and I stopped at
White Cap's house when I was between my place and Norbert Welch's and I stOpPm
there at his house, and I stayed there for probably an hour or an hour and a
tatking to him and the other Sioux about the outbreak, &c.

Q. Was there any sign at that time as to their intentions either one way or the
other ? A. I asked different ones of them that I knew were staunch friends of his
whether they were going to the front or not, and asked him whether they were goil"
to the front or not, and ho said no.

By the Court :
Q. Was White Cap present at the time ? A. Yes, it was in his own hou.
Mr. Scott.-I object to this being given as evidence, oven what White Cap à"

en that occasion.
By the Court:

Q. The outbreak was on thon? A. Yes.
By Mr. Robertson :

Q. When was the second occasion that you met him? A. At the time that he
passed or sometime on his way north.Q. Be particular and tell us how it happened you met him on that seco
,occasion ? A. Well the evening before ho passed Saskatoon ho camped two a
half or three miles south on the trail. I had an appointment to meet a certain pOrs>
out there at their own house on that evening, and White Cap came to them to sP0e
about the trouble and wanted to see me. White Cap wanted to see me, being tb
only one that could speak Sioux there. The person told him that I was cOmIng t"
their place that evening, and ho said that would be ail right, it would be perfOeO1
suitable as long as the half-breeds did not come. Something kept me that 1 cd
mot get there that night ; it was not very important that I should be there, an,
did not get there. White Cap came to see me at the house, I understood-I
lot there. We knew, of course, that night-.one of the men came up te tell un the
were on their road up. I had seen them the day before down below, but I had no'
be speaking to him, of course, and there wore three parties sent by Saskatoo
'people to ask White Cap to go back to his reserve, and that ho would be Perfeou
safe iu doing so, and I was sent as interpreter for them, for these three persons. r

Q. Who were they? A. There was Mr. Copeland, Mr. flamilton and
McGowan.

Q. These were the people that went? A. Yes.Q. Now, had you seen White Cap before that on that occasion about that
A. I had seon hlim the day before - [ had soen him, but just spoke to him, had a
Conversation.

Q. Woll, bas White Cap got a brother ? A. He has a brother.Q. Iad yon seen that brother before that ? A. Yes, his brother was war
there for a person in the neighborhood, and was there before the trouble some i
Ican 't say how long.

Q. l )W did his brother come to see you at any time before these three g®
went to se hlm? A. Yes, as I had not gone down the night before, he Se

brother in the maorning. lIe was afraid to come himself ho afterwards told me,
he sont his brother up to tell me or to ask me to tell white peopleof Saskatoo

ue wanted--
Court.-This is nlot evidene,
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Witnoss.--I only know this that from what his brother said-
Q. Well, his brother did come to you as a messenger from him at all events ?

&yes.

e Q. And as a consequence of what the brother told you, what did you do? A.
, we got our arms together. The white people that were there in the

'ttlemnent at the ti me got their arms togetner and got one place ready to meet ther
ehon, they came up.

h Q. Ready to meet whom ? A. The half breeds, and we sent ont and met tha
alf breeds when they came up, and the spokesman, Mr. Copeland, told them h..

'%dlerstood White Cap did not wish to go to the front.
Mr. Scott.-I object to that as evidence, what Mr. Copeland told the half-breeds.

By Mr. Scott :
Q. Was 4White Cap" present ? A. Yes, White Cap and the half-breeds wero

together.
Q. Were you there ? A. I was there ; yes.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. Had nothing occurred between you and White Cap before this

snally? A. The only thing that occurred to me was, that White Cap had
oe that he did not want to go to the front, and wanted me to get the white

Wple to help him get back to his reserve.
Q. He had done that before ? A. Oh, yes.

w . And it was in consequence of that that the white people went with you ? A.
ent with me; I was coming to that before, but I was stopped.

Q. And he told the halt-breeds that he did not want to go ? A. And that ho
nted to know why they were taking him; and White Cap came up to the front

'th the half-breeds when we were speaking to them; and they had his cattle,
course, and his whole outfit with him. They were driving his cattle.

Q. The half-breeds were? A. Yes,some half-breeds on horseback were driving
Cattle up. The Sioux were not on horseback. They had jumpers. White Cap

o 0nly Sioux, that I remember, on horseback, and the breeds were on horseback
ng up the cattle and loose horses; and when we told this half-breed that we

eristood that White Cap did not want to go up, he said White Cap could speak for
t f, and I turned around then to White Qap and I asked him if he was going to

]ot front, and he said he did not know; just shrugged his shoulders and said he did
t knOw, and he apparently did not know what to do. Of course, the half-breeds

e keeping me away from White Cap as much as they could. They did not want
e get near him if they could help it, and any time I would go to speak to hit

140t, they would shove in between and keep me away from him, so that I could
get much chance to speak to him until afterwards, and there was great excite-

any there, and they all passed on, shoved on, and there was nothiug more said of
ver onsequence then. I met him afterwards, of course, and had another con-
kor ttion. After they had moved on out to the other side of the town on their way
,4 I followed him over to a house that he stopped at to get a cup of tea, and hadOn talk with him thn personally.

• On the subject of his going ? A. Yes.
eekt • Xow, can you tell me what took place there on that subject ? A. I told him

his case-if he went what his position would be-if he went up there he
ee Cali himself a rebel. I told him if he went back quietly to his reserve that

to ;ould be no danger, that he was perfectly safe in doing it,'and he did not seem
qkso; he seemed as though.-

t44t h' hy did you say that he would be perfectly safe ? A. I knew at the time
s o was afraid; he was afraid to go back; afraid of the half-breeds. Some of

Ire t Parties were against him, and those and the half breeds that were with then
ore than those with himself.

• The half-breeds were more namerons ? A. Yes, and they were helplews then.
47
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Q. You say you know White Cap well? A. Yes.
Q. And you had this conversation with him at this time? A. Yes.
Q. Did you then believe, and do you believe now, that ho really was or thab

'Waïs not afraid of the half-breeds ? A. He told me so at the time, and I believed hi""
Q. Do you believe him? A. Yes, I believed him thon, and I still believe hio'
Q. Do you believe that ho would have gone and joined Riel if he had not boa

afraid ? A. No, i believe ho would not.
Q. Do you recollect anything being said about his fighting ? A. UP

UBatoche ? ie
Q. At that interview or any of those interviews you had with him ? A. d

tok me thon that ho would never fight, that even if ho went to Batoche he WaOl
mot fight.

Q. Well, what was said that led to that? A. I told him at the time that ifhie
went there and iought against the Government, that ho would be thrown out of
reserve, and I told him ho could not go back to the American Bide, and I just asat l
him 'what would become of him, and ho seemed to get rather angry at the idea thh
thought he would go there and fight, and told me different times repeatedly that b'
iwould not fight even if he went there.

Q. Do you think that ho really was indignant at your suggesting the ides be
would fight ? A. 1 could only say from what appeared to be, ho appeared tO

very indignant.
Q. Ho appeared so to you at the time? A. Yes.
Q. And you did not think ho was shamming ? A. Oh, no; I did not.

By Mr. Scott:
Q. The first talk, Mr. Willoughby, you had with the prisoner was the tiile Y0

went down to Norbert Welch's for ammunition, was it? A. Yes.
Q. Had the outbreak commenced at that time ? A. Oh, yes.
Q. What day was it ? A. i can't say, probably about the 25th of March.
Q. I ur derstood you to say that he was not thon decided as to whether he

going or not? A. Be told me ho was not going.
Q. At that time ? A. Yes. afQ. Thon the next conversation you had with him was when ho was on his

Up, was it? A. Of any consequence-yes.
Q. In which any thing was said about his intentions as to joining the rebels? b.

Ye-no; ho spoke somewhat of joining the rebels, the day he came uP as far
B&katoon.

Q. That was when ho was some three or four miles out? A. ProbabY 1%x
eight miles.

Q. How far is his reserve below Saskatoon ? A. About sixteen miles.
By the Court:

Q. Is that closer or further off from Batoche ? A. Further off.
By .Mr. Scott:

Q. Then ho was on bis way up when you had the second conversation
kim ? A. On bis way north; yes. t to

Q. Did you hear that he was going north at that time ? Did you go 0
him ? A. No, I was going to another person's bouse. .Q Bad you heard before you saw him that ho was on his way north? tbo

Q. Did you suppose at the time you saw him or just before you saw hi' gt
he was on his reserve ? A. Yes ; I supposed at the tirne that I met the whole O
-I supposed ho was quietly on his reserve.

Q. Until you met them, you supposed ho was on his reserve ? A. Yos• T
Q. What was said on that occasion? Did you ask him where ho was 901

N I did not ask him. I knew-I formed my own conclusions. Iank him.

49 Victoria.
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Q. Ilad you any conversation with him at all ? A. Yes; I had some conver-
etiOn with him.

'Q. What was it? A. I said to him that he had botter not go further than Sas-
ktOon. I told him to turn around at Saskatoon a-id go back home again, and I had

Ot any chaneo-I dared not say much to him then.
Q. Why ? A. On account of the half-breeds.
Q. How many half- breeds were there there ? A. There wore about eighteen.
Q. Did you know any of them? A. Oh, yes; I knew a good number of them.
Q. Where wore these half-breeds from ? A. Some of them were from Round
n, wbere Norbert Welch has his store.

In tho neigbborhood of White Cap's reserve? A. Yes; Some few milca

Q. Some of the half.breeds wore from there ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know whether there were any from the north? A. Yes.
Sflow many? A. I could not say how many there were from the north.

Q Iow many were there from the Round Plain ? A. That I knew there werc
ait ix or eight, I believe.
Q. Is Norbert Welch a half-breed ? A. Yes.
Q. Was he one of them? A. He was one of thom, though he did not go throug-

stOpped at Saskatoon.
Q. And what did ho do after that ? A. After te stopped at Saskatoon ho wen-t

Appelle.
9. Was ho a rebel do you know? A. I don't know.
Q. But you saw him that day? A. Oh, yes.
Q. With the others ? A. Yes.
9. What were they doing when you saw thom when you were there, were the3y

tig ng or camping? A. Well, they camped just after I saw thom first, after 1
ted them first.
Q. What time was that ? A. They camped for dinner.
9. Thon was it the next day afterwards that they camped up near Saskatool
a the citizen's committee went ont to sec them ? A. Yes, the following day.
Q JHow many half-breeds were thore there at that time ? A. The same number.
Q. You say Norbert Welch stopped at Saskatoon; well, didn't you ascertain

I ething about his feelings about the matter-about the rebellion, whother ho was
bel Or not ? A. Well, I don't like to say anything about Norbert Welch.
t9. But I want you to say-I want to know whether these eighteen half-breeds

'Were with the Indians going up were robels or not? A. They were, as we coi -
',d rebels excepting Norbert Welch, and we did not know anything about him.

'Were afraid of him.
Q. Didn't ho say anything himself ? A. He said, he said something about hin -

a4t We did not believe him,
q. At all events ho holped them there? A. He helped them there.

of Were those other men from Round Plain rebels ? A. They were rebels. One
Was killed.

TPheky went up to Batoche ? A. Yes.
IoW many Indians wore there? A. Probably twenty-not more.
Neot more than twenty? A. No.

-q"Ot more than twenty mon in White Cip's band? A. Not more.
I *understood yon to jay that White Cap sent for you and thon you saw hini,

told OMPlained that ho was boing taken up to Batoche by tho rebels ? A. Yet.
* n "le that he was being taken.

nd ho wanted, I understood, I don't know whether you said it this time, but
4. y5tood from other sources that ho wanted the citizens to help him to esoape?

'b d he ask you to ask the citizens that? A. That was the message ho sent

4 h at h wanted the citizens of Saskatoon to help him to escape from thc
eds? A. Yes.
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Q. Was that it ? A. That was the idea.
Q. Weil then, what did the citizons do ? A. They told us: botter to tell W h"e

Cap that if the IndignR would strike the first blow against the half-breeds that o
'white peoplo would help them. the

Q. That if the indians would strike the first blow against the half-beeedoi
white men would help them ? A. Yes.

QThiis U8essvge was sent up belore they reached Saskatoon, was it ? A.
Q. And th.) answer wa sent back before they reached Saskatoon? A. 

guess he got the answer before ho reached Saskatoon.
Q. Thon ho got notice from the whites that they were prepared to assist hio

lie would help himseli ? A. Yes, that was the substance of it.
Q. When did the band reach Saskatoon ? A. About nine o'clock in the

I think. Og
Q. Was it then that the citizens' committee went out to meet them that1

'went out with them? A. Yes.
Q Was there anything said during that meeting there about White Cap goilI%

back ? A. That was what the conversaton was.
Q. They asked him fot to go, to go back to bis reserve ? A. Yes.
Q. WeIl how many citizens were there there at that time; how far was this

the settlement ? A. Right at the store, in front of the store. . or
Q. How many citizens werd around there at that time ? A. Probably eight

mine.
Q. Were they armed? A. 'Yes.
Q. Well how many citizens were there there altogether, in the town? A.

were about 18 or 20.
Q. Where were the others ? A. I don't know. They were away.
Q. Were there 9 fighting men in the town that day ? A. I think so.
Q. At all events they ail gathered there ? A. That.were in town.
Q. Prepared to defend themselves and to assist this man? A. Yes. pp
Q. That was what they weo thore for ? A. That was what they werethre
Q. W ell, did W hite Cap know it that day ? A. I can't say whether ho kne<

or not.
Q. Well, what was the conversation that took place with White Cap that

A. Well, the conversation was not with White Cap, it was with the breeds
would Lot let us go near White Cap. a00

Q. But I understood you to say they tried to keep you away, but you had
con'versation with -him ? A. I just asked him simply not to go, and ho did 0
anything at that tinre. Ie did afterwards. theQ. Then, in reality, there was no statement made by White Cap at the tiOne
they passed through Saskatoon ? A. There was at the time, but not at that coOf
sation.

Q. When was it then ? A. Probably half an hour or so afterwards.
Q. Between you and White Cap? A. Yes.
Q. But I mean at the time the citizens were there? A. No, there was »0

passed between the citizens and White Cap himself. tsQ. Did the Laif-breeds interfere with the citizens in any way; did theY $0
to attack them or anythirg of that kind when they were going through? •

Q. You say there were 18 hali.breeds and 9 citizens? A. Yes. Y&*Q. Were the citizens a' little frightened as to what would occur? A
certainly.

Q. It was at the conversation after they had assed through, you follo.* d e
up I understand some distance beyond Saskatoon A. No, just to the other
the town. Of course, the town is only a couple of hundred yards wide, and
him ; the bouse where ho stopped was only 200 yards away.Q. And you had a conversation alone with him then ? A. Yes. '

Q. Ar-d you understood from him then that ho was afraid to break
Xoe that la just what he told me exactly.

50
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Q. You think ho knew that the citizens wore prepared to assist him ? A. I can't
84Y Whether ho did or not.

Q. Did ho know the object or cause of the rebellion? A. No, ho did not seem
know. Ho did not know anything about it apparently.

Q. I suppose ho knew there was a rebellion ? A. Ye s.
Q. He know that was the rebellion ho was going to jo in ? A. Yes, that %s, that

there was rebellion-I don't know about joining.
By Mr. Robertson:

Q. You don't know that ho understood ho was going to join ? A. He told me
Was not going to join.

By Mr. Scott:
Q, He said ho was not going to join, you understood ? A. He told me ho would
tOing to do with the rebellion.

Q. You say that White Cap thoroughly understood his position in the country;
e at is his po ition; you say ho was dependent on the Government being an Amer-

o Tudian-did you ever have any conversation with him as to his previous history?

Mr. Robertson.-What bas his previous history to do bore ?
Mr. Scott.-It is a cross-examination.
The Court.-The previous history may be shown.

By Mr. Scott :
Q. Do you know anything personally about his previous history ?
Mr. Robertson.-I submit that is objectionable.

By Mr. Scott:
. I ask what the prisoner himself told him about his previous history?

the was always very reticent about it. He toldme once that ho had fought on
'Adnerican aide.
Q. Where ? A. He did not say whereý
Q. Againast whom did ho say ? A. No, nor whom.

. Well you have been asked as to his general reputation. What is his reputa-
A. As to his history previous to his coming here?

r. Robertson.-I object to the question.
itness-- 1 don't know that at all.

Ry Mr. Scott:
?t q. Did you never hear anything about him in the neighborhood ? A.

nothing of him only what I saw myself.
. NOw, wasn't the feeling that ho expressed that ho was obtaining a sanctuary

t a ountry ? Wasn't that what ho considered to be his position ? A. That the
'an Government was harboring him ?

os ? A. Yes, that thov were giving him a home.
- Well do you know whother or not there was any reason why ho had to

l Canada ? Wasn't ho fleeing from justice on the other side ? A. I know
& of my own personal knowledge.

er . That is the expression I have always heard used, that ho had a sanctuary
o W "asnt that the case ? A. That the Canadian Government was giving him

eaboring him ? A. Harboring him.
cosed all evidence in the case.

ADDRESS OF PRISONER'S COUNSEL.
çà 0 nu ,bartson.-May it please your Honors and gentlemen of the jury: Since
0btai oI of the Big Bear, I have feit that it is almost a hopoless task to attempt

6 a jury in Regina a fair consideration of the case of an Indian. It haa
62,4 si
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seemed to me that it is only necessary to say in this town to a jury, there is an India
and we will put him in the dock to convict him. But perhaps in feeling that, i dia
injustice to i ho jurymen of Regina i hope I did. Nothing but such a convic tiOo
that of Big Bear could have brought me to think so, and I try to believe again ti0'
morning that I was mistaken iii the estimate 1 formed in consequence of that verdiht
I am going to appeal to you now as if you were perfectly fair-minded, as 1 hope tha
you are. I am goirg to ask ycu, notwithstanding what I have seen in this coha
already in these Indian cases 1 am going to make one more appeal in the hope thli
this time I have betore me men who will regard the evidunce against an Indian,
scrutinize it with a desire to do bim justice, and not to press unduly upon him, J
as fairly as if it were a white man they were dealing with; and I am going toa
you to acquit White Cap and I1 ask it with perfect confidence in the resuit, prOVI
only I can get you to consider the evidence fairly and without prejudice.

The charge against this man is that he conspired together with rebels rebel
against the Queen.

Now, let us begin and let me ask you to ask yourselves what likelihood, W
probability there was of a man in his position conspiring against the Queen, or
other words, against Her Majesty's Government in this country ? What were the Pre
babilities? What was his position ? He is an American Indian, to begin with.
is bore the guest of this country. He and his band have been given, as he said h
self to Mr. Willoughby, and said it with gratitude, as Mr. Willoughby tells yOU.
had been given beie a home, a home where as Mr. Willoughby says he was baPPl'
and, so far as an Indian can be prosperous under the laws as they are applica bi
Indians in this country, he was prosperous, he was truthful, he was honest întb
dealing with white men, he was the white man's friend, treated as such by .l

knew him, and he was industrious, ho worked bard ou his farm, ho taught his ti
to do the same, he was doing everything he could to be a good citizen. My leartbe
friend bas attempted to suggest to you that he bas some bad character, and tha
has fle froin justice on the other side of the line. Well, geuntlemen, if he was ther"
if he was, there surely must bu something extraordinary in the air on this side of t
line to have converted this terribly wicked Indian flceing from justice in the
into the man such as Mr. Willoughby described to you-leaving out of consider'0
for the moment, what is said against him in this rebollion.

Gentlemen, there is nothirg against that man on the other side of the bor
there is nothing that any honest man noed be ashamed of, at all events, we k ,
we all know how the American troats the Indian. We all know that the poor îmd
there is looked upon ai the very man to be crushed under the heel of his more p0 <
erful brother, called as he should be lis oppressor, as he is, the white man. W of
that they are the victims of all kinds of chicanery and falisehood and of all tku h
persecution and oppression, and we know that sometimes the desperation to a st
they are driven by the treatment to which they are subjected, they have, asearesort attempted to protect themsolves and to assert the righ ts that had been solori1ja
given to them by treaty with the Goveranient, but of which they have been d op'itb
by its false minions, and possibly that old man has been engaged in some fighltthbo
the troops in the States, and he knows the treatment any Indian gets froin c
troops when he is captured. It is not a fair trial, it is not aven 11 e
pretence of a fair triai as has been accorded to some of tlese bee
here, but it is a short shrift and a rope or a bullet. Ho kîiows that, and ho as
weary of the strugglo, and in bis old age he nomes over hure, and hure he fIlud 0 1111
parative protection; here he finds the home that he las been soeking fol'. Ne
tries honestly to make the best of it. That was bis position when he was here010 e
had ne complaints against the Government. Ho was grateful to the Govern t>lZ
for what it had done for them, and he is there on bis re-ervation, ti'n ýeoi
advantage of the opiortunities the Government afforded him. W t in f
had he ? What object had he to serve in rising against the Government par1
should he rise ? My learned friend will perhaps ask you to say he rose ou ø
cussedness, because lie is an Indian. Mr. Willoughby tulils you what kia
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,is and I venture to say the old man is as kiid-hearted and a great deal better,
nlester, more truthful, more kind, and more friendly than many a white man that

oi and I know. I say his face shows there is not a cruel line in that man's face,
I say that Mr. Willoughby's knowledge of hi ru shows it, anI his account of him

ows it. Now, Mr. Willoughby is not here to gie a man like that a good charac-
if ho did not doserve it. Mr. Willoughby is just as muclh interesteJ, and in fact

10ýOre interested, because he is there in the mid> of them, in seeing tbat the menWo wero really guilty in this rebellion are punished, and ho would be the first man
go into the box and tell yo u anything that could bo told against that man, if it

Were to be told, and there would be much more told in that box against him if it0 lC be told. We have his character then. We have his posi:ion. We have the
oubability. Was ho likoly, ho an industrious, truthful, honest, friendly man,
rkig industriously on his reserve and teaching his tribe to do thie same ? Mr.
ley tells us the same thing, that ho had a good character, and his tribe and band
a good character before, and was it likoly that that man would have any induce.

ther t to rise against tho very Government to which he was grateful for the home
t they had given him ? Then what did he do ? We know from Mr.

yllughby that the old man and his band came up to Saskatoon. They were brought
rlee by Cighteen armed half-breeds. They were about twenty in number. Now,
,enty Indians to eighteen half-breeds, and on the part of the Indians, a desire tai

old all fighting, the half-breeds in possession of thoir cattle, remember, which they
0Ve off, their cattle, their means of subsistence, is it to be wondered at that the old

ar and his band when these eighteen half-breeds came down and took possession of
cattle and drove them off, and told thom they were to come up and join Riel ? l

wonderful that he yielded, that he went up ? Remember, you must not judge
1 COnduct as you would judge of the conduct of a white man in the same circum-

ha Now, I have repeated that over and over again to juries here, and every time I
fore repeated it, his Honor has taken care to tell the jury that the law is the sane

a White man as it is for an Indian, and the same for an Indian as it is for a white
I am not saying that it is not the Lw. The law is the same for all, but the

Is that the man muast be proven guilty'apon the facts of the offonce defined by
hatand it is not that I am saying that the law is to be different for an Indian from

it is for a white man. What I say is that you cannot judge of the conduct of
yo dan--you cannot draw the same inferences from the conduct of an Indian that
to can draw from the conduct of a white man, a white man who has been accustomed

I te nder civilized foras of govern ment, who understands the importance of
g Dining law and order, who knows what a serions thing it is to rise in arma

ta 'Ust the Government, when ho is asked to go into a robel camp, he knows the impor-

o thing ho is asked to do, and he recoils from it, and if ho is a loyal man he
eist with all his power any force that is brought to bear upon him to compel

t go, but anIndian is not struck in the same way by a more order that ho is to come
at oRlil's camp. That is a different thing altogether. It does not appear here that

4o mian knew or understood what Riel was after, and as mattor o fact ho did not.
UP essngers come down thore, and they tell him that they are going to take

hen ,toiel, he must go with them to Riel. Well, ho says these cighteen armed men
o rg lked off with his cattle, and he feels, well I must either fight them or I must

doje$ nlust stay hero and starve. I will go. I had botter go. So he goos, but ho
lik it. He does not want to go, and whon they get him as far as Saskatoon,

l 8 and ho goes himself over and over again to try and sec Mr. Willoughby, the
o an in the settlement that could talk Sioux, to try aud get the whites to help himet aWay and go back to his reserve. Was he honest in that? Are you going to

'a 'n the face of the character that ho bears as Mr. Willoughby shows you-in
t4 of the probabilities of the case, that he was acting all that? Isn't it just the

t WOUld expect from a man in his position ? Wasn't it natural and just the
j'u'jl l ould expect him to do ? You would not expect that that man would want

'el ? Re went several times to try and get hold of Mr. Willoughby in order
53
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to communicate with the whites, in order that they might help him to get away en&
then we bave Mr. Willoughby's accourt of the interviews ho had with him, of hr.
the whites went out and tried to get near him, and tried to help him away.
Willoughby tells us that the message they sent as to what they were going to g
them was that if the Indians would strike the first blow, they would help them
that message never roached them. They go out to meet them, and the half-bre
take precious good care to not allow him to get near them.

Now, gentlemen, if the half-breeds were not taking that man in by force or
fear, why were they so careful to keep Gerald Willoughby from getting near brD
Doesn't that show you that they had him there under coercion, that they were ordei"
him in agairst bis will ? And they were determined that the fear they had instilld
into him, which enabled them to bring him so far, should not be countervailed bt
anything that Mr. Willoughby might say to them, and they kept them asunder; t
Mr. Willoughby saw him afterwards, and Mr. Willoughby tells you that knowilg the
man well-he tells you the conversation lie had with him, and ho tells you that ho
believed then and ho believes now that the man was in fear of those half-breeds, ad
that it was because ho was in fear of those half-breeds that ho was going up to tbei
camp. Do you believe it ? Then ho went. They did take him in, there is no doubi
about that. Mr. Astley told us that he saw them coming in-J forget whether it ws
Astley who said they were ail ,mounted-yes, he did. Ho said ho saw them, ab
twenty, all coming in to Batoche on horseback, and all armed. Mr. Willoughby tol
you that the only mounted man among them was White Cap himself. Now, J dOh
Bay that Mr. Astley deliberately told an untrutb, but I say that Mr. Astley, while e
wishes to tell only the truth, is one of those iirpetuous men who speak carelessly, a
while J impute to him no intentional falsebood I do say that his evidence is n
unsafe evidence for a jury to convict upon, and there is one instance of it. You to
those two men, Mr. Astley and Mr. Willoughby, in the box. Mr. Willoughby t<>j
you the only mounted man was White Cap, and there were only about twentY, a
Mr. Astley told you that ho saw tho whole twenty mounted coming into the cara
on horsoback and armed. Mr. Tomkins said there were about eighty of them car0 Io"

I draw your attention to those circumstances, gentlemen-contradictions, becaas
they show that these two men, Astley and Tomkins, honest as they are,
men that were passing through a very exciting time. They saw everyth1g
through magnifying glasses. Although Mr. Astley tells you that on the norlr
ing of the 12th May, when ho was in terror that the lives of the prisoher
were goeig to he sacrificed, when ho was in the hope of saving d
lives, riding so gallantly as ho did, running tho gauntlet of that fire from both
of that field, although ho tells you while ho was going through all that that ho
perfectly cool. Gentlemen, I ask you to say that Mr. Astley was not perfectlY c
and that Mi. Astiey's recollection cf all these events is colored and mnagnified, -'er
magnified to the detriment of ail that were opposed to him by the excitement ulr
which ho labored at that time, during that time a very natural excitement, and
excitement that ho need not be ashamed of, an excitement which he denied. -Ir
why ? Because ho thought that if he admitted that ho was excited you might, t
ho miglit be doubtful about the identity of the prisoner. That is why he wou!d
admit that ho was excited. Do you believe ho was not excited, gentlemen 0 j
you believe that ho hasn't sti etched a point in saying that, and if ho strotele
point in saying that, ho stretched it because ho wanted it to tell again st the Pri&d
and ho would stretch another point too to tell against the prisoner, and he wd
say ho was positive it was hlm, when in reality ho is not so positive as ho pre .te
to be. That is the opinion I ask you to form of Mr. Astley's testimony. . It 1 8 ,
you to say whether or not it is correct you think, whether or not J have judg
properly and accurately, and, gentlemen, I ask you to say would yon for a luo 8
think of convicting one of your fellow-citizens upon any charge upon testimonytbe
uncertain as that ? Because, gentlemen, on the evidence Of Mr. Astley rests -
'whole of this case. If Mr. Astley was mistaken in saying that he saw that na
the rifle pits on that day, then there is no case made out against the prisoner.
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I know his Honor has ruled differently in the other cases, in some of the othersQB, but I am going to say a few words on that hereafter.
How, just ask yourselves as honest men, fair-minded mon, trying there upoa

Our Oaths the question of the guilt or innocence of this old man, wi'h his provious.
0od character, with all the prebabilities against his rising against the Government,

Yoiurselves would you for.a moment think of convicting a fellow-citizen upon.
%ei01 evidence, a white man, and be men enough to say we will give the poor Indian,

educated, but after all a good old man, we will give him the b3nefit of the doub'1
l events, and we don't feel that we are quite satisfied that Mr. Astley may not
e been mistaken as to who it was be saw in the rifle pits on that day ? I ask yoa

,0gy that, but, gentlemen, if he were in the rifle pits, there is not a tittle of evidence
h fired a shot. The same fear that took bim into that camp may have taken.

out to the rifle pits at the bid of Riel. Be may have been impelled by the same(
that took him there. Ho seemed to Riel to be acting with him, while in his
he was not helping him one bit, but was hanging back. If Riel's people were

Sto frighten him into coming in, they were also able to frighten him into going
the rifle pits. And supposing ho was there, it is not shown that ho did any -

g; that he fired a shot. He says, however, that Mr. Astley is completely mi-
-fe says he was not in thcse rifle pits at all. He admits that he was in thee

but he says ho did not go to the rifle pits, and the declaration he made to Mr..
) Oughby that if they took him out thore he would not fight-the declaration that

lade, remember, was of indignation and anger when it was suggested as to fight-
That declaration he stuck to, ho says, and he says ho was at the church all the,
hen the fighting was going on-the church which was away back from the
he was not fighting.

%0w that isthe whole case against the prisoner, that Mr. Astley says he saw
aot there in the rifle pits that day, and Mr. Astloy, and Mr. Tomkins, and Mr,

et tells us that ho was in the camp, which he admits. Mr. Garnot proves that
't elected a member of Riel's council. Well, gentlemen, you heard the accounru

athit, nd did you ever hear of anything more farcical ?
Te old man talking Sioux, speaking not a word of French or Cree is brought

T l' fear. He is brought in, invited to come to this meeting, he is taken in there,
rl'Oceedings are all conducted in French and Cree. He knows nothing about

4ethOy're doing, and then somebody tells him, but we have not the tittle of evi-
he to prove that he was told that, but they say some one was told to tell him that

o elected a councillor, and that some one spoke to him afterwards. That is the
Se extent of that. What does it amount to ? It does not appear that ho was

1 asked to join-not a bit of it-but he was brought in there very much as Mr.
e t was, only even more unwillingly, and he was made a member of council

heer he liked it or not. That was Mr. Riol's game. It was the way he played
Stiol 6 game. He got mon about him by one meanus and another partly by impo-

t Partly by intimidation. He got thom there and made them his councillors
'eyer they liked it or not. They were afraid of their lives to protest, and thon

e ae brought here and convicted because they were his couneillors. In this case,
e Do'ncillor knew absolutely nothing of what was going on. I attach, and I ask

attach, no weight te thatcircumstance at all. The same fear that would bring
14 1 h' there was also enough to take him to that meeting and alio enough to make
V à d his tongue when they had told him what they bad done with him. Then

ntieethe fact that ho was in the camp. He was seen there in the camp. Well,
14 hi Honor has told juries before in these cases that the more presonce of

d er in the camp was sufficient to convict him, unless it was conclusively
othit to You that ho was prevented from leaving it by the instant fear of death and
t, g short of that would excuse it. I have submitted to his Honor with all defer-
% eoursO, and I am bound, in the discharge of the duty cast upon me here, not

%t îed advocate of the prisoner, for I am not, but because the Governmont has
ý4tXQ bore to see that if I can, that he gots fair play. I am b:>und to dissout from

kCg and to protest against it, and I do so. 1 say that that is not the law. I
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say that in a case of this kind, while it is competent to a jury to infer, if they th0o
the circumstances warrant it, to infer from the presence of an accused in a rebel câ
that ho is there aiding and abetting, the question is not whether ho was there, bit
the question is whether ho was aiding and abetting and encouraging them, and t
jury is not bound to infer at all tht because ho was ttiere, ho was aiding them.
being there is not a crime, etherwise the man who was thoro, if such there Wereo
doing his utmost to defeat the aims of the rebels, would be a guilty man and liablOe
conviction. lis being there is not a crime, but his aiding and abetting thom is
assisting them, his encouraging them in their dosigns would be a crime. The Jarf
may, where they think the circumstances warrant it, infer from bis presence the
that ho was aiding and abetting, and a jury at all events in the case o a whitO
as the cases show, would only be justified in inferring that from his more presonc
unexplained. Where, however, ho explains how ho came there, and the jury are Sa
flied with that explanation and satisfied that although ho was there ho was not willo .
there, not that ho was kept there by fear of death because that is not it, but that
was unwillingly there, that ho was not aiding and abetting and encouraging thO04
they are satisfied of that thon they should acquit him although ho was there.
law about the foar of instant death is this that nothing but the fear of instalt
will excuse a traitDrous act, but his being there is not a traitorous act. And t
you, whatever his Honor may tell you, and I appeal to you as six l
of sound common sense, whatver his Honor tells you is the law, to
moral justice to that poor old man, and, if necessary, over-ride the
as you have a right to do in these cases, because you are the Jad
of the guilt or the innocence of that man, and you have a right to
your common sonse to the whole case, and you have a right to say whether
man shall or shall not be punished. In this case it is unnocessary to over-ride
law. The evidence is not such as would justify you in condemning a dog to
hanged, and I ask you to say, whatver His flonor may tell yon, that that old ,p
should not be punished for anything ho has done in this matter, and I ask you k
acquit him. There is one circumstanco that has occurrei to me while I was 'P
ing, and one rorark I should make about Mr. Astley's evidence as to the idenflh
the prisoner, and that is that although ho protends to say that in the excitem
because I say ho was excited in spite of bis oath-in his excitement whein h0e
passing betwoen thoso linos, when ho was trying to save, his great and one th o
was what ho was to do to got to Gon. Middleton, and how ho could arrange to
the lives of his fellow prisoners. When that was his one thought, he asks y0o to
in all that excitement, ho recognizod the prisoner, but ho cannot»tell us whether
had a head dress on or not, lot alone tell us what kind of a hoal dress ho had o
any. That is another important circumstanco. Gantlemen, you know as to ,110t
how easy it is to be mistakon in the idotity of a man. Mr. Astley admits fhl 1

vere about 159 or 200 mon Indians in the camp, and ho says there were a lot efhafmon among ther. Now, gentlemen, you know I am very sure it must have the
pened to some Of you, as it has to me several times, that you have met mne v ge
streot ii thoir ordinary garb, and in the ordinary concorns of lite, and you ha e
up to thom to shako bands with thom thinking ho was an oId friend, and Y, h
fouid you wore mistakon. I am very sure that some one of you, ut least, has
that experience. It is exporionce I have of ton heard spoken of, and an expericbaod
have often had myself, and I have known mon so 1 0itive that thuy would b D
believe the man thoy were speaking to was not the man they imaginel hie ;0
an old friend too. I have sen othor mon go up and addross ny own fajiher oe
over again, mistaki, him for another man -and they are b3th somoewhat proainø
mon and somowLat well known, they being both members of the House Of twOand somewhat well known to the pubble of Otario-i have sen my father, on
occasicns, aistaken for that other man. Genttomen, it ii a very easy thi"e Anmistakm, and when a man, in all the excitement o that time, toell you e
recognize that old man's ftce, and is prepared to swoar ho saw him there, al
he cannot tell whether ho haI anything on his head or not, or what he had
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ad-I say it is most unsafe evidence, and I say it is too doubtful altogether to
'r1rant you in committing that man and depriving him of his liberty.

Gentlemen, I have done, I have done my duty. It remains for you to do yonrs.
811 very sure if I were defending a white man what the verdict would be. I hope

n addressing men who will give the same justice to an Indian. I have said, over
over again, since I have been in Regina, that I never in miy life in eleven years'

bPerience in practice-I never saw finer, more intelligent, more superior jurymon
I have seen in this box, and it was not until the verdict in the Big Bear case
lyielded to what I had been told-that the prejudice agàinst the Indians was so,

n that there was n hope of getting any of them acquitted. Gentlemen, I hope
believe that the men I see before me now are men that will give them the sanie
Consideration that they would give to their fellow.men, white men, and that is

I ask. I don't ask for any special grace to them because they are Indians at all
ask merely that you will just say to yourselves " now, if this were a white man

we convict, would we feel safe in putting a white man, depriving himn of hiq
ty), upon the evidence that a pears here ?" In the face of the good charactèr
ears, in the f'ace of the proba ilities of the case, of his position which made all

4nlterests to be the same with the Government, if ho possibly could have had the
ence that has been given of the way in which ho was brought in there against

WIl, of the difficult position in which ho was placed, and the indoubted fact that
r e this peculiarity about his case arising out of the fact that ho is an Indian

he could not look at the matter as a white man would, and that, like the child-
in a great measure these Indians are, he looked at the immediate consequen-
What ho was going to do, and ho feit that the best ho could do wos to yicld, at

events, to some extent, and go into thoir camp when they sent for hi m.

ADDRESS OF CROWN COUNSEL

. Scott.-May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury : My learned
aid1n commencing his address to you a short time ago, insnuated in pretty

r011g terms that there had been a miscarriage of justice in a case that was tried here
l4e days ago against another Indian called Big Bear. Now, I think that insinua-

Was uncalled for, entirely uncalled for, and I can easily understand the parposi
Which it was made. It is not my duty to follow it further except to tell you
that in disposing of this case you are not to consider what my learned friend
1is right and just in the matter-you are to consider what you yourselves think

hgt and just, that is, you are to give a true verdict according to the e idence that
have heard in this case.

>A 0W, gentlemen, I explained to you in the beginning what the offence was that
%, tharged against this prisoner, and have laid before you the ovidonce wiLh whieh
to roWn suggests that it is proved. That evidence shows conclusively, i subnit
1oyYOu, that he was in the rebel camp with the robels at Batoche, that is proven

d a doubt. The fact of his being in the rifle pits lrL the linos of fire at Batoche
e 'ed by the evidence of one witness whom my learned friend has tried to some

todiscrodit, but I submit he has not succeeded in doing so.
be eo W, gentlemen, those being the facts that are proved, I submit that it would
â 0 b lent to convict the prisoner of the offence wiLh which he is chargod, unlews it

en shown to you conclusively that the reason of his being there was not such
se4 dontitie him to be punished for the offeuce. Has it been proved that the

' t for being there was justifiable? We hava the evidence of Mr. Willoughby
!ewt-nt Point. In the first place, I may say to you it is shown that the prisoner

>ert et0xactly what was going on at Batoche, that at the time that Willoughby
orthçWar to Norbert Welch's, same days bafore the prisoner left his resorve to go

rtho had a discussion about the matter, it was known exactly in that
.g the country what was the position of affairs at BIatocàe, and h>w things were

't th re. The prisoner knew it as well, bocause Willoughby was talking
to at the time. He knew just exactly the ppsition of affairs there, and
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we find afterwards that, in company with a number of half-breeds who were suPP'o
to be rebels, ho left his reserve and started northward.

Now, gentlemen, we have the evidence of Willoughby that he sent in a messg
to the citizens of Saskatoon stating that ho was being carried off against his wilI,
ard that ho wanted the citizens there to assist him in escaping. Was the prisonor*
'conduct, in passing tbrough Saskatoon, beyond his bare statement to Willolughb
lhat he was afraid, and that ho was going against his will-was bis conduct in ps i
through Saskatoon such as would lead you to believe that ho was really anxious a
desirous of escaping from the half-breeds ? Yon must remember that, according
the evidence given bore to day, the members of bis band outnumbered the half.breeds
Ihat were with them. At the outside, Willoughby said not more than eighteen
breeds, and there may have been twenty Indians. I think Willoughby is not PO
tie on that point. I tbink ho said tbere were about twenty. Wben theY
eCmiig through Saskatoon, the citizens of Saskatoon, to the number of
or tem, were there, ready to aid and assist him in escaping if ho wanted to.
le show any desire to escape on that occasion ? lt appears the citize
met him there ard were prepared to assist him, ard ho saw hims*
that they were prepared to assist him, but ho did not make any effort to escape therO
und when, although Willoughby says there was an effort made by the half-breeds to
Ieep the -whites away from the prisoner, it appears Willoughby Lad no difflculty 'O
seeing him a short time after they had left Saskatoon, away on the outskirts ot
town. Then Willoughby ex plained to him the exact position of affairs, wlha t do
going to be done, and what they were willing to do. All that fe prisoner sae
tiat occasicn was that ho was afraid. Now, gentlemen, it is my duty to call Y.
attention to the fact that that is the only evidence that we have had from begil1U0 ,
lo end in justification of the prisoner's presence in the cam--his more statee
that ho was afraid of Riel and was going up there against bis will; that is the op
evidence as far as I can see. 0 t

Then, gentlemen, we have the evidence as to character; that evidence is prjt
strong, that up to the time of this breakout, th'at ho was a good Indian, since he 9S0'
to this country. My learned friend says ho has dome nothing wrong before hc
o the country. He admits ho may have been fighting, but ho was fighting 1

justifiable cause as ho çays. It may be reasonably inferred that the cause
legally justifiable, otherwise ho would not behoere, because my learned friend says
OMe here te escape from the tyranny of the American authorities. Thon, that
the case, ho owed so much more to the Goverument bore, and was under so

Mre of an obligation to them. P;&Now, gentlemen, the only otber point is as to the evidence of Mr. AstleY. -9,
Mr. Astley see the prisoner in the rifle pits ? He tells you that ho knows the P
omer for three years. Ask yourselves whether if you had known a man for te'
years you would be liable toe h mistaken, even under the circumstances of 0 ement which Mr. Astley inay bave been in that day. Mr. Astley gave bis evide $
'very lairly. You remember what ho said about the prisoner's character. 110
that he had always borne a good character, and as far as ho bad heard, howas a gý
Indian, but ho says aisoe, ho cannot be mistaken as to his being there. My logrV
friend insinuates you should not believe Mr. Astley's statement, because hod In
reImember what le wore. Now, with all due respect to my learned friend, I bi&
that is unreasonable, and, judging by myself, when I look at a man on the street
recognize him, and don't remember what ho wears, I don't look at his clothe0 -h.e
hock at bis features, and if I met him on the street, I would remember him w
he Lad a Lat on or not, because if ho hadn't a bat on on the street, we woDuld the
it singular, but, in tines of excitement of that kind, when everything is unu to
fact of his having a bat on of any kind or not having a bat on at all, or cover1O5
bis tead, would not be singular, and it seems to me it would not strike a Pee
memory at the time. . the

Gentlemen, I don't know that I have anything more to say to r you. i P e,
eases fairly before you as possible. We don't want you to convictthis in

49 Victoria.



4D Victoria. Sessional Papera (No.52.) A. 1888

is guilty, unless he is guilty beyond a possible doubt, but I ask you to look at the,
eMdOntce fairly and consider it, and consider what you would have done under the

treuimstances, the same circumstances.
u y learned friend says that you are not to judge of this man's actions by those

a White man, that his being there is not to be considered as strong evidence, as
t,13 in the case of an Indian as in the case of a white man; but you must remem-
j4 that Willoughby stated conclusively that the prisoner knew that these men were

rebellion at the time.
Mr. Robertson.-He says the contrary.
Mr. Scott.-I asked Mr. Willoughby in cross-examination, if at the time he was

at Norbert Welch's and was speaking with White Cap-whether the state of
lnWas known to White Cap, the state of affairs in the north, and he said he was.

C rnust remember that Willoughby said on another occasion when he was trying
r8uade him not to go up thore-he says himself ho told him the consequences of

%t g up there, what would be done to him, and the prisoner answered to that that
4 overnment were harboring him here, and giving him a reservation, and that he
1ot intend to do anything against them.

JUDGE's CHARGE.

iJ0ourt.--entlemen of the jury: The charge against this prisoner is one of a
anature to the charges that have been tried in this court room against other-

"er within the last few weeks, and, reducing it to the briefest possible compass,
rompassing and being with men who are in a state of rebellion. The positions
ad occupy are different. It is my duty to tell you what the law of the land.
dit is your duty, bearing in mind what I tell you as the law, to distribute the

t4ielee and to consider that evidence and say upon that evidence whether a viola-
f that law has taken place in the case in point. What may have transpired, or

t ay have occurred, what wrorg I may have done in the opinion of any young
rinen bas nothing whatever to do with this case. I have in each case that was

Sefore mre, according to my oath, without fear, favor or affection for anyone, put
of the land, as I understand it, to you, and having thus put that law to you,

Ylng mfyself that you recollect what bas been stated in the witness box bore by-
diuerent witnesses, it is for you then, without fear, favor or affection to anyone,

at1 atter whether he is black or white, Indian, half-breed or any other color or any-
ai, rality at ail it is your duty there to say whether or not the evidence conclu-

it>l establishes guilt or the reverse. If it conclusively to your minds establishes
,ýt then a conviction should take place. If, on the cther band, it runs short of
You should acquit.

oW, speaking generally of the law, rebellion is wrong, and not only is rebel-
eb rong, but the presence of anyone in any character aiding and abetting or

ithrging rebellion or the prosecution of the unlawful design must involvo a share,
eaolrmnn guilt. Now, I bave always understood that to be the law of the land

4 a!, r. don't claim to be an old man by any means, nor do I claim to be toci
y eday to learn, to bo instructed in law from my juniors, no matter how young

y be.
SRobertson (interrupting).-Perbaps your Honor would like to know I am

eth it is young, but it is old enough with 11 years' practice at the bar toknow
and to do my duty. The crime of being a young man is one I am not

t (continuing).-What interruptions I may have, while I bave to notice
y ~anse it stops my addressing you, it won't at ait shake me in anything 1 have

W bere; but we know now we are apprised of the fact that, perhaps, I did not

S ertson (interru ting).-Which is very important to the case, of course!
evhea, continuing).--ow, you have to determine upon the evidence which yout
%refear to-day, whether this man should be convicted or not. You have the

o r. Astley. Do you believe him? If his evidonce is unshaken, the-
59



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.)

-where was this prisoner and what was ho doing during this timo ? In additiofi
that, you have the evidence of Tomk ias, and what doos ho say about that ? Is h'0

evidence shaken? Thon you have additional evidence to that -corroborative evid
<of that-the evidence of the convict Garnot. What doos ho say ?

Well; convince yourselves first as to the position they leave the case in,

having got that, thon how does the evidence of this Mr. Willoughby stri ke YO
The object, I assume, in calling Mr. Willoughby, the object of his evidence ould l
to convince you that this man was there by compulsion. Now, are yod atisd ar
that ? Are you satisfied, in the first place, that he was there ? And if y0
satisfied that ho was there, are you satisfied that he was there by compulsion?
by sheer compulsion? tha

Il that fails, why thon I can only tell you, if you are satisfied that ho was it
camp and doing what they say he was, thon, unless you are satisfied that he did
he did by compulsion, the verdict should be " guilty." If you are not satistied
ho was there, or if there, that ho was there by compulsion, thon your duty is
acquit him.

With these remarks, I leave it to you, and you retire now to consider w'harl
right betweon man and man, doing unto him as you would be done by if sni
situated.

The jury retired at 1 p.m., and returned within fifteen minutes with verdict
"fnot guiity."

Court, to prisoner, the jury have acquitted you, and you are now a free
again.

QUEEN vs. SCOTT.
CANADA,

North-West Territories. 1
The 15th day of August, 1885, at the town of Regina, in the North.Wst

tories. Before Hugh Richardson, Esquire, one of the stipendiary magistrates o e
North-West Territories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provision$ O
North-West Territories Act, 1880.

Thomas Scott, you stand charged before me as follows:-
CANADA,

North-West Territories. O
The information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the 0

Hamilton, in the Province of Ontario, in the Dominion of Canada, chief of
taken tho day of August in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hut
and eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magisti
in and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith: -

lst. That Thomas Scott, not regarding the duty of his allegiance but [
withdrawing tho love, obedience, fidelity and allegiauce which every true and dsubjoct of our said Lady the Queen should and of right ought to bear towar
said Lady the Queen, on the twentieth day of March, in the year aforesaid, an
divers other days as well bafore as after that day, together with divers othOe
posed porsons to the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, at and near the , 0d
called Batoche, in the North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, feloiious'y edt
wickedly did compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend to levy war ag 0 1 bel
said Majesty the Queen within Canada, in order by force and constraint to c11giot1
to change her neasures and counsels, "and the said felonious compassing, Uaerinvention, device and intention thon feloniously and wickedly did expressa
declare by divers overt acts and deeds horeinafter mentioned, that is to say:'. adoh

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect felonious compassing, imt eO
device and intention aforesaid, ho, the said Thomas Scott, aftorwards, to W
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m'4id twentieth day of March, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days an&
hos as well before as after that date, feloniously and wickedly did conspire, consult,

oIfederate, assemble and meet together with divers other evil disposed persons to
1 said Alexander David Stewart unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and

'ý04llion against our said Lady the Queen within this realm; and further, to fulfil,
lfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing, imagination, invention, device
d intention, he, the said Thomas Scott, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty second
7 of March in the year aforesaid, feloniously and wickedly did conspir e, consult,
ofederate and assemble and meet together with divers other evil disposed persons
the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection
Id rebellion against our said Lady the Queen within this realm.

à.nd further, to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect bis felonious compassing,
invention, device and intention, he, the said Thomas Scott, afterwards,

t on the twenty-tbird day of March, in the year aforesaid, at the lo<-ality called
*Ue iRidge in the said North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, feloniously and
rckedly did express, utter and declare his said felonious compassing, imagination,1ention, device and intention by there feloniously publishing a certain letter or
ý§tng addressed to certain evil disposed persons to the said Alexander David

art unknown, who were then in open rebellion and insurrection against our said
"4 Y the Queen, in theNorth-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, in the worde

Og, to wit:-

r' the French Council: "RE, 23rd March, 1865.

"At a meeting held at the Lindsay school to-night, whicb was largely attended4
voice of every man was with you, and we have taken steps which, I think, wilt

Ve a tendency to stop bloodshed and hasten a treaty. We wili communicate witik
>vtl inside of forty-eight hours after you get this. Notify us of any steps, if any
1 lable to take place.

"Yours respectfully,
" THOMAS SCOI T."

er Ee, the said Thomas Scott, then well-knowing that the said evil disposed person.
re then in open rebellion and insurrection against our said Lbdy the Queen.

4nd further, to fulfil, perfect and bring t effect bis felonious compassing, imagi
of yo, invention, device and intention, he, the said Thomas Scott, on the 23rd day

arch in the year above mentioned, and on divers other days as well before as
eorthtDesaid last mentioned day, at or near the locality catled the Ridge, in the

,rbeth-West Territories of Canada, afrosaid, wickedly and feloniously did aid, help,
S D, ofort assist and mairitain the said evil dis osed persons to the said Alex-

oger bavid Stewart inknown, then being in open rebellion and insurrection againstk0 id Lady the Queen within this realm, he, the said Thomas Scott, then welL
'e* Ilng that the said evil disposed persons were thne in open rebellion and insur-

eri n against our said Lady the Qîeen, in contempt of our said Lady the Queen and
. r aw to the evil example of ai others in like case offending against the statuter
her case made and provided, and against the peace of our said Lady the Queen,Crown and dignity.

ttAnd the said Alexander David Stewart further saith: That the said Thoma,
Obedit regarding the duty of his allegiance, but wholly withdrawing the love,

nfce, fidelity and allegiance which overy true and faithful subject should and of
e ought to bear towards our said Lady the Queen, on the 20th day of March, in

tht year last above mentioned and on divers other days as well before as after
te a, together with divers evil disposed persons to the said Alexander David.ito e'Unknown, at and near the locality ca led Batocha, in the North Wost Ter-

deçj of Canada, aforesaid, teloniously and wickedly did compass, imagine, invent,
oérg And intend to levy war against her said Majesty the Queen within Canada, irt

fe PoPt force and constraint upon,both Houses of Parliament of Canada; and the
Otions compassing, imagination, invention, device and intention then
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feloniously and wickedly did express, utter and declare by divers overt acts 0a
deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to say:

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing, imag1
tion, invention, device and intention aforesaid, ho, the said Thomas Scott, afterwaa
to wit, on the said 20th day of March, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other d510

and times as well before as after that day, feloniously and wickedly did consPi
consult, confederate, assemble and meet together with divers other evil diapos
persons to the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, to raise, makz and I
insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen within this real; i
further to fulfil and bring to effect his folonious compassing, imagination, intV
device and intention, he, the said Thomas Scott, afterwards, to wit, on the 22nd d>Y
of March, in the yéar aforesaid, and on divers other days as well before as
that day, at the locality called the Ridge, in the North-West Territories of Cad
aforesaid, fcloniously and wickedly did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble
xreet together with divers other evil disposed persons to the said Alexander D
-Stewart unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and rebellion against our
Lady the Queen within this realm.

And further to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing, i1.s
ation, invention, device and intention, he, the said Thomas Scott, afterWvards to *th
the twenty-third day of March, in the year aforesaid, and at the locality called 0 ).
]Ridge, in the said North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, fbloniously and l
edly did express, utter and declare his said felonious çompassing, imagination il
tien and intention by there feloniously publishing a cortain letter or writing, addbo
-sed to certain evil disposed persons to the said Alexander Stewart unkuow., th
were thon in open rebellion and insurrection against our said Lady the Queel i

,orth-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, in the words following, to wit:

"To the French Council. 23rd Mardi, 1885.
"At a meeting held at the Lindsay school to-night, which was largely a.tiend

the voicO of every man was with you, and we have taken stops which I think tb
bave a tendoecy to stop bloodshed and hasten a treaty. We will communicatO 
yoü inside of forty-eight hours after you get this. Notify us of any steps, if aDI *
Iiable to take place.

" Yours respectfully, ,,
" THOMAS SCOTT.

He, the said Thomas Scott, thon well knowing that the said evil disposed Pe
*sons were then in open rebellion and insurrection against our said Lady the u

And, further, to fulfil, perfect andbring.to effect his felonious compassing, I
ination, invention, device and intention, ho, the said Thomas Scott, on the tWe i
third day of March, in the year above mentioned, and on divers other days as
befcre as after the said last mentioned day, at or near the locality called the 'd ,
the North- West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, wickedly and feloniously di

elp, abet, comfort, assist and maintain the said evil disposed persons to tbe ,
.Alexander David Stewart unknown, thon being in open rebellion and insurreci
against our said Lady the Queen within this realm, he, the said Thomas S 0txi
weli knowing that the said evil disposed persons were then in open rebelli" tb
insurrection against our said Lady the Queen, in contempt of our said Lady
Queen and her laws, to the evil example of all others in like case offending.ag
the statute in such case made and provided and against the peace of our sald
the Queen, her Crown and dignity.
Sworn before me the day and year first above A. D. STEWAr.

mentioned at the town of Regina, in the
North-VWest Territories of Canada.

HUGH IRICHARDSON,
Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the North- West Teritories of 0a44
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And tako notice that you have the option of being tried by a stipendiary magia-
te and a justice of the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, or before a

iPendiary magistrate in a summary way and without a jury, pursuant to the Stetute
« Canada, 43 Victoria, chapter twenty-five, section seventy-six, sub-section five, as
in1ended by the Statute of Canada, 48-49 Victoria, chapter fifty-one. Which do yon

et?
TuSsDAY, 10 a.m., 8th September, 1885.

Before Mr. Justice Richaidson and a justice of the peace.

THE QUEEN vs. THOMAs SCOTT.
Court.-.Return the precept, Mr. Sheriff. (Precept returned.)
Messrs. B. B. OsIer, Q. C., and D. L. Scott, counsel for Crown.
Messrs. HE. J. Clarke, Q. C., and J. V. Maclise, counsel for prisoner.
Clerk of the court opens court, and charges the prisoner, reading the charge as
itained in the above indictment, and asks the prisoner whether he is guilty or not

kmlty ?
Mr. Clarke,-Before plesding to this indictment, your Honors, I object to the

Sdiction of the court, and demur in the usual form. We have labored under more
e8s difficulty, in connection with my learned friend, Mr. Maclise, who is with me

this Case. We have not been served with a copy of the charge against the pris-
er, and it is a lengthy document. The names of the witnesses, as matter of course,

have not got. There was no preliminary examination. We know nothing about
charge against the prisoner in fact, or what the means are by which that charge

be sustained. The demurrer is as follows:

THE QUZEN vs. TioMAs SCOTT.

The North- West Territories Act, 1880.

West Territories.
And the said Thomas Scott, in his own proper person, cometh into court here
after having heard the said information read, saith:

the at H ugh [Richardson, Esquire, one of fier Majesty's stipendiary magistrates of
'Itvr, th-West Territories of Canada, exercising criminal jurisdiction in open court

a justice of the peace and a jury of six, under the provisions of the North-West
ao1t ories Act, 1880, ought not to take cognizance of the offences in the said infor-

1n charged and specified, because protesting that he is not guilty of the same,
'V8'theless the said Thomas Scott saith that the offences with which he is charged
4AIdUishable with imprisonment for life and,he should be committed for safe custody

Fent for trial to Upper Canada, or to the Province of Manitoba, or to any court
'nt'ttuted in British Columbia taking cognizance of like offences committed therein,

d cause in virtue of the laws in force in the place where the said offences are
god to have been committed, the said Hogh Richardson, in open court with a

of the peace and a jury of six has no jurisdiction to try the said offences
d1 in the said information.

THOMAS SCOTT.
BY W. V. MACLis, his attorney.

e~ k. Osier.--On behalf of the Crown I reply to that, that the plea and matter
aie contained are not sufficient in law to preclude the court here from their

'ation to hear and determine the offences charged, mentioned and specified in
eharge, and put the following demurrer to the plea of prisoner as above:

8th September, 1885.
THE QUIEN V8. THOMAS ScoTT.

od ]Britton Bath Osler, one of Her Majesty's counsel learned in the law, who,
aid Present Sovereign Lady the Qucen in this behalf as to the said plea of
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.bim, the said Thomas Scott, by him above pleaded as aforesaid for our said preSo
Sovereign Lady the Queen, r-aith :

That the said plea.and the matter therein contained are not sufficient in law
preclude the court here from their jurisdiction to hear and determine the offe91It
charged, mentioned and specified in the said charge, and above charged upon him th0-
aaid Thomas Scott in and by the said charge. b

Wherefore, for want of a proper and sufficient answer in this behalf, he praet
judgment, and that the said Thomas Scott may answer in court here to Our d-
present Sovereign Lady the Queen, touching and concerning the premises aforeeede

B. B. OSLER, of counsel for the Crot11.

Court.-Well, Mr. Clarke, there is a demurrer now to your plea of jurisdict0e*
Mr. Osler.-Which my learned friend joins in I presume?
Mr. Clarke.-Yes.
Mr. Osler.-Then you had botter file a joinder.
Joinder now filed in the words following:-

TUE QUiEEN vs. THoMAs SCOTT.
CANADA,

North-West Territories. 1
The North- West Territories Act, 1880.

And the said Thomas Scott saith that his said plea by him above pleaded å
the matter therein contained in manner and form as the same are above pleaded
Bet forth are sufficient in law to bar and preclude our said Lady the Queen frol P
secutiing the said information against him, the said Thomas Scott and the
Thomas Scott is ready to verify and prove the same as the said court shall direct
award ; Wherefore inasmuch as the said Alexander David Stewart for our said d h
the Queen bath not answered the said plea,·nor hithorto in any manner denied "
same, the said Thomas Scott prays judgment, and that by the court here he i
dismissed and discharged from the said premises in the said information specifi

Dated this eighth day of September, A. D. 1885.
THOMAS SCOTT,

By W. V. MAcuIsE, his attornle7•
Court.-Mr. Clarke, do you wish to adduce any argument different from W

have already heard ? n a m d rn o
Mr. Clarke.-I am perfectly aware, your Honors, that this question of jurisdC 1 0,

Of the court has been argued at very great length in a trial that took place here o 00
time ago on a charge of high treason. I am also very well aware that the
of that objection to the jurisdiction of the court is yet pending before the 00
Appeal in the Province of Manitoba and that probably we will have a decision '
matter by this afternoon or to morrow, and under those circumstances I thillxy
say the least of it, it is rather premature to continue these trials when the decis' tie
the Court of Appeal is within 24 bours of being received by this court. To a bf
very least of it, it looks a little strange. If the object is to do justice und' . r1
virtue of British law, while a British court of justice is deciding whether thldi
has jurisdiction or not, and that decision being within 24 hours of being rece d

e think probably it would have looked much botter, whether legally or not-t c
have been better to have awaited the decision of that Court of Appeal.

Court.-But the case was fixed for yesterday. dp
Mr. Clarke.-I an aware it was fixed for yesterday, and yestordaY 0

Mothing about when that Court of Appeal was to decide, and yesterday the i tha
remember thbat it was rot the defence that requested the delay. ]lowever,
mn atter that does not make any difference. . fb

INow, the learned gentleman who made the objection to the jurisdiOtiog do
court, or took the objection before, argued from one particular premises.
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1451d to touch that, because the argument bas been made so complote on behalf of
beprisoner then on trial, that I have endeavored as much as possible to strike new
gOllad and to travel over as little of the old marked line which they took as it is

aOsible te do.
ln the first place, I submit to your Honors that we have to go behind, very far

Ïiad, the time that was mentioned first by those gentlemen who took exception to.-
jurlsdiction. We have to go to the very first history of this country, to strike at
JUrisdiction of this court. It may look rather strange that we have to travel so-

e ck, but the jurisdiction begins just exactly when the country comes upder
ower and the authority of the Government that gives the juriadiction. Tho,

Jnl!8iction in Canada has been divided for a great mary years. lt is a jurisdictiot
Was divided between the French laws and English laws up until the year 1791,
ed ven to the present day the French laws obtain in a very large proportion of thi,
inion of Canada. Now had that Province ot Quebec which was first erectee
l the conquest, had it continued up to the present day, the same as it did ap to-

't 1, the time of the constitution, we would have had no diffioulty whatever to know
a'lt jurisdiction we were acting under, not the slightest. We would have know.

Icalarly well that we were acting under a divided jurisdiction, that when we wantet
thiig we had to go to France for it, and when we required the other, w. had 1y

&WIO London for it, and now we are placed in the position in this country that w>
go' to-neither place for it. We have no jurisdiction at ail, aocording to the po-
O of any laws in the Dominion of Canada. In 1759, the whole of the Freci
hoes or French possessions in La Nouvelle France or Canada were e conquere4

t4 battle of the Plains of Abraham. That is a point thatwill not be denied. Frora
timxe Uhtil 1763, after the conquest, our country was under a kind of mattiat

1763, by the Treaty of Paris, their Majesties of France and England camte
*,treaty by which France surrendered, -ceded to the crown of England, the whole

t Possessions in North America, and nothing was reserved. Now, 'the growud
ythe learned gentlemen .who argued this question of jurisdiction before was

tir It'country was obtained by conquest-ergo, the law of the conquerors followed,
I14? arms, and the common law of England became the commo law of the Dom-

o f Canada and of the whole of these British possessions in North Amerios.
's true to a certain extent, but there was a portion of that country that was not

4 Med by the conquered as having been conquered by the decision on the Plains
'Xham in 1759. Had it been so, there would have been no necessitv for thea

and the proof that there was not, that the whole country was not conquered,.
»e"''ot taken possession of, was this that it was only in 1763 that His Majesly of

ce and His Majesty of Great Britain together, in Paris, determined what was-
to the British Crown by that of France. Now, the particular point that 1

ij&YOur Lordships' attention to isthis in this respect, that almost simultaneously
hat treaty and the decision of that Treaty of Paris in 1763, almost simultane-

ith that Act, His Majesty of England, George the III, issued his royal pro-
s (loa whereby he declared that all parties colonists in this new country that had.
ed oded, not the Province of Quebec, but in the whole country that had bes.n

that all over that country all sojourners, all strangers, ail colonists in tit
. should be protected by the laws of England. That was the proclamatioi..
hat did France claim at that time ? What country did France claim at that
bid she claim simply from the Gulf of St. Lawrence, on the coast of Labra-

P the St. Lawrence .River and to Quebec and Three tivers aud Montreal ai d
Mil Owa? Nbthing of the sort. She claimed over two-thirds of the whole
. ont of'North America. She claimed the right, and commissioners were,

k xted lu, 1750 between the Governments of England and France to settle the ques-
"WfAfà>ntier between the two countries, and at that time France claimed the

_ 0 1timnent from the coast of Labrador to Louisiana. -She claimed the right
ahain, of fortresses acowss the whole continent; in other words, she claimed
o erect fortifications which-would shut out thirteen -colonies thon recwg-

beigg -the only4poreieon of America that,belongedto Englanupto.thattime.
- 145
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She claimed the right to the whole of this vast country, she ciaimed the right toh
whole of the Hdson Biy territory. She claimed tue right up as far as hi'
imagination can go towards the nort1 pole and from mnat down to Louisiana, taking
in the whole of the Misisissippi River and of the Missouri and Ohio. Now
position did this 'eave -thi Canada in at the time of the issuing of this proclamai0o'
Itwas a declaration by His Majesty of England tliat until a general assembly Oftb
'colonists of the people shouild be convoued, all colonists and strangers and sojou0
in this land should C protected by British law. That wzs the proclamation, tw
they should be protected by British law. Now, was ever that general assolbY'
.called together? Never up to the present time, it was never called together uip
the present time, and until we bave some proof that that proclanation was ree!o
in respect to the, country that *e are now inhabi ting and where this offence is
to lave taken-place, 1 ubmit to yor ionors that we have a right to exoept tOo
juriediction of this court, and to be placed in a position that we can defend ourae o
if necessary, before a court of appoal. ý Now in 1763 when the King of Great Bri *
issuedthat proclamation lrecting uhe Province of Qaebeo into a colony, it Ws
different from ýthe present Province of Qaebec, it Oered the whole of what was
supposed to be outside-of the Hudson Bay Compan7s possessions in what-compbd
the fMrmer colonies ot France and:a certain form of government was given tw tbm
clony-in other words, there; was not an assembly but there was a counoil, and 'li
council was composed of certain persons named by the Orown.. There was 1<O-s8

thing as-an election, , There'iasno such thing as fraachise. They wre19
governed by a secret clas, a secret conelave who held their ooanoils with-
doors. ? That state of thingeobtained ntil«at last it.beoamesoiobnozioni, particii1j
toBritis, settlers or colonistsethat it became- a question whethor the oantrY ý<>
be retained t6iGreat Britaia or not unlesa some change was made.- p to tbis
lourteen<years atter thatsproelamationhad issued -and whenw-still fthere -adi
mothing dôneto fu Ifil or carry out the promise that had; been made the -thi
<olonies became restive -on te ether-si4e, and then it, became apparent+to
IBritainithat she must do something, erprobably it, would bt fatal toher iaterosto
to hèr power on the continent oi rnerica. Then a certain Act was propose lot
-thatAot that sas proposed was calied the Quebee Act, and of all the 4Ate 4Wh
und blot the staftaes of {Great Britain, 1 doubt if there is another' that dewrve&
strotg oondemnation than what wa.callod, the Quebee Act. That -Quebee
carried through; it wainot intended forthe purpose of enoU-agingthé people Op
eeuwery, but on the contraryitwas amenace tothe, people of theooanty8d1a di4
to teil them in so many words that England did not require or did not e¥pctOr
not want hep peopleto einigrate te Uaaada, but en the, tontrary they wapted tO
vebt'emigratin in every passible .means. Now, this stateof things iMay-hauve
Wn Rglandrall right, but to th. peopleof this.conanent ,at that tile it looked
altogOtber wrong, they petitiôned -again9i ittheir- petitiens were treate W
sovetOign Oontempt and indifference. , Tûey held pablic meetings, passed V
and forwarded these resolations to -the home Invernment.Ln a great any inS
they did:not even condescend to send -an answer.

Oourt.-What wasthe-year that the -Quebec Act was passed?
'Mr. 01arke.-TheQu.ebec Aûtwas passed in 1774. By what Qaebec Act a 0b

was appointed of not more than twenty-three, or less than seventeene
was the only means that was4taken to catry out the promise that had b
the proclamation, of a general-assembly. Now, it is wonderful when we 100
position of things here to day and the position of things at the timeýth&t1 e
to 'find how exactly, and as nearly as they possibly eau, istory e
betwe*i174 and-1885. i-The p>sition the people-ot Quebeo wee in abOI
is abnostabout thépositionthe people in the. orth-West Territores4nd-the
Ïi to-day. The Quebec Act was not-satisfied with leaving .it an open ,ques
they absolutely made it a pointthat the Habas orpus Act should net he rPo 4p
force in the oolony of Quebec. The same thing obtains here> today. Me0'
impriSned, they may be arrested .wthout warrsnt, they may be aluD ng
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d kept there for weeks and months. There is no writ of A ileas corpus. They
'"nuot find means of compelling the magistrates of the land to admit them to 'bail,

o'%Ough they may be arrested on the most trivial offences. The same thing
tained at that time in the Province of Qaebeé. The same thing obtained under

%3 rule of Governor Carleton in Quebec. Prisons were crowded with prisonere.
dungeons were full of victims, whose shrieks could not bs heard, arid whose

entations were not answered by any officer of justice in the êountry for they were
POinted and deposed at the will and pleasure of the council. The saine thing
tained there as obtains here now. Prisoners are stuck into gaois by the dozen and

*1ost by ther fifties and not told why they were arrestel.' No charge is preferred
aftilnst them, 'no prelimrinary examination before a magistrate and any man; thé

e respectable man in the country, is liable to be tapped tn the shoulder by ,
if1 or a constable and to be skung into gaol without being told why he is put theire
Wthout any charge beng preferred against him, and he may lie-there for weeks

%t for months and still- he has no redress, and we are to be told at this day that
is British justice, and' that that is what fer Majesty of Great Britain intended

she gave a constitution to the Dominion of Canada in 1867.
don't know, vour lordships, if the intention of the people of England or of the

Ple of Canada be the same, what the object was of the Attorney.-General of 'IEdg-
at the tinte when this Act Was passed. At that time, when-this question was

toduced in the British House of Commons, the then Solicitor'Geeral Widderbtw,
referente-to thgtBili, said, " Now, I confess that the -situation of- the Bltish' et-
i8 not; the principal object of my attention. i do not wish to see- Câiada dra*

cothi ountry any considerable number of her inhabitants. I think' theoe ohght
no termptation held out totthe subjecte of Englahd to quit their native soil and

aUcrease the colodies at the expense of this country. With regard to the EdhigHsh
have settled there, their number is very feow, They âre attaobed te the coudir

mpoint of commercial interests or they are attached to 'it from sitühtions they
Under the Government. It is no objeot of this measure that these persons should
in Canada."

14w if -it was the intention of the Government of Canada at the time theylished this'North-West-Council, the bastard off-shoot of the former LegisIatiVe
Of the Province of Quebec, their object ould not be bettee, attaided, that' is,

tt'clarly if they wanted to follolw up the design by carrying outhereý n the
-th.West Territory exaetly the same hne of procedure which ws-followed by the
. Government and by their officials in the Province ot Quebec previous to the

1% ng of the constitutional Act in 1791, they could not have proceeded- bettèr.
Yrare succeeding admirably from day to day. They are déing everything in their

to prove that in the North-West Territory of' Canada they hai' simply to
er themselves back 100 years, and that they are living under the same'law that

ited Under-the old council in Quebec froi 1194 up te the time of the grantinge nsti'ttuon.-
Ih * why is it necessary to revert to these things ? It is necessary, my lords,

eP5 nOt 1or the people living in thig country, because they know exactly whatat the theyf ocupy, but it is necessary probably to revert to them more or less, so
1ti e People that are outsideLof this North-West Territory máy know' just in; whart

lp<.on their fellow subjects in the NorthWést Territory a»e living, and by iwhat
o> be" 0flaw they are supposed to be governedor to be kept in order, or their righta
,Iqrotftted. It is probably necessary that the people of Canada should beginto
v4. <e 1P to the fact that there is something more réquired than a mere i trial before

SJt·ln this North-West Territory, tosecure the people the rightsý that they
a>ve had secured to them by virtue of that proclamation whichwas'issued so

o, ad which secured the promise of protection to the people of <roit Britain
or colonists in this country under British law.

hat bas that to do with the question of the jurisdiction of this court ? I
Iono0 OQbt that that question is forcing itself very forcibly upôn 'the- minds of

and probably of those who are listening to Me I wil tel yoa juaar
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what it has to do with it. It bas this to do with it. The constitution which Wa
granted the Province of Quebeo or which divided the Province of Quebee into t
.and which made Upper and Lower Canada-that constitution extended the limits
the,Province of Quebec avery great way west. It extended the limits of the Provinçe
of Quebec west over what is now one of the most populous and flourishing portio
of the Lpited States of America. It extended the limita of Quebec over a quarte he
&,continent to the Ohio and to the hfi-sissippi. It included OldOCanada, ail over
present States of Ohio, Michigan, Indiava, Illinois and Wisconsin, and as the gre0
bitorian Bancroft, in speaking of this, says, left the people who were to colonize the

ost fruitful territory in the woild without the writ of habeas corpus to prot
their righte, the rights of prisoners, and without having a share in any branch
he Legislature. Now, if history can repeat itself more correctly or more acouratoe

thxan it is doing at the presont time, I should like to know in what respect.,
that portion cf the Dominion of Canada, what is now called the Dominion of
frop that portion of the former Province of Quebec and the Province of Ontario
still retain to the Dominion of Canada or remained to it, it was determined that tb
bpundary line should be, botween those two countries, the boundary lin of the
son Bay territory. Now, that is a boundary lino that I submit to your LordsbhP*
has nover yet been discovered-it is a boundary lino that is yet to be found and
covered in future-it is a boundary line that has been claimed by the Hudson
Company. to extend to the bead of Lake Superior, and to take in even dowl
Prince Arthur's Landing to the , height of land. The Hudson Bay Company , be
elagnthat. The Hudson Bay Company had to admit on a great many 0c
tbt tþiey were trying to secure that as a boundary, but they never succeed
iamerieg it. On the contrary, all the beat authorities that we have. both the treath
bo*ïween Prance and England, and treaties between England and France and
seo»itrffs, from them we have the most undoubted facts that the Hudsèn Bay
tory never extended to what is known as the fertile belt, to that portion of
that is now known as the North West Territories-that in other words, Rup
Land, that portion of the shores surrounding Hudson Biy and Davis' Straits
were presentçd iie a charter by Charles the Il to his cousin Prince Rupert, and
charter afterwards transferred by Charles the Il to a Company of Advenaturord
Elpgls3nd trading into the Hudson Bay or Hudson Bay Company. It never exten
into what is called the fertile belt, or in other words, that it was contemplated09
intended pnly to. cover that poition of the continent that was unfit for humlan
tation and onlyfitas the home and the abode of wild animals, whose furs wero
nought by. this Hudson Bay Company. b

Your lordshipa will remember tbat a great deil of discussion took place O
question of ihe ierritorial rights and jurisdiction of the Hudson Bay CompanY Pt
vious to what is called the Confederation of the Dominion of Canada. Now, a
those discussions that were held, none is more full or complete in thiis resp
the report of the delegates appointed to negotiate for the acquisition of Ruperl s
and the North-West Territory, laid before the Parliament by command of s e
lency the Gove-mor General and, therefore, a public paper of which courts of .u tbâ
ean take cognizcnce. It was pnblished at Ottawa in 1869. The delogats On lA
occasion were the late Sir Geo. Cartier, than whom perbaps there was not l gr
constitutional lawyer in the Dominion of Canada in his day, thoroughly 001. o p
with the French constitutional history of the country and also with the constl' M'
history of the country under the British Dominion ; with him was assOj
Hon. illiam Macdougall, who went there along with him as a delegate by vîr
an Order in Council passed the day before they started, tbat is to say on th
October, 1868. The Order in Council appointing the delegates was maade î
but the report was made in 1869. g bel& »

Now, my lords, what do we find. When these delegates went to Eng
discovered that the.Hudson Bay Company had, been inaidiously attempti
ting an Aqtp Med by tbo Imperial Parliament, hyd been isidionly tryi' 0-
liâh a right to tis great countxy which, they never possessed. It is on
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Onk and it forms a portion of this report. This Act was passed on the 31st day of
4)y, 1868. It is called an Act for enabling Her Majesty to accept a surrender on

0rs of the lands, privileges and rights of the trading Company of Adventurers of
gand trading into the Hudson Bay, and for admitting the same into the Dominion
Catidda. It may be styled as the Rupert's Land Act, 1868. Now, the discussion
tween Sir Geo. Gartier'and Mr. Macdougall and the members of the British Gov-

1 rnent, and the representatives of the Hudson Bay C>mpany were most exhaustive.
ly continued for a very great length of time, when unfortunately Mr. Macdougall
a% taken dbwn with small por, and consequently the whole brunt of the battle"'tmted on the shoulders of his colleagu e, Sir Geo. Cartier. Now, what was their posi-
en there ? They say, and this is their report to the Parliame'nt of Canada. " The

%arter of Charles Il (and at present we raise no objection to its validity) could
kt and dîd not grant to the Hudson Bay Company any territory in A merica which

< nt thon (1670) subject to the law of England. That is their first proposition.
d. The charter expressly excluded all the lands thon possessed by the subjeets of
3 Other Christian Prince or State. 3rd. By the treaty of 1632 the King of Eng-
d resigned to the King of France the sovereignty of Arcadia, New France aud
ada generally, and without limits. 4th. Nouvelle France was thon understood to

elude the whòle region on Hudson Bay as the records and history of the time,
glish and French, abndantly prove. At the Treaty of Ryswick in 1697, twenty-

years after the date of the charter, the rights of the French to places situat la
son Bay were distiùctly admitted, and although commissionors were appointed,

4l1iOver came to an agreement to examine and determine the pretensions which
ofthe said kings had to places situate in the Hudson Bay, to which I hav"

îw rred already, and with authôrity for extending the limits of France and lands te
retored on either side, and the places taken by the English that is, from the

Bay Company by the French, previons to the war and re-taken by the Eng-
drtg he years of war, shall be left to the French by virtue of the foregoing 7th

j6li hi othel- words, the forts and factories of the Hudson Bay Company, established
2udson Bay, under the pretence of their charter and taken possession of by the

l ime of peace, on the ground that they were an invasion of French territory
restorediy th Tr-esty of Ryswick to the French, and not to the company."

80 that that portion, even Hudson Bay, where this fort was established and
t Fort Churchill was dclared by Great Britain to belong to France and ws

e .PrMnce by this treaty and not restored to the Hudson Bay Company by
ptes.
the Treaty of Utrecht in 1714 the bay and straits of the Hudson, together

dl t lands, seas, rivers situate in the bay and straits subject thereto, were fmallyto Great Britain.

e o as no definite boundary was ever estabiished between the possessions of
re.ch in the interior and the Eiglish at Hudson Bay down to the Treaty of

ýf i- 1768, when the 'whole of Canada was ceded to Great Britali the
f the actual possessions of the two nations is not known, and from the Treaty

1 Zlht to the Treaty of Paris affords the only true basis of ascertaining the
Wy tuy lords, under these statements, under these proofs that are given, not

uot in England, but before the House oLCommons of the Dominion of Can-
"Ia that up to the present time it has not on determined what were the boun-

eof the Dominion of Canada, and what the boundaries of the Hudson Bay Com-
"P to the present time; in other words, that proclamation of His Majest7

b- 1* » I issued in 1763, is in full force in this North-West Teriitory, in thiler Majesty's dominions as much to-day as it was the day on which thé
S aetion was issued, and undet those circumstances, that the Dominion of Canada

ight to make any sûch extraordinary provisions as are contained and mrade
l Abd condemnation of people charged with offences in this Noëth-Wed
but, I may be asked what has this Province of Manitoba to do with your
What has it to do with your objection to the jurisdiction of this court,
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and why appeal to it ? Well, my lords, there is something peculiar about tbat *
I noticed in the argument on the jurisdiction before that a reference was made to
Manitoba havirg a court established by the Dominion of Canada which is knoWn t
the Court of Queen'rs Bench. Now I beg leave to state that that Court of Queen
Bench in Maritoba is simply the general quarterly court that was established unde
the Hudson Bay chaiter continued urder another form and under another nane,
that by virtue of the laws which obtain in what was callad the North-West Territory
or Rupert's Land, if you will, up to that time that right of habeas corpus existed, and th
whole body of the English criminal law was in force, full îorce and effect in t.
portion of this territory up to the time of its being tiansferred to the Dominion
Canada, and by virtue cf the old laws, tie laws of the Governor in Council of Assiniboo
of 1lth April, 1862, we find what the laws are that were in force in the country a
that time.

Court.-The title of that court was the Quarterly Courtof Assiniboian, was't i
Mr. Clarke.-The General Quarterly Court of Assiniboia.
Now, we find in the Administration of Justice Act, passed by the Governor

Councilof. Assiniboia an amendment to their Administration of Justice Act on the
JAne, 1864, to remove ail doubts as to the true coLstruction. of the 53rd clause or srtie
of1the codeiofthe llth April,,1862. The pxoceedings of the general courtahafl be re
Iated by the laws of England, not only of the.date of her present Majesty's acOessiA
ff far as that may be applicable to the conditiqn of the colony, but. also b all 5-
laws 9f England of subsequent date as. may be applicable to the same-in other Wo
t1he proceedings of the general court shill he regulated by the existing
Hngiand for the time being in force, and as the same are mnown to the cour$b,

4Me applicable to the colony. Now thativas the state of the laws and the law
governed ,he general quaiterly court as it was fouind by the Dominion, óf CaiW-'
b th&y changed the name of that quarterly court, General Quartly CoPr,
lieir Act Affarliament, and continued it to the present day under the naien
Court ofAQueen's Bench,

INoW, it will be remembered by yqur lordships that in the Northe.Wbt.rr.r
tories Act, or rather the Act establithing the NorthWest Territories Mounted '77
eertalu,powers are given and certain magistrates were appointed in the orth'.
Týry,.but care mas taken by the legislature of the Dominion tomake a proVî
that any person charged in the .North-West Territories with te commissionl
crime the penalty on conviction for which would be in the penitentiary, each
bad,a.ight-to be tried before a judge of the Court of Queen's Bench of the Provi
cf Manitoba.

Court.-That was in 1873 ?
M. Clake.,-ln 1873. Now,; my hoide,,, wby was that done? I apprehen dI 1doue because the legislatures of tham day rt membering right well that the bcund

hbd nover .ben, determined of what was ,the old, Province of Quebec, and what W 0
xelity that portion cf the continent thathelonged- by right to the Budson Bay ïï
]"y, that,,they had jiot yet, takep it upon themselves to declare that the le

gland which was put in force by His Majesty's proclamation in 1763 could h .eiI
asidewithout replacing it atleast, byas coulplete a ccde as that hichw
to Ab -people then, and for that rason they made this provision, that ay Pa

o w~a to be tr ied or convicted fox an offence of a grave nature, shoudhave
righi to go before a judge of the Court of Queen's Bench in the Province cf MaD1t
aid betried before the judge of a sperior court, of a court of record before
tel'veoi where aprelimnuary examination- would be had, and where the
Againit him.would,be kUwn, their msmes.on the back-of ;the indictiment, ar.d

wocold have allhose facilities exd& all.those protections that are given to anL
around envey. British subject.when.Le stanIs beoorethe courts of his.countrY;h
witkaniy afience but at aiater.day it appears that the Dominion of Caada
o.think;tbat, this North.West Tergitoy wassixmply a kind of preserve wichArzish ail kinds ofreturns and suppli sto them bthrough customs duties an hei
thg of that sort and which was to fulniçh the means to construct one of th
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ettensive railway systems in the world and which was to be nsed for these purposes
%Dlatter wbat becaine of the people who inhabited it. Tbey would aimply give

eIn that kind of a court whichmight be established by any little municipality-almost
gËotghout theIDominion of Canada, by any city or town that holds a charter and cau
%lablish a police court. That was the Land Act of 1880, by virtue of which thifs

is now sitting
Oeurt.-You passfrom 187f3 tilt 1880.
Mr. Clarke.--i don't think in ny argument it is necessary to refer ýparticularly

bt'teamendments tothe Act; but I was about to say tha;t it must bo perfeotly
4erstood, and nobedy understands that better than your lordships, that in mak

the remarks -I-am, the remarks are not intended to apply to your lordships or
cour-t'inparticular. On the ocntrary, I have simply-this to-say, that the peo.
the-North-West Territory as far:as I-knowof the learned judge who presides

thi ourt, so far as the law gives him- the power, wil-have their rights protected
in a-legal- and constitutional mnanner, as an honest .and conscientious judge
That being nderstood, any remarks that I will make mustnot betaken at alt

PIy to your Jordships or to thia court. It is the.system that T object to, and noe
e presidng.judg' - Now,,under the present circumstances wbat position do-we
O"urselves iu ?- WeLfind-that the Deminion of Canada wbich suceeeded in wrese-

*tis eountry froni the grasp, to a great extent, of the Hudson Bay Compavy by
g te Great Britain and -howing to the company that they actually had no

I otion in the -ountry, that that same government- now -will take €dvantage of
arguments that were used against them on a former occasion and try aDd make
Ppeer that t-bey have jurisdiction beeause they obtained that jurisdiction froma
pny which company never possessed any suèh jurisdietion themselves. That is
agUment, that is juat the argument that we meet at évery stop that w.-take) ii

j appea against the jtrisdiction of the North-West Territries, and ihen 1. tub-
o your lordshipg that if the proclamation of Ris -Majesty of 3763, if that

laMIttion bas not- been revoked in"reference to that portion of tho continent of
ea that belênged toe France, and was ceded to Great Britain at that time by- the

ty of Paristhatat-the present time this court isillegally constituted, andthet
f the prisoeriat the bar being tried by anylaw thatiis supposed to-be made

ecMinioný of Canada, that prisoner -bas a light to be tried-uUder the Iaws of
ta Brtan and 'in, the manner set forth by the Briîtish Statutes which-were-referred

learned gentlemen who contested the jurisdiction of the court beforo, øtbat is,
i-k~t r th 1ihpeial Statutes that were made for the purpose of furnishing-some

bY whieh, at least te a certain extent, the pledged promise of th-e 13ritisk
lm cOuld be criied ont in some manner. •Wbe that promise was nade in 1763,

1ý ta fact and from that moment, the people of this country -had a right to expect
Ws P'otectediby thelaWsof Great-Britain; upt-t the -time, 18;3,aothing of- that
e a been done. , It became necessary te provide s memeans by which offenees

ry seriots r fen-tal niature ehould be triedjand -before' wbat,-couit. --Acting
th conviction that -this portion -of the eontinent of America had-been pro-

lP-to that time' o1 supposed -to be protected by that proelamation ofuis
the British -Parliaient paissed an Act by whic-h they declared that dertai

em in the North-West Territory, that is, in Rupert's Land and the North-
*-JOùlerritory, that they should -have certain powers,- that- certain comniissioners
Z e ppointed, and-by another Act, passedy if 1 remember- aright, -in 1821, and

jbio 1839 or thereabots, these -threed -Act. together give power to send, or
t ' Sincumbéntto send p&tiea-whoi*ere to be tried for grave offences ither

ôf Ontario, the Province cf Qùebeb or to CBitish Columbia, where
be tried before courts'-of recordatad' with-the asslstace of a jury<. They

"Ara» Acte that were referred to before 't: was under,.that provisionthat
Rt-%en-who objected te the jurisdiction-befoté,olaitned the-rightlto have-their

set'tne of those-provinces,-fo tfi'AN. Nbw4,if there was not a particIlar
th ewif the-Goyement of-Grea Britaîn'did not feeIthat it was inenobent

o supply some means, some jurisdiction by which these people could
il.
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enjoy the privileges and the protection of the laws of England, these Acts would no
have been passed; they were passed for that purpose, when the population of th
country was so sparse, and so very small and the community so very isolated t,
such a long time after, nearly an age after, we have a police court or magi»tr*
court alone established in the North-West Territory, the only protection to the PO?
ple of the country. I say that no matter what the decision of the court may bd
that respect, no matter what the decision of the Court of Appeal in Manitoba MaY be
in this respect, I have no hesitation in saying that a more glaring injustice wasno
done in a British country, to a British people before in the whole history of the Brit
nation. I take that stand without fear of contradiction, and the example of India
no more to be com pared to the example of Canada thap the oiample of Hindost'"'
to be compared to Kamskatka; as t he simple fact of the matter is this, in Iodisb
power there for years, for a whole century and over, belonged to acompany, belonli
to a chartered body, belonged to one of those institutions that a great lawyer deel
had no body to be kicked and no soul to be damned ; it belongec to a compapy,

as irresponsible to ail intente and purposes, a company that carried on tleire_
passes under the mask and pretence of law antil it culminated in tàat terrible OX4%w
#ion that was made on the teial of Warren Hastings before the British ParliGaes
and which gave to the world such a peculiar tyranny as the world has never
equalled from that day to this, an4 as the world had never seen before, and we1iO
culminated afterwards in the terrible scenes that were seen about Luckow
the British men and womnen were butchered by those who had been tyrannized ove,
for 200 years by those who claimed the right to tyrannize over them by law--wh
that is brought forward as an argument, that in India men could be sentefled
death and executed without even the intervention of a jury at aIl, is that a ressw*
'whythat in the latter part of the 19th century, here in a land of civilization, in a
where the Britith flag is as rominent almost as it is when it waves above the
of St. Pau's, that we are to. told that it should be set aside, that British subj
ar to be tried without the intervention of a jury, and that they are to be east
prison withont having our habeas corpus to bring them before the judge of a sP r
Donrt to determine wtiether they deserve to be cast into prison and kept there
Malefactors, or whether they sbould go abroad as free men under the protecio>
the British law and the British flag ? To say the least of it, it is a mighty poora
anent, and one that will not hold water before any civilized court that oan be
vened in this or any other country.

Atter drawing your lordships' attention to that particular point which wa is.
raised on the last question of the jurisdiction of the court, I don't intend to 4e
the court or to further take the time of the court or the jury any longerb than O
aibly can help. What the decision. will be to-morrow 1, as A matter of course, 06an1
know, nor can your lordships til to-morrow shall have qome. I subinJt that n
the circumstances, having raised this point of the jurisdiction, and that qesO
juriediction being so near being settled, that if it could be made in any way
nient, it may be well for your lordships in taking a vi4w of this point that hs
raised to await the decision of the Court of Appeal before proceeding any further
these triais. If the decision should be adverse, it would leave as in a very awk.
position. If the decision maintains the juriediction of the court, then, as a apt
Sourse, we know that ail that cen be done is to take that decision to another 
a hlgher court which will decide finally for all time what thejarisdiction of theb
of this country are to be. I submit to your lordships that the prisoner at he
charged with a very serious offence. At the sane time we have not the slightes
aible fear that there is any, proof whatever to connect the prisoner with
sot in this or any other country. It is our bounden duty at the same tie teo
around himi every protection that we can in point of law posdibly give h,m i
ption of any accident that might possibly occur; but as it is a trial before a Ja

ve no doubt as to what. the resuit will be. We have no doubt either that You
ehips wil probably give a very cursory consideration to this argment at
jUriediction or objection to the juriadiction, and that you will be prepared tOâ5aL
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i n the former question that was raised in that respect before the co ur.
*Qtoba. We are prépared to toi trial, but if it would meet yoòr 1ordships' wishes

approbation, we should certanly,-noW that tius quegtion of 'jùrisdiction shall
Vq had the opportunity of beimg dedided in thi Court of Appeal to-day or to-morrow

n the decision will be rendeied, that we ig;ht know' exactly mhat ground *àtai pn a.nd $wh-totiw eaier*.a
4pon and whether it will become necessary to carry this question any further

not--w*e s huld like the case to stand.
art t m.e understand you clearly, Mr, Clarke, did I understand you to say

is isrance?
SClarke.-No.

O.iOt.-Then whop diei it. cease, to b. françe and become clearly Britain orand
r Clarke.-In 13 by irtue o fhe rea* ofaris.

4urt..:-Then your contention id that from thai date, at leat you don't contezd
roin th date France þid anytingto do ti countryV

Clarlge.-Frane. has notigtò do Witt portion of the qoitry. hdi-mm-
aiftQr the Treaty of far*s the pro nof Geotge 1 I was issued, pro-

4Q:, g that al residents and coloniets lnthl countryshould be protedted by Briti&
1 ad I hold that that ,proclamation is, in fu force in this country to-day, nover

been revoked.
*. Osler.--Ionly desire to ay a word to your lordhips.

u0Qrt.-Before you do aiswer the arganeït, Mr. Osier, as toif qaestimn of jarra-
1is areàdy bQfore the Coqrt of Appeal, and we are to have the decision S

oditnot be---
Osier.--No, your Honors, I thlik not, I juSt have a fèe wordi to ay as
desire to say, as to,tWe compdint that no charge hàs been deliverod nor an

nitseses,, that we are not prosecuting the piisoner for tresoè, and hois î&
o them. If he wanted a òopy of th cþarge ho has a statut. *hich entitto9 deman~d a copy and get à OÔpy. If my -earned friends had a;sked us foi'

to they would have had a copy without fee or charge. The-prisoner was charged
eels ago. The charge was read over to him. 'they knei what that ch

Ita siMt out in ail its counts, and they have had ail the opportunity
dto prepare for the trial. As far a the, list cf witnieses is concerned, it is

ûsorningthat the witnesses camPi frbum Prince Albert, and we wrp 1261
Position to give it to them, nor wee they entitled to it If, your Lordships, the

had an-y doubt upon the jiisdictio of? this court or felt any hesitation as mt
e judgment of the Court of qen's Bencin gaitoba would be, tbe requet
deece for an adjourument till that dediuion was arrived at wotld be -eason'-
, a iamuch as that qestion of jrisdtiôti ha àlready been decided by thé
%g case i uch as the meinorandumin in that case was submitted tb
yonoil, and their Lordships inà ti Prfiv Cohnnoil said that there was

case made out for appeal, and inasmuçh as this court itself h c[early
ta decisiou following the (ôurt 0f que@'s Benoh in the Connorsease, f
òÔtUld be trif[ing with the adu4nistration of jasticé at the present tinie t.

thi trial and incwr a large amôatnt of ekgense to await.the result of an appe1q lo0ked upon by'the parties taking it à a foraora hope.
S* 'O the interesting historical lecture which my learned friend has deliveròd tà

l ,y clls.for reply in thb way of ubstaitial argument, for, while my
das exhibite a reat déal of learniig add research, And has gvon us

'pY Stig Jctutie upon the* erly Iiistory of thé untry, hè has failed té
or in, any way set aside the Imprial and hofninion legisiation upoa

te of is court retsL. Re has failed to do away with the provision la
i Lahd Act whlih gives powe to thé D6mini oI Government to establis*
e peade, oïder and goôd gèvernmen1i of these territories--thse torii-

ther part of the Hudson Bay territory or originelly part of the cidelginally belonging to Franco, no matter where the original titie reeted,
SLand Act covers ali; that gives the Dominion full power to legislate.
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Mfy learned friend would seek to address tothe court an argument that a proc1anist
by George III, of 1763, supervenes and does away with the effect of al subsequ
logiblation. My learned friend forgets, too, the British North America Act, 1
Testing the government of these territories in the Dominion of Canada, the se
British North America Act giving them full power to legislate. There, then,
the two Imperial Acts, Acts of the supreme power of the empire, vesting theg tb
mont of the territories in the Dominion Parliament of Canada; and then we have
Dominion Act of 1880 under which your Honors are sitting. My learned friend b
mot attemptal to set aside this legislation. If that legislation does not exist i
learned friend's say-so is to be taken -to set aside these Imperial and Dominion
if we are to take my learned friend's statement that this was originally no Psrt
the Hudson Bay territory, but part of New France, then my learned triend a
Iimaelf under the provisions of 22 and 23 Victoria. Under 1 and 2 George,
cirts of record, that is to say, magistrates are to be appointed to sit and hold 01à,
diQtion over these territories. When by 22 and 23 Victoria a further provisi'
made for the trial in British ý Columbia, the Act goes onto provide that when th
Magistrates' courts are instituteil in the territories, no lônger shall criminalsbe
mitted to Upper Canada or British Columbia, but that Act does not appiy to th3 ee
xitories of Hudson Bay ; so that if these territories, where this crime was com13it4
are not the Hudson Bay, thon we have 1 and 2 George IV providing for a

similar and identical-wiih the court in which your Honore now preside, and the ri
to transmit criminals by 22 and 23 Victoria is taken away where those courts t,
established. Now, of course, that'is a-meré aigument in ansewer to the state 1 -
imy learned friend,,but I dou't at aU admit hie premises., I don't at ail admit
that Act is applicable, beesuse'as matter of history, as matter of faut, the territo
in which these crimes wore eommitted were. térritories recognized as bein t
possession of.lhe Hudson Bay by the Imperial Order in Council following the a
I*nd Act,-the Order in Council to be found bound up in the Canadian Statutes ,

For thia reason, and because your Honors' court is on Eo simplé.and so 8
fuudation, I decline to follow my learned friend, in fact I dannot fQllow ina
an argument what can only be treated as an historical lecture.

I only desire to say this further in answer to my learned friend's declamast.r
to tho great injustice thepeople of the Norh-West Territories 'are suffering '
that the people themselvsedo not eem to appreciate it, and my learned friendf<>'e
altogether that in a newly-organized country; a country just, as it were, taken 1
aion-of by the English. soeakivg race, that ho.> annot carry with him al.,l1,«0
umuiences of.county organization or all thenothode of civilized methods of
trationi of juatice, which in the older.coutr-ies and the older provinces the P0 ,e p
of night, possess. , Here, we have to administer justice iii some way to meet thé
of the countmy. What does my learne4 friend want? .Does he wànt to creat
tion cf this country into a provincial government? The îepl have notas%
TIe burden of the administration o« justice isnow met by the Dominion, the '
DQminion-the burden of expending ail the money. that is required. The 100
pjçvinçial orgainization takes place, which necessaril takes place a s0oo d
population justifies such a change, that moment a burden, a large burden is

ae le t aemselvea.
Court.-,It is hifted from the whole Dominion.
Mr, Osler.-Shifted from the w1hole Dominion on to the people. au

h Organiae their oWn courts, select their own juries, and adapt their
"emasurate with tho wants andthe meansof the co.untry; but as long as

*a Lrganizatio, so to speak, going on, as long as th ere are eparse -settlers her
thereg ý only method cf administration of justice is the method which 1 subhe
bten adopted, and, from that metbod the only complaint I have ever heard i
frct eylearrad fricnd this zoîning.

ir. aprke.-You muet never have read the decisions in Parliament thiet'. tim
f . N. Osler.-mTL:method of administration of juàticà Las been bavgfd ro b

30 tite, first going for serious matters fortrial in Manitoba. Varions chanN
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Place which are changes approved of by a body of people, by their representa-
Parliament, who are used to reueiving and giving the benefits of lree insti-

I don't krow what my learned friend's object is in making, so declamatory a.
q% m arguing a matter of jurisdiction which should be a more point.. in law, but

I ehould not criticime the taste of ry learned friend in that behalf.
tIcan only Bdy that wedesire now to proceed with the trial, and ask your Honors'

TI1ent that there is jurisdiction t hear this case.
r. Clarke.-I would again refer your lordships to.this fact, that this questione

isdiction is to be decided by a superior court this day, and that decision is to be
aimed to morrow. I think my learned friend 4s exhibiting this morning au

ense desire to push things. He has had two adjournments, and we did not object
era. Our witnesses have been here, the greater number of them, for two or
Weeks, and the Crown had more facilities for getting witnesses here than wor

1 tS 'd I don't think it is asking anything extraordinary or anything out of the-
ask your lordships to adjourn this case until to-morrow morning, particnlariy

a it was adjourned yesterday to meet the convenience of the Crown, and atter it.
It "Ied before for the very requirement they wanted, they îxed.the trial for theé

the mnonth, Bo that they might attend the Court of Appeal at Winnipeg an&-
tidecision of that court.

don't think you are correct there.
Osler.No, not at ail. . Let ,my learmed friend not nisuzderstand me. If

>4e'-ted friend bere gets up and asys that as matter. of fact hoisaot ready to pro.
*Ith bis defence, thon let hlim apply on, that ground. If -mylearned fÀiuend is

for delay until he gets' the judgment of the Court of Queen's Bench at
b, then I am entirely opposed It it.

Clarke..-I think that my firet -request sbould be sufficient, and I submi&
respectfully it should be.granted with reforence .tothia deciion of the court.
y learned, friend want me to go down on my knees and say I am not ready
ý the cros to ait for a few hours?

i .- N, you simply have to s ay tothe court whether yea,are ready. or Mot.
r. Clarke.-~My application is made to the court., This ia. the.first time I hav
re8ent when the jury bas been called here. In courts where I am in thelabili

tressg, the eslling of the jury takes a very long time-al that kind.of thing,
bî erally takes more than balf a day, and I did not'anticipate we would hay*
'If OUgh SO rapidly as we have. Under -the circumtneaces, I am at liberty to say,

o t the same time making it a ground for a request or to ask any consider-
- nf a the Crown-I ask it from the court-there is one of oùr witnesses a mini+

. the Gospel, a material witr ess, who was told, that.heprobably would rot be
tern today, simply because we supposed the whole. day would be taken up.,That

. i n8 mot here, atd we have every reason to know:he will be here to-mnorrow.
old requires-sBom other ground than the firet which I asked of your lordehipo,

U eertainly say that is a snuficiemt ground.
S i4 t.-You first raised the question of juriEdirtion, and, I am called upon to

eyai Upon that plea;. that is the firsetthing. Now, then, it is sDggested that
t eson of your.asking for delay is that you are not ready in the interesta of

lu~ ClaI n nderstand youD really to say that ie so. an i t_
o larke.-I take it you put that to me as a direct:question, and, I wil stte

Ij am iinformed by my learned friend, Mr. Maelise, who is in the casewil
>t b h in fact been looking up everything in connection with the cases that

4 by one of the learned couneel that he wouldnot be ready tilt Wednesday.
er.-Tjat is mot so, as far asI am concerned.
Shae--I was told on Friday last by Mr. Scott that until the 9th the Crown
ready to proceed. One of our witBesses who was here on that day op

()ale lit down and won't be back till to-night.
i ser.-I don't desire to mix up twa applications. Let us dispose of tÏ4

ie qestion and then if my learned friend has any motion to make, they wilk
proper spirit
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Court.-As tW the jurisdictiôn question first pressed upon me I do not difler fro'in
the ground I have already. taken. The country was adalittedly, by Mr. CIark6i
British soil in 1763, and being British soil, those Acts 21 and 22 Victoria and 1; sd
-«Gebrge IV werepassed, but the subsequent législation I have aIready held; that is
-hé Act of 18'1, the amended British North America Act, rendered obsolete. I have
uheld in point of law both those Acts, and gave full jurisdiction to the Parliament oÔf

ä.<Inada who have sent me here and given me the powers which I muet not say they
had no right to give. I am not conviuced of that, and until I am convined. I thifk
my only course is to hold that I have jurisdiction, but it is simply based upon the Act
of 1871.

I sustain the demurrer to the-prisoner's plea to the jurisdiction and give judg-
,ment for the Crown.

Mx. Mactise.-Your Hônor will note the proceedings.
Mr. Osler.-The shorthand writer takes down everything. Then I ask that the

rprisoner plead.
Clerk.-Prisoner, are you guilty or not guilty of the charges preferred against

-you to day ?
Prisoner pleads "lot guilty."
Clerk.-Are yon ready for your trial?
Mr. Clarke.--We ask your lordships that this trial be fixed for to-morrow.
Mr. Osler.-I am not here to oppose any reasonable delay, but I would suggest10 my learned friend that the Crown case will last for some time, the jury are here,

and, of course, their client muet iemàin in custody now, having surrendered,- and .1
would suggest to them that the proper coÏuwre would be to proceed with the trial a
fa as we can go. If my learfted friends want a delay, for a-witness, then I am wif-ý
ing to accede to it when the time comes. 1 think it would be a pity becausotherei
ote witness absett that so many witnesses here from a distance and a jury at a very
-Côsiderable inconvenience kept here, as we have, of course, to keepthe whole panel

ie$re whoreas, after six are selected, there are only six men inoonvenienced by the
delay-it would be a pity I say, and I would sùggest te my learned friends that the
Orbîwn case had better go on, and that if at three or four, or at any other time, they
flnd that they are short of a witness, then I am prepared to meet them in any reason-
able spirit.

Mr. Clarke.-I can hardly see'how that is going 'to aid the jury. I don't se
that it is any pàrticular advantage to six gentlemen to be locked up all night,, because
ose witness happens to be absent-I don't think it would be prudent to begi à this
ti-al unless we are prepared to go right through with it, and we have asked no delay
heretofore.

Court-I understand you te say Mr. Clarke that you are not ready, that the
prisoner is not eady for his trial.

Mr. Clarke.-Not until to-morrow morning.
Mr. Osler.-If my learned friend says that as counsel for prisoner, I cannot press

for the Crown.
Ourt.-I understand him t say so distinctly.
Mr. Osler.-I merely make thesuggestion to my learned friend as a matter of con-

venience, that we should go on as far as we can, instead of keeping a panel of twen-t
or thir‡y gentlemen here. It would be' a less inconvenience keeping six, but it is
the case of a man charged with a serious crime, and 1 am not going to prese it on,
oeunsel sayirig he is not ready.

* Mr. Septt.-I ruest contradict that statement of Mr. Maclise as to ry having
tôld him the Crown would' not be ready till Wednesday morning. I deny most
emphatically that I ever told hin anything of the kind.

Còoirt.-I don't propose to adjudicate between you two gentlemen as to the corect-
ness of the statement ; but when counel for the prisoner says positively that he is
not ready to go on to-day, and it is a serious charge, it is not unreasonable that it should
b. adjourned tili totnorrow. I should have been glad to have gone on, I should have
beeu glad to see the counsel act upon the suggestion of the counsel for Crown.
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ROver, the prisoner has rights and those rights must be reasonably respected. If,.
toClarke, you saw your way clearly and positively that your witness would be here

arrow morning, wouldn't it even then b botter to go on now?.
r. Clark.-I sometimes place a little confi4ence in the word of ministers of:

gospel, and I think he will be here.
Court..-f you are confident of his being here, so confident that you can rely
4 him, why not go on ?

,Mr. Clarke.-I am Mot confident. I cannot be confident. I have stated tie-
Position.

CoUrt.-But you will be ready under any circumstances, to-morrow morning. L
0Onaider myself obliged to go on to-morrow morning.
Court here adjourned till 9 a.m. to-morrow, and the prisoner is remanded to,

• Clarke asks that the prisoner b. allowed to stand on his bail.Mr. Obler.-I told my learned friend before he asked for the adjournment what
00nsequences would be to his client. I think he is surrenderd.

. Clark.-Does my learned friend state it as the position of the law and,
tree in the superior courts of Canada that a man on trial. whoý has given bail j
allowed tQ stand out from day to day until duly discharged ?

.r sler..-..Yes, I give it as the ordinary and usual practice of the court. The.
e -a au surrenders to the eheriff, his bail have done their duty and their bil.-
i'.discharged. If ho is called in court here and application to postpone is made
he 1s surrendered, thon of course the bail holds from day to day, because there-
enfo surrender, but the moment the man come4 back, the bail sureties gr&

rOlarke.-Then I ask.that he be adûhitted to bail on a new recognizance until

>OOdrt..Let the bail b. continued as before.
r(e. OSler.-The court has now adjourned and the application is too late.
Urt---The only difficuity is thore is no court now, and it is a special court.
. Clarke»-Th4e court, it is true, is adjourned for trial of the case till to-morrow-

4âg, and the jury have. been ordered to come again at tbat time.
Ortl.-f you can show me that under parallel circumetances a superior :court

One of the provinces would admit to bail, I think I bave power under 'ther
4 Act, by which my powers bave been somewhat extended.

Clarke. Yery considerably extended, 1 should say. I submit that ma tter
ship, and hold that your lordship can admit to bail without there being a.

euently arranged that the prisoner be simply under the surveillance of thbe
to morrow.

WEDNEsDAY, 9 a.m,, 9th September, 1885.
irt poened. Jury called.
o erk.--Thoma Soott, these good men that you shall now hear are those thati

14 Pass between our Sovereigo Lady and you, if therefore you will challenge,
% any of them you must chailenge them as they come to the book to be swora

rle they are sworn, and you ebai be beard.
wing jury was thon sworn : 1st, Joseph Antoinette; 2nd, Robert Rob-

miies Williameon; 4th, David H.. illespie; 5th, J. P., Laidlaw; 6th,

e Gentlemen of the jury: The prisoner at the bar stands charged as follows:L
uot, not regarding, &c. (clerk reading the charge as contained in the,

te r given above). Upon this charge the prisoner at the bar bas bemn
19,tad.upon his arraignment has ple4ded not guilty, your duty• therefore i.

the evidence, enquiring whether he b guiiy or nt g 1ty.
••- ay it please your Honors, gentlemen o ejury; The prisone,

who has resided there soS; seven years, is charged in varions counta

un tri, A. 186-



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. i86

with the crime of treason-felony, a crime akin to the crime of treason. Tr
may be proved by the same acts as treason-felony, and treason-felony can be
by the same acts as treason, but the method of trial is somewhat different, an
Tesult is different. Treason is 4tWaysiis you know, a capital offence, a convictiba
treason-felony is not followed by capital execution, but is followed by imprisa['
for a term which may be foi' life or for anchl lesser period as 'the court senteam
may think fit. It i one of the most serions crimes known te the lawy it is a e
ýagainst society, and against the Government, and the provisions 'for -punishmet(
treason-felony are provisions for the safety of the community-to keep theo0
munity at peace, to preventinsurredtion and civil war'and tocompel unrulf BPt
to curb their desires for any change in the methodsof governmen other )o

-constitutional and' proper methed's of prodheing change. The; case aginet
prisoner is one, as yon know well, arising out of the recent trouble and rebelliO1

the northern part of thleése territories. There hâe-been other -trihis ýof Indidas
French half-býeeds, aid the eprisoe is EthgHsh or of-Baglish descent, Bag1ishlr
or Scotch descent, I don'tknow which, he ls the only one of his nationality I bW b
-who is charged as being côneernèd-with the rèbellién, and it has been-thought rig
that there should be no distinction in nationalities iu these Atate prosecutionsw ,

that each nationality, no mattelr what -may be the cireamstanees surrounding thobe
they are shown' to have particioatdd in any way in the rebellion should'bh tres
same, and the proseeutiti' should be fairly eonducted against ail, and no one lat
ity should be selected as a dhief alusèè6f the troubles, but wherever therel ie
wherever- there are rebellions aet' calliing for punishment, it la buttright-as yo7
aee that all the nationalities composing thecommiunity should be treàted alike
where you find a man who has been brought up with botter opportunities- f kuo
the consequences of, such cim$, a man who ought té kùow, betterand who o
so to speak, against light and knowledge-if crime je brought home to them, a
measure of responsibility resta with them. in

Now, gentlemen, in.thi case, if the theory of the Crown je borne out i j b
* evidence, mattèrs look very serionus for the prisoner. We do not charge that h&
riflßin had met the-troops. We do not charge and do not- proose te prove, tha
was concerned in actua1-armed oposition to-the fotees of-the vernnt, b
prove, if our évidence is as I am. rnatructed, acta of inciting'to rebellion, at5 1
ing, of comforting, of eonsulting them and endeavbring to bring about the C
which were sought to be obtained by the resort to arms on behalf of th'e India ,r
half-breeds. H edraws the line-the evidence will 'show thatt as far as he aiS8

*oerned", he waanot on, 4f those who desired to fighti Ho Was eue of'thóse
who sought to bring constraint upon the Government, who aided and comfortd te
taking artus, although perhaps it will be imade to-appear that' 'whien the
arms took place, he did perhaps what ho could to prevent immediate blOOdshe ' t
as a man who staaits-icenfi4gration by his carelessness or his act ad s fright i
the result and seeks to put an end to it, so we say this min by hiep aid and 0 O
comfort land his'aiistnnce'ap to'a certain point helped in rebetiôn and
the cauaes leàdingrtebellion, the rebellion, while1'when it caiaé to- be-
personally joining the reb'ls inlàrms, hé draws back. rNow, to understand just the 'seridueness at lhis offence, you should und ,
how àtrOngly'thï aw4ays down the duty of every subject where treason'is
disclose it. Where a men knowS -ofa treasonable act,- and he doés not fort!Lln
close it to the authorities, ho is guilty of a crime; for a man to know of it
to promise amanwhFi i aheei1ve Iaita e'uain neutral, that je a crine
held to be the'duty of ve#y mMn eèi*êing proleetion from the statesad
{dvornment, to disclose treason against that etate, and to aid when Calle 4
the state te þut it down. We all live-in the community, and the firatdutyO, i*
one mn a commuàityisto 0otet the comMnity the' state sd thi !Gover'o
whole. 1't'à in terial the -pposeS of that law what parby gova
govornmoitis8but tWeoondary,onsideratins I is immaterial whF'
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Wer Who have immediately the reins of power; it is not loyalty to the individuals
* hold the reins of power for the moment, but it is loyalty to the state, loyalty to
k-Governnent of the country; not as composed of inlividnals, but as constituted by

.erity, and that is the difference between political opposition to any particular
es who may have the reins of power for the moment, and that opposition which

4lled treason or treason-felony, or misprison of treason; and he takes in this free
try a great responsibility upon himself who'allows in any way his political feek
o animosity tq any particular party or his particular political feelings as to the

. Government there existing,"to allow himself to associate and aid those who are
ing to take up arms and caute a civil war to bring about the purposes they have

:VoýNow, bearing in mind the duties then cast upon each individual In a com-
7,duties which have been welI defined and laid down throughout the growth of

'jJ4Àtish constitution, carefully considered in various state trials that have takan
in the past few centuries, and which arlaid down in the lines of law that have

for centuries, you will,also remèmber'that we are not hère prosecuting for a
h Or a felony which has resulted in nothing material; for instance, many meft

echnically gqilty of'treason by doing actsa publishing letters, but they resuit in
ng"'e; but we are here enquiring into circumstances which have rosuLted in open
Which have resulted in the los of some 200 lives. Over 200 mon having th-e

4to live, and living in health and strength this time last year, have been out off
t to early graves by the treasons existing in this country, this territory.
8ns of treasure have bee spent insuppressing it, and when you consider the resait

ay ellse the wisdom of the law wiich makes it a crime at the very inception;
le j0~the consequences are so 'tèrrible if the little stream of treason is allowcd to

cdOwn and expandantil it becomes a river. So the law lays down, and ii is
atawly ecessary for the Safety of the community that it should be laid dowir,

t herever the maillest treason exists the firm hand tf the. law rnuat stopit, and
%d. trial resulta in nothing else than in à lsson to the commuuity of the caution
4 care that bas to be take, where treason exists at ail, in aiding, in conuselling, in

' natng with the enemy, the tFial will not be in vain.
gektlemen, on and after the 18th March of this year, an open rebeallion

at the authorities, armed rebelliod against the authorities, existed. Prisònerm
kt4 -8ton, stores were raided and freighters stopped, and the section of thecouncry
%thterror ofithe armal foaces then assembled at Batoche, Duck Lake, Carfton,eneighbohood of th~e two rivers. That rebellion, as you ail know, was manage4

W 16 uis Riel. W e will bring home the knowledge of that state of things, tti*
e of -the insurrection to the:prisoner; 'he had that kaowiedge as will anu-
appear by the eidence-at ail events at the time when the oiert acte we

heî8 £ With were .committed. fow, with that knowledge, he had one duty o
pp .8 a subject-o tell te aufhorities what he knew, to aid when called on in

.10 le- , we charge him in overt acts, with counaelling and compassing with others
0 a hr. Now,-a man who counsels to aid those who are in insurrection counsels

g, oar. He doos not need to counsel a certain arming, to counsel a certaia
ca0usel certain rmdvements, but if. ho counsels in any way to aid, ho

thin theovert aot charged. Now we wiIl show to you that immediately
bl being apparent and the Mody of monàted police being weak in numbers,
ulable tp comnpete with the numbers-.armed. against them-the -number of

beve being only something, at Fort Carlton, Less than 100, and the i mme-
Jective point, atfirat. beingihe capture of Fort Carlton-inPrince Albert, a
of volunteers was formed to aid the polieo. Loyal mon left their farnites,
Places of-business and shoaldered thoir muskets, and went forward to help
try. Now w. will prove that the prisoner there in ail ways in his power

Mtetings of .the'inhabitants cunse1ld and desired t -o getthe vôlunteer.
theirirDs, .to. go homie, wanting tb let the 300 or 400 rebels and the Ion
S fi5ghtit datç-leave themi aloqe, leave the armed niedi wb are in

4 d l4V0 g police to fiht it ont ; bieak up, voilunmeers. I{ow3 we wiL
29

A. 18



49 Victoria. Sesuional PaDers (No. 52) A.

bring that home, conclusively, I think, to the prisoner; he desired, we Bay, to aidtb
movement in Bo counselling. If ho desired to do so, ho comes within the mie,
acts charged. It will be proved to you that on the ocoasion of one or two Pt,
uneetings, that this is what ho proposed, tlie laying down, by ail concerned, of
inhabitants, of arms to aid to suppress the rebellion. He seems to have wanWt
godthis far with armed insurrection, and let the rebols have a tussle with the pOl'ô'
or lqt.them capture the police without bloodshed, and thon let us enter into a tres
let us make use of the advantage that we gain to enter into a treaty with
Government te compel them to do what we think they ought to do. Weli, now, 6
is .compaMsing, That is acting for the purpose of putting constraint, force
constraint ppon the Government, and that is treason-felony. Now, I shal
go in 4etail over the varions overt acte that you have heard perhaps two or
time, if yon were in court yesterday. They are alloged with technicalitY'
precibion, and they are put in the evinence as it is given, and it is botter that
ahould take the exact facts from the mouthe 'of the witnesses rather than froIt
mnongIM of counsel, and I therefore merèly outline to you the class of evidence that
propoe to give, bocause seomètirié it is difficult to distinguish when yon co0inb
retire to conbider, a cas-it is diScult to dietinguish where counsel has stated'
eviduce with groatparticularitybeween what couLsel has itated and what the
neos states, and.it is better that yon shoùld get yeur impressions of the exact"de
from the mouthis of the witnesses.

But our evidoce agai.inst the prisoner dees net rest entirely upon the recoll<'
of witnoesos as to his transactions. A most serions item of evidence against hit
a letter written by him to the French council, and if that letter is brought ho000
the prisoner, as 1 think it will be, if it is breught home that that letter was foun
the poesseon of te enemy, as' it will be, for it was captured among their paPe
the council bouse i Batoche, then ybu have in writing, over the signature o
prisoner, a letter which is sufficieht to convict him; if a the time ho wrote
knew the parties to whom it was addressed wore in epen insurrection agaIs
Government. Now that leter bears date the 23rd of March. Af the
stores had been raided, after the prisoners had been taken and were then int c b
after it was known by the prisoner that this open insurrection was in existence,
writes this letter:-

RwbGEz, 23rd March, 85
To tho French Council, Dd

4t a meeting held at Lindsay schoolhouse to-night, which was largely tte.*
the vQce of every man was with you, and we have taken stops which I thi' )
bave a tendency to stop bloodhed and' haster a freaty. We will communicatef 0#
you aLuide of forty-eight heurs, after yon get this, and nötify us of any steps,
as liable to take place.

Now, that directly comes under the charges made, that is, aiding and b
ing, that is, compassing and imagining, under either sets of counts. You fen o
treats them as a power in existence outside the Government, with whom the
ment was to make a treaty, and he recognizes those men in arms in organiza «
the purpose of bringing constraint upon the Gvoernment, and ho recognizes t
being in such a positión as to have a treaty liade with them, and he propss . wb
thenM in bringing about that treaty, in bringing abdut the purpose for
they had taken up arms. Instead of saying, as I beliéve the great
of people said, in the nei o rince Albert, now you have
up arms, we have done w th yqu, he writes this letter, wbich r'i
treason or treason-felor4y. . will furhereshow to yeu that after
bad asembled, in arms,pìd Wére in arms atlatche, with loyal men a
We will show to yqu that Sott came over to the ýFrenci council, a

ibnm m thi letter, ard îook ooui>sei with therm and' went up iÙto t bir
cbamber, and was thete or a considerable tine discussing and talking.*1
I doi ho¶ that we will be able to show what pàssed but if we shoý W
sonneetiôn with'hi other¡statements, an4 those let*ers, ýbi hávê d right

0 S0
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a that time he was there for a treasonable purpose. It may be, and I dare say the
1dence will show that Scott's object, one of his objects, was to bring about that

wh'ch ho desired, whatever it was, without bloodshed. All people who undertake
lebi1ion desire to avoid that, if by show of force they can get what the want with.

jit; actual fighting is what no man desires, if by any other means the object can
attained, and no doubt the defence will show that the prisoner, after a certain

r,'bt, did ail in his power to, desired to do all in his power to prevent bloodshed;.
that is not a defence, that may be a matter in mitigation, should he be found
7, on the question of sentence. It is not a defence for a man, after committing
fe, to repent of it or to be sorry that he had gone so far. We may, I think,

4 ,frm the evidence that there neyer would nave been a breaking ont or taking
e f arrns by one sectio n of the community if tbey had not, up to a certain point,

Z the acts and words of the others, expected them to join them. If that expectation
isappointed, nevertheless, it leaves a most serions responsibility on those who
aQged and who aided the men who eventually resorted to arma.

10ow, gentlemen, we have here nothing to do with the causes of the rebellion.
t n can justify treason by saying that he is ill-governed. I don't understand

shoma Scott was one of those men who had any particular grievance. He is not
e half-breed. Thore were said to be grievances existing. They may ormay not,

%Q 'rasfted. They may or may not have been serious. There may have existedgoeties those little irritations which it is very difficult to avoid in administering
byo el-jament in a new country, and they may have been fomented and exaggerated
Y eaders for their own purposes, but the existence of grievance or of supposed

ances is no justification whatever for treason. listory shows that grievances
fr existed will be cured by the Government; if not by thoir own act, by the
4 erof public opinion, sooner or later. It is for the loyal subject to wait and toher • rather than to rebel and become a traitor to his country. Yon have got to

TImind that this country has but an existence but of yesterday, as far as
1M elnent by the )ominion of Canada is concerned, and in redeeming a wilderness

b»4%nrn1ng it into a civilized country, there must necessarily be complications, there
lu ecessarily be difficulties, there must necessarily be delays. Where these exist,

for a loyal people to endeavor to remove them by every possible constitutional
nith 11 their power, and it is for them to suffer for the good of the community

Ufa than do that which brings the people of the country into anarchy and

e far as the prisoner is concerned, it is immaterial, it is not to be discussed
tier he had or had not a grievance. As far as one can learn of the grievanceshbi , thoy seem to have existed simply in the minds of the old and original

eIre ta of the country, who seem to think that the English-speaking tongues
a, pressing too hardly upon them. That excuse, if it could be an excuse,he when we find a man coming from some of the other provinces or from

ti lautry, into this country, and availing himself of the protection of the lawsSttg here.' viigpoeto fteiw

gentlemen, you will hear the evidence, and if we make out to your satis-
YOne of the overt acts charged, that is sufficient. We charge them iny,, aIeys, for technical purposes, in order that miy learned friends on thq <tber

ef the know the whole extent of the charges we are going to make; but if any
il 18 found to be true, that is sufficient for you to act apon in passing upon

t of the prisoner.
ToMxINs sworn:-

examined by Mr. Scott:
9. at il your occupation, Mr. Tomkiti ? A. Intezprete·.9. WnY public capacity ? A. In the Indian »ep.tment,

ro. O en such on the 18th March last? A. I wqa taken prisoner,
. Yu WOre interpreter at that time? A. Yes.
ô Were taken prisoner ? A. Yes.

81

19 Victolia. A. 1886



Sessional Papers (No. 52.)

Q. Where? A. At Batoche.
Q. By whom? A. By Louis Riel.
Q. Anyone else ? A. And a number of half-breeds, Gabriel Dumont a1o

them.
Q. In what condition were they at the tirme they took you prisoner ? A. T1 4

were in rebellion. «OQ. How did you know they were in rebollion, what led you to think they
in rebellion ? A. They all had guns, principally. ee

Q. Where were you at the time they took you prisoner ? A. I wa3 at KV
store.

Q. Where was that? A. About two miles from Batoche, I should judge.
Q. Was there anyone with you ? A. Yes; Mr. Lash.
Q. Who was Mr. Lash ? A. Indian Agent.
Q. Indian Agent where? A. At Carlton.
Q. Was he taken prisoner? A. Yes.
Q. At the same time ? A. Yes. be
Q. You say Riel and a number of half-breeds--did you recognize any other

breeds besides Riel? A. I recognised them at the time. tå
Q. Whore did those half-breeds that you did recognize, live? A. TheY

around Batoche.
Q. They lived in the neighborhood of Batoche? A. Yes. h
Q. What time was it on that day you wer e then taken prisoner ? A. 1!0

best of my knowledge, I think it was about tour o'clock in the afternoon. gâ0
Q. What was done with you after you were taken prisoner? A. I was

Io the church.
Q. Where ? A. At Batoche.
Q. And what was done with you there ? A. They kept us there.
Q. How did they keep you ? A. Under guard.
Q. With a guard over you ? A. Yes.
Q. They remained tdiere for how long? A. They kept us there tili night,

then they removed us.
Q. Where to ? A. Across to Mr. Baker's store, across the river.
Q. What is the name of that place? Is there any name? A. No; it is Bese
Q. Were there any other prisoners there besides you and Mr. Lash ? A'

Mr. Wlters and Mr. Henuipin wcre taken prisoners, and their store had becn
through.

Q. They had gone through their store? A. Started at it.
Q. Did you see them ? A. Yes.
Q. What do you mean by going through the store? A. Taking stuff.
Q. Who? A. These half-breeds.
Q. The same half-breeds that took you prisoner ? A. Some of then, Ye•
Q. A portion of the same body? A. Yes. y o
Q. Where were you taken to from Walters & Baker's ? A. Taken

the church next morling.
Q. And afterwards ? A. Taken down to Philip Garnot's.
Q. And how long did you remain at Garnot's; until what date?

remained there until we went to Duck Lake.
Q. You went to Duck Dake? A. Yes.
Q. That is, you were taken to Duck Lake? A. Taken to Duck Lake.
Q. On what day? A. Un the 26th March.
Q. By the same guard and same party ? A. Half-breeds took us over'r etQ. Now, this armed party that you speak of as having taken you priso0 .- ag

afterwards taken you to WalteIrs & Baker's store-did you sec them doing afa
A. I saw them taking goods ont of the store.

Q. Out of Walters & Baker's ? A. Yes.
Q. You saw them taking goods, and did you see them doing anythi»g

Yes, they brought in somie prisoners that morning, too.
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Q. How many? A. Two.
Q. Thon after you got to Duck Lake you say those men were in rebellion, and

You told us they were armed, and they took you and several others prisoners, and
elat yOu saw them raiding Walters & Baker's store-did you see thom do anything

el'é afterwards? A. WeIl, whon we went to Duck Lake I seen thom starting ont tote front to fight.
Q. Iow many rebels were thore in the neighboirhood of Duck Lake at that time

bout tho time you saw thom starting out to fight ? A. I should judge thore were
bt 400.
Q. You say that some of thom wore armed-those that took you prisoner were
ed ? A. Yes.

ake.Q. Were the others armed as well? A. They were all armed thon at the

Q. You say you saw them starting to the fight; was there a fight? A. Yes.
. Iow do you know thore was? A. I could hoar.

Q. You could hear what? A. I could hear volleys.
er . Have you any other means of knowing that thore was a fight after it was

A. Yes; I was on the field; I went out after the battle.
Q. But did you know that afternoon; did you fiad ont that afternoon trom any

ether source that there had been a fight ? A. Yes, from Riel.
Q -Riel told you thore had been a fight ? A. Yes.
Q. Did ho say anything as to what the fight resulted in? A. He said it resultod

favor of Riel.
,,r. Claike.-.Is this su pposed to be evidenice-what Riel told this witness? Is

etevidence in the case of Scot t-a thing that occurred on the 26th March ? I object
emIrphaticall to it.

Mr. Osler e only show the common action, Probably in that case we will
prove what Riel said until we have connected him.

o Court.-There are two ways to establish it. You may show the facts first and
5lnection afterwards; lay the ground for the connection first, and then supple-'t by facta.

By Mr. oott:
o~- You say that you are interpreter for the Indian Departmont. Whore do

ve where is your home? A. Carlton was, but Prince Albert now.
.o you know the prisoner ? A. Yes.
DO you know where ho lives ? A. Yes.
FUow far is that from Batoche or Duck Lake? How far is it from Duck Lake?
bot30 miles or so.
Which way ? A. North-west; no, it is in a northern direction.Do you know Lindsay schoolhouse ? A. Yes.
low far is that from the prisoner's residence ? A. It is quite close there.
Q You know the St. Catharines schoolhouse ? A. Yes.

Qe a10w far is that from the prisoner's residence? A. I should judge it would
Q a ile and a half; no, it is about four miles, I suppose, or five.

th LAnr d t Lindsay schoolhouse is quite close, you say-how close? A. About
aters of a mile or half a mile, I should judge.

ln Lindsay schoolhouse is in the neighborhood of 30 miles from Duck
4Ysay ? A. Yes.

111W far is Duck Lake from Batoche? A. Six miles.
1 oit On the road from Batoche to these places? A. Yes.

1ot t ýe the Lindsay schoolhonse wouid be about 3à or 36 miles from Batoche,Q ? A. Yes, about that.
-42. St. Catharines schoolhouse farther away or nearer? A. It is nearer Prince

Q' That would be about 40 miles ? A. Yes.
"9 -- 88
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JOHN W. ASTLEY, sworL-

Examined by Mr. OsIer :
Q. You were, 1 believe, in the early days of the rebellion employed as scoute

A. Yes, at Prince Albert.
Q. For the authorities ? A. Yes.
Q. Were you taken prisoner ? A. Yes. I was taken prisoner the 26th Marcb

at tbree o'clock in the morning.
Q. Are you sure about the 26th ? A. Yes, that is the date.
Q. Do you know the prisoner Scott ? A. Yes. reQ. ]ad you seen him at any time prior to that date ? A. Yes ; when they the

talking about raising volunteers at Carlton and Prince Albert, I was driving down
street going to meet Capt. Moore, and the prisoner came up and Capt. Moore $Po
to him, and ho told hira not to go on raising volunteers and take them to Carit
but let the police and breeds have it settled between thomselves, and that if he à
volunteers there it would cause a war of races between the settlers and the ha
breeds. That is all I remember passing at that time. That would be about the
or 18th March.

Q. That was at the time? A. When they were talking of raising voluntee
for Çarlton. ona

Q. What was the nocessity for volunteers ? A. Major Crozier I believe se
message to Capt. Moore. ball'

Q. For what particular object ? What was the state of things ? A. The
breeds had risen in rebellion. . to

Q. And Capt. Moore was interested ? A. He was asked by Major Cromer
raise a certain amount of volunteers for Carlton.

Q. iow did the prisoner come to speak to him ? A. We were going dowI t
the meeting, and he was driving past, and ho jumped out of his sleigh and spoIo to
Capt. Moore just those words. the

Q. Asking him not to go on with the movement ? A: Not to go on Witt
movement.

Cross-exanined by AIr. Clarke :

Q. When did this conversation take place? A. The date I would not be cert
about, but it seems to me it would be the 17th or 18th, when they were talki" P
raising volunteers. It was the day before the prisoner was arrested at Batocl7he
would be the 18th when they were arre sted, and this would be about the 17th. I tør,
there were two meetings in Prince Albert, and one was to just disouss the raa
and that was one. Capt. Moore I believe had been out at the Ridge. othiog

Q. Confine yourself to the facts as near as you possibly can; we want Il
of your belief, we want simple facts. Now Capt. Moore is not here, I sUppOs 0

Hie bas gone 10 the old country.
Q. Was there anybody else present at this conversation ? A. No, Capt. goor

and I were driving down in a cutter by ourselves.
Q. And he is in the old country ? A. Yes.

Captain GEORGE HoLMEs YOUNG, sworn

Examined by Mr. Osler : ge
Q. You were connetedawith the forces I believe in the field, suppresivg

rebellion ? A. I was. ad
Q. Wbat was your position ? A. Brigade major of the infantry briga.h n
Q. As the result of the rebellion spoken of by Tomkins, were forces broug

the field ? A. The Dominion sent forces into the field.Q. Under the command of- ? A. Major General Frederick MiddletO 1 0o b
Q. And as matter of formal proof, was there active hostility and coe d t

tween the troops ? A. Ative hostilities and conflicts between the trOOP8 so
rebels at twô points at which I was present.
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Q. You were present at- ? A. Fish Oreek and Batoche.
9. And lives were lost on both sides ? A. Lives were lost on both sides.

Did you have anything to do with the finding of the papers in any par-
tbhlr house at Batoche ? A. I found a large number of papers and books which
ned ont to be rebel state papers in council house at Batoche.

Were you at the capture of that bouse ? A. I was at the capture of that

t . Who was leading when that bouse was captured, immediately just there ? A.
hat immediate point, I led. I led at that point,
Q. And yourself and men took that house ? A. We took it, and I went up stairs.

. Then, what were the class of papers that were found there ? A. Minutes of
neil, letters, reports of scouts, and documents of varions kinds, some private papers
accounts but generally papers in connection with their movement.

. Do you recognize the paper produced (Exhibit No. 1) as being among thos
pers? A. Yes, I recognize this paper.

As being one found where? A. Found in the council chamber at Batoche.
9.4r With any other papers ? A. With a large number of papers, letters from

the On8 parties, and the reports of scouts, the names of their captains, the minutes of
un1cil, orders of council, most of ther labelled or rather docketed in the sane

'riting as this is docketed.
y 9~. You identify this, then, as one of the papers you took possession of in the

cOuncil house? A. I do.
Q. On what day was that? A. On the afternoon of Tuesday the 12th May.

FEEs F. TuaK, sworn :-
Examined by Mr. Scott :

What is your occupation ? A. I am clerk in the post office, inspector's office,

0- 0 w long have you been in that position ? A. Three years. Three years

4ý -'ýThen, you are conversant with the business that has been done in that officeQg that time ? A. Yes.
4 .You have some papers with you that were returned from the Ridge post offle?

Sfirkpatrick post office, yes.
nWhat are they ? A. There is a bond here of the postmaster there at that tirmethe ot office was established.

'h8 Vhen was that ? A. That was in April last. It was earlier than that-it
.uary or February. It was established first.

Eu, *'eih is bond? A. One is a bond, anc the next a declaration, and the last
ority from Ottawa authorizing the person of that name to be postmaster at

et' ?tis a bond from Thomas Scott who was appointed postmaster there, and hie

I Jte i arke.-Stop. Do the Ccown pretend to prove the appointment of a post-
Sclerk from a post office in Winnipeg?

t ) rgler.--No, we are not proving that. We are simply producing the papers.
nt arke.-.Then, I want to know what these papers are, or what gives them

en y, by what means they are brought here, and I won't allow one iota of
De t byo be given of anything that can be proved by the Royal Gazette being

an att petty clerk from the post office in Winnipeg. I am astonished to fini
o empt. The witness is asked-this is the appointment of a postmaster?

Sctt beg your pardon, he says this is the bond purporting to be signed by

o arke.-O~f what ?
I don't know what it is.

e1& ''It purports to be signed by the postmaster at Kirkpatrick. (Bond
it No. 2.)

'9 'Victoria. A. 1886
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Q. And this (Exhibit No. 3) is a declaration purporting to be signed by ThOne'
Seott, postmaster at Kirkpatrick ? A. Yes, and these (Exhibit No. 4) are the sig»i
tures for the receipt of the mail at the post office.

Q. These were received at the Department ? A. At our office at Winnipeg.
Q. From where ? A. The last comes from Troy.
Q. They purport to be signed by- ? A. By the postmaster at Kirkpatrick
(Witness here points out what purports to be the signature of the postmaster

kirkpatrick in these papers.)
Q. ]o you know what is required ot the postmasters as to signing these bil

required by the Department ?
Mr. Clarke -I objectto any such question. That is not the mode of proving to
Mr. Scott.-What is the ordinary custom in the Post Office Department as

this sending-the signing of these way-bills?
Mr. Clarke.-I object to that also.
Mr. Scott.-I submit, your Honor, that is a proper question.
Court.-What is the ordinary rule in the Department? That can be put...
Mr. Clarke.-I submit there are rules in the Public Departments, post offices

well as others, and they are printed or written and properly signed by the head of
Department, and such rules should be produced here to speak for themselves,
without their production nu secondary evidence can be given of them-their contea

Court.-Have you any authority to refer me to ? le
Mr. Clarke.-1 don't think it is necessary. It is an elementary princip

reference to examination on a written or printed document.
Court.-The question was, what was the ordinary custom of postmasters as

signing these way-bills ? e'
Mr. Clarke.-I think the question is put in a different way. The ordinary

tom in post offices must be given by the postmaster and over his signature. . the
Court.-Your objection, as I understood it, was that all the rules governin

Department must be in writing, and these should be produced. a
Mr. Scott.-I am not asking the question as to the custom in that partic

post office at Kirkpatrick, but I ask the custom of the Post Office Department.
Court.-I think the question may be put.
Mr. Clarke.-Then your Honor will note my objection to that question.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. What was the custom ? A. They are supposed to sign these way-bilîs a
on receipt of the mails at the post cffice. Ae

Q. And to do 'what with them, or to do anything further with them ? A , e
simply to send them on to the next office on the route, and if their office is the
they come to our office.

Q. They eventually come to the Inspector's Office in Winnipeg? A. Yes
Q. Were those particular bills produced now received in that way ? A. Beca

at our office.
Q. In that way ? A. Yes, in that way.
Q. Have they been there ? A. Yes, they have been in our office all the

linoe.
Q. On file ? A. Yes.
Q. In the ordinary way ? A. In the ordinary way.

Crous-examin.d by Mr. Clarke :
Q. You are not the postmaster at Winnipeg ? A. No.
Q. There is a postmaster ? A. Yes ; there is.
Q. What is bis name ? A. William Hargrave.
Q. Do you pretend that where these lists come along to the post offiee

be signed by the man who is acting as postmaster? A. Yes.
Q. They must? A. Yee.
Q. You swear that that is the case ? A. That they must be signed l'
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Q. Yes ? A. Certainly, that is one of our rules.
Q. I am not asking you that, but do you swear that list is signed by postmasters
by nuobody for him? A. No; I don't.

JOUN McNIVEN sworn:-

Examined by AMr. Osier
Q. Where do you live, Mr. McNiven ? A. In the North-West Territory.
q. That is a pretty large home ? A, Yes.

. Do you know Thomas Scott? A. Yes, I do.
q Where does he live, and be a little more particular than in your last answer?

lives in a place called the Ridge.
ln what neighborbood ? A. In the neighborhood of Prince Albert.
Do you know of his occupying any office ? A. Yes, I always understood that

old office as postmaster.
Q. At what post office ? A. Kirkpatrick.

QI. . Clarke.-Now, before this goes any further, I object to this as evidence at
Sthere is a mode of proving who were appointed postmasters and who were not,
t get from this man or any other man in the community that ho always under-

o11ch a man was appointed postmaster or appointed judge is not exactly the
tO do it, and I object to this being received as evidence.

•&1 Osler.-My learned friend very weti knows that I can always prove de facto
<eUpant of any office, and it is presurped that he is the officer.

r. Clarke.-It is not presumed.
ou rt--A man who represents himself as such and acts as such is presumed to
appointed, until the contrary is proved.

'. Clarke.- object and I ask that my objection be noted, that the appointment
% traster should be proved by the official Gazette, that is the way we generally

in this country.
rIt--Postmasters are not appointed through the official Gazette.

.Clarke.-That is a question, my lord.

iBy -Mr. Osier:
hat do you know of his acting as postmaster in that post office? A. Well,

ered me mail and letters.
'Was that your post office ? A. Yes.

kt And he would deliver your mail and letters from time to time, as you called
ldt' A. Yes, ho was not generally delivering at every mail, sometimes there

omnebody ele in the office, he had another boy there.
rlho was in charge of the post office, who was the proprietor ? A. I always

S~Mr. Scott.
A rd you treated him as such ? A. Yes.

or how long bas he been postmaster ? A. Ho bas been postmaster since
.wha winter any way, I am certain of that.

o1 postmaster now ? A. This young fellow that used to attend the office
Q. t' absence I believe is postmaster.

o, l, did y on ever know asny other Thomas Scott postmaster at Kirkpatrick?

' Wei, do you know this paper (paper marked Exhibit No. 6)? A. Yes.
os Writing, bandwriting, is that in ? A. Thomas Scott's.
Youmean Thomas Scott the prisoner ? A. Yes.

0 i* do you know that is in bis hand-writing ? Are you the John McNiven
ç. ? A. es.

dà YOU ever have this in your possession ? A. Yes.
y% Cldid you get it in your possession ? Who did you get it from ? A. Frorm

ia A due bill to you ? A. Yes.

A. 1886
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Q. And ho handed it to you ? A. Yes.
Q. W hose signature is that, whose signature did he give it to you for ?

Thomas Scott.
Q. Did you see him write it? A. Well, it is so long ago-
Q. But ho gave it to you as bis signature and his due bill ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know in whose handwriting this paper (Exhibit No. 7) that I e

produce to you is in ? A. Scott's handwriting, I should think.
Q. You have seen him write ? A. Yes.
Q. When was it known, Mr. MeNiven, in your neighborhood, that armed ,2t

lion had broken out? A. The first time I knew of it was the evening of the
March, 1885. I believe it was the 20th-the evening of the voluoteers going uP.

Q. On that evening where did you go? A. I went to a meeting that night•
Q. Where? A. Lindsay's schoolhouse. it
Q. Where is that with reference to, say, Prince Albert? A. I should judg'e

would be about fifteen or sixteen miles from Prince Albert.
Q. Was the prisoner at that meeting ? A. Yes.
Q. Who was in the chair there ? A. Thomas Scott.
Q. The prisoner? A. Yes. the
Q. Was it made known at the meeting, or what was said as to the rebelioD"

position of matters? A. Chere was nothing said in the meeting that I heard
the rebellion, anything more trian-yes, there was, the secretary drew up what
supposed the meeting was called for.

Q. Weil, was there any discussion at that meeting? A. No, there was
Q. What did they meet for; was there any talking? A. There was no to

only appointing a delegation up to Duck Lake or the south branch; there
nothing doue that I seen at the meeting more than that.

Q. What was the occasion of the meeting; what was the trouble? A. The
thing that I understood at the time was what the secretary had said.

Q. Said in public? A. Yes, in the meeting.
Q. And what was that? A. Well, it was something to the effect that

that the French were under arms and that it left the settlement in a kind of a da
ous position, that they thought it was necessary to send a delegation up to 1 o
Lake or to the French, to see what stops miglit be taken for the settlers as a ru
protect theimselves against the outbreak. or

Q. Well, was the matter of the French being under arms in discussion the
known to that meeting ? A. Oh, it was known to the meeting, for the secr
stated it.

Q. Of which meeting Thomas Scott was chairman ? A. Yes.
Q. And there was very little discussion except on the safety f t eet

A. That was ail, as a rule.
Q Now, was the prisoner appointed to any position on that occasion-« tlo
Mr. Clark.-Now I don't care for objecting, unless it is necessary, WOUl

be more proper to ask what business was done at that meeting and let the «
give his version of it ? -oi

Court.-Yes, I suppose it would be, perhaps. I don't know that the quesO
improperly put though. w0ttMr. Osler.-It is not a matter in dispute, and I don't desire to lengthen
by allowing the witness to go on and state what might be perhaps irrelevant.

Mr. Clark.-Might it not be botter to ask what discussion took place ?

By Mr. Osier :
Q. Was any delegation appointed for any purpose at that meeting? IC0Jl
Q. Who was appointed ? A. Thornas Scott, and a man by the nam Of e:'

don't know his first name, and a man bv the name of Willie Paquin. to !
Q. Where were they to go? A. Well, the secretary said they were to go

French.
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Q. Now, had you any talk with the prisoner on that occasion, as to the calling
OanOther meeting; or as to what should be done when the deputation got back ?. yes, I asked Mr. Scott. It was supposed at the meeting that the meeting was to

Ourn when the delegation was appointed, and I asked Mr. Scott how the people
to going to get the information when they came back, whether it was necessary

ae another meeting or was everybody to go and hunt his own information, and
Scott said it was a hard question to answer, because, he says, if we cannot keep

of the way of the police, may be we won't get back for some time, it was some-
g to that effect ; it might not be exactly the same said, but it was to that

Cross-examined by .Mr. Clarke;
Q. You were present at this meeting, Mr. McNiven? A. Yes.
Q. Did you vote for the appointment of this delegation ? A. I did not.

ttQ. What did you do at that meeting? A. I did not do nothing but ask Mr.
tt this question.
Q. Were you present at the meeting during the time that delegation was being

ýPointed ? A. Yes.
9. Did you object to a delegation being appointed? A. I did not.
Qla9. Wasn't that the continuation of a series of meetings that had been about that

I don't know. I was not at no other meeting.Q. At all ? A. Not since the fore part of last summer.
Q. You say that Thomas Scott, the prisoner, was in the chair ? A. Yes.

li nImmediately after taking the chair did ho eall upon anybody to speak ? A.
cetled ujron his secretary.
Q. Now try and recollect, Mr. McNiven, were you called upon to speakl? A.
is 1Was,
Q Was that a meeting of rebels ready to go and assist the French to eut the
at' of all their fellow subjects? A. What is your question ?

as Was that a meeting such as you or any loyal man would be afraid to attend
hamed ? A. No; I did not think so at the time.
. Was it not a meeting that was called purposely to try and prevent trouble ?

, don't know about that.
. Well, what do you know, then? A. I did not think so.Q. You did not think so? A. No.

ob9. Why did you go there ? A. Well, a fellow finds out a different shade of things
ably when he goes from when he left home.
Q. Who was the Secretary ? A. William Miller.

1. 1 William Miller here ? A. I guess he is. I don't know whother ho is or
seen him around the town.

tWer there any minutes kept of that meeting ? A. You had botter ask the
y about that.
I ask you ? A. I don't know whether there was or not.

4. 1 en you were anxious to know what would be the result of this delegation
acertainly.f You wanted to find out, like the others, what the French were doing ? A.
e I Would like to have known at the time.

elega' l1, did you find out what they were doing? A. I did, but not fromn that

ýM 4en'n time after. wasn't it, that the discovery was made of what they had
S doig? A. Yes, after we heard of the Duck Lake fight.ef G ou Peferered two or three times to Mr. Miller, the secretary. Will you tell

ther 6and jury, you being there and seeing this secretary, that you cannot tell
4a r that secretary wrote anything during that meeting'? A. I cannot tell,.

in the far end of the building, and I could not see him, all his move-
tlnderstood that he was supposed to do it, anyway.

A. 1886
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By Mr. Osier
Q. Why do you say it did not look like a loyal meeting, o1 words to that off

you made use of ? What was done there at that meeting ? A. Well, neither it d
when 1 seen what the meeting was about.

Q. Just give us what took place there? A. Well, I gave my statement on tha
point.

Q. Well, is there anything else ? A. No, nothing else that happened in the I
ing that I know of.

Q. Weil, at the breaking up of the meeting, was there anything happened ?

Mr. Clarke.-Now, your Honor, I must object to this. The Crown has a rig
to re-examine on any point or matter elicited on the cross-examination, but this o
beginning again an examination in chief.

Court.-I think it is a question arising directly out of your cross-examinatinl
By Mr. Osier :

Q. Was thore anything happened at the close or towards the close Of th
meeting which helps you to found the opinion that the meeting was not a 1Y07
meetirg ? A. There were three cheers for the delegation.

Q. And anything else ? A. And there were three cheers for Louis Riel.
By Mr. Clarke:

Q. Did you cheer, Mr. McNiven ? A. No, I did not.
Mr. Maclise attempts to cross-examine-
Mr. Osler.-Let us be regular.
Mr. Scott objects to either counsel cross-examining now.
Mr. Clarke.-This is a new question that is brought ont, and it should have

brought out, if brought out at all, on the examination in chief. • ,hCourt.-Suppose the witness had been discharged and called again, could't
be recalled again?

Mr. Clarke.-le could most undoubtedly, but he would become a new wit1
and give us the same chance over again. dCourt.--The only thing you have any right to ask a question on woul
regarding these cheers.

By Mr. Clarke:
Q. Iow many people were there that did cheer ? A. Oh, I could not s 1«

many.
Q. iHow many people were there there? A. I could not say that neither.

did not count them. argoQ. Were there a large number of people there? A. There was quite
mumbor for the place.

JoS&ra KNOWLEB sworn
Examined by Mr. Scott:

Q. Where do you live, Mr. Knowles? A. At Prince Albert.
Q. What is your occupation ? A. I am in the banking business there.
Q. low long ? A. For three years, a little over three years.
Q. Do yon know Thomas Scott, the prisoner? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know his signature? A. Well, I dare say I could tell it. e
Q. Did yon ever see that paper before (paper marked Exhibit No. 8.) A'

.I have seen that paper before. itoo1Q. Do yon know whether that is Thomas Scott's signature ? A. I belieVe i
.like it. to

Q. Do you know that paper (marked Exhibit No. 6), what do you think *
that ? A. That looks like his signature.

49 Vietori& A. 188
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Q. Rave you had any signatures of the prisoner in your banking establishment ?

. Would you make any.enquiries about his signature when it came ini or would
OOnider you knew it ? A. No, 1 would consider I knew it ?
q. Suppose that note (Exhibit No. 8) were presented to you, how would you

eit? A. I would take it as bis signature.
Q. And discount it if asked, I suppose? A. Yes.

Coasexamined by Mr. Macle.
On exhibit No. 6, "Thomas Scott and Joseph Thomson," are'nt they the same ?

I h y are similar. it looks to me as thongh they are the same person, although
e kwn Thomas Scott to sign similar to that one that is there, whether it may

his handwriting, the whole thing, or Thomson'à, I don't know. ,
QQ. Whosè signature would you swear positively that was to exhibit No. 1 ? A.-

ould not swéar it was Scott's signature.
By the Ôourt ,-

to Q. Do I understand you to say, with regard to No. 6, that you cannot speak
t the signature? A. I said that the whole of it-both Scott's signatures-14t be Written by this man Thomson. As far as I can judge, the handwriting
esOitnething similar.

>th In you; banking business, you have stated that you would discount that note,
ignature of that kind ? A. Yes.

SYOu would mnerely take your chances on it because it was made to Thomas
, was it not ? A. Yes.

. It would be endorsed by Thomas McKay before you would take it ? A. Yes.
% . When there is any doubt in your mind about a signature being any man's,
there'unt of your coming across so many signatures and seeing it very seldom -if
1%dr ls any doubt in youi mind, you don't take the note unless there is a good

'Oeer on it and if there is a good A-1 endorser on it, you will take the note, won't
A. Yes.

By Mr. Scott
ero M bo I understand you to say you would not have taken this signature on
lt4  exhibit without a responsible endorser ? A. No; in this respect I would take

c . istaKay't endorsement.
It Dashis 1Understood you to tell my learned friend, Mr. MaclIe, that you would take

Pose signature because there was a good endorser to it, is that what you said?
tat note, exhibit No. 8, was made to a person you did not know, would

ta ave taken it on the strength of its being Scott's signature ? A. Yes, I would
irbeing his signature.

r esPective of the solvency of the endorser? A. Yes, exactly.
tht Ould you take that signature in the same way (No. 1 exhibit); suppose

iMature, as there, was attached to a note, would you take that ? A. Yes, 1
d Le that as his signature.

W4]4All: CRA10, sworn :-
JkxOmined by Mr. Osler:

uheig Where do you live; in what neighborhood? A. St. Catharines, in the
ghoOGd of Prince Albert.Q Were ou present at a meeting held at the Lindsay schoolhouse, at any date

Q. A. I was not.
Q. *e you present at any meeting in March last ? A. Yes.
9. Were was it held ? In St. Catharine's church.

bmat day was it held ? A. It was held on the evening, Sunday, 22nd March.
Saclise.-There is no meeting referred to in the chArge at St. Catharine's
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Mr. Osler.-We dou't propose to say anything about that, but we are going.
give our evidence meantime.

Court.-Suppose ho does, may ho not bring out a faot on the charge of troas8oO
and afterwards connect, and then it would be for you to say, if it was not cnnec)®
to draw my attention to it, so that the jury could be instructed.

Mr. Maclise.-And if it was not connected, it might have its effect on the j0
Mr. Osler.-You will see, your Ronor, that each overt act is cbarged on a gi

date, and on divers other days and times.
Mr. Maclise.- Certain ly, but not places.
Mr. Osler.-We think so.
Q. Now, the meeting was a meeting of inhabitants held at the St. Cathar"10

church, on Sunday, 22nd March. A. Yes.
Q. Was the prisoner there ? A. He was there.
Q. What *as the occasion of the meeting ? A. The meeting was held in cons

quence of the Rev. Mr. Matheson, minister of that church, who had been at CarltOn
having been desired to come and hold that meeting, by Major Crozier, to ascorta10
the mind of the inhabitants at that crisis, and promote the interests of peace.therecollect the minutes of the meeting, as having been secretary, and those are
words of the minutes.

Q What was the state of things as to the rebellion known to that me,
A. Well, I cannot speak for what was known to other people definitely, but I kne*
myself, on the 20th day of March, two days previous to that meeting, that the Fr110

were said to be in arms, that they had looted a store or stores and taken or
prisoners; and I also knew, from having seen the volunteers under Capt. Martin a
Capt. Moore to start for Carlton on the 20th March, the Friday.

Q. Was that state of things generally known ? A. It was ; I believe it
.known to every man, woman and child in the place.

Q. And was that state of things the occasion of calling the meeting? A. Yes, it
Q. And the prisoner was there ? A. Yes.
Q. Now, did the prisoner do anything at that meeting ? A. HIe spoke.
Q. Had he any paper with him ? A. He had.
Q. Did he say what that paper was ? A. I cannot undertake to swear. ai
Q, What was that paper said to be by him ? A. The paper, from inte1

ovidence when he read it-
Q. What did ho say as to the contents? r
Mr. Clarke.-Not as to the contents-the contents of the papr must be P

duced, and they muet speak for themselves. The Crown had every facilitYf
having these papers here.

Court.-The witness makes an assertion.
By Mr. Osier %

Q. What words fell from the prisoners mouth on th at ocaion,so far s
can recollect, whether ho was speaking or reading ? Q. I cannot give thee
words of the letter. ll

Q. I ask you what was the effect of what ho stated, what ho said ? A. and
the effect was, referring as I understood the writing to do, to the statemonts
matters-

Mr. Clarke.-This is talking of the contents of that paper. 100
Mr. Osler.-What I contend for is that whenever a man reads a letter,

prove the words that fell from his mouth although I have not got the paper---
Court.-Yes. r l
Mr. Osler.--Although ho was reading or purporting to read from a paper.rtf'c

was something that fell from his mouth, and was communicated not by the t
but by his lips ; and if my learned friend contests that, that is the contention
poee to support. fr0 1

Mr. Clarke.-I object now, as a proposition in law, to what was read atLe
paper or from a letter by the prisoner or by anyone else being proved as being
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if bis lis. It was not his speech, it was the contents of a letter as much as
ere to ta e up any paper and read its contents.

Court.--He is asked what that man stated; he May give that.
e ' Clarke.-eo doos not know whether he reads it or not. If he were reading
ontents of the letter ho would be reading the thoughts of another and not hia

lwIn.
Court.-He makes them his own words.
Mir. Clarke,-I submit ho does not. It may have been a public document,

Ait would not be bis own words. I object to anything being stated ver bally by
'switness that was read by aiybody at that meeting from a paper or from a letter,
llOut the production of the paper or letter in question.
Court.-I rule that Mr. Osler may ask what the man stated.

S •r. Osler.-What did the man state with reference to that letter, or what did
purpor to state ? What did he say, in other words ? A Am I understood to be

rred from referring to anything that was in the letter ?
ta . No ? A. Well, the meaning conveyed to my mind, as I remember it, was,

of the council of the French half-breeds at St. Anthony were justifying the position
aitagoLni to the Government, and they referred to the necessity of fightirig, and

by uderstood the leLter generally, it was to call on the English-speaking half
We to su pport their movement. I cannot, as I have said, give you the exact

441 % id the prisoner say who the letter was from ? A. I don't recollect that ho
se0.
Q. bid the prisoner say anything further? Did he propose anything? A. Yes.

thq. 'What was it? A. After putting the letter in his pocket, ho suggested that
11%raeeting, that meeting then presont, should call upon those who had taken up

8 for the Government, to lay down their arms. 1 understood-I believe that is
early as possible the words as ho said thom. I understood him to mean volunt cers.

desi Q• -Did ho say anything further ? A. Yes, ho represented that it was veryr4ble that we should have a peaceable settlement of the thing, becauso the Indiais
to an the move, and ho gave that as a reason for asking the settlers or volunteers

4 down thoir arms, because if they continued to arm against them, the Indians'
t 1i• ri in greater numbers, and ho represented further that the hall-breeds bad

abinfluenc with the Indians, aLd if the settlers kept quiet, the half.breeds would
e t keep the Indians from breaking out.

e. Then, what else ? Was, anything said as to the mounted police ? A. Well,
eth'1 XPression was used to leave the French half breeds and mouLted police to settle

'atter a'Mong themselves.
Q That was to settle it among themselves ? A. Botween themselves ; yes.

SIay dThen, apparently, bis desire was to get the volunteers, as you understood it,own their arms ? A. Certainly.
A' -nd lot the half-breeds and the police fight it out? A. Yes.

eraI0q. UoW did he leave the meeting ? A. After ho had spoken, and after many
the feo spoken, I proceeded to speak myself ; and knowing, as I thought I did,

th ng of those present at the meeting, and knowing, or believing, at any rate,
'leih th 5Ynpathized very strongly with the French half breeds, as being acquainted

athy erf, and many of them near relations, I was not at al surprised at the sym-
% 1Pe e1 x.sting botween them; and knowing that. I believed it to be quite useless to:
to alated mneeting to declare against them so far as to fight against them, and I

a resolution.
Q' ouformulated a resolution ? A. Yes, I did,

fia ' ht did the prisoner do with regard to that ? Did you speak in tho interests
paicular course of action ? A. I did.

elen hat was the course of action ? A. I spoke in this way : I warned those
t t th meeting that this was not a question between the French half-breeds

bdl&orth-West Mounted Police merely, but between the rebels-I called them
a'4 the Dominion of Canada; and I told them what I thought some of them
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there might not know, that the Dominion of Canada had a very strong armed fo10
that they eould pour into the country in a very short time, if the Mounted PO
wore not able to cop with the rebellion; and even if it were so that the rebas go
the botter of therz :nion first, the whole power of the British Empire was beh p
it. After I had done so, others spoke, and one man got up and said : Well, gentle o
we want to fight; and another did so, and it became general talk all over the ch
thon. At that point Mr. Scott loft the meeting, and was not there when the reso
tion was carried.

Q. At a point where there was a general talk, that they did not want tO bo
arms ? A. That is the point at which ho left the meeting, so that ho did not
the resolution carried at all.

Cross-examined by Mr. Macliae :
Q. You say that the Rev. Mr. Matheson had directions from Major Crozier o

certain things at that meeting? A. Yes, I said 8o.
Q. And get the English alf-breeds to remain neutral was one of those d

tions ? A. I 4id not say 80.
Q. But that is what they did though, at that meeting wasn't it ? A. Yes. seQ. Didn't they state that hi@ directions were to do that ? A. He did not

Bo to me.
Q. Didn't Co. Irvine speak to you afterwards in approval of the fact that tI

French-English half-breeds had bn kept neutral, saying it was the best that 00
be done under the circumstanoes ? A. I went down and saw Col. Irvine as 80 011
he arrived at Prince Albert, I took a copy of the minute of the meeting, and s
mitted it to him along with the answer which by that time I had got from LofIl'
to these resolutions, and he approved of the course I had taken.

Q. Yon were a party to this matter of their remaining neutral, you were
amongst them ? A. Yes.

Q. Don't you consider you had authority for doing that ? A. From whool?
Q. Through Mr. Matheson? A. For doing which, seeing Col. Irvine ? ad
Q. No, with them joining in a resolution of noutrality ? A. I don't under

your question at all. the
Q. Well, when you joined in the resolutions, when you saw that neutrality Y r

best thing that oould be done, didn't you know that that expression was out Of o
Didn't you know that any intention of neutrality was out of order ? A. Corta"1
did. b

Q. Now weren't you fortified in your mind by the fact that Mr. MatheS hotâ
stated that ho was instructed to bring that about? A. Certainly not. Mr.at
never said so to me as far as I recollect. told

Q. Ie might have said so ? A. Well, I forgot if ho did. Mr. MathOson e
me that ho had been asked to come down by Major Crozier, and hold that and the
meeting which 1 know nothing about personally, to ascertain the minds 0
inhabitants and in the interests of peace. I reoollect the words very woll-

Q. Now you, by whatever principle actuated, joined with them in that eXP
sion ? A. I did.

Q. That neutral position ? A. i did. ho
Q. Now your settlements along there are in the direct route from Batoo

Prince Albert, are they not? A. In part they are so, and in part they are no 0g
Q. Don't all the trails join before they reach ? A. Well they ali join, bat.

direct towards Prince Albert you go through only part of our district. Lab:
Q. Taking the Ridge, don't all the trails from Carlton, Batoche and Da e

join before they get to the Ridge ? A. I understand they do. I have not bee
them lately, rodiso

Q. Isn't it a fact that the people were greatly alarmed, in case Of an d>
rising which they feared ? Didn't they expect their position would be erf
gerous ? A. Yes.
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thQ . They wished also to be notified if possible beforeband by thoir compatriote,
r relatives, the French people, if there was any da nger of an Indian uprising, di

ey not? A. I am not aware of that fact?
Q. You did not hear that expressed ? A. No.
Q. Aren't yon aware of the tact that he expected they expected in some way to

flotified if there was an Indian outbreak? A. I am not aware of the fact at ail.
Q. If they desired ? A. I am not aware of the fact.
9èrQ. Now, after this meeting of the 22nd March, you communicated with the

each council yourself, did you not ? A. Yes, at the request of the meeting, I was
secretary.
Q. It was done in the interests of peace, was it not, as yon tbought ? A. Yes.

VlQ. It was done also as part of the instructions to Mr. Matheson, was it not ? A.it, the meeting instructed me as secretary and I carried ont their instructions.
q. Didn't Mr. Matheson state that ho was directed by the authorities to do this?

Weil, I have just told you a littie ago what ho said to me, and yon told me that
Weuld tell you his instructions himself, so I refer you to them.
Q. Have you got a copy of the letter you wrote to Riel? A. Yes.
Q. Here ? A. Yes.
, Please produce it? (Witness produces this, and it is marked as an exhibit

A) Put in by defence, letter dated 22nd March, and here read.)
Q. It was on the 22nd March despatohed to Riel and the connoil? A. No; it
sent on the 23rd.
9. Did you get an answer to that ? A. I did.

Will yon produce it? A. I have the original answer from Riel, and I have

d Q. Have you compared the copy ? A. I bave the original. (Witness here pro-
2a4 the original which is marked exhibit " B," put in bydefence, dated St. Anthony,

Sarch, 1885-Letter here read.)
Q. When did you receive that ? A. I received it on Tuesday, 24th.
Q. Was it read to any meeting at all, after that ? A. No.

Was it ea to, anybody else at your house, settiers? A. Yes.
thatq. I Suppose you, as secretary of the meeting, made it pretty generally known

oo had received the answer ? A. Yes.
. Now, at that meeting you spoke of, Mr. Scott spoke first, didn't ho ? A. He did.

'Va. It was just merely a disoussion-Mr. Matheson was there and eleven others
let? el ; from this speech was there any intention on his part to stir up the peo-

A. 1 can't say as to that. I could not speak for his intention at all.
o B'ut the effect of his speech was merely that he thought it would be botter
e volunteer to lay down their arms ? A. Yes.

1 . You were afterwards captain of the volunteers there, were you not ? A.

t4 Ç It Was the same sort of volunteers thon that went to Carlton ? A. Well, we
ght We were botter.

g . Were you volunteers in a legal sense at all ? A. I can't tell you what is a.
see il, this country.

• Were you authorized to raise a corps of volunteers ? A. I was not.
' Yo had no authority whatever ? A. No.

t id Captain Moore have any such authority, as far as you know? A. I

yid e, as far as you know? A. I can't tell, I don't know anything about it.

xo atterwards were captain of a corps of volunteers ? A. I was.
No. 4, and that was No. 1 ? A. No. 3, I was.

3 .- Captain Moore was captain of? A. Yes.
' td o Were organized without any legal authority? Yon don't know whether

,6o a "'y standing as legal volunteers or not ? A. No, I don't know. I did Dot
ca 'elf unt i l the 31st day of March, when the commissioner issued a proclama-

en Ou all men thon in town between the ages of sixteen and sixty to enrol.
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t remained out of it with the knowledge and sanction of Commissioner Irvine uP I
then, because he said that I could perhaps do more good by keeping the half-breedo
in my district quiet, and it was botter for me not to join.

Q. And by keeping them quiet you might keep them neutral and from gol19
over ? A. Yes.

Q. You feit that living amongst those English half-breeds it was a great thing to
keep ihem neutral; that there was great danger to yourselves and your propertieß
in case you could not? A. Certainly, I did think so.

Q. Now, didn't the fact of volunteers going from Prince Albert to Fort Carlto
very materially endanger your positiôn there amongst those? A. I thought it did
I was against the movement. I had no authority. It was only my own persOn,
feelings.

Q. As far as you know, you were against this illegal organization of volunteers
A. 1N a, that was a different thing. I thought they made a mistake going to Carlt<>o"

Q. What effect would that have upon the Indians and French -that state
affairs ? A. I cannot say.

Q. Wasn't it anticipated to have the effect of bringing them all down frO0
Prince Albert? A. I have no means of knowing that at all.

Q. Whon those volunteers left Prince Albert, isn't it a fact they took almoPt a
the arms away and left Prince Albert and the country almost defenceles ? A. TheY
took the greater part of them, I understand.

Q. Now, might not Mr. Scott's remark with regard to the volunteers hab
referred to home protection ? A. I could not imagine that it did. He wished the
volunteers to lay down their arms, and how that could lead to home protectOni
don't see at all.

Q. They had gone away to Fort Carlton ? A. Part of them bad, but not the
whole of them.

Q. Almost all that had arms did ? A. But new men were being enrolled eVory
day, and quite a few wore there when I went down.

Q. low were they armed ? A. Some had shot guns.
Q. Some bad clubs? A, No, we did not descend to clubs.
Q. Most of then had nothing but shot-guns, wasn't it the case? A. The majoifft

of them had only shot.zuns; yes. iQ. Yours was one of the companies that were out every other nigbt, all r1ig
every man ? A. Yes. M h

Q. Will yon undertake to say that everybody knew that on the 22nd Marob
the French half-broeds were in arms; you had heard about the pillaging of stor
Ld you not ? A. Yes. beQ. Wasn't that ail you heard ? A. I also know, as I stated before, that h
volunteers had gone to Carlton in consequence of them rising. ed,

Q. Ail that you really knew at the time was that those stores had been pillag
was it not ? A. And prisoners taken. .-

Q. You heard tiat? A. Yes, I don't know yet that there was anything e
to know of anythinig. obQ. You don't know that the whole country about you ail that time knew as
even as you did about the state of affairs in the French settlement ? A. I did o
say it was impossible that I could have seen and communicate with every indivi
in the district, but everyone that I did see knew as well as I did. ot?

Q. Now, at that St. Catharine's meeting, Mr. Scott spoke first, did heo 
I could not say that he did. No, the chairman spoke first.Q But then he spoke before you did ? A. He did.

Q. And then he went eut? A. Yes, ho went out after I had spoken.
Q. Yeu would be sure about that? A. Yes; I spoke to him when ho was îd noe

out. I said that he had better remain and see the resait, and he said he woul
remai. Ic b

Q. Did Mr. Patterson say anything at that meeting ? I don't recollec t th
spoke publicly. He was present and he signed the minute as I read his nanlie tou
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9. Now, weren't Mr. Matheson's instructions as follows: Although the people
ed with the French in constitutional agitation, now that they had taken up armRt , the French, coul'l not expect them to support them in arms, as to which they

'*OUld romain neutral. Weren't those the instructions Mr. Matheson commu-
ted to the meeting ? A. I don't recolleet.
9. They might have been ? A. I am almost certain that ho spoke to that effect.

lth. le, speaking to the people, told them those instructions wore in this wise:

%keUgh t hey worked with the French in constitutional agitation, now that they had
o Up arms they, the French, could not expect them to support them in arms, as
Z:hich they would remain neutral. From all that you recollect, that mit

JuJst what ho said ? A. As I have said, it was to that effect; it is impossible to
en her the exact words.

le stated that those were authoritatively given as his instructions, did ho
A. No, I could not say that. As I remember it, he was speaking his own

in at the time.
%,oz3 You, already, in your examination-in-chief, said that ho was sent by Major

aler? A. Yes, but whether he was sent to say that or not, I can't tell. I know,
he said to, me outside the ohurch.

Q. Didn't you understand he was speaking with authority ? A. No; it might
m''ight not obe. I don't suppose it passed through my mind as to whothor it was

"t. I took it as his own views, and they coincided with mine.
% . You stated that you knew the position of neutrality was blameable, but yet
the best that could be done ? A. Yes.

Now, you won't state that Mr. Matheson, who was authorized, who was
'e by the authorities to go there and take these steps-you won't state that he

t e was authorized by the authorities to bring this matter of neutrality
<t A. No; I can't say that.

It might have been the case, however ? A. Yes, for all I know to th e

N ow, these resolutions that were passed there, according to what Mr.
t. said, were to be returned to Carlton, were they not, the originals ? A. No;

1%t o8n did not give any instructions to that effect; that was done by the

Who proposed it ? A. I proposed it myself; it is part of the resolution.
ow, isn't it a fact that Mr. Scott advocated the protecting of that Prince

country, and your country. A. At that meeting ?
Yes ? A. I am not aware of that fact.
) imay have done so ? A. I don't recollect it.
% l't Mr. Matheson state that Andrew Patterson was with him to return at

Carlton, with a minute of what was done there ? A. Yes, th at is quite right.
*h TO the'authorities at Carlton ? A. Well, I understood it was to the authori-

sere Wa nobody else to return to; and in point of fact hc did roturn with

Who were they directed to ? Who did you direct the par col to ? A. To

is far as you know, he took them back to Major Crozier ? A. Yes.
%t d you stated to us that when you told Col. Irvine afterwards who was the

Jr 0 istitUted authority in that district, as far as you knew. and supersoded
r, you stated to him the course that lad been taken, and ho approved

jj e approved of my individual action. I was only justifying myself.
t You moved the motion? A. le appoved of it this far, that he thought

the best that could be done under the circumstances.

"Y -Ur. Osler:
wh"n the document you have read, a copy of which was sent to the French

stuad"tand you to Fay that at the sama time a copy was sent up to Major
6 Ye, by a separate measenger.
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Q. So that of that document that you bave read here, a copy was sent to IJo
Crozier as well as to the rebels in arms ? A. Yes. I got an acknowledgment froul
Major Crozier, a copy of which I have in my pocket.

By Mr. Mactise:
Q. Will you produce that ? (Witness produces copy, which is read by hiln 'a

Inarked exhibit." C," for the defence.)

THOMAS MoKAY sworn :-
Examined by Mr. Scott:

Q. You live at Prince Albed ? A. Yes.
Q Where were you on the night of the 20th March ? A. Prince Albert.

On the night ? A. At Carlton.
Q. Where did you go, or did you go any other place that night ? AÀ

Batoche.
Q. Where to at Batoche? A. The council room, Riel's council.
Q. Were you alone? A. I went with Mr. Mitchell.
Q. For what purpose? A. I went to see the rebels, who had broken out tb

to see if I could induce them to stop the movement and not go any futher.
Q. Whom did you see in the room there? Did you see Riel ? A.

and a number of is counil.
Q. Anyone else ? A. Well, there was quite a number of French half-br

there.
Q. Where was the council room ? A. I don't know whose house. Itwa the

about the church which was burnt down. Since then I don't know who own&e
house.

Q. Was it on the ground floor? A. Yes.
Q. Did Mitchell remain there ? A. Mitchell was up and dowln stairs.
Q. Do you know of anyone else being in the house that night beside thoe

saW there ? A. There were several people up stairs. 01Q. Do you know any of those who were up stairs? A. I.saw some of therl
down, I recollect some of them that came down stairs. e

Q. Do you kiow of anyone else being there whom you did not see? . gis
prisoner was there-I recognized hi% voice. I did not see him, but I recogni did
voice. He was up stairs and came down and passed through the room. i
see him. I heard him speak. e

Q. And I suppose there eau be no doubt about its being him ? A. I bel
was him. ox

Q. Who were up stairs at the time you heard his voice there, up there any'
of the time ? A. Mr. Mitchell was up there at the time.

Q. Anyone else ? A. I don't know. There were quite a lot up and doWffl
Q. Did Riel remain in the council room all the time? A. No, he was t

<lown. IHe said there was a committee meeting going on up stairs, and ho I
ground loor and went up ë-tairs.

Q. Did he go up there at the time the prisoner was there ? A. Yes.
Q. He went up there saying it was a committee meeting ? A. Yes. .

'ne several times that I was disturbing the committee meeting, I was spe
loud.

Q. What was the state of the half-breeds in that neighborhood at the ti tf
1[ost of them gathered around Batoche were armed and taking prisoners,
were scattered all along the road, and carting over goods from Walters
store to some of the stores on the side of the river.

Q. That was the state of the country at that time? A. Yes.
By Mr. Maclise:

Q. Who directed you to go to Batoche? A. Nobody directed me.
Q. Who directed you to go there in the inerests-? A. Mr. KellY
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th Q. At whose instance did you go ? A. When I left Prince Albert I told
z' ople there I would go over immediately from Carlton; when I came to Carlton,

tz<ell was there, and he asked me to go over with him, and I suggested it to Major
Zier, and he told me very well, to go over.

Q. You went over in the interests of bringing ab>ut peace ? A. I tried to point
the wrong those people were doing, and the danger they were drifting in, and I
them so in the council room.

u hQ. You were in the council room in the same building as Mr. Scott ? A. Yes,
e ground floor.
Q. Yon heard his voice you say ? A. Yes.
Q. You don't know who ho was talking to? A. No.

t • .q It might have been to Mr. Mitchell? A. I thought at the time ho was
eir ng to Mr. Mitchell. It was something about that it was a cold morning, and ho

e ly made the remark it was cold. I am not sure it was Mr. Mitc!ietl, or that ho
got there that morning.9Q. Do you not know as matter of fact Mr. Scott cannot talk Cree ? A. I don't
W whether ho can or not.
Q. What do you think about it ? A. I don't know anything about it.
9. You knew Mr. Scott's deceased wife did you not? A. Yes.
Q. And you know Mrs. Thompson is his mother-in law? A. Yes.
Q. They are half-breeds are they not? A. Yes.

They were people of the Saskatchewan weren't they and not from Manitoba?
es, they were from the Saskatchewan.

They were original natives of the country, and claimed to have the rights of
a reds f Manitoba? A. They clai med the same as I myself; they were entitled1f-breed scrip.
% o' ow would it be a surprise to you to learn that Mr. Scott was there upon

earaO errand as you were, in a different manner? As far as you know ho may
been ? A. I don't know at all what ho was there for.

Q.n these volunteers went up to Carlton you were with them ? A. Yeo.
You were one of the officersof the company were you not ? A. No.

o were a volunteer ? A. Yes.
you remember a meeting held on the 17th March, or 18th or 19th, and

O zier there early in the morning brought down news of the volunteers ; do
taember the meeting held in the flats there the afternoon of the 17th? A. I

q.it, but I was not there.
Ntho you know anybody who was at that meeting? A. I heard several people

*It lasted most of the afternoon, did IL not ? A. I believe so, some time.
Did you see Capt. Moore after that meeting? A. Yes, I saw him before and

* id b e tell yon he had been at that meeting,? A. I don't know whether ho
nt 0tI understood ho was there.

you have taken an active part in having Mir. Scott arrested under this
al ve YOu not ? A. No, I have not. I have taken no part in the matter at

sn't it a fact at Fort Carlton you tried to get Andrew Peterson to lay ane reon against him ? A. No, I did not. I nover did anything of the kind. I
ýýèq id tinduce anybody to lay an information against Scott or anybody else.

n tdn' t you, afterwards, in presence of Col. Irvine at Prince Albert, ask Androw
Q *a. a information against Thomas Scott? A. I never did.
o t You tell Andrew Peterson you would have him arrested if ho did not?

'Y]ever did.
y n did not? A. No.

.knIOW that Mr. Scott is a very extensive farmer at the Ridge ? A. Yes.
~vo e know ho is one of the most successful farmers in the country ? A. 1
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Q. You know it was by the officers of the North-West Mounted Police and
through their orders they were cormpletely made waste during the rebellion ? A. 1
heard bis cattle and hay. I don't know anything personal about it, it was merOl 1

rumor.
Q. Had you anything to do with suggesting to bring him up ? A. No, I eveOr

had anything txo do with it at ail.
Q. You swear positively you did not ask Andrew Peterson, nor try to get bio

to swear an information against this man Thomas Scott ? A. I tel] you that I did
not do it.

Q. You never bad any conversation with Mr. Peterson about it? A. No, Mr.
Peterson told me wheu he came up with the resolutions. He handed them to me,an
and I took them over to Major Crozier, and he told me Scott was very active in trf
ing to pass a rebolution suggesting that the volunteers should lay down their arn"a
nd that sort of thing.

Q. Well, you are well acquainted with the IRev. Mr. Matheson, are you lo
A. Yes.

Q. He went up to Fort Carlton on Sunday the 22nd, ho was there to hold servie
was he not? A. 1 saw him there on Sunday the 22nd.

Q. You went to him early in the morning did you not ? A. Yes.
Q. What took place between you ? A. I asked him to go down to St. CathariSl'
Q. At whose instance did you do this ? A. I suggested it to Major Crozior anc

he asked me to do it.
Q. What did yon do? A. I asked Mr. Matheson to go down and catch e1C

people while they were having service at the churches and ask them to declare theI"
selves, find out what part they intended to take in the matter, and I told hiru th
Mr. Riel told bis people they had Mr. Scott there and some other delegates, and the'
could count on the support of the English half-breeds, and I asked him to go doW
and cail a meeting and ask them to declare themselves. I said I don't suppose y0o
can get them to declare in favor of the Goverument, but if yon can tel[ they W0b
support them in this rising of arms, it will be so much gaiied, it wili weaken
hands.

Q. It was in effect, to take neither side ? A. I simply asked him to find out Wha
they would do in the matter, and as I told him, i did not suppose ho would get t
to declare themselves in favor of the Govern ment, but if they said they would ren
neutral, that would be so much gainod.

Q. And you desired him to go up instead ot holding service, as he bad come
there with the intention of doing ? A. Tes, I suggested it to Major CroZ!Or, a
he thought it was a very good thing.

By Mr. Scott :

Q. You were in command of the scouts ? A. Yes.
Q. You derived authority from the cormmissioner of the yolice? A. Yes. $Q. Did you give them any instructions in regard to Mr. Scott's place ? Adot
Q. leu have already told us ihat Scott was a large farmer there. NOW' 'r"f

you know as matter of fact ho is surrounded by a large settlement almost o't
composed of English balf-breeds ? A. Yes, thet majority of the people thore are
lish half-breeds. boïQ. Do you know as a fact too that ho bas a great deal of influence Over
men to ? A. I don't know that ho has. b4'Q. You have some influence over them ? A. I don't know that I have. .0often come to me and asked me for advice, þut very often they don't folioW I4'
don't infer from that my advice has much influence with any of them.

Q. -Did the Government take any of his eattle by force ? A. No. gile
Q. You were asked about the 23rd March to sigu a petition by Williae'

wer you not ? A. No.
Q. Did you see Mr. William MiUler at all on the 23rd ? A. No.Q. Did ho ask you to sign any paper ? A. 1 0.

1U0



Sessional Papers (No. 52.)

Q. le did not? A. No, he did not.
Q. Did he ask you on the 24th to sign any paper ? A. No, not that I am aware of.
Q. Did he ask you about that time, before or after, within the space of a week

before, or a month before, or a month afterwards, to sign any paper ? A. No, not
gn any paper. He showed me a paper, a resolution that had been passed on the

5 - ometime about noon of the 25th.
Q And what did ho want of you ? A. Ho reroly stated that they had a meet-

g last night, and the resolution then passed--something about the laying down of
s. I don't know exactly what it was. I did not pay very much attention to it.

Àt the tirne I was driving with Mr. Miller to Carlton,
t Q Did vou make use of the expression then, to hell with the French ? A. N,
told him he could shove his resolution up his stern.

Q Did yoi say to hell with the French ? A. No, I did not.
By Mr. Scott :

Q. Is the prisoner's wife alive ? A. No, she is dead.
. Has ho any children ? A. They had a child. I think ho isàdead. I am not

P<sitive.
Q. How long is his wife dead? A. I think over a year ago. She was in very

IOOr health, and I think the child is dead.

By Mr. Maclise:
Q. His mother-in-law lives with him, and al ways has ? A. I belioev she lives
him. I have seen her there.

A. L. LUNEN sworn:-

Examined by Mr. Osler:
Q. You have had experience in a bank, I bolieve ? A. Yes.

Q. or some years ? A. Yes.
. What was your employment in a bank ? A. Well, I have had different posta.

HRave yon had occasion to examine handwriting and signatures? A. Yes.
b- .Now, that signature to Exhibit No. 6 is said to be Thomas Scott's, and, Er-

O 7 is said to be Thomas Scott's, and the signature to No. 8 is said to be Thomas
4 1,3a.nd the signature on No. 5, the post office return, is claimed by the Crown to
'O 5 1asScott's, and two signatures on No. 4 said to be Thomas Scott's, signature

Tom bas Scott's, and the signature on the paper attached to it, the declaration,
g te Thomas SPott's. Have yon examined that writing and compared with the
I1atre and writing in Exhibit No. 1, and have yon formed any opinion upon the

9in Exhibit No. 1? A. I think the writing in ail these papers is the same.
the]r U YOu say the signature, Thomas Scott, is the same as the signature in the

QPapers, Thomas Scott ? A. Yes.
• Y the same man ? A. Yes, I think so.

By Mr. Clarke :
%urt YOU have examined that paper, signed ".Thomas Scott " and witnessed by

else, No. 6 ? A. Yes.
Wthel, ohat do you say of that paper ? A. I think the handwriting is the

otrs.
You think it is the same ? A. Yes.

ow, You are.brought here I presume, as an expert? A. I don't know.
t' 'e" ii you look at that paper now, No. 6, and say on your oath is the wholeof

Iting not the same as the words, " witness, Joseph Thorpson " ? A. They
ry iuch alike. In fact they are very much alike in both cases.

9Y the Court :
he T whole writing of No. 6 is like that No. 1, did I undorstand you to say?

there is very great similarity between the writing.
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By Mr. Clarke,
Q. Will you compare the signatures on those three papers which we now put '

and file (exhibits " D " " E " and " F ") and others, with the signatures of Thomas SOt
that you have beeri trying to identify, and say which of them are Thomas Scott's signe
tures? A. I would not take those " D " to be Mr. Scott's. I don't think those
his. "E " and " F " might be his. d

Q. Now, looking at this other paper " G," point out the signatures that you he
there of bis, Thomas Scott's, bandwriting? A. 4, 5 and 6 I would take to be te
same writing as this No. 1 paper, and the one in thebond and declaration. .te
other might be and might not be. It all depends on what sort of pen you Wri
with.

Q. Whose do you think that (" H ") is ? A. This writing resembles No. 6.
is similar to the other writings.

Q. That No. 6 is like Thomas Scott's signature, or which do I understand ?
I don't know whether either of them are Thomas Scott's signature.

Q. What dg you mean ? Do you mean that those two writings are the E i
A. These two, 6 and" H " are the same, and these twô and all the others resenlp
each other very much.

Mr. Osler.-That is the case for the Crown, your Honors.
Mr. Clarke.-I would submit to your Honors, whether you think there is a

Io go to the jury in this matter. My opinion is that there is not.
Court.-Why? .
Mr. Clarke.-I submit that there is no case made out by the Crown with

to go to the jury in tbis matter, and for the purpoee of expediting business
preventing any more loss of time, I think it might be as well to have the opiniO"
the coutt on that matter, so that the jury may be directed accordingly.

Curt -Well, what are the grounds ?
Mr. Clarke.-The grounds are that the prisoner stands charged wih treas

felony, and the only thing that bas been produced against the prisoner is a le
whiob was written, suppesed to be written by him, and supposed to be sent by "
to the parties connected with an illegal outbreak, but at that time no proof of
in actual rebellion. Every uprising is not a rebellion. Every mob is not a r
lion. The steling of the goods in a store by a number of armed men does 'o0
atitute rebellion.

Court.-Not per se. eb ,
Mr. Clarke.-The takirg of goods on a highway does not constitute reb

Now, we have no act of rebellion pi oved here that I can see, in which or with ' ro1
the prisoner is in the most remote degree identified. I submit that there is no pr l
that that letter that is brought up, and on which the changes bave been rui3ngW
less than thrce or four places in the indictmet-that there is absolutely no Pafe
that that is the prisoner's writing nt all or how it came there. It is truc we
proof that some of the Crown witnesses were in direct communication with peP 1

who were charged with that rebellion. ad th
Court.-Well, you say that the letter is not proved as the prisoner's, a

there is no other evidence? ead i
Mr. Clarke.-There was no evidence whatever to show that the prisoner A

notice that there was such a thing as rebellion; and there really was not untalit
the attack upon the police at Duck Lake, and that with reference to any cUI PertaIP
or criminality, if you will, onp the part of the prisoner in trying to make Itra
parties, a very large, a very influential part of the community, remain e of
submit the authorities were those who gave the cue and those who sent theoi
oficers and their own emissaries for that very purpose. Ve the

Urder those circumstances I submit to your Honor that I do pot beli1O.rf
is a case to go to the jury upon which any man should be put on trial and b

Imperilled. very
Mr. Oser-I submit to your Honors that there is not only a case bo a

strong case. On the question of the proof of the letter, I submit that there 1
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'Pnof of original writings, that cannot be questioned. There is evidence by au
OPert of the comparison, but in all such cases there is not only the evidence of the

eýPort where original writings are produeed, but there is the rigbt r'f the jury to
ethe papers that are brought in as originals and proved to be originals, and com-
eXrO them with the writing charged to be the prisoner's. They bave also to consider

e circumstances under which the letter ie found, and the circumatances under which
tPisoner was placed, and say is it likely that he was the wiiter of that letter,

the evidence that there is of comparison bere, and their own means of looking
ý1i the various papers, and saying whether or not it is original. Upon the question

of handwriting, that of course must go to the jury. If the jury after hearing
i. Lunen's evidence and after examining the undoubted originals, criginal writings

e Prisoner with the paper alleged to be his, that it is not bis, why then of eourse
at eliminates that branch of the case, but it must be eliminated by the finding of%o jury, it must be passed upon by then as matter of fact. That letter alone then,Çught home to the priÈoner is enough for the jury to pass upon and it is not for the%trt to rule-it must be for the jury to say whether that letter is not in the words

dictment aiding, consulting, or aiding. comforting, assisting and maintaining.
at at, standing on the wriing alone, I submit there is an ample case; apart from
of course there isa very Perious case made by theprisoner-againstthe prisoner,

tParticulars ot wbich 1 need not go into, as my learned friend bas not, but as far
e Crown is concerred, we cau only take the responusibility of saying that it is a,
We think tbat oogbt to be passed on by the jury.

eldCourt.-1 don't think that 1 have the power of stopping a case. T have always
ethat opinion that where ajury are empannelled I cannot stop a case and they

b 'ights they are a part and parcel of the court. . I may simply give my opinion
P' the evidence, but I don't think I would stop it. I see no reason to alter that

n and J bave held it for the last six or seven years, sud I shall ask you, Mr.
1 * for your defence. My reason for holding as I do, is that I have notthe power,
1'gl1t to order a diseharge.

. Clarke.-I submit to your lordship that you have. It is not a question of
natter of law, there bas not been any legal evYdence adduced against the

CoÏrt -There is this ev'dence-taking Mr. Craig's alone that the rebellion was
% lly reported as having broken out.

r- Clarke. -It was reported generally to him, hc happened to have papers in
d4rocket from the rebels wbich lie read in the dock. Now, in what wag- are

out se to the jury regulated in this court ? I may bc getting into a bad fix with-
OWin) it.

ir. Os er.-I will tell you how I understand them. The ordinary practice under
rtaute which is in force here in our courts in Ontario, iq for th p (sner's counsel

] t call his evidence and then speak generally in the case, ho can however open
before giving evider ce; if he opens his case before giving evidence, thon he is

'la his second speech to summing up his own evidence; and that statute is

trat Court.The usual course that has been adopted has been te eall the witnesses
10 weitbout any opening, and then take a general opening, with the Crown's right

ont rr, Osler.-The inconvenience that I have found in defence is that you cripple
ey roePY by your being confned to summing up your evidence, butin the Riel case

e7ç6ened and closed that way.art-Do you intend to call witnesses, Mr. Clarke ?
leny • Garke.-O, yes, I intend to call witnesses. Gentlemen of the jury, my

dý tiend, Mr. Osler, counsel for the Crcwn, opened his case and stated what he
dt hepRoner with, and what he inter.ded to prove against the prisoner. The

iont Waq r'ad 'o you, and you heard all about that. Boiled down, it arnounts
tbat there was a great deal of dissatisfactidn and excitement in that part of
ltry, Principally between the half-breed population, whether French or Eng-
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lish, they were dissatisfied. Now, in submitting to you the proposition with rofe
ence to the lissatisfaction, there were certain things that were alleged by the lersl
counsel for the Crown that we cannot afford -we cannot, in 1 ho performance of Q9
duty, allow to pass unchallenged. To do so would be to admit that the people of te
country were, not only disloyal, the whole native population and a great deal Ofthe
population that is not native to tris country, that they were disloyal in the extreO' 9 '
that without having any grievances they resorted to rebellion. Now, that is the
proposition that the learned counsel submitted to you, and when ho said that b
went on to show you examples of what should be done, of what constituted IoyalW'
and what constituted disloyalty. He went on to say that it was the.duty of
people to wait and bear and submit until time should remedy all the evils that t
complain of, and he told you that history taught you. so, Well, if it be the case,
history that my learnud friend has read and the history that I have read, contiwhob
each other in a most extraordinary manner. Froma the firet moment of the dawo
history, the struggles of the people against their oppressors filled every page, he4
the achievements of the suffering people rising in their might and crushing be
tyrants are the brightest pages with which history is gilded and handed doWol
an example of what our forefathers have done, that we in time should do, sh
tyranny ever dare to lift its ugly head in our midst. That is what history
taught me; but the learned counsel says that the subject must bear patiently,
continue to bear. When Nero sat on the highest building in Rome while theo
capital of the world was being ournt, it was nenessaî y that his slaves should patiolUY
submit and allow their monarch to enjoy his littie pastime, and not say a word

Wben the people ot Eingland oppressed by their tyrants and by their kings, a
the old barons of Runnymede drew from the king the great charter, the chartr
the people's rights, we are to be told that thQ barons should have bowed low and
the most modest key say to the king, we subinit to everything, and we will i
our serfs submit to us, or we will crush them under our heels. Did history ever
you so? or does not all history contradint the assertion ? When your forefathers
England, and Ireland and Scotland and Canada-when they were oppressed,
they submit tamely like slaves?--and if they had submitted tamely like siaves
slaves they deserved to\suffer that the chain should gall them still, and that
their necks should be the yoke of slavery and of serfdon to the end of all ti 06e-
.gentlemen. it is no portion of the duty of a loyal man to submit to tyran ny o
part of the authorities, but it is the grossest, the veriest tyranny, the veriest treat
to the rights of the people, that any Crown or any Government should dare
oppress those who have put thémselves in their power, and to refuse them reorThis was exactly the position that these unfortinate half-breeds were in in theo
West British Canada, and we are told they have no grievance, noue whatever.,

Lot us see if they had any grievance. The Crown alleges they did not. We
issue with the Crown, and we will show that they nad grievances. Then the quee
will be, did they resort to the proper course to try and have those erievances red Wl0
By the agreement entered into between Sir George E. Cartier and the Hon. loe'
Macdougall, representing Canada, in London on the 8th February, 186, b e
the delegates from Canada, for acquiring the North-West Territory, and the Hht'.
Bay Company, these are the conditions: That Canada should undertake the
and the obligations of government, and legislate in respect of those terrir
second, that the rights of any company, corporation or individual withi h be
tories should be respected, and that provision should be made for that purpO.0
placing those rights under the protection of courts of competent jurisdictiona
is the condition upon which Canada obtained this vast country, and the con th
made by those who were handing over, as it were, the rights of the peOPle rO'
country to their new masters; that they were to establish courts of competen st!
diction to uard and secure to the people their rights as their birthrights If
country.N ow, gentlemen of the, jury, who makes that promise? It is '.
made by the representatives of Canada; it is solemnly entered into by tWO 'l'
of the Crown; by two of ler Majesty's advisers. It was a contraot-a
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''atOred into solemnly on behalf of the government or the Crown, and it was for the
e "POse of securing the rights of the people. Now, gentlemen of the jury, what
e"e those rights ?Therights that were granted under the Manitoba Act, and under

Other conditions that were made with reference to the transfer of this counsry.
the Indians should be properly and honorably dealt with by the government of

1. country; third, that the claims of the Indian tribes to compensation for the
e required for the purposes of settlement should be considered and settled in.

Srmty with the equitable principles which have uniformly governed the Britisk
u in its dealings with the aborigines. These were the two special conditions to
I intended to refer, to show whether these people had grievances or not
the reasons why those things became necessary, more necessary than ever,

11a y they were sanctified, 8o to speak, by the Manitoba Act in reference to a
Portion of the North-West Territory, was becanse, although that contract had

eftered into by the Government, still the people of Red River settlement,
tra e the completion of the contract, discovered that they were going to be sold and
t0re erred like chattels or live stock, along with the land that thomselves and their
to athers had occupied for sixty years, and that no attention whatever was going
%Î Paid to their rights, nor were they to be secured to them by any legal meani.;

t Yore to wait, in fact, until it agreed with the convenience of the govera-
a new country, to them strangers, when and where, and upon what condition

%,t.rights were to be secured to them, they appealed to this clause of the arrange-
Where are these courts of competent jurisdiction ? The Hudson By Coin-

Ssid: We will accept no such court of competent juriediction to settle our
, because we have not sufficient confidence-we have not sufficient confidence

l courts that you will establish ; but the people of the country were satisfied;
ga courts of competent juriediction are established to defend their rights and

% Uthm, they were satisfied. But no such court was about boing established ;
tf Jnntry was about being handed over, the governor and his ready-made council
ta ou Were sent up from Ottawa to govern tho country that had not yet beea

e-,ed over to the British Crown by the holders of it under the British Crown. Mr.
geQoU gal and a ready-made government wore sent up from Ottawa before the

p a proclamation had even issued, or before a time had been fixed for it6
g, to take possession of the country. What was the rosult thon ? Why,

inen, thï e result was that this same Louis Riel-then a yonng man in the
a f his youth, and just " new from collego "-h came there, and ha took the

4 0 g his countrymen. He demanded that their rights should ba seoured;
t taken that demand was refused, and when they talked of sending an armed force
ticàk Possession of the country, the Hudson Bay Company's post was taken poss-

Sll the Governor in Council of Assiniboia who had been dormant or slee ping dur-
ed is time were overthrown, and the result was the rebel governmenL, as i was
ti, O as established for the purpose of securing the rights of the people. Now,Ord of the jury, lot us look whether there was a rebel govern ment there or not'?

%O hey rebel against ? What right had Canada to tako possession thon? As
gO t as you or I would have te go down and take possession of a portion

.40e nterritory ? The Crown had not given her any authority to take possession.
tjrae proclamation had not beon issued. But the people who were guilty of
o d aist the constitutional law of the nation were the Govern ment of Canada,in - &Oto put their feet on ground that did not belong to them, and sent a Gover-

cil to govern over that which had never been ceded to themr. There the
-i Were right, and the French half-breeds and the Bnglish half-breeds went

l gether, and they said: You may sell the land, but you shall never
S o lo with the land, and they would have been less British subjects had

4 • nati it, and they would be unworthy of holding the position of free men insc 1~0u had they allowed thomselves to be sold with this soil without raising
til Po8tulation against it, and called upon the Queen to protect them. They

a the Queen and she gave thom protection, and she told the Dominion of
shall not sond a solitary stranger into the North-West Territory, nor will
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-we allow a solitary stranger to go there until the vested rights of the people sb
lirst have been secured to them by Act of Parliament. Hence the Manitoba AoV
Then it was that Queen Victoria, speaking from the Throne, told her servant$ 1t
Vanada, yon must nut (are infringe upon the rights of the weakest of my subot'
uway in that far north land that is shut out from the world during six months of
year,though to them as dear as those that surround home in the old world,and you
-mot dare to infringe upon thoir rights; and why do we appeal to our mother sit
:apon the Throne ? We always feel that we will receive that which the British Coby
Iatitution declares to be the birthiight of a British subject. And then the Maulob
,Act was passed, and by that Manitoba Ace 1,400,000 acres were set apart for child0
e half-breeds, heads of families, and it was dete mined that the old settiers shO
have some claims. Men who came in with Selkirk, men who came in from 181 t>
:&i820 who travelled down from Churchill where they came in by way of Hudson o

good old Scotchmen and women that walked down, and when their mothers-s
,of those that are being arrested to-day and thrown into gaol, when they left the ra
,of their devotion to their native land, left them marked on the crisping snowb
1fieir footmarks were imprinted upon that snow marching down there in the depl tob
-winter until they struck the Red River settlement-the are the titles that S
'balf-breeds have to consideration at the hands of the British Crown. TbeY
3bere to preserve this country to the British Crown, and the British Crowna
:allow no bastard off-shoot to ever trample on the rights of the people t,
people as they; be sure of it. Yes, gentlemen, these men that came 1nuthe
-nen and women that came in from 1815 to 1820, such as the Gunns, and the who
lands, and the Bremners, and dozens of 'others that I might mention, some Of et
have only passed away witbin a few short years, some of themà who are living Ye
*ome of those who came into this country when it was a perfect wilderness, who uty
imto it before some of our forefathers were born-these mon are still in this coa
and they see that their children to-day have not been fairly dealt with by thOse
entered into a secret compact with tpe Crown of England that they would deal fo'
by those people. The Manitoba Act secured to the half-breeds, heads of favail edel
children, secured to them 1,400,000 acres that was to be divided among thoso ch"
'witbout any loss of time.

low was it done ? To-day, in the city of Winnipeg, at the end of fifteel
:after that soleinn pledge to honor and faith of a Government that was just co
into existence to take its place among the nations of the earth, that honor thatS <o
leas unsullied, as unspotted as the virgin who goes to the altar, that houor id
pIedged, and fitteen years of peace your Honors have been spent, and the piedgir
Iaredeemed and tbe half-breeds heads of families are fighting for the rights '.t o
00hildren to.day at Winnipeg, Ottawa and Prince Albert, and bere in the ca. i
this North West Territory. They have not received their rights yet. 11o 10' b
"The faith f a Government was pledged that courts of competent jurisdiction 5 r
Ie established, and that these rights would be secured to the people under th0, ,oea
of competent jnripdiction. Where has the pledge been redeemed ? No suc li"
las ever been established, no court of competent jurisdiction has ever been eS t
:a8 a court of claims in which half breeds could obtain their rights and by wi e
Tightp could be protected, but we have proof that there has been somethiing do as
lave it printed by and ait the order of the Government of Canada. What b
1l01ee? We have the proof that the rigbts of the people, the half-breeds, Wer .

aecured to them, in tact that they were told that everything had been doue Oe
aMost complete manner possible, and here is what they say in reference to tt r
<p4Poduciug it) is the report of the Department of the Interinr for lst yes 5
printed by order of Parliameint, ard laid upon the table during this last Sessror
-report is printed ard it is signed by the deputy of the Minister of the li
£ertami Mr. Burgess. Ie says, at page 11: cCd b

The Olaims of Ihe Old Settlers.-At the time the offices of deputy b, 1
MUrveyor general were separated, and Mr. Lindsay Russell was charged t
4duties appOrtailig to the latter position it was provided that he should i'e'
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e4ttle the claims to land by virtue of long occupation advanced by old settlers
%the North Saskatchewan."

Ow, there is a court of competent jurisdiction. One official in the Department
eInterior at Ottawa, at the end of fourteen years is named, during the time he

.nothing else to do, to look after this arrangement, and when it was found that
'nssel's health did not admit of bis visiting the settlements, an Order in Council
passed remitting this portion of bis work to the Land Board. Accordingly, early

%t o ear, Mr. Pierce went to Prince Albert (now mark this, gentlemen) Mr. Pierce
ririce Albert and from there to Battleford and Edmonton and St. Albert,

made a personal, careful enquiry into all claims of this class, at those places,
the result that ail, with one or two exceptions at Battleford and Edmonton, havo-
foinally and satisfactorily disposed of, the only claims of old settlers remainirig
atied are at Lac la Biche, Victoria and Battle ]River. Gentlemen of the jury, that

8.]nbli document. That is taken on the floor of the House of Commons in England
la nthentic documeont. It is officiai. It is published by order of Parlianent. It
he a eport of an employé of the Government of Canada, of the Deputy Minister, aun

l tys to the world in that printed report, printed by order of Parlisment, that the
ttlers' daims at Battefo'rd and Prince Albert and all these places bave been

% yand satisfactorily settled during the last year. Gentlemen, is it necessary to,
dict this? Is it necessary that I should contradict it? It has been contradicted,

tiOntradicted in a way that will never be foi gotten by some hearts that are sorrow-
to.day until thoEe hearts sball have ceased to beat. Before the ink was dry in which

e 'ePOrt was printed, lying, misleading scandalous report-before the inik was dry
o1ntradiction went back, hurled back to the floor of the louse of Commons of

dowaaani was sent to the whole world in the death cry ot those who were being shot
IbJI'bY the outraged people who were being lied into subjection by order of the

I latent in printed reports such as that is. The contradiction went to the world that
,e'tifactory settlement had been made, when the rifle ball began to claim what hadi

Ot .eftused to the settlers' humble petition and demand; and, unfortunately, instead
een of1g the people who wrote and concocted those lies that suffered, it was the young

this young ccurtry whose hearts had to become the breastwork of those who,
tieheating the people by such statements as those, and meet the consequences%teien, are you to be told after this these people have no grievances? Why,

1 t the contradiction. This Governmeit, that for fifteen years had turned a deaf
atd.cries and the petitions, to the meetings and to the resolutions of these people,,Iy dthey do? When battle presented itself, then they hurriedly did that which-
o ~edgd themselves to do fifteen years ago and never fulfilled. They appointed

e tl t of COmpetent jurisdiction. They appointed three commissioners to come up to
0f erthb-West Territory and amid the carnage and roarof battle to settle the claims
t a Peple. Ilow great the falsehood was between that time and this ! Up to

0 ago that court of competent jurisdiction of three commissioners had settled
' ,l"ms after the battle tegan and amid the smoke, whereas the Minister tells

hbe 1ld that they were all finally and satisfactorily settled one year ago. Who is
he eved ? That statement that went to the world with the seal and stamp,

%Io fattficate of being a public document and printed by order of Parliament, or
set 'at the commission have already settled nearly 2,000 claims, and they are

0lg them ?
%tQit > gentlemen, when we are told that these people had no grievances, I admit

t v simple duty to prove to you that they had grievances, that they had
er ,g grievances, that men who were in the prime of life fifteen years ago, the¾tibeï Young children, that their sons have grown up to be young men with their

ae g turn around them, and that the man who was in the prime of life fifteen
t ts now old and grey, and his life nearly worn out, and still the claim that h&

14 trotplece of waste land in the North-West Territory be is still waiting for th&

eof; asnd we are told by the representative of the Crown that these peopl1
vances i
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Now, gentlemen of the jury, having those grievances, what were they j tified
in doing ? They wore justified in using every constitutional rneans that the Britisg
law gives to the subject to try and secure, to try and force recognition of their claims.
'They bad the right to 4o that. The British constitution gives them that right, tbe
right of expressing their grievances, the right of petition, and it is a right that is s -
e8acred to every British subject as is the right to enjoy his life and liberty, and th9
man, or party of men, who attempted to infringe upon their right is or are guilty of
a breach of the law, and thiat breach bas been proclaimed to be snch at a time when
there was not half the liberty in England that there is now. As long ago a the t me
of Charles, it was proclaimed that anybody who dared to interfere with the right of
meeting, with the right of petition, theyw.re guiltyof a high crime and misdenee nor,
.and some members of Parliamentof England because they attempted to do that thing
-were not only expelled from the House, but they were very near losing their heads on
the block, because they dared to interfere with the right of meeting and the right of
petition of the people of England. On the 20th October, 1680, in the reign of Charles Il
the Commons of England resolved, withoat any dissenting voice, that it is and hath
ever beon the undoubted right of the subjects of England to petition the king for the call-
ing and sitting of Parliaments for the redressing of gribvances, and it resolved that to
1-raduce snch petitioning as a violation of duty and to represent it to Ris Majesty as ta-
multnous and seditions is to betray the liberty of the subject, and contributes to the design
of subverting the ancient legal constitution of this kingdom, and of introducing arbi-
trary power. Now, when the learned coupsel for the Crown tells you that they had
no right to hold meetings or to do that which led up to what unfortunately culnin-
ated in a revolution, ho is going outside of the law, ho is telling you that whioè
«innot be in any way sustained by law, or by usage, or by custom under the British
system. We have the right, we have more than that. In the Consolidated Statutes
of Canada, provision is made whereby the subjects of Her Majesty in any part of the
Dominion have a right to call the publio meetings to appoint their chairmen, to
7appoint thoir secretary ; and to interfere with that meeting, when so organized, is a very
high misdemeanor and punishable severely at law by statute. What did these poor
people do? It cannot be for a moment sunposed that the half-breeds of the Saskatche-
wan or those around Battieford are acquainted with all the customs and the usages of
civilized life, that they are in a position to say just exactly what words they shoul4
use and to keep outside of the fangs of the law; what words they should use so as to.
have the greatest force with those than are acting or are supposed to be acting for

hem down at Ottawa. They mot, however, gentlemen, they have been meeting for
years past, their petitions have gone to Ottawa, their resolutions passed at their meet-
ings have been sent there, no return bas been heard, it was worse than a refusal,
they were treated with that contempt that galls a man far worse thana direct and
positive refusal. Yon ask a benefit from your friend or fron your neighbor, and if he
does not deign to give you an answer, but turns his back upon you, do yon not feelit
ton times more grevious than if ho said I won't, and was done with it? That is the
way they were treated. Petition after petition went-the thing is notorions, they
have appeared in the press, their petitions have been spoken of in the House, on the
floor of the House; they had petition upon petition, they had meetings, they passed
resolntions, they asked for their rights and why were they not accorded to ther=?
Why were they not accorded to them? Why did they not give them their 240 or
160 acre scrip, and let the vultures who follow around the commissioners eat it up as
fast as possible ? You know that these poor people no sooner get hold of that scrip
than there is a species of vulture who follows on the track of the commissioners, and
has it from them in a few short hours for $30 or $40, and in some cases for $25. You
know this. . Why did they not give it to them at once and let them be done with it ?
Why did they keep these people in turmoil and in distress all these years ? Why
4id they dare send surveyors to eut off a portion of their lands, so that they might
square their own townships ? Io it because these people are weak ? Is it because
they had no representatives in Parliament, that their rights should be trampied upon,
and that they should be treated worse than the Government dared treat thelIndians,
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>se there was sufficient in them of their Scotch and French forefathers that they
or.years patiently but complainingly bear up against the injustice that was being

Sthem ? Patiently but complainingly they bore!it all. They bore it from day to,
« nd from week to week, and from month to month, until 4fteen years had rolled
* d, and still they were as far from a settlement as they were fitteen years ago;
stil we are to be told to-day they had no grievances. They had, they calied
.e meetings. The prisoner at the bar here, Scott, was one of the people wbo-
aded those meetings, and we are told that he was a white man and

he could not have any grievance at all, he could not have any
in other words, simply his wife was a half-breed, his mother--
who is living still, is a half-breed. They both had their hatf-breed

and those halt-breed claims by right belonged to him and to his children.
t right had they to keep those claims back ? Is it the might of right ? Because
the Minister of the Interior or a member of a Government, and a servant of the
ei s that the reason why I have a right to trample upon your rights, and to

%that, weil, when it p;eases me you will get it ? You have got to patiently wait,
] ht 1s they say, your duty as a subject, to wait until it pleases me to give you that
1b which the law tells you is yours. Is that the position yon take ? I think not.

oe the day will neyer corne in Canada, or in any portion of Her Majesty's.
ions , when the people will lie down like slaves and submit to be treated in thath4rer.
OW, gentlemen of the jury, these people held their meetings. Unfortunately-
tterngs were treated with contempt. They sent their petitions and no notice

) taken of them. They had no representation in Parliament, because you knowv
4it Ple in the North-West Territory here are in a transition state, you are gov-.
te by a council, and you are hkely to be governed some time yet by a couiicil, and

Who are fortunate enough to have the ear of the council may probably be very
4 ,là_rons in your realm in a worldly v'ay, but, at the same time, it is rather galling to(
)t îsh subject to feel that tho Parliament, that the court that makes and establishe-

for bis government, for bis direction, laws to which he bas to submit-that h&JObody to represent him there, to see whether he is satisfied with the laws that;
ade or not. That is the positio of the North-West Territory. You are tolU
Population is net sufficient. Well, Manitoba had not one-fourth, one-tenth the
ation that you have now when she had four representatives in Parliament.

Columbia, with her 60,000 ail told, inoluding Indians. had a representation of
s thn eix members in the House of Çommons and three in the S3nate, but,

being the people of the North-West Territory, being only mere white men,
h ritish subjects, you have no rights whatever,'and you have no right to b

in the Parliament of Canada. If that state of things is to continue, why,
' canot compliment yo upon being the citizens of the North-West

in and I must say that if I were in this eountry during the time that these
Were going on it is more than likely I would have stood to-day alongside of

r of any other man, independent man, who stood up and demanded his rights
e Or should demand them, at the hands of the Government that ho haa

' tor the purpose of performing their duty and securing rights to the people.
fraidat time there was nothing thut Scott or you or any of you, gentlemen, had to

tt - O r ashamed of, but rather that you had to be proud of. You had a per-
4otnht to demand, at public meetings, and by petition, all these things; but,.

t ately, the French hall-breeds and some of the English half-breeds, seeing
heiey had ro leader in the country, in an unfortunate hour had the tempter como
t Qn the shape of one or two men who had been primed for that purpose by-

th .ow cast for death up at the police barraos-Louis Riel. They remem-
s in 1870, when the fiudson Bay Company and Canada were about to takee

fr Of their rights without giving them any security-that Louis Riel stepped
s f l' Now, that first rebellion of Louis Riel, but fôr the murder of Thomas
ta eold-blooded, callous, brutal, unnecessary murder, but for that, there was

o aois Rie and bis followers that was notseonded and endorsed by the
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Crown, for that secured to them the rights that they had set up and demanded
when the Governmeut of Assiniboia was too weak or to contemptible to do il;
but Scott was murdered and Louis Riel and Lepine were charged with the 1.
der. They were charged with the murder, and Lepine was put on his
and sentenced to death, and Riel would have been the same, but he
too cowardly to await his trial. He left the country, and was declared an Outla
Which of the two mon was the botter man ? The man who stood his ground ?
when the constable was sent to arrest him, the same man who notified Riel to
away notified' Lepine, and ho said no, I was assured by men of education who W
in this country, that in standing out as I did, elected by the people to an office. b
the whole thing was legal and constitutional, if I have committed a crime ag
British law, I am man enough to stand my ground and be punished for that cr11
by British law, and ho did. He stood bis ground. He was tried for bis life a0'
sentenced to death, and the British Crown, sympathizing with what led up to tbs
unfortunate murder, not only ordered through their representative, Lord Dufer
that ho should not be executed, but his sentence was commuted to imprisonment
the common gaol for two years without ha'rd labor, and ho is a f ree man
Louis Riel was an outlaw. He was so declared. It was declared that he shouldlis
his civil rights in Canada during life, and ho went to the United States, and there
became a citizen, it appears. Who cares whether ho did or not ? It is a matteOr
the merest indifference to us. In an unfortunate moment those who had pass
through the former rebellion, some of thoir fathers, they spoke about Riel. 3
8aid, is it not strange that during fifteen years all the people in Manitoba andu*
North-West have not been able to do as much with the Parliament of Canada,
the Crown of England, as that man Riel did in six months ? We will send for 1
and they sent for him. Who ? Was it Scott sent for him t Why, gentlemeno
of the witnesses that were in the box to-day sent for him. They subscribed tOW'v
his ooming. They took part in the meetings. Now, I will show you that at thio
meetings that took place that Scott appeared as the represontative of his half-b
wife and bis half-breed mother-in-law, and ho demanded the rights that belOng t
those members of his family. He had a grievance, and ho had a right to be at,,
meetings. Riel came, and Scott was named on the committee to invite Riel, to
preparation for Riel coming to the country, and the moment Riel came to the 0 n
gentlemen, we will show you that Scott instanter retired from that committe
immediately retired, and ho resigns from that committee. Others subscrib '
bring Riel into the Country. He never subscribed a penny, but refused to
Others, after ho arrived in the cquntry, subscribed towards bis maintenan 0 1.
Country. Scott never subscribed one cent towards that object. Now, the obje
this prosecution is to try and identify Scott with this rebellion. That is what
appear at first glance. It is nothing of the sort. That is not it at all. It is thiste
French half-breeds, a number- of them have been arrested, and a number of thoo
bave been convicted. A number of Indians have been arrested, and some o
have been convicted. Now, to ploase the Province of Quebec, we must COn
white man, we must convict a white man or we are gone at the next elOthAs
Gentlemen, this is not a criminal prosecution. It is neither more nor less ias
political persecution, and I now say that with the intervention of six men, I ce
to what party in politics they belong-I scorn to appeal to political feeli"'ge
principles in the matter, in a matter of this sort, but with six honest mon befO tho
I defy the Crown to find that man guilty of any act that is illegal and agai a
British constitution. On the contrary, ho stands there to-day before you a a y
man as sits in the box, and as loyal a man as sits on the bench, and as lOYl. t00
as sits at the counsels' table, the only risfortune is that he happened tO ha
impudence to go to public meetings to demand the rights of himself and his l
and to give that demand in unmistakable language, such as an honot r1an
never fear to utter. "Such is my right, I demand it" b a

Louis Riel was sent for. Louis Riel came, unfortunately for Canada, un1fo869
for this country. Louis Riel came back, but was ho the same Louis Riel of o
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? No; with all the outward form of the same man, the man was -not there.
hi1 1an of 1869 and 1870 was as intellectual a man probably as you could meet, of
thage, on the continent of America, a man of sound mind and sound judgment; but

hfe that ho led during the five or six years was enough to drive any man crazy, and
b came crazy, a dangerous lunatic, a very dangerous lunatie, as dangerous in a com-
f ity as a rabid dog. There is no doubt of that, but these unfortunate people, these

4 frtunate French people, half-breeds, are not medical men. They are not experts
'nsanity. In this court you have the spectacle of half a dozen or more medical

sà-5ome of them proclaiming that Riel was a innatie, others proclaiming that ho
sperfectly sane. Now, under these circumstances, when sorne of the most learned

felits in Canada could not decide whether the man was crazy or whether ho was
ah tiy sane, is i altogether right and charitable to say that the French half-breedseid have had more judgment than the cleverest specialist that you can bring from

Illeada bore, that the Crown could bring, to prove that man's sanity or insanity ? They
d maisled by the man. They are a very extraordinary people. It is perfectly

ýeerstood that the North American Indians, from whom they have all sprung, thatereare full of their superstitions, that overy aot that they perform, every act of life
1s sOme superstition attached to; that an Indian won't take his pipe and amoke

% o puts it to his lips, and almost imperceptibly to the looker-on he turne it to
our points of the compass. That will not be perceived probably by one man in

4 Ousand, but it is so, and he takes no step from hie tope to go to visit his
gher without muttering some incantation. There is a peculiar superstitions

9 implanted in the soul of the Indian that comes out unto generations after in
o ffsprings. The half-breeds are completely imbued with those superstitions;
that was the result? Louis Riel made it appear to these people when ho found

e priests were opposed to anything like a resort to arme or to any illegal moans
_ ilg to secure their rights, when Riel discovered that the priests would not

that Lhim, but they would condemn him, thon he went on a new tact. Tissn it wýas
.%nOii Riel discovered that the priests and the ministers of the gospel in this

1 'tY have a hold upon the hearts and upon the affections of the half-breeds that it
ry difficult to set aside or to patralise. They discovered that the Scotch half-

e cOuld be led, and led to a very great extent by their ministers in whom they
4t rePOsed, for a great length of time, the most implicit confidence. They found

N 1- th priests who had been the friends of the fathers and forefathers of the
tch half.breeds, that it was very difficult to do away with that feeling or with

Pthpression. He found, gentlemen of the jury, that it was as difficult to do away
t impress, the characteristics that the priests had impressed on the half.

iistaract er as it would be to do away with the footsteps of the prieste, of tke
hast a es of the gospel on this great continent of America. He found that he might
%atil ii 1 start at the Gulf of St. Lawrence and travel every stop up from there,

g he Struck across the Rocky Mountains and found himself on the Pacifie coast,
Piet footstep of which has been marked out in the first place by the footstep of the

the issionary starting forward of civilization and performing God's work,
8 he f the *feelings that might come to himself, or to the consequences to him
oSnt pases through a wilderness seeking to briig souls to God, and to bring a vass

to ry tO the reciamation and civilization that fits it for the habitation of man. He
oi hat it would require superhuman efforts to do that ; and ho had recourse to

Sdperhuman efforts. He made themr believe in his visions. ie told them that
kssi ah]omunications with the Holy Ghost. He told them that ho was a second

ie made themr believe that, in their simplicity, and in their ignorance and
tad 0 1 on.Re made them believe that ho had conversations with the sainte.

theM believe ho could make it thunder and that ho could make lightning
wille rike any object that ho pleased. He told them, fear not but follow me, and

ag'1 fd that even if I am shot, if they kill me, I will come to life and be among
a8 Christ was, and they never cen get rid of me until they have grantc

rights.
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Gentlemen of the jury, under such influence as these, Louis Riel succeeded
bringing about, in dragging with him, and by a finesse and a ruse that would do or
to the brightest politician on either side of the House in Canada, he made them a8se
ble to celebrate the festival of their national saint-I believe they call ihm Joseph
and he told them to bring their guna with them, so that they sheould fire afe-ddJ
they should fire a volley in honor of the saint, after the religious service. The9
eame there. Is it to be supposed, and do I suppose for a moment or do I want Yot '
to suppose that there were not among those men who went there, those who ko
the objeet that Riel had in view? Certainly there were many who knew it but
many were there who did not know it, and who went there in perfect good faithT

Why, gentlemen, those that saw the sight that I witnessed bore a couple of wOeo
ago, old mon tottering on the brinx of the grave, from seventy to eighty-two year's
age, half a dozen of them standing there trembling in front of this dock, they WO
se at once that these men must have been misled or they never could bave beO

placed in the position. It is al] very well to find healthy, robust, strong, yoUng e
reudy to rush into danger, but when you see the poor, tottering, old men stumLbliog
along, and at overy little hillock it is simply an effort to climb over-nice war ioa
weren't they, to go out and fight against the disciplined troops of Great Brita
Why, you can see at once they were misled in some way. They were misled, but 8
nen as these were not to be misled-such men as we will bring before you todoi

were not to be misled-the English half-breeds who had sympathy with these nie' 0

the demand of their right. They bad both rights, they bad rights both equally.
Snglish half-breeds had just the same rights to demand as the French half-breeds, ail
-more, because in a great many instances the French half-breed was re-demandi
rights already accorded to him in Manitoba, whereas the Scotch half-breeds who
settled bore and at Prince Albert and Battleford, they had never had any el b
»ettled before, and they wore awaiting their settlement. Very well, these mou
gone on a certain length. They had taken part in these meetings. They had ta
part in these petitions. Tbey had demanded their rights. They waited fOr he
years with petitions and demands and meetings, and they received no answers. .
bad sent petitions to the Lieut.-Governor of the North-West Territory hore at -Re tb
They had sent petitions to Ottawa. They had sent petitions to the Ministerof
Interior. Their priests and the ministers of the gospel had joined them in seu
these petitions. No answer, and still they had to go on and obtain their rights,
and obtain them. They were only too glad to >have a man of Riel's ability tO de
them, but just as soon as Riel undertook to do that which no loyal subject cda
then that very moment the English half-breeds and the Scotch half-breeds sai
them at once, we are not going to become party to any illegal act, we are with W
our sympathies are ertirely with you in everything constitutionally right, but We
mot follow you into rebellion or into any public disturbance.

Now this brings us down to wheie the present prosecution-or no, it is not a
secution, it isa ersecution-begins. Scott being a man who had been in the
of the Hudson Bay Company during fourteen years, who came out from the Ork"
Islands and went into the service of the Hudson Bay Company, rémained there t
some years ago, when he left the service and became in turn a trader amBotDg à
Indians, and ultimately married a half-breed wife and settled down on bis farO 11pJs
Prince Albert, where ho cultivates something like 300 acres, and where he 5s
position of very great trust for a large mercantile and trading firm, known as.
firm of Stobart & Eden. There this man was. There ho took part in the 'ne" f ,o
lHe took part in all the meetings that were held to try and secure the rightsBt i
balf.breeds. He sympathized with these half-breeds and went on with tbemln
was discovered- that they were doing, or about to do, something that ws 8
Now, gentlemen, here begins-here is the head and front of bis offending. øo
iitg was held, it appears, and at that meeting resolutions were passed syrnP b-rt0i
*dih the French half-breeds, sympathizing with them in trying to secure thOir rl
but condemnibg the resorting to any illegal means of doing it. At thatd r#
thre mon were eleoted delegates to go d<ewn to where the French half-bred
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,4d to be assembled, and find ont what was doing, and by thait means to be in a
ýrtiOl to proserve the peace and to avoid the shedding of blood. Thora were three

oth0 e men went down. Is it Dot singular, theýre were three delegates went to
to, and there is only one prisoner in the dock? Where are the other two?

ere they less guilty than he? Ah, no, gentlemen, not a bit loss guilty, not a bit
or' gUilty, but they had not dared to set up their impudent tongues against the
tien who represent one or other of the political parties up there, and who
ed tO say that ihe Government that they were in favor of was not doing just
rything that was right. He had dared to do that kind of thing. Isn't thatfungh why a British subject should ba put in a dock and confinod and found guilty

to reason, high treason ? Why, he ought to be hung-he ougbt to feel that he ought
the hung ? Hie dared to say that his rights had not been given to him according as

Y had been pledged on the faith of a nation, and the faith of a nation that bas
er sullied its flag until it is likely to be sullied by the mean, contemptible, illegal

th ini which Canada, the off-shoot of the Empire, is maltreating and ill-treating,
i igh her servauts. the poor half-breeds of the North-West Territory and the poor

4n of the North West plains, and that certain parties may bocome gloated with
e4tth while the people of the country run the risk of having their throats cut by

Ing Indians, any time from January till December.
'ow, gentlemen, as I say, there were three delegates. We have only one pris.
here are the other delegates ? You see if in this courtry there had been a

ury, and you had formed a portion of that grand jury, you would naturally
atIýWhy do you single out this one man ? But there is no grand jpry. Why, Lord

Your sou, why should there be ? A mare white man iin this North-West bas
to gaht to British protection or British law, they must just be prepared to submit
fjthing that is being done by the Goverument appointed over them, says the

d counsel for the Crown, they must groan away until it pleases their master.
Vthem from their preseout position ; they must not utter a word. Well,
t es he dp ? He writes a latter; he goes down there to Batoche at the

tbtof that meeting; he went there on the day-not the day that
th ave alleged in that indictment, as I have shown you-he went there

tisee dead of night. Hle started in the morning, at the request of his fellow-
to-da"' He started with his two comrades, both of whom will come before yon
'e 7, and both of whom will declare that if ho is a felon, they nust be felons also.

Will cone before you to-day and they will declare what was done. They started
k4d e or two o'clock on Friday or Saturday morning. They went to Batoche;
th .ntmdid they meet there ? They met some of as loyal men as ever trod the

Daid Canada or any other country. They met some gentlemen there that even
S es, the paid informers and paid bloodhounds of the Government dare not even

ave 'ger Of suspicion upon, for fear that public opinion would wither them into a
reo 0oblivion from which their heads could never be raised again. They met

%u ot theen ; and Mr. Hilliard Mitchell, known all;over»this country, who was there
t '1 same errand as they were, a gentleman who is known far and wide in

qythirth-West Territory, a scion of an English company, and who does not know
e gVOrse to do than that which might mar the dignity of the British lion.
il Otmnd 8uch mon as him there, and he will tell you what they were doing there.

yll ta" YoU that this poor fellow Scott was not thoro to rebel, he was not there
.elli fndce his fellow half-breeds or those he had influence with to go into

r4%. against the Queen. No; he will tell you on the contrary that every word ho
a favor of peace and loyal prosecution of their rights by constitutional

tstte to ,gntlemen, whom have you to contradict this evidence ? Whom have yon
%o the contrary ? You have a latter. Is there anything in that latter ? Now,

at diat it. lis there anything in that latter ? Every man sympathises with yoa.
w itte e Witness for the Crown say ? What did that gentleman who came there

A4 8a' for the Crown say ? He drew a lot of papers ont of his pocket and read
se 'ithat did he say in his resolution which ha himself drafted ? " We all sym-

Out"ty sympathise with you in it, in your attempta, in your legal attempts,
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to obtain your rights. That was a meeting that was convened, that was called a
suggestion of the highest milita y authority in the country, and a meeting at Wb
resolutions were passed that you had read to-day by the secretary and in whichb
says we sympathise with you. Hiow is it that that witness was standing in the bo0
awitness and that this inan was ia the dock as acriminal ? That is an extraordinsty
thing to me. The learned gentleman who is prosecuting for the Crown and who eo
bad the experience of years in Crown prosecutions, and who enjoys a reputàtioO
having the tirLt ability as a Crown prosecutor, second to none in Canada, labore'l
labored so that you, gentlemen of the jury, must have seen what a tax it was uPo
him to try and miake you believe that there was something in that letter that ro
aufficient to ask you to damn that man for ever, and his family after him, by a ve
that ho was a dishonest and a disloyal man. The Crown prosecutor feLt himsof th
ho was called upon to perfom a duty that was unworthy the position he holds a ti
bar, and that was unworthy of being brought forward before a British court for
purpose of trying to attain certain political objects for the party in power, Wb1t
entirely to blame for the unfortunate state of things that has taken place 0W
oountry. Now, it is said that he wrote that letter; you must understand that he W
that letter. Now, gentlemen, we are not here to admit anything. A man put
his trial bas nothing to admit. That is a principle that the learned judge will tell
you are bound to be governed by. That is the bonest faith that the law of E]ng I,
pledges to every man. You are not bound to admit anything that will criJa"'0to
yoursolf, and even where it might ho to the advantage of the accused to
ho is wrong, frequently in admitting, a skilfal Crown prosecutor
his admission against him, and for that reasou he is perfecity justified a.
the law throws its mantle of protection around him not to admit
thing. We deny that letter. We deny it in toto. Lot them prove it. h
they done so ? Not a bit oi it. On the contrary, I will tell you what tbey es
done. They have brought men up here to-day, and in thirty-one yt
practice at the bar of Quebec and the bar of Manitoba and the bars of several oif
in the Union, and lastly at the bar of the North. West Territory-I have had to
here to seo some such evidence as I saw to-day, and what did I see? I sa g
,one of the most prominent offices in M anitoba, from the head post office in the
vince of Manitoba-I saw a boy a third or fourth or fifth rate clerk, or y
haps for aught I know the voung man who carries the coal in a scuttie to hiW
furnace with in winter, or who sweeps out the office after office hours-- we hv
brought up with a whole pile of papers, a sheat of papers, and to prove what ? Gelw
men, to prove the signature of a man who bas resided at Prince Albert for treIdn#
six or seven years, a man whose handwriting amongst his neighbors and .thi.k
must be that well-known that there coutld be no doubt of it. low 1s
they have not been able with all the facilities that the Crown has for gettuDgl
donce ? One or other of two thingQ, either the Crown is so detested that the' P
will not give evidence for the Ctown or the accused is so respected that therei
a man in the country will come forward and bssist the Crown in doing their a e
believe that from my heari. I believe that is the reason why they could 'ot 1rt
men vile enough in his neighborhood to come forward and say that is the si1 pa
of Thomas Scott. Consequently they are put to this, and look at it. The th
this boy come up from the post office, and ho says that these are documentsa bofr g
post office, these are the documents from the post office at Winnipeg, this i . e
and this is a contract. Gentlemen, do we go to the cabin boys on board shi' f0or
how her head is turned ? Vo we go to the tipstaff at the door of the court to
a legal decision ? Do we go to the passing stranger if we want a certificateregistry office? Do we go to an apprentice if we want to have our mealr5 o,
Do we go with our eyes closed if we want to see what is passing arouud usb. ui
are not so foolish as to do these things, but if I wanted to produce thab do yi
this court, if I wanted to produce in favor of the prisoner that document, <O
would be such a shout of sarcasin raised at my expense that the whole building y
ring with it and justly so. It would be tne luuile attempt of a nun W
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talg about evidence and was trying to force down the throats of a jury, and try-
l4o humbug a court by pretending that that is a publie document publicly proven.. ok at the document you are brought to have faith and confidence in. Is that

g a jury with common courtesy ? Look at it. What is torn off that ? What is torn
That is a publie document. (Nir. Clark here refers to tears off the corners of th î

And you are atsked to believe that every place where " Tom Scott " is
on that paper, must be the truth, that it must be his signature. Why, gentle-

of the jury, you all know, you have the proof here that Tom Scott has not been
. place for months, and still his name is heing signed every day by the littie boy

18 left there in charge, and a vear hence another little boy from Winnipeg will14 ought up with half a dozen dirty torn scraps of paper and he will ask a jury on
sOlenn vath to believe that that was sufficient proof of a man's signature who

%Z .charged with a crime that may send him to the penitentiary for life. I don't
hti It 1s necessary to talk any more with reference to that kind of evidence. Now,

Il en,you will be told that you have to take the law from the court. Yes, and I say
t0all the sub mission that I have learned during the thirty years' practice you have

% the law from the court, and I have to take th e law from the court, and I say the
lli responsible for the law, and you are not; but you are not to take the facts froi

4 tîXnor your appreciation of the f acts from the court, you are the sovereignjudges
% , acts as the court is sovereign judge as far as that court's decision goes until it is

ed from and set aside by law. From your facts there is no appeal. You are respon-
a higher tribunal than the highest court in the North-West Territory; you are

siible to a higher tribunal than the tribunal that sits and is supposed to be pre-
%n er by Her Majesty the Queen herself. You are responsible, and responsible

a tribunal before which the thrones of kings and emperors are more play-nd are overwhelmed and forgotten, and the souls that go before Him to be
have to an swer for everything that they have done when called in solemn oath

Sy e according to His justice, calling on His sacred name to be their pledge that
o13g to decide honestly. That is all you are responsible to. You are not

and to any less power than that, and as British subjects responsible only top
With that ancient feeling of devotion that you owe to the flag under which

of re born and your forefathers before you, beware, beware gentlemen of the jury
t i r Isled, beware of assisting in driving one nail, or giving a tap to the smalil-

tî that the Crown tries to drive into the civil coffin of that unfortunate man.$ our fellow citizen, he is your brother. You will protect him. You will pro-
t .y Your oath, you will protect him, and you will protect him by calling upon

.lé lness that you are doing that which bonest men are not afraid or ashamed
Wereentlemen, I was told when I was coming here to defend some Unfortunates

.N everYthjail, some of them properly so, some of them improperly so, I was toid
h, ertog was political here. I said to one ol the people who informed me of

.ttl re Iust be a mistake. No, there is no mistake, everything is run in the
'vest erritory on political principles. If you get a Tory jury in the box they4ehod verdict against everybody. I said, pai don me, sir, 1 think you are statirg
. d. Weil, he said, if you get a Grit jury in the box they will do just the
.g4.1Wll excuse me, but I believe you are telling a lie, and I placed a very

Y? 1 JOctive before the word "lie", stronger than I ara in the habit of using, and
to say it is one of the most irreparable insults that can be offered to reasonable

4 4 thaPPose that they will go deliberately in the box and will call upon God to
they are going to do what is fair accor dirg to the eviden ce, and that,or a moment be swayed by any outside feeling or any outside oppression,

b otbu hMen, I spurn the statement with scorn, the scorn that it deserves. I.
41% thher you are Grits or Tories outside of this house, but the moment yo

he d la as jurymen I feel that you will leave both the Grit and the Tory out.
U4 » 3led , and there you will feel that you are sitting in the presence ot God;

y,"A fellee lo im to act fairly, according to your oath, and that you have the eyes.
S.atted "n' upon you, who will decide for themselves, each one, whether you

a, l'Oesft mon or not. That is the feeling that I am satisfied will animate
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Now, what is the next evidlence you have of that letter ? What evidencO
you of this letter being Scott's ? You have a gentleman who comes here and
ileclares that document to contain the signature of Thomas Scott. You have a
to examine all these documents, gentlemen, every one of them there, yourself,
-his trial i over, everything, every document is yours to examine and to sorand 10
and to be satisfied upon. Well, this gentlemen looked all over these papers aU
compared this " Thomas Scott," " 6", an I. O. UJ., given to John McNevin or.
430, at three months from date, for value received, signed, Thomas Scott, ta1 l1

Joseph Thompson. Well, Mr. MeNevin said he did not see Thomas Scott Sign,
.it was given to him by Thompson, but ho thinks it is Seott's signature. -
gentlemen, it is not necessary for me to say anything, you can look at that»
-vill find it is written, the whole thing written by Mr. Thompson in ThompsOn P
-writing and it is as much Scott's signature as it is yours. Thompson 1s
îbrother-in.law, and ho does not repudiate that ho owed that debt, but that is
signature.

You have an expert brought up who tells you, he looks very critiôally over
-papers, and ho tells you these are Scott's and they all resemble each other and lo
they are al Scott's. Well, now, gentlemen, you don't require to be experts to
at those signatures. He says ail these signatures may be Scott's, but paie .1

gentlemen, ho said the last signature that was given to him he compared witl
and said it was Scott's, but that signature was written by the gentlemn el ø
alongside of me at the table (Mr. Maclise) and that shows the folly, the value 0
to attach to the evidence which says those signatures are Scott's.

Now, gentlemen, I am going to tell you another thing, and the Crown f
contradict it. The Crown is obliged to bring the best testimony, the bestPrSî ,
best testimony that the case is susceptible of, that is 4he duty of the Crown
the duty of any private person as well, he who affirms must prove. TheY
that that man is a felon. They have to prove it to do that, TheY ýool
that these are Scott's signatures, they are bound to give you the best tes
and whose is the best testimony? Is it the boys who came up from, the 5
and takes these papers and says that ho believes these are his, this is Wit
Charles McNabb and Martin Hoover; the Crown has unlimited reserve. WhI
the Crown bring witnesses to prove that signature? (to the bond). Now, go
I don't give you this as matter of proof, I give it to you as matter of law a as
call upon the learned judge to tell you that as matter of law, the Crown was t ow
brig the best testimony, and what is the best testimony ? The witness t
nature. But thero is another thing that the law tells you, it says this, that the
that does not bring the best testimony not only is at fault, but it is a strong P
tion that they dare not bring the other for fear it might makp against thera
favor of the accused. That is the law. I say that in that position this 19V0

stands to-day. Now, with reference to these other documents which you l
you have the evidence of this expert, you have a lot of these signatures 01n P 's?
and you heard the expert's evidence pronouncing them to be all written by 1
party, but particularly that that last one written on the scrap of paper al
" D," that that there can be no doubt about. Now, I will prove to you by
man, Mr. Ross, who is beside me and it was written in my presence and it
sence of three or four others, it was done just to show you how valuable eo I
nony is, and how dangerous it is for one moment to beget even a degreo Of

in the mind upon the pretended testimony of an expert, a man who first sa0)
,written by the same man who wrote "l D."I yosNow, gentlemen of the jury, so much with reference to that letter, bati
be told by the learned gentleman that this letter was found amonel
Capt. Young says ho found that among Riel's papers. Very well, it iS ver -p

but what proof have you that that man put it among Riel's papers ?
Now, I am arguing, gentlemen, as if that letter made a difference

show you, gentlemen, that a man on his trial in a British court admitS 41,tor
though the admission may be favorable to him. It is for them to prOVO, v f

116

49 Victoria.



Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 1886

it is for him to deny everything, and let them prove it when they dare to
thim on a charge of felony and that felony degrades him as a British subject-
them prove that he bas been false to his allegiance. Very well, what evidence

' theY got ? They find that piece of paper which they at once make up their
% s8mlust be that of Thomas Scott, and. they bring him up on that because e was

Of the white men who were sympathising with the half-breeds at Prince Albert
'Who have been denounced as rebels-every one of them. Why, on the same prin-

e>' very person who appeared in that box to-day are rebels, they all sympathised.
to that time, they were not rebels, but my learned friend would say,why they sacked

s tores ?-I don't know that, we have no proof of it-hadn't they sacked stores and
eP arms? On the same principle some leading men in the Dominion of Canada to-

IL5hould have been hanged in 1849. They sacked the Parliament Buildings, they
the finest library that Canada ever possessed, and documents that can never

I'ePaced, and they took the mace, the emblem of Rer Majesty's authority from the
4 1 the House of Commons in Canada and carried it in derision around the streets,
theY cheered and sneered around it, and when Her Majesty's representative, the

General of Canada, appeared in bis carriage to assent to a Bill in fier
1 name, these loyal men tbat now talk about the disloyalty of others, they were

n that surrounded the carriage and treated him with rotten eggs and broke the
age Window with stones, and the sterling old Scotchman when he was surrounded

a !OOP of cavalry as brave as ever bestrode a horse, when they wanted to charge,.
kl . , not a bit of it, let tbem thrcw stones at me, never will a representative of

et ajesty in Canada, so long as I have that honor, send back a shower of leaden

%to leave widows and orphans because a few rotten eggs were hurled at me
l, ,Yit is Do insult to the Queen, and I won't accept it as one, ard I won't

Xte hle Of Rer Majesty's subjects to be shot down, and he did not, and he was one
ighest men in Her Majesty's Dominion. He was one of the most trusted, one

Sb8t governors we ever bad in Canada. It was no treason, and why?
the it Was one of the political parties of Canada, those who called themselves, in
te Conservatives of everything that is good and wise in our country, it was
th o surrounded Rer Majesty's representative and treated him with rotten eggs

0Ire was not one of them put in the dock. Not one, and Lord Elgin was hootet
t lu the city of Montreal, the capital, the heart of civilization in Canada.
thy did more. These men that ordered this persecution to-day, they did more
ste otf They followed that upin 1849 by signing an annexation manifesto. The

hiit ertof the Interior, Lord McPýherson, was the first who signed the annexation
Vteo c0 allingupon Rer Majesty to allow her flag to be torn down snd the flag of

ed States erected over this country, and these are the men that call upon
eltieen 'of the jury, to consign one of your fellowmen to the penitentiary for

e h' e dared to aek for his rights from them. Sir John Rose, Sir D. .
of -) ohn J. C. Abbott, present Chief Justice of Quebec, Mr. Dorion, every
t l rlames is signed to the annexation manifesto of 1849. These are the
aat are ordering the prosecution of an unfortunate wretch because he dared to

b the rights of his wife ard family. Gentlemen, lot us consider all these thinge,
tofi re talking about how ice and how positive are the marks by which yon

g Wtreason and tregson felony.; and if a man bears that an old woman is
, he isck a beebive, unlees he goes immediately and makes the authorities aware

a e to be considered guilty of bigh treason, and if you hear the Indians or
that !cting something in the Sioux or Cree language that you imagine is some-

ediate going to endanger the fate of the nation, and you don't run away and
t» etoll the neanrest constable and inform him of the two old squaws, and have

CWIo squaws arrested, you are guilty of misprison, of treason.
% t gentlemen, there is just about as much sense in tboFe two examples I have
Y alle u in a great deal that bas been said to-day about treason and treason

lo el misprision of treason. "l It is not enough " said the learned counsel,
." Sl to remain neutral. To remain neutral under the circumstances is

Ydidn't he arrest his own witnesses ? Wby doesn't he arrest Major
11M
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Crozier ? Why bas a warrant not been taken out to arrest Colonel Irvine ? Th ese 0
the gendemen who sent those men in good faith to ask the English half-breeds to re0100
neutral. Why should those that remained neutral, one of them be sacrificed and cla
in the docks, and those who are paid to fight their country's battles, and who SOLt jet
men and clergymen to try and get the people to remain neutral, why were tbel 4
go at large ': Gentlemen, if anything wore wanting to show the complote littlenesL
this persecution, I think the Crown witnessess have shown it to-day. Theyhave0g
the box, one after the other, and they all united in saying that the best thing
believed that could be done was to keep the Erglish half-breeds neutr al;
gentlemen of the jury, it is not necessary to tell you that they were right. SýlPa
that 300 or 400 of the English half breeds of this country could have beeno
nisled as to join with these superstitious fanatics who were led into rebellion g

the proper government by Riel, what would have been the consequence
would have been the consequence to this country-if 45 to 75 an
that to 100 and 150 unfortunate balf-breeds stuck tu rifle pits in the inceo
season of the year, if they could kill off so many of our young mon, thanfl W
Ibiaver never trod the earth, if they could be picked off in that manner,
would it have been if the number had been swelled by such men as the English
breed population in this country ? What would have been the consequences ?
you suppose the prosent grief into which this Dominion is plunged would not
been made tenfold deeper than it is ? Do you suppose that instead of 10() ord
lives having been lost, if there had been 1,000 under arms there, that there Wo0l
have been thousands of lives taken, and the treasure we have hoard talked abOIton
would have been thrown ont to the extent ot three millions, thrice what it haW
now ? And do you su ppose that Major Crozier, who saw exactly the position b9 
would have acted as ho did ? Why was it that Colonel Crozier sent that gentle f
try and induce these half-breeds to romain neutral ? l3ecause ho know it was the
ing of thouwands of lives, and it would be the saving of millions of treasure.
gentlemen, what part did this man take in that ? We will prove to you th i
was a leading man among the English half-breeds, we will prove that tO Y
English half-breeds. hy Scotch gentlemen, mon of oducation, men of intelliglenc
whose honetiy and h >nor is abovo suspicion, wo wilt prove to you by a clergy lr
the Presbyterian Church, a native of the country, one of those Scotch ha tJf
families who have already given character to the whole of this portion of the c 0b0
z family that bas given three or four ministers of the gospel to the peoPlPO 0ite
country of w hich they are natives, men who received thoir education in the io
tions of the North-Wust, and are a credit to any country no matter what fla
under. You will have the evidence of such men as that, that Major Crozier rlo
Ihim to try and use his influence to keep these poople neutral ; and if my ins a
are correct, you will have from these people this proof that the man who lao

hero before you for trial as to whether you are going to declare on your oath
is a criminal and worthy of being incarcerated in the penitentiary for life Y
find that these gentlemen will tell you that among all the influences that were
to keep the French and English half breeds entirely neutral, Thomas ScOtt5
most direct, and that if ho had asked the m to follow him, they would have go be
him, the great majority of them joining the French half-breeds. Now, Y01fre
told that, you will be toid Lhat by those men, who are themselves English halW
you will be told by mon who reide among those people, you will b told tJ4
from the moment that it was apprehended that thes~ unfortunate half-brO
going to be led into illegal acts by the fanatic Riel, that ho put his foot dov 0o l
it, that ho did ever5 thing in his power to prevent it, that ho went at the ris h
lie, and bis life was in danger when ho went down there to Batoche, and t

told him ho had "son tenced bis own cousin to-day because ho has been trying l0 r ee
us, what can you three men expect ? " That was enough to make even br
hearts break, and still Scott told him, T am here as a delegate and Itell You Isif
here for the pur pose of doing anything that is illegal. Now, gentlemeDn, co0
being disloyal, the sooner we have a large number of disloyal men in th'$
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botter, and it would be well in this country if we could change off about 5,000
ernment officials for such disloyal men as that.

hoWell, gentlemen, about the evidence again, you are told by one witness thate Was a certain meeting, that at that meeting somebody proposed three cheers
t' he delegates. There was not anything very wrong in that. Somebody, ho
t1 afterwards proposed three cheers for Riel. Wel, now, we will see all about

er -If.that man told the truth, I think you will have half a dozen respectable mon
te Who will be telling a lie. I have asked them particularly. and will ask them

peeicularly, if such a thing took place, and I think their answer will be that they
h heard anything of the sort, and they were prosent at that meeting and heard

fe,. of the sort; but suppose somebody in that crowd did cry out, three cheers

obj ", was it Scott that cried it out? What did they use that for? What was the
'et in bringing that out? What was the object of bringing ont that piece of

e %e? Was it to try, by such a mean and silly subterfuge, to cast a reflection
this man more than upon the individuals who were at that meeting ? To say

east of it, it is going as near as possible to doing that whih is ridiculous to try
ee ethat which is a very great injustice. Now, suppose that cry had been made of

?a heers for Riel, it might have been in derision. Why? Simply because that
%"d fnot dare to say that was responded to, or that there were three cheers given,

"Ooalthough they were very anxious, no doubt, to make it appear it was so, the
did not dare ask the question. He said he heard somebody cry three cheers

y 'e 1, but ho did not dare to ask did they give the cheers for Riel? But I asked
7dlY Were there many people there at the time, and the answer was yes, there

a great many people. I opened the door as wide as I could, and why didn't
le did al these people cheer ? They did not, and the reason was, I believe,
ti nien, that such a cheer, I don't believe, was asked for. Very probably the

on e1nan who heard it was crouching in the corner whon ho heard it, not man
-ygh to take one side or the other, and ho may have said to himself three cheers

,and that was bis real feeling, but h was not man enough to give it expres.
f id ho was the only one at the meeting who did. It looks very much like it.

h4tJtentlemen, you will have three or four witnesses whose word you will not
'9 c -will swear they never heard anything of the kind, and did not believe

f, th thng could have occurred without thom hoaring it. Even suppose it had
og ose Words would not be in the slightest degree treason. Words spoken are
ti soneven treasonable words, unless they are taken hold of in a certain length
e co. I need not dwell on that. It is a point of law, and that point rests with

x ) and the court will charge you with reference to it.
ýIr OW, with. reference to this terrible man Scott, I have another thing to draw

ttntion to. He was brought down from Prince Albert some time ago. He
e .il until the day ho was brought before this court. When he was arrested
is e not told what ho was arrested for. From that until ho was brought before
it tt ho had no intimation of what ho was arrested for, not the slightest, but I
totelo somfething that is more extraordinary than that. Before ho came down

Was arrested at Prince Albert and was thrown into prison-no, not into
S'le Was thrown into a pen. He was thrown into a place that it was a degra-

&1ee ls radis ce to the officers who permitted him to be slung in there. Himself
4e' 1others were thrown into a place that was not fit for a respectable hog

tt thae in , where water was flowing under the floor, and the openingaso
4% a yOu could see the curront, and where there was nothing between

apar the rains of heaven except a few old boards, and the boards so

a blthat they ware wet, and ho was left thore for seven or eight days without
Sitih e et to cover bis shivering body, and this in a British country, this underÞt '1g• We that speak with horror of the black hole-we that speak with

shtebdi8 tof the proceedings in the French prisons and the institutions that are
it biwhere the cat is inflicted on a man's back, how much more humane
f a o strip that man and let his back run with the biood from the bloody

Whip, than put him into that place to die by degrees from disease can-
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tracted from exposure and cold by human monsters, who dared in the nalue 0'
-British law and justice to hurl a subject of Ber Majesty into such a pen. Gentleniema
if justice were done, and it will be done some day, for we will have a representst.
on the floor cf the House of Parliament who will bring these men to punishiteu
They will be punished for it. Some of them. probably will lose the uniforin d
have disgraced, whcn they have carried it and used for such vile, cowardl ,t
unmanly purposes. That is what they did, and he was kept there and remQved '
prison, and for several long weeks, during which time his magnificent forn
completely racked, and everything-the substance that ho had been collec'ib
around him for seven long years-scattered to the four points of the compass. .
very chickens that his children fed on the farim were carricd away by the ect
thieves who, in the name of law, were destroying the homestead of a British subje,
Ris cattle were taken off, and the man who had the contract to feed the voluInt
the eupply officer, sold bis cattle and fed tbem to the troops, and you will have to
for them, because ho will charge double their value before this account is Settled'of
the war, and those that he did not, ho carried away and brought thein to the Eu
Bay Company, and put them. there, and kept them, until they died of starvato
Gentlemen, the police were taken to bis house, to bis barnyard. Thetimehid
Major Crozier started to come to the relief of Middleton, fifteen miles, or somet d oi
like that, out from the place of their beadquarters, they came to the farY' ,,
this Man, they remaincd there, they remained there during a portion of the t
They received some reports about 10 or 11 o'clock at night, but in the oe i
they Lad taken a magnificent haystack, ten or fifteen tons, and had scatte. the
around, sad the litter for their hoises, that they could notdestroy, tbey left withe
fences down, so that the cattle of the whole neigbborhood went in, and when
uifortunate wretch was kicked out of prison, without being told who br o ught -
there, or who was letting him go, bis hay was there before him, a pack of disguS0ti
imanure, good for nothing. Bis fine land-300 acres-with smiling, gloriousd
for years past, 1,400 bushels of wheat that ho had in bis granary, to put in the 0
was taken away by the saine supply officer, and the man who was in charg the
was even in danger of bis life. Be was told they would take it by force, an rible
did take it by force and carry it off, and, gentlemen, during all this time this ter
linner, this terrible man, who was guilty of doing that which the comma sae
officer of the police asked the best man in the country to try, nameily keep theç
katchewan half-breeds (English) from joining the French half-breeds he
languishing in prison, while all the littie wealth ho had in the world wa8

destroyed by the monsters who disgraced ler Majesty's uniform when they
doinitc slro

.NOW, the learined counsel said in his opening address, we will provte.t
inciting, aiding, consulting, &c., Indians and half-breeds. How did ho provo it ?f the
must prove it himself. lie will have to go into the box himself, or get oV -t-'
other officials to do it, because the witnesses most undoubtedly have not done ,

ot one of them-they have ot approached it. They have said, every ma, Scott
in so may words, just ibis, boiled down : If Scott is a felon, if chtr
guilty of treason, we bave been guilty of the saine. If Scott 15 otb
with getting people to remain neutral, then we ought to be charged folr tl11
same, because here are proofs that we did so. Oh, but the Crow * their
you there is something more than that. Scott asked the volunteers to lay doW"loil
arIns. Gentlemen of the jury that ii not true. I would use a harsher
but that I think the oath of a respectable man will be stronger than any adjecti s
Can be used in the English larguage. Scott did nothing of the sort. I wo t to
the gentleman who said that of deliberately stating that which ho kne* 10
be true, I won't accuse him of it, but I will simply say that it was a misapPrele a
a misunderstanding, and I will prove that to you by gentlemen who were pr 0%iý
who were there in an official osition, because they were sent there by MaJor be
to try and keep their Scotch phalf-breeds or English half-breeds neutral. e
able to prove to you by those gentlemen beyond the possibility of a doubt th
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Whabt took place-between Batoche and Prince Albert there is this place called the
idge. Now this lace called the Ridge is in a very uncomfortable position, was about
akt time, the Ind ans and the half-breeds if they had made an advance upon Prince

&1bert in'absence of the troops who bad gone away or the volunteers who were going
ay to Battleford, why the very heart of the country was taken ; but worse than that,

4 far as these poor people were concerned, when the troops were all gone from Prince
4bort, no assistance near, if the Indians and the French half-breeds formed a union,

n most undoubtedly must pass in their way this place called the Ridge, and all these
f-breeds settled around there would bave been no doubt, as they expressed it, exter-

Xfnlated. You will have proof that the poor women there were in such a terrible
te of dread and almost distracted, they were calling upon their husbands, upon their
i Upon their brothers for God's sake to remain to protect them and not togo away
t tleford not to go away to Prince Albert, and Scott committed the enormity at

tt maeeting'of saying these things, He said this is a senseless move, if the French
f-breeds and the Indians unite, they vill come on and all your troops are away and
al have not a gun, they are all gone and who is to protect Prince Albert, who ils to

ect the Ridge, if they are all away to Battleford and Carlton ? Carlton is garri-
QIed by the Mounted Police. They're strong enough no doubt to defend that, there

ho doubt they are strong enough to defend that, while, if all the men ber e go away
take arms with thcm we are left defenceless and Prince Albert is left open to the
Ibreeds and Indians, and everybcdy will be slaughtered.

a Gentlemen of the jury, put yourselves in bis place, do you tbink he was right,or
y'Ou think he was wrong ? Do you think that they were not doing much better to

%ai]] at Prince Albert and fortify Prince Albert and keep their strength at Prince
A t which tbey had to do in the end or to go away and leave Prince Albert au
t prey to the Indians and the balf-breeds ? I think he was right and I think that

le gentlemen who were present at that meeting will tell you he was right, and
Y all advocated the same thirg. Oh, but you see t heCrown, anxious by any means

g etagrasp on this unfortunate man's throat, they Eeize on that point, he said the.t1117teers mjiust lay dcwn their arms. Now, gentlemen, they were not volunteers,
ey had no legal statts, tbey were not reccgnized as volunteers, no man had a rightarra those men and take them away from their homes, and they remained there,

%d hley did iheir duty outside the walls of Prince Albert. I am told outside of the
a"Odpiles they were left night after night, and their masters remained inside comi-stAbly. *Well, gentlemen that is neither here nor there, only it shows yon the%renEe amount of interest tbat was taken in these unfortunate people.

*Uh NOW, lth points are that the letter, I don't think, gentlemen, you have the
tes . proof of, proof that is sufficiently convincing to identify that letter in any

ith Scott. It is not a matter of sentiment; the law tells you that where there
Y doubt you are bound to give the benefit of the doubt to the accused. It is not

the 1'of sentiment, it is not a matter of choice, it is one of the strongest provisions
"at rit ish law, that the benefit of the doubt must be given to the acensed; and if

1 eO in aprivate prosecution where two private individuals, either in a civil or
mtiflinal Case, are proceeding against each other, how much more strongly should

e eo in the case of evidence given by the Crown with all its innumerable resources
»ttthey could have proved everything if they desired, if they dared to have

, a amber, I said the Crown was bound to give the best evidence, and I repeat
Uat l am going to draw your attention to another fact ; if they wanted to prove

11 tter was written by Scott to Riel why didn't they bring Riel to prove it ? Ho
be 'nan, to know it. That is the best evidence, And failing him, why didn't
t4r4ng Garnot whom they had under examination two or three times ? Why
sttheY bring ]Riel's secretary whose handwriting I believe is on the back of this

%4 erial decumcnt-why didn't they bring him here to prove it ? They dare not doit,
% b; are bound to take that view of it. The law says that where the Crown fails

ea 1g tbe best evidence, that you are to take it for granted that they fail to do l»
1 they fear it would tell in favor of the prisoner and against the prosecutiono
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Now, that is a proposition of law that there is no getting over. The Crown must1
produce the best evidence. It is not far from here to the barracks, and why didn' t

they bring Garnot to prove this? He was the secretary, they say. In faot they
convicted and sentenced him as secretary for Riel. Why didn't they bring hi1m
Gentlemen I beg of you not to lose sight of this part of our defence with referencO tO
the best evidence. It is not as 1 say a matter of sentiment, it is a matter of law, it je
one of the strictest rules of law. The authorities on British law say that it is imper-
tive that the best evidence shall be adduced. Now, that is the best evidence, if You
'wanted to-morrow to be satisfied, or to-day as you do, as you are bound to be satiStied
in your own mind, in your own conscience about that letter, will you not say for yoll
:selves the man who received this letter certainly ought to know most about it, l'a.
maext to him the man who endorsed this letter, he who.was the secretary of the rec0 '
pient and who after him was the next best person ? Why have they not brought either
of them ? Consequently, gentlemen, I have no hesitation in saying that the lette, 50
far as theevidenceis concerned-.and I shall expect the learned judge to charge speciaill
en that-is not worth the paper it is written on. There is no evidence to sustain 't'

Gentlemen, there is one other individual we have got to deal with, there is a cOr
tain gentleman, a Mr. Astley, who came into the box. Well, that gentleman bS
sprung into a most unenviable position, an unenviable notoriety within a short tiM"
back. -He was a scout during the rebellion for the Government. Since the rebellio$
le has become a scout for the court. Dring the rebellion he was a prisoner. Silie
the rebellion he has been an informer. 1hat is the only difference, but when he came
In that box to-day and told you that he was sitting in a sleigh with Capt. Moore, ao
that Capt. Moore has gone to England, and that in his presence this man said to Øt
Moore so-and.so; why, gentlemen, I stamp it and brand it as a falsehood. Had a
been the case, Capt. Moore, than whom a more loyal man never trod on the et
that is covered by Her Majesty's Crown-he was not going to be guilty of that cri0.
4escribed by the learned counsel for the Crown-he was not going to be guilty Of *
nisprision of treason and not denounce the man and have him arrested for that ill9gS

uttetance. If so, the sooner they march out their warrant for treason againist Capt
Moore on his return or send it across the ocean as a specimen of North-West justce
and have him brought back, and that on the utterance of Mr. Astley.

Now, with these few words, I feel inclined to leave Mr. Astley. Yo n
remember this that when a man becomes so extremely useful about a court of just
as Mr. Astley has become lately, even the most credulous juryman wouid beglln
doubt all about it. We have several characters in history that serve to illust
that feeling. We had a Jennie O'Brien in Ireland. I am sorry to say there are
great many Jennies in Canada also. They had a Titus Oates in England, a man W
aent more heads to the block and left more noble families in England mourningt Pre
býably, than any other man of any other age, and still at the end of all the blood
h1ad dlown froma the block and the stake and of the terrible sufferings on the rabalgTitus Oates found himself but worthy of the death that he had caused otbers, t
every Word of testimony that was given was a lie ont of whole cloth from beging
to end, and his name to-day stands pilloried in history with a character tha' is su*
cient to do honor to the reigning prince of hell and to sink the credibility of a '
nation who could believe. Gentlemen, this man's testimony is uncorroborated
every particulhr. There is not a circumstance to corroborato it. Not a slitar
in ail this. Believe him, and you nmust doubt the loyalty and the manh
Captain Moore, who was not a scout but who nearly lost his life in dofence of
COUnItry. I tell you I have no hesitation in saying that to believe him is to ca8t dos
en the Ioyalty of Captain Moore. It was his bounden duty, if such a thing were ,
fto him by this man, to have denounced him then and there, and he would have
it. He was jusit the last man to allow anything of the sort to go. But, gen100
yo see it is so hard to try and get up a case ot treason against Tom Scott. It iS
that Louis Riel, in his first rebellion, had a victim by the name of Tom Scott• 0f

Are the Government of Canada; are the authorities of the North-West jea l
the reputation acquired by the famed, celehrated, notorious Louis Riel, that theY,
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tlosing scene in the last rebellion, must also have a victimof the nane of Tom Soott?
f s0, they have bit upon the wrong way of getting it. If so, they have hit upon the

Wrong means of securing their victim. If so, they must feel and learn that they
eaninot pick out a jury of six British subjects in the whole North-West Territory who%
'Will play second fiddle to their vile attempt upon their oaths by damning their own
Soils assisting them in bringing that victim either to the scaffold or within the walla of
a Penitentiary. They must learn that, and the sooner they learn that lesson the
)etter.

Gentlemen of the jury, with the exception of one or two Indians that are to be
,ed and probably another farce or two with some of the unfortunate half-breeds

that have been locked up four or five months because they did not participate in any
iOW or rascality, that this is about the closing trial of this series. I suppose it is. They
have locked up that unfortunate man Poundmaker, and Big Bear is to be tried, and we
have no doubt he will be punished, punished for what ? It is necessary to make a victim.
Where are the men that murdered the people up there near Fort Pitt? Where are
they ? Why are they not tried ? Why were they not hung immediately after the
very first victims, so as to show the people of the Torth-West and the Indians that
8Peedy justice will follow the imbrning of their hande in blood of their fellow
titizens ? Why were they not tried, why are their trials left to the last? ls it that
these bloody red-handed murderers may be allowed to escape ? Why is it that the
>Or old man, who at the risk of his own life, defended the honor and lives of Britsl
natrons when they were in the bands of his young men, and their lives-worse than

their lives, more sacred, their honor, was in the keeping of these poor unfortunate
Ld men ? Why do they keep that old-man locked up ? And why do they allow
Unldreds of ruffians who imbrued their hands in blood to be to-day free? It is

oe Of those extraordinary things that we have to wait and wait until we find out by
0 grees. But, meantime, just give us one white victimn so as to counterbalance aay

0 1 One that we may offer to the Province of Quebec, and we will thank you for it,
*o Will make a victim of that victim, we will make it a cry at the next eteetions,

We will carry it out at the polls, and we will secure another lease of our poitical
ee'tence that should have ceased with the first gun that was fired by the people that

'*re seeking their rights.

.Rev. EDWARD MATHESON sworn:-
Examined by Mr. Maclise :

Q. You are acquainted with the prisoner Thomas Scott ? A. I am.
Q. You are a native of Kildonan, Manitoba, are you not? A. Yes.
Q. With what church are you connected ? A. Church of England.
Q. Ilow long have you been in the North-West Territories and where ? A. i

e been in the North-West Territories since 1877-eight years. Part of the tima
18 tas a school teacher out among the Indians north of Carlton, up to the fall of

, and thon 1 came down to Prince Albert, and I have been there all the time
c, With the exception of a visit occasionally.

By the Court:
Q. Since 1879 chiefly at Prince Albert ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Maclise:
1% About how far is' St. Catharine's church from Lindsay school house ? A. About

five miles.
Q. You have known Mr. Scott for how long? A. Since the fall of 1879.

'kt 0 What business was he in when you first knew him? A. I always understood
a. farmer. I could not be certain of that though.
At the Ridge? A. At the Ridge, yes.

" 1e has a very extensive farm there, has ho not a very large-? A. Yes.
what regard do the English and Scotch half-breeds there hold Mr. Seott l
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Mr. Osler.-This is irregular. If you want to ask his character there is a proper
-way of asking it.

Mr. Macise.-I asked what influence he exercised over them, and I want tO
]kmow what influence he bas exerted during the pat.

Mr. Osler.-That is not regular either. What has he done?
Court.-The facts.
By Mr. Maclise:
Q. Well, were you present at a meeting near Lindsay Echool house, at the fir5t

nmeetimg Mr. Riel beld there that Mr. Scott was present at ? A. I was present at the
gone there 11th July last year.

Mr. Osler.-What possible bearing can that have on the case?
Mr. Maclie.-I want to show what connection the prisoner at the bar bad at tho

Bgimming and at the outset with the movements of these F3'rench and other half-breeds,
and I will bring it down to the present time.

Mr. Osler.-I don't think it is evidence. There bas been certain evidence giveil
bere which is or is not snufcient to convict the man of treason felony as the jury ma1y1
pass upon it, those are the facts that are to be met by the evidence for the deten1Oe
that which a man does in July, 1884, bas nothing to do with meeting the facts, e
have brought certain points upon which we rely, and these are the facts that myI
learned friend bas to meet.

Mr. Maclise.-You denied the people had any grievances.
Mr. Osler.-I did not deny it. I said whether they had or whether they had mot

grievance--
Mr. Maclise.-You said as matter of fact they bad no grievances, but even if thef

Court.-It is not a matter of evidence. I think it is far too remote.
By -Mr. Maclise:

Q. Do you Incw what just previous to or at any time previous to the rebellion the
actually took place, Mr. Scott's connection with the agitation that was going on was
Aà. I &rn mot acquaintcd with his actions preceding that. I never attended any me
imga except that particular one of the 11th July. I never attended any meetings Pro'
Viens to that.

Q. You lad scime hrcwlcdge though of what just tefore the agitation was
hi«ether it was in a constitutional manner or not ?

Mr. Osler.- Get at the facts.
Court.-Aýk for the facts, what Scott's conncction with that was, and then there

uvnld be no objection.
By Mr. Maclise i

Q. iVbat lacts care urder your knowledge ? A. The agitation was to obt
uedrscs of Ihe grievances by all cetitutional means, and Mr. Scott was looked UPt

a eme of the active spirits in the districts in this. th#Q. fDid you ever, in Dcccmber, 1884, or later than that up to the time o
xebellion, bear arythirg of force being exercised ? A. Never did.

Q. Ycu speak Cree do ycu not? A. A little. kmQ. Does Mr. Scott understand it, as far as you know ? A. As far as I know
loms mot. lotQ. Now, just before the 22nd March or 21st March, about that time You
Yort Carlton did you vot ? A. I left on the 20th. bo

Q. What teck place? What did you go lor? A. I was instructed by2ti
Bihop Cl 'ask et thean to go to Carlton and hold services there on Sunday,

iMarch. I was iretrucica first to go up ard hold services there on the
started cm Friday, hrcwirg moibirg et all about the cutbreak. On rmy way s
beaid of lhe rhitg in ains, ard I said that it did rot rake any difleienc 10
'would go om, as 1 was going, in ibe path of my duty, my ministerial business, ad

rouIld go oM. I did rot consider that there was any danger to me personIallY
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Went, and on Saturday I went into Carlton and I slept over five miles short of thLat
)3riday night, and with Major Crozier's consent 1 made arrangeernnts'to hold services
on Sunday iuside the Fort, and early Sunday morning Thomas McKay, who gave
0 idence here this morning, came to me and asked me if I would go dowa to Prince
A4lbert and hold three meetings, one in the Lindsay school, one in the St. Catharines
church, and one out at St. Andrews, and he gave me to understand that Major Crozier
'WYa8 the authority that was sending me down, and I said I wonld go; notwithstand-
111g that I preferred waiting attending to my own ministerial work there, [ said that
Oing to the troubles I would come down and call those meetings, and 1 started as
Inickly as I could in company with Mr. Andrew Peterson. I arrived at Lindsay
bhoo1 jnst as the people were coming out of the service in the afternoon. That is
What I was aiming for, so that I might have themr all, as many as possible collected
there, and hold a meeting or meetings there and explain to them my object in calling
t, and quite a little discnssion took place.

Q. What did Mr. McKay tell you to corne down and do ?
Mr. Osler.-That is not evidence. What he did is doubtful evidence, but what

r. McKay told him is no evidence. I am not going to object to what ho did, but,
*What his instructions were fromi Mr. McKay is not evidence.

Witness.-I have a writing to show that I was authorized by Major Crozier to
all these meetings. I have that in my pouket.

By Mr. Maclise :
Q. Produce it ? A. Produced and read marked Exhibit "K."
Q. What did Mr. McKay say to you to get those people to do? A. He wanted

a to get resolutions passed declaring that they would not support the French in

Q. Was there any reference to how they would support it on constitutional
Qtters ? A. That up to a certain time they had worked together constitationally,

t roma the time that they took up arms and went beyond constitutional meaud,
1 e0hi that time their connection with thona was severed.

Q. And they were to remain ? A. To remain neutral as they wished.
By Mr. Oslet:

Q. Who was saying this ? A. Mr. Thoma McKayé
Ur. Osler.-Well, this is not evidence.
Court.-Go on.
Mr. Maclise.-It is evidence.
Q. The people were not to declare themselves ? A. They were not asked. I was

t requested to ask them to declare themaselves on one side or the other, simply thas
French need not expect any support from ther in arms, that they were neutrat.
a . And you were to have also some resolutions passed, or what did you do in
regard ? A. I got resolutions passed, and sent them back to Carlton immediatelyt
Q. By ? A. Mr. Andrew Peterson.
q. Who came for that purpose ? A. Who came down with me for that purpose?
ws to take them back, if i could not go.
Q. What is that paper, Mr. Matherson (paper referred to before) ? A. Thos

8e resOlutions that were passed at the meeting at St. Catharines that evening.
Q. And you considered in passing this that you were-
Mr. Osler.-Don't lead.

By Mr. Maclie:
ere: 'What relation do those bear to what you were instructed to get ? A. Those

'to Just exactly what I was instructed to get. Of course his was a littl e additionhat, about sending one to Riel.
Q. Did r. McKay say anything about showing these te the French?
.r Oler.-I must object. I want this examination to ba conducted with some

.rity My learned friend must understand that I object to leading questions or
w hich is not evidence on the issues.
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Mr. Clarke.-I wish it to be perfectly understood that we want no privilege, WO
will accept none. We want simply our rights according to law, and when the learned
gentleman sits there in all the dignity of his own importance and thinks ho is going
to shut us up he makes a mistake.

Mr. Osler.-I don't seek to.

By Mr. .Maclise :
Q. As to the instructions you acted under, in those instructions was there any-

tbing with regard to these papers that were being gotten up being taken over and
read to the French ?

Court.-1 don't think you can put that. You have got the instructions which
are admitted to be in writing. You have the letter saying what was done. ThOn
you have that paper ' A " which are resolutions, and the witness tells you that Was
the result, but ho says the latter part of the memorandum at the bottom was beyonld
the instructions.

Mfr. Maclise. - It has already been given in evidence by the witnesses that thes0

were to be given back to Major Crozier, and that was not objected to.
Mr. Osler.-Because I give no favors.
Mr. Machse.-Leading questions were put by the Crown.
Court. -Was it brought to my notice ?
Mr. Clarke.-I am not prepared to say so. At the same time your Lordship

remembers one of the objections I asked to be noted.
By Mr. Maclise:

Q. At any rate, you held a meeting at Lindsay; did you state to that moetini
what you were there for, and who sent you ? A. I did.

Q. It is just in accordance with what you have already stated? A. Yes.
Q. And when you got there, the people had started for home and you called the,0

bck ? A. I just met them as they were coming out of the house from service.
Q. Now, Mr. Scott spoke to the meeting which was held there, did ho not?

A. Be did.
Q. What did the prisoner say ? A. I can't give you his words, of course, but I

can give you as nearly as I remember what ho said.
Q. What was the substance of what he said? A. ie said he thoughtit would be

advisable if the volunteers who had gone from Prince Albert to Carlton should returo
home. Their absence from Prince Albert was endangering the settlement in two WaYO,
first, there were so many armed men out of the settlement with arms, leaving the settle-
ment that much weaker, and then the knowledge of their being up at Carlton to 90
and fight against ihe French and Indians or whoever were there getting to tbose
people, tby would naturally say, well, there are so many people away from Prince
Albert, tbey are up bere to attack us, come let us go down another way, take Pri"no
Albert, take possession of the water-way. Now, urder those circumstances, ho sat
ho believed it a most advisable thing that they should come home and act as a horne
guard for they should by all means protect Prince Albert. What is Carlton in poiDt 0
importance in comparison with Prince Albert ? Prince Albert is a large settlelen
with many wcmen and children, they may be eacrificed, they may be siaughtered
the Indians are let loose upon us, inasmuch as an Indian outbreak is so greatly feared
if there will be an outbreak, we English half-breeds of this district will rise tO a na
,and assist the Government to put it down.

Q. This was at the Lindsay school-bhouse? A. This was at Lindsay.
Q. You heard his remarks at St. Catharines the same evening ? A. Y0s.
Q. Were they similar ? A. Just similar, I could not give you anything diffOren
Q. These resolutions that have been shown you were not drawn up at the LID

Fay meeting ? The people there decided what, with regard to getting up resolut1i0
A. We did not come lete the resolution there for ihis roason-I had to hurrY fr
there down to St. Catharines chu] ch, in order to catch the people there beforo
would get home, so we decided some people from there should come down With
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%nd We would draw up a resolution in the St. Catharines church because we had the
whole night to do it if we wanted, and this resolution would then be forwarded to-
carlton.

Q. And that was the way Mr. Scott and some others came to go ? A. Down to
Bt Catharines.

Q. They were dispatched at what time ? A. I sbould say I gave them to the
' between two and three the next morning-Monday morning. He did not start

t With them, however, immediately, he went with them about coming daylight.
Q. Now, had Mr. Thomas MicKay not approached you, you would have held

YOUr services at Carlton, and you would not have been here to-day? A. That is just
e truth.
Q. Did you consider that in doing what you did, you were guilty of treason or
sOn-felony or anything of that sort ? A. No I considered that what I was doing

Was the best in the interests of peace, or I should not have done it,
Q. So that you consider that in trying to keep the people neutral you were only

1
0g what you had been told, requested by the authorities to do ? A. That is ail,

tht is what I did.
Q. You would not have done it had you not had the idea that you were ordereI

7 What, t do it ? A. I would not have done it, had I not been ordered, as I was,7 Major Crozier.

Cross examined by Mr. OsIer:

%t?Q Did Scott speak more than once at the meeting, the first meeting that you were
A. I can't recollect.

Q. Who was in the chair at that first meeting? A. I was.

Qth . Do you remember who spoke. first ? A. I spoke first of course, explaining-
object for which I called the meeting.
Q. Do you remember who spoke next? A. I am not certain who spoke next. 1

W Mr. Scott did speak.
4dQ. Do you remember who spoke at all? Give me the names? A. I remember-

rew Spence spoke.
Q. Do you remember what he said ? A. I forget what he said.
Q. Do you remernber who spoke ? A. Mr. Scott.
Q. Anybody else ? A. I can't remember that anybody else said anything.

il . Surely there were more spoke than that ? A. Of course, there would be*
remarks made here and there, but no regular -

Q. Who made the set speeches of the evening ? A. Mr. Spence, Mr. Scott, the
Pon1er himself, and myself.

Q. Now, you can tell me what you said, can't you ? I have told you already.
sagkQ' You can't teli wnat Mr. Spence said ? A. No, I can't remember what he

. 'Or the purport of what he said ? A. I can't just remember the purport. It
on the same lino of argument that I had taken.

, Q. Weil, you are able to recollect very distinctly a good deal of Mr. Scott'
• A. 1 recollect that part that I have already given to you.

lo . You have talked that over, L presume, recently, as to what ho had said ?
hare bad occasion to refresh your memory on what he said ? A. Yes.

ter f' Now, it is pretty distinctly sw3rn bore that he did say that it would be bat-
o th" Bettlers to remain neutral, and lay down their arms.
Objected to.

tCourt--e may be askod in cross-examination was anything of the sort said as&
loft t"aas should be laid down, and the French half-breeds and the police should b&

seettle the matter between themselves.
i. 1 have no i ecollection of that.

etin 'O ser•-Now, was there anything of that sort said by Mr. Scott at that
Ag? A. Not to my recollection.
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Q. Have you a recollection ? Will you swear that was not said ? In ot
words will you contradiet Mr. Craig ? Q. To the best of my knowledge, I say ho
not assert that, and I am on my oath.

Q. Although you cannot remember a word of what Mr. Spence said in maki15
a speech on the same occasion ? A. Yes.

Q. That is sworn to very positively by Mr. Craig ? A. I am quite aware
that.

Q. Will you undertake to contradict it on your oath ? A. I undertake to sta
by what I have asserted.

Q. Just answer my question ?
Mrir. Clarke.-I ask your lordship for the ordinary protection to this gentlewo

that is accorded to every witness in a court of justice. He is a man of education an
intelligence, and I submit to your lordships that it is scarcely fair even for the P
poses of a prosecution like this, to try and place words in that gentleman's Oi ig.
that he bas never uttered. Now, I ask this I submit to your lordship that it
not a fair way of putting that question: "Will ho undertake to contradict him
If it was intended to contradict him, the law prescribes a means by which he Ohl
do so, and I submit he cannot do it by any other means.

Court.-Has not a counsel, in cross-examining, a power to take a far wider rane
than on the examination in-chief ?

Mr. Clarke.-He bas under certain circumstances, but he as no right to sugge*
that which does not exist, not even though he represents the Crown.

Mr. Osler.-My learned friend bas interfered with me twice in this cro'
examination, and he knows, or ought to know, that to interfere in a cross-examl
tion at critical points is highly irregular, unless the counsel cross.examinin
clearly wrong. My learned friend's first interference was uncalled for, and 1 af
now askirg what is asked every day, whether one witness will contradict anot
I am trying to see where the truth lies between the two witnesses, neither of
I am sure are desirous of giving anything else than the truth to the courb
in fallible memory it requires cross-examination to elicit which is the belief
sccount of the proceeding. I don't desire to impute any, and shall not impute fo
moment any intentional wrong to the witness on the stand, nor do I desire
learned friend should do so to the witness Craig.

Mr. Clarke.-I did not do so.
Mr. Oler.-I would be very much obliged if my learned friend would not 1t

fere, and I shall put my questions in as legal a manner as possible.
Court.-Could you show me some authority that in cross-examination where

witness has made a statement, ho cannot be asked will you contradict so-andE-soh
Mr. Clarke. -I am Dot prepared to give any such authority, but if your lo s

will just remember after all this is a question of fact. It is not a question of law
the jury are the judges and not your honor.

Court.-But I have to say what is proper.
Mr. Clarke.-Your lordship is there, not to make laws.but dispense laws

and I shall stand to my client if the whole Crown and Government are agaist '
Mr. Osler.-We should be very sorry to hinder my learned friend in his pro

course of doing his duty by his client.
Court.---Mr. Osler, you may ask the question.

By Mr. Osler :
Q. Now, will you undertake to contradict Mr. Craig's statement of what

place there at the meeting, in other words, will you measure your oath aganO
upon what took place there ? A. If what I have already said contradicts hia it
be so, and I stand by it. e

Q. That is argumentative-he has made an assertion of a fact, and you have o
an assertion of a fact-it is quite consistent that ho may have said both thino d
you undertake to swear that ho did not state what Mr. Craig swears that he
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1 nnderstand you now. I did not understand your question before. i can't under-
e o say that he never did say that, but I can swear thatin my hearing ho did not.
Q. You can swear that it is not in your recollection ? A. In my hearing it was

'Ot. It is not in my recollection that ho repeated any such thing, excepting those
bh I have givein.
By the Court:

Q. If ho did make it, it was not in your hearing, was that your expression ? A.
h made that ass;ertion, it was not in my hearing. I never heard him make it.

By Mr. Osier:
. Did Scott on that occasion leave the meeting before the resolutions were pas-
A. I am not certain if he left before they were passed. I know ho loft before

ey Were completed and signed.
Q Why did ho leave ? A. I don't know.
Q. Was it because the meeting was not in accord with his views? A. No, I don't

0w what his reasons were.
You have no idea ? A. No.

Q. But when these resolutions were signed, ho was not there ? A. He was not
nt when they were signed.
. Ilow did you come to notice his absence ? I knew ho was ont of the house.

Q. Did you see him go? A. Because the meeting was pretty well disporsed---
Q. Did you see him go? A. I saw him go.
9. What happened in the meeting, did he go ? A. It was during the discussion

nt the resolutions. I can't tell yeu the particular-
Q. Did ho move a counter resolution ? A. No.

%U Q. Are you sure of that, Mr. Matheson ? A. I don't remember of him moving a¼r resolution.
S,. Don't you remember that he moved a counter resolution, and ho could not get

de'r and he got angry and left; do yon remember anything of that kind ? A.
t remember, he may have had a counter resolution.

Qi Will you swear ho did not? A. I will swear to the best of my knowledge.
. Will you swear that ho did not? A. I will, unless my memory has failed

tod QYour memory has failed you as to Spence's speech, that is all gone ? A. I
On that Spence took up the same lino of argument as I did.

t Youtold me also that you could not remomber what ho said ? A. I could
lember
'YOu have repeated, so to speak, Scott's speech ? A. And I have repeated

and 1 told yon Spence took up the gist of those arguments.
&. • iow do you say that Scott was in accord with the rest of the meeting ?

as in accord with the rest of the meeting, for neutrality was what I wasto Colme down for.
t1 e What more did he want ? A. What more le wanted was what ho suggested,qsabiitY of the volunteers returning home.

Id laying down their arms ? A. No, not laying down their arms.
tMWihen were you asked to state your recollection of what took place at that

4tire? When was it ? When were you asked to state your recollection ? The
lg 4  e are speaking of is the meeting at which Mr. Craig was secretary, howe0;&,qdicj that meeting continue ? How long was it after you called order, before it

A. It must have been probably four hours.Ilo long did you speak? A. I don't know.
i :on minutes ? A. I probably spoke more than that.

Wenty minutes? A. I dare say, taking it altogether, I spoke nearly an

"o Ought to have preached sermons enough to know that half an hour was5 can stand? A. Yes, but it was not at one time.
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Q. Well you spoko altogether an hour ? How long did Scott speak ? A. It
almost impossible for me to tell you.

Q. You are telling me very circumstantially what ho said, give me an idea
how long ho spoke, half an hour or an hour? A. He probably spoke over half as
iour.

Q. How long did Spence speak ? Did ho speak more than half an hour i
Re spoke several times, I can't remomber.

Q. How much altogether? A. HRe may have spoken an hour.
Q. Well what was doue the rest of the time, -four hours altogether, surely 8s»Ob

body else spoke in the tour hours, four hours for two speakers would be, a terri
length of time even if my learned friend was one of the parties-now ho
spoke? A. I don't reniember any others except Mr. Craig, of course.

Q. Well, Mr. Craig spoke how long? Can you tell how many resolutions
proposed and who proposed them ? A, Mr. Craig proposed the resolutions.

Q. Who elsO proposed another resolution ? A. Nobody.
Q. Why, you would never discuss four hours without an amendment wouldYOu

A. We did it all the same, whatever lougth of timae the discussion was.
Q. You have told us it was four hours, what time was it you got through

the meeting ? What time of night? A. It must have been nearly midniglit.
Q. And where did you go from that? A. I went home.
Q. We are speaking of the St. Catharines church meeting, you went home

that ? A. Yes.
Q. When was the next meeting held ? A. The next meeting was held the

day.
Q. At what time ? A. About 11 in the foreuoon.
Q. Who was there, was Scott there ? A. No, ho was not.Q. Now, in holding these meetings, at the instance, no doubt, of Major 9ro

there was, i believe, some question whether the English half-broeds would not e
'hat was the danger was it not ? The expected danger you were seeking to aq

was the rising of the English half-breeds ? A. I don't know that we had any
of English half-breds rising against the Government. dtOA.Q. What was the ue thon of holding the neetings? A. Well, as I under Ft
the point was this, that the French were under the impression the Englis id
breeds would assist them in arma, and if they were assured that they WOld1

assist them, it would be the means of thom quietly dispersing and going to
homes. ti»%f

Q. That was the object of the meeting? A. That was the object ofthe e
Q. And your instructions were for that purpose to get them to remain

A. Yes.
Q. That was why the word" noutrality " was made use of? A. Yes. the
Q. The object being to show that the French could not get any aid fro"

English? A. Yes. 0j
Q. Do you say there was any danger of them giving them any aid ? A d

think there was. I dton't believe there was. 01Q. And I suppose there wore a good many of those your own people, Your
congrgation ? A. Yes. ee

Q. So that you would, to some extent, know the feeling of the countrY
A. Yes.

By Mr. Maclise :gt
Q. You were present during all the time that Mr. Scott was there were Y0a

A. Yes. of thO
Q. Now, the learned counsel for the Crown has referred to the atter , be

]natter being brought up to your recollection. Now, you visited Mr. &Ott
was in prison did y ou not ? A. I did. 0t

Q. Did you have any conversation with him thon about preceding eOn <#
matters would be retained in your memory? Did yon have any disjcus0io
him thon? A. Weii, we nover went into those.
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Q. Still your momory dwelt on those things did it not? A. Yes.
Q. More particularly what Mr. Scott said, on that account ? A. Yes.
Q. Did you not visit hira seveial times in prison in Prince Albert ? A. I visited

l very frequently.

BILLIARD MITCHELL, sworn
Examined by Mr. Clarke:

Q. Where do you reside ? A. Duck Lake.
. In the North-West Territories? A. Yes.

. . ]Eow far is that from the place known as the Ridge ? A. Twenty-eight or
lt tmiles.

Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. Yes.

tre Q. How long have you known him ? A. I have knownn him since the year the
aty Was made with the Indians, and that was in 1876, I think.

rel Q. Are you aware of the relations that ho has borne; or has ho borne any close
ations with the half-breeds of the country ? A. I know that his wife was an
glish half-breed.

Q. I believe she is now deceased? A. Yes.
. low has Thomas Scott been employed or engaged during the time you have

'en him ? A. HE was engaged by Stobart & Co., and thon by Stobart Eden &

Q. By the same firm ? A. The same firm, yes.
9. Do you know his place of residence before ho was imprisoned recently?
e has a farm on the Ridge.

Q. What kind of a place is it or was it, rather? A. An ordinary homestead.
Do you know of what extent? A. I suppose a half section, I don't know.

9. Can you state to the court and jury whether he farmed extensively ? A. He
extensively. I always understood ho was one of the most extensive farmers

edistrict.
'6 t You passed his place froquently I suppose ? A. I have been over his farm

'oQWili you state to the court and jury if you had occasion, about the latter end
arch last, to go to Batoche ? A. I went to Batoche.Q. a State to the court and jury wheu you went to Batoche and why ? A. There
4 1hsturbaince down there, and I went to see what the disturbance was on Turs-

h March, I think, in the evening. I am not sure about the date. It was a

4%Y r. Was that the only time you went ? A. I went on Friday, and on the Satur-folow.Ing.dy otes
Did you meet anybody you knew, when at Batoche, on any of these three
si ? A. I saw French half.breeds there that I knew.

e id you see the prisoner ? A. I saw the prisoner there on Saturday, on the

ebJt?' iyou state to the côurt and jury where you saw him, and who was pros.
saw him in Riel's council chamber.

o You recollect if anybody was with him, and if so, whom? A. Two people
i tIm. One was Mr. Ross, and I don't remember who the other was.

You any conversation with the prisoner when you were there ? A. Yes.
teèn e, have the kindness to state to the court and jury what took place

the-e you, what conversation ? A. I asked the prisoner what ho was doing
e .. O

la si, er That is not evidence. What a prisoner states is not evidence, what

hl k t larke. His own account of what ho is doing there, together with the per-
j ,go of the party who was present, if that is not ovidence-

se. -They charge him with conspiring there at Batoche.
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Mr. Clarke.-It is not what was done there, it is what was said, and I think the
jury will want to know that.

Mr. Osler .- What was said, your Honor, by him, what Mr. Mitchell heard bie
say to the ottiers who were coicet ned in the rebellion, I am not going to object toi
but when a man is accused of crime, I have yet to learn that when he makes h1o
excuse or his statement, when ho is asked what he is doing there-I have yet
learn that that is evidence. I am quite free to admit, I shall not object, at
events, to Mr. Mitchell's telling what he heard him say to others, but what he said' 0

answer to Mr. Mitchell's question as to what he was doing there, is not evidence.
Mr. Clarke.- My learned friend puts this in so skilful a manner that it must stri

your Lordship with what peculiar point and force. He says when he was there wie
the others engaged in the rebellion-now we have not a word about rebellion froIe
this witness, and I submit to your Lordship it is a most unfair attempt to nake t
appear there was rebellion until we have it from the witness. I ask my questio .t&
be taken down, and I ask for your Lordship's ruling, and I know exactly what W
be the result.

Court.-It is very clear the witness has not spoken of rebellion. Now, your
ask him what he was saying, what was said by the prisoner and what was doue
the prisoner there.

Mr. Clarke. - If the prisoner and witness were present at a place in Batochle 01'
eertain day, surrounded by others, I ask the witness, and I am legally entitled tO a
him, what the prisoner said. That is what I ask him. What did the prisoner s'ay 0,

Court.-As far as you put your last question you are right, but don it g
beyond it.

Witness.-The prisoner said be had been sent there by the English half breed
ind out the cause o. the disturbance and get them to stop and disperse, and t

they did Dot stop they would get themselves into trouble, and they were endail
ing the lives of the settlers. That is ail the prisoner said to me. wore

Q. Did you see any of the panrties engaged in that disturbance when you thethere; did you see any of the parties who were supposed to bu leaders amonLi
.French half-breeds ? A. I saw-the whole council, the council that was assemble

Q. Did you see Louis Riel ? A. 1 did. tg
Q. I understood you to say that you went there for the purpose of tryi".g

find out if there was any disturbance, and what it was about ? A. I was there try'
to make peace.

Q. And you met the prisoner there ? A. Under similar circumstances. b eQ. They have not arrested you for misprision of treason ? A. No, theyi
not.

Q. Would you have the kindness, Mr. Mitchell, to state whether you wen
these three several times that you have menrtioned of your own accord, or if a of
of those times you were requested to go by any person in authority? A. * ¢
Crozier asked me if I would go over on the first occasion and see what the, o
were up to. YOO

Q. The prisoner is charged with giving aid and comfort to those poople' r 1
were there ; did lie comfort them much in your presence ? A. Ali the prisono
to me is what I have already said.

Q. You say that you saw Ross there with him ? A. Yes.
Q. Now, you know the prisoner for sorne years, you have stated ? A. eYpi'
Q. Do you know if he speaks the Cree language? A. I dou't thinl he 0h

much Cree language.
Q. Do you know if he speaks French ? A. I know he does not speak FreU0
Q. Do you know the witress Astley who appeared bore ? A. I do. ÇLg f
Q. Is it to your knowledge tfhat that gentleman, Mr. Astley, is appyîar 0f

s Government situation ? A. I don't know anything about it. 1 an flLno a
the fact. wepO

Q. Did you see a gentleman there by the name of McKay ? A. Mr. McKaf e
with me on the third occasion. That is on this particular oùcasion WC are
ing Of.
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Q. That is the same occasion when you saw the prisoner there ? A. Yes.
Q. Did you hear the witness McKay make any statement with reference to

Where the English half-breeds were ? A. 1 don't know. I did not take any notice
'.îwhat Mr. MoKay was saying. He was speaking in Cree the greater part of the
irae, to the betst of my recollection.

Q. Speaking in Cree to whom ? A. To the council. When ho spoke to Riel ho
'Oke in Euglish.
Q. Going there did you hear any conversation with Mr. McKay about where the

glish half-bieeds were ?
Mr. Osler. -It is not evidence, what Mr. McKay said.
Court. If the prisoner was there it would be.

By Mr. Osler:
9. Mr. Mitchell, did you hear any of the conversation that Scott held with

r etie wlom he had gone to see ? A. H1e held no conversations with anyone but
4Yself during the time that I was in the council chamber.

Q. So, whatever his errand had been, you did not hear him delivering it ? A.
OIVt recollect him speaking to anybody but myself.

e . Then had ho finished what ho had gone to do at the time you met him
re ? A. I did not ask him.

Q So that what you stated to us is not what ho was stating to the parties sur-'Idng him, but what ho stated to you in answer to a question ? A. He stated that

r sler.-So you see, your Honor, it is not in evidence, and it ought to be

)4r. Clarke.--I submit to your Honor it is evidonce.
Court.-At a certain time I shall have to express an opinion upon that.

By Mr. Oser :
What time of day or night was it you saw him there ? A. It might have

about mid-day.
Q. And you had gone at the instance, I believe, of Major Crozier ? A. Yes.

BERT AUSTIN PORTER sworn:
Examined by .Mr. Maclise :

.Where do you live ? A. Prince Albert.
• What is your occupation ? A. Tolegraph operator.

'i the service of ? A. The Government of the Dominion.
fto Por how long? A. Since January 1883, the time the Dominion lino came inh south
Q b0 you remember the 22nd March last? A. Yes.

kt an Where did you go on that occasion, who ordered you ? A. Capt. Moore sent
î Order to-CaDt. Moore of the North-West mounted police sent me an order to

the Ridge-McFarlan's creek, at least.IEt0iç far from Prince Albert? A. I suppose twenty or twenty-five miles from.ù' Albertj
a As a - ? A. As an operator. I was to transmit messages that would be
q. y r ton to the authorities in Prince Albert and vice versa.

t7 scouts from Carlton and from there by telegram ? A. Despatch them.

t. hat sort of an office had you there? A. A bell tent and a wire running

You remember the occurrence of the battle of Duck Lake? A. Yes, I

~ W~ Occ(urred after that, dnring the night ? A. We got orders to, break camp
144 the tthe Ridge, near Prince Albert, and tap the telegraph line at the Ridger.
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Q. A t whose house ? A. I tapped the lino into the house of Mr. William Miller
It was about four o'clock in the morning I think when we got there.

Q. How far was that from Tom Scott'e place ? A. I suppose it is three.fourtho
oif a mile probably. That is my idea of the distance.

Q. He is the nearest neighbor, at any rate, to Scott ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know the prisoner Thomas Scott? A. Yes.
Q. What took place between him and you on the 27th, after Duck Lake f

A. He came into the telegraph office and told me-on the 27th, after the Duck La
fight,-

Q. He gave you a telegram-

By Mr. Osler :
Q. Where is the telegram ? A. I have not it with me. It is destroyed wt

all the rest of the messages. It was sent to Capt. Moffatt at Prince Albert.

By Mr. Maclise:
Q. What was the effect of that, and what was the result afterwards? A•

dictated to me and I w rote on a piece of paper.
Mr. Osler.-This is not evidence.
Mr. Maclise.-Suppose you were charged with being before and after a c

-time, conspiring with rebels ?
Court.-The date is not material in a charge of this sort.
Mr. Maclise.-Suppose during that time you are proved to have made an 0fTet l

supply troops, wouldn't that be evidence ? On the 27th, and for several days be
and after ? be

Court.-No, I think not. The answer that it was proposed to give was that
dictated a message offering bis services. From Miller's house to this man. the

Mr. Claike.-The question i want to ask is this, if on the day in questio es
accused went to him as Government telegraph operator at the Ridge and thro'
him as telegraph operator telegrapbed a message to the highest military autboiei
offering to ) aise a troop of men in defence of the country, and against the re
that is my question.

Court.-I think you may put the question, generally, if he did, so as to 
bis character if ho did, without reference to date. as

Mr. Scott.-ln the next place, it is a leading question which you should no
Mr. Clarke.-I humbly ask your Ilonor to take my question, and then Wo

have a legal decision upon it. t
Mr. Osler.-Surely it would ho botter for my learned friend to ask wht 00

done. In the way it is put now, it is open to the objection of putting wOrds
witness' mouth.

Mr. Clarke.-I ask my question to be taken, and a ruling upon it.

By Mr. Macise;
Q. What tok place ? A. Mr. Scott came there and asked me to wri a

dictation, the fo owing message. As far.as I remember, he said previously gge
he bad beard of the Duck Lake fight, and ho told me to write the following ind b
To Captain Moffatt, that ho could raise from 150 to 200 men armed and aissen igd
twolve o'clock that day at the Ridge, for the purpose of fighting against the
and rebels in defence of Queen and country, that is the gist of the message.

Q. What did you do with it ? A. I transmitted it to Prince Albert. dio
Q. bid you receive any acknowkdgment? A. I received the

acknowledgment of telegraph operators, that it was received correctly.
Q. To whem was it addressed ? A. Captain Moffatt. th rt
Q. What position did ho hold then-Captain Moflat ? A Inspector in the lUi

West Mounted Police. le was then, I think, commanding officer. It was
koffatt, commanding officer, Prince Albert.
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Q. What answer did you get or what discussion was there over the wire with
gArd to this proposition ? A. I don't know whether I am permitted to state that
n lot. I am a sworn operator, under oath.

Mr. Osler.-That is not evidence. The answer to Scott, I have no objection to
CO1ng in, but not any discussion between the authorities among themselves as to

ait should be done with it, that would not do.
Mr. Clarke.-I don't think, with all the desire to do anythirg I ean for my

et I don't thiuk we would be justified in tapping the lino or asking what the
ethorities were discussing between themselves.

By Mr. Maclise:
Q. What answer was received ? A. There was no direct answer; there was an

%kTIOwledgment that it was received correctly.
Q. Well, did you hear anything of ýjr. Scott after that ? A. Yes. I saw him
o I was there, nearly every hour or so.
Q. What took place between you? A. There was nothing particularly took

,e.. There were discussions and talking. I don't remember exactly any partie-
thiug taking place.
Q. Did ho conspire with anybody in your presence, to bring about rebellion oraid or abet rebellion during that time ? A. I never knew anything of the kind.
Q . Wasn't he in and out of the office most of the time ? A. He was ihere

;Md Q- Did you see anything on his part that would bear out the charge that wasagast him?
]r. Osler.-Surely you have gone far enough with these irregular questions.
141. Clarke.- You've charged him with a vague charge.
tdr. OsIer.-The Crown must rest upon the overt acts they have proved, end you

'rA1it diplacoe those oveIt acts.
Mr. Mac] ise.-Conversations of this kind have been given by the prosecution.

By Mr. Osier:
4 l2 

• 0w long have you known Mr. Scott ? A. Ever since I came to Prince

Q• liow long is that ? A. Three years this winter.
Q. Been intimate with him ? A. No, I have naever been intimate with him.
Q . The country was in a censiderable state of alarm immediately atter Duck
e -A. Yes, there was a certain amount of excitement.

They were afraid of the Indians? A. Yes.
eAnd afraid that the settlement was going to be in trouble ? A. TPhat was the

comaplaint.
It was after it was known that the people had been killed at Duck Lake that

e er of Mr. Scott's was made ? A. It was on the 27th-yes, that would be after
kLake fight which was on the 26th.

t eThe country was in a great state of alarm ? A. Yes, there was considerable

G Ross sworn:-
-examined by Mr. Maclise:

Where do you live ? A. Prince Albert during last winter-near Prince Albert.
w You know the prisoner Mr. Scott ? A. Yes.

at has been your acquaintance with him ? A. I know him since 1872.
Q ere Wa that ? A. Princesp River.

the service of the--? A. Hudson Bay Company.ou are both in the service of the company? A Yes.
i: u l eft I think about the same time as he d1id ? A. Yes.

bat occupation do you follow? A. Freighter generally and farming.
ere s your farm ? A. Medicine Hat.
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Q. Do you know the settlement called the Ridge ? A. Yes.
Q. What position does it hold as to Batoche and Prince Albert in case an attaa

had been made during the rebellion, an advance had been made from Batoche ou
Prince Albert? A. It is right on the way.

Q. As to trails ? A. Yes.
Q. The traits trom Carlton and ' Duck Lake and Batoche all--? A. Lead aboO

that, they all come into one there.
Q. If an attack had been made, what would have been the effect on the RideO

settlement ? A. They would stand a poor chance, I guess.
Q. What was the state of the mind of the people of that settlement at that tiI1e'

about that time on that account, on account of their position ? A. The families We
getting scared. They wanted to have a meeting of the people, and see what thef
would do.

Q. This was in the winter, and when there are not so many trails open. There
are not so many trails open there in that country in winter as in summer ? A. X'

Q. What sort of farm has Mr. Scott there, and what has been his occupation fo
eome time? A. A farmer, and he has about 300 acres.

Q. Under cultivation ? A. Yes, about that, as near as I can judge, Mr. Scottdb
Q. Large or small quantity ? A. Large, I should say.
Q. Now, what kind of a settlement is that, what kind of people surround it i

English and Scotch half-breeds.
Q. Almost entirely, is it not the case ? A. Yes, with a few Canadian settle00
Q. You went to live with Mr. Scott sometime lately? A. Yes.
Q. ]How long ago was it ? A. It was about 4th December, I believe.
Q. Of last year? A. Yes.
Q. How long did yon stay ? A. Until after the Batoche fight, a few daysa

that I left there.
Q. Of course you have been away and back in the meantime I suppose?

Yes, I have been away.
Q. Now you were living at his house then after 4th December ? A. Yes.
Q. Was he away from you any part of the time, or were you with him a

p art of the time from that on to the end of the year ? A. The most of the tirno
have been along with him, mostly all the time, until I started.

Q. There were parties came there to see him, did he hold private discussion *
them ? A. I never heard any. I have been always in with him there, when any P
sons came in, I have been always in his company.

Q. Now the half-breeds in that section of the country, in what regard do
hold Mr. Scott; what influence has he over them? A. They look on hima
leader of the people there.

Q. The half-breeds look up to him as their leadei ? A. Yes.
Q. A leadership is brought about by himself is it ? A. I can't say.
Q. Isn't it a fact that it is on their application and on their seeking ? A-

tainly, it is on theirs.
Q. Now you say that he held no private conversations from the time you

there ? A. No, none that I know. r0
Q. Well any conversations that you heard, in any expressions you heard Tho

Scott make use of, from 5th December, until it was known that the rebellion .
broken ont after the battle of Duck Lake the fight there, did you ever hear any
1that you thought was in any sense treasonable, or what did you hear? In whaii i
did he speak of public events ? .t d

Mr. Osler.-What did he say ? If that is evidence, but it is not evidenc
no answer to any evidence in chief, that class of question has already been rul

By Mr. Maclise:
Q. Well did the prisoner ever make use of any expressions to you favorabl

the rebellion publicly or privately ?
Mr. Osler.-I object to the question, a moment's reflection will surelY sh10

is not admissible.
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Mr. IMaclise. -It would, in ordinary cases, but not in this.
h Q. From the time you went thore on the 5th December, tilt the 21st March, until

tim you went up with him as a delegate-did he go to BatociFhe during that time
the Prench settlement ? Do you know of his going to Batoche ? A. No, I don't
oW of him going there until he went along with me.

9. Now, do you remember the 20th March ? A. Yes.
t«Q. What took place on that day ? A. There was a meeting held, on the nightï
the 20th at Lindsay school.

Q. Hlow did it come to be held do you recollect ? A. Because the people wan ted
now the particulars of the trouble that was Up at Batoche. There were so many
rts, and contradictory reports had gone around that they could not believe, o a
ting was called.
Q. And what took place there? The meeting was called to order and who was

ted chairman and who secretary? A. Tom Scott, and William Miller.
Q. Scott was chairman and Miller secretary ? Was he ? A. Yes.
9. Well, what did Mr. Scott say; do you recollect ? A. Well, Mr. Scott did

saY Inuch, there was not much said at the meeting that night only to know the
deienlars from Batoche, and it was proposed by the meeting that there woild be a

gate appointed to go to Batoche, and we were elected, Thomas Soott and I a nd
lnl Paquin, and then there was a discussion about a room.
Qv9. Now it has been stated that Mr. Miller made a speech there, did youhear the

en of Mr. McNiven this morning? A. Yes.
il Did you hear the remarks that Mr. hicNiven made to the effect that Mr.
r .had stated there was a rebellion among the French ? Do you remember

Niven remarking to that effect? A. I think he did say something about it.
qe ,. You heard what Mr. Miller said, if he said anything, on that occasion ? A. 1
Sunderstand you.
Q ' Mr. McNiven has stated in his evidence this morning, that during that meeting

dl' William Miller stated as there was rebellion among the French, we should find
A4etes to find what was the matter; now, you heard Mr. McNiven's evidence '

ste Court.-~is statement was this, that as the French half-breeda were under arms
ps should be taken.

By Mbr. .Macie:
Q What did Mr. Miller say ? A. I could not say.
Q.c18 that statement of Mr. McNiven true or untrue? A. I don't remember

e n were present at the whole meeting ? A. I was present, Lut I dont
her hearing that.

oi, . Mr. McNiven also stated there were cheers after the meeting was over ; after

tre fords the close of the meeting there were cheers, three for the delega tes and
%ete fRiel; what do you say about that ? A. Well, there was no cheers while the
,they n after the meeting was dismissed there weie cheers thon from the crowd a&

Out through the doors. I could not say what it was.
Ao e' don't know what those cheers were for? A. No, 1 don't. There waa

ho ers While the meeting lasted; after the dismissal of the meeting there wera

e id you hear Riel's name mentioned at all? A. I did not. It was outside.
e a large amount of people there.

iik ,o you think if it had been mentioned you would have heard it? A. I should
Ought to hear it, if it was mentioned there.

bs Te cheers that there were, were, in fact, just the ordinary cheers that people
bard at into, going away from a meeting? A. Yes, as far as I know, I have not

, ych.eers for Riel.
4'p' ow, do you remember Mr. Scott's going away during February tom

A. Yes.
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Q. When did ho return-about what time-from Qu'Appelle ? A. The latt
end of Februnry-I could not say, I am sure.

Q. low long was it then before this meeting ? A. I think it was the latter e
of February, if I am not mistaken, or the first of March.

Q. When did be leave for the capital, now you are forgetting,when did youe
yourself for the capital ? A. The latter end of January.

Q. And when did you return ? A. First March.
Q. Now, when did Scott leave ? A. It was after that, Scott came back. bisQ. fow long after that? A. I guess eight or ton days. I think I was at

place eight or ton days after. reQ. Do you remember the time ho came back ? Until this meeting yoU Ie
stopping right at his house, were you not ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember whether ho made a visit to Pi ince Albert during that t'
or not? What are the facts in regard to that ? A. From the time ho came backc

Q. Up to this meeting of the 20th, on Friday ? A. le bas only been O
down there, and I have been along with him. He went down with flour, lour th
ho brought in.

Q. What time was that ? A. That was the next day after ho came in.
Q. That would be then about what time? You say you came back on thà e

March, and about eight or ten days after that, Scott came back? A. I should
about the 12th March, as near as I can remember. here

Q. Between that time, the 12th and the 20th, the time of the meeting, h
vas Scott ? A. Always at home. bh

Q. Did you hear the evidence of Mr. Astley this morning to the effect that ti
day before the stores weie looted on the 17th March, ho saw Mr. Thomas Scott
Prince Albert ? A. I have not. 0Q. Did you hear what Mr. Astley said about Thorras Scott being down to Prh
Albert jumping ont of a sleigh or the 17th March, the day before the looting o
tores, and going to Capt. Moore and having a conversation with him? A. Y

have heard so.
Q. Ncw, you have already stated that from the 12th to the 20th Scott was no

Prince Albert ? A. No, I have been there all the time, and I have never iseen
go down until ho was taken prisoner down in Prince Albert-about two days
lie vas taken prisoner, I was down there.

Q. Weil, what would you say with regard to that evidence of Mr.. Astle7Y'
that it was true or untrue ? Would you contradict that evidenco?

Mr. Osler.-That is not the right way to get the evidence.
By Mr. Maclise:

Q. Where was Thomas Scott on the 17th March? A. Well, he must have be
Zhome, because ho has never been in Prince Albert since that time till after.
1has, it is mnnnown to me, and I bave been there al the time. He must have
down there in the night, and then ho could hardly get down there in the niîg
le back in the norning without my knowing it.

Q. Astley stated it was in the afternoon he saw him there ? A. I can' t BAY
1hing about that.

Q. You know that Mr. Scott was home in the afternoon, don't you?
MXr. Osbler.-I desire the witness should not be led unnecessarily.

By .fr. Adaclise : b
Q. Now, what was said by Mr. T homas Scott at tbis meeting on the 20th J

Do you recollet what was the sense of what ho Eaid ? Do you recollect ho call
some of lhem for a speech, did he mot ? A. Re did.

Q. Who was that ? A. 1 think the first was McNiven. 0o
Q. YOU Lave already told us that the work of ihat meeting was the sel d

delegates, and very littie discussion. Well, whom did they send as delegateop
w ere they sent for? A. Thomas Scott, rayEelf and William Paquil).
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Q T 9Yon have already stated that Mr. IMiller was secretary of that meeting. Did
' ake any notes ? A. I don't think he as taken any notes. I think it was on a
rab Of Paper- ecraps of paper taken in a hurry.

Q. When did you start for Batoche ?, A. On the morning of the 0th.
Q. What day of tbe week ? A. Saturday morning-the 21st I mean.
9. What time in the morning? A. About 1 o'clock.
Q. What took place after that during the day ? Where did you go, and what
Place there ? A. We went to Batoche.

Q. Did you see anybody on the road ? A. No, just met one steigh. I don't
0W NWho it was. I think that was all we met on the road. It was dark.

r tWhen you got to Batoche, what took place there? A. We seen there was

Q. Where did you go Io ? A. We went up to Riel's bouse.
Q. I that where you went to first ? A. No.
Q. Where did you go to first ? A. I think it is to Fisher's store, I am not sure.
Q. Then you went on to the council house, did you ? A. Yes.

_. And what did you see there ? Where did you see Mr. Riel first there ? A..
t twenty yards, I suppose, from the house--he came out to meet us.
.3 What conveisation took place between him ard Mr. Scott, or between him

to you as delegates? A. Mr. Riel seid that 1 hope you have come to make peace,
t %Ve bloodshed, and Thomas Scott said that he just came here as a delegate with a

Saind that note was given to Riel, which ho read, and ie wanted to bring back-
ting the truth of the trouble.

. ut what did ho say in arswer to Riel's question about preventirg bloodshed

said if he could do that he would be very willing to do aUl that was in his

«3(. Osler.-Who said that ? A. Tom Scott.
r. Maclise.-Mr. Scott askcd him what the cause of the trouble was, didn't ho?

e .Q. .And 'what did Riel say ? A. He said it was on account of Lawrence Clarke
et g i there, comirg through there frcm having bcen down east, I think, down

h GoY anyhow, and came thrcugh there, and the balf-breeds wanted to know what
e overlmnt was going to do towards their grievances, and he said that what

o e going to get was powder and ball, that there was 500 police left iloodo ta.
nd wpe them out.

en had they left Hoodo ? A. That morning of the day that Lawrence
bel1 re nt through there. I cculd rot say what time it was. It was a iew days

e that. That is the conversation that he told us anyhow.
* lie r said sometbing about expecting somebody to come there, didn't he ?
rOser.-. It is desirable to get what was said without suggesting.

I Maclise.-What did Riel say after that ? Did he say anything about
haf y and Mitchell ? A. Yes, ho kept us there. Their was three scouts, French

e reeds, came from Duck Lake, and said that Mr. Mitchell and Thomas
and,, ere coming, and the scouts brought him word that the half-breeds (English

Oteh) were joined at Carlton.
.Uid these scouts mention any conversation that took place between th m.

omas McKay ? A. The scouts had brought in word from Duck Lake.
Q. And who had the scouts come from ? A. From Tom McKay.

What was it that tbey brought as coming from Tom McKay ? A.
told him that the English half-brecds were in Carlton to join Crozier.
.r Who told him ?

. Osler.-You can't give what the scouts said, surely ?
r. < aclise.-Who told ? A. That is what the scouts said.

Ils What did Riel tell you ? A. Riel told us we would have to stay bore, or
So '0'1ere playing a three-fold game on them, or else Tom McKay must te a lià

to stay there until Tom McKay came in.
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Q. So that the result of your journeying there was this ? A. Till the sconto
came in, we wore:detained.

Court.-The simple fact was that they were detained until McKay arrived bf
reason of the scouts' story ? A. Yes.

Q. Did Riel make any threat, and what was it ? A. He told me Tom McKay
Q. Did he make any threat to you ?
Mr. Osler.-What did ho say ?
Mr. Maclise.-What did he say about Nolin ? A. He said they had sentenfl

Nolin. He was very hot or very mad, as you call it, because we came there On t
&ame errand as Tom McKay, with a different view of it.

Q. What did ho say about Nolin ? A. He said they had sentenced Nolin,
what could they expect ?

Q. Sentenced Nolin to what ? A. To death, to be shot.
Q. Where was Thomas Scott during the time you were there ail day ? Was hO

with you, out among others ? Or how, or what ? A. He was with me ail the tin"e'
along with the other delegates.

Q. Does Thomas Scott understand Cree or French ? A. No.
Q. Did Thomas Scott after that say anything to Riel, and what was it; aybOe

what ho would do ? A. He said he would have nothing to do with him after b
took up arms, but as far as ho was in any legal manner, it would be ail right, bd
when ho took up arms, ho wanted to have nothing to do with him whatsoever.

Q. id hie speak about constitutional agitation ? A. Yes. .
Q. And what did ho say ? A. He said ho was willing to do anything he posèi

could to get the rights of the people.
Q. In a legal constitutional manner? A. In a constitational manner, not 101

otherwise.
Q. Now did ho say anythingt about, in case there was an Indian uprising?

ho mention anything about the Ridge people ? A. Yes.
Mr. Oster.-You are leading him ail the time, it is awful.
Court.-Was thero anything more passed ?
Mr. Maclise.-Q. Was there anything more took place between them ab$

letting the people know ? A. Yes.
Q. Well, what was it ? A. Thomas Scott wanted to know from Riel if t

Indians would corne down thero to let them know around.
Q. For Riel to let them know beforehand? A. Before they would get d

thore and go right through the people, as it was right on their way. k &
Q. When did you leave Batoche and where did you go to? A. I went bac

the Ridge.
Q. When ? A. Saturday evening.
Q. What time ? A. About four o'clock.
Q. What time did you get home? A. About eight.
Q. And you went to Scott's house ? A. Yes.
Q. When was the next meeting held at Lindsay after yon got home on Satali!i 1

xiight ? A. Monday night.
Q. Were you at church next day at Lindsay ? A. No I wasn't at church.
Q. Yon say there was a meeting Monday night? A. Yes, MondaY 0%

Q. Who was chairman, and who was secretary at that meeting, do you regoll*O
A. I think it was Thomas Miller secretary, I am not sure, I could not say.

Mr. Maclise.-There were some resolutions paised there, a series of resol d
I have made attempts to get them, they were sent to Major Crozier, and haade aoe
by him I believe to the prosecution and I have served thea with a notice to P
those, concerning meeting 23rd March, signed by a very large number of PIPy"'

Mr. Osler.-We have a paper which may have come from Major Crozier, ,,...

that is ail we have; we don't know its authenticity, and it is marked a coPY
it came from Riel's possession, from Batoche.
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.By Mr. Maclise:
. Well, does that show what was done on that day? Look that over; do you

1lect anything of that kind being passed on that day? A. Yes.
Q, That was to be sent to whom? A. To Major Crozier.

. Who went with it? A. William Miller, I believe.
Q. And who else ? A. Adams.
9. Now, you were at that meeting where the speeches were made, was the

that was made by Thomas Scott or anything ho said to the effect-what did
inas Scott say? A. Hie was speaking in a legal manner to get their rights in a

a manner, but not to take up arms, that was the whole of the meeting.
Q. Did you see the jail that Mr. Scott was kept in alter being taken down to,
ceMO Albert? A. 1 did.
Mr. Osler.-Surely this has nothing to do with the issue here.
Mr. Maclise.-He was arrested and detained three months without charge.
Mr. Osler.-It ho is improperly charged, there is a remedy.

By Mr. Maclise:
Q. Whose signature is that to exhibit "I H" ? Who signed that ? A. I did.
Q. Where did you write that? A. Down in a law office in town.
Q- You positively swear that you wrote that ? A. Yes, I swear I wrote that.

D.»o you see that paper "6 " with name below, who do you think signed that
e there? Have you any idea of who.signed it ? A. Thomas Scott.
Q. Would you think Thomas Scott signed that? A. He might, and he might

. It is pretty bard-i could not swear.
Q. You remember the time of ihe battle of Duck Lake, do you not? A. Yes..
e.-Do yeu remember when Thomas Scott was made prisoner after that ?

You were left in charge of the place, I think, you stayed at the place?

Q. What took place there at Scott's farm-
er. Osler.-What has that to do with this case? Surely that is not, and cannot

Bine have known Mr. Scott, I think, for some thirteen years or so ? A.
ai"ce 1872.

q. You are not any relative or connection of his? A. No.
rQ And what was your position when you were up there, from December till

SChe were you hired, or what were you doing, living there? A. I was living
e, and I went down to Troy for freight.

Were you just stopping there as a friend, or were you hired ? A. No, I wa&InereIy stopping there; it was a good place for my horses.
q- Just stopping there, doing what freight you could? A. I just went on one,down to Troy.

O -Q What then took you there? Were you working for your board or paying
our board, and doing work or were you putting in the winter there, or what?

a just putting in the winter there.
And doing nothing ? A. I was freighting. I went down to Troy.

SThat took you how long ? A. A l)ng time, about two months. The snow
&ertty deep.

et b. Y>u were away all what month. You took two months; when did you
ek ? A. I got back-

Q. About the 8th March, wain't it? A. Yes.
%d SO you would be away all February, you got back the 1st of March or latter

Po y ebruary, so you would be away ail January and February on that freighting
.. Part of January and February. It would be about that-two months.

as Scott with you freighting ? A. No.
tell, you gave me an impression, I don't think you intended to do it, per-

It You and Scott almost slept together from December till March, that is not
A. I did not say it.
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Q. You seemed to say you, wore with him all the time, that he could not go a81
,where without your following as a shadow ? A. Not at ail.

Q. You were in fact, only about four weeks at Scott's altogether, from eary
December to early January ? A. Oh, I have been more than that after I came bac

Q. But you were only about four weeks there ? A. About four weeks.
Q. And during that time you went into Prince Albert, didn't you during

time you were there, commencing 4th Dacember. Did you go into Prince Alber
A. Yes, I went in to see Prince Albert.

Q. Three or four times ? A. I could not say how many times.
Q. Surely you would want a little Moosejaw beer at Christmas? A. Not tii

kind of beer they had there.
Q. Then in March, what were you doing, after you came back; can you tell 0"

Where were you on the 1st March, or 2nd March ? A. I guess I would be ino
the way eoming to Prince Albert, pretty close around there.

Q. Well, what did you do the first day after you got there ? After you got
Prince Albert? A. I came back to the Ridge.

Q. And what did you do when you were at the Ridge ? What did you occaP'
yourself in doing ? A. In looking after the feeding of the horses.

Q. That is all you had to do? A. All I had to do.
Q. And all you did ? A. All I did.
Q. And what was Scott doing, watching his horses and stock? A. He was

there at the time, he was down at Troy.
Q. Did you get a letter from Riel at the time that you were over there, did Yo

or Scott or any of that delegation, get a letter ? A. There was a letter cane the
Q. A letter that you could recollect the terms of? A. I think so.
Q. A letter that was given to Scott? A. Yes.
Q. Was it to the English half-breeds of the Red Deer Hills and St. Cathariles

$t. Paul's, dear brothers in Jesus Christ, is that the way the letter commenced ?
think I could recognise it, it would be a good deal quicker if you read it tome. I
not identify it. mindêQ. Look at the termas and phrases, perhaps you might brin it to your
Did you hear Scott read a letter at the meeting after you came back ? A. Yes,
letter that we brought.

Q. See whether that is the letter that he read to the meeting. Don't re
aloud. Do you remember that as the letter read ? A. I can't say.

Q. You can't say that it is or is not ? A. I can't say that it is, or is not.
Q. Who brought the letter back from that meeting ? A. Tom Scott.
Q. Now, you stated there were two delegations at Riel's that day, one Mest

Mitchell and McKay, the other Mr. Scott, yourself and another, and you said
these two delegations were different or on a different basis or words to that e
Will you tell me what the difference was, or what you mean by saying they were
a different basis ?

Mr. Clarke.-I did not understand the witness to say that.
Mr. Osler.-I don't say those are the exact words, but he gave me the imPrOV

sion there was a difference.
Witness.-We both tried to make peace I suppose. whQ. Well, what was the difference between you ? A. I can't say, I am sure,

the difference was.
Q. You did not mean to give any impression of that sort ? A. No. Sot
Q. Then you take it back, what I think Mr. Maclise put in your mouth that a

did not go to Batoche from December 5th till 21st March. Of course you Mu he
that back for you were away two months ? A. Not that I know-not while 1
been there, or not what I heard of, and I asked him and he said not. t of

Q. Now, do you know who called the cheers when the crowd wore goin O
the meeting, of the 20th March? A. I could not say.

Q. How many cheers were there ? A. There were two or three I think.
Q. And you did not take any part in them ? A. Only the usual cheerS &
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Q. Three cheers for the Queen, I suppose, breaking up the meeting ? A. Threo
eers generally for the chairman.

Q. Were there three cheers for the Queen ? A. I could not say.
Q- They tell me there were three cheers for the delegation, and tbat yon were

ered, you would surely remember that ? A. I don't remember the meeting to have
Mlssed.

WILLIAx PAQUIN sworn:- Thursday, 9 a. m., lth September.

Examined by Mr. Maclise ;
Q. Do you know the prisoner Mr. Scott ? A. Yes.
Q- low long? A. From 1879.
Q. That was when you came to where ? A. The Ridge.
Q. Where do you live ? A. At the Ridge.
9- Now, do you remember what part Mr. Scott took in any agitation that there,

aJ'It before the rebellion broke out, and what was it? A. I dou't understand

Q. Before the rebellion broke ont, what did you hear Mr. Scott say ?
14r. Osler.-That is not evidence, you have to answer definite facts that we prove.

eh Mr. Maclise.-I understood it was part of the Crown's case that the prisoner led
e People into rebellion.

o .tr. Osier. -Yon must not prove other facts. What the prisoner said on other
does not meet what he is charged with saying or doing on the specifie

4 one~ on which the Crown relies. We are not reviewing the man's whole con-
. We have given certain evidence of facts against hirm, those are the facts t:> be
and the only facts in trial.
Q. Do you remember Friday the 20th March, last pat ? A. Yes.

t Q. What do you remember that took place on that day ? A. WeIl, a meeting
the Lindsay school that day.

Q • Did Mr. Scott say anything; what took place at the meeting. as near as yoa
%1 recollect with regard to, particularly, Mr. Scott? A. Well, they met there

, first to know what to do, then we heard that there was some trouble. So
canme together there and they took three delegates to send up there.
Qer. Who were the delegates ? A. Scott, Ross, myself, and we went straight ap

Q. • What did the meeting direct you to go up for ? A. To see what the state of
ar8 as, to see if it was true.
Q. When did you start? A. We started on Saturday morning at 1 o'elock .

• And you went to ? A. Batoche's early in the morning.
Q And what took place at Batoche's? A. Well, there was nothing much thera.

're fet i.to a house there and saw the people there, some were sleeping and son-e
tfet hloing their bread. Riel was not there, and we went to another houes and

lm there.
Q Whom did you see there ? A. We saw Riel.

W 9• What took place from that until you left and went home? A. Mr. Riel
n8 what we were doing. I can't say it rightly because I oan't speak English.

By the Court :
1. 1 e asked you what you came for ? A. Yes.
By Mr. Maclise:

g j ell us it as well as you can, take your time, Who spoke of you people?

stop And what did he say ? A. He said we were sent there as delegates. So we
en there, three of us together, and he went down stairs, and I don't know wher8

-th Were td. And after he came in again, he came and said Tom McKay waa to be
day, and Mr. Mitchell.
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Q. And ho left you, did he or did ho not say something more ? A. I dont
Iknow.

Q. At any rate. did be say anything more about McKay afterwards? A. Y
Jiu isaid that Tom McKay told Scott or some other friend that the English half-bre
-were at Carlton.

Q. And what did Riel say on that ? A. Well, of course, he was rather Vez
like, with us and said that we were going to trick him some way.

Q. What else did ho say? A. Hâe said something about discussing Nolin ag
Q. Do you remember what it was ? A. I remember, but I can't say it rightll
Q. You can't say it in English ? A. I can't say it very well.
Q. Did Riel speak in English ? A. Yes. I understand English pretty eegy

but I can't talk it. ie said that he was going to shoot him, and thon what cani y
expeu ?

Q. Well, did ho say anything more just thon ? Did ho let you go ? A. 50
Q. What then ? A. I thInk ho went down stairs again, and thon we stOPPe

there. He said for us to stop there till McKay and Mitchell came thore.
Q. Did McKay come ? A. Yes.
Q. Well, do you remember any conversation that took place botween Riel .I

Soott, alter that before you left? A. Yes. b 0
Q. What w2s it? What did Mr. Scott say? A. He said something abo

letter for Riel to take down. g
Q. Did Scott say anything about a rebellion ? A. No. There was Tom g e

and Mitchelt-when they came, they said they were to meet half-way some place
go and meet each other, Riel and them.

Q. But did Scott say anything more to Riel before he left, just before you left
at any time shortly before you loft ? A. He told himn to send word to as w
would happen. ald

Q. To send word to you in what case ? A. About what bargain they *e
inake with them, peace or agreement, or anything of that.

Q. You wanted to get word also on another reason, what was that ? A. rIiý 'i
aHI remember.

Q. Wasn't there some other reason that you wanted to get word for? 0**
jour place, you lived at the Ridge, didn't you ? A. Yes. d tQ. What were you afraid of there ? A. I was afraid of the Indians, an
-was why we were sent up. to

Q. What did you want word for ? A. I said that already. I said that for thlr
aend on word if there was anything about the Indians. I said that already.

Q. That is, send you word down to where ? A. To the Ridge. ardo
Q. What time did you leave there to start for the Ridge, home ? A. TOW

evening, about three or four o'clock, on Saturday. O f,
Q. Do you remember a meeting next day at Lindsay, that has been spokeo

A. Yes.

Q. You also remember one after that at St. Catharines ? A. Yes.
Q. Was the prisoner there ? A. Yes.
Q. What did ho say et St. Catharines ? He said it would be good if tb0l

volunteers would come back and protect Prince Albert, and all these half.brele
join as one man and help them. That is what ho said, something like that any
mot the very words. ?

Q Do you remember that he said there were three cheers for Riel g'
A. Yes. t iddle

Q. What part of the room were you in at that meeting ? A. About the
of the house, , the

Q. Did you hear what cheers took place ? A. There was no cheors j

Q. Well,what was there; what sort of noise was there of any kind ? A. I
young fellows were cheering outside, but not in the house at all. I was there *a
the -very last. I was there as far as to know what time of night they wero 60

144

49 Victoria. A. 18S



9 'Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 1886

Q Before you were at Batoche, what did Mr. Scott say ? Before he was leaving
a did lie say to Mr. Riel about his mission there, and what you were sent for, and

'what you were going to ao in the matter ? A. He was sent there, and that ho
*on1d have nothing to do with Riel, by taking up arms. He said that again.

Court.-That was at leaving ? A. Yes.
11r. Osler.-Q. When you were at Batoche, was anything to be done when you
? Did Scott promise, or did any of you promise to call another meeting ? A.
When we got back, that we would have to lot you people know what was done.

. What did Scott promise to do at that other meeting ? Was it not that ho
get the people to remain neutral ? A. Yes.
- And not help the troops against Riel ? A. Against Riel, but not to go up

Q. They would not help Riel, and he would call the people together and get
to remain neutral, didn't he ? A. Not like that.

(. Wasn't tbat the way it was ? How did they come to let you go ? A. We
Pot Promise tbem anything, any way.

Q. They let you go after McKay came ? A. Yes.

But he was to call another meeting and get the people to remain neutral-
' wll hat you said, isn't it ? A. Well, 1 said first, let the people know when we

get back.
• And the people to remain neutral -

er . .Clarke.-If this is to be proceeded with, I will demand an interpreter.
si3t u on an examination in Cree (this being, as witness says, his language.)
r.:s er.-Tbe witness is answering in English very well.

.Maclise.-He does not understand the meaning of the word "l neutral."
r. Osler.-It is not right for a counsel to interfere in this way, highly irregular

'nproper,
h -Now you were there how long ? A. I got there in the morning and stopped

e labout 4 o'clock in the evening.
q . Ou got there in the morning about breakfast.time, was it ? A. Yes, about
ocki i the morning.

.ow, were you with Mr. Scott all that time ? A. Yes.
And heard all that was said between Riel and him ? A. Yes.
Xow, did you get a letter to take back ? A. Yes.

eet Was Mr. Scott to send back word what they would do after he called the
Hg? Ilow was Riel to know ? A. I don't know about that.

'eWe > how was he to know what was done ? A. I don't know. I don't knower we were to send word back to him or not-not that 1 know.
tWhat was the use of the meeting? A. It was, first, to know what to do, us

tbere that had families.
ord, But you have told my learned friend already that Scott told Riel to send

q t bargain they would make as to peace? A. Yes.
d'Q• Sco asked Riel to send him word ? A. Yes.

o?•el, wasn't Scott to send Riel back word what the English half-breeds would.We did not know what was coming. We had first to go and see that.
(w were you to know it? A. When we would get back we would know,

q would see if thore was anything further going on.
king owwero you to hear? How was the message to be sent? A. I amnot

g about essage.
Q' l then, it was the Indians that the settlers were afraid of ? A. Yes.sel ot the French half-breeds? A. No, I was not afraid of them, anyway,
q, T®y were not going to attack you ? A. No.
a s, th at. You were afraid of in the settlement, was the Indians ? A. Yes, the
q. hat is what the wives were afraid of.

teotad 'What Scott and you went over there for was to see how you would be
gaimst the Indians? A. Yes.
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Q. It was not anything to do with the French rising ? A. No, not at all.
Q. But it was just to see how you would keep your families right in case tbe

Indians came down ? A. Yes.
Q. And you wanted the French to arrange to protect you against the Indians*"

isn't thut it ? A. We had nothing to do with the French.
Q. You would not have anything to do with thorn, but what would you go there

for the purpose of gotting protection from the ldians ? A. I did not say that.
Q. Well, what did you go there for ? To finI out what the Indians were goî

to do ? A. Because, if Lhey wore going to come down, ot course we would get rea9d
for them.

Q. Why did you go to Riel ? Why didn't you go to the Indians and see W
they were going to do ? A. We would hear from thore.

Q. Did you inquire about the Indians from Riel ? A. I think we did.
Q. What did Riel tell you about the Indians ? A. I aiked Gabriel DataoI

myself, and he said that the Indians were going to take up arns, and that is
asked him.

Q. Well, thon, how on earth did you find out how you were going to be Ple
tected? You know you went there to see how you would get protected against
Indians. Now kindly tell me what you ai 1 to get that protection, what inquiriesO
you made ? A. I did not go up there to get protection from the French, from
Indians.

Q. What did you go up there for? A. To make sure what was up.
Q. Well, what did you find was up ? A. We thonght there was some t

there.
Q. Well, did you enquire into the extent of the trouble ? A. No.
Q. Well, what was the use of your delegation anyway? A. I saw what

enough to satisfy me.
Q. To satisfy you of what? A. That there was some trouble.
Q. You knew that without going there, you know ? A. No, there--
Mr. Clarke.-I don't think that is right, I submit to your lordship. The

noss is on his oath, and ho swears they went there to find out -

By Mr. Osler:
Q. You knew there was trouble there before, didn't you ? A. No.
Q. You heard of it? A. I had heard, but I did not believe it. e.
Q. What had you beard ? A. We hoard there was going to be trouble ther 1j
Q. What kind of trouble ? A. Well, I don't know what kind of trouble it

be, but trouble, anyway.
Q. What kind of trouble ? You can tell me what you had hoard ? You I

they were up in arms? A. We would hear it that way sometimes, and somnti0
not'.h

. Q. Yon hoard they were going to fight the police, didn't you ? A: I did not b0o'
that.

FATHER ANDRÉ sworn: -

Examined by Mr. Mactise:

Q. Po you know the prisoner, Mr. Soott ? A. Yes, I know him.
Q. Since when ? A. I know him since 1875.
Q. What business is ho in? A. Well, the time I knew him he was a tradr

was coming there sometimes every week, sometimes oftener than that, and
sta3ing there, and he was trading for Stobart & Eden at that time. rQ And you knew him, I suppose, to be a very disloyal man? A. A «
knew, I never hoard nothing but good about him. I never heard but that h
man esteemed and liked. I hoard Stobart, his employer, praising him very

Q. You know the Ridge ? A. I know it very well.
Q. You know where Mr Scott lives there ? A. Yes, I passed there o
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40ing down from Prince Albert to visit my mission. Hisàhouse is along the road. 1
Verv often there at his house.
Q. You knew his wife? A. Yes, I knew ber whon she was alive.
Q. She was of what ? A. She was an English ha[f-broed.

theQ. Neither Mr. Scott nor his wife belong to your church, do they ? A. No,Y don't beloug to my church.
Q, Now, what sort of settierment is there about Mr. Scott there ? A. A settie.t of fariners, especially English half-breeds and some white mon about.
Q. A few white mon ? A. Yes.

tig9. What relation does Mr. S -ott bear to thom, or did ho bear to them, at the
r4of the last rebellion, and what influence had ho over the people about there ?

thWeil, I know Mr. Scott was a man who had a great deat of influence there among
the People, because along the way I am acquainted with almost ail the half-breedsth and I hoard thom talking very highly, all the time, of Mr. Scott, and I kno'w

e was considered a leader in that part of the country thore.
Are 139.e hat their confidence ? A. Yes, as a mn he bas their confidence. They

sinple people there, and Mr. Scott is liked by thom.
Q. Did you ever hear of his abusing that confidence ? A. No.

Or know of his abusing that confidence in any way? A. No. As for that,rd the praising him very well ail the time, a long time befora the rebellion.
th -'1Wll, at the rebellion you know that it was feared that-in Prince Albert -
ph toEnglish half breeds would rise, did you not ? A. Yes, all the time I was there.
to was our foar, that the E aglish half breeds-we were expecting they were going

'n -Riel at that time, and we said there must ho some great influence to stop

ir. Osler.-That is not evidence.

By Mr Maclise:
lio . Now, you had some conversation with Mr. Scott about the time of the rebel-
teaee it broke out? A. Not at the time of the rebellion. The time that Riel
lhe. to the country and the meetings were going on, I was to stay at the place of

k Ott and we were to speak about general things that were going on.
r. Osler.-That class of ovidence was ruled opt yesterday.

-By Mr. Maclise :
Well do you remember the 20th March last ? A. Yes, I remember it well.

the Qk hat occurred on that day ? A. On that day, the day the news came that
to lia broke ont, or the half-breeds were in arms, I was sent by some settlershbld fhat it was about. I started to go to St. Laurent and on the road I was

o corne back. We met ton English half-breeds and they told me it was better
ldOa t to go there, because you will be arrested if you go there, and I came back,the  t he country was greatly disturbed and ail the women over the country out of

a tses and coming rushing to enquire. They were afraid of the Indians. That
S ra fear, that the Indians would come down.

g,e at was about the Ridge, up and down? A. Yes ; I went further than the
miles short of St. Laurent.

By the Court:
' Tel miles from St. Laurent ? A. Yes.

By -Ur. Maclise:

Sremained on after that till the day of NIr. Scott's arrest ? A. Yes. I
'e. Oming down there with his team, and I saw the police coming for him.

4t sort of a place did they put him in?
eOrâ-You know that is wrong and you shouldn't ask it,
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Mr. Clarke.-We simply 1ender the evidence.
Mr. O.ler-.-You know th:J2 it is wrong.
CHARLES NoLIN sworn : -

Examined by Mr. aclise:

Q. Do you know the prisoner, Mr. Seott ? A. Yes.
Q. How long have you known him ? A. Since 1879.
Q. Where does ho live now ? A. Prince Albert. At the place called the

-ten or twelve miles Ibis side of Prince Albert.
Q. What position does the "Ridge " hold as to Batoche and Prince Alber

especially in the winter when the snow is heavy-I mean the trails from CarltoD a
Dubck Lake and Batoche leading*to Prince Albert, where is the Ridge with regard W

them ?
Mr. Osler.-We will admit that it is in the centre. It is proved by three or four

-witnesses.
Witness.-The roads joined gcing to Prince Albert. It is a main road.

By Mr. Maclise

Q. Going from Batoche to Prince Albert? A. All the roads meet. Yes.
Q. In case any advanet had been made by the rebels from Batoche on Pr1L

Albert, what would have been the effect (,n this Ridge settlement ? If the rebel'
the Indians had gone to Prince Albert, how would the Ridge have stood, would tbhy
lhave passed through the Ridge first? A. Yes, they would pass through the -jdg3
first.

Q. Well, then the people living there would bo in great danger, would thoY 4
in case of an advance, the people living at the Ridge ? A. Yes.

Q. What sort of a settlement is that about the Ridge, Lorth and south off
Catharines and Halcro's, what people live there about Mr. Scott, principally?
Almost all the farmers, and I think the most of them English half-breeds. botI

Q. Now, what do you know about these English half-breeds who reside b
-there, trying to bring Mr. Scott into taking a lead in public affairs, both aIt and boe
the rebellion ? A. I don't know if the English half-breeds take Mr. Scott V-s leader?
but I know in some meeting Mi. Scott exercised great influence on the people* ae.

Q. Now, you were at Mr. Scott's house out and in before the rebellion took P
and up to the time of the rebellion were you not? A. I stopped often at Mr. S t
-place, pretty near every time I patsed there. I stopped there often.

Q. What was his opinion ? What did he say ?
Mr. Osler.-That is objected to, aLd has been ruled on half a dozen tirmes.

By -Mr. Maclise :
Q. You were arrested by Mr. Riel were you not ? A. Yes.
Q. What were the circumstances ? What were you trying to do, or what p

you doing when he arrested you, and when was it ? What did Riel make you Pe
soner for, and what wcre the circumstances? A. On the reason Idid not wa t,
rebellion, I ref used to join him, and I worked against him too. e0t

Q. And where did he an est you ? A. fie arrested me at the church, St. LUrf
Q. Low far is that from Batoche ? A. Six or seven miles. . e ip
Q. Where were you going when he arrested you ? A. I was to the servic

the church.
Q. Now, do you remember the 21st March last ? A. Yes.
Q. What day of tne week was it ? A. Saturday.
Q. lId yon see Mr. Scott on that day ? A. Yes.
Q. Where? A. in the council room, Riel's council room, at Batoche. JiÔ
Q. And what took place so far as you recollect that day ? A. Well, Mr. Ist

ment for me to join bitm, and ho asked what inflience had Mr. Scott, and UMri
Bays, I got a large meeting last night and I was appoited delegate at the 01
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3"5 Will find the news I got in the letter, and thon Mr. S3ott gave the letter to Riel,
'ad 1 doni't know what was in the letter. I did not see the letter. I saw Mr. Riel
1d the letter, and after Mr. Riel read the letter ho asked Mr. Scott about the rebel-

and Mr. Scott replied to Riel, I got nothing to do to speak any question with
I. I am delegate. If you have got something to say, send answer by letter, that
r8a'y mission. Personally, ho says, [ disapprove the two actions.

Q. The whole action you mean ? A. I disapprove first, to raise arms, and to
tfe Indians. I disapprove of that myself, and that is ail I heard of the conversa-t1Ora between Mr. Riel and Mr. Scott.

Q. Did you hear Riel afterwards say anything about the English half-breeds at
Qt< to Mr. Scott ? A. No.
Q. You did not hear Riel say anything about that ? Where did you first soe a

oPY Of this proclamation of Major Crozier ; who did you get it from ? A. The first
tet' saw it, I think, I am not positively sure, I think it was the 24th March, at a

kting at Lindsay's schoolhouse-the first time Mr. Scott gave me a copy of it.
Q.er Q What did ho say to you when he gave it to you? A. I kept a private con.
ation with Mr. Scott. I was standing by Riel with Mr. Monkman. I could not

M;'?exactly the mission of Mr. Monkman, but ho got a mission and Riel sent me with
k Xlian, and ho got twenty-two mon with Mr. Monkman, and [ went to that meet.

89At Lindsay's schoolhouse whore the people and I met Scott at that meeting, and
à P privately with him and some other leading men, and I told Mr. Scott 1 arm in

Position and I wanted to escape, I don't know where I can go. Mr. Scott says,
" XOn have t good way there to escape.

4th? Did you hear what Scott said at the meeting ? And what was it-on the
? Itow many people were thore? A. I did not count the people.9. About how many do you think? A. House large and full-I suppose
een 100 and 120 people there.
Q. Weil, did Mr. Scott speak there and advise the people? A. Yes.
Q Q. What did ho say ? A. Mr. Scott spoke, and I can't say all ho said, I cannot

the 411his speech in a few words. Mr. Scott says, I am sorry to sympathize with
tie iench. For two reasons, I can go with them, the reason to raise arma, and

Iridians too, for those two roasons I stop, and Mr. Scott spoke ail ho could in
atta ting to stop the English half-breeds from joining Riel, and besides that, ho

>iPetitin. I don't know if ho made the petitiori himself, but ho brought the
dao hiiself in his pocket, and showed the petition to the meeting that night.

A tal agreed with that petition, some two or three or four loading mon ail spoke
v oilor Of the petition, and no person spoke against the petition, and they ail agreed

the petition.
Was this (exhibit " L ") what they signed ? A. I could not read the petition.
the petition read at the meeting, but I did not road it myself.

yoit .vas it a petition that had been gotten up at the meeting the day before? Do
,0it eo Ollect ? A. I never saw the petition before that. Mr. Scott took the petition

-p 8 Docket at that meeting.Petition hero read by Mr. Maclise.)
e DOyon remem ber those expressions? (Witness asks that the whole petition

> which is now done.) A. Yes, that is the petition that I hoard read.
4l hat is the one that Mr. Scott thon read at tiat time ? A. It is a copy any

-BY Ar. Osler:
lu nderstand thon, Mr. Nolin, that on the 24th there was a meeting at the

S24 choolhouse, and you were there; were yoa at the Lindsay schoolhouse on
.A.~ Yes
Q d twenty men and Monkman from the French half-breed camp ? A. Yes.
. d Scott met them thora ? A. Yes, Scott mot them there.
%. W Your twenty men under arms ? A. Yes.

a it a private meeting ? No, it was a public meeting.
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Q, Were the twenty men under arms'tbere? A. Yes, not in the bouse but Ot"'
iside.

Q. And matters were discussed;there ? A. The matter was discussed, the petitiol'
was discussed.

Q. And who was the[chairman of that meeting ? A. I don't know his Christia"
nane, Mr. Miller.

Q. Did any of you from the Frerch camp speak at that meeting? Did Y"n
speik ? A. Yes, I spoke a few words there, ard Mr. Monkman spoke.

Q. And Mr. Monkman was one of the leaders, wasn't he, of Riel's? A. Yes.
Q. Hespoke there too ? A. Yes.
Q And what did Monkman want them to do ? A. I could not say exactly ha1Mr. ]Uonkman's mission was. As far as I understand, Riel sent him to take the EngliS

half-breeds by force.
Q. You think ho sent Monkman to bring some of them in ? A. Yes.
Q. Well, was it counselled there, was it agreed there that the English half-breeda

-woula romain rseutral ? At that meeting? A. Oh, yes.
Q. And that they would try and get the volunteers to lay down their arms ?

No, 1 did not bear nothing about that.
Q. Do you know any other Thomas Scott about the Ridge ? Is this the OU

Thomas Scott you know? You know all the people around there don't you? A.
is possible theie might be, but that is the only one I know.

Q. And that is the only one you heard of in that neighborhood? That iS
only Thomas Scott you have heard of in that neighborhood ? A. Yes.

Q. And ho was the only Thomas Scott who tock any interest in the movetfl0t?
A. Yes.

Q. And ho seemed to be acquainted with the French council there generallY?
Mr. Clarke.-That is trying to manufacture evidence, and you are taking adVf»

tage of a man who does not understand the language very well ihat heis speakinlgP
that purpose.

Mr. Osler.-You know it is highly improper to interrupt a cross-examniat0
like that ?

Mr. Clarke.-It is not a cross-examination. You are making out an exaina-
tion-in-chief, and you are giving evidence. - te

Mr. Osler.-A barriister of a year's standing ought to know botter than to
fere. It is grossly irregular, and y ou ought to know better.

Q. Ncw, you were at that meeting ? what time was it held ?-that meeti,1
Lindsay's schoolhouse ? A. Held in the evening, alter dark. bQ. Now, did Mr. Scott know the members of the French couneil ? Wae
acquainted with the neighborhood if Batoche ? A. Well, I don't know if ho ýk"
the French council at that time. I know that ho knew the French council b
]Riel. Since that I can't say, becaise the French affairs were changed by Rieol the

Q. Then, what the English half-breeds were afraid of, I believe, werobaf.'
Indians ? Were lhey afraid of the indians, or were they afraid of the Frencl o d do
breeds ? A. Well, for my part, I don't think the English half.breeds are afrAt
the French half-breeds.

Q. But he was afraid of the Ir dians rising ? A. Yes. e
Q. And what troubled them at that meeting was, how they would be protecbe

against the Indians ? A. The trouble at that meeting is in the petition, becaus
asked the Government to settle as soon as possible with the French.

Q. To seule with tbe French, who were in arma, as soon as possible ?
Mr. Clarke.-He did not say that. gti0teI
Mr. Osler.-Is the learned gentleman acting as a professional go

ought to ? ie
Mr. Clarke.-When the coumel puts words in the mouth of the witne8se

time to interfore. eorop
Mr. Osler.-I may say I have been practising at the bar for a great man

and I never knew of such professicnal corduct before, as I have had from the
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sfeior on the other side. I have never known a man so careless of what is right in
Professional conduct as the learned counsol.

Mr. Clarke.-I shall be obliged to ask that the witnesses be examined in their
''e language, if this thing proceeds.

Mr. Osler.--It is simply impossible to carry on a cross-examination with such
%Iuduet.

Q. The idea was, as I understand it, Mr. Nolin, to get the Government to make
treaty with the French who wore in arme ? A. I think my expression may be can
ake a misunderstanding. All the question that was discussed at that meeting was

the petition.
Q. In the document ? A. In the document.
Q. Weil the idea was to get the Government to make a treaty with them, with
IRiel ? A. Yes.
.Q. To mke a treaty with Mr. Riel ? A. Yes, as soon as possible, to

enze-
Q. That was what they were trying to do at 1hat meeting ? A. Yes.
Mr. Maclise.-You have just been relerring to a treaty, which seoms to be dis-

Bod of in short order-was the discussion that to ,k place there in sympathy or not
Vrth the expressions in this document that you hav.e already sworn to ?

Court.-le said so in plain words, as I underatuod it.

By Mr. Maclhse:

Q. Now, there is a clause in this: "We, therefore, beg of the Government to do
e with the settiers." Was that the sentiment of that meeting ? A. Yes, all the
seio]n at that meeting was just for that petition purpose.

Q. " We therefore beg of the Government to do justice to the settlers." That
the sentiment of the meeting ? A. Yes. I think my expression is not very
, you know, because I can't talk very well, but ail the meeting agreed to sup-
in favor of ihe petition.

Q. You will have to ho careful that your expressions are not twisted into some-
1 else ; now the question of those twenty-two men going ther u in arms has been

ed to, where were those arms during the meetirg ? A. Outside the house.
Q. Wibere, outside the house ? A, Just near the bouse.

. what, were they open and exposed-the arms; could anybody see them?
don't know' I could not say that.

Were they standing up or not, outside ? A. Oh, yes.
.1 n't it a fact that they were covered up ? A. I did not see them covered.

. Weil, how were they standing; picked up together or what ? A. Well, I did
pay Much attention to the arms.
q. You don't know where they were? A. No, I was in the house ail the time.

By Mr. Oslr :

• Where did you put your gun? A. I got no gun.

BRY Mr. Maclise :
. DO you state you had no gun ? A. Certainly.

e And you know ail about it don't you-about your not having any gun ; the
lae eounel says that is all you know about it. Now, I ask yc n is there anybody

old know botter about your having a gun or not, than y( urself ? A. I am
0led tO speak English, and I find now, advantage is taken of ý ho fact that I can't

Alglish properly; Mr. Clarke says this.
Jitr Oler,-Don't understand me as saying that you bad a gnu. I was trying

d r- Maclise that the only question ho could ask you was about your own gun
V know that you had none.

1%ggtoesA says in French that ho would like this to ho transkted into his own
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Mr. Osler.-The witness has answered intelligently questions put to hir"
English. The jury are satisfied ho has had a fair examination.

ANDREW WHITFORD, sworn.-
Examined by Mr. Maclise:

Q. Do you remember Sunday, the 22nd March last ? A. Yes
Q. Were you at a meeting at St. Catharines that day? A. Yes, it was in

evening, not in the day.
Q. Was Mr. Scott, the prisoner there? A. Yes, he was there.
Q. Do you know him ? A. Yes, I know him.
Q. How long have you known him? A. Quite a while I have known hili'

can swear I have known him about ten years anyway.
Q. Where does he live ? A. At the Ridge.
Q. You know that settlement well? A. Yes, I am acquainted with the se

ment.
Q. At this meeting ut St. Catharines did Mr. Scott speak ? A. Yes.
Q. What did he say, as near as you can recollect? A. He said it was a ver

foolih idea for the volunteers going up to defend Carlton when Prince Albert *0
the place they ought to defend.

By Mr. Osler :
Q. You remem ber all he said, do you? A. I don't remember ail he said, b :

remember wbat I have just said.
Q. And do you renomber what Mr. Spence said on that too? A. I do

remember what Mr. Spence said, because I have no learning to remember-any
memory as,that.

Q. Can you remember what Mr. Matheson said ? A. Yes, I can remember so
of it to a certain extent, but not the whole of it.

Q. Can you remember ail that Mr. Scott said ? A. No, I don't. I don't rolema
all he sa:d. I just remember what I have said and no more.

Q. No more? A. I don't remember any more, but I remember a little of 1
Mr. Matheson said.

Q. You know we often have to consider very much whether a man who reco
just what is importunt and nothing more, whether he is a good witness or not?
Would you say that again ?

Q. Do you say you can't remember anything more than just theso WoI'
nothing more of what Mr. Scott said; that is ail ? Who else spoke ? A.
the best of rny knowledge Mr. Adams spoke too and also Mr. Craig.

Q. Tell me what Mr. Craig said ? A. No, I can't. t
Q. What Mr. Adams said ? A. No, I can't. I could not tell you exacty

they said.
Q. Where do you live ? A. I live at Prince Albert.
Q. What is your occupation ? A. Hired servant. I was working at thait

at this meeting for a woman namod Mrs. Taylor, right in town.
Q. W here are you working now ? A. I am not working now. I was wo'

on the bout till I came down here. ere
Q. Bow did they find out you knew this ? A. Of course I was presenti
Q. Horiw did they find you out ; and find that you knîew the very wordah

Well they did not just know that I knew the very words till they brought 0e
to see what I knew.

Q. They brought you 300 miles on spec-
Mr. Clarke.-Trhe same as you brought the post office sweep.
Witness.-I don't see no spec.
WILLIAM MILLER, sworn:-

Examined by Mr. Maclise:
Q. Do you know Thomas Scott ? A. Yes.
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Q. How long have you known him ? A. Since the fall of 1878.
Q. Where does ho live ? A. On the R!dge.
Q. Where do youjive; about the nearest neighbor to him ? A. Yes.
9 And what does Mr. Scott carry on there ? A. Farming, his general occupa-

ir. Osler.-We will not. contest that ho lives at the Ridge and is a farmer.

By .Mr. Maclise :
A. Do you remember the return of Mr. Scott home in March last? A. It was

e time about the middle of March. I could not exactly say the date.
Q. From where ? A. From Troy.
Q. Do you remember the 20th March when the meeting was held ? 'A. Yes.
Q. Now where was Mr. Scott between the 13th and 20th, as far as you know as

nearest neighbor? A. He was at home as far as I know.
l Q. If he had gone to Prince Albert during that time would you have known it

rouild you not ? A. Well, I might, I could not say positively that ho was at home
""Y day, but to the best of my knowledge ho was at home; because ho generally

e P if there was any news from Prince Albert-generally came te my place.
Q. Hugh Ross was stopping at his place at the same time ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know Hugh Ross the witness who bas been examined ' A. Yes.
Q. Now do you remember the meeting on the 20th March ? A. Yes.
'at . It has been spoken of bere in evidence that William Miller was secretary of

C,.eting; is that yourself ? A. Myself.
eet. Now Mr. McNiven in his evidence has stated that you in your romarks at that

totIng Stated that the French were under arms ? What have you to say in regard
that? A I did not make no such statement.

Q. Now do you remember the meeting held the Sunday after, at Lindsay? A.
Was not there.

Q. Were you at St. Catharines? A. No.
Q. iNow you have seen this petition " L," have you ever seen that before ? A.
that is my signature to it.
Q ,a The original of this was signed where, sent where? A. To Major Crozier,-A criton.

o • Who took it ? A. Mr. Charles Adams and myself. We were two delogates to
uP With it; but it did not reach there.

hra. q'Did you take any pains to send it on? A. No; before we reached there we
r of the Duck Lake fight, and I said to Mr. Adams blood had been mr;lled, and

p bs no use trying to do anything more, and we turned back, and b aught the
e or ack ; and when I left home I destroyed all the papers with the ex p-ction of
o two private papers of my own-destroyed them in my own house- lid not

Whether I would ever be back again or niot.
1th1 for, what was the object of this petition ? What was to follow it ? Whatî

s for, to be signed by so many people? A. Jusat he potition -atains..
Sth How did it come about? Had it any connection wit!i Mr. Mathesua? A.

%ott teOting at Lindsay, ou the 24th-that is the meeting where Mr. Riel was-
g ad out that petition.

lt'O 0 '-bid you hear Matheson's ovidence yesterday, to the off ýot that ho had been.4 ton and got instructions to act, to come down and get c.ertain things done?
,u that is what I understood that petition was for, to Ialfil the request that

shoon had come down for.
e b' And to be- ? A. Forwarded and signed more fully than Mr. Matheaonlt

,te oW, what was the object of the meeting of the 20th ? What was the objekA to14ag delegates ? What was said at the meeting with regard to that ? A. It
s.id Out whether the reports were true or not, and for the settLiers to take into
Q.t1o1 thoir best means of protection.

OW, considering the position that settlement was in, what was the desire of
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i people ? Why did they wish to know what was going on ? A. Because all tho
rioads leading from the west and south were joired in tbei e at the Ridge, and if the
wis a body of men coming down-suppose they left on separate roaaci, they weuld
be all together at the Ridge and before they came to the Ridge.

Q. Any particular body of men, or general men ? A. General mon.
Q. Did it refer to the Indians alone, or to the French and Indians, or what 1

it refer to ? A. We did not know, and that was the reason of the delegates bel5
s<ent up, to ascertain whether it was the English or French half breeds, and find 01
fte particulars.

Q. Yon expected what would take place on the Ridge ? A. If they came dot'
we expeeted, if we did not be protected or be out of there, we would be massacred.

Q. Where did you expect, in the event of an advauce from Batoche or Pri
.Albert, the fighting would be done? A. I did not expect anything like that.
could not say where the fighting would be done.

Q. If fighting took place before reaching Prince Albert, ten miles off, wo 0d0
it be on the Rid e ? A. If they were going to massacre, they would massacre

1bey came along.

By the Court
Q. 1 undeistand yon to say that all the trails leading to Prince Albert converg

before reaehing the ioad,rand the Ridgeis an exposed place that they were interes
in ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Maclise:
Q. ScmEihing Las been said atout cheers at this meeting on the 20th, by

McNiven, -wl t bave you Io say with regard to that ? A. I heard no cheors.
Q. lie has statied that somebody called for three cheers for Riel; he does

-mention anybody in particular as calling for them. Did you hear auybody ?
No, did not.

Q. Were yen clrse to, or far from, Thomas Scott during that meeting
Not very far, I don't Ibirk ; I thirk be was somewbere about the centre ftber
room, and l was up in the corner getting on my overcoat, and one or two more
were puttir g on their overcoats to go home. goQ. Dees Scott understand Cree ? A. Not to my knowledge. I never be
him ta lking Cr<e. A e0

Q. New yu went around with this original petition getting signatures? A.
Q. Did ycu apply to Thomas McKay ? A. Yes. e

' W ht did be say ? A. lHe said the Frerch had Do G - d.-- rights'
amid ih< ne vras men enough now in the country to get ihem iheir rights.

-Mi (Aer.-That is not evidence.
-Mr. llaclibe -It contradicts McKay at any rate.
Q. You weie present when Mr. McKay's evidence was given ? A. Yes. tS4
Q. Now, after ihe 21st 3areb, when &ir. Scott returned home, from that ti

the evening (f ihe 23rd what steps and witb what view bad been taken by the 
of the ]Ridge in briuging about peace? A. Well, at the meeting of the

mdersiocd Ithat Ihat was the <bj et, what they bhd dcre during ihat spaco,
theim up Ibem resolutions and get them signed aud get them jorwarded.

Q. And that these were the steps taken. Any other steps taken ? A.
lmy knowledge. o

Q. Now, from Ihe evening of the 21st to Ibe eveniug of the 23rd, inw
aWere the EnglisL half-breeds in sympathy with the French ?

Mr. Osler.--How can that tffect the question of Scott, whose conduct a10
Mn review?

By Mr. .Macise
Q. In what way did Mr. Scott try te influence them ? A. I never heard

Wny but iegal constitutional agitation.
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. Well, as far as you saw of what Scott did, in what direction was that ?
ti enthe evening of the 21st and the evening of the 23rd ? A. It was constitu-

o'al agitation. Re was in sympathy with the grievances, but was down on taking
Sarns or anything that was unconstitutional.

Q. There is an expression here (in petition): "We therefore beg of theGovern-
lerit to do justice to the settlers." Was that the sentiment of Mr. Scott so far as

y evd e you heard of bis ? A. Yes.
Q. Was there anythirig not in accord with that in any of the utterances you
dfrom him ? A. No.

By Mr. Osler :
Q. You were seeretary of Iho meeting of the 23rd March, Mr. Miller? A. Yes.
Q. leld at the Lirdsay school bousen? A. Yes.
Q. Thomas F. Miller, chairman ? A. It was the 23rd.
Q. You were secretary of the meeting, I understood you to say to my learned
d, of the 20th March ? A. Yes.

. Who was chaiiman there, Mr. Scott ? A. Yes.
Q. Are you any connection of Mr. Scott's ? A. I am a brotber-in-law.

lad. B ow so<n after the 18th did you know that they had taken prisoners and
been lcoting stores ? When did that get to your ears ? The news spread very

'I1Ckly of course ? A. I don't remerber just exactly.
Q. Well, it was before the meeting of the 20th ? A. It was before the meeting

Zthe 20th. I think it was that day was the first I heard all the news togetherut the uprising-we did not know what it was.
tQ. The meeting was called becauFe you bad beard of theuprising, you bad heard

d taken up arms and tiken prisoners ? A. We did not hear they had taken

• YoU had heard they bad taken prisoners ? A. Yes.
Q. And bad been looting stores ? A. Yes.
Q, So that that was known to Ibe people at the meeting of the 20th ? A. Yes.

. ben you never did deliver ibis petition or resolution to Major Crozier?

Q. And that is not true that they ever got to his hands ? A. No ; that is not
kB3efore tbey could be forwarded there bad been a battle-KDuck Lake fight

taken place.
Q n 10U were going to take ihat over there, weren't you ? A. Yes.

kRQ. .&nd you did not forward them ? A. We went within about two and a half
e 0f Carlton when we heard the fight had taken place.

. Who tock in the copy that is under your band found in the rebel camp ? A.elegates were James lsbister and Geo. Wm. Sanderson.
Sent in to take thbm to the camp ? A. They were sent to take them to the

9 On what day ? A. On the Fame day ibat Mr. Adams and I started.
e t'Two of ycu starid to give them to Major Crczier, and two of you started to

eite Mr. Riel ? A. Yes.
-• And the Riel copy got in, but the other did not ? A. I don't know whether

11opy got in.
At any rait Ibis is the one-" L "--tbat you sent there ? A. Yes.
Q ht is the one you made ont for them ? A. Yes.

bOt, n what you wanted tb Government to do was to make a treaty, was it
the Frencb, ard include your rights as well ? A. Well, our sympathies
the grievances of the country.

nou wanted that treaty made ? A. We begged of the Government to

is Io Fsy, vcu bUgged of the Government to make a treaty with the
S er e in aIMs a~gainst ihe Goverrinment ; is that it ? A. We begged of the

ent to redress the grievances.
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Q. " There is no way of settling the disturbance but bv treaty or war." Th0
was what you declared to the Government, wasn't it ? A. Yes.

Q. What you were afraid of was the Indians, wasn't it ? A. We were afraid Of
the whole, for my part.

Q. When did you destroy your papers ? A. Before I left home.
Q. Before you left home to go to Major Crozier ? A. Before I left home to

to Prince Albert.
Q A fter you came back from hearing of Duck Lake ? A. Yes.
Q. Now, what papers did yon destroy ? A. All the papers that I had h

around me.
Q. Had you been secretary of many meetings ? A. No.
Q. What did you destroy them for ? A. I did not know whether I would of a

be baek again to the place or not, and I could not take any more than I took d0f
to Prince Albert.

Q. But to destroy papers and writings is surely an extraordinary proceedicg
A. Well, there were letters and things of no consequence, and I just put thom alia
the stove and destroyed them.

Q. You burut the proceedings of the meetings ? A. Yes.
Q. liow many meetings did you burn the procoedings of ? A. Two that I

at; there was no writings in thom.
Q. One would suppose you would want to keep them to show what yeu

done, but you thought it best to burn them ? A. I did not consider they we' e go
ýto be of any use to any person.

Q. How near Scott were you living ? A. About half a mile.
Q. Do you know that ho is the only Thomas Scott on the Ridge ? A. l

the only one I know of.
Q. Tho only one who had any communication with the French council ? A.
Q. Did Mr. Scott show you a letter from the French council at any time s18

1by Louis David Riel ? A. No, I don't think ho did.
Q. Did be ever read yon one? A. No.
Q. Did you ever hear him read one at a meeting ? A. I can't recall it to morn
Q. Try again ? A. No, I can't.
Q. How many meetings were you at after the 20th March ? A. Just one,

the 20th.
Q. It was on the 23rd ? A. Yes.
Q. You did not go to the meeting on the 24th ? A. It was the 23rd I was
Q. Did you go to the meeting of the 24th where Charles Nolin was ? A.

it the 23rd Nolin was-that was the meeting I was at, the one Nolin was at.
Q. Some twenty French half-breeds ? A. I did not know about that.
Q. You did not know that they were there? A. No.
Q. What is the meaning of this (in the petition) and 455 others-wheOre

paper with 455 signatures ? A. It was burnt. It was one that Mr. Adams ant
were taking to Mr. Crozier. rdedo

Q. So that the petition to redress your grievances, instead of being fo
the Government with the signatures of the settlors in order that they might be ra
sed, was burnt by the secretary? A. Wo did not consider that it was of
after there was bloodshed. We did not consider there was any use. theQ. It did not strike you that the sending forward a petition prepared befOre
blood was spilt would show the position that you had taken ? A. No.

Q. Who did you consult before burning the papers ? A. I did not consult
person. Woo

Q. What do you mean ? When you say you did not consider it worth l
keeping it ? A. The people, Mr. Adams and 1-

Q. Who did you consult with before burning it ? A. It was my Owl 0o
that atter blood had been spilt- k theQ. Either tell me that it was yourself, your own action, or else take bac *o,
word " we." If you use the word tell me who you were ? A. It was my OWn ac
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And you took the responsibility of a petition signed by 455 people to the
terlment, you took the responsibility upon yourself of destroying that with the

r papers, withou consulting anybody ? A. Yes.

By .Mr. Maclise :
Q. Isd't it a fact now, with regard to this petition being sent, you say that on

2 0th March you had heard there was a disturbance ? A. Yes.
Q. And the battle of Dack Lake was fought on the 26th wagn't it ? A. Yes.
9. Now, the object and hope of these petitions between those dates was what <
o avert bloodeýhed.
Q. To stop the rebellion in fact ? A. Yes.

.To stop anything like rebellion of any kind? A. Yes.
kr. Maclise.-That is the defonce.

r Osler.-We have no evidence in reply.
All evidence closed.

ADDRESS OF COUNSEL FOR DEFENCE.

o1r. Clarke.-May it please the court, a very few words, and a very few
0 'nts will suffice to sum up the evidence in this case. In opening the case for
t Own, the learned counsel representing the Crown stated what the caise was, its

t and the evidence that be would adduce. That evidence you heard. The
theure of the case you heard in bearing the indictment read. Now, you have heard

t.evidence for the defence. I think when I spoke to you last, I had the honor of
ng that we would prove by evidence that there would be no mistaking that the

po1er at the bar, instead of holding the position that he did in the dock, deserved
ore rfor being one of the most prominent in trying to maintain peaco and good

nr the country at the time and before the time of the late disturbance.
in ow, we have the evidence of the meetings-these meetings that were said or

Illated to have been so treasonable. We have the facts in relation to the resolu-
tu and to the petitions that were got up, and we have the evidence of three or

'en in each instance almost for every witness bronght forward by the Crown.
eteNow, We will begin as near as possible at the beginning in considering the evi-

tech. The first tbirg that you have to consider, gentlemen, is this-the prisoner
ar8ed-w hen the whole thing is boiled down, when the centre, when the heart,

th the core of the whole case is touched-it means : a certain letter which is ,et
t ength in the indictment in two or three different.places, the changes beigr

leto ta in every possible manher 1-bat it is possible under an absurd and n o
pUaw that bas existed for 200 or 300 years, and was made at a time when people
tte the more that they mere bothered, and the Casier they were hangcd the

tie er. Now, all the el-anges bave beei rurg upon that, and I submit to you' geü-
Šrop,.that that lutter you mrust (ast aside altogether. I submit that to you as aChrgeition, and I shail expet-anr i am satisfied-that the learned judge will

g You on that sujcct. I submit that there is not a tittle of legal eviden ce to
a letoine that letter and identil y it in any manner with the prisoner at the bar ; that
ro ter or something written on a piece of paper in blueish pencil, and signed,as Scott"

1 th 0 , gentlemen, the proposition that I submit is this, that the Crown is bound
be case to bring forward before you the best evidence, the very best, no second

a the very best evolence. If it had been Big Bear or one of the Indians who
'*hat c ilitY whatever for getting hold of a witness, or who had no counsel to advise
o idence was required, there might be some kind of overlooking laxity of this

the Crown had every possible facility that money, that influence, that
, toornrs and the cleverest talent at the bar could bring to bear upon thia

&tey' tO brig that crime hcie to that mnan, and to identify bim with. that letter.Der b failed to do it. What evidence have they taken? They brought an
tell you that these writinge, all these signatures, were his. Well now, that
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expert, to prove exactly how ho is to be relied upon, the witness that want into t
box there and told you that last name signed " Thomas Scott " on that (showiug '
to jury only) scrap of paper was writton by the s4ame haud as the other was WrOne
for I wrote one of them myself. That shows the value of the testimony, but su
posing he had proved that was Scott's signature, it was not saying that the na
signed to that piece of paper, that letter, that that is Scott's signature, t'ot by
means. It is signed with a pencil, and, fortunately, in these cases it is a matter
fact, and as a matter of fact, it is for you to determine what credibility you attach o
that expert testimony, and whether on tle solemn obligation that you have tak t
you are prepared to say that you have no shadow of doubt that that letter was

tten by Thomas Scott, the prisoner at the bar, and that Thomas Scott conveyed i
Riel, and that Thomas Scott had an illegal object in viow in doing so. Now, if yoli
prepared to do that, it will be for you,geatlemen, to take the responsibility. But it
be asked why didn't they bring in other evidonce to prove this man's signatore
Why didn't they do that? They bring a document brought by a boy frOm
'Winnipeg Post Office at considerable expense, to prove what ?-that those paP O
came from a certain post office, and that the postmaster was supposed to have si 1
these papers. On two of the papers at least are the signatures appended ot
witnesses, and these witnesses reside at Prince Albert, within the cal of this o
where they brought their other witnesses from. Why didn't they bring either
these two witnesses? Gentlemen, that is the best testimony to prove that t-
signature to that bond was the signature of the postmaster. But who was the
master ? Are you satisfied to take the assertion of a boy from the post offic
Winnipeg, when a postmaster is an official appointed by the Government, afnd
nomination as postmaster appears in the Official Gazette ? That is the best evid'
of who the postmaster was. You have not any such evidence. Gentlemen, y01 ou
rthe judges of the fact. I have a right simply to suggest. I have a right t P l
out to you the deficiencies in the ovidence, but I have no right to dictate to y o
way you are to decide. You are the judges of the fact; you are responsible for
and not me.

Now, with reference to the finding of this paper said to have been found in a
council chamber. Who brought it there ? The Crown has taken the best PO' y
neans, gentlemen, of finding and showing you how very particular jurors oug1ta

be in accepting a piece of evidence. By the last witness they showed you that
which was ordered by a meeting to be sent to a particular individual was afterdt
meeting supposed that it had been handed to the party for whom it was inten
but it was destroyed before ever it reached that party. Had it not been destro
had it been left at that man's house, it might have been carried off by anybody &
found in a particular place subsequently, and consequently it must have been TâoO-
Scott who sent it there, or whoever was charged with doing it.

Gentlemen, you see how difficult it is, you see how necessary to have 've
dence, particularly when it is so easy to make that evidence perfect, and to hâve
perfect before attaching any importance to it. O.eu

The next thing that is brought against the prisoner at the bar, and the eVId
by which that is sustained by the Crown, ii this: that the prisoner at the barj
to compel Her Majesty to change her measures. What an immense aloe" the
responsibility is thrown upon Her Majesty's shoulders and how extraordinarY Ioe
weight that would attach to the importance to fier Majesty in England, wl( br
xiothing about all these things, when it comes to a question of the stupiditY or - is
cf officials who in er Majesty's name are misbehaving themselves at Ottaw iL -
a crime punishable by imprisonment in the penitentiary of Canada to ask the 3oPIV
ters of the Interior humbly at the end of feen years to grant these poorlers
their rights. That is compelling her to change her measures. And the g1  o a
counsel for the Crown, soeing that he has not the shadow of a case ag o j r,
prisoner at the bar, soeing that he has not the ghost of a case against the Pr
to bring home to him anything that is dishonorable and disloyal, he e108 1>
Word written by poor, uninstructed, ignorant people, where they use tue
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t aty." Now, you will bave the changes rung upon that. It shows, thcy say,t they were trying to compel Her Majesty to change lier rneasures, to do what
ey Raid, and that it was a treaty they wanted to make with Hrer Mjesty.

ontlemen, i don't consider it worth while attaching any importance to that,
att that I warn you you aie likely to have an immense amount of importance
i aehed to that particutar word "treaty;" and probably out of the 455 who
1eand it there was not one solitary man understood what the word " treity"
egalt m' a legal sense. But here everything is to be boiled down to a

sense when there is no crime that can be brought home in an
n manner against one who is to be the victim of the Crown, and the Crown

te tory it by ringing the changes upon legal terms and legal words to bring home
atteneto lirn who never contemnplated any crime. That is the noint I draw your

h t specially, gentlemen of the jury, and I ask your serious consideration of
u thing. We bave a witness who comes forward to prove that this man had thie

blecity of the others to meet and to ask the Government to give rights to those peo-
and by that means to avoid bloodshed. That gentleman, a gentleman of very

rad intellbgence and education, ont of his pocket, took the report of the meeting
e solutions, which, on the hypothesis enunciated to you by the Crown, would
.s i forth to the penitentiary, for everything that is charged against this man
%t Vhug been done, is proved by that man as a witness in the box that ho did, but
ihighose instance did he do it ? At whose suggestion ? At the suggestion of the

ast officer known to the people of that country at that time, Major Crozier. You
minister of the gospel, the Rev. Mr. Matheson. Gentlemen of the jury, I

t avoid calling your attention to one fact. As that young man stood in that
once lsappearance, his simplicity, the perfect candour with which ho gave his evi-

'as enough to carry conviction to any ordinary man's conscience, and to his
o eot, and I was no little surprised to find the Crown in the usual stock manner
A actors8 of that sort to throw doubt on that young knan's testimony and make it
t at that he was trying to conceal the truth. Gentlemen of the jury, I don't think

vc reditable to the Crown, but one thing I do think was creditable to the young
lu ' h0 stood in that box and stood that badgering and came out victorious, show-

%tlIself a gentleman, and an honest man and a Christian through ail that was said
~tt4 111sinuated against his evidence, and hi& evidence stands before you unimpeached,
tn Challenge the Crown to impeach it in the slightest degree, because that yoang
ý,OeêUld not repeat word for word the speeches of half an hour or an hour that
al bade by others at that meeting during the four hours, thon there must neces-

Sbsuspicion attached to the fact that ho remembered what the prisoner said.
toeyou, as minister of the gospel, that ho visited the prisoner when ho was

on, at the time that his Master, from whom ho takes his commission, tellim
eJ the sick, and the prisoner ho visited there, and no doubt that retained in the

to hi Of the minister of God the reason why this man was locked up, and brought
41 It tehory more prominently the things that had been uttered and said abaut this
1%e t do eeting that night, and that is the reason why ho remembered it sO wel, I

tie dout
V. tlemen of the jury, I had never had one moment's conversation with the

It. •atheson before he came into that box. I have not had two minutes' con-
N4ltoi0tth him since. 1 simply spoke to him and shook hands with him as being

>8 . Som1e of my friends at Kildonan, and I did not know what testimony ho
t i ug to give, but I am perfectly satisfied that on his testimony alone any jury

N 0 er sworn would acquit the prisoner at the bar.
$tle > gentlemen, what have we next ? We have ovidence for the Crown of one

ta Who probably may have been sincere, at this distance of time, three or
ths after, ho may be mixing things up together, There had been a great

S~ tmgs with reference to this matter of the people obtaining their rights.en, it may be a crime up there, but when the people around this very
t ff gina, when for two or three years they were afraid every day of being

tbeir homesteads, they used to hold meetings, they used to ask for their
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rig hts, n:d some of them went so far as to say, let the man dare come and put me
iiny ho'mtestead, I was the first man on it. They were right. Speculators had c
riglit to put them off their homesteads. They were thore under British laws, Wh
said they have the right to the homesteads under the circumstances.

They might have brought him up for high treason or low treason, for it lero
very low kind of treason to ask anything from the Minister of the Interior. Th
were a great many meetings up there. A gentleman with a full beard (a bad cho
acteristie in a inan)-he had been ut other meetings where there was deep sypih
between these men of the same country, between the half-breeds speaking Ength
and those speaking. French-deep sympathy in trying to obtain redress from
Government, and I bave no doubt there were three cheers given for Riel, but I dotbt
whether there were three cheers given for Sir David L. Macpherson. They oo0e
upon Riel as the man assisting them in getting their rights, I have not the slighte
donbt, and I have no hesitation in saying had I been tiere it migbt have
treanon, but I would have given three cheers for any man who was going to aSS
me and friends to oblain rights I had by law, and which those who had the disPelo'
img of the laws had failed to carry out. t Ai

Well, gentlemen, taking that view, I can understand why it was that gentlef»
said that ut that particular meeting whero treason present, three cheers givefl
delegates and three for Riel. os

Now, gentlemen, it is a very strange thing, and that is the only way that I
explain it, not to dir ectly charge that man with stating that which ho knows to
an untrue charge, charging him with direct deliberate falsehood, which I did
feel inclined to do. I rather think the man has mixed that meeting with scme otho
and that he was simply mistaken, because all the other witnesses you have of
'were present at that meeting tell you positively no such thing took place. One0o
the witnesses tells you young fellows outside were cheering. Wetl, we are
children, and we have often attended public meetings and public gatherings, a' of
'would like to know if you ever left one yet where there was not some young boY
enthusiast in the crowd, as ho got outside the door was not ready to throW Up
hat, hurrah for anything and everything and everybody? A little school boy, dur
the civil war, was running around the streets shoutig hurrah for JeffrsO"
soldier replied, hurrah for the devil. All right the boy said, hurrah for the
To bring that as a charge agairst a man without trying to mrake it appear t
*was a man who pioposed the cheers, or who responded to them, is certainlY go j
into microscopic kind of evidence to bring to support a charge against a man Ou
trial for a ciime, punishment for which is imprisonment for life. w0

Now, with refeience to tbe contents of that letter, what have we? It sY of
are sendin.g a petition, and we hc pe to be able to prevent bloodshed. " The VOc e
ýevery -man was with you," so the document got up, sent at the request of the
Crozier. " All our sympatbies are with you." That is the evidence given b
-witness for the Crown, and ho pulled the document out of bis own pocket.
why is it treason that this uneducated man should say " the voice of everybodyh
iwith you" at ihe same time that that other educated man said " we all sylPade 3
-with you;" but one is a criminal and the other is a man brought up as an evJ1tt,
of Ioyaity to the Crown for the purpose of trying to make a victim of this mane a
" ad we have taken steps which 1 think will have a tendercy to stop blcOdsbed ]
hasi en a treaty." Thei e is this treaty again. Why the word " treaty ?" Tile h
is a trader. Two-thirds of those people are traders, and they have been in the il
during the greater part of their lime and lives, of dealing with Indians. that
those who understand anythirg about the customs of this country, overythin 
d4r e with an Indian is a treaty, and everything that took place, a bargalu . c$'
IbiJ -bi eeds is a treaty. They are all treaties. They don't understand the sil 0
in of the word otherwise. They are all treaties. It was like the learned c
lor the Crown trying to take advantage of those poor men who could Il b1e
English, and trying, by putting words in their mouth, to make them, if Pat th
eommit thernselves, so as to give evidence that would tell against the priso]De
Mar.
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Gentlemen of the jury, my learned friend made an observation to-day that I
ht iltend to answer on my own part. I have been, as he says, thirty years at

e bar, and ho may comment on my conduct as much as he pleases. I am not
self when I am standing at the bar. I am in the place ot my client, the prisoner.
case is miine. I place myself in his place. I take the whole responsibility that
ha thrown on his shoulders. and so long as God is kind enough to spare my lite

Seergy, I will use every effort and legal means at my power that it is possible
e to do to save myself, in other words, my other self, my client, from the con-

nelâetes of attacks like this; but it is strange my learned friend did not, at the
time, see that he was exerting an extraordinary influence. It is no part of the

7 Of a Crown counsel, and I can speak with knowledge of it, for I have stood in
l Position for years-it is no part of the duty of a Crown officer, or of a court of

lBs justice, to try and convict a man unless he is so guilty that there can be no
'4bt as to bis guilt, no more doubt than there is that you seo the sun shining

a'Ongh that pane of glass yonder, and why try by corkscrew methods and undue
n5 to screw out evidence to convict a man? It shows justice is being prostrated

Chle way and that vengeance is the object in view and not justice, to the maned t'ed beto're the court. Gentlemen, this is a case where the interests of the Crown
ote mterests of society are one. Ia ordinary cases of larceny and cases of that
rt the prisoner is charged with an outrage, with a crime against society; but in a

of treason or misprision of treason or treason-felony it is a direct charge, in
'h the Crown says: You have committed an outrage against me; and that is just

the British law, in it s amendment, since the time of the passing of that infamous
caled the Treason Act-that is just the reason, that as England became more

as England began to com out from the path of blood in which she hac
b athing for a hundred years, when a man was as much hung for stealing a

entas he was for murdering his father; when a man was as much hanged,
e td drawn and fettered, for stealing a three-penny piece as he was for cutting
t ooat of his grandmother; when, in iact, out of a lot of crimes that were brouglit

ce the courts of justice, no less that 240 of them were capitai offences, for which
* Wbe as hanged, drawn and fettercd. When that bloody epoch bogan to pass,
athe people of England carne to their senses and said, we have to throw a safe

% around our fellow-subjects, we will not allow them to be convicted befora Star
el '1bers with men in privy council with closed doors, they shall have a jury of

84b e men, and those men will stand between the Crown and the subject, our fellow
h-r Who . is accused. That is the position you hold to day; but, gentlemen, that

,* Justice bas been circumscribed in this North -West Territory, and instead of
'le ritish subjects, twelve of his peers, this man is to be tried by six; but,

ha efen, take that view of the case, and in the name of British justice, in the
t f British law, in the name of the oath and Him by whose name you take that

%el Consider each of yourselves two British subjects and lot the souls of twolve men
bn dour six broasts, and do justice to that man, notwithstanding everything that

ehath ole by the Crown to convict him whether guilty or not guilty. That is
Y are doing.

y, O, gent:men, supposing that everything that is in that paper; first, that that
he as brought home to the prisoner at the bar, that every word is written by

e PrIoner at the bar, that the prisoner at the bar had handed it to Louis Riel, is
t more guilty than Major Crozier ? Is he any more guilty than that witness

4sFol.'Crown, Mr. Craig? Is he any more guilty than Mr. Craig who passed those
long ? Is he any more guilty than the Rev. Mr. Matheson, acting at the

Pelé to f the authorities ? Is he any more guilty than any of those who tried to
ehaI blodshed ? Oh, but the learned counsel for the Crown has been ringing

Sges again-to force Her Majosty to make a treaty, to foroe Her Majosty
4 ah a treaty. Then, we hawe to understand that Her Majesty has left Europe,

Don a has come to America, she bas gone down to Carlton, she has taken a eeat
U' Oper's horse and she is represented there by Major Crozier.

~leien, you see how absurd is this law of treason. It is absurdity an the
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face of it, and I trust the day is not far distant in Canada when we will have 0o
thing like a reasonable Act passed and will do away with this old.nonsense 
hundred years ago. Da you know the effect it has on the Indians ? Poor One Arro
when he had the indictment read to him the other day, hal it read to him in
and the Cree can as much find words with which or by which to translate the lot
monsensical terms that are used in treason, as nonsensical as you could find in '0*
Dutch at the present minute. words to translate everything that I am saying,
result is that Her Majesty's Crown is translated into Cree as ler Majesty's war h e
met with feathers in it; this is a fact. Her Majesty's war bonnet was knocked oI h
head and she was eicked and struck with a pistol by the poor old man, and W he
poor old man got out into the hall he said who was that drunken man who kic
off Her Majesty's war bonnet ? You are the one, was the answer. Oh, I never
Hler Majesty. There is a commentary exactly upon what these poor wretches k
about the laws of England, and the words in which they are brought beforo Y h
these indietments. So I beg of you not be led astray by the simple wording,
garbage that surrounds the one fact. The fact for you to determine, gentlemeO
this, is there evidence before you to show that the pr isoner at the bar was intentions
designedly and determinedly a disloyal man, and that he went to the carnPt
iBatoche for the purpose of giving aid, and comfort to the enemy, or have you not be
positive assertion that while he was there, even when threatened with his lifb
said, I am now with you, we sympathize with you in the demand for your righs,
we are against y ou, and I am personally against you entirely when you resort to ar
or to any illegal means. He was told by the lunatic who was acting the partf
Nero as far as he could, I have sentenced my cousin to death, what can you es
and il was after that the prisoner at the bar told him he sympathized with the
their right, but I am personally against youin any illegal act. But the Crown brOUi,
you to the camp, and the Crown brought me to the camp and that is the way ve
in the camp. But how is it, if his going there was such a crime, how is it that
McKay is not arrested and imprisoned ? How is it Hilliard Mitchell is not arre
and imprisoned ? Be went there to find out what was going on ? Hiow i "Ily f
Ross is not a prisoner chai ged with treason ? Why was this man singled out specî 1ch

'The law says, and my learned friend knows it, that in this matter one was as tb
guilty as the other, that all parties communicating with rebels, knowing then t
rebels, they were all equally guilty with others, but they tried to make it aPP
before this man went, before that delegation went, that they all knew that there
an open rebellion ; they failed to prove it in toto, their own witnesses tell you they >q
there was something wr ong, they were sent there for the purpose of finding 0"
Major Crozier had heard that there was something wrong, and he sent Mr. go
and Mr. Matheson was communicated with by Mr. McKay and Mr. Matheson rth0
nunicated with that other gentleman who acted as secretary of the meeting, a813 ï

got up meetings, to do what ? To try and keep the English half-breeds neutral. bo1
if it is a treasonable act to try and keep them neutral, all these gentlemen lthe*
have been indicted and should have stood in that dock to-day-every one oIf b
But one gentleman says that Scott wanted them to lay down their arms. Yoa
that contradicted by every other witness. What Scott did say and what Scott
stili, and what I am authorized to say for Scott is this: Scott said, here 1' rit'
Ridge it is open to ary attack. Prince Albert is the heart of the whoIe d the
This Carlton is a Hudson Bay post away a considerable distance, and whY to-
troops should be taken away from a thickly settled town and a thickly settle d0
try to save a Hudson Bay post and leave the whole of the rest open to the b$ø
and F, ench half breeds, is more than I can conceive, except that the French ad
and the ham and the barrel of sugar and everything of that sort that belon 0o
the Hudson Bay Company and were in the Hudson Bay post was of more irnPor tO
to the authorities than the lives of the peaceable inhabitants that they Wereoe <0
leave unprotected. Scott, at that meeting, said I think this is wrong. g øde
have the Ridge right on the road between the French and the Indians and I
Albert. If they come on Prince Albert, all the fighting men are gon
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ý arms are gone, it will be much better that they come back from that
tOn By fort, that they make their place at Pcince Albert and defend the people,

4lor hen thore will be an easy access to them and we cin as3ist thom; but he does
than that. He sends a despatch to the authoritios offering the services of 100
Or 150 men, to fight against the half-breeds and Indians in support of the British

alad to suppress that rebellion. There is a slight comment macle upon that, but
ater your attention to this. That was after tha fight at Dack L tke, immedi-

t after the fight, when the whole of the people of Lhe c>untry were iu a state of
d When--I deeply grieve to say it-the French were for the m)reat victorious,

oi When flushed with victory it was just as likaly as not they would attick anybody
te erYb')dy around. That was a time when a man who was wavering in his allegi-

antWould have rushed forward and joined the Frerich because they were the trium-
en .Party and done inestimable harm. Bit what have we ? We have proof that,

Pon , 1n the darkest hour of the whole rebellion, this man, who is charged with trea-
t ont to the nearest telegraph office and telegraphed to the highest authority

. knew, through an official operator, offering the services of 100 mon, or 150
n 11 defence of the country. Gentlemen, I think it would be almost offering you.

hibl',ut to ask you if, ander those circumastances, you can find in the slightest pos.
1%i egree anything approaching to criminality against the prisoner at the bar.
pr' ply Warn you of this, that the prisoner at the bar being charged, that charge unless
prod agamst him liy the Crown, must fall to the ground. The Crown is bound to
that ce the best evidence in every case. If anything disloyal took place there in

cavp at Batoche, the best evidence that the Crown could have produced would-
týe been Garnot and Louis Riel. If the Crown wanted to prove that man's signal
&l 5turely the man who has resided seven, eight, nine or ton years up at Prince

a whOse signatures have been scattered all over the country and as to which
4t th ght have been brought to swear, ought to have been suffioiently well known;

etay hd to send for the sweop at the post office, Winnipeg, to try and show that
POstmaster's signature was like that. And that is called Crown evidence.

% OU entlBmen of the jury, I will now leave the case entirely in your hands, so far
e C are concerned. When our labors cease, then, indeed, your labors begin. When

ea UQIble efforts that have been made by the counsol f>r the defence, when they
and his duty is doue, then your responsibility indeel begins.

t1al ansk you, gentlemen of the jury, to divest yourself of every other feeling, poli-
nd national, of every feeling but that of straightforward honest manhood, and I

e each and every one of you, in imagination to put yoursolf in the position that
1s il, to-day, and in that position look across to the jury box where you ait

od0 measure every man's heart by his eyes, looking at overy man's soul by its
e, and se how you would be trembling as to what might bo the result and tryinga rom the face of the jury how every man felt in your case, and what was

% o be his verdict. Gentlemen, feel the same for the prisoner at the bar. I
e r.soYmpathy ; a jury has no sympathy to give. They have simple justice to

'Iest justice is all we demand. We ask for your verdict, the verdict of twelve
à eole placed in the hearts and in the breasts of six honest men. We ask the

ia itish jury, and wo ask at your hands a verdict that will send us back
to b ay, our character untarnisheci, our allegiance and our honor never again1 ta en and to be called traitorship, treason to our flag or to the country in

eWere born.

ADDRESS OF THE CROWN COUNSEL.

d 0Sler.-May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury : It is no art
diet "ty or the desire of the counsel in charge of the Crown hre to press r a

to .iduilty where the facts do not warrant it. We are simply to aid the courtJO 4r athe jury in getting at the truth and in fairly standing betwoen the
de "4l the public. Yon, after hearing the evidence, are the voice of the publie

Or acquit. It is a matter of public concern and public interest, and you.
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are selected as representing the public to pass upon the evidence and to say whoth
the conduct of the prisoner is criminal or not. I regret very much to say that tb
courEe of the defence in this case has not been that course which one would d0sith
where one seeks to get at the truth. It is equally the duty of counsel for tb
defence to aid in getting at the truth. That is what all skilled lawyers-all laWY
are simply skilled agents-to endeavor fairly to winnow the truth from the fi
and see really where the facts of the case lie. t

Now, I am going to ask you, notwithstanding the extraordinary conduct of tra
learned counsel on the other side, I am going to ask you not to charge that Oxtrf
ordinary conduct upon the prisoner at the bar, but give him the benefit of a
doubt and every circumstance in his favor, notwithstanding the fact that bis cO"
here who has been identifying himself with him has been talking treason to Yo
yesterday and to-day, justifying rebellion and justifying all manner of illegal P
ceedings. Don't charge the prisoner with that ; only charge him with the
that is against him, Don't charge him with the inconsistent positions that
counsel has taken, nor charge the prisoner with the cowardly conduct of the ler
counsel in abusing the witnesses for the Crown who did not deserve it by anYtî1
onming out from cross-examination. What more cowardly, what more like
transfer sympathy from the prisoner in the dock than his attack on younig
Tuck, from Winnipeg post office, sent up here, a respectable man from Winnipeh
son of Judge Tuck, of New Brunswick, in a situation in the post office, sent uusff
to produce simply some papers on file in the office there? How can a man -J
that conduct, which cannot be more mean or cowardly- -t

Mr. Clarke.-I won't allow those words " mean or cowardly " to be used t
I tell my learned friend he will have to answer for it in another place. *.bt

Mr. Osler-than to attack a man unable to answer for himself, who is -t
hands of the counsel, who cannot say one word in his own defence ? That atS
was made and reiterated for the purpose of humiliating a man who certainlY hast,
deserved the attack at all. And the same as to the witness Astley. What bl5
Astley said or done that he should have been attacked in the way that ho P
been attacked ? Let a man attack another where he deserves attack, Or
is a question of doubt, let him attack him where matters can be ans8 t
lut where the witness' mouth is dumb, it is a great infringemeit ofe

lege of a counsel to abuse, as these two witnesses have beel a
My learned friend or the learned counsel may have been carried away by the w

of his feeling, by error in judgment. He may have been carried away by the wbers
of bis feeling, in abusing in so personal a manner the Government, the me nbe
the Government, and naming Sir David Macpherson to you in the way ho
don't know what my learned friend's polities may be, but 1 have never boar t
the strongest orator on the Reform side any such abuse as I have heard f t
learned counsel, who, I think, is a strong supporter of the Conservative orü

Mr. Clarke.-You are mistaken, and I wish you to understand it.
Mr. Osler.-Then so much the worse for the Reform party.
Mr. Clarke.-And I am not a supporter of the Reform party-I am a fre to0
Mr. Osler.-Now, gentlemen, I want you to understand further as o th o

secutions, that the responsibility of prosecuting Thomas Scott, the respon 0
prosecuting each one rests on the Crown counsel who have been assigne tO ser]
the State trials, and as far as we are concerned, we have no political mnou* U 0te
We have had only to judge, sitting to some extent as a grand jury- befor e WO P ffl
man on his trial we have to judge whether the evidence justifies puttifng atto
upon bis trial, and we have been untrammelled, I may say to you, by any 108
whatever, as to whom to prosecute or whom to let go. D Dt

Now, with these preliminary remarks, which 1 regret to have to makee th
think I would be remiss in my duty if I did not make them after the condlact Of e
learned conel on the other side-let us fairly and quietly consider the e 0 0
guit against the prisener. Have we brought it home to him withut re
doubt ? If we have not, then the authorities are better pleased that there 1o
loyal subject proved to exist.
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Now, no doubt a good deal depends upon the viewyyou take as to the evidence ofcf of the handwriting of Thomas Scott in the lett r of the 23rd Mar-ch. The de-1 e ehave made a strong point in denying the genuneness of that letter. They seem
ent that if that letter is brought home to them that it is a very dangerous docu-

e and that it puts them in peril, and so, as they have a right to do, they deny
e authenticity of that letter. Well, gentlemen, the Crown bave to prove it, and

don't a rve oro it to your perfect satisfaction, and if they bave not proved it, and
M p)rove it to your entire satisfaction, you must eliminate it from the consideration

e evidence in the case.
1 1 ow a letter or document is ordinarily best proved by a man who saw it written,

et much as it frequently happens that a paper is to be proved which nobody has
enjit( pIisoner or a person writo, the law gives methods of proof which we have
in avoredto follow in this case-and I may heresay that my learned friond is speak-

p from any authority in law, or he is misunderstandind the authorities in
hen he argues to you about the best evidence. There are two classes of evidence,

ry and secondary, and the rule always is that you must give primary evidence
reeF You can, and give secondary evidence where you cannot; but there are no de-

n primary evidence, no degrees in secondary evidence, and that is the only
tal ich justifies ry learned friend's harangue upon the best evidence. He
(ro With deference to him-a good deal of nonsense upon that, The

"ft ? not bound to produce Louis Riel or Philip Garnot to prove
ha T prove that that letter was received in the rebo camp. Wedq hroved it conclusively, as to its receipt by a man who found it there,

o ose evidence is not disputed. My learnei friend ouht to know that
7% a condemned criminal under sentence of death, is an incompetent wit-
hiin any court, and could not be called or heard. As to his remark about callin

% p Garnot, could Garnot tell us that it was Scott's handwriting? Al he could telas5 what Capt. Young told us, that the letter was received and found in the rebel
ro e Then, gentlemen, how do we proceed to prove that letter ? It has to be
4 it y fo mparison of handwriting. Now, we prove as a mtter of fact to you,

rut t8 not disputed, that at Kirkpatrick post offie the man was postmaster. We
Qf thetpe various signatures of Thomas Scott, the•p ,stmaster there, on the official file
qf tht pist OfBce Department in Winnipeg, produc3d by the clerk properly in charge
lgad b . There, on file, are the official returns, the bond and the other d3cuments

ea y the postmaster at that post office, whose name was Thomas Scott. Now,
he QWe Prove that Thomas Scott de facto held that office and acted as postmaster,
Preg Presumes that he was postmaster until the contrary is shown. There is a
etiend'On that when his Honor sits on the bench, he is duly commitsioned as a

at lary magistrate and he need not produce his commission before he sentences
t .the administration of justice. He is presumed to be of that offi-e until the

carry Is shown. So where a postmaster holds offie he is held by iaw to be thatthn nntil it is contradicted by evidence. Now, thon, gentlemen, we have that fact

Watur ve have the signatures here producel. We have also produced to you a
OdurCe of the prisoner, three signatures of the prisoaer and a due bil ani a letter
the h by the witnesses hore from Prince Albert, and there ideantified, positively

oandwriting of the prisoner.
otta , gentlemen, those papers will be given to youe, and yon will have an op-

t ""Y Of comparing the handwriting yourselves. I have formally to put in a
*0kùooto show that the paper that I propose to prove is in the handwriting of the%4ri .edgod originals, but the ovidence that I rely on chiefly is the ovidence of

to by intelligent jurymen, and whenever I have established formally by any
tae that these writings agree, then I Cau supplement that by asking the jury

, ete writings with them when they retire and satisfy themseives
Þtoeda"ination of the verified originals with the paper that is proposed to

4sk yedthat they are in the handwriting of the man chargod. Now, that is what"Orth os, to do, and I greatly rely upon your intelligonce and upon your inspection
eocunent.
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I never saw an expert witreFs yet on hardwriting ihat could not be caught l
close imitation, and I ex2pectcd my learned fiunds to play the old trick with. to
witness, Mr. Lunen. A mar will, who sits dcwn to imitate, can, no dcubt, i
very closely, especially where tie signature is ibat of a man who is not e0
every day in writing. Well thon, gentlemen, you can always consider as con
tory eviderce of the writirg, wbat it contains. Is it what Thomas Scott was
to have written frcm the oihcr circumstances surroundirg it, or is it not ? Is it cO
sistent 'witb bis otbcr conduct ? Is it likely that some other Thomas Scott wboffi
have never beard of would bave forged sucb a letter and sent it into the rebel CaTJP
Bow can my learned friends suggest that it belorgs to any other Thomas Scottd b

he put Thomas Scott's own brother-in-law, Mr. Miller into that box and he coui .
put that letter in his hand and asked him, is or is not that Thomas Scott's handwritid
and if it was not Thomas Scott's handwriting, could'nt bis brother-in-law have eac
was not ? Well, now, gentlemen, look at the date of the letter of the 23rd 31al ro
look at the date of the letter with reference to the dates of the meetilng-fitting of
exactly. Look at the sentiments in the letter, with reference to the sentiments
Scott, that Scott was known to hold. Don't the sentiments fit in exactly ? ideNow, if Thon as Scott who is proved to be the only Thomas Scott at the ? 0
no other Thomas Scott there to write about-if ho did not write that, who did1?
ny learned friend suggest that some man with malice in his heart bas forged n de

in order that it might be captured by Ibe royal troops and then used as evid' it
against this mana, of treason ? Would so complex a scheme have escaped ; woti ,
not have been developed if such had existed? Bring your common sense, gettleo
thon to bear upon the subject. Lcok at the letter as it stands. Compare it witht
original-writirgs prcduced, ard 1her, after a]l, if you say it must be rejected, i to
satisfies your consEier ce, and 3 ou thus 1eject it, don't reject the evidence that got
show cogently the authenticity of ibis letter. Well, then, gentlemen, treating o
letter for the purpose of argument, as authentic, what responsibility does it cast
the prisoner ? 't

Let me give you the decisicn in an English case, in King vs. Stone, wbOreo10 t
objccted that the intelligence transmitted to the ennmy by the defendant Was
latcd to dissuade thcm from invading the country, and was sent with that -d to
but Lord Kenyon, chief justice, said that whether the intelligence were calculate
dissuade or invite the enemy was immaterial, if it were such as was likely to
useful to them, in enabling them to annoy us, to defend themselves or shalp0

attack.
Now, bear in mind that is the law we invoke. The letter there, as in tho

in point, m9y have been in the interests of dissuading them from attack, but
you have to say is, is that letter aid or comfort, or any assistance in any way
people then in arms ? That is what you have got to decide. froe

Now, bear in mind that on that 23rd March, loyal men had been takl ad
the road and from their homes, and bad been put in the prisons of Louis E p¢
were held there against their will as prisoners of war. Remember that s at
Ecott knew that. Remember that these men in arms had attacked the SDij 11
Batoche, and looted them. iemember these mcn in arms had then teor ize go
country, and that from what they had done there was the general fear in thosdiaP
had been their foes, in those who had been their friends, that the whole O
population would rise and bring trouble, and remember that that was the P vloet
that there was an armcd force organized and led against the established GovorgO
of the day. RememIber, that ho says to the leaders of that movement, epea th
the meeting held at Lindsay schoolhouse, to-night the voice of every man as
yOu. With you in wbat ? In taking the prison ers; in looting the stores;.1 r
the Indians ? " The voice of every man was with you." Who was hoe a Id o
eneouraging ? The man in rebellion against the Crown; the man who hS o
directly opposed to the authorities, aurd had armcd lIndians that o'i f0
doubt, in his camp ? " We have taken steps which I think will bave a ten l 0al1
stop bloodshed and hasten a treaty." Well, what does that mean ? It mL"
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un thing, that by the stand that Louis Riel and his men had taken, by tho standAt the English half-breeds under Thomas Scott had taken, they would force thefaviern]ment into a treaty with them, as an opposing power; there cari be no other
tl'fleaning to it, gentlemen; it is what the language calls for, and what the situa-

Il roves. He goes on: " and we will communicate with you inside forty-eight
ri after you get this; notify us of any steps, if any is likely to take place." Now,

lh gentlemen, is after ho bas gone over there, after he has seen for hinmself thatY are armed, after ho has seen for himself that they are in opposition to the Gov-alEnt, what weight will you give to the letter ? Will you give it its true Englishtreaning ? My learned friend feels that this letter is so strong against him, so clear
6 prove the case of the Crown, that all he can do is to deny it-he has not even
ae ested that sEomebody bas forged Thomas Scott's name. Now, it is great respon-

ahut y that rests upon a man such as they bad in this neighborhood this spring, and
responsibility, that class of responsibility, bas rested upon mon, from time to
Where treason was fomenting, and the law has said that tio only thing that

es.le the seemingly acting witb people who are in arns against the Govern-
, 1 is absolute and immediate fear of death, not loss of property or any-

Nul], short of danger to life, justifies a man in parleying with an enemy.
é-O Uis Riel bad been told, thon and there, you will not only not be

'PPorted but 1, Thomas Scott, leader of the English half-breeds, will arm against
and treat you as a traitorous man, Louis Riel dare not go on,'aud in ail proba-

Y the rebellion ard the bloodshed would have been prevented; but it was because
a man with such a responsibility dallied with the enemy, kept those mon neutral,

W]ted it him, aided him and comforted him with such letters as that, that ho knew
O nothirg to fear from the majority of the population of tuis place, I can go on
ean b] ew ail the mischief, I can bring in my Indians, I cari capture prisoners,
$et tbe whole country in a blaze. Why, gentlemen of the jury, the duty was

a man, as leader of men who were loyal by instinct, to stop that thing in its
a i beg ing, and it was by the support, by the aid and by tho comfort given by

e t an as that, that the iebellion was able to lift its head and the trouble was
o grow to the size and produce the calamities that it bas produced, and the

h balf-breeds far outnumbered the French. le did not know, perhaps, what
SRed tools ho was playiiig with, for he came to his senses as soon as blood had beonat Duck Lake. Then ho saw where ho had placed himself. Then, too late, ho,
k aPs, repented, wishing to cast aside the odium of treason that was surrounding
to and he endeavors to make himself loyal, but too late, by his telegram offering
rth . company. That is the ready explanation of the subsequent conduct. If,
t O eQth Marcb, Thomas Scott had stood up at that meeting and said, gentlemen,

rench half-breeds have taken up arms, I want volunteers to put that down, that
,4 ohave been loyal Thomas Scott. But when tho blood was shed, and the treason

d 87t, and he bad bis own neck to save, the tolograph office was an easy place to
get it doue.NoWt , gentlemen, I suggest these matters for your consideration. Are they logic,

gic of the facts that are in evidence before you or are they not ? If they are,
m de due weight. If they are not, if they are not foundaï on facts and reason-
% oduttions from facts, you must not give them any weighit simply because IPutting them to you.
k tb , gentlemen, if you believe in the letter you have very little further difficulty

t1se. If you don't believe in the letter, and throw that out, what are the other
t are proved? What are the other facts in proof if yon throw out the letter?

f e meeting with Mr .Astley. I think you believe Mir Astley. There are
ioà et, 1 think, come ont of the troubles with a better record or a botter name.

o interest in the matter - do you believe him ? And do you believe Mr.
xi leu they say ho wanted the volunteers to lay down the ir arms, and let the

ei? and1French fight it out ? That is made out by two witnesses, do you believe
4*it Against those two witnesses, you have the recollection of Mr. Matheson,

whOm and against whose evidence I have not a word to ;ay, and I think you
167
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will bear me ont when I state that I think I cross examined him fairly and reasonably
with a view to get at the truth, and get at the means of recollection only, and I eo
most unjustly and improperly interfered with in that, interrupted in that e
examination, the same as in other cross-examinations whenever I reached a Vi
point, by the learned counsel, Mr. Clarke. thst

Now, in speaking of the recollection of witnesses, you must bear in mind
Mr. Matheson recollects certain words, and they are perfectly consistent with lr'
Craig's recollection of certain other words. Mr. Matheson is a clergyman, I app
bend, of the congregation to which Mr. Scott belongs, and naturally, deeply intero
in the welfare of his parimhioner. I won't say for that reason that Mr. Mathso
would deviate in one single instance from the truth, but you know wbat perh
none of us can resist, the insensible influence of sympathy, and how the insO3 8

influence of sympathy will, with perfect honesty of purpose, color the evidence,as
cially when it is the evidence of t eacherous memory and recollection.

Now, that is all the criticism I have got to make upon Mr. Matheson, whou
believe to be a perfectly honest and sincere man, and honest and truthful in ig
bis evidence.

As to one other witness who just heard the exact words and nothing more, el
gentlemen, that is the class of witness we often meet in courts of justice, and a a
who jast heats the vital words and hears nothing more is a man whose memory
are to be very careful about accepting it in full -they are very apt to go astray,te
class of men; it is always suspicious where there are just a few vital words w
to be proved, and there is a man to prove them who heard nothing more, and 0«
mothing more. In Ontario, they have got to call that class of witness the haY .
witness, who was behiid the hay-stack and heard a few words, and went aWaY 3
before the vital words.

Now, gentlemen, there is the evidence, the evidence pro and con, and you
listened to it carefully. I don't know that I need review it further.

Now, just for one moment, the learned counsel seemed to think that we
trying to make treason out of these petitions. We don't for one moment conto
that the subject has not the most perfect right to petition how and when h ePo
all we say 1-in tbat series of resolutions the shape of which no doubt was
much influericed by Mr. Scott-that he calls upon the Goverinment in so many'Or 0
to make a treaty with these men who were in arms. Well, that is no right of Pec 1 1
to redres, a grievance, that is in effect a petition to the Government to recognie
enemy in arms and inake a treaty with them. ho
• Now I don't know that I need further detain you. I don't know that Il S
have replied but have left you to consider the question of evidence just'aided
it will be by the charge of his Honor on the bench, but I felt that the line-the co00
of conduct of the defence necessitated a reply, and you must not understand mOthe
asking you in any remarks that I have made, to press unduly or hardly any 0 00,
facts that we hav;e brought out against the prisoner. If there is a merciful Viee f
sistent with honesty, take it. All I ask you to do is fairly and honestly, in via
your oaths, to consider the evidence against the prisoner; if he is gnilty, courag
find him guilty, whatever the consequences may be. If there is a reasonable
give him the benefit of it and let him go free.

Court hore takes recess for half an hour, and on resuming after recess out
ceeds to make the following charge:-

Gontlem(n of the jury, we have now arrived at the stage of this cas1 Whoa i
Comes under your and my consideration, when a duty devolves upon me follow e&
a duty devolving upon you. I may premise the few remarks I am about to Wd a
you by uttering theso as incapable of contradiction, that this is a properlY and a
constituted court, British court, under British law, that the constitution of thi 0 bol
as it stands to-day is not under the Act which yon have heard spoken of, of 188 à j0
it is under a Dominion statute based upon an Imperial statute which was Pass be
18i1. The Canadian Act passed in 1877 fixes, for all criminai cases triable in Lo
lorth-West Territories the number of jurors at six, and imposes the duty p1o"
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Pendiary magistrate of selecting suitable persons to sit upon the crim'nal juries.
Smlist recollect the various branches oflegislation connected with the North-West
taking place between 1871 and 1880, amendments had been made rendering itcessary, in the eyes of Parlisment, to consolidate the whole and put it forward in

e, but the law itself as then passed was only a consolidation so far as previous Acta
herecarried forward with some amendments that were found necessary to intersperse

Ughout it. Having siid that much, I further digress for another remark, and

e1s this, that at some of the earlier sta :es of this trial-I regret to say-charges
eMade, or assertions were -made, indicating, first, that I was simply a cr eature,
secondly, that you, gentlemen, were all creatures. Well, now, trae it is I may be

Creature, thu is, I may hold a commissiin which may be put baek at a moment's
but while 1 do hold it, while I do hold such a commission, I think [ feel that

I have shown myself a creature, I am not liable to that charge. On the second
ft at a later stage in the case my action however has been endorsed. I seected
XrY, gentlemen who were summoned to serve as a jury in this case and in al[ other

I select them from a respectability standpoint, respectability as mon in the
In alon of Canada, rosidents of the Dominion of Canada. I look not at politie,

at religion, not at any branches how one may feel, i simply say, is that a
1e' table man ? Does he bear a character so far as I know in the c>mrunity?

a does, he is fit to sit on a jury, and having a list of those whom 1 know and
the O-haracters I have been able to form an opinion upon, a ballot takes place with

el8ult that you have a very important duty, and a very heavy duty to perform.
p, the endorsement of respectability at a later stage in this case has been 1 av&
PPY to say repeated, and there we now stand, and we now go into our d uty.

% ov, we have heard a charge preferred at the instance of the C own, and I
Q You for a moment to consider what is the Crown ? What is the Qieni ? Well,

Ilt is a cardinal principle laid down in the law books that the Quaen is the pari-
1ad that the poople's interests and the King's and Q een's sovereign interests are
arale, and that following that, while in every crimuinal charge, the name of the

1 t4 used; we say that Tom Jones or so-and-so has violated the Queen's law, iteth People's law which he has violated, and a jury are empannelled to say between
-k, eOplc at large and the prisoner charged, whether or not the charge preferred

en substantiated,
the Weil, in connection with this charge; we have heard what has been adduced on

Part of the prosecution, that is on the part of the people at large, and I cannot
on aY that so far as came under my notice with my very limitel knowledg-I

> im to have seen much. 1 am a young man yet; [ don't profess to ba old
:t a muclih experience, but from what littie experience I have had, I esarnot

to fingor down and say that any item of undue severity or u'ndue proseuation,
ng to persecution if you will, eau be laid at the door of tho se who havc bae

e with the prosecution of this charge before this court. 0:1 the other hand,
e re1ne have had the widest limit of allowance in putting their case in any shape

t sired before you, and that they have done sD i think there can ba no d mbt,
np b that during the progress of the case, I was called upon, si tting here with a

heth ility resting upon my shoulders, to rule upon points of evidence as ta
!%Ira certain questions were proporly put, and it nay have been unfortunate that
sy, every instance as to the questions asked, I was obliged t> rule in the one

hat responsibility rests upon me. I know the romarks that were made, bat
' as8. through my ears as having been made on the spur of the moment, and I payW tla 'on to them, simply feeling that I have done my duty so far as ry knowlede

and the principles of the law are concerned, that I have put them fairly,
hremy attention has beea drawn to something, I have said openly and

the a4t.it was not a proper question, the question was not put in a proper way
N r"s5ideration of the jury.

or 106what is this charge? This charge is not brought upon a statute 200yea.rs
î la LYears old, it is brought upon a statute of Canala passed in the year 1868.

Pou which this charge is framed was introduced and passed by the Parlia-
169



Sessional Papers (No. 52.)

ment of Cainada, and, mind you, at this time neither Manitoba nor the North-Wes
Territories formed a part of the Dominion of Canada then,wbcn it was passecd. It becai
the law of the North-West Territories in 1875. It was introduced and declared to
the law of the 1N orth-West Territories in 1875, so that instead of being a very alcie
it is really a modern law. qds

Now, the law says, " whosoever after the passing of this Act, either within Can
nr without, compaases, imaginep, invents. devises or intends to deprive or depOse
Most Gracious Sovereign Lady the Queen, 11er heirs or successors from the style
midroyal name of the Imperial Crown of the Unitcd Kingdem or cf ary other 'ofMajesty's dominions or countries, or to levy war against 1er Msjesty, Her heiri
sEceEsois, within any part of Ibe Unit€d Kirgdcm or cf Canada, in order to,
force or constraini, compel ber to change her mesures or counsels, or in order
pnt any force or const]aint upon ber te intimidate or overawe both Houses of Parl
uent or either 11use of Parliament of the United Kingdom or of Canada, or to of
or constrain ar y foreigner or stranger to invade the United Kingdom, Caada
any other of Ber IMajesty's dominions under the obeisance of Her Majesty, HBer hO
or successors, sucb conpaEsings, imaginations, inventions, devices and intentiOr
ary 0f Ihem, shall express, publish, or declare by public, open or ill-advised speda
or by any overt act or deed, is guilty of treason and liable to be imprisotied io
penitentiary for life or les." htb

Now, the charge against this prisoner is brought urder that clause ost
atatute ; it charges him with first, the knowledge of rebellion or insurrection bga
the constituted authorities and powers, and il then says, you, T1homas Scott, ert
jassed, imagined, invented, devised or intended, &c , under ibis verbiage which co
two or tbree sheets of fcolscap paper, reducing it te the smallest possible coroP5

ean find wcrds to express. bea
ENow, to support that, evidence is brought, and I should here tell you I ed

ca-ution you in your duty that in order to convict the party, the priFoner cr
jcu ought to be Eaisfi€d by the evidence affirmatively as a conviction euated jf)
iminds teyord alil r asonable doubt, that the guilt ef ibis priEoner is estalIishc<'o
if there is cnly an impression, a probability, he ought rot te be convicted. e ;0

~Now, the theo>y put foiward by the prosecution in support of this cha ti#
lihat Ihis ian, Thomas Scott, wrote a certain letter, not only that he wrote a Ce
letter, but by certain acts and deeds and expressions which he made, he did ts'
,wculd be coveied Iy cne or more of the woids which I bave read fIcm the eà
and which are umbodied in the charge. Scme stress'waslaid upon wbat was e deco
to le a duty, that in eider to Eupport any ci iminal prosecution, the Ees 0
xamet in ail casts bo adduced. Ncw, it is truc that, as matter of duty devolviVg V I09
lihe Ci own prosccutor, be ovght to exercise that duty, and te adduce before the PecI
tle 1 ublie at large, the best evidence wbich ii bis judgrent is attairable bu t

not lollow, and it is the opposite of following tbat, because I may think, cr son" icla
elfe may think, that better evidence than was adduced, than bas been adduced to
Ihave teen adduccd by scime means-it does net follow that yen, as a jury, or 0
talke upon myself the responsibility of sayirg you ought to have adduced better
thattherefoie the jriioer charged with a crime isto go scotfree; you have tOd tl
mine tle case, the jurics bave to determine every criminal case upOI the cçi
which is actually biought before them in that case.

Now, what is the evidence in Ibis case ? I should premise by sayir to Y 010
I don't prepose Io vo ery ycur patience with readirg over the whole ef 1he eV
wbich Las been taken and adduced. I think it must have tEen impreessd UIPW' I 0t
mirds, the substance of it, and unless desiied, particularly desi1d by Y'" f
slould do so, I oily purpose referring to it in a gereral and cursory 'way.dcce
what is the evicecce ? Well, before 1 give you a curscry view cf the el 1g
oieht to teIl ycu tbat the responsibility of deteîminirg upcn the eçiden ce, "Vu rot
cedibility of tle evid<nce is ycur duty, the responsibility resIs upon you. 3
-tiere, and I have noîhing to do with it; my duty exterds simply to telling YjOè
lhe law is, and to rehFesb your minds and give 3 ou such geeal ideas a
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-Wo'ïld belp you in arriving at a proper conclusion.
h' Well, subjcet to the iemarks 1 have made, the evidence consists generally of

h actions descrited ty the different witnesses. First, in the report that came under
l nOtice was what happened when they met Capt. Moore. You will recollect that

s Spcken of by Mr. Astley, and wbether fortunate or unfortunate, no other witness
s Shown to bave been present than these two, and it may possibly be unlucky that

apt. Moore is not at present in the countiy, ho having left soon after, seriously
td gcne eut of the country; but the question then comes, do you believe that

? Do you telieve that hg, standing in that tox, uttered a deliberate falsehocd ?
Jou do, ibeie is an erd of that part of it ; if you don't-if you believe that Fe told
truth, there that thing stands.
The next point which came up was the letler. Now was that letter pioved ?

as bis signature prcved ? The objection taken to it was that it was Pot pioved in
Proper way, or rather tbe ceniention is that it was rot provcd ; but it is for - ou to

fy Whether it is proved to your satisfaction or Lot. It is true that ro one bas been
lought foriwaid here to sby that he saw that man write, but evidence was given

ehI rMust e ay, whkh 1 arn bourd to say, was proper and should go to you for
Your Consideration frem NNhich ycu must loim the opinion whether that is the

oner's signature or rot. The evidence consists of this-perhaps drifting a little
tWhere written instruments are produced on criminal trials, unless the validity

lf te inEtrunernt mhihh is Trcduced is in contest, unless it is in contest, the actual
*Itness need not bc produced, and proof of bis handwriting may be given in the

ary way in which a note or any dccument or contract could be proved in a civil
LtCofJustice-that is, that a witness would be called, who would say I know the

rtie-tlhe name of the parties to that, 1 have seen them write, and from my cwn
o ledge of the hardwriting, I believe the signature on the paper shown to me to

bitbs; ard then the crimiral law goes a little further. Ccmparison of a disputed
e'1tig 4'with any writing provcd to the eatisfaction of the court to be genuine shall

ltIlmitted to he made by the witness, and such writings, and the evidence of
itii0 esses respcetirg the srme mnay te submittEd te ihe court and jury as evidence of

genunfiess or otherwise of the writing in dispute.
v cw, it is in evidence before you-it is claimed by the prosecution, and the

P.>deCe, if believed, I thirk ean result in no two opinions on that point, that this
Wner was a postnaster, ibat bis duty as such postmaster he bad first to give eer-

seurities.-ccrtain tords, and furter, in the execution of his duty afier hisoaltment, ho bad to rake certain returns or put bis nane on way-bills, on mails
P8ug through bis effice. Now documents purporting on their face to be those are

lled by a gentleman who tells us what ? He tells us ho is a clerk rot in the Win-
fl 9post office ycu must recollect, but in thepost cifice inspector's çffice, Winnipeg,

e lPIace M here postmaster s' tonds are deposited, and being a clerk, and prcducing, as
oft a frcja the proper cffice as the proper custodian, producing before the court

tbl· documents, original documents, which are deposited in that inspector's or that
ti kt Clo. Well, that evidence having been brought before you, and I tell you

(ce 1matter of law they we ie brought bere, if ho is to be believed, ho was a proper
thet for beirg entiuste d with ihem and brirging then bere. If that is credited,
th1 on have that. You bave fuither, you have the statement of MeNiven, and I

a MeNiven is the one who preduces a due bill, ard if ho is to te
ed the letter was undoubtedly signed by this man. Thon you have some

%at ereViderte cf paities çbo pi ove signatures to anotber document in addition to
* have what is temed expErt eviderce. Ycu bave the evidence of

t4aid, .nn, wbo gave you bis impressions from a comparison of the several
tta itilgH. Against that, however, it must not be forgotten ihat Fome

ces evidence Las been called, for you must recollect that the witness
Was called by the defence, in the tox said Mr. Lunen was not right,

a a eu oe cf them he, that witness, put Thomas Seott's name tc-tbat
bor ater for consideation. Taking it all in al, as I tell you, the duty devolves

0o1 of saying what ycu believe. Do you believe and are you reasonably con-
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vinced, and are you convinced beyond all reasonable doubt that that letter which is
ono of the principal foundations of the charge was written by this prisoner ? WGeII
then follows the question, from the evidence that you have heard, are you convinced
of these points ? Was there open rebellion, was there rebellion in existence the'
against the constituted authorities ? You have heard of the date being fixed as the
18th March; you have farther dates being fixed of common report carrying down Wh
that state of open and armed rebellion at Batoche and neighborhood where this prie
oner was, was two days afterwards, and you have some evidence, some expreësiO"ý
whic, f they are to be believed, identify this prisoner with some kr owledge of o
least of that.

Well, following that, we have the prisoner's presence at Batoche, and you hafo
hcard with your own lips what transpired at Batoche between the reo.l leaders, "
called, and him.

You have bofore you further evidenco to consider the results, and what occurr
at those meetings, and you have them not only explained in words from 'e
nes-ses' memory and recollection, but you have them as the produet of one meeting,
le;st -sone of the witnesses speak of two or three. You have them condensed i' .0
document, in a paper which has been proved as asserted, and, as it comes fromh
own witnesses, I assume it will be taken as an original and as a proper document

Now, upon the face of those, and in the face of what you have heard, the quest
is imply put to you, are you satisfied by this evidence affirmatively as a convictO
crea.ted in your minds beyond al[ reasonable doubt that this nrisoner was a partY h
those documents, to that letter ? If so, from a legal standpoint, I must tell yOU ths
there is evidence sufficient to sustain a conviction upon the law which I have rea
ycu. If, on the other hand, you are not satisfied, either of his handwriting or of
complicity in this, his giving assistance to these rebels, then you have just as plain
duty in his interests and in the interests of the commuaity, to say he did not a6se
did not compass in the grievous and terrible acts of which we all know perhapt
much.

I don't think that I should longer detain you. I think I have put the caih
le*'ding features of the case fairly before a reasonable jury, and having put th
bet ore you, 1 shall now place in your hands the original papers, the documents wh' b
hav been produced and filed. There are two sets of documents; and with this sira?
fun ther remark that, if after considering the thing, considering the whole thing, -,00
Canaot come to the conclusion, I name but a doubt, and mind you it must be a re
able doubt, not one which may be suggested to you, but a reasonable doubt WhVi
stri kes your conscience that guilt las not boen brought home to him, then he 0u
to be acquitted. On the other hand, if it is clear, he ought to be convicted.

Jury retire at 2 p. m., and return at 2.30 with verdict of " not guilty."
Mr. Osler.-The Crown have nothing further against prisoner. is
Court.-Thomas Scott, the jury have acquitted you, and I tell you one thin

is ir greater pleasure to me to tell you to go free than to have the unfortunatfle
of passing sentence on you.

Exhibits returned to both parties at request of counsel.
Court then adjourned.

QUEEN vs. BIG BEAR.
CANADA :

North-West Territories, j
The information and complaint of Richard Burton Deane, of the town Of

in the North-West Territories of Canada, superintendent in the North-West go" -5W
Police, taken the third day of September, in the year of Our Lord one thousand 0ie
hundrel and eiguty-five, before the undersigned, oee of ler Majesty's stipel
anagistrates ln aud for the said North-West Territories, who saith :- dat1. That Mis-ta-hah-mus-qua, otherwise called Big Bear, not regarding the
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of his allegiance, but wholly withdrawing the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance
which every true and faithful subject of our Lady the Queen does, and of right ought
to bear towards our said Lady the Queen, on the second day of April, in the year of
Our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other days, as
well before as after that date, together with divers other evil disposed persons to the
said Richard Burton Deane unknown, did, within the Dominion of Canada, cob Pass,
imagine, invent, devise and intend to levy war against our said Lady the Queen,
within Canada, in order, by force and constraint, to compel her to changu ber
measures and counsels, and the said felonions compassing, imagination, invention,
device and intention, then feloniously and wickedly did express, utter and declare, by
divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to say:-[n order to ti 'fil,
perfect. and bring into effect his felonious compassing, imagination, invetion, device
and intention aforesaid, he, the said Mis-ta-hah-mis-qua, otherwise called Bg Bear,
afterwards, to wit, on the second day of April, in the year aforesaid, ai d on div ers
other days and times, as well before as after that day, at and near the locality called
Frog Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada, did conspire, conttult, coli3d-
erate, assemble and meet together, with divers other evil disposed persons to Ia
said Richard Burton Deane unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and re bel-
lion against our said Lady the Queen, within this realm.

And further to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious intention, compas-
sing, imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, ho, the said Mis-ta-bah-
mus-qua, otherwise called Big Bear, afterwards, to wit, on the 17th day of April, in
the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well betore as after that,
day, at or near the locality known as Fort Pitt, in the said North. West Territories of
Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet together, with divers
other evil disposed persons to the said Richard Burton Deane unknown, to raise,
mnake and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady' the Queen, within
this realm.

And further to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing, imagi-
Mation, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Mis-ta-hah-mus-qua,
otherwise called Big Bear, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-first day of April, in the
year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as after that day, at
or near the locality known as Frog Lake, in the said North-West Territories of Can ada,
did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet together, with divers otair
evil disposed persons to the said Richard Burton Deane unknown, to raise, make andL
levy insurrection and rebellion agairst our said Lady the Queen, within this reniam.

And further to fulfil, perfect and bring to efiect his felonious compassing, imagin-
ation, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Mis-ta-hai.muqua,
otherwise called-Big Bear, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-eighth day oi MIay, im
the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as atee that
day, at or near the locality known as Frenchman's Butte, in the said INurth-West
Territories of Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet togetber,
with divers other evil disposed persons to the said Richard Burton Deane unknown,
to raise, make anid levy insurrection against our said Lady the Queen, within tbis,
realm, in contempt of our Eaid Lady the Queen and lier laws, to the evil example of
all others in like case cffending agai inst the form of the statute in such case made and
provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.
3worn before me, the day and year first above

mentioned, at the town of Regina, in the R. BURTON DEANE.
North-West Territories of Can:a.

HUGn RIOHARDSoN,

Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the North-West Territories of Canada.

And take notice, that you have the option of being tried before a stipendiary
magistrate and a justice of the peace with the intervention of a jury of six, or before
a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way without the intervention of a jury.
Which do you elect ?
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F!iday, llth September, 1885, before Hugh Richardson, Esquire, and ilenri
Fisher, Equire, tipendiary magistrate and justice of the peace respectively.

Mssrs. D. L. Scott and W. C. Hamilton appear for the Crown.
Mr. F. B. Robertson for the prisoner.
Mr. Peter lourie sworn as Cree interpreter.
Prisoner was charged as contained in the above information on 3rd Septembr,

1885.
Court.-Do you recollect, prisoner, being charged by me with committing crime
Prisoner.-Yes.
Court.--Do you recollect the nature of the charge, what the charge was ?
Prisoner.-I don't recollect it, nor did 1 understand what was the charge l

against me.
Court.-Then you are charged to-day that you, not regarding the duty of Y00f

allegiance which you owe to the Queen, with other evil-disposed persons, compas0
to levy war against the Queen in Canada, and on the 2nd April you did so at FrO
Lake, on the 17th April you did so at Fort Pitt, and subsequently, on the 28th,
Loon Creek; and take notice, that you have the option of being tried by a stipe
diary Magistrate alone, or by a stipendiary magistrate with a justice of the Po
and a jury of six. Which do you elect ?

Prisoner.-A judge with a jury.
Court is now opened.
Mr. Watson, the clerk, reads the information to the prisoner, and it is thereupo

interpreted to the prisoner in Cree.
To prisoner-Are you " guilty " or " not guilty " ?
Prisoner. -" Not guilty."
Clerk.-Are you ready for your trial?
Mr. Robertsonl.-Quite ready.
Clerk.-These good men you shall now hear called are those that are to P

between our Sovereign Lady the Queen and you; if, therefore, you challenge theora
or any of them you must challenge them when they come to the book to be sWarot
before they are sworn, and they shall be heard.

Jury called and sworn, composed of Albert Smith, Henry Grove, William E
Robert Martin, John Morrison, J. W. Smith.

Information is now read to the jury.-On this charge the prisoner has ple
"not guilty," and it is your duty to hearken to the evidence.

Mr. Scott.-May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury: The Char
which you have just heard read is what is known as a charge of troason-felocn-
sub4ance it alleges that the prisoner, along with others, certain other pers»y
designed and intended to levy war against fier Majesty, which means the lawftal
constitutod government of the country, and that he expressed and uttered the
desire, showed it conclusively by certain overt acts which are set forth i of
charge. The difference between the crime of treason-felony and the higher cri rge
treason is this: that in treason it is necessary to show that the prisoner cho
with such a crime actually levied war; in treason-felony it is only necessaryhto that
that he designed and intended to levy war-that is, it is not necessary to sho d
ho levied war, but that he merely intended to do so. You will see by the e 00 iit

given in this case that we go further than actually necessary. We show that ho o
only designed to levy war, but that ho actually did it, and that is the best eVide- the
intention-the fact that he actually did levy war. Thera is a difference, too, sariln
punishment. For the charge of treason upon conviction there must ne o
folow a sentence of death. Upon a charge of treason-felony the punishmuet Io
so severe. It may be imprisonment for life or may be imprisonmont for anY for
term that the court may think proper to inflict-that is, it may b3 imprisonleare
anything from a day up to imprisonment for life. Now, the four charges h ftr0t
saet out, the four overt acts that are set out in this charge are these : In thewâ.
,place, that on the 2nd April at Frog Laire he conspired with others to leY t or
en the 17th April at Fort Pitt he conspired in the same manner; on the 2I8
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Pear Frog Lake, and tho 28th May at Fronchman's Butte. Before describing the
Inr cular overt acts, it may be necessary to say something about the rebellion in the
th . It is not necessary for me to mention any of the circumstances connected with

a lebellion, because the whole matter from boginning to end is now almost a matter
to ry. The circumstances are just as well known to you, in fact better known

Sou, than you will hear from evidence to-day. It will be necessary to give formai
f that about the 18th March rebellion did break out in the north, and from that
ultil the 12th May following the whole country in the neighborhood of Duck

0 and Batoche, on the South Saskatchewan, was in a blaz3 of robellion. Although
t ay not be pos;sible for us to show any connection existed botween the rebellion

okwe allege was carried on by the prisoner and others in the noighborhood of Froge and Port Pitt, it may be brought to your attention the fact that a rebellion
altt[liy existed at a very sort distance from that, and convey to your minds the con-

lnon that there was a connection between the rebellion at Dack Lake and the
hblîton carried on by the prisoner and the party with whom ho was connected.

e he prisoner is the chief of a band of Cree Indians who occupy a reserve in the
pr .borhood of Frog Lake. He is one of three parties whose ia.nes stand out

øinenâtly in the history of the late rebellion as being the leader of it, in the
of ent parts of the country. It is possible we will show that this man was chief
h0 a baud who was in rebellion; it is possible that we may not be able to show thatý a the leader of the movement in that part of the country. It is possible, in
Of "g of the outrage at Frog Lake, the massacre which took place on the 2nd day
ldefe pril, which is one of the charges against the prisoner, it is possible that the
thatc May show, make it appear to you from the evidence, that ho was not,
bad he did not go so far in committing those outrages as some mombers of his
%o that he possibly may not have intended that massacre should have beenda itted on that day; that it may have been his intention thon and afterwards

the rebellion to preserve the lives. of the prisoners that may have fallen into
ay ads. It is possible that this may be shown. It is possible, further, that it
so hown, that at least to a certain extent to his efforts on bohalf of the pri.

It ethe prisoners owe their lives; but, gentlemen, although that may be shown,
tilot a question for you to consider. It is a question to be considored in mitiga-

4of the punishment to be inflicted upon him if shown to be connected with that
tiine .On. You must understand, that if ho were acting with these parties at that
e a1 eOpen rebellion against the Government of the country, and he continued to

"04 fterwards with them in that rebellion, that is nothing, as far as this offence is
ethelled, whother ho wanted to go the length that perhaps some of his band and

Jbe oined with him wanted to go; even if he wanted to save the lives of the
6% n 1r it is none the lese the fact that ho was in open rebellion against the Gov-

ptian eut Of the country, and ought to be punished for that offonce. Of course, the
1shient awarded may be mitigated to some extent on that account.

as OW, gentlemen, the four overt acts I have alluded to are these: 1. At theelta of Prog Lake, 2nd April. You have all heard the particulars of that-the
ni. outrage was committed on that occasion by the band who were in open rebol-

%kt ýe will show that they were in rebellion at that time, and they afeerwards
on ud in rebellion until some time in the latter end of May or in the month of
¶ tf t. 2. The second offence was on the 17th April, at the time of the capture

areitt. After committing the outrage at Frog Lake on the 2nd April, they
bofore Fort Pitt, and the police having withdrawn down the river that day,entered the fort, and sacked the fort and the buildings in connection with it.

ace the 21st April, somewhere in the neighborhood of Frog Lake, to which
saoe6Y -returned after sacking at Fort Pitt, and a letter was dictated by the
oer and a half-breed who was thon in camp with them, a half breed named

fro0n tand another half-breed named Nault. We will show, that on one occasion
] theat date, a lotter was dictated to a French half-breed living at some distance
tlat t place they were thon camped. We may not be able to show the contenta

etter, but from the conversation that ensued at the time the letter waa
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-written, we will be able to give you a pretty good idea of what the contents of tha
letter were or were intended to be, and what the intention of the prisoner and toe
otters who were present was in writing that letter. 4. On tho 28th May, the
overt act charged was committed. The prisoner and thoso who were with hin1 n
the troops at the neighborhood of a place called Frenchman's Butte, and thoe
engaged with the volunteers of the Dominion, under the command of General Strang
and were, in fact, in open war, on that occasion, against the Government.

Those are the four acts we charge against the prisoner, and I will now bril%
forward evidence to establish them.

JoN PRITCHARD, sworn, testified as follows:-

Examined by Mr. Scott :

Q. Where do you live ? A. I used to live at Frog Lake.
Q. Up to what time ? A. Up the 15th April last.
Q. What was your occupation ? A. I was an Indian Department interpreter.
Q. Were you there on the 2nd April ? A. Yes, I was.
Q. Did you see the prisoner there? A, Yes, I have seon him there.
Q. Any others with him ? A. Yes, he had all his band with him.
Q. Was that at the settlement-what is called Frog Lake settlement? A.
Q. Was the prison er usually camped there with his band ? A. Yes. e
Q. How far from the settlement? A. He usually camp d about a mile fro1'

settlement. WOQ. When did ho come into the settlement with his band ? A. Well, hI
there the whole winter. h

Q. I mean, when did he leave his camp about a mile distant and come into
settlement with his band ? A. Well, the first time when he came in with his band d a
on the 1st day of April, about 8 o'clock in the evening. He came in thore and hagid
talk with the Indian agent, and on the 1st day of April there in the evenilg he
he-Big Bear-said ho was not going to raise, he was going to be loyal. 11e wa
to show the Government, ho sa'd, that he did not want to do anything at all. elQ. Iow did the question of bis rising come up on that occasion ? A. 1 cO
mot say. . as

Q. Did you hear anything said on that day about a rising ? A. No; it
themselves came when they hoard about that rebellion at Duck Lake. es,Q. iow do you know they heard about it ? A. Well, they told it thems

Q. Who did they toll it to, in your preserce ? A. Yes, in my presencO.
Q. Did the prisoner say anything about it ? A. No, his son did.
Q. You did not hear the prisoner say anything about it ? A. No. t tho
Q. Except the fact that ho was not going to rise ? A. Yes, except the fac-

1e was not going to rise. .iover
Q. Did ho-tho prisoner-hear the son saying that ? A. Yes, and the pri

>aid he was going to be loyal, he did not want to do anything.
Q. Well, after the talk was over, what did the prisoner and bis band do?

They went home. ip
Q. Did they come back again? A. On the 2nd April they came back, 0arl

the morning. i
Q. What occurred on 2nd April ? A. Early in the morning after thOY got

evt ry bouse ; tbey took us I)risoUers.
Q. Whom ? A. Every one of us that was up there. W o.Q. How many ? A. There were those that were murdered, and I was O
Q. How many were murdered ? A. There were nine there altogether.
Q. Nine murdered on that day ? A. Yes, on that day.
Q. And the rest were taken prisoners ? A. Yes.
Q. Those murdered, I suppose, had been taken prisoners before the mnurdr

-Yes, they were taken prisoners before. d
Q. Were there any other persons about besides the prisoner and bis bS»'
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t ttlers who were taken prisoners ? A. I have not seen'any except the prisoner
4db183 band.

Q 9. Had you an opportunity of seeing whether there was any others there ? A.
could not have any opportunity. The only opportunity I had, it was to go

the Indian agent over to Mr. Simpson's house, to go and sec Big Bear in theý08O and ask him to-we did not like to go in the camp but stay in the house.
Q. Was that before or after the murder ? A. Before the murders.
Q. As f ar as you know, there was no others present besides the prisoners taken by

'inana and his band ? A. No, I have not seen any besides that around at that time.
'Q. Did you see any of the murders committed ? A. No, I have not seen one.
Ve seen one that fell alongside of me.
Q. What caused him to fail ? A. It was the shot. He had a shot from behind
he fell. That is all I seen.
Q. You did not see who committed it ? A. No, there were too many around
t'O many Indians.
q. Where were you taken to after you were made prisoner ? A. We were

en to the Indian camp-to the prisoner's camp.
%d Were there any others in the camp besides the prisoners taken by this man

band ? A. At that time ? No, 1 don't know of any.
. You don't know of any that were taken ? A. No.

4. Were there any others joined him afterwards ? A. Yes, there were some
4 that joined afterwards.

.Who were they? A. Indians from Long Lake.
•any of them ? A. The whole band that was at Long Lake.

• About how many? A. Well, there was not very many in the band-I sup-
about fifteen or sixteen families.
q. low many would that make in the camp altogether ? A. There could not

YAore than 300 altogether.
H Iow long were you kept there a prisoner at Frog Lake ? I mean how long

'Oa kept prisoner by the prisoner ard his band ? A. Two months.
t%• WJhere were you during that time ? Where did you go to after leaving the

p at Prog Lake ? A. I went down towards Pitt.
Do you know what occurred there at Pitt? A. Yes.

.What was it ? A. That was the time that they took Pitt.
etý I'IOW did they take Pitt ? What did they do in taking it ? A. They took

erything that was in it and sacked the fort.
. Were thr any people living there ? A. Yes, there were some families.

What was done with the families ? A. They were taken prisoners, too.
, q Were there any others besides those who were taken prisoners and those
lhe0 got away? A. Yes, the police got away, and it was Big Bear that tried to get

away ut that time.
kqere ther any others there besides those who got away and those who were
e tPrisones ? A. No, only those that got away and those that were taken pris-

04 e al the people that were at Pitt. The police that got away were the only

Wasni't there a man named Cowan ? A. Yes.
What became of him ? lIe was not taken prisoner ? A. No.
Ue did not get away ? A. No.
What became of him ? A. He was shot.

e -)id you sec the shooting ? A. No, I did not see him shot, but we heard tho4 heard the shots.
Syou see Cowan after he was shot ? 1- A. Yes.

saw that ho had been killed ? A. Yes, I saw that ho had been killed.
Wbat was ho ? A. A white man.
'ehat occupation did he follow ? A He was a policenian,
q: ou knew him as a policeman ? A. Yes.

here had ho been stationed ? A. He was stationed at Pitt.
177
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Q. Then you say they took everything there was at Pitt ? A. Yes.
Q. What was there ? A. I could not say all the articles.
Q. But what buildings were there ? A. Hudson Bay buildings.
Q. Was it a store? A. It was a store. Yes.
Q. Were there things in the store ? A. Yes, there were things in the store.
Q. And those the Indians took ? A. Yes.
Q. Was that before or after they were joined by the Long Lake Indians? '

The Long Lake Indians were there already and had joined.
Q. They went down to Fort Pitt with the others? A. Yes.
Q. Did you see the prisoner at Fort Pitt? A. Yes, I seen him.
Q. At Fort Pitt? A. Yes.
Q. le was there at the time these outrages took place ? A. Yes, ho was there.
Q. Where were you about the 21st April ? A. A litule below Pitt.
Q. Whereabouts? A. I don't know exactly whereabouts I was on the 21st-.
Q. Do you remember, on any occasion when you was a prisoner, of the pr'

oner's being in his tepee ?
Mr. Robertson. -The witness has not yet said he was a prisoner of the prisofer'

My learned friend naturally puts it that way, but he bas not said that.
Court.-I understand it is put in this way-he was a prisoner of the prisoesOt

of the Indians, of whom this prisoner was one.
Mr. Robertson.-le was a prisoner among the Indians, and the question renle'o-

whether he was keeping him or not. Of course, I know my learned friend does
want to misrepresent at all.

Court.-It was quite right to check it.
Mr. Scott.-Q. Do you remember any occasion while you were a prisoner of tho

prisoner and bis band being in the prisoner's tepee.
Mr. Robertson objects.

By Mr. Scott:
Q. Were you a prisoner of the prisoner and bis band? Whose prisoner Wer

you ? A. I was Big Bear's prisoner.
Q. Do you remember at any time during the time you were that prisoner bei

in the priFoner's tent or tepee ? A. Yes.
Q. Where was this? A. At Frog Lake.
Q. Did anythiig occur while you were present ? A, I don't remember anythin5'
Q. You know Wandering Spirit? A. Yes.
Q. Were you in his tepee? A. I was.
Q. Do you remember anything that occurred there ? A. Yes.
Q. State what it was ? A. It was about that letter.
Q. What letter? A. The letter they got André Nault to write to send to

la Biche.
Q. How did you happen to be there ? A. It was Wandering Spirit came for '
Q. And he took you to bis tent? A. Yes.
Q. When you got to bis tent whom did you find there? A. I did not find auf

body but he went to Montour afterwards for André Nault.
Q. And they came into the tepee ; anybody else? A. Nobody else except PIg

B3ear and Wandering Spirit. ja
Q. Those were the five in the tent, you and the prisoner and Montour and

and the Wandering Spirit? A. Yes.
Q. What occurred there ? A. Tbey wrote a letter there.
Q. Did you hlear anything said at the time or before the letter was written?

No, not until the time the letter was written.
Q. Then tell us what was said and who spoke first? After the prisoner 0S.

and they were all there ? A. It was Montour asked how they would write the le.
Q. Was that the first thIng that was said after you went in? A. Yeo, t
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By the Court:
. 9. Montour asked Big Bear how they would write the letter? A. Yos, the firs t
Sng when I got in that 1 recollect now was that Big Bear said he had-he wanted
8end an Indian to White Fish Creek to invite the Bacana Indians. fie was about

naelding an Indian. He enticed the Indians to come in and join him, and thon ho
Fid to Montour, I want you to write, to do the same, to send a letter to your friends
A Lac La Biche, and then he says, for my part, I send word to Bacana if ho did not
yfant to come to join me lot him buy a swift horse and clear the country. The chief
that was at White Fish Creek was to do this.

By Mr. Robertson :
Q. That he had ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Scott:

e 9. Do I understand you to say that Big Bear had told him or was about to ? A.
Was about to. He was ready to send the Indian.
Q. And thon ho asked Montour to write to his friends at Lac la Biche? A. Yes.

th Q. Thon what did Montour say ? A. He commenced to write the letter, and
n MIontour asked the prisoner here how the letter was going to be, and thon these

ords that I heard wore written and interpreted to Alexander Solomon.
Mr. Roberson.-I suppose the writing should be produced.

By Mr. Scott :
Q. Did you see what was put down in the writing ? A. I heard the words and
he Inan write it.
0. And after it was written or before-as a matter of fact, you don't know what
eWritten ? A. I know a few words,
Q. How do you know them ? A. After it was read to Wandering Spirit, ha

nte to know the contents of the letter.
! r. Scott.-I submit your Honor that I am entitled to show the conversation

I %ourred, that even if the letter was read afterwards, what occurred beforehand.
t}OIVersation in the tepee during the time the prisoner was thoro is evidence in
%scase.

Court.-If reduced into writing, without accounting foi the letter ?
Mr. Robertson.-I ask that this evidence be interpreted to the prisoner.

eyCourt.- think it is quite open to you, Mr. Scott, to show the purpose for which.
thî caMe there, but going further than that, I think you will have to account fore ltter, when you show what was really done, and it was put into writing. I

n that case you will have to take the ordinary rule.
. Scott.-Your Honor, I submit I am entitled to show that.

0 ourt.-It'would be proving, I think, the contents of a letter. I may be wrong.
aps you have got some authority ?

By Mr. Scott
%4 Would you recognize the letter that was written there and read over, as you.

Y YOur presence ? A. Well, Sir, I could not recognize the letter.
Do you write ? A. Yes.
W ould you know whether that was the letter ? A. I could not say.
Scott.-Well, your Honor, I must press that point.

»ro rt-I must have some authority for it. I am not shutting you out. I don't
seLit > to shut you out from anything but the contents of the letter. I think it is

%otCen to you to prove what this man said, what this prisoner said. It is quite
In thhg whether that was written.

!4 SOtt-As I understood from the witness, I think it is given here. I may
dieta ating the witness' evidence to some extent by saying this, that Montour

te l1tter.
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Court.-A man says something in another's presence, who is charged and whO
makes some remarks upon it, that will be evidence. We don't know whother tha1
went into the letter or not, but when you speak of the contents of the letter it iO"
improper. You are speaking of a fact that occurred while the letter was written ?

Mr. Scott. -Yes.
Court.-You can't give the contents of a written document without accounti1'e

for it, as the contents.
Mr. Robertson.-I understand the line to he drawn here thon, your Honor, whero

my learned friend comes to what was dictated, to what was put into the letter,
he must stop.

Court.-The facts, the conversation which took place are facts, from whiGh
treasonable practices are to be deduced, if they can be deduced, and it is quity
another thing whother they were put into writing or not. We want to get at the
animus of the person charged.

Mr. Robertson.-I quite agree with my Iearned friend that any conversaticIa
ýwhich took place not actually put into the letter would be admissible.

Court.-It would be quite open to him to show that they met there, and the pur-
pose avowed by one of the parties was that a letter was written, but there he WUs
stop with regard to the letter, and say that so and so said so and so.

Mr. Robertson.-So long as it is not giving what was put into the letter.

By Mr. Scott :
Q. I think I can get all I want out of this witness' friends at Lac la Biche

A. Tes.
Q. What was said after Big Bear asked Montour to do this ? A. He said thef

1rould write.
Q. Who said ? A. Montour.
Q. Whom did ho mean by "they," ho said " we will write " ? A. Yes.
Q. I suppose that is what ho said ? A. Yes.
Q, Whom did he mean by " we," do you know ? A. He meant himself at last.
Q. Montour said that he would write ? A. Yes, Wandering Spirit urging tho

to write the letter.
Q. Then, what next ? A. I know the contents of the letter.
Q. How do you know them ? A. I hoard tbem pronounced first before it Wae&

written.
Q. By whom ? A. I heard them pronounced by Montour.
Q. For what purpose? A. For the purpose of putting it in the letter. iQ. Who did he pronounce it to ? A. He pronounced it to the prisoner here,

he would write that.
Q. Did ho ask the prisoner ? A. Yes, ho asked the prisoner first.
Q. What did he ask him ? A. le asked him, ho says shall I write and tO

him-
Q. What did ho ask him ? A. To tell Alexander Solomon so-and-so; that Wa

the words that was said there.
By the Court :

Q Shall I tell Alexander what? A. To preserve from the Indians, to rob b
and doliver up his guns and the ammunition he had, as the Indians would rOb he
anyhow.

Q. Montour asked Big Bear this ? A. Yes.
Q. And what did Big Bear say ? He told bim, yes.
Q. Thon did ho ask him any other questions? A. He told him, shall WO.t'eltl

news about this place, the news about this massacre that was done; that is
remem ber.

Q That is what Montour asked him at the time ? A. At the time 1 «
Wandering pirit's tent.

Q. ie asked Big Bear if ho should tell Solomon what had been done? 8 0
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Q. Was that the way ho put the question ? A. Yes, that was the way he put
question.
Q. Are you sure that was the way ? A. -.

Just put it in his exact words, Montour's exact words ? A. Ie says, shall I
Soomon the news of what happened here ? i bat was the way he asked him.
Q. And what did Big Bear say ? A. -He said, yes.
Q. Was that ail Big Bear said ? A. Yes, that was ail ho said.
Q. That is not the statement that you gave to me, Mr. Pritchard-I am not

going to tell what you said. I have a perfect right to mako that remark. I want to
refresh your memory as Io it.

Mr. Robertson.-I don't think you have the right to make that remark. If a
different statement was made, you have a right to ask him and prove it was made,
aOcording to the rules of evidence. T ou have no right to make a statement to the
Jury that he told you something different.

By Mr. Scott:
Q. Are those the only questions you heard Montour asking Big Bear? A. Yes,
8 the only questions I remember now.

Q. Did Montour at any time put a sentence to 1Big Bear as te what ho was going
Put in the letter by way of a question ? A. That is ail the sentences that I am

erfectly sure that was pronourced now.
Q. Were you at Frenchman's Butte during the time you were prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. About what time was that ? A. I don't exactly remember the date.
Q. Do you remember anything that occurred there ? A. Yes.
Q. What? A. They had a skirmish there.
Q. Who had a skirmish? A. It was between the Indians and the troops.
Q. What troops ? A. I could not say what troops, because I was not with the

Q. Did you hear the prisoner or those who were with him on that occasion say-
as to what troops they were ? A. No.
Q. You never heard any conversation about it ? A. No, I did not hear any

0ooversation on it, what troops they were.
Q. You have heard them talking about it, you qay ? A. No.

Didn't you hear any conversation about the fight afterwards ? A. I heard
S Conversation about the fight, and heard the gun shots.

'. Well, how did you know it was the troops ? Did yon hear the Indians say
A. Well, I heard it in Cree-" the soldiers."

Did you hear what soldiers they were? A. No, I did not hear whether they
re nothing but French and Indians. I did not hear what troops was there.

Q. Did you seo Big Bear on that occasion ? A. No, I did not see him that day.
t Court.-Mr. Robertson, before yo ask him any queations, I propose to ask this

erpr t et what ave taken down. (This evidence is now read over to
W'o %itnless by the court, and the interpreter interprets it to the prisoner.)

By Mr. Robertson :
Q lr. Pritchard, you were in Mr. James K. Simpson's house at Frog Lake on.

1norning of the massacre ? A, Yes.
Q. What time in the morning ? A. It was about seven or eight o'clock.

That is, the morning of the 2nd April ? A. Yes.
Whom did you sec? A. I saw Big Bear there.
'Whom else ? A. Mrs. Simpson.
et Mr. Simpson? A. No.

r hat was Big Bear doing ? A. He was doing nothing ; ho was sitting in a.
1r the house.

And Mrs. Simpson was there ? A. Yes.
Was anyone else with you? A. I was with the Indian agent.
' What is his name ? A. Thomas Quinn.
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Q. At seven o'clock in the morning when you saw Big Bear, was that in *
Simpson's bouse ? A. Yes.

Q. Where did you go from that ? A. We got out and wanted to come hom0 '
and we met with a band of Indians, myself and Quinn.

Q. And what happened when you met the band of Indians ? A. When J n
the band of Indians, the band of Indians surrounded me, and they wanted to take
right away to the camp.

Q. Did they surround Quinn also ? A. Well, Quinn was behind me.
Q. And you did not see what they did with him ? A. No.
Q. That was the time when you were taken prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. And Big Bear, befere that, you had left in Mr. Simpson's house ? A. YeOS
Q. Then ho was not present when you were taken prisoner, Big Bear ? A.

was not present. I was taken early in the morning, first of ail.
Q. You bad just left him in Mr. Simpson's bouse and you came away from the

and a band of Indians took you there, Big Bear was not there when you were tako
prisoner ? A No, he was not there.

Q. He was there in Mrs. Simpson's house some little distance away ? A. ye
Q. Who were the leading spirits in the band that took you prisoner ? A. 34,

Bear's son.
Q. Wbat is his name ? A. Imesis.
Q. Is Big Bear's son a good son to his father ? A. No, I don't think so, bec

when the father said anything the son bucks against it.
Q. The direct contrary ? A. Yes.
Q. Did he do that through the whole of this trouble? A. Yes.
Q. This Imesis was one of the leaders of this band of Indiaus ? A. Yes.
Q. And it was he who took you prisoner? A. Yes.
Q. Now, why did yon say you were Big Bear's prisoner? A. He being tli

chief, and I was in bis camp.
Q. And he is the chief recognized by the Government ? A. Yes.
Q. Can you tell me who else were the leaders of the band of Indians in tw

trouble ? A. Wandering Spirit.
Q. Any other ? A. Little Poplar.
Q. These people then were the leaders of the band of Indians throughout the

whole of this business ? A. Yes, they were the leaders throughout ail, yes. didQ. Was Big Bear one of the leaders of the band of Indians, did ho lead thenl,
he incite them to wrong? A. No, I never saw Big Bear incite any Indian.

Q. You never hoard him inciting any wroug? A. No.
Q. Did you hear him sty anything to the contrary at any time? A. Ice

recollect. It was only at that time that ho wanted to take Fort Pitt, and told tho9
mot to try and kill anybody that time, ho wanted to save the families that were ip
the fort.

Q. Who wanted to take Pitt? A. Wandering Spirit and Imesis, they wanted t
take the headmen that was leading the Indians.

Q. Imesis and Wandering Spirit wanted to go and take Fort Pitt ? A. Ye•
Q. Where was this ? A. At Frog Lake.
Q. Before they went ? A. Yes.
Q. What did Big Bear say about that to them or what did he try to do? A.

Bear tried to save the families that were in the fort. He said if lie could get the POli
to leave the fort it would be good, that is what ho said.

Q. He suggested that ? A. Yes.
Q. That ho wanted to save them ? A. Yes. tof
Q. Now, did ho try to prevent them from going to Port Pitt at ail, did ted t

to keep tbem quiet? A. Well, that is ail ho said and I did not say if ho wlet
try and prevent them, but I heard those words. IlPe:Q. That ho wanted to save the people in the fort, to arrange so that the POlt

Mould get away ? A. Yes.
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Q. Did you hear the whole of what took place at that interview or was it justPart of it on that occasion ? A. Just part of it.
Q. You were not ail, you were not there ail the time ? A. No.
Q. Now, do you know who went first to Fort Pitt from Frog Lake when they

'#rût down toake it ? A. No.
Q. Did Big Bear go among the first, do you know that, or did ho not? A. No; it

a8 the Indians that went off first and Big Bear started behind.
Q. Hie followed them ? A. Yes.
Q. Did you go with them ? A. Yes.
Q. Went with them to Fort Pitt ? A. Yes.
.lHow did it happen you,went ? A. Wandering Spirit wanted me to go as

'4rpreter.
Q. Wandering Spirit wanted you ? A. Yes.
Io - When you say they wanted you, you mean Wandering Spirit, and took you

1et as interpreter ? A. Yes, to act as interpreter.
Qè. Then, who was it commanced the party when they went? A. It was these
Inen that I mention, it was theFe two men.
0.- Big Bear was not commanding it at ail ? A. No, he had no influence in this

Q. Well, you went there yourself before Big Bear did-Big Bear must have
o after ycu ? A. No.
Q. Well, how was that? A. Well this, after the Indians started Wandering
t caine back and ir ade me go.

Q. Well when you got there you saw the plundering of the fort? A. Yes.
Did Big Bear take any part in the plundexing of the fort? A. I did not see

t Q. Do ycu kinow whether he did or fot? A. I don't know whether ho did or
lecause I did not see him, and I have not seen if ho had anything at the fort.
Q. You rever saw him with any of the goods ? A. No.

n. bd 3ou see him atout that time alter the pillaging ? A. Very seldom I"'Id eB hlmn.
t Q. Well, hcw often did you see him after the pillaging of Fort Pitt ? Immedi-
t3y after, that day and the next day? A. Well,I don't remember seeing him often,

vey YEeldom I would see Big Bear go around and leave his tent.
.ie very seldom left his tent at ail ? A. Yes.

9. bidn't ycu see him at all ? A. I did Eee him.
Q. Twice? A. More than twice inside of two months. I can't say how many
. I don't creber how many times I saw him.
. During the two months that followed the pillaging of Fort Pitt you saw Big
rettY Often ? A. Yes.
SAlhoug ho gererally stayed in his tent? A. Yes.

48 teqt.Were you in bis tent frequently during that time ? A. No, I never went in

Q" You travelled over a great deal of ground during those two months ? A.

Q.:w did Big Bear travel ? A. On foot.
Were there any horses in the band ? A. Yes, there were horses.

OW many ? A. I don't know the number.
ere there 100 ? A. More than 100.

h0j And Big Bear never had a horse even ? A. No. I never saw Big Bear onERek nor on a rig. Be us8d to travel on foot.
te did nct even have wheels to carry him or ponies ? A. 1o.
And it was a pretty rough country ? A. It was.

, Through a great deal of sloughs, and snow and bad weather wasn't it ? A.

Q• That was the treatment ho got from his own band ? A. Yes.
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Q. This great chief who is to be held responsible for the doings of these IndiaO
A. Yes.

Q. Did yon ever see him with any of the goods that were taken from Fort
during that time ? A. I know ho had clothing, ho had blankets, but I could not
whether they came from there; but I saw some goods with him, blankets and àe
ing ho had on his back, and his family.

Q. But you don't know where they came from? A. No.
Q. Had he more than he usually bad in the way of clothing? A. Wall that

don't know, because I am not much acquainted with Big Bear's tont, and I never
what ho had.

Q. Well you never observed any particular goods that indicated to you that 0
had any of the goods that were taken from ForL Pitt? A. No.

Q. What you saw were just ordinary things that ho always wore ? A. Y0•
Q. Tell me did you see Big Bear immediately after the shooting took plaCe

Frog Lake, shooting of Quinn ? A. I did not.
Q. Did you htar him say anything? A. No.
Q. You told us they came in first to Frog Lake on the lat April in the eVy0Jesi

A. Yes.
Q. And you said Big Bear came in and had an interview with the agent a1 d1

other Indians ? A. Yes.
Q. And that Imesis told the agent about the trouble at Duck Lake ? A-
Q. And Big Bear said that ho was going to be loyal and show the Governl1.

£omething-my learned friend interrupted. I would like you to finish that? ,
He was going to be loyal, ho was not going to rise-him and his band werenot go
to rise.

Q. And ho was going to show the Government what ? A. They say Big -
is going to rise to war, and I am going to let them know and see that I am not go
to rise.

Q. Ho was going to vindicate his character in fact? A. Yes.
Q. And the lIdians did go away peaceably that night ? A. They went

peaceably ihat night.
Q. Now how do you know that the white people, Quinn and the rest that

murdered, were taken prisoners before they were murdered ? A. Because
them taken and the whole band taken into a bouse. p

Q, You said that you came away from Mr. Simpson's house and you and Q
were together, and it was thon you were taken prisoner ; were you a prisoner
you went to Simpson's house ? A. We were taken prisoners, and thon they w
zo drive us to the camp, and then the Indian agent told me, we wili go and ask Big
that we may be able to stay in the house, and stay together; and we went over
founa Big Bear there, and we wanted to stop in the house.

Q. Thon you bad been taken prisoners in a sense, but were allowed to goe
A. Yes, with the band of Indians around us. b

Q. Aud they seized you a second time after, when you were coming away? d ljø
Q. You have already told us, I think, that at Fort Pitt Big Bear directe

efforts to save the people in the fort, to get them away safely ? A. Yes.
Q. Could ho have prevented the pillaging of the fort at all ? A. No, ho

not have prevented it. t ge f
Q. So that the best that ho couldido was to try and help the whites to 

and bave their lives ? A. Yes. frQ. Do you recollect the arrival of a letter, I think addressed te yoursef
Norbert Delorme ? A. Yes.

Q. He was in Poundmaker's camp at that time ? A. Yes.
Q. And a letter came to you from him ? A. Yes. vQ. Do you know what became of that letter ? A. No, I don't know Wh

came of it; Wandering Spirit asked it from me and I gave him the lotter.
Q. I would like to ask the general purport of the lotter. I have no >000

.getting the letter, and I don't wish to give the particular contents of it-
'Wibh to know the object of the letter-the Crown has the means of obtaining
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Mr. Scott.-I think my learned friend is not fairly stating the case when ha
n that every bit of information possible for us to obtain has noL beun furnibhed.
have endeavored to obtain ail the information possible ; we have sent for any
esst1108es for the defence that he has required, and I don't see that we are in a better

10ition to get information than he is.
Mv. Robertson.-Of course Big Bear is an Indian, and your Hlonor knows what

etret difficulty that puts in my way. I knew nothing whatever about this matter
de"il lir. Pritchard told me abutu it the day before yesterday, and I had not the first

a that the letter was iu existence, or that anything of the kind was there, and I
o 0t ask to go into the full contents of the letter. I merely ask your lonor ta

that the letter being shown to have been taken by Wandering Spirit, one of thia
d of Indians who was out of my reach, it is prao'ically loiL.
Court.-I could not say that.
Mr. Robertson.-It is lost in this way, that it is gone were we can't get it.
Court.-I don't know that. I think I mast apply the saume priiciples to you. It44t Stick to the same rule I hold before. If the parties present say we are going to

ItSo and so into a piece of paper, and so and so may be given, but as to the con-
s Of that paper they cannot be given.

By Mr. Robertson :
Q- The letter came at ail events, and Wandering Spirit got it ? A. Yes.
Q. In consequence of that letter was anything done in the way of a council ? A.

,they ilvited some Indians and some prisoners that were there to get the letter
, 80 that everybody would hear the contents of the letter.
Q. Weil, did anyone propose any course of action ? Did anyone pr spose acting

,'*OOsequence of that letter? Did anyone propose that the band should go down'to
beol ndmaker ? A. I did not hear of anybody proposing to go down and join

Q. You did not hear anyone propose that ? A. No.
frQ. Did any of the Indians express the wish to go to join Poundmaker ? A. WeIH,
re was some that I heard wish to go to Poundmaker.

q. Who? A. There was one of the prisoner's counsellors.
Q. What is his name ? A. Fair Sky the Bird.

. ie wanted to go ? A. Yes.
t ld Big Bear say anything as to that? A. No, I did not hear Big Bear ay

Q. ot one way or the other? A. Not one way or the other.
Q. Did Big Bear want to go? A. I could not say if ho wanted to go or not.
Q- YOu did not hear him express himself one way or another ? A. No.

0 noyou recollect the morning of the 28th May, the day of the fight at Frenci-
atte? A. Yes.

. Where were you on that morning and the evening before ? A. Just whler
ht took place the evening before that.

Did you hear Big Bear give any advice to the Indians ? A. No.
SThe Oevening of the 27th did you hear Big Bear giving any advice to the
a as to whether they should stay there, or as to what they shoald do? A. No

don't propose to translate this.
r. Robertson.-No, I don't think it is necessary to translate it.

By .Mr. S&ott:-
4 You had been taken prisoner before you went over to Mrs. Simpson's houde

Where were you taken ? A. In my house.
asu the prisoner there at or about the time you were taken ? A. No.
ad you seen him that morning before? A. I seau him that morning.

%11 ho was he with or where was he ? A. I seen himt in Delaney'a hoeusthati
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Q. Before you were taken prisoner? A. We were taken prisoner, weO
taken in bed evei y one, and so we were taken altogether into Delaney's house,
tien the prisoner standing at the bar now, I seen him there.

Q. Wheru ? A. In Delaney's bouse with a big 2rowd of Indians.
Q. About the time ycu weie taken prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. The time when you were ttken to Delancy's hcusa? A. Yes.
Q. Then you say ycu went over with Quinn to sce Big Bear at Simpson's ho

for the purpose of obtaining reimission from him to remain in the house? A.
Q.Did you speak to him when you got into Simpson's house ? A. Yes, I

inter reter for the agent and I spoke to him.
Q. You spoke for tIe agent ? A. Yes.
A. What did you say to Big Bear ? A. I merely asked him about the ordces1

the Indian agent that was with me, we would not like to go to the camp but
Iike to stop in the house, and he said, the prisoner here told us, we could stay"'
Indian agent's house.

Q. le knew at that time that you were prisoners ? A. Yes, ho knew at tho
time.

Q. He had seen you arcund as prisoners before that ? A. Yes.
Q. When did you first discover that Big Bear had no influünce in his ownb

Did you know that Lelore the outbreak ? A. No. dQ. Then you always recognized him as being the bead and front of bis ban ed r
to the time of the out break ? A. Yes, up to the time of the outbre-k, and tiil a1tce
the time of the outbreak. d 1Q. There was a feeling among some of the Indians that the prisoners sboUl
Kiled, was there not? A. Yes.

Q. You know that that existed ? A. Yes.
Q. And that some of the band were very anxiors to have them killed ? A. , to
Q. Imesis, Wandering Spirit and Little Poplar, I suppose they were ansion

mse you all killed ? A. 'les.
Q. And urged it ? A. Yes.
Q. Big Bear, you statcd, was opposed to the killirg of the prisoners ? A
Q, Rave you any means of knVwing by whose doirg it was that the prisor"tI

lives weie saved ? A. I could not say exactly that Ibis man and this Indial sJ
Ile priscneis, but in a big cicwd of Indians there is a1wbys some gocdwbite
aImf-biecd aLd Indian. There is some of the Indians that protected us entir'eo
iniglt ssy. 1 don't know the names of all the Indians, but it was the Wood Cree
Jliog Lake Indians.

Q. Where did the Wcod Çrees join the camp? A. At Frog Lake. ired
Q. HFIow long was that aflter the massacie on tLe 2nd of April that they jO

A. E~ey joined about the 6th or 7th April.
Q. Four or five days afterwards ? A. Yes. . th
Q. You say that Big Bear was recognized by the Government as the chief C

-aId ? A. Yes. th
Q. And I urderstocd you to say he was recognized by the band as well, s b0l

lief up till the 2ind April ? A. Yes. I recognized him as the head chief of the eqe
Q. Then, who was the recognized head of the band by the Indians the

up to the tine? A. That I don't know. The only thing that I could knowid firte
the indians 'would come to talk to the Indian agent, ho was the man that talkedei

lie was the spokesman ? A. Yes, and thon afterwai ds it was WIndo6
Epirit. bqa io

Q. Do ycu know what the custom is as to who the spokesman for a bad
mncrgst lidians ? Who speaks first arr ongst an Indian band ? A. The chiel-

Q. Is it the head chief? A. Yes. Oro
Q, lt is the head cbief that speaks first ? A. Yes. The man that sPea

ammmget a band of Indians-head man.
-By the Court :

Q. Aid then next comes a councillor, doesn't it? A. Yes.
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By Mr. Scott:
9. You say that you heard Big Bear at Fort Pitt endeavoring to persuade the
a738 to jet the police go ? A. Yes.
Q. That was at Fort Pitt ? A. Yes.

Q Aller bis arrival there? A. Yes.
.Ard before the takir g of the fort ? A. Before the laking of the fort.
. Bow did yoa happen to hear this ? Was it a council? A. It was not a

but it was a wLole body of men standing together that were just gcing to
ilatno the fort, and then ho called out and told tûem to try and save the families
Were there, and the police that were there, let them go.
. To let thc police and families go ? A. Yes.

Q. That was ail ho said ? A. That was ail ho said.

-By Mr. Robertson :
Q. You say it was tLe Wood Cres that sa'ved you ? A. Yes.

a .' Was Big Bear in sympatby with them in saving you ? A. Well, I could not
at, because I don't inocw. I never seen Big Bear around.
o 9. When say that it was the Wood Crees then you only mean that that was

Sgeinral impression about it, and you seem to have more friends among theOoc1 Crees thnu among the Plain Crees? A. Yes.
>Ot . But Big Bear might have been siding with the Wood Crees in protecting

A. Ye.
tet Coue-ld ho bave protectcd you against bis own mon if the Wood Crees had not

bere ? A. No.
Q. Ble could not ? A. He could not.

%f . Then yon said you reccgrnized Big Bear as the chief of that band until after
b"g ? A. Yes.

W48 w IIIW long ater the rising ? A. It was at that time that I recognizedthat ho,
'ot chief, that he was no longer chief, at the time they took Fort Pitt.

e q4Then it was brought home to you clearly that he was no longer chief ? A.
e4 ýhowas the leaders of it. That is what makes me say now that he was not

theu.
That was the first time it was brougbt plainly to you ? A. Yes.
And before that time you bad just remained under the impression that had

reated by many years' custom before, that Big hear was chief ? A. Yes.
t 1 . Aind 'when you told tb jury that it was Big Bear that used to speak first toý

Ilîan agent ard the Wandering Spirit afterwards, that referred to the time before
A . Yes.

. Not after ? A, Yes.
4MI s Ay SIMPsoNEsworn &

ý&XcLmined by Mr. Scott :
' erorie, interpreter, interpreting as the evidence is given.

Qg akelere Were you living on the 21nd April ? 'A. I started from Pitt to go to

. here were you livirg at tbat time ? A. At Frog Lake before.
ben did you reacb F og Lake ? A. In the afternon.

l Vhat did you fird there ? A. Al ibe houses all abandoned, all the doors
au d wirdows and everything, ard I fourd the camp about a mile away froma

the houses do you say were plundored ? A. Yes, broken and plundered,

Y People about the Fettlement? A. Not a single soul.
Plee at did ycu do when you found ibis state of affairs? A. I went into my

e nd examincd the place, and found that everything was upside down there.
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Q. What is your occupation at Frog Lake? A. I was clerk in charge Of 90
post thore, Frog Lake post, of the Hudson Bay Company.

Q. What does the post consist of? A. Goords.
Q. And store, I suppose ? A. Yes.
Q. With goods? A. With goods, yes, and provisions. bQ. What had become of the goods whon you got thera ? A. The Indians

the whole.
Q. They were gone ? A. Tbey were all gone.
Q. And you found the contents of your own house--? A. All gone.
Q. What did you do thon ? A. I looked around about the floor to see if

was any bloodsbed or blood, or anything, and I went out thon.
Q. Did you seo any signs of bloodshed anywhore ? A. No, not at that pl 0s

went on the road all the way. I did not go out. iQ. Where did you go to? A. I wort right to my place, and I saw au
thore afterwards. After I had gone on to my place and looked around; as I Ca a
there was an Indian came up, and I asked him, what is up? What is ail this,
across the creek ? He says, you may so what is up. bQ. What did you do after speakirg to the Indians? A. I got into my

*board and drove right across where the camp was.
Q. Whom did you see there? A. Al the Indians sitting in a cirele.
Q. The prisoner ? A. The prisoner was there, yes.
Q. Do you speak Cree? A. Yes.
Q. What did you do after you got there; did you speak to the prisoner ? A.
Q. Who did yon speak to first ? A. The prisoner.
Q. What was said ? A. I asked him, hallo, I said, you are here; and ho jee

yes, whon did you come back from hunting ? Hle was away hunting when i
away from there, and ho said, yesterday morning ho had come in, that they bad
-for him. I said, did you make a good hunt? He said, no, and that is all that J
him just thon, and thon ho said to me afterwards, if you wish to come into mY
and romain in my tent, you come in and romain in my tont. Olé,

Q. Did you go in ? A. No, I did not go just there. I went down to n'yd 
tent first and thon about an hour or so after, I went back to Big Bear's tent &,0
said to him, I am sorry to see what you have done here. Well, ho says, it is
doings. I said, now this affair will all bo in your name, not your young Mek•
will be all on you, carried on your back. l says, it is not my doings, andthe1Y
mon won't listen, and I am very sorry for what has been doue.

Q. What became of you after that? A. I was in the camp.
Q. What position had you in the camp? A. I was a prisoner there.
Q. You wore a prisoner in the camp ? A. Yes.
Q. And followed the camp after that ? A. Yes.
Q. Up to the time of your release? A. Yes.
Q. When was that ? A. That was on the other side of the Beaver River.
Q. When ? A. About the latter end of June, I think.
Q. You wore there three months ? A. Three months.
Q. Were you at Fort Pitt about the middle of April ? A. No.
Q. Wore you taken down thore? A. No.
Q. Where did you romain ? A. Frog Lake.
Q. Did a portion of the band romain there ? A. Not many. aQ. Were there any other of the prisoners remained there besides yoU

Cameron.
Q. Cameron and yon thon were detained at Frog Lake ? A. Yes.
Q. And the others went down to Pitt did they ? A. To Pitt. Irl 00
Q. What proportion of the band went to Pitt about that time ? A. 

whole of them. e
Q. Do you remember about the 28th May being in the neighborhood f1

man's Butte, you know whore that is? A. Yes. ftQ. What occurred thero ? A. The soldiers came up there and had a g
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Ilow do you know, did you eee it? A. The soldiers?
Q, Yes? A. No, I did not see them.

- fow do you know they were soldiers? A. Reported to be.
Q. By whom? A. The Indians.
Q. Was the prison er there ? A. The prisoner was around there, yes.
Q- Where? A. Where we were camped.

Was it reported what soldiers they were ? A. They said, soldiers, that is all,
Say what they were exactly.

d you know whose soldiers they were? A. We knew it was the Govern-
tSOld je,,

'IOW did you hear that? A. Well, there was a report that the Government
ers were coming down from Edmonton before.
q L here was that reported? A. That was reported-we got that report about

• IOW did you hear it ? A. It was among the Indians.
• Wa it among the Indians the prisoner was with? A. Yes.

well were those the soldiers that you heard were at Frenchman's Butte?

. There was a fight there you say ? A. Yes.
. How do you know? A. I heard the shots. I did not see them myself.

bid yoU hear the Indians saying anything about the fights, as to what they
one what had been done?

• Robertson.-In presence of Big Bear ?
ourt.--Not necessarily.

By Mr. Scott:
1 in the presence of some of those with whom he was associated. Did

ear iny of the Indians that were with the piisoner saying what bad been done
e eght at Frenchman's Butte ? A. I beard an Indian say that theo e was fight,.

the soldiers, and they had killed nineteen or twenty, that was the report.

By .Mr. Robertson:
1oW long have you known Big Bear ? A. Nearly forty years.
The prisoner ? A. Yes.
What has been his character during all that time ? A. Always been a gooc
tO the white man.
A. good friend of the white man ? A. Yes.

nd always respected by the white people as being a good friend ? A. Yes,
? Id you ever hear of bis getting into any trouble of any kind with the white

% . Never any trouble of bis own troubles until this.
o. •YOu were not present on the morning of the massacre at Frog Lake ? A.

* tnwere away at Fort Pitt on your way home ? A. Yes.
Ad it was not till after the massacre that you arrived there ? A. Yes.

i ohave told us that when you drove acrQss the camp you found Big Bear
htaid the circle of the Indians that were sitting there. You spoke to him, and.

tAt h soilething to the effect that you were sorry for what had been done, andes, ed lose his good name now or this would rest upon bis shoulders ? A.

• tAn ho said it was not bis doing ? A. Yes.
• Thatthe young men would not listen to him ? A. Yes.

' d e was very sorry for what had been done ? A. Yes.
16 ahe say anything else about his good name and the young men? A. He

1o t ave been always trying to take my name from me. I have always tried
e t Young men, and they bave done it this time and taken my name away
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Q. lie complained that the young men hai ben trying to take his. name a
from him. and that they had succoeded at last ? A. Yes.

Q. Did he seem really sorry ? A. Yes.
Q. Djd you believe that ho was sorry ? A. Yes.
Q. Do yu believe it now that ho was sorry ? A. Yes. r
Q. As matter of fact, can you say whother Big Bear was recognized as chi Or

in corimand, and could control the Indians in his band at that time ? A. Not j
at that moment. He was at one time recognizod as chief.

Q. At one time, when ? A. In his younger days whon I kaew him first, ba
became so at last that his young men would not liston to him.

Q. low old is ho, do yon know ? A. Le ought to bc upwards of sixty.
Q. And do you know, as matter of fact, that the younger men in the tribe 1o0

upon him as a sort of old woman ? Yes, in his older days.
Q. When ho got older ? A. Yes.
Q. And of later times ? A. Yes.
Q. Had ho really any influence among his band ? A. Not those last years'
Q. Any influence sufficient to control them against thoir wishes? If thOY

set upon anything could ho stop thom? A. Oh, no. ? ,
Q. Who were the Indians that really led that band and influenced them?

One of his own sons.
Q. What was his name ? A. Imesis, and Wandering Spirit, and Chuway. g[eQ. Little Poplar ? A. He was not there when the massacre was thOre.

only came in when they went down to Pitt.
Q. And those were the mon that were controlling the band thon? A.

Yes. .tøreQ. I mean at the time of the massacre the mon that were controlling it 0
Imesis, Wandering Spirit and this other Indian ? A. Yes, Lucky Man, they
him,

Q. They were the ring-leaders? A. Yes. gher
Q. Were they members of the council ? A. Lucky Man was a chief, a

chief.
Q. Wandering Spirit, what was ho ? A. First councillor.
Q. They were all influential mon, even in the ordinary councils ? A. '
Q. And they had taken control, practically, of the band ? A. Yes. qotQ. How did Imesis treat his father habitually ? A. He did not treat him

well.
Q. Ho did not treat him well ? A. No.
Q. Didn't ho treat him very badly ? A. No. to
Q. Is it a fact, as Mr. Pritchard has told us already, that when Big Boar t le

do anything hie son always bucked against him-as ho expressed it ? A. He We"
trary always.

Q. And generally succeeded in carrying the Indians with him ? A. YeO•
Q. During all that time that you were with the Indians, while you we

prisoner, how did Big Bear travel ? A. On foot.
Q. Were there any horses in the band ? A. Yes. baQ. And ho could not get a horse ? A. I don't know that ho could not,t

always travelled on foot. end
Q. What was the ground you travelled over ? A. Bad ground--maskogg

water and woods. t «0
Q. Did I understand you to say that you wore prosent at Fort Pitt when 1

pillaged ? A. No. 10
Q. You wore at Frenchman's Butte ? Did you see Big Bear at French

Butte ? A. Yes I saw him there.
Q. Where was ho ? A. In the camp whon I saw him. gø$
Q. When the fighting was going on ? A. No, I was not there whon tho igh

was going on.
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Do you know whore Big Bear was when the fighting was going on ? A. I
not say. I did not see him.
• Do you recollect where he went that morning, or what becarne of hii that

? A. I saw him in the evening after the fight, but I did not see him in the
toillflg.

Q. Where was ho then, when you saw him in the ovening? A. Away travelling.
Q- How far away that night? A. Fifteen or sixteen miles.
Q- Away from where the fighting had been ? A. Yos, when I saw him.
Q. That was in the evening? A. Yes.
Q. About what time, late or early ? A. Just about two o'clock in theatternoon.

?Q. About two o'clock in the afternoon he had got fifteen or sixteen miles away
r4where the fight was going on ? A. Yes, from lFrenchman's Butte.

7 • And at what time had the fighting been going on ? A. About six in the
r"- Between six and seven in the morning.

Q· Now tell me, had all the Indians rua asay like that ? A. No.
Q. Had many of them ran away ? A. Oh, yes, ail the families had ran away.
Q. But where were the fighting men? A. The figtiting mon were fighting there.

A l out at the front; they did not run away ? A. They did not run away.
Q· Do you recollect the arrivai of a letter from Norbert Delorme ? A. Yes.
Q. Who was thon in Poundmaker's camp ? A. Yes.
Q. Addressed to John Pritchard, the last witness ? A. Yes.

the QAnd you and Mr. Maclean, after the arrival of that letter, went ont among
olPftians, and particularly the Wood Crees, to persuade them not to go and j oin

rLaker ; that is a fact, is it not ? A. Yes.
k, î%,Mr. Maclean went about, and you acted as his interpreter and assisted him.

te Did Big Bear assist you or resist you ? Did ho assist you in that attempt to
% t hthem from going around ? A. I spoke to Big Bear, and he said he did

Well did ho say that in the presence of any of the Indians ? A. Weil, thera
Indians around about there only himself.
Just at that time ? A. Yes.

h.10 was it protected the white prisoners ? A. That I could not say.
's Mr. Pritchard correct in saying it was the Wood Crees, and not the Plain
that the Wood Crees really saved the whites from the Plain Cree ? A. Welil,

I got into the camp there was more of the Plain Crees than the Wood

eijyQ. Just at that time ? A. Yes; of course, if they wished to kill us at that time,
bl have kill us at once.

' They had just killed nine or ton already ? A. Yes, but they could have killed
of us if they wished.
But afterwards? A. It was the Wood Crees that saved us.

as Big Bear in sympathy with them that saved you, or was he in sympa thy
in Crees who wanted to kill you ? A. If ho had said to kill us, to his o wn
they would have killed us sure.

you think they could as against the Wood Crees ? A. Yes, I think so.
a had said to do it, do you think they would have done it ? A. Yes.

COuld he alone have prevented them from doing it ? A. Oh, no.
OU are satisfied of that ? A. Yes.

Q Y Mr. &ott:
' on say- that the prisoner had at one time considerable influence over his

at it became after a time that the young mon would not listen to him?

t% Whou did ou first observe symptoms of that feeling in the band? A. A.
9e treaty.
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Q Some years ago ? A. Yes.
Q. You eay that since that the young men would not listen to him? A.

(a-firnatively).
Q. How did that come to your notice'? What circunmstances brought that

'your notice? A. Because I was into the camp often trading with them, summer- h
winter, the same as if I was living with them altogether, and I found out that if
had anything to say, the others would not hear it'

Q. Then, how does it come that in the face of that, that if ho had counselled tbe
Indians to kilt the prisoners, they would have done so ? He must have had sote
influence which turned the balance one side or the other, and would have nmade tte
crowd turn with it ? A. If you get into a camp of Indians, and they speak tO fu
,nd you said, do this bad, they will do it, and say, do this good, and they 'eoV
not do it perhaps.

Q. That is what you think ? A. Yes. haQ. That the member of a band or chief may have an influence for bad, but
influence might not extend to influence them to do good acts ? A. Yes.

Q. You say that Big Bear always travelled on foot? A. Yes.
Q. Were there any of the others travelling on foot? A. Yes.
Q. Who, for instauce? A. The Indians.
Q. Quite a number of them ? A. Quite a number of them.
Q. Any of the head men ? A. Yes.
Q. Berides Big Bear? A. Yes.
Q. Who ? A. Wandering Spirit.
Q. He was travelling on foot ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know for what reason these mon were travelling on foot? A.
Q. Had the prisoner any horses of his own ? A. Ho had horses, but every 0

had taken his hortes and made use of them.
Q. Others were making use of them? A. Yes.
Q. You don't know whether it was with his permission or against his will

30, I don't. 00JQ. You say that after the arrival of that letter from Nobert Delorme You gto
Mr. Maclean wen t ai ound the camp endeavoring to persuade the Indians not to 50
Poundmaker ? A. Yes. of

Q, Or Mr. Maclean went around and you interpreted for him, is that the wal
it ? A. Yes. keir

Q. What arguments were used to prevent the Indians fiom going to Poundro j,
what was the argument which in your mind prevailed upon them not to g "?,$ t0-
They wanttd Big Bear and all the Indians to go down to Batttleford to
inaker's and once they got all there they wore going to take Battleford.

Q. And you trieu to persuade them from going ? A. Yes. . ? g
Q. I want to know what argument you used to persuade them from go"E

endeavor to persuade them ? wb
Mr. Robertson.-I should think this is hardly evidence against the prisOnOr,

effort was used to preçent hin from going. thiog'
Uourt.-He may ask him what ho said. I suppose it comes to the satnle

You opened it in your crosE-examination.
Mr. Rubertson.-My learned friend asks in the widest way what argull

used generally. the
Court.-The proper way is to ask what ho said to Big Bear, and he can gdeno 'e

Indians, too. I wish to point out a distinction there, it is quite true the eVi ø
admissible in respect of overt acts committed by any one of a body of me1n9 1 b90s
but it is a different thing when you come to this point where the witness has 6
that Big Bear was not acting in concert with them, but that he was Wishing or"
go. Then, for my learned fi iend to say what argument ho used Wit
Indians to try and make them go is not admissible. Much the same argume
up in the Prost case, the question was raised by the Attorney-General at h
passed in a place whore the prisoner was not at all, but it was to get out
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cJ led to a cons iracy as oharged and overt acte afterwards, and the court there,
1 the fact may taken, whether the conspiracy proved first identical facts may

ken, and if those things fit in together they are given.
Mr. Robertson.-That is just the distinction I was drawing.

80 Court.-You brought it out first as endeavoring to get the Wood Indians not to-
ee.a certain place, and it is quite open to Mr. Scott to ask what passed betweensIe.

Ja. )r. iRobertson.-The point of my examination on that was merely to show that
e 3oar was opposed to going. I have no objection to the asking what passed

en him and Big Bear, but it cannot affect Big Bear, what he said to other

COurt.--Yes, if it afterwards went to Big Bear or any action taken on it to which
iear was a party afterwards.
.Mr. Scôtt.-The question was asked in the first place by Mr. Robertson.
Court,-The question may be asked as to what the witness said to these.

t sMr. Scott.-I should not have asked what argument. I put it that way in order
orten the case as much as possible.

By Mr. Scott:
I understand you to say that Mr. Maclean endeavored to induce the

atus to refrain from joining Pounomakor ? What was said by you to induce them
ot go ? A. I told them it was botter not to go.
Q Anything further ? A. And I told thom the Indians were starving, we hear

to  dimaker and them are starving, they have nothing to eat and we had something
to t,> and I told him that was the best thing for us, not to go at all, or take us down

0onmaker's.

%YtQ, Iid you say anything to Big Bear personally about going ? A. I did not say
hin pers!onally.

19. You say you had a conversationtwith Big Bear when nobody else but you and
a anwere present? A. Yes, I told him it was best for us not to go down to Pound-
r 8 as we hear Poundmaker had no provisions and he could not furnish the
band of us with provisions.

to Q. And thon was it before or after that that the prisoner said lie did not want
A le then said he did not want to go.

Was it after yon were told about the shortness of provisions that he said
A. Yes.

AT'&NL]Y SIMPsoN, sworn:-

-Examined by Mr. Seott:
Q. Where were you living in April last? A. At Fort Pitt.

At hat occupation ? A. I am a clerk in the Hudson Bay Company's service

Q bo you remember what occurred about the 17th April there ? A. Yes, the
as «taken by the Indians on the 17th.

t 1 Was there anything happened previous to the fort being taken ? A. Yes,
las came down there on the 15th.

thy fi hat did they do in the meantime, before the taking of the fort? A. Well,
M Mr. Maclean prisoner.

. en was that ? A. That was, I think, on the 16th.
1a' w did you know he was taken prisoner ? A. I saw him. I saw the

a take him, and we wrote a letter down to the fort.
. h was ho taken ? A. He was taken up from the bill to Big Bear's camp.

ostq a ho is Mr. Maclean ? A. Officer in chargeof the Hudson Bay Company's
4 Port Pitt.

ko q. *Did you see who took him ? A. No, I did not see who took him. I did not
ze the Indiana from where I was.
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Q. It was some distancefrom where you were? A. Yes, I suppose it is a
250 yards.

Q. Did anything happen boyond that ? A. Yes, there were some scouts out
Q. Fi om what day ? A. Well, they were out for two days. I think it wat

15th, tho same day that Maclean was taken prisoner, that the scouts came ba
again, and the Indians fired on them and killed Cowan.

Q. Did you see that ? A. Yes.
Q. How far was it from the fort that ho was killed? A. About betwee

£nd 500 yards.
Q. How did you see him ? A. I had a telescope.
Q. You saw that he was fired upon by the indians ? A. Yes.
Q. And killed? A. Yes.
Q. Did you see him afterwards ? A. Yes. . tQ. You saw his body afterwards? A. No, I did not see his body. I Was

right up close te his body, but I.saw bis dead body lying there.
Q. That was on the 16th ? A. Yes.
Q. Before or after Maclean was taken prisoner? A. The same day, afterwar

Mr. Maclean was in the camp while the shooting was going on.
Q. You say he sent a letter into the fort? A. Yes, to Mrs. Maclean. fbe
Q. What happened after that? A. Then we went up to Big Bear's camp.

polioemen went away in scows, and we went up to the Indians.
Q. The police that were in the fort left tbe fort in a scow ? A. Yes.
Q. And you went up to the Indians? A. Yes.
Q. Did anything happen at the fort after you left? A. Well, the fort

-taken ; it was pillaged.
Q, By whom ? A. By the Indians that came down.
Q. Did you see the prisoner after you went ap? A. Yes, I met him on the

I saw him at the camp.
Q. After you went up to the camp with the others, you saw the prisoner

A. Yes.
Q. Who was ho with ? A. He was just walking about the camp.
Q. He was in the camp with the rest of the Indians ? A. Yes.
Q. You Lay the fort was pillaged, how do you know that? A. Because IO

the fort afterwards, and there were no goods in it, and I waa down there thetid
day and saw how things were ; there were no goods left in the fort, and everyth
was broken and destroyed. takee

Q. What was done with yon after you went up to the camp? A. I Ws
over to the Lone Man's tent. He was the man who took me prisoner.

Q. What others went out of the fort to the Indian camp with yon?
Maclean and bis family and Mr. Mann, the foreman instructor, and his fam2ily' the
the IRev. Mr. Whinney and his wife, and our interpreter was taken prisoner sat
same time with Mr. Maclean, and there were several half-breeds in the house
time. in the fort. r.

Q. Were the others taken prisoners? A. Yos, they were all taken prisOl'
Q. They were all taken prisoners at the same time? A. Yes. t O
Q. Tnen y ou were detained as a prisoner for how long ? A. A littO ove

monthe. bfor
Q. Then you were a Drisoner with the Indians at]the time you say that t s

had been pillaged? A. Yes, next day, the day after I was taken prisoner,
down to the fort, and I saw hrw things were there.

Q. Did you go alone? A. No, Mr. Halpin went down with me.
Q. Were the Indians with you? A. Yes, there were Indians.
Q. So you were a prisoner at that time as well ? A. Yes. lba#
Q. Where did they go to after leaving Fort Pitt? A. Went te Long Lake

their camp was, where they had left the women and children.
Q. They went back there ? A. Yes.
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Q. Did you see the risoner afterwards at any time, this prisoner there ? A.
saw him at Frog Lake, after he got back there.

ýe0ttQ- Alter leaving Frog Lake, where did you go? A. We came down towards
Pitt again.

ere . From the time you were taken prisoner, for several weeks afterwards, what
ethe Indians doing? A. They were feasting and killing cattle.

' Whose cattle? A. Well, they had some of the Hudson Bay Campany's
e there, and I can't say, I did not know those cattle.

What do you mean by feasting, what kind of feasting ? A. They were hav-

What kind of dances ? A. They have a tent erected.
What do you cali that dance? A. I think they call it the grass dance. I

ot sure about it.
0 What do they do ? A. They have music and grub. They generally kill a dog
and have something to eat.

q. Did you see the prisoner at any of these dances? A. No, I did not see him
t4 any of those dances. I saw him at the council.

Q. Where ? A. At Frog Lake.
b4 M Did you hear him saying anything in council ? A. I bave hoard him speak,

don't rerember just exactly what he said. These dances were at Frog Lake.
t *. But you did not hear him speak at any dances ? A. Yes, I heard him speak

hirst dance at Fronchman's Bu'tte, somewhere near Frenchman's Butte.
Q. Who was he speaking to? A. He was speakin to several of his Indians.

You mean the Indians of his band ? A. Weil, tere were some of his band
%t, and some of the Wood Crees besides.

j Q. What did you heur him say? A. He ut up a piece of tobacco, and he said
egeanted his men to cut the head of the white people off the same as he out this

4di f tobacco off. He wanted the head. I suppose it is the officer who was ccm-
o"g the police at that time.

a o you know what the literal translation of that is ? A. Yes, I think it is,
t]Who is over the soldiers.

By Mr. Robertson :
o o you understand Cree? A. I don't understand it clearly. I understand a

eal 'more than I can speak.
-By Mr. Scott:

Then you understand Cree? .A. I understand a good deal of it.
' Thon you heard him say this that you have been telling us? A. Yes.

q' A you understood it ? A. I anderstood it.
th0t h' What did he say about the master who was over the soldiers ? A. He said

. 'wanted them to cut off his head, after they were to capture him, out his head

n&id he also said he wanted to eut off the head of ail others ? A. Of white
ee that Were in the country that were on land that they had not paid him for,

r Ptincipally, the head of the officer in charge, but he did not say how they
t ill them. He did not say they were to eut off the heads of the white people,

Were to kill them.
q And he wanted the head of the master of the soldiers ? A. Yes.
S' 4i y'ou hear anything from any other members of the band as to their design

Q. Yes you mean as to what they -
%44tit hat did you hear as to their intentions? A. They intended to take the

'r the Americans, they said, who would pay them weli for having taken it.

, a id that ? A. The Indians in Big Bear's band.
e th You name any particular Indians ? A. The Lone Man is one, I could not

l Lone Man the one who took you prisoner ? A. Yes.
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Q. Who was he saying it to ? A. He told me himself.
Q. Did you soe a fight in the neighborhood ot Frenchman's Butte ? A. Ic

say that I saw it.
Q. Where were you ? Did you know of that fight going on ? A. Yes.
Q. How did you know ? A. I beard the guns and cannon, and I heard the vo

that were fired, and I came very nearly getting struck myself whon I was 0o
back to where Maclean and the rest of the prisoners were, with a shell.

Q. Did you sec this prisoner at the time of that fight ? A. Yes.
Q. Where was he? A. Well, I saw him following up. He was at the

when I got there, at the clump of pines.
Q. How far from where the fight was going on? A. About two miles or so-
Q. What time was this in the day ? A. Early in the day.
Q. When did the fight commence? A. Somewhere between six and sevoi"

the morning.
Q. And when what time was it over? A. I think they fought for three hour .
Q. You saw him in the camp about two and a half miles from where the fight'I%

was going on? A. Yes.
Q. You saw he came in there ? A. He came into camp. .
Q. Was it before or after the commencement of the fight that he came ?

It was after the commencement of the fight. They had been fighting for some0 A.Q. The fighting had been going on for some time when Big Bear came in
Yes. "re

Q. Did you seo him come in ? A. He was out somewhere--I don't knoW' ýier
ho had been. I saw him on horseback, I don't know where ho came fron, heo
in. i

Q. Did you hear him say anything that day ? A. Yes, I heard him say that
men nad already killed eighteen or twenty soldiers.

Q. What caused that remark ? A. Ie had a man with him who-told him,
seemed to come from the fight.

Q. There was a man came in from that direction? A. Yes. , *
Q. And told him something? A. Yes, ho told him I suppose. I don t

what ho told him.
Q. But you saw him speaking to Big Bear ? A. Yes. aosl
Q. And then Big Bear afterwards said-give it in his own words as near jeto

can or the interpretation of his words? A. He said, they have killed twentY 1oreadi!
already, my men-be did not say his men, but we have killed twenty soldiers a
and then ho made use of an expression which meant very good. (Mr. Rourie,
interpreter, says it means well done.) ap eri

Q. How long did the prisoner romain with the band while you were a prbt
A. I don't know exactly how long it was, but he said, until shortly alter the 0fg
Loon Lake. ore

Q. About when was that ? A. It was about a week or ton days or a littlel*
after the first one.

Q. Until after the fight at Frenchman's Butte? A. Yes.
Q. About ton days after ? A. Something like that, I could not be certain- çotø
Q. Then what became of him or you? How did ho become separate ,b et

where you wore ? A. The Wood Cros went in one direction, and ho wOnt i
other.

Q. Where did you go with him ? A. I went with the Wood Crees. Wood
Q. Did you know the object of the separation or the reason of it? A. T e 1

Crees had been talking about separating for some time, and I heard the Jndif it,
that they would only camp, only allow Big Bear to camp with them one more
and then that he must go.

Q. Only allow Big Bear- ? A. Well, himsolf and band.
Q. By whom were you taken prisoner? Lone Man took you prisover

he one of Big Bear's band ? A. Yes.
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9. How did yon happen to go with the Wood Crees when you wore taken pris-
by Big Bear's Band ? A. We were told that the Plain Crees would kill U8.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. You were free to go with whichever you liked ? A. No, they did not want
et mae go.

By Mr. Scott:
Q. Who did not? A. Lne Man.
Q. Why ? He wanted to take me across the lino with him.
Q. Then, how is it that you went withthe Wood Crees ? A. He wished to make

Work too much, and I wanted to get to the same place where Mr. Maclean was,
ran away from him.

Q. And got-? A. To Mr. Maclean's camp with the Wood Crees.
Q. How were you treated when you were a prisoner? A. I was not treated
Well.

What was your treatment ? A. Well, at first as fa: as provisions went, we
ots to eat. I was made to work, to cut roads and dig rifle pits, make breast-
8, and difforent work, any work they chose to put me to.
. Was that the way you were treated first ? A. Well, at first I was treated

t,1tty W.1. They gave me a horse to go on for the first day. I was told that the
9 Was to be mine ail ihrough, all the time that I was with them, and I toqk the

I thought it would not be very hard to stay with it, and ho promised to let
ia couple of weeks, and next morning when l came to get the horse-the

rkMan, it was his horse, told me there was no horse lor me, that I had to get to
and load his carts with bacon and flour.

M , After that you were a "hower of wood and drawer of water " ? A. A kind
ave.

ntt. Where did they dig the rifle pits ? A. At the first fight at Frenchman's
, near there.

Q. Did they put you to work at rifle pits there? A. Yes.
D o you know who the soldiers were that they wore opposing ? A. I know

t>bt I did not know just thon -the day after the fight, I knew who they were.
o- '.How did you kaow ? A. Some of the Indians found a memorandum book

ting to one of the soldiers, and I read it through.
.But did you hear auy of the Indians saying anything about the soldiers ? A.
eoid they were Indians commanding thom. They said there were only a few
s, and the rest were Indians.

e•Was anything said as to what soldiers ? A. They saw the red coats, and
0magined they were policemen.
e -LThon they thought they wore fighting against the police ? A. Yes, and then.

41 saw Others with other uniforms on, and they did not know whether they were
reeds or white mon.

By -Mr. Robertson
ýe You suffered a great deal during those two or three months ? A. I did not,

a, great deal.
te4 'o were not bally treated thon ? A. I had to work pretty hard, a good

tOre than I had been accustomed to.
Were you or were you not badly treated ? A. I think that I was badly

1%t Vory badly treated? A. At the last I was very badly treated; towards the
ore the Indians separated.
4nd it was Lone Man that had you as a prisoner ? A. Yes.
i t Was ho made you do the work? A. Yes; I had to work for several other

' Jisfterwards, but Lone Man it was who set me to work digging holes and feed-
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Q. It was Lone Man that treated you so badly? A. Yes.
Q. And you have been very ill in consequence of the treatment yon have

ceived ? A. Yes, I think that I would not have been ill unless I had had such tres
-ment.

Q. And you have felt your sufferings very keenly? A. I did while I was
~eertainly.

Q. Where were you when the fighting began at Frenchman's Butte? A.
Tight at the place where the Indians had made the holes. When the fightieg eth
xnen ced I was some distance from there. I took the wrong road and 1 went into
valley to get some clothes of mine. ".Q. What valley ? The same valley that the troops came up afterwards ? A. wd

Q. What time in the morning was that ? A. It was just when the wome»
children were starting off from the holes that they had dug, to go into bush.

Q. The women and children were running off when you started ? A. Yes..
Q. HEow early was this in the day ? A. I suppose it was early in the moral
Q. Six o'clock ? A. I guess it was about six o'clock, between five and si%.
Q. Was that before the fighting began there ? A. Yes. , 1
Q. Iow long did you remain dowD there ? A. I just went down there,b,

was called back again. There was a scout or something had been sent, so th
dians said, and they called me back.

Q. Almost immediately ? A. I had got very near down to the end of the ea
I got right down to the end of the camp. . at go

Q. How long did you remain in the valley ? Did you come back ? Did you j4Utod•
down and come right back, or spend any lime there ? A. 1 was down about 10 'Di'

Q. And you came back up the hill again ? A. I came up the hill.
Q. Where these Indians had dug their rifle pits ? A. Yes. tll.
Q. low long did you remain there ? A. I did not romain there any time e
Q. Ynu wert right back ? A. Yes. for
Q. Where did you go uxt ? A. I got on the wrong trail and followed it '

a long way, I suppose two or three miles, two and a half miles anyway,
caught up to som.e Indians, a.d was running, and I asked them if Maclean and U l .
were on this trail, and they said no, and I ran back again to where I found the foV

of the road. ro
Q. How far was that from the camp ? A. About two and a half miles

where I found Maclean after I got -- am?'Q. Bow far was this from the lindian camp ? A. 1 came right back to the c
Q. low far was ihis fork in theroad fromthelindian camp ? A. Just at thA. rfbe
Q. And how far was the camp back from where the rifle pits were? A-

rifle pits were on the edge of ihe hill-they were almost together. .à o0
Q. The camp was almost together with the rifle pits? A. The rifle pits J g

the brow of the bill, and the camp-the holes that they had dug for the wornel
children to hide in-were in the valley.

Q. low many hundred 3 ards were they apart ? A. Some of them were 300 or
400 yards apart, and others right close, a few yards from the boles. t 1t

Q. The tents ? A. No; the tents were in the valley. They had no
these bolos. 00

Q. Well, how far was the camp from the rifle pits? A. I suppose, about
yards; lbat is, the closest part of the camp. roedr

Q. Weil, you came back there, then, to the camp at the junction of theh idep
and then started off on the other road ? A. To make holes for women and e
in the camp. d the

Q. Is that the camp ? A. They deserted the tent, and they had comne i. 40
holes to sleep at night, and that is what I have been speaking of as the ca1flP eI of
then, when you mentioned the other camp, where the tents were-I have 5P0

.two camps.
Q. Where were the tents ? A. Down in the valley.
Q. Close by, also ? A. Yes; about 200 yards.
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Q. Then the junction of the road was just here where the tents were, was it?
nfst where the boles were.
Q. Farther up, then? A. Farther up.

. So that yon came back to the junction of the road quite close to the rifle piti?
yes, pretty close to them.
Q. And thon you went back on the othor road to follow up Mr. Maclean ? A. Yes.

. Iow far did you travel before you found Mr. Maclean ? A. Two or three7Je.
Q. Did you stop on your way there? A. Yes.
0 Where did yon stop ? A. I sat down on the road and took out some thorn&

lof my feet, my moccasins wore full of holes, and I sat there for a while and I
Ped up the holes. When I went down there, there wore some men-the prisoner's
Was there--and they wore cooking some meat, anid the fight was going on then.
9Q. Imosis was there ? A. Yes.
Q. HILow long did yon remain there then ? A. I suppose about a quarter of an

Q. What time in the morning was it then ? A. I could not say. I went up
se two miles or more and back again.
Q. Were you an hour in going into the valley, from the valley into which yon
ene to get your traps, in going back along the road until you overtook the

S and found your mistake and then came back to the pits ? A. I guess I was

Q. About an hour ? A. Yes, or an hour and a half.
Q. Thon you left the rifle pits and came up the other road? A. Yes.
Q. Which you say was only two and a-half miles? A. Yes, or three.

.Wasn't it four? A. I would not say.
Q. Wasn't it five ? A. I would not èay.
Q. You would not say it was not five? A. No.
Q. And when you got there-you said the prisoner was at the camp when you

thero? A. I saw him there at the camp. I don't say I saw him just as I got
Koe, but I saw him thore in the camp.

Q. You did say that ? Yo said the prisoner was at the camp when you got
eo? A. He was. I don't remember now what I said.
A And you won't say that that was not five miles back from the camp? A. I

saY how far it was; it took me some time to get there.
. Iow mucb time did it take you ? A. I could not say. I suppose, half an

or eo; it took me more than half an hour.
Q. Didn't it take you two hours ? A. No; I can go faster than that.
Qr . I don't ask you to measure it by the distance you have given us, but give us

Z. d.your recollection how long it took you to get there in order that we may judge
e distance ? A. I can't tell you how long.

Q. Will you swear it did not take you two hours to get there. A. No.
r. Robertson here asks witness as to bis knowledge of Cree.

t ivtnees.-I don't say I speak Cree thoroughly. I have been with the Indians
7oo or four years now. I can understand what they say, especially about killiig
etmQdt Iheard such a lot of it spoken while I was at Pitt that I would under-

-%. Where were you standing when you hoard this conversation ? A. As close

Q ho else was prosent? A. I can't say. There were other Indians with Big
Ibt 1 can't say there were any other people who hoard.

.They were standing close by ? A. Yes.
Ca n u tell us something else that any of them said ? A. I can't give

*Qt Yen can't remember anything else that was said at that time ? A. No, I
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Q. Was there something else said that you don't remember ? There was a g
deal of talk, was'nt there, going on ? A. They were just talking amongst theo'
selves.

Q. And there were several talking at the same time ? A. They were not ta'
ing at the same time that the prisoner was talking.

Q. Bat they were all talking amongst themselves at that time? A. Not 
ho was speaking-they were listening to him.

Q. But there were several speeches made, several things were said by the df'
forent Indians ? A. I can't say that ; I don't remember.

Q. You don't remtmber anything said by any of the other Indians that 'e
bloodthirsty ? A. Oh, yes.

Q. At that time? A. No, not at that time. reQ. Did you hear the prisoner at a council meeting, or at any other place wheethere were a number of Indians assembled, complain and say there was a time IR w
I was a big chief, and you used to do what I told you, but now I say one thing a
you do another? A. I have heard the chief say words to that effect.

Q. When was that ? A, 1 can't remember where it was; I have heard hiT E4

it so many times.
Q. You did hear him frequently make that complaint? A. Yes.
Q What was ho referring to ? A. I suppose to anything that ho told then0Y

do, but I could not say any particular thing that ho referred to. I have heardhl
say that he did not want the prisonors killed, and things of that sort.

Q. It was when the other Indians wanted to kill them ? A. Yes.
Q. That ho was saying that? A. Yes, I heard him make that remark 0

the other Indians wanted to kill us.
Q. He was trying to control them and prevent it ? A. Ie was trying to.

WILLIAM ToMPKINs, sworn:-

Examined by Mr. Scott :
Q. You are an interpreter in the Indian Department ? A. Yes.
Q. Stationed at Fort Carlton ? A. Yes.
Q. In March last? A. Yes.
Q. I understand you were taken prisoner on that day, the 18th March? A
Q. By a number of armed rebels, half-breeds and others ?.,_A. Yes.
Q. Under Louis Riel? A. Yes.
Q. They were in open rebellion ? A. Yes.
Q. How many were there ? A. I should judge there were about 400.
Q. Four hundred in open rebollion under that leader ? A. Yes.
Q. A fight took place at Duck Lake. ? A. Yes.
Q. Between the mounted police a d the-? A. Rebels.
Q. And you and others were taken prisoners, as I understand, on th l

March? A. Yes.
Q. And wore held till the 12th May by these rebels? A. Yes.
Q. What was the state of the country during the interval between the

March and the 12th May, in that neighborhood ? A. It was ail in insurrection.
Q. They were in a state of general insurrection up there ? A. Yes.
Q. And you were held as a prisoner up till the 12th May? A. Yeq-4.
Q. They met the Govern ment troops, I understand, on several occasions?
Q. And mon were killed on both sides ? A. Yes.
Q. And houses and stores were plundered and burnt ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Robertson:

Q. This was in the neighborhood of Batoche that you speak of? A. Y09'
Q. That is a long way from Frog Lake? A. Yes.
Q. And from Fort Pitt ? A. Yes.
Q. How far? A. I don't know the number of miles.
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q Ilow many days' jurney ? A. I should say about six days.
Q. About six days' journey from Frog Lake or Fort Pitt? A. Yes.

TANL EY SImP3orN , recalled:-

By Mr. Robertson:
. JUst tell us in Cree what it was that Big Bear said on that occasion in the
at the battle of Frenchman's Butte? A. I can't say it.

Q. You can't say ? Can you say any part of it in Cree ? A. Yes, I can say a
t here and there through it, but I can't make any sense of it. I can't pronou nce

rds properly.
Q. And that was about al you could hear, all you could make out of the sen--
? A. I can understand a good deal more than what I can say.
. But you cannot understand perfectly ? A. No; I said so.

0. And after all it was to some extent a guess of yours, that that was the mean-
Of what he said ? A. No; I could understand that he said this.
9. You are prepared to stick to that, althoug-h you cannot tell us, you cannot
at even the sense of it in Cree ? A. No, I can't repeat it in Cree.

kitMr. Scott.-I would ask my learned friend, in order to test the kno wledgo ot the
t in the Cree language, to put a question to him in Cree; give it to Mr. lourio

him in Cree, and see if he can answer it. That is all he says he knows a bout it.
t Witness.-You don't want to put a very hard queition to me, or perhaps I wdl

O able to answer it. Big Bear spoke very slowly; he always does. (A question
tbgere a8ked by Mr. Hourie.) I am asked by Mr. Hourie if ho had given me some

on h or something of that sort-I cannot understand it, I don't undorstand.

By Mr. Scott:
D. Doyou know the Cree for " killing " ? A. Yes.
What is it ? A. If I said I killed him, I would say " Nip-a-how."
• Hourie.-That is right, just the word "kil."

By Mr. Scott :

-.16ya What is it for cutting a man's head off ? A. I can say " man's head" all right
1<> and he had his knife, and he out the tobacco off, and he says, the sam,) as I

th ny knife.
M. Robertson.-Give us the words.

Ry the Court:
Q They use a great many signs as words ? A. I would not be here and say 1
estood it, if I didn't.

By Mr Scott :
' IlOw long have you been in the trading ? A. Very nearly four years.
' ith Cree Indians ? A. Yes.

Q. Entirely ? A. With a few of the Stoneys, while I was at Battleford.
. What do they speak ? A. A sort of dialect of the Sioux.
.a Thon the business was almost entirely carried on with the Cree ? A. Yes.

ade with a Cree Indian all right enough. I understand the traling p.i L of
e tell all the names of everything we have in the store for sale, and trade
tea all r>ght enough, furs or anything of that sort in Indian.

Io ta You carry on conversation with them in what language ? A. Well, 1 try
9to thema in Cree.
• An1dwhat is the result ? A. Generally arrive at a satisfactory-

Utlndcrstanding ? A. Yes.
tl oertson.- can talk to an Indian to a certain extent without any words

he Words that were read to the witness were: "If tLhe captain of the
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soldiers does not give us tobacco, we will cut the tops off the trees," and all you goe
hold of was " captain " and " tobacco."

Witness.-I did not mention the word " captain," I said the " master " of th
soldiers. The verb is what I did not understand.

Mr. Robertson.-I wish to submit that the evidence of that conversation hbo
be struck out. The proper evidence of such a conversation would be a proof Of di
words used by the prisoner, and thon an expert properly qualified to translate the
That is the legal evidence of a conversation of that kind.

Court.-I may have something to say to the jury about that.

BAPTISTE FONTAINE, sworn.-
Examined by Mr. Scott:

Q. Where were you in May last ? A. Poundmaker's camp.
Q. Where was that ? A. Cut Knife Hill.
Q. low did you get into his camp ? A. (Got captured by the half-breeds.

Iialf-breed caught me.
Q. Some half.breeds captured you ? A. Yes.
Q. What were you doing at the time you were captured ? A. Scouting.
Q. For what ? A. For the Government.
Q. Where were your headquarters at the time ? A. Battleford. er
Q. You were scouting trom Battleford for the Government at the time yOU

captured by the half-breeds ? A. Yes.
Q. What did they do with you ? A. They came over to the camp.
g. What camp ? Poundmaker's camp ? A. Yes.
Q. low long were you kept there ? A. Twenty-two days, I think.
Q. What did you find when you got to the camp ? What were the Id

doing ? A. Nothing.
Q. When did you say you were takcn there, what day ? A. 7th May, I tD os
Q. Do you know anythirg about a flght that occurred in that neighborhod Eu0

Foundmaker's camp, at Cut Knife-

By the Court :
Q. Was there a fight ? A. 1 think so.

By Mr. Scott :
Q. You don't know ? Well, were these men that captured you, arned ?

Eome of them.
Q. What were you doing when they captured you ? A. I jumped off MY hors
Q. Had they been chasing you ? A. Yes. • hoo
Q Did they do anything when they were chasing you ? A. They were

ing st us.
Q. And these men took you to Poundmaker's camp ? A. Yes.
Q. 'Was Poundmaker a prisoner of theirs? A. I don't know.
Q. Bad they taken him priFoner ? A. I don't know.
Q. D;d you see Poundmaker thore ? A. No, I never saw him before.
Q. But you saw him when you went to camp ? A. No.
Q. Didn't you see him during the time you were in camp? A. No, beCa"

did not know him. I might have seen him.
Q. When did you first see him to know him ? A. The first time I see

was in here. the
Q. Do you know whose camp you were taken to ? Did he tell you wbereca,

*were takig you to ? A. They told me they were taking me over to the
Poundmaker's camp.

Q. Did you see any others armed there besides, at the time they had takea y
prisoner ? A. I saw Indians armed.

Case for the Crown here closed.
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Mr. Robertson.-Does your Ilonor think there is a case ?
Court.-I cannot stop a case, Mr. Robertson.
Mr. Robertson.-Your Ronor has the power of a judge at nisi prius.
Court.-I can only tell the jury what I think of it.
Mr. Robertso.- Cinless the constitution of the court is a little different frorx

Court of Assize.
Court.-That is strictly the power of a Court of Assize.
Mr. Robertson.-Then I will call.

Mrs. CAÂa.RINE SIMPSON, swOrn.-
Examined by Mr. Robertson:

Peter Hourie, interpreter, also sworn.
Q. Do you know Big Bear, the prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. Did you see him on the 2nd April last? A. Yes.
Q. Where did you see him ? A. In my house.
Q. At Frog Lake? A. Yes.
Q. Was your husband, Mr. James K. Simpson, there at the time ? A. No.

. le was away at Fort Pitt was ho ? A. Yes.
Q. What time in the morning was it that you saw Big Bear? A. I could not tell
tly the lime, but I think it must have been pretty nearly the middle of the day.
Q. Wbat was Big Bear doing there ?
Mr. Scott objects to what the prisoner said.
Mr. Robertson asks that it be allowed.
Court .- What did he do there-the question should be what did ho do there ?
Q. Well, wbat did he do there ? A. He did nothing there only what ho told me.

By Mr. Robertson :
r. Robertson.-It is really part of his conduct in connection with what waa

rrin]g there; it is something that ho came and said to her.
Court -But that would not be evidence.
]tr. Robertson.-I think it would be in that view. For instance, let me,
e hypothesis Supposing ho came to her and warned her ho was afraid his
'0 nen wer going to n.ake trouble, and that be wanted to make herself safe,would be conduct.

all1 Court.- Would'nt that be almost paralleI lo toh boise case, where it is not
st Jed to bhow ihat the pritoner told the biother of the owner's that he would not

the horse and afterwards ho is charged with the theft ?
. Robertson.-B1e comes and actually warns her she will be protected.
Tell me what ho did; what did ho do then ? A. He said pack up your-

I think there is going to be trouble.
For what purpose did be tell her that ?

s Mr. Sott. -There must be a stop to this somewhere; I don't want to letgo too far.

-By Mr. Robertson:

QP Was ho friendly or not to you; did ho appear friendly to you or not; did ho
etO wish you weil or fnot ? A. He appeared to be friendly.

4di • Robertson.-I propose to ask if ho said anything about the young men, the
, when giving her this warning.

Ir. Sott -That is not only objectionable because it is not evidence, but because
eading question.
urt--It would not be evidence al any rate.
• Obertson.-I submit it would be just in that way.
Ur't.-I will take a note of it.

t rbertson.-He went there to give her a warning, and what ho said in that
part of his conduct at the time, and that is the ground upon which I ask
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Court.-I feel that I give you, Mr. Robertson, every reasonable latitude, but
there are places where the lines must be drawn. What is it you want to ask her?

Mr. Robertson. - I want to ask lier if, at the time that he was giving her t
warning, he said anything about the young mon or his band.

Mr. Scott. -I object to anything further than the warning being given.

By Mr. Robertson:

Q. Well, what did he do after that, or what did you do ? What took place af
he gave you that warning ? A. Ie said gather up your things, I can't be ev
where to look over my young men. I think that there is going to be trouble.

Q. low long did ho remain there ? A. Not long.
Q. How long, half an hour ? A. I don't think it could-lhave been over an he
Q. What was he doing while he was there? A. He had something to eat.
Q. Did you give it to him ? A. Yes.
Q. While Big Bear was there, having something to eat, did anything hapPOO

outside ? A. Yes.
Q, What happened ? A. They were massacring outside, killing.
Q. What was the first you heard of that? A. A person came and told me.
Q. Did you hear anything before a person came and told you? No.Q. Who was it came and told you ? A. Ka-wich-i-taw-ma-we, a Cree In

who was killed at the fight after wards.
Q. What did ho tell you ? A. This man came and told me not to be afraid, th

is something that is going to happen that is very bad. So don't you be afra
Although t am counted as little or nothing, whatever I say-

Q. But what did ho tell you about the murdering ? A. He did not tell IUe
thing else only what I am saying just now. c

Q How did you first know that anything had been done outside ? Did hjî
hear shots and that, and what took place then ? Before the Indian came, or
Big Bear was there ? A. While Big Bear was eating, I was packing up mY a0
things. I hoard a shot outside, and I ran out to the door and I saw the manfl
then I went into my bouse again.

Q. And what did Big Bear do? A. Big Bear got up and went out, and I
him say, don't do so, stopping it. th

Q. Big Bear jumped up and ran ont and cried out, stopping ? A. Stopping the
from what they were doing. the

Q. Can you tell me what it was he said in stopping them ? A. Don't do so,
is, leave it alone.

Q. You heard him crying that out? A. Yes.
By Mr. Scott :

Did you know of any trouble before Big Bear came into the bouse that çor'
ing ? A. No, I was sleeping. I was taken by surprise. . øre

Q. Do you remember about what time in the morning Big Bear came in,
yon out of bed when he came? A. I was out of bed. oi

Q. Iad you gone to sleep again ? A. I had just got out of bed when ho ca10
I slept long that morning, and I had just got out of bed when he came in.

Q. When you ran out of the bouse when you beard the shot, did B ig 3 esr
out at the same time? A. Yes,

Q. You suppose he heard the shot as well? A. He heard it. ?
Q. Where were the other people of the settlement when you got out ther r 0

They were standing outside, close to their bouse; close by their bouse, t
house, close by Simpson's bouse.

Q. Did you see Pritchard thore? A. Yes.
Q. Whore was he standing? A. At my bouse. ritchw4
Q. And how far was that from Quinn's bouse or Delaney's or where Preo

said he was staying? A. I think the distance would be about as far as fro te
the new house of Mr. Reed out bore (about 100 yards from court bouse) or a
'irther.
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Q. What distance? A. My house from Quinn's house.
Q. Do you remember Pritchard coming to your house to see Big Bear. A. Yes.
Q. What did Pritchard say when ho got in? What he came for? A. Pritchard

er OUI Quinn came into my bouse, our bouse, and spoke to Big Bear, and said come
ee wait to speak to you, so Big Bear just sat down about a yard from me, from
ere I was sitting.
Q. And what did John Pritchard say ? A. Pritchard did not say anything, but
Quinn said this: Big Bear, could I romain at my own bouse, and Pritchard the

e, and this woman also ? Oh, I suppose you could, Big Bear said.
Q. Was that all ? A. When they went out, I just quickly got hold of my things

4 e Wanted to go after them. They were already a piece from me, and when they
qe getting on to their bouse, I hoard a shot and saw the man drop; this was Tom
We M.-I was going to follow tbem to go to Quinn's house, but Quinn and Pritchard
the quite a bit ahead of me alroady, and I beard the shot, and when I looked I saw

rah n drop Tom Quinn.
Q. Did Big Bear tell you what you were to do yourslf, to be in safety ? A. Yes,

8'g Bear told me, don't be afraid.
hQ . What was ho going to do with you or what did ho want you to do? A. Yes,

told me to go to the camp, so I went to the camp.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. When did ho tell you that? Was it after or before Quinn was shot ? A. It
before Quinn was shot that ho told me this.
Q. Did ho give you any reason or why ? - -
Mr. Scott -What did ho say ? -if it is evidence.
eMr. Robertson.-Well, I will leave that in your fionor's hands. I think myTharned friend might very well exorcise his discretion and let the question be asked.
"Witness is very nervous, and it is very hard to get evidence from her.
Witness (to Mr. Hourie) that is all, what I have said.

. MAoLEAN sworn :-
Examined by Mr. Robertson;

Q. Mr. Maclean, you were Hudson Bay factor in charge of Fort Pitt in the
g of this year? A. Yes.

-Do you know the prisoner, Big Bear ? A, Yes, I know him.
Q- How long have you known the prisoner? A. Since the 29th of last October.
Save you known him by reputation ? A. Yes.

- ow long before that time ? A. Probably seven or eight years before.
Q. What has his character been ? A. Gonerally good.

R. Have you ever known anything against him? A. No.
Q. Was he a good indian or a bad Indian ? A. Weli, some say that the dead

are the good ones, but in his life I considered him a good Indian.
Q. This is a live Indian and you consider him a good one ? A. Yes.
9. Are yo- of that opinion to-day ? A. Yes.

. You are still ? A. Yes; I am still.
You were taken prisoner at Fort Pitt by the Indians? A. By the Indians.

leio]. The band to which Big Bear belongs ? A. The band to which Big Bear

Q.ouere there a prisoner for how long? A. Sixty-two days.
d u ring all that time you saw Big Bear's conduct? A. Yes, I may say almost

q. not daily.
the . And after that, you still remain of the opinion that Big Bear is a good Indian,

gh a live one ? A. Yes, I do as far as the Hudson Bay Company-.
ortq Can you tell me whether Big Bear took any part himself in the pillaging ofPitt? A. None to my knowledge or that I could seo.

.a eforethe pillaging, you were taken prisoner, it has been shown ? A. Yes&
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Q. And you were there in the Indian camp when the pillaging was going on ?
A. Yes.

Q. Did you see Big Bear on that day, the day of the pillaging ? A. Yes.
Q. How often ? A. Once or twice 1 am sure of.
Q. What was ho doing ? A. Nothing.
Q. Where was ho? A. I saw him at the fort, and I saw him in the camp.
Q. But he was taking no part in the pillaging? A. No.
Q. Did ho have any of the goods that were taken from the fort ? A. Yes.

bolieve he had -not taken by hi mself, however. I think he had some tea. I a
sure that he had some tea given him.

Q. Do you know where he got it ? A. Given him by Little Poplar.
Q. That is the extent of it? A. That is the extent of it.
Q. Who were the leading spirits and the people who controlled that band dariin

the time you wore with them ? A. Well, I think it was Wandering Spirit, 08
assuredly, with the prisoner's eldest son, Imesis, and Little Poplar, and Liolo
Mongrain-he was a strong leading man.

Q. He was a leading man? A. Yes.
Q. Was Big Bear a leading man? A. No, I don't think he was.
Q. How did these others, particularly his son, Imesis, treat Big Bear durin8

that time ? A. With utter contempt.
Q. Do you recollect a letter coming to Johnny Pritchard from Norbert Dolorø®'eo

who was then in Poundmaker's camp ? A. Yes.
Q. Where was that? Where were you when that letter arrived? A. I woo

then at Frog Lake in the Indian camp with the Indians.
Q. And you were sont for to read the letter, I believe? A. Yes.
Q. Did you do anything in consequence of having read that letter ? A. i djd

good deal.
Q. What did you do ? A. In my own estimation I think I did a good deas.

tiied to prevent the Indians from not being influenced by the contents of that letter'
and prevent them from uniting themselves with Poundmaker at alli

Q. Did Big Bear, in that attempt, side with you or against you? A. H1le Ode
with me always. and-Q. In everything that you did in trying to reep the Indians from joining
maker? A. Yes, ho never went against me.

Q. But sided with you ? A. Sided with me.
Q. Wore you present at Frenchman's Butte when the fight occurred? A.
Q. Where were you? A. I was probably about, to the best of my recollect ioP,

three or four miles to the north of it.
Q. Can you tell me whore Big Bear was at the time of the fighting ? A. ic

tell you where ho was for every hour during the fight, but I can tell you that IX'
of the time he was in the camp with ns.

Q. You are certain of that ? A. I am certain of that.
Q. But there may have been part of the time when you did not see, of coarsop

you could not say ? A. I could not say.
Q. You say you were three or four miles away? A. I think it must be a

between three and four miles back from where the fighting was. I know it 'çio
good long walk before sunrise. d.

Q. While the fighting was going on, you saw him several times there. A. arg
Q. Now, do you believe, from what you saw of him there, that ho took aly P

in that fight ? A. I don't think he did take any part in the fight.
Q. As matter of fact, was he running away?
Mr. Scott.-That is leading.
A. I think he was pretty well frightened. Ie appeared to be.
Q. Did you see Mr. Stanley Simpson when ho came in ? A. Yes, I did. i

I may have seen him almost immediately.
Q. Where was Big Bear when he came in, do you know ? A. I think ho <

the camp.
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Q. When Stanley Simpson came in ? A. Yes.
Q. That is in the camp with you? A. Yes.
Q. Doee Stanley Simpson understand Cree at all well? A. Well, ho does not

ý1derstand a great deal, I think. To my knowledge he does understand a littie.
Q. Is it anything more than that ho understands a few words ? A. Well, 1 don't

pose he could understand any conversation being carried on. He could under-
short sentences.

Sy the Court:

he Q. Would ho understand such a sentence as you heard here ? A. I don't think
Would,
i.Q. I mean such as ho described himself, not the one that was put to him in

nftitg, but the one that ho said was put ? A. It is very possible ho might haveerstood

By Mr. Bobertson:
• Do you recollect all that ho said ho heard Big Bear say at that time ? A.

,1don't.

tQe Q. What ho said was that ho heard Big Bear say that ho wanted them to cut offbead of the commander of the police, as ho cut a pioce of the tobacco, and ho
ntd them to scalp au the whites and everyone that had taken their land'? A. I

reailly in a position to speak whether ho could, or whether ho could not.
By Mr. Scott :

Q. Ie was in the habit of trading with Indians and atten ding store generally,
¶t arrying on general business with them ? A. Yes, dealing with Indians is hie

ofOccupation during the time, and ho was at office work.
ti1a Q. And you would not allow him to transact with Indians unless ho knew some-

Of Cree? A. No, there was no necessity for his doing so for ho could have an
1ýretor.

t* ennderstood you to say you looked upon him as a good Indian as far as the
a[d>r4 Bay Oompany was concerned ? A. Yes, because we were dealing with

. He was friendly with the Hudson Bay ? A. Yes, with all around, I under.

Wasn't ho the cause of a little trouble with the Indian Department occasion-
A. I don't know, I am sure.

Q Wana't ho in the habit of grumbling about the way ho was treated by the
eerlment ? A. Nothing more than anybody else.

Ry the Court:
ia gQ Was ho or was ho not, to your knowledge ? A. A characteristic of Indians

he c* Was ho not in the habit of giving trouble to the Indian Department? Was
Plaining about the way ho Was treated by the Indian Department, by the Gov-

Q lit ? A. Yes, ho did.
id he like the way ho was treated? A. I did hear him, on one occasion,

IIQ. Then, although ho was on good terms with the Hudson Bay people, who live
o1 t ighborhood, ho was not on good terms wit b the Indian Departmont? A.

a4o4W that he was.
By Mr. Robertson:

Q O you know that ho was not ? A. No, I don't know that ho was not.
By Mfr. Scott :

n04 •You say that the band took you prisoner at Fort Pitt, you were taken pria-
Y the band ? A. By, I may say, two men.
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Q Where were you taken prisoner? A. Well, some 300 or 400 yards north O
the fort or west of the fort.

Q. How did you happen to be out there ? A. I went out there to hold a pa
with the Indians.

Q. With whom? A. With the whole of them, probably between 300 and
Indians.

Q. Were you sent for? A. Yes.
Y. By whom ? A. I was told-
Mr. Robrtson.-I submit the witness should not state what he was told or 0

sent for him, even on cross-examination.
By the Court:

Q. What was the message you received? A. I was told that the chiefs want
to see me at a certain hour on the following day, evening, 14th April. They sentr
this message, or they told it to me verbatim, face to face, that the chiefs, to.mOr
morning, would like to seo me, that they had something to tell me.

Q. The chiefs? A. Yes. bieQ. Did they mention any names? A. They did not. There was no One c
to my knowleuge recognized there.

Q. Yon weut out the following day ? A. I went out the following day.
Q. And had a parley with the chiefs ? A. Yes.
Q. What chiefs ? A. The prisoner in the dock, that one was listening, althonb

I did not speak to him nor did ho speak to me, and the Long Lake chief wa s t
and the Frog Lake chief was there, and this chief.

Q. What do you call this chief ? A. Big Bear.
Q. He was not a chief ? A. He was a sort of chief, I believe. gg
Q. 1 understood this man was the Frog Lake chief ? A. No, ho had no r

Q. What was that ho was grnmbling about ? A. I don't know exactly. '.I th
it was the reverse of that. I think the Government was grumbling that ho did O'
go on his reserve.

Q. What occurred when yon went out? A. I had a talk with the Indian
some considerable time, with a view of being successful in getting them to desist
whatevei intentions they might have when they came there, and go back a
on their reserves. I was prepared to give them some very liberal presents if I
only succeed in doing so, and I had been very successful with the Indians duri 0 dy
twenty-three years' experience amongst them. However, I failed. These t'w? o f
ing spirits I mentioned, Wandering Spirit and Louison Mongrain, jumped in frob
me, and Wandering Spirit caught me. Now, ho says, you have spoken enough 0
don't want to hear any more, we are in a hurry, you must remain with us here
don't want to hurt you, nor do we want to hurt your family. That is what he Il
Wandering Spirit. If we wanted to hurt you we might have done so before. . dgey

Q. Thon what did they want, did they tell you ? A. So far as I could J1 to
they wanted the police to leave the fort, and they told me if I wished them to
tell them to go, and get them to go. Ote

Q. Did Big Bear say anything to this, this time ? A. No, ho was perfectly 0'
as well as the other chiefs. wot

Q. Tbey were leaning to the side of morcy at that time ? What did the7Y ge
the police to leave the fort for? A. I can't tell you, unless we may draw the
ence that they wanted to get possession of what was in the fort. les

Q Had you any conversation with Big Bear at any time about the police
the fort? A. Never.

Y. The police, as matter of fact, did leave the fort? A. They left the fort.
Q. How was that arrangement concluded ? Was it by reason of an arrange

between the Indians and the police ? A. Well, I suppose it was. I thinOk it
The prisoner in the dock advised them strongly to leave.

. Advised them ? A. Yes.
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Q. How ? A. That they had botter go.
Q. How did he advise them, he was not near them? A. By letters.
Q. Who wrote those letters, he did not write thom hinself I suppose? A. To
est of my knowledge Mr. Halpin did. '
. But how do you know ho was advising them in those letters ? A. I can't

it Was at his dictation.
9. Well, did you know as matter of fact that those letters wore written by Mr.

Pin? A. Ye.
Did you see them written ? A. No.
8 ow do you know ? A. Well, I am a pretty good critic as to handwriting

0 allY. I can identify handwriting very well.
Q . Do you know what became of those letters ? A Yes, I think I do. Some
emOIf I don't know what became of them, but some of them I know that wore into

a inmy pocket.
Q .Which particular letters were destroyed ? A. I can't tell you, they were all

>fOtty -uch to the same -
Q What letters came into your possession ? A. Two or three little notes.
Q. Written by Halpin? k. Yes.
9. Were you there at the time they were dictated by Big Bear ? A. No, it was
eP sible for me to be 500 or 600 yards away from the fort and in the fort at the

time, the letters were written in the Indian camp, and I was in the fort.
*. It was before you went out that these letters were all written ? A. Yes.

Qh9. QThe message that was brought to you, that caused you to go to parle with
of «4 ians, was that letter ? A. No, it was not, it was an interview I had wit some
to 'e headmen on the evening of the 14th. 1 spoke to them and they wanted me
o t them the following morning, indicating when the sun would be at a certain
*et In the sky, which I might say was about 10 or 11 o'clock, and at that hour I

Q. On the 15th ? A. On the 15th.
And never came back to the fort ? A. On the 16th I saw the fort in the

q. You were in it? A. 1 was inside of it, what remained of it.
ýy1I understood you wore taken prisoner on the 15th and were a prisoner 62

? A I was, and I was a prisoner even thon whon I saw the fort.
Were you in the fort ? A. I was.
On the 16th ? A. I was inside the fort on the 16th. I walked 500 or 600to get into the fort.

di Who went with you? A. Various Indians, a great number, many of them
Ut know by name. I would know their faces probably.
•Inlto the fort? A. Into the fort.
.Th whole of them went in there ? A.. In and out as they folt inclined.
atWhere were the police at this time ? A. I couldn't say, but I believ.e they
'lave been down some considerable distance down the river.

bo 1b• 1 Understood the fort was taken, and they left on the 17th ? A. I understood
ow Ybeelf frorm some of the witnesses that spoke in the box where I am myself just

j tho seÉ however, is not the case, the fort was taken and vacated on the even.

*et tow, when were these letters written by Halpin for Big Bear ? Before you
18 camp ? A. Before I went to his camp.

%t wer0 nd they were received at the fort before you left on the 15th ? A. Yes,
ere recoived on the 14th.

ttn and received on the 14th ? You saw those letters in the fort ? A.

S mn letters altogether ? A. Four or five.
SWho did they purport to be from ? A. They purported to be from Big Bear.

% heW ho were they addressed to ? A. To myself, I arm not sure, there might
a oe addressed to Inspector Dickzii who was commanding the North-West
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Mounted Police thon, and I am certain there was one addressed to one SergeO t

Martin who was a friend of the prisoner in the dock, and ho expressed his wishOs t
befriend him in that letter, Big Bear did.

Q. By asking him to leave ? A. Yes; no doubt considering it was the 0011
rmethod of safety.

Q. How many letters did you receive ? A. Probably three or four; I could 'Io
tell you.

Q. How many did you keep when you went into Big Bear's camp? A. I vOry
likely kept them; ail that were addressed to myself, but they were of very litt',
importance to me at the time after I was in the camp.

Q What did ho say to you in those letters ? What letters did you carry aw*y
with you ? A. It is possible I may have had others, but they were never returnid
to me. The impression is that I carried away ail addressed to me.

Q. I now propose asking what those letters stated? A. If I did not hand theo'
to anybody else-it is perfectly impossible-if you or any other gentleman weroe '
the same position I was in thon, you could not have remembered what these no
contained ; you might have remembered the purport. It was just to this effect: t'e
ing me to keep my wife and, children together and,to tell the police to leaVe
fort, to try and get away, which was a very great trial indeod.

Q. Did ho say in any of those letters what you were to do with your wifa
children ? A. No, ho did not; ho told me ho did not want to hurt us-the lotter
-at least. whether it was in words or not, I know it was so said in the letter
they did not wish to hurt me provided they could get hold of me alive.

Q. You say you saw some of the Hudson Bay stuif in his possession afterwa '
some tea ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see anything else ? A. Not to my knowledge. I might have 000
some Hudson Bay go,>ds with him, but they wore not taken by himself.

Q. How do you know ? A. Because I gave one or two blankets myself. ,
Q. But of the goods that you supposed were pillaged? A. That enables ra0o

know ho did not take them when I gave them.
Q. As to the pillaged goods-did you see any there ? A. No. I am perfect

sure he had none, because I was very frequently lu his camp-lu the Indian c&rP
There was no one in the Indian camp so wretchedly poor looking as his.

Q. You read that letter from Norbert Delorme about joining Poundmaker?
Yes, I did.

Q. And you endeavored to dissuade the band from joining Poundmaker ? A.d
Q. What wa your object in doing it ? A. My object was that in the event

his joining Poundmaker it would add very materially to the strength of POt fa
maker's camp, and in the event of being attacked by the troops which I was
of being done every day, it would certainly have enabled Poundmaker to
resisted a much gieater force with the additional forces of Big Bear than he co
have done with his own.

Q. Now what meaus did you take to endeavor to prevent them from joi19
Poundmaker ? A. Well, one must use a good deal of stratagem with the Indians, Y
it would not do to tell the Indians what my own object was. I had to use argU 0
with them which i could carry home to them and show reason and endeavor to'b3

them believe I was talking more especially for their good than for any other o
of my own, because any other way they would not listen to me.

Q. As matter of fact you had considerable influence with the Indians there
I had influence with them. pre

Q. What stratagem did you use? In substance, the argument you used too
vent, then the line you took ? A, I told thom that although the letter was writ
by Norbert Delorme, although the letters represented a great deal of provision$
the camp, se many head of cattle, if they moved ho would send them seventYf O 0tto
meet thom at the Saskatchewan River, and ho had set aside some eighty head of ell
to give them a good ieception when they got down there. I said that i alil very
on paper, but we don't know about the truth of it, you have lots of provision here
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,YOu had botter take care of them, the horses are poor, you cannot carry provisions,
You have notsufficient transport for yoarselves and womea and children, you muast
either leave the women and children and take the provisions or leave the provisions
and take the women and children. Now you are safe here for the presont, you had
better romain, meantime with a view that perhaps armed force may come and release
s, meantime the grass will be growing and your horses will be getting fatter, and

by-aind-bye they will be stronger and yon wilt know more what is gorng on, and the
Ist thing to do is to send over and lot thom remain down there until after you have

)4kown news from Duck Lake, and certainly at that time there might have been soine-
thing at Duck Lake, but very little else than Duck Lake.

Q. Wore there other arguments used? A. No, I could not say, I could not toach
4Pon anything whatsoever from which the Indians would infer that I was averse to
4Y of their movements.

Q. Then you were advocating a policy of delay ? A. Exactly.

t Q. Was that argument usod to Big Bear ? A. Yes, I told him that I was uOfng
hat argument with the mon that we considered influentiat mon in this carflp, for him-

soif he had no influence at that time. IL had arrived at that conclusion conclusively
«tlat he had norie, at the same time the Indians, leading spirits in the catap, appeagted
tO be willing and ready to bring everything home to bear upon Big Blear.

d Q. I understood you to say that ho had assisted you? A. I don't know that ho
id, and I don't know that ho did not.

Q. Assisted you in that argument that you were using? A. Ie Wuy.
Q. I understood yôu to say so distinctly ? A. I think ho did, in this mueh per-

hPs, that ho did not object to it.
Q. Was there any attempt or any threats made ? Did you consider at any time

tat the lives of the prisoners were in danger? A. I did.
th • Q. To whom do you owe the fact, do you think, that the prisoners escaped with

tir lives? A. I don't think I can attribute our escape to any individual there.I11ere were a few I think who were very anxious to see us released and get away safe;
ey were Wood Crees.

Q. They were anxious to see you get away ? A. Yes, latterly, although I don't
14 Ow originally beyond the very first few days I was with them. I thought at that

ae they would have released me and allowed me to go down Beaver River; however,
ey Subsequently changed their minds.

ti Q. There was a separation between the Wood Crees and Big Bear's band after a
? A. There was.
Q. What caused the separation ? A. Probably, I might have been the chief insti-

in the matter myself. I wished to make a spLit in the camp, so thatthey would
0s unanimously-in any of their schemes, and I worked very successfully.

id tQ Now what was the intention of the Wood Crees whon they separated ? What
a thOy intend to do ? A. When the Plain Indians left us, the intention was to fie.

r as we could do, and they also.
-. What were they to do ? A. They were going north into an impenetrable

btry, a country probably that had never been trodden by the foot of white man

They wore trying to get away ? A. Yes.

And wanted not to fight any more? A. They did not wish to fight any

the . And what did the Crees intend to do when they left? A. I could not say if
prisoner in the dock was candid enough to tell me his object.
Q. What did ho say his object was ? A. Tho first objective point was Turtle
I e thon south to the South Saskatchewan, and, after crossing fifteen or twenty

do UP above Carlton, endeavor to see if there was still anybody at Duck Lake. I
4Wo what his intentions were after.

4 .Q You think that Big Bear was frightened at the battle of Frenchman's Batte?
ell,Idon't know that ho was frightened.
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Q. Well, weren't ail the Indians pretty badly frightened? A. They did not
appear to be so much frightened the day of that Frenchman's Butte fight, until the
following day; then they did seem really frightened, but not very much-not soe
nuch as afterwards. I think that grew upon them as the time advanced. ,Ther-

wore gradually daily getting frightened.

Examined by Mr. Robertson:
Q. Is it an easy thing to do business in trading with Indians without understand-

ing very much of their language ? A. Yes.
Q. A few words is quite sufficient ? A. I know that by my own experience. I

inight do a little trading with the Indians, but not carry on a conversation.

HZNRY R. HALPIN, sworn .-

Ry Air. Robertson:
Q. What was your occupation in the early part of this year ? A. Clerk in ther

fudson Bay Company's service at Coal Lake.
Q. Under whose orders were you ? A. Mr. Maclean's, of Fort Pitt.
Q. That was a branch of Fort Pitt? A. Yes.
Q. iow far fropi Frog Lake? A. Between thirty-five and forty miles.
Q. How long have you known the prisoner, Big Bear ? A. From some timn

lst November, I think.
Q. The prisoner personally ? A. Yes.
Q. Have you known him by reputation before that ? A. Yes, since I have becen

in this country-the last six or seven years.
Q What has been his character ? A. As far as ever I have hoard, I have always*

heard he bas been a good Indian.
Q. What bas your experience of him been? A. My experience of him is thate

he is a good Indian.
Q. Is ho a friend of the white man ? A. Yes, ho has always been, as far as

haâve known or heard of him.
Q. Do you know wbat Big Bear was doing during the latter part of last winter,

where ho was ? A. Yes, I know where ho was.
Q. Where was ho ? A. Ont between Frog Lake and Coal Lake, on the road, out

Iunting and trapping around the country.
Q. Up to what time? A. The last time I saw him camped on that road was the'

19th of arch. I was going back from Frog Lake to my post at Coal Lake, and J
2met Big Bear camped thoro on the road.

Q. Did you give him any information thore? A. Yes, I had a coniversation with
-:Big Bear then. at the time I was passing.

Mr. Scott.-I object to any statement made by Mr. Halpin.
Mr. Robertson.-I wish to show that certain intelligence was given by Halpin toG

.Big Bear, and I wish tu show as a fact, and as a matter of conduct, how ho received it-
Q. Did you give him any information? A. Yes.
Q. What was that information ?
Mr. Scott.-I don't think that is evidence.
Court.- I think the question may be asked.
Mr. Robertson.-And then, how did the prisoner look? It is a matter of condut
Mr. Scott.--Also, whether bis jaw fol.
Mr. Robertson.-Yes, and to bring it out if it did fall. It goes to show tho state

of the prisoner's mind at the time ho received that information, and where it isa
question of intent, it is perfectly proper evidence.

Q. What did you tell him? A. I told him I had seen in the Battleford Biera ld
and at Frog Lake, that there was trouble in Batoche, and that .Uiel had stoppedt
mails there. I told him I thought there was likely to be trouble.

Q. Upon receiving that information, what did hib eunduct indicate ?
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Court.-No; I will tell you what I will do, though it is not strictly proper: I
Will lot in his reply.

Mr. Scott.-Of course, I don't object to that.
By Mr. Robertson:

Th Q. What was his reply to that ? A. His reply was: I think it is very strange.
e reply was in Cree. He was surprised to hear it.

Court.-That is parallel with the horse case. You can have yoir own opinion
'sornewhere else, Mr. Robertson, but not here.

Mr. Ribertson.-The cases are not parallel. I want to ask the witness, also,
4hOther this man was surprised by the intelligence from his appearance and demeanor
1t th e tim e. i*cu .Court.-You have got his actual expression.

Mr. Robertson.-Judging from the manner and appearance of the witness at the1'3ae ho conveyed it to him.
COUrt.-You have got the prisoner's answer,'that ho expressed surprise.
Mr. Robertson.-And your Honor rules out the question as to what his appearancoe
demeanor indicated upon the receipt of that ?
Court.-Yes.

By AMr. Robertson :
Well, yon parted then ? A. Not right away. I stopped and had dinner wite

Q. And what next ? A. I invited him to come up to my house at Coal Lake,
Outand see me there, and ho came.

Q. Did ho come at that time? A. He came the day after the day I loft there,
did not come next day, and then the day after that ho came.
Q. Which direction did ho go in ? A. He stopped right at his camp.
9. On the 19th you say it was you met him once? A. I passed him; ho was at
îcamp, and 1 was going the other way.9.ttr te ore you at Frog Lake atter that ? if so, how soon ? A. I was at Preg Lake

trouble broke ont, and I was taken prisoner.
Q- You met Big Bear when you were going back ? A. Yes.
Q. On the 19th ? A. Yes.
Q. You did go back to Coal Lake? A. Yes, to my own house.
a . Did you see Big Bear's people after you had parted with him, and before yon
Big Bear again ? A. No; I saw nobody belonging to Big Bear until after he
o rne to my house, where I had invited him to come, at Coal Lake. I had gone

frIn Coal Lake into Frog Lake, and I was on my road back when I met Big Baar.
Q. H-ad you met Big Bear before that ? A. Yes, I had, going into Frog Lake,

and slept in his tent ail night, but had no conversation about anything of

By the Court :
9. That was before you had heard ofit? A. Yes.

By Mr. Robertson:
,.fw Ie did, in response to your invitation, come ont to your place to seo yor

rwards ? Yes, on 21st.
2 te 2 ow long did ho remain there? A. He came to my house before dinner oi

est and went away on the evening of the 2'nd.
. What occasioned his going away ? A. He wanted to go home and hunt; ho

io ened to me that evening, and at three o'clock, before a heavy wind, ho said ho
tt t he would start home this evening and go around in the bush, and ho migh

chance, it was blowing so hard, to kill a moose in the bush.
.He was still hunting ? A. Yes.
.H went off again hunting? A. Yes.

" And whon did you see him next ? A. I saw Big Bear next, on the 7th Aprll4
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Q. Where ? A. At Frog Lake.
Q. Do you speak Cree? A. Yes.
Q. Fluently ? A. Yes, pretty well.
Q. And understand it ? A. Yes.
Q. Whereabouts at Frog Lake was Big Bear when you saw him on the 7th April Y

A. In the tent; in Loue Man's tout. I sent for him, I sent for Big Bear to coenl
and see me and he came.

Q Were you in the Lone Man's tent ? A. Yes, I was taken prisoner by the
LUne Man, at Coal Lake.

Q. Now, what took place there in the presence of the Lone Man, in bis tent?
A. Big Bear came in and shook bands with me, and said he was glad to sec me and
told me not to be afraid-_

Mr. Scott objects.
Mr. Robertson.-In the Scott case yesterday, this was admitted-what toolt

place between the prisoner and others, and my learned friend has given evidence Of
the doings at Frog Lake, and we have had evidence of the part Lone Man was taking
iii the insurrection. It is not to be confined to a day, if so, why not to a minute
The day has nothing to do with it. It is during the prevalence of these troubles.

Court.-What was donc on the 7th would hardly be an answer to what was done
on the 2nd.

Mr. Robertson.-No, but I am at liberty to show, generally, what took place
between the prisoner and these other prisoners who are proved to have been in il'
surrection, for the purpose of showing generally, what relation he bore to them, 8ad
whether or not he was siding with them or against tbem throughout the whole Of
the troubles. I don't think any authority can be cited against that. I have not the
authority here, but I am very sure that it cûmes within the principle. Mr. Osier so
laid it down yesterday, otherwise the Crown might pick out a very little circumstnce
that told against the prisoner and bis mouth would be shut to show the whole of his
conduct, and show the character of it.

Mr. Scott.-I underbstnd it in this way, that in giving evidence against a priS-
oncr the prosecution is entitled to give evidence of any statements made by him i1
the nature of admissions as to what bis intentions were. It is not proper for the
defence to show, in rebuttal of that, that ho made a different statement on other
Occasions.

Court.-That is what I ruled in the Scott case.
Mr. Scott.-The rule is extended in cases of this kind, to give evidence of ad'

missions made by others with whom he was associated.
Mr. Robertson.-My learned friend has not stated it correctly. The evidence '

not given as evidence of admissions, but as evidence of conduct, and where a prisove
is charged with treason felony, it is true, as my learned friend says, that the cond""
of other persons alleged to be concerned with him in some conspiracy may be gi
in order that hc may be afterwards connected with them. It does nct follow at
that that is to be given and the prisoner's mouth is to be closed as to the part h3e t0o
The whole statements made by these other persons are only statements which for 1

part of the conduct of all concerned, and the conduct of the prisoner must dePed
largely upon the influence he exercised upon those other persons, and that infiluOl
culd only be exercised by the use of his voice. What he said to these other persoh
who were concerned in the rising for the purpose of affecting their conduct i* the
rising, is evidence, not as an admission, but because it is part of bis conduct in t
business. Where there is conspiracy there must be intention, and the intention "
the nature of it is the only thing, or the principal thing, we have to judge by, tO
whether or not the prisoner was working with, or against those persons. If thoY
working together by consultation the part he takes in that consultation, or in oether way, in taslking with them about what was to be done, is evidence as part of
eonduet in the whole matter.

Court.-Your argument would be very good if your date was the 2nd APr
Unfortunately, it is the 7th. A man may talk and act treason on the 2nd and Oz>
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e 7th ho may talk the very opposite way and ho may turn around and talk and act
Ab traitor on the 14th and on the 15th act in a very opposite way.

Mr. Robertson.-Thon at 2 o'clock in the afternoon ho may talk like a traitor and
at half past 2 ho may not. It is matter for the jury to consider, but it is evidence.

Court.-No, I don't think it is evidence.
Mr. Robertson.-Of course, I bow to your Honor's ruling, Does your Honor

a to say thon that I am not at liberty to show that the prisoner endeavored to
eveO1ont the Indians from doing these things, by word of mouth, by speaking to them ?

Court.-Doing what things ? Committing the murder of the 2nd ?
Mr. Robertson .- Committing any of those things with which ho is charged, and
YOur Ilonor mean to rule that I am not to be allowed to show that ho tried, 7th

APtil, to prevent the Indians doing things?
b Court.-Perhaps it would be as well that I should waive the rule and allow it to

A8ked. I think if you want to put it after my holding it is not evidence, you may

lMr. Robertson.-If you give me permission I wil: do it.
Court.-Put your question.

By Mr. Robertson :
Q. You said you met Big Bear on the 7th April, at Frog Lake ? A. Yes.
Q. You saw him in Lone Man's tout and Lone Man was present ? A. Yes, Loue
Was there.
Q. What did be say in presence of Lone Man as to what trouble was going on?

*ell, he ceme into the lent and shook tands with me and said ho was glad to sue
anid told me not to be afraid, if I wanted to go over and stop in his tent I might

o over or I can go and stop in another tout if I liked, if I did not feel comfortable
I was, and ho said this thing that has happenéd bore was not my idea; it was

uny fault that it occurred; and we had some more talk there about how thingsRoing on there, and nothing really relating to this business bore to-day.
Q. Did he say anything about his young men? A. No, I don't recollect his
g anything about bis men thon.
SWere you present at any conceil of the Indians at which Big Bear was pro-

A. Yes,
During these troubles? A.- Yes, I was present at the most of the councils.

r.'Scott.-Are you going on with that right straight through?
kr. Robertson.-If His Honor allows me.

CoUrt.-Go on.

By Afr. Robertson:
Q At those councils, what part did Big Bear take ?

d 1r. Scott -The jury can oniy tah e what part ho took by what he said or wbat
, and even that is not evidence.

Bïd A. h don't suppose anybody cou!d think ho took any part at all, as ho never

Q. Ho took no part at all in the councile ? A. No.
. 'Who were the mon that took any leading part in the councils ? A. Wander-

Pirit, Big Bear's son, Imesis, and Louison Mongrain and another old chief, and
g "ar scmetimes said a word or two; ho very seldom spoke.
9. Do you recollect the arrivai of a letter from Norbert Delorme ? A. Yes, I do.
Q. Were you p rosent at any council at wbich that was discussed ? A. Yes, f
present when te letter was read.
Q Were you present at any council when thé proposition to go down to Pound-

g%, s discussed? A. There was no council as to bis going down, but just a
<r idea through the camp that the people wanted to go.

of In. ILid you hear any conversation or anything said by Big Bear to any number
ol s, perbaps not a council, but any number of them on the subject of going

A. I hoard hirm demur against going there one day, he did not want to go.
215

D'Victonia. A. 1886



Sessional Papers (No. 52.)

Q. Well, when you say ho did not want to go, what did ho say? A. lO
wanted to go another direction altogether, he did not want to go towardS Battieford,
ho wanted to pitch out in another direction, out to Turtle or Moose Lake.

Q. Did ho use any argument to induce them to agree with him ? A. NOI
-nover heard arguments used, I Inow ho tried to get them not to go.

Q. You know ho tried to get them not to go? A. Yes.
Q. Were you at Fort Pitt 17th April ? A. No, I was not. I was thore the 14th

and 15th.
Q. Were you at Frog Lake before you went thore ? A Yes, I waa thoro for a

few days before I went there, from the 5th to the 13th.
Q. When the Indians left Frog Lake to go to Fort Pitt? A. Yes, I was there'
Q. Who led the way to Fort Pitt? A. I don't know who led the way. I kOfl

a lot of the Indians went down to Fort Pitt that morning.
Q. And when did you go down ? A. I was about the last to start outof the OaSP
Q Who went with von? A. Well, I was driving a cart for the Lone Man.
Q. Where was Big Bear ?, A. I saw Big Bear, ho was away at the back of the

caravan, and that is where I saw him.
Q. Ie went down to Fort Pitt practically ? A. Yes.
Q. Among the last to go? A. I don't know, but I was about as far back s0

could get, and ho was there.
Q. He was late in the day anyway ? A. Yes.
Q. How did it happen that you went down ? A. I was told I had botter go doW'
Q. Who sent for you. A. Big Boar.
Q. For what purpose ? A. Well, il thore was any letters or anything to

written to the people in the fort, I, understanding the Cree language and that ort0
thing, would be able to understand what they said and write letters for them.

Q. What did ho want to write letters for ? A. I don't know that it was
twanted to write letters, it was the whole crowd of them.

Q. What did ho want you with him for? A. I don't know. I did not ask hi'O•
Q. Why was ho going down, and why were you going with him ? A. He thought

if I went down there and wrote letters, and that sort of thing, I might be able to ge
the people to come ont of the fort peaceably and prevent any bloodahed that mig
have been committed there.

Q. That is what you were going down for ? A. Yes. I don't know what bo
-was going for.

Q. Were you there at Fort Pitt when the pillaging took place ? A. wa Wot
at Fort Fitt, 1 was on top of the hill.

Q. You saw it? A. Yes.
Q. While the pillaging was going on? A. Yes.
Q. Did you see Big Bear while the pillaging was going on ? A. Yes, I saW 

Auring the whole time whon the pillaging was going on.
Q. Where was ho? A. Up on top the hill along with me.
Q. Did ho take any part in the pillaging thon? A. No, ho did not take 

part in the pillaging thon.
Q. Were you a Frenchman's Butte on 28th May ? A. No, I was not. I <

there in the morning.
Q. On the morning of the 28th? A. Yes.
Q. Barly? A. About sunrise.
Q. Were you in this camp that has been spoken of above the rifle pits? A.
Q. Did you see Big Bear that morning? A. les, early that morning.
Q. What was ho doing ? A. Telling the people to get ont as quick as Over t

-could, to get away. 
tQ. What did he do himself? A. I don't know. Ho seemed anxious to

away too.
Q. This was early in the morning ? A. Yes.
Q. You did go away? A. Yes, I got away.
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Q. When did you sec Big Bear next? The next time I saw him was at Princert in the cells.
Mr. Seott.-Do you want to know what ho said there ?

Ry Mr. Robertson :
•low did these leading chiefs in his band treat Big Bear while during the

Yeon were a prisoner there ? A. They treated him with contempt altogether.
Q• 1d he any control over them ? A. I don't think he had.
Msr. Scott.-I must object to this piece of evidence. It is altogether irregular,
sort of examination. I don't think I ever went to that length on a crossexami-

Court. -This unfortunate man is an Indian and I bave allowed an unreasonable
now, simply because he is an Indian, and I shall have to tell the jury why I

V done eo,
By Afr. Scott:

Q. You seem to think that Big Bear had not very much influence in his owR
A. I don't think he had.
.When did yon discover that, after yon wore taken prisoner or before ? A.

I Was taken prisoner.
Q. Before that ? A. I always thought and looked upon him as a chief.
9. You think also ho was desirous that no blood ehould be spilied? A. Yes.

What effeot do you think his intentions in that respect had upin the safety
't risoners ? A. Idon't know that it had much, but I know that hie intentiQn

as was good.
i • You think it was through his influence that-? A. No, I think I wold

46n killed if I had not been in the Hudson Bay Company's service.
q. Then you think the reason the lives of the prisoners were saved was the factof

,th% nearly all being in the Hudson Bay Company's service ? A. Yes, being under
roteoction of the Hudson Bay Company at the time they were taken prisoners.

Y1oQ think, I suppoe, if the police had been taken prisoners they would have
rtý 'iled? A. No, Ipdon't think they would. I think if they had come out of the

*Îth Mr. Maclean, they would have been ail alive to-day.
%%e whose influence would that have been ? A. The influence the Hudsom

any hias had on all Indiana.
o that is the case, how is it that the influence of the Hudson Bay office there
o sufficient to keep Big Bear and Poundmaker on their roserves ? A. I doâ'

aJ,1Q .hey had influence enough to prevent these mea from killing any whites inS
'4t t "ihborhood not only their own officers, but any whites in that neigh bor hood;

o4,g ?y h'ad not influence sufficient to keep them from committing other depreda-
>e b'thatwhat you mean? A. After all the Government people in the country

ee th ledMr. Maclean used his best influence to save the rest of the people thaù
Q There were no Government mon to use their influence at the time.

4•Thon the object of the outbreak in the first place was to kili the Govern-
4 A. Wh I don't know anything about that.
What do you think about it ? A. It look@ like that, because there wa
else killed but those men.

& ~Frenchman's Butte, Big Bear, you think, wanted the mon to get away?
aht morning.aU he frightened ? A. He seemed to be.

nAd You think that was the reason ho wanted to get away ? A. Yes.

Y Air. Robertson:
Yon know Stanley Simpson, the witness here? A. Yes.

es, aoYou had any conversation on the subject o Big Bsar's trial with him?
2ittie.
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Q. What dii e say to you? A. He seemed-
Q. What did ho say ? A. I told him that I had been called on the defence,

he thought it was strarge, very strange, any white man should get on the defelce 0
an Indian. Bis idea was that Indians should have been hung.

WILLIAM B. CAME&RON, sworn:
Examined by Mr. Robertson :

Q. Mr. Caiieron, were you prosent at any time at Frog Lake at a council of
Indians at which Big Bear was present ? A. Yes, I was at several councils at Wb'
lm Wh present.

Q. Tell us on what cccasions.? A. I was present at Frog Lake, in the first Pla"
a; the time of tL e massacre. p ?

Q. Well, were you piesent at any council that was held soon after that ?
Yes, I was.

Q. Was Big Bear there ? A. Yes.
Q. What was ho trying to do or doing ? A. Weil, the first couneil that

at after the nasacre at Frog Lake was one in which Wandering Spirit did aldr
spei kirg ; ho was examining the prioers, and it was a day or two after the er
had been committed, and ho was getting the opinions of the prisoners on the s
tion of things, and ho aske4 us whO we would rather side with, with the tribe that
belonged to or with tho white people.

Q. Well, what did Big Bear do ? A. He did nothing at that council.
Q. Did ho say anything at ail ? A. No. . t o
Q. Well did you hear him say anything to Wandering Spirit on the subje;

what had taken place at any time ? A. Not about that council. I heard 1 i
ene afternoon when all his band were dancing at what they call a graes dancfl fe
Leard Big Eear speakirg, and it is customary in case of their having a danceO.rbig

imd for different warrioxs and headmen to roclairm 'what they have done thel
decdf, and I never cared to hear what any of these other fellows said, because
they were red-handed murderers a great many of them ; but when I heard Big bo)
rpeaking I went out of the tout, and I went up and laid down on the grass at
tilstance from where they were dancing,Wardering Spirit ard two moi e of Big he
conmeillors and some of the other men who wore sitting in a half-circle inside O
tent, and I was lying opposite on the grass, and Big Bear standing in the <entre
a lot of young men were there too, and he was making a speech; and i do-0
lhat I understand the Cree, but still I have a general idea, a pretty good idea O

Cree language-I can't say that I thoroughly understand it-and I underatoO bf
.±o say, the words as near as I can tell that ho used, are those. le said: LOI'
maned to be recognized by ail you Indians as a chief, and ho says there was not a
cbief among you than 1 was, and all thete southern Indians knew it, the

'itgaLs, and the Sioux and the Blackfeet, and all the rest of those southerla
Lkmew it, and ho says when I said a thing at ihat time there was some attentitel
10 it, and it was acted upon, but ho said, now I say one thing and you do am b
end he said in front of Wandering Spirit, and I was sitting right opposite hiny o
ing him, because the speech interested me on account of knowing the circumjost)
and he sat with bis bod down ; and I saw Big Bear also on the day of the Prog 1,1,jt'
nassucre, and I saw him the evening previous in Quinn's house at the time

chard spoke of, and I did not hear him saying anything there. Bis son alsOW85 as
Mr. Imesis. Next mornirg there was an Indian woke me, and I came down staire be
Éleeping in the company's house next the company's store. I was in the eP boe d'-
company there, and I went down stairs and Imesis opened the door of the lad OW
beame in, followed by twenty of the Big Bear band, and he came up to nle 8 stor
Eave you got any ammunition ? and I said: Yes, there is a little there in th
WVell, ho say, I want you to give il to us. This was Imesis, and I sai

against my orders to give you ammunition in this way. Well, ho says, 70wo t
'weil give it 10 us, because we will take it any way if you don't choose tO 1
na; and I w ent into the store and opened the store, and these men folio
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te ej and Big Bear entered a few minutes afterwards ; and they were asking for-
jb11 8fter tbey got wbat little ammunition ihere was there ; and Big Bear came

Crowded his way through the young men there, and he says : Now, I don't
S OUen touclh anything here Of your own accord; if you want anythirg ask for
li 8aYs, don't you touch anything without asking for it ; and I afterwards saw
ther the chnrch. I was present ut the ]Roman Catholic Churcb, and I saw him

etoX ad the next tirte I saw him was just about five minutes before the shooting
nletced. I was passing the bouse with an Indian going to the store. I was

to fr.om Pritchard's place, and Big Bear was standing inside of the door talking
. Simpson, and I walked in the store, and was not in the store five niniutes
e first shot was fired, and I waited for a few seconds, and it was followcd by
r, and then there were several shots fired in succession, and I went out f the

a saw Big Bear running up the street, and ho called out: Stop, stop, two or
e es, running up towards where Quinn was lying. I saw Quinn lying on the
e the bill, and I did not hear anything of him then till afterwards. I don'ta0IOct anything with regard to the council at which Mr. Maclean was prosent when

at QeOing Spirit was speaking against the white prisoners in the camp, and agitating,
e fften did, as to the killing of the -white prisoners ; and Big Bear got up and

really as if ho pitied all the prisoners; and ho got up and spoke, and ho says:
Si b these white people that we saved; ho says: I don't wish harm should come

of them; and ho said : Instead of trying to do harm to them you should be
thern back some of the tbings you bave plundered from them. And anotber
hihgoes to show the influence that Big Bear held in the carmp is that, at one

1.lard Mr. Halpin complain that some of the Indians had complained-Halpin
'fled to Big Bear.
. 8ett.- Iobject to this.

By the Court:
pqj1 What did Big Bear do ? A. Halpin complained some things had been stolen

bun by some of the Indians, and Big Bear said ho bad a blanket stolen out of
Ie t; aid ho says, When tbey would steal from me, the man they call their chief,

' I can't be responsible for what tbey do to other people.
]e om plained that bis blanket bad been stolen ? A. Yes.

-'Y -Mr. Robertson:
Sere you ut Frencbman's Butte ? A. Yes, I was there.

Q id you see Big Bear that day ? A. Yes.
here was ho ? A. I was Lot there the day of the fight. I was there the

lag before ? I saw bim the evening before.
aQ ',What was ho doing the evening before ? A. We were camped ut a short
,Ùe thrOM the main crowd of Indians, and ho came in through the camp-just

'here "ngh, ard I think ho spoke te some of the lidiene, but ho was not close
wIas I saw him there.

Q hat was the night before the fight ? A. Yes.
rrben did you seo him ut Fort Pitt ? No, I was not at Fort Pitt.

etter YOU know anything about this letter that came to Pritchard? A. I heard
q ead by Mr. Macleaun.
he or oen know whether Big Peur wanted to go down to Poundmaker or not ?

t or against it ? A. I could not say, I am sure.

> U q.I r. Scott :
it vW was When you heard Big Bear speaking at this council meeting that yoa

. nd laid down on the grass ? A. Yes.
Rot did not heur the tenor of the conversation that had taken place before
q. ? Y A. No.

a °4 don't know what they were proposing to do, or what they were saying-
nl e ? A. No.
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Q. You merely heard him say that-that ho was objecting to the council not
taking his advice upon some particular qiestion, was that it? A. No.

Q. Give us the exact words in Cree ? A. I don't profess to be a Cree scholar,
,but I will do it s near as I can. He says: " I was a chief long ago, all you Sas-
katchewan Indians there was none of you that were above me. I was a bigger chief
than any of you. All those tribes-the Piegans and Blackfeet and Sarcees, and the
Sioux-al those Indians know I was a chiet above you all. At that time whenever
I had anything to say to you, why you did it right away, but just now anything that
I eay to you what is right, why you do the thing quite the contrary," and ho pointed
at Wandering Spirit and a number of them, the headmen.

Q. You left immediately after ho concluded that ? A. Yes, I followed him
off.

Q. And did not wait to hear what the others wore saying, or what the conver-
sation was about ? A. No, I did not. I had no desire to listen to them. I had

,heard enough of bloodshed and murder already.
Q On the morning of the Frog Lake massacre you say you were in the store

-when Imesis and another Indian came in ? A. No, I was in the houes when Imeuis
came i.

Q. And ho asked you for some powder and shot ? A. Yes.
Q. And you went over to the store and got it ? A. Yes.
Q. Because ho had threatened ? A. He throatened me there.
Q. That if you did not get it, ho would go and take it ? A. Yes.
Q. And you went over and got it ? A. Yes.
Q. Why did you go over to get it ? A. Because I would rather open the stor

-t give it to them than have them break it open.
Q. You thought they were going to take it ? A. Certainly, I knew they were

-going to take it.
Q. When you opened the store, they all crowded in ? A. Yes.
Q. Did they commence taking things before Big Bear came in ? A. Yes, a few

of them did reach over the counter and help themselves.
Q. And took thinga without asking for them ? A. Yes.
Q. And the prisoner came in and ordered them. not to take anything withoit

asking for it ? A. Yes.
Q. And stated that if they wanted anything they saw, they ,vere to ask for it?

A. A good many of them had accounts.
Q. What did ho say ? if you see anything you want, ask for it, but don't take it?

A.2He said, if you want anything, ask him. for it, and ho said, don't take it of
your own accord.

Q. Did the Indians take anything after that ? A. They did.
Q. When ho was there ? A. No, I don't think they did. He was not thero-.

mot two minutes altogether.
Q. You say ho on several occasions spoke in favor of the prisoners ? A. Yes.
Q. That is, ho was averse to killing them, as you understood ? A. Yes.
Mr. Robertson. -[ have a couple of other witnesses mach to the same effect,

-buit I think, perhaps, your Honora and the jury are tired of them.
Court.-I am not tired.
Mr. Robertson.-I think it is clearly establishd-I think it is hardly necessary.
Court.-Are you done ?
Mr. Robertson.-Yes, I think that is the defence.

STANLEY SIMPsON recalled:-

By Mr. Scott: :

Q. Did you hear what Mr. ilalpin said a few moments ago as to a statement
;,made by you? A. Yes.

Q. Is that true ? A. No.
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By Mr. Roberison:
Q. What was it you did say to Mr. Halpin ? A. I told him that there were a

great many Indians I would like to see hung, and that there were a great many that
I would not like to see hung.

Q. And you told him Big Bear was one of those you would like to see hung ?

A. No; if you ask Mr. Cameron, or any of them, I said to-day I would not like to
see the old man hung at ail.

Q. You said that to-day ? A. Yes, and I said it before.
Q. What did you say on the occasion Mr. Halpin speaks of ? A. That is all that

I said.
Q. You remonstrated with him for being a witness for the defence? A. No, Il

did not remonstrate with him. I said-I asked him if he was a witness for tbe,
defence, and ho said yes, and 1 said, it is a strange thing, after the trouble that yeu&
had, that you would be on the defonce. That is what I said to him.

ADDRESS OF COUNSEL FOR DEFENCE.

Mr. Robertson.-May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury: Af ter ths
somewhat long, and I am afraid somewhat fatiguing session that you have had, a ses-
;ion which I regret very much has been so long, and which I am sure you wilI
believe me when I do assure you I have not made longer than I felt bound to do in,
discharge of the duty cast upon me not as the hired advocate of this man, for ho bas,
.mothing with which to hire an advocate, but because the Crown, the Government, in
the interest of simple public justice, has brought me here to try to see that ho is not
unjustly condemned. In the discharge of that duty and only in that, I have con-
tributed my share towards keeping you iere. I am sure though that none of youý
wiH regret any of the time that has been taken up in the taking evidence that bas,
been presented to you by the defence. I am very sure that the men I see in that
box before me are there conscientiously dosiring upon the solemn oat h that they
have taken to do no more than simple justice and to moto out to this poor old man,,
tottering now almost on the brink of the grave, fair British justice, and the same
elemency, and the same merciful consideration of his conduct that you would mete
out te any white man. Gentlemen, I feet that I need hardly say a word as to the
difference between a white man and an Indian to you, except in so far as this, that
the conduct of an Indian cannot be judged or estimated in exactly the same manner

s the conduct of a white man, and Indian ideas are not the same as ours, our ideas.
The white man is a man accustomed to live under civilized forms of government..
iLe knows what a large community it is, governed by fixed laws and administered by-
courts and judges above suspicion, dealing even justice to ail that corne before them,,
b knows what it is to maintain law und order; ho knows that the maintenance of
law and order is one great safeguard that ho and ail his fellow-subjects had against
wrong, against harm to himsolf, to his own life, his own liberty, his own freedorn,
his own chances of office. An Indian looks very differently at society, while a white,
man looks at society at large, a large community as one community, while ho knows
that ho can move from one place to another in that community, that in the whole of
lis country, however large, ho may find a home. The lindian looks to his own little
band; apart from thom ho can do nothing; apart from thom ho cannot live; ho must
romain with his band; ho cannot get away fron thom; ho is not free if ho sees mis-
chief being done, ho is not tree to tay, I will move away from hore, I will go among
other people who won't do these things; he cannot do that, and what eIse has my
learned friend, Mr. Scott, to rest upon here in making a case against Big Bear, except
that ho was with his band ? The Crown has not only failed to show affirmativeîy
that the prisoner actually committed one of the overt acts charged in this indictment",
I think it ias been conclusively proved to you as to each one of those charges that
the prisoner did not commit them, those overt acte. A few words let me say first,
on the general evidence, as to the prisoner's character and his position in his tribe.
Jon have one unbroken stream of testimony that that old man las bepn a good Indiar-
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ever sir ce he has been heard of by any of these witnesses, and old Mr. Simpson, a
whom I am very sure you can rely upon with the utmost confidence, tells youI.
ho has known him for forty years, that after knowing him for forty years, aft8r&
a prisoner in his camp through all these troubles, and seeing all that he did, he b
siders him to-day a good Indian. What weight do you attach to that ? You ha e
evidence of Mr. Maclean, who, after knowing that man by reputation for man
and knowing him for six or eight months, personally dealing with himt, akd
after being through all these weary months oi suffering and bardship with his fai
his wife, his daughters, his little children, during those weary sixty-two days,
with that man's band all that time, seeing his conduct throughout, ho says to-
consider that man a good Indian. Gentlemen, I ask you to say, and I thiek
you will think that the judgment of Mr. Simpson and Mr. Maclean and thes .
witnesses, because all the others tell us the same thing, their juigment, the J.
ment of them who were witnesses of the man's conduct from the first to the l 1

botter judgment and a judgment safer oven for you to follow than your oWOJO
ment could be upon the isolated facts picked ont and proved. I think Yo"
attach great weight to that evidence. id.

Now, my learned friend, Mr. Scott, in his opening address, I think iM
no doubt as he believed in the discharge of his duty-I will ask your Honor to
the jury, and I think, your Honor, I am right in saying that my learned friend s
not have referred the jury to facts or circumstances, or anything outside Of tb
dence that was put in the box before them. He told you that you knew all
things, and that it was not ncessary to go into them, and ho spoke a1
were at liberty and would be justified in allowing the impressions Youth
recoived, from publie reports and rumors, to influence your judgment. NoW,
mot the truth ; it is incorrect. Allow me here to say that I, in the dischargé -
duty that I have had to perform here, have received the greatest kindnessi
ance and consideration from my learned friend. I have no fault to find with
far from that, I have received the greatest courtesy; we are only both WO
together to try and help you to decide, mercifully and truthfully and ti a
according to your oaths. I acknowledge that frankly and freely, but it is jp
-my learned friend taking a certain course, which ho believes in his judgme i
correct-it is my duty, if I don't think it right, to point it out. I did it in n
of unfriendliness but simply in the discharge of the duty that I owe to thsP
and I say, with the utmost confidence, that my learned friend was wrong in con 11
ing, whether ho intended to convey it or not, any idea that yon were Jist
acting upon any such impressions derived from anything but the evidenco 'I
box. Yon must know, as I know, the outrageous reports we heard about tI
man Big Bear, all the sins of his tribe, and a great many sins they never co"thi
were laid upon his shoulders, in the public print. We know that many of
things are now publicly- ?

Court. -Pardon me for interrupting you, did Mr. Scott mention Big * «e
Mr. Robertson.-He did. He did not mention the papers, but ho 5sd

well known. He particularly referred to the massacre at Frog Lake, that i
well known.

Court.-Go on.
Mr. Robertson-I would have, if your Honor had not interrupted.
Court.-You referred to me. bor
Mr. Robertson.-I was saying, gentlemen, you should set aside altOgo eb

these impressions. You know that what are now publicly known to be fa";th
were published about this man and his band then, and any other impressi0. iOs
may have, may be equally false. After all, they are only general imprS8es
what you are to go upon, is the simple evidence given in that box before YOI
have nothing to do with anything outside of that, and if you had had Y'5"'
prejudiced by any of these former impressions, you would not have been
eye of the law, to sit on the jury. I did not suppose yon were nxen ta bá odY
in that way, but I ask you now to cat aside all the impressions, and thi0
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evidenuce given. I have drawn your attention to the general character of the
tece, the general evidence of character, evidence of mon who saw the conduct of

d man through the wholo of that troublesome time, and I ask you now just to
your attention for a few minutes to the four different overt acts that are charged.

%o X., upon these facts, or upon some of thom, my learned friend must ask for a
rten, He cannot ask for a conviction upon anything but one or more of the

on thea2ct harged in this indictment. The first of those charges is that, at Prog Lake,,
April, he conspired to levy war, &c. Now, let us take that; and what is

dce as to that? That was the day of the massacre, 2nd April. I think I
t thy the evidence as to that is clear, and without any circumstance contradicting it,

4lO Indians came in on the lst April. There is one circumstance before that, on19th March, Mr. Halpin met Big Bear out on the road and informed him that
'0 Was trouble at Batoche, that Riel had stopped the mails. Hlow did that affect

uear? Fe was surprised, ho expressed surprise. i wanted to prove by Mr.
o that he was surprised and that he showed surprise. My learned friends would

tittle w 'ne to do it. Well, ho expressed surprise anyway, and there bas not been a
Qf evidence here to show that ho had any intention whatever, any communia-t hatever with Riel from beginning to end of the whole trouble; but Mr. Halpin
4t . )ud that is where ho got the information that tbis trouble had arisen. Now,
f1? a'n important fact: that is why they knew it. What does he do? Does he go

o 0o he rise too ? No, ho goes off again to his hunting; and not until a fortnigtit
tore ftterwards, is anything done even by his band. Then, on the lst April, they

, tt , and ho goes to the Indian agent-this son of bis, Imesis, being with him-Siesis tells the Indian agent that they know of this trouble; and Big Boar at
kh8ays that ho assures the Government, ho wishes to assure the Government, and

to the Government that ho is going to be loyal. Now, was that sincere ? A
dnan for forty years, the friend of the white man for forty years, always kind

%.ee to the white people, good to them all, and during all that weary time, when
ý#4le is band want to kill them, was ho sincere when ho said, I am going to bed ad I mean to show the Governmont I am loyal? Then, the next morning,es ho do? Early in the morning, the Indians, no doubt, have been getting
%fi I think Mr. Cameron said that it was on the morning of the massacre that

r 151s8 were coming and threatening to take goods from the Hudson Bay Co.'s
e tells us the Indians were going to pillage the Hudson Bay store. Big

lot rs of it, and comes in, pushes his way through, and tells the to take nothing
d Own accord; if 'they want anything, to ask for it, but not to take anything.

4t oo he do next? They don't take anything, and ho goes away. Ho then goes
nt b rs. Simpson's house-what for? To warn her that ho is alarmed, that ho
b Overy place to watch bis young men. He is afraid; ho thinks there is

Re e trouble, and ho wants to get her to a place of safety if ho can. Was that
u a an that was ringleader in the rebellion?a zen) Mrs. Simpscn says ho was friendly. She gave him samething to eat while

n ? re and while there a shot was fired, which they heard. What does ho do
%t thb e rushes out of door, running up the street, screaming: Stop, sto 1 Was
-y2 oet Of a man that was going into rebellion ? My learned friends will ti'y and
ho ; d Lte only chance they have of convicting this man is to show-that, thoughitle nt Want to kill anybody, ho wanted to fight against the Government. Why,
t on, if ho wanted to fight against the Governmont, how could ho do it without
h % nebody? Isn't it proposterous? How was ho to fight against the Govern-
11 Wasnot to kill somebody? If he wanted to fight effectively, why shouldn't

%Qev b the white people ho came across? He did not want to fight against the
t e .t. Ie did not want to rebol at all. Ho wanted to eontrol his Indians;

4 en ) Little Poplar, Wandering Spirit, and Louison Mongrain, these were
S4th.at controlled those young mon, and that old man was no more than

asse the blast before their influence. lie was powerless, utterly.powerles.
e4 cre took place in spite of him. It is al done almost in the flash
Ye but ho tried to stop it. That is the first charge; that is the,
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evidence upon the first charge, the massacre at Frog Lake, conspiring at Frog LS"
'Wbei e is the evidence of conspiring ? W bere is there a tittle of evidence that he
d1bioyal at that time? My learnec friend has tried to make something out of the f "1

that ho had been grumbling. Poor man, an Indian muet not dare to grumble. f.
Ircdian dares to grumble at the palty rations that are metcd out to him, while.ho

auffering from hunger and cold, in hie old age, it is to be assumed that ho was i1
to rebel against the Government? Gentlemen, would you listen for half a secondY
each a suggestion as against a white man ? Then the next charge is that at Fort
be did this. Now, what is the evidence about Fort Pitt ? The Indians start off froo
iFrog Lake to go to Fort Pitt; who leade them ? Not Big Bear, it is the old StoI0'
these sane mon, Wandering Spirit, Imesis, and the others, they are the men thati
be Indians off to pillage the fort, Fort Pitt. Poor old Big Bear hangs back, and d#

nUt know what to do, and at last his anxiety is, I will go at all events and try to
thie lives of the people that are in the fort. fHe was powerless, and ho knew it, he
powerless to prevent those Indians from going out to pillage that fort, but he oi
help perhaps, not by his influence with the Indians but by friendly dealing with th#

hitea-he might perbaps induce them to go off quietly, so that there would not be
ght, and so have saved their lives. My learned friend wili say of course the t0

struction to bu put on that is, oh, he wanted them to go away, so that he would ge
fort more easily. Very well, it might have been one or the other, but do you
so? If he wanted to levy war against the Queen, if he wanted to fight the tro 0 '
if ho wanted to kill the police, why didn't he take the chance when he had 300 or
Indians around a little band of twenty-five or thirty ? Is that the conduct of the 10""
that wants to tight the police and kill the police? No, gentlemen, it is the cond
of the man that knows he cannot prevent the pilaging of that fort, but hopes ho
manage to get and save the lives of those white people; ho follows the Indians do
to Fort Pitt with that object. What took place there? Who is in command still ? ,,

same lot that sends for Mr. Maclean, the same lot, the chiefs want him, ho coilnOeS
and meets the chiefs; who are the chiefs that do the talking? Who are the chiefs
threaten him ? Not Big Bear, it is the other chiefs that shut up hie mouth, that
the whole thing, that shut up his mouth whon he is trying to reason with the Iln'*e
and get them back to their reserves-not Big Bear. It iS W ndering Spirit ad
other one I torget which of them-those are the men that 1%p him on the shou
look bore you have said enough, stop, we don't want to hear anything more thalit'b
Old Big Bear takes no part in that, but B4g Bear does take part in trying to arr'.
tu bave the police and particularly to save his friend Sergeant Martin. fie so fro'
mebsenger to him and he sends a message, at least athing that purports to coD' e
Big Bear, we don't know whether it really came from Big Bear or not-it doe" b
maLter very much-a message did come signed "Big Bear," trying to persuade t

oar Pto get away so as to save their lives. 'he pillaging took place. Does Big gear
age ? No, nuo pillaging by Big Bear, no goods even alterwards found in his pose yoe
except as Mr. Maclean telle us one of ther did give him some tea that they ha tOold
from the fort. Well, gentlemen, it may be that a poor unsophisticated Indiani, a
man hungry and cold, probably ought to have refused to take a cup of tea becaurit
had been stolen from the Hudson Bay Company, but I don't think my learned ffre
will seriously contend or ask you to say that he was guilty of a desire to 119 1Y10 0.
against the Queen because he accepted a cup of tea that another man had a
That is the third of the overt acte charged. f o I

Then, the fourth is that at Frenchman's Butte. Now, what are the facte 00
that ? At Frenchman's Butte not one soul saw Big Bear on the battlefield eo
place near the pits when the fight was going on, but where was ho ? lie Wa oe
four or five miles according to the different witnesses, and the different Statoe b#"
back fron where that fight was going on, and it was not in a general retreat as ,b
was back there. You recollect that one of the witnesses I asked particularly' heolÝ
told us distinctly that the fighting mon were at the front and fighting when be
Big Bear away back three or four miles from the front. Mr. Maclean telle U r
was back there with him, with himself, he was running away and Big Bear w
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ming away. Big Bear did not want to fight, and he did not fight, ho was not even
with the men that were fighting. Stanley Simpson himself telhe us, that when ho
went back, when he ran back ho found Big Bear in the camp with Mr. N16lean. Now,
I want to say a word about Mr. Stanley Simoson's evidence. Hie 1to1d us first thati
when ho got back into that camp ho found Big Bear there, Big Bear was there when
ho got ifto the camp; ho said ho tried afterwards to prejudice you against the poor old
man by telling yon that he saw him ride into the camp after Jie came there, first he
said he found him there, when ho got there, and that was the truth. Mr. Maclean
corroborates that. Mr. Maclean saw Stanley Simpson come in ani Mr. M aclean told
him that Big Bear was there in the camp whon Stanley Simpson arrivea. but rStanley
Simpson, gentlemen, bas suffered a great deal, and [ am sorry for it. as sorry as any-
one can ho, no one pities more than I do, the poor peoole that suftfred as they did
suffer through all that trouble. The sufforing that Mr. Stanley Simpson has endured
has prejadiced him so much against these indians that ho is prepared to go as iar as
he can to convict any Indian, and particularly the poor old Big Bear, because ho is
looked upon as sort of chief of the band, that is one evidence of it, ho told us the truth
first, and then ho afterwards tries to pervert it and make it appear that poor old
Big Bear was out at the front, but was coming baok. Then, I won't eo so tar as to say
that Stanley Simpson is telling an untruth about it. I don't thiuk that, but I ao think
that his prejudice is that way, and perhaps insensibly, but noue the lesb cogently, it
inuences the view ho takes, and as you know it can influence very easily, and it
very often does, his memory of things, and when ho is not quite certain exactly which
way the thing was, ho is sure to put it the wrong way, that is, the way which will
tell against the prisoner.

Then, the only evidence at all against the prisoneris that of Stanley Simpson; ho
states what he thinks ho heard him say on that occasion in that camp. ÉNow, Big
Bear on that morning and the night before that told them ali to run away, hie con-
duct throughout that shows a desire to avoid the shodding of blood, and it showed it
al before that time, it showed it all after that Lime. Remember that; but Mr. Simp.
son says Big Bear had run away, ho was three or four miles back. Some one tela
him there were eighteen or. twenty of the troops kl)led, and ho pretends to tell us
Big Bear made a bloodthirsty speech, it was not a short speech, gentlemen, it was
not a speech that would be said so slowly, it was a speech that was said in the excite-
ment and quickly, and Mr. Stanley Simpson asks you to believe atter what ho has
shown us of what ho knows of Cree in that box-he asks you to beheve that ho is
able to swear that that old man used that language. Gentlemen, are you going to
convict that old man in the face of all his previous record, in the face of ie whole
record throughout this trouble, are you going to convict him of any attempt to levy
war against the Queen upon a piece of guess-work like that, influenced by a strog
animus, an animus shown by what ho said to Mr. Halpin, when he says that it is a.
strange thing that any white man should be called as a witness for the defence of an
Indian. Gentlemen, strange for a white man to come and tell the truth 1

Mr. Scott. -I muet object to my learned friend makîng use oi that statement. It
was never given by the witness in the box. What he did ay was that it was a strange
thing that he should be on the defence.

(Stenographer here refers to his notes, when Mr. Scott's version is corroborated.)
Mr. Robertson continues.-Gentlemen, that gives you the key. &hanley Simpson

ha been through it. His feeling is so strong, ho tells you so himseil, because of what
ho has gone through, that he wants to see that man convicted, and he would have
had Mr. Halpin hold back from telling you the truth. That is the animus of Stanley
Simpson, and "it is a strange thing anybody who has suffered what we have
suffered should be willing.to say a word to give the man the benefit of the truth."
Gentlemen, I ask you to disregard altogether the statement of Mr. stanley Simpeoa
as to that bloodthirsty speech ho attributes to Big Bear. and I ask you to do so,
because it is wholly inonsistent with the whole of the prisoner's conduct throughout
the whole of this business. It is wholly inconsistent with the character he has always
borne, and it is impossible, it would be most unjust and dangerous to conviet any man
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contrary to those presumptions, upon so uncertain a piece of evidencoe as that of *u
man who says that ho heard this speech made in a language of which ho knows 0

more than appeared to you in that box.
Mr. Cameron understands the Cree, and ho proved to vou-he çloes not preto

to know much, but ho could tell you the Cree words that ho heard the prisoner SPO
when ho heard him speak, and those, with the innumerable other littlecircumtanl
over which I am not going now, but which I am sure are fresh in your minds, he
show that the old man was helpless in his own band, that what littie inflaenceb
had, ho used to save the lives of the whites and keep these people quiet, that
avoided, himself, every act of wrong-doing, that ho tried to prevent others from Oî
mitting those acts, and I think you will say in your verdict, that throughout thYf
show that ho was a loyal and an innocent man.

ADDRESS OF THE CROWN COUNSEL.

Mr. Scott.-May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury-In my 0peniý
remarks in this case I gave you a short summary of the evidence that would be 1
before you in proof of the charges upon which this prisoner is being tried. I st '
that the principal part of that case would be showing the fact that war was actua
levied by the prisoner or by those with whom ho was associated at that time in or
to afford you the proof tbat it was his intention or it was the intention of those e
whom ho was associated to levy war. Notwithstanding my learned friend's prowj
to the contrary, I submit the charges you have heard read have been fullY a
sufficiently iiroved.

In the first place, as I stated, there were four charges. The first of those
connected with the massacre and the outbreak at Frog Lake. I also stated tO e
that it would be probably shown to you in the evidence-I had a good ides of W
evidence would be given for the defence-that it would be probably shown to y
during the course of the evidence that the prisoner may have been instrumentai p
saving the lives of the prisoners that fell into the hands of those with whom he
associated-if not in his own hands, into the hands of those ho was in concert
Now, gentlemen, you have heard an account of what occurred on the 2nd Ajrý1 0
rather you have board that on the 1st April the prisoner came in with his son .i
and spoke to the indian Department agent at that part of the country, and sa' 'id
ho heard there was trouble but that ho was going to romain loyal. Imesis Was'
him at that time. 1mes's apparently assented tu the statement made by Bii 1 b
at that time, yet we tind that on the 2nd April, the very next day, that, althI9%
perhaps, Big Bear did not assist in killing, and perbaps wanted to prevent, 1
son lmesis was one of the worst in the crowd f rom that time till the end Oo
rebellion. IL Imesis on the lst April had any intention of committing those de>
dations, Big Bear, the prisouer, would have known it, and it would have beenO
duty at that time if he had been loyal, a loyal citizen, as my learned friend trie-
inake him out to be, ho would have given warning the night before to these Ileos y
order that they might be prepared for some defence. My learned friend triewo.
show, also, that on the 18th March-I think it was on the 18th March, the datehe
lalpin stated-on the 19th March the prisoner bard from Mr. Halpin that th$

was trouble at Duck Lake. Now, it is very peculiar that we have not hear%ii0
evidence any evidence of trouble occurring at Duck Lake until the 18th ]Marc tb#
day before, and we have heard it was five or six days' travel from the parto
country in which they were in. to

Court.-le spoke of the seizure of the mails, and that there was go0o1 0
trouble. <o

Mr. Scott.-Perhaps I am going a little too far. I understood the incOeI 00
tÈe rebellion was the 18th March. It makes no material difference. I bOell /
prisoner did not know until Halpin told him on the 18th March that there 10k
trouble at Duck Lake. It is quite evident from his action on the night of the
Àýpril they must have bard some intelligence in the meantime from that P art
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Zn 1try--that there had been trouble They were all advised at that time what the
:ble was, and what the intention in creating that trouble was. My learned friend

Says there is no evidence of that. Well, I will tell you what evidence there is of it
that after ie heard from Halpin, the 18th March, that there was trouble there, ho

'd no further attention to it; he went on hunting, and he afterwards came back to
c amp at Prog Lake and remained there for some days, and then we find on the

.OýPril that they came in a body to the Indian agent and speak to him about the

a he. If they had not heard anything meantime, how is it that Big Bear, as soon
e returned to the camp, did not come in and tell the Indian agent what Halpintold him ? He must have heard from some other source meantime that theraY#4 trouble at Duck Lake.
NOw, on the 2nd April, we find him coming in with his band again to Frog Lake

t. eent, and we find these outrages committed. The first thing we hear is the
s<g possession, or the ihreat of one of the Indians to take possession, of the Hud-

S a"y store, unless he, the clerk, Cameron, went in there and got the goods. Cam-
o says himself he believed they would have broken into the store if he had not
0>t ed it. They went into the store taking things. Now, the contention through-

of the defence in this case is that the prisoner was wholly without influence in hi&
% cam 1p, and that his influence was for good throughout, and to show you that that

SIDence was not such as my learned friend represents it, but that he had a great
tof influence in bis own camp at that time and afterwards, I will call your atten-
1.i this one first-this one fact, that when he came into the store the other
4 a' of his band commenced taking goods ont without asking permission of
hnron or without asking him for them; the prisoner came in and ordered theni
o take goods, but if they wanted anything, if they saw anything they wanted,

thn8ted anything they saw-I forget which-ask for it, and he would give it to
that shows the intention on their part that in any event they intended to

What they wanted.
k ar Robertson.-I don't think Cameron said he would give it'to them. He said.

COurt....Before they took it ?
'eh'r . Scott. -Not to take anything of their own accord. It turned out during the

to he Prisoner was there they did not take anything, but they asked for it, and as
so as his back was turned they commenced taking the goods again. Does that

1e that he was totally without influence in his own band? That during the time
th i there and when he was before them, and they saw he was looking at them,Y Obeyed hie instructions to the letter ? My learned 'friend says it is a very

thing for the Crown to reply at all. It may be in some cases, where the
le Pnt f airly before the jury by the counsel for the defence, that it is not a proper

for the Crown to reply; but I submit, and I am addressing the jury entirely on
t k nnt, that the counsel for the defence has not put the case fairly before thethat he' as strained those points of the evidence which bore in favor of the

e er and omitted a great number of points in the evidence which bore against
o15ner. These, I will call attention to shortly, and I will not detain you. My

to<g friend says that the influence of the prisoner throughout was entirely for

o, I dmnit that his intience throughout apparently was to save the lives of the
% be eran his hands. My learned friend says if he did not intend to kill, how could.

'*ho eePected to levy war, without killing? Well, I have yet to learn that everyone
n for the purpose of levying war starts with the intention of killing all the

N nen, women and children that may fall into their hands. I have yet to learn
at cannot be carried on even by the Indians without that course being pursued.

t1i à j eVother reason why he wanted to save the lives of the prisoners. Mr. Halpin,
t le, shows conclusively that, and Mr. Maclean, by his evidence shows it too.

% en Who were prisoners in his camp, with the exception of certain half-breeds,
th in connection with the Hudson Bay Company. That is what Mr. Halpin

at if they had not been connected with the Hudson Bay Company they might
ecaped. -He also says that if the polioe had gone into the camp as prison-
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ers of the Indians, through the influence of the Hudson Bay Company they mighb
possibly be preserved as well. Well, gentlemen, I think you all know what an infi*'
ence the Hudson Bay Company has and ought to have over the Indians in thi'
«ountry. For centuries past tbey have been the protectors of the Indians for
the purpose of cultivating their trade and making a profit out of the trade witJ'
the Indians. They have cultivated their respect and esteem, and it bas alway?
ben the object and intention to cultivate it to the greatest possible extent, a&
they have svcceeded in doing that. Mr. Maclean shows you by the way ho gave bi
'evidence to-day he does not want to hurt a hair in the head of any person, but 1e
uhows also that friendliness on the part of the prisoner and his band was a friendi-
.dss to the Hudson Bay Company alone, and was not extended to the GovernmenOI t

He was forced to admit on crôqs-examination that he was not on good terms wit
ther Government, although ho was on good terms with the Hudson Bay CompanYr
ald that Mr. Maclean had considerable influence over him, but he was forced e
admit at the saie time that the prisoner thought ho had a grievance against the
Government, that he was continually grumbling, and we have heard from some other
witness-I forget who it was now-that the grievance consisted of the fact that he
lad not a reservation, whether there was any ground for that, we don't know, "*
have no means of ascertaining at the present time, but it shows he had a grievance
and it shows the motive for taking the course he did in connection with the rebelliOn*

Mr. Robertson.-My learned friend says now that Mr. Maclean said thht th
prisoner was continually grumbling against the Government, but Mr. Maclean
that on one occasion ho heard him make a complaint.

Mr. Scott.-Perbaps I isstate it. I understood him to say the Indians were
always grumbling, and ho heard this man grumbling against the Government, but b
did not know exactly what for, and we hear another witness stating that it w
because ho had not been placed upon a reservation.

Now, gentlemen of the jury, 1 think that throughout this whole case, althoßß
there is very strong evidence that the prisoner intended to save and tried to save
to use all his influence to save the lives of the prisoners, there is no evidence ge
for the defence or throughout the whole case here to show that ho resisted the gortO
or the conduct of the Indians with whom ho was associated in levying war or l
pillaging Fort Pitt. It is not necessary to show that ho took part in the pillagi'
bimself, or that ho actually got any of the goods that were plundered from there,th
long as we can show that he was associated with those who did that, and after tle'
act was done ho continued to associate with them, and during that time that tho
oommitted fresh acts which corne within the nature of the charges that are conta5ine
against the prisoner in the indictment-thèn ho must be taken to be responsible for
those acts to that extent.

Now, did ho, at any time, counsel or advise the continuance of the outrages t
he is charged with? My learned friend has tried to throw some doubt upOn
evidence of young Simpson, because ho thinks he bas a bias against the prisOfer
ls that good reason, because he has a bias against the prisoner and the [nd
generally ? Who kept him in confinement for such a long time, who at one ti melo
in deadly peril of his life, and the hardships ho suffered while a prisoner 'qai
broughj him nearly to death's door since? Is there any reason why ho shoUlal'
ae a bias ? *But is that any reason why ho should not corne irito the box ad t'e

trathfully all ho knew about the circumstances during the time ho was imprI
with them? I think my learned friend endeavored to convey to you the impres sta
thàt that was the only evidence of any intention on the part of Big Bear to the
against the Government in any way; but my learned friend bas torgotten d 0
evidence of a certain man named Pritchard. Pritchard's evidence is not attacke
any way. My learned friend bas not said anything about it. You will reinen
what Pritchard said as to what Big Bear 'said ho had done with regard to a cer ,#
other Indian -chief of his acquaintance, that ho had written up to him or Ws 5

to write to him to tel hin to come at once to join his band, and
didn't, better g6t a -f4 horse and - leave th country, and tha
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>îontolur to write a letter to some friend of his at Lac la Biche, and Montour
skked Big Bear, shall I say a certain thing, shall I write to him and

tell him to come, the Indians would rob him any way. My learned friend has
o tried to impress upon you the fact that he could not be charged with any-
ing in connection with the fight at Frenchman's Butte, because he was not fighting
u'<>self.r I have yet to learn that an Indian of his age goes into a fight. My impres-

on from all I have heard of the Indian character generally, is that it is the young
«bzes who fight and the old men who counsel and remain in the 'camp, and it could

ut be expected this old man would go out and join in the fray; his place would be in
e ouncil advising the young men as to what steps they should take, and having
en with them at that time in the camp shows conclusively that he was counselling;
d it is a strange thing too, that during all the councils that have been held from

tilme the prisoners were first taken till they were released we find Big Bear in
at c0uncil . He was not treated like an old woman, some of his advice and opinions
ay have been resisted by some of the other Indians, but he was there always giving

s Pinion as far as we have heard, he was always giving his advice.
Mr. ]Robertson. -That was not what the witnesses said, it is really too bad to state

eh things so broadly as that.
COourt.-You should not interrupt.
1r. Scott.-He was always in the council as far as we know; it is possible that

aY have overstretched the thing a little, but I remember Mr. Cameron stating-
the council that he saw he was taking part in it, and Stanley Simpson said in

ecouincil he heard that he was taking part in it, and Maclean said that at a meet-
of the chiefs he was one of the four chiefs that came out to meet him at Fort
, and although he does not remember the prisoner saying anything at that meet-
Iet he appeared there as one of the headmen of the combined party.
Mr. Robertson.-Did he say he came out to meet him?

e r o tt.--If I understand what I did say, I said that when Mr. Maclean came
ometthe chiefs, he was one of the party.

Mr. Robertson.-He found him there, that was in the In'dian camp.
Mr. Scott.-Now, gentlemen, [ have just one more thing to call your attention

and that is that at the time of the separation of the Wood Cree from the prisoner
his band, Mr. Maclean tells us that it was the intention of the prisoner and his

to Work their way down from that place to Duck Lake. That shows what hi&
4do tIon Was at that time. It may not be that there was any evidence of his going
a a to Duck Lake, but there is evidence that my learned friend has put in that

qnest came up from Poundmaker's camp, a letter written by a man named Nor-
t elorme, and the band was asked to go down to join them. My learned friend

Z great stress upon the fact that the prisoner was instrumental or sided with thera
eir efforts not to get the band to remain with him, but the solution of that is
"5 mple. We have seen from the evidence, and it has been -shown to us that

A ean had a very strong influence over this man, he succeeded in convincing this
g by some argument, and the prisoner and Maclean together succeeded in convino-
tb rest of the band, that was the only reason, as appears frorm the evidence why
e did lot go down there, and for anything we have heard in the evidence, that is

eason why the prisoner did not want to go down.
have endeavored to put the evidence before you as plainly as possible. I have

th rd to show that it was not the intention to give any evidence beyond show-
a e fact that the prisoner was connected with the band who comniratel certain

4i(i ïges, Who in fact levied war against the Government. No rmatter what else they
o think ‡here is evidence to show that the band did that, and there is no evidence
to Or not sufficient evidence to show, I subm.it, that the prisoner hai any such

tithe was drawn into it, my learned friend says. [ submit the evidence shows
%4, 1 tVOly that he was acting with them throughout, although he did not intend,

aYs fought against going to.
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JUDGE'S CHARGE.

Mr. Justice Richardson.-Gentlemen of the jury: This prisoner is charged With
participating in rebellious acts against the constitution and government of tho 00oa
try. He is charged under an Act which was passed in the year 1869, as regards tb
Dominion of Canada, as it was then constituted, and that law was introduced el
the constitution under which we at present live into the North-West Territories s
the year 1875, and that law says as follows :-Section 5 of chap. 69, 31 Vie. Who'
soever, after the passing of this Act within Canada or without, compasses, imagin0e4
invents, devises or intendà to deprive or depose our Most Gracious Lady the Qaiteel
ber heirs or successors, from the style, honor or royal name of the Imperial Cro
of the United Kingdom, or of any other of Her Majesty's dominions or countriesO
to levy war against fer Majesty, her heirs or successors, within any part of the
ted Kingdom or of Canada, in order by force or constraint, to compel her or thea
change her or their measures or counsels, or in order to put any force or constralp
upon, or in order to intimidate or overawe both flouses or either flouse of Parliaour
of the United Kingdom or of Canada, or to move or stir any foreigner or strauß®
with force to invade the United Kingdom or Canada or any other of fier MajeYt0
dominions or countries under the obeisance of fier Majesty, her heirs or sucCessorO
and such compassings, imaginations, inventions, devices or intentions, or any of theo
shall express, utter or declare by publishing, printing or writing, or by ope4n1 0
advised speakiig, or by any overt act or deed, is guilty of felony and shall be lia
toimprisonment in the penitentiary for life.

1 must draw your attention, or at least I must remind you, that where the • ?
"sovereign " is used in that statute, the real meaning of it is the " people. it
cardinal doctrine that the king means the people and their interests and his
inseparable, and where we have in an Act of Parliament the Queen's name, it W'000
merely that where an offence is created that offence is against the people. N o
prosecution is in the interesta of the public at large brought or instituted by
:Majesty's representatives as protectors of the public against those men for viOla'1
that law. It is true, as we have seen but too plainly, that the prisoner is not a b
xman--what we term a white man-he is an Indian, but although lhe is an Indiat
cannot give any other view-put it in any other way to you than to say
between white people and Indians, there is no distinction whatever. The
there and it is binding upon the Indian, or at least the law is there and the Itdian
entitled to as much protection from ier Majesty, and receives as much prote. de
from fier Majesty as the white man; and the converse is also true that from hui2 1hite
the same amount of respect and allegiance as is due and as we enforce from the W the
man. True it is, and it cannot be gainsaid that the Indian, as a rule, has nohite
amount of enlightened education and has not, perhaps, so much civilization as the
men, taken as a rule; but I have yet to learn and have yet to see the Indiail In' or
year 1885 who does not know the difference between right and wrong. Innocent cto
ignorance is not shown at any rate in this case, and therefore it is that I put 100
you. I tell you that as regards the man himself, he is there to stand the consequelO
of whatever acts he may have done or rather charged against him in this Pape.ted
have before us. Well, the charge against this prisoner is that he compassed, ass1 ac
lent his aid and lent his influence to rebellious acts and assisted in rebellio us
against the Goverument. It is my duty to tell you wbat the law is, and expres 5.5g
an opinion as to what portions of the evidence you should not consider, as noî b? t
law, to leave the question of crt dibility to you as your share of the responI3 of
between the public and this prisoner on trial. I have told you what tho .i"ee
the land is already. I have yet to tell yon whether or not the evide b
if believed, amounts to a rebellious act and comes within that or covers ye
charge. Now, the charge against this prisoner is that he compassed, Wth Fos
111-disposed persons, at four different places. Ist, at Frog Lake; 2nd aý d
Pitt; 3rd, again at Frog Lake; 4th, at Frenchman's Butte. As the evide0o
is so fresh, it cannot, I think, have escaped your attention. You Mt D
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'anlt with the statements of the witnesses. You must recollect them, T think. I
7jrOd onaly say this. I think that if we are to believe the evidence of Mr. Halpin and

e vidence of Mr. Pritchard, also the evidence of Ur. Tompkins, not only was there
l011 in existence on the lst April last, but this man knew it. Now, if he knew
and I should here say that in this court we do not know, and we are not bound

etnquire whether he is a chief, whether he is an influential chief or whether he is
We are not here to enquire into his status as regards [ndian tribes, but we

heOre to determino wbotherho, as an individual, took pirt in any of tho reb;Ilious
w 'hich are charged against him.
1Ow, as I said to you, if the evidenee is to be believed of the parties that 1

%I'n1ed to you, a state of rebellion existed prior to the 2nd April. and the prisoner
it. Now, if he knew it, what was his duty ? What was his first duty, and in

at Way could ho relieve himself of that duty ? His first duty v'1s the samo asyurs and mine would be, not to be found in the rebel camp, but to be tounid where
k and order prevailed. That was bis first duty, and if that was bis first and main
y, What excuse could thero be, what excuse is the.ro why ho was not ?

,i Weil, the only excuse which the law recognizes is this-taking the words them-ies of the authorities "the fear of present death is the only excuse. Suffering, or
7 Other mischief not endangering his person, or the apprehension ot perbonal

les than would deprive of life, is not a justification of a traitorous act.'
o0w, then, was ho there? Was ho with them, and was he with them under any

%estraint short of what I have told you ? If so, and if as a conviction created in
miinds beyond all reasonable doubt, ho did so, then I tell you, fromr. as legal a

e dpoint as the law lays down, his guilt is established ; but, on the other hand, if
toere Was only an impression of probability, if it ran Phort of an absolute conviction

Iour minds, why, thon, ho ought to be set free. Now, the evidence for the prose
VerT consists, first, of Mr. Pritehard's, who describes what passed, as you recollect
AY rivividly I have no doubt, what passed on the 1st April, the evening (f the latri'; or rather I think I must take you back. The first piece of evideice in point
>e tImo that we have is that of the witress for the defence, Mr. HIlpin, who tells us

i es at Coal Lake, which is a point some number of miles back in the country
ant from Frog Lake. Now, Mr. Halpin, if you will recollect, tels us that on the

March he told this Big Bear, whom ho met some distance north from Frog Lake,ay frOM bis camp hunting, of the state of affairs, that Her Majesty'b mails had
seized at Duck Lake. Then why did ho leave bis hunting home ? That may
ye 3ou as urexplained, but it is for you to determine. Wo have this imian, with

band calling upon the Government officiais back at Frog Lake on the evenibg of
t tad we there have him telling a gentleman, if Pritchard is to be believed,

ritroble bas broken out, but that ho and bis bard are going to be loyal to the
thyment. Well, thon, you have those unfortunate occurrences whicti are desci ibed

We itnesses as occurring on the following morning, and you aLso have the fact
of by him and by other witnesses, that this man knew, at any rate, what was

,O n0, and what had been done, and then you have the further fact brought
y this witness, if ho is to be relied upon, mind you, of bis -Iirecting Mon-

at abOnt tho message that ho was to send to Lao la Biche, coupled with
Oi said ho had done himself with regard to the chief Peccan, and the

ont leish Lake Indianss Well, the next piece of evidence which I hould draw
s, attent'on to is that of Mr. Simpson, and ho tells us of what uccurred ut thO dif-

e places, and particularly at Frenchman's Butte-the expression which ho made
14of after the fight. Well, supposing Mr.Simpson was mistaken, -upposing that ho

to be believed, is bis presence there explained to you ? The same thing will
Your minds, and I dare ssy you will ask yourselves how was it ho was at

eltI 't? We know ho was at Frog Lake when the thirg broke out. How was he
4do it ? And if ho was at Fort Pitt, and the protection pai t of the Governmont

Mt. eave, why wasn't this prisoner with them ? That may strike you. IL has
. Then, after theyhad left, where was this man ? The mame thing will

You, when they got back to Frog Lake, where was ho ? Was ho with the
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rebels or was ho not ? If ho was with the rebels, why, it seems to strike me Os
,question, and I simply submit it to you as a class of questions which should o0
your minds, and which you should, if possible, seek the solution of, and obtain a a
tion from the evidence which we have had to-day. Well, then. when we com00
Turther, where was he after this fight that was spoken of ? Was he with the P
party, the so-called prisoners who desoribed what they had to go through-was hole
them, with the Wood Indiaûts or why was ho with the other party; and what
the occasion ofthe split ? Thoe are questions which, I think, I may fairly sugý5
in order to arrive at a conclusion tbat you should ask yourselves, and if a sufficieal
reasonable explanation hau been afford d as to why he was there.

Now, the first thing that you have to consider from your standpoint is,
rebellion extant on the 1t April ? l'ut it in that way. 2. Did ho know of it?
If he knew of it, did ho by aiy act-was he a party to any of the overt acts
are named in this charge ? lf you eau answer these questions in the affirnati1 V'
you eau draw yourselves to no oLher i easonable conclueion, if you are satisfied by
evidence you have heard, affirmatively, as a conviction created in your minds bO
all reasonable doubt, that he was, that "yes " should be the answer to each
questions I have submitted to you, thon I say that your verdict should be 00<
guilt. If, on the other hand, you cannot do that, or from the evidence as prosea ,
you fel that it is so unreliable as tu croate a reasonable doubt in your mind as
veracity, why, you ought thon to give him the bencfit of that doubt, and acqit

lu the conduct of the case, you may, perhaps, have been struck with the o
tions having been submitted to me, as tu whether the classes of evidence were p
to be received, aLd you may have heard me say that the evidence, which
intended to be offered, was not strictly pioper, and you have hoard me say after
that vwhile holding that opinion and feeling that in strict law, I ought to keep it A
from you and not allow you to hear it, yet, I thought and felt lhat in a case of t
sort with the class of man who stands there, the widest possible limit should be P0d
to anything that he had to say, or that any witnesses who might be called fot
defence or for him might have to utter and that there might be no doubt on
joint, therefore, they have bad the benefit of bringing everything before you.
Ihe fact romains, and the evidence stands before you as 1 have told you, and fro
evidence, when you come to consider it, you will have tu come to a conclasoa'
guilt or innocence. If knowledge of the rebellion is brought home to him, and
ticipation after that, without excuse, that I have told you of, thon ho has come W
the pale of the law, otherwise ho has not.

Now, you will retire, gentlemen, and consider it, and lot me return into court
your determination upon it.

Mr. Robertson.-There is one thing that I would ask your Honor to tell thoJ
and that is, that although the prisoner % as thore, if they are satisfied upon the
donce that he was not willingly par ticipating in what was boing done, ho is not g

Court -I have told him that.
Mr. Robertson.-I understood your Honor to say if ho was there when the 90,

was going on nothing short of the fear of death would free him.
('turt.-I did not say that. Tnu onus of freeing himself from responsibilitY

upon him.
Mr. Robertson.-But if the evidence satisfied them that, although he was

Le w as not acting with them, but the contrary, his being there was not enoIgh
which to eonvict him.

Court.-I think I have put it fairly to the jury.
Mr. Robertson.-Will your Honor tell the jury now that if they are sa

upon the evidence that, although he was there, he was not aiding and abottilg
thon le ough: to be acquitted ?

Court.-Oh, I think the jury may be brought back, yes.
Jury return to court. . s
Cout .- Gentlemen of the jury: I brought you back becanse of some q e

to my having put the remarks I made in a proper light to you with regard tO
2.2
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ner, as to his presence in what may be termed the rebel camp. Now, I read
What the law was, but I am asked to go further and to suggest to you. to con-

whether upon the evidence there is not sufficient to excuse him; whether a
ecint explanation has been given for his presence in the place where ho is

ribed to have been; that you should consider whether ho wai there compulsorily
thinak I have got that right now to suit Mr. Robertson-or whether ho was there

his will, and acting solely in the interesta of peace.
Mr. RIoberton.-If they think, though ho was there, ho was not actually aiding
Abetting them, if they are satisfied on that, thon they ought to acquit him.
Cort.-And that if he was thoro against his will and giving no assistance what-

r then ho would be entitled to an acquittal. I cannot, however, drop my remarks
hOlIt declaring to them the law on that subject, and it is·this: If a number of mon

thenmselves together for an unlawful purpose, and in pursuit of their object
4it murder, it is right that the court should pointedly refuse to accept the propo-

" that a full share of responsibility for their acts doos not extend to the surgeon
.aoompanied themr to dress thoir wounds, to the clergyman who attends to offer

cal consolation, or to the reporter who volunteers to record their achievements;
Presence of anyone in any character aiding and abetting or encouraging the
06ution of those unlawful deoigns must involve a share of the common guilt.

ip ât Robertson. -Aiding, abetting and encouraging, your Honor. I wish the jury
* derstand distinctly.

-ourt.--Now, gentlemen, you will retire again. I have given you the addition.
%0 ught I had placed it plainly before when you went out. You have it now though,

can retire again.
l jur J thon return in fifteen minutes with a verdict of " guilty," with a recom-

Ation to mercy.
0j'Ort.--Gentiemen, you are discharged, and I might tell you, gentlemen, that

3%t recommendation shall have all the weight that it can reasonably have. I shal
pass any sentence to-night.

QUEEN vs. BIG BEAR'S BAND, NAN-E-SUE ET AL.

West Territories.

Wf'I'he information and com plaint of Richard Burton Deane, of Ragina, in the North-
e0 t 11rritories of the Dominion of Canada, superintendent in the North-West

oin ed Police, taken the third day of September, in the year of our Lord one
a8 1 d eight hundred and eighty-five, before the undersigned one of ler Ni bjesty's

>(liary magistrates in and for the said North-West Territories, who sait:-
>eeThat San-e-sue, Mis.cha-chaq-e-mish, Kah-sah-ko-wa-tit, Koos-top-e-quob, Nal-
6ee tRKah-ke-wepah-tow, Oos-ka-ta-task, Ah-tim-yoo, Ah-tom-is-com-co-ah-wah-

o, d Ogarding the duty of thoir allegiance but wholly withdrawing the love, obedi-
qU lity and allegiance which every true and faithful subjeot of our Lady the

of osand of right ought to bear towards.our said Lady the Quaen, on the second
hPil, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five,

"divers other days, as well before as after that date, togother with divers evif.
persons to the said Richard Burton Deane unknown, did, within the Dom..

Ca nada. compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend to levy war against our
f4 Q Y the Queen, within Canada, in order, by force and constraint, to compel her
e geo ber measures and counsels; and the said felonious compassing, imaginatios

0 , device and intention thon feloniously and wickedly did express, utter and
Str d ivers overt acts and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to say:

ib .Oíder to fulil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious ompassing, imagia-
ention, device and intention, aforestid, they, the. said persons above chargodof them, aftOL wards, on the second day of April, in the year aforesaid, an&
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in divers other days and tines, as well before as after that day, at and cear
lecality called Frog Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada, did conspire, .

uilt, confederate, aFsemble and meet together with divers other evil disposed pers. "
to Ihe said Richard Burton Deane unknown, to raise, make ard levy insurrec
ard rebellion agairst cur said Lady the Queen, within ibis reanim.

And further, to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compa #0
iniginaticn, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said rersons -a the
clhirged, and etch of ihem afterwards, to wit, on Ib Feventeenth day of Aprii
year aforesid, ard on divers other days and times, as well before as after that
at or near the ceality known as Fort Pitt, in the said North-West Territorie
Conada, did corspire, conEult, confederate, assemble ard meet together, with ,,bd
etoher evil disposed persons to the said Richard Burton Deane unknown, to raise,i
.aud levy insurrection and rebellion against cur said Lady the Quecen, within this rea

And further, to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious comPa83 ge
imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said perscns the
êbarged, and each ofthcm, afterwarde, to wit, on thetwerty-eighth day of May, #t
year aforesaid and on divers oliber days and times as well before as affer tbat do
er rear the locality known as Frenchman's Butte, in the said North-West Territ 0

ovf Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assenile and meet together with
alier evil disposed persons to the said Riebard Burton Deane unknown, to r
wake and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, Withil

7mlm. f
In comtempt of our said Lady the Queen and her laws, to the evil example 0

others in like case cfferding asainst the form cf the statrte in such case Md
provided, and agairut the peace of our Lady the Queen, ber Crown and dignitY.

R. BURTON DEAY •
2worn before me, the day and year first above

nentioned, at the town of Regina, in the
North-West Territories of Canada.

Huen RIOHARDsON,
Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the said North- West Territories of Canada.

And take notice that you have the option cf being tried before a stipebdbangistrate and a justice of ihe peace, with the intcrventicn cf a jury of six, or
a stiperdiary magistrate in a summary way, without the intervention of a jpi'

Which do you elect ?

The Queen vs. Nan-e-sue, and eight others, mentioned in the above charge.

WEDNESDAY, l6th September, 1885.

-Befere lis Honor Judge Richardson and Henry Lejeune, J.P.
Mr. Peter lourie is sworn as interpreter-Cree.
IPrisoners were ail charged on 9ri September, and all pleaded (not guilty'
Juiy called and sworn.
Charge read to the jury.
Mesï.rs. D. L. Scott and W. C. Hamilton appear fcr the Crown.
Mr. F. B. Robertson for the prisoners.
Clerk of Coit.-Upon these charges the prisoners at the bar te

arraigned, and upon their arraiginment have plea ded "not guilty." Your
.gentlenen of the jury), therefo e, is to enquire whether they be guilty or o
and hearken to the evidence. yeb oet

,Mr. Scott -- May it please ycur Honor and gentlemen of the jury,--3be
wbich you have heard read is what is kmown as the charge of treason-feloY',gih1
in substance, a charge that the prisouers designed and intended to levy 'Var
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a8jesty, which means that they designed and intended to levy war against the
y constituted Government of the country. It goes on to say, that in order to

trly out that design and intention, they, on three separate occasions, conspired with
th era to make and levy rebellion. The first occasion mentioned in the charge is on
%e2nad of A pril, at Frog Lake. That is the date of what is known as the Frog Lake

sacre. The second ison the 17th April at Fort Pitt, the date of the taking and
t of that place ; and the third is on the 28th May, which is the date of the

e of what is known as Frenchman's Butte. These prisoners belong to a band
Y Were living somewhere in the neighborbcod of Frog Lake and known as Big

'a band. On the 2nd of April that band and a number of other Indians in that
ou of the country broke out into rebellion. I shall first show you that the

jDiItry li the northern part of the territories in the neighborhood of Batoche and
U21 Lake bad been for some time previous to that date in a state of oren rebellion.

Èe rebellion, however, at Frog Lake broke out on the 2nd A pril. The band to which
Ie Mn belonged was in rebellion until some time in the latter part of the month

tà 5 Y. The first overt act on that occasion was the eeizure of the Hudson Bay
e and other buildings in the settlement at Frog Lake, and the killing of a number

the Settlers in that district. The second was on the 17th April, the date of the
4-4g of Fort Pitt. After the massacre and the sacking of the settlement at Frog

e, the band to which those prisoners belonged moved down to Fort Pitt, and on
17th April tbat place fell into their bands, and it was sacked and looted, andra,
her of settlers and others who were in Fort Pitt at the time were made prisoners.

I'trY afterwards travelled over that part of the country for some time, and on the
ay they met the troops under General Strange, and a fight ensucd on that

atThose are the three acts wbich we charge against these prisoners. We charge
St7hey Were present on those occasions that I have mentioned, and on other occa-
1 about that time and in that neighborhood; that although, perhaps, we ennnot

any particular acts or outrages on the part of any of these prisoners, we can
itetht they were present with that band on the 2nd April, from 2nd April till

og the17th May, that is, the battle of Frenchman's Butte; and although they may
have colmitted those outrages themselves they were combining with others who
oranit them. It is possible we may be able to show that these men were fighting

e rtwo occasions, at all events. We will show that they were pf epai ed to
ht. 1[ecessary, that they were jcined mith others who were fighting, and if not
"9 themlselves they were aiding and abetting those who were fighting.

fLLIAM BLEASDELL CAMERON, sworn:-

Examined by Mr. Scott :
-ou were in the employment of the Hudson Bay Company ? A. Yes.
About the 2nd April last ? A. Yes.
Where ? A. At Prog Lake.

ker ]id you see any of the prisoners there on that day ? Do you know any of
A&. Yes, I know them all.

Y You remember having seen any of the prisoners at Frog Lake on that day?

f Which of them ? A. I saw the second prisoner charged there, and I saw
'7d one and I saw the sixth, and I saw the seventh, and I saw the eighth, and

e c Certain about the other. I am pretty sure that ho was there-the last on%

o you know their names ? A. Yes.
%gkq 1 t give us the names of those you know ? A. The first prisoner you have

, don't know him by that name; Natoos is what we always cail him. Kah-
a-ta, No. 3; Kah-ke-we-pah-tow, No. 6; and No. 7, and No. 8.
'?hoseyou remember seeing at Frog Lake on the 2nd April ? A. Yes.
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Q. What happened on that day at Frog Lake? A. Well, I was sleeping the
night before, or the morning of the 2nd April, and I was waked by au Indian-he
was a Wood Cree, who bolonged to Frog Lake; he is not here-and I got up. Ue
tld me -Big Bear's men had taken the Government borses; and I went down stairs,
and Big Bear's son came into the houqe and a lot of theie Indians with him, and they
asked me if I had any ammunition in the store, and I told them that I had, when Big
Bear's son told me to givo it to them, that if I did not, they would take it; so I gave
it to them, what there was-there was very little there.

Q. Who did you give it to? Was that in the store that you gave it to them?
A. Yes.

Q. Were there any others there besides Big Bear and his son ? A. Big Bear was
not there himself; there was his son. Oos-ka-task was in the store.

Q. low many were in? A. There must have been twenty in the store.
Q. Were you in the store when they asked for the ammunition ? A. No; there

was a house right adjoining this.
Q. They asked you for ammunition, and thon you went over to the store?

A. Yes.
Q. Did these men come in? A. Yes.
Q. When ? A. They called me into the store.
Q. Did they do anything when they were in there besides taking the ammuni-

tion you gave them ? A. Yes, some of them reached over and helped themselves to
things off the sholvoq.

Q. Without asking your leave ? A. Yes.
Q. What next occurred ? A. I had a friendly Indian with me, and he ordered

them to go ont of the store.
Q. What occurred after that? When did you leave the store ? A. I left the

store and went out, and thon they took me ovar to Mr. Quinn, the Indian agont's
house.

Q. Who took you over ? A. Wandering Spirit was the man that orderecd me over.
Q. Lid anything occur there ? A. They made demands there for beef of Mr.

'Qiiinn, and it was given to them, and theytalked very badly towards the white people
there ; and after that we went out, and they came into the house, and I charged these
things as they got them, merely as a show, as I had been accustomed to doing; and
they asked me what I was charging them with, laughing about charging the things
to them.

Q. Was that when you were in the store the first time ? A. After I came out;
I charged them in the house.

Q. Did you go back to the store again ? A. Yes, I went back several times.
Q. What for? A. Different Indians came;to me and wanted to get things, and I

could not refuse them. I dare not refuse them.
Q. Why couldn't you refuse them? A. Because they would have, just as likely

as not, blown my brains out.
Q. You were afraid to refuse them ? A. Yes.
Q. What happened after you gave those things out of the store ? A. Thon the

white people ail went to the church, and I was ordered to go to the church with
the rest.

Q. By whom ? A. Wandering Spirit.
Q. The white people all went to the church, and you were ordered by Wander.

ing Spirit to go? A. Yes, and some of these indians were standing around. They
ail had their guns there.

Q. They were all armed ? A. Yes, they were standing around the church door,
and the priest held or celebrated mass, and after that we went away again.

Q. You went away ? A. Al the white people.
Q. Where did you go? A. I went back to the store with Big Bear's son.
Q. What did you do when you got back ? A. le borrowed a flag from me,

Big Bear's younger son, and I gave it to him.
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Q. I want to know what occurred at Prog Lake, and what you saw, and under
what circumstances you s;aw it. I don't want to know all the goods they got out of
the store. When you were in the store something happened. What happened ? A.
Well, that was afterwards. I was in the store with one of Big Bear's band, and I
heard a shot fired.

Q. One shot ? A. Well, I heard one, and then there was a slight pause, and
then after that there was several shots fired in succession.

Q. What did you do? A. I ran out of the store and locked the door, and I
looked up the street, and I saw the Indians running around, riding on horseb ack,
shooting and yelling.

Q. Did you see anything else ? A. Well, I saw one of them chasing Louis
Goulet, and I saw two bodies lying down.

Q. Whose bodies were they? A. I could not tell from where I was whose they
were, but I knew they were Quinn's and Charlie Gouin's.

Q. How did you know ? A. Because I had seen them standing there just as I
went into the store.

Q. What were they doing ? A. I thought they were coming towards the store
the time I just looked around when I went in.

Q. Then, when you hoard shots fired and went out, you saw two bodies lying
where those men had been standing when you went in? A. Yes, just about that.

Q And thon, afterwards, you saw Louis Goulet doing what? A. Be ran past
me on the road. There was an [ndian running alongside of him with his gun pointed
at him, and another lIndian bohind him, between him and this other Indian. After
that there was an Indian ran up tg me and told me that Quinn had beon shot, and he
eays If you speak twice you are a dead man.

Q. Well, what did you do? A. There was a friendly Indian with me, caught
me by the hand, and ho said, come this way, and I started towards where the bodies
were lying, and ho says, go this way, ard ho turned around and went in an opposite
direction, and thon up at right angles again in the direction of the camp.

Q. Of whose camp?. A. Of the camp of Big Bear's Indians, and while I was
going along, I eaw Mrs. Simpson. The shooting was going on ail this time.

Q. Were those the only two men that you saw killed? A. Yes; I never looked
after that.

Q. And thon you went to Big Bear's camp? A. Yes.
Q. Wbat became of you after yon got there ? A. I was taken by the Wood Orees.
Q. In what way were you taken ? A. I was taken into the chief's tent, and he

told me that ho would see there was nothing happened to me.
Q. Why did you remain with themn? A. Because they were protecting me.
Q. How long did you remain with the Indians ? A. I was a prisoner -
Q. You were made a prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. Bow long were you dotained as a prisoner ? A. I was detained just exactly

two months.
Q. Where did you leave, how did you get away ? A. I left while the fight was

going on at Frenchman's Butte.
Q. While the tight was going on at .Fenchman's Butte-were you released ? A..

No, there was a small party of us ecaped.
Q. Were you at Fort Pitt on the 1-th April ? A. No, I wasn't there.
Q. Now, can you tell what any of these men were doing, what state these men

wore in, the men that you recognized, there are five that you recognized, can you tell
what they were doing at Frog Lake ? A. Well, they were in this crowd that were
ahooling, and they were with the band that ordered us around.

Q. Did you see any one of them doing anything in particular ? A. Well, not at
that time.

Q. Did you at any time afterwards ? A I saw Oos-ka-task.
Q. What did you see him doing ? A. I saw him take a horse from a haf-breed

a prisoner in the camp.
Mr. Bobertoon.Mhat doS not come under any of the acta charged,
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Mr. Scott.-I suppose not.
Q. Is that the only thing you saw him doing ? A. Yes.
Q. Do know how long those five men that you speak of remained with the b0a

during the time ? A. They remained up to the time I left.
Q. When did you last 'see these mon ? A. I saw them at Frenchman's Batt

before the fight.
Q. Do you remember whom you saw there, which of them you saw at FroI1

man's Batte? A. I saw them all-all the prisoners.
Q. That is, all those fivo ? A. I saw every one of the prisoners.
Q. The whole nine ? A. Yes.
Q. When, the day before the fight ? A. Yes, inside of two or three days befOre

the fight.
Q. Inside of two or three days before the fight you saw all the prisoners? '

Yes.ra
Q. What were they doing at that time ? A. Well, they were making a thi

dance, a lodge.
Q. Do you remember having seen any of them on the day of the fight? A.

I did not see any of these Indians thon. I was not within a mile of where they W
fighting.

Q. But before the fight did you see them, on the day of the fight, before it 00
menced ? A. No.

Q. You don't remember having seen any of them that day ? A. Not any of tb
We were not camped with the main body of the Indians. I only saw a few of th 0

just at the time.
Q. There are four you don't recognize as having seen at Frog Lake, that is,

1 .charged, No. 4, No. 5, No. 9. Do you remember having seen them afterw
any place-at the time of the thirst dance ? A. Yes, they were all there at theo
of the thirst dance.

Q. Did you se them more than once ? A. Yes, I saw them often. IQ. Between what times ? A. Welil, I saw them the 26th May, I saw ail of the
then.

Q. Where was that ? A. At the thirst dance.
Q. Had you seen them before that time ? A. Yes.
Q. More than once ? A. Yes, I saw them often before that, all of them.
Q. Then, is it a matter of fact from what you saw of them you concluded oY

were with the band all the time ? A. Well, there was one of them that waS
ho went out as a messenger.

Q. Which one ? A. The second one.
Q. How do you know ho went as a messenger ? A. Well, I saw him go

ready to start.
Q. Where? A. Prom Frog Lake. Or
Q. When ? A. It would be about the lst May, the latter end of AP

beginning of May.
Q. Did you hear him saying where ho was going to ? A. Yes.
Mr. Robertson.-Has this anything to do with the charges?
A. He was going to Turtle Lake to bring the Indians from there.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. Did this prisoner tell you that? A. No; I was told by a number of

By Mr. Scott:
Q. By whom were you told? A. Well there are not any of the pers 0 s

but I was told by Louis Patenaude who was in the camp, ho is a Wood 0ree.
Q. Was ho in the camp? A. Yes.
Q. In what position was ho in the camp?
Mr. Robertson.-I submit whatever his position was, or what ho was doingA

ho told this witness about what another man was doing, cannot be evidenOe•
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u0Ort.-Not by itself, but if it is one of a series of facts which led up to some-
g, it is evidence.

i8 IMIr. Robertson.-What took place at meetings where a conspiracy was going on
o doubt evidence, under the ruling in Frost's case, but what some person told this
ess about what somebody else was doing is not.
C0ourt.-lf he was one of the conspirators it is evidence directly under the FroSt

i. Robertson.-I think so, your Honor. If I recolleet the Frost case correctly,
l'as allowed to be shown what took place at a meeting held by conspirators, it

Og been first shown -
Cort.-A meeting at which those who were charged were not present at all.
'r. iRobertson.-Certainly, but it was what took place at the meeting where the
Piracy was going on, that being of course an overt act itself.
ourt.-But that was not an overt act, Mr. Robertson, charged.
r.11 Robertson.-I am not sure whether it was an overt act charged or not, but

t nidetion I draw is that the acts of the different conspirators may be given inne on the understanding that they are going to be connected in some wayer or later with the prisoners.
Court.-Exactly so.

r. Robertson. -But what one conspirator alleged-what one conspirator tells a,
as as to what another conspirator alleged but not proven yet, would not befllce

ho Court.--Oh, n of course not. If I gathered what Mr. Scott first understood
itt1this witness, was that it was a direct assertion made by this prisoner, and thom

out that some other one of the conspirators who is not here to-day said so-
.%o0 in the witness' presence, and if that was followed up, it would be evidence, yea

1'8 Way what that other one said.
r. Robertson.-I don't think it would be, your Honor.

COrt.--lf it culminated in an act.
e4 Mr. Rbobertso.-Your lonor sees that they're just proving the act by hearsay

tbi lourt.--We must not drift into that, if it simply stands where it is without any-.
further, I say at once, strike it out.

.- Robertson.-And I don't think it makes any difference. My learned friend
Wh at position this other man occupied. I do not think that makes any differ-

lu 'vhatever position he occupied, whatever he said to this man about another man
1ý videnice.

i4 rurt.-If he was one of a band doing an act or making an assertion culminatingat, and the prisoner was a party to it, it would be evidence.
SRobertson.-f in conjunction with a co.conspirator, and this man heard it,

1)ind be evidence, but where the evidence is merely that somebody told me, I noti
40t conspirator, that this other prisoner was gone off on a certain message, it la

dence. I don't think it is admissible at all.
4i 1 t.--It is not the ordinary way of proving it, I quite admit. The witness

' i asked the question at present, and we will see what it is followed by, and IL
y Whether it should be allowed or not.

Býy «Mr. Scott :
The man who told you this was a Wood Cree ? A. Yes.

id you see the second one charged ? Did you have a talk with him about it ?
di not peak to him personally.

W&t all events you saw him going away ? A. I did not see him.
W hat did you see ? A. Well, I saw that he was not in the camp; I saw hin

drparations to go away.
'&'Id youdid not see him going away? A. No.

did you see him about the camp afterwards ? A. No; not for several
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Q. Then you saw him again? A. Yes.
Q. And how long did ho remain in the camp after ho came back ? A. Well,

remained up until the time-he remained till 1 loft there; ho was there when I l
ther.

Q. At all events ho was there at the time of the thirst dance? A. Yes.
court.-Now, Mr. Robertson, we have it in this way as I take it: this No-

was absent for sometime from the camp for several days, but was there when th'e
witness escaped.

Mr. Robertson.-That is all it amounts to.
By Mr. Scott:

Q. How were you kept as a prisoner ? A. I was just told that if I was found'
tryiDg to escape, I would be killed.

Q. And you concluded it was advisable not to try ? A. Well, it was on acco""l
efthe other prisoners that I stayed.

Q. Why ? A. Thev said that if one prisoner was to escape they would kilt
the others, and that is the reason.

Cross-examined by Mr. Robertson: o
Q. The home of those men was with Big Bear's band, wasn't it? A. Yes, they'r

pjairt -f Big Bear's band.
Q That is where they always lived ? A. Yes, ever since I have known the0
Q. And you saw them with their own people on these difforent occasions? '

W,)l. there is one of them there I don't think belongs to Big Bear's band; hom
lrom Long Creek, about 35 miles from there.

Q Ho is one of the Wood Crees is ho? A. I could not say whether ho is
Wood Cree or not; there are some few Plain Crees living amongst them.

By the Court:
Q. Which number is that ? A. No. 4,

Ny Mr. Robertson:
Q. You have not identified that man before ? A. I did not identify him si

at Frog Lake.
Q. I speak of the five you have spoken of as members of Big Bear's bag

A. Yes.
Q. Their home was with the band? A. Yes.
Q. And you did not see any one of them do any particular act of wrong t

that you say is that you saw them there when others were doing wrong ?
just depends on the time you speak of. 0g

Q. WeLl, on these occasions at Frog Lake and at Frenchman's Butte thatre
have spoken of ? A. I thought it was rather wrong to come and threaten to bi
open the store. bio

Q. But did you seo any of these men attempting to break open the store
self ? A. Well, they were at the back. They spoke the same as Big Bear's soll
said we will break open the store if you don't give us ammunition.

Q. And they were in the crowd ? A. Yes.
Q. But that is all, none of them made any threat ? A; No, they did not threaB

me. o
Q. None of these five himself committed any act of violence ? A. I could

say that I saw-
Q. A thirot dance is not a war dance ? A. No. do
Q. It is a dance that they have every year or several times every yOar

they ? A. Yes, when they can manage it.
Q. When they can get the wherewitbal ? A. Yes.
Court.-None of this evidence has been interpreted, as yet, to the pris oner.
Mr. Robertson.-As te these Indians, I am just In this position, that IC8»1jI'

uothing against them except that they are members of the band. Perhaps it W0
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as well to interpret the evidence to the prisoners. (Evidence interproted accord-
",ay.)

thizXr• Robertson asks that the prisonels be told to listen, and say if there is any-
t Wrong in the evidence of the witness, or if they want any further questions put

the witnesses to let him know so that he might do it.. (Ttiis is accordingly done.)
By Mr. 1Robertson :

Q. Did you see any of the nine on the occasiôn of Frog Lake massacre, at the store,
llat happened immediately afterwards, or afterwards at Frenchman's Butte ? Did
80 any of them commit any act of violence yoursolf ? A. I did not see anything

kyself. That second man came and ordered me to fix his buckboard on the 26theso
avo good reason to remember that ho was there. I saw none of the prisoners com-
any act of violence on the 2nd Apil or 28th May. I saw No. 8 close to his

Il e was carrying a gun and yelling out the war-whoop.
9. No. 8 says the time the trouble was going on-the Frog Lake massacre ho

rs5 to I suppose-he was over at the tents ? A. I met him just while the shooting

e8stil1 going on. I met him close to the tents, and ho had his gun in his hand, an
s calling out the war-whoop and running-he was walking along fast with his.

nin his hand towards where the shooting was going on. No. 6 I saw just stand-
otside the door. Some of the rest of them being inside.
0. Where did you seo No. 6 fire, in all these places? A. I say he was with the

Q. Do you recollect Oos-ka-task particularly that morning in the store ? A. Yes.
I.e says ho went there and ho had some money and ho bought some tes from
A. I remember him getting that, but ther. they all got stuff, and they asked

toa their accounts, but it was just a more-
9. Never mind your opinion-they asked for thom on their accounts who habi.
y had accounts with you ? A. Yes.
Q. And what these mon got they asked for on their own accounts, and that it
d be charged to them ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Scott :
Q. Did any of them pay for anything they got that day ? A. I might have got

,ao two shillings from them, in cash from some of thom. I don't remember now
oortain.

. Oos-ka-task says ho paid 75 cents with which he bought tea and sugar ? A, I
he did do that.
SDo you remember at what time ho was in the store ? A - Yes.
Wat the first time you went over to serve out the ammunition or after-

A, Yes, ho was there the first time.
q- 11ow many were there the first time ? A. I should think there wore about

t 3. qWho got the ammunition, how many of them ? A. They took it and divided
0 t1gst themselves.

a Did they say anything about the ammunition, about giving it to them in the
W hen you were in the store; 1 think you said that some one came to you and

Yo togiv the ammunition, and If you did not give it--they made some threat,
t htwhat you said ? A. Yes.

. IThat was efore you went into the store ? A. Yes.
. Were there many there when ho told you this? A. About twenty.
• Was Oos-ka-task ono of thom ? A. Yes, ho was with thum.

ta' Was ho there when that threat was made? A. Some of them were standing
e the door, and the house was full, and it would be hard to -

'on can't tell whether he heard it or no L? A. No.
.at ala events you went over and gave how much ammunition ? A. There

about three pounds of powder.
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Q. low much had you in the store ? A. Perhaps three or four pounds of ball,
that was all I had. I had sent it away before this by the police.

Q. You gave them all the powder and hall that there was in the store ? A. Y®
Q. And they divided that up ? A. Well, they took it away in a lump.
Q. Were you paid for that ? A. No.
Q. Did you charge it up? A. Yes.
Q. Who did you charge it to? A., I charged it to the Indian Department.

By the Court:
Q. Is that what you mean by charging ? A. No, I charged some of it to the

personal accounts.
By Mr. Robertson :

Q. The Indians regularly keep accounts with the Hadson Bay Company,
they; and settle up after the end of the year, after the trapping is over, isn't that tih
general custom ? A. Well, they regularly keep accounts it they can.

Q. I mean, if they can, and they settle up when their trapping is over, thGY
settle up with peits and things they bring in, isn't that the general way? A. Y
they don't always seule up, but they promise to.

Q. But that is the usual practice, a good many of them do settle up, don't thOY
A. Yes.

Q. And the company don't generally give credit to those that they don't
pay ? A. No, not those that are not in the habit of paying.

By the Court:
Q. And I think you have told us that the company had accounts with ail th*s

A. Yes.
Q. Open accounts ? A Yes.
Q. Of the nature , hat Mr. Robertson speaks of? A. Yes. Oos-ka.task came box

from Battleford just a few days before this thing happened at Frog Lake; hOeo
down at Battlefôrd a few days before this, Frog Lake, 2ad April.

By Mr. Scott :
Q. He was there on that day, though ? A. Yes.

JOHN PRITCHARD, sworn-

Examined by Mr. Scott:
Q. You were interpreter for the Indian Department at Frog Lake? A. e
Q. Were you there on the 2nd April last ? A. Yes.
Q. What happened on that day? A. Well, that was the day that the masa

took place at Frog Lake.
Q. Did you see any people killed there? A. There was one.
Q. You saw one? A. Yes, 1 saw one, it was Charles Gouin, but I did noV

the man who shot him, be shot him from behind.
Q. Did you se any others who had been killed; any other bodies there? ,

No, not that dby. Af
Q. About what time was it that Charles Gouin was killed? A. Second day

April.
Q. What time of day ? A. It must have been about 7 or 8 o'clock I SUPPOO"

in the morning.
Q. Had there been anything done before that? A. Yes. d00Q. What was done? A, I went to the Indian agent; the Indians asked

beef.
Q. What Indians ? A. Band of Indians that was there.
Q. Big Bear's band ? A. Big Bear's band.
Q. They came to ask for some beef ? A. They asked for some beef.
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9. And you referred them-you went to the Indian Agent ? A. I saw the
rProter and I went to the Indian agent and interpreted that the Indians wanted
, and so they got beef, and thon after that they took us to the church.

q . HQEIow did they take yon to the church ? A. They drove us like a band of
P With their guns from behind.
QSett0. Whom else besides you ? A. Al the white people that were there in the
timent.
Q. They drove you to the church ? A. Yes.
Q. They wore driven to the church by the Indians who were armed ? A. Yes.

i8ig 9 After they got to the church what did they do? A. They staid there wait-
titi the mass was over.

the Q. Then after the mass was over ? A. After the mass was over we got out of
Church
Q. Q And thon what was done ? A. A while after, that was the time that I heard
shots going.
Q- Well, where were you when you heard the shots going ? A. Getting near

Q. You hoard some shots fired ? A. Yes, I heard one shot first, and thon several
% afterwards.
Q."Were thore any Indians close to you at the time ? A. Yes.

Did you hear them saying anything about it ? A. Yes.
9. And then afterwards you saw Gouin killed ? A. Yes.

And shot ? A. Yes.
Q Who was standing around there besides you ? A. Well, I did not take notice
o Was standing around me at that time, only when I looked around I seon
as around.

Any besides the Indians? A. Well, it was only Indians I seen.
ho~ 9.There was only Indians around at the time Gouin was shot? A. Yes, and

y took me to my house, and thore was a band of Indians in my house all armed.
to They took you prisoner? A. Yes, I asked them to see my family, and they

ie and there was a band of Indians there.
The Indians took possession of your house ? A. Yes.
After that what was done with you ? A. They took us to the camp.
As prisoners ? A. Yes.

oW long did yon romain prisoner ? A. Two months.
Did you romain or were you released ? A. I escaped.
Whon ? A. After the battle of Frenchman's Butte.

& About how many prisoners had they in the camp during that two months?
Q. t know exactly the number.

There wore others there bosides you ? A. There was a good few.
A. good few prisoners ? A. Yes.

the Wre you at the battle of Frenchman's Butte? Did you see any fighting
A. No.

Yid you hear of the fighting ? A. I heard the shots, and I heard the cau-

yý > id you hear any of the Indians say as to whom they wore fighting against?

' hon? A. They were fighting the soldiers.
hat soldiers? A. Government soldiers.
a was at Frenchman's Butte? A. That was at Frenchman's Butte.
ere you takon to Fort Pitt at any time ? A. Yes.

Q. en ? A. It was on the 15th April.9 00 the 15th you were taken as a prisoner to Fort Pitt, 15th April ? A. Yes.
Q Jthe same Indians? A. Yes, by the same Indians.

bat was done at Fort Pitt? A. They killed one man there again.
ho was that man ? A. Cowan.

'dYou see that man killed ? No, I did not see him killod.
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Q. Did you see his body? A. Yes, afterwards-two days afterwards.
Q. What else did they do there besides killing this Cowan ? A. Well, they

ransacked the fort.
Q. Plundered the fort, I suppose? A. And plundered the fort.
Q. Where did they go after doing that? A. They went back again to IOß

lake.
Q. And how long did they remain at Frog Lake? A. Up till the lst of May.
Q. And then they moved where ? A. Downwards towards Pitt.
Q. And which direction from that ? A. From Frenchman's Butte right north'
Q. But you loft them at Frenchman's Butte? A. Yes.
Q. They moved down from Frog Lake to Fort Pitt and Frenchman's Butte?

k. Yes.
Q. On the day of the battle you left them? A. Yes.
Q. And you don't know what became of them after except what you have heard,

au ? A. No.
Q. Do you know the prisoners ? A. I do.
Q. Al1 of them ? A. Yes.
Q. What band do they belong to? A. Well, the first one belongs to Onion Lak0

band. His name is Nan-e-sùe. The fourth one belongs to Long Lake.
Q. Do you remember the others? A. The others belong to Big Bear.
Q. With those two exceptions they all bolong to Big Bear's band? A. Yes.
Q. Do you remombor having seen any of thom on the morning of the massacre,

en the 2nd April ? A. Yes.
Q. Whom? A. I seen the second one and the third one, and the sixth and the

seventh.
Q. The others-do you know whother or not they were there on that day ?

No, they were not there.
Q. They wore not there that you saw ? A. The first one, I am sure he was

lhere.
Q. Can you swear positivoly that the others were not there on that day ?

Tes, the first one and the fourth one.
Q. Where were thoy? A. Well, the first one was at On ion Lake; on the

.April he was at Onion Lake, and the fourth one was at Long Lake.
Q. How do you know ? A. The way I know it was us that were attending t"

the Indiana, and we knew who wore thero that day, and I knew who came afLerwa'.

By the Court :
Q. They came in afterwards ? A. Yes, they came about the 5th April.

By Mr Scott :
Q. Whon did you see the fifth one, Nah-pacc-is ? A. I seen him a while tee

in the camp.
Q. Then he was not there on the 2nd April ? A. No.
Q. During the time you were prisoner did you see all the prisoners bore ?

Tes.
Q. More than once? A. Several .times. I saw them often. hører
Q. From what you saw are you in a position to state how long they werO tb

when they came in, and how long they rernained ? A. Well, they remained in0
camp of course till they were captured, becauso when I left the camp they wero
there yet. oy

Q. Those that were there on the 2nd April remained with the others ti
escaped ? A. Yes, until I escaped.

Q. Nan-e-sue came in a few days after the 2nd April? A. Yes.
Q. The fourth ? A. Ho was there at Frog Lake 2nd April.
Q. Nah.paceis, when did he corne in ? A. He came in a while after.
Q. What do you mean by a while after? A. About ton days after.
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Q. Before they went to Fort Pitt ? A. I don't recollect whether it was before
h was at Fort Pitt or after.

Q. The 8th, when did ho come in ? A. He was there.
Q. At Frog Lake ? A. He was there at Frog Lake, on 2nd of April.
Q. And No. 9 ? A. He was at Frog Lake on the 2nd of April.
Q. Nan-e-sue and the fourth came a few days afterwards ? A. Yes.
Q. Nah-pace-is came in ton days afterwards ? A. I have seen him in the camp.
Q. But you don't know whether ho came in the camp before going to Fort Pitt

the 15th of April ? A. That, I am not positive sure of.
Q. Then all the others, bosides those three, wore at Frog Lake ? A. Yes.
Q. And I understood you to say remained in the camp until the rest-with the

at Until the time you escaped ? Remained with the rest as far as you saw?
.4. -ras.

Q. And you saw them frequently during that time in the camp ? A. Yes, for
o Donths.
Q. Now, did you see the plundering of Fort Pitt ? A. Yes.
Q. Did you see the Indians plundering the fort ? A. I saw the Indians in the

Q. And plundering ? A. And plundering, yes.
h Q. Do you remember whether you saw any of these prisoners there ? A. Yes,
ae sen them on top of the bill before they went down to plunder the fort. I

all of these prisoners up the hill, before they went down to the fort.
By the Court :

o . You saw the whole of the prisoners, did you say ? A. Except Nah-paceis
•5. I am not positive sure of him.
Q. You saw thom ail there ; did you see any of them plundering ? A. No.

h Q. Did yon see any Indians plundering ? A. No. The only thing that I saw,
I ar positively sure of, is that a horse belonging to the Indian Department,

ah-pace-is had in his possession all the time, the two months.
By Mr. Robertson :

Q. Did that horse come from Fort Pitt ? A. From Onion Lake.
By Mr. Scott :

akOQ What did they do with the houses and stores and their contents, at Frog
b gA. Well, I saw a blaze on the house, from a distance, that the houses wera

Q Do you know whether anything was done to them before they were burnt T
't became of the goods in the stores for instance, do you know ? A. No, I don't

Swhat become of the goods, because the houses were barnt after I was in the

Did you see in the Indian camp anv goods that you recognized as being taken
rog Lake, or from Fort Pitt ? A. Yes.

Q. You saw in the camp some of those goods ? A. Some of those.
th Q. Taken from where ? A. Taken fron Frog Lake, bat the goods were not&

"' that I saw in possession of the Indians.
Q. But you did not see any of these particular prisoners ? A. No.

• Did you recognize any of the goods that were taken ? Did you see thea
o ag"E .in any goods from Fort Pitt store ? A. Yes. Tho second one there had.

ailsis, and I think it was out of Fort Pitt. That was all I saw.
Q. That is all you saw ? A. Yes, that is all that I saw.hQ . Do you know what the object of this rising was ; or did you ascertain froni

laus themselves what the object of the rising was ? A. No.
You never heard anything about it ? A. Nover heard anything about it.

là, ' Do you know what they intended to do when they came down towards Fort
g9t after the second time, and Frenchman's Butte ? A. Well, they intended ta
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Q. How do you know ? A. Because I heard some of them-.
Q. You heard some of them say so ? A. Yes.
Q. That they were going to fight? A. Yes, I heard Wandering Spirit Bayil"oe

xearly every day, that they were determined to fight.
Q. Did ho say that to you alone or did ho say it publicly ? A. Publicly.
Q. That they were determined to fight whom ? A. Any white he would mee

ho said.
Q. Did ho say what the others were going to do? A. No.
Q. Did you see any of those men at Frenchman's Butte the day of the fight

A. I seen them the day before.
By the Court:

Q. Saw whom ? A. I saw these prisoners over here the day before the fight.
Q. What were they doing ? A. Well, they were getting ready. They We

making holes called rifle pits, and then the day of the fight I did not see them.
Q. You had some other business to attend to? A. Yes, we got out early in

inorning.
Q. What other preparations were they making for fighting that day? A. Th

was all that I seen. They were making rifle pits.
Q. Doing anything else ? A. No.
Q. Had they any arms? A. Yes; every one had arms.
Q. Were they usually armed ? A. Well, for three weeks they carried aleae

their guns.
Q. Well, were they in the habit of all carrying guns before that? A. Yes, t

Indian hrs a habit of carrying a gun.
Q. You said for three weeks they were armed ? A. Yes, constantly, everY d

after that.
Q. Well, were they in the habit of being constantly armed before? A. W'e

as soon as an Indian wants to go off a piece ho bas a gun to start with.
Q. You say that you saw them preparing for fighting by digging rifle pits ?

'Yes.
Q. Did you see those prisoners at that work ? A. I have seen them that day.
Q. And you don't remember that you saw them making any other preparatiOa

A. No.
Q. Did you see any of them in the rifle pits ? A. No.
Q The day before the fight occui red was there any excitement in the ca0P

A. Yes.
Q. What was the cause of it ? A. They had seen the troops.
Q. And was it then tbey commenced making rifle pits? A. Yes.
Q. And that was the preparation they were making for the battle ? A.
The court here asks the witness to tell the prisoner in Cree what ho bas sa

Mr. ilourie to check, if necesEary. This is accordingly done.
By the Court:

Q. Wandering Spirit stated to the Indians his intention to fight the whites ?
He always said ho wanted to fight.

By Mr. Scott :
Q. Did you hear him say anythirg as to the intention of the other IndianIs? .i

I have heard him often, nearly every third day anyhow, say that he was deter'
to fight. do?

Q. Did you hear him sqy as to what the other Indians were oing to dat
]NO, the only way I used to hear is, pity me, help me to fight. That is Wha
always used to say to the Indians.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. He was begging them to. belp him ? A. Yes.
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By Mr. Scott:
Did any of them answer him? A. No, I never heard any Indian answer

By Mr. Robertson :
9. Where wore you the day before the fight at Fronchman's Butte? A. I was

fiere, just at the place where the rifle pits were put, built.
Q. Wera you there ail day ? A. Yes, ail day.

. low many Indians were there there altogether? A. Ail the Indians that
ere in the camp- every one was there, I don't know the nur ber.

Q. You are prepared to swear to that, ail the Indians that were in the camp
e there? A. I did not know of anybody getting out of the camp.

. And therefore you suppose that all were 'there that were in the camp?

9.IBut people might have gone out of the camp without your knowing it,
gltn't they ? A. They might.

Q. Did you tell us how many Indians were there altogether in numbers? A.
'Y Would number about 300.

Q. Did you see every oe of thoFe 300 there ? A. A man could not Rne the

-'Oie of the 300 at a time except he goes to count them and see who were there,
-1 culd not do that.

Q. You did not do that? A. I did not do that.

Are you prepared to swear positively on y our oath that you saw every one
ese nine prisoners digging rifle pits that day ? A. .No.
Q. You could not swear to that ? A. No, but they were there.
Q. You could not swear that you saw all of them digging rifle pits that day?

1oe; but they were there.
Q. They were in the camp you mean ? A. No. they were-
Q. You are sure they were nine of the 300 that were in the camp ? A. Yes.
9. That is what you mean by their being there ? A. Yes.
Q. What is this war-whoop that we have heard spoken of? A. I don't under-

the war-whoop.
Q. Well you know that the Indians have a way of shouting someimes ? A. Yesi
9. And'they do shout if they are going to have a fight? A. Yes.
9. Or if there is going to be trouble? A. Yes.
9. Do they also shout whenever thete is any excitement of any kind ?- A. Yesw:

Do they always shout when they are excited ? A. Yes, when they are
%4 , they shout.

• And would there be anything strange in an Tndian shouting in this way
ltie saw that trouble was going on although be might not intend to take part in

Oneourage it ? Do you understand me ? A. Y es.
Q. Weil would there ho anything strange in that? A. No.

So that this shouting could not mean, as a mai ter of conrse, at ail events, 't
eldnot mean that he wanted to encourage the murderiig that was going on ? A.

,that i; the way the Indian gives himself couiage-he shoutis.
Well, he would shout if ho saw that teing done, if he saw a murder being

itied, for instance, he would shout whether ho intended to stop it or to join in
dn't ho ? A. He would shout enother way if ho intended ia siop the mur-

fig. Hle would fnot shout that way. Be would shout to try and stop it.
- Re would sbout in either case? A. Yes.

And you don't know any particular war whoop? A. No.
' OW long have you known the Indians ? A. I have known them for years.

• A great many years? A. A great many years, yes.
And you are familiar with their customs? A. Yes.

j ' Another thing-isn't it a fact that whenever there is excitement of any kind
ny reason, the Ind ian is sure to pick up bis gun when he runQ out ? A. Yes.

. And it does not mean that ho is going to shoot, necessarily? A. No.
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By Mr. Seott:
Q. The war-whoop is a continued cry-is it not ? A. Yes.
Q. Under what circumastances do they use it ? A. Well, as I say, it 16

encourage himself-encourage himself if ho is excited.
Q. To do what? A. Weil, if ho is on the fight.
Q. If a man is going to play, ho doos not give the war-whoop, does ho ? A.
Q. Weil, iL is to encourage thom to do what? A. Well, if ho is on the fight.
Mr. Robertson.-Tho wiLuOs-4 has said ho knows no particular war-whoop.
fjourt -Yos, ho said thua; ho has not spoken of any whoop that ho heard at
Q. Are lndiants in the habib o1 shouting ? A. Yes.
A. Under what circummtances ? A. When they are dancing they shout;

*hout any time. When they'Ée dancing they shout.
Q. Did you hear any of the Indians crying out or shouting on that day, the 2

April ? A. No, I don't remember of it.
Q. Did yon hear any of them crying out or shouting at any time after the

April, when you weie with them ? A. Yes, when they were dancing.
Q. Was there anything peculiar in it ? A. No, not that I know of.
Q. Well, how wore they shouting, or were they shouting in the way that 1

always heard them shouting betore-you say they always shout? A. Yes, just
shout.

Q. How did they make it; did they use the hand at ail? A. No, they uWd U'
throat.

Q. I mean, did they put their hands up to their mouth when they are shoa9w
A. No.

Q. Did you ever see an Indian shouting that way ? A. No.
Q. With his hand at his mouth ? A. No.

Ms. CATHARINE SIMPSoN, sworn-
Exainned by Mr. Scott:

(Examined through the interpreter.)
Q. Where do you live ? A. Fort Pitt just now.
Q. Where were you living on the 2nd April ? A. At Frog Lake.
Q. Your husband is the clerk in charge of the Hudson Bay store at Frog Ia

A. Yes.
Q. io you remember what happened on the 2nd April ? A. Yes.
Q. What happened ? A. There was murder committed there.
Q. Did you seo any of the murders committed ? A. Yes.
Q. How many? A. I saw one.
Q. Who was that ? A. Indian agent Quinn.
Q. Any others ? A. I saw another person fall there, a priest.
Q. Was there any trouble that day with the Indians ? A. Yes, there

trouble, they pillaged.
Q. What Indians? A. From Big Bear's band.
Q. What did they pillage ? A. Everything.
Q. Where, at Frog'Lake ? A. Yes.
Q. What did they do with the settlers at Frog Lake? A. They killed th'
Q. All of them ? A. Not ail.
Q. How many did they kill ? A. 1 could not say for certain what num1 bor,

I think it must be nine.
Q. What became of the rest ? A. I only know of two-two women. b
Q. I am speaking of ail the settlers, male and female, what became of the o

sottlers who were not killed, yourself among the number? A. The remaindr
were not killed were taken to the Cree camps.

Q. By whom ? A. It was through the Indians that we were all takea
camp.

Q. How long were you kept? A. Two months.
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Wo re you kept as prisoners during that time? A. Yes, we were taken as

t Q. And how did you leave at the end of the two months ? A. Those Indians
we were with parted froôn the others, at the time of the fight.

.Q- Were you at Fort Pitt after you were taken prisoner ; were you at Fort Pitt
t the 15th or 17th April ? A. No, I was not at Pitt.

&. Do you remenber the Indians going down to Fort Pitt about that timeI
esI remember it.

Q. What did you do when they went down there ? A. We remained in the damp..
At Prog Lake? A. At Frog Lake.

.Do you know these prisoners ? A. Yes, I know the whole of them.
Q. Do you remember seeing any of them at frog Lake, on the 2nd of April?
saW them all there.

Q. You saw them all at Frog Lake ? A. Yes.
Q. On the 2nd of April, the day of the killing ? A. I don't think No. 5 was there.
. Any of the others ? A. I could not say if the whole of ther were there.

S• Hlow about the first one, Nan-e sue ? A. No, he was not there.
No. 5 Nah-pace-is ? A. I could not say positively for any others.
Point' out those that you are sure you saw at Frog Lake ou the 2nd April?

ei. Iobertson.-She cannot ay positively, and the Crown should not press her.
Ir. Scott.-I asked her in the first place if she saw any of these prisonera AL

Lake, and she said she did.
QI Can you say definitely whether you saw any of these prisoners at Frig Laka

o, ye2nd April, the day of the massacre? A. 1 saw Dog-Tail, No. 8; Oos-ka-taak,
,and No. 6.

Q. And any others ? A. Those three that I mentioned, I am positive they wer
, but for the others I could not say positively that I saw them there.

q. I suppose you know all these prisoners ? A. Yes, I know ther all.
q. Thon the others that you have not named may have been present without

Of th remembering ? A. They might have been, but I might not have taken nodis

.&, -y Did you see all the prisoners in camp afterwards while you were a prisoner?
, I seen them there.
Did you see all of them ? A. The whole ofthem.

OW often ? A. Every day while we were with them.
t ' Then you know that they were in the camp nearly all the time, or all the

you were a prisoner? A. Ye5 , they were there ail the time.
Do you remember seeing any of tuem about that time, or what wre they

h y were in camp? A. They used to dance; they were danci g.
What kiud of a dance was it ? A. I don't know what sort of a dance it was.
Were they armud during the time they were in camp? A. Always armed.
What were they doing ou the day of the fight, or about the time of the fight?

etY had a dance in the evening.
di Did you sec the tight? A. I saw firing. I saw and heard people firing, but

,ot see anyone killed.
Where was thits? A. At Frog Lake.
Dtt id you sec any firing at Frenchman's Butte ? A. That day, at Frenchmans
e were outside of the camp when we heard the first shot.
Q I 1 you know there was going to be a fight that day ? A. Yes, we knew.
Q. bw did you know ? A. The soldiers were approaching the Indian camp.

od Did you see them or did you hear about it? A. They got word that the
ere coing, and they were preparing to tight that day tbat they did f4gi.e What nreparations were they making for fighting ? A. They were digging

tnd holes and .putting up earth.
%4t idyou see an v of these men working at the rifle pits ? A. I could not say
f %e' Of them were there, because I did not go near to se them working atthosox

e itting up a piece one side
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Q. These men Ihat you saw at Frog Lake, Ka-ke-we-pabtow, what was ho doiß$
A. i taw bim outside at the company's store there.

Q. Doiug anything ? A. No, I could not say that he was doing anythiiig..>
Q. Ocs-ka-task ? A. Oos-ka-task, I think, came to buy tea-came to the Store,

buy tes.
Q. Atimyoo? A. I saw himinside of the store.
Q. Did you see any of ibeml doing anything else ? A. I saw them running fr

house to house.
Q. Were they carrying anything ? A. I could not say that they had
Q. Did you see them among the crowd that were killing the whites?

By Mr. Robertson :
Q. This is really goirg very far it seemns to me. It should be, " where did Ye4

ee tùhem and what were they domng ?" A. I could not say.
Q. Wben you say Ibat you saw them running from bouse to house, doyou0e%

-ou saw the Indians, generally, iunning from bouse to bouse, or do you mean any
Iese in particular? A. The people, Indians in general.

Mr. Scott.-Q. Did you see thesepeople runningfrom bouse to bouse; wha
you kee thm doing ; did you see these three men rurning from house to house?

Mr. RobertEon.-Your Honor, really, this counEel bas gone very far in led
Ibis witness.

Mr. Scott.-I submit I have a perfect right to ask Ibis question. I ask DO«
you Fee any of- these three men running from house to bouse ?

Mr. Robertson.-I object to the question as being a leading question.
Court.-Tbis would be right enough. You first asked a question which ,brOig

Ilrt ont, that she saw others, other Indians running from bouse to house-nw Y00
2nay ask ber, quite legitimately, if she identifies any of these prisoners as sø

i'hese?
Mr. Scott.-It arises out of the cross-examination by Mr. Robertson.
Mr. Robertson.-Not at al], she is your own witness. I asked ber if, wheOf

spoke of Indians running from bouse to bouse, sbe referred to indians in gener ti
any of these in particular, and that is as strong as my learned friend could Pu
lhimself, and she replied to me that it was people in general.

Court.-I sh ould say ibat Otbers running frcm bouse to bousereferred to0 000
geimerally, includirg the prisoners. That is wbat would strike me, and then $
asiked wbat does she mean by that, and she says ehe does not mean the prisolor.

]Ur. Bobertson.-That is it. 00
Court.-And then, Mr. Scott, I tbink, bas a perfect right to say, does she be

that ? Re may ask ber which is correct. Ber statement which would includ X
prisoners or the qualified or reduced ore which she gives to Mr. Robertson. l
le may aek ber, in rebuttal, wbich of ber stories is correct. The stories aro
lastent. Oef

Mr. Robertson.-I maintain this, my Iearned frierd had attempted to prov 0e0
Iis witnesp, that she saw these prisoners or some of tbem running about fromi aß
Io bouse. Be bd asked one question referring particularly to these prisoner,Il.
then asked another mnerely usirg the pronoun " tbey," ard in reply to bis ques
".Did you see tbcm doing anythirg ehe ?" she said >he saw them running abon fo
lic to bouse, ard to explain ibat, I asked ber, when she said that, did she re
the 3lrdians generally, or any of the men in particular, and she replied, I refer O,
Io the lîdians generally, rot to these men in particular. There is notbing lnc

e-nt about it. My'learned frierd bas no right to lead ber after that, and tO
ihese particular ones were some of them.

Court-She may be asked which she means. e 9
Mr. Robertson.-I bave already asked ber the question, what she e

abe has explained it. Oro 0 0
Mr. Scott.-I want the jury to understand whether or not these prison

running about among the rest.
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]r. Robertson.-You should have brought that ont in your examination in chief.
Scott.-I did bring it out.

]r. iRobertson.-Then you have it if you brought it out.

By the Court :

. Were these prisoners, or any of them there; and if so, which ?
, 4 and 5.

By Mr. Robertson:

A. Yes

1 q, They were there running about, were they ?

By the Court:

A. No; they were not there at

yWere any of these prisoners among the Indians that were running about that
omn house to house, among those that you speak of as running about ? A. Nos.

9 aud 2.

By Mr. Robertson:

>1. Where did you see No. 2 running from? A. I saw him running from the
People's house to my house.

q . Where did you see No. 7 running from ? A. I saw him there, but he was
tInn3ilg about.

> . Where did you see No. 8 running about? A. He came running from the
tman's house and went into the store, ran into the stores.
' q* When was that ? what time of day was that ? Was that while Mr. Cameron

here in the store ? A. While Mr. Cameron was there.
. 1n the morning ? A. It was not very early in the morning.
S]But it was in the morning ? A. Yes, it was in the forenoon.
• Was it before or after the killing ? A. Before.

Q. No. 9, where did you see him ? A. I did not see him running from any
but he was standing outside at the house, there.

When was it you saw No. 2 coming towards your house fro m the white rnan's

> ?th Was it before or after the killing? A. I was so confused I could not say
er it was before or after the killing.

t. )id No. 2 steal anythirg, to your knowledge ? A. No; I could not say
Iii did not see him.

Did No. 8 steal anything, to your knowledge ? A. I could not say that he
%Ything.

'l"1» PEERY, sworn
-Examined by Mr. Scott:

On the 2nd April I was at Moose Creek, 20 miles beyond Frog Lake*
14- When did you come into Frog Lake after the 2nd April. A. On Good

yl I think it was, the 3rd April.
Q. 'What were you doing out at Moose Creek? A. Making timber logs.

b in What did you come into Prog Lake for on that day ? A. Well, I came in to
bkItl church I thought, and at the same time to get some work dono - some

o draw our logs with-by the blacksmith who was there.
th' What did you find when you got there ? A. The first thing I found after I

qt rhe Was one Indian-when I came in the camp I saw one Indian, and I jurnped
%4." horse and went to shake hands with him, and he got black and pale in the

n?4d Louis Goulet ran right for me, end said to me: What do you come here
o sorry to see your faue here; all the white people are dead. A nd they

tt.q' Whiat did you do after Goulet spoke to you ? A. 1 went to John Pritchard's

% tLY did you go to Pritchard's tent ? A. Because -Goulet told me to go there,
25yelf.
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Q. Where was this tent? A. That was in Big Bear's camp.Q. What did you find when you got there? A. I found a tent, pretty nea
family. Two women were there. Mrs. Delaney bowed to me,-but I did not answ
I tried to hide myself. Johnny Pritchard's wife told me to go away.

Q. What reason had you for hiding yourself ? A. Louis Goulet told nO
Indians swore to kill all the white men.

Q. Did you see anything there that led you to suppose that his statement
true ? A. I saw two white women crying.

Q. id you see any Indians ? A. There were a few Indians around the
tent.

Q. What did Mrs. Pritchard do ? A. She told me to go away from her tont
did not want to see me in her tent.

Q. Where did you go to thon? A. Louis Goulet-I went to an Indian
Claudio.

Q. You went to his tent ? A. I went to his tent.
Q. And what did they do with 3 ou afterwards ? A. He told me, I will bO tl

your horse, and when [ go to Fort Pitt and kill the police at Fort Pitt I will give 10

your Canadian horses from thete.
Q. That is what Claudio told you? A. Goulet told me.
Q. Did you hear him say that yourself ?

By Mr. Robertson:
'. Do you understand Cree ? A. No, just u jew words.

By Mr. Scott:

Q. Weil, how long did you stay in the camp with the Indians? A. I gUes
June we got into Fort Pitt. I stayed all the time with Mr. Maclean.

Q. Why did you stay there ? A. I did not see any way for me to get awayr'
Q. Well, did they keep you there? A. They used to keop me there.
Q. Were you a prisoner ? A. I think I was. g
Q. Weil, thon, you remained with the Indians until sometime in June? A.

June, I think, I came to Fort Pitt.
Q. Were you at Fort Pitt about the 15th or 17th April ? A . I was not t
Q. You got into Big Bear's camp on the 3rd April? A. There w a

Indians there already thon, the Big Boar and Bush Indians wore altogether a
Lime.

Q. There were other Indians there besides Big Bear's band ? A. Yes. 1 j4
Q. How long did you remain there at Frog Lake, how manydays? A.

not toll..Pit01
Q. When did you first go down to Fort Pitt? A. I did not go to Fort Pito

after they came and took the police themselves, and got back to Frog Lake aga
Q. Thon you were not down to Fort Pitt when they took the otlice ? A.
Q. And took the fort there-you were not down at that timc ? A. NO. > .
Q. But thon you went down afterwards, were you at Frenchman's Butte

Yes.
Q. At the time of the fight ? A. Not at the time of the fight, but thre 0

away. T
Q. Were you there at Frenchman's Batte the day bof ore the fight? .

before the fight as near I caa remember, wu were at one coalée three mites
than the regular Frenchman's Butte.

Q. Were there many Indians there the day before the fight, in the coulé et
you were ? Where was the main body of Indians on that day ? A. As near as
tell they wore right there in that coulée. thQ. The larger portion I suppose were there? A. The biggest part of ethe'
I did not notice that there was anuy missed. I thought they were all ther tog ir

Q. At least you saw a large number, and you tlought they were all? '
1 sa w a large tent.
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What were they doing on the day before the fight ? A. Well, in the morn-
ti.hey moved from this bottom of the coulée up the coulée a little, and they began

diRpits.
9 What for? A. Some holes in the ground, so they told me, to hide a woman
child, and a man went farther to dig some more.

l'or what purpose ? A. I understand -
Where were they dug? A. I did not go myself.
Who told you what tbey were for ? A. The man that I was stopping with.

% Who was that? A. William (Claudio) Gladhue. He told me in French.
>ýe 'What did he tell you they were for? A. He said, I want you to come and

a pit.
Por what ? A. He did not tell me what for. He said, come and help us

a 4 pit, and his wife said she would like to go herself, and his wife and another
went on horseback, and I stopped there.

Q Did you see them diggingL pits ? A. No.
ow do you know any of these mon, the prisoners ? A. I know two. No..

Cl'ti kniow bis name, and No. 7.
1Q. Where dia you first sou these men after you came into the camp? Or did
se them with the Iaianb a ail? A. I saw No 4 at Frog Lake, the time the

s had Lents.
When was that? I could not tell you what days it was.
Was it atter the 3rd ot A p il ? A. After the 3rd of April.

1 L. Ii that the first time you saw him? A. I seen him probably eight or ten
-4£ter I came into thu camp.

At Frog Lake? A. At Frog Lake, of course. I remember seeing him.
This man Nu. 7, where did you first so him, on or after tho 3rd of April

44Lot sure.
Q Did you see any of the others with the band who had you prisoner ? A. I
L but 1 don't know them. They are not dressod the same as they wore at that

o. 4, did you see him doing anything at any time. A. I seen him watch-
O dance lodge. 1 saw him as a watchiaa at the door of this dance lodge.

4 >what was the dance, do vou know ? A. I don't know. He had a hammer
etimes he had a etick in' hie hanîd, to kuep any young one from bothering any
aht Was dancing.

Was that the only thing that you recollect seeing him do ? A. Yes.
No. 7, what did you seo him doing, or did you seo him doing anything? A.

]lot see him doing anything, only walking around in the camp.
q ]Eow manmy times did you see him? A. I could not tell how many times.

e i might have seen him two or three times on Saturday, and sometimes
o two days without seeing him at all.

Did you see any of them about the time of the Frenchmau's Batte fight?
h '. 4, I saw coming through the camp with the Indian I was stopping with. I

h Pass a couple oftimes. He went towards Joha Pricchard's tent and came
n, and went towards the rifle pit thon they wero digging. We were mak-

P Pits too at the same place we wore camped.
e What pits did you see him going towards ? A. He was going on the fa-

e nt the camp where thoso other mon were digging rifle pits.
o. 11w do you know they were rifle pits? A. Bocause William Gladhuo told

Ceeurn and asknd me to go thero.
-'obertbon.-Tat is not evidence.

-8U -Mr. Scott,:

' as that on the day of the fight? A. That was the day before?-' Was ho carrying anything? A. Not that I know of.
-ad ho any arms? A. I did not see no arms on him that day.
04you say that he had no arme that day? A. No, Ican't say it,
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Q. You mean you did not notice them ? A. I did not notice.
Q. No. 4, did you see him armed that day ? A. I don't remember. th
Q. Well, about these rifle pits, the only information you have about them iS

Giadhue told you there were rifle pits there? A. They made us make some O
right where we were camped. They called that a rifle pit too.

Q. Was it at the bottom of the coulée or on the side ? A. On the side of th
coulée.

Q. They were digging some holes there? A. They made me dig some tnO.
Q, Did you hear any of them say what they were for, besides William Gladha

A. Well, William Gladhue and bis wife and some other one there said that they
going to make those holes to bide themselves -the women and young ones. rQ. Do you know whether any other pits were made besidos those that We
the women and children to bide in ? A, The biggest part of the women, and childere
young ones, all had pits to hide themselves.

Q. Do you know of any others that were dug besides those that were to bide tii
women and children? A. I did not see it myself, I only saw all the men taking
and picks to go and make some. . 4

Q. You saw men, that is Indians ? A. Indians, and some women, with pick
axe and pick and shovel.

Q. Which way did they go; were they going up the side of the coulée? A•
the side of the coulée.

Q. You did not see what they did ? A. I did not see what they did.Q. Did the fight take place there at that coulee ? A. Well, the first ti"
heard-the first shooting I heard-I was about a mile and a half or two miles
there.

Q. But you don't know whether the fight took place there or not, in that con
around that coulée? A. I don't know anything, only what I heard from the h
breeds and Indians in the Indian camp, when they came in the camp.

Q Were the Indians you heard this from in the same band with these prisofers
A. They belonged to the same band i thought.

Q. In the same camp? A. We were camped pretty near always together. th
Q. And you say you heard from some of those Indians something about

fight ? A. Yes.
Q. What did you hear ?
Mr. ]Robertson. -That is not evidence.
Court.-They're Indians of the same band.
Mr. Robertson.-The mere fact of their being Indians of the same band does

make evidence against these prisoners. Let him show they were conspirators,
thon statements made by co-conspirators.

Witness.-Some were talking to Mr. Maclean and us all, they were talking
everyone, we were camping.

Q. What do you mean by everyone; were there other Indians ? A. Âil t
Indians that were there, and the prisoners.

Q. What did you hear them say? A. " Police, police," that is the first w
heard, the Indians said that in Cree, " they're coming," I understand that in'
too, and they began to fight. Al the Indians turned right back from there and W
towards the camp, I did not see them go right to the fight, I saw them leave the p

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. When you say all the Indians went, you mean the great majority Of th

went? A. The biggest part of the Indians that I used to see in the camp. ?
Q. But you could not say that every single Indian that was there Won

19o, because I did not see the whole of them. at
Q. As matter of fact, don't yon know that a great many of them did not "

all but went back ? A. They might. (This is interpreted to the prisoners.) bø
Witness, in answer to the court.-One whose name I don't know caeno

camp, and told Mr. Maclean and Mr. Maclean told me right off.
Q. Did you understand him? A. I understood him, " police, police," aud
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e4RY JHALPIN, sworn

Examined by Mr. Scott:
Q. Where were you on the 2nd April ? A. I was at Coal Lake.
Q. How far is that from Frog Lake ? A. Between tiirty and torty miles.

. Wbat were you doing there ? lin charge of the post of the Hudson Bay
Pany there.

8 .•When did you come into Frog Lake after the 2nd April? A. I got in on the
y following, whatever day of the month it was.

Ilow did you happen to come in on that day ? I was taken prisoner by the

. Do you know what Indians ? A. Indians under Big Bear.

. f Big Bear's band ? A. Of Big Bear's band, yes.

. At Coal Lake? A. Yes, [ was taken prisoner at Goal Lake.
Q.And were brought into Frog Lake? A. Yes.

dt4.q And you got there on the 5th, and how long did you remain there; were yol
ed as a prisoner? A. Yes, I was sixty-two days a prisoner.
• Of the same band ? A. Yes.
. Did you go down to Fort Pitt about the 17th or 15th ? A. Yes.
' iow ? A. The Indians took me down.

I hWat had occurred there ? A. Well, there was a sort of a little skirmish there
he Police, and Fort Pitt was taken and looted.

lAnd what became of the people who were in the fort? A. Some of them
taken prisoners by the Indians, and the rest of them-the police went away.
. And others who were in the fort? A. Were taken prisoners.
. Were they detained? A. Yes.

.Uow long ? A. I don'% know how long; they were detained up to the time

bid you see the looting of Fort Pitt? A. I was on top of the hill when itgoiI3g on.

ey 'rousaw the Indians sacking the place ? A. I did not see them; I knew
redoing it,

t, ow do you know that ? A. Because they went down to Fort Pitt with that
o N when they did leave.

ý 1ow do you know that? A. I saw a good many of the Indians with theI their possession, after they had done it.
ell, did you hear any of them say anything about it ? A. I heard lots of
ing about it.

T you or among themselves? A. Among themselves, and to me too.
%r ?hat were they saying, as to their intention, when speaking among them-

A. Well, that they wero going to try and get what gooda they could get,
and be well off for a while.

i dthey say where they were going to get the goods? A. They started
ort Pitt for the goods when they left.
as there anyone killed at Fort Pitt that you saw ? A. Yes, policeman Cowan.
1 y( U see him killed ? A. Yes, I saw him fall off his horse when he was shot.

4 y Whom was he shot ? A. Shot by a man who was killed at Fort Pitt.
thernd was that man alone when he was shooting, or were there others? A..
Q.r was a whole crowd of them shooting.
Q.here did the shooting occur ? A. Right on top of the- hill, at Fort Pitt.

Q. Yany Indians there ? A. Two hundred or three hundred.
Q, ]n nain body were there, near the place where Cowan was killed? A. Yose
to y ey sacked Fort Pitt, and where did they go atter sacking it ? A. Took s

Q. ro ake.
how long did you remain there ? A. At Frog Lake,till about the 5th May.
where did you go then ? A. Down to Fort Pitt again.

t the ain body? A. Yes, with the whole camp.
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Q. And from Fort Pitt where? A. Travelled all about the country, anyWher
at all that they wanted to take us.

Q. Were you in the neighborhood of Frenchman's Butte the 28th of May?
I got away that morning.

Q. You mean you escaped ? A. I escaped. &o
Q. Any trouble there on that day or the day before ? A. Thero was some

ing going on. I could hear the firing going on.
Q. Did you know what it was about ? A. I had a very good idea of Wh

was about. 0lQ. Did you hear from the Indians what it was about ? A. I heard frOPW
the Indians talking about it.

Q. You hoard them talking about it to whom ? A. Amongst themselvOs.
Q. That id where you gained your information ? A. Yes. . ?
Q. About what tho trouble was about; what was the information you gai0.

A. Well, that tho soldiers had come; the policemen had come, and they were
to fght them, and try and get the prisoners out of their hands. or

Q. And did you hear the Indians say anything as to what they intended to
A. Yes, I heai d they wore going to fight.

Q. Do you know whether or not they did fight ? A. They did fight.
Q. Did you bee them ? A. I did not see them fighting. pt
Q How do you know they fought? A. I could hear thom. For the most

of the time I was only ù00 or 600 yards from where they were fighting.
Q. 'bat was on the 28th May ? A. Yes. 0l
Q. What were they doing on the 27th ? A. Well, the 27th, we were emploi

Q. What kind of pits ? A. Pits to keep out of the road of shell or bullewof
anything that wanted to come into the camp.

Q. Where were they'? A. Just over the hill at Red Deer Creek. Thore
reek and a hill, and thon we were back of rising ground, and bohind that

,ground. h
Q. You were not in the coulée of the Red Deer? A. Yes, I was right i1

coulée of the Red Deer. That is what I am alluding to.
Q. Were these pits on top of the hill or were they not, or whereabouts? 

ýSome of then on top of the hill. The pits where we were, for the prisoners
women were back over the side of the hill.

Q. How do you kvow there were rifle pits on top of the hill ? A. Beau
saw them.t he

Q. Do you know by whom they were made? A. No, I could not pick out
special person.

Q. Do you know whother they were made by- ? A. Made by Indian t fr
Q. lluw do you know ? A. Because I heard some of the headmn-X

ing SpiriL among others-come and tell his young mon to come and do it.
Q. Come and do what? A. Dig pits.
Q. Did ho say what kind of pits ? A. No, he did not.
Q. Thon you saw these pits up there afterwards? A. Yes.
Q. This was the day before the fight? A. Yes. 106
Q. Do you know whether they were making any preparations besides d g

the pit; were they doing anything else? A. There was a sort of skirmish th
in the afternoon about 3 o'clock. We could hear cannons fired at then three ti
at a few Indians outside.

Q. Where were you at this time? A. In digging pits in the camp. eoefQ. Do you know any of these mon ? A. 1 know their faces, all with the
tion of one.

Q. Which one is it you don't know ? A. No. 5.
Q. Did you see them while you were a prisoner in that camp ? A. ®h
Q. Did you see No. 5 at any time ? A. No, I don't recollect seeing t

at all.
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Q. Yon don't remember his face? A. No.
9. Where did you see the others ? A. In the camp
Q. When ? A. Daring the time I was prisoner.
Q. More than once? A. Yes, I saw them frequently.
Q. Have you any means of telling when you first tatw them in the camp after

Otarrival. and when you last saw them ? A. I don't romember when I saw thea
e'% take them all one after another, I could not tell exactly what day I saw
erll on, but I saw them frequently during ail the time in the camp.

Q. Thon they formed part of the camp I suppose? A. Yes.
Q. You saw them frequently? A. Yes.

. Have you any recollection of anything done by any one of them ? A. No, T
O nothing special against any one of them.
9. Do yo remember having seen any of them on the 27tLh or the 28th of May?
yes,I think there was the first and second there ; i think 1 saw them the day
re I left.

By Mfr. Robertson:

Q. That was the day before the fight ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Scott:
9. What were they doing ? A. Just walking through the place where we

%'naking rifle pits.
9. What did they do when they were walking through there, or did thoy do

tIg ? A. The only thing I saw them do there was eating.
Q. Were they armed? A. I did not pay particular attention to whether

YWere or not; I could not swear at the time I saw them whether they were armed

.Do you remember having seen any of them at Fort Pitt on the 16th or 17th'
es1 do.

Q hich ? A. The 7th I remember seeing him, and the first one and the
t0 0 .

Q. You saw those there that day ? A. Yes.
Q. What were they doing ? A. Walking.about on top of the hill.
4. Did you see them at the fort ? A. No, I did not ; 1 was not at the fort that
lyself.

• Was it before or after the fort was taken that the Indians got possession of
the fort, you saw them walking about on top of the hil ? A. Before, andrtoo.
•. Would you swear whether or not they were down at the fort? A. I would

S'Wear they were, and I would not swear they were not.
q. But you saw them in that neighborhood on that day ? A. Yes.

. Did you see them armed at any time, any of these men ? A. No, I can't
a any one personally, and say that i can remember at any time seeing them
they were nearly all armed then; I suppose they were armed.
What was the condition of the camp as to arms ? A. The condition of the
e6 verybody that had arms kept them by them.
They were an armed party ? A. Y es, they were.
]k you know anything about the Indian customs ? A. Yes, a little.Do you know what a war-whoop is ? A, No, 1 don't.
YOu don't know anything about it? A. No.

AXE ' 3 the Indians in the habit of shouting ? A. Yes, they generally-I heard
oflbutng.

' jnder what circumstances ? A. Almost any circumetances.
) • Then, the fact of an Indian shouting is not to be taken very strongly against

• No, I don't think so.
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By Mr. Robertson:
Q. How long have yon been acquainted with the Indians and their customs ?

About fourteen years.
(Interpreted to the prisoners.)

WILLIAM TOMPKINs sworn:-
Examined by Air. Scott :

Q. You live at Carlton, I understand ? A. Yes.
Q. And you are interpreter for the Indian Department ? A. Yes.
Q. You were taken prisoner near Duck Lake on the 18th March last, were o

not ? A. Yes, at Batoche.
Q. By whom ? A. Riel and his followers.
Q. What did bis following consist of, what number ? A. Four to five hun
Q. In what state were they ? A. Rebellion.
Q. They were in rebellion ? A. Yes.
Q. Armed ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know what their object was? A. As far as I can understand tb1

wanted to have a new government.
Q. Was there any ighting? A. Yes.
Q. With whom? A. With the police at one time.
Q. Where ? A. At Duck Lake and Fish Creek, with the troops under Gen

Mid.iieton and at Batoche aio.
Q. On what date was Batoche ? A. 12th May.
Q. Were ) oU a prisoner up to that time ? A. Yes.
Q. On the 18th March ? A. Yes.
Q. Rld by these men ? A. Yes.
Q. Any people killed ? A. Yes, quite a number killed.
Q. Where ? A. There were nine that I took off the field at Duck Lake.
Q. There were nine killed at the Duck Lake fight, when was that ? •

March, nne votunteers-I don't know how many police were killed.
Q. Were there any other prisoners besides yourself ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. How far are Duck Lake and Batoche from Frog Lake? A. Four han

miles. I siould think.
Q. iow far from Fort Pitt ? A. I could not say how far it is. I don't knOw

distance from Pitt to Frog Lake.

By the Court:
Q. You have probably not been up there at all have you? A. No.

By Mr. Bbertson :
Q. What distance is it commonly reputed to be from Duck Lake and Bat *t

Fort Pitt. A. Well, there is different opinions on that. I have heard it aid
400 miles, it is 200 or 250, I don't know exactly.

Q. It is a long distance at all events? A. Yes, quite a distance.
(Interpreted to prisoners).
Case for the Crown here closed.
Mr. Robertson for the defence says he as no witnesses.

ADDRESS OF TIHE CROWN COUNSEL.

Mr. Scott.-May it please your lonors, and gentlemen of the jury. You
heard all the evidence that we have been able to gather to throw light up oba0
laid against the prisoners. You have observed that all the evidence we cOul Io
ts from the prisoners who were in Big Bear's camp from the 2nd day of A.P%
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4t the 28th May, some of them after that date. Now, as I said in my opening
i4 th' s I doubted whether we could from any of the evidence that we have collected
tis case, bring home to any one of these prisoners any glaring outrage in connec-

tha With the rebellion, and as it turns out, the evidence has not disclosed anything of
«ind. It has disclosed this much, however, that these men were present in the

df Big Bear and other bands who were associated with him, and that those,
2 4d '*ere in open rebellion against the Government. That rebellion commenced the
b ril at Frog Lake, at which the settlement there was taken possession of
4Z l[hans--perhaps by these. It is not shown conclusively that these Indians took
ty Part in that outrage, but it is shown that it was taken by Indians with whom

WerOe living and actirg.
Afterwards at Fort Pitt on the 17th April, that place was attacked and looted, and
coman was killed tnere by this same Indian band, and thon on the 28th May at
f hInan's Butte, a battle ensued between the mounted police and the soldiers, the

o 0,Bof the Government on one side, and these same Indian bands on the other.
te s possible that at the massacre at Frog Lake, that if these men had severed
1oni .conection with the other Indians who were guilty of that massacre on that

t there would have been no charge against them, but they must have known
ki~l -time-an Indian must know as well as anyone that it is against the law t
tJ person that if he continues to associate with people whose avowed objeot is
a lug of unoffending citizens, and travels around the country committing out-

of 5 lik nature, it is scarcely proper that they should escape punishment. An
Shas got to be taught as well as any other person that he must not associate
.aracters of that kind, and that if ho does associate with them, and becomes to
l extent a party to those transactions, that he must be punished for thera

%a1
1 g1y. Those who have committed any of the outrages, those who have

:0o , and who have been secured by the government will be punished in their
iper course for the crimes they have committed; but having been part of whieh,

Ot safe I submit to your Honors and gentlemen, that those men should be
tito Igo entirely free, because if these mon are to escape punishment, thon the

S 'will not be safe at any time. These men being led to believe that although
Xay join a larger body of mon who are committing outrages of that kind and
Part in them, that unless they take a leading part and commit somo outrages1% 4eves, they will escape and be allowed to go Iroe again, thon we will have these

a*s1h in all parts of the country, and there will be no safety for the settlers.
here is no question but what the offence these mon oommitted, although r-
a light offence as compared with the outrages some of the others committe,is

44tle against the law, and a punishment should be meted ont. Perhaps I am
pting in saying this, I assume, and I think you will assume that the evidenoe

i cnclusively that although some of those prisoners-it is not ne cessary for me

tgish whom, were at Frog Lake-it is shown conclusively th at a short time
e scre those who were not there on that occasion continued with the band

a 1ined with them at least up to the time of the Battle of Frenchman's Butte,et) reshown conclusively by the evidence. It is shown also that that band was in
in ®lhon against the Government, that they were travelling around the country

etting depredations of all kinds and were in a state of open war, and these men
th ther, and that is the offence with which they are charged ; that they were

tell P'r'ng with others to levy war against the Government. I think his lonor will
kt 9ihat that conspiracy je sufficiently proved if it is shown that these men were
bv4"" conjunction with those who wore actually levying war against the

rnent
eoertson.-I have nothing to say, your Honor.

JUDGE'S CHARGE.

Gentlemen, these nine unfortunates before you are in your hands to say
they should be loft free or subjected to such punishment as the court may
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see fit to award them. The offence which is charged against them is one of a sin,
mature to some that have already been tried in this court room, and probably the
ingof it is so well rooted upon the minds of everyone of the communityand evere,
who has heard it, that it would be quite unnecessary for me and a waste of t
with no good result, to detail to you fully what forms the offence. This muche
my duty to tell you, that they are chargod under what is called the Treason-.F01 4

Act, with having been assembled and assisting in rebellion against the Governe
In our form of procoeding, there are two methods by which those prisoners co1l
tried; one would be a summary trial before mysolf, the other, as we se it lo"
according to the election of the prisoners, who eleoct how they shall botried.
have said they prefer being tried by a jury, and that is the purpose for whichl1Ol
are empannelled. ce

Now, ail I think I shall tell yon will bo this, that it is not absolutelY 'lr
sary, in order to constitute this crime, that a man should be seon carrying a rifleo
bayonet or a sword. That is not necessary at all. If a number of mon band e9
selves together. The law I am now reading to you is so dpropos and meetdh
ease In a few words, meets every case of the sort in a few words, and I cannot, I t
do botter than give you the words of the highest court of the land in a series Of
similar cases: of

" If a number of men band themselves together for an unlawful purpOse ir
the unlawful purpose which is charged here is rebellion,) and in pursuit Of
object, commit murder, it is right that the court should pointedly nefuse to ae
the proposition that a full share of responsibility for their acts does not exteo
the surgeon who accompanies them to dress their wounds, the clergyman who !ttop,&
to offer spiritual consolation, or to the reporter who volunteers to witness and r"e'
their achievements, the presence of anyone in any character aiding and abettoi6bV
encouraging the prosecution of the unlawful design, must involve a share i»
common guilt." b

Now, there are two points that I wish to draw your attention to. YO 0
heard the evidence here. Taking it as an axiom that no man should be broun i
guilty unless the conclusion is brought irresistibly home to the minds of the Ï
that the evidence has established guilt against him, the first question which I 0j
you to ask yourselves, and I want you to answer yourselves, is, was there a S lverp
rebellion? That is one thing. If there was a state of rebellion against the l0
ment, were these men aware of it? If they were aware and cognizant of it, thouge
they by their presence in any capacity, did they aid and abet ? Now those agr
questions. If you find that they did, if you cannot draw any other conclusi"n Y o
istibly, as I say, come to that conclusion, then the verdict should be " guilty. t tb
the other hand, you fall short of an absolute conclusion upon this evidence tbat f
are implicated, then you ought to say " not guilty." Now, it may be that Int

finding them all involved, they are not all involved. If that should be the cas
will recollect it should be your duty to say which of them are so involved. Of
are, then it will be a general verdict of acquittal. If some are and otherb not
think the evidence brings home guilt to some and not to others, why naetar
some. They are numbered as they stand from left to right, and you cau, 111
ing and giving me the result of your deliberations, either give the number Oc
name. es

You will now retire and consider, and ail that I ask you is to recolleCt end are
in mind that they are entitled to the same corsideration, notwithstanding tbelole
Indians, they are entitled to the same consideration at your bands as if theY
white. ,o eife

Jury retire at 3.30 p. m., and return in one hour with a verdict of " guiltyp
of the jury adding " mercy."

Court adjourned to pass sentence on 25th instant.
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QUEEN vs. POUNDMAKER.

14th. CANADA 1
West Territories f

lttohe information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city of Iam-
i • the Province of Ontario and Dominion of Canada, chief of police, taken the

ei 13h day of August, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and
an tf-ve, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in

or the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith: -
hat Po-to cah-han-a-wa-win, otherwise called Poundmaker, not regarding the
Of his allegiance, but wholly withdrawing the love, obedience, fidelity and

ti gance which every true and faithful subject of our Lady the Queen does and of
t Ought to bear towards our said Lady the Queen, on the second day of May, in

44aYear of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other
%1I, as Well before as after that date, together with divers other evil disposed per-

I4 tdo the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, did, within the Dominion of
a, compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend to levy war against our said

%e the Queen within Canada, in order, by force and constraint, to comp)el her to
4"90 her measures and counsels, and the said felonious compassing and imagina-
by lovention, device and intention then feloniously did express, utter and declare,
ervers Overt acts and deeds horeinafter mentioned, that is to say, in order to fulfil,

and bring into effect his felonious compassing, imagination, invention, device
1ilrtention aforesaid, ho, the said Pe-to-cah-han-a-wa-win, otherwise called Pound-

afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-seventh day of March, in the year aforesaid,
ja 1divers other days and times, as well before as after that day, at and near the
a ty called Battieford, in the North-West Territories of Canada, did conspire,
S tonfederate, assemble and meet together, with divers other evil disposed

1 s to the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, to raise make and levyt'action and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen within this realm.
en 'Id further, to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonious compassing,j4 nation invention, device and intention aforesaid, ho, the said Pe.to-cah-han-a-wa-

ierwise called Poundmaker, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-ninth day of
n the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as

eta day, at or near the locality known as Cut Knife Hill, in the said North-
èi oerritories of Canada, together with certain other evil disposed persons to the

-d exander David Stewart unknown, feloniously and wickedly did express, utter
ei lare h is said felonious compassing, imagination, invention, device and inten-

e h tho feloniously publishing a certain letter or writing addressed to one Louis
v was then with certain other evil disposed persons to the said Alexander

t qL Stewart unknown, in open reballion and insurrection against our said Lady
t, en, in the said North-West Territories of Canada, in the words following, to

lo Louis RIEL: CUT KNIFE HILL, 29th April, 1885.

1 Want to hear news of the progress of God's work. If any event has occurred
"&rour Imessengers came away, let me know of it. Tell me the date when the
.4e à Will reach the Canadian Pacific Railway. Tell me all the news that you
s rd from all places where your work is in progress. Big Bear has finished

44 ho has taken Fort Pitt. If yon want me to come to yon let me know at
o s5aid, and I sent for him at once. I will be four days on the road. Those
nd0u1gone to se him will sleep twice on the road. They took twenty prisoners,

p massacre at Fort Pitt. They killed eleven mon, including the agent,
and six white men. We are camped on the creek just below Cnt Knife

jïli.ting for Big Bear. The Blackfeet have killed sixty police at the Elbow. A
od Who interproted for the police, having survived the fight, though wounded,

his news. Hore we have killed six whito mon. We have uot tapn the
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barracks yet, but that is the only entire building in Battleford. Al the cattlO b4
torses in the vicinity we have taken. We have lost one man, Nez Percé killOd
being alone, and one wounded. Some soldiers have come from Swift Currelit,
I do not know their number. We have here guns and rifles of all sorts, but arnl
tion for them is short. If it be possible, we want you to send us amnvuitig
various kinds. We are weak only for the want of that. You sent word that
would come to Battlford when you had fnished your work at Duck Lake. tio
wait still for you, as we are unable to take the fort without help. We are iP o
to reach you. It would give us-encourage us much to see you, and make Us
more heartily. Up to the present everything bas gone well with us, but e

oinstantly expecting the soldiers to visit us here. We trust that God will be as
to us in the future as ho bas in the past. We, the undersigned, send greeting to
ail.

"POUNDMAKER.
"CO-PIN-OU-WAY-WIN
"MUS-SIN-ASS.
"MET-TAY-WAY-IS.
" PEE-YAY-CHEE W.

"When this reaches you, send us news immediately, as we are anxious o
the news. If you send us news, send as many men as possible." *00

He, the said Pe-to-cah-hamn-a-wa-win, othewise called Poundmaker, then 0he
knowing that the said Louis Riel and the said other evil-disposed persons were
in open rebellion and insurrection against our said Lady the Queen. . gr

And further to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing, ,
nation, invention, device and intention-aforesaid, he, the said Pe-to-cah-han-a-W. go
otherwise called Ponndmaker, afterwards, to wit, on the second day of May, d
year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as after th ¢
at or near the locality known as Cut Knife Hill, in the said North-West Terri
of Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet together, with di ,
other evil-disposed persons to the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, to
make and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, 
this realm, and further to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonious co0Pbas
imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Pe-to-cabd's
wa-win, otherwise called Poundmaker, afterwards, to wit, on the fourteenth gd
May, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-fiv, e:e
divers other days, as well before as after that day, at or near the place called
Hills, in the North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid,with force and armse
and feloniously did assemble, mect, conspire and consult with certain otber
disposed persons to the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, to seize a'
possession by force certain goods and merchandise belonging to Her said Majs ¢o
Queen, Which were tben being carried and transported from the locality knor,
Swift Current to the locality known as Battleford, in the said North-West Terrî 0
aforesaid, for Her said Majesty, and for the use and benefit of Her said Majs ¢
contempt of our said Lady the Queen and her laws, to the evil example of al
in the like case offending against the form of the statute in such case na
provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, ber Crown and digDity.
Sworn before me the day and year first above)

mentioned, at the town of Regina, in the A. D. STEWnT'
North-West Territories of Canada.

HuGa RICHARDSON,

A Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the said North-West Territories.

And take notice, that you have the option of being tried before a stiP Ote
inagistrate and a justice of the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, or a
a stipendiary magistrate, in a summary way, without the intervention o0

Which do you elect?
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MONDAY, 17th August, 10 a.m.

Iefore Mr. Justice Richardson and Dr. Dodd, J.P.

The Queen against Poundmaker.
Messrs. B. B. Osler, Q.C., T. C. Casgrain and D. L. Scott appear as counsel for

Crown.
Mr. F. Beverley Robertson counsel for prisoner, with Mr. J. H. Benosh.
Mr. Peter Houre sworn as Cree interpreter.
lndictnent read to the prisoner, and interpreted while it is being read.
Clerk to priÉoner.-Are you " guilty "or " not guilty " ? Prisoner says he is "lnot

Clerk.-Are you ready for your trial?
]ir. Robertson.-Quite ready.

aClerk to prisoner.-These good men that yon shall now hear called are those
are to pass between our Sovereign Lady the Queen and you. If, therefore, you

ohallenge thre, or any of them, you must challenge them as they come to thek to be sworn, and before they are sworn, and you shall be heard.
A jury of six is now called and sworn.
Clerk reads indictment to the jury. On this charge the prisoner at the bar has

11'e arraigned, and upon the arraignment has pleaded " not guilty." Your duty,efore is to enquire whether "guilty" or "not guilty," and hearken to the

Ikr. Scott.-Gentlemen of the jury, the charge against the prisoner which yon
nJst heard read is for an offence of a very serious nature, but you will gather

the evidence that will be produced in this case on the part of the Crown that it
740t the mnost serious offence that could be charged agaiust him, and fully supported
he same evidence. It has been thought advibable, however, that the charge for

à0 anore serions offence of treason should be preferred only against the one who was
nWtl to be and who has been proved to be the instigator aind leader of the late
on in the north, and that those who were merely followers of that leader

11d be charged only with the leasser offence of treason-felony, which is the charge
preferred against the prisoner. In speaking of the rebellion in the north, I am

7ing of a matter of common notoriety, and one In which the events and circum-
e connected with it are doubtless well known to you all; but I may here tell
that it is your duty to put aside from your minds altogether any knowledge or
.tion as to the fact of the rebellion having existed in the north or of the events

'eurmstances connected with it or of the prisoner's complicity in it, and in dis-
1 8 Of this case to consider only such evidence as may be produced before yon
> 'nY, relating to that rebellion and to the circumstances connected with it. We
, 'Ywever, prove that there was a rebellion in the north ; that about the 18th

> last, in the neighborhood of Batoche and Duck Lake and the South Saskatche-
. large body of half-breeds and indians, under the leadersbip of Louis Riel,

t epen rebellion against the Government, and with the avowed intention of
Go rowing the Government's power in that part of' the country and setting up a

fràtJeit in opposition to it; that about the 25th Mach last, these rebels met a
Of Mounted police and volunteers at Duck Lake, under the leadership and

kM4'3d of Major Crozier; that an engagement ensued, and that a large number of
%%leears and policemen were killed and wounded during that fight; that afterwards

ral occasions these same rebels met forces of the Government under General
on and fought them, and that a laAge number of lives were lost and a good

people wounded; and that these rebels were in open and active rebellion
et the Government from the 181h March till the 12th May, when they were

,Med by the forces under General Mid.dleton, and Riel himself, the leader, was
4 t4a «Plisoner and the prisoners taken by him were released. I forgot to mention

trst place that the firet open act of rebellion on the part of those rebels was
e and plunder certain houses and stores of the settiers in that part of the
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country who were not in sympathy with them and make other settlers prisoners, a
all that happened on the 18th March. That was the first open act on the part Of
rebels in that vicinity.

That is a history of the rebellion in that part of the country, so far as it reIte,
to the case against the prisoner. The prisoner is a Cree Indian, the chief of a bad
of Crees, who are living under the Government's protection and occupy a reserle
situated about forty or fifty miles west of Battleford. They were residing peaooa'
on their reserve until about the end of March last, when the prisoner with his bau'
left the reserve and marched towards Battleford. On their way to Battleford theY
were joined by a number of other bands under different chiefs, who were settled UP00
reserves in the same neighborhood. These other chiefs became subservient to the

risoner, and he was recognize I as the leader and chief of the whole body of theoo
Indians. They went to Battleford, reaching there on the 29th and 28th of March
On their approach, the residents of the town (settlers) became alarmed and
drew into the police barracks there for protection, and. the Indians then saoked ah&
plundered the business portion of the town of Battleford and the Government buildJ»O
in the vicinity. For a reason, whioh appears in the lotter which you have just
read, or possibly for that reason, they did not attack the fort, but they retired fr0o
the vicimity of Battleford and went to a place called Cat Knife Hill, which, 1 undr
etand, is about forty or fifty miles west of Battleford. There they remained un
some time after the 2nd of May. Somatime daring the month of April, some r
sengers from the rebel camp at Dack Lake and Batoche arrived at the prisofl0
camp at Cut Knife. They brought with them a letter from Louis Riel.
bis so called council, which was handed to Poundmaker, and read to him, inter
preted to him in his own language. This letter is written in French, bUt
have a translation, which I will now read to you. (Mr. Scott here reads the lete
referred to, and set out in fal in paper annexed to this.) That is a translation of t,
letter that was handed to Pound maker and read to him. Sometime after the rece8P t

of that letter, the prisoner, w'th a number of others who were thon in the camp W
him, presumably his head mon, dic ated a letter, presnumably in reply to the letter-a
have just read-the letter which was read to you in the charge. However, r
read it again, as it follows in the natu-al sequence. (Mr. ScotL hore re-reads leth
referred to in the indictment.) After this letter was dictated by the prisoner and th&
others, it was handel to one of the rebol messongers frorm Bat.che, who was thon
the camp, for delivery to Louis Riel. On the 2nd of M-ty, Col. Otter, in comniand e
force of Government troops, moved out from Bittleford, apparently with the int 1

tion of reducing the prisoner and his band and the other bands to subjection.
came up to tho prisoner and his band to the camp at Cnt Knife Hill, and a fight 0
there. The troops were opposed by the Indians. The prisoner himself was seen 0 aj
battle-&uld apparently directing the movements of the Indians against the trooPs
was driving about from one place to another in a back-board, I understand.
Otter withdrew bis troops and returned to Battleford, leaving the prisoner and hte
band in possession of Cnt Knife. They remained there for some days after that fir,
but finally the whole band, under this prisoner's commandi moved towards 9I1D
Lake, that is, they passed apparently south of BÀttleford and went along in an
-erly direotion, which is the direction leading to Duck Lake. About the 14th
while on their way to Duck Lake, they attacked a number of traaspart teasni wll
were conveying Government stores fromi Swift Current to Battleford for the h
the troops thera. Thoy seized aud plundered these wgg )ns and the stores that
contained, and made prisoners of the teamsters; and then, as I understand, I ,
en towards Duck Like. However, shorti after the attack on these team7s e,
sport teams-and after the rebels had been defeated by aeneral Middleton at B jol
tho prisoner, with his men, came in and surrendered to General Middleton
Battleford. ø

Now, you will understand that under this charge, as laid, it is not neces
prove that the prisoner actually levied war against the Q.îeen-agiint the God
aont. It is only necessary to prove that he conspired with that intention, an
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'designed and intended to levy war. We are going further than that-wo ara
g to show that on these three occasions I have mentioned he actually levied war,

>'5, first, at the sacking of Battieford, 27th Kareb ; second, in opposing the Gov.
%t Iet troops at Cat Knife ill, 2nd Nfay ; and third, in the attack and seizare oftransport teams, and the taking of the prisoners thera. That is not necessary, a%

d before, but the letter that I have just read to you, which ho dictated to Louis
is evidence of his intention and design to levy war; but the acts which I have

rnentioned to you are the very best evidence of such an intention, bocanse, what
r eidence could you have of his intention to levy war than the fact that war
actually levied by him ?
1 Will now proceed to call the evidence for the prosecution.
noBERT JEFFERSON, sworn

Examined by Mr. Scot:
Q· Where do you, live, Mr. Jefferson ? A. I live in Battleford, or near Battleford,
Q. Whereabouts near Battleford, at what place ? A. Eagle Hils.

What is your occupation ? A. I was for six years a schoolmaster on Eagi.
reserve ?
• What was your occupation in àfarch last ? A. I was farm instruetor ou

dnaker's reserve.
Q. You were farm instructor on the prisoner's reserve in &arch last ? A. Yes.
Q. Thon you were living on his reserve ? A. I was living thera.Q. You know the prisoner, of course ? A. I know him.
Q. bid you see him on his reserve in March last ? A. I did.
Q. Up to what time was ho there ? A. Up to the morning they went away.

1. When was that. A. It would be about the 26th, I think. I would not bS
Whether it was the 25th or 27th.
q he. went away ; was anyone with him ? A. I did not see them going away,

said ho was going. He said ho was not going to ask anybody to go, but he
not tell thom to stop if they were going with him.
• He went away himself, that is what ho said ? A. Yes.

"bis is now translated in Cree to the prisoner.)
t, Where did you next see him after ho went away ?-A. I think it would bu
tb l&IRt day of Maroh.

orttQ Where ?-A. At the creek, at Ct Knife Creek, that is about a mile from the

Q. Is that near Ont Knife Hill?-A. It is about 2 or 3 miles from it.
ýr 1q' At the Creek noar Cut Knife Hill about the last of March ?-A. Yes, ab:uani
4e t day of March I think it would ba thon, I wotfld not be sure, it, might have

the st day of April.Q. Who where with him at that time ?-A. His brother Yellow Mad.
%eq There was more than one or two men with him?-A I bag your pardag,

as not, it was in the tent I saw him next.
Did you see any other Indians there ?-A.. In the tent ?
e O, camped around him?-A. Oh, yes, thore was ail the band camped arotnl

d his own band were with him, women and childrea as well ?-A. Wornem
'dren as weil.

Nîat h5n al his band had moved off their reserve ?-A. It was still on their
but away from where they were before.
-ey the Court :

&Way from the settlement ? A. Away fcom the hisos. Yes.
Ny Air Scott:

Stn ay from where they usually lived, all the bani were thera ? A. I think
not say. I did not go ont of the tent.
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Mr. Robertson.-I must ask my learned friend not to put words into the witt
moUth, ho ean ask who was there and how many were there, but ho is not to
him ho wishes to say they all were there. Mr. Scott has pressed it two or t
'times.

Mr. Scott.-I suspected there were others there than Poundmaker.
Q. Were there any others there besides the prisoner and his band ?-

-when I saw him next.
Q. WeIl do you know of ary others being camped in that same place at

time ?-A. Yes, the others came afterwards about a day or two. I am not
zuro about the time.

(This is iiow translsted into Cree to the prisoner.) 0
Q. Who were the others ?-A. Stonys, Crees and Stonys, and other bAndo

Cree Indians.
Q. Lo you know what other band?-A. Yes, there was Little Pine's band.
Q How many, about how many ? A. One hundred I suppose; there woffdal

mure than 100, I could not say. 300.
Q. What other bands ?-A. Strike-him-on-the-back's band, I suppose, abouteoj
Q. Any others ?-A. Red Pheasant's band, I suppose about 100, perhaps a

over.
Q. Did you leave Poundmaker's reserve the prisoner's reserve, when ho loft

Q. How long did you remain after ho loft ? A. On the reserve ?
Q. Yes? A. Until it would be about the 10th May or so; I could nof

exactly to a day or two, it would be about the 10th or Ilth May.
Q. That you remained in the settlement ? A. No, on the reserve, it wais

distance off the settlement.
Q. When did you leave the Eettlement? A. I left it on the 29th March.
Q. And where did you go to from the settlement ? A. I went to the camOP 1
Q. You hadn't the prisoner with his band at the camp ? A. The prisoner W

fiiere yet.
Q. The prisoner wasn't there ? A. No.
Q. I understood you to say you saw him ? A. I saw him there, but ho

2ar&wards.
Q. W hen did ho ecme ? A. Just as it was getting dark.
Q. On the same day ? A. On the same day. 4
Q. From anything ho said-or did ho say anything as to what ho had beel'nd0'

in the mean time ? A. No, it was principally personally that ho spoke- 1 i
remeimber-my mind was too occupied to- lftY'

Q.Youdid not know what they had been doing from the timo they left ?lhe settlement until y ou joinied them at Cut Knife Creek ; you did not knoe
, 1 didn't kndw.

Q. How long did they remain at Cet Knife? A. Until this time that Isp
Ibo 10th ]gay.

Q. Then, did they all leave together ? A. Yes, all together.
Q. And you left with them ? A. Yes.
Q. While you were there at Cut Knife, in the month of April, did an

,eeur unusual ? A. Oh, yes, everything was unusual, there was so many
oteuried tht-

Q. Weire there any visitors ? A. Yes.
Q. Who and what ? A. A half-breed and an Indian came up from RiOl thoo
Q. Iow did you know they came from Riel? A. I saw them. I didn't5Se

rome from Riel, but everybody eaid they came from ]Riel. e
Q. Did you hear the prisoner say anything about that? A. I must have

Lim say something about it. I don't recollect anything particular about it.
Q. Did they bring anythirg with them? A. They brought a letterý
Q. Did you see the letter ? A. I did.
Q. Where did you sec it ? A. In Poundmaker's tont.
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Q. Was he there when you were looking at it? A. Yes.
Q. He was there ? A. Yes.
Q. You saw it in his possession? A. Yes.
(Letter put in, marked Exhibit No. 1.)
Mr. Robertson. -This is putting words in the witness' mouth.
Mr. Justice Richardson.-Perhaps you will teach me how to do it.
Mr. Robertson.-I thought I objected in the proper way.

By Mr. &ott :
Q. le that the letter ? A. That is the letter.
Q. Did you hear that read ? A. I did.
Q. By whom ? A. By a man called Delorme ; ho is the man that brought it.
Q. Read to whom ?. A. To a tent full of Indiana, the big tout it was.
Q. Was the prisoner there ? A. He was.

& Q. You say it was read by a man named Delorme, do you know hie first name 7
o, I don't.

Q. Was there anyone with him when he was reading the letter ? (This is trans-
to the prisoner in Cree.) A. Eicept a tent full of Indiana.
.Any of those that came with him? A. I think the other man was with him.

What is the other man's name? A. Jay-kee-kum, Chic-i-cum, i believe ho

Q. Did you know any other name ho had ? A. I did not at the time. I know-
no, they call him " Boss Bull," I think.
Q. He is an Indian ? A. Yes, I think so.
(Translated into Cree to the prisoner, what has been said by the witness about
etter.)
Q. The letter was read in what language ? A. I believe it was read in French,
Pretty nearly sure about it. I would not swear to it at all.

9aq .Was it read in any other language ? A. Weil, thon ho translated it into
Delorme did.

Q. In the prisoner's presence? A. Yes.
Q Is that (Exhibit No. 2) the letter ? A. Yes.
Q9. How did you happen to write that second letter ? A. I was in the tcnt, and

1 they called Pee-yay-cheew, an Indian from Red Pheasant's, came to the tent
eaid I was wanted, and I got up and went with him, and went into the tent, in
middle, and these men were sitting there, sitting in the tent, and it was said they
ted me to write a letter to Riel.
Q. Who said that ? A. I could not say who it was.
Q. Was that after you got into the tent ? A. Yes.

What was done with the letter after you wrote it at their diciation ? A. I

. What did you do with it ? A. Well, I gave it to some of them, but I don't
Whom it was.

Is. 1that the last you know of it ? A. No, that is not the last I know of it.
(This is translated in Cree to the prisoner.)

t . What do you know about it since ? A. They read it to some half-treeds-
f-breeds read it themselves.

Where ? A. In another tent.
Q. Fow did it get to that other tent ? A. I could not say.

WeDre you in the other tent when you heard it ? A. I was.
Who were the half-breeds that read it ? A. It was a man callcd Jobin, I

,4e that read it.y
DO you know his first name ? A. I don't.

a. Whatnationality was ho ?-A. I thiuk ho was a half-breed, I would not be
never saw the man before.
You heard themr reading it in this tent ? A. I did.

As the prisoner there ? A. le was thore.
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Q. Was there any conversation between them that you beard ? A. Yes (Trans
lated into Cree to the prisoner) ; there was in tho letter, it appears in the translatioo
I had made a mistake; they had used an expression in Cree that was ambiguous, a0
I put down wrong meaning. I understood thein to mean to send only one messengeP
and I put: Send only one messenger; and when the man read thie, he said it
not good, so be altered it. I did not see-at least, I believe he altered it. It
understood to have been altered.

Q. Will you look at the letter and see if there is an alteration in it, and by
whom it was made, if you know ? A. It is on the last page-" if you send us 110*14
send only one messenger."

Q. Now, look at the bottom of the page, whose writing is that? A. I could "0

say. Q. You don't know ? A. No.
Q. Does that letter show the alteration you speak of ? A. It does.
Q. You say that Poundmaker was present in the tent, at the time this letter

being read ? A. Yes.
Q. Did he hear the conversation about the alteration you speak of ? A. lie £jid

at least I presume he did, I could not say.
Q. Did ho say anything about it ? A. I don't remember.
Q. At all events he was present ? A. He was present.
Q Was that the last you saw of that lutter ? A. Well, I did not see it then-

only heard the conversation.
Q. Did you see it afterwaris ? A. I did not.
Q. Who wrote the name " Poundmaker " signed at the bottom of that lttef

Â. I did.
Q. By what authority ? A. By the authority of the men that told me to

the letter.
Q. Hlad y'ou any authority from the prisoner ? A. Well, I consider I had,

would not have written it if I had not had authority, that is very certain.
Q. Do yon know whether or not he knew that his name was signed to it? 40

Oh, ho kne w.
Q. Hie knew how? A. Well, when they-were finished, you see one said

thing and another another, and it was very difficult to do anything at all, anth
began to get puzzled, and I did not know who was the man that was runming
business at all, and Co-pin.ow-way-win was sitting here, and I believe he dio .
the latter part of the lutter, and when it was done I said whose name am I g
to put hero ? Co-pin-ow-way-win said this man, pointing to Poundmaker, as i
was very silly to ask suoh a thing, and I looked at PounImaker and said is that
Yes, he said, and the other fellow said, put all our names down, so I put t10
down.

Q. You say the letter was dictated by those who were present in the tent i
the prisoner dictate any portion of it? A. Well, I believe he did. I1t

Q. You believe ho did, do you remom:ier that ho did? A. Well, I w0 uld
be very positive about it, I think he did.

Mr. Robertson.-I have allowed several of these questions to go. I subritt
are not proper,

Mr. Justice Richardson.-Why ?
Mr. Robertson.-In the first place what the witness believes is of no .Cd

quence as matter of evidence, he must stîte facts that he kaows. Mfy learned frie
pats the question to him in this shape-don't you know that he did ? or do 1
remember that ho did ? siti*

Mr. Justice Richardson.-Asking him to remember with a view to the Po
.I suppose, is what Mr. Scott meant?

Mr. Scott.-Do you remember whether he did is what I should have asked
Mr. Justice Richardson .- Isn't that a proper question ?
Mr. -Robertson.-I object to the question as being a leading question.
-Mr. Justice Richardson.-The question is do you remember his doing 0?
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Mr. Robertson.-He had already asked the witness abiut that, and the witnems
ýeehd he believed he did, and my learned friend suggested to him that he shoul4

it stronger.
Mr. Justice Richardson.-I don't think it was a suggestion. (This evidence now
slated to the prisoner in Cree.)

By Mr. Scott :
. I think you said Mr. Jefferson that the Indians left the encampment at Cat

e Creek early in May, sometime in May, I don't know whother you mentioned&
1& date or not, did you ? A. I did.

. About what date? A. I believe it was a Saturday, I am not sure.

. You are not sure about the date? A. No.
. At all events you said it was early in May? A. Yes, it might be the 10th

th Or 12th, or something like that; 1 could not say exactly, there was no date,
all, it is only by calcutation that I can come at it.

. Did arpything unusual happen before ycui left? A. Yes, there was a battI..

. Wh en? A. About the beginning of May.

. Do you remember the exaut date ? A. Well, of my own knowledge I don't
eeraber it, but people say it was the 2nd May.

Q. Were you present at the battle ? A. I was present, you might say, and yet
might not say so.
Q. Will you explain what you mean by that ? 'A. Well, I heard that I was
l t. I heard that I was there and yet I did not see anything.

Q. What do you mean by hearing that you were there? A. Well, whatIL
a a when i got at night, at the end of the day, when the half-breeds came back

e back with thtm.
Q. Prom where ? A. The place of the creek, about 3 miles or so up the creeks.

• Did you see any fighting ? A. i did not.
. Did you hear any noise, any firearms or guns ? A. Oh, yes.

Q. Could you judge how far it was from you ? A. Oh, yes.
Nt Did you see the prisoner at that tight? A, I saw him in the morning, not

Q Had you any conversation with him thon? A. Yes.
What did he say ? A. Well, he says, they have come to fight us, that is what

t m]atter. I asked him, what was the matter, and he says they have come teus, that is what is the matter.
Q. Did he say who they were ? A. No, that is about as near as 1 could get wha

said, I thir k.
What was he doing at the time you spoke to him? A. He was hauling

a flag off a polo, I believe-a piece of white flag with a bird on i and somo sLaia..
Do you know whether there was any meaning in that in doing that ?-A-

it x as a sort of protection against bullets.
Q. What was ? A. The flag.
Q. The hauling of it down or the putting of it up1? A. No, I suppose it was

there as a sort of protection, I could not say, mind.
. I don't understand you, do you know whether or not it was intended as a,

Xj 'ýr; that it was put up there with any intention? A. No, I could not say.
ard that ho had made a flag, and I saw it on tne pole.

. 1ow long was that flag up there ? A. That I couldn't say.

. Did he say anything as to his intention in pulling it down ? A. No, ho did.
anything about it, ho did not say anything more than I have already told you.
That is all he said to you? A. Yes.
. o ouknow where ho went after ho left you that morning ? A. I don't.
Where did you go ? A. I went to the half-breed camp.
'Where was that ? A. It was a little behind the Indians' camp.

:1 I what direction from where the.troops were coming ? A. Well, that i&
ean by a little behind, a little further on.
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Q. On the other side of the camp from where the attack was expected? Ae
On the left hand side behind, it was not directly behind it.

Q. Is that all you know about the fight? A. That is ail I know about it.
Q. When did you come back to the prisoner's camp ? A. I think it would

about sundown, very near it.
Q. Had you any conversation with him afterwards? A. Oh, yes.
Q. About the fight ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you remember what he said ? A. He says, how many times did Y

shoot? I said I did not shoot at all, and ho did not say anything and that WBs
end of it.

Q. That was all the conversation you had ? A. That was all the conversation.
Q. Did you see any killed or wounded ? A. Yes.
Q. On which side ? A. On the Indian side.
Q. Did you see any others on the other side ? A. No.
Q. How many did you see ? A. I saw one.
Q. After leaving the camp at Ont Knife early in May where did the Indians f

to, the prisoner and the Indians, did they ail go together ? A. Ail went together.
Q. Did they keep together ? A. All kept together.
Q. Until when ? A. Until about just after the battle at Batoche.
Q. Whore were they thon ? A. A place they call the End of the Hills.
Q. In what direction from Battleford was that ? A. A little eat of saa

perhaps south-east.
Q. How far would it be from Batoche ? A. I don't know. It would be aboli

100 miles perhaps, I never was at Batoche.
Q. How far was it from Ont Knife ? A. About 60 miles, perhaps it might Ie

710
Q. In what direction from Ot Knife ; I am speaking of the camp and t

Knife Creek ? A. About east.
Q. They kept together until after the battle at Batoche I think you said ?

Yes.
Q. Why did they separate then ? A. To come into Battleford.
Q. What was thoir intention in moving eastward do you know, or did yOu oVe

hoar the prisoner say anything about that ? A. No, I never hoard the priso
say anything.

Q. Why did they, after proceeding, after having proceeded 60 or 70 miles j
ward, why did they turn into Battleford, do you know ? Aà There were soma O
breeds came up from Duck Lake and some Indians I bolieve too, who wanted the
to surronder. They said that Riel had been scattered--

Q. How do you know this, did you hear them say so ? A. I could not Say Who
.heard say so.

Q. Did you hear the prisoner say anything about it ? A. No, I don't rer
hearing him saying anything about it.

Q. At all events they came into Battleford ? A. Yes.
Q. What did they do there ? A. They gave up their arms.
Q. And surrendered ? A. And surrendered.
Q. Did anything happen before they turned into Battleford, were any further,

any other acts of violence committed that you know of ? A. Well thore wore aoo
teamsters taken. Yes, thore were some teamsters taken.

By the Court :
Q. Are you speaking of your own knowledge, witness ? A. Oh, yes, 10*1s

teamsters. I did not see thom taken, but they wore there and they can't have
there without they were taken.

By Mr. Scott ;
Q. Thon you did not see the attack on the teamsters and the teams? b
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. The time the prisoner loft the settlement on his own reserve, did I undEr-
Ier YOu to say that others left about the same time; wore thera others, any oLhers

about the same time ? A. The whole camp left.
Q. On the same day ? A. Oh, yes, they all went togother.

tt19. What do you mean by the whole camp ? A. I am speaking of the original
emrent, the houses that he lived in.

By the Court :
Q. Did they all leave the same day, witness ? A. No they did not.

By Mr. Scott :

The houses they lived in. did they all leave the same day the prisoner left i
heY were not living in the houses principally, there were only two mon that I

W o f who were living in houses.
ay. Weil, call it a settlement, did they all leave that settlement on the samte

A. No.
Q. Who lefG or were there any left besides the prisoner ? A. Well, except-to
atO Battleford do you mean ?

Q Of course, yon don't know where they went to, but did they all leave at the
' 1me ? A. They all left at the same time I think. I did not see thon leave,

Yot iaow.
, % 'Were you left there alone ? A. I was loft there pretty nearly alone, there

twO mon left. I know of two men that were left.
9. Were there only three men in the whole settlement, three persons in the
e settlement after Poundmaker left ? A. No.
Q. Wei, who else were there ? A. All the women.
Q• All the women and ohildren were left ? A. Were loft.
Q The men did not all go, they all left but two ? A. The all loft but two.

Then all the men loft with ùim with the exception of two and the womea
Oildren remained ? A. Yes.

DO you know if there is anything unusual in that course ; do you know
Ing about the Indian customs in a matter of that kind ? A. Well, it is not

Y'ýII8nUal. No, under the circumstances, it was not very unusual.
q t nder what circumstances ? A. Well, they had been talking, I had heard

P'IsOner telling somebody that Oo-pin-ow-way-win has gone to Bartieford to ask
for some tobacco, and ho would see by that what his.mind was, how the land
wa s to ask him for somae tobacco, and if ho got some tobacco, ho was to ask

9 '4d thon ho would see what sort of a-I don't know how ho expressed it,
bY, how the land lay, how Mr. Rae's mind might be as far as giving went.
a .ell, thon, is it usual only for the mon to start on an expedition after tea and

18 that what you mean, under those particular circumstances ? A. You are
Puzzling, you. I don't exactly understand you.
I ask you is it usuai or unusual for mon of a band to start away without the

th e aind children, and you say it is not unusual under the circuimstances ? A.
1s not unusual at all.

qi ' When the males start away together what do they start away for as a general
A. Oh, they might start away to make a dance, they dance for provisions

w and interview the agent.
ut&hen you don't know whether there was any reason for the men going away

the women and children do you know ? A. No I don't know.
Cross-examined by Mr. Robertson :-

Are you sure, Mr. Jefferson, that they went without any of the women an&
A No, I am not sure.

ould you be surprised to hoar that there wore somothing in the neighbar6-
enty women with the men who went to Battleford ? Aý No.
old you be surprised to hoar that there were fifty ? A. Yes, I think £
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Q. That would surprise you you think if you heard there were 50 with them ?
A. Well, from the number of Indians, unless they took pretty nearly all the women,
-they could not very well take fifty you know.

Q. About how many women are there on that reserve or wore there at that
tne ? A. Forty or so.

Q. About forty altogether ? A. Yes, I think so, about forty.
Q Do you know at what time of the day Poundnaker himself left the reserve ?

A. I do not.
Q. Did you see any of the Indians going away from the reserve ? A. Well,

-where the house in which I lived was, you could not see thom going away becquae
they would pass out of sight before they got off the reserve.

Q. You could not see them going away ? A. No.
Q. Weil did you see them moving in the direction of the borders of the reserve

in auch a manner that they seemed to be going away ? A. Oh, I could not tell
-whether they were going away or not from the direction they were going in.

Q. From anything you saw, you could not tell whether they were going away
,or not, then you did not see them go away in a body ? A. No, I did not see them
go awayin a body.

Q. You say you saw Poundmaker in the morning and he then told you that ho
,was going to Battleford ? A. Yes.

Q. To ask for tea and tobacco ? A. I don't remember what he said about what
le was going to do, but I remember particularly his saying that he was not asking
anyone to go with him, but if they liked to go ho would not stop them.

Q. Well, was that in answer to a question from you ? A. I don't remember. I
could not say.

Q. Yon couldn't remember that ? A. No.
Q. I may have been in answer to a question from you whether any others were

going with him ? A. Oh, it was not in answer to a question whether any others
were going with him or not-I mean the conversation. I could not say whether the
conversation was started by me asking him the question which brought out this, or
whether ho really proffered it, I could not say; but as for asking whether ho had
asked the men to go with him or not, I did not ask him anything of the sort. It was
part of his former communication which he made. It was part of that communica.
tion which ho made.

Q' Well, did he come to tell you that, did ho come to you ? A. I think he did.
Q. Well, did he go off thon when he said that; did he go off as if he were then

igoing ? A. Well, I could not say that. That is a difficult question to answer.
Q. Well, was the impression left upon your mind that he was going off thon at

once ? A. That he was going off that day, that he was going off very soon. I could
-iot say that he was going right off immediately and not going to stop at ail. It did
not ktrike me to think about whether ho was going off right away.

Q. Whon was it you noticed that so many of the Indians had gone ? A. I saw
Poundmaker's wife I think, or else Simos' wife. I am not sure which of them it was
who said that they had nearly all gone.

Q. Well, when was that ; was it late in the afternoon or was it the next day ?
A. I could not say. You must remember that circumstances have occurred since
which knocked things out of most people's head at any rate.

Q. I would like you to recollect if it was in the afternoon of the following day
that you noticed that they had gone ? A. I could not say that.

Q. Did you go about to the houses and tepees to see how many were loft ? A. I
could not say that I went with that purpose exactly.

Q. You did not go for that purpose at ail ? A. No. At least I could not say
that I did-I don't believe I did.

Q. Thon how did you happen to notice that they all had gone ? A. Well, if you
were on a reserve you know, you could not help, you would seo how I would notice.
They are always around and there is always somebody coming around to the house
even if you don't go out at all.
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Q. Still now it is not at all impossible that more than two mei right have been
that reserve withont your knowing it ? A. Oh, it is not impossible, but I think
Ould have heard about it at any rate.
Q. If there had been others there ? A. If there had been others there.

Izi'Q. Why do you think you would have heard about it ? A. Becaube while the
ans were in that state, they did not care about hiding anything.

4dd Q. Was it necessarily hiding it, not telling you, you did not make any enquiries
n ? A. Well, but I had some friends in tho camp who told mie pretty nearly

, That is what you think it is probably you would have heard if some of them
l'emained, if some of the Indians had remained ? A. [ thin k 4o, yes; there is no

0tn my mind at ail if that is what you mean, that there were ouly two Indians
although I could not swear to it.
. I want to get at your reason for it; you did not go to look for them ? A. No.

Q. And you saw two ? A. I saw two.
9. There might have been others there ? A. There might have been others

yes.
Q- And a good many of the women might have been away withount your know-

I,%it ? A. Yos. I

C Now you saw nothing that day that indicated anything to aarm you?

19Q. There was nothing unusual in a number of them going to ask for what they
ted ? A. We!I, there was something unusual, but not unprecodented.
4. It was a thing they had done before many times, wasn't it ? A. It was a
g lhey had done before, certainly-several times.
Q- And it did not necessarily imply any hostile intention ? A. No.

& .You next saw Poundmaker, you said, at Cut Knife Creek, at Cut Knife Hfill?

Q. You had yourself gone there first? A. I had myself gone thero, yes.
Q- Why did you go there ? A. Well, a train of circumstances took me there.
Q. It was accidental, your going there, was it? A. Yes.

, 9. I mean you had no particular object in going to that particular place ? A.
beg you pardon-

)bj, . Then let us know what ? A. Well, I thought it probable that if I once saw
would be pretty safe.

1ý* You thought it probable if yon once saw Poundmaker, you would be pretty
ad you any reason to feet unsafe. A. Oh, yes, [ had some reason.
You began at that time to feel unsafe ? A. Yes.

b. Whenwas it that you began to feel unsafe ? A. When a man they called Bap-
he came from Battieford, he came back from Battleford. I met him on the

and I asked him what was the :uews. Well, he did not want to tell me, ho a
Of hung back, and I began to think something was the matter.

Sq ow, how long was that after they had gone away ? A. This would be the
ore they came back, the day before Poundmaker came back; they came scat-

t You know one or two at a time, three or four at a time, I believe, I saw very
bthem come back myseif.
What 1 want to get at is when it was you met Baptiste and you began to be

S ; how long was that after they had gone away ? A. I believe it was on

It bat day of the week was it they had gone away ? A. I am not sure whother
'riday or a Saturday.

onthink it was oither Friday or Saturday? A. I think it was either
' or daturday.
Then it was on the Monday when you met Baptiste and ho told you and her
to hang back about giving you news, that you began to think there might be,

A- Yes, I began to think something was the matter.
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Q. Thon you thought you would like to see Poundmaker ? A. No, I thought
would like to get at what itwas first. I wanted to know what was tho matter.

Q. Tell us what else it was that made you feel uneasy and was your reaSOr
going to Poundmaker at Cut Knife Creek ? A. Well, this fellow, ho says, 06
along the road with me and I will tell you as we go along. I was going in one diree
tion and he was coming towards me, and I turned back with him, and he began t
talk about various things. I have forgotten exactly, and ho says what are you glog
to do; what do you intend to do ? Well, I said I did not know-mind I could ne
give the exact words of the conversation, but I eau give the effect-in effect, wa
he said and what i said, ho says what* are you going to do; are you going top
here or are you going to run away ? And ho says I may tell you that your being, a
last suminer is very much in your favor, and the Indians, ho says, are ashaaed
touch a man that had no defence in the camp, and I said I would stop; that Was
beginning of the reason I had.

Q. But hadn't ho told you before this anything about what had taken place A
Battleford ? A. Ho did not tell me anything beforo this. No, and thon ho began
tell me whut was the matter, ho said tthat nothing had happened yet, whon ho ca
away, but ho had heard that the Stonys had killed Payne.

Q. That was on another reserve at the Eagle fills? A. At Eagle Hills.
Q. Well what else ? A. Well 1 went down to the house of course, and thon
Q. Didn't ho tell you anything else? A. Not that I remember.
Q. Didn't he tell you anything about what was going on at Battieford?

don't think ho did, I am not sure. though I would not swear that ho did not, I m
and yet I would not swear that ho did oither.

Q. la that the same man as Grey Eyes-is that his Indian name ? -A
another man, it is a man I did not know at all, ho had only drawn rations twi 0

'

believe, on the reserve.
Q. Well, that it was that made you anxions, was it? A, Yes,
Q. And made you think that you would like to go and see Poundmaker ?

'Weil, it was a little after this thing had deepened considerably when I tho0gil1
would like to sce Poundmaker.

Q. Wel, tell us what it was ? A, Jadfis-one of the two mon that stayed-
to the house, and, ho says, botter come along with me, corne to my house 511
says I would be no botter there than bore ; yes, ho says, I will engage to keep . 4
Poundmaker come, anyhow; and I went with him and I stayed thore all that D3 g -0
stayed at the man's house, and the next morning a man they call Cut-lip, o 0

father-in-law, came into the house and toid George ho had botter send me out, bea
ho did not want to have bloodsbed in the house. ho

Q. Who is George? A, One of tüe mon that stayed on the reserve ; 5hd tb'
had botter go outside because ho did not want bloodshed in the house, ho sait
this Cup-lip and a man thby called Mus-sin ass had slept at his tant last night
they told him that I was not going to live, which meaxns really that they wOre g
to kill me, but it is literally that I could not live; and George got his gun do s
commenced to load it and the father-in-law was looking on all the time and tb
sat down beside me and I was sitting down thoro close to the window, and Jao0<i.bkY
father-in-law, went ont and George hitched up his waggon and said that P «d
Poundmaker might have arrived by this time, and he hitched up his waggon a
went over and Poundmaker had not arrived, and I went into Poundmaker's te" 1 bu
when Poundmaker arrived, ho said that I might have been killed before ho ca
thought, but since ho had come ho would not lot me be killed, ho aaid 1 MiE
useful to him.

Q, Did ho make use of that expression ? A. Yes, something to that effOct,
Q, What were the Cree words; can you give us the exact words? -

don't think I could give you the exact words.
Q. The way you have put it, it would imply that ho was indifferent whethoYer

were killed or not; did you understand him to mean thaL ? A. Well, no
think ho was indifferent-far from it, if ho had been indifferent ho would not
cared anything about me.
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4. Q4 You understood from what ho said that he was glad you wore not killed?
;ell 1, i understood that as far as ho was concerned ho would do his best, but if I
jt been killed before that, thon he would not have had anything to do with it, and

h would not have been his fault, but knowing as ho did that I was thero and helpless
e*ld protect me, that is what I understood.
Q: That was the understanding you put upon it ? A. That is what my mind seized

immrTediately -as the interpretation of what he said.

Q. Wel, can you tell us what it was ho said ? A. Ie says, I have often kissed

-Your child? A. Yes, that is all that I recollect.
. lie referred to the fact that ho had often kissed your son ? A. Yes.

And you took that to indicate what? A. Well, I took it to indicate that ho
do his best anyhow.

Q. To piotect you? A. Yes.
0 Q. Now do you think that what you have said just now is a fair understanding

hutt h said to you, that if you had been killed ho wouIa not have cared much
it, ho would not have been responsible, didn't that roference to your child mean

Z46t4i'ng different from that ? A. Well, I have thought a good deal about that,
ered what it could mean, but it was something pretty like that, I remerber.

di Ie did refer to the fact that ho had kissed your child at all eveats ? A. ae
1er to that fact.

And that ho would do his best to protect you? A. Well, ho said positively.

•ow that was when you met him at Cnt Knife Creek, was it on bis return
B3attleford ? A. That was when I saw him firet.

À, 1Q. bid he tell you thon anything about what had taken place at Battleford?
tfeon't exactly remember. I was in such a state that I might be excused I think

renerbering small things. It is only the principal things I can fix on.
SQ. Well, wouldn't that be an important thing what ho told you about what had

place at Battleford ? A. No.
eQ bidn't you know at that time that stores had been plundered ? A. Yes, some

ca11e before him.
And told you ? A. No, they did not tell me it, they made such a row you

to 4and Poundmaker's wife was in the tent, and I did not need to ask anything to
. They knew thon that the stores had been gone through.

e , did you not ask anything about that; try to remember ? A. No, I don't

You can't remember that? A. No.
i You ~Ocan't remember his telling you anything about it ? A. Well, probably ho

guess ho must have done so, but I don't remomber the words ho used or the
4i'stance at ail. It could not possibly have pa3sed without his saying something,

eon't remember what ho said.
Qc - Tell mc, were the Indians in war paint ? A. Well, I don't know anything

%i htwr paint. They paint when they are not at war. Poundmuaker is painted now,
1' not at war.

inq' ias he painted in his usual way; was there anything unusual about the
ey athe Indians wore on that occasion that you noticed ? A. Do you mean before

arte4Cd or after ?Yes, or after when they were coming back ? A. No, there was not.
e You mentioned that Co-pin-ow-way-win had told somoone that you could not

. Yes
onmaker says ho sent to Co. in-ow-way-win and Cut-lip to protect you?
ea toid m that afterwards, too; b ut Co-pia-ow-way- &in did not do it.

ti ellit was rather a warning that you got through them than anything else?
an unpleasant one.
rge's C C father-in-law you said brought the warning to you which ho had

froDa Co-pin-ow-way-win and Cut-lip ? A. Ho did not <ooak to me, ho spoke
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to his son-in-law as if all he thought about was to spare his daughter the agoYOf
seeing anybody killed close to him.

Q. That was the way you understood it ? A. Yes.
Q. Well, uid Poundmaker tell you, when you met him ut Ct Knife Creek, 80

thing about what ho was going to do in the future ? A. I could not rermember anythivg
that he did; anything special, anything that was worthy of remembering, I COU
mot say.

Q. Well, can you remember anything however unworthy, Mr. Jefferson?
Well, you see it would have to be sometbing especial for me to remember it, if itWo
nxot espeeial I could not possibly remember it.

Q. Then what you mean is that you don't remember anything ho said to 10
A. I donuL romomber anything, it is very indistinct all that time.

Q. low long was it after you met Poundmaker at Cut Knife Creek that Deloral
and Chic-i-cum came from Riel? A. I could not say exactly, it could not have b
more than a fortnight, I think. I think it was less, I don't remember the date.

Q. Well, it could not have been later then than about the 15th April, it CO
not have been later than that, in fact it would be the 13th April? A. Yes.

Q. They came and brought this letter ? A. Yes.
Q. Up to that time did you see anything in Poundmaker's conduct to indi"o

any intention of rising or of doing any more wrong? A. I could not remein
anything. hQ. Thon when they came they brought a letter which hua been produced
and which you say you saw in Poundmaker's tont; wus that the first time you saw
A. No, it was read by this man, you know, before Poundmaer got it.

Q. You saw it before you saw it in Poundmaker's tont, did you. A. Yes.
Q. Where did you see it ? A. Well the man was reading it I suppose about

yards off.
Q. The man that was reading it was about ton yards off from you ? A. Y•
Q. Where was that ? A. They make a big tent you know on any OP*as

occasion and this tent Was in the middle of the circle in which the tents are sot,
it was in this tent that ho was reading the letter. 5,

Q. In a large tent, in the centre; do you know who had put up that tont'? A.adt

Q. How many Indians were there in the tent when the letter was boing
A. It was pretty full, but I have not any idea.

Q. About how many ? A. Well, there was more than fifty I am sure.
Q. Was Poudmaker there ? A. Yes.
Q. And that was the first you saw of the letter ? A. That was the first I sof

the letter.
Q. Now you said Muchichee (Delorme) it was that read the letter ? A. ®
Q. Did ho say anything, in addition to what the letter contained,to the Idian

A. Oh, yos, the letter is nothing compared to what he aaid. The letter is 0niY
introduction. ge

Q. Tell what Muchichee said to the Indians in the tent ? A. I could not
you anything like the whole of his talk you know. o ,Q. No, but the most important of it ? A. Well, that Riel was a sort 0f "
He could do many little things. He could prophesy and ho was going to get helP fro
such and such people, th

Q. Where, what people ? A. I could not remember what people ho said, frot
Americans. The Americans were one.

Q. He was going to get help from'the Americans ? A. Yes. .. tbo
Q. And what eke do you recollect7his saying, something about the railwaY

Canadian Pacific Railway ? A. Yes. hol.
Q. What did ho say about that ? A. He said the Americans were going to ab

the railway and no soldiers could come in. And they would have broken the ral
but they were going to use it. dia

Q. Well. did ho ask the Indiais to join Riel ? A. I could not say whether b4
er not. I believe ho must have taken it as an understood thing. I could no
that ho did, nor I could not say that ho did not.
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Do you recollect his telling the Indians that if they did not join Riel and
%Pt the half-breed terms that the Americans would take everything from them

hOre would not be an Indian that would have that much land (crack of the
ers) ? A. I am not very sure. I don't think it was in the tent at the time that
eardi him say that.
Q. But you did hear him say it ? A I heard him s-.y something to that effect; yes.
Q. Threatening thom that if they did notjoin Riel the Americans would take

l'thing from them and they would lose all their land, that is substantially cor-
s it? A. That is substantially correct ; yes.

t Q Well, can you tell us was Poundmaker there when you heard them telling
A. Oh, yes, at least I was living in Poundmaker's tent, you know. I was in
aker's tout, and ho was not telling it to me, that is very certain. He must

eeB0n telling it either to Poundmaker or to some people who had come to visit
dm'4vaker.

S oýw you had been living in Poundmaker's tent fo» some time before this?
Ice the beginning. I went into his tont at the beginning.
. After the letter was read in the big tout, it was brought to Poundmaker'a

as it, am I right in that ? A. It must have been brought there, because Pound-
had it in bis hand there.

. NoW tell me this before we go any further, in the big tent when Machicheed dressing the Indians, did you hear him tell them to kill every man with a
t ? A. I would not swear that I did.

t ,Yo don't remember something of that kind occurring, and Poundmaker tell-
ut not to do it, that ho did not believe what M uchichee bad said? A. NoI don't

a er anything of that kind. I heard-it must have been indirectly. I am sure
not directly that ho had said the soidiers had to be ail killed.
That Muchichee had said this ? A. Yes.

1%» U'it yon were not prosent when that was said ? A. No, I did not heur them.
op I think I didn't.

u -2It your memory of what took place at that time is very indistinct, that is
il emolber only smal portions of it ? A. Yes, things that stood out, that were

us I remember, or anything that has anything to do with myself I remember.
Q' The letter you say was in Poundmaker's band ? A. YOs.
0 id ho say anything to you about it ? A. I believe be did, for I asked hia

read it and ho did, ho gave it to me.
bo yOU read Freuch ? A. Oh, I read it, yes.

oIU eau get the meaning, I suppose ? A. Yes.
] id you have any conversation with him about what was in the letter ? A.
. eve ; in fact I am sure I did ; that is only a figure of speech.

o else was present at that time ? A. When ho bal the letter ?
OF ? A. I could not say.
oere wore several others, were thore not ? A. I could not say whether

asor not.
and these messengers brought tobacco and tea, or anything of that kind to

la's With the letter ? A. I could not say.
tirerat did Poundmaker say to you about the coientq of this letter ? A. I
let temIber him saying very much, or saying anytbing at all particularly. I read

and I thought I remembered that this man, iîstead of saying 35 or 40
had said 5 or 10 minutes with respect to the duration of the fight, and I just

tWhat to Poundmaker.
at. reply did he make, do you remember ? A. No, I do not remember.

Sid ho say anything that indicated that ho was going to do as that letter told
Q and join Riel ? A. No, I don't remember him saying anything about it.
a there a soldier's tout put up in the camp ? A. Xes.

kmi 4af You explain to the jury what a soldier's .tent is, and what it means in an
. ? A. Well, I think so; there might be s>mething; I might make a
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Q. Tell us as well as you understand? A. Well, when there is anything did
to do, they make a soldier's tent, and these soldiers have to provide certain thig
they are the executive, you might say.

Q. ]Now, who are the soldiers ? A. The men that make the soldiers' tot.
Q. Well, are they the young men or the old men? A. Oh, they are gene

young mon.
Q. Young braves ? A. Yes. f
Q. And <do they take command of the camp when that is done-do you kno

course, I don't want you to say what you don't know ? A. Well, I am inot verY e
whether they do or fnot; they are supposed to do so, I believe. 0r

Q. And what be comes of the authority of the ordinary chief when that haPP0

A. Well, I never saw it happen but once. r
Q. Well, it did happen this time, at all events ? A. I could not say whether

did or not. the
Q. Don't you know that there was a soldier's tent put there. A. I kndw th

was a soldier's tent put there, and that is about all I know about it; they danf
there pretty nearly every night.

Q. The young braves ? A. Yes.
Q. Did Poundrnaker tako any part in that ? A. Not that I know of.
Q. Now, what Indians were in the camp at Cut Knife, when MUchie

Delorme and Chic.i-cum came ? A. All the Indians that were there at any Ù01'
Q. They had all come in ? A. Yes. 'wQ. Then, there were how many Stonys ? A. Well, I could not say how

thero was, but I think there could not have been more than fifty men.
Q. Fitty Stonys ? A. Yes, that is counting mon and boys. I do not koiW

positive. 001
Q. You said Little Pine's band was about 100 ? A. Yes, that is altogether,

women and children. ob00
Q. How many were there of Strike-him-on-the-Back's band of men? A

seventy-five I should think.
Q. These were Crees? A, Crees. forty
Q. About how many were there in Poundmaker's band? A. Thirty.five 0 1 fr
Q. Now who was at that camp at Cut Knife Hill first ; was it Pound di

banc or the Stonys ? A. It was on Poundmaker's reserve. Poundmaker's 1
camped there the first.

Q. And the Stonys came into bis camp ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know who brought thom in ? A. No.
Q. Don't you know that they were brought in by messengers from e?

Not that they nad been brought there. I heard they had been roused by me
of Riel.

Q. And they did come in there ? A. They came in there. tribo
Q. And then when Muchichee and Chic-i-cum came, they all, the differen

were together ? A. They were all together. ,i
Q. lNow wbat did you see him communicate; who was looked upon i di

comma: der of that camp, after Muchichee and Chic-i-cum came ? A. Welli 0eWe
know , hat give me the imprefsion. I supposed it was only the resuit of r7g
observation I could fnot name any particular thing. ho

Q. You could not name anything that gave you an impression as to ere
manded? A. I could not give you the name that gave me the impression, tie di
have been something, because the impression was in my mind. Who dt

Q. But you cannot tell us anything that gave you the impression to 'd 0
commarid ? A. Well my being alive give me the impression that Ponxd
was certainly the chief. he 'Oie

Q. Your being alive gave you the impression that Poundmaker was t
A. Yes.

Q. That was the only thing was it ? A. That is the only thing thot
recollect. That is the only thing that I can bring to mind.
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9. Did you see Pounudmaker giving any orders? A. I believe I did, there is a
they cati, d Fine Da or Fair Weather, he was a very brave man and he got order

hinak to keep around Battleford, üot to attack it, just to keep watch around it,
%ething of that sort.

Q. Did you hear Ponndrmaker tell him that? A. I think I did, it is my belief.
Q You thiik you did, it is your belief? A. Yes.
9q. But you arc not certain ; and the orders were, not to attack it, not to attack

tIefoid? A. I think so. ,
Q. Now ihat was at the time wheu they were all camped out at Cnt Knife
ek il 1? A. Yes.

q. Some distance from Battleford ? A. Yes.
Q. Now waen't what you heard this, that Poundmaker tried to keep the Indians
1oing in the oLher direction towards Duck Lake and Batoche ? A. Oh this

after, you know.
Q. Oh, it was after that that occurred ? A. Yes.
Q. We have not come to that yet thon? A. No.

t -Q. Now let us come to the occasion on which that letter was written, didn't you,k that you were doing a pretty serions thing in writiog such a lutter as this
lbitt No. 2) ? A. Oh, yes, 1 knew that.
Q You felt that you were in danger if you did not write it ? A. Well, I did not

slder I had any choice in the matter.

. You say that Poundmaker, Co-pin-ow-way-win, Mue-sin-ass Met-tay-way-sia
4 eeyaycheew were all there when this was dictated ? A. Yes.

Q. Now who is Mus-sir-ass? A. Well, I don't know him, except that he is an
an from that dibtrict.
Q. Le was not on your reserve ? A. No, he was not on my reserve.
Q. Was Copinow-wa-win on your reserve ? A. Yes.
Q. Mettayway sis ? A. He is not on my reserve.
. Aid the other one was he on your reserve ? A. No.

Q. None of these were Poundmaker's men except Oopinowaywin ? A. No.
Q. Now wasn't Muchichee (Delorme) there also? A. No.
Q. W hen this wae dictated? A. No. I don't think ho was. Chic-i-cum was

9. ls Chic-i-cum an Indian or a half-breed ? A. An Indian.
9. Thi8 is not your writing at the bottom (in blue poncil) of the letter, No. 2?

,that is the alteration I have referred to already.
Someone else wrote something there ? A. Yes.

eeQ. And it could not bave been any of those Indians ? A. No, it could not have
ty of those Indians.

ek Q. Tell me what reserves did these last three come from ? A. Peeyaycheew
3ee from Red Pheasant's reserve. Mettaywaysis came from Strike-him.on-the-back's

rve, and Mussinass from the same place.
vaQ- Now you say you could not tell which of them was running it, I think that

e expression you used ? A. No it was very difficult.
11j And so much so that when you had finished writing it, you asked whose

YOu were to put to it ? A. Yes.
Q. And one of them-do you know whieh it was told you ? A. Oh, yes, it was
Q Oopinowaywin.

It was he that told you to put Poundmaker's name to it? A. Yes.
Now you have told us that your memory is not very clear about these things

ha tg at that time, and you swore at first when speaking about that that you
I? 0 llfadmaker's authority, you considered you had Poundmiaker's authority to put
to d)aker's name there, but you went on to say afterwards whon Oopinowaywin

' 'ou to put Poundmaker's name to it, you asked Poundmaker if you should do so
le said yes ? A. Yes.
' w I(' might you not be mistaken about that ? A. No, I don't think there is

'6take, 1 am certain I would not put his name there without ho did tell me.
279

A. 188e-



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52)

Mind that is not the reason I have for thinking ho told me. I remember, I could
not really say whether I put it in the same words but I certainly made the enquiry,

Q. And you think ho said so, said distinctly to do it, to put his name there
A. I certainly understood so.

Q. The war party was very strong in the camp at that time wasn't it ? A. 06'
yes, it was.

Q. Nearly all the yonng braves were in it ? A. Yes.
Q. Now were all the old mon in it too ? A. Well, no, they were not ail in i'

there were different degrees of beings in it; you know, too, some people were What
you might call bloodthirsty, indiscriminately, others simply considered they wore
doing a duty, and others thought which was the best way to get ont of it withon
exciting attention at the time.

Q. Whose attention ? A. The attention of the Indians-their fellow Indians.
Q. There were a number of the older Indians who wanted to get out @f it, but

they were afraid of the younger men, is that what you mean ? A. Well, I kO<
eeveral. I don't know how many. I know several myself that would have boa
pretty glad to get out of it I think.

Q. They did not want to have trouble ? A. No.
Q. But they were afraid of the younger men ? A. Yes.
Q. They had good reason to be had they ? A. Yes.
Q. And anyone who had opposed the doings of the young mon at that ti1o

'would have had good reason to be afraid ? A. Yes, I think they would.
Q. Even Poundmaker would have had good reason to be afraid of resisting What

the young men were doing ? A. Well, I don't know whether ho would or not.
Poundmaker is a great speaker you know. Poundmaker eau induce a man to d
pretty nparly anything almost.

Q. Yes, when it tallies with their own inclination ? A. Yes, and it was theiroWiA
inclination.

Q. And if ho had opposed them instead of leading them ? A. Well, probablY 1e
might not have been able to do anything.Q. The fact was that the young men had control of th camp hadn't theY
A. Well, they had and yet they hadn't. They had control of the blood and murder
sort of business, but the management of the Riel business was in the hands of the
older men, y ou know. The young mon did not care who was killed or who thef
were for. It was just " kill anybody and take what you can catch." I mean there
was a system in the way in which the older mon did it, but the young mon had ne
system at alil.

Q. What system what indications of system ? A. They took things coolly.
Q. Tbey were comparatively cool ? A. Yes.
Q. But what did you see them do ? A. I could not recall anything at t

moment which I saw them do.
Q. Yon can't recall anything at the moment you saw them do ? AÀ No.
Q. Now Poundmaker says you are mistaken in saying ho said yes put his

to that. Now may it not have been one of the others that said yes ? A. Oh no.
it could not have been. Poundmaker and Oopinowwaywin were on one side, that'o
almost behird me, and you might say on the same line with myself, the others we
seated, so that to look at Poundmaker and get his assent I bad to turn my hoad (
the side) like that and I don't think I was mistaken.

Q. Oopinowwaywin was sitting next yon ? A. Yes;
Q. Might't Oopinowwaywin have said yes when youi asked that questioU

A. No, I was not looking at him, Oopinowwaywin.
Q. But you heard the voice ? A. I don't believe that I am mistaken. That

my impression.
Q You don't believe you are mistaken ? A. No.
Q. But you might be mistaken ? A. I may be mistaken.
Q. You may have been mistaken ? A. Oh, yes.
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e It may have been Oopinowwaywin that said yes. Now after Machichee and
came, how much time elapsed before the fight at Out Knife ? A. About

WeOks I should think. I would not be positive.
qNTow were Muchichee and Chicicum trying to induce the Indians to go ta

ey 'Or Duck Lake during that time ? A. Yes, I have every reason to believe
Were, in fact I am sure of it.

You know they were ? A. I know they were.
Now, don't you know also that Poundmaker was trying to keep them from

there and was trying to get them to go to Devil's Lake ? A. No, he wasn't.
e What was he doing ? A. It was after this still that he wanted to go to

%t th Well, do yon say he was not-all you mean by that is that yoi did not see it
't• time ? A. What I mean is that I don't believe that he wished them to go

sreiitead of going to Devil's Lake.
ton 'What did you see him do or hear him say that bore upon it, upon the

%e Batoche ? A. Well, Poundmaker had such unlimited confidence in Riel, if
asnothing else, that at the beginning ho certainly never expected Riel would

,en, and even that would induce me to think he did not want to go to Devil's
. Why should he go to Devil's Lake?

That is your own inference ; that is your own opinion and the jury form the
and the jury form the opinions in these things, and what I want from you is
u Pon which you base your opinions; you may have opinions of your own of

but did you see anything in Poundmaker's conduct or did you hear hinm say
4, g that showed a willingness on hie part to go to Duick Lake or Batoche ?

1Id flot remember anything.
' Thon when you say you don't believe ho wanted to go the other way, it is

o Opinion which you- ? A. Based upon thingB which I must have for-

Wel you may have forgotten them or not ? A. That is only my opinion ; yes.
iman often forms an idea without having much to base it upon ? A. Yes,

lot of that genus.
ê ut the impression on your mind is that he did not want to go to Devil's
Or that ; ut you saw no indication that ho wanted to go the other way?

4 Then the fight at Ont Knife was after this letter had been sent off ? A. Yes;
Oi three days after.

%44t 4JUrnfed here for lunch till 2 p.m. when court resumed.)
fter you had signed these names in the letter, Mr. Jefferson, you gave it to
YU said, to whom did you give it ? A. I could not say to whom 1 gave it.

The next time you saw it it was in another tent ? A. Yes.
When the half-breeds were revising it ? A. Yes.S., ho were those half-breeds that were revising it ? A. I only know one of

W hwas that ? A. Jobin.
hen did Jobin come to the camp ? A. When ithe other half-breeds came
hink. I did not see him come across.
bo then the other half-breeds came across fron where ? A. From the other

1 phen Jobin came across when the Battleford half-breeds came ? A. I thinfr
not e0 him come.

Q.at iS what you understood ? A. That is what I understood.
p e had been there before that letter was written ? A. Yes.

hr some little time ? A. Yes, for some little time.
en he was there and Machichee and Delorme were there, what other haf-

e there ; before that letter was written ; cau you give any names? .
P do you mean ?

es? A. Yes, most of these half-breeds that used to stop -.round Battleforl
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Q. Do you know anything about how they were brought there? A. Yes.
Q. How ? A. Well, I know how two got there, but as far as personsi ki 0

ledge goes I don't know.
Q, How many other half.breeds were there with Jobin in the tent when tbf

were revising the letter? A. Oh, [ could not say, I did not count them, but t
mut have been a dozon at least of them.

Q. And they were discussing it, wore they ? A. Yes. Well, I don't think *li
Was very much discussion. Jobin had the letter in his hand, and ho read it 0f
and ho said it was very good except this part about only one messenger comiv'

Q. And ho found fault with that? A. Ho found fault with that.
Q. And someone after that must have put that little postscript at the end Wb

you did not write ? A. Yes. oft
Q. That is the postscript " If you send us news send as many mon as possib

A. Yes.
Q. That was written in a postscript ? A. Yes.
Q. And thon you did not see the letter after that ? A. No, I did not see it 0

that,
Q. Do you know, have you any means of knowledge of what became of it?

Well, they said it was taken to Duck Lake. i D rQ. Did Jobin leave the camp that day ? A. They said ho did. I did DO
hm leave.

Q. Did you see bim there afterwards; was ho there afterwards? A. I
seldom saw anybody except in the tent. I had not any means of eeing therl.

Q. You understood ho did leave that day ? A. I understood ho did.
Q. And that he took that letter? A. Yes.
Q. Now, you told us that on the morning of the fight at Cut Knife You1

Poundmnaker and you asked him what was the matter? A. Yes.
Q. Had the firing begun then ? A. Yes. toQ. And where was Poundmaker? A. Standing boside the cart which 5

beside his tont.
Q. He was close to his tent ? A. Yes.
Q. And ho was pulling down a flag ? A. Yes.
Q. Bow long had the firirg been going on at that time ? A. I could ino

had just wakened up. f6 rQ. Well, you were living with Poundmaker, were you not, in his tout? '
at that time I was living in another tent beside him. ,0¢Q. And you wore wakened up by the firing ? A. No, I was wakened up by
one (tnMmg into the tent and telling us to get up.

Q. And telling you that there was firing? A. Yes, that there was firing- ;oO
Q. And when you came out, you found Poundmaker pulling down a fles

what flag was this ? A. Well, it looked as if it was made out of white calico. -tgo
Q. Do you know what it was meant for, who put it there ? A. I did I

anyone put.it there, but I uidertood Poundmaker put it there.
Q. You did not see anyone, you don't know whether ho put it thre or

A. No, ] don't know whether hu put it there or not, but I have not any doubt;
Q. You have Lot àany doubt because-? A. I did not see him put it 

don't know that ho put it there.
Q. But you saw him pullirg it down ? A. I saw him pulling it down.d 00
Q. What did ho do after that conversation with him when he said they hb þ

to fight us, that was wbat was the matter? A. He wrapped the flag are
shoulders, and got on horseback and went off.

Q. Did ho take bis gun ? A. I don't know.
Q. Try to recollect? A. I don't know I have been trying to recollect

ive or six weeks every event connected with this case, with this business. beQ. Well, bave you directed your attention to that before as to whether
his gun that time ? A. No, I could not say.

Q. Was this flag a white flag ? A. Yes.
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Q. He got on his pony and rode off ? A. Yes.
Q. Where did he ride? A. I could not say.
Q. You eould not say that? A. No.
Q. Did you see him bearing arms that day at all ? A. No.
Q. Did he seem excited ? A. Woll, he was pretty pale, but I don't think he waa
excited.
Q. He seemed alarmed then, frightened ? A. That was what I was thinking.

a . Do you know whother he had expected any attack before that ? A. Yes, ho
Pt prophet amongst other things, and he prophesied ho expected an attack before

lit did not come though.
Q. When did he say that ? A. It was very shortly after the making of the

Now, where was he when ho prophesied this ? A. Well, he was in the tout
In his own tout ? A. In his own tont.

ter Q. Were there many people there, many Indians there ? A. Not at this time,
e was not anyone there except his wife and myself, I believe.
Q -What did he say about the attack ? A. Oh, ho said ho was uneasy. He said

Sollething was going to happen,
Qaid9. Wbat did he say about the attack ? A. He says, where is your gun, and I
It ifs behind here. Well, ho says, load it up. He says. if there is anything

'e b ere, you will have to fire it off, and I said al] right. That is all he said parti-

'Q. Did ho say from whom ho expected the attack ? A. No, you know it was in
ap.ophesy and a prophesy is generally indefinite, it is only something that inight

pen, one thing or another.
Q. Who else was present when Poundmaker told you this, that he expected an
k? A. [ don't think there was anyone particular present, no men at any rate.

Q. There were no mon present ? A. I don't think it.
Q. Was it in the morning or evening ? A. I could not say that either.SCan you say what day of the week it was ? A. No.

You don't know that ? A. No.
Were you and Poundmaker alone there ? A. Practically.
What do you mean by that ? A. Well, I mean that his wife was there and'

Wife was there and perhaps both his wives might bave been there. I am not
but One was.

Q. Now, might you not be mistaken about that ? A. No, there is no mistake4rt it.

Qrà. Be says that the only conversation he had with you about a gun was after
ght ? A. No, there is no mistake about it.

Q. There is no mistake about that ? A. No.
. But he did not say what ho expected the attack from ? A. No.

Qa Teil us bis woids as nearly as you can when ho told you that ? A. Of thec?

Did he use the word " attack " at all to begin with, or the Indian word for it..
4tuI, h expected some danger, ho said there was something impending, and it

been an attack or else he would not have spoken about the gun.
î 59- That is a matter of reasoning. [ ask you to give me his words, Mr. Jefferson.Poke of some impending danger ? A. Yes.

. I atsk you to give me bis words ? A. I could not give you the words.
aqo.t The utmost is then after all that he said that he was uneasy and that ho was

Q.ere was danger from some direction ? A. Yes.
og t'?. And that you lad botter keep your gun loaded as you might bave to fire it

e À. Hie says, where is your gun ? and it was under the bed, you know, under
%ee s of the tent rather. At the beginning I had lent it. An Indian womaa

*ol roWed it when they went into Battleford for her son to shoot rabbits with,
or three days before this. It was Yellow Mud's brother whose wife bad borrowed

Be brought it back and said he did not want to join anyone in taking
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things from me, that ho would give me my gun back. He brought it and I just laid
behind under the bedding.

Q That was Yellow Mud Blanket or his brother ? A. Yellow Mud Blanket.
Q That is Poundmaker's brother ? A. It is.
Q. Tell us the rest, ho asked you whore is your gun, and you had got it back

this way and you said it was there? A. Yes.
Q. And he told you ? A. He says load it up, you will have to fire it off.
Q. If what ? A. If this attack I supnose.
Q. Now he did not speak of an attack you say ? A. No, he spoke of the a

.at the beginning
Q. Yon said ho did not, you said it was some impending danger ho told y'Fou

you cannot tell exactly what words ho used and it was matter of your own infer0"e
that it was an attack; ho told you to load it up, that you would have to fire it O
trouble came? A. Yes.

Q. That was the substance of it ? A. That was the substance of it.
Q. Now ho knew that you were a loyal man didn't ho ? A. I think ho did.
Q Did you suppose ho was inviting you to load up your gun to fire at the

troops ? A. That is as I understood it.
Q. Then you did not thinik ho thought you a loyal man ? A. I beg your pardot

his object in saving me, I always understood, you know, was purely personael
general, it was not from any love of the white people that ho saved my life, it
only from personal motives.

Q. But ho ,told you although ho knew you to be a loyal: man to load y0
gun ? A. Yes.

Q. And you inferred from that that ho expected you to fire upon the whiteo
A. I think ho did ; yes• bQ. I just want to get that out, so that the jury can understand the wav in wh
you look at things, Mr. Jefferson. 0gQ. Now when did you see Poundmaker again on that day after ho rode aWay
his pony? A. Well I saw him in the evening.

Q. Where was ho ? A. He was standing over some dead bodies and ho W
talking to people around there I understand, he was telling them not to griefee
something of that sort, that such things must occur and something that way.

Q. Givo us his words if you. can ? A. I could not give you his words.
Q. You cannot give me any of his words ? A. No.
Q. That is another piece of your own interpretation, I suppose; that is anoth

-of your impressions? A. Woll, no, it is not, there is not much impression about j
I heard the man speak and that was the subject, that was what ho said, abbrevlu
cortainly.

Q. fe told thom not to grieve, and encouraged them ? A. Yes.
. You say that, do you? A. Yes.

Q. Now you know other people heard what ho said, do you swear that ? A. o-
yee. h

Q. That ho told them fnot to grieve and encouraged them ? A. I swear that 11
told them not to grieve, that such things must occur, they could not expect IspPO
to fight and not have anyone killed.

Q. Did you hear him say anything before that ? A. No.
Q. Do you know that ho provented Indians from pursuing the troops? ·
Q. You do not know that either ? A. I don't know that. og
Q. How much do you know about what happened on that day? A. Well, I of

very little. I know that I saw half-breeds running away except three or foUn
them, anl I know that I saw Massinass come along, and I had botter tell youI t;ilj
told my wife to go to the half-breed camp, and [ thought ehe must have gonop a
why I went over there. I thought the half-breeds had a little more sense th
stop there and fight, so I told her. ,g0

Q, The half-breed camp was just outside the Indian camp was it ? A. re doe
.Mussinase came and asked what we were standing there for, and ho said go
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thel-o pointing to a littie sort of ravine, right close to the camp; and three fellows on
o! think it was two or three, went along, and two men on horseback ard myself
be 40, and he came up behind. Mussinass (Musateniwas) and soon after that I
hotve he was shot, at least I heard afterwards that he was shot. I did not see him

,but they said he had been shot.
Q. Well during the whole time were you in the front of the battle at all ? A. No,

o lt see any battle. I did not see any soldiers and I did not see any Crees tire,
"lf-breeds either.

And you did not see Poundmaker between the morning and the evening ?

Qi You were in the half breed camp nearly all day A. The half-breed camp
t eYond me, they went about I suppose three miles further than I did, two or

Il'ile 83
Q They went further than you did ? A. Yes, they went further than I did.

4 % What are we to understand by that, didn't you tell us the half-breed camp
oQji:l st Outside the Indian camp ? A. I mean the half-breeds went away from the

Q, They ran away ? A, Yes.
fo10  And you went over in the direction of the half-breed camp ? A. Yes, I

o1 You went beyond the half-breed camp thon ? A. No, they went beyond the
p, the men left their tents standing as they ran off, and in the direction in

thoy had gone I followed.
And you went beyond the old camp? A. Oh, yes
So that you were a long way from the fight ? A. So that I was I supposed a half miles, perhaps-
And you were that nearly ail day? A. Yes, most of the day.
.ow after the fight messengers came again from Riel ? A. Yes.

SWho were they ? A. The men who had gone down came back again, the
reeds who had gone down came back again.

Q* Who were they ? A. Jobin and the man they called Vernet, I believe. I
1 1t aned these two other names since. I did not see go away, seo them go away,

is is another of My suppositions.
Weil, did you see them coming in? A. No, I did not see them coming in.
bid you see them after they came in? A. I saw them after they came in.

o you know who they are or who they were? A. I saw them after they

Who were they? A. Keeteewayhow, he has a half-breed name, I believe.
Q d you see Arcand ? A. I did.

id you see Wawpass Trottier ? A, Yes.
id you see Jobin ? A. Yes.

• Did you see Alexander Cayieu? A. Not that I know of
•ý That is, Keeteewayhow ? A. I saw him.

b)id you see Tripoos Carrière ? A. I don't know, I probably have seen him,
OIVt know him.Qbid you see Chicicum ? A Yes, Chicicum had not gone away.

e was there still ? A. Yes.
el, now these were ail half.breeds, were they? A. Yes, except Ghicicum.

ottie Charles Trottier did you see him ? A. That is the man they called Tripoos
'r, that is the man I mean.

d a you remember among them a big stout man, with a beard slightly grey
ed nose ? A. Arcand is a mai with a beard and a hooked nose.

' Q stout man ? A. Yes, he is a good size.
SWaIS one Of those at ail events ànd ou remeniber ail theso different haif-

be. g there, and they had come from çiel as you understood? A. Yes, 1
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Q. That was how long after the fight of Cut Knife ? A. I believe it was the daY
after. It might have been two days after.

Q. Was there a powwow held after they came to the council ? A. Well, thel
read the letter in the open air.

Q. Thore was another letter ? A. Yes.
Q. Road in the open air ? A. Yes.
Q. Who read it ? A. Jobin.
Q. Was anything said as to Jobin being president ? A. No.
Q. You don't recollect that ? A. No, I don't recollect that.
Q. Do you remember Jobin sending for a fat ox or a cow ? A. I heard that, bal

I did not know anything about it. I only heard that as pàrt of the news.
Q. You wore not there yourself ? A. No.
Q. But you heard this other letter read in the open air to the Indians ? A.
Q. Can you telt us what it was ? A. I can give you a pretty good idea I thio1'
Q Do you know what has become of it ? A. No, I don't.
Q. Whnt did it contain ? A. It said that they had had another fight with t

troops, that the troops had attacked them on both sides of the river, and they b
sent out 150 of their breeds to meet them, that they had behavel themselves n10
oniy like brave men but like heroos, that they could not say that it was a
but that the general had been obliged to retire after it, that they could not say
many mon wero killed, but thore were four waggon-loaIsfal. Ho said they Wly'
to continuo this indiscriminate warfare. They had to do it more systematilal
They hada't to kill prisoners. They hadn't to kill wounded men. They had'to b
no one that was not going to hurt them, and I think they wanted 200 mon- th o
it was 200 -- to go down and help to take General Middleton prisoner.

Q. Tiis was the letter from Riel ? A. This was the letter from Riel.
Q. Was it signed by Riel ? A. [ did not see it.
Q. You understood it that way ? A. Yes.
Q. D you remember another thing, was it in the letter or did one of th'

sengers say it that the Sioux some of them had watched wounded soldiers or k
soldie:'s being put into the waggon, and they had counted 30 or 40 being put in to
waggon ? A. I think that was one of the-by word of mouth-that was not 19
letter.

Q. And did tbey say anything more to this effect that the Americans had co
over and had destroyed the railway from Reginato Haple Creek or something to tb
effect ? A. I don't think it. I don't remember anything of the sort.

Q. Well, that was read in the open air to the Indians generally ? A. Yes.
Q. By Jobin ? A. Yes.
Q. D:d ho read it in Cree ? A. Ho did.
Q. What was doue next ? A. Oh, in the letter ho wanted them all to go o

to hims. Ela wanted all the Indians to come down to him and these 200 had to 0W
on ahead, somothing like that.

Q. Well, what was the next thing done after that letter was read ? A. e
shif Led the camp I believe.

Q. I mean immediately_? A. The next thing of any event was their start
down.

Q. Wall, what was doue or said by anybody about that about the latter ?
Oh, they had some talk about it when he finished roading the letter. I suPP go a
must have been transmitted to him from the half-breeds down below as par t
recital of the battle'or somothing of that sort. Ho told what the letter failed to
I suppose.

Q. Who did ? A. This Trottier. booQ. DId you hear any conversation between either of them or any Of t
messengers and Poundmaker about that letter ? A. Yes. or

Q. What did you hear ? A. I heard Poandmaker ask Trottier when the A.' 9
icans were coming. Oh, ho says what would be the good of the Americans co >tþ
If the Americans came, were to come here, they would want to have the countrY
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e l'ves. He says, we want to try and take it ourselves and thon we will sell it
e highest bidder. Poundmaker said something to the effect that if that had been

that they would not have started the row. It was because they had expected
Anricans coming.

Q. Did ho say all that: because they expected the Americans coming ? A.
u8e they expected the Americans to come that they had started. He said he
eted to have the whole summer to clean out the barracks.

poet'eThat be expected-now come, what were the words he used ? A. We

Q. " We " ? A. Yes.
. Are you sure he said " we " ? A. Yes, I feel pretty sure.

t11t% Did you hear them try to persuade him to go to Batoche ? A. Well, except
dOn't remember hearing anything.

You did not hear anything else ? A. No.
Q. Were you still living in Poundmaker's tent ? A. No.
Q. Where were you living? A. Close beside him.

eQ Q. Aid you saw him every day ? A. No, I very seldom saw him, that is, I very
ur spoke to him at any rate.

oQ q. What^was this occasion on which this conversation took place that you speak
A. It was after they had finished reading the letter.

Q. nltimeadiately afterwards ? A. Yes.
. In the open air ? A. Yes.

And at a largo meeting ? A. Pretty large.
Did be say it out loud so that everyone could hear ? A. I think 30.
oIt Was not a private conversation thon ? A. No, it was not a private con-

Q' It was said in the meeting to all the Indians that were there, so that every-
ald hear it ? A. So that everyone could hear it.

1 ~ ,Did he find fault with this man for misleading the Indians in telling them
it tIiericans were coming ? A. Well, that was the tone in which ho spoke, that

a Very wrong thing for them to do.
o tohDid you hear Poundmaker at any time saying anything about the wishing to

evil's Lake? A. Yes.
Q. When was that ? A. It would be about a week after this.

. Well, who was present ? A. I could not say who was present.
Was Jobin present ? A. I could not say.

> aWere any of the balf-breeds-? A. I would not be sure. I am not sure. It
Well known thing, so that someone must have been present.

4. -q' It was a well known thing that he had wanted to go away to Devil's Lake?

It Was in the othor direction from BÀtoche altogether, wasn't it ? A. Yes.
spt And would have taken the Indians away out of the trouble altogether and

Q 0ei8.way from Riel ? A. It would have kept them away from Riel; yes.
Ç.. but the Indians decided to go ? A. Yes.

And Poundmaker resigned ? A. Poundmaker started off, and they brought

oundmaker resigned his chieftainship didn't he ? A. I could not say.
elnd didn't the half-breeds take command of the camp before they started?

4t t 1 could not say. I have no personal knowledge of whether they did or not,
a,t amy impression.

• Tat was your understanding of the state of affairs ? A. Yes.
n Jobin was presidont ? A. Well, that was the story in the camp; Yes.
ow are you aware that Poundmaker and Maud Blanket and some others

%l'ytried to get away themselves to Devil's Lake? A. Yes, 1 know it.
* Tried to get off by themselves when they could not control the Indians and

stopped and prevented from going? A. Well, I don't think it was because
n't control the Indiens then.
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Q You don't think ? A. No.
Q. The fact is that they tried to go ? A. They tried to go ; yes.
Q. And they were turned back ? A. They wore turned back.
Q. By whom ? A. By the Stony Indians, I believe.
Q. They warned them back and would not let them go ont of the camp? A
Q. Then the camp moved off towards Eagle Hlills? A. Yes.
Q. And the next thing was the capture of the teamsters? A. Yes.
Q Do you know who was in command of the body that capturod the teams

A. No.
Q. Whore was Poundmaker? A. I could not say,
Q. Did you, during the whole of this time, see Poundmaker giving any orde

A. No.
Q. Did ho take any active part at all ? A. No I don't think he did.
Q. When the teamsters were brought in where were they taken ? A. W

could not say. I did not see them brought in.
Q. Where did you see them the first time you saw them after they were bro0I

in ? A. Well, it was in a little kind of a valley; they were down in a hollow. 01
Q. In whose camp? A. Oh, there was no camp at all that tirme, it was whi g

were on the road. You might say it was a surprise, all the carts #ent into l
valley, and I suppose the men went off to take these freighters, and there was
camp at alL-they stopped there for dinner.

Q. Was there no camp made at all duringýthe time the teamsters were withY
A. Oh, yes. o

Q. Well, during that time, in what camp were the teamsters kept; were thef
kept in the half-breeds' camp ? A. They were kept in the half-breeds' camp.

Q. Not in the Indian camp? A. No. rd
Q. Do you know how Poundmaker treated them ? A. Except that I bes

treated them very well, I don't know anything.
Q. Wore you present at the council that was hold before the surrender ?

was prosent when they wrote a letter. I wrote a letter for thom to surrender.
Q. To General Middleton ? A. Yes.
Q. Upon whose advice was it that that was done. A. I could not say.
Q. You could not say ? A. No. t0Q. Don't you know it was done on Poundmaker's advice? A. I don't knOW
Q. You don't know that ? A. No. b
Q. Don't you know that Poundmaker had constantly before that tried to

those teamsters given up? A. No, 1 don't.
Re-examined by Mr. Scott :

Q. When was it that the prisoner wanted to get away and was stopped by
Stonys ? A. It was about teu miles from Cut Knife.

Q. Was that after they had left the camp at Cut Knife Creek? A. Yes.
Q. On their way easiward ? A. To Riel, to Duck Lake.
Q. It was after that that ho wanted to- ? A. Yes.
Q. Did ho attempt to get away, did you see ? A. Yes, they turned off- r
Q. Who was with him when ho turned off ? A. I could not say, his brother

with him, and 1 heard, I did not see them when they were brought back you »o.
it is only I heard--

Q. Were there any other members of bis band going with him? A-
heard-

Q. Do you know of any ? A. I don't know of any. ?Q. Did you hear him say what bis object was in going to Devil's Lake
Well, ho did not exactly say what his object was.

Q. Dd ho say why ho wanted to go there? A. I could not give you i
words, but I can give you something like it. de

Q. Tell me in English what ho said, of course if you gave me his exact eo 0 '
would not understand you ? A. Well, ho said Riel was in a fix, R'el must be 1
and if they went down there they would probably get into a fix, too.
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By Mr. Robertson:
Q. He said that to the Indians, did he ? A. I could not say who lie was addressing

Col. HnEROam, sworn :-

Examined by Mr. Casgrain:
Q. What is your Christian name ? A. William Macauley.
Q. You are one of the superintendents of the mounted police force? A. Yes.1
superintendent of the police.

Q. I believe you left Regina about the end of March last ? A. Yes.
Q. For Battleford ? A. Yes.

. Were you in charge of a force? A. I was in charge of a party of police of
Yix men and afterwards put on on Col. Otter's staff as adviser.
'Q- What was the colonel doing? A. He was commander of u column of militia
pohce.
Q. What was this column doing; what was it got up for ? A. It was sent te

relief of Battleford, which was supposed to be in danger from the Indians.
Q. What was the state of the country at that time ? A. The country was int

ection and rebellion.
9. After leaving Regina where did you go ? A. I went to Swift Current, and
to Medicine Hat and back again to Swilt Current and started from there totieûford.
Q. Well, did anything happen on your way to Battleford or after you got to
eford ? A. On the road to Battleford, two days before we got there, we
enged some shots with some Indians.

Do you know the risoner? A. I know him since 1880.
9.Was he there on that occasion ? A. No, not that I know of.

9. Had you occasion to meet him after that ? A. On the 2nd May I saw hirm
e field at Cut Knife Hill.

% . What was going on at Cut Knife Hill? A. Col. Otter went out with a
"19 Party for a reconnoissance and under the impression, by my advice, that the

% frWould not fight, that we would have a chance of talking with Poundmaker,
ly was impressed with that idea. On ascending the bit at Ont Knife, after
ng the creek, a party of twenty or thirty mounted men fired on to us.
SWre they half-breeds or Indians? A. Some wore half-breeds, some were

Y lindians, they wore painted, and I recognized tbom, of course at that distance
t800 yards when they were apart, and we then commenced to return it.

. Did you see the prisoner at all that day ? A. I saw the prisoner on twoon1@ that day.
Q low long did the fight last? A. Seven hours.

4t And during the fight, you saw him on two occasions? A. On two occasions
I pointed him out to Major Short of the artillery, and he laid a gun on

Q. hat was he doing ? A. He was driving in.a buckboard on the first occasion

t Was ho doing anything else? A. Well, he looked to me as if he was general
%y4eole party, because after the different positions ho would take the fire would.

om 0çrfresh ravines, new ravines.
Ort Was ho going around at all? A. I saw him driving from this one placeti high ill which surrounded the whole camp, and I distinguished Father

qat the same time on this high ll.
. Did anything come from this hill when the prisoner went to it? A. Well,
as far from this one bluff to the right, and I told yon I saw him in the

Q r, ànd the lire came from that several times.
q' bid you sec him after this ? A. I saw him again on the top of the high hill.

hat was ho doing then ? A. I should judge it was too far off to tell what
dog. I should judge he was generalling the whole party.
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Q. What is Poundmaker on his roserve ? A. He is the chief of the Cree ,St
.Battleford.

Q. Do you know who the leader of the insurrection was, the general leader
,A I understood Louis Riel. I don't know at all. I was not in that part of the coin

Cross-examined by .Mr. Robertson :
Q. You have told us overything that led you to suppose that Poundmaker a

acting in command ? Yes.
Q. You saw him there ? A. I saw him there.
Q. And firing took place? A. Yes.
Q. And firing was taking place in all directions, wasn't it where ho waa

w4ere ho was not ? A. Yes.
Q. How far was ho from you when you saw him the first time ? A. W1

the gun about 1,500 yards, and hit a man alongside of him. I think it is a preUy
good distance.

Q. How far was ho the second time ? A. About 2,000.
Q. You say you could recognize him at that distance ? A. I have glassOeoi

carry glasses.
4. And it was through that you recognized him ? A. Not the first tine

fir# tine I recoguized *him with my naked eyo, I know him very well
trAveled one summer for a long time with him. 1 know him very woll.

Q. How was ho dressed ? A. He was dressed I think in his shirt sleeves, I O
*apt bwepr.to, thst.

Q. IRe was dark ? A. Perhaps I was not in a state to see exactly that daY
was a little excited that day mysoh. I was fightng.

Q. The impi ession on your mind was that it was Poundaker you saw ? A
know it was Poundmaker. I am certain of it.

Q. At 1,500 yardm ? A. At 1,500 yardsà
Q. Driving in a buckboard ? A. Driving in a buckboard.
Q. And the second tirne it>was through the glasses you saw him ? A. ThrOO9ý

theýglasse on top of the high hill, he is a pronminent looking man and a man
can teli along with the othur Indians at once,

Q. low far fi om the place where the fight was going on ? A. I was 1w
and it was right immediately in front of me. 00Q. But 3,000 yards away ? A. 2,000, about that, I did not measure it. I WO
hAve taken aim at that distance if I was laying the gun.

Q. You were close to the Indians ? A. As close as ho would let me.
Q. And you saw Father Cochin beside him then ? A. No, I did not see hiMb

him. I recognized Father Cochin on the hill. I recognized him so far that
Major Short and I told Col. Otter. I said there was a priest up there. I knew he
apriost by the petticoats.

Q. How far was he from Poundmaker? A., I don't know, ho was on the 0la*
bill on which I afterwards saw Poundmaker ; it was on the same hill which surrOi

tbe whole canp. It covers the whole camp. It is to the loft from where Wo
fighting, a very high bill, and my right and their left was their camp, and on1
hill were gathered as I understood from seeing there was a number of womeO n ,
when the fight commenced, and it was on this hill I saw Father Cochin and
Poundmaker. i 15

Q. Where the women were ? A. I took them for women, the same a0
the father for a priest. hai

Q. How far froma that hiIl was ho the first time you saw him? A. It must,
been when I saw him on the bluff, it must have been thre-quarters of a mile <
that hill, it was away to the right, to the right fRank,

Q. Was ho near to the teut or far from thom ? A. A long way from the
thon, the tents were close to the high hill.

Q. Was it early or late in the fight ?,A. We had been fighting about twfoo
I think, as far as I could judge. I did not look at mywahb
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Do yon know an Indian called Mustinatawass. ? A. No, I dare say I knoW
but I would not recognize him by that name.

Q. Poundmaker says, Col. Herchmer, that there was an Indian driving in a
hoard, that it was not him at all, an Indian who was wounded ho said in the

-A. Well, I saw him in a buckboard.
You are so positive as that at 1,500 yards without a glass and In the excite-

t Of action ? A. Well I am not an excitable man.
Q. What was the country like between you and Poundmaker when you saw
t 1,500 yards? A. There are two little islands of timber through there to the

and this was an open space between the two islands of timber, and perfectly
g ith a dip of the ground between us and there, and it was on slightly higher

than that on which we were standing.
• And you say that a gun was laid for Poundmaker and it hit the man beside

A. It hit the man alongside of him. I judged that by a horse coming back
Ik;essj.

. That was how you knew that? A. We knew we got our guns at the right
and we saw a party-there were several, I think four or five, close there in

iaty, and we saw them separate and run clean ont, raun away.
q And what did Poundmaker do, the man in the buckboard ? A. Turned

Znd and wheeled away and went back and we tried another shot at him and were
an'ýeessful at all. He got too far out of the range.

Was there much firing going on at that time where you were? A. A little.
Wa the firing hot? A. Well I thought so-hot enough for me, anyhow.

LD E. Ross, sworn:-
Examined by Mr.,&ott:

Where do you live ? A. Prince Albert.
What is your occupation ? A. Deputy sheriff.
were were you about the 26th of March last? A. I was at Carlton.
What were you doing there ? A. I was there as a volunteer, doing general

lduty under Major Crozier.
id anything happen to you about the 24th ? A. On the 24th March I was

P"ioner with Mr. Astley, by a party of half-breeds under command of Gabriel

~'Wher
he re ? A. Near Duck Lake.

it hWas in command of the party who took you prisoner ? A. Gabriel
1I4L. 'What condition were they as to arms ? A. They were all armed-all of

here did they take you to after they took you prisoner ? A. To Duck Lake.
o did you find there ; what did you find there ? A. I found about 300

8 and Indians under arms, under the generalship of Riel.
'iel -d YOU see the man who was in charge of the party that took you prisoner,

amtOnt, did yon se him there ? A. I did.
d he form a portion of that party ? A. He did.ý0n Were then confined at Duck Lake for a time? A. I was there for I

Week, or about a week.
aid 8nything happen while you were there ; did anything happen on the
?A. On the 25th March, no, on the 26th March the battle of Duck

%Wlace, in the afternoon.
e 0f 4t do you know about that battle ? A. Well, I know that I saw a large

9going ont, I should say about 300 armed half-breeds and Indians.
sane party that was at Duck Lake? A. The same party that was at

•* Isaw them going out armed and I heard shots, and during the battle
an came to see me, and was running around rather excited.

i4s Albert Monkman one of the party ? A. IHe was one of the partyè I
hat was the matter, and ho said there was a little figbt going on up the
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Q. Did you see anything of the armed men again? A. They all came back.
saw them coming back.

Q. The same day ? A. The same day.
Q. Did you hear anything said by any one of thom as to what happened ?

'Yee. I heard from different parties there that there had been a fight there, tb
they had killed so many of the volunteers and mounted police.

Q. Who did yon hear saying that? A. I beard Mr. Riel for one.
Q. You heard him saying thore bad been a fight? A. Yes.
Q. And that there were a number of people killed ? A.Yes.
Q. Did ho eay anything else about it ? A. Well, ho stood there talkiig or

some time. I rather think it was about the time they brought Newitt, a volant,
that was wounded on the field. They brought him in and said he would be safer W1
ms. They brought him up stairs ard ho stood at the head of the stairs, and 'f
talking to Us for some time, and that was the time, and ho said that he was going
establish a new government and a new code of laws; and ho said that if ho could 1bt
get the English half-breeds to come to his assistance, ho did not expect to g16
.against the white people ho said of Prince Albert, that ho would have to enlist
Indians on bis side. I could not swear to the exact words ho said, but someth
like that.

Q. How do you know ho was the leader of that party ; you say ho wastb
general ? A. I was there for seven weeks, and I bad a very good idea when I WO'
uee him sending- r.Q. From what you saw ? A. From what I saw during the time I was prisol,

Q. He was in command to your knowledge ? A. To the best of my knowledge
Q. I suppose the others obeyed bis orders? A. Apparently they did. tcQ. You remained about a week at Duck Lake and where were you takD

thon ? A. I was taken to Carlton.
Q. How long did you remain at Carlton ? A. I think three days and thon I

taken from there back to Batoche, and thon I remained there tili 12th May, 
I was released by the troops under command of Gen. Middleton.

Q. Were you kept as a prisoner ? A. I was.
Q. Were there any other prisoners besides you ? A. There were seven of e

eight, but one was released to carry word back to Prince Albert that the volunIte
night come after their dead.

Q. You saw the party that took you prisoner and the party that they joineth'
Duck Lake were all armed, how long did they remain armed-the half-breedO op
you saw there ? A. They remained armed all the time I was with him,
ueven weeks.

Q. Up till the 12th May ? A. Yes. WI
Q. Do you know from anything that was said there what troops they $Il

fighting with? A. They were fighting against the mounted police and voluinteefGer'
Gen. Middleton. They heard of Gen. Middleton and they spoke several times of. 0r
Middleton. There was one man Venable I think bis name was, le was WY l
inant as to the troops and who they were commanded by.

Q. What troops ? A. Gen. Middleton's troops.
Q. What troops were Gen. Middleton's troops ? A. Canadian volunteers.

were the troops that came and took us out of the cellar. r
Q. Of Gen. Middleton and ho had some troops composed of Canadian volunte

A. Yes.
Mr. Robertson says ho bas nowquestions.

CHARLES RosS sworn

Examined by Mr. Casgrain:
Q. You belong to the mounted police force ? A. Yes.
Q. Where were you on the 2nd Mey last ? A. I was at Cut Knife with the
Q. What was going on there ? A. Well, a kind of a battle I think.
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Q. Between whom ? A. Between the Indians and troops and police and soldiers.
Q. Were you there with Col. Herchmer at any time during the day ? Aý Yes.Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. Yes.

tt. Did you see the prisoner that day ? A. The prisoner was pointed out to me,
Oould not recognize him that day.

Q, By whom was ho pointed ont to you ? A. Col. Herchmer.
Q. What did he say ? A. He said that was Poundmaker in the bnckboard on the

dl Loticed somebody in the buckboard and Indians driving backwards and for-
to the camp.

Q. The colonel said that was Poundmaker in the buckboard? A. Yes.

By the Court:
Q. You could not recognize him ? A. No.

By Mr. Casgrain :
Q. Do you recognize the prisoner as being the man that you saw that day ? A. I
ot take the glasses. I saw the buckboard and the man in it.

1 9. What was done after that ? A. Weil, they kept fighting there ,all day, and
PrIsOner stayed on the hill till Major Short fired the cannon and then got off again.

%d 9·Row many were killed in that fight on your side? A. I believe seven killed
en wounded.

d' Uow did this fight begin ? A. Well, we started from Battleford one evening,
e arrived there just after daylight in the morning, and I went upon the hill

1VOWent right close to the camp; there was no Indians thon, only one. I saw one
1 riding around, and as soon as ho Eaw me, ho began riding around in a oircle,

t Went down and informed Col. Herchmer the camp was there; and ho told me
%g bak up again and see if they could get any position for the guns near the

and I went back again, and when 1 got there again, there were twenty or
Indians around, and still the Indian was riding and others came up with me,

t that time there were thirty Indians; and our orders were not to fire unless
t 4 1 nPon, and when we were up on the hill, there were two shots fired by the

s. I don't know whother they fired first or not, but they fired two shots, and I
vy the non if we would commence shooting, and they said: l Yes; as the Indiana

?o etarted we had the privilege to shoot." So they commenced firing, and fired
at on continually.

Cross examined by Mr. Robertson:
. Col. Hlerchmer told us that ho did not look at the prisoner through glasses the
oue he saw him ? A. I don't know whetber ho was looking through the glass.
• * YOU knew the prisoner before ? A. Yes, I had seen him during the winter.

hh'.And you were not able to recognize him ? A. I did not pay much attentioninal fact.
-qYou'Î01 were not able to recognize him when ho was pointed ont to you ? A.

old fnot recognize him at ail; there was only two men that I recognized there.
QOt recognize but two men there, that was all.

t the distance at which ho was, can anybody do you think, recognize with,
oye, with'certainty distinguish, for instance, Poundmaker, from any otherq d8ome Indian ? A. Well, I could not say that.

«DO You think anyone could know with certainty at that distance at which
ere then ? A. I don't know; there is mon there seems to say they could

lze him. I heard several say they could recognize him through the day.
'heBY thought they did ? A. Yes.

'â nt you could not do it ? A. I did not recognize him ; no.
ou heard a couple of shots fired at the Indians, you do not know whether
not ? A. Yes.
4d then you got orders to fire on them ? A. Yes; they started to fire firet

2emselves.
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Q. No flag of truce was sent out and no attermpt made to communicate with h
Indians ? A. No flag of trace flying anywhere.

Q. No attempt made to communicate with the Indians before firing ? A. Th
started firing.

Q. You heard a couple of shots, but you did not know that they were fired
you ? A. I could not swear they were fired at us.

Q. You went up quite close to the camp ? A. I was up within about 200 y
ofit.

Q. And there were no outposts ? A. There was one, one man, that is ail.
Q. You saw one Indian there ? A. I saw one Indian mounted, and as 8oo11 -

he saw me, he commenced riding around in a circle and they commenced comil.
of the tents; but after these two shots were fired, there were 200 or 300 In
came out of the tents on both sides trying to surround us; they were all ar'a
everyone of them.

Q. You did not wait to be surrounded ? A. They were firing then, and WO
not want to be surrounded if we could help it.

JOSEPH ALEXANDER sworn:

Examined by Mr. Scott:
Q. Where do you live ? A. Battleford. th
Q. What do you do, what is your occupation ? A. I am employed by

police there.
Q. Do you know this man in the dock? A. Yes.
Q. How long have you known him ? A. About seven years.
Q. Do yon know where he was living? A. Yes.
Q. Where ? A. Up to Cut Knife.
Q. Was it at Cut Knife or near Cut Knife ? A. It is called Cut Knifoe.

close on his reserve.
Q. Do you remember the 2nd May last? A. Yes.
Q. What were you doing on that day; did you go out with Col. Otter and

Hferchmer and the troops from Battleford out to Cut Knife? A. Yes.
Q. What did you go out for? A. I went with the soldiers to fight with th

to help them fighting.
Q. Did you see this man, the prisoner, there that day ? A. Yes, I saw hila
Q. Where did you see him ? A. I saw him at Ct Knife HFlill going up the

to the right as yon go up the hill, riding in a buckboard.
Q. What was he doing; did you sec him doing anything that day ? A.

mot see him hfle any gun at all.
Q. Did you see him doing anything else? A. I only saw him riding in a

board, and of course the colonel saw him too, that was before the fight was over..
Q. Was it during the fight yon saw him riding ? A. I saw him all the tIDA

through all the fight, till such time as the fight was over. h¶oot
Q. Were there any other Indians near him ? A. Blue Eyes and Light 0la

*w along with him there. I saw them, it was up the hill, to the right of the
where I saw them.

1 Q. Were there any shots came from the direction, fired from the dirc %ot
which you saw the prisonler? A. Shots came from that direction, but I col
say who tired the shots. I could not say whether it was Poundmaker.

Cross.examined by Mr. Robertson

Q. How far were you from Poundmaker ? A. Not more than 200 yards I 0-
Q. Where were you? A. I was in the direction where I saw him to the r

I was at that direction where I saw him. 0
Q. Were you inside the Indian line ? A. I could not say whether I WsO

of their line or not.
Q. How far were you from Col. Herchmer ? A. Ie did not come to the

tion where I was, but he remained where the cannon was.
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Q. Col. Herchmer did ? A. Yes.
9. How far were you from Col. Berchmer ? A. I was standing alongside of
i. }erchmer when I saw him riding in the buckboard, standing about two or threo-

et from Col. Herchmer.
Q. And that was not more than 200 yards from Poundmaker ? A. Aboutthat.

cod colonel and the colonel knew him when I pointed him out to him, as the
Pnoner ; when I crossed the creek I saw Peter Ballantyne. Peter Ballantyne looked

%t with a spy-glass and knew it was Poundmaker riding in the buckboard. I
e'd not look with the spy-glass myself, only Mr. Ballantyne that looked through

I py.glass.
9. Where was Poundmaker then ? A. fe was riding up a hill, going home-

towards his camp.
. Where the women were ? A. Going home to the camp where the women

Q. Was the fight àtill going on then ? A. That wa just about the latter end,
Was firing, a chance shot every now and thon still.

'Q.t Was there any fighting after that at ail? A. No, that was just the last of

9. Were Blue Byes and Light Foot with him then ? A. I did not say that, I saw
% ith him at that time. But I saw them two I know ânother time together.

9. But you did say before, Poundmaker was on the buckboard and Blue Eyes
a"4 ight Foot with him ? A. I did not say thdt they were all three together. The

Ion that was asked was where did I see Pouidmakér ? And it was only then
should give the answer that it was only two, but initead of that I mentioned

9. fidn't you say before that Blue Eyes atid Light Fbot *ere with Poundmaker
ou saw him in the bi ckboard ? A. When he first wént towards the creek

f, to the right of the hill as the road went up. I saw Poundmaker and Light
ad Blue Byes. That was the three.

eiKTEa BALLANTYNE sworn:-

Examined by Mr. Casgrain:
Where do you live ? A. Battleford.
Do you remember the 28th March last? A. Yes.

9 Did anything happen that day ? ï. I think we heard the Indians were
g down in a body from their reserve to Battieford.

Q. What Indians? A. Poundmaker's Indians and others.
. bO you know the prisoner ? A. Yes.

Q. Bis Indians, bis band ? A. His band and others.
Q- WeUl did they ceome down ? A. Yes, they came down on Monday.

D Io you remember the date ? A. About the 30th March, I think.
Did you sec the prisoner there ? A. Yes.
What was he doing ? A. He came down there with a body of mon and I

t nmeet them myself.
S•What did the Indians do there ? A. When I met them, they asked me where,

e agent and I told them ho was across the river and they asked me what is
1>h son and I told them we were afraid of the half-breeds from Duck Lake and

they asked me thon to give them the news, and I told them what happened at
like, about the fight.

.9. Was the prisoner there at that time ? A. Yes, I was standing right in front
and I told him what happened and t told him I could not tell him exactly

Y were killed on each side. I said there wore killed on both sides, I said
different rumors, we did not know the exact number.

*bs<'Weil, did the Indians do anything after that; did the prisoner do anything·
"tht? A. No; I asked them to come down to the Indian office as they wanted

agent, and he asked me thon if I could not send word to the Indian agent
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and I told him I would write him to see if he would come over and I wrote a note to
Mr. Rae; at the same time, when I saw how they acted, I told Mr. Rae I would Oot
advise him to come across,

Q. What made you tell him that; what were they doing? A. They sta81rb
lielping themselves with Mr. Rae's hay, every one 'of them was armed, those i
hadn't guns had tomahawks.

Q. What was the prisoner doing? A. I could not say anything about that.
Q. What ýwas ho doing with his band ? A. Ie was there, ho did not say 11I

himself except that ho wanted to speak to the agent, ho did not say much hi0.l
Q. Who was leading the bRnd ? A. Kamisgeejakoo was the man.
Q. le was with Poundmaker? A. And his brother, Yellow Mud Blanket.
Q. Did they do anythirig else than help themselves to hay ? A, No, I did P

.ee them take anything, but they were examining the buildings very closy4'0
Poundmaker himself, but the other young men.

Q. When did they leave Battleford? A. On Tuesday morning.
Q. Well, between the time they came to Battleford and the time they left b

did they do there ? A. Well, the time that I was with them, I was with the ai
day and they lad not done anything except ask-they gave me a list of what thel
wanted and I went across and found out that they had raided the buildings.

Q. Whon you came back, you found-? A. We were fired upon, we Co
not get across.

Q. Who fired upon you ? A. Half-breeds, it wasn't Indians.
Q. Do I understand you to say you went across the river and when you tried

get back you could not get back ? A. Next morning, on Tuesday.
Q. What had they done then ? A. The buildings were all raided.
Q. Did you see the Indians when you came back to Battleford? A. No.
Q. They had gone ? A. They had gone.
Q. Well, from the time they got to Battleford till they left, did they do anythll

to the village of Battleford, what is called Battleford ? A. On the south Bide
Battleford, that is where they raided all the buildings, where the government
ings are.

Q. That is called Battleford isn't it? A. Yes.
Q> Did you see the buildings afterwards? A. Yes.
Q. What did you see there? A. Some of the boards were knocked thronlgb

the windows and mostly all the panes were gone. Some of the buildings were
Q. What was in the buildings, was there anything in the buildings ? A.

goods and groceries. rttle
Q. When you saw thom after you came back ? A. Well, there was very

left. There was tea and sugar laying around on the road, print and cotto
calico,. and ail sorts of dry goods, heaps of it lying in different places on the
right near my house was.about a waggon load of dry goods lying there.

Q. Did you go to Cut Knife? A.Yes.
Q. Who with ? A. Col. Herchmer and Otter.
Q. On what day was that, 2nd May? A. Some time about that.
Q. The day of the fight ? A. The day of the fight. Idon't remember the dayuthe
Q Did you see anybody on the field there that you recognized ? A. Not

time uf the fighting. It was after the fighting that I said I thought it was PO
maker, and others that came up on the ridge after we had crossed.

Q. Were you there during ail tho fight? A. Yes.
Q. You saw the prisoner after the fight you say? A. Yes. After I came 0

the river, I took my glasses and looked. IAIl the Indians came up to where the
had been standing. .holo

Q. What was ho doing? A. They were walking around there. Catching '
a few cartridges that were left there, and little caps, and I noticed one of
catching hold of a little blue coat.

Q. That was after Col. Otter had retreated ? A. Yes, after his retreat.
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Cross-examined by Mr. Robertson :
Ytt • Mr. Ballantyne, did Poundmaker tell you, when you met him outaide of

tieford that morning, what ho had come for? A. Yes, ho wanted to see the agenL.9. Did ho say for what purpose ? A. He wanted to ask him for some supplies.
. Did ho mention anything in particular ? A. No.

Q. Did ho mention tea and tobacco ? A. Something to use.
' Re did not tell you the particulars of what ho wanted ? A. No, he did nolC>On the articles.
-. Do you recollect that ho expressed surprise at the town being desolated !

es, ho expressed that, not to me, but to William McKay. I was standing clo.m
enhe said it.

. You heard him ? A. I heard him.
. Did ho express regret too ? A. Yes; ho said ho was very sorry, that ho was

accused of making disturbance. He said: I think they do me a great deat

. They do him wrong, is that what ho meant ? A. Yes, that is the words h.

- Did ho, in your hearing, say anything about having sent a messenger ahea!
1 the agent ? A. No, ho did not mention that to me.
% Did ho show any signe at that time of anything more than on previous oca..

4t When ho had come to see the agent to ask for some supplies ? A. Not himsel,
"' band did.

Xo. That is what I want to get at, the difference ýbetween his conduct and the
et of any of his band. Poundmaker himself did not show any signs of that

.No, ho kept quiet, ho kept still; he'sat down, in one place and said verydid not say much.
> . Didn't ho say, wasn't ho careful to say, that ho had come for no harm ; di!

ear him say that ? A. Yes, I think I did hear him say that.
. And didn't ho get you to write a note to Mr. Rae, the agent, who was in the
8, asking him to come to see him ? A. Yes, in fact, I think I told hima E
rite to the agent, and I went in the office and wrote the note. One of hia

rnen came in there with his rifle in bis hands.
'Ole of the young mon ? A. Yes, ho stood right in front of me. Poundmaker

ÛtItSjde
aut Poundmaker himself was really-seemed really-anxious to see Mr. Ese..

e11, ho said ho wanted to see him, ho was anxious to see him. Yes.
'Was there anything in Poundmaker's own conduct at that time to indicate

O Illtended any harm ? A. Well, I don't see how the young men came dowar
1 was told it was him that brought the young mon down.
We will show how all that happened, but I want to know in Poundmaker's

4 duct if you saw anything thon to indicate that ho intended anything wrong?
1, there was nothing unusual in Poundmaker that day while I was with him.

I And you did send a message to Mr. Rae to tell him ho wanted to see him?
ýd 1 rWiote to Mr. Rae this way, 1 said the Indians are here all armed to the teeth,

s4, 0Laid they seemed to me pretty hostile the way they acted, and I said I won'si
tu to come over, you might use your own judgment.

•e B te hostile Indians, the men that alarmed you were the young braves?
,the way they were acting and taking hay and helping themselves-
t was the you ng braves? A. Yes.

Mefàqb And the news had just come among thom of trouble? A. They heard the
efore. I had told them the news before.

e tAnd that would naturally excite the young braves ? A. I was with them
ýir r6e days before that. I had seen them in their own place and was around

rOserve three days before that, and I had told them.
'et n lutlderstood you to say you told Poundmaker that morning ? A, I told him

rning too when I met him ; yes.
297



Sessional Papers (No. 52.)

Q. But do you say that you had told Ponndmaker before that ? A. No, I
no say that.

Q. As far as you know that was the first that Poundmaker heard of it ?
Oh, no, ho hoard of it before, as far as I know.

Q. How do you know ho did ? A. Because I told him myself.
Q. lNow, Mr. Ballantyne, let us ho quite distinct about this, you told Us a

minînntes ago that you toid Poundmaker at Battleford when you met him about
trouble? A. Yes.

Q. And you said you could not say that you had told him before? A.
don't remember.

By the Court:
Q. You had better correct yourself if you have made a mistake at once

1 migbt have made a mistake because I was in the reserve to see them whel
asked me about the ne-ws of Duck Lake, it was in Jefferson's house.

Q. That was, the Indians generally ? A. No, Poundmaker himsolf.
Q. You saw Poundmaker himself ? A. I saw Poundmaker himself On

brother and a big crowd of thom there.
Q. What did you tell tbem then; that would be about the 27th ? A. Ye
Q. What did you tell them then ? A. That there was trouble down at P

lake, that it had nothing to do with them, to keep quiet on their reservo
would be all right.

Q. Did Poundmaker show any signs of astonishment at that? A. No.
Q. Did ho become excited over it? A. No.
Q. Did the young bravos become excited over it at that time ? A. Well,

-were very few of them there, thore was none of the young men around there at w
time, there were only five or six of them- his brother and others.

Q. Now did Poundmaker tell you, when ho came into Battleford when
him cn the oocasion you have told us of, that ho was anxious to know the trut
ha whole matter ? A. Yes.

Q. And that was partly what ho had come for? A. Yes.
Q. It was that as well as the provisions? A. Yes.
Q. But all the time ho seemed quite friendly ? A. Yes.

By Mr. Casgrain :
Q. What did Mr. Rae answer to that message that Poundmaker sont to

A. Mr. Roe wrote me to say that ho had made up his mind to stay at the bar
and if the chiefs wanted to see him, ho would meet them half way, a few Of
'coumcillors. t

Q. Did you tell Poundmaker this ? A. Yes, and they said "no " they did I
go sci ose, and then among other things ho told me that if the Indians went 8W"1
geve them so much provisions providing they went away quietly, if not, there
certain quantity to be given them at that time, a couple of sacks of four to use

they were there.
Q. Mr. Rae said ho would come half way? A. Yes.
Q. Did you communicate this to Poundmaker ? A. Yes, I told him.
Q. And what did he say? A. He said ho would not go across.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. Whon was that, what day ? A. The same day, Monday.
Q. But I understood you when you went across the river with that Insh

y-ou did not go [ack? A. I said I sent a letter to Mr. Rae and I staid Wit
3 ndiam al day on Monday, it was half past six when I left them.

Q. Then who brought back the letter from Rae to you ? A. I don't
Mi. Mackay handed me the letter, I don't know who ho got it from.
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WILLIAM MOKAY sworn:-

Examined by Mr. Scott:
Where do you live ? A. Battleford.

Q. What is your occupation ? A. I am agent for the Hudson Bay Company.
You know the prisoner ? A. Yes.
Do you remember seeing him at Battleford about the 27th or 28th March last ?

Fsaw him on the 30th March last.
Where was he at that time ? A. At the Indian office, in Battleford.
Who were with him ? A. Some other Indians.

Q. Many ? A. I would say there were over 100 Indians.
There were over 100 Indians with him ? A. Yes.

Q Do you know whether they were all of his band ? A. There was some of
d, and Sweet Grass' band, another chief.
Any others ? A. The Little Pine, those were the three bands.
What were they doing there ? A. When I met the prisoner he was sitting

s Bide of the Indian office with theee other Indians, and I shook hands with him
8 few others, and he spoke and he said that -he was surprised to se that thete at the barracks were fortifying themselves in the way of building bastions,

t h at they were preparing to fire on him, and he said he was very sorry to hear,
oWas accused of coming down to create trouble in Battieford.

9. In what condition were the prisoner and the other Indiana as to-arms ?
-Dy the Court :

Q. Please let Mr. Mackay tell the rest of what took place, is: that all ? A. I an,
simaply answering this gentleman's questions.

By Mr. Scott :
In what condition were the prisoner and the other Indians there, as to arme ?'

but , most of the other Indians appeared to be armed, the prisoner himself t did,
e bim with any arme.

1 . bid you see anything there from which you could ascertain who was the
e' of that band of Indiang, the party you saw ? A. Well, ho being the speaker, I

ider that he was the leader.
. Did you see anything else to lead you to think that ho was the leader, or hear

IIng ? A. Well, anything that he said the others seemed to approve of what
oBidsay ; this led me to bolieve that ho was the recognized leader.

iC. bid they do anything when they were in that part of the country ? A. I
thlUot himnseli but the other Indiana bringing some hay from the Indian agent'a,

e and feeding their horses with it.
id you see them do anything else ? A. No.

% This was on the 3oth, was Peter Ballantyne, the last witness, was he there at
¼4ie time ? A. Peter Ballantyne was there.

q.When you went over ? A. When I went over.
!4e 4.Where were all the people of the Battleford neighborhood at that time ? A.

We re in the barracks.
Were you and Mr. Ballantyne staying in the barracks at the same time ? A.

'Yon went out there from the barracks ? A. We had gone into the barracks
1%e over that morning.
Q iOw long did the Indians romain in that neighborhood, the Indians that you
&ý'ith'Poundmaker ? A. Well, I could see them gather around the lndian cffice

t sU.ndown from the barracks; after that, of course, 1 did not sec anything of
naht came on.

q ' Was there anything done about that time, any damage done to any buildings
lae rty ther about the time of their visit ? A. All that I saw that was done

taking this hay by the Indians, up to the time I crossed.
2b9
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Q. low long did they remain in Battleford, how Iong did they remain in ,t
neighborhood ? A. Weil, tbey were around there up to the time Col. Otter arri,

Q. Was there any dumage done duaring the time they were in that neighborW"
A. Yes, thero wore buildings burnt.

Q. What buildings ? A. Some governmont buildings and private buildinge°
Q. W here are the governmont buildings ? A. On the soath side of the Battle !*Va
Q. Where is the business portion of the town of Battleford ? A. Well, ther

what we call the " old " and the " new " town.
Q. The old town is on the south side ? A. Yes.
Q. And the new town is on the north side ? A. Yes.
Q. Not very far from the barracks ? A. Not very far from the barracks.
Q. You say there was some damage doue to the old town ? A. Yes, the etow

were plundered and private residences and bouses and Hudson Bay store.
Q. Was the Hudson Bay store plundered ? A. Yes.- Haffy and Clingsto

establishment was plundered, and all the other private residences.
Q. What did the contents of the Hudson Bay store consist of ? A. Dry goOô*

-groceries and provisions.
Q. Were they all taken away ? A. There was but little stuf 'left, there

some stuff left.
Q. The bulk of the stock was taken away ? A. Yes.
Q. Any buildings burnt there ? A. Thqre were two buildings belonging tO

Hudson Bay Company tha were burnt.
Q. Any others ; wasn't there a large dwelling house burnt ? A. Yest

Bouleau's house.
Q. Were there any buildings plundered in the new town of Battleford ? A.

that 1 am aware of.
Q. Do you mean to say that the people of the new town of Battleford 'all g

drew into the fort and left it there and that nothing was touched in the toWfl
you ever taw ? A. i did not go around over into the new town after I wenlt i»
the barracks. I staid in the barracks, and any time I left the barracks-

Q. After the Indians left did you go into the new town, atter Col. Otter
for instance ? A. Oh, yes. d

Q. Was there any damage done there when you went into the new town 1
you seo any dumage doue thore ? A. Well, I saw a panel on one of the store
smashed in.

Q. Was there any stock taken ont of the stores ? A. That I could not so
am not aware of that.

Cross-examined by Mr. Robertson:
Q. Poundmaker had gone away the next morning, the morning of the

had he not; when was it this plundering took place ? A. On the 30th w
day that I saw him at the Indian office.

Q. 30th March? A. Yes.
Q. Thon on tho morning of the 31st ho had gone away ? A. I don't knO

was in the barracks at the time.
Q. Did Poundmaker tell you when you met him outside of Battleford--did

say why hohad come? A. Yes.
Q. What did he say? A. Ho told me he had come down to see the agent ran i

for some tea and tobacco and moccasins and some other things that they We
want of. 00

Q. D d be express regret that the inhabitants had become frightened ? A
said that he was surprised. b

Q. Did ho say why he was surprised ? A. Well, he was surprised becauso
saw the inhabitants had left the town and houses. b

Q. Do you recollect that ho mentioned to yon that ho had sent a messenger a
to tei him that ho was only coming for some tea and tobacco ? A, That I
remember, ho might have said that, but I don't remember it.
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Don't you remember that ? A. No.
Try and think, do you remember a conversation with me the other day? A

In which you told me what occurred, don't you recollect now his telling yom
e had sent a messenger ahead to Mr. Rae through Joseph McKay on some

>ythat Joseph McKay had written to him? A. No, I don't remember any sucL

A&s matter of fact had a message corne from Joseph McKay to Mr. Rae before
your knowledge from Poundmaker ? A. To my knowledge there was a

%Z ager sent up by Mr. McKay, I did not se any; there was a rumor that I heard
a hMessenger from Mr. Joseph McKay's reserve had come into Battleford by a

%tr.at was sent out, there was a messenger sent out when we heard the Indiana
tommlg into town.

Q • And he brought back a message didn't ho ? A. He returned, but I did not
Wat message.
. idn't you hear the news that ho had brought back from Joseph McKay?

I heard it from Mr. Ballantyne; ho told me that the messenger had retunedt
a8ted that the Indians were on thoir way down.

And what about their intentions that they meant no harm and that they
t 'nly coming to aqk for some tea and tobacco ? A. Oh, I was the party that in the

place informed Mr. Rae that the Indians were coming down, and what they
&Coming down for, but at that time I don't remember Ballantyne telling me,,

%U% I knew already what I had heard before, about their coming down to see thê
ore tea and tobùcco.

You had heard before, before they came that they were only coming to am;
bent tO get some tea and tobacco ? A. Yes.

k And you had heard that through a messenger who had been sentout to Joseph
Y to nake enquiries ? A. Well, I did not see the mossenger on the return.

t You heard the report that came back, didn't you? A. WelI, I heard ail sorta

q. Didn't you hear the report that came back by the mossenger who was sentPh McKay to inquire what the intetions of the Indians were ? A. I heard as
that the messenger returned, and that Mr. Ballantyne told me that the Indiana,

<1 thoir way down. and that is ail I hoard.
And didn't you heur also that they were quite friendly and that they were
ming to see the agent and get some tea and tobacco? A. No, not at that time.

Iu¾ When did you hear that then ? A. I heard that when the messenger was
Ibo P irst, that the Indians were coming down in a body to see the agent, but what,

e Wanted I did not know until Poundmaker told me himself that he came do-wat
tea and' tobacco and moccasins f rom the agent.

iA Message did come thon that the Indians were coming down to -ee th.
>) Was that message from Joseph McKay ? A. No, I did not see Joseph McLKay

' Wa8 the message from him ? A. I saw no message.
u Was the message that you heard informing you that the Indians were

ng down to see the agent, did that message como frum Jph Mc.Kay? A. No.
It did not ? A. No.
Proma whom did it come ? A. I don't exactly understand. I did not seo
a ge. I never saw Mr. Joseph McKay and his message.

k epIEd the news about the Indians coming down to See the agent come from.
fPh McKay; 1 don't mean that you saw Joseph McKay, but was ho the,

lf the information that was brought? A. Of the Indians coming down, the
4"e that we heard ?

A. No, that is what I say. I say that the first intimation, news thatfthe Indiana coming down was from an Indian. On the strength of thia
0A that I gave to Mr. Rae, a messenger was sent to Mr. Joseph McKay's,

801



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52)

reserve to find out if it was so; and then a messenger was sent up, and the mO6ess
ger returned and confirmed what we had heard.

Q. What message did ho bring ? A. That, I say, I don't know. I did not 00
the message.

Q. And you did not hear then that the Indians were coming quite friendly
'only to get some tea and tobacco ? A. I heard that they were coming down at the
time, that those Indians told me that they were coming down to see the agent.

Q. Well, what about the rest? A. Well, that is all I beard at that time.
Q. Did Poundmaker tell you, when you met him outside of Battleford, tbath

did not mean to-that no harm was intended and that ho had send a message? '
He told me that he did not mean any harm when ho came down.

Q. Did ho tell you that ho had sent a message to tell the agent that ho *0
coming ? A. I think ho said something about a message when we were quite nO
the town, just before he came in.

Q. In Poundmaker's own demeanor at that time, did you see anything to cas
any uneasiness? A. Well, not in himself.

Q. fie seemed to mean well and did not show any signs of meaning any harra
A. No, not himself.

Q. Yellow Mud Blanket was with him ? A. Yes.
Q. Did ho show any signs of hostility or meaning any row ? A. He did 1oti

none of them spoke much. They sat quiet all the time they were staying thore.
Poundmaker was sitting ail the time that I was thoro.

Q. What did you see0 now besides the taking of that hay to alarm you? 
They complained to be hungry, and Poundmaker appeared to be anxious to see the
Indian agent, and they had repeated it so often that they were hungry and wan
something, some tobacco. They had no tobacco nor tea, and I then told them that
I would give them something to eat and some tea and tobacco in the meantime,
such Lime as the agent came across. No doubt if ho heard that they were in tOWO'
he would come across; so that if in the meantime ho would seid one of his yOÙU4
men and the other chiefs each send a man down with me to the store, I would gifo
them some tea and tobacco.

Q. And you did give them some, I believe? A. Yes, I thon went down aO&
gave them some.

Q. Thon after that you went across to Mr. Rae ? A. When I was in the storer
after I had given them what I intended giving them, some of the other Indians0,n.
Poundmaker himself but the other Indians, commenced asking some articles frOt
me, so I told them that I had given them ail that I intended to give them and to
get out. So with that they went out and I locked the store.

Q. Was Poundmaker thore thon ? A. Poundmaker had come in thereb
asked me for a piece of tobacco and Mr. Ballantyne was thora in the store at
time, and I told'him to give him a pioce.

Q. And he got it and went away? A. And went away.

ALEXANDER DAVID STEWART sworn:-
Bxamined by Mr. Casgrain :

Q. Looking at that letter (Exhibit No. 1) do you know that handwriting?
Yes, I know the writing.

Q. Whoso is it ? A. Louis, ]Riel's.
Q. Who is it signed by ? A. Signed by Louis Riel.

JOHN SHERA, junior, sWorn N
Examined by Mr. Casgrain:

Q. Did you have occasion to go from Swift Current to Battleford last sprie
AÂ. Yes.

Q. In what capacity ? A. Going with supplies to Battleford.
What supplies ? A. Government supplies.
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Who for? A. The Government, they were for the troops at Battleford.
What time was this? A. This was in May last.
About what date? A. Well, it was the second trip we were going.
Can you tell me about the date, it was in May ? A. In May, yes about the

r 14th
You were going from Swift Current to Battleford ? A. Yes.
Ilow many teams ? A. There was twenty-nine teams, I think, altogether.
-Did anything happen on the way ? A. Yes, we were caught by the Indians

nine miles from Battleford.
What Indians? A. Poundmaker's.
bDo you know the prisoner ? A. Yes.
Was he there ? A. I don''t know whether ho was with the Indians or not

we Were caught. I did not se hirm.
Wh were yeu taken to ? A. We were taken to the camp.

you see him there ? A. Yes.
0th 'What was done with the provisions? A. Well, they took all the provisiona

I amp and eat some of them, eat all they could and took the rest along with

They detained you thore ? A. Yes, they kept us.
1ow long ? A. They juast kept us about two hours in that camp and they
t'o ove on towards Duck Lake.
They were going towardsDuck Lake? A. Yes.

By Mr. Robertson:
1 ~you say the Indiana were Poundmaker's Indians and all the reason-yon have

4.rlg that is that when you were taken in you saw Poundmaker in the camp?
lWe were totd it was him, his braves-some on them. I don't say they wore
Idon't know whether they were or not.

t d you only know from what you were told about any of them? A. Yes.
Lid you see a half-breed in command of the party that took you ? A. Yes.

B8y Mr. Caagrain:
as the half-breed in command of the whole camp ? A. Well, we always been

speaking there and he seemed to be running the thing.
8peaking with whom ? A. The Indians.

aS he speaking to the prisoner? A. No, I don't think I ever seen him
g to the prisoner.

By Mr. Robertson:
yon say you thought ho seemed to be running the camp? A. -Well, some

O s very morning would get up and make a speech before the camp would

hat was his appearence? A. Ie had whiskers, a short man with grey

ada hooked nose ? A, I am not sure, ho did not speak English.

AM ToMPKINs sworn:-

-- amined by Mr. Scott:
Q. here do you live ? A. Carlton.

to what date? A. Up till 18th March.
At happened on that day ? A. We left for One Arrow's reserve, Mr. la

' d anything happen to you ? A. We were taken prisoners.
y whom? A. By Riel.

's Riel, anyone else? A. Gabriel Dumaont stoppel us firt, and them
UP and said ho would detain us for a few hours.
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Q. Were there any others present besides those two ? A. Yes, quite a nu
Q. Where were you taken to ? A. Taken to the church.
Q. What was the condition of these men that took you, as to being ar mod,

they armed ? A. They were all armed principally.
Q. What was done to you wheu you were taken to the church ? A. We

,kept there, and thon we were removed from that over to Walter's store.
Q. Where ? A. Across the river.
Q. Were there any others there besides that party who took you prisoner -

lNo; I don't think there wore, we were the first there, there were none at the ch
when I arrived there.

Q. Well, did you see a larger number there afterwards ? A. Yes.
Q. How many ? A. I should judge about 300, taking them altogether 300'0

400.
Q. lad they a leader those 300 men? A. Yes.
Q. Were they armed ? A. Yes.
Q. Tbey were ail armed ? A. Yes.
Q. Who was the leader? A. Louis Riel.
Q. You say you were taken over to Walter's store about when ? A. That
Q. The nght of the 18th ? A. Yes.
Q. low long wore you kept prisoner by Louis Riel and these men? A.

:montls ail but a day.
Q. You wore taken prisoner on the 13th ? A. Yes ; all but a day I think.
Q. What day were you released ? A. 12th May.
Q. Do you know what the object of this movement was ; do you know

thoe men intended to do who took you prisoner ? A. Riel wanted to start t%
Lovernment apparently, by his talk.

Q. Did ho say so ? A. Yes.
Q. You heard him say that ? A. Yes. 0f
Q. Did anything happen on the 25th March? A. On the 26th, the battle

Duck Lake took place,
Q. Wbere were you at that time ? A. At Duck Lake,
Q. Near the battle? A. About two or three miles I should judge.
Q. flow do you know that a ba.ttle took place on that day ? A. I could se"

liring.
Q. You heard firing- did you hear anything about it afterwards? A. Ye$•
Q. From whom? A. Riel.
Q. Iow long after wards ? A. I should judge about two hours or an hour

Q. What did ho say about it ? dA. He was thanking God for such a prospero
pictor y.

Q. A victory ovor whom ? A. Over the volunteers and police.
Q. At Duck Lake ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know of any fights afterwards ? A. Yes.
Q. That Riel and his party were engaged in? A. Yes.
Q. With whom ? A. With General Middleton.
Q. Anyone else, ho was not alone ? A. His troops.
Q. Do you know an Indian named Chi-ci-cum ? A. Yes.
Q. What is his other name ? A. Boss Bull they call him.
Q. What band does ho belong to? A. Beardys.
Q. That band I understand occupies a reserve in the immediate vicinity Of

Tam? A. Yes.
Q. Did you see him among those in that party ? A. Yes. I was talking
Q. When ? A. I don't just remember the date, but, mind, I was talking W

through the window when I was a prisoner.
Q. Where? A. At Batoche.
Q. When were you taken to Batoche; yeu were taken first to the church

thon you were taken over to Walter & Baker's store, and were you taken to
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Walter & Baker's store? A. We were moved to the church on the nex
ing after we were taken acrose the river to Walter's store.
Q And on the 27th you were moved back to Batoche into the church, were you t

Q. low long did you remain in the chorch ? A. I remained there till the night
ese half-breeds came up, and they said if we would give them all of us our word of
ecr that we would not try to escape, he would send us to the Garinot restaurant.

Q. You went to Garnot's on the 27th ? A. Yes.
It Q. Was it after you went to Garnot's you were speaking to Chic-i-cum ? A. No,

a when we came back from Carlton to the best of my knowledge.
9. Where were you put when you came from Carlton ? A. Put into Baptiste

ser's house.
9. low long did you remain at Baptiste Boyer's house ? A. We iemained there
in the cellar until 12th May.
Q. Was it after you went into Garnot's house, after yeu were taken to Garnot's

tse that yeu went to Carlton ? A. Yes, we were removed from Garnot's house to
ek Lake and from Duck Lake to Carlton.

Q. And thon you came back Irom Duck Lake, after and after corni-g back from
'altOn to Duck Lake you left Duck Lake and came to Batoche ? A. We lef t Carlton

cane to Batoche.
ensQ. Where were you put when taken back from Carlton? A. Baptiste Boyer's

Q. What day was that ? A I don't remember.
. Iow long after the Duck Lake fight ? A. 3rd April, I think.
, It was after that time you had the conversation with Chic-i-cum ? A. Yes.

Q. What did ho say ? A. He said ho had been away and just got back and that
wa going away again.
Q. Anything else ? A. No, nothing else that I mind of.

Did he say where ho was going to ? A. He did not tell me exactly where ho
0goDg to, but I found out fron another party where ho was going.

Q. Was he in arms then ? A. Yes.
Q. Did ho form one of the party that had risen there that were under the

1%dership of Riel? A. Yes.

WILLIAm LIGHTFOOT, sworn

Examined by Mr. Casrain:
hbrough interpreter in Cree, Peter lourie, sworn.)

1aad qWhat band of Indians did you belong to in the spring? A. Red Pheasant's

Q* . Did you have occasion to go to Poundmaker's reserve at any time ? A.
We Were sent for, we went.

9. Did you go to Battleford ? A. Yes.
9. Did you see the prisoner there ? A. Yes.

Mtt2orWhat was the prisoner doing there ? A. I saw him in a store there at

i What was ho doing in the store ? A. He was looking over the store, the
ea in the store, one thing and another.
q what was he looking over them for? A. I thought ho was looking for

W s the master of the store there ? A. No.
as there anybody else in the store but Poundmaker ? A. No, he was not

o 'Who was with him ? A. I could not tell particularly which persons were,
9 ith him, because there were a large number of them.

hWbat kind of people were they?. A. Crees.
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Q. Is that all Poundmaker did there. Look over the things ? A. That is
I seen him do theie at that house.

Q. Did you see him do anything at any other house ? A. No.
Q. Did ho go into any other house? A. I did not se him.
Q. Did he go into a barn or any kind of a construction ? A, I did not see

any other way to go in any other place.
Q. Did you seoe Poundmaker alter this at any time with goods belonginlg 0

people in Battleford or near goods, or with any goods in his possession ? A. On tOP
of the hill at Battleford, I saw a bundle of goods lying alongside of where ho Was
sitting. I could not say where they came from.

Q. Ilow long was it after you had seon Poundmaker in the store that you
the goods near where Poundmaker was sitting? A. It was the same night that le
was overhauling the things at the store, that same evening, towards night, I s
this bundle of goods with him.

Q. Did you soe Poundmaker do anything with those goods, these bundle ofgoeo
afterwards? A. No.

Q. Did the other Indians who were with Poundmaker do anything in the store
thore? A. I saw people walking back and forth thore, but I never saw any at
time take any. I saw them inside of the store and outside of the store.

Q. Did you sec the Indians with any goods ? A. When I saw thom afterwa
I saw them with goods, clothing that they had on themselves.

Q. Where did it come from ? A. I could not tell where that came from, but
only could say that I saw them having those clothes with them, on them.

Q. Had you seen these clothes in the store before ? A. I could not recogn
them to say that I seon thom in the store, but I know they were new clothes.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. What time of the day was it you saw Poundmaker looking through the

goods, among the goods ? A. In the night.
Q. You told us that you saw the goods with, beside, Poundmaker in the evePl.t

of the day on which you had seon Poundmaker in the store ? A. I did not say
was on the day, but it was alroady night.

Q. It was in the ovening thon, is that what you mean ? A. At nigbt. .
Q. Was the sun down ? A. At night, it was dark. I saw him when I wOnt ' 1'

the store.
Q. What were you doing in the store at night? A. When I was going by

saw a light in the store, so I went in to see what was going on.
Q. How long after that was it that you saw the goods near where Poundnma4'

was sitting ? A. It was soon after.
Q. Was thoro anyone else there with Poundmaker? A. No, there was not

with him at the time, just thon ho was sitting alone. I aQ. Where was Yellow Mud Blanket ? A. I could not say where ho could
been.

Q. Where was Grey Eyes ? A. I could not tell positively where I had
thom, because there were so many of them.

Q. Where was Grey Eyes when you saw the goods on the ground where g
maker was sitting ? A. I could not say. .

Q. Do you know Wawpass and Mettaywaysis ? A. I know MettaywaYsis
ýCree. ýf

Q. Do you remember Wawpass and Pettaywaysis coming to Red Pheassa
reserve one night with tea and tobacco, or with tobaceo, froin Riel? A. Is it a
breed you mean ? It must have been Wawpass Trottier. I don't know exactly "'ab

man it is, I think there is two of the one name, but I don't know which of the
but there was a half-breed of that name that I thought Wawpass was his name• *0

Q. Were there two half.breed messengers from Riel with tobacco that ge
Red Pheasant's band, to his reserve ? A. There were two.
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A. Were you their guide and did you take them over to the Stonys' reserve ?
They knew where the reserve was, it was but from our party being rather doubtfal
was sent after them to go and listen wht ho would say to these Assiniboines.

Q. Do you know Mr. McRae? A. Yes.
Q. Did you tell Mr. McRae, at Battleford, that those two mon had askad RAd

easant for a guide to take them over to the Stonyi, that Red Pàoasant had refused
give them a guide and that thon ho with four othors, against'Red Pheasant's wish.

h then over ? A. I told him there were four of us went to those people, that is
What I said to him.

Q. Did you tell Mr. MoRae on that o3casion thît Red Pheasant refused to send a
gide and ho went in spite of that? A. What I said to him was this: I said that I

uld go to thom for one, so I asked the people then that three of thom should come
h me to hear so that we might all be able to know, and three people's more word
old be stronger than one as it were, that it would be more reliabte thsan one person.

Q. That is what you told Mr. McRie? A. The chief's brother was going to
d that one ; the chief himself was going to send that one. I was told that 1 wouald

goand I asked that three others would go with him.
Q. Were you fighting at Ont Knife ? A. No.
Q. Were you near Poundmaker at Cat Knife ? A. No, I was not near him at

9. Did you se Poundmaker at Cnt Knife at all ? A. I saw him I don't know
Imany days afcerwards.

Q. id you see hin at the fight? A. No, I did not see him at all.
ide.. Where were you on the day of the fight? A. I was away, far away on one

1h . Which side, near the women and children or the other side ? A. I was up
th river side.

Mr. Osler states that this complotes the case of Crown.

DEFENCE.
TOSEPH MACKAY sworn:-

Examined by Mr. Robertson:

b eQ. Mr McKay, you wore the farminstructor on Strike.him-on-the-back's reserve,live ; were you in the month of March last ? A. Yes.
Q Do you recollect seeing the prisoner, Poundmaker, at any time towards the
Of March ? A. I did.
Q. Where did you soe him ? A. In my house.

. in your house, on Strike-him-on-the.back's reserve ? A. Yes.
.low far from Battleford ? A. Well, it is about twenty miles, I suppose.

it Do you know what day of the month or what day of the week ? A. I think
as On Sunday in the latter end of the month.

to Q. That would be the 29th ? A. Yes, why I think so, I was just about writing
y and finish my books and go back with the returns.

It would be about the end of the month ? A. Yes, about the end of the month.
e ' But the ovidence is that Poundmaker was at Battleford on the 29th ? 'A.

this Was on Sunday, I think.
Will you tell me what took place between you and Poundmaker at that time?

r. Osler.-How is this evidenoe?
r. Robertson.-You have gone into a long course of conduct on Poundmaker's

e. Osler.-What ho says is not evidence.
r. iobertson.-Well, you have given a great deal of evidence.
. Osler.-It is for us to give evidence.
.Robertson.-My learned friends have given a great deal of evidence b'ut

s said and done by others.
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Mr. Justice ]Richardsoni-1sn't that proper, in a case of this sort ? What W*
said and done ?

Mr. Robertson.-Yes, it is, and it is just because it is a peculiar case, that
wish to give what Poundmaker says as part of the res geste.

Mr. Justice Richardson.-Have you any authority for it ?
Mr. Robertso.-,Jf a prisoner is charged with stealing a horse, and ho wants t

,call evidence to show that ho told a person ton minutes before that he was not goi4
to steal the horse-

Mr. Osler.-It is very likely what would take place, so as to have something tO
fall bock upon.

Mr. Robertson.-I want to show the conduct of this band of Indians on the r
-way from their reserve to Battleford.

Mr. Osler.-I don't object to that. I only object to your giving evidence of bJo
atatement.

Mr. Justice Richardson.-le may say what he saw Poundmaker do, that is P,
feotly legitimate. I can understand that, on the same principle as put before about
the horse etealing, but not what the man said.

Mr. Robertson.-I want to show what ho said as to the object of his journeY.t
Mr. Justice Richardson.--His actions may be given in ovidence, but notW

ho said.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. You saw Poundmaker at all events ? A. Yes, I saw him.
Q. Did he come to your house ? A. I sent for him.
Q. Ho and a number of Indians with him had come to your reserve that Wor

ing ? A. Yes. I did not see a number of Indians with him, at all. I heard there
was a number of Indians with him, but I did not see a number with him.

Q.What was his conduct on that occasion ? A. I asked him what was ho going
By Mr. Osler:

Q. Don't give that evidence. What did ho do ? A. Ho done nothing. I
nothing wrong with him when ho came into my house.

By Mr. Robertson :
Q. Had ho a gun ? A. No, I did not see him with a gun.Q. How long did ho remain in your neighborhood ? A. Oh, just a very i

while; ho just had a cup of tea and something to eat, and I talked to him just aL
while and ho went off.

Q. You say there were not many Indians with him? A. I did not see l
Indians with him,

Q. When did you next seehim ? A. I saw him four or five days after, ifr
ner' s settlement. . .,Q. Where is Bremner's settlement ? A. Between twenty and twenty-twO
from Battleford.

Q. Well, where is it from your reservation ? A. It is north from my reservatio
abQut six miles from my reserve north. t

Q. Is that the half-breed settlement ? A. Yes, that is the half-breed settO et
Q. You were then staying with the Bremner's ? A. Yes, I was hiding in a t

when I heard ho was coming.
Q. What was his conduct and bearing thon? A. I did not know. I did not go 4

I told Mrs. Mackay to stand outside the tent door and tell the Indians (they threa?,,d
my life), to kill me whenoever they saw me. I was told that by other Indianse
that is why I hid in my tent.

Q. Well, did you see Poundmaker ? A. Yes, I saw him in the house, I t*
to see him. I asked to see him.

Q. Now when was that ? A. That was about four or five days I think after,
I went to Bremner's settlement. I can't remember rightly the day of the iot'
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By the Court:
Q. Four or five days after the 30th ? A. After the3 time they pillaged everything,
Wae after they pillaged my store that I went to Bremnner's, after 1 was robbed of

%'4erything.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. How long after the interview when ho was on hie way to Battieford ? A. It

rIight be perhaps, since the last time I saw him, perhaps six or seven days.
1 Well, you did sec him thon, and what was his demeanor thon ? How did ho

avO himself then ? A. He behaved himself very well at the time I saw him
ere again. I went in to ask thom what was the reason the Indians wvanted to kill

1eand 1 told him I thought I never injured anybody, Indian or white people, and
1 othed him what is the reason ho wants to kill me, and ho said the old people have

11ug against you, but the young mon ho says we cannot control.
Mr. Osler.-I don't like to object but you have no right to give this evidonce,
IRobertson.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. How long have you known the Indians ? A. Oh, I have known them, I have
them quite a while ago. I suppose about twenty years since I saw them first,
i a long time between that, that I did not tee them again till I came up

ere at Battleford.
Q. That was Poundmaker ? A. Yes.
. But the Indians generally, how long have you been acquainted witti the

tans, the bands, councilmen of the Indians ? A. A long time. I was born in the
U'try and was ail my life time aktongst them.

Q. And you know their habits and customs do you ? A. I know them pretty
, I think.

thei. Was there anything unusual, anything extraordinary in the Indians taking
e guns with them whon they were going to Battieford ? A. It has been alway;

habit of the Indians wherever they go, to carry their guns wherever they go.
Q. And would that indicate any evil intent necessarily, their having guns with

A. WelI those that knows the nature of the Indian would never pay any
tion to it.
Q. You never think anything of it? A. No.

e What is a soldier's tent in an Indian camp ? A. A soldier's tent means-it is
t4 Yung men, the braves gather and they form a sort of a rule, and it is the young

and it is the young men that rules the soldier's tente. It is the braves and not
hiefs that rules it, it is generally the young mon, braves, the chief rules the campe e uch as pitching if they want to go off anywhere, but it ie the braves that4; the rules of the council.

. What is the effect now when a soldier's tent is pitched in a camp; what
to has that upon the authority of the chief ? A. Well, if any Indians would want

o%1 j0 away, if the soldiers would not let him go, they would go a'd kill his doge or
n his tent, ho could not go off unless the soldiers let bir go.

%e ' .Supposing the chief ordered that ho was to go? A. Wel, if it was against
ldiers, they could not go.

t. Then it amounts to this that the soldiers, the young brases, took the com-
cotntrol of the camp ? A. When they have a soldior's tent i p.

Poundmaker has been an influential man in hie tribe ? A. Lately, but at the
knew him ho was just an ordinary Indian, ordinary man u other Indians.Q. It is only lately that ho had much influence at ail? A. Yes.

o .rom what you know of Poundmaker and his Indians and the Indians on
er 'Wn reserve, what do you say as to the control Poundmaker could exorcise

hOse Indians ?
.e ' Osler.-I object to that question, it is a matter of opinion, ho must tell us
d we will judge of that, ho muet tell Us3 what ho knows, not hie opinion.
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Mr. Robertson.-Then I suppose my learned friend is not going to ask the jury
to draw an inference that be was a thief, from the evidence be bas given ?

Court.-If it is a legitimate question-if you can convince me it is a legitimate
quebtion, you can have bis answer, if not he mutt not answer.

Mr. Osier.-My objection is that the witness must state facts from which the
opinion is lormed.

Court -That is as I recollect the rule, it may be altered; if there is any modera
rule that will admit such a question, let us have it.

• Mr. Robertson.-The question is a good one, I submit to Your Honor, a
question to an expert witness who has said all bis life he bas been acquainted Witl)
the babils and customs of' he Indians, the habits and customs oflIndians are rarely
malter of expert knowledge, so far as we are concerned, and it is proper to ask the
witness, baving shown that he bas a i.pecial knowledge, for an opinion whicb
depends on that knowledge, special knowledge.

Conrt.-In the first place, is there any custom which would hold in law,
inear, in- this country ?

Mr. Robertson -It is not a custom as matter of law that I am seeking to pro¶e
vt all, it is for the purpose of affecting the probabilities of the case.

Court.-You miy ask what the man's general character was, just as if he Wer
charged with st<aling a horse, and ask the jury then to draw an inference frot*
what was said, wbether he would likely have committed the crime.

By -Mr. Robertson:
Q. What irstarâces bave you seen, or have you seen any instances of Ihe cases

which conflicts have ariben between the chiefs and thoir men-I mean conflicts 0
wisheS, ene wishirg to do or e tiing and another anotber ? A. Vell, I kLow o»
instance when I was in the Budson Bay service at Touchwood Hills when I W
going out hunting.

Mr. Osler.-That i, not evidence.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. Do you know of any instance? A, ]Not with him, because I hadn't a chancer

it is long since they had a soldier's tent up you see.
Cross-examined by Mr Osler:

Q. Do ycu know anything personally as to soldier's tents ? A. Yes, whel
was in the company's service-

Q. You kuo-w somethirg personally ? A. Well, I know personally what the
have ,love to me personally by their soldier's tents, that is what I know.

Q. That is all you do know ? A. That is all I do know.
Q. You don't know the habits of tribes ? A. No, for each-
Q. Each various tribe or band has a variation in its habits, they vary?

Soldiers' tents are very much all alike.
Q. Poundmaker of late years bas become a very influential man in his tribo

A. So I heard. I did not know it personally myself, fnot since long ago.
Q. He is an orator I believe of considerable power ? A. So I heard.
Q. And influence ? A. Yes. te
Q. las he a large following, a large number of followers ? A. I don't kn

number of men he has, it was just only a few days I was on the reservation; it
in Marcb I went out there.

Q. When was it you took an idea in your head that somebody was chasiY
what day ? A. I tbink it was Tuesday or Wednesday morning, just the follo«
week. b

Q. That would be about the lst of April ? A. Yes, either the last day of
oe the lst A pril, sometime like that.

Q. Whose band was it you were in fear of ? A. My a,& Indians, it was hIY>
Indians tbat robbed me.
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Those Indians ? A. No, Striko-him.on-the-Back and Sweet Grass.
And you left ? A. Oh, yes, I left.

JON ORAM, sworn :-
Examined by Mr. Robertson:

You wore instructor on Little Pine's reserve, I believe, in March last ? A. Yes.
Did you see Poundmaker at any time towards the end of March ? A. I did,

'idav the 27,h
SWhere was ho ? A. In my house.
On the roserve ? A. Yes.
Was ho accompanied by any Indians ? A. Two or three.
What was his behavior thon ? A. It was good.
Did ho show any signs of excitement ? A. He did.
What about? A. Of fear.
Pear of what ?

r. OsIer :-
You must not say what ho said, what ho did. A. He did nothing.
By Mr. Robertson:

What did ho do, did ho Ro away ? A. Yes.
Where did you see him next ? A. 8 mile@ from Battleford.
RIow did you happen to be there ? A. I went into his camp at night.
On your way to Battleford ? A. Yes.
Whore did you spend that night ? A. With thom.
QWas Little Pine there? A. He was.

% And wbere was Poundmaker? A. Heo was there too.
Q. Where did Poundmaker sleep ? A. Ho slept close beside me, about five yards.
% What day of the month was that do you know ? A. Sunday night, the 29th.

What was the demeanor of Poundmaker thon, how did ho treat you? A. He
'ne ver y kibdly.
Did you fel at all alarmed? A. To a certain extent.
At what ? A. At the excitement they wore in.
'Who? A. The Indians in general.
-Did Poundmaker do anything that caused you to foel any alarm ? A. He

i Was any attempt made to stop you from going away in the morning ? A.
the maorning, but that evening.
Who stopped you ? A. Some of the young mon.
That was the invit(ttion you got to stay all night? A. Yes.

'Wtd And you thought that they meant it rather peremptorily ? A. Yes, a kind

They did not use any violence ? A. Oh no, not at all.
ý ): .Andthen it was that you spent the night with Poundmaker and Little Pine ?

teq . Well, when you went away in the morning, was any attempt made thon to
A. Well, they hollered to me to come back, but that was atter Poundmaker

nother councillor previons to that had told me I could go now, to hurry up. 1
And they sent you off? A. Yes, telling me at the same time everything

there wa nothing wrong.
Were there any women with the Indians ? A. There wore.
A considerable number? A. About twenty I judged.
Were any of the men painted in war paint, or were there any signs of any

A. The y oung men were.
1ad they the war paint ? A. Oh, yes, but that is a common thing for them

hekUoy were painted as they were commonly painted ? A. Yes.
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Q. But [ asked about war paint, did you recognize any difference ? A. No.
Q. Do you know to what extent the influence of Poundmaker with his tribe e'

tended? A. That night you mean ?
Q. Ye ? A. He had no command of other Indians no more than the other chiefo'
Q. He had no command over the Indians that night any more than the otber

cbiefs ? A. No.

Cross-examined by Mr. OsIer:
Q. Who was it kept you safe in the camp ? A. i don't know.
Q. Who was it got you the permit in the morning to go? A. I cannot s.'

was ore by the name of Chicoutis.
Q. Who told you you could go, and go now? A. Chicoutis.
Q. A chief ? A. A councillor.
Q. Did Poundmaker say anything to you about it ?' A. No, he did not.
Q. What took you down there? A. I was going to Battleford at the end of

month.
Q. For what purpose ? A. With my returns. 'tQ. And you went into this camp? A. It was on the road, I could not Poo0

without going in.
Q. And some of the young men asked you to stay that night? A. Yes.
Q. And Poundmaker took you in ? A. Well, he was sitting right down thd

when 1 came in, and I took the side of him.
Q. You told us, as 1 thought, that Poundmaker said it was all right, that tbo

was nothing wrong ? A. I said nothing of the sort. I said this other Indian,l
other councillor said to me in the morning, told them everything is good, we 000
no bad. That was the words that was said.

Q. That is what the courcillor told you ? A. Yes, but he is no councillor
this man, he is councillor to the chi f Little Pine.

Q. Who told you that you could go, and go now ? A. Chicoutis.
Q. Weil, who was it detained you there, and who was it let you go? . Ido

know his name. They took and engaged my horse, unhitched it. I did not se0
man that unhitched my horse. They took him from the buggy.

Q. That was a mere act of hostility ? A. Yes, in a kind of a way.
Q. Who was it told you to go and go quickly, in the morning ? A. The 01

party I mentioned to you now.
Q. Just speeding the parting gue8t, is that all ? A. They t old me to hurry '
Gay Erxs, sworn:

E. amined by Mr. Robertson:
Q. Were you at Battleford the night the stores were robbed there? A.
Q. Where was Poundmaker that night? A. He tras on the top of the

where the brick building was.
Q. Where were you ? A. I was there too.
Q. Wih him? A. Yes. d åQ. When did you go there, what time of the evening ? A. After we had

a talk with Mr. Ballantyne, there was a white man there, that was writing do w9',,0Q. Wl at time of the day was that ? A. It was towards evening. I col
teil exactly what time. I have no watch or anything to go by. 00#Q. And where did the white man go? A. Peter Ballantyne and the White
went down the hill.

Q. Went down what hill, and in what direction? A. The road that go
the trail, that goes down to the Battle River.

Q. Across to the barracks ? A. I could not say where they wout,
they went across or not, but it was just after Poundmaker and Little Pie ha
what thoir errand was, what they were coming for, and then they went awSY. -ei%

Q. Then, where did Poundmaker go after they went away ? A. He ren'1
there at the brick'building and they were booking something to eat.
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Q HIow long did you romain with Poundmaker ? A. Till night.
to ' And how long into the night? A. It was a good ways into the night, pretty
at' left him sitting there and I thought I would go to sleep and I went to -tent
Was5 there close by, and I could not sleep and there was another tont where they

cbooking, and I went over there and had something to eat with them.Qe iDid you see Poundmaker after that? A. I came back thon to where I had
, and he was thore still where I had left him.

Q Iow long had you been away ? A. I must have made a mistake there, we
efte ade Up our bed to sleep close by the brick building, you asked me how long

d a left Poundmaker till I came back again, and I was not away longer then I
Afg oIething to eat, the mistake was in the day that we had something to eat,r We had had a talk with Ballantyno and explained all that, we were waiting

4' and I left him there and went to have something to eat at this tent, and them
ae right back to where ho was thon.

Io IIow long were you away that last time when you wore gatting somothing
at the tent ? A. It was not long.

4ý- . LOw long? A. It must have been half an hour. I wassitting there with my
"and Capin-ow-way-win when I came back and imust have beon about half au

ne. I had something to eat and lit my pipe and had a smoke, and after that,*Out and went back again.
114. q Did you see any goods, any bundle of goods near where Pound maker was

' when you came back ? A. No.
q then you came back, what happened next; what did you do next ? A.

there in one place, we did not go anywhere.
How long did you stay there? A. A long time.

11 when ? A. It was very near daylight at last.
'You sat there all the time? A. I left him there again, and I heard him.
out to the people, stopping them from what they were doing.
What were they doing that ho was stopping? A. I heard them making a

breaking open something and ho called out to them to keep quiet, but of
they would not listen to him..

Q Did Poundmaker have any goods at any time that night? A. I satw nothing.q * Could ho have had any without your seeing thom ? A. I did not perceive
ha4d anything at all, just no more than his clothes.

%ë Oould ho have had anything extra without your seeing themn? A. I saw
& With him at all, all the time that I was there

t%%l9 COuld thore have been any goods there withoiut your knowing it ? A. I saw-
at all with him that I could think that ho had anything, any goods along-li

trj Q What did Poundmaker do, or did ho do anything besides calling out to then
s tP ?A. I heard him calling out to the people stop ping them, and with that there

t40e Or four mon along with him that went down the hill thon to go and stopad Speak to them down the hill.
Ilow long did you two romain at Battleford ? A. Just about daylight we loft

orae to our reserves.
1 aYlight next morning ? A. Yes.
'kWhere did you two go to on the reserve ? A. We went into Strike-him-on-

a l reserve at Sandy Hils. That is where we stopped.
oW far did you go on your own reserve ? Did you go up to Cut Knife Hill ?

R, to our tents on the bide of Cut Knife Creek.
ow long did you two romain there ? A. I think next day we rose camp
Y by there, on the same aide of the creek yet.

gt~ lIOw long did you romain thore ? A. I could not tell how many nights I
remained thore, but when we rose camp and came from there, we just

tq ite close by there again, on the same side of the creek.
Ahle enerally how long did you remain at Cut Knife ? A. (Prisoner says ho i&

to tel,because they were there forty nights.)
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Q. Do you remember messengers coming from Riel ? A. I knew when th1
came. I was lying already when they came.

Q. Lying down asleep ? A. I got wounded and I was lying when they c
Q. Where were you wounded ? A. Inside of our reserve I got wounded.
Q. Before you were wourded, do you not remember any of Riel's mesS0e0

eoming ? A. No, I did not see anyone. I heard that they come at Eagle Hill•
Q. Do you know Wawpass Trottier ? A. No.
Q. Do you know Jobin ? A. No, I don't know any of these half-breeds St

only a chance one that I know.
Q. Do you know the schoolmaster at the French settiement ? A. No.
(It is suggested that the witness knows the man, but he does not know the fln't

. Don't you know the schoolmaster at the French settlement ? A. No, I do
]Mow. &

Q. Do you know of anybody trying to get the Indians to go up to Batoche ?
No, I don't know anything at ail about it. I was lying all the time, how 0 ol
know ; it was far, and between that the chief would come and see me.

Q. lad Poundmaker enough influence in his camp to prevent the Indians joe
going away to join Riel ? A. He could not stop them from going away, because
tried to take us away, one day, from the rest of the party, and he could not MsP

Q. Did Poundmaker try to take you any place, and where ? A. He tried thre
times, and they would corne and take our horses and lead them back into the ca

Q. Did Poundmaker try three ti mes to go ? A. Yes; and his brother and,
lat, Lightfoot was to come with us two again, and the Assiniboines just 0losea
and brought us back again.

Q. Who was in command of the camp at Cut Knife ? A. The soldiers' I
and Assiniboines.

Q. Who built the soldiers' lodge ? A. The Assiniboines were the mon thott
up the soldiers' lodge, and, in fact, they had been keeping up their dances the b
winter.

Q. When was the soldiers' lodge put up in the camp at Cut Knife ? A. I
just soon aller we had encamped there.

Q. Weze the Assiniboirie the same as the Stonys? A. The same. t
Q. Was it when the Stonys came in that they put up the soldiers' tent

Yee, it was after they came into the camp, but not just right away immediatelY tbe
I could not @ay how many days it was from the time they had come in, and tha
lodge was put up-I could not say wbat number of days.

Q. W bat power bas the chief among the Crees and Stonys when a so
lodge bas been put up in the camp? A. Tbe chief has no control over anyone
"hat ioldiers' tent is up.

Q. W ho bas the control? A. The soldiers, the dancers of the lodge.
4. Was Poundmaker one of the soldiers ? A. No.
Q. W ho were the soldiers ? A. The Assiniboines were.
Q. . d Crees ? A. There were some Crees, they took them in, that 18

reason why they joined them.
Q. W ere there any balf-breeds tbere ? A. No.
Q. N o half- breeds among the soldiers? A. None at all.
Q. Were there half-breeds in the camp? A. There was none into Our

but they bad a camp of their own a piece one side.
Q. What balf-breeds were those? A. I don't know any names, I don't t

their names, but it is the half-breeds lrom that place.
Q. From what place ? A. From Bremner's, acroas the river. e
Q. Do you know who brought in ,the teansters ? A. I could not eay, bec

was not able to move at that time.

Crosa-examined by Mr. Osler:
Q. What band do you belong to? A. Poundmaker's.
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Q. Poundmaker your chief ? A. Yes.
'D O you obey your orders? A. Yes.

. Do you feel bound to obey them every time ? A. Yes.
Q4*IAnd all good Indians do? A. Yes.

%doo Is Poundmaker a good chief, of great influence with his men ? A. Ie is
t his men and we always hear him givirg them good advice.

8 o110W many men has he got ? A. If coula not tel what number, there is quite

4% low many Stonys or Assiniboines came into the camp, to your camp i
ose there must have been about sixty or more.
ere there more Stonys than followers of Poundmaker? A. We are far

number. Poundmaker bas far less.
% Rad Poundmaker less than sixty men? A. Yes, a long ways, I mean as

' 8 as belong to Poundmaker.
S When you came back from Battleford that night, had you any goods with

. I had none myself, but I seen people with goods.
ou saw people with goods? the band had goods with them ? A. I saw

th goods.
A .hat was done with the goods ? A. I could not say, I suppose they woro

1*q Q.Took them into the camp? A, They took them home with them- living in

bied Poundmaker go out when he heard them breaking into the store ? A.
O PPed them first by talking to them, and said young men you are frightening

, keep quiet he told them.
elY' Wo .î't they just disui bing him frcm sleeping ? A, No, there was no one

P"' while this was going on.
What time of the night was it? A. It was longways in night.
WIy weren't they asleep ? A. We were kept awake by others.

et ? And wasn't that what was disturbing Poundmaker, didn't he want to keep
t . Be was preventing them, but of course they would not listen to him,

op bidn't you do some fighting at Cut Knife Hâill ? A. I went away and waa

a Weren't you a man who was fighting ? A, I am taken by surprise. I can't

Q* idnü't you fight ? A. I did not fight. I had to run away right at once.
,Je Alexander says he fired at you three times, isn't that true? A. No.

S1 ho0 was it shot you through the leg ? A. I could not say who bit me in
t but Josie said it was him that shot me in my leg, it was when a ball glanced
bte in the leg.bq ere you holding a gun when he hit you in the leg ? A. I was holding a

I laid it down in the bush.
ct here (6 p. m.) adjourned till 10 a.m. tomorrow, when case resumed.

IN. Fisa sworn :-

£Xmined by Mr. Robertson:
Fish, you are one of the teamsters who were taken prisoners by the Indians ?

Wben was that? A. On the 14th May, I think.
hO was in command of the Indians, who took you prisoner ? The breeds,

Qhe half.breeds ? A. Yes.
Was Poundmaker there when you were taken prisoner ? A. No.
w here were you taken on that occasion ? A. We were taken to the half-

ore Was the half-breed camp as respects the Indian camp ? A. Well, they -
0ue side of the Indian camp.
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Q. Separate from it? A. Yes.
Q. How long did you remain there? A. We loft on the 7th day. gi
Q. You wore there six days thon and you left on the 7th after you were take» '

A. Yes. #
Q. When you left, how did it happen that you got away? A. Well, therO

some scouts came from Riel's camp, and they heard that Riel was taken, and
had a council and concluded to let us go.

Q. You say you were set at liberty? A. Yes.
Q. Now did you Aee Poundmaker wb'ile you were in the camp. A. I did,

day, sometimes two or three times a day.
Q. Were you closely confined in the Indian camp? A. No.
Q. Wore you allowed to ramble about ? A. Yes.
Q. And all over through the one camp or the other ? A. Yes, we used t'

any place, almost.
Q. Were you present at any of the councils that were hold? A. Yes.
Q. Anyone thon would appear to be at liberty there ? A. Yes.
Q. And nearly everyone did go ? A. Yes, any person that wanted to go.
Q. Whenever there was a council, nearly everyone went ? A. Yes.
Q. Whatever their feelings might have been ? A. Yes.
Q. Now tell me what was the first you saw of Poundmaker when you wer 0 e

in? A. Well, we were taken down hili into a kind of a ravine, and Poundx1ao4
came up and shook hands with us all around and said that ho knew there ws
and ho thanked Hlim for saving oar lives, ho did not thank our braves, he
control over them.

Mr. Osler.-That is not evidence.

By Mr. Robertson :
Q. Did ho speak in Cree ? A. Yes.

By the Court :
Q. Do you speak Cree yourself? A. No, the half-breeds interpreted it.

By Mr. Robertson :
Q. That was when you were taken into the half-breed camp and ho came

you ? A. Yes.
Q. What was his conduct towards you from that time forward ? A. Ver

ho used to come to us every night and talk to us, and the breeds would interPtO
By Mr. OsIer : Nover mind what ho said.
By Mr. Robertson: otll

Q. He used to come by you overy night and talk to you, and the breeds
interprot what he said to you? A. Yes, and he shook hands with us all aroand.

Q. And you say you saw him every day ? A. Yes, two or three timos a
Q. Will you teU me, while you were in the camp, who appeared to be in cO'

of the camp, the Indian camp ? A. The half-breeds. ø
Q. Any half-breed in particular? A. Yes, there wore two half-breeds, it a

to me that seemed to be in command. . o
Q. Can you describe them or do you know their names ? A. No, I don e

their names. One of them went with a message to Riel, and ho was senten"
the other day with the twenty-four.

Q. That was one of them ? A. Yes, a short, stout man.
Q. And who was the other man ? A. Short, stout, with grey whisker# o

moustache. He treated us very well, but he seemed to be in command all the
Q. Now, what did you se in his conduct, in the appearance of his-Ot th r1

generally and the behavior of the people in the camp? A. Well, ho gave o
.anything was to be done ho would give orders that it was to be done, and atte»
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atd told us what we were to do and everything. It is almost certain, I can say
a command of the camp.

ýe6.' Now, do you speak of the Indian camp as well as the half-breed camp ? A.

Aý 1 Was there any routine, any regular daily operations that ho went through ?
0, 1 don't think there was. It just depended on what the next day brought what
'WOuld do.
I -But teil us now what you saw him doing;' you have told us in general terms

teerned to give orders when anything was to be done, just tell us one or two
e 'O n which you saw him taking a part in that way ? A. Well, every time
enid .top he would give the order to stop, and :every time we would start, he

give the order to start.
SAYthing else; who sent out scouting parties ? A. Well, ho was there at
rae, and I think ho was giving orders in one way and another about them going.

tat ? ow, did you ever see Poundmaker during all that time taking any part like
A. No, never.

He did not ? A. No.
tila bid ho seem to take any part in the councils ? A. Well, ho sat at the coun-

e spoke. Of course, 1 could not say what ho said. He spoke leE s than any of
t ther Indians. I won't say any of the other, but any of the others that did speak

,for some of course, did not have anything to Say.
titt. % bo you know what his attitude was at those coun cils ? A. le was very quiet,.

down.
q. Was the advice ho gave at those councils interpreted to you ?

. Osler.-That is Dot ovidence.
It. r. obertson.-I want to give my learned friend the opportunity to keep thi s

ourt·-How could I receive it unless ho understood the language ?
ee· Oler.-There are certain definite rules of evidence which I am bound to.
heeon to and you have no right to say that I am conducting the case unfairly

object to it.
rt tr• Ifobertson.-I wish the jury to hear that I am prevented from showing the

at Poundmaker did take.
'rt.--You are prevented simply because the law says you shall not.
•. Robertson.-Your Honor rules that way of course.

rule upon fixed law.
• Rbertson.-I am not finding fault with that, but I don't think it is so clear

%Î curse I bow to your Honor's ruling-but I don't think it is so clear where it is
duct of the man throughout that is in question, that what ho sald when ho was

%dj' Part in the very things that they accuse him of taking part in-that what he
1 it 0 o shut out, when that is the only index you can have of what his intentions

I don't think it is nearly so clear as what my learned friend says.
r ven then, you have not got the language that was given.

• oberton.-I asked the witness if it was interpreted to him.
04rt.-How does ho know whether it was interpreted to him truly or not ?

•l' lobertson.-I did not ask him whether it was interpreted truly or not.
urt-You have gone as far as you can.

AU M1r. Robertson :

L bid you See Poundmaker when the news arrived of the capture of Riel? A.
t se.e him just at the moment. I was down in one of the tepees at the time
Il dian told me of it and seemed to be very glad of the idea that ho was cap-

idyou Seeo Poundmaker soon after that? A. Yes.
1 e hat was his conduct? A. He seemed to be glad of the idea that the war

•& Re told me so, motioned to me.
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Q. Do you recollect any occurrence, in the camp when you were there, abo
pocket knife? A. Yes. 0

Q. Tell the jury 'what that was, and what part Poundmaker took in h
Well, when we were taken to the camp the young braves started to search 'se 0ø
wanted to see what we had, I suppose, and just as Poundmaker came up one of t
was taking a pocket knife from one of the boys, and Poundmaker saw him do i4 he
he did not say anything at the timp, but as soon as the Indian got away g is
pocket knife he took his own pocket knife out of his p9cket and gave it to the
exchange for the one the Indian had taken.

Cross-examined by Mr. Oster : b
Q. Then I understand from what you saw, all parties were obeying the

breeds who were in command? A. Yes.
Q. Was Poundmaker obeying their orders with the rest? A. Yes.
Q. Doing what they directed to be done? A. Yes. gQ. And then, when the councils were held he was one of the council? A

he was there, everybody was there that wanted to go. d a kei
Q. Well, how did you distinguish the council thon,did all take counsel toge

A. They came and got together and sat down when there was a council, and if thaé
was not a council, they were standing up walking around. C,101

Q. Then tho councillors were sitting down ; you did not take part in the t0,o
for instance? A. Yes, I did. I sat down with the rest of them. I was in the 0
of the council. g Of

Q. Then, it was a consultation as to what was to be done, as to moving wo
anything of that kind, you don't mean to say you took any part in advising
shouid be done? A. No, I didn't.

Q. You were merely there as a spectator ? A. Yes, I was.
Q. Now, Poundmaker, as I understood you to say, used to speak, althougb

frequently ? A. Yes, he spoke. ø
Q. And were there Indians of bis band in the party that captured the t0

A. I could not say whether they belonged to bis band or not.
Q. You don't know how that was ? A. No. 4à

Q. About how many mon were there altogether in the camp, half.breede
Indians ? A. I should say there were about 300. b

Q. Were there any Indian chiefs in command, or were they all under the
breeds ? A. They were all under the breeds. t oe0Q. What was done with the goods? A. I don't know. Well, of course
that were taken from us were taken by the Indians ani breeds. sé

Q. Use ary of them in the camp afterwards ? A. Yes, I think they were
in the camp.

By Mr. Robertaon:
Q. In what particular did you see Poundmaker obeying the breeds? 

the same as all the rest of them; he would do whatever he was told. d ii
Q. Did you ever see them tell him to do anything, and see hinm

A. Nothing particular. No. ,,Q. Did you ever see him take any active part in anything that was goi
A. No.

SOLOMON DESJARDINS, sworn:-
Examined by fr. Robertson :

Q. Where do you live ? A. In Prince Albert now.
Q. Where did you live in the beginning of March last ? A. I Wa 10

Pine's reserve.
Q. What was your occupation there ? A. I was working there, doing as
Q. In whose omployment ? A. Indian Department.
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&Q 'You were employed in the Indian Department on Little Pine's reserve?

Do yoa know Poundmaker? A. Yes.
What was the first you. saw of him in connection with the trouble or about

1me of the trouble? A. I seen him at Cut Knife Creek.
. That was the first, was it ? A. Yes

Q' Were you there, at Cut Knife Creek ? A. Yes.· ow did you come to be there ? A. I had been prisoner at Little Pine's
e, 0 we all came down to the Cut Knife Creek.

Q· The Indians on your own reserve took you prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q- And brought you down there ? A. Yes.

. To Ot Knife Ci eek ? A. Yes.
i What did you find when you got to Cut Knife Creek, when you were brought

11 that time ? They were all there.
e Who? A. Poundmaker's camp, and the Stonys, and Sweet Grass, all three

together,
All there together whon you arrived ? A. Yes.
Iad a soldiers' tent been pitched before you arrived ? A. No, it was after.

toq, Who pitched that soldiers' tent? A. I am not sure. I thought it was the

t, o , tell us what you saw at the fight at Cut Knife? A. I saw nothing at

q.el, you saw something of it? What was the first you knew of the fight ?
as I my bed when the first shell came into the camp.

ell did you got up ? A. I got up and put on my boots, and ran to within
nthre miles of the creek, with the rest of the half-breeds.

•ow did you see anything of Poundmaker? A. No.
You saw nothing of him that day ? A. No.
tD0 you know anything about the letter being sent from Poundmaker, or
a camp, Poundmaker, Copinawaywin and three others to Riel ? A. No.
YOu don't know anything about that? A. No.

id you know that a message had been sent? A. That was after, ip the
I was not sure.bO you know Wawpass Trottier? A. No.

y sight? A. No.
' o you know Chicicum? A. I know Charles Trottier, who was in that camp.
was he one of the messengers from Riel? A. Yes, he said he was.

nd Chicicum, do you know him ? A. Yes.
YOuQ saw those men there, did you ?. A. Yes.
And Jobin? A. Yes.
Q hen did vou first see them in the camp? A. I would not say.
A'bout when ? How long before the fight ? A. Ctiarles and Pierre Vandale,

t4e Arcand, Tropas Trottier and one Sioux, and Cayien, who was wounded after

tt at I want to know about these other men before the fight? A. Yes,
C hicicuni and Jobin.

And Norbert Delorme was he there also before the fight? A. Yes.
OW did you heaur Delorme trying to persuade Poundmaker to go to Batoche?

0 robertson here submits that it is proper to ask what answer Poundmaker

t I think you may put that.
% at answer did Poundmaker make to it? A. Poundmaker said he would

I rt Pitt, to Big Bear's camp and he would wait for him a while before ho
q&0down to Riel.

ah8t i what he said ? A. Yes.
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Q. Did be pay that ho would go ? A. Well, that is what ho said, that he
wait for Big Bear for awhile.

Q. Did he say that ho would go ? A. No.
Q. Well, did he say that ho would not go. what did ho say as to going ae

A. h e said that time that ho would wait for Big Bear awhile before he would
down, ard then after that ho said then ho would not go-after the fight.

Q. Did.you hear any others trying to persuade to induce him to go ? «·
all of them, ail of the half-breeds from Duck Lake were after him to take hi' do

Q. And what did he say to them ? A. He said ho would want to go bac
Devil's Lake.

Q. What did ho say about going to Batoche? A. H1e said he did not like tO
down after the fight at Duck Lake.

Q. le wanted to go to Devil's Lake ? A. Yes.
Q. Where is Devil's Lake? A. I don't know.
Q. Doin't you know in what direction it is in ? A. No.
Q. How long did you romain in the camp? A. I remained there all that

till the surrender.
Q. Who was in command of the camp? A. Well after Norbert Delorme

to the camp, 1 guess ho was the boss in the camp.
Q. Now ho came before Cut Knife, before the fight ? A. Yes.
Q. Was Poundmaker able to control the Indians in that camp ? A. No, d

think it.
Q. Did ho ever take any active part in what was being done ? A. I can't
Q You did not see any at ail events ? A. No.
Q. Well, were you constantly about the camp ? Were you kept confined 1

particular place, or were you free to walk about the camp ? A. I walked aboo
aay time.

Q. And did you walk about a good deal ? A. Yes.
Q. And if Poundmaker had been +aking an active part, would you have SO

A. I don't know, ho was not often ont of his tent.

e Cross-examined by Mr. Osler :
Q. Thon as soon as the first shot was fired you went off to a place of safetY

Yes.
By Mr. Robertson:

Q. I want to ask you another question. Do you know an Indian by the
Mustatamus? A. Yes. pg

Q. Does ho reiemble Poundmaker at aIl? A. No, not much, he is a verf
Inan.

Q. He resembles him in that? A. Yes.
Q. le is a fine looking Indian, straight? A. Yes, a good looking Indian.
Q. Was ho in the camp at the time of the fight at Cut Knife, do you knOW

Yes. tIh
Q. Do you know whether ho was taking any active part in the affaira

camp ? A. I seen him before sunset that same day, the day of the fight, and h
on his baek, ho had a bullet or something.

Q. He was wounded ? A. Yes.

Cross examined by Mr. Osier: f
Q Several of those who wanted to fight went to the rear with you, didn

A. So I thought.
Q Ail those who did not want to fight went off to a place of safet ?

as the fight happened some of the half-breeds went, didn't they ? A. Yesé" t
Q. Prisoner went ? A. Yes, the prisoner was pretty nearly in that dire .l0
Q. Everybody was free to go, there was nobody hindering ? A. Yes; tlh

al around us.
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9 But nobody hindered you from getting away ? A. I had to go with the half.

Q. Then it was just those who were not going to fight who went to the rear t
À es,

Q. And those who were going to flght remained ? A. That is the way Ithought!
'Weil, did Poundmaker go wiLh you or did be stay in the camp ? A. I could

8aY. I did not see him.
Q. You did not see him with those who retreated ? A. No.

When was it you heard Poundmaker say he would go to Big Bear or send to
Ilar and would wait for him awhile before he went to Batoche ? A. I couli
say the time.
Q- Was it before the Cut Knife fight, before the soldiers came ? A. Yes, befor.

tdiers came.
SQ. And how long before ? A. Well, I am not sure, but I guess it is about five

- days before.
q Well, was it Poundmaker himself they wanted to go to Batoche, or his band.

undersitood it was all the band.
Q. Well it because Poundmaker refused to go that the band did not go'k don't k-now.8

I. But when they wanted the band to go they went to Poundmaker ? A. I
inot Ray.
. Weil, it was Poundmaker they spoke to ? A. No, they had a big meeting,

keyspok to each other there.
And who answered ? A. Al the councillors and headmen got up and

Q. Poundmaker among the rest ? A. Yes.
A And the conclusion come to was that they would wait for Big Bear ? A. Yes4

Q. Before they went down ? A. To Duck Lake.

Pather Louis OocHN sworn:-

JExamined by Air. Robertaon;
'relnch interpreter sworn, Napoléon Blache.)

th . What is your ocupation ? A. I am missionary to the Indians at Battleford,
eviinity of Battleford.
• Where were you residing in the early part of March last? At the settle.
of the half-breeds near Battleford, about 25 miles from Battleford.
•Ï Ils it the settlement known as4 Bremner's settlement ? A. Yes.

t%, 46 .id you se anything of Poundmaker there at any time towards the end of
itl oth of March last? A.I seen Poundmaker; when Poundmaker came to me

bit t4Indians it was not Poundmaker said it, but the Indians said they come to
on Y, or they come to bring you. Poundmaker himself said they come to bring

Sake you, they are coming.
4e ot that these people have come now, are come now to take you, but they

'119 ? A. They are coming.
4 O Whom did he refer? A. When Poundmaker said they come to take you,

a agang of Indians behind him, and he meant at the time that it was the
lbt 20 tht came to take him, to fetch him. Poundrnaker came with the Indians,Oq Indians, and ho sont two mon of the band to advise the half-breeds that ho
4 toi y orry that the Indians were excited and he was not, and when ho arrived,

Wr. Bremner and half-breeds before me, they come Vo take you.
a' hs that the flrst time you saw him, when there were 200 Indians with him?

rlim one time before, and ho promised-he gave the Stonys to understand
Q ot trouble us at all, and we could romain to work in our place.
'U saw him once before ? A. Yes.

'b-%thYY bat was the first occasion that I asked you about, I want you to tell us
frat occasion, not about the 200 ? A. This is the firat occasion that I saw
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Q. How many Indians were there with him on that first occasion ? A. Twenty
Indians the first time.

Q. Now what did ho come for on that occasion? A. Poundmaker and the other
20 Indians went there to assure thomselves, and what they were doing at the tirne, at
that time at Bremner's settlement, and the half-breeds there met them and under-
stood that they were quite indifferent to the fight, they did not want to figlit, they
wanted to have peace and cultivate thoir lands, and Poundmaker made that under-
stood to their Indians and they went away again.

Q. But what did Poundmaker come there for ? A. Poundraker went ovor there
with them to prevent them from doing any harm to the half-breeds at the time; he
went there on account-to see himsolf what was going to be done and explain to ttie
Indians. I suppose that those Indians were Assiniboines and were quite excited at
the time; and Poundmaker went over there with thom to see and to assure them
that they were quiet at the time, and did not want to cause any row or anything like
that.

Q. Well, the:next time you saw him, was he there when there were 200 Indiana?
A. Yes.

Q. Who was in command of those Indians ? A. Delorme.
Q. What part did Poundmaker take ? A. Poundmaker, on arriving, simply said

to Bremner's, they come to fetch you, and afterwards I returned to the tent and did
not hoar any more of the conversation, of the doings.

Q. Well, did you go over to the camp-the Indian camp after that ? A. Next
morning we went to the Indian camp; we started to go over to the Indian camps
because Delorme told us that if we did not go there would be probably bloodshed
over it, and Poundmaker promised him and to the half breeds that he would protect
them all the time.

Q, Then you did go over ? A. And then we followed the Indians in the camp.
Q. When was that-what time of the month ? A. it was on the 15th or 16th

of April.
Q. And how long did you remain in the camp? A. I stopped from that time

-15th and 16th of April till 18th in that camp, 17th or 18th.
Q. Were you a prisoner there during that time ? A. I was taken as a prisoner

like t he others. I was not taken by force. I could go about in the camp anywhere
I liked to go, but I could not go out.

Q. Where were you taken in the first place when you were taken over-to
which camp ? A. I was in Bremner's camp.

Q. The balf.breed camp or the Indian camp ? A. lalf-breed camp.
Q. But after you had been there a time, you were allowed to wander about any

place in either camp? A. I was let free to go out every now and thon, but was
sometimes threatened by the Indians to not go too far or be too free about it.

Q. Which Indians ? A. The Stonys. I don't know all their names, but they
were Stony Indians.

Q. It was Stonys that throatened you ? A, Yes.
Q. Do you talk and understand Cree? A. I understand Cree well.
Q. And Stony ? A. No.
Q. Who was in command of the Indian camp while you were there? A. I can

say there were two commandants of the Indian camp. I heard Poundmaker com.
manding his own people, but I never heard him commanding anything wrong; it
was always of good and ho was obeyed by the good men.

Q. Who was the other commander? A. The other commander was Delo rme,
and the soldiers' camp.

Q. Ho commanded the soldiers' and the Stonys' camp? A. Yes.
Q. Hlad PouLdmaker control of that Indian camp ? Were you able to control

it ? A. I could not. I tried now and thon to have control of the camp, but I did
mot Succeed.

Q. Wbat attempts did you make to get control of it ? A. He told his men many
times in fact that they were frightening him on account of thom pillaging, and in
fact murdering and so on the people, slaughtering the people, or somothing like that.
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. They were frightening him? A. Frightening him by thair past onduct%
aging and murder and so on.
Q. Well, bis trying to get control of the camp, on what occasions did he try to
eOntrol of it? A. Every time there was excitement ho was trying to have

I of the camp.
Q Trying to do what? A. Each time they were threatening the prisoners or

%oer times when they were trying to go to Battleford, ho was trying to take
of the camp thon.

14 . Tryingwhat to do? What did he want thom to do? A. He was tbreaten-
gh half.breed, and thon for panishment, killing the beasts, cattle that theyght over, they stole or made thoir property, appropriated them.

. You said when there was excitement, and when the India ns were threaten-
k prisoners, and when the Indians wore winting to go to Bttleford, Pound.

À WOd try to get control of the camp-now what did ho try to get them to do?
W was trying to calm them, and saying, pay attention or be carefulin your con-

and when ho saw thom at a certain place, ho was sending them to another
Or Ioving about. I saw that-the half-breed camp.
. oving about? A. Yes.
For what purpose ? A. Coming to make a noise in the half-breed camp, and
ld send thom away ; they were making a noise or row in tho half-breed camps

. Did the Indians, on any particular occasion that you remember, threaten to
; r.ay of the half-breeds who had been taken from the settlement ? A. i heard
lans saying to the half-breeds of Bremner's settlement that if youl go on
suspicion against you thore will bo damage done. It appears some of the

,half-breeds, I suppose, that were brought up from thore, wanted to desert,
dians told them if you want to koop deserting that way, at last something
happen between us, meaning they would fight them or kill them, and in

elracumstances I have soen Poundmakor many times sending tbem aside, sond-
heI a'way-Indians, sending them to one side, protecting the prisoners.
4 ' as your own life in danger at any time? A. From the beginning until the 2nd

%thought my life was in danger, and during that time 1 was threatened now
h, and once there was twenty Stony Indians that were surrounding and try-

to strike me, but Poundmaker came to them and they scattered away, sent them.

ý4q'What did Poundmaker say to thom ? A. I can't say, but I h eard some worda
ý%deostood a few words and hoard Poundmaker saying to thom that-his meaning

r.ht they had nothing to do thore, in fact, and ho, Poundmaker, threatened

.Well was your life in danger at any time ? A. Not after the fight.
ie I at else, if anything, did Poundmaker do to protect you from the Indians?

se hMeld meetings and speeches, saying to leave the fathers alone, in fact, to
e.4 quiet. And ho had so much indignation at Frog Lake massacre.

hd id you ever have a guard standing over you to protect you ? A. Yes.
er went thoro to my tont several times to see that nothing had happened

e et Others in the camp; used to go around my tont several ti mes, many times,
t nothing had happened to me.

as thore a guard standing over you at any time? A. After the fight.
'ehat was the guard thore for? A. Those were half-breeds that wore sont
that I speak of now.
ow, tell us all that you know, and all that you saw in the fight at Cut Knife

e4 'bIheard an Indian in the morning about 5 o'clock. le was shouting te
.d Igot up at the time and went out, and as I went out I saw a few Indiana

t running on the creek side towards the creek, and I was trying myself to
hat was going on at the time, and after walking about 100 yards I hoard
and after those few shots I heard, they fired until 12 o'clock. They

FýPPed till 12 o'clock, and thon I proceoded to a small hill, and on arriving
A the soldiers going up too. There were a few lndians advancing tow&ards
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.the soldiers at the time, running around by their lf t, and the fire was too
and I left.

Q. Did you see Poundmaker that day ? A. I saw on that day only wbat I
s few minutes ago. That is all I saw, as I returned immediately to the half b
camp, as they were getting ready to go away.

Q. Did you see Pouidmaker that day ? A. No.
Q. Not at all ? A. I saw him after the fight.
Q. Where was he ? A. ie was with all his camp. They were chaDl

camp at the time.
Q. How long was that after the fight ? A. About three or four hours aftortb

fight.
Q. Was that the first you saw of Poundmaker that day ? A. I think I

him coming out of his tent before he went away from the half-breed camp. t
mot sure it was him.

Q. Did you see any buckboards? A. I seen a good many buckboards on
'balf-breeds' side and ludians, but I did not see any buckboards with the half-bre
going towards-I don't remember seeing any going away with the other half-bre'

Q. Did you see any buckboards on the field when the fight was going on? .
Cross-examined by Mr. Casgrain : i

Witness.-On one occasion the Indians wanted to go to Battleford to Pl
and Poundmaker prevented them from going. On other occasions wben the I" *
threatened the half-breeds Poundmaker prevented them from carrying their th ,
into execution. On other occasions when the Indians came to make a row 1' o
Iialf-breed camp Poundmaker came over and sent them away. On another occ
when the priest's life was in danger it was due to Poundmaker's influence OV!o
Assiniboine Indians that his life was saved. Therefore Poundmaker's ifluence 10
Indian camp was considerable. Poundmaker was a speaker of considerable le
amongst the Indians; he was listened to for certain things and sometimes he ws
listened to. When the Cut Knife fight began those who did not want to join in
fight left the Indian camp and went into a hill about two or three miles from1 * p
the fight was going on. There was a good deal of confusion in the beginnirg b
some of the indians came and tried to make those wno did not want to fig p
towards the Indian families and not towards the half-breed camp. Poundma et¢
not follow them when they left the field. I don't know whether Poundmaker -
towards the other-the Indian families. I and the half-breeds were prisoners 10
Indian camp. tb#

Q. The Indians were in a state of war? A. A great part of them, if nOt"t1

greater part, were in a state of war. I did not see any buckboard on the fl1I
day, but there might h-qve been buckboards without my seeing them. SOm
.after the fight I went to Poundmaker and spoke to him about going to Colon® m.or
with an offer to surrender, and Poundmaker thon told me to go with an of-er f 10 1oP
render. The reason that I went to Poundmaker was because Poundmaker W £
of the camp. I thought he was the chief.

By Mr. Robertson: to
Q. You have said that Poundmaker had a good deal of influence over tbe 6

aometimes and sometimes not? A. Sometimes not. foQ. How was that influence he posebtsed exercised by him, for good or fo
A. For good. b

Q. Always ? A. He bad influence when the others were afraid there 1 9i
danger that he would not be listened to.

Defence closed. No evidence in reply.

ADDRESS OF COUNSEL FOR DEFENCE.
Ma. Robertson,-May it please your h onors, gentlemen of the jury : 1

io say to you very few words indeed upon this case. You have heard aU tu
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lu ca judge of it just as well without any words from me as you can if I were
e Ok to you for hours. You have heard, of course, the evidencoof the witnesses for
nCOwn, and you have no doubt remarked this, that every one of those witnesses is

) Prejudiced by bis officia] position or by the circumstances through wbich ho
tPassed, against the ladian. You have noticed Mr. Jefferson-you have noticed

he goesF into that box saying himself that ho has no clear recollection of what
ýt1 Cake place, and you notice also that while he is admitting that he is giving

.ecollections very imperfect of what took place, every time he bas
'1 'ng to say it is colored against the prisoner. You must have
struck by that when ho was telling you of what took place between

t and Poundmaker, when ho himseolf went to flnd Poundmaker because he thought
s i danger. He met Poundmaker, and he tried to convey to your minds, at

th8 inpression that Poundmaker had practically said to him, you might have
lled before I got back, and I would have been rather glad if you had because

d not have been to blame for it, but now that you are here I can make use of
you can leave. That is the sort of impression he tried to convey to you at

at '.nd When he came to be pressed a little, and was made to give the words, we
re was totally different. We find old Poundmaker rejoicing that he was alive

a rring to the fact that he had many times kissed bis little child, and that ho
lad that he was there and unirjured. There was one sample of the way in

Jefferson always tried to color the evidence that he was giving. Then we
b 1I again about the letter. At last, when pressed on cross-xamination, he is§

to admit that Poundmaker may never have authorizod him to put his name
akt letter. He bas to admit that at last. In the first place he states, in the
est terms, that Poundmaker authorized him to put his name to that letter, and

groat stress on the fact that he goes to Pound maker's tent for the purpose of
g it. Now, what were the circumstances as he detailed them ? He was in

he4 er tent. A messenger comes to him, not fron Poundmaker. One of Red
'nt o men comes to him and tells him that he is wanted. He goes on thon, not

a maker says, but he says it is said by some one that he is wanted to write a
: T*heu a letter is dictated by whom ? He can't say by whom. He does not

t. th4tPotndmaker dictated it, but he thinks all that were prosent had a hand in
o ell, that is all vory well. Perhaps they had a hand in it, but what hand ?
e*Planation to you, gentlemen, of that is this, of what took place there, they

't oeDundmaker's tent, because they lad to go there and get him. It was the
4%W#Y they could get him into it at ail. The half-breeds were there. The half-

o 8 had come determined to bring him into sympathy with Riel, or, at all events,
er e seeming connection with him all the other half-breeds of Battleford how-
14ciwiling, and all the Indians. They found there most ready confederates in
e tYo . They rise. They get them to join tbem, and thon they bring them

o Oundmaker's camp. and they take the control of Poundmaker's men out of
%4 11 bands, of his camp out of his bands. They come there, the Stonys come,
%ierl, tonys pitch the soldiers' teont. It is not Poundmaker's men that pitch the

tent, but the Stonys come into his camp and pitch the soldiers' tent, an<L
tlcr'nselves masters of it. And, gentlemen, does not the evidence of those

tr were his prisoners in that camp during that time satisfy you that that was
th . 1)0ition, that Poundmaker's influence, such as it was, was always exercised

Qea à terests of peace and humanity-always, but there was a stronger influence
"t infle that he could not countervail, the influence of those half-breeds

e o e touv at their back, and perhaps younger mon amongst the Crees, who
aqi&t b0 'y tO0 glad to show that they were braves, and to go in for any figating that

Xe Pbe gOing on ? That, I take it, was the true position of the matter. Then, what
tiý: 'a1dMaker's position ? He was there in is own camp. He could not get away

fâ I Three times he tried, and each time he was brought back. He could not
"om, it. He was there. The state of things was such. that Mr. Jefferson-

Jhimself, even Jefferson, who was not auxious to help Poundmaker, tells you
asaker, whom he had been trying to make out so influential, might have
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been in fear of his life at the very time that that letter was written. Jefferson
in iear of bis life. Jefferson would never have written that letter-if ho had di,
to refuse, what would have been the result, and if ho did not dare to refusc,
you to think much of this, that Poundmaker sat there while that letter
being conceccted when tbey came to bis tent for the purpose of doing it? NoW, bo$
did it bappen that they came there ? The half-brecds who were in control of
camp wanted to communicate with Riel. They wanted to give him confidence,
they wanted to rope these Indians in. The half-breeds arranged how it was to
done. They said: We want to make this appear that it cemes from all the Ind
We will keep away, but we will send our own Indian, Chicicum, who was one of
leaders; we will send him. He will go and organize matters. We will instruot
beforehand what is to be said; and accordingly Chicicum goes. He gets UP
meeting. He takes, not Poundmaker's Indians, but the Stonys, because you
remember that Jefferson tells us who those Indians were that were present th8Ie.
The only man that was Poundmaker's man was Copinowwaywin-all the othoo
were Stonys-and ho comes from the other reserves that they bad stirred up.
had got together to Poundmaker's tent, and they pretended to hold a council at w
Poundmaker is present. Then they dictate the letter. They make Jefferson
it. Then, to be quite sure that it is according to the instructions the half-breedh
given them, they take it over to the balf-breeds' tent, and the letter is e
revised, and an alteration is made. TIhat is how that letter was concocted. It
mot the work of Poundmaker. lt was the work of the half-breeds who had cot
of that camp, acting through the Stonys and the other Indians over whom they
acquired influence and thbough whom they were controlling Poundmaker. Thbt
Eay, is the explanation of that letter, and if you think that there is reasonable go
for believing that Poundmaker did not willingly Write that letter or dictate it--i
think there is reaeonable dcubt that ho did not willingly authorize his name à
placed to it-if you think even that ho did perhaps say yes when ho was asked
mame might be put to it; if you think that in saying that ho was influenced by
that' if ho did not it would be worse for him, then he is entitled to your verdiceÎ.
acquittal; because I am going to submit to you that there is no evidence upon w
you can safely convict that man of the charge laid against him upon any of the O
particulars, I think, as nearly as anything can be. As to the going to Battle
-what is the evidence as against Poundmaker? In looking at that, you must reo
ter that an Indian chief, however influential, is not like the commander of an
ized or disciplined force. lie is nothing of that sort. The influence ho bas
such an influence as his personal character and peihaps a knack of speakin
give him, and that only gives him tuch influence as enables him to lead men
their own inclinations jump. le cannot, with all hie influence, so control the Y00gy 1 fr#o
]men, braves of his tribe, as to pievent them, if they are bent upon mischief' b
ommitting it. He bas no court of justice; ho bas no means of punishment; h

mothing whatever to enforce his authority except such persuasive powers as ho vol
bave. That is all ho bas to depend upon. Now ho goes to Battleford. We find g
imeeting Joseph McKay on Strike-him-on-the-back's reserve; we find him me t
Craig; we find him meeting Mr. Wm. McKay and Mr. Peter Ballantyne at aroe
ford, and none of those men-and they all know the Indians well-none of those
in fact they all say that they saw nothing in the demeanor or conduct of Poundro
hiimself, during that time, to indicate that ho intended any harm whatever.
McKay, who bas known the Indians from his childhood, says there was not
whatever unusual in their having their guns. An Indian travels withwbh
gun as you or I travel with our coats. There was nothing unusUal'
ever in that, and there is nothing to show that Poundmaker organD 0i
body to go with him. The contrary is the case. He hadn't asked an C
to' go with him, the only evidence there is on the subject shows; bt 0 0#5
went to aek for tea and tobacco which they all desired and needed. 1 ;,11$
aiso, anxious about what was taking place and to try and find out the truth a
these troubles at Duck Lake. He went there, and his Indians a great many-of
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followed very naturally and asked for something that he was going for, and what did
they find when they got there? They found the village deserted, they found in all
directions houses containing goods and all manner of things to arouse the cupidity of
an Indian. Gentlemen, if a trap had been deliberately laid to draw these Indians into
some act of wrong-doing, could a better trap have been laid than that ? What
was to be expected when a lot of young Indians came and entered the village and
found it deserted ? What else was to be expected thanthat some, at least, among then
would try to help themselves to some of the good things about them. It is the very
thing to be expected, and I venture to say if this people had not deserted their homes,
if they had remained there, there would have been no plundering and no violence
that night, but temptation was there and the young men yielded to it, but it does not
follow at all that Poundmaker came there with any idea that anything of that kind-
was to be committed, nor does it follow at all that he approved of what was donc. In
fact the evidence is, on the contrary, that he tried to prevent it. You remember the
evidence of one of the witnesses was that Poundmaker when he heard this going on
went ont and cried out to stop, not to do that, ancd that he afterwards got two of his
older men to go out for the very purpose of preventing more harm being
done. You have got evidence of Mr. William Lightfoot that he saw Poundmaker
examining some of the things in the store, and he says that he afterwards saw a
bundle of things near where Pundmaker was. Well, gentlemen, how much reliance
would you place upon Mr. William Lightfoot? If it is truthful, ho contradicts Col.
Rerchmer, at all events he contradicts one of the Crown witnesses, Joe Alexander.
Joe Alexander said he saw Poundmaker on the field at Cut Knife, and that he was
mear him, and with him, that was the expression he ueed, and this same William
Lightfoot says, he was not there and never was near Pouxndmaker during that day.
Then, William Lightfoot is the young man who guided Riel's messengers from Red
Pheasant's reservation over to the Stonys to help them rouse the Stonys. William
Lightfoot is in that box to save himself. Gentlemen, that is what he is there
for, and yon know that an Indian of that class always tries to save himself by tiying
to bring charges against other Indians. You know that well, and I submit to you
-with great confidence thattbat man's evidence is not worth a tittle when he says that
Pour dmaker took goods that night. Poundmaker was too sensible of the trouble and
was too auxious to prevent it, to do anything of that kind, ho did not show in his
conduct, so far as we have been able to get at it, and as you know i have been pre-
vented by my learned friends who have the right todo it, I have been prevented from
showing you what his conversation was with these men when he met them, which
would have helped you also to decide upon what his motives were. The only factwe
have is that all these men who met him and did talk with him felt that he intended.
no harm; we have got that fact, at all events, and it is not likely that Poundmaker
in those circumstances and feeling friendly towards the whites, as his conduct shows
lie did tbroughout, would have done seo foolish a thing, because he is not a fool, as to
join in plundering a few goods on that night.

Another important fact in his favor is that the very next morning those Indians
disappeared. 1ow, to whose influence was that due? There must have been some
one there to induce those Indians to go away f-om Battleford and to go back to
their reserve. Who was it ? I think we may fairly assume that it was Poundmaker.
That would be consistent with all the rest of his conduct, so far as we have been able
to get at it; lie does go back, and they camp at Cut Knife. There is another thing I
want to say to you about that at Battleford-even supposing there had been any
intention to loot or to take goods at Battleford, that is not treason-felony unless it is
in the nature of levying war against the Queen, and that all depends upon the motive
with which the wrong was done, the robbing. Now, the robbing of stores merely
for the purpose of getting the goods, just because they wanted the stuff and they-
wanted to help themselves, that is not treason-felony, that is robbery or larceny or
whatever it may be, but it is not treason-felony, and the people that are liable for it,
are the people that actually did it. There is no charge of that kind brought here,.
Iwe have nothing to do with any charge of that kind here; the charge here is that
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.o levied war on that occasion against Her M ajesty, and I think you must be
fLed, or you must say that the evidence for thu Crown doos not establish any s
intention on that occasion. Then ho comes back to Cut Knife, and they uamp thOe
and thon, as I was saying, the Stonys come in and the half-breeds in commnand
them, and they take complote control of his camp-from that time forward be
Jbiepless. We have the evidence of Father Cochin, and of the young teamster
was there, and everyone in that camp who saw what was going on, that the r
control of that camp was in the hands of the half-breeds, and that PoundmS
influence was practically nil as against them; that what little influence ho haît,
exercised for good. And, gentlemen, I think you will believe that we have to ths
Poundmaker for this happy fact, that of all those prisoners that were taken in
camp, not one of ther was killed. Father Cochin has told you of particular instla
in which the Stonys-it was always the Stonys-in which the Stonys wsntd tO
murder or injure the white prisoners. It was always Poundmaker that stepped%
and threatenod them and dispersed them ; ho had influence enough for that.
learned friends, I can see, make a point of that. They are going to say he
inliuence enough for that, and if ho had influence enough for that, ho might hb
-controlled them altogether-it does not follow at all. Poundmaker in that no do
had the support of the half-breeds, and no doubt the half-breed leaders who were10S
ing the Indians, were just as unwilling as Poundmaker was that the white pri.OO
ehould be injured. That was where Poundmaker was strong, in that directioll,
where the half-breed leaders were the other way, and whore the half-breed IO&
were in conflict with the wishes of Poundmaker and had the inclination of jJI
Stonys with them, there Poundmaker was perfectly helpless. That is the view
I ask y on to take of the whole situation. I ask yon to remember that this poor 100
is an Indian, that although ho is defended here, ho is very imperfectly defedb
that it is impossible for me, without the facilities that I should have if I had a W
prisoner to defend, a man who could explain to me and tell me all about overYth'
and whose confidence I could gain-if I had a white man like that to defend, anld if
Lad thie means of communicating and getting information from thobe distant reg
in which all this trouble occurred, it would be a very different thing; but YO"

ee, you have seen yourselves, by the witnesses in that box, how difficult my tak b'
been. You have seen how completely at sea I have been as to many of t.he 0
ronces that were in question, and you will see from that how impossible it 0W
Poundmaker or any other Indian should have such a defence as a white prisoDOr, 'W
is able to explain himsolf, would have. I ask you to remember that, and I ask you',
that reason, to scrutinize all the more carefully the evidence that is brought .0
him by the Crown. Now, we can't go on through the whole of it. I have just POî.j$t
out a fow little things like that as indices that might help to guide you in co
ing the case, the evidence. I have perfect confidence that you will give a fair
sideration, that you will not allow it to press unduly on your minds UpOa .
prisoner, and I ask you to give him the benefit of every reasonable doubt and
every doubt weight, for the very reason that ho is so helpless.

ADDRESS OF THE CROWN COUNSEL.

Mr. Osler.-May it please your Honors, gentlemen of the jury,-The case .jo
yo is one of very considerable in,>ortauce; one, perhaps, second only to the o
the chief leader of the recent insurrection, Louis iel. In that case the chief
was on his trial for high treason, the crinie of treason. Here the chief of pro
thé best known of all Indian tribes through Canada is on trial for the lesser g
of t-eason-felony, but upon ovidence which wculd probably have justifi.i the ,o y
in charging him with the higher crime of treason; and, if it were not for r ie
tarced favorable to the prisoner, such as his not allowing those in his power tothé power of the camp to be killed, but for those circumstances which surrou" ty

-actions personally it would have been the duty of the Crown, in ali probabthe
put him on trial for his life. But ho is charged with that lesser offence becao
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t Istantces surrounding him were thought to be su"h that, even if he were con-
etOf the higher crime, it might be a sentence which the Crown wouli commute.

SXow, gentlemen, let me say, in the first place, that the Crown bas no desire try
hi Mnan guilty unleqs the evidence clearly so points. The Government of the

.0 ttry and the people of this country would be delighted to know that, as the resultý
s enquiry, Paundmaker, a well known chief, had remained loyal to his Qaeen,
to the country, and stood there and did all he could to protect the settlers and

o eOUntry when in danger; and no one wonld be better pleased than those in chsrgs
the Government and the prosecution to know that, although accuse'l, a1though
tcted, the analyzed evidence showed that he had remained loyal and true; and

f at is the result of the evidence ou have heard, gentlemen we ask you to give it
Weight and send him out of that dock a free man. hat is it Po? Does he

6Out with his intelligence, with his position, with his influence for good or evit?
.16 come out with that clean record that we would all delight to see him have?

e tbe evidence so strong against him that, no matter how intelligent ho is, am
how good he is in many of his instincts, still during all that tirne there wa
in bis mind, in his heart, and there was fraud in bis action, and he, an Indiau,.

ont cause of complaint against the Government, and without any grievance tfo
#id se, threw in his weight with those who pretended to have a grievance, an&
fo them in the calamity that they have brought upon the country ? Now, it i:

YOU to say which position he took. And it is not necessary f>r the Crown tr
ki OUt that he was always a leader, or that he was responsible for the action of

o-ung men. He is chargeable, as many men are, with the company that he
he chargeable with the aid he gave, be it small or great. The question of

b of guilt, once you say he ie guilty, is a question for the length of sentece.
14 or YOur verdict. If he is guilty, and there are many extenuating circumstancesi,

. id not lead, if ho was, so to speak, guilty by reason of the circumstances sur-
Ding him more than from hie own individual action, thon that is a matter for them
1nd the executive.

X OW, gentlemen, he stands charged on various counts and overt acte technically
dand set forth, and if on anyone of these overt acts you find the evidenes

to 11sive against him he is guilty of the charge as laid -gullty of conspiring
War, to levy insurrection against the constituted authorities.

t W the most cogent evidence of intent go rerning al[ his actions, his fatur.
tn sWe say, is the letter produced here by the Crown written in English by thoe

e Jefferson, and with hie name attached to it and addressed to Louis Rief.
0.ak yourselves, was lie a party to that letter? ln other words, ask yourselvew

et believe Jeffirson ? Have y>n reason to d ubt the honesty of JatTersons
lce ? Consider how he comported himself in the box. Did ho give his evidene

oa lianiu without care, or did lie give it with care, stating fairly that which wa
t Well as that which was against the prisoner? How did he strike y>t as a

ei ?Have you any reason to disbelieve hie story ? You are bound to give
eQ tO othe ovidence before you, and there are methods of impeaching that evi-

%% first, by cross-examination ; second, by putti og some witnesses in the box t&
ito at the man is not a credible witness, not to be believed on oath. Has, then, this

8 been in any way impeached ? If not, you are bound to give due weight tu
evdencie
]4o f, is it possible, is it likoly that ho would put the name of Poundmaker té

Setter with the other chiefs; or put it first, unles Paundcmaker had authorized it?
j> sy he could not and would not have put his name to it without his authority..

lefd Polieve him when he says so ? Ie saysthey were sitting around, these variouw
Onnaker, Copinowwaywin, Massinass, Mettawaysis and Peewaychew. Thesoe

Itt ere there sitting aroind, dictating some of them one part, some another of ths
À e4 a result the production was satisfactory to the who'e of them, and the writer

%oftlithoriz3d to put the name to it, and that letter falls into the possession of the
4 That letter is delivered to the half-breed'nessengers. It is discassed again, au.
etion is made in it as to the number of messengers that are to be sent. Thon if
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you give weight to that letter, and say that Poundmaker is chargeable with it, co
aider its termis and say whether they are consistent in any way with the theory nor
set up for the defence. Let me read it to you-bear in mird it is on the 29th Apri
It is just three or four days before the battle of Cut Knife Hill, which takes place On
2nd May; just at that time, this man, the prisoner, is found in the council with thee
oller chiefs. Just prior to Cut Knife Hill, this letter is discuaEed with the balf-breeMp
and its terms changed. Was he a loyal man acting there urder the fear of bis li
er was he acting in concert ? Was ho acting in aid of the rebellion then existing,,
IHere is the letter: "If any event occurred since youk messengers went away,
referring to the fact that they recognized these men as Riel's messengers, " tell **
the date when the Americans will reach the Canadian Pacific Railway." See ho'
they knew all the plans, how they realized that they expected aid from the AmeriCa#
s one of the great factors in the success of the rebellion, and remember that sentene
in connection with the evidence, when the second letter came, and when the
2nessengers told him the Americans were not going tothelp. Remember that sente0oe
in this letter in connection with the fact that Poundmaker said when he heard tÉ,
second time on the occasion of the second letter- a copy of which we have not go
- but on the occasion of the second letter Poundmaker says: "If I had not believ
tbit ilo Americans were coming to help, I would not have gene into Ihe row•
4 We."as my ]carned friend, Mr. Robertson, properly says, we would rot have 0
io the row. That is an important thing to bear in nind in remembering îhiI
Ieinm in the letLer. Evidently the first communication between Louis
and Poundinaker bd been on the basis that il ho would rise and belp hi
kLere are the prospects: The Americans are coming to take the Canldis
Pacifie Railway. I have nrranged for that. We are bere doing our wor
]Big Bear is there doing bis work. You do your work. Our united the'

(The three lines of the copy folcwing tihis cannot be deciphered.)
go on " tell me all the news you have heard from all places where your wek 
in progiess. Big Ear has finished bis woi k, he has taken Fort Pitt." Yon oee 11o
the men who wrote Ibis ietter were in active communication with Big Bear, the
recognized him as in tb joint movement. "If you want me to come to you let
know at once," he said, referring to Big Bear. "I sent for him at once, they Wn el
four da3 s on ihe road. Those who bave gene to sEco him will sleep twice ofl
road. They ack twenty pribonere, including the master at Fort Pitt. They ki heelèven mern, i cluding the agent, two priests, six white men. We are camped on t
creek just telow Cut Knife Hill, waiting for Big Bear. The Blackfeet have kill
sixty jolice at the Elbow, a half.breed who fought for the police baving survived h
fight, though wourdcd, brought Ibis news. lere we have killed six white nienl
bave not Itken tLe barracks yct, but that is the only entire building in Battleio"'
]Bear Ibis in mind when you consider the responsibility fer the Battileford raid.
the cattle.and hoises in the vicinity we have taken. We bave lost one inan,
Percé killed, Le Leirg ailone, and one wounded. Some soldiers bave corne frcm wfSy
Current, but I dc,*t linow their rumber. We bave here guns ard rifles of aIl r
but ammuniticn for ieim is short; if it be possible wo want you to serd us Dimm
tiòn of various hiuds; we are wcak only for want of theni. You Éent word that .
-would ceme to Bauleford when y ou had ifished your work at Duck Lake, we to1
still for you. We aie urable to take the fort without help; we are impatien or
reàch you. It would give us encouragement to see you ard make us work ii-ore
behrtily. Up to Ibe Ja escnt, everytbing bas gone well with us, but we are c
talitly expecting the soldiers to visit ue. Wo trust that God will be as kind to les

tho lture as Le bas been in the past. We, the undersigned, send greeting te
all." '1ben come five signatures of tbo five chief men, Poundmaker's coming it
tend. And then there is a postscript: " When this reachesyou send us news iflie J,

ately as we are anxious to hear the news." And there is the further alteratioD,
it may be that the evidence does not bring bome, if that is important, that alterAtih
to lhe pisoter, " if you send us news, send as many men as possible," that is
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atiOn made you will remember when the terms of that letter were discussed,
e the half-breeds were present. As the letter was originally written, there was one
kenger to te sent ; as it was altered, it was "send as mauy men aspossible."

10 NOW, gentlemen. as I have said to you, the great governing question here is, is
th draker respcnsible for that letter ? If you find him responsible for that letter,

Your task is a very easy one, for you need consider very little of the other evi-
t Now you heard just how Jefferson put it in examination and cross-examina

Can you come to any other conclusion ?
oW, gentlemen, beyond that letter, there is evidence, as I submit, to convict.

I that letter the case is, in my view, almost unanswerable. Beyon it, howover,
tave the evideLce -of the Battlefoid raid ; you have the evidence that when the
of terrer existing in the country had driven the settlers into the refuge of the

eir 11hen the state of thirgs existing there had compelled men to flee, leaving
Louses and their goods abandoned, when that state of thiugs exists, this man

es down to Battleford with bis armed men, 100 strong. What was he there forY?
7 hlelp themelves to hay. Poundmaker himself is seen in the store turning over

e9800ds. 'What was he there for if he was a loyal subject? Wby did be refuse to-
e the Indian egent half way when the Indian agent asked him to meet him W
hat the act of a loyal subject wanting to help the Government in trouble?

At t s it the act of an Indian who, willing to Iet his braves do what they will,
samne time his extra intelligence told him you must keep yourself right by

1 , Something and doing something which will show that your hent is not in
irk. 1Now isn't bis position just this ? As events changed, as he tbought the

as n Was strong, so he was strong; as le thought the retellion was wcak, so ho
o Weak, always knowing his prominent position, always knowing it was very easy
o xe a direction which could never be heard. It was very easy to set works andt

I Which would save him in case the Government ultimately succeeded and
in to ive an account of his chiefship. Isn't that the position of a man who.

Rt o ]Battlexord and who refuses to meet the Indian agent, and who staîis up and
,engoods and is up there at that hour in the morning, and is seen afterwards with
e .alongside of him ? I admit with my learued friend, Mr. Robertson, that that in

i not treason-felony, as an isolated aci, but it is treason-felony il it is a part of
%to 0e"'Ûon object, if it is a part of the war and insurrection which they had ertered
M * As an isolated act, it was meie looting or stealing, punisbable as such, but if
ai* eferable to the insurrection, to the rising in arms, to the conspiracy to levy

S igainst the Government, then it is an overt act of treason-felony for which you-
RÙd the prisoner responsible.

0 l,' Weil then, gentlemen, we come to the evidence of the battle at Cut Knife ilL
>4' Ubelieve that the prisoner was there aiding and abetting, no matter wbether ho

CoImand or not ? Do y ou believe, in other words, Col. Herchmer, when he
aet Le saw him there engaged apparently in directing the movements ? Do

h ~leve Josie Alexander, who saw him there with Grey Eyes ; and ho says also.
4 'ghtfoot ? Do you believe that he was recoguzEd in the fight ? Grey Eyea

%4btJlii, according to one witness, and Grey Eyes is the Indian here wto was
g actively, Lad bis gun and was shot, and is here yet with bis wound uppar ently
£d. That was the man, Grey Eyes, who was seen in bis company. Weil,S en, upon that occasion, upon the occasion of that fight, there seerms to have

Î e camp for non-combatant people who did not want to tight. The hdi-breeds,
0%gâ -ohin, and others, retreated when the battle happened, but in that retreat

d lZaker did not appear. They were divided into two camps-the camp of thosee ered to go out of the reach of the ballets, who desired not to take any part inohest, and those left. W here was Poundimaker on that ot-casion ? Wlt n was
t %ke ?Was he taking an opportuuity as a loyal subject to go out and turrender

4 ith a flag of truce, and say, now, at all events, is my chance te ecape and
tilYself right with the Government ? Or was he hauling down the white flag

oPt"ely engaged in directing the movements of the troops ? Which corclusion
otme to on the evidence ? If he ws there fighting, he is responsible, respon-

331



49 Victoria. Sesional Papers (No.ù2.) A. 188

,sible for the lives that were taken and the wounds that were given uipon that oP<'
EiO. The evidence as to what took place on that occasion seems to me to be ail oe
way, and there is the positive and uncontradicted identification of the prisoner <i
that occasion.

Now, my learned friend says that wit.h reference to the raid upon the teamné
that that was a matter for which ho is not responsible. Well, now, I will admit that
prior to that occasion Poundmaker endeavored to get away, but why was that ? Il
eaw by that time that it was a losing cause. When ho wanted to get away, a114
they would not let him, what was it that ho said. He said that ho was afraid that
IRiel was in a bad wiy-he was in a bad fix, and it was only because ho, with hiS
superior intelligence, was satisfied that Riel was in a bad way, that ho wanted to leasv
the camp. Now, that does not heip him if ho was thon trying to turn back for thO
dirat time. You sec after that, gentlemen, ho takes part in the council as to what 18
to be done. He acts, no doubt, when the teamsters are brought in, with that humanit
which we would expect from his superior intelligence, and he is entitled te and ho
does get the benefit of that. If he had not shown that superior humanity ho would,
mo doubt, in all probability, be on trial for his life. If that was part of the mOV'
ments in the general insurrection, he is liable for that as well as for the other acts,
but the Crown does not need to press that, to bring home to him anything whiclh
yoa think ho ought to be dissolved from. If ho is found guilty of any one of theOs
acts, it is just as sufficient, and just as strong, as if ho was found guilty on a dozO#
evert acts.

Now, gentlemen, I shall follow the example of my learned friend, and I shSl
-give your intelligence credit for following the evidence and being able to give fall
-weight to it, without my recounting it te you. What you have to give your verdiôt
on is not what I say te you, but what the witnesses have said to you. It is only 101
duty, on the part of the Crown, to point out some of the matters upon which th
Crown relies, and adopt those matters to the written charge preferred here. On the
general defence that ho was heipless in the hands of his young men, it seems te 010
that Father Cochin's evidence shows that ho still had a great deal of influence left;
he iqrgas who was able to control where control was wanted; ho it was who die'
:persed bands of Indians when quarrelling with the half-breeds; ho it was who gOe
where 20 surrounded Father Cochin and his life was in danger, ho goes there an
Uses his influence and quiets them; wherever his influence is wanted and wherevle
it is exercised it is felt. Now, do you believe that he was helpless in the hands oe
the young braves, or if ho had chosen to say break that tont up, he had not ail Lh
influence necessary to do it. If ho hadn't that influence, if he was no longer chieft
there etill was a duty upon him as a loyal Indian. No man can excuse his treaso'1
to the Crown unless bis treaqonable act is proiced by fear of death; fear only oe
personal death absolves a man from a treasonable offence, and while perhaps it IWf'Y
beunfair to measure the weight of evidence against an Indian in the same way that
the Crown have ail along measured it against white subjects, and perhaps it would bO
fairer for you to say if that man was not in control of the camp, had ho under tho

ircumstances a duty to perform to the Crown ? As a treaty Indian, as a malfO
intelligence, as a man who had been in personal communication with many of the
high oticers of Government, should ho not have heard of the trouble likely to rise
Should ho not have met the Indian agent and told him there is a soldiers' teout>
xannot control ? Should ho net have done sonething to show that while ho was io

:that camp ho was not of it; that while ho was surrounded by disloyal mon, dangerouo
mnon, he was remaining true to his allegiance? That is what I would expect if -o
Iiad remained an honest chief. Is nit his conduct all through well-indicated by thi
,writing that we have produced on the part of the Crown ?

Now, gentlemen, weigh well this evidence, and if thore is a reasonable doubt
give it to the prisoner. The Crown here have endeavored to give him a fair trial;
€ounsel has been assigned to him to work up the evidence, to present the case fairf
te you fromn his point of view; every witness that he has desired to spoak in 1
behalf has been summoned at the expensé of the Crown, and you mut not understa
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me in any remarks I make to be seeking in any way te influence you beyond what>
you ought honestly to be influenced by, namely, the evidence that you have heard in
the box.

JUDGE'S CHARGB.

Mr. Justice IRichardson. -Gentlemen of the jury. In what remarks I may haveý
to make to you I shall be as brief as possible. What we have heard since yesterday-
Las been I think, so fresh, and must be so fresh in your minds that yen must recol-
lect it. However, if during the few minutes that will elapse I am told that you de
mot, I will take steps, such steps as I think proper to refresh your memory.

The charge against this prisoner is upon an Act of Parliament, passed in the,
year 1867, just after what was known as the Fenian raids, and the clause of the Act
npon which this charge is framed reads this way : " Whosoever, after the passing of
this Act within Canada or without, compasses, imagines, invents, devises or intends ter
deprive or depose our Most Gracious Lady the Queen, her beirs or successors, fronL
the style, bonor and royal name of the Imperial Crown of the United Kingdora or
of any other of Her Majesty's dominions or countries, or to levy war against Uer'
IMajesty, ber heirs or successors within any part of the United Kingdom or of-

Canada, in order by force or constraint to compel her to change ber meaaures aid
counsels, or in order to put any force or constraint upon her, or in order to intimi-.-
date or overawe both lHouses of Parliament, or either Houses of Parliament of the
United Kingdom or of Canada, or stir any foreigner or stranger to invade the>
~United Kingdom or Canada or any other of fHer Majesty's dominions (reading the,
411ause of the statute in fuil) and such compassings, imaginations, inventions,.
devices and int entions, or any of them, shall express, utter or declare by pubrishing
in writing, printing or wr ihing or speaking, or by any overt act or deed, ii guilty of
felony."

Under that law, you are empannelled as a jury to say whether upon the charge
-which bas been brought against this prisoner he is culpable or not. Novr,. to ent
-this bhort, there are a gi eat many words in the charge. We may divide it into bur
-parts. lst. The Crown who briugs him before ns for trial say this man ha&vio-
-ated that law. Now, Ibe law says you must, when you make a charge, yot> must,
ia3 how he bas violated the law. Now, they say this, that he violated the law, tIrsti,
by pillaging, by assisting and being a party to the pillaging at Battleford.- 2nd.
-"!bey say that that letter which you have read, heard read, of the 29th Aprî, anod:
-wIich lies before me, that tbat is what is called an overt act. 3rd. They say hiî.
presence at the battle of Cut Knife, and what he did at the battle of Out Krite, is
another one. And 4tb, they Fay that bis presence, ard what he did in the captairg
the Government supplies, the part ho took in that or in the disposition of theiii, is

.ýanotber one.
Now, suppose you were satisfied, that you came to the conclusion after cor séd-

ering this, as I will tell you in a few minutes, yen must contider it- suppobe y>a.
come to the conclusion that he is not answerable on all the-e, but on one of t»ern,
,say for instance, ho is answerable in connection with the letter, o be
is not answerable in connection with the letter, or Cut Knife, or the cap-
-turing, but he is mixed up in connection with the piilagii'g at Battleford, that
alone brings him under this law which I have rend to yen, and brings him amenable
to it, under the words of this charge. N',w, my duty might end there. I might;
tell you that I have read to you the lue, that I have read to you the charge, and X

-nigbt tell you at once to apply the evidence which you have hoard, and which web
hiave beard :n cL urt since yoterday morning, to the law, and say upon that whether
-he is guilty or not gnihy. (oing further, however, that if a reasonable doubt, not M
simple doubt, which I might raise,-did he do this ? and did ho do that ? but a reason.
able doubt is shown to exist; if you find that y ou could not conclusively, that upon
either the whole or upon one or more of these charges or overt acts, the evidence i&
mot clear that a reasonable doubt existe, then my duty would be to tell you that you
should not convict
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Thon in regard to the man himself, ho is an Indian-it is true and unquestior
able, it does not seoem to be disputed at all-he is a treaty Indian. The law, aseo
have it here, makes no distinction between Indians and white mon. They are al
amenable to the law-they are all assumed by law to know what the law is, so thé
while I should tell you and advise you carefally to consider very carefally aini
closely scrutinize what has passed, what you have heard from the witnesses in thelt
.tatements; while I should ask you to scrutinize carefully, bear in mind also tha
,there is no distinction between the red man and the white man. There is the law Whi
applies to everyone who is within the bounds of Canada, and anyone within be
boundaries who breaks it, whether ho is a treaty Indian or Chinese, or no matter Whae
he is, ho is amenable to that law, and if ho breaks it, and a jury says he has broke#
it upon formal and legal evidence which may be brought before them, thon all that
-they have to do is to say that ho is gailty; the law of the land does the rest.

Now, as I told you, there are four overt acts charged. This charge is compo5
of four overt acts. In the first place he is charged with being a party to the piIl4
ing at Battleford. Well, the witnesses who speak of the pillaging at Battleford ae
Ballantyne and McKay-or rather first I should tell you thore is the evidence as0
the insurrection in the country and which existed prior to the Villaging at BattlefOr4
taking place on the 30th April. To this, Harold Ross, Charles Ross and Wm. Tonik.l
testify, and Mr. Ballantyne. Now, Ballantyne and McKay, with Lightfoot, dosci"
what was done, and have told us what they knew about the pillaging at Battliefor4
Ballantyne has told us of the proposition made by himself that this man, the pr'
eoner, should go across to the Indian agent, that a council meeting was held and tho
agent was on the other side of the river. The excitement was great, and the '0

--was on the other side of the river, and he was wanted to go across to him.
is the answer to that by the prisoner ? Is it the case of a man who wants matei'ýâ
from the agent ? If I want articles from a merchant's shop, do I say that the Ra0'
chant must bring them to me, or do I go into his shop and ask him if ho has got
euch and such thinga ? If I wanta something to eat, do I tell the publie to bring "ae
something to eat, or do I go where I get food, whore I can ask for food? Whi0h
the more natural way ? That is one way to look at it.

Mr. Robertson. -Pardon me a moment your Honor, you will recollect the agent
swore his store was on the side of the river on which the Indians were.

Mr. Justice Richardson.-I do, and I draw attention to that, and the agent Was
on the other side of the river. The agent had control of that, and I am asking thel
to consider whose duty it would be-would it be the duty of the agent to come over
to this one or of him to go to the agent?

Mr. Robertson.-The store at which the goods were to be got was whereO
Indians were.

Mr. Justice Richardson.-The stores belonging to private people and the Govero'
ment were on the south side of the river, the witness told you, and the agent was 00
the other side.

Mr. Robertaon.-Exactly.
Mr. Justice Richardson.-I am trying, Mr. Robertson, to avoid using my O

personal knqwledge of Battleford if I possibly can, and in this I know that ho was
right andl that tunderstand it. Dropping that for the moment, there is the evidenoe
of Lightfoot. And you recolleot what he says. You also recollect the evideance Of the
other witnesescailed for the defence, what Grey Byes says in connection with ti
eame subject.

Now, thon, we come to the aeqond,.in point of dates. We are told that thislettd'
'which bears date the 8th April, and is post dated St. Antoine-we are told by a
miess, Jefferson, that that came into the camp. Well, you have heard that read a0
instead of reading it myself, I shall charge yon, or at loast I shall place in your 
trol these two letters for yourselves to read when you retire.

The next in point of date is 29th April, this letter which the ceounsel for io'
Crown read to you a few minutes ago. The evidence connecting this man with
is solely and wholly Mrè Jefferson's,
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vic.toria.

Now, the next occurrence in point of time is the battle of Out Knife. You mnuIt
ollect that this letter is dated 29th April and the Cut Knife battle or fight occurred

"'a the 2nd May. Now, we have been speaking of that fight, Colonel Herchmer as
t&6 first witness, and then we have Alexander as the next witness, and thon we must
4ot forget Grey Eyes, and we have also the evidence which we have heard to-day,
Iaticularly Father Cochin's and we have Solomon Desjardins.

Now, the witnesses who were examined yesterday, if you will.recollect, described
What they saw. Colonel Herchmer said ho saw this man; Josie Alexander saw him;
te Witnesses this morning who say that he was there-Father Cochin, ho said ho
8W him get out of his camp in the morning and ho was not with the nonfighters of
tat camp.

Leaving that branch of it, we thon come to the fourth portion of the charge, the
nUrth overt act which is charged against him, and that is, that the Crown say thst

You, Poundmaker, were amenable to the law for what you did, for your connecLion
'*th the seizure of the freighters in charge of the Government stores. Now, on tat

rtion of it you have the evidence of the freighters thomselves, of the two freighters
hrselves, who tell you who captured thom and who tell-if they are to be relied

"POn-that ho was in that camp, and describe to you his actions.
Now, gentleinen, I will tell you what the law is-I have told you what the law

. I have told you what the charge is against this man. I have told you what the
ear overt acts are that are charged against this man and I have led you as brieffy as I

possibly, to the different classes of ovidence. You know the witnesses who spoke,
erat of the one, then of the second and then of the third and fourth of these overt aeta.

.Upon you the duty is, and it is by no means a light duty, to determine what
1%liance you will give that evidence, place upon it. Do you believe -to begin wish,

efferson ; do you think he is an honest man? Mind you, ho has not noen contra.
toeted. Ho has not been contradicted by any witness in the facts that ho has sworn

, or has any witness been brought before us, nor have we heard that ho is unreli-
1ble, that ho is not to be bolieved as a witness. You must bear that in mind. DrI

Yon bolieve him ? If you do believe him thon he says he would not, to use the strong-
o expression, have put his name to that letter if he hadn't been authorized by him.
Thon, with regard to the pillaging at Battleford, you should ask yourselves

hat was this man doing ? A loyal man professing loyalty and leading a band of
dians ? True, Indians generally carry guns with thom. I daresay no one could

9iusay that as a fact, that they generally carry guns with them, but if the evidence
to be relied on here, here is a band of indians, armed mon, and here is a man, whoý

bove ail others. is bound by every instinct that ho possesses to be loyal to the Crown.
e la getting his living, he is getting his bread at the hands of the Crown, and what
8 the evidence against this man? Well, as to what ho actually did there you have
to'rly for that evidence upon what is stated by Lightfoot, Bailantyne and McKay.
UWeil, passing from that to Cut Knife, what reliance can be placed upon Colonel

erchmrer; did ho tell the truth ? If he told the truth that man was at Cnt Knife.
0lOnel Herchmer did not tell the truth, what about Josie Alexander ? Did he toui

dr ? Josie said ho pointed him out to Colonel Herchmer. I think there is some
e rity of opinion as to the distance, but the fact, remains, ho pointed him out to
011el Hlerchmer and the colonel put on his glasses and identified hipn there.

ir Robertson.-On that occasion Colonel Herchmer said ho saw him with the

Mr. Justice Richardson.-First ho saw him with the naked eye, and thon after-
ards with his glasses, ho proved to his own.satisfaction that he was there.

Mr. Robertson.-That was in another place.
Mr. Justice Richardson.-It was going up the hill, because the gan was turned
Shitm. Well thon, with regard to the 4th, there does not appear to b any question

to0 What he did, as to what this prisoner did, or where ho was atter the taking of
s;rt11 Stores, these Government stores ; he was in the Indian camp, and his own

ne, Father Cochin, says, if ho is to be believed-and I think we must place the
te4t amount of reliance upon the priest-that tis very man whom you are
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:ssked to absolve from liability for these acta that have been spoken of, Father Cochili
says it was this very man who arranged for the final surrender of these parties.
Well, now, there are instances where a man may be mixed up in a serious criminls
cifence, such as treason, and may not be answerable for it; but there is only O'
instance in the law, and it is this: the loss, the danger, the apprehension of losingr
Javing propérty wasted or destroyed won't do; suffering other mischief or endal-
gering the person would not do, that is not sufficient; nothing lessthan apprehensio0
·ef auch personal injury as will deprive of life is the only justification for a traitor'
e act.

Now, the evidence is for you to consider. It does not seem to me that that clas5
of evidence bas been offered in any way, and the question which it would sec 0a
proper to me to put to you to consider would be this : Does this evidence which yoU
lave heard since yesterday morning, scanned and scrutinized as best you can-and 1
3.k you to give it the best consideration-does that bring home so conclusively to
your minds, oe and al], that this prisoner was mixed up in the acta or ary one Of
theim charged against him; if they do, then you should not hesitate to perforto
-what I think is your duly, find a verdict of " guilty." If. on the other band, yon dO
mot believe, or such a doubt is placed upon it that you cannot bring yourselves con-
elusively to the absolute conclusion that he was mixed up in it, then you will find *

wordict of "not guilty."
Jury retire, and return after short time.
Mr. Watson, clerk of the court.- Gentlemen, are you sgreed upon your verdict?

JIow say you, la the prisoner " guilty " or " not guilty ?"
Jury answer " guilty."
Clerk.-Gentlemen, hearken to your verdict as the court records it. You find'

~ he prisoner "guilty," Ro say you all.
Mr. Osler.-I move the sentcrce of the court upon the prisoner for the felony O

which he has been found " guilty."
Mr. Justice Richai dson.- Poundmaker, have you anything to say why sentelO

ibould not be passed upon you ? I am ready to hear anything you have to say nom
Poundmaker (interpreted).- I only want to speak once. Everything that la bSa

-thathas been laid against me thissummer, there is nothing of it true. Thissummer whai
-1 ave worked at la tle Queen, the ccunuly that belongs to the Queen that has bed'
rurveyed; that I have been working at this summer. This summer, when my re)r
tiMS, my brother countrymen and white people, when they met each oiher, 036
,-ntil such tine as they ded, then when I saw all this goiug on, I took all their ord130

frci m them and went and gave along wilh these. I did everything to stop bloodshed,
If I bad not dore so, there would have been plenty of blccd spilled this summer bae
-m w as I have done that much gccd, whatever sentence you may pass on me, wby
ecurse, pass it Do with me whatever the sentence may be. I said I was only goiD0
1o say a little. So I have said ail that I had to say, only I am glad that I Stoppe8
where there would have been a great deal of blocd spilled, and now that I have do9'
seo, I am glad for that, and I will have to suifer for their sahes, that I have saved 110
lives of se many. So I shake bande, gentlemen, with the whole of you.

Mr. Justice Ricbardson.-Poundmaker, you have been corvicted ef a very seriod0

offece, and during the conduct of your case you have been defended by able counseC'
who did everything in your interest that could, I think, be done. The evidence 00
£o strong againast you that I cannot see how the jury could have brought in any otbef
verdict than they did. The evidence was so strong against you that had the highe
charge of treason been laid a verdict pronouncirg guilt upon you would have bee
austained, and in that event you would have to leave this court room to day as LotU1
Bel left it, and he leit it under sentence of death. To-day, fortuuately, I am n0

called upon to pronounce sentence of death upon you, and the question which is
be deteimined row is what that sentence should be. If your heart had been 10o
had been true and good to the Queen, you would have gone across to the agent Who
Ballantyne told you you ought lo, and asked you to go, you would have shown
authorities there who were doing the wrong and assisted in punishing them, and Wl
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your influence, wielded as it ought to have been, there possibly might have been, or
probably would have been no Cut Knife fight. Before that letter was written of
April you knew of the soldiers arriving at Battleford, and another opportuuity was
afforded you of doing what was right, but we find you going on in a villainous career
until after Riel had been broken up. That you were kind to the white men who fell
into your hands is quite clear. That you were kind to the priests and took car@ of
them seems also unquestioned, and probably the priests and these young white men,
the teamsters, owe their lives to your personal influence.

To this I may add my personaL knowledge of you for a number of years, and I
do not forget the record 1 have of you, which was not a bad one. Instead of impos-
ing a very beavy sentence upon you, that is, placing you where you would end your
days in the penitentiary, we have considered what your actions have proved to% ards.
those men-the teamsters and the priests-and we have also cosidered your action
in bringing about the surrender; but with al[ that it is impossibi-- to pass over your
'wrong act, and punishment must be inflicted not only for the purpose of making you
feel for the wrong you have done and the injury you have been a party to commit-
ting, but to prevent others from repeating the thing. The measure of that punish-
ment i have to fix, and with what I do no power can increase it, but the Queen may,
if she chooses, at any time hereafter reduce it.

The sentence which the court pronounces upon you. Pou ndmaker, for the offenc-
of which you have been convicted, is that you be imprisoned in the penitentiary at.
Manitoba for three years.

Prisoner.-I would rather prefer to be hung at once than to be in that place.

QUEEN vs. ALEXIS LABOMBARDE AND PHILIP GARNOT.

Tried before His Honor Justice Richardson.
REGINA, 12th August, 1885.
Mr. G. W. Burbidge, Q.C., for Crown. Clarke & Maclise for prisoners.
The Clerk read the indictment as follows:-

CANADA:
Xorth-West Territories.

The information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city of
1jamilton, in the Province of Ontario, in the Dominion of Canada, chief of police,
taken the 5th day of August, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred
and cighty.five, before the undersigned, one. of ler Majesty's stipendiary magistrates
ii and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith:

That Philip Garnot and Alexander Labombarde, not regarding the duty of their
allegiance, but wholly withdrawing the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance which
every true and faithful subject of our Lady the Queen does, and of right ought to,
bear towards our said Lady the Queen, on the twenty-sixth day of March, in the
Year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other
days, as well before as after that day, together with divers other evil-disposed per-
sons to the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, feloniously and wickedly did,
IWithin the Dominion of Canada, compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend to levy
'air against our said Lady the Queen, within Canada, in order, by force and con-
atraint, to compel ber to change ber measures and counsels; and the said felonions
ompassiug, imagination, invention, device' and intention, thon feloniously and

'*ickedly did express, utter and declare, by divers overt acts and deeds, hereinafter
11Ientioned, that is to say : In order to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect their felonious
Comlpassing, imagination,, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said
pJersons above charged, and each of them, afterwards, to wit: on the twenty-sixth
day of M arch, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well
before as after that day, and at or near the locality called Batoche, in the North-West
trritories of Canada aforesaid, feloniously and wickedly did conspire, consult, con-
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federate, assemble and meet together, with divers other evil-disposed persons to the
s3aid Alexander David Stewart unknown, to raise, levy and make insurrection and
rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, within the realm, in contempt of our said
Lady the Qaeen and her laws, to the evil example of all others in like case offending
against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the
peace of our said Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

A. D. STEWART.
Bworn before me the day and year

first above mentioned, at the town
of Regins., in the North-West Ter-
ritories of Canada.

HlUGH RICHARDSON,
A Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the North- West Territories of Canada.

And take notice. that you have the option of being tried before a stipendiary
nagistr ate and a justi.e of the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, or before

a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way, without the intervention of a jury.
Mr. Justice Richardson.-Phi11p Gajrnot, which do you eleot?
Pbilip Garnot.-Without the intervention of a jury.
Mr. Justice Richardson.-Alexis Labombarde, which do you elect ?
Alexis Labombarde.-Without a jury.
Mr. Justice Richardson.-Philip Garnot, having heard the charge read, and hav-

ing elected to be tried in a summary manner, which do you say, " guilty," or " not
guilty."

Philip Garnot.-I plead "guilty."
Mr. Justice Richardson.-Alexis Labombarde, having heard the charge read

and having elected to bo tried by me in a summary way, what say you, are you
a guilty" or " not guilty " of the charge preferred.

, Alexis Labombarde.-Guilty.
Mr. Burbidge.-May it please your Honor, it is not the intention of the Crowa

to move for sentence at present, but to ask to have the prisoners remanded to give
the counsel for the defence an opportunity to place anything they see fit before the
court with a view to the mitigation of the sentence. I need not repeat here what
was said yesterday, iu respect of the reasons which induced the counsel for the Crown
to accept the plea of guilty of the lesser offence; the reasons in this case, are the same
as those stated yesterday.

Mir. Clarke.-Will your Honor direct that the witnesses be detained long enough
to enable us to prepare the necessary affidavits, which cannot be done without their
prestence, 1 do nlot require them for any length of time.

Mr. Burbidge.-i will ask the Crowu witnesses to romain if my learned friend
will give me the names of those he requires, and the time they are detained wilt be
allowed in their witness fets.

Mr. Justice Richardson.-I will order the prisoners te be remanded to custody
for sentence at a future date.

THE QUEEN vs. ABRAIfAM MONTOUR AND ANDRE NAULT
CANADA:

North-West Territories.
The information and complaint of Prederick Kelloch Gibson, of the town of

Regina, in the North-West Territories of Canada, doputy sheriff, taken the fourteenth
day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-
five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in and for
the North-West Territories, who saith:-

1. That Abraham Montour and André Nault, not regarding the duty of their
allegiance, but wholly withdrawing the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance which
every true and faithtul subject of our Lady the Queen does and of right ought to bear
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towards our said Lady the Queen, on the second day of.April, in the year of our
Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other days and
times, as well before as after that date, together with divers other evil disposed per-
sons to the said Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, did, within the Donminion of
Canada, compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend to levy war against our said
Lady the Queen, within Canada, in order by force and constraint to compel Hier
Majesty to change her measures anI counsels, and the said felonious compas-
Sing, imagination, invention, device and intention, then felonionsly and wickedly did
express, utter, and declare by divers overt acta and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that
ls to say :

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compassing, imagi-
nation, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said Abraham Montour
and André Nault, and each of them, afterwards, to wit, on the second day of April,and times as weil before as after that day, at and near the locality called Frog Lake,in the North-West Territories of Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble
and meet together, with divers other evil disposed persons to the sad Frederick
Relloch Gibson unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and rebellion against
Our said Lady the Queen, within this realm.

And further, to fuifil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compassing,
lImaginationi, invention, device and intention, aforesaid, they, the said Abraham Mion-
tour and André Nault, afterwards, to wit, on the seventeenth day of April, in the
Year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as after that day,
at or near the locality known as Fort Pitt, in the said North-West Territories of
Canada, did conspire, consult, confedorate, assemble and meet together, with other
evil disposed persons to the said Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, to raise, make
an1d levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Q2een, within this
realm.

And further to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compassing,
illagination. inven tion, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said Abraham Mon-
tour and André Nault, and each of them, afterwards, to wit, orn the twenty-first day
of April, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as woll before as
8fter that day, at or near the locality known as Frog Lake, in the said North-West
Territories of Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and mect togethor,
With divers other evil disposed persons to the said Frederick Kelloch Gibson

known, to make, raise and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady
t Queen, within this realin.

And further to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their folonious compaa-
Ring, imagination, invention. device and intention aforesaid, they, the said
Abraham Montour and André Nault, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-eighth day of
APril, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other davs and times, as well before as
4fter that day, at or near the locality known as Frenchman's Butte, in the said1 %rth-West Territories of Canada, did conspire, consult, confederato, assnble and141et together, with divers other evil disposed persons to the said Frederick Kelloch
']hbson unknown, to make, raise and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said

ady the Queen, within this realm, in contempt of our said Lady the Qieen and her
si, to the evil example of al others in like case offending against the form of

ths tatute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of our said LadyQueen, her Crown and dignity.
FR ED. K. GIBSON.

orn before me the day and year first aboveK
mientioned, at the Town of Regina, in the
North-West Territories of Canada.

HuoH RIOHARDSON,
Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the North- West Territories of Oanada.

And take notice that you have the option of being tried before a stipondiary
%gistrate and a justice of the peace with the intervention of a jury of six, orbefore
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a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way without the intervention of a jury.
Which do you elect ?

After various adjournuents on account of the absence of material witnesses, the
case comes on for trial on the 5th October, 1885, when the court after hearing coun-
sel and affidavits read by them it is pretty fairly shown that the witness is unavoid-
ably absent, ard there is ground for further postponement (such postponement bav-
ing been asred by counsel for prisoners); but connected with the postponing I will
not keep the Crown witnesses if the prisoners are transferred to Battileford. Ithink
it but right that it should be transferred, and the order is that the trial be put off in
consequence of the unavoidable absence and impossibility to procure a material wit-
ness.

The order to the sheriff will be that the prisoners be produced for trial on this
charge at Battleford on a day to be fixed.

(Gopy of telegram to W. V. Maclise, Prince Albert, _N. W. T.)
Minister directs that nolle prosequi be entered in cases of Nault and Montour.

GEO. W. BURBIDGE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

THE QUEEN vs. WILLIAM ]IENRY JACKSON.
RGINA, 24th July, 1885.

Before their Honors Justices Richardson and LeJeune. Mr. Osler, Q.C., and
Mr. Burbidge, Q C., for the Crown. Mr. McArthur, Q C., for the prisoner.

His Honor Mr. Justice Richardson.-What is your name ? William Henry
Jackson, is that your name ?

Prisoner.-I decline to answer any questions.
Mr. McArthur, Q.C.-I appear for the prisoner.
His Honor Justice Richardson. -You are charged upon the information and

complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city of Hamilton, in the county of
Wentworth, in the Dominion of Canada, taken the twenty-fourth day of July, in the
year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, before the undersigned,
one of Rer M ajesty's stipendiary magistrates in and for the said North-West Terri-
tories, who saith:

That William Henry Jackson, not regarding the duty of his allegiance to our
Lady the Queen, on the 26th day of March, in the year of our Lord 1885, at Batoche,
in the North-West Territories, together with divers other persons unknown, feloni-
ously and wickedly did compass, imagine and intend to deprive and depose our said
Lady the Queen from the style, honor and royal name of the Imperial Crown of this
realm, and the said felonions compassing and invention then feloniously and wickedlY
did expi ess and declare by feloniously and wickedly on the said twenty-sixth day of
March, and on divers other days and times as well before as after, conspiring, con-
federating and assembling and meeting together with divers other evil disposed
persons unknown, to raise, levy and make insurrection and rebellion againstour said
Lady the Queen, at Batoche aforesaid, within the realm, against the form of the
statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of our said Lady the
Queen, ber Crown and dignity.

Will he answer?
Prisoner.-As far as responsibility of mine about what you call rebellion, I haVe

always declared myself perfectly responsible, that is to say, as Riel's secretary, and
I wish to share bis fate whatever that may be.

Mr. McArthur.-I propose to answer, "not guilty," on the ground of insanity.
His Honor Mr. Justice Richardson.-Do you accept that plea.
Mr. Osler.-There are certain formalities to be gone on with. The jury has tO

be called.
His Ronor Mr. Justice Richardson.-Mr. Clerk, please call the jury.
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The following jurors were empannelled and sworn :-Thomas McNichol, John
8. Donahue, D. A. Mclonald, George S. Wallis, Charles H. Black, William H.
Ilamilton.

Mr. Osler.-Please your Ronor, the prisoner stands charged with the crime of
treason-felony, which is a statutory crime of the nature of treabon, a crime in which
the formalities of trial are less and the penalty is less. The prisoner is charged with
having participated in the recent rebellion, with having acted in the capacity of

Srivate secretary to Louis Riel, the leader of the rebellion. He is charged here now
ormally for this crime, but it is understood that the counsel for the prisoner, Mr.

McArthur, will be able to give you satisfactory evidence of the insanity of the
prisoner, and that he is not really responsible and was not responsible for the acte
committed by him.

The Crown do not propose to contest that contention on the part of the prisoner'a
counsel. The evidence, in fact, comes from the medical men who have examined the
prisoner on the part of the Crown, and evidence that has come to the knowledge of
Counsel for the Crown during the course of preparation for other trials is conclusive
that at the time he committed the acts he was not responsible for them. We pro-
pose to give some formal evidence, and the doctors will be called by the defence to
satisfy as to the insanity of the prisoner, and if you are so satisfied, your verdict
should be " not guilty," on the ground of insanity. That will subject the prisoner to
confinement until he is released by the Lieutenant Governor, which release will pro-
bably take place upon a cure being effected.

THomAs E. JAcKsoN sworn.-

Examined by Ar. Osler:
Q. You a-e a brother of the prisoner? A. I am.
Q. And you, I believe, know of the rebellion or trouble recently over, the rebellion

in the North-West near Batoche ? A. Yes.
Q. Were you present ? A. Yes.
Q. Do you know who the chief person or leader was in that rebellion ? A. I do.
Q. Who was that ? A. Louis Riel.
Q. Do you know what position your brother occupied in regard to Louis Riel?

A. ie was a prisoner at the time I knew of him.
Q. Prior to that? A. No position in regard to Riel.
Q. Did you know of his being his private secretary? A. No, I am quite certaia

he was not.
Q. Do you know his writing ? A. Yes.
Q. Is that bis writing ? A. Yes, that is his writing.
(Document referred to filied.)
Q. Did yon know of his being with Riel immediately prior to the rebellion break-

ing out ? A. He was prisoner with Riel from shortly after the 14th of February.
Q. You spoke to the prisoner-you went to see him ? A. 1 did not got tu see

him until after the Duck Lake fight.
Q. You did not know what position he was in of your ow kriowlei,çe? A. Not

till after the Duck LakE fight
Q. When you saw him after the Duck Lake fight, was ho w th Riel ? A. ie

Was among them.
Q. It is this document you recognizo as being in the prisont's writing? A. Yes.
Mr. Osler.-I will read the document.
" DEAR RELATIvEs,-We thank you for your friendly feelings and sympathies

displayed in your communications of 23rd instant.
" Be courageous. Since you are willing to help us, we accept your friendly offers

and will not leave you exposed to danger. May Godbless you in ail your good inten.
tionis. May He direct all your actions.

" Justice commanda to take up arms, to the end that we may attain our commoa.
salvation. Notify the Wood Indians that they be not surprised. Let them, while
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remaining calm and courageous, be ready to seize ail the ammunition, goods and pro-
perty pertaimirg to Ibe Hudson Bey Company at Mud Lake and Fishing Lake. Neither
kill nor molest nor ill.treat any persons unnecessarily, but take away arms.

" LOUIS ' DAVID' RIEL, Exovede.
"Per WILLIAM JOSEPH JACKSON, Private Secretary."

Q. His name is not Joseph ? A. No.
Q. Where does that come in ? A. That is dated after his insanity commenced,

from the lime be was ebristened in the Roman Catholie Church ho bas been insane.
Q. Do you remember the date of that? A. About the 19th March.
Prisoner.-1 was perfectly sane when I wrote that letter.
Q. You knew there was a fight ? A. Yes.
Q. And that Mr. Riel was their leader ? A. Yes.
Q. About what time was that your brother was there ? At the time of the con-

test'( A . About the 26th -March, I believe.
Q. Was your brother there at that'time ? A. Not at the fight.
Q. Was ho away from home ? A. Yes, but I do not know exactly where her

was.
Q. You were afterwards a prisoner ? A. Yes.

By Mr. McArthur :
Q. When did your brother leave home ? A. On the 14th February.
Q. What was bis state of mind at that time? A. Perfectly sound.
Q. At the lime yt u next saw him, when was that ? A. Sometime after the

Duck Lake figb, about three days after.
Q. What was bis siate of mind at that time ? A. Insound.
Q. in what respect ? A. HRe hardly knew me when I first saw him, he was always

prayig, and fi cm his general actions and appearance.
Q. That was on the 26th of March, the Duck Lake fight ? A. Yes. and about the

30ti; of Marcb I saw him.
Q. Do ycu know the date of this communication (referred to before as baving

beer read by Mr. Osler) ? A. No.
Q. Was il received by ycur people ? A. No, that is a copy of one sent by Louis

Riel to bits relatives.
Q. Well, then, from the time of the Duck Lake fight, when did you next sec

him ? A. Atout one week later. About the 5th of April, I suppose.
Q. Where was that ? A. At Batoche.
Q..Wbat was bis state of mind at that time ? A. The same cordition, still

imnsOund.
Q. When did you next sec him ? A, I remained with him till 12th of May.
Q. Wbeu you were discbaged by the troops ? A. Yes.
Q. Were you witb him at that time ? A. Yes, ho was confined in the same room.Q. Then you were both present together ? A. Yes.
Q. Have you seen him since bis capture by the tioops? A. Yes, I was with

him the tirst week occasionally.
Q. Wbat ýwas the state of bis mind ? A. Still insane, ho bccame worse after his

capture by Middleton.
Prisoer.-I never considered myself a prisoner of Riel's.
Close of case for Crown.

DEPENCE.
DE. JUKES, sworn.-

Examined by -Mr. cArthur:
Q. You are alphysician of how [manylyears' standing? A. About thirty-fiVe

years' standing.
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Q. 'What is your position now ? A. I am surgeon of the North-West Mounted
Police force.

Q. Stationed ? A. At Regina.
Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. I ho under your supervision ? A. Yes.
Q. Asa medical officer ? A. Yes.
Q. Have you examined him as to the state of his mind; as to his sanity-? A..

I have watcbed him from day to day since he has been placed under my care.
Q. What do you say as to bis mind ? A. I think h is anquestionably of

1Unsounid mind.
Q. Has been since he has been brought to Regina ? A. When he was first

brought down he showed occasional symptoms. I was under the impression that ho
Was insane, not only from my own observation but from what i heard and from
what I was told by the officer who came down with him from Batoche. During the
time he has been in the guard room, on account of the quiet and repose since ho came
down, he improved very much, and I formed the impression that he would be restored
with proper treatment. Since the commencement of the arrangements for this trial,
liews of which reached him, I have noticed that ho is very much worse. To-day I
Consider him tetter than at any time for four weeks, but I am still under the same
opinion that he is laboring under a mild form of insanity, which is curable under
Proper treatment.

Q. You made a report ? A. Y os, to that effect, to the commissioner of the orces
By Mr. Osler :

Q. Is ho so insane that it would be fair to say he was not responsible for his
a4ctions ? A. There are times when 1 consider he would be quite responsible. To-day
he spoke and reasoned with me in a manner that was very clear, but only three days
ago ho was dazed; bis mind seems to be dazed. I don't think that to bring him at a
uonent's notice that he would be capable of conducting his trial or of doing justice

to himself in any manner.
Q. To a considerable extent your opinion is that ho could not control bis actions?

A. I have never seen anything about him to give me the impression that bis actions
'Were uncontrollable, it is rather bis mental hallucinations, his ideas. He tiolds
Peculiar ideas on religious matters in connection with this trouble, and in connection
.with the new religion of which he thinks Riel is the founder, and which ho thinks it
ie his duty to sustain.

Q. Would this be consistent with his committing crime? A. If he spoke
rationally I would think so, but he does not.

Q. Then you would not hold him responsible for acts done in connection with
those ideas ? A. If ho committed any acte in the condition he is in now I would not
hOld him responsible. The slightest excitement produces a great ofrect upon him. I
und(ertiand from Riel that he confined him for his own sake, as ho would not bo safa
if left alone.

Q. In asking the history of the case it came to your knowiedge, you found that
that was the report ? A. In looking into the case of insanity the question of its
beinig hereditary is most important-not only the history of hit own life, but that of
hisloretathers. Of that I could hear nothing. I bave, however, leurned from parties
whoe have known him for some time past something of bis past life, and the tendency
ot the knowledge so gained corroborates my own view of the case. I think I am
justified in saying that he would not now, in his present condition, be accountable
for any actions he might perform.

Q. is it botter ho should be put under treatment? A. He should be placed
ubder treatment, and if ho were a friend of mine I would wish to have him put under
treatment, and with every reasonable prospect of recovery.

Dr. COTTON, sworn:-
Examined by Mr. .McArthur:

Q. You are a physician ? Yes.
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Q. Of how many years' standing? A. Four years.
Q. What is your position now? A. Medical man in Regina.
Q. Are you connected with the force? A. No.
Q. Do you krow the prisoner? A. I have known him since the 19th July.
Q. How did yon corne to see him upon that occasion ? A. I was called to see

him hy Capt. Dean, through the Deputy Minister, to examine him as to his insanity.
I examined him by my,,elf first, and found him in a state of melancholia, a mild fora
of insanity. I catled on Dr. Jukes, and he and I went to see Jackson, and be
appeared apparent ly abut the same I had an interview with Monkman, the pris-
oner. He stated some facts in regard to the insanity of the prisorier prior to the
24th of March, and then I had an interview with Riel, and ho stated something
similar.

By Mr. Osler ;
Q. In enquiring into the case these reports came to your knowledge ? A. I

could not get any irformation as to bis family prior to this or of bis former life.
By Mr. Mc Arthur:

Q. Thon what is your opinion as to the state of bis mind ? A. Of course I ain
of opinion that ho is insa we and not of sound mind.

Q. Does your opinion concur with that of Dr. Jukes? A. Yes.
Q. As to whether he is responsible for bis actions or not? A. Yes.

By Mr. Osler :
Q. You say he is not responsible? A. No, not at the present time, not at the

times I have seen him.
Mr. Osler.-I am satisfied that the jury should roturn a verdict of " not guilty"

on the ground of insanity upon this evidence. We cannot contest it. We have other
evidence in our posession contirming it. The jury shall be required to find specially
whether such person or persons were insane at, the time the offence was committed,
in accordarce with section 99 of the Act respecting procedure in criminal cases: "lIn
all cases where it is given in evidence upon the trial of any person charged with any
effence, wbether the same be treason-felony or misdemeanor, that such person was
insane at the time of the commission of such offence, and sch person is acquitted,
the jury shall be required to find specially whether such person was insane at the
time of the commission of such offence, and to declare whether he is acquitted by
them on account of such inçanity; and if they find that such person was insane at
the time of committing such offence the court before whom sucu trial was had shall
order such person to be kept in strict custody, in such place and in such manner as
to the court seems fit, until the pleasure of the Lieutenant-Governor be known."

Mr. Justice Richardso.-Yon have heard what it is proposed what shall be done
with this man. I shall now read to you section 99 of the Criminal Procedure AOt
already referred to by Mr. Osler. (Reads the section.) Well, now, the prisouer is
charged with a fokny. Evidence bas been given as you have heard, showing that
at ti e time of the commission of the offonce, ho was insane. Are yon satisfied that
such was the case? The question now for yon is, are you satisfied that such was the
case ? If >o (and the Crown agrees to that) you will simply acquit him on the
ground of bis insanity. Are you satisfied ho was insane at the time ho committed
the offence charged ? Are yon all agreed ?

Jury find a verdict of "I not guilty on the gronnd of insanity."
Mr. Jts ice Richardson.- Ir. Sheriff, this man Jackson, you are to keep in striot

custody at Regina until the pleasure of the Lieutenant Governor is made known.
Court ruse at 4 p.m.

THE QUEEN vs. MOISE OUELLETTE.
Tried before bis Honor Mr. Justice Richardson, at Regina, 5th Auguet, 1885.
His Hionor.-Read the indictment.
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The Clerk reads the indictment as follows
The information and con plaint of Alexander David Stewart. of the city of Ham-

lton, in the Province of Ontario, in the Dominion of Canada, chief of police, takoi
the fifth day of August, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundrel and
eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in
%d for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith:

That Moise Ouellette not regarding the duty of his atiegiance, but wholly with-
d-rawing the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance which every true and faithful
sulbject of our Lady the Queen doos and of right ought to bear towards our said L.ady
the Queen, on the twenty-sixth day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousandtight, hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other days, as well before as after that.duy, togother with divers other evil disposed persons to the said Alexander David
8tewart unknown, feloniously and wickedly, did,· within the Dominion of Canada,
le0npass, imagine, invent, devise and intend to levy war against our said Lady tne
qQeen, and within Canada, in order by force and constraint to compel her to change
her measures and counsels, and the said felonious compassing, imagination, invention,4evice and intention, then feloniously and wickedly did express, utter and deoclare
y divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to say: l order to

flifil, perfect and bring into effect his fetonious compassing, imagiration, invention,
devioe and intention aforesaid, ho, the said person above charged, afterwards, to wit:
oh the 6th day of March, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days anl tims,
a8 well before as after that day, at and near the locality called Btoche, in the Norch-
West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, feloniously and wickedly did conspire, consult,
CoOfederate, assemble and meet together, with divers other evil disposed persons to
the said Alexander David Stewart unknown, to raise, make and levy insurree-

on and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, within this realm, in contempt
of Our said Lady the Queen and her laws, to the evil example of ail otiers in the lhk.

e44e offending against the fori of the statute in such case made and provided, and
against the peace of our said Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

Â. D. STEWART.
8 worn before me the day and year first above-)

mentioned, at the town of Regina, in the
North-West Territories of Canada.

HUoIF IRICHARDsoN,

A Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the North- West Territories of Canafa.

And take notice that you have the option of being tried before a stipndiarY
Ihagistrate and a justice of the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, or befor
a stipendiary magistrate in a suîmmary way without the intervention of a jury.
Which do you elect ?

Prisoner.-Before a magistrate without a jury.
IHis Honor.-Now, baving heard the charge preferred against you read, say you,

Are YoU c guilty " or " not guilty " ?
Prisoner.-Guilty.
Mr. Burbidge.-[ ask that the prisoner be remanded for sentence.

c Mr. Clarke.-The prisoner has thrown himself o-i the meroy of the court mora
consideration of the fact of his fellow prisoners having done the same. There
a great many circumstances in this case that will prove considerable mitigation

1 his favor. I believe it is a fact ho crossed the battie field at great risk to tar'.y a
Ietter from the general to the rebel chief, and that ho returned whon he had aa

PPortunity to ecape, and there are several other circumstances that witl be brouoght
your notice, to induce you to deal mercifully with the prisoner, if your louor wilt

iow time for the affidavits to be prepared.
lis IHonor.-The order will be that he ba reman led to be brouglht up for

%htence when called upon.
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THE QUEEN vs. LOUIS GOULET.
CANADA:

North-West Territories.
The information and complaint of George Holmes Young, of the city of Winfl-

peg, in the Province of Manitoba, in the Dominion of Canada, gentleman, taken the
seventh day of September, in the year of our Lord one thouand eight hundred and
eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates i
and for the said North-West Territories, who saith :

That Louis Goulet, not regarding the duty of his allegiance, but wholly with-
drawing the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance, which every true subject of ouf
Lady the Queen should and of right ought to bear towards our said Lady the Quee',
on the second day of April, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and
Cighty-five, and on divers other days, as well before as after that date, together with
divers other evil disposed persons to the said George Holmes Young unknown, did,
within the Dominion of Canada, compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend to leVY
war against our said Lady the Queen, within Canada, in order, by force and con4trailt,
to compel Her Majesty to change her measures and counsels, and the said felonioiS
compassing, imagination, inventior, device and intention, then feloniously and wick
edly did express, utter and declare by divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter men'
tioned, that is to say:

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonions compassing, imagi'
nation, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Louis Goulet, afterwards,
to wit, on the second day of April, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other day5

and times, as well before as af er that day, at and near the locality called Frog Laker
in the North-West Territories of Canada, did conspire, consult, confederate, asserble
and meet together, with diver s other evil disposed persons tothe said George HeliaeO
Young unknown, to raise, mnake and levy itsurrection and rebellion against our said
Lady the Queen, within this rcalm, in ccntempt of our said Lady the Queeu and her
laws, to the evil example of all others in like case offending against the for m of the
statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady th e Queer
her Crown and dignity.

GEORGE fi. YOUNG.
Sworn before me the day and year first above

written, at the town of Regina, in the
said North-West Territories.

HUGu RICHARDSON,

Stipendiary Magistraie in and for said North-West Territories of Canada.
ALd take notice that 3 ou have the option of being tried before a stipendiarl

maagistrate and a justice ot the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, Or
befoie a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way without the intervention of a
jury. Wliceh do you elect ?

PrisoLer elects trial by a judge.
Pleads "fnot guilty " on 8th September, on being charged in open court.
lMr. Osler.-In this case, your Honor, we have considered the evidence verl

carefully that the Crown has against the prisoner. There is ample to put him 00
bis trial, but the Crown, desiring not to prosecute harshly, are willing to dischargO
the prisoner now on lis own recognizance to appear when called for. That mean0
this, that if no serious offence turns up hereafter, putting a different complexion
upon the crime with which he is charged, and if he behaves himself in future, ho wi»
mot be disturbed, and in effect will go f ree. If, on the contrary, the further evideone
of a serious nature transpires, making it absolutely the duty of the Crown to prO-
secute, then we would have to notify him to appear to take a trial, bat in effect, the
Orown having diligently enquired in the neighborhood, in all probability if thinfl
resta as they are, the man will not be called upon to respond.

Mr. Johntone.-I suppose, your Honor, he should have some reasonable notic'
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Court.-Certainly ; I don't think I usually try people without seeing that theyhave notice.
Mr. Osler.-If things are as they now appear, it will be the last ho will hear ofit> and we will take his recognizance now in $400.
Recognizance now taken, and prisoner released.

THE QUEEN vs. CHARLES BREMNER ET AL.
CANADA:

Xorth-West Territories. J
The information and complaint of George Holmes Young, of the city of Winni-

beg, in the Province of Manitoba, in thi Dominion of Canada, gentleman, taken the
Sttrenth day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and
tighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in

ad for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith:
That Charles Bremner, James Bremner, William Frank, Henry Sayer and

b ptiste Sayer, not regarding the duties of their allegiance, but wholly withdrawing
e love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance which every true and faithful subject of

ear Lady the Queen should, and of right ought to, bear towards our said Lady the
q4en, on the second day of May, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hun-
1ed and eighty-five, and on divers other days, as well before as after that date,

kgether with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said George Holmes Young
!known, did, within the Dominion of Canada, compass, imagine, invent, devise and
teund to levy war against our said Lady the Queen, within the Dominion of Canada,1 order, by force and constraint, to compel fier Majesty to change her measires and
un'els, and the said felonious compassing, imagination, invention, device aid inten-on, then feloniously and wickedly did expre,s, utter and declare, by divers overt
t8 and deeds hereinafter mentioned, that is to sav:

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compassing,
Ikgination, invention, device and intention atoresaid, they, the said Charles

aeraner, James Bremner, William Frank, Henry Sayer and Baptiste Sayer, and
eCh of them, afterwards, to wit, on the second day of May, in the year aforesaid,

d Cn divers other days and times, as well before as after that day, at or near the
Oeality known as Cut Knife Hill, in the said North-West Territories of CaraLda, did

s05piré, consult, confederate, assemble and meet together, with divers other evil-
ePosed persons to the said George Holmes Young unknown, to raise, make and

y insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, within this realm.
. And further, to bring to effect their felonious compassing, imagination, invention,
'te and intention aforesaid, they, the said Charles Bremner, James Bremner,
lham Frank, Henry Sayer and Baptiste Sayer, and each of them, afterwards, tot on the fourteenth day of May, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight

'tldred and eighty-five, and on divers other days, as well before as after that day,
near the locality called Eagle Hills, in the North-West Territories of Canada,resaid, with force and arms, wickedly and feloniously did assemble, meet, conspire

con1sult with certain other evil-disp6sed persons to the said (ieorge Htolmes
0 ng Unknown, to seize and take possession, by force, of certain goods and mer-

Idise belongirg to Her Majesty the Queen, which were then being carried and
ja5ported from the locality known as Swift Current to the locality known as

tleford, in the said North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid, for Her said
Jesty, ard for the use and benefit of Her said Majesty.

In contempt of our said Lady the Queen and her laws, to the evil example of all
1Ber in Jike case offending against the form of the statute in such case made and
ivded, and against the peace of our said Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.
Orn before me the day and year first GEO. Hi. YOU1ýG.

above mentioned, at the town of'
legina, in the said North-West
Territories of Canada. J

Huon RICHARDsoN,
lStipendiary Magistrate in and for the said North-West Territories of Canada.
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And take notice that you have the option of being tried before a stipendiarf
magistrate and a justice of the peace with the intervention of a jury of six, or before
a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way, without the intervention of a jury
Which do you elect ?

Prisoners all elect, on 8th September, when called upon in open court, trial bf *
judge alone.

Prisoners all plead " not guilty."
Mr. Osler.-Your Honor, in these cases, the prisoneis are charged with havi

been concerned in the late rebellion. They were in the Indian camp of PoundmakO
and the Crown has evidence against them, showing that to some extent, at all eveote'
they joined in resisting the forces of the Government. In one case, military clothiIgf
and in another case, a police rifle was found in the possession of the prisoners, bil
perhaps we have considered the prisoners were in a very difficult position. Thel
were brought into the camp, probably without their consent, by a large body of arra
Indians, and having got into that camp they may have been led into the -acts cO'
plained of without knowing the serions position they were placing themselves in bf
so doing. We have considered that originally the desire probably of all the prisonero
was to stay in their settlement. We have considered, also, that they had their faaV
ilies and their property to protect, against, perhaps, some uncontrollable violence Of
the Indians surrounding them. They were in a very difficult position.

The Crown, considering all these things, and not being able to bring. home a3
of personal violence against any of them, and learning that they were all men of 0O
character before the trouble came out, we have considered that perhaps the enda .
justice would be attained by allowing tbem to be discharged on their own recog0y
zance to appear when called upon fâr trial, and, 1 might say on behalf of the Crowo'
that unless the evidence implicating the prisoners with acts of personal violeDo
appears, that as far as that offence of theirs against their alleigance is concerned, t
Crown do not propose to call upon them to answer. It will only be in the event
evidence turning up to show that they were personally implicated in acts of violeOU'
,during the rebellion that the Crown will call upon them to respond.

Prisooers' own recognizances taken and the prisoners are released.

THE QUEEN vs. MAGNUS BURSTON.
CANADA:

North-West Territories. J
The information and complaint of Frederick Kelloch Gibson, of the towIl

Regina, in the North-West Territories of Canada, deputy sheriff, taken the fourteent>
day of September, in the year of our Lurd one thousand eight hundred and eightf
five, before the underýigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in and fo,
the said North-West Territories, who saith :

That Magnus Burston, not regarding the duty of his allegiance, but whoI11
withdrawing the love, obedience. fidelity and allegiance which every true and fai
ful subject of our said Lady the Queen should and of right ought to bear towards O0
said Lady the Queen, on the twenty-sixth day of March, in the year of our Lord O0
thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other days, as well bafore' 0

after that date, together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said Frederio
Kelloch Gibson unknown, did within the Dominion of Canada, compass, imagio
invent, devise, and inteoud to levy war against our said Laly the Queen, Wit
Canada, in order by force and constraint to compel Her Majesty to change,
measures and counsels, and the said felonious compassing, imagination, invet
device and intention, then feloniously and wickedly did express, utter and declare
divers overt acts and deels hereinafter mentioned, that is to say:

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing, imag
tion, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Magnus Burston, aÉte
wards, to wit, on the twenty-sixth day of March, in the year aforesaid, and on div
other days and times, as well before as after that date, at and near the locality 0a1
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ek Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada, did conspire, consult, con-
federate, assemble and meet together, with divers other evil disposed persons to the
said Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and
ýebellion against our said Lady the Queen within this realim.

And further, to fulfil, perfect and bring to effect his felonious compassing,
ltagination, iivention, device and intention aforesaid, he, the said Magnus Burston,
afterwards, to wit, on the third day of April, in the year aforesaid, and on divers
ther days and times as well before as after that day, at and near the locality known
s Duck Lake, in the said North-West Territories of Canada, did conspire, consult,

eOnfederate, assemble ani meet together, with divers other evil disposed persons to
the said Frederick Kelloch Gibson unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection
8'1d rebellion against our said Lady the Queen within this realm.

In contempt of our said Lady the Queen and ber laws, to the evil example of
ll others in like case offending against the form of the statute in such case made
td provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

FIRED. K. GIB3SON.
8Worn before me the day and year firstK

above written, at the town of Regina,
in the said North-West Territories.

HUGH RICHARDSON,

Stipendiary Magistrate in and for said North- West Territories.
And take notice that you have the option of being tried before a stipendiary

%agistrate and a justice ot the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, or before
6tipendiary magistrate in a summary way without the intervention of a jury.

ich do you elect ?
Af ter various adjournments, on application of both the Crown and the prisoner,

lbaS case came on for trial before lis Honor Judge Richardson, Saturday, 10th
ýeto ber, 1885, without a jury, prisoner having elected trial before judge alone.

Mr. D. L. Scott appearing for the Crown. Mr. T. C. Johnstone for the prisoner.
JMN W. AsTLEY, sworn:-

Examined by Mr. Scott :
Q. You live at Prince Albert, Mr. Astley ? A. Prince Albert; yes.
Q. You are a civil engineer, I understand ? A. Civil engineer.
Q. You joined the Prince Albert volunteers ? A. I went up to Carlton with them.
Q. About what time ? A. About the 19th March-19th or 20th March.
Q. And when on active service as a volunteer, you were taken prisoner? A.

"en 1 was out scouting in the French half breed settlement.
Q. On what day? A. On the morning of the 26th March.
Q. By whom? A. By French half-breeds and Indians, under the leadership of

iDavid Riel. -
Q. What were they doing at this time ? A. They were in open rebellion.
Q. Whereabouts? A. Duck Lake--Duck Lake and Batoche.
Q. Rave you any means of knowing what object they had in going into rebel-

n? A. Well, just that they had taken possession of Duck Lake stores that same
140rning, and, of course, as Riel said, they were fighting, themselves and the police,
against the Government.

Q. Were they armed ? A. They were all armed; yes.
Q. How many half-breeds and Indians were there ? A. I should say between
and 500-somewhere about that.
Q. What was done after you were taken prisoner; where were you taken? A.

as48 taken near Duck Lake, and kept up in the telegraph office first, and then
t stairs over the store.
Q- How long were you kept there? A. I was kept there till the 31st March.
Q. Where were you then taken ? A. Then I was taken to Carlton.
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Q. How long were you thore? A. I was there till the 3rd April, when I wa5
removed from that to Batoche.

Q. And remained at Batoche how long ? A. I was there till the 12th of May.
Q. Were you present al[ that time ? A. All that time; yes.
Q. Were these mon in open rebellion at that time ? A. i was sent out with some

messages to Gen. Middleton. The place was taken by Gen. Middleton and the troops
under him.

Q. What troops? A. The volunteers and troops under Gen. Middleton.
Q. And Batoehe was taken? A On tbe 12th of iay.
Q. And you were released? A. Were released.
Q. Wore there any others besides you ? A. Seven other prisoners in the cellar,

besides myself.
Q. Kept there from about the 26th March ? A. Until the 12th May.
Q. And the rebellion continued till the 12th May? A. Until about that time; yes.
Q. Do you know the prisoner ? A. Yes. I have soen the prisoner at Duck Lake.
Q. Did you know him or seo him before you were arrested ? A. Yes.
Q. Before you were taken prisoner? A. Yes, I have seen him around thore,

and I saw him the ovening before I was arrested. I was arrested at two o'clock in
the morning.

Q. Whore did yau see him the evening before? A. At Duck Lake post, that is
Mitchell's store.

Q. You wero there the night before? A. Yos, I passed there the evening beforo.
Q. He was thon at Mitchell's store ? A. le was thon at Mitchell's store.
Q. What was ho doing thore ? A. I don't know what he was doing myself.
Q. Did you see him doiug any thing ? A. Not at that time. I just saw him and

another fellow aiound the store, that is all.
Q. When did you see him next? A. I saw him after I was a prisoner on the

26th March thore. I saw him off and on, the 26th till the 31st, I saw him thore at
Duck Lake.

Q. What was ho doing those times ? A. He appeared to be going backwards
and forwards in the store with the half-broeds whorever they wanted any stuff ont
of the store, but I thought ho was just the same as all the rest of the half-breeds.

Q. What ground had you for thinking so? A. Well, ho was associating with
therm all tho time. He was with them all the time.

Q. Did you se him on the day of the I)uck Like fight-thore was a fight ? A.
There was a fight that same day I was taken prisoner.

Q. Betweu whom? A The French half*breeds and the Indians under Riel,
and the police uuder Major Crozier.

Q. Did you see him on the day of the fight ? A. No, I did not notice him on
the day of tho tight. I saw him that sane morning, but I did not see him going with
the breeds.

Q. When you saw him was h3 around Mitchell's store? A. Yes, that is whore
ho was, botween that and the house.

• Q. Did I understand you to say ho was handing ont goods ? A. I could not
see him. I would see him going over to the store with them.

Q. What did ho do when ho got over to the store? A. Of course we could not
see the store. We could not see into the store from where our building was.

Q. Did you see him afterwards at Batoche ? A. I saw him afterwards at
Batoche, just a few times over there. He was stationed on the north side of the river.

Q. low do you know? A. Well, I did not see himaround with the rest Of the
mon on our side like we did most of them. I just saw him a few times over thora.

Q. What time was this ? A. That was between the 3rd April and the 12th
May.

Mr. Johnstone.-There is no charge subsequent to the 3rd April.
Mr. Scott.-Yes, we have the charge that covers the ground previous to the 3rd

April, and subsequent to the 3rd April.
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By Mr. Scott :

h Q. What was ho doing thero whon you saw him at Batoche? A. I just esaw
around with some of the other Frencb halt breeds.
Q. In what condition was he? A. Well, ho was just walking around there.

Ilhat was all ho was doing at that time.
Q. At any time you saw him ? A. At any time I saw him at Batoche.
Q. What condition were the other mon in ? A. Sometimes they would be

ect and sometimes they would not be armed.
Q. Was ho in the same condition? A. He was not wheneve r there was any

citenent-not that I saw.
Q. Did you ever see him armed ? A. Not at Batoche.

kn. Or at any place? A. I saw him with a rifle or shot gun at Duck Lake. I don't
ow whether it was a rifle or shot.gun.

Q. You saw him at Duck Lake? A. Yes, one day I was thor-I don't remem-
r what day it was-some of those days when I was there I saw him with a gun.

Q. Anything else besides the gun that you saw? A. No, that was all that I saw
that time.
Q It may have been a gun or a rifle? A. I could not tell which.
Q. Was ho a prisoner thera? A. No more a prisoner than anyone else, as farIcould see.
Q. You say ho appeared, as far as you saw, ho appeared to ho one of them? A.

esone of themselves, as I thought at the time.
Cross examined by Mr. Johnstone:

Q. Do you know if the prisoner was not charged with that store ? A. Well,
was what I was just telling you, as to what Mr. Mitchell told mu.
Q. Did Mitchell tell you ho was in charge ,f his store? A. Mitchell told me a

narned Blackburn and Magnus Burston wiee i n charge of bis store.
How far is Mitchell's store from where the fight took place ? A. I would say

cut a mile and a half.
Q. Now when you saw him you say you saw him with a gun. Can you give us

%Y description of it? Hlow far away was ho from you when you saw him? A. lie
quite close. We used to go down stairs from whero we were prisoners-up stairs.

O Were allowed to go now and again during day time.
Q. And did you examine his gun ? A. No.
Q. Did you puy particular attention to it? A. No, I just happened to notica
ho was armed.
Q. You would not say whother it was with a rifle or shot gun? A. No.
Q. Wby can't you say? A. Becauso I could not notice it. i was not close

ough to him to notice it.
VQ. Now when you say you saw him at Duek Lake, you mean not at the place

re the fight took place ? A. No, but where the stores and buildings wore.
Q. Did you see him there during the time of the fight? Was ho around where

er during the time of the fight ? A. No, I did not notice him there during
tine of the fight.
Q. And you have nover seen him at any of the fights ? A. No.

. And at Duck Lake was the only occasion on which you have ever seen him
ed ? A. That is alil.
Q. Do you know that the prisoner has beon a sickly man ? Were you well
alGted with him? A. No; i have hoard Mr. Mitchell say that ho was not a very
by man.

teQ. Do you know what instructions ho had when ho was placed in charge of
hell's store? A. No, I don't know.

By Mr. Scott:
Q Where did Ur. Mitchell tell you this? A. lie told me up at Carlton first,

then ho mentioned it again down here.
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Q. Did ho say anything else at the same time about the prisoner ?
Mr. Johnstone.-I object to this.
Mr. Scott.-I want to hear the whole conversation.
3dr. Johnstone. - I did not put the question what Mr. Mitchell had told him. 

asked hin if ho knew that the prisoner was in charge.
Mr. Scott.-Ard thon you asked him what Mitchell said.
Court.-The whole conversation may be asked.

By Mr. Scott :
Q. At the time you heard this from Mr. Mitchell, what else did yoU

hear Mr, Mitchell say about the prisoner? A. Well, what ho spoke to me first wag
at Carlton, wben I told him I had seen Magnus Burston there and an Indian named
Blackburn, ard ho said ho bad left those in charge of bis place, and down here hO
inentioned it again, that ho had left them in charge.

Q. Was tbat ail ? I speak of the first conversation ? A. That was ail ho told
me at the first time, that ho had left them in charge. He said those men he had left
in charge.

WILLIAM ToMKINs, sworn:-
Examined by Mr. Scott:

Q. You are an interpreter for the Indian Department? A. Yes.
Q. Where were you on the 18th of March last? A. I was at Batoche, take»

prisoner.
Q. By whom ? A. By Riel and his followers.
Q. Who wore his followers? A. Half-breeds and Indians.
Q. What were they doing at this time; why did they take you prisoner ?

They thonght we might go home to Carlton.
Q. What were they doing ? A. They were in a rebellious state.
Q. They were in a state of rebellion at that time, and they took you prisoner ?

A. Yes.
Q. Bow many followers had Riel ? A. Four hundred or 500, I should think.
Q. What was the object of the rebellion, do you know ? A. As far as I could

find out, they wanted to start a new government.
Q. Who did you hear that from ? A. It came pretty near from Riel.
Q Who did you hear speaking about it? A. Half-breeds.
Q. Where were you taken to on the 18th 3March ? A. Taken to the church Ai

Batoche.
Q. A nd from there ? A. Taken across the river to Walters' store.
Q. Where was that-at Duck Lake ? A. No; across the river; across th"

South Branch; at Walters' store.
Q. And that was on what day; what day were you at Walters'? A. Th

19th, I think.
Q. And where were you taken thon ? A. Taken back to the church.
Q. And from there ? A. Taken to Garnot's, and from there to Duck Lake.Q. And when did you reach Duck Lake? A. 26th March.Q. Where were you taken to atter that-to Carlton ? A. Yes.
Q. And from there back to Batoche? A. Yes.
Q. Now, how long were you a prisoner? A. Two months, nearly.
Q. What day were you released? A. I was released on 12th May.
Q Did anytbing happen on the 26th March when you were at Duck Lake? A

Yes, ihere was a fight took place.
Q. Between whom ? A. Between Riel's followers and the police and volal'

teers.
Q. How do yon know that? A. Riel told me so.
Q. Riel told yon that there had been a fight? A. Yes.Q. Do you know the prisoner? A. Yes.
Q. How long have you known him ? A. Four or five years.
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Q. Did you see him during the time you were a prisoner ? A. Yes.
Q. Where first ? A. I seen him at Duck Lake on the 26th.
Q. What was ho doing at that day, do you remember; what was ho doing-

When you saw him? A. Well, I seen him once; ho was standing at the store door,
Mitchell's.

Q. Afterwards ? A. I seen him across the river at Batoche.
Q. Did you only see him once on the 26th? A. I could not say. I am sure I

een him once.
Q. Thon the only thing you saw him doing was standing at Mitchell's store

door ? A. Yes.
Q. Any others there? A. Yes, there was quite a number there.
Q. What state were they in ? A. In a state of rebellion.
Q. What condition were they in; were they armed, those mon ? A. Yes,

they were all armed.
Q. Was the prisoner armed? A. Yes.
Q. The prisoner was armed at that time? A. Yes.
Q. Did you see him doing anything ? A. No.
Q. All that you saw him doing on that day was standirg with the others at

Ilitchell's store door ? A. Yes.
Q. Was the store open, could you see? A. I could not see, ho was stai ding at

the corner. I just noticed him amongst the othors. I know ho was not at the
ight.

Q. What was ho doing when you saw him at Batoche? A. He came over after
A tent I thought.

Q. What led you to think that? A. Well, he put it on horse back and took it
back across the river.

Q. You saw him taking a tent across the river; where did ho procure it, do you
know? A. He came out of the council roQm, I think, I am not sure.

Q. Out of the place where the council held its meetings ? A. Yes.
Q. What council ? A. Riel's council.
Q. Bringing a tent and taking it across the river? A. Yes.
Q. Was that the only time you saw him ? A. 1 seen him when we were coming

fromn Carlton.
Q. Where was he thon ? A. At Duck Lake loading on a fanning mill on a sleigh

¾Tid sending it home, that was the time that the tolegraph office was on fire, the time
We passed by.

Q. Who did the telegraph office belong to? A. lt belonged to the Dominion
land Office or Government Office.

Q. low far was that from Mitchell's store ? A. I suppose about fifty yards.
Q. Was Mitchell's store standing ? A. There was the telegraph office, and thon

hls iesidence and thon the store.
Q. Wore his residence and the store standing at that time, at the time you pas-

6ed through from Carlton ? A. Yes.
Q. They wore there ? A. Yes.
Q. What became of them afterwards, do you know ? A. They were burnt.
Q. And when you came through the telegraph office was burning. A. Yes.
Q. Who had possession of that particular locality at that time ? A. Well, I could

tut Bay.
. Q. How did you happen to be coming through there, you were a prisoner at that
ine ? A. A prisoner.

Q. Was anyone in charge of you ? A. Yes.
Q. Who, how many of them were guarding yon ? A. About eighty, I should

thiik
Q. About eighty guarding you when you came through? A. Yes.
Q. Did you see any other half-breeds about Duck Lake ? A. Yes.
Q. How many ? A. I should think there was about ton or twenty, I could not

%y for certain.
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Q. Were thore any others about besides the half-breeds ? A. No.
Q. Thore were no othors ? A. No, none that I saw.
Q. These ton or twenty mon that you saw around the settlement there, wore

they armed or otherwise ? A. They wore armed.
Q. And you say you cannot tell who had control of the Duck Lake settlement at

that time, whotber it was the robots or the Government troops ? A. Oh, it was the
robots.

Q. The rebels had control of that part of the country? A. Certainly.
Q. At the time these buildings were burning ? A. Yes, certainly.
Q. And when the telegraph office was burning, you saw this man ? A. Yes, ho

was there.
Q. Sonding a fanning mill away ? A. Yes.
Q. Had you any conversation with him ? A. No.
Q. Did you seo him doing anything else ? &. No, I did not.
Q. Was ho armed or otherwise at that time ? A. Well, ho was working. I don't

know whother ho had a gun with him or not thon.

By Mr. Johnstone :
Q. You said in your examination-in-chief that you knew the prisoner was not at

Dnck Lake fight; how did yon know that? A. I seen him standing there whon
the fight was going on.

Q. Standing where ? A. At Dnck Lake.
Q. And the fight took place how far away from that? A. A mile and a-half.
Q. Had you any conversation with'him at that time ? A. I had, down stairs, once.
Q. Was ho armed at that time ? A. I could not say; ho was in the room, I could

mot say whether ho had a gun thoro then or not.
Q. You did see that ne was armed previous to that ? A. Yes, I seon him with a

gun once.
Q. Whon ? A. At Duck Lake.
Q. That day ? A. Yes.
Q. Was it a shot gun or a rifle? A. I should think it was a shot gun.
Q. And did you pay particular attention ? A. No, I did not.
Q. Did you ask the prisoner why ho was taking part or if ho was taking part?

A. Yes, I did.
Q. Did you ask him why ho was armed ? A. No, I did not. He told me ho was

compelled to join the rebels. I mind him telling me that.
Q. And did ho give that as an excuse or an answer to your question ? A. Well,

i thought it in that way.
Q. Well, did it appear to you that ho was oompelled from occurrences and cir-

cumstances ? A. Well, I could not say.
Q. Did you see the prisoner take part at any time in the rebellion ? A. No.
Q. Did you isee him try to prevent it; prevent the rebellion, or prevent any

fighting or any loss of life ? A. Well, no, only what ho told me ho done, bat that
is only taking his word.

PATRICE FAGNANT, sworn ;-

Exanined by Mr. Scott:
(Through sworn interpreter, Joseph Morin, French.)
Q. Where does ho live ? A. At Duck Lake.
Q. low long has ho been living thore ? A. Five years.
Q. In what employment is ho there ? A. He is working as a laborer, for every

person around the place.
Q. Who was ho working for at the time the rebellion broke ont? A. ie say

ho was not thoro when the trouble firat started, ho was at Sandy Lake.
Q. How far fronm Duck Lake? A. He says he was with Mitchell making a trip.
Q. Whon did ho get back to Dack Lake ? A. Two days after the trouble started.
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Q. Did ho get back before the Duck Lke fight ? A. Yes.
Q. How many days before ? A. He says ho cannot tell how many days before.'

He does not recolleot how many days before.
Q. When did Mitchell leave Dack Lake; I mean after they got back from this

trip? A. He says when they came back with Mitchell, two days after that, the
trouble started, ho says; the trouble started two days before they got back.

Q. How long did Mitchell stay at Duck Lake after they got back ? A. He says
he seen them that day when they came-that evening.

Q. Seen whom ? A. Seen Mitchell.
Q. 1 thought ho was ont with Mitchell ? A. Yes, but they came back and when

they came back, ho saw him that day in the evening, and Mitchell started to come
and see the half-breeds whore they were together.

Q. He started to see the half.breeds ? A. Yes.
Q. When did he last see Mitchell before the Dack Lake fight ? A. That is the

last ho seen of him.
Q. When ho started to see the half.breeds ? A. Yes.

By the Court :
Q. And that was the evening after they returned from Sandy Lake ? A. Yes,

By Mr. Scott :
Q. What does he call the breaking ont of the rebellion; ho says ho got thero two

days after the breaking out, what does that mean ? A. He says ho means when they
began to have meetings, to ho together; that is what ho meant.

Q. Did ho romain at Duck Lake until after the Batoche fight ? A. He says ha
was not there-

Q. I mean at Dock Lake? A. He says ho was not at Duck Lake either. He
says ho was across the river.

Q. The witness was across the river? A. Yes.
Q. Was ho at Duck Lake on the day of the Duck Lake fight? A. He says ha

'Was at Duck Lake, but ho did not go to where they wore fighting.
Q. But ho was there that day? A. Yes.
Q. Did ho see the prisoner on the day of the fight? A. He did not se him.
Q. He did not see him on that day ? A. No.
Q. Whon did ho first see him after the fight? A. Ho says ho did not see him till

long time after.
Q. How many days after ? A. He says ho does not recollect how many days

4fter.
Q. Does ho know Hilliard Mitchell's store at Duck Lake ? A. Yes.
Q Doos ho know what became of it ? A. It was burnt.
Q. Did he seoit burning? A. He seen it from his own home where ho was.
Q. Saw what ? A. He seen the building burning.
Q. How far was his house away? A. He supposes about 100 yards.
Q. Did ho see the prisoner that day ? A. He seen him that day.
Q. Where was ho ? A. He seen him thore at the house.
Q. When it was burning? A. No; another house.
Q. What other house ? A. He seen him in Mitchell's house.
Q. Was that house burnt? A. He says it was burnt too.
Q. What *as the prisoner doing when ho saw him that day ? A. He says he

don't know very well what the prisoner was doing; ho says he did not stop long
enough to see what ho was doing.

Q. Did ho see him doing anything at all ? A. He says ho seen the house, it was
already burning, and ho says the prisoner was helping it to, ho was starting the fire
at the same building.

Q. The prisoner was ? A. Yes.
Q. How was ho starting it? A. He says he took some papers to light it
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Q. H1e saw him starting the fire with some paper, is that what ho says? A.
Yes.

Q. Ask him who had control of that part of the country at that time, whether it
was the rebels or the Government ? A. It was the half-breeds.

Q. Wore tbey rebels? A. Rebel balf-breeds.
Q. Were there any others around these buildings at the time ? A. No one else.

By Mr. Johnstone:
Q. Ask him if he was a prisoner ? A. No.
Q. What was ho doing; wbat was ho engaged at during the time of the

rebelh on? A. He says ho was not hired to anybody thon.
Q. Was ho remaining with the other half-breeds ? A. He says ho was not with

mobody there ; ho was not taking any part at the time ho was there, when ho was at
¯Ðuck Lake.

Q. Ask him why ho did not leave ? A. He says ho was left there; ho says ho
did rot have nothing to move with; ho had no animals so ho had to stop there.

Q. Doos ho know where Burst, n lives? A. Yes, ho knows where ho lives.
Q. How far is that from Duck Lake ? A. About a mile and a-balf or two miles

from Duck Lake.
Q. In opposite direction from the place where the fight took place ? A. Yes,

at the river side.
Q. Ask him if ho knows that Burston was living at home during the time of the

rebellion ? A. Yes; ho knows that the prisoner was at his home at the first fight.
Q. Now, the day on whieh the fire took place, wasn't the witness in Mitchell's

house with the prisoner? A. No.
Q. Ask him if ho is sure ? A. Yes; ho was not living with him.
Q. Ask him if ho, the witness, was in Mr. Mitchell's bouse on that day ? A. No.
Q. Ask him if he remained in bis own house during the whole of that day-the

witness? A. HRe says ho did not stay there all day. He went up to where his
uncle was living, but ho was not long there.

Q. Was ho in Mitchell's yard on that day ? Did ho go to Mitchell's yard and
take away a hand-rake ? A. No.

Q. Now, did he see the prisoner at Mitchell's store that day ? A. Not that day.
Q. Then the only place ho saw him was at the house? A. Yes.
Q. Now, did this witness, when the buildings were on fire, did ho take the

windows off the store or the house-the witness ? A. He says the prisoner told hinm
to take the windows off the house, and ho says ho took three, and ho did not have
time to take the whole of them ; ho could save only three.

Q. Then ho was at Mitchell's house? A. Yes.
Q. Now, was the house on fire at this time? A. It was burning; ho only had

time to take three or four off.
Q. Now, did ho see the commencement of the fire? A. ie says ho seen the

smoke.
Q. How long previous to the time ho was there to take the windows off, was it

he saw the smeke ? A. He says not very long after that ho seen the smoke, and ho
went up there and saw the house burning.

Q. Where was the smoke coming from when ho saw it ? A. He says fromn
below, firom down staîrs.

Q. W hat part of the down stairs; was it coming out of the doors and windows ?
.A. lie says ho seen the smoke coming from doors and windows.

Q. Ask him was that the first he knew of the fire ? A. It was, ho says, Dot
long since the fire was in the house that ho was there.

Q. Was that the first ho knew of the fire, when ho saw the smoke ? A. Yes.
Q. Now, wbere was ho standing when ho saw the smoke ? A. As ho Ws

coming along near to the bouse.
Q. Where was the prisoner at this time, when ho was coming along and ho saw

the smoke ? A. He says ho was coming from his house to where this fire was.
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Q. Tue prisoner was coming from his bouse ? A. From his own bouse.
Q. T where the fire was ? A. Yes.
Q. Tien when ho says his own house, what bouse does ho mean ? A. He says

it was no bis own niouse. He was living with his moLher.in-law thon at the time.
Court.-That is when he was coming along and saw the fire, ho says this man

-witness-was coming along too ?
Mr. Johnstone.-No.
Q. Ask him if it was the prisoner that was coming from his mother-in-law's,

When ho saw him, and the bouse on fire ? A. No, the prisoner was there before he
camie to the bouse.",

By the Court:
Q. Whose mother-in-law does he speaK ut; nus own mother-in-law or Burston's?

A. His mother-in-law.
Mr. Scott.-What the witness said was that the prisoner was coming from bis

Inotber.in-law's bouse, when ho, the witness, first saw Burston.
Mr. Johnstone. - He says the first ho knew of the fire, ho saw the smoke.
Q. How far was his bouse from the burning one ? A. He says that is what ho

told you in the first place. It was his home, as far as from this court bouse to the
first church (100 yards).

Q. When ho came along and saw the smoke, was that the first time he saw the
Prisoner on that day ? A. That was the first time he saw him.

Q. Were there any other persons around the bouse at the time? A. Nobody
else but the prisoner.

Q. iow far was the prisoner from the house when he saw him ? A. He says
he was right close to the bouse.

Q. Ask him where it was ho saw the prisoner with the paper ? A. He says
$ight in the bouse.

Q. Thon it must have been after the fire that ho had soen the smoke? A. He
says the first fire that was put on the bouse, it slacked, and the prisoner started it
again.

Q. The first fire was slacked ? A. Yes.
Q. low doos ho know that? A. ie seen the place where it was fired.
Q. Thon was that the fire that gave rise to the smoke that he first saw ? A.

No, the first smoke ho seen, ho says it was off another building that was burning
there.

Q. Which building was on fire, ask him? A. Hie seen a little office on fire first.
Q. A little telegraph office on fire, first? A. Yes, a little office. He says that

office was burning while ho was at bis own place.
Q. Ask him if ho saw Burston thon? A. No.
Q. Ask him if it was in Mitchell's store or in Mitchell's bouse that he saw the

Pisloner with the paper? A. It was in Nitchell's bouse ho says.
Q. Now, was it prior to this time that ho saw the smoke in Mitchell's house that

hle first spoke of ? A. He says that is the bouse. He is cr ain that i' the bouse.
It was smoking a little while and ho says it went down agam i. Ile is certain ho saya
that is the bouse smoking first.

Q. Whereabouts in the bouse was it that he was putting the paper ? A. He
started it on a partition of the bouse.

Q. Inside? A. Yes, inside.
Q. In what room in the bouse was ho when he saw this ? A. He was standing

right at the door.

Qit .Q Which door? A. He says ho was standing at one of the doors of that par-
n of the room that was on fire.
Q. Inside the bouse ? A. Yes.
Q. Ask him if the first fire was ont when ho came in the bouse? A. Yes, it was.
Q. Ask him if ho put it out ? A. No. It was a little fire yet, but we could

ie it was just going out.
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Q. Ask him if he added any paper to it ? If ho put any paper on the littie fire?
A. No.

Q. Ask him if he tried to prcvent the prisoner from setting fire to the building?
A. He says he did not stop him from putting the fire.

Q. Ask him if he attempted to stop him, if he tried to stop him ? A. No.
Q. Were they the only two persons in the house ? A. He did not see anyone else.
Q. Or did not see anyone around in the neighhorhood ? A. He could not, say

whether anybody was around or not. He did not see anybody.
Q. Where were all the half-breeds at this time ? A. fHe says they all had left

and come towards the river.
Q. Now, ask him to tell us how much paper the prisoner had ? A. He says ho

could not tell how many, but a good deal, he says.
Q. What description of paper was it-what kind of paper ? A. Ie says news-

papers.
Q. Wore they English or French newspapers ? A. Ie says his own papers,

but ho could not tell if they wore French or English.
Q. Can't ho read and write? A. He says ho can read a little Frene, but ho

did not go up and see the papers.
Q. Now, ask him where the prisoner went after that? A. He says he does not

.know which way ho went.
Q. Ask him what ho did with the windows he took off the house? A. He gave

them to Mitchell.
Q. Ask him if the prisoner told him he wanted to take these windows-take

thein cff, so as to save them for Mr. Mitchell ? A. Yes, he thinks that is why the
risoner told him to take the windows-to save them. He understood il was for

it< bell.
Q. Did the prisoner tell him that he wanted to take these windows off to save

them for Mr. Mitchell? A. Yes.
Q. Now, he says that ho saw the prisoner, from his own bouse, standing at

Mitchell's house; now, did the prisoner go in the house before ho came up, or did he
go iin with him ? A. He says he seen him standing outside over the hoube, and ho
went up there and saw the prisoner going in the house.

Q. And ho went in at the same time ? A. fie says after the prisonor was in
the bouse, he went right in shortly after, looking at him.

Q. Ask him if that was the only time in which ho was in Mitchell's bouse on
that day ? A. Yes.

Q. Ask him if thatwas the time that they carried off the hand-rake-the witness
and the prisoner?

Mr. Scott.-He says he did not carry off a hand-rake.

By .Mr. Johnstone:
Q. Ask him if he saw a hand-rake that day ? A. No.
Q. Be did not see one at all ? A. 1Be seen it outside of the house.
Q. Ask him if he took it tway when'le took the windows ? A. No, ho wen t

and left i L at a mill.
Q. Be took the rake away ? A. Yes, he took the rake away, and went and loft

it at the mill-the witness did.
Q. Did he take it away that day, when the buildings were on fire? A. He saya

that is the time.
Q. Ask him if the prisoner was coming in the gate at the time ho was taking

the rake away ? A. fie did not see him coming.
Q. Well, where was he personally when he, the witness, took the rake away?

A. He says he thought it was the window you asked him about. He says he never
took the little hand-rake; he left it there. He says ho meant the windows he tookr
ito the mill.

Q. Ask him [if he saw any person take the rake away? A. He did not see0
anyone.
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Q. Now, where was the prisoner wien ho, the witness, took the windows away ?
RA He says the prisoner told him to go and take the windows away, and ho says ho

'Went and took the windows, and ho left the prisoner in the house, and ho did not
ue him.

Q. Ask him if ho, the witness, took the windows down to the mill? A. Yes, ho
took theM himself.

Q. Did he carry thom all at once, or make more journeys than one ? A. He
says ho took them all down in one trip.

Q. Whose mill did ho take them to? Whose mill is this? A. He says a man
&armed Beauprey's there.

By Air. Scott:

Do I understand from this witness that when he started towards the
building-towards Mitchell's house-that Burston was inside or outside ? I under-
Stand him to say that ho saw Burtson before ho went into the building. Ask him
l.ow long Burston was in the building before ho got there? A. Ho was standing
Outside, ho says ; outside of the house.

Q. But after the witness saw Burston there the witness started to go towards
the building, and i want to know how long Burston was inside the house before the
'Witness got to the house ? A. He says ho don't know if the prisoner had went in
the bouse before ho got there-he could not say-the first time. He says ho saw
himi outside.

eide. Was the prisoner in the house when ho got there, or outside of it ? A. Out.

Q. When the witness got there ? A. He was standing outside when ho got to
the house.

. Q. Did they go into the house together ? A. He says ho went shortly after the
Prisoner went in.

Q. The prisoner went in first ? A. Yes.
Q. And ho went in shortly afterwards ? A. Yes.
Q. Was the prisoner lighting the fire when the witness got inside ? A. No.
Q. ilow long was it alter that that ho commenced to hght this tire ? A. He

syas shortly after.
CourL-¶That is the second fire.
Mr. Scott.-I am speaking of the fire at the house. Yes, the second fire. The

first one was dying out, I understand.
Q. I want the prisoner's exact words, what ho told the witness as to taking the

'Windows out of the bouse ? A. Hie says the prisoner told him to try to save the
*Windows for Mr. Mitchell.

Q. He says he saved three windows; how many windows were in the house?
A. He sa) s he meant a pair and a half.

Q. Ask him how many windcws there were in the house ? A. There were a
good deal, but ho could not say how many windows.

Q. low long was it after the fire started that the prisoner told him this ? A.
When the house began to burn, the prisoner told him this, take that away.

By the Court :

Q Ask him when they came together, ho came up to the house and Buiston was
Outside, what passed between them, if anything, before Burston went into the house ?
bescribe the conversation, if anything ? A. Be says theie had been a fire m the
hOuse hefore they were in the bouse, because, ho saya, he could see it was on fire.

Q. He bas spoken of what was done and what ho saw-one thing ho says was
that Buriston was standing there when ho came up, and after ho came up Burston
'Went in--now before Burston went in had he any tal ? A. He says ho don't recollect
'hat the prisoner told him. The prisoner was talking to him, but ho does not recol-
ect 'what the prisoner told him.
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Q. I don't ask him to give me the exact words, but he can give me the substance
of what he said ? A. Hie says he don't recollect. He remembers that the prisoner
spoko to him before t ey went into the house, but he don't recollect what ho told im..

By Mr. &ott :
Q. I just want to ask one more question. I understood him to say that the

telegraéph office was burniag on the same day ? A. Yes, it was on the sane day,
early in the morning.

By Mr. Johnstone:
Q. Where did Mr. Bnrston get the paper ; did you see him get the paper ? A.

He took the papers inside the bouse.
Q. Where did he get them inside the house ? A. He says all over on the floor.

WILLIAM ToMKINS, recalled
By Mr. Scott :

Q. I think you said the telegraph office was burning3when you came through,
from Carlton to Duck Lake ? A. Yes.

Q. What day was that, do you remember ? A. The 3rd of April I think it waS,
By Mr. Johnstone:

Q. Did you see any other buildings burning besides the telegraph office? A
Not at the time.

Q. At no time ? A. No.
By Mr. Scott:

Q. What time was it you came through there ? A. The morning I should think.
By Mr. Johnstone :

Q. Did you see any person around Mitchell's house ; did you notice if there was
any person around Mitcheli's bouse where ho dwelt ? A. Yes.

Q. Who was there? A. No, I could not say that I did. I did not see anyone
-around the house.

Mr. Scott.-That is the case for the Crown.
Mr. Johnstone.-I ask your Honor to discharge the prisoner without going into

the defence. The only evidence against him is the evidence of the last witness and
I submit that unless his evidence is corroborated your honor could not convict; and
the evidence of Mr. Tomkins merely shows that although he had a gun où the day
of the rebellion ho was not at the fight at all. ie was taking charge of these build-
ings; and afterwards, the evidence of this man Fagnant shows that ho took the
-windows off the building to save then for Mr. Mitchell, so that the ouly evidence
given goes to show that the prisoner was there in the performance of the duty of
looking after Mr. Mlitchell's property.

Mr. Scott.-Lighting fires.
Mr. Johnstone.-That man's evidence is to be taken for nothing, I say, because

it is not corroborated, and ho is an accomplice.
Court..-t think I shall call upon you, Mr. Johnstone, for your defence. Of

course it is not necessary, even that the mnan should have arms. You wili recollect
those Feniain cases, where a man was with the party, a newspaper reporter and a
doctor. I think the prisoner will have to excalpate himself.

DEFENCE.
PETER TOUROND, sworn.:-

Examined by Mr. Johnstone:
(Tbrough interpreter, in Cree.)
Q. Do ou know Barston ? A. Yes.
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Q. Do you remember the time that the buildings were burned last spring, at
baIck Lake? A. Yes.

Q. What buildings did you see burning ? A. He says ho seen the telegraph
"Ofee burning tirst, and after that, shortly, ho saw the other buildings on fire.

Q. Ask him If ho saw Mitchell's house burning ? A. Yes.
Q. Did ho see the fire when it commenced; the first appearance of it? A. He

Says ho did not see it from inside of the house, but only ho could tell it was a fire, as
he seen the smoke going through the roofs. He says ho went in the house that day
befbre the house was on fire.

Q. Did ho soe the prisoner on that day ? A. He seen him that day on the road.
Q. What was ho doing? A. He says ho was repairing a sleigh.
Q. How long was ho working at the sleigh ? A. He says ho seen him there about

quarter of an hour working at this sleigh.
Q. Before, during or after the fire? A. He seen him working at the sleigh

before the fire. He says when ho first seen the fire come out of the house, the smoke,
Mr. Burston was on the road thon and the house was burning and ho stood thora
'With him a quarter of an hour, and ho seon him when ho got tlirough fixing the sle igh
"On the road.

By the Court:
Q. Where wore they when they saw the fire ? A. They were near the

0ouse, on the road.
By Mr. Johnstone:

Q. Where the prisoner was working at the sleigh ? A. Yes.
Q. And was it thon and there that you observed this fire ? A. Yes, ho says,in where they were standing; they were both there together, and they saw the

smiloke coming out of the roofs.
Q. How far was this from the house; give us an idea of the distance ? A.

.&bout an acre (200 yards).
Q. Were they in front of the house or in rear of the house? A. In front of the

house, on the road.
Q. Did ho see any persons there at the time? A. He says there. were a good

1441ny people around there; ho says there were about 60 at that time.
Q. Were these people around the house ? A. fie says they were all over-

80ome outside of the house and some inside and some on the road.
Q. Now, how long after the witness was in the bouse was it that ho notiel the

fire? A. He says ho stood there a long time, and ho says they could see the flarmes
comig down.
.Q. He states that ho was in Mitchell's house. Now, whore was Burston at this

tibe ? A. He was on the road.
Q. Was ho tixing the sleigh on the road at this time ? A. Fixing the sleigh

a the road.
Q. Now, did ho go from Mitchell's house to whore Burston was, direct? A. He

YS after ho was talking to the prisoner ho went around the house and came back to
e prisoner, and talked with the prisoner again. He says when ho went there ho is
rI1tain ho did not see any fire thore, but ho says shortly after the house was burning,

at there were so many people around-
Q. How long did it take him to go round the bouse and come back to where

8rston was ? A. About five minutes; inside of five minutes.
Q. Was the prisoner working at these sleighs ail this time? A. Yes; ho says

6n ho soen the fires started ho was with him at the sleigh, and ho says when ho
got through fixing the sleigh ho says you could see the flames going through the

Ï1se already .
. What did the prisoner say when ho saw the house on fire ? Did ho say any.

thg?
Mr. Scott.-That is not evidence ?
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Witness.-le did not tell him anything.
Q. Now, does ho know who set fire to the building ? A. No; thero were too

many; ho could not tell.
Q. Was it the prisoner, had the prisoner anything to do with it? A. He

says ho does not think it. If it was said the prisoner done it ho would tell it was
not, because it was not the prisoner that dono it.

Q. Would the prisoner, while ho was behind the bouse walking round it-could
the prisoner have gone to the house without bis seeing him ? A. He was not long
enough, and it was not far enough. If the prisoner had went there ho would have
seen him.

Q. How far does Burston live from Duck Lake-from these buildings ? A.
About two miles.

Q. Now, ask him if ho knows the prisoner was in charge of these buildings.
Mr. Scott.-That is no way to put the question. I object to the question being

put in that way.
Court.-It has nothing to do with it. The prisoner may have been in charge

and have violated his trust.
Mr. Johnstone.-If it is objected to I won't ask it.
Q. Do you know where the prisoner was during the time of the rebellion ? A.

He was at Dutick Lake.
Q. Was ho living at Mitchell's or living at home? A. He was there at

Mitchell's.

By .Mr. Scott:
Q. Where does the witness live ? A. At Fish Creek.
Q. How far from Duck Lake? A. A bout fifteen miles.
Q. Then ho knows which bouse is Mitchell's dwelling-house, does ho; ho kneW

that before? A. Yes.
Q. What was ho doing at Duck Lake on that day, where had ho come from?

A. They were coming from Carlton.
Q. Bow long did ho, stay at Duck Lake ? A. He says ho did not stay.
Q. Ask him il ho saw any prisoners there, did ho see William Tomkins thera

that day ? A. Yes, ho saw Billy Tomkins.
Q. Did ho leave Duck Lake before or after Billy Tomkins ? A. le seen him o

the road there.
Q. Did ho remain at Duck Lake when Billy Tomkins left? A. lie wont bac1 '

to Carlton again.
Q. Who did? A. EHimself, the witness.
Q. At whose place was Burston, the prisoner, working, at this sleigh ? A. Near

the road.
Q. At wbose place was it ? Was it at anybody's place? A. The road right

close to Mitchell's bouse.
Q. [hen ho was working at this sleigh when this fire started ? A. Yes.
Cour.-If there has been no change in the bouses within the last few yearsr

the house stands within fifty yards of this road.

By Mr. Scott:
Q. Was tbat near the store that ho was working at the sleigh? A. Be says ie

is about 100 yards from the store-from Mitchell's store.
Q. Then it was nearer the store than it was to the house? A. He says it wa0

mearer to the bouse.
Q. Which building was set on fire, was started to burn first? A. The tela'

graph office.
Q. Which was the second building to burn? A. He could not tell, afterwar»

they were all on fire when ho saw the other houses.
Q. low many other bouses were burnt ? A. About four bouses.
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Q. How long was it after the telegraph office started to burn that the others
started to burn ? A. Four or five minutes after.

Q. Then do I understand you to say that the prisoner was working when these
ires commeinced ? A. He says he seen him on the road all the time. He sayawhile
he was there he could not have went without seeing the prisoner go to the fire.

Q. Then he, the prisoner, did not go ner the fire at all ? A. The prisoner got
'.ear to the house after the fire, because he seen him working at the sleigh al the
tie till the flames came out of the roof.

Q. Was there anything in the house at the time the witness went to the fires ?
A. Nothing in the house, hardly,

Q. Was there anything in the store? A. Nothing.

By Mr. Johnstone:
Q. Do you know what became of those things in the store and the house? A.

lie Esys Riel's men had taken everything.
Q. Bad the prisoner snything to do with the taking of them? A. -He does not

kiow, he could not say.
By Mr. Seott:

Q. Ask him how he knows that Riel's men took everything ? A. Heseen Riel's
1en there.

Q. But did he see them taking everything out of the store? A. He tsys he
seen Riel's men taking sometbing there in the store.

By the Court:

. Q. I want to see if I understand as to the distances? A. Burston was working
a the road, at the gate.

JaoKE LEDEAU, sworn:

Examined by Mr. Johnstone:
(Through Interpreter, in French.)
Q. Ask him where he lives ? A. I live at Beauprey's faim, a mile and a-half

1eOflrr Duck Lake.
Q. Ask him if he remembers the day on which Duck Lake was burnt ? A. Yes.
Q. Last spring ? A. Yes.
Q. Did he see Burston on that day ? A. Yes.
Q. What was he doing ? A. Ie was working at the sleigh.
Q. What sleigh ? A. His own bob sleigh.
Q. Did he see these buildings on fire ? A. He seen one, the telegraph office.
Q. low far is the tolegraph office from Mitchell's house ? A. About thirty feet.
Q. How far away was Burston'off with the sleigh ? A. He says ho was about

100 feet from where he first saw Burston.
Q. Iow long was he there with Burston ? A. He says he was there about a

%olple of minutes, and be left him.
Q. 'Was ho at Duck Lake all that day during the burnings ? A. No, he says

Wln ho left Burston there, ho only stopped a couple of minutes with him, and he
6s ho wvent right on.

Q. Did be see any smoke coming out of Mitchell's house ? A. No, he only saw
the little office there.

Q. Then he did not see Mitchell's house burning at all ? A. No, hedid not
it.
Q. Was that all be saw of the prisomer on that day ? A. That is all.
Q. Did ho see any men around there at the time of the fire ? A. A good many

eOOpIe.
Q. Were there any of them at Mitchell's house at the time the tolegraph office-

a being burnt ? A. They were all over there.
Q. Did ho see Fagnant ? A. fie did not see him.
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Q. Did ho seo him at Mitchell's house ? A. No.
Q. Did ho see him at all that day ? A. He says ho did not see him, only the

third day after.
Q. He did not see him that day ? A. No.
Q. Does ho know that those buildings were set on fire ? A. He says he heard

afterwards the houses were all burnt.
Q. Did ho know how the telograph office got on fire ? A. He says ho don't

know how they started. When ho looked ho saw the flames going through the roof.
Q. Did ho go up near the building at all to see what was the cause of it ?

A. No.
Q. He did not go near the building to see what was the cause of it ? A. No.
Q. Did ho enquire as to it ? A. No, ho did not.

By Mr. Scott :
Q. How long was ho thore after the fire commenced ? A. He says ho came that

morning looking for a bob sleigh for Beauprey, and ho says ho was around thero
when ho did not seo the bob sleigh, and ho went up to the well and ho stood therO,
and all of a sudden ho saw the fire.

Q. How long did ho romain thero after the fire started ? A. He left imne-
diately-shortly after.

Q. Was the building burnt down before ho loft ? A. No, ho only saw the flane
.going through the roof, that was all.

PETER LEVALLÉE, sworn:-
Examined by Mr. Johnstone:

(Through interpreter, in French.)
Q. Yon live at Duck Lake ? A. Yes. Not exactly at Duck Lake, but tWo

miles on this side of Duck Lake.
Q. Is that near where Burston lives? A. He lives in the same house.
Q. Doos ho remember the fight at Duck Lake? A. Yes.
Q. Doos ho know where the prisoner was on that day? A. Yes.
Q. Whore ? A. He was in the store-Mitchell's store.
Q. What was ho doing there? A. H.3 was working there.
Q. What was ho doing? A. He says ho could not teli exactly what ho Was

thore for; ho was always working thore anyway. He don't know exactly what
situation ho had.

Q. Was ho working for Mitchell, does ho know ? A.. For Mitchell-yes.
Q. Employed by Xitchell? A. Employed by Mitchell.
Q. Was he, the witness, thoro whon the rebets came in from the fight? A. Ye5,

the prisoner was at the store.
Q. Was ho, the witness, there when the rebels came back from the fight? A.

He says ho seen Birson in the store. He came, ho says, with the rebels there.
Q. Did the robels interfere with the building or the contents ? A. He says hO

does not know about that.
Q. Was ho at Duck Lake whon the buildings were burnt down? A. No, le

was not.
Q. Whore was the prisoner during the time of the rebellion; does ho know?

A. He was in his own house-his own (Barston's) bouse.
Q.. Had ho anything to do with the fight at Duck Lake on the 26th March? A.

By Mr. Scott :
Q. What relation is ho to the prisoner ? A. HE is his uncle. é i
Q. How does ho know the prisoner was at his own house during all this tiin0

was ho, the witness, thoro too ? A. He was living with him.
Q. I understood him to say that ho came over with the rebels from Dick Lake ?

A. Yes, ho said that he was coming with the rebals to the store.
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Q. The witness was ? A. Yes.
Q. How long did ho remain with the rebels ? A. He says ho was quite awhile

With them.
Q. At Batoche ? A. Yes.
Q. Well, ho does not know whether the prisoner was at home whon he was at

Batoche? A. He loft him there, and ho don't know, of course.
Q. When did ho go back there; was it alter the 12th May, after the day

1atoche was taken ? A. He wasn't there that day.
Q. How long before that had ho left Batoche ? A. He doos not recollect.
Q. How many times did ho see the prisoner between the time of the Duck Lake

fight and the day that Batoche was taken ? A. He says ho soen him often. fe 'was
Stopping with him in the same tent.

Q. Where ? A. At the river.
Q. Then ho was not at his own house; ho says ho was at his own house all the

tirne ? A. He says, in the first place, they were stopping together in the same house,
and then ho says ho moved, with the prisoner, at the river. That is what ho means.
e says ho was along with him all the time.

Q. Well, what was the prisoner living in the tent at the river for? A. He says
e had to go there. He was taken there by Riel; forced to go up there, ut the river.

Q. When was ho forced there ? A. He says he was forced right along.
Q. I want to know when force was first used ? A. He does not know; ho does

hot recollect what day.
Q. Did ho see any force used ? A. He says Riel used to send word to the people.
Q. I want to know if ho heard Riel sending this word ? A. No.
Q. Then ho does not know that any force was used except what ho had hoard ?

No, only what ho bas heard.
JGNACE POITRAS sWorn:-

Examined by -Mr. Johntone:
(Interpreted in Cree.)
Q. Were you at Duck Lake about the 26th March ? A. Yes, ho was there.
Q. Whereabouts was ho on the day of the fight ? A. At the bouses there in

beluk Lake.
Q. Did ho see Burston that day ? A. Yes, ho seen Burston there.
Q. What was ho doing ? A. Be says ho don't know what ho was doing. He

says ho was going out of the house and coming in the house, and backwards and
iorwards

Q. Bad Burston anything to do with the fight? A. Well, ho said ho did not
ee him fighting that day. Be says ho did not see him doing anything. He says
e was there with him all the time at the houses. He seen him there ail day. He

not ut the fight that day, sure.
Q. Did ho see the buildings burning? A. No, ho did not.
Q. Did ho see Burston have a gun that day? A. No.

By Mr. Scott:
Q. He did not see the fire, I think ho said ? A. He did not see the fire.

JoHN TOMKINs sworn:-
Examined by Mr. Johnstone:

Q. Do you kfiow the prisoner ? A. I do.

By the Court:
Q. You are Indian agent or Indian instructor? A. Indian instructor.

By Mr. Johnstone.;
Q. How long have you known him ? A. I have known him, I guess, five years

four or five.
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Q. Do you remember the commencement of the troubles in the North-West or
the Saskatchewan ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see Burston about this time ? A. I did.
Q. Where ? A. At his own bouse.
Q. Now, tell us where his houge is as near as you can; how far from Duck

Lake ? A. Well, I shouLd say it is about two miles, or in thaL neighborhood.
Q. Does ho live near you or do you live near him ? A. He lives within half a

mile of where I did live at that time.
Q. Now, yon say you saw him at his own bouse; was this before or after the

Duck Lake fight? A. Before the Duck Lake fight.
Q. How long ? A. Well, I guess it must have been about seven days or six

days, in that neighborhood.
Q. Had you beard anything of the trouble at this time? A. No.
Q. When did you hear ? A. 1 heard it from him that morning.
Q. What did ho say about it ? A. Well, I was going to Batoche-in fact I was

going across the river and on to another reserve, and I had to go through BatoolO
to get there, and the road leading from my place to Batoche went by his bouse, and
I went to bis bouse and stopped and called in to see him, and ho asked me where I
was going, and I told him I was going to Batoche, and ho says, you had better not

go. I says why ? Why, ho says, didn't you hear the news ? No, I said. Well, hO
says, the half breeds have ris' out, and they have taken Batoche and all the stores
and have taken some other places. He mentioned, I think Saskatoon. I think that
was the one, and ho says if you go down there, they will very likely take you. So,
of course, I did not go down. Tbis, if I remember aright, was the day after they
rose. This, I think, was on the 19th, in the morning, if I remember aright. I would
not be sure, but I know it was the day after they rose. My son was a prisoner at the
time, and 1 did not know it till my nephew told me.

Q. Was that the last you saw of Burston until after the rebellion? A. Well, J
think it was, I don't know exactly whether I saw him after that or not.

Q. Could you give us the exact words that ho used that day ? A. Well, that i0
about the exact words that ho used, so far as my memory serves me.

Q. Did ho say the word "half breeds "; did ho use the word " half-breeds ?" A
I think so. He also told me to keep my boys at home, for fear if they would goot1ý
on the roads or around they might be arrested, they might be taken.

By Mr. Scott:

Q. Did ho say anything as to how ho had got this news; how ho had heard it
about the uprising ? A. He spoke something about somebody being there, a day or
two before that, to his place. I can't remember the exact words though.

Q. A day or two before the rising ? A No-
Q. The rising only took place on the day before ? A. He said, if I remembe

aright, that there was some messengers going all around the country, notifying thy
people to join the headquarter party at Batoche.

Q. And it was from one of the messengers that ho had heard the news, dii YO
understand that ? A. I cannot say who ho got the news from.

Q. He did not tell who ho got the news from ? A. No.
Q. But ho appeared to be pretty well posted as to what had been done ? A. Yool

I took it for granted that ho knew all that was going on.
Q. Did you lose any stuff? A. I did.
Q. What kind of stuff; I suppose your place was sacked ? A. I lost everythil9

that was in my place.
Q. The place was sacked ? A. Sacked.
Q. And burnt ? A. No, not burnt; but there was nohing left in it, only soX1

few bushels of potatoes in the cellar, and some wheat in the granary.
Q. Did you find any of your stuff anywhere about? A. I did.
Q. Among your neighbors? A. Yes.
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Q. Did you find any in the prisoner's house, or about his promises ? A. Yes,
thore was some there. There was some property that I saw there belorging to
rayself.

Q. What was it ? A. He had some boards belonging to me, and ho had a set of
or harnoss bolonging to the Indian Department, and he had a stove bolonging to the
Indian Department.

Q. Where had those been taken from; where were they at the time of the
rebellion ? A. They were taken from the Government farm. whore I lived, but ho
told me that ho took those things for safety. The stove-another man had got it-
ald when the row was over, he brought it back to my house, and Magnus told me
ho sent over when ho heard it, and took it to his place, that ws before I got up from
]rince Albert.

Q. Did ho say anything to you about your boards? A. Yes, ho told me ho had
thom there.

Q. Wore there anything there that ho did not say anything about ? A. He
did not say anything about the harness.

Q. He did not say anything about having the harness there ? A. No.
Q. How did you happen to discover that it was there? A. Wull, the first day I

Went there, I saw thc harness on his oxen, and I know them from our stamp; but I
did not mention anything about it, because I was not prepared that day to take the
harness, and I had confidence when I would come back fromr Prince Albert the
second time, that ho would still have them, and I would get thom, and, meantime,
the police took thom from him.

By Mr. Johnstone:
Q. Do you know that your son instructed him to take care of any of your stuff ?

. I sent word to him, by my son, to take the Government cow and keep lier at his
Place if ho could.

Q. Which son was this that you sent word to ? A. My second son, but I don't
think that ho ever got that word. I think the cow was given to another man, or
the other man went and took her-his son-in law, just the same.

Q. Had you any conversation with the prisoner as to the stuff on the farm at
the time that ho told you you had botter go away? A. No, I don't remnenmber that
1 had. No, I had no conversation with regard to the stuff thon, because I thought
it Would never come to anything at all.

Q. You say the prisoner told you that ho had this stuff for you? A. He did
tell me.

Q. Did you believe him that ho intended to keep it for you? A. Well, I
believed him in this way-that if the half-breeds won the country he was so far
ahead, and that if they did not whon I came back ho would give it to me.

Q. And if you never came back you would never want it, and if you did come
back you could get it? A. Yes, that is just the way I looked at it.

JOSrPH ARCAND, sworn:-

(Through interproter, in French.)

Examined by Mr. Johnstone:
Q. He lives near Duck Lake? A. Yes.
Q. Does ho know Burston? A. Yes.
Q. Where was ho at the time of the Duck Lake fight? A. At Duck Lake.
Q. Do you know why Burston was at Duck Lake? A. He was there at the

oses at Duck Lake.
Q. Were you prosent when the houses were destroyed by fire ? A. No, he

98 ho was not there; ho was not near to it.
Q. Had Barston anything to do with, or was ho favorable to, the robellion ? A.

says ho knowed ho was against the rebellion all along.
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Q. How does ho know that? A. Because he was talking with him and had a
conversation with him.

Q. Does he know why ho was at Duck Lake, why ho countenanced, or why he
was there, apparently ? A. He was in charge of the fort, the Duck Lake store.

Q. Does ho know if Burston had a gun ? A. He never soen him with a gun.

MoIsE PARENTEAU, sworn:-

(Through interpreter, in French.)
Examined by Mr. Johnstone:

Q. Does ho know Burston ? A. Yes.
Q. Does ho remember the Duck Lake fight? A. Yes.
Q. Did ho see the prisoner at that time ? A. Yes.
Q. Was he armed ? A. No.
Q. Was ho at the fight? A. No.

By Mr. Scott :
Q. Was ho with him all day ? A. No, ho was not there with him all day.
Mr. Johnstone.-That is the defence, your Honor, but there is a question I want

to raise about the information. It is immaterial when the objection is taken. I sub.
mit the information is insufficient, as it does not give the words of the statute ; it
does not use the word " feloniously," and the want of the word I feloniously " in an
information for larceny i8 held to ho fatal. The sane rule should govern in informa.
tions for treason. It uses the word subsequently, but it does not 2ive the words when
giving the offence. It says: " within Canada compass, imagine," instead of " feloni-
ously compass, imagine," as it should be. It says afterwards: " the said felonious
compassing." It may be a clerical error in leaving it out.

Judgment reserved, and prisoner remanded till Monday next, 12th inst., 10 a.m.,
when judgment was given, discharging prisoner.

JAS. T. PARKES, Official Stenographer.

QUEEN vs. PARENTEAU AND TWENTY-FIVE OTHERS.

CANADA:
North-West Territories.

The information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city of Ham-
ilton, in the Province of Ontario, in the Dominion of Canada, chief of police, taken
the fourtb day of August, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and
eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in
and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith :

That Pierre Parenteau, Pierre Gariepie, Pierre Henry, Emmanuel Champagne,
Maxime Lepine, Albert Monkman, Joseph Delorme, Phillippe Gariepie, Joseph
Arcand, Frarçois Tourond. Daniel Parenteau, André Nolin, Alexandre Cayen, alias
Kee-too way-how, Elzéar Swain, Frederick Fiddler, Patrice Tourond, Jim Sbort,
Alexander Fisher, Baptiste Vtindal, Ignace Poitras, the elder, Ignace Poitras, the
younger, Pierre Vandal, Joseph Pilon, Baptiste Rocheleau, Moise Parenteau,
Maxime Dubois, not i egarding the duty of their allegiance, but wholly withdrawing
the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance which every true and faithful subject of
our Lady the Queen does and of right ought to bear towards our said Lady the
Queen, on the twenty-sixth day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight
hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other days, as well before as after that day,
together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said Alexander David Stewart
unknown, feloniously and wickedly did compass, imagine, invent, devise and intend
to levy war against our said Lady the Queen, within Canada, in order, by force and
constraint, to compel her to change her measures and counsels, and the said felOniOuS
compassing, imagination, invention, device and intention, then feloniously and wick-
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edly did express, utter and'declare by divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter men-
tioned, that is to say :

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring to effeot their felonious compassing, imagina.
tion, invention, device and intention aforesaid, to wit, on the twenty-sixth day of
March, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times, as well before as
after that day, at and near the locality called Batoche, in the North-West Territories
Of Canada, aforesaid, feloniously and wickedly did conspire, consult, confederate,
assemble and meet together, with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said Alex-
ander David Stewart unknown, to raise, make and levy insurrection and rebellion
agairst our said Lady the Queen, within this realm, in contempt of our said Lady
the Queen and ber laws, to the evil example of all others in like case offending
against the form ofthe statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace
of our said Lady the Queen, ber Crown and dignity.

A. D. STEWART.
Sworn before me the day and year first above

mention€:d, at the town of Regina, in the
-North-West Territbries of Canada.

HUJH RICHARDsON,

A Stipendiary Magistrate in and for the North- West Territories of Canada.

And take notice that you have the option of being tried before a stipendiary
Igistrate and a justice of the peace, with the intervention of a jury of six, or before

a stipendiary magistrate in a summary way without the intervention of a jury.
Which do you elect ?

And the said persons above charged, and each of them, thereupon elected to be
tried before the stipendiary magistrate in a summary way without the intervention
of a jury, in pursuance of sub-section 5 of section 76 of the Act 43 Victoria, chapter
26: " The North-West Territories Act, 1880," as amended by 48-49 Victoria, chapter
f1, section 6.

TUEiSDAT, 4th August, 1885.
Mr. Justice Richardson presiding.
Court opened and it was announced that Mr. Dixie Watson is appointed clerk of

th.e court, and Mr. Maclean and the other reporters who were at the laist trial, official
reporters to the court. Mr. F. R. Marceau to act as French interpreter, Mr. Peter
Wourie as Cree interpreter. These two gentlemen are now sworn as interpreters.

Mr. Justice Richardson reads the information and notice appended thereto, to
the prisoners, and such information and notice are interpreted in French and Cree
during the reading of the same to the prisoners.

All the prisoners are now asked whether they will have a trial by a jury of six,
or a summary trial before a stipendiary magistrate alone, and all answer summary
trial.

tUpon all the prisoners being asked whether they are "guilty " or " not guilty,"
they all plead " guilty " to the charge contained in the infornat!on read to them.

Clerk.-Hearken to your plea as the court records it ; you.say you are guilty of
the felony with which you stand charged.

Mr. Robinson.-The Crown do not propose to move the court for sentence to be
pased upon these prisoners at this moment. They thought it better that your Honor
Ahould have an opportunity of being informed as to the circumstances of each case,
eh particular case, and the relative guilt or innocence of each person, so that we.

'*ili be able to classify and apportion the sentences accordingly.
I may say the question whether or not the Crown are justified themselves in

ecepting the pleas which the prisoners have recorded in these cases, has occasioned
a- great deal of anxious consideration and doubt. From the evidence in our pos-
Sion we believe that the offence of treason would have been brought home to all

a erions, and with regard to those who are merpiers of what was called the
Inci1; and who took a more or less active part beyond ihat of the mere rank and,
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ile in this rebellion, we have great difficulty in coming to the conclusion that WO
were right in not prosecuting for a higher offence, but in accepting this plea.

I think in pleading guilty, as they have done, that they acknowledge their guilt,
and they express penitence for the offence of which they have been guilty, and they
have done whatever lay in their power, and taken every possible course to recom-
mend themselves to the clemency of the Crown, if it should hereafter be thought
proper to carry it to the executive in mitigation of their sentence; and I may add
that in coming to this conclusion we have been very much assisted indeed by the
exertions of Father André acting, as we understand, under the directions of the
Archbishop, in giving us every possible information about each of these prisoners,
,which he has derived from his long residence among them, and acquaintance with
them, and is interested very earnestly indeed in them-we are indebted to him very
mach for that information. It has been of great use to us in enabling us to come to
the conclusion at which we have arrived.

I can only add that it is a subject of very deep regret that thcse prisoners instead
of listening to the good advice they received from him were led away by evil counselg
as I trust they now see. There are four of these prisoners, Vith regard to whom the
Crown propose to take no proceedings, Elzéar Swain, Frederick Fidler, André Nolin
and Daniel Parenteau. With regard to these prisoners, there are so many extenuat-
ing circumstances in their cases, although they were undoubtedly implicated in this
rebellion, it is so questionable whether they acted entirely of their own free will, that
counsel for the Crown thought it right not to ask for sentence upon them at all, but
to discharge them upon their own recognizance, to appear should they be called upon
hereafter at any time.

With your Ronor's permission, my learned friend, Mr. Casgrain, will repeat in
substance, in French, what I have said to these prisoners, because we wish them w
understand, thoroughly, the course which has been taken, and my learned friend, Mr.
Maclise, will also say a few words. The prisoners understand French.

(Mr. Casgrain accordingly speaks to the same effect in French.)
Mr. Maclise.-In rising to speak on behalf of these prisoners before you, I beg to

ask your honor to remember the fact, that in your long residence in that country,
and in your presidency over the parts of that country, I think not one of these pris-
oners here has ever appeared before you upon any cri minal charge.

I had almost forgotten to say that with me, in the defence of these prisoners,
appears Mr. Carey, cf Winnipeg, and Mr. Benson, of Regina, and Mr. Pendergast, of
Winnipeg. These gentlemen, with myself, have, after a great deal of consideration,
foregone any chance of showing to the court in what circumstances these prisoners
were placed at the tine that these occurrences took place with which they are charged.
We have done this because of the very great risk that a hostile course of pleading
" not guilty " or not congenting to plead " guilty " to this charge would entail upoa
1Us.

Now, in speaking to these people about their circumastances, I am compelled to
refer to the prisoner who has already been charged, whose case was so intimatelf
connected with the others. I do so, because I cannot speak of the circumstanceo
connected with their cases without referring to it.

Now, it is well known, your Honor, to ail who have any knowledge of th at country
that these people are an honest-were up till last f all, an honest, law-abiding, church-
going people. In the evidence which was given before your Honor a few days ago---

Mr. Justice Richardson.-Interrupting you one moment, is this with a view Of
regulating the sentences on their behaif, that yo' are now addressing me ?

Mr. Maclise.-With the consent of the prosecution, yes, my Lord.
Mr. Justice Richardson.-It is aisuming that I was about to pass sentence.
Mr. Maclise.-Yes. The allegiance of these people before 1870 was an allO'

giance to a law among themselves principally. They were- buffalo hunters on the
plains. They made their own laws, and it would be necessary to consider that whe
we come to the circumstances which follow, and that I ask your Honors to remei"'
ber. Now, with regard to the grievances which they had and which have bee"
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urged in extenuation of their offences, I have practically nothing to say. I am not
here to make any sort bf political capital for any body, any person whomsoever.
'The fact, however, of a sort of non-committal course, or a course not answering, from
Some cause or other, the petitions of these people, having been adopted, gave the
prisoner, who has already been tried, a standing room when he came amongst them.
Now, with regard to his coming amongst them, it has been alleged against these
People that they sent for him. It could be proved in evidence that Louis Riel met
.Nault here, in Manitoba, in 1883, that he arranged with him, that ho and Gabriel
bumont should go about and incite the people to send for him. A subscription list
Was hurriedly gotten up, a few meetings were held before anybody in that country
knew he was being sent for. He had been sent for. Now, with regard to the object
Of the people in bringing him here, and as stated by himseolf afterwards, the osten-
bible,,nteaning of the message was to persuade Riel to come and advise them and
assist them to obtain, in a constitutional manner, their rights. Now, from the firet
Of the meetings held by Mr. ]Riel, his position towards them coming into a peaceful
Country was a repotition of the sentiment of peace-peace, peace, peace, and the other
Sentiment of union among the half-breeds. He also referred to his own claims
against the Government, indefinitely at first. That was about the middle or Tst of
July. During the month of August he held some conversations with the reverend
fathers of that district, and ho stated that his object in coming to the country was
either money or revenge. It is a great pity that this could not have been given in
evidence. 1 regret exceedingly that this matter did not come out on the other trial.

Now, your Honors, I may state I suppose that in the former rebellion nothing
'Was said-there was no religious aspect in the movement at all, that after this meet-
"'g with the priests, after ho found ho couldn't get them with him, and after he had
threatened to trample them under his foot, thon, and not till thon, began his religious
Inovement. He thon began to show the letter from Bishop Bourget, which is refer-
red to. He thon began to go about from house to house praying, and thon ho began
to make them believe that he was a prophet. He interpreted the simple letter of
Bishop Bourget, a more friendly letter, as a letter giving him a divine mission.

Now, about the month of December, Father André had heard, as it is given in
Ovidence, certain matters with regard to Mr. Riel, that ho had been passing tobacco
alnong the Crees And Sioux. That is not in evidence, but ho sent for Mr. Riel, and
8ked him what he wanted. He told him ho should leave the country, that he was a
firebrand among the people. Mr. Riel stated that he was willing to leave the country
for 82,000. It is in evidence that Father Andre said to him, but you have stirred
"P the people, and how will they be after you leave? It is in evidence now that ho
sftated with some qualification that he himself was the half-breed question.

Now, during this time ho had made the people believe that compound interest to
*which they should be entitled, as ho argued it, on the amount they should have recoiv-
ed in 1870, would make them independently rich, and also his owa claim would make

iUm independently rich; that it would have increased from $35,000 to 8150,000.
le also, shortly atter this, began making them believe that he was persecuted by the

Police, and thereby secured their sympathy. fie did this by referring to one or two
Very slight circumstances which might mean anything. Now, it is a matter well

own among all who know these hatf-breed people that they always trust and follow
the educated amongst them. The prisoner, who has already been tried, knowing
til--and I may say that I never saw a man in my life who so thoroughly appreci-
atod their character and who was so much master of his own fellow people. Well,
When ho took hold of this course, in the religious movement, ho knew that he was
comapelled to take it before ho could accomplish anything with them. Ie knew
that they had been a religious people, that they had strictly attended to all the
Ordnances of the church, and he knew that ho could not have complote control of
th ema unless he took this course. In the opinion of counsel for these prisoners, it is
the faOt that this religlous movement was entirely a matter of design.

Now, ovidence is already, in the other trial, with regard to his sending mes-
14gers out armonget the people to tell them to ask him to stay-and further, on a
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certain matter, certain serlous matters occurred by which these people were brought
in arms. That is also a !natter which I regret was not brought in evidence. The
feast of St. Joseph is a very important feast with the French half-breeds.
St, Joseph is the patron saint of the French half-breeds. The baptism
was set for that day for a person named Jackson. The French half-breeds
always make that festival, which occurred last year, I think, the 19th March, always
make that a very important festival. The rank and file of the people were requested
simply to bring their guns and fire a volley. That was the first of it. On the 17th
March Mr. Riel went to the upper settlement, or southern settlement, south of
Batoche. Gabriel Dumont went to the north of Batoche. All the people were told
to gather at Batoche, to go from there to the church of St. Laurent, and there attend
the baptism. They were to take their guns with -them and fire a volley. They
were, however, to remain at Batoche until all had gathered together. They met at
Batoche. The rumor was there circulated that 500 police were just coming down
upon them. They so believed their leaders, they had so believed their leader that
in the way that matter came, the way that matter was understood by them, and the
way lie explained it to them; and that was simply and solely the way these people
came together armed. Captains were appointed at once to send out to bring all the
rest of the people that hadn't come to the little church at St. Laurent at all. The
rebellion was started in that way. Gabriel Dumont called out from among the
people " Are you willing that so-and-so should be a councillor? " le calls out the
names of the first men there, Pierre Parenteau, and in his absence, Emmanuel Cham-
pagne, and the first thing was the trial of Nolin and another two of their own friends.
Botb Riel and Dumont were urging killing without trial. When these mon refused
to.act in order to save their own friends, they committed what was called an act of
high treason. What crime was there in the hearts of those people at that time
gathered together in that way ? What crime of intention, your Honors ? They
were told further that not only were there these police coming, but there were 100
police coming from Prince Albert who were to tear down the church and prevent the
baptism.

We have pleaded " guilty," your Honors, to these charges. We say nothing
against that whatever. We say that these men have been advised, have considered
rather that it was their best course to plead guilty to this charge, and throw themselvós
on the mercy of the Crown, but at the same time I- could not see my way clear, and
the other counsel could not see their way clear, not to present before the court all
that we were allowed in any way to do. Now, some other untoward circumstancpa
occurred. A proclamation was issued. The first man, notable among the half-breeds,
went to Prince Albert and was arrested, and when the news of this reached St.
Laurent, a good many who would have left and fled to Carlton or Prince Albert were
deterred. The news when it arrived there was, that these men were being tortured
with all kinds of torture. The prisoner who has already been tried did not fail to Ue
that circumstance to his utmost benefit. lo, right to the last, right within a few days
before the taking of Batoche, referred to the treatment Nolin had received and totd
them that he was either dead or the next thing to it, and that they would all be
treated in the same manner, that unmentionable atrocities would be perpetrated upon
them, and there never was, your Honors, such a surprised lot of people in the world
as when their wounded were taken to Saskatoon to the Government hospital there.
They thought those wounded, as well as themselves, would not receive any fair treat-
ment whatever. Now, as to the circumstances that occurred during the rebellion,
when Mr. Riel sent for Father Fourmond, and spoke to Father Fourmond with regard
to his sending for him, Father Fourmond said i have nothing to do with ycur rebel-
lion. Mr. Riel turned about and addressed all the people and stated that th0
matter was not a rebellion at all. He had made those people believe-he did his best,
rather, to make them believe they had taken a course which they had been driven
into.

Now, with regard to the circumstances of each case, we thoroughly understanc,
that having thrown ourselves on the mercy of the Crown, that we have the privileger
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il fact it is our duty, as counsel for the defenco, to do what we can to place before
Yoar Honors what your Honors wili accept in the matter of evidence, and as the
C'unsel for the Crown has not pressed for sentence in these cases, we will, as soon
as possible, take what steps we considor best. We propose to get evidence
from the Crown witnesses and from what other credible witnesses there are here, as
to what circumstances each person was in and how he came to take part in this

t(natter. We hope your Honors will give as much weight as possible, as much weight
as you consider the evidence entitled to, and you will give each of these men as light
a sentence as possible and as compatible with public justice.

Mr. Carey.-Might I ask your Honors the time when these sentences will be
given ?

Mr. Justice Richardson.-Suppose the Crown moved for sentence to-day, I could
lnot proceed-I should not feel justified in proceeding without making some little
enquiry.

Mr. Carey.-I am most anxious that the court should take time, because I think
We have everything to gain by it. As I understand, your Honors will allow us to
Put in evidence in mitigation. 1 understood that from Mr. Maclise -

Mr. Justice Richardson.-I have said nothing, nor have I indicated anything
which would lead Mr. Maclise to suppose anything of that kind.

Mr. Carey.-We took your Honor's silence to be favorable.
Mr. Osler.-I might say that we do not desire to move for sentence until all the

'Cases of the same class are disposed of. There are others not disposed of, and we
think that probably towards the end of next week, Friday or Saturday of next week,
the 14th or 15th, we will be ready. There are cases where the people have not made
the offers that your clients have. We have to give ton days' notice of trial to those
Parties for treason, and we don't desire to dispose ofone without disposing of all.

Mr. Carey.-We understood this was a delivery.
Mr. Osler.-So it is as to these mon.
Mr. Carey.-We understood there were no more prisoners.
Mr. Osler.-Thore are two others that have not doue as these have done. There

are seven half-breeds who are not in this plea.
Mr. Carey.-Of course we understand we will be allowed to put in any evidene

i it igation. The course is not unasual.
Mr. Justice Richardson.-I shall be very glad to consider anything I eau legiti-

Tnately. If it is legitimate, I will follow it, if the authorities go the other way, I will
74ot.

Mr. Osler.-We concede it is the ordinary practice to bring suoh facts before the
Court in mitigation of sentence as are thought proper.

Mr. Carey.-I promised to see to the fate of these mon to the last, and although
!aY harned friends, Mr. Maclise and Mr. Benson, have been attending to these men's
eterests for some time, and done a great deal of service, we having been sent here
sPecially to aid and assist thom, we don't feel justified in leaving thom until we see
What their fate is.

Mr. Justice Richardson.-If this has to be delayed I will see that you have notice
ao as to be here.

Mr. Osler.-We shall say Friday week, unless yon know to the contrary.
Mr. Justice Richardson.-Did I understand, Mr. Osler, that the four you mon-

tioued could be discharged at once ?
Mr. Robinson.-Yes.
The four prisoners mentioned heretofore as being discharged on their own

reognizances, here enter into recognizances of $400 each, to appear when called upon
sentence.

FIDAY, 14th August, 1885.
Clerk opens the court at 4.45 p. m.
Mr. Robinson.'-I move for the judgment of the court upon the following prison-

'ers convicted of felony and treason-felony: -Joseph Arcand, Emmanuel Champagne,
.&tOXander Cayen, Joseph Delorme, Maxime Uubois, Alexander Fisher, Philippe
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Gariopie, Pierre Gariepie, Pierre Henry, Maxime Lepine, Albert Monkman, Moïse
Ouellette, Philip Garnot, Alexis Labombarde, Ignace Poitras, sen., Ignace Poitras,
jun., Pierre Parenteau, Moïse Parenteau, Joseph Pilon, Baptiste Rocheleau, Jim
Short, François Tourond, Patrice Tourond, Baptiste Vandal, Pierre Vandal.

(Joseph Delorme says ho does not understand English or Cree. All the others
understand Cree.)

Mr. Peter Hourie is sworn as interpreter in Cree.
Mr. Justice Richardson.--(Here repeats the names of the prisoners as above.)

You twenty-five men stand convicted of a very serious offence-(interpreted to the
prisoners in Cree)-the offence of having taken up arms against the Government of
the country, which is termed treason-felony. You have all been convicted upon your
own confession of guilt, freely made when you had the opportunity of demanding a trial
by jury, when the facts upon which you were charged would have been brought out
before the court.

Since your trials and convictions, enquiries have been made. Now, what have
you or any of you to say why I should not pass sentence upon you ?

One prisoner says it is hard when we were misled.
Mr. Clarke (for the prisoners.)-lf your Lordships will permit me to say some-

thing, not why sentence should not be passed, but why the sentence that is about to be
passed should be made as merciful as possible,Jl have a few words to say on behalf
of these prisoners-these unfortunate men.

That the soil of Canada lias been bathed in the blood of some of her best sons,
there is no doubt; that citizens of Canada can be found, from one end of the country
to the other, who does not deeply regret it cannot bo doubted; but the blood has
been spilled, the new-made graves are still there, the grass has not begun to grow
over them, the hearts that were lacerated are still bleeding, and at such a time as-
this it is hard indeed if the poor, miserable, unprotected creatures do not find even
one friend to say a word for them. Be assured, my Lords, that in speaking for
them, I speak not as one who sympathizes with the rebellion, under any circum-
stances, except when freemen stand up to defend their rights against those who dare
oppress them (hear, hear); but in this, my Lords, think, 1 beg of you, what position
these unfortunate mon held. They are the creatures of circumstances, ignorant and
unsophisticated as the very prairies over which they have roamed since their earliest
days, some of thom so long that they are tottering on the brink of the grave, a grave
that must ere long close over them; still we find them here to-day to be sentenced
for a crime little less than that of death.

Now, let us consider in a few words what led these men to the position they-
hold to-day. Unfortunately, the history of what led ther here has its inception, not
on the Saskatchewan, but on the banks of the Red River, and we might go probably
a little further, and say that some of the causes that brought them here were
not to be found on the banks of the Red River or of the Saskatchewan,
but that you had to go and find them on the banks of the Ottawa River,
and from thence they were transported here. I don't intend, it is far from my
intention, to make anything that can be called a political address, I scorn to
do it at such a time, and under such circumstances as these; but in stating that there
were faults committed, that there was negligence on the part of thoe who had the
public interests in their control, there could be no doubt, aud I am not saying too
much. Filteen years have passed, fifteen long years, and men who were in the prime
of lite in '70, are now grey and old, and stale claims that were recognized by ler
Majesty's advisers at that period, they are still-were at least up to the time of this
unfortunate rebellion-unsettled. Under those circumstances, it was not difficult to
find a man who had corne forward in '70, to come forward again. The natural leaders
of these mon neglected them. Those who should have taught them what thir duties
were, these men were not found there. They were left entirely to the control of the
poor priests who had been spending their lives in their midst, sacrificing themselves,
for the benefit and the advantage of the human race, in this North-West country..
They alone were their directors, and when they required any assistance elsewhere,
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they had no representatives in Parliament, robody to speak for them, nobody to
advance their interests, nobody to lay their claims before the Throne that they
bimight ho heard-their voices heard-when asking those rights that were secured to(
thra by an Act of Parliament, and when, during the last Session of the Parliament
Of Canada, when the blue.book of the Interior Department is produced, when we find
it advanced and stated, as a solemn fact to go ont to the world, that a Mr. Pearce had
been appointed, that he had gone carefijlly through every country where this rebel-
lion has raged since, and that he had enquired into every particular case and every
claim of the old settlers, with the result that all these claims have been finally and
8atisfactorily settled, I think it is time to understand that however the Government
and the Parliament may have been deceived, that these people could not be deceived.
It turned out afterwards, before the ink was scarcely dry with which that report was
Printed, a contradiction went back, I grieve heartily to say it, in the life-blood of
those who were dying at the point of the rifle, of the men who considered themselves
Outraged, and were led on to that opin.ion by a crafty, cunning, conscienceless scoun-
drel whom we all hope-I don't think there is one in Canada probably, who, if they
'were to speak the truth-whom we all hope to see punished for the crime that ho
haS committed, and to suffer the extreme penalty of the law. This man then finds.
his opportunity, ho was supposed to be the natural leader of these people, and they
had no other; they had no representative in Parliament, they had no Local Logis-
lature of their own, they had to appeal to him whom they supposed could boof assis-
tance.to them, and, unfortunately for themselves, they went to Montana to invite hin
tO come from Montana, and they brought Louis Riel bore. Louis Riel very nearly
succeeded in bringing them to the gallows; but had there been no complainte, had
there been no grievances, there would have been no place for Louis Riel in this
coOuntry. Had there been no grievances on the part of these half-breeds, had they
not had claims that were entitled to be recognized, Louis Riel would have been left
in Montana, or to remain in prison, where ho had been thrown for creating a disturbance
alnong half-breeds, inducing thein, by false oaths; trying to make them, by falso
Oaths, stuff a ballot box. Hie would have been left there to this day. Unfortunately,
on account of those very grievances, Louis Riel was brought by these people,
i'considerately perhaps, but they believed they could confide in that man ;
they had no idea ho was going to lead them on to rebellion. What they required was
Peaceful agitation by which to secure the attention of Parliament and the authorities,
and by that means to secure the granting of their rights. This peaceful agitation
Went on for some time. Public meetings were called, and at these public meetings
thee grievances were ventilated. Well, will anybody tell me it is a crime against
the law to carry on a peaceful agitation ? Will anybody tell me that when they
wrote that letter to Montana, that there was anything illegal in it? Will anybody
pretend that when even they got together, and by their oath bound themselves to
stick to one another so as to obtain by pesceful me ans the recognition and granting of
rights, that they were guilty of any crime against the law? 1 hurl the insinuation
back in the lace of those who make it, and I tell them that it is the birthright of
every British subject to agitate in public meetings, to petition to the Crown and to
Obtain the rights that ho ig entitled to if ho possibly can, by those constitutional

enOans. I have no hesitation in saying that upto that time these people were acting
a legal and a constitutional manner, and if they feul away from those constitutionial

eIoans that they had been employing, we will see who was to blame for it.
Now, your lordships will understand perfectly that in dealing with men like

esO, we are not dealiug with people who have received an education. We are not
deaing with cultivated intellect. We are dealing with wild men of the territories,

S tpo peak, those who know what they are informed by their leaders who were in the,
babit from early days, when their forefathers came to this country, to follow a leader
'on the territories, to follow a leader in the buffalo hunt, to follow a leader wherever
theY Went. They went in parties, and each party had a leader, and they looked up

that leader as their hope and as their director. In the latter years they followedb
1 aders that were appointed to them by the various churches and missions. They had
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the Episcopal leader and the Catholie leader; they had the Presbyterian leader and the
Methodist leader, and they looked up to those leaders and they folio wed them with the
vtmost simplicity, and in the utmost confidence that they could not do wrong so long
a these men taught them that they were doing right ; but there came au evil spirit
among them, and when Louis Riel discovered that he could not win the ministers
over to his side, that he could not win over to his objects the ministers oi the gospel
-and the priests of the country, he then established a new religion of his own.

My Lords, we have placed before you in as comprebensive a manner as possible,
and as fully as we are enabled to do under the circumstances, we have placed before
you the history of that new religion by which the minds and the souls of those unfor-
tanate mon are grasped. We have placed before you depositions of such people as
<Charles Nolin, the deposition of Father André and Father Cochin, and wo have also
-the depositions of various others, showing exactly what this man pretended. He
announced himself a prophet, as being a second Moses sent to redeem his people from
tie worse than Egyptian bondage. He prayed for them in the open air, extending
his hands and his arms in the form of a cross, and sometimes looking towards heaven
and shouting for assistance from the Ail Wise; and, at other times, ho prostrated
bimself at his fulil length on his face on the ground and prayed with all the
eppearance of the utmost devotion. He told thom of the visions that ho had
in the night. fie told them of the visions ho had from angels. H1e told them
of conversations ho had with the Holy Ghost, and ho made thora believe in fact,
that ho had a divine mission and that that divine mission was not only to save
the half-breads of North America, but that that mission was greater still, that whea
t he whole world should be in achaosof revolution and alm9st annihilation, that he was
the man appointed by the Almighty, hundreds of years ago, as had been foretold, ho said
lrom reading a book, pretending to be the pruphesies of a great Irish saint-Saint
Bridget, of whom there are a great many living now-a-days I believe, that she had
iortold 200 years ago that ho, Louis Ri-l, being descended from St. Louis, that he
was the man who was to save the world before the dissolution.

Now, it is hard to believe that mon of sense, mon who have arrived at years of
<liscretion, that they could bolieve sach nonsense, such twaddle. It is almost incred-
ible that here, that these wise mon from the North-West Territories could be made
-to believe the sophistry and the trickery of such a juggler as Louis Riel; but just lot
-us look at where some men that were wiser than they have been 'ed. Look across
-the line. Look into the United States. Go to the city of Utah; go where the mis-
eionaries of Joe Smith are sent from, to ail over faevope, and soe whole brigades,
iwhole congrega.tions of Christian mon and women that they bring at their bock and
mod on pretented revelations of saints and saint worship that they perform, and the
atrocities that are performed thore in the name of religion and in the name of God,
and thon say is it any wonder that these poor creatures could be misled as they have
been ? Go to England, to the middle of one of the grandest timos of her advance-
iment in science or in literature. Go thore and find a whole crowd, thousands in
inumber, following at the bock and nod of such an extraordinary creatnre as Jehovah
southscate, and Wonder then how it is that th 'se wise men of the territories could bd
misled by such a man as Louis Riel, one who had been adapted perfectly to become
their leader.

No, my Lords, I think it is no wonder they were misled.
Is being misled a reason why they should not suffer for their crime? My Lords,

I don't pretend it is, but I do pretend that so soon as you have the proof before you
that you are satisfied that these men were led through their conscience, that they
were led through their intellect, weak as it is, by the superior cunning of a man who
had, no doubt, been nursing this idea for years, thon you have the best possible reb-
fon for believing that they did not commit these crimes with any intention such as
animates, as a general thing, those who are led into revolution and who will kilt their
lellow man for a selfish purpose.

My Lords, yon have the evidence before you of that unfortunate widow, Mrs.
Tourond, with ber seven sons. If anything more extraordinary can possibly be cou-
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ived I should like to hear of it, for I have never read of anything more extraor-
Mary. Seven as fine young mon as could be found in British North America,

either white or half-breed, peaceable, honest, sober, hard.working-this man Riel was
etermined, if possible, to get hold of them. He tried every means in his power.

eoit they would not come to him or with him under any circumstances, and thon
the trickster had recourse to the conscience of their mother, and to lier superstition.

e goes there day after day. He prays with her, ho prays for her. He enacta
PParently all the conduct of a sairit in the agony of prayer and of devotion, and thon
O comes to lier day after day, and at last tells lier, announces the fact that ho had a

grand vi.sion of their being visited by the Holy Ghost and the Virgin Mary, and
What did he say? Seven most brilliant stars of extraordinary brilliancy, he said.

a&id be, you are the proud mother of these seven stars, and they shine with a lustre
ud brilliancy to all future time. With their assistance, with the divine mission that

1 have to accomplish, they will assist us in carrving out this great reform; and the
oor mother, led by her conscience, led by her superstition, begged and prayed of
er Sons to go forth and fight under the banner of heaven, as sho supposed for the

ýeht. And to day whero is that mother? Where are those sons ? The weeping
''dow, almost without cheer, now sits somewhere, probably under the shade of a
'ree, if she can find one on the banks of the Saskatchewan, within sight of the graves

of her manly young sons, with the grave of a third still almost unfilled, who
ed at the shock of the death of his two brothers who were killed in the rifle pits at
atOche, a fourth who is a cripple for lifo, and the other two, my Lords, stand before
it here awaiting your sentence, and in the name of everything that is human, in
Siauie of every principle of right, if it is possible for you, I ask you, my Lords,t be merciful to that unfortunate mother, be mercifut to the unfortunate sons andOeiad them home to ber as a consolation in ber faiting years.

lNow, it was by such means as this that these unfortunate men were led on to
what they did. You have the proof, my Lords, before you, as well as we could

it, not having a trial, You have the proof that when these mon, even thSoe
were called the most Uloodthirsty, the most dangerous, had they been

ting on the other side they would have been considered the bravest. sIt Makes
the difference on what side you tre fighting. If you are fightingon the side
law and order, you are a hero. If you are fighting on the side of those opposed to

W and order, you are a ruffian and brigand.
Weil, you have proof that even in times of the greatest excitement, at the time

en it might be supposed that everything around them was colored in blood, you
kevethe proof that the prisoners who were in their char-ge, the prisoners who were
ILPt there by thir, were treatod with French coulrtesy as a general thing. They

ad the best that they themselves had to eut, and there wore only one or two amongst
e whole 0f those half-wild mon who offored any indignity to those prisonera whilethey Wore in their charge. This, my Lords, should tell on their behalf, and I have
doubt Ihat Lt will.

ta Now, with reference to the degroes of culpability; some of these men have cor-t rily been more guilty than the others. Some of those men are more intelligent
thal the others. Some of them are so little removed from the Indians that in renlity

SCrown was as much bound to sond them defonders as they were to send defender
O the Indians. I think, my Lords, that when you consider this. and consider that

ih a.n object of misery and passion as that creature yonder with the one eye, wiith
) air and face indicating one degree above an ordinary born idiot, that something

eercy, if not compassion, will be bestowed upon sucb creatures as that
th bomnbarde). Look at some of them tottering on the brink of the grave, somi of

Weak from their former exposure, weak from the weight of years, trembling
r bofore you, not understanding a word that is said, left at the mercy of the court,

tri knowing even what they are charged with, the interpreter not being able ft
slate into their language the words of the law. They are here, and they 'tand
at Woefuil position-
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Mr. Justice iRicbardson.-Did I understand you to say that these mon did not-
understand what they were charged with ?

Mr, Clarke.-My Lord, I state that tbey have no comprehensive understanding
of the last words that your Lordship addressed to tbem. It is a well known fact
that in the Cree language you cannot interpret sucb a word as treason-felony. Far
be it from me to insinuate for one moment that anytbing like injustice would be
done to these men bore. I have too much confidecce in the integrity of the judgeg
and the justice of a British court to even insinuate a thing of the sort. All that I do
want, and all that I stand bore for, is to beg for mercy for these prisoners. They
admit their crime. They can do no more, and at the same time that they admit
their crime some of them have admitted a crime which they could not have been
punished for, that they could not hava been found guilty of.

You are aware that this proclamation was issued. It was issued by those in-
authority. The proclamation bears no date. It does not say if they come forwarcd
and present themselves voluntarily and surrender at Carlton or at Prince Albert that
they will ho protected. It does not say if they come forward before any particular
day or after any particular day. The proclamation bears no date. It is in full force
to-day, as full as the first day it was issued, whatever day that was, and with a confi-
dence that bas been inspired in their bearts by that kind of ample, fair and manly
justice that bas been done to them heretofore in the North-West Territories, they did
come forward and by the advice of their priests they surrendered themeelves, and at
the same time two dozen or more of these men stand here to-day. But there is pro-
bably one dozen of them almost entirely innocent, wbereas at least 40 or 50 of the
worst men that took part in the whole rebellion are now at liberty around the banke
of the river at Batoche and elsewhere, and have not been arrested at all. I took the
liberty of explaining why it was that this group of men were arrested. One of the
Crown witnesses handed a list of the leaders and the worst men in the rebellion to
General Middleton. General Middleton was to cause the arrest of those men and have
them brought as prisoners to Regina or whatever point ordered by the Government,
but from the fact that ho had so much to do, that bis time was so occupied, that hie
mind was so pre-cccupied, he lost that list of those who were to have been arrested
and. brought these, and the result was that when the steamer arrived it had to leave
almost immediately, and he came to the conclusion along with ibis sane Crown
witness-and your Lordships have that evidence before you-that they would take A
certain number of these people who had surrendered and bring them bore, as the
Crown might require evidence before they would be able to convict the leaders of the
rebellion who were to be put on trial. This accounts for a number of these men
being bore to-day who should not have been hore, and some of whom I expect, 1
trust, to hear your Lordships discharge without any sentence within a few minutes-
For the others, those that have taken a part, I ask your Lordisbips to consider 01,
their behalf and in their favor the good acts that they bave performed. Let not the
-whole of their lives be blasted because they were guilty of one act which they should
mot have been guilty of. Let them bave a fair chance. For that which they did in
the interest of mercy and of manhood, let them have all the advantage that theY
ought to bave as a recompense for doing that. Let that young TouroDd-who, who
Louis Riel ordered the prisoners to be taken ard handed over to the Indians that
they might bc massacred before their eyes-let that manly young fellow, whose thro
brothers lie dead and who has one crippled for life, who came foi ward before Louie
]Riel and said : Before you kill one of these prisoners you must, kilt me-surely, mY
Lords, such an act as that you will not let be forgotten when it comes to the time to
sentence ibat man for whatever ho may have been guilty of against the law.

And the others; those who plead so hard for the lndians, those whose conduct
imay appear in a very dark ligbt, that man Monkman, for instance, why should he
mot obtain all the consideration that cans possibly be bestowed on his case, in hie
favor, when you consider how muchli he did do as well as how much ho did not do.
When you contsider that but.for bim the English half-breeds would probably have
joined into this rebellion or revolution, and that a great deal more bloodshed woolà
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ve been the consequence, and a great deal more expense and disaster to the coun-
try. It must be remembered that when he was sent there-you have the evidence-
bt while speaking to the English half-breeds ho said, " I am sent to induce yon t>,

J in with Riel; now I advise you not to do anything of the sort; go home and
a"ve nothing to do with Louis Riel or with this revolution." You have proof before

YOu of many other acts of kindness and many other manly acts performed by this
an Monkman, and let it not be forgotten, my Lords, on his behalf, that the name of

'konkman " should be remembered with a good deal of gratitide if not with respect
a this North-West Territory. At the darkest days of the revolution of 1870, when

Ian, who is now a Senator of the Dominion, when his lite was trembling in the.
alance, it was the father of thie boy who risked his life, and risked it a dozen times

,o that ho might save the life of John Christian Schultz after ho had been
rKitenced to death by this sane Louis Riel, and what the father did for the country,

ask your Lordships not to forget when yon are considering the sentence of the son.
My Lords, there is another thing that I beg to draw your attention to. Through,

this revolution, through all the bloodshed and all the turmoil that took place, let.
be remembered that up to the present moment, not the approach to an insult waa

fered to a woman. I don't know if in any other country on the face of the earth
"h a thing could be said, that a revolution where Indians and whites and half breeda

eere mixed up together, there was not an insuit offored to any one woman during
whole course of it. That speaks with a thousand tongues in favor of these

on, and it shows that while they were desperate, while they fought like lions and
gers, that still the man was in them, the hearts of mon, and women were sacred

rn touch or from injury. Let that not be forgotten in their favor.
th. My Lords, while I speak to you I am aware that it may appear to your Lord-

Ps, who are so thoroughly conversant with everything connected with this rebel-'DI, that I am simply repeating that which you know and have heard before, yet
tuere are others outside of this court that have not heard. These people bave been

de to believe-they have been led to believe by Louis Riel and others like him-
h en they came before a court of justice there was no justice for them and.

body to speak for them, that they would meet with nothing but the most doter-
1 ed punishment, that death was their portion. Now, let them understand, and

ugh them let all the half-breeds of this country understand, that when a half-
ded comes before a British court ho will find a British advocate to stand up and to»

efOnd his rights, to defend his interests, to defond his life with as much energy, with.
e 'auCh vigor and with as much determination as ho would that of any white mani
>ho is admittedly under the shadow of Her Majesty's protection.
4 Tbis is one reason why my learned friends here who are in the case with me
se ed that something tshould be said on behalf of these mon when they came to be

"tenaced.
t My Lords, I am satified that in giving them a light sentence, the majesty of

e law will be thoroughly vindicated. If sentencing the- youngest of then for life
dit bring back any one of those who lost their lives during the late rebellion to

>) I would be the last to say rot to send them for life; but will sending them to a}IiteOntiary for a long ternm of years-will that bring back one life that bas been
t? Will it sootbe or comfort or console one heart that has been broken by thisa

rwltunate rebellion? Will it dry the tears of a mother who bas lost her son?
it recompense the heart of the widow who has lost her husband ? Will it bring.

e &Gay of those things that have been lest, to punish these men ? Is it not in the
ytheart and soul and substance of the law that justice, and not vengeance, is the

th oIrn upon whicb, or the foundation upon which, the law is constructed ? Let
Ps priLciple not be departed from. It may be said some of these men are very

e bocause they did not go to the gallows; they only go to the penitentiary. The
titentiary, my Lords, what is it ? A living tomb, a half-way louse, a compromise
th *en life and death, a compromise such as no brave man would accept if ho had.

oth oice between life and death. It is a place where a man is immured from the
'*World. It is a place where doors are locked, and no hearts feel and no hearta
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throb except that of misery; misery, treble the misery, without locked doors. TI
seasons may come around in their annual course, the sun may shine brightly,.a0 d
birds may sing, but to him all is gloom-one day so like another, that when death
omes it only seems like another night.

My Lords, consider this, and consider that these unfortunate men have not even
that which may comfort others when they are sent to a penitentiary. They cannoe
either read or write. They have not the means of amusement. There, mind must
brood on mind, until soul eats soul and the man becomes either a maniac or a
corpse.

I ask you, my Lords, I ask you in the interests of humanity; I ask you in the
interests of these unfortunate people, and of their unfortunate families--over 150
children are represented here, their fathers being before you awaiting their sentence;
their bread-winners are now in your hands, and you are to determine what becomes
of ther-f ask you to send as many of them home as you can in mercy, so that thel
rmay be able to make a living for their little ones, that they may not become a charge
upon the country or waifs on the prairies, and that their lives hereafter may becole
a curse to the people and to the Government of this country.

My Lords, I will not detain you any longer. We have read-and I thank y0 ,
and thank you most sincerely, you gentlemen representing the Crown, for the atte0-
tion with which we were listened to in producing this immense volume of evidencl,
and which we went over carefully to-day and yesterday, on behalf of these prisonero;
but I would say to my learned friends representing the Crown, two gentlemen who
reflect credit and honor on the profession where they come from-I ask them to Pt
in a soit word on the side of mercy for these prisoners, and that if they can in sel
way influence your Lordships in your verdict, I ask them to do it on the side of merY
rather than on the side of revenge, which is not the intention nor the object of thio
law, the inflicting of punishment.

Mr. Robinson.-I would only ask to be permitted to say that as my learneD
friend has said, we have gone very carefully over, both with your lordship and hitai
the case of each prisoner, and we have stated as fully and fairly as we can, everythil,
that tells in their favor as well as against them, and your Honors are perfectly W0

aware, revenge, as it is expressed, is the last thing on earth that the Crown conceived
desired or thought of.

Mr. Justice Richardson .- (Interpreted in Cree to the prisoners.) If Y0
twenty.five men had not been defended on your trial you certainly have had t'he b6s
advocate, as good an advocate in your favor towards merciful consideration in y$ t

case, as I think could be produced.
You have been convicted, as I said before, of the second most serious offence that

belongs to the criminal calendar. And from what has come under the notice of rd
brother MacLeod, who has kindly come down to assist me in the arduous duty thIth
I had to perform, what has come under our notice, I say, it seems but too plain tht
the representatives of the Crown might have charged you with the higher offence
treason, If they had done so there would have beern no alternative but a trial b
jury, and if you had been convictod, there would have been no alternative for
sittinig here but to say to everyone they should be hanged.

You have been charged with the lesser effence of taking up arins and fightin
Her Majesty's troops, and while my brother MacLood and myself are relieved frO
passing the groat sentence of death upon you, we have stli a very arduous task befo
us, and a terrible one at that. We have listened patiently to what your counsel
àddresaed to us. We have read and examined the papers he has produced to us.
have considered thom as carefully as we could consider them, and throughout
whole of our considerations, not one word of pressure has been brought upon 1s
the representativos of the Crown, to dictate or to rogulate or to press for extra pa
ishment upon you.

The counsel who has addressed us just now in your behalf has alluded to
position you. stand in with regard to those dependent upon yoa IHIe fias mentibi
to us the losses that have ocourred in life, the lives that have been takea thero
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the lumbers of widows and orphans there are, and it is very proper that he shoul
ave done so, quite proper that he should bave done so, but while doing Fo and while

Qonsidering that, as would be our duty, while considering that, we have another duty
to Perform. Are there no other widows and orphan children in Canada whose pre-
8ent position is due to your wrongful act? While looking at one side whicb woult
' Your interest and the interest of your friends, we have to look surely to the other
bide.

The law defines what is a crime and defines also the limit of punishment for
'iolating that law, for committing that crime; and the object of punishing for com-
Xitting a crime is not only to make you and those about you feel for what you have
done, and feel keenly, but to deter others from following your evil example.

Now, in your cases the law fixes the punishment at life or less than life, impri-
Boument for life or less than life. What the penitentiary may be, what its rules may
be, andwhat horrors it might induce, we have nothing to do with. * The law of the
land fixes that, as it tells the punishment for certain offenders.

Your cases have received the best consideration, the most serious consideration
*e could give them, and using the best discretion which we could give to them and
Which could be given to tbem, we have arrived at certain conclusions. And we have
been led to classify you, and while claasifying, we have in no instance gone to the
eetreme limit of the law, and while exercising the discretion which the law imposes
UPOn the court, it is but right that I should say that it lies still with the Crown, it
lies still with the Queen's representative to vary that, to lighten that sentence. In
the classification we have made, the greatest difficulty which has beset us bas been how
tO dispose cf an old man, one of you, Pierre Parenteau, whose age is given as 72,
1.d giving to his case every consideration that we could, every reasonable consider-
Ation we cannot conclude, old as he may be, to relieve him from the foremost list.
&iy interference with that must rest, of course, with Her Majesty's representative,
'*ith the Crown.

The sentence of the court upon Philip Gariepie, Alexander Cayen, Pierre Henri,
14xime Lepine, Pierre Parenteau, James Short, Baptiste Vandal, Pierre Vandal,
Albert Monkman, Philip Garnot, and Maxime Dubois, the sentence upon you, and
ea4ch of you, is that yon be confined in the penitentiary of Manitoba for a period of
%6Ven years.

Alexander Fisher, Pierre Gariepie, Moïse Ouellette, the sentence of the court upon
Yon is that you be confined in the penitentiary of Manitoba for the period of three,
Years each.

Joseph Arcand, Moïse Parenteau, Ignace Poitras the elder, Ignace Poitras the
f'ounger, the sentence of the court upon eaoh of you is that you be imprisoned in tho
tornmon gaol, at Regina, for the perio4 of one year each, with hard labor.

-Emmanuel Champagne, Joseph Pilon, Baptiste Rocheleau, François Tourond,
trice Tourond, Alexis Labombarde, Joseph Delorme, upon each of you no sen-

teuce will be passed. You will be discharged to-day upon your own recognizance to
apear for sentence when called upon, if the Crown should see fit to require you.

etave Regnier also discharged on his own recognizance.

THE QUEEN v8. JOSEPH ARDAND, ET AL.

Orth-West Territories,'
To wit: 

I,Alexis André, of Prince Albert, Priest, Superior of the Catholie Mission of
eÂkrton, being duly sworn, d'epose and say :-

1. I bave lived twenty-five years among the balf-breeds in Dakota and Manitoba,
a fifteen years among them at that part of the Saskatchewan where the late rebel-

broke out. I personally know almost every one of the half-breeds, and an
Oghly well aware. of the various ways and means by which Louis Riel secured
aïdhesion of these people. 381
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2. I most solemnly declare from my own personal knowledge that with the exoP'
tion of Gabriel Du mont, Napoléon Neault and Damase Carrière, now deceased, not 0110
of the other balf-breeds had the least idea or suspicion that there was any pro babilitf
or dange3r of rebellion, until they were so completely involved in the toils of Riol
and he had led them on until they were so compromised, that there was no escape
for them. On the one side were most glowing promises of peace and plenty for
them if they would follow him as their leader ; on the other hand'they were made
to religiously believe that they had no mercy to expect at the hands of the soldiers,
police, or from the Government of Canada; if taken prisoners or wounded, they were
told nothing but death with unpitying torture awaited them at the hands of the
soldiers and police, and their wives, daughters and sisters would be dishonored before
their eyes, their children hacked to pieces, and all their earthly property utterly
-destroyed, and their whole nation exterminated by the brutal soldiery. But if any
thing were wanting to complete the terror of those poor, deluded people, it was sup'
plied when pointing out the fate of Charles Nolin, who had been sentenced to death
by Riel for desertion, and ordered to be shot on view as a deserter, was imprisoned
by the police. The treatment of Charles Nolin by the authorities gave great force
to Riel's threats, and above all to a great extent gave an appearance of truth to the
assertion of Riel when ho so often warned his untortunate dupes, that there was n0
mercy to be expected for them if they were taken prisoneis or surrendered to the
police or Government.

It will be remembered that a proclamation was issued by Major Crozier at nY
suggestion, knowing that a great many of the half-breeds were kept by force, and had
been brought by force into camp. The proclamation of which a copy is herewith
produced offered protection to all those who were forced to take part in the rebelliol,
on their surrendering themselves to the commanding officer at Carlton or Prince
Albert. Now, on this proclamation, Charles Nolin, when he made his escape, at once
-went to Prince Albert with the proclamation in his pocket, confident in his loyalty,
and in the promise given in Her Majesty's name, applied to the officer in commaid
for protection. le was rewarded for his loyalty and confidence by being ironed and
cast into prison, where he was kept for two months, without any charge or accus&
tion being made against him, and without any explanation being given to him, and
-was at length liberated without any explanation or excuse.

This most illegal and ill-judged proceeding gave fearful weight to Riel's asser-
tions. " See " cried he, " what yon have to expect if you desert as Notin did. SeO
the mercy that will be shown to yon, and think of your wives and families. Nolin is
a deserter, he will be shot if i can catch him, and the police have him chained il'
prison, from which he will be brought out only to be hanged like a dog, &c. Now
you know that death is the certain portion of any traitor or deserter from our sacred
cause, or of those who attempt to escape from our camp wlen the lives of their friendO
-and families depend on all being true to our holy cause." The poor people were also
terrorized into submission by their cunning leader pointing out to them anyone
deserting now in the hour of danger, in the face of the enemy, would live a life of
shame, abandoned by all honest and brave men, would go down to the grave dis'
honored with the name of coward, and would leave behind them a memory branded
with disgrace, wbich would be carried on his brow by every one of his descendant$
to future generations.

Pierre Parenteau I have known since I met him in the Red River Settlemient,
now Manitoba, since 1862. iHe is a man of 72 years of age, and bas eleven children,
and since I first knew him has been a man of peace. one who was remarkable for the
good influence ho exerted over the people of his race and kindred, who, when on the
plains in days now passed, a leader o his people ho prevented many a bloody deed
between the Indian tribes and half-breeds, and always was on the side of peace and
order. This good old man was misled by the wily Riel telling him that the youngel
men of his race required the soothing and pacifying influence of the old friend and
counisellor of their forefathers; that it was his duty to become a leader or counsellof
.among the people in their peaceful efforts to secure their rights. That it was by such
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'Mssistance as his that he depended upon avoiding all approach to violence, and to
slcceed in keeping union and peace among the hali-breed people. This poor old man
'was borne on by the appeal to his heart and conscientioisly did what ho thought was
right. He was not in conscience or in fact guilty of any disloyal thought or action,
and stands before God and man to-day, although in a felon's cell, an honest man. To
keep such an aged and respectable man as tbis any longer in prison must be to
atrike at the heart of justice and render law a thing of scorn. His bouse has been
burned down and all his horses and some of his cattle are Iost or stolon.

Emmanuel Champagne I have known since 1861. Ho was thon a resident of
bakota and was doing a considerable business at Pembina during the horrors of the
gioux massacre in 1862, and bas a wife and sevon children. Champagne saved the
Yves of many white men and women at the risk of his own life and property, and
1s gratefully remembered by many of the wbite people of Dakota to this day.
After living in Red River Settlement and Manitoba, respected for many years, ho
Cane to the Saskatchewan about six years ago, and lived at Batoche, wýhere he had a
Very fine place and a large business. I believe ho was worth at least twenty-five
thousand dollars-to-day ho is a ruined man. When Riel proposed to the old
tian to join t ho movement of the half-breed rights ho promptly refused to do
1o. Persuasion of all kinds failed to induce him to go in with Riel. When
]iel and his followers came to Batoche, Champagne was again solicited to
join the movement, and, on positively refaing to do so, threats were used
instead of sweet words. Unless you consent to become a member of the council
Your whole property will be pillaged, your life will not ho safe, you will be
at the mercy of those who wish to abuse you, and by threats and force the
Old man was kopt there, but ho acted as he always bal done, defended those who
Were in danger. To him Tom McKay owes bis liberty, if not his life, and to McKay's
being at liberty the Government of Canada owes the fact, to a great extent, of the
sPeedy suppression of the rebellion. I have no hesitation in declaring that Cham-
Pagne, instead of boing in prison as a malefactor, ought to be distinguished by the
Uovernment as one who was loyal and true to his Queen and country in a time of
trying danger. One thing is certain-a very short time longer in prison, and death
Will deliver him, as he is sick, old and failing fast. He is between sixty and seventy
Years old.

Maxime Lepine I know well. fie was a leading man in Manitoba before he
carne to the Saskatchewan. Ho was in favor of constitutional agitation to secure the
'ights of the half-breeds, but was positively opposed to violence of any kind, and it
Was only by compulsion ho was kept among the Riel people. He opposed himself to
hiel in every way ho could, and prevented a great deal of violence and mischief by
his determination. He was always very moderato and peaceful in his conduct. He
1aM a wife and six children, and is about fitty years of age.

Pierre Gariépie is an old man of fifty-five years of age, and bas a wife and seven
Ohildren, and bas been all his hife nearly on the plains as a hanter, He bas a large
famiy, and is ignorant of the ways of political tricksters and civilized agitators. Ie
18 just one or two degrees above the Indian, but was a leader among the plain
hunters. Riel made him believe there would be no trouble or violence, and when
the wounded at Duck Lake were about to be brutally massacred by the Indians it
'Was this old man in particular who saved them.

Albert Monkman I have known for two years past. He is a man who bas been
Very much, and I think unfairly, abused and misropresonted. I always found him
kind and good, and ho always took the part of the weak and defonceless against Riel,
tO bis own very great danger and risk. The opinion I got of him from my brother
Priests si most favorable. He prevented the burning at Duck Lake and St. Laurent of
the Catholie churches, although not a Catholic himself, and was imprisoned by Riel

oecause ho opposed him in every way ho could and wante. to escape from the rebel
Camp. I sincerely believe that Monkman was a good, true and loyal man, who was
PIaced in most difficult circumstances, and acted amid danger and difficulty as few
lnen would dare to do for the best interesta of the country, even at the imminent riak
O his life.
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Philip Gariépie, forty-eight y( ars of age, I have known for twenty-five years.
He bas been married for twenty years, and bas a large family of six childron. AI,
the settlers know this man and respect him. He is one of the most respectable and
peaceable men in the whole country, kind-hearted and gentle as a woman. I ara
informed that ho is accused with having abused a wounded man -Nowitt. Frora
my personal and intimate knowledge of this man'is character and disposition, I do
mot hesitate to pronounce this accusation to be false and unfounded. lt is repugnant
to every feeling of the heart of a man like Gariépio. It is the act of a savage and
brutal and wolfish nature and disposition. He is quite the contrary-kind, amiable
and charitable, while bis accuser, who is, if I am rightly informed, one Levêque, 18
totally unworthy of belief. He came to the baSkatchewan poor and misorable, and
was treated kindly by Gariépie, whom ho now tries to ruin.

Joseph Arcand is a poor, harmless kind of individual, about fifty years of age,
with a wife and six children living. He was plunged in misfortune ut the time Of
the rebellion. Hie lost two children by death during that time, and was almost il
despair, He took no part in any fight, and was sent away to protect the prisoners
in Poundmaker's camp, where bis conduct was kind and considerato. The poor man
is still keenly suffering from the sad loss of his children, and is an object of pitY
more than vengeance.

Alexis Labombarde is a poor, old, almost blind man. He has a wife but no
children. eighty-two years of age. I have known him for twenty-five years past. I
was sent by the Government as a commissioner to the Sioux in 1862, during the
massacre, and this old man was my interpreter at the time. I found him honest, trusti'
and reliable. He bas been acting as an interpreter the greater part of bis life, and ho
is now.accused of acting in that capacity between Riel and the Sioux. He did so with-
out any evil intent, anci without any idea that ho was doing wrong. I know myself
that ho told the Sioux to be moderato and not to kill; this I know from the Siou%
themselves who told me. Now, to punish this old man for acting as an interproter
would bo just about as just as to puuish a telephone for carrying sound. I do not
think the Governnent of Canada will advance thoir own glory or the interests of the
Dommion by going to the cradle to find criminals, or on the verge of the grave t»
ind victims.

Philip Garnot I have known for about four or five years. He is a very nervous
and timid creature, with very little courage or decision of character. iRiel ordered
him to take up arms ; he refused to do so, and continued keeping bis little boarding
bouse and attending to his business. Day after day for four days Riel ordered him to
come and take part in the movement, at last Riel ordered him to be dragged to the
camp, where overpowered by terror for his life and fear of loss of bis property, ho cou-
sented for fear of death to act as secretary, but refuEed to fight, or to resort to the
use of arms. It must be remembered that having a gun in one's hand in Riel's camp
was no proof of disloyalty or of being a fighting robel. Many had to carry a gun to
protect themselves or their property from the savages who were not at all particu1r
-whose property they took when the desire possessed them. I have reason to know
that Garnot was invariably kind and considerate to the prisoners and to all those
whom he could assist in his peculiar position.

Alexander Fisher I have known for twenty-five years, part in Manitoba and
in the Saskatchewan. He is an innocent, flighty kind of fellow, who is always ready'
and anxious to create a laugh. He was the owner of the ferry and it was ali ho had
to support bis family. He was compelled to remain to try and save bis ferry and wire
cable as it was bis all. He was always opposed to the Riel movement, and it was onlY
abject fear of death that caused him to remain in the camp in addition to the fact that
his three little daughters were in the convent school, and ho feared if ho escaped
they would suffer for him. I arntold that a great deal of importance is attached to a
paper signed by him as Governor of the Saskatchewan, or of some other silly joke of
that kind. Surely no one can be mistaken in seeing that.the poor creature was joking
Be is of so volatile a disposition that ho will do any kind of silly folly to make people
lugh. Again ho is I believe accused of signing a declaration of neutrality. Well, ie
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raay be a crime to do so and it may make a man disloyal, and guilty of high treason
tO do so. The poor balf-breeds are not very deeply versed in the noble science of
law, and they may be perhaps pardoned for doing that which their priests wore obliged
to do under a superior force, to save their lives and to be able to assist the tardy
authorities whose neglect had left them at the mercy of a lunatic or a tyrant. Fisher
3lever took up arms. He has lost all bis property, he is guilty of being obliged to do
the best he could to save bis life and that is all bis guilt. In all other respects he is
Perfectly innocent. Ho bas three children whose mother is dead.

Pie re Henri is known to me for twenty years. The last two or three years in
Baskatchewan. He is a very quiet, bilent man. Ritl umcd him as a counsellor because
he never bas anything to say and is a profoundly ignorant man. I solomnly declare
that I know of no act of bis that was bad. He did no harm of any kind to anyone,
and was more a cat's-paw than anything else. He has a very large and helpless family
Of a wife and soven children. One of bis sons beint a confirmed invalid, God knows
"What will become of thom if he is kept in prison, they will become a charge on the
Public. He bas lost all bis property.

Mcïse Ouellotte I know for twenty-five years. He is not a man of much intelli-
geince. He bas a very large family of e!even children and his wife and is their only
support. He assisted Lepine and Ross; and Ouellette, from the beginning, opposed Riel
111 every way possible, and they did all they could to prevent rebollion and any resort
to arms. This may be seen in Riel's prayers, when he prays to God to change Ouellette
ad others. Ouellette was the man who carried General Middleton's letter to Riel
for which he was promised considerations. He is about for ty.five years of age.

Ignace Poitras, senior and junior. I have known the old man for flfteen years,
bI1ce ho came and settled on the Saskatchewan. He is one of the most simple, honest
Und peaceable mon in the whole settlement, never mixing in any agitation or trouble.
I amn very intimately acquainted with him. I have often been bis guest, and always
found a welcome at bis hospitable louse. His industry and economy made him a
COmlfortable and well-off man. He was, fortunately for the prisoners in Riel's camp,
Onie of their guards, and I was told by several of them that he was kind and good to
thein always. He is about sixty years of age and has a wife and ton children, and
4as lost everything. The young man was with his father and is a harmless youth.
Tlhe old man is old and feeble, and has suffered very greatly in beaith and property.
TPhe best interests of justice would, I think, be satisfied by sending him home to his
POor family.

b* Baptiste Vandal is the near neighbor of Poitras, and I can say the same about
that I do of Poitras. He resisted for a long time before he could be forced to

Join ]Riel, and did so only from fear and compulsion. He bas a lai go family of a wite
ad eight children, and is a very poor man, and is an old man of about fifty years of

age. Riel wantedplo name him a captain but ho refused positively to act, and hence
*as appointed one of the guards over the prisoners, and they all agree that he was

ot kind to them, and gave them, any little comfort in his power, isuch as tobacco, &c.
Baptiste ]Rochelean, who is generally known as Old Man Rocheleau, is nearly

seventy years old. He was always a bard working, peaceable man. Has a family
f a wife and four obildren and was entirely opposed to Riel's proceedings. Hie

used to fight or do anythirg wrong, and was like the last two named placed over
the prisoners and compelled, through fear, to remain in camp. He speaks the Eng-
186 a little and proved useful and a friend to the prisoners. He is a humane and

9od old man.
Joseph Delorme I knew in Manitoba and during the three years that be bas been

11, the Saskatchewan. He was always a very respectable, bard working man, very
o1?nest and well thought of. He, for a long time, refused to have anything to do with

Iiel, and induced bis neighbors to refuse to do the same. It was only' by force an'd
threats that he was compelled to take part with the rebel party. He has been very
"eerely wounded, is a cripple for life, and bis home and family utterly ruined. If

"'e Offended he has been very heavily punished, and the %band of justice might, in.
52-25
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mercy, deal lightly with him. He has a wife and four children and has lost every-
thing.

Maxime Dubois I have known since he was a boy. He has a family of sevenl
children. Hie was in my service for some time, and proved honest, faithful and
reliable, and bas been greatly trusted by bis employers, and always proved very
worthy of being trusted. This poor man was induced to surrender himself by
the advice of Father Végreville, and is now a prisoner for the reason above. le is
about tbirty-six years of age, and his wife is a cripple.

Pierre Vandal I have known for fifteen years. He bas seven children, young,
and unable to provide for themselves. He is thirty-six years of age. The poor
man was sick and unable to do anything; being useless, Riel sent him off to Battle-
ford along with the others to protect the prisoners in Poundmaker's camp. He
ineither had arms nor did anything for which he should suffer the punishment he has
euffered since ho foolishly surrendered himself to the authorities.

Alexander Cadieux, or Kitwayo, is a pure Indian but bas lived with the half-
breeds. I have known him for seventeen years, he is a hunter and has a great desi
of influence with the Indian tribes. Ie has a very large family of ton children and
their mother. Two of the children are cripples, and he is an old man nearly sixty
years of age. Ie spent the winter hunting away two hundred miles at Turtle Lake,
and only arrived about the end of April when he was seizod by Riel and forced into
bis service. He was not present at any battle and rendered very signal service 1
saving the lives ot the teamsters when the Indians were about to massacre themn,
after taking them prisoners. Heo bas lost everything.

James Short was always a good, honest man. He was a buffalo hunter, ignorant
and easily led away; Riel made him believe anything he wished. Although au
ignorant man, he is a noble fellow, and incapable of a mean or unmanly action. HEue
was present above Lepine's Crossing when flat boats were sunk in the river with a
large quantity of arms and so forth belonging to the Government, and CaptsiO
Gagnon, Superintendent of the North-West Mounted Police, at Prince Albert, told
me that-Short saved a large quantity of rifles and other property for the Government
by diving down in twelve feet of water. I beg leave earnestly to recommend thio
-man to the clemericy and mercy of the court, as he bas a large and helpless family'
of a wife and ten children depending on him for support, and refused to run away
or escape when told to do so, but went to work to make a living for bis family ant
was made prisoner while freighting.

Joseph Pilon is a farmer, and bas a family of ton children, and is about fifty
years of age. He lived half a mile from Batoche, he was always an industrious and
bard working man. When the trouble broke out this man was ordered by Riel to
come into camp or he would force him to corne, as he had protested against Riel'O
movements, and had refused to attend any of his meetings, and never contributed
one cent towards Riel's sùpport last winter. Pilon, when he was threatened by
Riel, came to the priests, and cried when telling what was wanted of him. Riel by
force and threats against his life compelled him to serve bis purpose. Poor man, he
deserves pity rather than punishment.

François and Patrice Tourond are brothers. I have known them for a long
time. They are unmarried. They are among the most respectable families of the
North-West. They were seven sons and a widowed mother. These young me0
were the admiration of all the neighborhood; they were so quiet and bard working
their farm was the nicest kept in the settlement. They were opposed to Riel in al1
his movements. The crafty Riel tried every means to induce the boys to join hita,
but without success. They were well off, had a fine farm, plenty of cattle and
horses, and were worth a good deal of money. Riel went day after day to the poor
widow, and with his devilish cunning played on ber superstition and credulity. ie
told ber of his holy visions, how ho saw himself surrounded by seven glorious stas
of extraordinary brightness crowning him with glory. These bright stars, he criOi
are your seven glorious sons, who are to achieve the glory of the half-breed nationt
and the poor woman, in ber simple faith of bis divine mission, prayed of her 90e
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Young sons to go forth and battle under the banner of heaven. Alas, with what
terrible results ! That once happy home is now desolate, the wealth produced by
industry and sobriety is swept away like snow before the wind; the prond younig
Sons, their mother's pride and strength, where are they ? Three of them, shot on the
field of battle, lie in hurried graves on the banks of the Saskatchewan, another died
of a broken heart at the sudden shock of the terrible death of bis brohers, another
Wounded and crippled for life, and two, the two above named, prisoners awaiting
sentence at the hands of outraged majesty of the law of their country. Oh, spirit of
Inercy, enter the heart of their. judge in pity and compassion, for the poor heart-
broken widow now almost childless; deal mercifully with those poor deluded young
Inen, and in mercy send them home to console the desolate heurt of their mother.
It must be ronembered to the credit of Patrice that when Riel ordered the prisoners
to be given up to the savages to be brutally murdered ho cried out: " Riel, these
prisoners you shall not kill till you kill me first." These two young mon are the
only support of their mother and two young sisters. They have lost all their
Property.

In conclusion I would most earnestly pray for mercy for these poor people,
ignorant, innocent, confiding; they were misled by one who thoroughly knew their
'Weak minds and their heart. They were called on in the name of Gol and of the
boly saints, by one who declared himself ordained by God to do a great and good
Work. They were blinded by pretended visions and messages from the Holy Ghost;
Poor people, in their trusting confidonce they were led on to desolation, misery and
death. Over the grave of the silent dead, rise up the shrieks of despair of the fran-
tic living, to a righteous God for consolation and succour and to the majesty of the
Offended laws of their country for mercy.

That gallant soldier, Captain H. S. Moore, said to Bishop Grandin: " Although
I am one of the greatest sufferers by this terrible rebellion, and will limp through
life on one leg, yet I say from my soul, hang Riel and Dumont, but forgive all the
Others. They are innocent of intentional crime, and were misled by that soulless
rascal Riel. I forgive them from my heart." This is the spirit in which [h; mbly
beg of the court to consider the sentence of my poor half-breed people; show the
that their priests, who always tried to lead them to act as loyal and good subjects,
should have some little influence to temper the sword of justice and direct the hand
of mercy.

gworn before me at Regina, in the
said Territories, this thirteenth
day of August, A.D. 1885.

DixIE WATSON, Clerk of the Court.

PROCLAMATION.
Al persons forced to take part in the rebellion against our Sovereign Lady

Queen Victoria, or those retained by the rebels against their will, will receive pro-
tection in presenting themselves to the Commanding Officers at Carlton or Prince
&lbert. God save the Queen.

L. N. F. CROZIER, Commandant, N. W. M.P.
This is the proclamation referred to in the affidavit of Alexis André, sworn befere

73ae this 13th day of August, A.D. 1885.
DIXIE WATsoN, Clerk of tlhe Court.

E QUEEN vs. JOSEPH PILON, FRANCIS TOUROND, PATRICE
TGUROND, ET AL.

CANADA:
North.West Territories,

To wit:
1, George Alb3rt Kerr, of Bato,3he, in North-West Territories, merehant, make

Oath and say:
52-25à
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1. That Joseph Pilon, above named, came to my store, near Batoche, and had a
conversation with me in which he expressed his disapprobation of the rebellion. This
was on the morning after the rebellion had broken ont, and he stayed away from
Batoche as much as possible.

2. He had two sons, one of whom is a married man, and both of them are full
grown men; said married son bas a wife and family and bas been forced to take part
in the rebellion.

3. He was kept at Batoche by terror and only stayed because he wished to get
off bis son who had been taken there as aforesaid, and was almost overcome by con-
sternation, and the said Joseph Pilon went home as often as he could, and stayed thera
till brought again.

4. That up to the time of the battle of Fish Creek, Francis Tourond, above
named, was at home and did not go to Batoche at all after the battle in which, I
believe, he tock no part. 1, with my brother John Kerr, were hid for days in the
Touronds' granary by said Francis Tourond, where he and his mother fed us. ie
took us to the house of the Mclintoshs' who lived near there.

5. From my own personal knowledge of the character of the Touronds, above
named, I can conscientiously say that they would never have been connected in any
way with the rebellion had they not been coerced or misled into it through religion
deception, which I was personally in a position to know, and I do know and feel
called upon to state in fairness, was actually the case with them in the late rebellion
of 1885.

GEO. A. KERR
Sworn before me at Regina, in said)

Territories, this 1ith day of
August, A.D. 1885.

Dixi WATSON, Clerk of the Court.

TUE QUEEN vs. JOSEPH ARCAND, ALEXANDRE CADIEUX, EMMANUBI
CHAMPAGNE, MAXIME DUBOIS, ALEXANDER P. FJSIER, PHILIF
GARlEPIE, PIERRE GARIEPIE, PIERRE HEINII, MAXIME LEPINA,
MOISE OUELLETTE, PIERRE PARENTEAU, MOISE PARENTEUIJ,
IGNACE POITiRAS THE ELDER, IGNACE POITRAS THE YOUNGERl
JOSEPH PILON, BAPTISTE ROCBELEAU, JAMES SHORT, FRANC1S
TOUROND, PATRICE TOUROND, BAPTISTE VANDAL, PIERRE VAe-
DAL, AND OTHERS.

CANADA:
North-West Territories,

To wit:

1, George Ness, of Batoohe, in the North.West Territories, Esquire, make oatb
and say:

1. I have for some time past been personally acquainted with each and every of
the above named, Joseph Arcand and others named thereafter, and I have been 0n0
of Her Majesty's justices of the peace in and for the North-West Territories for Boule
time past.

2. The said persons above named had each and every of them always bee
honest and peaceable inhabitants, and law-abiding and loyal subjects of Her MajestY'
the Queen up to the time of the late rebellion in the said Territories.

GEORGE NESS.
Sworn before me at Regina, in the said

North.West Territories, this 7th
day of August, A.D. 1885. )

Dixiz WAT5ON, Clerk ol the Court.
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THE QUEEN vs. JOSEPH ARCAND, ALBERT MONKMAN AND OTHERS.

CANADA:
North-West Territories,

To wit:
1, Baptiste Arcand, of Stobart, in the North-West Territories, farmer, make oath

and say:
L That one of the children of Joseph Arcand, above named, died just before the

rebellion of 1885, in the said Territories, .and another child was then at the point of
death and has since died.

2. The last named child being very ill about the 20th day of March last,
.past, I went to Louis Riel, who had taken said Joseph Arcand from Stobart to
Batoche, and told him that Joseph Arcand was not right in his head on account of
the death of bis child, and that the other child was very ill, and I urged said Riel to
lot him go home, and afterwards with myself Joseph Arcand begged said Riel to
allow him to go to his home, but said Riel on both occasions refused to let him go.

3. When the Council were chosen said Joseph Arcand being there present was
Chosen, but persistently refused to allow bis name to be used, as far as lay in his
Power, and bis naine was omitted from the Council, and he at the same time was pro-
posed for captain by the said Riel, but objected to being such, and he did not become
A captain.

4. Afterwards he succeeded in getting home, and remained home a few days, when
lie was sent for by Riel, and two men, both armed, again took him to Batoche on the
25th of March last past, and ho returned home the same day.

5. The morning of the battle of Duck Lake he went to Duck Lake to get some
"Cotton for a shroud for his dead child, and was returning home when the battle of Duck
Lake was in progress.

6. He was not at the battle of Fish Creek, but was on the west side of the river,
Ibear Alexander Fisher's bouse, where he remained for a week with bis family until
fa man came from Battleford with complaints that the Indians were threatening the
priest there and the half breeds and they wanted help, and he went with others by order
'Of Riel to Battleford, from which place he did not return until after Batoche was
taken by General Middleton.

7. Said Joseph Arcand has a wife and six children now living.
8. When I first saw Albert Monkman at Batoche ho advised my brothers and

'lnyseIf strongly to go home and bave nothing to do with the rebellion; he was not
armed himseif, and I beard him say to Riel at the time of the trial of Nolin and
loyer, the following: " Curse you, you are after another Scott affair, and you shall
1ot do it if I can help it."

9. Said Monkman never incited nor advised the Indians near Duck Lake to take
part in the rebellion, but, on the contrary, spoko against their doing so.

10. When said Monkman was at Fort Carlton thereafter I saw him there and
h1e told ma privately that he intended to arrange matters there so that the prisoners
then could all escape, but very soon afterwards he was removed from there, as I was
informed, by Riel's orders.

his
BAPTISTE + ARCAND.

mark.
'8Worn before me at Regina, in said Territories,)

this 7th day of August, A.D. 1885, having I
been first explained by me to the deponent, I
who seemed perfectly to understand the
sme, and made bis mark thereto in my
presence.

CHAs. NOLIN, Justice of the Peace in and for said Territories.
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THE QUEEN vs. JOSEPH ARCAND, EMMANUEL CHAMPAGNE, ALEX-
ANDER P. FISHER, PIERRE GARIEPIE, PIERRE IIENR[, MAXIMB
LEPINE, ALBERT MOIKMAN, MOISE OUELETTE, PIERRE PAREN-
TEAU, JOSEPH PILON, IGNACE POITRAS, THE ELDER, IGNACE POI-
TRAS, THE YOUNGER, BAPTISTE ROCIIELEAU, FRANCIS TOUROND,
PATRICE TOUROND, BAPTISTE VAN DAL, ET AL.

1, John W. Astley, of Prince Albert, in the North-West Territories, civil engi-
neer, make oath and say:

I was in the rebel camp from the twenty-sixth of March, until the twelfth of
May last, after the battie of Fish Creek. The half-breeds were notified by Louis
Riel that they had better fight now to the last man, as no mercy would be shown tnen
whether they surrendered or were taken prisoners, that they would be every man
bung or shot by the mounted police or by the Canadian Government, and it was by
thus terrifying them that the half-breeds were kept together.

On the twelfth of May I talked to Louis Riel for a long time about the rebellion
and its results to himseif. I said to him, " You know you escaped from the conse-
quences of your fist rebellion through politics." He replied that ho bad, but, said ho,
*&I bave three chances or means of escape this time; first, through politics; secondly,
through the papers of the Council. You must know that I have so arranged all the
papers of the Council in such a way that everything will show that the Council did
everything, and my name will riot appear as doing anything, and should we arrange
to do as you wish, the papers will all be found properly fixed in the Council cham-
bers. My third chance will be on the question of my being the head of this noW
religion. If you will mention that to the general (meaning General Middleton) it
will give me the greatest chance, as it wilI show that I wish that." I said to him,
" What will I say to the general about the French half-breeds' claim ?" " Oh," said
Riel, "I that is a very secondary consideration; 1 think of myself first." Again I said,
"if there are any conditions to be made for the claims of the half-brecds a word noWr
might be of great advantage te them, as the general will not forget to report it.'
Agam he replied, "I a-sure you their claims are of a very secondary importance,
mny own safety is of the first importance." After this conversation I returned to
General Middleton to try and get the troops to cease firing, and thon came back to,
Riel, whcn I said te hlm, "Now, there is no time to lose; cail your Council
together and let us have an understanding, I will address them." Riol said, "that
is quite unnecessary, I can do as I wish." Then I said, "you admit that you act
without any Council," and ho said, " yes, I do just as I wish." As I left Riel I said
to him, "l sould I not be able to return you know what to do; come in all of yoel
and surrender; if I can I will come back." Two old men, Ross and Ouellettej
actually did await my return till they were shot dead.

I know Alexander P. Fisher, ho was in the rebel camp. I always looked upon
him as a kind of a soft-headed fellow who had no brains iu him, ho had no arms and
did not do any harm to anyone. He is a kind of small wit, and would do almost anY
kind of feolish thing to make the peole liaugh. I considered him a harmiess nonen-
tity.

Pierre Gariepie was a kind old fellow to the prisoners. Pierre Henri was about
the same as the last. Maxime Lepine seemed to me to be anxious to end the matter,
he did not seom to be heart and soul in it. Albert Monkman did ail ho could for
the prisoners. I several times heard Riel scolding Monkman for not bringing in
Scotch and English half-breeds as ho had been ordered to do. Moise Ouellette carried
a letter to Louis Riel from General Middleton, which letter was the cause of Riel's
surrender. I gave the letter to the priest at Batoobo. Pierre Parenteau was an
ordinary man among the half-breeds. Ignaco Poitras, senr., Baptiste Rocheleau and
Baptiste Vandal were three great friends to the Canadian prisoners, and, indeed, had
it not been for these three good old fellows we would have been almost starved
many a lime. They took all the care they could of us, and had it not been for the-
we would have been a terrible sight worse off.
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The two Touronds and Ignace Poitras, the younger, I know little about, and
0ver saw either of them take any active part in the rebellion. The above persons

Damed were made prisoners more with a view to the corroboration, if necessary, of
evidence for the certain conviction of Riel by General Middleton, to my personal
knlowledge. I had given to the general a list of the leaders to be detained, which hb
l08t, and some of the principal mou are still at largo.

JOHN W. ASTLEY.
Sworn before me at Regina, in said

Territories, this Ilth day of
Aogust, A.D. 1885.

HENRY DODD, Justice of the Peace for the North- West Territories.

TVIE QUEEN vs. EMMANUEL CHAMPAGNE, ALEXANDER P. FISHER,
PHILIP GARNOT, PHLLIP GARIÉPIE, MAXIME LEPINE, ALBERT
MONKMAN, MOISE OUELLETTE, AND OTHERS.

CANADA:
North-West Territories.

To wit:
1, Thomas Eastwood Jackson, of Prince Albert, in the North-West Territories,

druggist, make oath and say:
1. That I was made a prisoner and dotained as such, on the eighth day of April,

Or thereabouts, last past, and was not released from such imprisonment until th&
twelfth day of May last past, and I have a personal knowledge of the matter herein-
after mentioned and referred to.

2. That Emmanuel Champagne, above named, I frequently saw at Batocb
durig that time, but he took no part in the doings of the Concil while I was such
prisoner, as far as I could see, and that ho was not at the battle of Fish Oreek, nor au
4»y time, as far as I know, did he fight in battle.

3. That Alexander P. Fisher, above named, was not armed at any time, so far
8 1 know, and that he had only taken any part for fear of violence to his children by

the Indians, and on condition that ho should not be called on to take up arms, andL
should be left to run bis ferry as usual.

4. That Philip Garnot informed me, when first I saw him alone, that he had been
cOmapelled at the risk of bis life to take part in the rebellton, and then began to act
a8 secretary and had no interest in their object.

5. That Philip Gariépie, above named, took no active part in the rebellion, as far
18 I could see; and that after Charles Newitt was brought wounded from the battle
of Luck Lake, both at said Duck Lake and on the road to Prince Albert, the said
Charles Newitt stated in my presence that it was an Indian who struck him after
said battle and not Philip Gariépie; and from my personal knowledge of the character
'f the said Philip Gariépie, and his treatment of all the other prisonors, I verily
believe ho did not strike said Newitt.

6. That Maxime Lepire and Moïse Ouellette opposed Riel in the Council very
freqnently to my personal knowledge, and were for peace, and they only had ther
CoOurage to do so of all in the Council; that the only ones in the Council that Riel
'oOld depend on were Gabriel Dumont, Damas Carrière and Napoléon Nault, and
hiel distrusted and watched everyone else. That Riel was chary of everyone else,
1nd they four, Riel, Dumont, Carrière and Nault, controlled and managed everythirg.

7. That Albert Moinkman was absent at the north when Riel was preparing for the
?bebllion. Riel frequently showed dislike for him and distrust of him, setting two men,
Napoléon Nault and an old man named Swain, to watch Monkman. J board Riel say
thnt ho had sent him (Monkman) to bring up the English half-breeds by force, but tha.

oa0fkman had not done so, but had proved to be unfaithful to his (Riel's) cause. At
eb0 time of the Fish Creek fight Riel ordered him to proceed up the river to attack

'&iddleton on the west side, but Riel's spies discovered pioofs that Monkman had laid
391
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a plan to escape on horseback, when across the river, and thereaftor Monkman was
tried in the Council and then after made a prisoner of Riel's and chained to the floor
ýof an upper room in Baptiste Boyer's house, in Batoche, in the room next the rooml
I was afterwards confined in, and he was kept until the ninth day of May, when be
was transferred to the cellar with myself and others, where we were kept until released
by the troops on the twelfth day of May last past, with the others and myself.

8. I am satisfied from what I saw, and I verily believe that Riel made Monk-
nan a member of the Council, and gave him the command at Carlton with the double

purpose of implicating him in the rebellion, as ho was an English half-breed, and
inducing the other English half breeds to join the rebels.

9. That Riel had me detained a prisoner in spite of the Council that I should bO
released, and of this I was informed by Riel himself as well as English speaking
members of the Council.

THOS. E. JACKSON.
Sworn before me at Regina, in the

said Territories, this 10th day
of August, A.D. 1885. 1

DixuIi WATSON, Clerk of the Court.

THE QUEEN vs. JOSEPH ARCAND ET AL.

CAXADA:
North-West Territories,

To wit: j
Charles Nolin, of the Parish of St. Laurent, District of Saskatchewan, in the

North-West Territories, being duly sworn, doth depose and say:
1. I had opportunity of being thoroughly acquaintel with most of the personO

connected with the late rebellion, having been detained by force and threats withinl
the rebel camp up to the 26th day of March last, when 1 succeeded in making my
escape from the camp.

2. I knew Louis Riel, the leader and promoter of the rebellion. He is a man
who wielded a most worderfau infuence over the uneducated, credulous and ignora0t
lalf-breed population, so much so, that ho did successfully lead them astray, , against
the remonstrances and advice of their priests, who have always been looked up to by
them as their true friends, protectors and guides, in all their concerns from the cradle
to the grave.

3. I was myself by force and threats detained in the rebel camp, and I know the
moans used to compel others to come thpre and to remain against their will and
judgment, when it is a question of life and death, when from hour to hour one's life iO
in danger; if ho tries to escape, it is very hard to do so; spies and sentries wee
posted at every point, at the dý ors of the bouses where suspected persons were lodgedy
and any attempt to escape was, by order of Riel, to ho treated as a crime, punihable
with death, and any person found attempting to escape was to be at once shot doWOs
by order of Riel.

4. Riel resorted to the most unusual mens to secure an overpowering influenceS
over ihe minds of the half-breed people. For instance, to excite a feeling of awe in thir
rnind,, aLd no doubt with a view to making them believe that ho was acting under
Divine instruetions, early in the beginning of winter ho ordered all persons WhO
Lad occas on to butcher or kill cattie, to save the blood for him, and from the first
day of January ho fed exclusively on blood instead of flesh meat, the blood being
cooked in milk. This conduct made a deep impression on his superstitious dupes
end whon combined with his continual praying and his daily relation of the visiOns
he had the preceding night, an.d the visits of saints and the repeated conversatiOc 0

be had with the Holy Ghost, the poor half-breeds were convinced in thoir souls thst
Riel was God's envoy and that it would ho a mortal sin to refuse to obey and follof
him as the chief appointed by God to lead them. They had no guilty knowledg
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that they were brenking the law. They believed that they could not do wrong when
1Pod himself and the Holy Ghost and the Virgin Mary had sent a chosen servant and
tepresentative to lead and guide them; no feeling or connection less powerful could
have induced them to spurn the advice and prayers of the good priests who had
been the guides of themselves and their forefathers for generations.

Riel had a book which hQ read or pretended to road from to convince the poo-
ple of the holy character of his mission. He called it the " Prophesies of St. Bridget,"
a great Irish saint, who he said had foretold hundreds of years ago ail the things
'that were to occur during the years 1885 and 188ti. He said that she foretold that
tho wickedness of the world would have become so great that, from the hoad of Rome
down, the powers of the world would be destroyed, even the Government of Canada,
the world's rulers would be destroyed and swallowed up in a general whirlpool of
destruction. St. Bridget had foretold that God had appointed a second saviour to
redeema mankind amid the final destruction and restore peace, morality and pros-
Perity to the nations; that man must be a descendant f St. Louis; then ho went on
to prove that lie was descended from St Louis and that the Holy Ghost and the Vir-
gin Mary had visited him and told him that he was the chosen man who was
pPointed so many hundred years ago, and whoso coming was predicted by St.

Btridget, the great Irish saint, to redeem mankind, and that his dear brother
half-breeds were the first he would redeem.

From the time of Riel's arrivai in the country he had been unceasingly going
-Mraong the half-breed people telling them of the injustice done them by the Govern-
'lent, and showing them that only by meetings and petitions and agitating, could
they ever hope to recover their rights. He declared himself their leader, and that
if t hey would only follow him, he would secure for thom ail their rights and privi-
leges from the Government at Ottawa without bloodshed.

Riel, to get ail the people together, had recourse to a rus . He told them that they
tIust ail assemble at Batoche on the 1bth day of March, for the purpose of going ail
together to St. Laurent on the .9th to celobrate the festival of St. Joseph, who i- the
Patron saint of the half-breed people, as St. (eorge is of the English, St. Patrick of
t he Irish, and St. Andrew of the Scotch, and to make the occasion t ho more interest-
ing it was announced by Riel that his friend and Secretary Jackson, who had become a
Convert, would bo publicly baptised on St. Joseph's day. When the people assembled
fromi all parts as they were ordered to do at Batoebe on the 18th day of March, Riel
and his friends at once circulated a report that the mounted police were coming
do0wn on the people, and they would ail be killed if they did not stand together and
10llow his inspired instructions. Riel further announed that Gol had kindly caused
then to be assembled together and had put supplies within their reah, meaning and

inting out the various stores in the vicinity, and arms in their hands, through him
iei, he having told thom aIl to bring their guns with thor te the celebration, so

t hat they might pay more honor to their patron saint by tiring a " feu-de-joie " after
>Iass in hi. honor, &c. I give this outline of his proceedings toshow how thoroughly
he had matured his plans to get the people together, and to make them more blindly
Place themselves in his power by gelting thom to break the law. Riel next sent out
arted parties to bring in ail those who had not alroady come, and they were ordered
to bring them by force if they did not come voluntarily. When Riel had once got
the people to commit themselves by pillaging the stores, &c., lie next told them that
4t0 mounted police under Major Crozier were on the way to slaughter them ail, and
that they must stand together and act under bis instructions, and obey him without
iliestion, for God had commissioned him to lead and direct thom, promising them that
there would be no bloodshod, which they firmly believed, or I am certain they woutd
'not have consented to remain and meet the police force.

Once Riel had got the unfortunate half-breeds into his power he made them believe
that their only chance for life was to stay with him, as there would be no mercy
eiown them by the Government or by the mounted police, and that his intention was
1O so conduct matte;s that without any bloodshed ho would secure them the full
eecognition of thoir rights ; by such promises as these and by resorting to every
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p ible trick of language and action, by pretending to be specially commissioned bY
and the Virgin Mary and St. John the Baptist to lead the half-breed people

through all their difficulties to a glorious success without shedding any blood, and
without any danger; by kneeling down and with his arms spread out like the armo-
of a cross, his eyes cast up to heaven and his voice raised aloud to God in prayer, and
sometimes by throwing himself on the ground shouting to God for directions, and to
protect the half-breeds; it was in this way that ho kept the poor, ignorant people
subject to bis power and influence. I beard him harangue the poor people often and
aay to them, "you know that ail power and authority is given to the Holy Father
the Pope of Rome, you well know that the Holy Ghost descended from heaven and
dwells in the heart of the Holy Father, you know that where that Holy Spirit i9
there must be ail power and authority. Well, the Boly Ghost left Rome in the
interest of the poor half-breeds of America and took up his residence in the heart Of
the greatest living saint of the world, the Holy Bishop Bourget, of Montreal. NoW,
dear half-breeds, here is a letter, he cried, holding a paper up towards heaven, fro1D
that great saint, Bishop Bourget, written to me, who am to be the saviour of myY
people, acting under the influence of the Holy Ghost, and that holy saint tells me in
this letter that I have a mission to fulfil, that grand mission is to liberate the whole
world, but first I bave to liberate the half breed people whom I love so much, who
are my own flesh and blood, who are my brothers, and who live in my heart."

By such means as these ho fascinated a large number of bis poor credulous fol-
lowers, and by terrorizing over and making prisoners of those who, like myself, COUlC
mot be deceived by bis pretended divine mission, Riel kept under his authoritY
numbers of good, honest and loyal men who longingly wished for the means of beinl
freed from their disagreeable and false and dangerous position, but who were power-
less in bis band@, or, under his influence, believing that ho was commissioned by
God. Among those who, to my personal knowledge, were detained and kept in sub-
jection, either through fascination and superstition, or through being kept in hourlY
fear of personal danger to themrselves and to their wives and children or friends,
were: Joseph Arcand, Alexander Cadieux, Emmanuel Champagne, Joseph Délorme,
Maxime Dubois, Phillip Gariépie, Pierre Gariépie, Pierre Henri, Alexis Labombard,
Maxime Lepine, Albert Monkman, Mùïe Ouellette, Mïse Parenteau, Pierre Paren-
teau, De niel Parent eau, Ignace Poitras, sen., Ignace Poitras, jun., Baptiste Rochelean
Franc s Tourond, Patrice Tourond, Baptiste Vandal, Pierie Vandal, and many others.

To show how unreliable are the reports or minutes of the Council which were
kept of meetings and proceedings, I maiy state that Riel, to plunge bis followers,
whether they were willing ones or not, as deeply as possible into danger, so as tO
keep them in his power, passed a motion of Council that overy proceeding beforO
the Council should be considercd to be passed unanimously, and that ail the namOe
were to be entered as being present at every meeting, whether the personswere present
or not, se that by tbis novel means ho succceded in implicating men who were
innocent, being forced into comnpliance by him, and made them, as far as ho could,
responsible for bis acts; for I declare that the whole Couneil was Riel. The so-called
members of bis Council were more cat's-paws in bis bands. He ordered and passed
and did whatever ho pleased, and threatened death to ail who dared to oppose
him. Bore I may explain the presence of names to a very importan
document now in the hands of the Government. Riel oidered iMýaxime Lepine
and mysolf to go to Mijor Crczier to demand bis surrender, handed me the letter
which was to be given to the Major. Lepine and myseif wero obliged to go,
ive dare not refuse, but what was our astonishment to discover, on examining the
letter, to find our own names sign.ed to it along with others. We saw at once it W90
a plan of Riel's to compromise us beyond hope of justification. We deternined nod
Io deliver the letter. 1 gave it to Lepine, who I Euppose returned it 10 Riel, for i1

was found among the other papers, no doubt placed there for the intended purpose
of compromising ail those whose names were signed to it. I am fully satisfied that
the minute book of ]Riel's so called council was, trom the beginning, cooked regularlY
to compromise the people, so as to compel them to sink or swim with Riel, and I dO
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1ot hesitate to say that they were left where they would fall into the hands of th.
Government for the same purpose.

On that same night, when Maxime Lepine and myself were sent to demand the
sulrender of the mounted police, Riel, in a most violent speech, incited the people to
take Fort Carlton. " Now," cried ho, " is your time, lot us go and revenge the death
Of Goulet " (meaning Goulet who lost his life by being drowned in the Red River,.
at Winnipeg, in trying to escape from the Caradian volunteers, who were chasing-
hi1, soon after the arrival of the force at Fort Garry, in 1870). Tho whole people
!ere very much incited under his harangue. Maxime Lepine and Moise Ouellette-
Iterfered between Riel and the excited people, and, at the imminent danger of their

OWn lives, prevented him from carrying out bis object, a midnight attack on the
foIt, which might have resulted in a fearful massacre of innocent and unoffending
People. To show how the balf-breeds were led on by Riel, I declare that up to the,
148t moment many English half-breeds were staunch supporters and followers of Riel,?
¾d it was only their superior education and want of belief in Riel's Divine mission
thatprevented them from being to-day as much in the power of the law as the French
half-breeds are. Many English half-breeds and whites also encouraged the poor
erench balf-breeds up to the culminating point and thon cautiously left thom to their
fate, and to the infamons and blasphemous leadership of Louis Riel, who has plunged.
them into distraction, despair, starvation and death.

I declare and depose that this deposition bas been written at my dictation;
that it has been read over to me in English and French, but it corntains the truth and-
ihave signed.

CHAS. NOLIN.
4Worn to and acknowledged before me, at Regina,

in the North-West Territories, this 7th day
of August, A.D. 1885.

Ry. LzJEUNE, Justice of the Peace in and for the North- West Territories-

CANADA:
North-West Territories,

To wit:
1, Vital Fourmond, of St. Laurent, Director of Catholie Missions, being duly

sworn, doth depose and say:
1. That I am perfectly aware of the uprising of the half-breeds and of the

'ýA ses which led thereto, and I am compelled to declare that the poor half-breeds
'*ere coaxed and forced into that disastrous rising through orders and insane instiga-
tion] of Louis Riel.

2. From what I personally witnessed and heard from, before, during and after
the establishment of Riel's so-called Provisional Government, whether at St. Laurent
r at Batoche, the evidence of this my deposition is so certain and manifest that it

eS not admit of any doubt.
3. Louis " David " Riel, in his strange and alarming folly, fascinated our poor

Alf breeds as the snake is saidto fascinate its victim, abusing, for bis own ends, the
great confidence that all the half-breeds repsed in him, a confidcnce founded upon his
'fluence over their minds through his groat and impassioned language, and above ail
?14 the appearance of his profound religions feeling and devotion, which he displayed

the most glaring and hypocritical manner, which was rendered so convincing to
theilr mindis by his public proclamation of his mission as an inspired prophet, which
e forced upon their imagination in the most insidious and diabolical manner; ho

1r'claimed himself a new Moses, who had corne to deliver his people frota bondageê
Ad to place them in a new land of promise, where they would enjoy the greatest
berty and happiness and soon become masters of the world, as ho would soon
arch them on Winnipeg by way of Portage la Prairie, and thence to sub-

Jogate Canada, and afterwards the whole of the States of the old world,
"lhtil he, their inspired leader, would ho crowned king of the world, and sit in
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the chair of St. Peter at Rome as the Pope, in proclaiming which he did the
inviolable authority of the Tyrants of Europe, is and ought to be deprived Of
ail bis temporal powers and privileges. The Spirit of God has left the Pope Of
Rome, and has taken up its abode in the holy person of that great saint ArchbishoP
Bourget of Montreal, from whose soul the Spirit of God has passed into the 8001
of your leader Louis Riel, thus, said Riel, I have received my divine mission
conveyed to me in this letter from that saint and bishop, hear the words, " You haVe
-a grand mission to fulfil, you must accomplish it at all points." Now, cried he to hiO
poor superstitious listeners, this is a proof of my commission from heaven, and I haVe
been confirmed in it through the Holy Ghost, who bas come to me and has taken JP
Jis abode in my soul and through me is now beginning on the great work of modern
times, that is, to carry ont a grand and most necessary reform of the whole world. TO
inish the complete influence over the poor half-breeds ho afterwards strongly insisted

on bis sacred ýnission, insisted on the gravity and legitimate nature of their clairas
against the Ottawa Government, the indifference of the Government to their humble
petitions and demands and the consequent misery and distress into which they were
plunged, and out of which he alone, as God's agent, could lift them up and make
them happy, notwithstanding the power of the Government of Canada, and of their
other heartless tyrant, the lHudson's Bay Company, and notwithstanding the poer
,and evil influence of the priests, who were traitors to their sacred calling and were
using their influence on the side of tyranny and the oppression of the poor half-breed
people.

4. The Sunday before the outbreak, Riel, after mass, came to my bouse and
spoke to me as follows :-"You have turned the pulpit of truth into one of falseboodi
politics and discord, in daring to refuse the Holy Sacrament to all those who would
take up arms in defence of their sacred rights." Another time, at the store of Waltet
,& Baker, at Batoche, in a publie meeting of the people, seeing that he was losing
ground in consequence of the influence of the religious feeling of the poor people, he
jumped up, bis eyes flaming like the eyes of a veritable maniac, which gave him sucb
a striking appearance that it forcibly imprcssed the people, he cried: "l How can
these poor people, whom you try to deceive and mislead as to the truth of my iiviDe
mission, for one moment believe you when they have the proof before them that yot
are a traiter to them, and you are unworthy of their confidence? How dare you say
that it is a crime to take up arms against the tyrant in defence of their rights ?"
replied to him: "Yes; I said it often before, and I repeat it here to your face, and in
the face of these poor nisguided people whom you are leacling to destruction, despair
and death, it is a crime to take up arms against the constituted authorities; it is a
crime to raise the standard of rebellion. God proclaims it the duty ot all Christia"
people 'to render to Coeiar the things that are Cæsar's, and to God the things are
God's.'" He, Riel, replied: " Yes, render to God glory, honor and adoration, but tO
the tyrants of the world render that which is duo to them ; sling back their
authority, which they have usurped, in their teeth ; tumble them down fro
power, that is what God orders." " Listen", cried he, "to this priest who dares tO
tell you that it is a crime you are committing, undor rny direction, in fulfilment O
my sacred mission, whLo dares to call rebellion your taking up arms in a sacred cause,
a cause ordained and directcd by God, the cause of your native land which lies bleeding
and prostrated at the feot of tyrants, the sacred cause of the rights, the liberties, the
lives of your wives and children for all time to come."

5. To impress the people and keep them within bis power, this man, Riel, resorted
to alt kinds of trickery. Often have I seon him praying aloud, prostrating himself
in prayer and ordering all the others to do so. Thus he made a deep impression On
his poor ignorant dupes and so convinced them of his divine mission that it 'wa

impossible to convince them that he was a trickster and would lead them to destrae
tion. Riel so playet on their ignorance that ho made them believe in his power to
work mi acles; they firmly believed this. I have beard them say that Riel Col
inake it thunder and could cure disease without medicines. Riel himself, declAred
,that he was once the victim of an incurable disease of the heart, but that on the dth
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of May he had cured the disease by his divine power. fie also doclared that should
he be killed it did not matter, he would be witb them again alive and that would
Prove to them bis divine mission. H1e cried, " it is the Holy Ghost that speaks, who
shall dare disbelieve me? "

6. When Riel had completely fascinated these poor people, and hold them body
and soul at his will, he next, to complete his object and plunge them into rebellion
beyond recal], ho announced that 500 mounted police were on the way to slaughter
them: men, women and children, to the last one. " Oh, my friends, look at those
devils murderirg your whole nation, see your wives and daughters ravished beforo
Your streaming eyes, see your wives and children tortured, dishonored, disembowelled,
e-t in pieces by those savage soldiers, who are paid and kept by tyrants to kill,
8laughter and dishonor the half breed nation." " To arms, to arms, or will yon
erouch and submit ? God tells you to follow me. The Holy Ghost is with you in

Y person; courage, we will conquer." Oh, my poor people, I could not restrain
them ; they were under the infatuation of this arch actor and trickster till he got
themn committed by the effusion of blood; thon they were in his power, and ho used
that power without any feeling of mercy. I heard him say and proclaim, " Death,death, death, to anyone who tries to desert," and many of the poor people had guns
Pointed at their bearts, by Riel's orders, because ho suspected them of wishing to
get away, and to complote his terrorism over the poor people ho declared it to be his
deterniination to put me thus, deponent, in the front of the battle.

I knew Phillip Garnot, I saw him among the people in the'rebel camp, but I am
tertain ho did not take any part with Riel until the 21st or thereabouts. I spoke to

I and expostulated with 4im on being among the misguided people. " What can
do ?" said ho, " I am forced to bo here, my lite would bo taken did i refuse to

appear to act at least, and now I must do all I can to save the lives of the poor
cople who are shut up in Battleford, that is what consoles me in this dreadfulaffair;

t mnay prevent the attack or give timely warning to save the lives of the Canadians."
And I sincerely believe that Garnot was acting under compulsion and in foar of his
Own life; also, I know that ho was always good and kind to the prisoners while they
Were in his power or within his reach or succor, and ho was always kind and con-
8iderate and polite to myself, unlike Dumont, Riel and others, who were threatening,
brutal and insulting towards me.

7. I also declare that during the trouble I had conversations with several of the
persons who were in the rebel camp with Riel, and 1 found a large number of thom
there against their will, and only remained there because of the fear of being shot
dOwn did they try to escape or desert, as sentence of death had been proclaimed
eainst all persons who would try and get away. I wish to particularly mention
q4 xime Lapine, Moise Ouellette, Pierre Parenteau, Emmanuel Champagne, and as-
' before mentioned, Philip Garnot, all of whom I firmly beliove were kept in the
rebel camp through terror of their own lives and for foar of their families being
Palnished, should they attempt to escape.

8. Alexander Fisher, I can posi tively say,would have escaped while at St. Laurent,
bUt for the fact that ho had lis two little daughters in the convent school thore, but
teared the vengeance of Riel should ho escape. I saw Fisher from day to day.

e never had arms or did he take any interest or part in Riel's acts or proceedings
exCept when forced to do so, and I knew that in simple derision ho once signed a
:.per as Lieutenant-Governor of the North-West Territories, and told me the next
tinle ho met me, and I laughed with him at the joke, for it was nothing else. -Riel
3lays compelled lukewarm persons to commit themselves if pousible in writtug,s er knew this, and in derision and to mark bis contempt for which ho was com-
Pelled to sign, wrote himself Lieutenant-Governor of the North-West.

9 . In conclusion, as an humble and old servant of God, and as one who has been
%venteen years among the half -breeds of this country, who knows their simplicity,

hW easily they are led away by designing and conscionless peopLe, such as this man
, Who being one of themselves, who was looked upon as their born and natural

ier, one who knows well that the poor ignorant hall-breeds wore encouraged ou
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from step to stop in the late uprising tilt their false white pretended friends and
their English fellow half-breeds left theni on the very verge of rebellion and blood-
shed, in the name of God, I, His most humble servant, in the agony of my aged and
suffering beart, cry aloud to the judge before whom these poor deluded, deceived
Lalf-breeds have to appear for sentence, mercy I Oh, earthly judge, in the name of
tbe great Judge in Heaven, from whose sacred lips the proclamation of mercy as le
expired on the croiss of salvation was given to the world-in His name, mercy.

V, FOURMOND.
Sworn and acknowledged before me at Regina,

in the North-West Territories, this 7th day
of August, A D. 1885.

CHAs. NOLIN, Justice of the Peace in and for the North- West Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. MAXIME LEPINE.
CANADA.

North-West Territories,
To wit:

1, Charles Nolin, of St. Laurent Parish, in the North-West Territories, contrac-
tor, make oath and say:

1. When the rebellion began said Lepine was off on a freighting trip from TroY
to Prince Albert, and on the 19th of March last past, by threatening and opposing
Louis Riel, at the imminent risk of his, the said Lepine's own life, saved mine, and
afterwards, on the 21st day of March and other days, prevented, in the same manner,
the massacre of other persons whom the said Riel had made prisoners and wishe.i tO
take the lives of.

2. On the night that said Lepine and myself were sent to demand the surrender
of Fort Carlton by Major Crozier, said Riel in a speech incited the people saying,
« Now is tho time, let us go and take Carlton; let us go and avenge the death Of
Goulet (menning the Goulet who lost bis life in the year 18i0, after the arrival of the
troops at Fort Garry), and the said Maxime Lepine and Moise Ouellette (now await
iDg sentence for treason-felony) were the men who, at the imminent risk of theit
own lives, interposed between the said Riel and the excited people, and prevented e
nidnight attack on Fort Carlton, which might have resulted in a fearful massacre.

3. I heard said Lepine often say that the rebellion would not have bogun had hO
been at home.

4. On the Sunday before the battle of Duck Lake, Riel ordered Lepine to go
with a party to take Lieutenant-Governor Dewdney prisoner (it having bee00
reported that the Governor was on his way north with Colonel Irvine), ad Lepilie
positively refused to go, or to be a party to such an outrage, whereupon Dumont
aid, " I will go and take him prisoner, and if necessary wilt wash my hands in his

blood."
5. Two hours before the fight at Duck Lake I had a very serious conversation

with said Lepine, in the course of which I said to him that from the appearance Of
things I feared that there would ho bloodshed before many hours, and that I Ws
determiued to escape as I would not under any circumstances be present at anY
act of blood. Lepine replied: "I also from my soul condemn the very thought o
any blood being Epilled, Riel las most solemnly pledged himself to me that no blooô
will be spilled. i have confidence in his promises in that respect, and I believe it to
be my duty, even at personal risk and danger, to remain here and prevent bloodshed
abould Riel prove false in his pledges to me." And I thus depose, and am fully col-
vinced that Lopine was actuated by the humane motive of preventing bloodshed bY
remaining in the rebel camp.

6. When I escaped he solemnly declared that ho would not fight nor countenaOO
any fighting, noer would ho ever take up arms. OfHIÀ. NOLLN.
Sworn before me at Regina, in the said

Territories, this 7th day of August,
A.D. 1885. 1

1fr. LEJuNE, a Justice of the Peace in and for the North-West Territories.
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THE QUEEN vs. ALEXANDER P. FISHER.

CANADA:
North-West Territories,

To wit.:
I Charles Nolin, of St. Laurent Parish, in the North-West Territories, con-

tractor, make oath and say:
1. That Alexander P. Fisher, above mentioned, was sent for by Louis Riel on or

about the twenty-first day of March last past, who directed four or five armed mon to,
go and bring tim, the said Fisher, to the Council, and the said four or five mon

nflose names are not known to me brought said Fisher by force, to the place where
Said council held its meetings at that time, from, as I believe, his own bouse.

2. The said Fisher was thon a widower, and his three children were at the
Eisters' school at said St. Laurent, and the said Fisher had a valuable cable and ferry
boat at Batoche.

3. On the twenty-fifth day of March, Albert Monkman, Baptiste Boyer, William
Oyer, George Fisher, the younger, and said Alexander P. Fisher and myself, made

a secret compict at the house of said Baptiste Boyer, that each and every of us would
escape and thercafter could not escape for want of a horse, and for other reasons
"hich prevented lis escape.

4. The said Alexander P. Fisher was, to my certain and personal knowledge,
always oppose.d to the rebellion, and that every act done by him up to that time

5(2 th March. '885), in the rebellion, was done when forced by Riel to do the same,
and that his refusal would have endangered bis life.

CHAS. NOLINi
8worn before me at Regina, in said

Territories, this 7th day of
August, A.D. 1885. 1

ix. LEJEUNE, a Justice of the Peace in and for the said Territories.

QUEEN vs. JOSEPH AR JAND, AL EXANDER CADIEUX AND OTEHERS.
CANADA:

North-West Territories,
To wit I

1, Robert Jefferson, of Battleford, in the North-West Territories, farm instructor,
lake oath and say:

1. That Arcand and Cidieux, above mentioned, were at Battleford daring the
latter part of the rebellion for the purpose of standing between the Indians on one
side and the bal t-breeds and teamsters and other white people on the other, and they
did nothing else during their stay in the camp.

2. I saw Alexander Cadieux, above mentioned, alias "Kitty-way-hoe," standing
at the door of the tent of the scout Fontaine a prisouer about the sixth day of May
last past, anid keeping the Indians away from the said tent.

8. That the said Arcand and Cadieux, while in said camp, did nothing criminal
or disloyal, on the contrary their actions were all on the side of humanity and order.

ROBERT JEFFERSON.
eWorn before me at Regina, in said

Territories, this 1lth day of
August, A.D. 1885.

Hy. LE JiEUNE, a Justice of the Peace in and for the North- West Territories.
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THE QUEEN vs. ALBERT MONKMAN.

CANADA:
North-West 'erritories,

To wit:
I, Charles Nolin, of St. Laurent Parish, in the NorLth-West Territories, contractor,

make oath and say:
1. On the nineteenth day of March last past, Louis Riel caused my arrest and

trial before himself and asseriates, and the said Albert Monkman spoke in English
to said Riel very strongly against the course he had taken in causing my arrest, and
against aniy further steps or any trial taking place, and afterwards, when Riel and
Gabriel Dumont urged the people to condein me to death, said Monkman, both fat
that time, and after such trial, opposed Riel with all his might.

2. The said Monkman, when afterwards sent with me aind a guard of twenty
mon to ask the English half-breeds to join the rebels, did not advise them to go, but,
on the contrary, advised them to romain at home, as ho was anxious to hinder and
prevent any attack upon Fort Carlton and thereby prevent bloodshed.

3. The said Monkman was most anxious to escape at that time, but wished to re-
lase the prisoners first, which ho stated ho was able to do or expected to be able
to do.

4. On the twenty-sixth day of March last past, before the Battle of Duck Lake,
h, the said Monkman, tried to allow the prisoners thon at Duck Lake to escape, andl
nearly succeeded in doing so.

CHAS. NOLIN.
Sworn before me at Regina, in said

Territories, this 7th day of
August, A.D. 1885. 1

Hy. LEJEUNE, a Justice of the Peace for the said Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. EMMANUEL CHAMPAGNE.

CANADA:
North-West Territories,

To wit:

I, Charles Nolin, of St. Laurent Parish, in the North-West Territories, contractorr
make oath and say:

1. That Emmanuel Champagne above named roturned to his home at Batoche, 1O
said Territories, on or about the twenty-first day of March last past, and that d uring
his absence ho had been made a councillor in Riel's provisional government.

2. He directed bis name to be erased from the list of said councillors at once 00
hearing of sane, which was not, bowever, done aLd said to me that ho was against
having anything to do with the rebellion, and that his age should have prevented bio
being forced to take part in eame.

3. He was not a participant in the battle at Duck Lake, nor in the robberies,
which, up to that time, had taken place, nor had ho up to that time taken any part
in the illegal measures of said council.

4. He resided only about one-half of a mile from the place where said council
then held its sittings, and was at home except when sent for and compelled to go to
said sittings by Riel's agents.

CHAS. NOLIN.
Sworn before me at Regina, this

Tth day of August, A. D.
1885. 1

HY. LEJEUNE, a Justice of the Peace in and for said Territories.,
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THE QUEEN vs. ALBERT MONKMAN AND OTHERS.
CANADA:

North-West Territories,
To wit:

i, Vital Fourmond, of St. Laurent, in the North-West Territories, priest, make
oath and say:

1. That said Albert Monkman during the rebellion tried to oscapo from Batoche
ad to desert from the camp of Riol, but was discovered in the act of doing so and was
terafter made a prisoner by the rebels, and was thoreafter until the end of the

rebellion a prisoner of Riel's.
V. POURMOND.

ýWOrn before me at Regina, in the
North-West Territories, this
7th day of August, A.D. 1885.)

CHAS. NOLIN, a Justice o! the Place in and for said Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. FRANCIS TOUROND AND PATRIQE TOUROND.
CANADA:

torth-West Territories.
To wit:

1, Roger Goulet, of Batoohe, in the North-West Territories, farmer, make oath
4d Ésay :

1. From the twentioth day of March last past to the thirteenth day of April
St pat, Francis Toucond, above mentioned, was not at Batoche in said Territories,t t was at his mother's house, near Fish Creek, and never went to said Batoche untilhe time of the battle of Fish Creok.

2. About the twenty-third day of March last past, Louis Riel came to the church
"hre the people were assembled and told them : " You will go to Garnot's and get
14 prisoners and give them over to the Indians to kill thom to-night; also the two

su1Oners at Solomon Venn's, but you will see that the Indians do not torture them."
bea Patrice Tourond stopped forward and said: " If you kill those mon you must
i1 me first." Riel then said in a kind of huff: "Tout Tourond " meaning your name

8 all round and you will romain all round.

bee43 I have known both of said Touronds over seven years and they have always
sober, honest men and were of the best mon in the North-West.

ROGER GOULET.
Worn before me at'Regina, in saidR

Territories, this 7th day of
August, A.D. 1885.

CHAS. NOLIN, J. P., a Justice of the Peace'in and for the said Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. ALBERT MONKýMAN AND OTHERS.

CANADA :
WerthWst Territories,

To wit: 
e, Charles Newitt, of Prince Albert, in the North-West Territories, merchant's

ea k,' malke oath and say:

ait 1. I was wounded and left on the field of the battle of. Duck Lake, and shortly
ter the said Albort Monkman came to me and said he was sorry that the battle had

en place and that I had been wounded, and he offered to do all that ho could for
clle ofifort, and afterwards came to me every day. I was in the robel camp from

tj twuenty-sixth to the thirtieth day of March last past, he offering me the same

52-26
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. le said, after the battle, that he would go to the Council and try to get the othOr
prisoners as well as myself off, and a while afterwards ha returned to me saying that
he had got the consent of the Council to my being lot off, and thought he had suc-
ceeded in getting their consent to lettiug all the others off, except Lash and Rose,
whom the other members of the Council would not let off because they were officer
of the Government; he appeared to be one of the best of the whole lot while I was
there.

3. After I was taken up stairs at Duck Lake he came to us and told us (the
prisoners) to keep away from the windows for fear that the Indians would shoot u.

C UARLES NEWITT.
Sworn before me at Regina,this

12th day of August, A. D.
1885.

OwzN Iuouza, a Justice of the Peace in and for the North- West Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. PIILIP GARIEPIE AND OTIERS.

CANADA
North-West Territories,

To wit:
1, Eleazer Swain, of Batoche, in the North-West Territories of Canada, farmer,

make oath and say:
1. That immediately after the fight at Duck Lake I arrived upon the ground,

and there saw Philip Gariepie and a number of others near to where Charles Newitt
was then sitting.

2. Newitt appeared to have been wounded, and exhibited signs of having bOe
struck upon the forehead and hand, and a conversation was going on among those
about as to the cause. I heard it stated by several of these people, who were half-
breeds and Indians, that the said Newitt had been struck in the manner above mel'
tioned by an Indian. His

ELEAZER X SWAIN.
Mark.

Sworn before me at Regina, in said Terri-
tories, this 6th day of August, A.D. i
1885, aflter having been first read and þ
then explained to the deponent, who
made his mark thereto in my prosence. J

IHUGI RIHARDSoN, Stipendiary Magistrate for the North- West Territories.

TUE QUEEN vs. EMMANUEL CHAMPAGNE.

CANADA:
North-W est Territories,

To wit:
1, Thomas McKay, of Prince Albert, in the North-West Territories, Esquire,

make oath and say: 'fhat I am well acquainted with Emmanuel Champagne, who ha0
always borne a good character up to the time of the rebellion, and who interposed tO
save mÀy life, as I have already deposed in the cate of the Queen vs. Louis Riel.

THOMAS MoKAY.

Sworn before me at Regina, in
the said Territories, this 7th
day of August, A.D. 1885. )

lly. LzJuuNz, a Justice of the Peace in and for the said Territories.
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QUEEN vs. EMIMANUEL CHAMPAGNE, ALEXANDER P. FISIIER,
PHILIP GARIEPIE, PIERRE GARTEPIE, PIERRE HENRI. MAXIME
LEPINE, PIERRE PARENTEAU, MOISE PARENTEAU, JOSEPH PILON,
BAPTISTE ROCHELEAU, FRANCIS TOUROND, PATRICE TOUROND,
BAPTISTE VANDAL, PIERRE VANDAL AND JOSEPH ARCAND.

CANADA:
orth-West Territories.

To wit:

1, Hillyard Mitchell, of Duck Lake, in the North-West Territories, Esquire, make
Oath and say:

1 I have for some time been personally acquainted with each and every of the
bove named, Emmanuel Champagne and others, and have for several years been one

of er Majesty's justices of the peace in and for the said Territories.
2. From my personal knowledge of the above named, Emmanuel Champagne and

others, I have no hesitation in stating that they had always been honest and p;eaceable
111habitants and law-abiding and loyal subjects of Her Majesty the Queen to the time
of the late rebellion.

HILLYARD MITCHELL.
5Worn before me at Regina, in the

North-West Territories, this 7th
day of August, A.D. 1885.

CnAs. NOLIN, a Justice of the Peace in and for the said Territories.

E QUEEN vs. EMMANUEL CHAMPAGNE, JOSEPH ARCAND, PIERRE
HENRI, IGNACE POITRAS (THE ELDER), IGNACE POITRAS (TRE
YOUNGER), PIERRE PARENTEAU, MOISE PARENTEAU, JOSEPH
PILON, BAPTISTE VANDAL, MOISE OUELLETTE, MAXIME LEPINE,
ALBERT MONKMAN, MAXIME DUBOIS, ALEX. P. FISHER, PATRICE
TOUROND AND FRANCIS TOUROND, ET AL.

CANADA.
Orth-West Territories.

To wit: 

We, Harold Edward Ross, Peter Tomkins, William Tomkins and Thomas East.God Jackson, all of Prince Albert District, in the said Territories, severally make04th and say :
1. That during the time of our imprisonment in the rebel camp at Batoche and

einity we received considerate treatment and kindness from the above named
endants, Joseph Arcand and others, some of them supplying us with food,rthors of them protecting us as mach as in their power lay from attacks of the

4 lians, cautioning us to keep away from the windows and doors for fear of beingrit at by Indians and others, and generally exhibited a spirit of kindness and
feeling towards us. They aiso, many of them, stood between us and threat-

eat at the hands of Louis Riel, to the best of our information. We, therefore,
to1 it a duty, as Christian men, to recommend them in turn to the mercy of the

rt. We especially recommend Baptiste Vandal, Ignace Poitras, Joseph Pilon,
atiste Rocheleau, Albert Monkman, Alexander P. Fisher, Emmanuel Champagne

'11 Patrice Tourond to the mercy of the court for their marked humanity and kind-
sto us while in prison. And this declaration on our part is not a new-born

QUI ig. Whilst we were prisonors we mutually determined, should we escape with
the.i Ives, that, should these men, in turn, be arrested and imprisoned, and put upon

1r trial, that we, in gratitude for their kindness, would not fail to come forward
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and give evidence on their behalf, which we now do, and we earnestly recommend
them to the consideration and mercy of their judge.

HAROLD E. ROSS,
PETER TOMKINS,
WILLIAM TOMKINS,
TROS. E. JACKSON.

Sworn before me and acknowledged by the)
deponents, Harold Edward Ross, Peter 1
Tomkins, William Tomkins and Thos.
Eastwood Jackson, at Regina, in said
Territories, this 7th day of August,
A.D. 1885. J

DIXIE WATSON, (6lerk of thàe Court.

THE QUEEN vs. MAXIME DUBOIS.

CANADA:
North-West Territories,

To wit :

I, George Ness, of Batoche, in the North-West Territories, contractor, make oath
and say:

That Maxime Dubois, above named, frequently told me during the rebellion that
he was desirous of escaping and would do so were it not for his wife and family of
five or six children, and to the best of my knowleige, information and belief, ho took
a very minor part in the rebellion and would not have done anything at all had he
not been forced to do so on peril of his life.

GEORGE NESS.
Swoin before me at Regina, in the

said Territories, this 7th day of
August, A.D. 1885.

DIXIE WATSON, Clerk of the Court.

THE QUEEN vs. JOSEPH PILON.
CANADA :

North-West Territories,
To wit:

I, George Ness, of Batoche, in the North-West Territories, farmer, make oath
and say: That I have good reason to believe and do verily believe that Joseph Pilot,,
above named, tried to avoid being connected with the rebellion of 18b5 by hidiflg
and in other divers ways, and that had it not been for his wife and family of eleven
children, would have succeeded in so doing, and would not be in prison to-day. The
said Pilon resided for several years near where my residence thon was, and I had
the best opportunity for arriving at the above belief.

The said Pilon took a very minor part in said rebellion, and that on peril of his
life and against his will.

GEORGE NESS.
Sworn before me at Regina, in

said Territories, this 7th day
of August, A.D. 1885.

DIX1 WATSON, (Jerk of the Court.
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THE QUEEN vs. MOISE PARENTEAU AND BAPTISTE VANDAL.
CANADA:

North-West Territories,
To wit:

I, George Ness, of Batoche, in the North-West Territories, farmer, make oath and

1. That Moise Parenteau, above named, and Baptiste Vandal, above named, were
very kind to the prisoners, on or about the twenty-first day of March last past, and,
I believe, took a very minor part in the rebellion and not of their own free will.

GEORGE NESS.
8worn before me at Regina, inG

said Territories, the 7th day
of August, A.D. 1885.

DixiE WATSON, Clerk of the Court.

THE QUEEN vs. ALEXANDER P. FISHER AND PHILIP GARNOT.

CANADA:
North-West Territories,

To wit:
1, Louis Marion, of Duck Lake, in the North-West Territories, freighter, make

Oath and say:
1. That Alexander P. Fisher, above mentioned, was a prisoner at large, and not

unldor arms from eighteenth to twentieth March last past, staying at home, except
when sent for by Louis Riel and brought by force to Batoche, in said Territories,
across the river from his home.

2. That Philip Garnot, above mentioaed, had no connection with the rebellion
Unttil the twentieth day of March last past, or thereabout, when ho was brought by
force from his boarding bouse to the church, both at Batoche and in said Territories,
anâd ho began to act as secretary, taking no personal or individual part in the doings
Of the Council, but merely acting as a scribe to the Council.

LOUIS MARION.
8 worn before me at Regina, in said)

Territories, this 7th day of
August, A.D. 185.

CHARLES NOLIN, a Justice of the Peace in and for the said Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. ALEXANDER P. FISHER.
CANADA:

North-West Territories,
To wit:

I, George Ness, of ·Batoche, in the North-West Territories, farmer, make oath8bd say :
1. That the said Alexander P. Fisher, on or about the 27th day of March last

past, informed me that ho was against the rebellion, and had tried to escape, but
6iled to do so, and that ho would not Le there at all had it not been for his children.
2. To the best of my knowledge, information and beliof, ho did Dot, of his own

tee will during the whole rebellion, commit any rebellious or treasonable act, but at
h risk of bis life and in the presence of and under superior force.

GEORGE NESS.
Orn before me at Regina, in the saidG

Territories, this 7th day of August,
A..D. 1885. 1

DIXIE WATSON, Clerk of the Court.
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TIIEQUEEN vs ALEXANDER P. FISHER AND OTHERS.
CANADA:

North-West Territories.
To wit:

I, Harry Walters, of Prince Albert, in the North-Wiest Territories, merchant,
make oath and say:

1. That Alexander P. Fisher, above named, was, during the time I was a pris-
oner of Riel's from the 18th to the 21st day of March last past, a prisoner at large of
said Riel's and informed me that ho only wished to protect his property thera, and i
believe that ho tried to prevent some of the rebels from getting any propertY
stored in his house.

2. During that time ho never carried arms of any kind.
H. WALTERS.

Sworn before mo at Regina, in
said Territories, this 7th
day of August, A.D. 1885.

J. ANSDELL MACRAE, Justice of the Peace in and for North- West Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. ALEXANDER P. FISÉER.
CANADA:

North-West Territories.
To wit: l

I, Hillyard Mitchell, of Duck Lake, in the North-West Territories, merchant,
make oath and say:

1. I have well known Fisher during tbe last nine years, and he is a faithful,
honest man, and I have never heard him utter a sentiment of disloyalty.

2. On or about 20th day of March last past he informed me ho was a prisoner
at large of Louis Riel's at Batoche, taking no part in the rebellion, and said he would
leave but wanted to stay to care for his family and property, and to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief ho was a bitter enemy of the said Riel from the
time the said Riel came to the country on and until the breaking out of the rebellion,
and never was by his own free will a rebel, and only allowed himself to be used in
the movement from a natural weakness for absurdity and being laughed at, and nlot
from any evil or criminal intention.

HILLYARD MITCHELL.
Sworn before me at Regina, in the

said Territories, this 7th day of
August, 1885.

H. LEJEUN E, a Justice of the Peace in and for the said Territories.

THE QUEEN vs. IGNACE POITRAS, THE ELDER, BAPTIS'E VANDAL,
PHILIP GARIEPIE, PIERRE GARIEPIF, ALEXANDER P. FISIHIR,
MAXIME LEPINE, MOISE OUELLETTE, PIERRE PARENTEAU ANI)
EMMANUEL CHAMPAGNE.

CANADA:
North-West Territories,

To wit:
I, Thomas McKay, of Prince Albert, in tho North-West Territories, Esquire,

make oath and say :-
1. I have been for some time personally acquainted with each and every of th"

above named, Ignace Poitras, the elder, and others, and have, during a long timne
past, been a magistrate in and for the said Territories.

2. From my personal knowledge of the above named parties I have no hesitation
in saying that they have always enjoyed the reputation of being honest and peace
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able inhabitants, and I had ever recognized thom as law-abiding and loyal citizens of
her Majesty the Queen at the time of the late rebellion.

THIOMAS McKAY.
8eorn before me at Regina, in

the said Territories, this 7th
day ot August, A.D., 1885.

HILLYARD MITCHELL, a Justice (f the Peace in andfor the said Territories.

111E QUEEN v8. JOSEPH ARCAND, ALEXANDER CADIEUX, AND
OTHERS.

CANADA:
Xorth.West Territories,

To wit :
I, Louis Cochin, of Battleford, in the North-West Territories, priest, being duly

aWorn, depose and say :
1i I was a prisoner in the camp of Poundmaker from about the twelfth of Aprit

till about the sixteenth of May, or to the time of Riel's surrender, the news of which
teached us four days later.

2. I saw Joseph Arcand, who is well known to me, for the first time among
those in the camp on the third of May; it was Sunday, about seven o'clock in the
evening. The said Arcand had, I understood, just arrived with others from Batoche,
'Whence they had been sent by Riel to protect the prisoners from the savages.

3. Joseph Arcand was one of the most ardent of the half-breeds in protecting the
Prisoners from boing killed, maltreated or robbed by the savages; he was always ont4 watch to guard the prisoners from danger, and I was indebted to him for his
4evOted protection of mysolf from danger and annoyance. I passed nearly half the
t'1o with him and he never used one solitary expression of disloyalty towards the
oGJernment, nor did he ever commit any hostile act; lie occupied himself altogether
attending to the safety of the prisoners, white and half-breed, in the camp.

4. It was Joseph Arcand who was specially active and successfut in saving the
of one of the white prisoners, a teamster, who is I believe at present in Regina.

Arcand also protected a scout named Fontaine from threatened death at the hands of
the Assiniboines, that same scout Fontaine who so ungratefully accused his protectors
0 his return to Battleford. This follow Fontaine, to my personal knowledge, is
toýl1y unworthy of any belief, ho is well known as a gaol bird, and in fact was
tberated from gaol to become a scout. Joseph Arcand had left Poundmaker's camp

ee days before we heard of the battile at Batoche-
. 5 Pierre Vandal came to Poundmaker's camp at the same time with Arcand.
18 young fellow seemed to be a follower of the others simply through curiosity as

otcoinpanion of some of the other half-breeds, and when ho mounted guard with the
ersait was for the sole and only purpose of protecting the prisoners from the

de ages, who wore only prevented from falling upon the prisoners by the most
VOted and. active efforts of the half-breed guards. 1 otten passed hours with this

h g man Vandat and conversed with him and spoke to him in condemnation of
th and in favor of the Government, to which ho assented and often condemned

rebellion. During all the time he was in the camp he positively did nothing but
htet to the very best of his power, the prisoners, white and half-breeds, from
e savages, to which ho devoted his whole attention; his conduct was invariably

1UsoWoithy and kind. I am bound in conscience and gratitude to accord to him my%t thanks and strong recommendation.
Alexander Cadieux, alias "Kitty-way-hoe," came to the camp with the others

"eo Inentioned. He is a pure savage, but has lived among the half-breeds, and is
Yery ignorant. Ho has a great deal of influence with the savages, and through that

1ence ho was enabled to save the lives of the teamster prisoners who.were on the
cnt of being killed by the Indians, who wore very furious and determined. As

e Whose life was saved by the combined exertions and devotion of these poor men,aI hfe was every moment in danger, I cannot suffliciently express my.thanks to
anK1d my gratitude to these poor men, and pray at the hands of the judge who ils
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to pass the sentence of the law upon them, a merciful view of any fault they ma:Y
bave ignorantly committed, in view of the fact that they risked their own lives tO
save the lives of Her Majesty's subjects-men, women and children-from the f urY
of the savages. L. COCRIN.

Sworn to and acknowledged before me,
at Regina, in the North-West Ter-
ritories aforesaid, this 13th day of
August, A. D. 1885. J

DixiE WATSON, Clerk of the Court.

THE QUEEN vs. ALBERT MONKMAN, MAX[tIE LEPINE AND BAPTISTil
VANDAL AND ALEXANDER P. FI:SIIER AND PHILIP GARNOT.

CANADA:
North-West Territories,

To wit: I
I, Thomas Sanderson, of Carrot River Settlement, in the North-West Territories,

farmer, make oath and say:
1. The night of the twenty-first day of March last past, when I was arrested and

made a prisoner, Albert Monkman came to me evincing a friendly feeling, asked Me
my name and where I lived; ho thon asked me what I intended to say to Louis Riel,
whon I would be brought before him. I answered that I was determined to give MY
mind fully to Riel, to condemn him and his actions strongly and to tell him that the
man who was accused of being the murdorer of Scott in former days was not 01
who should attempt to plunge the halt-breeds into revolution, which would lead tO
disaster and death. Monkman said, " for God's sake, if you value your own. lifo don t
do that, temporize with him rather than irritate hirm, which may lead to the loss of
your life, as I know that you stand in very great danger, because of the feeling
against the Carrot River settlers generally, and against you in particular." IO
cautioned me not to speak to him or appear friendly in the piesence of Riel, for, said
ho, "I am already suspected by Riel, but be assured that I willi do everything in
my power for you." Next when the release of the prisoners, Peter Tomkins,
William Tomkins, John W. Astley and Newitt was under consideration Monk
man advocated and pleaded for their release before Riel and the council at
Duck Lake; and in consequence of Monkman's advocacy stronglyexpressed, and the
strongly expressed advice of Maxime Lepine and Baptiste Vandal, who sided
with and supported Monkman on bebalf of the prisoners, it was carried that
the prisoners should be liberated, but Dumont opposed it, whoreupon Riel
ordered Monkman to saddle a horse and go to Carlton, as I firIlY
believe, for the purpose of getting him away, and the consequenOO
was, the prisoners were not released. In consequence of the conduct of Monkman,
Lepine and Vandal, on behalf of the prisoners, I feel it a duty to strongly recorn'
mend them to the most favorable consideration and mercy of the court. - I further
state that Monkman declared to me, and ho appeared to be sincere, that ho would
do anything in his power to prevent Riel from bringing the Indians into the rising,
as ho said if they were brought into it, bloodshed would follow. I believe that he
did do all that ho could in thait respect, but I knew that ho appeared to be suspected
and watched by Riel, and ho was kept as much as possible out of the way by being
sent or ordered off from one place to another, and never appeared to have much
opportunity of making himself heard in the Council. While I was a prisoner, PhiliP
Garnot evinced a friendly feeling towards the other prisoners and myself, bringing
us tobacco and books both at Duck Lake and Batocahe. At Batoche we were in hi
house, as ho stated by his rcquest of Riel in our behalf, and we were all well fed anld
attended to by him while there. THOMAS SANDERSON.
Sworn before me at Regina, in said

Territories, this 7th day of
August, A.D. 1885. )

DIXIX WATSON, Clerk Of the Court.
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RETURN
(SUPPLEMENTARY, PARTIAL)

(52a)
an ADDRESS of the HOUSE OF COMMONS, dated 5th March, 1886 ;-For
copies of all documents forming the record in the cases of Her Majesty
against the different parties tried in connection with the late Rebele
lion, including the Jury Lists, the names of the Jurors, the lists of the
Jurors empannelled, the motions and affidavits filed, the evidence,
the incidents of the trial, the charges of the Judge, the names of the
Judges who tried the different cases, the names of the Counsel for the
prosecution and for the defence, the pleas entered, the verdicts, and the
sentences, and in short of every documeit whatever relating to the
said trials.

By Command.
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

bepartment of the Secretary of State, Secretary of Btate.
16th March, 1886.

DEPARTMENT OF JUsTIcE, OTTAwA, 16th March, 1886.
As a supplementary partial return to an Address of the Honorable the Houselof
mons, dated the 5th inst., for copies of all documents forming the record in the

eýsO of Her Majesty against the different parties tried in connection with the late
%ellion, including the jury lists, the names of the juror3, the lists of all jurors
!pannelled, the motions and affidavits filed, the evidence, the incidents of the trial,
%echarges of the judge, the names of the judges who tried the different cases, the

nes of the counsel for the prosecution and defence, the pleas entered, the verdicts
'ked the sentences and in short, of every document whatever relating to said trials,
%e lundersigned has the honor to transmit herewith transcripts of the records and
>oreedings in the eleven cases mentioned in the schedule hereto annexed.

A. POWER, for D..M.J.

SCHEDULE.
Purther Return (in part) of all cases of Her Majosty against the different parties

à in connection with the late Rebellion.
Name. Place.

1. Manachoos (Bad Arrow) and Kittimakegin (Miserable Man)... Battleford.
2, Papub-make-sick (Round the Sky).................................... do
3. Pa-pa-mah-cha-kwayo (Wandering Spirit)........................... do
4- Apis.chaskoos (Little Bear)............................................. do
5. Louison Mongrain.............................. do
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Name. Place.
6. Wah-wah-LNitch (Man without Blood)...............................Battleford.
7. Ikta .......................................................................... do
8. Nabpaee (Iron Body).................................... ............. do
9. Charles Ducharme alias Charlebois, and Wa-waa-seh-oween

(Dressy Main) ....................... do

QUEEN v&. MANACHOOS (Bn ARnow), KITTIMAKEGIN (MIsERABLE MANI.)
Çapy of Record and Proceedingis.

CANADA: '
North-West Territories. f

The information and complaint of John Alfred Martin, of Battleford, in the
Nobrth-West Territories of Canada, Sergeant in the North.West Mountqd Police,
taken the second day of October in the year of Our Lord one thousand eight huo-
dred and eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's StpendiarY
Magistrates in and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith:

That Manachoos, otherwise called Bad Arrow and Kittimakegin, otherwis
called Miserable Man, on the second day of April, in the year of Our Lord one thou-
sand eight hundreu and eighty-lve, at the locality known as Frog Lake, in the North-
Wst Territories oi Canada, aforesaid, did feloniously and wilfolly, and of their malice
aforethought, kill and murder one Charles Gouin against the form of the statuW
in such case made and provided, and against the peace of Our Lady the Queen he
Crown and dignity.

J. A. MARTIN.
Signed before me the day, month and year)

first above mentioned at Battleford, in
the North-West Territories of Canada.

CHAs. B ROULEA,
Stipendiary Magistrate for N. W.T.

CANADA,
North.West Territories,

Saskatchewan District,
Battleford Division.

Tno secoud day of October in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred
and eighty-five in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the North-Weo
Territorios of Canada;

Before Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West Terre,
tories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of the ParhW'
ment of Canada passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign and the amend
ments thereto, entitled : " An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acts rel*
ing to the North-West Territories;

Manachoos (Bad Arrow) and Kittimakegin (Miserable Man), two Cree India 0n
of Frog Lake, in the North-West Territories aforesaid, who are now prisoners in o1o
custody at Battleford aforesaid, stand charged this day before the said stipendiarf
magistrate sitting in public open court, assembled for the trial of the said ManachO00
(Bad Arrow) and Kittimakegin (Miserable Man).

For that they the said flanachoos (Bad Arrow) and Kittimakegin (Miserablo
Man), on the second day of April, one thousand eight nundred and eighty-five, a
the locality known as Frog Lake in the North-West Territories of Canada aforesf6 '
did feloniously aLd wiliully and of their malice aforethought, kill and murder o00
Charles Gouin, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided a0
against the peace ofl Our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity;

Being duly arraigned the prisoners to this indictment plead-Not guilty.
William McKay, Esq., after having been duly sworn, acted as interpreter.
William Sharpe, Esq., Barrister, represents the Crown.

2
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The prisoners being asked»whether they wished to be tried by the stipendiary
Xagistrate alone, or the stipendiary magistrate and a justice of the peace, with the
Ilâtervention of a jury, make their option to ho tried by the stipendiary magistrate
alone.

With the consent of the prisoners their trial is fixed for the third day ot
October, 18e5.
e&TTLEFORD, 2nd October, 1885.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for N. W.T.

BATTLEFORD, 3rd October, 1885.
Present :-Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-WOes

eI1rritories; William Sharpe, Esq., Barrister, Crown prosecutor, and William Mackay,
lsq., interpreter.

The case of the Queen vs. Manachoos (Bad Arrow) and Kittimakegin (Miserable
kan), accused of murder, being called, was proceeded with.

Evidence of Prosecution
Toussaint, alias Calling Bull, a Cree Indian, being duly sworn, doth depose and

ay :--I was living at Frog Lake for about five yearg. I worked for Delaney, the
indian farm instructor. I was at Frog Lake at the time of the massacre. It was
the third of the month, and three days after Sunday, in the spring of this year, early
In the morning of that day I was in Pritcbard's house. When I came out of the
iýOuse I saw Indians all round, amongst them the two prisoners. Charles Gouin was

oraing from the direction where the sun rises towards me. When Charles Gouin
Fw Quinn fall after being shot, he turned back to retrace his stops, and the prisoner

a')]nuachoos (Bad Arrow) fired and shot Gouin, and he fell near the door of Pritchard's
house Charles Gouin fell first on his face, ho turned round and supported himself on
hi% elbow thon Kittimakegin (Miserable Man) came forward an shot him in the

heslet. He fell and choked a little while, and thon ceased to move and died.
Cross-examined by one of the prisoners :-I repeat that I saw Manachoos (Bad

row) fire first at Gouin, and Kittimakegin (Miserable Man) came up and fired
also at him, thon Gouin fell dead. It was the two prisoners who killed Gouin.

The other prisoner states that he does not intend to ask questions, as the witnesa
a% told the truth.

NAoKEsIiKooKEYAisE (Four Sky. Thunder) having solemnly affirmed to tell the
tr1th, saith as follows:-

Iwas at Frog Lake at the time of the massacre. Manachoos told me that day
that he shot Gouin, and that the letter feli down. I met Miserable Man before. I
W8 living in the same tent Miserable Man, the prisoner, told me that Bad Arrow,
he Other prisoner, fired at Gouin first, and that ho had fired at him also. Gouin was
Ying on his side when Miserable Man shot him. Bad Arrow told me the same thing

8.0o Miserable Man told me ho was urged to do so by one of Big Bear's sons and
d Arrow by Wandering Spirit. Miserable Man told me that Gouin was only

WOtInded when ho fired at him. He told me ho had shot him in the right side of
the chest.

The prisoners decline to cross-examine.
EIAMANIToWAs (Idol) being duly sworn, saith as follows:-
I Was present at the Frog Lake massacre. When I heard the first ® hots fired I

s with two other Indians near a root-house, close by Delaney's house. I thon
Went in the direction of the shooting. When I came to Delaney's house I saw a

hite Man lying at the door of Pritchard's house. I walked toward him and . heard
)tra gasping. When I was very close I saw Miserable Man, one of the prisoners, fire

4 M. The white man was lying on his back. I did not see the flesh wound, but
Whatover was in the gun went into the body. I knew the white man's name. It

as Charles Gouin (here the witness gives Gouin's Cree name). After the time
ble man had fired I went to Gouin and I heard him and saw him gasping for
-4e. Thon I went to John Pritchard's house. Whon I came out Gouin was dead.
52a-1*
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The prisoners both state that the witness told the truth and decline to cross-
examine him.

This closes the case on behalf of the Crown.
The prisoners declare they have no witnesses to examine.
The prisoners are declared guilty of murder by the stipendiary magistrate.
Sentence-Death.
The two prisoners, Manachoos (Bad Arrow) and Kittimakegin (Miserable Man),

1o be hanged by the neck till death follows, on the 27th day of November, 1885.
C HAS. B. ROUL E AU, Stipendiary Magistrate for N. W.T.

BATTLEYORD, 3rd October, 1885.
I hereby certify that the above is a correct copy of all the proceedings an&

evidence had and taken in said case.
CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for N. W.T.

1B&TTLEFoRD, 5th October, 1985.

QUEEN vs. PAPUH-MAKE SICK (RoUND THE SKY),

Copy of Record and Proceedings.
CANADA:

North-West Territories.
The information and complaint of John Alfred Martin, of Battieford, in ther

North-West Territories of Canada, Sergeant in the North-West Mounted Police, takeat
his thirtieth day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundre&

und eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majosty's stipendiary magistrate0

in and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith:
That Papuh-Make-Sick, otherwise called Round the Sky, on the second day of

April, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five at the
locality known as Frog Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, di&
felonionsly and wilfully, and of his malice aforethought, kil and murder one FrançoiL
Xavier Fatard, against the form of the statute in such-cases made and provided, an&-
against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

J. A. MARTIN.
Sworn before me the day, month and year

above mentioned, at Battleford, in the
North West Territories of Canada.

CHARLEs B. ROULEAU,
Stipendiary Magistrate for the North- West Territories.

CANADA, I
North-West Territories,
Baskatchewan District,

3attleford Division.

The first day of October in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundreci
and eighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the -4orth-Wes
Territories of Canada.

Before Charles B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-Wese
Territories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of thO
Parliament of Canada passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign, and the
amendments thereto, entitled: " An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acto
relating to the North-West Territories ;"

Papuh-Make-Sick (Round-the-Sky), a Cree Indian, who is now a priSoner if
close custody at Battleford aforesaid, stands charged this day before me the said st'
rendiary magistrate, sitting in public open court, assembled for the tial of the

aapuh-Make-Siok (Round-the-Sky);
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For that ho the said Papuh-Make.Sick (Round.the-Sky) on the second day of
4 pril, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known as Frog
lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada, as aforesaid, did feloniously and.
Wilfully, and of his malice aforethought, kill and murder one François Xavier Fafard,
against the form of the statute in such case made and provided and against the peace
Of Our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

Boing duly arraigned the prisoner to this indictment pleads " not guilty."
William Mackay, Esq., after being duly sworn, acted as interpreter.
William Sharpe, Esq., barrister, represents the Crown.
The prisoner being asked whether ho wishes to be tried by the stipendiary

Inagistrate alone or by the stipendiary magistrate and a justice of the peace, with
the intervention of a jury, makes option to be tried by the stipendiary magistrate
ione.

Evidence for the Prosecution.
KOsIPEKANEW (The Thunder) having solemnly affirmed to tell the truth sayeth

as follows:_
I was present at the Frog Lake massacre three days before Easter Sunday,

1885. I saw the priest (Fafard) lying on the ground after being shot. The
first time I saw him I was about thirty feet from him, nd I went on in the same
direction as some Indians who were following some white men. Afterwards I came
back to where the priest was lying, and I saw the prisoner fire at the priest. The
Priest was lying on the ground on his face, and the prisoner fired at him on the
crown of the head. The prisoner was almost over him. He held the muzzle of the
gun quite close to his head. There were a number of Indians around. The Indians
Were saying that the priest was shamming-that he was not dead. I heard a num-.
ber of shots fired before I saw Father Fafard lying on the ground. I saw Father

'afard move after ho was lying on the ground. I heard him groan (here the witness
l'Mitates the sound ho made) alter the prisoner fired at him. I am positive of it. 1
Was at the time about twenty feet from Father Fafard.

Cross-examined:-I was about twenty feet from the prisoner and the priest when
Sheard him groan.

OsAsAwEow (a Cree Indian) being duly sworn, doth depose and say
I was present at the Frog Lake massacre. Wandering Spirit was the first man

that fired at the priest, Father Fafard. The priest fell, and I went to look at him.
lie was lying on his face. I thon bent over him and walked round him to see where
the wound was. The wound was across the middle of the neck. The ball went
through, and the blood was running. I saw also the blood running from his mouth.

and nose. I went away and came back and I saw Father Fafard lying on the ground.
There were several Indians around him when I heard them say " He is still breathing"
Wben I heard them say that, there was none very near him. Thon Manachoos, an
hIdian, told the prisoner to fire at the priest. Thon the prisoner came and fired one
shot on the crown of the head of the priest. I never saw the priest move or make
any noise. I am first cousin to the prisoner. I was around a good dual with the
Prisoner that day.

The prisorer declines to cross-examine.
SAWAYoN (a Cree Indian) boing duly sworn, doth depose and say:-
I was present at the Frog Lake massacre. I heard some shots fired that day.

Went from the camp in the direction of the firing. I saw one priest lying on teUfround. That was the priest that came there recently. I then saw the other priest
ying on the ground, and I went quite noar him, and I saw blood running on the ground.
ad I stepped back. He was breathing, because his back was'moving up and down

as a person breathing. He was lying on his face with his hands folded under bis
eand. I saw the wound near the back of the neck and I saw the blood running. I

thouaght the bullet had passed through the side of the neck. When the Indians came
Where Father Fafard was lying, 'Manachoos said "I e is still breathing, shoot him. "

. prisoner thon stepped forward and shot the priest on the top of the head. The
4O6.anovedater the shot.
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Cross-examined :-I went away as soon as the prisoner fired at the priest. I
don't suppose tI at the prisoner took any notice of me. I heard only Manachoos saY
« shoot him."

This closes the evidence for the prosecution.

Eviden.e on behalf of Defence.
OsAsâwEow being re-called on behalf of the defence, says as follows:-
(The prisoner thon declines to examine him, as ho states ho had told the truth

in his examination for the prosecution.)
The prisoner declares he has no witnesses to examine.
This closes the case.
Prisoner declared guilty by the stipendiary magistrate.
Sentence-Doath.
The prisoner to be hanged by the neck till death follows, on the 27th day Of

November, 1885.
CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for I.W.T.

BATTLEi'ORD, lst October, 1885.

I hereby certify that the above is a correct copy of all the proceedings and
evidence had and taken in said case.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for N.W.T.
BATTLEFORD, 5th October, 1885,

QUEEN vs. PA-PA-MAH-CHA-KWAYO (WANDERING SPIRT).

Copy of Record and Proceedings.

CANADA:
North-West Territories.

The information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city of Harn-
ilton in the Province of Ontario and Dominion of Canada, chief of police, taken the
22nd day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and
eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in
and for the said North-West Territo-ries of Canada, who saith:

That Pa-pa-mah-cba-kwayo, otherwise called Wandering Spirit, on the second
day of April, in the year of our Loi d one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at
.the locality known as Frg Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid,
did feloniously and wilfully, and of his malice aforethought, kill and murder one
Thomas Quinn, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, aud
against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity

A. D. STEWART.
8worn before me the day, month and year

above mentioned, at Battleford, in the
North-West Territories of Canada.

CHARLEs B. ROULAU,
Stipendiary Magistrate for the North- West Territories.

CANADA :
'North-West Territories,
Saskatchewan District,

Battleford Division.
The twenty-second day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight

hundred and eighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the
North-West Territories of Canada;

Before Charles B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-We
Territories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of ieI

A. 1886
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liamnent of Canada, passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign, and the
Amendment thereto, entitled: " An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acts
1elating to the North-West Territory ;"

Pa-pa-mah-cha-Iwayo (Wandering Spirit) a Cree Indian, of Frog Lake, in the
Xorth-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, who is now a prisoner in close custody
at Battleford aforesaid, stands charged this day before the said stipendiary magit trate
sitting in public open court, assembled for the trial of the said Pa-pa-mah-cha-kwayo
(Wandering Spirit) ;

Por that he, the said Pa-pa-mah-cha-kwayo (Wandering Spirit), on the second
day of April, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known as
*1erog Lake, in the North West Territories of Canada aforesaid, did feloniously and
«*ilfully, and of his malice aforethought, kill and murder one Thomas Quinn, against
the form of the statute in such case made and provided and against the peace of our

dy the Queen, her Crown and dignity.
.After being duly arrainged the prisoner to this indictment pleads " guilty."
William Mackay, Esq., after having beefi duly sworn, acted ai interpreter.
&ntence-Death.
Prisoner to be hanged by the neck till death follows, on Friday, the 27th

daY of November, one thousand eight bundred and eighty-five.
CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the 1V. W. T.

R&TTLE1roRD, N. W. T., 22nd September, 1885.
A true and certified copy.

CAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the . W. T.

QUEEN va. APIS-CHASKOOS (LITTLE BEA).

Copy of Record and Proceedings.
CANADA :

.XOrth-West Territories.
The information and complaint of John Alfred Martin, of Battleford, North-West

Territories, and Dominion of Canada, Sergeant in the North-West Mounted Police,
taken the 9th day of October, in the year of Our Lord one thousand eight hundred
!Tid eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipend'iary magistrates
In and for the North-West Territories aforesaid, who saith:

That Apischaskoos, otherwise called Little Pear, on the second dey of April,
'0e1 thousand eight bundred and eigbty-fire, at the locality known as Frog Lake, in
the North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid, did feloniously and wilfully, and of
11iS Own malice aforethought, kll and niurder one George Dill, against the form of
the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the
Queen, her Crown and dignity.

worn before me the day, month and year
first above mentioned, at Battleford, in
the North-West Territories of Canada.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU,
Stipendiary Magistrate for the North- West Territories of Canada.

CANADA:
eorth-Wtst Territories,
Baskatchewan District,
Battleford Division. )

lhe ninth day of October, in the vear of our Lord one thousand eight hundred
Seighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battlford division, in the North-West

errlitories (f Canada :
Before Charles B. Rouleau, Esq , stipendiary magistrate for tb a North-WeQt Ter.

etor!]s, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of the Parlia.
7
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ment of Canada passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign and the amend-
ments theroto, entitled: " An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acts relating
to the North West Territories ;"

Apischaskoos, otherwise called Little Bear, a Cree Indian, of Frog Lake, in the
North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, who is now a prisoner in close custody
at Battleford aforesaid, stands charged this day before the said stipendiary magistr.it
sitting in puble open courL assembled, for the trial of the said Apischaskoos (LittO
Bear) ;

For that ho, the said Apischaskoos (Little Bear) on the second day of April. one
'thousand eight hundred and oighty-five, at the locality known as Frog Lake, in the
North-West fer itories aforeoaid, did feloniously and wilfully, and of his malice afore-
thought, kill and murder one George Dili against the form of the statute in such case
made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and
dignity.

Being duly arraigned the prisoner to this indiotment pleads "no't guilty."
William Mackay, Bsq., being duiy sworn, acted as interpreter.
William P. Sharpe, .Esq., barrister, represents the Crown.
The prisoner, being asked whether ho wishes to be tried by the stipendiar

inagistrate alone or by the stipendiary magistrate and a justice of the peace, with tha
intervention of a jury, makes option to be tried by the stipendiary magistrate alone.

The following evidence was adduued on behalf of the Crown:-
OAIsAwEaow, a Cree Indian, being duly sworn, doth depose and say:-
I know the prisoner. I saw him during the massacre at Frog Lake. He ws

on horeback that day riding amongst the houses. I sa-% him coming from the
direction where the white men were fired at. The prisoner was armed. I saw Dill
there that day. I saw him alo after ho was dead. Ho was killed by a bullet.

Prisoner doclines to cross-examine.
KoPIsIKINEw (Thunder), a Uree Indian, having solemnly affrmed to tell tha

truth, says as follow,:-
1 know the prisoner, and I saw him at Frog Lake the day of the massacre. Tha

massacre took place about three days before Baster last. I saw him mounted and
following the trader Dill, and I saw the prisoner firing two shots at Dili while he
was riourited. There are four Indians whom I knew. These four Indiana wore
firing. Dili fol while the firing was going on. It was the resuit of the shooting
that caused Dill's death. I don't think ho was sick before that.

Cross.examined:-tt was when the last shot was fired that Dili fell.
KAMAMTOWAS a Cree Indian, boing duiy sworn, doth depose and say:-
1 know the prisoner. When we were in the prison together the prisoner told ie

that ho fired two rhots at the trader (Dill) but that ho missed him. The prisoner di"
mot tell me where it was. The prisoner must have referred then to the Frog Lake
miassacre.

Prisoner dectines to cross-examine.
This uonicluded the case for the Crown.
The prisoner declares ho has no evidence to adduce, as the witnesses for th@

Crown stated what was true.
Priboner declared guilty by the stipendiary magistrate.
Sentence-Death.
The prisoner to be hanged by the nock till death follows, on the twenty-seventl

day of November, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five.
CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magístrate for the N. W.T.

1BATTLEFORD, 9th October, 1885.

I certify that the above is a true copy of ail the proceedings and evidence ha
and taken in this case.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendíary Magistrate for the N. W.T.

8
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QUREN vs. LOUISON MONGRAIN.

Copy of Record and Proceedings.
CANADA :

Xorth-West Territories.
The information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city of

Meailton, in the Province of Ontario, and Dominion of Canada, chief of polices
taken the twenty-third day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand
'ight hundred and eighty-five, belore the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipea-

diary magistrates in and for the said North-West Territories who saith :-
Th4t Louison Mongrain and Wa-wa-se-he-wein, otherwise called Dreesy Man, ou

t1 e fifteenth day of April, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and
eighty-five, at the locality known as Fort Pitt, in the North-West Territories o!

11ada aforesaid, did feloniously and wilfully, and of their malice aforethought, kilt
d murder one David Lattimer Cowan, against the form of the statute in such caSm
a'1nde and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown ard

ihgnity.
A. D. STEWAIRT.

o0rn before me the day, month and year
above mentioned at Battleford, in the
-Torth-West Territories of Canada. 1

CHAs. B. ROULEAU,
Stipendiary Magistrate for the said North- West Territories.

CANADA:
Xorth-West Territories,
Saskatchewan District,

Battleford Division.
The twenty-third day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand

eight hundred and eighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in
e North-West Territories of Canada:

Before Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West
perritories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of the
]arliament of Canada, passed in the forty-third ye ir of Her Majesty's reiga and the
Aendments thereto, intituled: " An Act to amend and consolidate the several Aota
relating to the North-West Territories :"

Louison Mongrain and Wa-wa se-he-wein (Dressy Man) two Cree Ladiana of
.er0g Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid, who are now prisoners
r'Close custody at Battleford aforesaid, stand charged this day bafore the said

IPendiary Magistrate, sitting in open court, assembled for the trial of the Baki
nison and Wa-wa-se-he-wein (Dressy Man).

Por that they the said Louison Mongrain and Wa-wa se-he-wein (Dressy Man)
'Or the 15th day of April, one thousand eight hundred and eighty five, at the locality

own as Fort Pitt, in the North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid, did felon-
tisly and wilfully, and of their malice aforethought, kilt and marder one David
attimer Cowan, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided and

against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.
After being duly arraigned the prisoners to this indictnient plead " not gailty."
William Mackay Esq., after being duly sworn, acted as interpreter. The pri&-

neers elected to be tried by the stipendiary magistrate and a justice of the pe.ta
th the intervention of a jury.

The trial of said prisoners was fixed for the 25th of September, 1885.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W. T

9
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The case of the Queen vs. Nabpace alias Iron Body being called, is proceeded
,with and the following evidence is adduced.

Evidence on the part of the OCtum.

OsisAwanow, a Cree Indian, being duly sworn, doth depose and say:-
I know the prisoner. I belong to Puskeya-Kewino Band. The prisoner belongt

to Big Bear's Band. I was present at Frog Lake during the time of the massicre.
.aw Quinn and Gouin killed. I saw the prisoner there at that time. I did not Seo

in do anything there at that time. The white people were near by walking toward0
bhe tamp, followed by the prisoner and other Indians. The white people wereO

Eoing to the camp of their own accord. The Indians whom. 1 knew that were follo<'
ug the white people were Askik-Puskookyoo Mamekwesno, and the prisoner. TheY
were armed. T he white people were net armed. The white people were gathorid
together by Big Bear's Indians to the point where I saw thom marching them ($
'he reason the white people were not armed is because their guns were taken fro O
lhem by Big Bear's Indians that morning. George Dill was amongst the whiie pe
ple whom 1 saw marching off. I was standing then between John Pritcbard's houS
-Kad a storehouse. Afterwards I followed in the direction of the white people. 1
heard shots in that direction, and the first I saw iying on the ground were DelaneO
and Gowanlock. A little further on I saw the two priests lying. They were kill'
ut that time. I saw three white people running. They were followed by soill
Indians. The white people were Williscraft, Gilchrist and George Dill. It was too
fr off for me to see who the Indians were that were following. I think there musi
have been three if not more. I saw Nabpace again in the tent. The whole time Of
lhe massacre did not last more than the time to smoke a pipe.

Prisoner declines to cross-examine.
KoHisaKirEzw (Thunder), having affirmed solemnly te tell the truth, says A

foellows:
I know the prisoner. I was prsent at the Frog Lake massacre. I saw th

prisoner there. I know a trader that was there (Dill), but I did not know him bf
his English name. 1 saw him together with other white mon followed by Indians
The prisoner was one of the Indians. When I came in full view of the white peopI0e
'while the firing by the Indians was going on, I saw two mon running. It was the
trader (Di]]) and a young man (Gilchrist). There was a dog along with the0f•
Wben I first saw the Indians running aiter them I could not recognize thom, bu1

when I got te the top of the ridge I saw but one white man, that was the trad#
(DWil). He turned round towards the Indians while they were firing at him. ]Se
appeared to have lost ah hope. The Indians that were firing at him were ApischW'
koos, Nabpace, the prisoner, Mamekwesew and Paskookuyoo. I saw Nabpace, the
prisoner, firing at Dill. Duiing this firing I saw Dili f1ll. He was lying there dead

Prisoner declines te cross-examine.
This closes the case for the Crown.

Evidence for the Defence.
ApIseasKoos (Little Bear), being duly sworn, doth depose and say:-
1 was present when the trader Dili was killed. I saw the white man turn ro.u3

:ad the prieoner fired at him and knocked him down.
Crown declines te cross-examine.
KAMANIBowAs, being duly sworn, doth depose and say z-
I did not hear that ycu killed the trader Dill. A brother of mine asked the

isoner how it was that ho had net killed any body. The prisoner answered that I'b
rd killed only ore dog.

Crown declines te cross-examine.
'This closes the evidence for the defence.
The prisoner declared guilty of murder by the stipendiary magistrate.
Bentence-Death.
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RIAPEsINMOKoE (a Cree Indian) being duly sworn doth depose and say:-
I was present at Fort Pitt when Constable Cowan was killed. When I was

01ning down the brow of the bill at Fort Pitt, I saw the policeman that was killed.
8aW him fail. Thon I saw the prisoner, Louison Mongrain,.arriving where Cowan
a"8 lying. I was quite close to Louison, the prisoner. The risoner held bis gun

tOWards the policeman who raised his hands saying " don't brother, don't," and fired
4o shots at him in the front part of the head. I was awakened by the shots of the
81M before. Louison Mongrain, the prisoner, is the only Indian I saw firing at Cowan
'Vien the latter was lying down.

Oross-examined:-Prisoner had on a helmet, a pair of trou serE and a shirt, ho
ad 1o blanket on. He had a twelve-shooter rifle. I was the next man to prisoner

Men ho fired at Cowan.
ALRED SMITH, of Fort Pitt, laborer, being duly sworn, deposeth and saith:
I was a prisoner in Big Bear's camp during the month of April. I saw the
of Cowan the day after his death.

The prisoner declares that ho has no questions to ask.
This closes the evidence of the Crown.

Evidence on bekhalf of the Prisoner.

As MEINAoHAPAYO, a Cree Indian, having declared solemnly to tell the truth, saya
follows: -

I was standing about fifty feet from where Cowan was lying. I saw Mongrain,
re but I did not see him fire the shots.

Cross-examined :-L never hoard the prisoner say that ho had shot Cowan. I
,W Mongrain there but I did not see him fire the shots.

Prisoner declares that ho does not want to call any more witnesses.
The jury returned a verdict of guilty.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the I W.T.
l. PAMBRUN, J. P.

BATTLErORD, 25th September, 1885.
Sentence, death.
-Prisoner to be hanged by the neck until death follows, on the 22nd day of

ove:nber, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five.
CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Sitipendiary Magistrate for the Y. W.T.

JýLIProRD, 25th September, 1885.
A true and certified copy.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W.T.

QUEEN vs. WAH-WAH-NITCH (MAN WITHOUT BLooD).

Copy of Record and Proceedings.

CANADA:
'th-West Territories.

The information and complaint of Jchn Alfred Martin, of Battieford, in the
orth-West Territories and Dominion of Canada, tergeant in the North-West Mounted

]olice, taken the 5th day of October, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight
A'nd1'red and eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary

listrates in and for the North-West Territories of Canada, who saith:-
That Wah-wah-nitch, otherwise called Man Without Blood, on the 31st day of

, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the
ality known as Dewan and Tremont's farm, in the North-West Territories of Can-
aforesaid, did feloniously, and wilfully, and of his malice afolethought, kill and

11
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murder one Bernard Tremont, against the form of the statute in such case made and
provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignitv.

J. A. MARTIN.
Sworn before me the day, month and year

first n bove mentioned at Battleford. in
the North-West Territories of Canada.

CHARLES B. ROULEAU,
Stipendiary Magistrate for the said North- West TerritorieS.

CANADA:
North-West Territories,

Saskatchewan District,
Battleford Division.

The fifth day of October in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred
and eighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the North-W0
Territories of Canada;

Before Charles B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-Wo0
Territories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of the
Parliament of Canada, passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty' reign, and the
amendments thereto, entitled: " An Act to amend and consolidate the several AetO
reating to the North-West Territories ;"

Wah-wah-nitch (Man Without Blood) an Assiniboine Indian, of Battleford, in tbo
North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, who is now a prisoner in close custoaf
at Battleford, aforesaid, stands charged this day before the said stipendiary magi
trate sitting in public open court, assembled for the trial of the said Wah-wah-ni
(Man Wi thout Blood).

For that ho the said Wah-wah nitch (Man Without Blood) on the thirty-fir'
day of March, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known *0
Dewan and Tremont's farm, in the North-West Territories of Canada, aforesaid, did
feloniously and wilfully, and of his malice aforethought, kill and murder one Ber
Tremont against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and again
the peace of our Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

Being duly arraigned the prisoner to this indictment pleads "guilty."
John Edward Kelly being duly sworn, acted as interpreter.
Sentence-Death.
Prisoner to be hanged by the neck till death follows on Friday the twentY

,eventh day of November, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five.
CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for N.W.T.

BATTLEFORD, N.W.T., 5th October, 1885.
I hereby cortify that the above is a correct copy of all the proceedings ai

evidence had and taken in said case.
CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for N. W.T.

BATTLEFORD, N.W.T., 5th October, 1885.

QUEEN vs. KTA.
Copy of Record and Froceedings.

CA NADA :
North-Wet Territories.

The information and çornplaint of John Alfred Martin, of Battleford, in tI
. North-West Territories, and Dominion of Canada, sergeant in the North-W00

Mounted Police, taken the 5th day of October, in the year of our Lord one thousanL
eight hundred and eighty.five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stiPoy
,diary magistratesdn and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith:

A. 1886
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That Ikta, on the thirtieth day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand
"ght hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known as the Stoney Rserve, in the
Worth-West Territories of Canada aforesaid, did feloniously and wilfully, and of his

alice aforethought, kill and murderone James Payne, against the form of the statuts
s1 uch case made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her
Wnand dignity.

J. A. MARTIN.
8Orn before me the day, month and year

irst above mentioned at Battieford, in
the North-West Territories of Canada.

CHAs. B. RouLEAu,

A Stipendiary Magistrate for the said North- West Territories.

CANADA :
»Orth-West Territories,
%s8katchewan District,

ttleford Divimion.
The fi'th day of Octoher, in the year of Oar Lord one thousand eight hundred

d eighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the North-West
erritories of Canada :

Before Chas. B. Rouleau, Eq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West
!Orritories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of the

arliiament of Canada, passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign, and h
%endments thereto, entitled : "An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acte
aating to the North-West Territories ; "

Itka, an Assiniboine Indian, of Battleford, in the North-West Territories «f
Ub1ada aforesaid, who is now a prisoner in close custody at Battieford aforesaid
ntands charged this day before the said stipendiary magistrate, sittipg in publie open
tourt, assembled for the trial of the said ltka;

'For that ho, the said Itka, on the thirtieth day of March, one thousand eight
«'nmdred and eighty-five, at the locality known as the Stoney Roserve, in the Norti
est Territories of Canada aforesaid, did feloniously and wilfully, and of his malica

'forethought, kill and murder one James Payne, against the form of the statute in
%h case made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her

tc!Wfn and dignity.
Being duly arraigned, the prisoner to this indictment pleads " guilty."
John Edward Kelly, being duly sworn, acted as interpreter.
Bentence-Death.
Prisoner to be hanged by the neck till death follows, on Friday the twenty,

eOnth day ot November, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W. T.
t'4 ITLIPORD, N.W.T., 5th October, 1885.

I do hereby certify that the above is a correct copy of all the proceedings and
'Midence had and taken in said case.

C t AS. B. ROUL EAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W. T.
'aTLEEORn, 5th October, 1885.

QU EEN vs. NABPACE (IRON BoDY).

Copy of Record and Proceeding&
CANADA :

_Orth-West Territories.

The information and complaint of John Alfred Martin, of Battleford, in the
OrthWest Territories of Canada, sergeant in the North-West M[ounted Police, taken

18
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this eighth day of October, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred a
eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrateS iO
and for the said North-West Territories of Canada, who saith :

That Nabpace, otherwise called Iron Body, on the 2nd day of April, in the yes
«f our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known as
Prog Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canada aforesaid, did feloniously an4

wilfully, and of his malice aforethought, kill and murder one George Dill, againstthe
form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of o011
Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

J. A. MARTIN.
Sworn before me the day, month and

year first above-mentioned, at Battle.
ford, in the North-West Territories of
Canada.

CnAs. B. ROULEAU,

A Stipendiary Magistrate for the North-West Territories of Canada.

CANADA:
North-West Territories,
Saskatchewan District,

Battleford Division.
The eighth day of October, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred

and eighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the North-West
Territories of Canada:

Before Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West'
Territories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of thé
Parliament of Canada, passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign, and the
amendments thereto, entitled : " An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acta
relating to the North-West Territories:"

Nabpace, otherwise called Iron Body, a Cree Indian, of Frog Lake, in the North-
West Territories of Canada aforesaid, who is now a prisoner in close custody at
Battleford afbresaid, stands charged this day before the said stipendiary magistrate
sitting in public open court, assembled for the trial of the said Nabpace alias IroL
Body;

For that he, the said Nabpace alias Iron Body, on the 2nd day of April, one
thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known as Frog Lake in the
North-West Territories aforesaid, did feloniously and wilfully, and of his malice
aforethought, kill and murder one George Dill, against the form of the statute in
such case made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her
Crown and dignity.

Being duly arraigned, the prisoner to this indictmont pleads "not guilty."
William Mackay, Esq., being duly sworn, acted as interpreter.
William P. Sharpe, Esq., barrister, represented the Crown.
The prisoner boing asked whether he wishes to be tried by the stipendiary

magistrate alone, or by the stipendiary magistrate and the justice of the peace with,
the intervention of a jury, makes option to be tried by the stipendiary magistrate
alone.

Trial fixed for 9th October, 1885.
CHAS. B. ROULEAU,

BÂTTLEPORD, 8th O 1885.Stipendiary Magistrate for the North. West Territories.

BATTLEFORD, 9th Octobr, 1885.

Present : Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West Ter-.
ritories.

William P. Sharpe, Esq., barrister, C(rown po6ecutor, aüd Willia Mbokay,
Esq., interpreter.
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BATrLaPORD, 25th September, 1885.
Present: Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West

eritories, and Pierre Chrysologue Pambran, Esq., J.P., with the intervention of
eh0 following jurors who were duly sworn, to wit:

George W. Gairdner, 1; Alexander McKenzie, 2; J. F. D. Parker, 3; Jules Gagni
R L. Miihe, 5; Jonathan Rose, 6.

William Sharpe, Esq., represents the Crown.
On behalf of the Crown Mr. Sharpe enters a nolle prosequi in favor of the pri-

6oner " Dressy Man."

Evidence of the Pro.ecution.

CLARENCE LoUSBY, a constable of the North-West Mounted Police, being duly
sworn doth depose and say

Onthe fifteenth of April lat (18P5) I was at Fort Pitt. I started from Fort Pitt on
e fourteenth to go to Frog Lake with Constable Cowan and Henry Quinn, to find ont

Where Big Bear was. The next day we came back about half a mile from the fort,
8ig Bear and bis band were camped on the top of the bill. Cowan and I kept

ogether and were goingtowards the fort. When we crossed the bridge the Indians
O'"]menced firing at us. We did not fire at them before. By that firing Constable,

'COWan and I got wounded. I did not see Cowan when he fell off bis horse.
Prisoner declines to cross examine.
JOHN ALrRED MARTIN, a sergeant in the North-West Mounted Police, being

uly sworn, doth depose and say.-
I was at Fort Pitt, in the North-West Territories, on the 15th day of April last

1885). Big Bear and bis band arrived there on the 14th of the same month and
enanded a surrender of the fort. Before Cowan was shot there were no shots fired

between the police and the Indians. About an hour before Cowan was shot, Mr.
MeLean, of the Hudson Bay Co., was negotiating with the Indians. The Indians hadk romised not to kill anyone if the police would surrender the fort. I saw Constable

wan falling from bis horse. There was considerable firing, both at Lousby and.
Cowan, at the time, by the Indians. Cowan was about 500 yards from the fort when

e fell. About half an hour after Cowan fell I saw orie Indian, about the size of the
Prisoner, with a wtiite blanket on, tire a shot at Cowan, quite close to him, about a
<ŽOUple of yards. Before that shot was fired, two of the Indians felt whether Cowan
Was breathing or not.

Prisoner declines to cross-examine.
isowAmÂyo, a Cree Indian, having solemnly affirmed to tell the truth, says as

ollows W -
I got into Big Bear's camp some time in May. I saw the prisoner, Louison,

Mongrain, and heard him say, " wonder who killed Cowan ? I was the first who
«aRMo3 to him when he was lying on his back; and Cowan put bis hands up, saying,
'»on't, brother,' and I fired two shots at him.' The prisoner did not state where
the shots entered Cowan's body. There was a woman present when that conversa-
eon1 took place between me and the prisoner. I do not know ber name.

Cross-examined.-The night Big Bear son's wife died is the night I bad that
oOiversation with the prisoner Mongrain.

ToussAINT, alias Calling Bull (a Cree Indian) being duly sworn, doth deposo
,did say:-

I know the prisoner. I heard the prisoner talking about the death of Cowan at
?ort Pitt. It was just a short time after ho was killed. Prisoner Mongrain said
"'that the policeman was killed. I went up to him and he raised bis hands, and when
1 Went to fire at him ho said ' don't brother' and I fired two shots at bis head."
Prisoner did not tell me that, but I was near by and I heard him tell the other Indians.

Cross-examined.-That the conversation took place at the prisoner's fireplace.
unable to tell how many Indians were present. I do not think there were

any women present.
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The prisoner to bè hanged by the neck tilt death follows on the 27th day Of
November, 1885.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N.W.T.
BATTLEFORD, 9th October, 1885.

I hereby certify that the above is a true copy of all the proceedings and evi'
4nce had and taken in this case.

C HAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the _. W.T.

QUEEN vs CHARLES DUCHIARMES, ALIAS CHIARLEBOIS, AND WAWA'
ASEHOWEEN (DREssY MAN).

Copy of Record and Proceedings.
CANADA: :

North-West Territories. f
The information and complaint of Alexander David Stewart, of the city

Hamilton, in the Province of Ontario and Dominion of Canada, chief of policO,
taken the twenty-third day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand
eight hundred and eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipe'O
diary magistrates ip and for the North-West Territories of Canada, who saith :

That Charles Ducharmes, otherwise called Charlebois, Wahsabgainap, otherwisO
ealled Bright Eyes, and Wawaasehoween, otherwise called Dressy Man, on the thir'
tieth day of April, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eightf
flive, at the locality known as Frog Lake, in the North-West Territories of Canadtl
aforesaid, did feloniously, wilfully, and of their malice aforethought, kill and murder
one Puskayak, otherwise called "She Wins," against the form of the statute in such
eases made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, her CroWO
mid dignity. 

A. D. STEWART.
Sworn before me the day, month and year

above mentioned, at Battleford, in the
North-West Territories.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for 1V. W.T.

CANADA:
North.West Territories, i
Saskatchewan District,
Battleford Division.

The twenty-third day of September in the year of our Lord one thousand eight
lhundred and eighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the
'North-West Territories of Canada.

Before Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West Terri-
tories, exercising criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of the Parli-
ment of Canada, passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign, and the
amendments thereto, entitled: " An Act to amend and consolidate the several ActO
relating to the North-West Territories : "

Charles Ducharmes, otherwise called Charlebois, Wahsagamap (Bright, Eyed>
and Wawasehoween (Dressy Man), three Cree Indians, of Frog Lake, in the North-
West Territories of Canada aforesaid, who are now prisoners in close custoÈy at
Battleford aforesaid, stand charged this day before the said stipendiary magistrat0 '
sitting in public open court, assembled for the trial of the said Charles Ducharmie 0

alias Charlebois, Wahsagampp (Bright Eyes) and Wawasehoween (Dressy Man) ;
For that they, the said Charles Ducharmes alias Charlebois Wahsagama

(Bright Eyes) and Wahwasehoween (Dressy Man), on the thirtieth ,day of AP
one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the locality known as Frog LakOi
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i the North-West Territories of Canada ,,foresaid, did felonious!y and wilfully, and
Of their malice aforethought, kill and murder one Puskeyak (She Wins) against the
form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the poDace of our Lady
tbe Queen. ber Crown and dignity.

After being duly arraigned the prisoners to this indictment plead " not guilty."
William Mackay, Esq., atter being duly sworn, acted as interpreter.
The prisoners elected to be tried by the stipendiary magistrate and a justice of

the peace with the intervention of a jury.
The trial of the said prisoners was fixed for the 25th September, 1885.

CIIAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary MIagistrate for t.4e N. W. T.
RATTLEPORD, 23rd September, 1885.

BATTLEFORD, 25th September, 1885.
Present: Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq, stipendiary magistrate for the North-West

Territories, and Pierre Chrysologue Pambrun, Esq., J.P., with the intervention of
the following jurors who are duly sworn, to wit : Harry Phipps, 1; Charles Anther-
80n, 2; Hugh Canamow, 3; John Connor, 4; George H. Clouston, 5; Hartley Gis-
borne, 6.

William Sharpe, Esq., lepresents the Crown.

Evidence of Prosecution.

François Dufresne, of Fort Pitt, in the North-West Ter ritories, yeoman, being
duy sworn, says as follows -

On the 16th of April, or about that time, I was a prisoner in Big Bear's camp, at
Prog Lake. I saw the murdered womau Paskayak two days before she was kilied.
When I saw ber she was walking to the camp with a stick in ber hand. The day
the woman was killed some Indian said : "I lere is the cannibat goirig." I went
Where the old womai was and I saw ber sitting in a teut. 1 told the 1ndians she

s sick. " No; " they said: " She is a cannibal and we are going to kill ber," I
told them they had better tie ber and she would got better ii a few days. I beard
the Indians say that anybody that 'ýould kilil the wrat it would be ait right. An
Indian -ame and told me sho was to be killed and Il went out ani savw the Indians
carrying the woman in a skin. Amongst the Indians carrying the old wonan I saw
Charles Ducharmes with a stick in his hand, .Dressy Man had an axe, and Bright

yes had a gun. The Indians carried that woman about a mile fromn the camp and
laced ber on the ground and she knelt on the bide, and one of the prisoners Charles
tcharmes was standing beside the woman and said: " My friends you ask ad every-

body to kill that woman and nobody would do it. After I strike ber, don't say I
struck the old woman and laugh at me." Ali the Indians said " yes." Then prisoner
bucharmes struck the woman with his stick a hard blow on the side of the head and
the woman fell on her side. As soon as the woman fell on ber sido Bright Eyes fired
a ahot at her head. I saw the blood run from ber heact and the powder burn ber
hair. He put the gun very close to her head. There was another Indian that fired
at the woman but he is not a prisoner. Then Dressy àfan, the other prisoner, gave
the Woman a blow with a sharp side of the axe which made a big gash in her neck.
lhe blood flowed from that wound.

Cross-examined.- When Ducharmes struck the blow I did not sec the woman
ring to get up. It was Bright Eyes that I saw firing the first shot at the woman.
here were two shots fired-at the woman.

PASRWYAK, a Cree Indian, being duly sworn, doth depose and say:
I saw the Cree woman killed before the leaves came out. I saw prisoner Duchar-

ne there with a stick in his hand, and struek the woman on the head, and the
tell over. There 'were no Indians between the prisoner Ducharmes and

h Woman, After prisoner Ducharmes struck the woman I saw Bright Eyes firing
s ýhot at ber. He hit the woman, but don't know what part of the body. I
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saw Dressy Man the prisoner, but I am not certain if he had any weapon. I saw
that woman only twice provious to the murder. I heard the old woman say it
would be better to take her away from the camp and kill her, because if they did
not that she would destroy the women and children.

Prisoner declines to cross-examine.
This closes the evidence for the prosecution.
Th'e prisoners state that they nave no evidence to adduce, as the witnesses for

the prosecution stated what was true.
CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate, N. W. T.
P. C. PAMBRUN, J. P.

BATTLEFORD, 25th September, 1885.

The jury returned a verdict of Bright Eyes guilty of murder.
CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistiate, N. W.T.
P. C. PAMBBUN, J.P.

BATTLEFORD, 25th September, 1885.
Sentence, death, against the two prisoners, Charles Dacharmes and Dressy Man.
Charles Ducharmes and Dressy Man to be hanged by the neck till death follows,

on the twenty-seventh day of November next, eighteen hundred and eighty-five.
And Bright Eyes sentenced to twenty years in the Manitoba Penitentiary.
BATTLErORD, 25th September, 1885.

CHAS. B. ROULEU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W. T.
A true and certified copy.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W. T.

RETURN
(SUPPLEMENTARY, FINAL)

(52b)

To au ADDRESS of the HOUSE o. COMMONS, dated 5th March, 1886 :-For

copies of all documents forming the record in the cases of Her Majesty
against the different parties tried in connection with the late Rebellion,
including the Jury Lists, the names of the Jurors, the lists of the
Jurors empannelled, the motions and affidavits filed, the evidence, the
incidents of the trial, the charges of the Judge, the names of the
Judges who tried the different cases, the names of the counsel for the
prosecution and for the defence, the pleas entered, the verdicts, and
the sentences, and, in short, of every document whatever relating to
the said trials.

By Command.
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

Dapartmont of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.
March, 1886.

A. 188649 Victoria.
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OTTAWA, 18th March, 1886.
As a Supplementary Final Return to an Address of the Honorable the louse of

Comrmons, dated the 5th instant, for copies of all documents forming the record in
the cases of Her Majesty against the different parties tried in connection with the
Iate rebellion. including the jury lists, the names of the jurors, the lists of all jurors
etapannelled, the motions and affidavits filed, the evidence, the incidents of the trial,
the charges of the judge, the names of the judges who tried the different cases, the
namles of the counsel for the prosecution and defence, the pleas entered, the verdicts
aIId the sentences, and, in short, of every document whatever relating to the said
trials, the undersigned has the honor to transmit herewith transcripts of the records
anid proceedings in the four cases mentioned in the schedule bereto annexed.

A. POWER, for D. M. J.

SCHEDULE.

Supplementary Final Return of all cases of Her Majesty against the different
Parties tried in connection with the late rebellion.

Name. Place.
1. Mus-sin-ass......................................Battleford.
2. Co-pin-ou-way-win ........................................................ do
3. Pee-yay-cheew ..................................... do
4. W ah-Piah .................... ..... ........ ... do

AYLMER, QUE., 17th March, 1886.
SIR,-Enclosed I have the honor to forward a true and certified copy of all

documents in my possession of persons tried before me at Battleford for treason-
felony, and also the account of Joseph Woods for copying the same.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your most obedient servant,
CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W. T.

heHon. the Minister of Justice, Ottawa.

CANADA:
Xorth-West Territories.

The information and complaint of John Alfred Martin, of Battleford, in the
t orth-West Territories of Canada, sergeant in the North-West Mounted Police,
taken the fifth day of October, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred
ý1Id eighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates,
" and for the North-W est Territories of Canada, who saith:-

That Co-pin-ou.way-win, MussinasS and Pee-yay-cheew, not regarding the duty
Of their allegiance, but wholly withdrawing the love and obedience, fidelity and
alegiance which every true and faithful subject of our Lady the Queen does and of
ight ought to bear towards our said Lady the Queen, on the second day of May, in

e Year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers other
ys as well before as after that date, together with divers other evil disposed per-
cs to the said John Alfred Martin unknown, did, within the Dominion of Canada,tjpass, imagine, invent, devise and intend to levy war against our said Lady the
een within Canada, in order by force and constraint to compel her to change her

decasures and counsels, and the said felonious compassing and imagination, invention,
c then feloniously did express and utter and declare by divers

ovelt acts and deeds hereinafter mDentionOd, that is to say :-
Ut. In order to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their lelonious compassing, imagin-

O,.in'vention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said Co-pin-ouway-win,
es-sn-assa, d anci on dafterward , to wit, on the twenty-seventh day of March,

the year aforesai'd, and on divers other days and times, as well before as after that



Sessional Papers (No. 52.)

day, at and near the lo.ality called Battleford, in the North-West Territories of
Canada, did conispire consult, confiderato, assemble and meet togetber with divers
otherevil-disposed personsto the said John Alfred Martin unknown, to raise. make an d
levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, within this realm.

And further, to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect their felonious compasbing,
imagination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, they, the said Co-pin-ou-way-
win, fus-sin-ass and Pee-yay.cheew, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-ninth day of
April, in the year aforesaid, and on divers other days and times as well before as after
that day, at or near the locality known as " Cut-Knife 1Hill," in the said North West
Territories of Canada, together with certain other evil-disposed persons to the said
John Alfred Martin unknown, feloniously and wickedly did express, utter and
disclose their said felonious compassing, imagination, invention, device and intention
by feloniously publishing a certain letter or writing addressed to one Louis Riel, who
was then with certain other evil-disposed persons to the said John Alfred Martin
unknown, in open rebellion and insurrection against our said Lady the Queen, in the
said North-West Territories of Canada, in the words following, to wit:-

" CUT KNIFE HILL, 29th April, 1885.

"To Mr. Louis RIEL,-I want to hear news of the progress of God's work. If
any event has occurred since your messengers came away, let me know of it. Tell
me the date when the Americans will reach the Canadian Pacific Railway; tell me
all the news that you have heard from all places where your work is in progress.
Big Bear lias finished his work; ho has taken Fort Pitt. ' If you want me to corne
to you, lot me know at once,' lie said; and I sent for him at once. I will bo four
days on the road. Those who have gone to see him will sleep twice on the road.
They took twenty prisoners, including the master of Fort Pitt. They killed ele:en
mon, including the agent, two priests and six white mon. We are camped on the
creek jut belo w CuL Knife Hill, waiting for Big Bear. The Blackfcet htve kilcd sixty
police at the Elbow. A half-breed, who interpreted for the police, having survived
the fight, though wounded, brought this news. Here we have killed six white mon.
We have not taken the barracks yet, but that is the only entiro building in Battle-
ford. All the cattlo and horses in the vicinity we have taken. We have lost one man,
a Nez Percé killed, he boing alone, and one wounded. Some soldiers have come from
Swift Current, but I de nuo. know their numiber. We have here guns and rifles of all
sorts, but ammunition for- thom is short. If it be possible we want you to send us
ammunition of various kinds. We are weak only for the want of that. You sont
word that you woula corne to Battleford when you had finished yCur work at Duck
Lake. We wait still for you, as we are unable to take that fort without help. If you
send us news send only one messonger. We are impatient to reach you. It would
give us-encourage us much to see you, and make us work more heartily, Up to
the present everything has gone well with us, but we are constantly expecting the
soldiers to visit us hore. We trust that Gol wtil be as kind to us in the future as ho
has in the past. We, the undersigned, send greeting to you all.

"POU N DMAK ER,
"CO.PLN-OU-WAY.WIN.
"M US-SIN-ASS,
4MEE-TAY-WAY-IS,

"PEE-YAY-CHIELW.

"When this reaches yo a send us news imm'diately, as we are anxious to hoar the
news. If you sond us nows, send as many men as possible."

Tho said Co-pin-ou.t-way-win, Mussin-ass and Pee-y ay-cheew then well knowing
that the said Louis Riel and the said other evil-disposel persons were thon in opefl
rebellion and insurrection against our said Lady the Queen, in contempt of our said
Lady the Qaeen and her la vs, to the evil oxample of all others in like case offending
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against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace
Of our Lady the Queen, ber Crown and dignity.

J. A. MARTIN.
Sworn before me the day and

Year first above-mentioned, at
Battleford, in the said North-,
West Territories of Canada. J

CHAS. B. RoULEAU,
A Stipendiary Magistrate for the said North- West Territories.

A true and certified copy.
CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W.T.

CANADA.:
North-West Territories,
Saskatchewan District.

The fifth day of October, iii the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred
and cighty-five, in the Saskatchewan district, Battleford division, in the North-West
Terrories of Canada:

Befoie Chas. B. Boukan, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West
Territories, exercisirg criminal jurisdiction under the provisions of the Act of the
Parliantn of Canada, passed in the forty-third year of Her Majesty's reign, and the
ameidments thereto, entidWd: " An Act to amend and consolidate the several Acts
relating to the North-West Territories."

Co-pin-ou-way-win, Mus-sin-ass and Pee-yay.cheew, three Cree Indians, of Battle-
ford, in the North West Territories aforesaid, who are now prisoners in close custody
at Battleford aforesaid, stand charged this day before the said stipendiary magistrate,
sitting in public open court, assembled for the trial of the said Co-pin-ou-way-win,
àus-sin-ass and Pee-yay-cheew.

For that they the said Co-pin-ou-way-win, Mus-sin-ass and Pee-yay-cheew are
accu sed, at several dates, of treason-felony against the form of the statute in such case
Imade and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queen, ber Crown and
dignity.

Being duly arrainged, the prisoners plead: Co-pin.ou-way-win and Mus-sin-aas
1ot guilty, Pee.yay-cheew guilty.

WILLIAM MCKAY, Esq., being duly sworn, acted as interpreter.
William P. Sharpe, Esq., barrister, represents the Crown.
The trial of the two prisoners, Co-pin-ou-way-win and Mus-sin-ass, after baving

laade option to be tried by the stipendiary magistrate alone, is fixed by consent to the
8th day of October 1885.

The sentence of Pee-yay-cheew is deferred till after the trial of the two other
risoners.
ATTLEFORD, 5th October, 1885.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N.W.T.
A true and certified copy.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W. T.

BATTLEFORD, 8th October, 1885.
Present: Chas. B. Rouleau, Esq., stipendiary magistrate for the North-West

Territories.
William P. Sharpe, Esq, barrister who represented the Crown, and William

eKay, isq., who acts as interpreter.

fe The case of the Queen vs. Co pin-ou-way-win and Mus-sin.ass, accused of treason.
lony, being called, the following evidence was taken.
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Evidence on Behalf of the Prosecution.

PIERRE CHRYSOLOGUE PAMBRUN, of Battieford, farmer, being duly sworn, doth
depose and say :-

About the end of March lait, there was au outbreak of the Indians in the vicinity
of Battleford. I saw Co-pin-ou-way-win arnongst the Indians, when I overtook their
camp. The Indians told me they vere coming down to make a demand on the Indial
AgentiRae. Therewere a large numberof Indians; they were armed. Iwenttospeak
to the Indian Agent Rae and when I came hack towards about six o'clock, p.m., ail the
Indians were south of Battle River When I came back to the barracks from my
place next day, in the evening all the houses aed stores on the south of Battle River
had been plundered by the Indians.

The prisoners decline to cross examine.

ASSISKIWNATAUKO (The Old Woman Earth), having solemly affirmed to tell the
truth, says as follows:-

I know the prisoners by sight. I was here at the time the stores were raided
by the Indians. I cannot say that I saw the prisoners there.

The prisoners decline to cross-examine.
K.YAM KA-PIT (One-who-sets-still), having solemnly affirmed to tell tho truth, say$

as follows:-
I was bore when the Indians raided the stores. I know Mus-sin-ass, one

of the prisoners. I did not see him that day. I saw him sLart with the Indians of
Sweet Grass' Reserve. I saw him coming towards Battleford. I don't remember
to have seen Mus-sin-ass amongst the Indians.

The prisoners decline to cross-examine.
ROBERT JEFFERSON, of Eagle Hill, being duly sworn, doth depose and say:-
I was farm instructor on Poundmaker's Reserve at the time of the outbreak. The

Indians left the reserve towards the end of March last. As soon as the Indians came
back fromBattleford, about the first of April last, I considered myself as a prisoner. At
one time, about the 12th of April last, the prisoner Co-pin-ou-way-win came to superin-
tend the digging of a grave. I saw the two prisoners, but I cannot say I saw them
armed at any time. The young men were armed ail the time, the old men were
armed only occasionally. The prisoners were in the camp three or four days before
the battle of Cut Kuife and after the battle. I am sure the prisoners were in the
camp all the time, with the exception of Co pin-on-way-win who went away for a short
time. Co-pin-ou-way-win went to fetch in his brother, who was a day's march from
camp. He brought hirm along with him. saying that ho was a very good counsel.

I saw the letter produced in court. It is my band-writing. One Indian came and
told me 1 was wanted. I followed him into a tent in the middle of the camp. There
were six or eight men in the tent, to wit : Poundmaker (the chief) Co-pin-on way-win,
Mitcheways, Pee-yay.cheew, Jakeeum, Mus-sin-ass, The-man-who-shot-the-eagle,Pitche-
was and myself. I believe Poundmaker said to sit down, they wanted me to write a
letter. They got the back of a cart, paper and pencil and they began to dictate.
They would dictate in turn. Co-pin-ou-way-wii dictated the principal part of it.
Mus.sin-ass took part in it also. That letter is the joint dictation of the
names which are at the foot of the letter. I told them that this
letter should be signed by somebody. Co-pin-ou-way.win said; jet Pound-
maker sign it. I asked Poundmaker and he said: " Yes." Then the whole of ther
said: " Put down all our nameb," and they all agreed to their names being put down-
There is no doubt whatever that I was authorized by the two prisoners to sign their
own names to ihe letter. Jobin, one of the half-breeds, made the alteration about the
messenger. I gave the letter to Poundmaker and a messenger left with it to take
it to its address.

Cross-examined:---I am not certain that I came into the tent last. I never said
that Co-pin-ou-way-win was first to¯speak. I am certain that you prisorers told me to put
down your names. Co-pin-on way win had sent for his brother long befne he went for
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him himself. He went for his brother the day before " Out Knife " battle. Co-pin-ou-
Way-win sent Mistatimwas for his brother. Mistatimwas' principal mission was to
bring his father down and tell Co-pin-ou way-win's brother en passant.

Re-examined by permission of court:-The object of the rebellion amongst the
Indians was to make a complote change in the government of the country.

Re cross-examined :-I heard the Crees say that Riel told them that the Americans
Were to take possession of the country.

THOMAS MAGUIRE, of Battleford, gunner in " A " Battery, being duly sworn,
doth depose and say

I knew Louis Riel when he was a prisoner after the battle at Batoche. As far
as I know I believe he was the leader of the rebellion.

Prisoners decline to cross-examine.
This concludes the evidence on behalf of the Crown.

Evidence on behalf of the Defence.
MITCHEWAYES (Conjurer) a Cree Indian, having duly affirmed, doth depose and

gay -
I was present in the tont when Jefferson was there, but never heard Co-pin-on-way-

Win nor Mus-sin-ass tell hi m to put their names at the foot of the letter. The party
Who wanted the lotter to be written was Jakecum. I say that Jakecum was the prin-
Cipal man who dictated the letter. I did not hear Co-pin ou-way-win send a messenger
for his brother. I never heard him advise any body to do any harm. The prisoner
Co-pin ou-way-wi n was the last man to come into the tent. I never saw you at any time
take up arms against the white man. You were always trying to keep the Indians
Peaceable. Ever since I knew Mus-sin-ass I never knew ho did any wrong to the white
'Ilen. I never heard you urge the young men against the white men. During all
that trouble I always heard you trying to prevent all trouble.

I never h ard Mus-sin-ass authorize anybody to put his signature at the footof the
letter. I never heard you dictating this letter.

Cross.examined: I was in the tent when the letter was written It was Pound.
rnaker's tent. I was sent to corne by some one, I don't remember the name. I went
il' and set near the door of the te-it. I did nlSt look around to see who was there.
There was another man besides tho prisoners there, that was " The man who shot the
the eagle," but I don't think ho remained long there; I noticed also Jakecum. We
'Vent there in the tout for the purpose of heariog news that Jakcum was to read, so
stated Poundmaker. Mus-sin-ass was a couneillor before the outbreak, but I don't
know about Co-pin-ou-way-win.

Jakecum wanted to send a letter to his friends to tell them about his plans. All I can
Ornember about the letter is that they gave some news that they had reoeived which

I dot't remember. I did not hear anything about the composition of the letter
amongst themselves, except by Poundmaker and Jakecum. Jefferson was there. I
Was a councillor before the outbreak. I was here the day the Indians came to
]attleford. I saw Mus-sin-ass, but I don't remember to have seen Co-pin-ou-way-win.
The prisoners were in the camp. There was no sufficient light iii the tent for me to
so them all in the tent.

KI HI WA-KA PIM-WAT (One that shoots the eagle) having affirmed solemnly to tell
the truth, says as follows:

To Mus-sin-ass:-I did not hear you say that you wanted to give your name to the
letter, I never heard you dictating any part ot the leUer.

Cross-examined :-When I went to visit Poundmaker in his tent, Mus-sin-ass came
after me, and Jackecum after Mus-sin-ass. Jackecum said to Poundmaker that ho won-
delred if Jefferson would write a letter to send to his friends, and he stated also that
he Wold like some other Indians there, and some were called in. fie stated h
Wanted to let them know what had taken place out west here. Then I left the tent.
Jackecum came from Duck Lake. Ho must have broughlt news of the Duck Lake fight.

"fus amongst the Indians that came to Battleford. I saw the two prisoners with us.
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REv. Louis CocHiN, O.M.I., being duly sworn, deposeth and saith as follows:-
It is not within my recollection that Co-pin-ou-way-win took any active part in the

rebellion. I know personally that he has tried to do good, that le has protected me
and the other prisoners against the Assiniboines and other Indians.

Not cross-examined.
This closes the evidence of the defence.
Declared guilty.
Sentence: Two years in the Manitoba penitentiary.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the IV. W.T.
A true and certified copy.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W. T.
B4TTLEEORD, 8th October, 1885.

CUT KNIFE IHILL, 29th April, 1885.
To MR. Lours RIIL :

I want to hear news of the progress of God's work. If any event has occurred
since your messengers came away let me know of it. Tell me the date when the
Americans will reach the Canadian Pacific Railway. Tell me all the news that you
have heard from all places where your work is in progress. Big Bear has finished
his work. le has taken Fort Pitt. " If you want me to corne t, you let me know
at once," be said, and I sent for him at once. I will be four days on the road. Those
who have gone to see him will sleep twice on the road. They took twenty prisoners,
including toe master of Fort Pitt. They killed eleven men including the agent, two
priests and six white men. We are camped on the creek just below Cut Knife Hill,
waiting for Big Bear. The Blackfeet have killed sixty police at the Elbow. A half-
breed who interpreted ior the police, having survived the fight, though wounded,
brought this iews. Here we have killed six white men. We have not taken the
barracks yet, but that i the only entire building in Battleford. All the cattle and
horses in tho vicinity we have taken. We have lost one man, a Nez Percé killed, he
being alone, and one wounded. Some soldiers bave come from Swift Current, but
don't know their number. We have guns and rifles of all sorts, but ammunition for
them is short. If it be possible, we want you to send us ammunition of various kinds
We are weak only for the want of that. You sent word that you would come to
Battloford when you had flished your work at Duck Lake. We wait still for yotl,
as we are unable to take the fort without help. If you send us news send only one
messenger. We are impatient to reach yon. It would give us-encourage us much
to see yon, and make us work more heartily. Up to the present everything haS
g one well with us, but we are constantly expecting the soldiers to visit us here.
We trust that God will be as kini to us in the future as he has in the past. We, the
undersigned, send greeting to you all.

POUND MAKER,
CO-PIN-OU-WAY-WIN,
MUS-SIN-ASS,
IMEE-TAY-WAY-IS,
PEE-YAY-CIIE E W.

When this reachLes you send us news immediately, as we are anxious to hear the
news.

If you send us news send as many men as possible.
A true and certified copy.

CH AS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N P. T.

QUEEN vs. WAHPIAH.
CANADA:

North-West Territories.
The information and complint of Joseph Quigley, of Battleford, in the North-

West Territories of Canada, constable in the North-West Mounted Police, taken the
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te'nty-flrst day of October, in the year of our Lord one thousi.nd eight hundred and
ighty-five, before the undersigned, one of Her Majesty's stipendiary magistrates in
ad for the North-West Territories, who saith:

That Wahpiah, otherwise called White Man, not regarding the duty of his
but wholly withdrawing the love, obedience, fidelity and allegiance which

ery true and faithful subject of our Lady the Queen does and of right ought to
aeorr towards our said Lady the Queen, on the second day of April, in the year of our

Lrd one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers o'her days, as well
fore as after that date, together with divers other evil-disposed persons to the said

J'Geph Quigliey unknown, did, within the Dominion of Canada, compass, imagine,
4ent, devise and intend to levy war against our said Lady the Queen, within Canada,

order by force and constraint to compel her to change her measures and counsels,
the said felonious compassing, imagination, invention, device and intention then

feIoniously did express, utter and declare by divers overt acts and deeds hereinafter
hentioned, that is to say:

In order to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonious ccmpassing, imagi-
ation invention, device and intention aforesaid, he the said Wahpiah, otherwise

elIed White Man, afterwards, to wit, on the seventeenth day of April, in the year
Our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, and on divers othor days,
Weil before as after that date, at or niear the locality known as Fort Pitt, ir the

8aid North-West Territories of Canada, did conspir e, consult, confederate, assemble
ineet together with other evil disposed persons to the said Joseph Quigley un-

OWln, to raise, make and levy insurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the
4een within this realm.

And further to fulfil, perfect and bring into effect his felonious compassing,
tgination, invention, device and intention aforesaid, he the said Wahpiah, other-

Ws called White Man, afterwards, to wit, on the twenty-eighth day of May, in the
ear aforesaid, and on divers others days as well before ai atter that date, at or near

the locality known as Fi enchman's Butte, in the said North-West Territories of
auada, did conspire, consult, confederate, assemble and meet together with divers

1ther evil-disposed persons to the said Joseph Quigley unknown, to raise, make and
.eYinsurrection and rebellion against our said Lady the Queen, within this realm,
1ontempt of our said Lady the Queen and her laws, to the evil example of all

others in like case offending against the form of the statute in such case made and
Poided, and againbt the peace of our said Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

JOSBPHE QUIGLE Y.
Worn before me the day, month Y
and year first above mentioned,
at Battleford, in the North-
'West Territories of Canada. J

CHIAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N W.T.
A true and certified copy.

CHAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W. T.

THE QUEEN vs. WAHfIAH (WHITE MAN).
Accusation -Treason-felony.
WILLIAM P. SHARP, Crown prosecutor.
WILLIAM MOKAT, Esq., interpreter.

94i The prisoner pleads not guilty and elects to be triod summarily by the
eldiary magistrate without the intervention of a jury.

Evidence for the Prosecution.

du JAMEs K, SIMPsON, of Fort Pitt, in North-West Territories aforesaid, clerk, being
ySwnrn, doth depose and say:

erI know the prioner. On the 2nd of April last (1885) I was made a prisoner at
rg Lake by Big Bear's Indians. I saw the prisoner when Big Bear's band came

25



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52) A. 1886

back from Pitt, about two weeks after the massacre. The prisoner carried a gun and
ho remained with Big Bear's band all the time to my knowledge. The fight a
Frenchmen's Butte took place about the 28th of May last (1885). I saw the prisoner
up to that time, and after at Loon Lake. le was with the Indians thon at that
latter place during the dight. The prisoner was one of the leaders in the council
tent of the Indians; that is the place where the Indians decide all their actions. The
evening betore the fight at Frenchmen's Butte, Big Bear's Indians were lookin! after
the prisoners, and as they thought 1 had escaped, they enquired where I was, and
other Indians answered: " I was sitting with them." I remarked the prisoner wa»
amon2st the party. The Indians were thon aware that the loyal troops were near.
The prisoner was taking a part in seeing that the white prisoners should not
escape. There were some Indians who remained behind fighting at Frenchmen's
Butte, and the prisoner was not with us, who were about four miles from the battle-
field. Tho Indians told me that they wanted to upset the prosent Government and
get the Americans to come into the country.

Prisonor doIines to cross-examine.
WILLIAM B CAMERON, formerly of Frog Lake, now of Battieford, in the North-

West Territories, clerk, being duly sworn, doth depose and say :
I know the prisoner. I was made prisoner by Big Bear's band on the 2nd of April

last (1885), and I remained as such till the 28th May last (I185), about the time of the
fight at Frenchman's Butte. i first saw prisoner two or three weeks after the Frog
Lake massacre. I think I saw hii all the time around with Big Bear's Indians, more
particularly with Wandering Spirit, who had the most influence amongst the Indians.
When Indians were dancing the prisoner used to sit alongside of Wandering Spirit.
The latter used his influence for bad. i saw the prisoner leading the white prison-
ers in company with Wandering Spirit to the centre of the camp, where they had
their dancing tent. I saw a sword in the possession of prisoner. He had also au
officer's black coat Do. I escap.ed on the evening of the day the first shots were fired
at Frenchman's Butie Prisoner was amongst Big Bear's band, who were fighting.
The prisoner was one oi those who was looking for Henry Quinn when he was
recaptured.

Cross-examined :--The reason I state that the prisoner was one of those who
were looking after Hionry Quinn is that he was going around tho camp and in
amongst the tents like a man looking for something.

SAKAMAN, a half-breed, being duly sworn, doth depose and say
Desnoyers is my real name. I was at Fort Pitt during the time of the siege last

spring (188ý5), I cannot state what month. The ice was running in the river at the
time. Tho first time I saw the prisoner ho was at Vermillion River, the Icaves were
about cOming out. It was a little below Frog Lake. I saw him next at the latter
place. The prisoner had a gun and a sword-bayonet. Ho had a police coat with
stripes on the arms. At the timo they were searebing for Henry Quinn the prisorer
was amongst tho fndians. 1 saw him going around and in the dancing tent of Big
Bear's Indians. le used to speak at the council. I never beard in there anything
good ii favor of the prisoners. Ali I heard was to guard theim. and other times to
kill them. The prisoner belongs to ThuLder Child's reserve, near Battleford.

Prisoner declines to cross-examine.
ROBERT HUDSON, of Battleford, baker, being duly sworn, doth depose and say
1 was at Pitt about the 17th of April last (1885). Pitt hod ben beseiged by the

Indians on the 15th of same month. I was made a prisoner by the Indians on that
day. I saw him on the 16th April last, with Mr. Dickens' sword on. I remember
speaking to Mr. Quinn about him. The prisoner always carried a gun. I remained
a prisoner amongý4 Indians for two months and over. I saw him till the time we
got to Loon Lake. i did not see him after Big Bear's party left us at Loon Lake.

Cross-examined :-I am not certain to have seen prisoner the day I was taken
prisoner, but I am certain of the day after.
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JOHN PRITOHARD, of Fort Pitt, interpreter of the Indian Department, being duly
sworn, doth depose and say:-

I was a prisoner in Big Bear's camp from the 2nd April, 1885, till June of the
sane year. I saw the prisoner amongst Big Bear's Indians shortly after the capture
Of Fort Pitt. When Henry Quinn was in my tent, the prisoner came in and stated
ho wanted to kill him. Évery time the tent was erected for council or dance, I saw
the prisoner there. He seemed to take a prominent part in it. He was a man to talk
a lot. Prisoner always saying not to releaso the white prisoners. It was at Frog
Lake where I first saw the prisoner.

Prisoner declines to cross-examine.
This closes the case on behalf of the Crown.
The prisoner states that he has no evidence to adduce.
The prisoner declared guilty by the stipendiary magistrate,
Sontence: Six years penitentiary.

C IIAS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary Magistrate for the N. W. T.
A true. and cortified copy.

Cr AS. B. ROULEAU, Stipendiary JMagistrate for the N. W. T.
BATTLEFORD, 21st October, 1885.

MESSAGE.
(52c.)

LNSDOWNE.

The Governor General transmits to the House of Commons copies of

certain letters of a confidential character, fespecting the Rebellion in the

North-West Territories during the year 1885.
GOVERNMENT HOUSE,

OTTAWA, 29th March, 1886.

"c* *:c* *

DzAR SiR,-The French half-breeds on the Saskatchewan River, and a section
of the English hall-breods living between the two rivers, have been holding meet-
ings at St, Laurent, at which meetings al[ the members were sworn to secrecy.
Notwithstanding this, enough bas transpired to show that grave trouble will arise in
the country unless repressive measures are %doptod by the Government.

A number of resolutions were passed of a violent nature. Amongst others,
resolution No. 3: " That they, the half-breeds, do not recognize the right of the
Government to the North-West Territories," and appointed delegates to proceed to
34ontana, U.S., and invite Louis Riel to come over and be their leader in any further
action they may determine on.

The delegates so appointed, narmed: Gabriel Dumont, Moise Ouellette, Michel
bumas and James Isbester, left yesterday for Montana to carry out the object of
their mission. The French half-breed race living on the Saskatchewan numbers
about 700 male adults, and are gathering force every year by immigration from
Manitoba and the southern parts of the Territories.

These men are not farmers, merely cultivating srmall patches of land little larger
than kitchen gardons. They live by bunting and freighting. Their occupation as
hunters was etded by the disapoarance of the buffalo and there iý4 not sufficient
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overland freighting going on in the country to afford labor to a third of their nurn-
ber, hence they are getting poorer year by year.

This in reality is the real source from which this agitation arises, although pr-
tended grievances against the Government are pushed to the front.

These mon avow that the Indians are in sympathy with thom.
The French half-breeds are closely related to the plain Indians and there iS e

danger of the half-breeds persuading the Indians to join them should an uprisinlg
take place.

The Indians have no arms or ammunition it is true, but both arms and ammunitiOn
in considerable quantities belonging to the defunet Saskatchewan military organiza-
tions are scattered throughout the country without protection and could be seizod at
any moment.

These scattered arms and ammunitions should be collected and placed urder
police surveilance at Prince Albert, and the force increased to the extent of thirtY
men with an officer in command. A strong detachment should also be statione;d
at St. Laurent. I have an intirnate knowledge of the character of these half-breeds,
and, as you are aware, some influerce over them. Many of the men I have spoken
to are averse to any agitation leading to a breach of the la w, but, that a number Of
Riel's abe4tors in the Red River troubles are resident in their midst and are pro-
molers of this movement, and candidly state that they believo that if Riel is allowed
to visit their settlements serions disturbances will ariso therefrom.

In my opnion, amd it is alse the opinion of the Rev. Father André, who is the
superinteudent of the Roman Catholic missions on the Saskatchewan, that those
delegates should be shadowed and if Riel accepts the invitation and attopts to cross
the boundary lino ho should bc made prisoner.

The Rev. Father also agrees with me that if Riel is not allowed to enter the
country, the influence we cai bring to bear on the body of the people will counteraCt
the influence of that section of them who are leaders in this movement.

Any letters Riel might write would be of little avail. This matter I thought of
such importance that 1 wired Lieutenant-Governor Dewdney, who arrived at Battle-
ford on the 13th instant, as follows: -" Are you coming east ? If not, like speak youl
over wire; important." Next morning 1 spoke to Governor Dewdney over the wire,
telling him it was important I should meot him, if possible, giving him a meore
outliie of what had taken place. He could not thon state what his movements
would be, but said ho would wire me in a day or two of his decision, since when I
have not heard from him on this subject.

It is therefore well, I think, that you should put the Government in possessiol
of these facts with as little delay as possible, impressing on the Premier the necessitY
of prompt investigation. * * *

Re-Manitoba Rights.

18th June, 1884.

DEAU SIr,-I think there has not been since the commencement of the agitation
a botter time to strike than the nreent. Everything seems ripe for it. I am certain
seven-eighths of the people of Wienipeg are in our favor, and I am certain four or
five hundred good men will accomplish our object without any difficulty whatever.
The fact of the matter is this, we bave nothing to resist us, the military here is nothing
more than a pack of boys, and we have oasy access to the storerooms. We had a small
meeting to night, and the parties present were unanimous in favor of making a strike
at once Now I think that if we delay we will not only be losing ground and the thing
will never be accomplished. I would like to know the possible number of men who
can be gat from the country to assist in the scheme. 1 hope you will come to sorno
definite conclusion at your council meeting.

Bolieve me I am in perfect sympathy with you, and I am roady at any time to
take part in the more active part of the businoss and seo if we can't got the people
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their rights. Kindly lot me hear from you in the matter atyour earliest convenionce
iud oblige. Yours fraternally,

MACK HOWE, J. G.
GEonoR puRwvs, Esq., Brandon, Secretary Farmers' Union.

(Private and Confidential.)

I think you have made a small mistake in your appointment of Mr. Baily to the
Poition ho holds. I will not attempt here to give reasons, but consider it yourself.

I woulc suggest some good farmer who has been some time in the curitry and
ali aetual farmar now.

Yours,
M. H.

CARLTON, 7th January, 1885.

SiR -I have the honor to forward herewith a confidential report from Mr.
ilowe, from Prince Albert. It relates to the matter upon which t telegraphed you
Iimeypher from bore a few days ago. I had personal interviews with those mentioned
in inspector Howe's report, and they feel confident that Riel is sincere in saying ho
Wishes to leave the country, and wili do so as soon as he has the means. I qmte
agree with Père André, with whom I had a talk relating to this matter at Prince
-lbert a few days ago, that if this man Riel was out of the country the normal quiet
Would be restored. For, granting that his power to make serious trouble may be but

'roblematical, yet his very presence here causes a fefling of uneasiness among the
alf breeds and Inclians, w hicb, as you know, is taken advantage of by others who

are neither half-breeds nor Idian, to farther their o.vn schemes and ends. Riel,
ertainlIy, has great influtLce with the half-brceds, and that being admitted, means

influence with the Indians is well. They regard him as a man who bas suffered for
them and their cause, and ibat he is here to work in thieir intorest. He knows full
Weil how to play uton their supestitious natur, s, and though to white men some of
hi sayings and d'oings an d proposed reforms scem absurd, even ridiculous, to the
simpe mi nded natives the very a bsurd ity of his expressions and ide3as make hum

aPpear to them so much tho greater man and benefactor to their people.
Of late ho has appeared in the role of a religious reformer, and I am informed by

One wlo certaily knows. tht h has influenced even in that direction people
prcver bial for their regard for the teachings of their cburch and clergy, proving his
'1fluence, which ho might use with embarrassing resuits.

The man says ho has porsonal claims, the amount mentioned would cover thoso
claims.

The matter of the claims of the half-breeds for scrip, and as to the manner of
dividing and sub-dividing the land upon which they have already settled, impera-
tively requires the immediate attention of the Government, and that decisions at
once be given for or against the wishes of those interested.

In the interest of this country I strongly urge a settlerment of those important
matters.

I need not enter into particulars as to the claims for scrip nior as to the changing
Of shape of the lots settled upon from ten chains front and two miles long to the
regular block lots. You have heard and understand what is wanted, no doubt, quite
Well.

Some of the half-brceds report that the Indians are quite in accord with thom,
even the Sioux, and will act at any time and manner they wish. I do not, however,
believe that there is universally with the Indians such an understanding, though
there are undoubtedly bands and individuals ameong other bands who look to Riel
and the half-breeds as their champions, and who, I think, have promised to joi or
act with them as they bid, and the greater the chances may be of the half-breeds and
Inalcontent Indians accomplishing whatever object they have in view so many more

39

A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 188 6

Indiàns proportionately would join them, and if any movement or agitation is the
least successful it would be very apt to attract the whole Indian population either.S
strong sympathisers or active participants. I have, &c.,

L. N. CROZIER.
Hon. EDGAR DEWDNEY, Govornor N.W.T., Regina.

(Confidential.) PRINCE ALBERT, 24th Decomber, 1V84.

Si,-I have the honor to report that Mr, McDowell, member for the North-Wses
Council, returned yesterday from St. Laurent, to which place ho wen4 accompanied
by Père André, at the request of Louis Riel, who wished to hold a conversation with
him as member for the district.

Riel stated that ho was thinking shortly of returning to Montana if the Govern-
ment would only give him the means to do so; he further stated that ho wisbed
representation made to the Government that if a certain sum was paid to him i,
cash (Mr.*McDowell seems to think ho would accept $5,000), he would at once leave
the country. He says that he bas such influence with the half-breeds that any righto
they think they have or claims upon the Government would be at once dropped bf
them if he advised them to do so.

He says ho is very poor and bas actually nothing to live upon, and if he cannOt
procure means to leave the country, as well as something to settle upon his wife and
family, ho will starve, which might make him desperate.

As soon as the Governmerg gives him what he asks for, he will, he says, give 1P
all connection with the other half-breeds, in fact throw them all over and pledge
himself not to return to this country.

His influence among the half-breeds is very great ho says, and that they Will
obey him most implicitly in whatever policy ho may assume politically or otherwisO•
He says ho should like to see Sir John but cannot procure the means to go to OttawB·

I have, &c.,
JOSEPH HOWE, nopector.

Commanding Officer North-West Police, Battleford.

PRINCE ALBERT, 7th July, 1884.
YOUR HONoR,-Your telogram affords me an opportunity to write you about a

event ot which you are sure to receive several diffarent accounts, which will bO
colored according to the views and interests of the persons writing to you. I assue
you I have no other design in writing to you than to keep you informed about the
true state of things. Riel and delegates have arrived from across the line. The
news may surprise and alarm you about the tranquility of the country, but you cal0
set your mind quiet about that and have no fear of any disturbanco in the countrY•
You know 1 am known to be a friend of Mr. Riel, and I look to the event of his arriva
among us as a danger for the peace of our community, but now I do not entertaia
the least suspicion about Riel causing any trouble. le acts quietly and speako
wisely. From all the reports I heard about him, ho blamed strongly Cuarles Nolio
for havirg refased to present your Honorwith an address.

I enclose here the report of the delegates sent to Mr. Riel, and, too, the ansWer
of Mr. Riel for his reasons accepting the request of the people of the Saskatchegao
to come and sec them in oder to help them to obtain thoir rights from Governmnio
You will sec that answer is suitable, and smells not of treason. Those documents, O
which I send you truc copy, were handed to Louis Schmiidt, as secretary of the cOrn-
mittee appointed to organize, last spring, a deputation to Mr. Riel. L. Schmidt h9
been kind enough to provide ne with a copy of those documents, which are to be
made known at the meeting to be held next Tuesday at the South Brauch, amo"%
English half breeds. Mr. Riel is to come there. 1 tbink it is important that YOI
ahould know those documents, which will show you Riel means no mischief.
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You will receive alarmirng reports about the danger in which the country is in
%lsequence of Riel's arrival. Do not believe a word. Those persons will be very

a4d that you should commit some rash act. They will send and advise you to have
iel arrested. For God's sake, never commit such an act before you have good

%Otives to justify euch an act. A good many persons will urge you to send here
00 or 300 policemen. They will be glad to see Governmont go to expenses. because

that will be so much money put in their pockets. Nothing so far requires to send
0n Man more to keep the peace of the country. The half-breeds, English as well

'6Ych, understand too well the foolishness and the consequences of rising in a
ebellion against the Government, and Riel seems really to act by good motives and

t have no bad design. A man will not bring his wife and children along with him
f ho intended to raise a rebellion, and Mr. Riel has brought lis wife and two little
tbildren with him, and that is the best proof that ho has no bad intentions.

I write to you in earnest and tell you my sanguine conviction there is no danger
any trouble if you let quiet Mr. Riel, but if you or any official interferes with him

ul try to have him arrested there is almost a certainty of trouble, and half-breeds and
dians will join together; so, as long as Mr. Riel conducts himself quietly why

t4onble him and rouse the anger of the people? Excuse, Governor, my writing. I
>rite in a great hurry, but I hope you will be able to make out what I mean. I will
tather be long and tedious than miss to tell you something that is important for you
t know. If you want to know something particularly I will be ready always to
oblige your Honor and to send you full details.

With my best wishes, I remain, Sir, your humble servant.

O Governor DEWDNEY, Regina. FATHER ANDRE.

PRINCE ALBERT, 23rd July, 1884.
DEAR MR. RIEL,-I sent the reports off in good shape by mail last night. We

a egraphed to the Free Preu to have your speech wired (about 1,000 words) I made
copy for the Mail, and returned the original in case they should wire us to-day.

I met Mr. Beatty, Mr. Isbester introduced me as he was starting for Carrot
'ver, and sent with him two letters, one to a prominent Conservative, the other to

' Liberal that they might act in unison. Without rousing any personal prejudice I
escribed the great benefits which you had conferred upon us, so I think they willot look a gift horse in the mouth but suspend their judgment for th-e present and

'etto work. I invited them to make out their requirements and choose a delegate toecutive committee, sending document and name to me. Mr. Beatty will set all going
nOothly and then set out for bis new home in Stony Oreek district, where ho will

do1Olidate a strong North-West party. Beatty is the man who objected to my con.
doning Deacon's interference, you will remember, a good, solid man.
& To?-day I shall finish up work in town, and to-morrow start for the Lower Flat,
the I wili try and get out to your place towards end of week. Please bo working up

Petition into shape and we will get in neat form before the committee is called to
ndorse or alter it as they sc fit. I have secured the Dominion Register and theonsolidated Act of Manitoba, will bring them out with me. There is a big work for
s while the petititon is waiting an answer, but I tbink we will be ready for a stiff
'7Paign when the answer doos come.

byA number of trimmers are awaiting to see if the current in your favor will last,
the time they are satisfied it will be too late for them to bother us much if dis-

DGed to do so. T. J, Agnew proposed to Maclise that the Conservatives shouli takethoUsel together and adopt your platform under their party name. If they do so
tr y Will be snared by thoir own subtilty. Men who are willing to betray their coun-

sti for Party ends are going to learn that it is a speedy form of political suicide.
of, imagine that they understand our policy. What a mess they would soon make

MchCe is going to put his ideas into shape and hand them in to me.
31
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I uettled matters, comnercial and political, with J. F. BAI, shook hands with hin'
and cordially ask<ed himn to iow bis brain power in our work. fe was soûeWht
astounded, 1 thîink, by mky charge ot front, Out i hope wili bhxortly gather imse
together and wire in. J. O. I avis is thinking the mercantile aspect out, aiso other
merchants.

I set Joe Knowlcs to work on the solution of the statistical problem, and I thid
ho will do good work for us.

I have seen Barker and other mechanics in regard to the effect of the GoverO'
ment policy on trade.

There is no necessity for awaiting statistios, of course, before drawing up the
petition. That is a very simple matter, and could be done without any returns
all, in fact, for he who runs may read the numbers under which we labor. In the
same time I have circulated the fullest invitation for every man to hand in his ist"
The town may possibly not elect its delegates in time for our drawing up the peti'
tion, but they have been invited to do so, and I will try and bring a good man With
me in their behalf. I shall be just as well pleased if they reserve their strength for
the statistical work, and we will not be ready for that till Knowles and I have 0010e
to a focus. He has a good head for that kind of business.

A clear, concise, logical petition will strengthen our hands more than a motith
of speechifying. Any bungling work will earn for us the contempt of the busineaa
men.

I have got on a friendly footing with Owen E. Hughes, and will cautiously try
to induce him to give us his ideas He is a sbrewd business man.

[ may write up a reassuring explanation of our work in a manner to disarol
prejudice, and put in the Tèmes fer the benefit of our home audience.

I an in good health except a slight cold, and enjoy good rest, and hope that yOu
also are in good shape. We wili not get much respite unlil after the petition, bat
we can rest calm and peacJul as to the resuit, while the enemies of our God ArM
tossing on their beds devising evil things against themsolves.

Clarke, Sproal & Co. have gone up to Battleford. They will inevitably prepare
the good men to receive our doctrines, for they will associate with the oppressors 0
the people. The idea of sending an apostle in a quiet way up the, river is saggetitl
itself to the minds of many, and I jet it work. Providence knows the right man for
the right work, and three is no use dictating to Hia.

Macilise wrote priv aely to Blake asking him not to stop at L Clark's,a
Blake wiote back that bis health would not permit him to visit the North-West thib
summer. Y ouri viit may cauo hin to change his plans, but I can kop posted
through Maclise, who has kept up a correspondence with him since 1882.

Fisher is my lieutenant nmong the young men of the place, and keeps me poste
as to the enemy's movements in that quarter. I think Deacon, who is a Methodist,
bas seon Mr. Parker, but Mr. Parker is too sound on principle to be lost to us. à'
McWilliams, the Presbyterian minister, who bas hitherto been a Liberal, stated last
night at supper table that " he bas yet to learn what our grievances are." It is the 'ni'
fortune of clergymen that they see only one side of a man's character, and Mr. Sproal
is a prominent pillar of the Presbyterian church; yot Mr. McWilliams is too good a
man, I think, to be blinded for any lenigtb of time. I will leave him to form a
opinion from events, and our petition may enlighten him as to our grievances.

It is Mr. Elliott's opinion that Mr. Jackson is too clever and lacks tact. M
past line of action justifies thut opinion, and it is perhaps as well that they are 0
well satisfied with a falso key.

Dr. Porter's wife is a niece of Donald A. Smith, who is a cloee friend of Swan'
ston's, ard invests bis money for him. Those circumstances have 'heir significanc0'
but I believe their go.od1 beacts will carry them through. " The s uoking flax he
not quench."

Clarke, the driuggi st, is apparently trying to serve God and Mammon. Lot e
pray that the best arriy prevail. The influence o! an unprincipled friend is a tor-
rible snare to a young man, especially one of keen intellect.
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The Free Press has just wired for Riel's speech in full. I am going up with Ab.
Porter after dinner. I have a groat affection for Ab; I believe him to be a good
honest soul.

I have got the prices paid to Hudson Bay Company contrasted witz prices paid
ordinarily for supplies, a valuable document; also the answer of the Secretary of
State (Chapleau) to Norquay, anent Manitoba demands.

if any of our friends think I am not getting through business fast enough,
please reassure them. You know me and my work, and an element of discontent is
dangerous to the same.

I think I see our way clear to raising all the funds we want.
I think I have stated everything at present. I miss you very much, but it is as

Well that I learn to keep a close direct hold on the Father's hand.
Your friend,

WILL. JACKSON.
I can't find my seal, all right, yet the enemy will only use it to their own

destruction if they do intercept it.

REPORT OF THE DELEGATES.

To the gentlemen of the committee entrusted with the seven Resolutions adopted by
the people of the Saskatchewan, William Cromartie, President, Louis Schmidt,
Seocretary.
GENTLEMEN,-As your delegates for that purpose, we have travelled the long

journey of about seven hundred miles to seek an interview with Mr. Riel.
We had to go in the Territory of Montana as far as St. Peter's mission, situated

in the county of Louis and Clerk, beyond Sun River, at the foot of the great Rockies.
We found him humbly and respectably employed as a teacher in the Industrial

College of the Jesuit Fathers of that place. After having acquainted him with the
object of our mission we handed him our credentials and the six resolutions on which
we had to consult with him, also the document whereby our public invites him to the
North-West. We asked him to come with us if he could and to aid us. This interview
took place on the 4th of June. Mr. Riel read our papers of trust, and begged to be
allowed twenty-four hours to think the matter over before giving an answer. We
Were received by Mr. and Mrs. Riel in a very friendly manner, their courtesy was
sincere, simple and true. Generally when one enters the house of a very poor man
the feeling of the visitors is more orless painful, but entering Mr. Riel's house our
imapression was different. The humble condition of his home reminded us of the
opportunities he had for several years to become rich, and even to make an except-
lonal fortune, and how at all risks he stood firm by the confidence of his people. We
know how much he wrought for Manitoba and how much he struggled for the whole
North-West, and seeing how little he worked for himself, we came back after a long
trip of some fourteen hundred miles with twice as much confidence in him as we had
On leaving to go and seek him in a foreign land.

After taking into consideration the object of our visit, Mr. Riel told us that his
advice from the other side of the lino would be of no use to the North-West, he said
that it had always been his principle to assist, as far as it laid in his power, those
Who happened to be in need of help within his reach. The people of the British
Xorth-West were particularly dear to.him as he had suffered a great deal for thoir
cause and welfare; that he had yet interest identical in several ways with theirs, and
Whon invited as ho was by a special delegation to go and strengthen their peaceable
Offorts in support of their rights, he could not refuse his help, little as it was, said ho.

He concluded to accompany us with his family, ho retired from his employment
On the 9th Juno, and we had the pleasure to start with him on the 10th. Our trip
Would have been pleasant in every way had it not beon that Mrs. Riel had great
trouble with her baby fallen sick on account of exposure. We sincerely hope that
1oW the journey being over the child will soon recover.
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Mr. Riel comes to help us without pretensions. Ie hopes that before long the
North-West will be quite united and that the Government will see its way to do what
is right towards every class of our people.

Further information with regard to our delegation will be given to your committoe
at such time and place as you may see fit, and we have the honor to enclose herewith
the written answer given to the delegates by Mr. Riel, who besides now personally
explained his views on cach of the resolutions and on the lino of action which WO
have to follow. His conversation inspires us with the greatest confidence, as his
inten!ions are to help us, but if we understand him well ho will help us without any
wish on his part to embarrass the Governmen t.

We have the honor to be, gentlemen, your dologates and humble servants,
GABRIEL DUMONT,
J. ISBESTER,
MOISE OUELLETE,
M. DUMAS.

ST. PETER's MISSION, 5th June, 1884.
To Messrs. James Isbister, Gabriel Dumont, Moise Ouelette and Michel Dumas.

GENTLEMEN,-You have travelled more than 400 miles from the Saskatchewan
c,' 'crw'- thes,4 internatiornal line, to make me a visit. The communities in the
midst of which you live have sent you as their delegate to ask my advice on varions
difficulties which have rendered the British North-West as yet unhappy under the
Ottawa Government. Moroover, you write me to go and stay amongst you, your
hope being that I for one could help to botter in some respects your condition.
Cordial and pressing is your invitation. Yon want me and my family to accompany
you. I am at liberty to excuse mysolf and say no. Yet, you are waiting for me, sO
that I have only to get ready, and your letters of delegation give me the assurance
that a family welcome awaits me in the midst of those who have sent you. GentO-
men, your personal visit does me honor and causes great pleasure, but on account of
its representative character, your coming to me has the proportions of a remarkablO
fact; I record it as one of the gratifications of my life. It is a good event, which
my family will remember, and I pray to God that your delegation may become a
beitng~ amuongst the blessings of this my fortieth year.

To be frank is the shortest. I doubt whether my advice given to you on this
soil concerning affairs on Canadian territory could cross the borders and retain any
influence. But here is arother view. The Canadian Governmont owe me tWO
hundred and forty acres of land according to the thirty-first clause of the Manitoba
treaty. They owe me also, five lots, valuable on account of hay, timber and rivet
frontage. Those lots were mine according to the different paragraphs of the samie
thirty-first clause of the above-mentioned Manitoba treaty. It is the Canadian GoV-
ern ment which have deprived me, directly or indirectly, of those properties. Besides
if they only pay attention to it a minute, they will easily find out that they owe me
something else.

Those my claims against them are such as to hold good, notwithstandiug tho
fact that I have become an American citizen. Considering thon your interest and
mine, I accept your very kind invitation. I will go and spend some time amongst
you. By petitioning the Government with you, perhaps we will all have the geod
fortune of obtaining something. But my intention is to come back early this fati.

Montana has a pretty numerous native half-breed element. If we count with
them the white mon interested in the half-breed welfare, by being themselves heads
of half-breed families or related to them in any other way, I believe it safe to assert
that the half-breed element of Montana is a pretty strong one. I am just getting
aequainted with that element. I am one of those who would like to unite and direct
its vote so as to make it profitable to themselves and useful to their friends. Mole
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over, I have made acquaintances and friends, amongst whom I like to live. I start
'With you but to come back hore sonmetime in September.

I have the honor, gentlemen delegated to me, to be your humble servant,
LOUIS RIEL.

PRINCE ALBERT, 21st July, 1884.
IHIONORBLE SIR,-Since my last letter to your lonor nothing bas happened to

disturb my belief that Riel, in coming to this country, bas not any bad design in
'View. He bas acted and spoken in a quiet and sensible way every time he bas had
Opportunity of appearing before the public, and no one can point out aiy act or word
of his which is liable to croate any disturbance in the country. All his endeavors,
80 far as I know, are to make the people understand that in answering to their call
ho as in view no other object than to help them by legitimate and peaceful means.
Yiel, he says himself, of 1869 and 1884 are quite two different men. We have now
1ia the country a regular Government which exists by authority of fier Majesty the
Queen; in 1869 he made a stand against Canada, which wanted to take possession of
the country without any previous agreement to secure the rights of the people of
kanitoba and the North-West, but to-day the North-West is an integral part of Can-
da, and having the experience of almost nine years spent in the States, he is able to

a8ure his countrymen, the half-breeds, they are botter off on this side of the line,
nd does not wish them to become Americans. He as passed through a hard school

1i which ho has learned a good may usef2ul lessoi, anu the one he scts to hoart is
to remain quiet and to work for his fellow countrymen by open and fair ways.
hverywhere Riel goes he is creating the most favorable impressions in his
favor, and with the exception of ton or twelve prejudiced persons he
seemas to be very popular, not only amongst the French, but also
kaong the Englisb population. Five or six persons bore at Prince Albert
'wfho think themselves superior to other mcn, and think they have the right by birth
(and you may be sure the Royal Prince is one of them) to lead the people, have been
greatly offended because a great number of citizens at Prince Albert sent to Riel a
letition asking him to come down and address thom at a public meeting, every mis-
ortune, murder, bloodshed, were sure to be the result if Riel was mad enough to
omJle down; that was the prospect put before us during all last week, by those

Prophets de malheur, but they wore greatly disappointed in their expectations. Riel
'ttIXe down last Saturday, and he received a really hearty and enthusiastic welcome

Om the people of Prince Albert. The meeting went out quietly, only one man
tied to raise a row, and ho was put out quickly. Thore was a mass meeting, suh
4 Prince Albert has never seon; people came from the country to meet Mr. Riel,
rOma everywhere, and they went back struck with the quiet and gentle way ho spoke
O them. I enclose here a summary of his speech. The enthusiastic welcome which

e-0l recoived at Prince Albert, I account on one hand by that feeling of more
clriosity of the people to see and to hear a man whose name bas been before the
Pnblic for so long a time, and who hold so large a place in the history of the country,
4don the other hand, by the wish to defeat the intrigues of a certain clique of men

re at Prince Albert, who have tried so much to stop Riel from coming to Prince
&bort To-day those mon have failed, and have seen their expectation to se a riot
41 down, and they are greatly disappointed and will try to represent things under a

a&ek cloud, not according to real facts, but according to their imagination; they will
Y to distort the sim lest things, and will represent Riel as bound to disturb the peace
the country; but, Governor, as an honest man, I tell you the country is quiet, and as
as I Can see,Riel has no other purpose than to help the people in thoir difficulties. He

hont gly advocates peace and union among all the several sections ofthe country. I have
ý>theard a hard word fall from his mouth. What are his purposes ? They are a
O many and require a long time if ho wanted to see therm carried out. 1st. He
&nts the half-breeds to have a free grant to the land they occupy; ho wants to

tate to have the three districts of Saskatchewan, Alberta, Assiniboia, erected into
85
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Provinces, or at least to have each district represented in Parliament; ho wants the
land laws amended to suit more the rapid settlement of the country. These, as far
as I remember, are the leading points to which he addressed the people of Prince
Albert last Saturday. I went to hear him and I may say that ho speaks well and
eloquently, he speaks fluently English and his expressions are just and correct. 110
created a great sensation and was immensely applauded all through bis long addresoi
and his opponents are obliged to credit him with much talents and a clever way to
bring the people over to him. I could not help admiring him to see how, situated
as ho was, ho overcomes all the difficulties which surround him and draws the syra-
pathies of the assembly towards him. What will be the end of all this ? The end
will be that we will have for a time plenty talk, plenty meetings, plenty petition5
and after a time the excitement will get over and we will become calm as usual, and
Riel who is our wonder to-day, will become a common mortal for us, and we will be
as much advanced as we are to-day, and these great reforms will become stale thingo'
and the big men will go down. That. sir, is my impression of the prosent state of
things. We wanted something to occupy us for a while talking about him, and pU
an end to the talk about the crops and the poor prospect befbre us to have a good oO'

Now, as far as my opinion is worth anything, I advise strongly not Governmellt
to interfere with Riel as long as he keeps quiet. I cannot bide from you that hiO
influence for good or evil is great among the half-breeds, French as well as English,
ho bas great many admirers even among the white population, and the Indians in the
North-West will remain quiet as long as the half-breeds will not set a bad examplO
to them. They all look on Riel as their leader, and the Government ought to at
wisely not to croate an outbreak by any rash act of theirs, I am convinced there iO
not any danger of disturbance. The arrival of Riel has acted as a calm on all the
agitated minds, and all his words are to advocate peace and good feelings among ai
the people in the country. I write you what I think right. I have no purpose lo
view but to see our people quiet and satisfied, and keep you informed how things arfe
going on among us. I have seon Riel three or four times, and se far have nothiDg
but good to say of him. To seo him and to converse with him leaves no doubt in aIf
body's mind ho is gentle and modest in expressing bis views, and ho is far from beoi'
bitter against the Government. In bis publie utterances I did not hear Riel sp'.
contemptuously of anybody in disapproving things, ho is always respectful towarm
persons in authority, and ho shows really himself a perfect gentleman, whatever to
the contrary some notorious persons may say.

My Jetter is already long enough, but it is not very soon, Governor, I will aio
you with the penance of reading another.

With all my best wishes for you, I remain your obedient and respectful,
A. ANDRÉ.
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RETURN
(52f)

an ADDRESS of the SENATE, dated 7th A pril, 1886: -- For copies of the
Commission or Commissions, and instructions issued to the Commis-
sioners appointed to enquire into and report upon the losses sustained
in the North-West Territories during the recent rebellion.

By Command.
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

bepartment of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State,
13th April, 1886.

0OPIES OF ALL LETTERS OF INSTRUCTIONS ISSUED TO THE O-
MISSIONERS APPOINTED TO ENQUIRE INTO AND REPORT UPON
THE LOSSES SUSTAINED IN THE NORTI-WEST T.ERRITORIES
DURING THE RECENT REBELLION.

DEPARTMENT oF TRE INTERIOR, Ottawa, 26th February, 1886.

SI,-I am directed by the Minister of the Interior to inform you that you have
e appointed, along with Mr. Henry Mama, of Drumbo, Ontario, and Mr. Thomas
CKay, of Prince Albert, District of Saskatchewan, to proceed to the North-West
erritories for the purpose of considering any claims which may be presented to the

iovernment for losses in connection with the recent Indian and halfbreed insurrec-

You are yourself to be the chairman of the commission, and Captain George R.
Oulg, of Winnipeg, Manitoba, will be the secretary.

The class of claims which it will be your duty to investigate may be briefly
;ated as claims for loss of property, or for imprisonment, or for forced emigration
fOIf the territory.

All the claims presented, whether they would seem to be included in the terms
the third paragraph of this letter or not, you should receive, with such evidence,

t be taken under oath, as the claimants may desire to bring forward, but in formingYotr Conclusions you will consider only such testimony as is applicable under theterms of the said third paragraph.
The claimant, as well as bis witnesses, should be duly sworn, and his evidence

ea either by yourself or by one or other of your colleagues, or by the secretary.
ti n cases where the claimant, for any valid reason, such as removal in the prosecu-

n of his calling from the locality in which the loss is alleged to have occurred, is
ý114ble to appear personally before the commission to give his evidence, as provided
is the next preceding clause, such evidence bearing upon the claim should be taken

the Commission may be able procure, and the same should be submitted to the
Wieter of the Interior, with the opinion of the commission as to the manner in

ch the claim should be dealt with.
CI P-Each claim submitted to you should be reported upon separately, with the con-
4 ions of yourself and colleagues endorsed thereon, and every case should be

a111bered and docketed with the name of the claimant.
ô2f--1 1
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In the execution of your duty you should be guided by equitable principles
rather than by technical rate, exorcising discretionary power of judging, as a jurY
man would, from considerations and circum.tances not always appearing on thO
surface, as to the value of the evidence and the good faith of the claim. You should
rather hear and judge than put yourself in the position of resisting a claim.

The principles to be applied to ail cases may be briefly stated as follows:-
1st. Require all reasonable proof of every essential fact upon which a claim 18

founded.
2nd. Allow for all proved losses which are the direct and immediate consequence

of the insurrection, and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the claimant.
3ird. Take a claimant's own sworn evidence as to the value of property lost,

where of necessity such value was within his exclusive knowledge, but not otherwise.
4th. Rave regard to all facts of a public and general nature, which may tend tO

throw light upon the good faith of each claimant.
5th. Claims for consequential damages, while they may be heard and the evi-

dence noted, do not come within the scope of your duties, and in making your re-
port you should disallow them.

It should be explained to all concerned that the object of your enquiry is tO
ascerttin and pass upon claims for actual loss, but not for damages in the purelY
legal sense of that term.

There may be, of course, claims of an exceptional character, such as could not
properly be ranked as coming under any of the definitions expressed in this cou'
munication. These should be submitted, through the Minister of the Interior, for the
consideration of the Government, with a report of the views of yourself and your
colleagues thereon.

It is desirable in the public interest that you should proceed to the North-West,
on the business indicated in this letter, immediately.

Mr. Muma will accompany you to the North-West, and Mr. McKay, who is at
present at Prince Albert, will be asked to join you at such place as you may notifY
him of by telegraph.

Upon your departure for Winnipeg, Captain Young will be advised by telegraph
to meet yon there.

A cheque for 8 on account of expenses is herewith enclosed, and a sum Of
8 has been placed to your credit in the Bank of Montreal, at Winnipeg. Yo"
will, of course, have to produce duplicate vouchers, duly signed and witnessed, for al1
expenditure made in connection with this enquiry, and all such vouchers must bO
approved of by yourself as chairman.

Your remuneration will be at the rate of $15 dollars per diern, with an allowance
of 85 per diem for living expenses.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
A.. M. BURGESS, Deputy of the Minister of the Interior.

J. ALPHONSE OUIMET, Esq.,
Chairman of the Rebellion Losses Commission, Montreal.

(Telegram.)
OTTAWA, 14th September, 1885.

Mackay joins you on same terms and for saine purposes as Ouimet and lerch-
mer and will be found very useful.

He should be specially consulted about claims from Prince Albert and South
Branch before making your repert.

JOHN R. HALL.
HENRY MUMA, Esq. care of Commissioner of Dominion Lands, Winnipeg.

A. 188649 Victoria.
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(Conßfdential.)
OTTAWA, 10th July, 1t85.

DEAR SIR,-With reference to my confidential letter of this day's date, asking
YOU to proceed to the North-West Territories upon the special mission theroin men-
tioned, the Minister directs me to request that you and your colleagues will report to
hin, confidentially, from time to time, after your visitation to the several districts:-

1. Whether there are likely to be any cases of real destitution therein during
the coming winter.

2. Whether the destitution is likely to be confined to a few of the population of
the jistrict, or whether it is likely to be gencral.

. Whether, in your judgment, it would be necessary that relief should be afforded
by the Government to people in destitute circumstances in the district. If so, what
orin should the relief take, for what time should it be afforded, and how many peo.

Nle, in each case, would it be necessary to assist ?
I have the honor to be, dear Sir, your obedient servant,

RNRY MUMAI, Esq., Drumbo, Ont. A. M. BURGESS.

P. S.-It may ho desirable for you to communicate with me, especially on the
suibject 8f this letter, by telegrapb, in which case please use Slater's telegraphic code,Of which a copy is enclosed. The cypher will be sender add 300, receiver subtract.

A. M. B.

(Confidential.)
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, OTTAWA, 10th July, 1885.

DEAR SiR,-As already informed verbally, you have been selected by the
.inister of the Interior, along with Mr. Lawrence Herchmer, of Birtle, in the Pro-

Vinâce of Manitoba, and Mr. J. Alphonse Ouimet, of Montreal, in the Province of,
Quebec, to proceed to the North-West Territories for the purpose of privately investi-
gating and ascertaining, for the information of the Government, the amount of damage
.auffered by persons in the Territories by reason of the recent half-breed and Indian
iZisrrection.

The class of claims which it will be your duty to investigate may be briefly
stated as direct claims for loss of property, or for imprison ment,. or for forced emigra-
t'On from the country.

Claims for consequenial damages will not be considered ; and as these could only
atrse in connection with the last of the three classes of claims hereinbefore men-
tioned that is to say claims for forced emigration from the locality within which theelairnant resides, it is to be understood that the word " forced " shall not be consid-
ered to imply emigration from mere alarm, but from serions danger to life and pro-
PerY.; that is to say, the object of your enquiry is to ascertain as far as possible what

ins are likely to be made upon the Government for actual loss, but not for damage
'la the purely legal sense of that term. It is desirable that you should ascertain in
euch case the antecedents and attitude of the person claiming to have suffered, par-
tielarly whether ho bas been loyal in his action and utterances, or otherwise, or

Whether ho bas openly or secretly encouraged the agitation which led to the out-
bleak. Mr. Ouimet and yourself may act separately or together as you may find
'4ist convenient, but I suggest that it would be most advisable that Mr. Ouimet and
Yourself, on account of bis knowledge of the French language, should be invariablygether, and perhaps to Mr. Herchmer might be allotted a section of country in

ch the French language is not much used.
Mr. Ouimet will join you at Owen Sound to-morrow and will hand you this letter

bfinstructions with a choque for $200 on account of your expenses. The sum of 81,000
be gben placed to your credit in the Bank of Montreal, Winnipeg, and the same can

rawn against from time to time, as necessity may require. If you should need a
3
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further credit, please to write, or telegraph, as the case may be, mentioning the
amount.

On your arrival at Winnipeg please telegraph to Mr. Herchmer telling him by
which train you will leave that city for the west, and asking him to meet you at the
most convenient station on the railway. Immediately, of course, on his joining you,
you will make him such advances on account of expenses as you may think fitting.
Duplicate vouchers, duly signed and witnessed, will be required on account of all
expenditure in connection with your commission, whother it bas been incurred on
your own account or on scecunt of your colleagues.

It is, of course. understood thatyour enquiry is to be strictly private, and for the
inforuation of the Government, and it will be desirable that you should report to ne
from time to time, as your investigation progresses.

This letter of instruction, although addressed to you, is intended for the informa-
tion and guidance of your colleagues as well.

I have the honor to be, Dear Sir, your obedient servant,
A. M. BURGESS, Deputy Minister of the Interior.

HENRY MUMA, Esq., Drumbo, Ont.

COMMISSION

APPOINTINo Joseph Alphonse Ouimet, Thomas McKay and Henry Muma, Esquires,
Commissioners under 31 Victoria, C aapter 38, to examine into and hear evidence
concerning any claim for compensation for loss or damage arising out of the
late Half-breed and Indian Insurrection in the North-West Territories.

CANADA.
(LANSDO WNE.)
VicOR10A, by the Grace of God, of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland,

Queen, Defender of the Faith, &c., &c., &c.
To Joseph Alphonse Ounmet, of the City of Montreal, in our Province of Quebec,

Esquire, Barrister-at-Law; Thomas McKay, of Prince Albert, in our District Of
Saskatchewan, Esquire; and Henry Muma, of Drumbo, in the County of Oxford,
in our Province of Ontario, Esquire, and to all to whom these presents shall
come, or whom the same may in any wise concern-GREETING :

WHERnAS it is in and by an Act of the Parliament of Canada, passed in the thirtY-
first year of our reign, chaptered thirty-eight, and intituled : " An A.ct respectiig
Enquiries concerning public matters," amongst other things, in effect, enacted that
whenever the Governor in Council deems it expedient to cause enquiry to be made
into and concerning any matter connected with the good government of Canada, or
the conduct of any part of the public business thereof, and such enquiry is not regu'
lated by any special law, the Governor may, by the commission in the case, confer
upon the commissioners or persons by whom such enquiry is tso be conducted, the
power of summoning before them any party or witnesses, and of requiring them to
give evidence on oath orally or in writing (or on solemn affirmation if they be parties
entitled to affirm in civil matters), and to, produce such documents and things as such
commissioners deem requisite to the full investigation of the matters into which theY
are appointed to examine.

And whereas we deem it expedient for you, the said Joseph Alphonse Ouimet,
Thomas McKay and Henry Muma, to examine into and hear evidence concerning
any claim for compensation for loss or damage arising out of the late outbreak in ou1 r
North-West Territories of Canada, and that you be empowered to summon witnesse$
and to examine them under oath.

Now know ye that under and by virtue of the powers vested in us by the said
Act, passed in thethirty-first year of our reign, chaptered thirty-eight, and intituled
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n Act respecting Enquiries concerning public matters," and by and with the advice
loOcr Privy Council for Canada, we, reposing special trust and confidence in your

ealty, fidelity and ability, have nominated, constituted and appointed, and do
reby nominate, constitute and appoint you, the said Joseph Alphonse Ouimet,
e as McKay and Henry Muma, to be our commissioners to examine into and hear

thdence concerning any claim for compensation for loss or damage arising out of
late Half-breed and Indian insurrection in our North-West Territories of Canada.
And we do hereby authorizo and empower you as such commissioners to sum-

çQbefore you any party or witness and to require them to give evidence on oath,
y or in writing (or on solemn affirmation if they be parties entitled to affirm in

4.r Inatters), and to produce such documents and things as you, our said commis-
%rers shall deem requisite to the full investigation of the matters into which you

hereby appointed to examine.
And we do hereby constitute and appoint you, the said Joseph Alphonse Ouimet
e the chairman of this our commission.
To have, hold, exercise and enjoy the said office, place and trust, unto you the

1 Joseph Alphonse Ouimet, Thomas McKay and Henry Muma, together with the
'ihts, powers, privileges and emoluments unto the said office, place and trust of
Iht and by law appertaining during pleasure.

And we do hereby require you to report to our Minister of the Interior of Canada
tiaines of the several persons who you may ascertain and determine to have claims

cord0nupensation for loss or damage as aforesaid, together with the evidence taken
Ore you, and any opinions you may see fit to express thereupon.
ln testimony whereof, we have caused these our Letters to be made Patent, and

the Great Seal of Canada to be hereunto affixed. Witness, our Right
Trusty and Entirely-Beloved Cousin, the most Honorable Sir Henry
Charles Keith Petty-Fitzmaurice, Marquis of Lansdowne, in the County
of Somerset, Earl of Wycombe, of Chipping Wycombe, in the County of
Bucks, Viscount Caln and Calnstone, in the County of Wilts, and Lord
Wycombe, Baron of Chipping Wycombe, in the County of Bucks, in the
Peerage of Great Britain; Earl of Kerry and Earl of Shelburne, Viscount
Clanmaurice and Fitzmaurice, Baron of Kerry, Lixnaw, and Dunkerron,
in the Peerage of Ireland; Knight Grand Cross of our most Distin-
guished Order of Saint Michael and Saint George; Governor General of
Canada, and Vice-Admiral of the same.

At our Government House, in our City of Ottawa, this twenty-fifth
day of February, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight
hundred and eighty-six, and in the forty-ninth year of our

by Ooininard. reign.

G. POWELL,
Under Seretary of State.

A. 1868
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REPORTS
(62)

Of the Chief Engineer and General Manager Government Railways, the
Dominion Government Agent in British Columbia, and the Engineer
who personally inspected the Esquimalt and Nanaimo Railway.

OTTAWA, 9th December, 1885.
Sia,-Mr. Dunsmuir, president of the Esquimalt and Nanaimo Railway, under

tter dated 27th October, ultimo, being addressed to the Hon. Joseph Trutch, sub-
1ts plans and profiles of the altered alignmonts of thoir railway for the approval of

the Governor in Council, the facts of the case are as follows, viz. :

forA contract was entered into with the Esquimalt and Nanaimo Railway Company
he construction of that road, one of the conditions beig that the maximum

rade should not exceed 80 feet per mile, and the minimum degree of aurves 7° 10'.
he stipulations as to the character of the work was that it should be equal to the

FeCtion of the Canadian Pacific Railway in British Columbia. Under this contract
the Company located their lino, in compliance with the above conditions, and sub.
'itted the plans and profiles for the approval of the Governor in Council, and theyeOre duly approved and returned to the president, and construction proceeded.
'Jlbsequently the alignment was changed by the company without any reference or
4nthority from the Government, by the introduction of many 8°, 90 and 100 curves,

r. Dunsmuir alleging that ho was under the impression that ho had power to mako
Reh changes under the clause of the contract, which required the character of the

road to be equal to that of the Canadian Pacific Railway in British Columbia, but ho
4PPeared to have overlooked the fact that a limit was given in the contract to both
he everity of grades and curves. Mr. Trutch, the Dominion Governmont Agent in
rltish Columbia, who is well acquainted with Mr. Dunsmuir, states that he is
%ti8fied that Mr. Dunsmuir, in making those changes in location, was sincere in his

flief that ho was acting within the torms imposed by the contract, and that na
eand was intended, and Mr. Brophy, who under my instructions inspected the lino,

t Ports that though the curves are sharper, that by reason of the timber in struc-
e8s being very largely reluced, the road is more permanent than upon the original

Ocation and that it must have cost the contractor about as much as if ho had con-
tucted it upon that location.

The railway is to be owned and oporated by the company; they are, therefore,
8ecially interested in having a good, safe and economical road to operate, and as

eY are building a substantial road, I suggest that inasmuch as the works of con-
ntrUction upon the chauge of location, and indeed upon the entire lino, are nearly

pleted, that if the conditions of the contract as to the limit of the severity of the
hoES and carves can be modified, that the plans and profiles with the 80, 9° and 10°

ýes be approved.
0  The road, as built, is, I am satisfied, from a personal inspection, equal to the
aIadian Pacifie Railway in eastern British Columbia through the mountains.

I am, Sir, your obedient servant,
COLLINGWOOD SCHRUEIBER, Chief Engineer and General Manager.

OFFICE OF THE EsQU1MALT AND NANAIMO RAILWAY COMPANT,
VIcToRIA, B.C., 27th October, 1885.

SIr,--I have the honor to inform you with reference to the further plans and
Ofile of this railway forwarded to you on the 9th instant, and referred to in your
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letter to me of this date, being plans and profiles showing the altered alignment Of
the railway now under construction, that it is my intention and desire to have these
plans and profilos tran«rnitted to the Hon. the Minister of Railways, with a view tO
the concurrence an I approval of the Government of the altered alignment showa
thereon.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
R. DUNSMUIR, President.

Hon. J. W. TRUTCH, Dominion Government Agent, Victoria.

VICTORIA, B.C., 28th October, 1885
DEAR Sra,-I send by express to-day to your address plan and profile of the

Esquimalt and Nanaimo Railway, showing the altered alignment on which this work
is being constructed, which plan and profile, bearing the signature of the company's
chief engineer, Mr. Hunt3r, have been handed to me by Mr. Dunsmuir, president of
the company, for tiansmission to the Minister of Railways for his consideration, with
a view to the Governor in Council's approval of this altered alignment being obtained.

A copy of Mir. Dunsmuir's letter submitting this plan and profile is enclosed
herewith.

I also send enclosed a copy of Mr. Brophy's report of the inspection recently
made by him of this line of railway, and of the works thereon already completed of
under construction.

Mr. Brophy bas made a thorough examination of this work throughout, and
states fully the reasons which he understands induced the company's engineers to
make the several alterations of alignment which he refers to in detail, and he point8
ont clearly and-as I consider-justly the comparative advantages and disadvantage
to the railway itself of these alterations.

I understand from this report that Mr. Brophy's conclusion is that although the
curvature has been increased materially by the alterations of alignment-and in soie
instances without sufficient reason-che railway now under construction on this
altered alignment wili, on the whole, be a more substantial and practically a bettr
road than if built on the original location and design-the increase of curvature being
more than compensated for as regards the practical value of the road, by th3 substi-
tution of solid embankments on the altered-for long stretches of trestling on the
original location much of which if built, he thinks, conld not be replacel by solid
banks on account ot the steepness of the side hills on which it was designed to bO
erected.

I understand, also, from Mr. Brophy that, as far as he can approximately esti'
mate, the first cost of the railway on this altered alignment will be little, if any, lesM
than it would have been if constructed according to the approved location and desigll
though indeed it will be a cheaper railway to the company, as the expense of ité
maintenance will be lessened proportionately to the reduced amount of timber strao-
turcs in it.

Mr. Brophy further reports that the bridges and trestles completed are vel
substantial structures, and that the whole of the work executed is unexceptionable
and fully satisfies the requirements of the specification being of the character at least
equal to that of the Canadian Pacific Railway in British Columbia.

The only portions of this road which I have gone over are the first section Of
ten miles from Esquimalt, and that about seventeen miles in length between Ches
mainus River and Nanaimo River, which sections you inspected recently when I
accompanied you and had the opportunity of conferring with you fully on the variogO
questions involved in the alteration of alignment made by the company's engineers.

It wotld conscquently be superfluous for me to write you my opinions on the0
points in detail.

I desire, however, to remark on the subject generally, that it is of course 10ar
that the company have acted wrongly in altering the alignment of their railW&l
withut obtaining, or even asking, the approval of the Government, and they a
certainly blameable for having so done.

2
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It is much to ho regretted that they have acted so unwarrantahly. I am con-
Vlned, however, that their action in this respect was not actuated by disingenuous
Iaotives, but resulted entirely from misunderstanding of the conditions of their agree-
"lent with the Government.

'Upon my mooting this matter to Mr. Dunsmuir-on receipt of your letter of31st
JnlY, which conveyed the first intimation to me that the railway was being con.
strncted on other than the approved location-I found that both he and bis engineer
*e0 under the erroneous impression that clause 11 of the Agreement between his
cOmaPany and the Minister of Railways-which provides that the character of the

1lway and its equipment shall be in all respects equal to the general character of
the Canadian Pacific Railway in British Columbia-applied to the alignment of the
1ailway as well as to the works to be constructed; and that they omitted, under this
4istaken apprehension, td appreciate that the company was definitely bound as to

ellrvature and grade by the limitation of the 2nd clause of the specification in accord-
ance0 with which the railway was contracted to be built, and that they further stated
that they understood that the plans and profiles submitted by them and approved of
Y the Governor in Council, were to be regarded rather as a formality required to

b fulfilled in order that the terms of the agreement should be exactly complied
with than as laying down an exact location to be strictly conformed to ; and that
they would ho held to have satisfied the real spirit and intent of the agreement if
9he alignment of the railway and its construction and equipment were found to be
'r' all respects equal to the general character of the Canadian Pacific ]Railway in
"ritish Columbia and the equipment thereof.

I cannot but believe that the company was led into the fault which has been
oInmitted solely by these erroneous views, and I think the correctness of this con-

?lusion is manifest from the following considerations:-The company has placed
Itself under great risk compared with any possible advantage to be gained from the
course it has taken-it mutst have been evident to the company, had any dishonest
1otive induced this course, that the altered location of the railway must inevitably

he apparent whenever the work was inspected by Government, the road is to beth" company's own property, and to be operated by them and therefore the chief
Alferer would ho tho company itself if the ch-acter of the road were practicaily
egraded-and finally as a matter of fact the character of the railway works is

5ýPerior to the requirements of the company's agreement with Government.
I arm persuaded that if Mr. Dunsmuir, or eitber of his associates in the director-

"te, had had any previous connection with the construction of railways under
verInment subsidy and control, or had they had the benefit of the advice of a chief

gineer of any exporience in this respect, the mistake and fault committed by the
YYpany would have been avoided.

Upon review of all these circumstances, my conclusions are that-
1st. The company did not act with fraudulent intention in the fault they have

C'OmZritted.
2 nd. The railroad now heirg constructed on the altered alignment quite fulfils .x-

eept as to curvature, the terms of the company's agreement with Government; and-
3 rd. If constructed on the approved location it would practically not ho a botter

4th. But an exnenditure of $200,000 or $300,000 would be entailed on the com-
a'nh by sucb reconstruction, from which no benefit would be deiived by the public

e company.
I do not hesitaite, therefore, to express the opinion that it would not be advisableto the Government, as it certainly would not be in the interests of the public, thatloe Onpany sh< uld ho required to reconstruct their road on the original approvedation, and that consequently the location indicated on the plan and profile now

Be Mitted for consideration and on which the road is being constructed, and in fact is
arly completed, with such modifications'as the Minister may think fit to direct,
ay be concurred in. Yours faithfully,

JOSEPII W. TRUTCH.
Co'lIÎGWooD SOenIBE, Esq., Engineer-in-Chief, C. P. R., Ottawa.

3
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VICTORIA, B. C., 20th October, 1885.
SIR,-In accordance with your instructions, I have made an inspection of the

alignments, gradients, grading, timber work, &c., on the Esquimalt and NanaimnO
iRailway, and beg to hand you the following report on the above work as compiled
from notes taken on the ground, and from a close examination of the plans and pro
files furnished by the company.

The chainvge and mileage referred to in the report are taken from the original
plans and profiles, the mileage commencing at Nanaimo and running southward to
]liquimalt,

Alignment and Gradients.

From Station 47 near Nanaimo to 4j miles south some slight alterations have
been made in the line and gradients generally with the object of reducing the work,
and although there is no exceptional curvature the alignment could be improved in
places at a comparatively small cost.

41 to 5½ miles.-Here the original line was located in low swampy ground and
in close proximity to Southfield Shaft the property of the Vancouver Coal Company,
with a level crobsing on their railway from the mine to Nanaimo.

A change was made here, and the line carried to higher ground on the left. The
grades were also raised to suit change of lino, by which an overhoad crossing of cea 1

company's railway was secured. By this change the curvature has been increased
somewhat, the maximum curve used being an 8 degrees, of which there are two
on this portion, but the advantages gained in the stability of the road-bed and cross'
ing of railway will, I think, justify the change.

5j to 8j miles.-Line altered slightly in places, and curvature decreased. LinO
and grades genoerally improved.

8j to 1i miles.-The only change in line on this portion is at the 9th mile, where
two 8 degrees curves have been put in, with the object of reducing heavy rocl
cutting. The grades have been asghtly altered in places, but are as favorable a0
original grades.

11 to 13 miles.-Line changed and carried to the right on higher ground to avoid
bad swamp, aid necessitating an increase in curvature between ilth and 12th mile$
to avoid heavy cutting in bard pan, but there is no exceptional curvature, the ma%'
mum being 6 degrees.

The grades have also been changed to suit alteration in lino, the maxinuo
gradient bcirg 1·24 per 100, falling south for 2,100 feet.

13 to 25 miles.-A few alterations bave been made in the line, in some cases
decreasing and in others increasing the curvature, but there are no exceptional
features, and the general aligriment is good and practically the same as original linO.
The grades bave also been changed generally, with the object of reducing the worlk
but in some cases, through low, swampy ground, increasing embankments. The
maximum gi ade is 1·40 per 100. rising south for 2,500 feet.

25 to 29 mile.-The only charge on this portion occurs at Station 1507 where a
4 degrces cuive bas been substituted for a 2 degrees, in order to keep tre Of
embanikment out of creek. The grade bas been raised from 1 to 2 feet through loe
ground from 25 to 26J miles, and generxally to the 29th mile, increasing embanlk'
ments ard k sseuing cuttings. Maximum grade 1·25 per 100, rising south for 1,600 feet'

29 to 30 miles.-An alteration bas been made bere and the lino carried t tb0
right alorg steep side bill, in order to avoid a bad muskeg. This charge involVe$
home heavy side hill work and makes a botter and more permanent road-bed, bhat
necessitates a considerable increase in curvature. The maximum curve is a 1
degiees. The grades have also been adjusted to change in line, the maximum beiflg
1·00 per 100, rising south for 1,100 feet.

30 to 33 miles.-No alteration bas been made in the line but the grades bavo
been raised generally, increasing embankments through low ground and decreasi-4
cuttings. Maximum grade 1-50 per 100, falling south for 1,000 feet.
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83 to 37 miles.-A considerable deviation from original line has been made here,
for the purpose of securing a botter crossing of the Cowichan River, a rapid strean
suibjet to sudden floods. The present lino crosses the Cowichan about 40 chains
I'!ost, or above the original lino and on higher ground, and is in all respects an
11nrovement, The alignmonts and gradients on this deviation are as favorable as
on original lino.

37 to 39 miles.-The lino is practically on the same ground as the original, but
14as3 been thrown more into cutting in order to keep embankments clear of Kokasalah
liver, which is bore a rapid stream and subject to sudden flpods. The curvature bas
been incroased somewhat, the maximum curve being an 8 degrees, and there are two
on this portion. The alignment generally is fair for the cbaracter of the ground,
Whieb is a steep and broken side bill.

The grades are about the same as original.
39 to 46 miles.-A considerable deviation from original lino bas been made bore

lOssening the length of the lino by about ¾ths of a mile, and lowering summit near
45th mile by 60 feet. The maximum curve used is an 8 degree, any there are six on
this deviation, but the total curvature is less than on the original line. The grades
generally have been improved on this portion, the maximum grades being now 1·50
Por 100 feet for 12,500 feet, and 1'45 per 100 for 1,650 feet, as compared with 1'50 per
100 for 13,500 feet, and 1-48 per 100 for 4,500 feet on original line.

46 to 48 miles.-There bas been no alteration of any consoquence on this portion,
Oecept about Station 1230 around the oast arm of Shawnigan Lake, where an 8
degree curve has been substituted for a 7 degree, tbrowing lino more into cutting and
doing away with very beavy trestle work.

48 to 49 miles.--Here the lino bas been altered and curvature increased consid-
erably, the maximum curve here is a 9 degrees of which there are threo on this
"aile. The location is fairly gocd for the character of the ground which is a steep
side hill intersected by deep ravines and with jutting rock bluffs necessitating very
beavy cuttings and embankments.

49 to 52 miles.-Alterations have been made throughout these three miles gen-
Orally by using sharper curvature and reducing cuttiugs, embankments and trestle
'Work. The maximum curve bore is 8 degrees, and there are eight on these
three miles. By these changes from the 48th to 52nd mile a very large amount of
trestle wcrk would be dispersed with and embankment and cutting substituted. The
Ctrvature from the 48th to the 52nd mile is excessive, but cannot well be avoided
'Wing to the configuration cf the ground, and though some improvements might be

ade at one or two points as the work progresses, any extensive reduction in curva-
ttre from the present lino will very largely increase the work.

52 to 58 miles.-A number of sl;ght alterations have been made improving the
aigament in places, but on the whole slightly increasing the curvature. Tho align-

ont generally is good and there is only one 8-degrees curve on this portion. By
heee alterations all trestle work bas been dispensed with except about 600 feet. From

the 47th to 54¼ mile at summit between Shawnigan Lake and Gold Stream, the
grades are approximately the same as originals, the maximum being 1.50 per 100
fet for 26,E00 feet, as compared with 1-50 per 100 for 27,800 feet on original lino.

58 to 63 miles.-This part of the line is on a very steep mountain side, inter-
sected by immense ravines and jutting rock bluffs and is the most difficult and

pensive portion of the whole lino. On the plans and profiles of original location
ho Maximum curve shown is 70 10' but with this limit of curvature the work would
e oxcessively beavy, with long stretches of trestle work on steep side hill, which

00 IId not be replaced by embankment, but would bave to be renewed periodically.
he location throughout nearly the whole of these five miles bas been changed, the
e carried higher on the mountain side, and the grades raised, varying from 5 to 30

".The curvature has also been very much increased, there being on the prosentt aine 8 degrees, four 9 degrees, and eight 10 degrees curves. By thesO changesIle Pernanency of the road-bed will be greatly increased by substituting cuttings and
okkembankments for the immense stretches of trestle work shown on original profile.
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The following are the points where exceptional curvature has been utilized
Station 671 to 681, two 9 degree curves, through heavy rock cutting and deeP
ravine. Lighter cirvature here would necessitate heavy trestle work through
ravine, and largely increase rock cutting. Station 633 to 652, one 9 degree and
two 10 degree curves. One of these 10 degree curves runs through tunnel a0
Station 612. The grade hore is about 23 feet higher than original, and any alters
lion from the present lino will nocessitate an enormous amount of additional work.
On the original plan and profiles, the maximum curve shown bere is a 7 degreer
but from the similarity of the profile oforiginal and present location, I am under the
impression that there must have been some error in laying down the curves on the
plan, and do not thirrk the profiles shown could be had here with 7 degro
curves. From Station 588 to 622 there are three 8 degree and three 10 degree
curves. This is an exceptionally difficult piece of location, and the work, even with
this curvature, is very heavy. On the present lino, a straight crossing of Arbuttlo
Canon is secured, where it is proposed to put in one 150 feet span Howe truss, with
trestle approaches. The grading bore is about completed, and any changes fro0
present lino will involve an enormous amount of additional work. The present grado,
is 35 feet higher than original at this point. From Station 550 to 580 there
are three 8 degree and one 10 degree curves at the crossing of the Big
Ravine. Here it is proposed to fill in the ravine, with a rock embankmen ti
to within 120 feet of grade, and on this embankment erect trestle work. Thi0
embankment on the present lino would be about eighty feet high in centre of ravine.
A good crossing can be had here with a lighter curve, but the work would be increased
very much, as about 100 feet below the present lino there is a perpendicular fà1l
ef seventy feet in the bottom of the ravine, and this would have tb be filled UP
unless a long span truss bridge were utilized, and this would have to be on a sharP
curve, as it is impossible to get a straight crossing without enormously increasig
the woi k. The grade is thirty-two feet higher than on original lino. From Statio
473 to 542 there are three 8 degree, one 9 degree, and one 10 degree curves. T'hl
curvature bere could be lightend, but at the cost of heavy acditional work, as the
grading is about completed. On the present lino all trestle work is dispensed with,
-except 300 feet at station 533, and 800 feet at the crossing of Double IHIead
Canon, the balance of the road-bed being in cutting and on solid rock embankI'
-ments. The grade at Station 520 is about seventeen feet higher than the
original grade. From Station 440 to 473, the only exceptional curvature is at the
crossing of Waugh's Creek where a 10 degxee curve is used. This stream is in i'
deep gorge and when crossed by the lire the bed of the stream is about ninety fet
below grade. On the present line the shortest and best possible crossing is obtained
and Iho public road which crossed the stream immediately below the railway lino iO
imotintrfered with. A lighter curve at this poiit would necessitate an extensiVq
and difficult diversion of this xoad, and would also ery greatlyincrease trestlework•
The present grade is about Feven feet higher ibtin original grade at this poidl'
On the origir al plan and profile a 7 degree curve was shown bore, but this mud
have been an error, as no such profile as there shown coýnld be obtained bore witb .4
7 degree curçe. The grades from the 56th to the 63i'd mile, are not as favorable
as on original lino, the maximum being now 1·50 per 100 feet for 2,,600 feet as cole
pared with 1.50 per 100 feet for 20,000 feet.

63 to 67 miles.-Two or three slight alterations hsve been made in the lino and
grades, but nothing of sufficient importance to call for special notice, and the
general alignment is good.

67 to 68 miles.-Considerable changes have been made on this portion and the
curvature increased. From Station 195 to 213 an alteration was made in order to
leave sufficiert space between the stream and lino to form an embankment and dio'
pense with a very large amount of trestle work. One 8 degroe and one 9° 30
eurves were put .in bore, but the latter is now being changed to an 8 degreO•
Yrom Station 160 to 180 two 8 degree curves have been substituted for a 5 degrOe
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and a 7 degree curve, with the object of reducing tre 4le work,but the saving effected
la s0 slight that I do not consider the change was advisable.

68 to 69 miles.-No alterations have been made in the lino, and the road-bed in
built on original line. From the 63rd to 67th mile some slight alterations have been

aV.de in the grades, and from the 67th to 69th mile the grade has been lowered three
foet to reduce trestle and embankment, but the ratios of gradients are about the same
as Original, and there is nothing exceeding 1·50 per 100

d G 9 to about 71 miles.-At Esquimalt. From Station 33 to 100 on this portion a
.97iation bas been made from the original lino, and the curvature considerably
Ile-reased. The alignmont is fair for the locality, but doos not compare favorably
'ith original lino. The company's engineer states that this alteration was a
11ecessity in order to enable thom to prosecute the rest of the work, as the lan<l
OWners along this part of the lino refused right of way unless this deviation was

aI1tde and the lino carried along the water front to Dead Man's River, as now built;
ad that arbitration was impossible owing to retention in Ottawa of the company's
and plans. Apart from this, the only advantage gained by this change is a small

reduction in the amount of trestle work. There is nothing exceptional in the
grade, as they have merely been adjusted to suit change in lino.

Grading, Timber Work, &c.

M Nanaimo a good frame building for combined passenger and freight stationas been erected and grading completed for siding about 1,400 feet long.
From Station 47 to 8 miles south the grading is completed and all structure%

bnilt except four small culverts and about 1,500 feet of trestle. lore the Nanaimo
1ý'ver is crossed by one 125 feet span Howe truss dock bridge with 200 feet of treetle
approaches. The truss span rests on solid rock on north side and on trestle pier on
scath side of river, is a good substantial structure, and is now about completed.

Proni 8 to 25J miles at Chemainus River grading is completed, the structures
'te al in except one or two culverts, the track is laid and ballasting is now in pro-
M8s. Some of the embankments on this portion are narrow in places, but are now

O61ag made up by train. At 25J miles the Chemainus River is crossed and the
5à"licture consisting of one 150 feet span Howe truss through bridge, with 200 feet of
e»le trestle approach on south side of river, is now under construction. The tras
%Pan rests on masonry abutments built on solid rock foundation on north side, and
ýoIle filled crib-work abutment with pile foundation on south side of river. Ait
ension stream diversion is being made here in order to straighten channel of river
aboVe the bridge and prevent scouring on the south side.

Prom 25 to 34J miles, at Cowichan River, the grading is completed and strue.
s all in except 700 feet of pile trestle, The Cowichan River bridge, which is

rOW under construction, will consist of one 100 feet span and one 150 feet span Howe
as through bridge with stone filled crib-work pier and abutments built on pile

fo ndations. There is also 300 feet of pile trestle approach on north aide and 15
On south side of river.
Prom 34î to about 36 miles.-Near Kokasala River the grading is finishod
F structures in except 520 feet of pile trestles. The Kokasala bridge will consis"

011 150 feet span lowe truass with pile approaches.
From 36 to 371 miles.-The grading is done but there are two or three smanI

Ictures to be built.
874 to 384 miles.-The gradingfis now in progress but very little has been donc
0to the 20th September.
381 to 391 miles. -Grading is finished but structures are not. About 300 feet

t restle to be built.
891 to 43 miles.-Clearing has been done on this portion but no other work

0 eOPt about 800 feet of grading near 43rd mile.
43 to 45 miles.-About 80 por cent. of the grading is completed and the bal-

4jý ils 1ow in progress, but the structures have not been built.
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From 45J to 55 miles.-Very little work has been done except clearing, but
grading is now in progress.

From 55 to 58ï miles.-With the exception of some narrow embankments, and
cuttings that require sloping, the grading is about finished. Several culverts and a
large number of rock drains have been put in and there now romains only about 600
feet of trestle to complete the structures.

Near the 59th mile-A line tunnel in rock is now in progress and is about half
comploted. The dimensions of this tunnel when finished will be 160 feet long, 21
feet high, 17 feet wide at grade and 19 feet wide at springing of arch.

From 59 to 61 miles.-The grading is about finished, with the exception of two
or three rock cuttings, and part of retaining walls and embankment from Station 620
to 630, but a large amount of trestle and bridge work has yet to be built, especially
at Arbutus Canon and Big Ravine. At Arbutus Canon the excavation for foundation
of trestles is nearly completed and the work of filling up the Big Ravine with rock
embankment has bean lot by contract and is now in progress.

From 61 to 63 miles.-With the exception of one or two cuttings and embank-
ments which are narrow in places and rock cut at Station 520 which is nearly through,
the grading on these two miles is completed. There is however a very large amount
of trestle work and bridge work yet to be done at Double Head Canon, Goldstream
and Waugh's Creek. The excavation for foundations of trestles at the two latter are
now under progress.

From the 58th to 62nd mile.-Very large amount of good solid retaining walls
have been built to support embankments in places where otherwise it would have
been almost impossible to utake the embankments owing to the steep character of
the aide hills.

From 63 to 67 miles.-With the exception of part of slopos of cutting at station
220, the grading is completed and the structures are built.

From 67 to about 71 miles at Esquimalt.-With the exception of embankment
and cutting to be widened about Station 200 for the purpose of decreasing curvature,
the grading and structures are comploted and track laid, but ballasting has not yet
been done.

The work generally has been performel in a substantial and workmanlike man-
mer, and the trestles and bridge work especially, will compare favorably with similar
work on the Canadian Pacific Railway.

The quantity of timber work saved by changes in lino and dispensing (with
trestle work, from the 49th to 63rd mile, aggregates 4,500,000 feet B. M.

In conclusion, I would state that the notes from which the above report was
compiled wore taken on the ground previous to the 20th September, since which
time a large amount of grading, timber work, fencing, track-laying, ballasting, &c.,
has been done.

Trusting the above report will be satisfactory.
I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,

J. B. BROPHY.
lion. J. W. TRUTCH, C.M.G., Dominion Government Agent, Victoriaî

A. 188649 Victoria.
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COPIES
(62a)

Of Telegraphie Communications respecting the Esquimalt and Nanaimo
Railway.

(Telegram from Victoria, B.C.)

4th April, 1886.
Son. J. H. POPE, Minister of Railways,

Ottawa.
Resolutions approving sharpened curves, Esquimait and Nainimo Railway,

passed Legislature to-day.
SMITHE.

GOVERNMENT HousE, VICTORIA, 15th March, 1886.
SIa,-I have the honor to forward a copy of an Order in Council, dated 15th

arch, with reference to a telegram received from the Hon. Sir Alexander Campbell,
on the 25th February, stating that a Bill will be introduced into the Dominion
Parliament authorizing assent to the alignment of the Nanaimo and Esquimalt Rail-
Way as it exists, provided that my Government concur. I have this day telegraphed
to You as follows:-" Provincial Government concur in legislation authorizing assent
tO abignment Nanaimo Railway as it exists."

I have, &o.,

on. Secretary of State, Ottawa. CLEMENT F. CORNWALL, Lieut.-Governor.

ConP of a Report of a Committee of the Bonorable the Executive Council, approved by Bis
Honor the Lieutenant Governor on the 15th day of March, 1886.

The Committee of Council have had under consideration a telegram from the
]aOnorable Sir Alexander Campbell, dated 25th February, 1886, which states that a

ill will be introduced into the Dominion Parliament authorizing assent to the
alignment of the Esquimalt and Nanaimo Railway as it exists, provided that the
British Columbia Government concurs; a detailed report from Mr. Brophy, C.E., on
the alignment in question, and also a copy of a letter from the Honorable J. W.
1prutch, C.M.G., Dominion Government Agent in British Columbia, forwarding the
ad report to the Engineer-in-Chief of Government Railways, and strongly recom-

11enuding, for reasons therein -et forth, that the alignment as it exists be concurred in.
The Committee agree with the views expressed by. Mr. Trutch, and advise, there-

r that Lis Honor the Lieutenant Governor be respectfull requested to forward
the following telegram and also a copy of this Minute to the onorable the Seeretary

State for Canada:-
"Provincial Government concur in legislation authorizing assent to alignment

a'nimo Railway as it exists."
Certified.

JNO. ROBSON, Clerk Executive Council.

62a-2

'49 «Victoria. A. 1886



49 Victoria. 3essional Papers (No. 64.)

RETURN
(64)

To an ORDER of the HOUSE OF COMMONS, dated 29th March, 1886 ;-For a
Statement, in detail, of the several Assets forming the sum $72,791,887

stated by the Minister of Finance to be available in reduction of the

Gross Debt of the Dominion.

By Command.

bepartment of the Seocretary of State,
lst April, k86.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Secretary of State.

8TATEMENT, in detail, of the several Assets forming the sum of Seventy-two million
seven hundred and ninety-one thousand eight hundred and thirty.seven dollars
($72,791,837), available in reduction of the Gross Debt of the Dominion.

INVESTMENTS.

8irikin Fund, Canada Reduced 4 per cent. Loan.......................
go Intercolonial Railway, 4 per cent. Loan...................

do Rupert's Land Guaranteed 4 per cent. Loan,...........
do British Columbia 6 per cent. Loan.. .............
do Guaranteed 4 per cent. Loans, 1875 and 1878.
do Dominion of Canada 4 per cent. Loan, 1874.............
do do 4 do 1875.............
do do 4 do 1876.............
do do 4 do 1878-79.........
do do 34 do 1884.............

Consolidated Fund Investment Account..............
Receiver-General's 5 per cent. Inscribed Stoek....................
Quebec Harbor Debentures............... ..................................
Three Rivers do .......................................................
Mlontreal Harbor Commission. ............................................... ......
Irnprovement of the St. Lawrence ...............................................
Graving Dock, Quebec............................ .............................
eorthern Railway Bond Account.................. .................
Canadian Pacific Railway Co. 5 per cent. Loan Account ...............

do do 4 do Advance Account ..........
St. John Bridge and Railway Extension Co.......... ............... .........

lYnion Bank of Lower Canada, Special Account ............ ...............
Liverpool Bank, N.8. ....... . .......................

PnovINCE AccOUNTs.

Province of Canada Debt Account .......................................
do Ontario do ...... .......................................
do Quebec do ........ ...............
do Nova Scotia do Suspense.................. ...............
do New Brunswick Debt Account, Suspense.....................
do. Prince Edward Island Land Account......
do Ontario Emigration Aecount ....................
do Quebec Ourrent Account............ . . .......

11orth Shore Railway Bond Account..........................................

$ ets.

8,249,899 59
3,158,953 34

338,719 97
353,395 51

1,510,126 67
1,397,704 05

307,249 34
626,605 39
788,238 Il
132,956 68

1,028,548 99
10,138 88

2,125,000 00
75,734 50
76,000 00

2,339,504 10
724,000 00
73,000 00

21,650,700 00
7,380,912 00

425,500 00

100,000 00
30,000 00

82,779 82
3.891,771 Il
2,122,485 06

42,084 97
463 39

747,976 71
6,572 20

625,000 00

$ ets.

16,863,848 65

35,909,038 47

130,00000

7,509,133 26
1,351,595 00<

A. 1886
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STATEMENT, in detail, of the several Asset8, &C., available in redaotion of the Gross
Debt of the Dominion-Concluded.

MISCELLANEOUS.

Bank of Upper Canada Advance Account. ..... . . ..........
o Trustee do .................... ................

do Current do .....................................
Bank of Prince Edward Island Liquidation Account......................
Exchange Bank Account do ...... ..............
Queen's Printer Advance Account..... ......................................
Rails Loan Account........... ................. ......................................
Intercolonial Railway Stores Account..................... $723,784 27
Prince Edward Island Railway Stores Account. ....... 89,516 42
Eastern Extension Railway do ......... 6,243 90

Stationery Office Stock Account............... ............
Printing Contractor........... ...... . ....... ........... .................
Manitoba School Lands Account.................... ...........................

BANKMiiG AccOUNTS.

Cash Account..... ......................... ...... ....................................
Specie Reserve Account .............. . ................. ..................
Bank of Montreal, London ........... ................ ............. ......
Baring Brothers & Co ......... ...................................
Sir John Rose, Bart......... - ........................... . ......... .....
Mennonite Loan ........... .. ........................ ......... ..................
Icelandic Immigration ......................................................... ......
Savings Bank, Nova Scotia, Special Account ..........................
Sinking Fund Special Account...... ........ ..............................
W idows' Pensions, U.0 ....... ......... ............... ...........................
Militia Paymaster .. ......... ........
Services........ ......... ......... ........................
Silver Coinage Account...... .................... ..................
Silver 20e. pieces ........ .................. ......... ......... ......... ..................
Intercolonial Railway Open Account .... .................. $357,563 15

do Windsor Branch Open Account. 1,845 43
Prince Edward Island Railway do ... 10,590 51
Canadian Pacific do do ... 241 67

Savings Bank, Ottawa.... ..... ........ .................. ......... .
Cash suspense A ccount .. .............. ........................... ........
Bank of Montreal Provincial Note Suspense Account..............
Nova Scotia Savings Bank Cash do .....................
Baring Brothers & Co. Dividend Account........ .........
Oustoms Suspense Account .......... ,..................... .........

Difference arising from clerical errors in statement of lst March,
1886, corrected in this revised statement ........ ..........

103,316
150,000
29,027
60,692

189,477
35,175

242,661

819,544 59
32,180 76

2,018 Il
23,107 75

4,567,229 01
3,885,410 64

172,236 96
34,495 26
38,749 20
52,943 89
47,700 00
26,793 14

1,179 95
3,802 38

605 49
101 35

88,891 53
2,140 90

370,240 76
260 91

9,247 38
40,625 53

194 67
404 38

36 67

......... ,..............

$ et$.

1,687,201 95

9,343,290 00

72,794,107 3

2,269 99

72,791,837 34

RaIBSED STATEIENT.

Gross Debt, lt March, 1886....................... ....................... $281,318,484 06
Luu-Good Assoe............................................................... 72,794,107 33

$208,524,376 73

B. & O. E.

OTTAWA, 318t March, 1886.

JOHN A. TORRANCE,
Dominion Book.keeper.
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RbET«URN-
(66f)

T an ORDER of the HousE OF COMMONS, dated 28th April, 1886;-For
copies of the Award or Report of the Dominion Arbitrators, with the
evidence and papers connected therewith, in the matter of claims in
connection with Section 16 of the Intercolonial Railway, on the part
Of the estate of the late John Bannon, Esq.; the late William Muir-
head, Esq., William Wilkinson, Esq., and the other claims investigated
at the same time as those named above, and connected with the said
Report or Award.

By Command.
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

bepartment of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.
31st May, 1886.

Be SECTION 16, INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY CLAIMS.

OTTAWA, 3rd March, 1886.
SIR,--The claims of the executor of the late John Bannon, the exeoutor of the

%e lion. Wm. Muirhead, Wm. Wise, David Lawson & Sons, late Philip Wall, Thos.
Soillespie, Daniel Meagher, Wm. Gray and Judge Wilkinson, in connection with
for ti 1n 16 of the Intercolonial Railway, having been referred to the official arbitrators

lavestigation and report, we have to inform you that at the end of October last,
at Of the Board, Messrs. Cowan and Compton, heard the statement of the claimants

Chatham, N B.
The evidence taken and all the documents were laid before all the members of
board while in session here, during the latter end of February, and after duly

¶O'181dering the claims, I was directed to lay before you the annexed reports embody-
eg thoir views.

J aCO AN&c.,ran

n. the Minister of Railways and Canals, Ottawa. JAMES COWAN, Chairman.

ESTATE OF LATE JOHN BANNON.

Ch his is a claim of the executors of the estate of the late John Bannon, of
1aatham,) N.B., against the Intercolonial Railway, for goods supplied by the said
16 fc th annon to Mr. J. C. Gough, who was one of the contractors for Section

6f hat work.
]Ru The first witness who appeared before the arbitrators was the Rev. T. J.
sor non, Parish Priest of Chatham. He, being duly sworn, deposed, that he is the

of the late John Bannon, and one of the executors of the estate. He found
66f-i
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among the papers of his father after his death the following paper :-Filed as his
Exhibit A.

"Received from John Bannon this day:
80 brls of flour at $8................................................ $640 00
96J bushels oats at 65e........ ..................................... 53 Os
2 brls. pork at $22............ ........... ...... ....... 44 00

489 Ibs. butter at z5c............................. ................. 122 25

$859 33
214 lbs. beef at 8c. ...................................... 17 12

$876 45
For which I promise to pay three months after date with interest.

"J. C. GOIUGII,

"CHATIIAM, 22nd Nov., 1873.'" " Per J. CARPENTER, Wilaes3.

Witness says ho also found among his father's papers the following telogra0i,
which he filed as his Exhibit B:-

21st March.
"By tolegram from Fredericton to John Bannon.

" Doliver the flour, pork and oats to Carpenter, and I will carry out lis arrange'
ments with you for whatever he may buy.

" J. C. GOUGH."

Witness says ho knew Gough as contractor of Section 16 of the Intercolonial
Railway, and that alter the goods had been delivered, they had gone to Gough, and
were used on Section 16. He spoke to his father when alive about the account, and
the impropriety of giving credit, as ho did not want his father to extend his businesO
any further, owing to his being an old man, and having accounts worrying hirl.
His father expressed perfect confidence in the account being paid, as the goods wOnV
to feed men and horses working on the section, and that the Government would pay.
The goods were never paid for. Ris father died the 26th February, 1884.

The next witness was Wm. Wise, of Chatham, merchant. He says that the
body of claimant's exhibit A is in his own hand-writing. The way ho came to draf
up the account was thiis: Mr. John Bannon, being an old friend of his, came to hilo
to have the matter properly fixed. Joseph Carpenter signed the document in bio
presence as Gough's agent. The prices charged were fair cash prices at the tinl•
To his own knowledge the goods were delivered to Carpenter's teams going to the
Intercolonial Railway lino. This was the only transaction Mr. Bannon lad with
Gough in 1873.

The third and last witness was Thomas Gaynor, of Chatham. He says be
knew Carpenter, J. C. Gough's agent, to buy and forward goods for the mon and
horses employed on contract 16 of the Intercolonial Railway. He (witness) *WO
employed in 1872 and 1873 by Mr. G(ough, as his teamster, to haul goods to the line'
Le hauled two loads of flour from Mr. Bannon's and took it to the railway line'
le knows that John Leahy, John Connors and -Harry Goddard hauled goods fro"o

Bannon to the quarry, where mon w ere at work at the time getting ont stone for the
culvert on Section 16.

This is the case, as made out by the claimants. It appears to be clear enough
as regards the purchase and the delivery of the goods, and of their being used bf
Gough's men and horses working on the section. The main point upon which the
claim is pressed is the fact, as claimaut alleges, of the Government getting the bO'
fit of the supplies. They, moreover, state that the whole cost of Section 16, afVer
being finished by the Government, was less by many thousands of dollars than the
sum tendered by King & Gongh. No proof of this, however, was adduced.
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Among the papers forwarded to the arbitrators for their information is a letter
addressed to Sir Charles Tupper by the Hon. Peter Mitchell. It isadated from "l ot
8 Prings, Arkansas, 27th April, 1884." In this letter Ur. Mitchell writes:

" You will recollect that in putting through, or nearly so, the last of the Sup-
Plerentary Estimates, when Mr. Blake asked if that closed the duties of the arbitra-
tors, the commission, an exception was made of these claims on section 16 by
YOUrself, on my calling attention to it."

In order to put the Department in possession of what really did take place
during the debate on the item for the payment of the claims reported upon by Judge0 lark and the other members of the commission, we have referred to the .official
reports of the House of Commons Debates, and on pages 1629 and 1630 we find the
following as the language passing between members and the then Minister of Rail-
Ways, Sir Charles Tupper:-

"Mr. Davies.-Will this close up all claims in regard to the Intercolonial?
" Sir Charles Tupper.-This is the report of the commission.
" Mr. Davies.-Are there any other outstanding claims ?
"Sir Charles Tupper.-No ; none that have not been considered by the commission.
" Mr. Davies.-Thon this pays everything.
" Sir Charles Tupper.-This report deals with al] claims against the Intercolonial

Railway.
" Sir Richard Cartwright.-Do you propose to re-open them.
" Sir Charles Tupper.-Certainly, I do not propose to re-open them.
" Mr. Mitchell.-There are two or three trifling claims that I have brought before

the Minister's notice and which i received from my constituents. I hope those
caims will not be shut out from consideration.

" Sir Charles Tupper.-Nothing can be foreclosed; this is a matter for Parlia-
]Zent entirely.

" Mr. Davies.-I understand, then, that it is quite possible that Parliament may
be called on to devote further sums in liquidation of other claims than those now
before us.

"Sir Charles Tupper.-When the hon. member for Northumberland refers to
smaall matters, respecting which he has sent any communication to me, they will
have to be examined, and it is impossible to say we will close the door to all such
0laims."e

It is quite evident there was no privity of contract between the Government
a1d the late Mr. Bannon, neither has it been shown that any person, on behalf of
the Government, ever made a promise at any time, to settle this account. In the
lOtter from the Hon. Mr. Mitchell to Sir Charles Tupper before referred to, itis made
to appear that claims of a similar character, and created under similar circumstances,were adjudicated upon and paid. The arbitrators, however, have not been put in a
position to report whether the assertion of the Hon. Mr. Mitchell is correct or not,
to proof having been furnished at the investigation.

We submit all the facts bearing upon the claim as presented by the claimants
themselves, in order that the Department may be in a position to say whether in law
obr in equity, or according to any precedent, this as well as the other claims should
be paid. Mr. Bannon asks no interest, some of the others do; should the claim be
eitertained, interest in no instance ought to be allowed.

The remark made upon this claim will, with some exception, apply to the
rest. Thereupon, we avoid making a repetition in dealing with the others.

On behalf of the Board.
JAMES COWAN, Chairman.

CLAIM OF THE LATE HON. WU. MUIRHEAD.

This is a claim made by the executors of the estat e of the late Hon. Wm.
Mirhead against the Intercolonial Railway for the value of goods supplied to King
Gough, and to J. C. Gough, while contractors for Section 16 of that work.

3
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The amount claimed is $4,275.90, made up as follows:-
1874.

Aug. 1. To amount of account rendered against King
& Gough and J. (. Gough, per account ren-
dered........................................ ......... $2,691 44

1884.
May 1. Nine and three-quarter years' interest.............. 1,584 46

$4,275 90
A detailed statement of the goods furnished was submitted to the arbitrators and

filed.
Mr. John Sadler, of Chatham, N.B., appeared before the two arbitrators, and

being sworn, testified that the late Wm. Muirhead had dealings with King & Gough
fromn the lst April, 1872, up to January, 1873, and after that time and up to the lt
February, 1874, with J. 0. Gough, who alone during the latter period carried on the
work. Mr. Sadler was Mr. Muirhead's bookkeeper and chief manager, and ho
swears that the claim put in, accompanied by details, is a true statement of all the
transactions that took place between the parties. To his own personal knowledge all
the goods mentioned were sold and delivered, and used in the construction of the
section (16) in question.

Mr. Sadler says the account was opened with King & Gough on the strength of
the railway contract. Gough personally had nothing, and that if Gough had not the
contract at the time, Mr. Muirhead would not have advanced the goods nor the
money, the latter having been given to pay Gough's mon.

The late Mr. Muirhead was given a three months' note by Gough on the 10th of
February, 1874, for the amount due. This note Mr. Muirhead endorsed and had
discounted at the branch of the Montreal Bank, in Chatham, or rather at Newcastle,
N.B. Gough failed to take up the note and Mr. Muirhead had to retire it.

There is not the slightest doubt in the minds of the arbitrators that the account
between the late Mr. Muirhead and King & Gough, and between him and J. C. Gough,
is correct, but no proof could be furnished that there was any privity of oontract
between the Government and Mr. Muirhead, neither has it been shown that any
debts incurred by the said contractors under similar circumstances were recognized
and paid by the Government.

Mr. Muirhead's claim has been before the Intercolonial Railway Connissionl,
and was disallowed on the ground of there being no privity of contract between that
deceased gentleman and the Government.

On behalf of the Board.
JAMES COWAN, Chairman.

CLAIM OF WM. WISE.

This is a claim of Wm. Wise, of Chatham, N.B, merchant, for balance due hir
by J. C. Gougb, contractor for S3ction 16. The amount of the claim is $2,055.46 for
goods supplied and moneys advanced to laborers on said section, while the contract
was in Gough's bands.

Mr. Wise appeared before the arbitrators at Chatham, and made a sworn state-
ment. He says ho gave the supplies to enable Gough to carry on the work. Il&
began bis transaction with Gough in October, 1872. He supplied him with pro-
visions and paid orders given to men working on the section. The orders could not
be produced owing to the fact that a fire had destroyed his store a couple of weeks
prior to the investigation. The orders were in a box among other papers. The
goods were delivered to Mr. Carpenter, Gough's foreman, at bis place of business-
The prices charged are fair and reasonable. Details of the accounts are recorded in
his books, except of goods delivered previous to 19th April, 1873, were produced
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before the arbitrators. Those excepted were contained in books destroyed by the
fire.

1 It appears that Mr. Wise made several applications to the Governmont from
4 up to the time of the investigation, for payment of bis account.
As in the other cases, no privity of contract between Wise and the Government

W8 shown, neither was it shown that any debts similarly contracted by King and
Gough, or J. C. Gough, or any other contractor, were paid by the Government.

On behalf of the Board.
JAMES COWAN, Chairman.

CLAIM OF LAWSON AND SONS.

This is a claim of David Lawson and bis two sons, who had a sub-contract from
Ring & Gough, on Section 16. This sub-contract was for taking out earth, and
theBy were paid for it.

They now claim 8385, with interest, for work done independent of their sub-
Con0tract.

David Lawson, sen., appeared before the arbitrators, at Chatham, and made oath
that ho and bis two sons and his horses were employed in hauling rocks for the big
arched culvert in Section 16; and that, in addition thereto, he boarded and lodged
len who were working on the section. He could not give the account in detail,
beause the books were lost. At the time, Mr. Munro, the " walking boss " of the
section, gave them the details and the amount due. This was sent to Ottawa. He
says they claimed the amount from Mr. Schreiber before the section was completed.
l. S. was then at Bathurst. Ho told them ho was not authorized to pay the amount

then, but it might he paid, sooner or later-that it would be paid, because thoir
account was correct in the books. Mr. Scbreiber had Gough's books with him.

aeWson says he tried since to get paid from Gough, but could get nothing from him.
Tlen, ho says, ho sent the account to Ottawa, through Mr. Adams. Then ho saw
X. Schreiber at Bathurst; the Govirnment had not then commenced to work on
the section.

David sLawson, jun., next ap peared before the arbitrators, and, being sworn,
ecrroborated the evidence of bis father.

On behalf of the Board.
JAMES COWAN, Chairman.

CLAIM OF THE LATE PHILIP WALL.

This is a claim of the estate of the late Philip Wall against the Intercolonial
IlWay for a balance of $200 due by J. 0. Gough, contractor for Section 16. The

%kOunt is thus set out:
Intercolonial Railway in account with estate of Philip Wall:

To amount due for supplies and labor........................... $400 00
By cash .................... ................................... 200 00

Balance due estate .... ..................... $200 00

Edward Wall, son of the deceas ed Philip Wall, appeared before the arbitrators
Chatham, and deposed tbat his father sold and supptied to J. C. Gough for Section
, forty barrels of flour at 88 per barrel, being the cash price at the time, amount.
Ulà4to $352. The flour was all delivered on the section. He says that his father

th aMan and horse working on the section for about two months, which makes up
balance,
Thomas Gaynor deposed that ho knew the late Philip Wall and J. C. Gough;

thet Wall had the horse working on the Section; that during the winter of 1872-73,
h'hauled a load of flour from Philip Wall's to the section; and other teamsters also
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hauled supplies from the same place to Gough's section. Gaynor says he was the,
employed by Gough.

CLAIM OF T. F. *ILLESPIE.

This is a claim for material furnished to King & Gough for Section 16. Mr.
Gillespie is a founder, and the material and goods snpplied were castings, iroO
work, etc.

The account of Gillespie against King & Gough, was- originally $341.51, but
Gillespie was paid $140, leaving a balance due him of $200.51, which he asks the
Government to pay.

Mr. Gillespie appeared before the arbitrators at Chatham, and gave the details
of his account, which, no doubt, are correct enough. He says he never made auf
claim against the Government prior to April, 1884. He gave the goods on the
strength of King & Gough having a Government contract, otherwise he would not
have credited them a cent. ie says that he heard that the Government had takeni
the contract from (lough, finished the section and made money.

On behalf of the Board.
JAMES COWAN, Chairman.

CLAIM OF DANIEL MEAGHER.

This a claim of Daniel Meagher, who resides at Bartibogue, N.B., against J. Q•
Gough, for goods supplied for Section 16.

Mr. Meagher appeared before the arbitrators, at Chatham, and filed an account,
of which the following is a copy:

Intercolonial Railway in account with Daniel Meagher-
Da.

February 12, 1873-800 lbs. hay, at $16 per ton........ 7 20
do 14, 1873-800 lbs. hay, at $16 per ton .......... 7 0
do 14, 1873-1 brI. potatoes, $1.20; j brl. turnips,

60 cents................................ 1 80
do 18, 1873-1 load of hay ............................... 9 00

September 3, 1873-1 beef cow ................................... 34 00
do 3, 1873-1 pair of bellows ............................ 10 00
do 3, 1873- 1 anvil ..................... . . ........... 16 00

$85 20
Ca.

1875-1 brl. flour, $8.50; qtl. codfish, $2..... ... $10 50
Cash, $5 ; cash, $9; cash, 64 cents............... 14 64

25 14

Balance due..................... . . .. . $60 06

Meagher says that the bellows and anvil were loaned, but never returned. The
prices charged for the other goods were agreed upon, and the prices for the bellowO
and anvil are reasonable. He produded before the arbitrators a memorandum show
ing the delivery of the goods.

On behalf of the Board,
JAMES COWAN, Chairman.
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CLAIM OF WILLIAM GRAY.

This is a claim of William Gray for three tons of hay, sup plied in March, 1873,While Gough had the contract for the construction of Section 16. The hay is charged
at $18 a ton, makiug the three tons the value of $54.

Gray did not put in an appearance before the ai bitrators, consequently we have
no further proof than the sworn affidavit attached hereto.

On behalf of the Board,
JAMES COWAN, Chairman.

Section 16-Intercolonial Railway in account with William Grav-
March, 1873-To threo tons of hay, $18....... . . ........ $54

I, William Gray, of Napan, in the County of Northumberland, make oath
and say :

1st. That I supplied the said section of the Intercolonial Railway with three
tous of hay during the year 1873, and that the amount of $54 is still due and
Owing for the same.
8Worn , in the County

of Northumberland.
WILLIAM GRAY.

CLAIM OF JUDGE WILKINSON.

. This is a claim of William Wilkinson, of Chatham, now one of the county judges
i New Brunswick, against Section 16 of the Intercolonial Railway, and set out as

follows:-
Section 16, Intercolonial Railway, County of Gloucester, Province of New

Barunswick, known as King & Gough's section, to William Wilkinson, Dr.:
1. 1872-Cash advanced for works, $5, $19............. 24 00
2. 1873-Cash advanced to pay men's wages.............70 00
3. May 1-297 barrels flour at 88.75, supplies for line. 2,598 75
4. Aug. 2-Cash advanced to pay men's wages........250 00
5. Sept. 30 do do do ........ 350 00
t6. Dec. 20-Cash advanced to pay for supplies for work 275 00
7. Jan. 5,1884 do do 150 00
8. do do do 2000
9. April 12, 1884 do do 375 00

10. March, 1884 do do 600 00
11. July 3, 1884 do do 396 00
12. Sept. 20, 1874 do do 294 25
13. Sept. 28, 1876-Cash advanced at different times to

pay mon and for supplies to line through Mari-
time Bank for statement to date.... ........... 3,629 45

Ct. 89,032 45
May 1, 1873-.By cash............... ........ ................... 400 00

$8,682 45
Sept. 28, 1876-Add interest on above to date............. 877 27
Add interest on $8,632.45 from 28th September, 1876, to

28th October, 1885-9 years, 1 month...... .......... 4,704 68
Add paid law expenses, twice sued by Maritime Bank,

L. J. Almon, $30 and $27.55, and for Bd. & M.
Atty., $5................................... 62 65

$14,277 05
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It appears, that although the contract for Section 16 was taken and carried o
by King & Gough, Frederick Burpee, of Portland, and merchant, of St. John, N.B.,
as well as Arthur W. Marsters, merchant, of the sane city, were in some manner
associated with them. King having become insolvent, had to make an assignment
under the Insolvent Act of 1869. The partnership was dissolved, and Mr. Wilkinson
became security and gave a bond for the payment of certain moneys due one J. E
O'Brien, and to Muir, Ewing & Co., Mr. Wilkinson having taken security to the
extent of $6,000 upon the plant of King & Gough. In addition to this, Mr. Wilkin'
son went on advancing the sums of money as mentioned in hie statement, thinking,
no doubt, that he might save himself, or be paid at or before the completion of the
work under contract. Mr. Wilkinson seems to have placed implicit faith in Gougb.
In order to show this, Mr. Wilkinson put in evidence two telegrams he had received
from Gough. These telegrams we quote to show how Mr. Wilkinson became induced
to make some of his latest advances.

By telegram from Fredericton, -. B., to Wm. Wilkinson.

"25th February, 1874.
"Macpherson is short six hundred dollars to make January pay on account of

much work of that month not being in a position to be estimated, but it will all comle
in this month's measurement, and there will be four thousand dollars estimated at
least. I want you to kindly arrange for the six hundred to.day, payable in twenty
days as before. I could get along without, but Schreiber is going over all the seo-
tions, and will be on my work next Tuesday, and am afraid of him reporting any dis-
satisfaction to my injury with commissioners, as he would be bound to do if he found
portion of men unpaid, You need have no hositation in doing what I ask this time,
and I will not.ask it again.

" J. O. GOUG H."
Mr. Wilkinson, in due course, arranged for this $600.
In order to show his faith in being paid by the Government, Mr. Wilkinson next

produced the following telegram:

By telegram from Fredericton, N.B., to W. Wilkinson.

"l 13th March, 1874.
"DeVeber will wait till I get February estimates. Richibucto matter can hart

no one. Don't despair. I am conducting negotiations with Brydges, which will put
matters in an easy position. Under any circumstances you can surely console your-
self with what is a widely known fact, that the Government has, without exception
paid every dollar of debt due by contractors, when shown that they were incurred
for goods and material actually put into the works. Ail your liability is so included.
Schreiber told me in St. John that the new Government had done the same within
three weeks, in case of Section 13, MoDonald, contractor, and why should I bO
excluded from so general a policy and practice ?

" J. O. GOUGHI."

As Mr. Wilkinson attached much value to these telegrams, and of importance tO
file, we have quoted them. They establish no privity of contract between himself
and the Government. The despatch of 13th March can in no manner bind the latter.
It contains the unsubstantiated assertions of J. C. Gough only.

One of the pleas of Mr. Wilkinson is that the Government, having taken the
contract out of Gough's hands, deprived him (Wilkinson) of all chance-of getting
his money through the contractors. Another is, " that advances were made by hi"'
on the full faith and understanding the payment of his advances was to come through
the railway works, and by and through the advances made for said works, and on n0

other account would he have made advances."
8
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In our opinion Mr. Wilkinson stands in a different position from that of the
Other claimants. They were carrying on legitimate trade or business. They were
tot lawyers with legal minds, nor knowing by what legal means they might protect
tomselves. Mr. Wilkinson, on the other hand, entered upon a business outside his

rofession ; and it is strange, indeed, that a gentleman with his legal acumen shouldtve been caught by such chaff as was thrown to him. It was his business, moreover,
to bave found out the financial standing of Gough before assuming any risk.

There are some items in his account that should not be entertained, viz., item B,
ig moneys paid to O'Brien and Muir, Ewing & Co., and the items of interest and

fo aw expenses. Striking these out, we would advise only the recognition of the
other items, amounting in all to some few thousand dollars, if the claims are favor-
ably entertained by the Department.

On behalf of the Board.
JAMES COWAN, Chairman.

66f....2
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RETURN

')RD of the Housi 0F Cox1oSs, dated 29th March, 1886 :-For

a teturn of the earnlings and working expenses of the Intercolonial

Itallway for each month from Ist July, 1885, to lst February, 1886,
&Pecifying the different sources of earnings, and the amounts (if any)

l,1 each month, credited Irom mechanical stores account to earuings.

eptnof the Secretèry of State,
E!tlh may, 1886,

By Comi,.and.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
eSec- etary of State.

GOVIERN 1ENT RAILWAYS-IN OPERATION.

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER, OTTAWA, 19th May, 1886.
of tb Sen-d you bertwith a statement to fill an order of the Houso for a return-
Il e erqrings and working expenses of t)e Intercolonial Railway for each month
i 1 1 Juy, 1885, to let F bruary, 1886, spcifying the different sources of earn-
aUt ù the aiont, if at.y, in each month credited from the mechanical stores

I have the honor to be, Sir, y our Ibediert servant,

COLLIEdWOOD SCHIREIBER,

Chief Engineer and General Marager.
BRAI DLEY, Esq., Secretary Departmert R Lilways and Canals.

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.
Tn and Earnings, 7 months, ended 3sit January, 1886.

Date.

j 1  1885
ly3a

St 3 '......... .....
.... .........

b .. ...... ......b eTb 30.....
beb 3 1...........................

i886.7 ' 31. .. .•... .......

Expenses.

Total.

$ cts.

26 ; 575 '4
273.341 06
248,897 24
30,898 33
197,307 56
184,360 09

Earnings.

Passenger

$ ets.
83,9 43
81.06' 19
78,14 11
62,8P; 39
57,929 91
50,225 64

167,976 84 41,417 17

1,636,356 46 456,16ç 70

Freight Traffic Mail Sundries. Total.

$ ets $ ets. $ Cts.

119,472 67 12,219 82 215583 93
118,279 46 10,:*46 30 209 6x7 95
124,951 'i8 13, 91 58 217,.91 46
127,787 90 12,735 91 203410 00
136 514 91 12,517 42 206,993 33
125,4,9 47 13,022 44 188,o87 b5

101,65 22 11,237 70 153,920 09

853,711 43 85,701 17 1,395,573 30
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REPORT
(67b)

Of the Chief Engineer of Government Railways, submitting the reports of
Messrs. Donken and Hyndman on Cape Breton Surveys, 1886.

CANADIAN GOVERNMENT RAILWAYS.
OFFICE OP THE CHIEF ENGINEER AND GENERAL MANAGER,

OTTAWA, 18th May, 1886.
SIR,-I have the honor to submit herewith the reports of Messrs. Donken and

IYndman upon the surveys and explorations made during the past surmer to ascer-
tin the best route for a line of railway connecting the Straits of Canso with Louis-
burg or Sydney.

Instrumental surveys were made over two routes,-
lst. From Hawkesbury to Louisburg vid St. Peter's.
2nd. Prom Hawkesbury to Sydney vid the Grand Narrows.
Numerous explorations of modifications of these routes were made whenever it

aPpeared probable that a favorable line could be obtained, ail of which are treated of
l detail by Mr. Hyndman in his report, from which it appears that the surveyed

es are, on the whole, the best routes to Louisburg or Sydney.
The leading facts; as now ascertained, in connection with these routes, are as

foUOWS..

Fort Hawkesbury to Louisburg.

The initial point of this survey is Point Tapper, on the east side of the Straits of
Cans8o and immediately opposite to the present terminus of the Eastern Extension
1ilway, this point having been adopted as being the easiest of access to steamers

lg the winter. The total distance by the surveyed line to Louisburg is eighty-br'ee ]Miles, the St. Peter's Canal being crossied at the twenty-ninth mile, in close
proximaity to the present road bridge. The general character of the country traversed
le rMugh and broken, and it was found necessary to use grades of 78 feet per mile to
avoid Very heavy work. The highest elevation above sea level is 30b feet, which is
Attained passing over the summit between the basin of Loch Lomond and the Mira
ziver.

The work on about one-fourth of the total distance may be classed as heavy, and
the remainder medium to light. The bridging on this route is not of an expensive
Character, the largest structure being that over the Inhabitants River, consisting of
one span of 180 feet, and 450 feet of pile trestie. The indications of rock are by no

'eans formidable, and it is estimated that the construction and equipment of this
road, iricluding sufflient wharf accommodation at each terminus, to serve the present
rafc,'would not exceed $20,000 per mile. Attached is Mr. Donken's report des.

bing, in detail, the country traversed, accompanied by tables of gradients and a
ist of the principal structures required. Also attached is a copy of a letter addressed

t61.& Donken by the Rev. Dr. Sutherland, upon the mineral resources of the country,
'chieh cannot fail to be of interest.

61b-1
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Port Hawkesbury to Sydney.

This survey starts from Point Tupper, end for a distance of four miles, f dIod
the surveyed lino to Louisburg, thon branches northwards, runs north of the Great
Bras d'Or Lakes, crosses the Grand Narrows at the 51st mile and reachos sydnef
Harbor at the 92nd mile. Mr. Donken, bowever, explains a portion of the surve-yed
lino having been ruu with a view of patssing over the high ground between River
Inhabitants and River Deny's, afterwards found impracticable, a deflection to the
Big Brook Valley was made, this defluction, ho says, can be avoided by adopting a
direct line, which presents no difficulty and a saving be effected of about five miles.

[he line, generally, passes through a good agricultural country, with indications of
various minerals. West of the Grand Narrows the country is very rough, necessitat-
ing heavy work and considerable curvature; from the Grand Narrows to Sydney the
alignment is good and the work not hoavy. The highest summit level attained is
208 feet above tide level, between the Inhabitants and Deny's Rivers. The maximurm
grade is '8 feet per mile. The structures are somewhat numerous, thero being eight
spans of 100 feet required, besides a large number of small bridges and culverts.

The crossing of the Grand Narrows formis a serious obstacle on this route, the
-width of the waterway being 1,800 feet, with a depth of 75 feet of water for a dis-
tance of 1,200 feet. From the information obtained by the engineers in the field, it
is believed that no difficulty would be encountered in working a steam ferry acrose
the Narrows at all seasons of the year. A bridge at this point would be a most
costly work, whilst a ferry would probably serve the purpose of the traffic or the
road if it can be worked without interruption the year round. If a ferry be cen-
eidered sufficient the cost per mile of this lino would be about the same as that to
Iouisburg, viz., $20,000.

Mr. Donken states that a practicable lino, probably some four miles shorter,
inight be found by starting from a point on the Straits of danso about one mile frota
Port Hawkesbury, passing behind Port Hastings to Horton Lake, aud thence by
Glendale joining the surveyed line at the 25th mile; the country ho reports to b5
2more difficult and the work heavier. Attached is Mr. Donken's dotailed report with
statements of grades and structures, also Mr. Hyndman's report on bis exploratory
surveys between the Straits of Canso and Sydney and North Sydney, by variouo
routes, accompanied by a table of distances as weil as hie special report on the Grand
Narrows with table of tide gauge readings and a letter addressed to Mr. Hyndmran
by Mr. McDougall, M. P., upon the subject of ice in the Narrows.

Port Rawkesbury to Sydney, vid St. Peter's and the south *ide of East Bay.

In order to test the practicability of reaching Sydney without crossing the Grand
Narrows, Mr. Hlyndman made an examination of a route, leaving the surveoyed lino
to Louisburg at St. Peter's and following the south side of E.lst Bay to its head, nOt
far from which it joins the surveyed lino from the Grand Narrows to Sydney. The
iiatural features met with on this route are by no means favorable, the hillsideS
being steep and rocky and generally unfit for agriculture. The distance frorn Point
Tupper to Sydney is estimated at from oighty-three and a.half to eighty-five milea,
and this route does not compare favorably with either of the surveyed linos•
Attached is Mr. Hyndman's report.

Branch to Arichat.

This proposed branch would leave the surveyed lin. between Hawkesbury and
Louisburg at about the fifte.nth mile, thence running by an easy lino to .Burit
Point, on the Lennox Passage, crossing the channet and passing over Burnt and
Benoit Islands. The passage is hore three-quarters of a mile wide, the deepOOe
-water being between Burnt Point and Burnt Island, a distance of about 800 feet-
From Burnt to ienoit Island the channel is not so doep, whilst from Bonoit Island tO
the south shore the bottom is uncovered at low water. The greatest depth of wate

2
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to be encountered is 30 feet for a distance of 300 feet. From Point Benoit to Port
'Yyal the country will require somewhat heavy grades and heavy work, thence overala easy country until Arichat is reached, where some heavy cuttings are required.

The harbor of Ariehat is large and commodious, and is claimed to be an open
rt at all seasons. The chief structure required will be the swing bridge at Barnt

Islands, only small bridges being required at a few other points.
the The total length of the branch is about twelve miles, and with the exception of

erossing of the Lennox Passage, presents no difficulty of construction.
Attached is Mr. Hyndman's full report.

I bave the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
COLLINGWOOD SCO REIBER, Chief Engineer Government Railways.

P. BRADLEY, Esq., Secretary Department Railways and Canals.

PE BRETON RAILWAY.-REPORT OF SURVEY FROU PORT HAWKES
BURY.TO LOUISBURG. -HIRA.M DONKEN.

OTTAWA, 17th April, 1886.
SIi,-The survey for a line of railway from the Strait of Canso through the

and of Cape Breton to Louisburg or Sydney, as directed in your letter of instruc-
Ons to me dated luth August, 1885, being now completed, I beg leave to %submit

the following report.
The point selected for starting the survey is near the lighthouse on Point

Ppper, on the east side of the Strait of Canso, abbut half a mile south of the village
0Port iawkesbury, and immediately opposite the present terminus of the Eastern

tension Railway; it was considered that a wharf coild be built at this point which
Wld be more easy of access for steamers crossing the strait during the winter

Inouths than any other place in the immediate vicinity.
After leaving Point Tupper the line runs along the south side of Ship Harbor

one and a-half miles, then begins the ascent of the high ground lying between the
at ait of Canso and the Little River, the summit of which is reached at 3t miles

an elevation above sea level at high tide of 112 feet. No grades over this portion
eed 53 feet per mile, the alignment is gool. The wojrk cannot be called light
a small quantity of solid rock may be met with, the structures unimportant.
The line descends to the crossing of the Little River near the 5th mile with a
e of 53 feet per mile; the work over this portion will be rather heavy clay out-
s- An abrupt change in direction occurs at the Little River, and a long 5 degree
e Will be necessary. From the crossing the line ascends the high ground between
ttle River and River Inhabitants, the sammit of which is reached by varying

y, none exceeding 53 feet per mile at 6j miles, where an elevation of 113 feet
high water is reached. The work from tue crossing to the summit is light.
The grade descends from the surmmit to the crossing of River Inhabitants at the

o iles, at the rate of 80 feet per mile; the work over this part is light, the material] • r The width of the River Inhabitants at the point solected for crossing (near

18oe0rthy's Ferry) is about 700 feet from shore to shore-the channel proper, about
ieo foet in width at top, greatest depth of water in centre of channel 40 feet, and the

bth at the edges of the channel 15 feet, shoaling graduatly to edge of river. The
10 tor of the channel was found to be hard, in the shallower parts of the river 5 to
brigeot soft mud, overlying compact sand or gravel. his will be the most expensive
U91 on the line surveyed between Port Hawkeabury and Louisbarg. One span Of

e et and 450 feet trestle approaches is proposed.
this or One mile east of River Inhabitants the country is flat, light earthwork over

1ortion, grades easy and alignment good.
dh ne ascends the high land on each side River Inhabitants, with varying

at th'> none exceeding 66 feet per mile until the summit is reached near White Lake
le 12th mile.
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The grade elevation at this summit is 210 feet over high water. No sharp curvOe
over this portion and the work is light.

From 12th to 131 miles the grades are easy, the alignrment good and the
work light; the lino then descends until it crosses the St. Peter's road at 16J mileO•
No grades over this last portion exceed 32 feet per mile; the align ment is good, and
the work not heavy, though a small quantity of solid rock will likely be met withi
structures unimportant.

From 16J to 19th mile the grades are undulating, none exceeding 55 feet per mile;
alignment noG good, 5 and 6-degree eurves being necessary.

The work is heavy, the material chiefly earth and boulders; structures uni0'
portant.

Between 19th and 23rd mile the grades are undulating, none exceeding 56 feet per
mile; the work is not hoavy, though the material in cuttings will be largely rock
(solid and broken). No sharp curves are necessary.

At 124 mile, Indian Brook, a swift rurning stream in a deep gorge, is crossed;
it is proposed to direct this stream through a tunnel, the west bank of the stread'
btinig rock suitable for that purpo-e. St. Peter's road is crossed at this point ner
McLean's carding mill.

From the 23rd to the 261th miles the lino runs between the St. Peter's poe
road and the River Tillard. The grade descends at the rate of 50 feet per mile 1ro
the 23rd to 24¾ miles, thence level to and beyond the crossing of the River Tillard
at 26J miles. The work is heavy over this portion, the material in cuttings largell
rock ; good stone suitable ior masonry will be found in cutting west of crossing
River Tillard. The depth at low water in this river is about 3 feet, the bottom coffi'
ptsed of boulders and gravel; the foundations will be inexpensive, one span of 100
feet will be ample.

From the crossing of the river Tillard to St. Peter's Canal (29 miles) the grado
are undulating, none exceeding 57 feet per mile. The alignment is good. Thougb
the work over this portion is not light, no rock is likely to be met with in the cuttingo'
At the 28th mile the lino crosses the St. Peter's post road, and from that point to
the canal runs along in the rear of the village of St. Peter's.

St. Peter's is an important point and in the centre of a fair agricultural distriOt
The canal will be crossed north of the present post road bridge; a swing spanl

130 feet will be required. The foundations for the abutments and pier will not bo
expensive. Good quarries in the vicinity.

For one and a fourth miles east of St. Peter's Canal the lino runs near the shoreOr
the Bras d'Or Lake. The grade is level, the cuttings not heavy and the material claYOI
loam. The lino then ascends to the 324 mile at the rate of 49 feet per mile; thelO
by easy undulating grades to the 36th mile, where the summit of the high leV
between the Bras d'Or Lake, aLd the Atlantic Ocean is reached at an elevationf
140 feot over high water. The work over this portion is not heavy, there are
indications of rock in the cuttings. Some 6-degree curves will be necessary to aV
heavy 'wor k. At the 32nd mile the road to the village of L'Ardoise is crossed at
distance of one and a half miles to the rear of that important fishing station.

From the 36th mile the grade descends for one mile at the rate of 69 feet P
mile along inlet of Loch Caileau; thence for threequartr mile along shore ofb
Caileau, then descending again at varying rates, none exceeding 66 feet per P3 le
until an elevation of 25 feet above high water is reached at 38J miles. The
over this portion is generally light, a small quantity of solid rock may be met
along the outlet of Loch Caileau. Five-degree and sometimes 6-degree curves
have to be used to avoid heavy side cuttings.

From 38k miles the lino works into the valley of the Grand River (outlOt of b
Lomond), thon along the west bank to the 43rd mile, where the river is crOsS
Light undulating grades are used over this portion, no cirve sharper than 5 degro
will be necessary. Work not heavy, and the material earth and gravel. The 
River will require one span of 125 feet; the elevation of grade over water lov
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?'nly 8 feet; the bottom of the river is large atones and gravel. Good building stone
'r the vicinity.

After crossing the Grand River the line runs along the east bank until the south
enld of Loch Lomond is reached ut 46J miles,

Over this portion the work will class as heavy; nothing to indicate solid rock
any of the cuttings. Good ballast pits exist near Loch Lomond, easily reached

Om the present line. The grades level, or ascending at various inclinations, none
6Ceeding 50 feet per mile. The curvature will be considerable; ô degree and 6-
degree curves will be required.

Prom 46â miles the lino leaves the valley of the Grand Riter and begins to
4scend the high ground between the basin of Loch Lomond and Mira River, the
turmnit of which is reached by short grades varying from 55 to 78 feet per mile
nt the 50th mile, where an elevation of 308 feet over high water is reached. The
Work over this part will not be heavy, the alignment good, the material generally
81d or gravel aud boulders, and no important structures.

From the 50th mile the line maintaius its elevation until the 54th mile is
eached; grades easy, aligument good and work light.

At the 54th mile the line descends into the valley of the Middle River of Fram-
bise, crossing the west brauch at 55th mile and the east branch at 56th mile. The
-grade descends for the first half of this distance at 53 feet per mile; the remainder
le'el. Very heavy clay cuttings are met with over this portion; alignment good.
.he structures over the two branches will not be expensive. A line a little further
south than the one run will probably give, altogether, better results between the 54th
ed 60th miles; it would certainly avoid the very heavy cutting just west of the east
ranich of the Framboise River.

Prom the 56th to the 60th mile, the grades are undulating, none exceeding 53
per mile, the work not heavy and the material earth aod boulders. Some ô-

degree curves will be necessary, structures unimportant.
Prom the 60th mile, the grade descends at the rate of 52 feet per mile for 1½

4iles, at the 64th mile a small branch of the Mira River is crossed. Over this por-
tiOfn the work is not heavy, good ballast is found in different places, some 6-degree
,trves will be necessary, no important structures.

At the 64th mile, the line begins to ascend the ridge lying betwoon the Mira
kVer and the Atlantic Ocoean. A grade of 80 feet per mile is used for three-fourths
of a mile, thence level on ascending until an elevation of 124 feet over high water is
Xeached at the 6fth mile. The work over this part is not heavy, the material clay,
4d gravol.

Prom the B6th mile, the grade descends to Munroe or Round Lake at 68J miles,
o grade over this part steeper than 57 feet per mile, the alignmont good, and the
ork not heavy, though some solid rock will be met with on the 67th mile.

Prom 681 miles the line approaches the shore of the Atlantic Ocean, touching
g and Level Lakos and crossing Irisb Brook close to where it empties into Gabarouse
b1r. A station ut this point will afford accommodation both by laLd and water

o thevillage of Gabarouse. The grades over this portidn are very light, the aligument
eod1, the work not heavy, and the material clay and gravel. No structures of any
ilportance except at Irish Brook, which will require a span of 60 feet. Good build-
il8 stone alil over this portion.

The line over this part follows along the sea shore; the grades light and the
gIuaent good. The work will be heavy, both earth and roek, particularly at Eagle
ead, near the 76th mile, where a side ctuting of rock 600 feet long and 75 feet deep
centre occurs. No important structures.

From the 76th mile the line leaves the shore, ascending for one mile at the rate
7 t feet, thence by easy undulating grades to the 79th mile, where au elevation of

130 feet over high water is attained. The work over this part is light, material
erth Snd boulders, and the alignment good.

Prom the 79th mile the line descends to the head of Louisburg farbor with
.7Ying grades, noue exceeding 53 feet 4per mile, thence along harbor with easy

5
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grades to terminus at Slattery's Cove. The alignment over this portion is good, thê
work light, and the material earth and gravel. The total distance from Strait of
Canso by the line run is 83 miles. This will be reduced by proposed location shoW%
on plan to 81 î miles. The route adopted for this survey does not pass through any
great exi ent of agricultural country. River Inhabitants, St. Peter's, Loch Lomond and
Gabarouse districts being the best, and timber of any kind fit for structures or for
sleepers was not seen throughout the whole route in any quantity.

As it was part of my instructions to note existence of minerals or indicatiofn
thereof in the vicinity of the survey, I beg leave to substitute the letter attahed
hereto from Rev. D. Sutherland, believing that the information from so competen
an authority will be much more thorough and complete than anything I am able to
say of my own knowledge.

Attached hereto is a list of the larger structures proposed ; and a tabulated F-1 at-
ment of giades, from whieb it appears that 33ï per cent. of the line is level; 12ý per
cent. between level and 30 feet per mile ; 40 per cent. between 30 and 53 feet per
mile ; and 14J per cent. over 53 feet and less than 80 feet per mile.

I have the bonor to remain, yours respectfully,
HIRAM DONKEN.

CoLLINGWOOD SCHREIBER, Esq.,
Chief Engineer and G-neral àianager Government Railways, Ottawa.

CAPE BRETON RAILWAY-PORT HAWKESBURY TO LOUISBURG.

GRADES ASCENDING EAST.

27-8 0-19 2·65 1·16 0 -78 1'04 3.49 0-74 0·78 10-2 6-65

CAPE BRETON iRAILWAY.-PORT HAWKIESBURY TO LOUJISBUJRG.

STRUCTURES.
Station. Description.

80 1 span 40 feet.
258 1 do 50 do Little River.
:399 1 do 180 do andi 450 feet pile trestle approaches, River InhabitantS.

1131l Steami tunnel, 10 feet diameter, 150 feet in lengtlh.
1400 1 span 100 feet, River Tillard.
1628 1 swing span 130 feet, St. Peter's Canal.
2250 1 span 125 feet, Grand River.
2567 1 do 50 do
2900 120 feet pile trestling, West Branch Middle River Framboise.
2950 1 span 100 feet, Eat Branch Middle River Framboise.
3374 1 do 40 do Forks Mira River.
8770 1 do 60 do Irish Brook.
413 1i~ do 60 do Kennington River.
42.0 1 do 50 do Laniding Cove Brook.
4297 1 do 30 do

A 1886&49 Victoria.
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OAPE BRETON RAILWAY-PORT HAWKESBURY TO LOUISBURG.

GRADES AsENDItNG WEST.

cq0 00

3.09 0·83 1·72 2- 37 3·3 11-8 4-64

GABARoUSE, C. B., 2nd November, 1885.
DEAR a,-In reference to my knowledge o o s or in the vicinity of

YOatr line of railway survey from Strait of Canso to Louisburg, I beg to say, to my
'ýertain knowledge from personal observatin, there is iron in Loch Lomond and also,

Inganes in payingy quantities. There is copper between Loch Lomond and Fram-
boise. There is leadr and silver in Salmon River, and abundance of brown jet in the

ttom gravel of the river, as also small seams of the same mineral. There is abun-

d4nce of limestone in Salmon River and also in Gabarouse. Also, there is manganese
9ede in Mira Head and in Gabarouse. There is porcelain atone or kaoline i n Gabarouse

14abundance, and also a good seam of pottery or brick clay. There is iron ore
1e4atite at the Barrasois Gobarouse, and also at Gabarouse Cape. T re seam vein, 

E11 try to fd. Mr. Fletcher could mot, in the ti me at his command, find the vein.
At Canoe Lak e there is a superior article of copper, very pure, oxide sulphuret and
e4arbonate, with silver. At Augoers MDonald's, on the French road, also, there is
engneer. At Eagle's Head thereais copper and bismuth and silver, and some signs of

ol. in combination. At Kennington Cove, pretty much the same. At Simoa
'oint there is soap stone and seale of that description with ferric oxide. Between

iseburg and Gabarouse, by the track road, there is mispickel in abundance, more
dthe world requires, but the chances are of something botter in that locality

asbciated with it. I have also discovered sample of very superior magnetite in
e''viinity although not in the line, and also very superior hematite, as tested by
offmann. There are bands of ore containing rock elsewhere, such as b ptween Fincho

*d Gabarouse Lake, but Augero mention these. This section of country is, as
etcher remark, generally pre-Silurian and ingeneous, and valuable mineral deosits
aY be dhiovered in it at any time. 1 forgot to say that Mira and Salmon River

Lotain abundance of buildiny stone in the shape of freestone and limestone. A
eat country for grindstones. In conclusion, I may say positively, it is one bed of

Valuable ore from St. Peter's to Louisburg; and by mieroscopical observation, i
asert, it is rare to find oere a sample of rock that does not show mineral of a valu-

able kind, and the soih seems to consist of carbonates and oxides and quartz or spar
arasor capillaries.

I have the honor to be yours very truly.
D. SUTHERLAND.

BRETON IRAILWAY-REPORT OF SURVEY PROKI PORT HA.WKES-
BURY TO SYDNEY--HIRAM DONKEN.

YIINDMN&'s REPORT OF EXPLORATORY SURVEY FROM PORT HAWKESBURY TO SYDNEY,
AND REPORT ON GRAND NARRoWB ATTACHED HERETO.

OTTAWA, 27th April, 1886.

81-R,-I beg leave to submit the following report of the survey between Port
Xwkesbury and the town of Sydney. This survey forma a junction with the sur-

7

9Victoria.



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 67.) A. 1880

vey from Port Hawkesbury to Louisburg, at Station 214-36, a little over 4 milOS
from Point Tupper, and the description of that portion will be found in report suh-
mitted of the survey between those pointe.

From 4 to 4ý miles the line continues the ascent of the high grouid
between the Straits of Canso and the River Inhabitants, with a grade of 67
feet per mile, untii au elevatiomn of 146 feet above sea level at high tides is reached;
the grades from this point are undulating to end of 8th mile, noue exceeding 48
feet per mile. The work on this portion is not heavy, the material in the cutting
chiefly clay, wil h boulders.

A sharp turn to the north occurs in the line between the 4th and 5th mile,
and a 6 degree curve will bave to be used to avoid a spur of the ridge, the remain-
der of the aligument, to the 8th mile, is good.

At 7½ miles the inlet to M&clntyre's Lake is crossed, and a pile trestle, 60 feet
in length, is proposed. At the 9th mile, the main post road to Sydney is crosQed.
Tae line descends, from the 8th to the 9th miles, at the rate of 61 feet per mile, then
descending at various rates, noue exceeding 53 feet per mile, to the valley of Rivet
lin habitants at the 12th mile, where ab elevation of 32 feet over tide level is reached.
A rapid stream, called the North-West Armi, is crossed between the 10th and ith
miles, an S0 feet span will be required. The work over this part is not heavy, the
material chiefly clay, and the alignment good. Prom the 9th to the 12th miles, a
line something shorter, more uniform grades, and perhaps lighter work than the one
surveyed, can be had, but as it would run, for the most part, through a country su
jected to ovei flow, it was thought better to keep higher ground, at the expense of a
few chains in distance.

The line keeps the valley of the River Inhabitants to 13J miles, where the rivet
is crossed.

Undulating grades, none exceeding 53 feet per mile, are used over this portion;
the work is light, tte material chiefly clay or clayey loam, and the alignment good.
The depth of water at ordinary level in the River Inhabitants at the crossing is aboit
3 feet; freshet level, 4 teet higher; the bottom, sand or clay, overlying gravel. A
span of 100 teet will be required. Cakes of ice, 1 foot thick and 10 to 15 feet square,
were found upon the low ground adjacent to the river.

From 13J to 17½ miles the line ascends the high ground between River Inhabitants
and Deny's River, by the valley of McMaster's Brook. Grades of various inclination$
are used over this part, none exceeding 80 fe et per mile, until an elevation of 280 feet
over high water tide level is reached at surmmit. This is the highest level reached On
this survey. The work over a part of this distance may be classed as heavy, the
material, except, perhaps, a part of one cutting, will be clay and gravel. The general
direction of the line, from 14J to 17J miles, is not good ; curves of 5 and 6-degrees are
necessary to keep within the limits of the narrow valley.

Structures, though not very large, will occur frequently over this portion; one
trestie 150 feet in length and 30 feet in height; one of 90 feet in length and 25 feet
high, and one span of 40 feet.

From the summit at 17J miles te the valley of the Deny's River at the 23rd mile,
the line follows the valley of the " Big Brook." The grade descends at varying rat es,
monoe exceeding 66 feet per mile, until an elevation of 24 f eet over high water i5
reachedb

The work throughout this distance is not heavy; some cuttings of gypsum Will
be met with; no indications of a more expensive rock even observed, and the aligO"
ment is good.

A considerable quantity of timber, large and small, such as spruce, birch ani
hemlock is found over this part. ,

The line runs along west side of Deny's River to 2.) miles, when the river 10
crossed.

Over this part the work is light and tho grades easy; no sharp curves are us
but the general direction is not good, the cause for which will be fully explaind at
end of this report.
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The ordinary depth of water in Deny's River is 3 feet; freshet level about 4 feet
the bottom large stones and gravel, and the banks jirm. A span of 100 feet

bample.
The lino keeps the east side of the valley of Deny's River until the 28th rmile is

ahod. The work over this portion is light, grades easy and alignment good.
A trestle, 90 feet in longth and 15 feet in height, will be required, crossing

neron's Mill Pond near the 26th mile.
'The lino leaves the valley and begins the ascent of the high ground between

enY' b River and Whycocomagh Bay. The grade ascends at various rates, none
ýexeeding 53 feet per mile, until an elevation of 142 feet over tide level is reached at

miles.
iThe work over this portion is not heavy, material chiefly clay and the structures

t' nportant. At 29J miles the lino turns abruptly to the north, thon sweeping around
e northern end of a high ridge it resumes its easterly direction again at the 31st

ta"le.
Two other lines were run between the 29J mile and the 31st, with a view of

"'Proving the direction, both of which failed.
Prom 2!¾ to 31 miles the grade descends at the rate of 66 feet per mile, thon

oIinUs undulating grades, none of which exceed 61 foet per mile, descending to the
Iile, when an elevation of 44 feet above tide level is reached.

The woi k over this portion consists of rather heavy clay cuttings, the alignment
good and no important structures required.

Large quantities of timber suitable for pilingjand ties can be obtained in this

The l ine ascends from the 3(th mile for half a mile at the rate of 60 feet per
tile, then by level or very easy grades along the watershed botwoen Deny'e Basin
&Ild Whycocomagh Bay to the 38th mile, then descending at the rate of 61 feet per
tQile to the 39th mile, thence by undulating grades, none exceeding 53 feet per mile
to the 40th mile, where an arm of the basin of Deny's River iscrossed at an elevation

I1 feet above level of water.
The work over this portion is not heavy, the material clay or sandy loam, no

ladications of rock were observed and the alignment is good. At the 37th mile the
hoe is half a mile from the shore of Whycocomagh Bay.

The arm of the basin at Deny's River, called the " Little Narrows," is 450 feet
de at the point selected for crossing, the greatest dept of water is 25 feet, shoal-

'Mg gradually to the edges, no current. The bottom was found to have 3 to 5 feet
lQidoverlymng compact sand or gravel; a structure, having two spans of 100 feet

is proposed for this crossing. Good freestone, suitable for the masonry of this
at'tLoture, can be obtained near this place. The grades between the 40th aud 45th

tailes are short and undulating, nonpe exceeding 74 feet per mile. The work over this
POrtion is heavy, large cuttings of gypsum occurring frequently, and 6-degree curves

I be necessary in the alignment. A trestle, 200 feet in length and 35 feet high,
i be required between the 42nd and 43rd miles.

6 Prom the 45th mile the lino crosses McKinnon's Interval at a grade elevation of
pfrot above lake level, thon ascends to the 46th mile at the rate ot 66 teet per mile.

M that to the 49th mile the grades are level or ascending at easy inclination,
tiItil an elevation of 86 feet over lake level is attained, then descending by varyingrtes, none exceeding 53 feet per mile, to an elevation of 8 feet over lake level, at 51

les. The work over this portion is heavy, the material in the cuttings chiefty
ay overlying gypsum, though one large cutting, of conglomerate rock, occurs near
ah both mile'.

The curvature over this portion will be considerable, 6 degree curves being fre-
'uently required.

One trebtle of 300 feet in length and 47 feet high ocours between the 47th and
8th miles.

The line all the way betwoen the 40th and 51st miles keeps very close to the
road from Strait of Canso to Grand Narrows.

9
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At the 51st mile the line crosses the Grand Narrows, or Straits of Barra; the
width at the point selected for crossing was found to be 1,800 feet, the greatest depth
of water 75 feet and carrent about 4 miles per hour. The Grand Narrows connects
the Great and Little Bras d'Or Lakes.

Because of the groat amount of shipping passing through this point, a low levOl
bridge would be objectionable, besides its great cost; and the coSt of a high level
bridge would, by reason of its increased length, be very much greâter. No fixed iWe
of any thickness ever makes at this point, and the drift ice is not in such quan-
tities as would impede navigation. From this it would appear that no difficultY
exista to operating regularly a steam ferry of sufficient size to carry an ordinary train
of ars.

The lino from the 51Î to the 53rd miles keeps along the south shore of Little
Bras d'Or Lake. The grades ascend at varions rates. none exceeding 66 feet per
mile, until the summit between Little Bras d'Or and the Benacadie Valley is reached
at the 55th mile, where an elevation of 180 feet over lake level is attained. The
woik over this portion, with the exception of one cutting, is not heavy, the material
chie:Oy clay. Curves as sharp as 6 degrees will be necessary in the aligument; DO
important structures.

The lino descends to the crossing of Benacadie Pond, at 57J miles, at the rate of
73 feet per mile. Benacadie Pond is an arm of the East Bay ot Bras d'Or Lake, intO
which the Benacadie River empties.

The work from 55th to 57J miles is not heavy; the material generally clay.
The direction of the lino between Grand Narrows and Benacadie Point is nearly

.at right angles to the general direction, and the total length of the lino is thereby
o.nsiderably increased. Benacadie Pond, at the point selected for crossing, is about
1,100 feet wide; the greatest depth of water is 3 foot. The bottom consists of 2 tO
10 feet of mud and sand, overlying compact sand or gravel. A span of 10 feet i5
roposed ; the remainder of the crossing will be embankment. Grade elevation is 6

eet over water level.
The grade ascends from Benacadie Pond to the 60th mile at various rates, none

exceeding 53 Iet per mile, where an elevation of 88 feet over lake level is reached.
The work over this portion is not heavy and the material chiefly clay, no structureG'
Of any importance occurs in this distance.

From the 59th to the 60th mile, is almost one continuous curve varying fro0
3 degroce to 5 degrees, sweeping around Bonacadie Pond, a change in direction of
160 degrees occurs in this mile. From the 60th to the 80th miles the lino runs near
the shore of the East Bay, generally not fer from present main road.

FRom the 60th to the 66th mile the grades are easy and undulating, the work
over this part is not heavy, the material will be clay and small boulders, aid
the aJ]gnment good. Near the C6th mile Indian Brook is crossed, a rapid strearn
subject to sudden freshets. A span of 100 feet will be required besides considerable
protection to the banks of the brook from ice shoves.

The grade ascends from an elevation of 11 feet at Indian Brook to an elevationl
£f 50 feet at the 67th mile, thence level to the 68th mile. One large cutting of solid
rock occurs in this distance, the remaiider of the work is not heavy, the alignument
good and no important structures. Good ballast will bo found at different point%
.anng this distance.

From 68th to 72nd mile the grades are undulating throughout, none exceeding 53
fet per mile, the work not heavy and the material chiefly clay and amall stones. It
will be necessary to use considerable curvature over this portion. Between the 70th
and 71st miles McIntosh's Brook is crossed, the valley of this stream is 500 feet wide,
a trestle 450 feet in length and 35 feet high will be required.

From the 72nd mile the grade descends for three-fourths of a mile at the rate Of
66 fet per mile, then ascending by various rates, none exceeding 53 feet per mile t&
tUe 7th mile, where an elevation of 114 feet over lake level is reached. The work
over this portion is light, the material clay and gravel, the alignment is good and fl<'

iuaportant structures required.

A. 188se-49 Victoria.
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From the 77th to the 78th mile the grade descends at the rate of 83 feet per
taile, thon level or descending by easy inclinations to the 80th mile, where an eleva-
t1On of 22 feet above lake level is reached.

The work over this portion is generally light, the material Clay and boulders, and.
the alignment good. Between the 78th and 79th miles '4illis' Brook is crossed, the
V'alley of this stream is 700 feet wide, a trestle 650 feet in length and 47 feet bigh
'.lill be required. At the FOth mile the head of Bast Bay is reached and from that
Cint to Sydney the line keeps close to the main post road between St. Peter's and

ney.
The grade ascends by various inclinations, none exceeding 43 feet Per mile, until

4n elevation of 83 feet above high water is reached at 82J miles. The work over
this portion is light, some small cuttings of gypsum occur, the material chiefly Clay
and the alignment good, no important structures.

The grade descends at various rates, none exceeding 53 feet per mile, to the cros-
S81g of the Sydney River near the 85th mile, the work over this part is very light
std the alignment good. The width of the river at the point of crossing is 90 leet,
the depth 4 feet, the bottom is composed of large stoues and gravel, and the banks

. A span of 100 feet is proposed, the grade lino is 25 feet above ordinary water

The grades from the i5th to the 0th mile are undulating, none exceedimg 53
ecet per mile, the work very light, the alignment good, and no structures of any

1"4portance.
The lino crosses to south side of main post road near the 91st mile, thence in

the 'car but close to the town of Sydney, it reaches its terminus at Battery Point,
AYdney Barbor, at 92J miles from Port Hawkesbury. The work from 90th te 92nd
1iles is light, the grades easy and the alignment good.

A stream called Fresh Water Brook is crossed near the 91st mile, this will require
a Span ùf 100 feet. Between the 91st and 921 d miles the Narrow Gauge Railway
from Sydney to Louisburg is crossed on a level.

During the exploratory survey it was thought possible to build a lino over the
il ground between River Inhabitants and Deny's River, by a more direct route than

the one adopted; an instrumental survey showed, however, this to be impracticable
Wihin the limits of an 60 feet grade. As it was a matter of great importance that
the survey should be finisbed without loss of time, it was thought best not to throw
away too much of the lino already run, and a sharp deflection was made from the2 8tb mile down the valley of Depy's River to Big Brook.

INo difficulty exists in getting a direct lino from the Little Crossing to Big Brook,
kOePing all the way in the valley of the Deny's River and saving a distance of five
liles over the lino surveyed. The work over tbis part (Little Crossing to Big Brook)
Will not, bowever, have more work per mile than the line surveyed, and there will
be no structures of any consequence upon it.

A line can also be found from a point on the Strait of Canso, about one mile
uorth of the village of Port Hawkesbury, passing to the rear of the village of Port

eastings, touching Lake Horton, thence along the Victoria Road, keeping north of
Ruagsville, tbrough Glendale, down valley tf McLennan's Brook and joining the pre.
sent lino between the 25th and 26th miles. This lino would probably show a saving
l the total distance of about four miles.

A part of this lino was examined (by me, under instructions from Chief Engineer)
fM River Inhabitants to Strait of Canso. The summit near Lake Horton was found

to be 325 feet above sea level.
This lino, by no means so light as the one surveyed, was considered practicable

Within the limits of 80 feet grades and 6-degree curves. The portion through Glon-
daIe and by valley of McLennan's Brook was examined by Mr. Ryndman and
reported asa heavy and difficult country. With the exception of the first 10 miles

em"Là Strait of Caseo, and from the 28th to 33rd mile the lino passes through or
lear agood agricultural country all the way. Indications of iron, copper, graphite

and 00 were noted in the immediate vicinity of the lino. The total length of a
11

49 Victoria. A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 67.) A. 1886

located lino from Port Hawkesbury to Syd ney, by the valleys of McMaster's and Big
Brooks, along basin of Deny's River as proposed, and thence to Sydney by route f
present survey, will be 85½ miles.

Attached hereto will be found Mr. Hyndman's report of exploratory surveYo
from Port Hawkesbury to Sydney; also a list of the larger structures proposed and
a tabulated statement of grades on the instrumental survey from Port HUawkesbury
to Sydney.

It appears from the table of grades that 32-4 per cent. of the line is level, 321
per cent. between 30 and 53 feet per mile, and 18 per cent. over 53 and under 80
feet per mile.

I have the honor to romain yours respectfully,
HIRAM DONKEN.

'COLLINoWOOD SCEaIBR, Esq ,
Chief Engineer and General Manager Government Railways, Ottawa.

CAPE BRETON RAILWAY-PORT IIAWKESBUIRY TO SYDNEY.
GRADES ASCENDING EAST.

29-8 '95 '67 •32 2·01 1 91 l'5 4,64 1,14 10•48 7•46

GRADES ASCENDING WEST

..4-74 P-17 2-0. 4-66 25 28 8.-27 1 -110 7-65 9i.1

CAPE BRETON RAILWAY-PORT HAWKESBURY TO SYDNEY.

List of larger structures required.
Station. Description.

4531 1 span, 40 feet, Little River.
4184 60 feet pile trestling, McIntyre's Lake.
4334 1 span, 80 feet, North-West Arm.
4167 1 do 100 do River Inhabitants.

4090 90 feet trestling, McMaister's Brook.
4081 90 do do do
4025 1 epan, 40 fe et do do
3678 1 do b8 do Big Brook.
3(51 1 do 50 do do
3536 1 do 100 do Deny's River.
3526 90 feet trestling, Campbell's Mill Pond.
2760 2 spans, 100 f et each, Little Narrows.
2638 200 feet trestling.
23'J68 300 do
.2180 steam lerry, Grand Narrows.
150 1 span, 100 foet, Benacadie Pond.
1398 1 do 10 do Indian Brook.
117 400 feet trestling, McIntosh's Brook.
725 650 do Gillis' Brook.
405 1span, 1O feet, Sydney River.
378 1 do 100 do Fresh Water Brook.
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CENTRAL ROUTE EXPLORATION-STRAITS OF CANSO TO GRA.ND
NARROWS.

CHaRISTMAS ISLAND, CAPE BRETON, 15th September, 188
SI,-I beg to forward, herewith, a tracing of a portion of the country on the

above route, and to report the result of my examination of the same.
2. In accordance with your instructions, I started near Duff's Mills, in the

]Ort iawkesbury and St. Peter's road, and followed the line located for the Short
njle Railway Company as far as the North-West Arm, a distance of about three

IYiles. As this lino skirted the north side of Mclntyre's Lake and crossed and
recrossed Black Brook, keeping in low, swampy and boggy ground nearly ali the

.4y, I considered it useless paying any further attention to it. Further information
gamied regarding the course of this lino confirmed my opinion as to its unsuitability.

3. From McCormick's Hill (to the east of Mclntyre's Lake) I obtained an excel-
ent view of the other side of the Black Brook valley, which consists of high but

genâtly-rising ground, opening to the North West Arm and the valley of the Inhabi-
tlants River. Instead, therefore, of being compelled to keep in wet ground, a high
and dry lino can be obtained at whatever level may be necessary and in the extot
direction required.

4. I passed over the road leading from Port Hastings down the valley of the
North-West Arm, crossed the Inhabitants River, and followed the latter up to its
eastern or left bank, passing the Princeville and Kingsville settlements, and
returned across Lamy's Interval and Queensville by the Victoria road. The coun-
trPY between Queensville and Port Hastings is rough and billy, and, as far as I have
seen, it would not be possible for a favorable lino to be found in that direction, as has
beeni suggested. The ascent from Port Hastings is very abrupt, and beyond Queens.

ille across Lamy's Interval the ground is low and swampy and subject to flood. If
taken along the shore to the mouth of Horton's Brook, following its course to
ltOrton's Lake, the direction would be circuitous. Beyond the lake the country is cut up
by numerous streams. In 1876 a survey was made by the Provincial Governmqnt vid
1orton's Brook and Lake to River Inhabitants. The lake is stated to be 280 feet
above tide water and four miles from Port Hastings. Beyond the lake the country
la said to present no difficulties.

5. From the hill above Kingsville to the est end of the Inhabitants River I saw
a wide and deep triangular valley, at the extreme north-easterly end of which that
stream takes its rise, flowing westerly round by Glendale, and thence southerly to
the sea. At the southern angle of this valley a narrow valley with a small stream,
called McArthur's Brook, leads out to the River Inhabitants at Princeville. The
easterly slope of this triangle appeared unbroken, and therefore favorable for an
ascent up to the summit botween the valley of the River Inhabitants and Deny's.
If this summit proves practicable, thon a much shorter route than following the
river by Glendale and McLennan's Brook might be obtained.

6. Leaving Hawkesbury again, I followed the same route down the North-West
.&rtn and found that the narrowest part of the Inhabitants River valley lies between
the " long stretch road " bridge and the Princeville post office. The crossing of this
stream and the North-West Arm presents no special difficulties. The former is 70
to 80 feet broad, and the latter about half that width. If necessary, the ascent
to the summit can be commenced immediately after crossing the Inhabitants River.
t have estimated the rise to be about 300 feet in 7 miles. This will give a gradient
of 4,i feet to the mile or about 1 in 120. I examined the narrow valley debouching
at Princeville, and found it promising.

7. I continued up the Inhabitants River valley round by Glendale, following the
'Victoria road into River Deny's valley. This route, which was adopted by the Short
Line Railway Company, is very rough, being much broken up by ravines and deep
gulleys, besides being longer by about two or thiee miles.

8. From the high bill above the Deny's River, "c ross Roads," I obtained a moSt
extensive view of the country to the south and east. I saw that though it was by
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no means level, there were no high ranges of hills or narrow valleys such as I hâj
passed over, to be encountered almost to Grand Narrows. The country is intersected
by small brooks, and ridges and eminences of moderate height, thus promising easy
gradients.

9. Before Droceeding further east, I went down the Deny's River valley and
turned into the'valley of the Big Brook. This is a long, and not very wide, vallef
running in a north-easterly direction, and situated to the sonth of the triangular
valley already mentioned. If it is possible to get into the Big Brook valley from the
Inhabitants River, a sufficiently favorable route might be obtained along it, although
its sides are intersected by ravines and torrents, but, as will be seen from the tracing,
there appears no direct or easy way of approach to it from the west, though the
report of the provincial survey states that a line was taken up MMaster's Brook,
with a maximum gradient of 80 feet to the mile, over a summit 284 feet above tide
water.

10. Ascending the northerly slope of the Big Brook valley to the top of the
ridge, I again saw to the north-west the triangular valley. I proceeded to explore the
upper portion easterly and found two streams, the northerly being the larger, and
the head waters of the River Inhabitants. The southerly one is a small brook, but
lying in a wider but shallower depression. This depression opens ont into the
Dony's River valley, thus forming a kind of a small pase. I did not follow the larger
stream, but was informed that it came down the side of a hill, which, therefore, would
not be so suitable. As already stated in paragraph 6, the height of this pass I esti-
mate at about 300 feet above the Inhabitants valley. This will be the highest point
botween the Straits of Canso and the Grand Narrows.

11. The descent on the Dany's River side will be much steeper, owing to the
,shorter distance, but the difforence of leval will be somewhat less. It would be dosir-
able to cross the Dany's River below the janction of McLennan's Brook, the latter
lying in a deop ravine, which otherwise would have to be crossed, as weil as one or
two other smalt streams, if the gradients should prove too steep. From the summiit
to McLennan's Brook the hillside is favorable, haviag an even slope.

12. As stated in paragraph 8 the country oastwards presents no unfavorable
features, and, for the present, I consider it important to push on to the Grand Nat-
rows. The general direction of the line is indicated on the tracing. Instead of pas-
sing through the Portage or the Little Crossing, as it is called, te lino eau be kept
farther to the south and a possible crossing of the inlet from the Graat Bras d'Or
obtained at a narrow place, close to Pipers or Campbell's Cove, which will shorten it
considerably. Thence it can be taken along the south side of a wooded ridge, tO
McKinnon's Interval. Before reaching the interval a littie rough ground and soMe
gypsum deposits will be encouptered.

13. McKinnon's Interval is a bay or fRat ground, semi-circular in shape, at the
head of a sheltered intet of the Great Bras d'Or, called Mc Kinnon's Harbor. There
is a small sottlement with a school, store and post office. To the north lie steop and
lofty hills which trend away to the north-east. The widest part of the interval
(from west to east) is under two miles.

14. Fron the interval to the Grand Narrows lie two or three high ridges and
intervening valleys, in a transverse direction to the course which the railway line
must take. These ridges terminate at their south-westerly extremity in a series of
capes on the shore of the Great Bras d'Or where they datten out considerably with A
moderato slope to the water. Opposite the valley there are long sweeps or bays. Il
eximined the country over these ridges, with a view to a possible route, back trom
the Great Bras d'Or, into the Grand Narrows. A narrow valley leads out from the
north-east c ianer of McKinnon's Interval, but the ascent id steep. An opening might
be found beyond its head into a gorge leading east into the Little Bras d'Or,
but this gorge is also steep, narrow and tortuous. Thence to the easterly end of the
Grand Narrows it would b nOcessary to cross some shallow bays, where large
gypsum deposits would be encountered. The adoption of a route through any other
ot these valleys would give a like result.
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th. 15. in my opinion, the shore route by the Great Bras d'Or will be preferable,is i necessitate long sweeps both northerly and southerly all the way to the4 nd dNarrows, but the gradients will be moderate. On leaving McKinnon'snterval some gypsum deposits will have to be passed through for a short distance,tether with some rough ground, and, generally, the cuttings and embankments
'will be of considerable length, depth and height.

16 The route I have indicated is, generally speaking, very direct from the
8traits *of Canso to the Grand Narrows. The only departures from a direct course
r" at the straits at starting, and the descent at the River Deny's, and the approach

to the Grand Narrows. In the first instance aspar of the mountainous ranges lying
't the north of Glendale leads to the south between the straits and the North-West
Arra, terminating in the valley in which lies McIntyre's Lake. As this valley opens

na n west, and in the required direction from the head of Port Hawkesbury Har-
r ight into the L'habitants River valley, a more favorable route cannot be

tained. Again the triangular valley at the head of the Inhabitants River affords a
oro direct line, and easier work than by going round by Glendale, which, on the

S whole, is a greater advantage than the slight detour at the River Deny's croit-ing
1a 4 disadvantage. Lastly, the tortuous approach to the Grand Narrows will not

e to be much in excess of a straight lino and does not extend over a groat longth.
9wing to the conformation of the ground no other approach can be obtained. Tak-

two bearings over the whole distance, viz., from the straits of the River Deny's
And< thence to Grand Narrows, the deflections are not very much.

. 17. The lino indicated will be well within the limits prescribed for gradients and
gment, except perhaps in the descent to the River Deny's which will probably
ai1 the limit of gradient, viz., 80 feet at the mile. The earth works in a hilly and

08t mountainous country such as this is, cannot be otherwise than heavy, and
ch of the cutting may be rock, and a great deal loose rock, boulders and gravel,"'hilt a portion will be soit. It may be possible to balance the cuttings and banks,

t 0o obviate spoil and borrow pits. Much of the work will be side cutting, and
the Possibility of snow filling will be confined to a few places of no great length.

18. The bridging may be considered very light over a length of ne .rly 50 miles,
hin, such a rough country. With the exception of the Rivers Inhabitants and

eny's which are themselves not very large, and not torrential, the streams crossedtro irisignificant brooks, and they are not very numerous. Materials for the con-ÎtruCltion of the neceséary bridges, either in masonry or tirber, is good and abundant.
19. In conclusion, I may say that the more closely and carefully the country is

ea11ined and surveyed the botter the lino that will be secured more especially east-
rard from the River Deny's. One or two alternative routes, as indicated by dotted

'les, fiight be surveyed.
20 . Further reports will be sent to you regarding the crossing of the Grand

arrows and the remainder of the lino to Sydney, at as early a date as possible.
I am, Sir, yours faithfully,

P. K. HYNDMAN,
Cape Breton "Central Route" Exploration.

. DONKIN, Esq., Engineer in Charge
Cape Breton Railway Surveys, Port Mulgrave, N.S.

TRAL ROUTE EXPLORATION.-GRAND NARROWS TO SYDNEY AND
NORTi SYDNEY.

GRAND MIRA, C"E BRETON, 22ad October, 1885.
1 SiR,-I beg to forward herewith a tracing of a portion of the map of Cape

reto, extending from the Grand Narrows to Sydney Harbor, and froma Baddock
1 LoUi)sburg, with the topography of the country explored by me sketched in, and.

report the result of my examination of the same.
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General Explanations.

2. This exploration was completed on the 2nd inst., but owing to the urge3al1
required for the exploration of the last 18 or 0 miles of the southern route into
Iouisburg, the report could not be prepared earlier.

3. As this poition of the " central route" included branches to Sydney auJ
North Sydney, and developed several physical difficulties, its thorough examinatiol'
took about three weeks aotually spent in the field.

4. My instructions, oirecting me to explore for a line to Sydney, with a branlob
from some suitable point to be selected by me, to North Sydney, I proceeded to worl
out the most direct route to Sydney, in the first instance, with as short a branch tO
North Sydney as possible.

5. In carrying out the exploration for such a line, I found the country so verf
unfavorable that I was forced to take up the consideration of two other routeO
which, though somewhat circuitous for one or other of the two termini, present, per'
haps, fewer engineering difficulties. These three routes i have indicated on the EaP
by black, red and blue lines respectively, on which I have marked off the mileAge
from the Grand Narrows as a common zero.

6. The map showed that the shortest line to Sydney, from the Grand NarroWgl
lay across the peninsula to the head of East Bay, and thence down to the SydneY
River, into the town of Sydney, and the shortest branch to North Sydney, to Sta&
at a point about tive or six miles west of Sydney, and, taking a northerly directi 0 r
to pass around the head of the North-West Arm, thence easterly along irs norther
shore into North Sydney.

7. The stream system of the peninsula, at least for the greater part of sUo
a route, gave however, little promise (espeeally in view of the very high country
lying between the shores of the Little Bras d'Or Lake and East Bay) of obtaining AI
easy line, and this was fully proved by subsequent examination. As will be seoo,
from the tracing, the direction of the watercourses is north-east and south-west'
almost exactly transverse to the desired route, and, from the contracted area and
great height of the country, they would be necessarily short and rapid.

Interior Route over the Bills-Main Line to Sydney. (Black line.)

8. Following up the route indicated by the black line, or the "interior " route
the valley of one of the branches (the main or left branch) of the Benacadie River
lies almost exactly in the required direction. A low ridge lies between it and th"
Little Bras d'Or Lake slope at an elevation of from 150 to 200 feet, at a distance
about three miles from the Grand Narrows, by way of Cooper's Pond or NeilbaO
Cove, at the first mile out.

9. The high range of hills along the south shore of the Little Bras d'Or Lake'
called the Boisdale His, presents a steep and thickly wooded face throughout its
whole length. At from 6 to 8 miles east of the Grand Narrows, the hills begin to
trend off to the south-west, stretching right across the peninsula, without a break, t'
East Bay, above the mouth of the Benacadie River. Along the northern shorO
East Bay the southern sloe maintains the same character, and they extend est
ward as far as Indian Brook, which rises within three miles of the Little Bras d'Or
Lake, and divides them neurly into two portions.

10. The country on top, which lies from 600 to 800 feet above the sea, consists o
a rough and undulating surface, densely wooded, rocky, and having extensive boc
or swamps called " barrens." Over this country there are neither roads nor sette
ments, except one road, partially formed, lying north of the Eskasoni Indian reserve
The area of this stretch of country is about 20 square miles, and it is impossible th,
it wial ever prove fit for settlement. I passed over the road above mentioned, a1
strugglea 1hi ough from the Indian Brook, at Hugh McFee's, north-westerly, to shea
acadie, meeting neither clearing nor inhabitant.

11. The only practicable way of ascent to this region is by way of the left brano
of the Benacadie, passing by Bryden's Mill and John McNeil's bouse, the last habits
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1on for about eight miles. From the low ridge west of th Benacadie a descent of
fron 50 to 75 feet must be made to cross that stream below the junction of the two
branches. Thence must begin a steady ascent up the valley for 6 or 7 miles on the
n14imum gradient, attaining, ultimately, an elevation of about 700 feet above the sea.

e valley is wide and its southern side, along which the line would be taken, has an
eY and favorable silope unbroken by cross ravines.

12 In view of the loss of the height occasioned by crossing the Benacadie,
coinsidered the possibility of following the low spur which ruins out from near

Murdock McNeil's was lower than I expected, being only about 350 feet in a distance
of 7 miles. The spur bere joins the steep wooded slope of Boi-dale Hills, which
*oUld have to be followed easterly for about one and a balf miles, when the line
WQuld turn up a deep gully and eventually reach the top at a distance of at least

tt miles more, if thé gully extended so far back, which it cannot do. I
erefore reluctantly abandoned that direction and fell back on the lino past Bryden's.

13. Before exploring the top of the hills I passed over into East Bay sd pro-
Oeeded along its northern shore to the bead, and beyond to Forks Lake, which lies
below the southern slope on the Coxbeath Hills, Returning west, 1 found the head

the main feeder of Fork'i Lake (near Gillis' Brook), aind the valley of McAdam's
brook obligatory points, and the next problem was to draw a direct line to McAdam's

ke from Bryden's Mill. I proceeded to explore Indian Brook from its head,,near
n Lake, as far as Hugh McFee's.
14. Indian Brook, though not a large stream, is a formidable obstacl., for it lies,

'Iroughout its whole lengtb, in a gorge or narrow valley, at a depth of from 100 to
00 feet. At Hugh McFee's it is more than 400 feet from the stream to the crest of

t'l easterly ridge. The least length of viaduct would be one half a mile, and the least
4ight 300 feet. Though there is the Dugald Brook to follow as an outrance on the
Western side, there is an unbroken slope giving no exit on the eastern side. No other
QOUrse was open than to head it round, and reach the McAdam's Lake by a circuitous
roUte, north and east of Loon Lake, It is remarkable that the valley of the Indian
'rOOk is continuous with that of McLeod Brook, which flows in an opposite direction.
.hevalley could not be avoided, and it must be crossed north of Loon Lake, where it
"e about 100 feet dee

15. From Loon ake to McAdam's Lake, a distance of 3 miles in astraight lihe,
the country presents a successgon of small shallow valleys and rocky ridges, though
te first mile is more level. A branch of McIntosh's Brook, the outlet of Loon

is crossed, and then the watershed between McIntosh's and Gillis' Brooks.
orn this point the valleys run east as far as the latter streum.

b 16. Crossing the last ridge, near the head of MoAdam's Lake, the valley of the
rook of the same name must be followed for about 3 miles more to Gillis'Brook, into which it falls. The side hill over this length is favorable, though there
a great deal of rock. This valley is continuons westerly with the southern

braach of the McIntosh Brook, the streams flowing in opposite directions.
17 To completely established the hopelessness of a more direct lino to McAdam's

e I found the country between that point and the Irdian Brook intersected byone or two deep valleys and high rocky ridges, which I have endeavored to exhibit,
onthe tracing

18. Gillis' Brook, the next stream of any size after McIntosh Brook falling into
a t Bay, is the outlet to Gillis' Lake, which lake is fed by streams from both east
nd West, After receiving McAdam's Brook, Gillis' Brook cats through, by a deep

gorge, the westerly portion of the Coxheath Hills, which here run close along the
Boreof East Bay. The line. must cross the brook just above the junction of McAdam's
rook. The crossing, though not easy, will not be a formidable one.

19. The Coxheath Hills, thou h shown on the map as extending along the
l0thern shores of East Bay, may be said only to commence from Gil lis' Brook and
Lke, above which they rise to a much greater elevation than along East Bay. The

1anection is by a low ridge, which forms the left bank of Gillis' Brook, and affords an
67b-2 17
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exit from the broken up country to the west, on to the south slope of the Coxhoath
Hills, by means of a short eutting of 20 or 30 feet in depth, into the head of the

main feeder of Fork's Lake.
20. The lino here will be able to descend at a ]oss rate than the maximrai

gradient, the level of Fork's Lake being about 2-0 feet below; the slope of tie hili io
gentle and is all cleared and cultivated, but it is a ittle broken by cross valley
which are, however, generally inconsiderable. If found easier, the lino coali be
taken closer to the lake than shown on the tracing.

21. The outlet to Fork's Lake soon joins the Sydney River, which comes mor
immediately from the south, but which rises in and traverses the centre of the East
Bay Hills, away to the south-east. Crossing the valley of the Sydney River the
ground is low and marshy, and broken up with knolls. Below the junction of the
outlet to the lake, the Sydney River is really an inlet of the sea (the tide coming up
to that point) having very crooked shores, and being in some places very wide,
though with only a depth of 2 feet at the head, increasing gradually, according to
the chart, to about 18 feet at Sydney (or Gibbin's) bridge, at the head of the South
Arm: By crossing below the junction the lino would be more direct, and though
the approaches might be heavier, one bridge would suffice.

22. For the five or six miles farther inco Sydney, the line will traverse a countrY
which is broken up by rocky -knolls and smalt ravines, and through which it wil1

require some care in selection. The best lino will probably be found weLl back frors
the river until near Sydney. Before entering the town, the Wentworth Brook, where
there is a wide pond, must be crossed.

23. The longth of the "interior " lino, from the Grand Narrows to SydnelY
appears to be, as nearly as can be scaled, 35 miles. An instrumental survey Wi,
most probably increase the distance, as the line, at present, can only be appro]r
mately indicated. This route involves (1) a long and heavy gradient at oach end,
attaining an elevation of about 700 feet above the sea; (2) traversing nearly half its
length through partly a totally uninhabited and uninhabitable, and partly a verf
poorly settled country, while the other half is through second rate farming lands; (3)
snd, except at Grand Narrows and the bead of Bast Bay, an interval of nearly 25
:miles, it will be almost inaccessible to the people on the east side of it.

Interior Route-Branch to North Sydney.

24. Anticipating a difficulty in reaching North Sydney, from the lino to Sydnel
at a point near the Fork's Lake, past the eastern end of the Coxheath Hills, 1ý
appeared advisable to keep to the niorth oi therm, through French Vale. This would
be the most direct route and avo:d crossing the numerous streams which fall into the
North West Arm, though there would be a greater length of lino to build.

25. The country east of Loon Lake may be compared to a pitch-fork, having for
its southern branch, the Coxheath 11ills and for its northern, the remainder of th"
Boisdale Hills, French Vale lying between. Before descending into French Vale,
there lies a short but elevated ridge, culminating in a circular hill, which is probablY
tho highest point in the whole peninsula. From it a most extensive view of the
country can be obtained and far out to sea.

26. Below this lies French Vale, flanked on each side by high and rugged hill8s
and travered by several considerable streams, with parallet courses. It was evideoI
that the line must be taken along the slope of the Boisdale Hills, which trend off tO
the north-east, and with this in view I passed over that part of the country. Lea'
ing the main lino at a point a little east of Loon Lake, an entrance is made into the
head of a small narrow valley, which opens into French Vale about two miles abO10
the chapel. The sides of this valle3 are precipi tous and unfavorable, bat no other
route is possible. Thence asharp turn muet be made round the end of the hill, koW
ing along the slope as the gradient will allow, crossing some ravines, and the sourOce
of Leitche's and Limestone Creeks, and continuing on to North Sydney.

18
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27. Besides the maximum gradient descending the lino as far as Roach's Lake,
rill pass over very rough and rocky ground, and will be at some distance from the
best part of French Vale, which lies along Ball's Brook. Its sole advantage will be
'ts directness to North Sydney, which can be reached in about 35 miles from the
Grand Narrows. The description of the alternative branch, round the east end of
the Coxheath Hills, will be given further on (paragraph 47).

Little Bras d'Or Lake Route.-Line to North Sydney (Red Line).

28. As noted in paragraph 5 of this report, I considered it nocessary to ascertain
if a less difficuit lino could be obtained than the " interior ' route, which has just
beeni described. Until my arrival at North Sydney I had supposed that the Boisdale
Ilills extended much farther eastwards, which would render ià out of the question to
reacb North Sydney and Sydney by doubling r und them. I found this not to be
the case, their eastern extremity being at the nouth of George River at a point a
short distance east of Long Island. I proceeded there from North Sydney, coninuing
On as far as the mouth of McLeod Brook. The result of the examin'atuon was satis-
factory, but to make the report clearer I will begin ai, the Grand Narrows and follow
along the shore, part of which, as far as Boitdalo, I had gone over before and the
remflainder I passed over since.

29. At Cooper's Pond, 1 mile from the Grand Narrows, the line will pass over a
1 oW beach, along which the post road passes, f of a mile in length. It will then
2ontinue on, close to the shore, Christmas Island, passing Peiwards of the chapel.
Thence for 5 miles more it will continue at a greater distance from the water tilt it
reaches a brook which enters at the western end of what is known as Shenatadie
Harbor. The lino for these 8 miles will be very level, passing along a very slight
side slopo and requiring very little work (except.in from off Cooper's Pond, where
a considerable embankment will be nocessary), and with oily one or two smail
Streams to cross. There is a fair and roomy harbor at Shenacadie.

3. Thence for 1 mile at Shenacadie Harbor the work will be somewhat rough
as the ground is hummocky, and it will be necessary to ascend slightly and maintain
a higher level above the post road for a mile or two, to what is marked McLean's
ý8each on the map, but which is known locally as Curry's Beach, descending a little
or' the way. Thence keeping a little back from the shore, continuing nearly on a
level, and with some slight curvature, the lino will pass Beaver's (ove and reach the
chapel at Boisdale, ut about 17 miles from the Grand Narrow's. Over this section of
9 mtiles the work will be, if anything, slightly heavier than in the first 8 miles, with
aIn ascent and descent east of Shenacadie of possibly 75 feet above the water. There

ill be a few brooks, large and small, to cross ; three, besides the oue ut the western
enrd of Shenacadie Harbor, being of considerable size, viz, one ut the eastern end of
the harbor, one at Beaver's Cove, and one ut BoiLdate. None of these are, however,
as large as the Benacadie, Indian Brook or Gillis' Brook, nor will the bridges and
aPProaches require to be nearly as heavy as for them.

31. At Boisdale, it will be a point to determine whether it would be botter to
PLss to the rear of the Globe flouse and chapel, which would suit the ground farther
'ast botter than keeping shorewards. Below the chapel thore is a pond which it is
said will make an excellent harbor, but it is very small, and an entrance would have
to be made to it. The hillside here is some distance back from the shore, the space
being taken up by long low ridges, with small valleys or depressions botween them
41d the wooded siope, and which open out east and wcst to the main stream. All this
's open ground and under cultivation.

32. From about Campbell Brook to the end of the range which lies between the
shore and McLeod Brook, the hills approach'near the shore, but, except at Neil Beach,

here a rock spur runs out, there is no difficulty in getting ground enough for the
ine; even past the spur it is moderately easy. Over these 5 miles the work may be

said to be slight, though there may be a little side cutting on rock in a few places,
Whilst the grïdients will be slight and the bridges small and fow in number.
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33. At the mouth of McLeod Brook will occur the first work of any importance.
This brook is about the same size as Indian Brook, but it coases to be rapid at somo
distance above, where the road crosses by a new bridge of considerable length sup-
ported on piles. This was fourd probably cheaper than embanked approaches. Below
the bridge is a salt pond or " Barasois," called Long Island Barasois, which is bounded
on the north side by a long tongue of land and separated from the lake by a low
beach and a shallow bar at the south-easterly angle. Advantage might be taken of
these to cross, if fourd suitable or cheaper, but a botter alignment would be obtained
by a crossing near the road bridge.

34. From the Barasois to the mouth of the George River, a distance of about 7
miles, the hillside is steep, and the work will be heavy. For the first- 4 miles the
slopo, though steep, is less broken up than farther on, where there occur low rocky
ridges, and knolls. A slight gralient will be necessaiy in order to save work and
distance, and a sharper descent will be necessary to the George River. The brooks
to be crossed are few and small.

35. The George River though farther up a very small stream, at the crossing is
an tirm of the sea, with high banks and deop water. The entrance is narrow, but the
banks widen out above, while the water deepens from 18 feet at the entrance to 24 a
little way above, and decreasing beyond to the head of the inlet, about a mile higher
up. The bridge here will probably be the largest on the lino, except, perhaps, t ho
crossing of the Sydney River, near Gibbons' Bridge. Owing to the depth of water, a
pier should be avoided, if possible. The span will be not much less than 200 feetr
and the height 60 or 70 feet.

36. The distance fron the George River into North Sydney is about 4j miles,
by the most direct line, wbich would cross the sawmill, or Pottle's Lake, a large shoot
of water which lies at an elevation of 60 feet above the sea. Between George River
and the lake, a distance of two miles or so, two ridges and the valley of the Almon
Creek, the outlet to Scotch Lake, must be crossed. The sides of this valley are wide
and sloping, but as the distance is short, and the difference of elevation from 75 to
100 foet, maximum grades and heavy banks and cuttings will be necessary. The
last ridge flattons out to considerable breadth on top, laving lost a great deal of
height since leaving the Boisdale Hills, of which it is a spur, near Scotch Lake. At
Pottle's Lake it is about 20 or 30 feot above the water in the lake. As there is an
i4and at the proposed crossing of Pottle's Lake, the embankment will be reduced.
Hlaving first thought of bringing the lino round the east end of the lake, I did not-
examine this point, but I have no doubt that it is feasible, and it will shorten the lino
by about half a mile. A descent of about 50 feet in 1½ miles wili be required into
North Sydney.

Little Bras d'Or Lake Route.-Line between North Sydney and Sydney.

37. The supposed difficulty alluded to ih paragraph 24, of passing round the
eastern end of the Coxheath BHills I found did not exist. I explored for a lino fromn
North Sydney to the Sydney River. From the town of North Sydney to the head of
the North-West Arm, a distance of about four miles, the easiest route would lie along
the shore. But for nearly three miles, to what is called Upper North Sydney, above
Allen Point, the main road lies close along the shore, and there is a continuous row
of houses, and some fine properties, which would be injured were the lino to be taken
above the road. To build it below the road or seawards would entail much exponse.
Even along the shore there are places where considerable work would be required.
Ail things considered, it appeared advisable to take the lino out by the rear, which
would avoid cutting through much valuable property and utilize three-fourths of a
mile of the lino from the Grand Narrows, while the increased distance, as compared
with the shore lino, would only be a quarter of a mile. A net saving of half a mile
of railway would be gained. Between the town and the head of the arm the
gradient would be heavier, the total rise being about 100 feet above the sea.

38. From Leitch's Creek to Ball's Creek, a distance of one mile, the ground near
the sea is nearly flat. At the mouth of each a portion of the sea will require to bW

20

49 Victoria. A 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 67.) A 1886

Cr'ossed, about one-eighth of a mile at the former with a depth of 9 feet, and a quarter
« a mile at the latter having a depth of about 12 feet; the saving in distance would

be about three-fourths of a mile over a lino entirely on the land, whilst the alignment
'Would be botter.

89. From Ball's Creek to Sydney River there are two possible routes. The
'Westerly one, passing along the foot of the Coxheath Hills, will be common to ail
'three routes for about 4 miles, and will be described further on Beyond the 9th
"Iile from North Sydney the lino would diverge to the east and cross the Sydney
River, bore about 250 to 300 feet wide and 13 feet deep, and joining the lino alroady
deNcribed in paragraph 22 about 2 miles further on, at a distance of 3 miles froun
Sydney, making the total distance from North Sydney about 13¾ miles, or about 13
files of additional lino.

40. Following the easterly lino from Ball's Creek, the shore will require to be
follcwed for about 1 mile, crossing the mouth of Grant.mire Creek; those beginning
to ascend round the hill above the mouth of Watson Creek, the valley of which would
be followed up for another 1i miles, crossing it meanwhile. The height attained
'Would be under 100 feet. For the next 2 miles the country is a level " barren."
Qxcept for a small depression half way, the bead of Crawley Creek. A sharp descent
4Qr about î of a mile, with some heavy cutting, would bring the lino to the Sydney
eiver, where a large bridge would be necessary, probably with a span of 200 feet,

niid approaches. The depth of water, as stated in paragraph 21, is about 18 feet.
Whonce anotber Î of a mile would join the lino with the other route, on a slight
4scent, a distance of about 1¾ miles from Sydney, being 1 mile less than by the
Westerly lino, though the approach to the bridge from the loft bank is less favorable.

East Bay Route-Main Line to Sydney (Blue Line).

4L Failing to obtain a satisfactory lino by the " interior route " to Sydney, a
second examination of the north shore of East Bay, while on my way to Louisbbrg,
caused me to consider that a more feasible line could be obtained along it. 1 had
Tiot been favorable to it before as it necessitated a roundabout way to reach East
13aY by- the mouth of the Banàcadie. There were many large streams to cross, and
the side hill genérally was rough and broken. In order that no feasible route to
reach Sydney direct should be overlooked, I have shown approximately by a blue
line where such a lino may be found.

42. For about 8 miles from the Grand Narrows the route will be almost identical
With the " interior route," thoug h a lower point in the summit may be obtained before
descending ito thé Benacadie, thence to the western end of the Eskasoni Reservé.
I have not been over the ground, but understand it is easy enough round the foot of
the hll, though it may prove longer than shown. It romains to be seen whether
Benacadie Pond can be crosed where shown, or if it will be necessary to continue
on to the lower end, where a draw-bridge would be required, and by which the line
Will probably be longthened.

43. From the western end of the Indian roserve to Me Adam's Point, a length of
about 10 miles, the lino will be along a slight side slope (which is under cultivation)
except for two miles, one mile, Crane Cove, east of the mouth of Indian Brook, adi
the other mile at McDonald Point, east of the MIntosh Brook, where the hillside&
are rocky and precipitous, with scarcely room for the post i oad. There are four
brooks to cross, besides minor streams, Indian and McIntosh'. brooks being large,
and re spans of about 100 feet each, with approaches. The lino will be nearly
level. quiring

44. In the next five miles, to the head of East Bay, the lino will require to
ascend gradually to an elevation of 100 feet above the .water, keeping along the
loWer slopes and ridges, away from the shore. The ground is bore and there broken
'tp by cross ravines and emall streams, and at the 24th mile, Gillis' Brook will be

'r0sed The crossing wilI be very wide, and the bridge necessarily high, as the
banks are far apart, and to cross at a lower elevation will necessitate longer ap.
proaches and less favorable ground.



45. From the head of East Bay to one mile east of the crossing of the SydneY
River, where the lino joins that of the "interior route," a distance of about six
miles, the country is favorable, being undulating, and opposite Fork's Lake almost

level. The Sydney River will require a large bridge of 100 feet span, with ap-
proaches. The line, for the remaining distance into Sydney, of six miles, has beenl
described in paragraph 22.

46. The total length of this line, from the Grand Narrows, will be 36 miles.
Though one mile longer than the " interior route," the line will be much easier to-
construct, and, except into the Benacadie, will be nearly level throughout. Ther
bridging will be hoavier. The farms passed through are fewer and poorer than 0n
the little Bras d'Or Lake.,

East Bay Route-Branch to North Sydney.

47. This line was alluded to in paragraph 27, and except for the mile will be,
throughout, common to the East Bay and " interior " routes. In the first mile, the
ontlet to Fork's Luke, a sma 1 stream, must be crossed. The valley traversed bas
been described in paragraph 21. Thence along the foot of the Coxheath Hills, the
line will ascend along an easy slope for about two and a-half miles, taking advantage
of a depression to enter the valley of the first brook, four miles from the junction with
the main line. For one and a-half miles fwuther the country is level, being partly &
" barren," the brook being small, and flowing in narrow gorges. The next one and
a half miles will be a sharp descent of at out 100 feet, to thé North-West Arm, at the
mouth of Ball's Brook, along the narrow valley of the Grant-mire Brook, which will
be crossed on the way.
* 48. The remainder of the lino into North Sydney, about five and a-half miles il'
ength, hasa been described in paragraphs 37 and 38. The total length of this branch
will be ll miles, wbich, added to the 36 miles of the main line, will make a total 0f
47, or about two miles more than the total mileage by the " interior route."

Sydney -Harbor.

49. This designation applies to the main entrance from the gulf, before branch-
ing off into the North-West and South Arms. Some distance below this junction, O
each side of the harbor, are situated the north-west and south-east bars, inside which
is the harbor proper. Sydney «Harbor, I am told is ranked as one of the three finest
harbors in the world, the other two being Rio de Janeiro and Sydney, N.S.W. ItO
width below the bars is nearly 2 miles, and its depth, along a broad boit in the centre
of the channel, is from 6 to 8 fathoms (36 to 48 feet). The width between the barO
is about l miles. 1 have been credibly informed, that not only the shores of the
harbor, but the coast for some disiance north and south ii shelving, and not danger-
ons to shipping. That where vesbels have run ashore thei e bas been no risk or los0
of life, and that ships in foggy weather have been known to enter the harbor in safetY
by simply " heaving the le.d."

50. The North-West Arm extends westerly in nearly the same lino as the maia
entrance, for a distance cf about 4 miles from Pt. Edward, and 4J from the nortlh
west bar, with a nearly uniform width of 1 mile, increasing to 1½ miles at Point
Edward, and having a depth for nearly its whole breadth of from 6 to 8 lathonis•
The South Arm lies in nearly a southerly direction as far as the town of Sydrey, 0'
distance of about 3 miles above Point Edward, and 4 miles from the south-east bar,
its width being from 1 to 1 miles, and its depth from 7 to 9 fathoms, shelving o
iàear its shores to 6, 4 and 3. Above Sydney it turns south-westerly for about e
miles, and contracts rapidly in width to its head at Sydney bridge. At Shinglo
Point, op1 osite the town, it is only half a mile wide.

51. The town of Sydney bas just celebrated its centenary. It was the chief toW»
of the island of Cape Breton before union with Nova Scotia. It is now the sbire or
county town of the county of Cape Breton. It has been recently incorporated, and
is said to have a population of about 2,000. It is well situated on a high penins ular
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%l0ping gently to the South Arm, with wide streets and substantial buildings, but it is
10t a busy place, and it has a decayed appearance. This is due, it is said, to the
,lOsing down of some of the coal mines to the east, but should they be reopened, it
a Probable that the town will be more proRperous. As a summer resort, it can have
W equals, the scenery being exceptionally fine.

52. The town of North Sydney was originally above Allan Point where it ia
bow called'Upper North Sydney. The former manager of the Sydney mines (which

Ong to the General Mining Association), Mr. Smith, intended to take the railway
1 01m the mines to Allan Point, as being more sheltered than nearer the bar. Hlis
acteesor, the late Mr. Brown, determined on the pre>ent loading ground, where the

s55ociation's pier bas since been huilt, and a new town bas sprung up in the neigh-
bood, in tbe last twenty-five or thirty years, to which the name of North Sydney

as been transferred. The town consists of one principal street about one mile in
eg9th, close to the water, with some small streets and lanes in the rear, thou, h for

;a1other mile up and down along the main road, bouses continue at intervals. North
Sq3Ydney is a bustling place, doing a considerable business as a market town and ship-
ig port. Its population is about equal to that of Sydney, and it also bas just been
c0orporated.

53. Between the two places, seven miles apart by water and double that distance
Y lad, there is, apparently, considerable rivalry, but each place has ils own advan-

es. The harbor at North Sydney is said to remain onen for three weeks longer
n at Sydney, and to be free from ice three weeks e~arlier. The ice at Nor th

Ydiney is drift ice from the Gulf, and the North-West Arm does not freeze over
o0lidly much below Allan 'oint, whilst the South Arm is nearly ail frozen over the

'bole winter. The harbor at North Sydney is said to close about the middle of
anuary, and to open about the middle of May, a period of four months. The South

'&Ir affords complote shelter for shipping, and is more frequented by men of wur,
bOt h British and foreign, probably owing to its former position, and the residonts of
%e consuls. North Sydney, being nearer the entrar ce, is more visited by mercantile
11Pping, and theugh not so sheltered as the South Arm, is sufficiently safe. In the,

lo severe gales on the 23rd September last, which was, however, not from the worst
ç1irection, viz.: the north-east, bat from the south west, I noted that the vesseis yt
411chor and at the wharves rode ont the fierce hurricane without straining. Tbe,
JOPartment of Public Works coutemplates extending the pier ut the north-west bar
Which will be a further protection. A small ferry steamboat plies three times a day
between North Sydney and Sydney.

54. The point I have selected for the terminus and landing pier at North Sydney ia
'ihatis known as the " ballast ground." For many years vessels have here discharged
their ballast, tilt an immense quantity bas accumulated over a considerable area.

area bas been marked off, and, I am informed, belongs to the Department of
karime and Fisheries. Allan Point was suggested as a suitable terminus, but it is too
ar away from the town and harbor, and remains closed with ice while the ballast

Onnd area is open as long as the rest of the harbor. The depth, close by the outer
go.of the ballast heap, is thirty feet. Not only will the ballast ground sorve for a

ls;d Ing pier, but it will afford room for a station and siding. As the main street in
the mliddle of the town passes close by the inner edge of the ballast ground, this will
!J the most conven.ont place for the townspeople and the lino. Crossing the town at
X5 larrowest part will cause scarcely any interference with buildings or property. I
%tO indebted to several of the principal men of business in North Sydney for informa-

and for opportunities for seeing for myself the main features of the harbor, and
Mr. Geo. H. Dobson, secretary to the Board of Harbor'Commissioners, for allow-

9 me to make tracings of the harbor plans.
55. Owing to Sydney being approachable only at one end, it appeared to me
the exact position for the terminus might be left for future selection, as this
lnot affect the position of the line coming into the town. Opposite the entrarce

"D the town, the centre of the channel will have to be reached before very deep
ter (7 fathoms) is found ; close to the shore it is only 3. There is not room to
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curve out into a pier running out directly from the shore, though one might be rue
out at a slight angle. The Sydney and Louisburg (narrow gauge) Railway crosse
the end of the town, about one-quarter of a mile beyond Wentworth Creek, and runo
out on a long and elevated pier to deep water. It might be advisable to continlttl
the line for another mile across the Louisburg Railway, round by the rear of the
town to the farther end, and run out where there appears to be deep water (7 fathoms)
close to the shore, as indicated by the red dotted lino.

56. Sydney Harbor is mach frequented by vessels of all kinds, calling for
4 orders." It is easy of approach and entrance, and is spacious. Outside the barO
there is free anch orage ground, and at both Sydney and North Sydney there is direct
telegraph communication with all parts of the world. Its geographical position DI
convenient as a port-of-call for vessels passing up and down the Gulf of St. Lawrence.
Being in the middle of the great coal fields of Cape Breton, it is their naturat shiP
ping port, and one of the greatest coaling stations on the continent. The sole draw'-
back is its being closod with ice for one-third of the year.

Comparison of the Routes.
57. I have described the different routes in much detail, with the object of poS-

eibly enabling a decision to be arrived at, as to the best route, without undertaking
an instrumental survey of each, the total mileage of which would amoant to about
130 mile-. In paragraph 5 I have explained the necessity for considering more thag
one route. I will now proceed to state their different morits.

58. If it is desired to reach Sydney with as direct a line as possible, the
"interior route" will prove the shortest l distance. Its heavy gradients, and the
character of the country through which it passes, almost precludes it from further
consideration, especially in view of a mach btter lino being obtained, with scarcely
any gradients, and not more than a mile or so longer, along the north shore of Eat
Bay.

59. This latter route, though perhaps most convenient for Sydney, will be very
circuitous for North SydIney, the distance to the latter place from the Grand Narrow»
being about 41 miles. By the " interior route " and Coxheath Branc'h, North Sydney
would be reached in 401 miles, and by the French Vale Branch in 35 miles, a saving il,
distance of 5¼ miles, but an iricrease of 51 miles of lino; the wbole length of 13j miles
being of a heavier character, and having a steep gradient, which latter condition,
however, is not an entirely additional disadvantage, as the traffie would otherwis
have to pass over the gradient on the main lino.

60. The East Bay route, besides being very direct to Sydney, might also prove
the most direct to Louisburg, by the central route (vid Grand Narrows), provided
the country lying between the head of East Bay and Louisbnrg will afford a direct
and practioable line. It will also be convenient for the people along the south shire
of East Bay and settlements on the Grand Mira and Salmon River. These are, how•
ever, not of great extent, nor are the fartas of the first order.

61. O o the other band, the little Bras d'Or Lake route, throughout its whole
length, except a few miles opposite Long Island, passes through the finest fartas
probably in the country. It lies only from three to four miles across the water froma
the island of Boularderie, which is said to possess some of the finest farms in the
whole island of Cape Breton. Directly opposite, sevon miles distant, is Baddeck, the
county town of Victoria, and the outlet for tho finest agricultural district in Cape
Breton-Margaree, with stations at Shenacadie, Boisdale and George River, where
there are landing places, except for a week or two in the spring, and early part of
winter; these will be easy communication by water, and on the ice with Boularderie
and Baddeck. The few farmers on the nort h side of East B-iy and in the interior
wil not have more than five to ten miles to reach Boisdale, the most of the way
being down hill, while those on the southern shore of East Bay wilL reach the rail-
way at Sydney by the St. Peter's post road.

62. As before stated, the alignment and gradients on this lNtter route are most
favorable and the work generally light. It is the shortest distance to North SydneY
viz., 331 miles, the additional distance to Svdney being 124 miles, making a ttlu Lot
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m48 miles, or 10 miles longer than by the East Bay route, while by it the distance to
0rth Sydney is 411 miles, or 81 miles longer than by the lake route. It would.

PPear that the distances are nearly equal taken as a whole, the point resting
tQ1efy on the comparative importance of the northerly or southerly districts.

63. Without desiring to buggest impossibilities I would wish to state that per-
hap three.quarters of a mile of lino, and a large bridge at the Geor e River, might

' aved by a tunnel through a narrow part of the ridge opposite Long Island, ut
"lDonald Brook. This tunnel would be certainly under one-half a mile in length,

o a much heavier work, but saving a greater miloage, viz., 5 miles between
orth Sydney and Sydney, by following the shore to Allan Point, thence crossing
e North-West Arm to Dixon Point, and crossing the South Arm into Sydney.

1oflgh of great length and depth, the necessury embankments would save five
1dges, and the embankments at Ball's and Leitch's Creeks, while the bridge'
quired to be built would not have to be in the deepost water, or to allow a passage

Orvses The North-West Arm is a mile wide, and from 40 to 50 feet deep, the
Oth Arm being one half a mile wide, and 30 feet deep In the centre. The distance
Sydney by %he lake route would be reduced to 401 niles, or only 41 miles

rlger than by the East Bgay route.
64. lin conclusion, a continuous lino of railway is more satisfactorily and econo-

omicall worked than a main lino and a number of ùranches, especially if they are
ort. ven by the East Bay route, with branches to North Sydney to Louisburg, it
odbe found necessary to run into Sydney before proceeding to either place, s(
at running expen'es would not be saved, and a greater length of railway would.

*1Uire to b, built for the sole object of express train accommodation. I appen S
%trIparative statement of distances.

I am, Sir, yonrs faithfully,
P. K. HlY NDLAN, M.1.C.., Central Route Exploratim.

Engineer-in-Charge, Cape Breton (Govt.) Railway Surveys, Mira River.

CENTRAL ROUTE EXPLORATION.
COMPARtATIVE STrATEMENT OF MILEAGES.

Mileage.

Route. To North Sydney. Remarks.

To Sydney. -- - Total

Length of Total. of Railway.
Branch.

In.tlerior,
g 11 li,.................. ............ ......... .................. EFeavy maximum graffimtoQ
auch -Barren country.
pi4 F'rench Vale.................17 35 52 Eoavy gradient.
Via Coxheath ............. . lit 401 461

Baat Bay.
tà 'ne . 36 ..... .... E.... .... asy gradient.

ranch. :4"" '""'"
Pi 0 OOhah.................... Eleavy work. country00xheath ...... .......... ll4Jscn raeLittle Bras d' Or

Lake .
lino ...... FirstcIa8u farme.

Weterly line ........ 13
Qe'Y line.. 46 1 4 elly light, ex.ep. ut

ros8ig the arme... 7 ..... 4 George River.

1-1 R. K. ELY,-iD qA N tM. 0.. -
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GRAND NARROWS EXPLORATION.

GRAN NARnows, C.B., 3rd October, 1885.
Sin,- I beg to enclose berowith a tracing of a plan and chart of the Straits Of

iBarra, or Grand Narrows, which connect the waters of the Great and Little Br0
,d'Or Lakes, and to report the result of my survey and examination of the same.

2. My instructions were to select suitable sites for crossing the strait by a high
or a low level bridge, or by a steam ferry.

3. For a low level bridge, it is at once apparent that the crossing indicated bf
the red dotted lino, viz., between the two gravelly points (Kelly Point and UnisckO
Toint) is the only suitable site. It is easy of approach from both directions; the
graveily points will afford good foundation for an embankment ; it gives the lest
distance from shore to shore; and lastly, which is most imFortant, the depth of
water is less there than anywbere else in the strait.

4. For a high bridge, if it is to be a combination of bridge and viaduct, the
shortest distance between the required heights would be important. The most west-
erly lino of soundings will answer that requirement, but the great depth of water, a0
shown by the soundings, would be prohibitive. Tho same may be said of the centra
line of soundings, whicb attain almost the sane depth, and both more than double
-the depth between the points, wbere the distance between the high level points dwoe
.inot much exceed that on the central or westerly lines. The necessary foundati0*
for the piers of the viaduct approaches to the bridge would be much less costly io

he gravel than in the water. Should the approaches be embanked, the lino betwe0n
the points will be as suitable for a bigh level as for a low level bridge.

5. fIor a steam lerry it is piobable that the best route would be between the tw'V
wharves which would be easily accessible. On the north side, a short reverse lia
would be necesary. On the south side the lino could start away easterly at once,
Near the present wharves will be found sufficiently deep water.

6. The bottùm between the points is, as will be seen, remarkbly level, east all
weas, as well as north and scuth and it slopes somewhat steeply up to the shore. I
is very bard, and consists probably of rock and large boulders.

7. 1 hbave had a tide gauge fixed in the inner angle of the south wharf, and daill
observations have been recoided from this for nearly a fortnight. I append a cop.y
of the records which indicate a fluctuation of from 1.40 feet to 2·00 feet on the gaog
(except on the day after the g' est gale of the 23rd ultimo) or a mean of 1'10 Icet'
A bencb mark at the corner of Mr. E. A. MoNeil's store is 3.92 feet above the zero
of the gauge. A greater fluctuation will take place from wind especially if it pr'
vails for a day or longer. The greatest rise above the usual level, due to the sever'
est gale, bas been under 3 feet. The current between the points is said to be about
three or Jour knots.

8. Except during a very îevere winter, it is said the ice is never fast, but floaN
with the tide. The thickness ol the ice is generally about 3 feet. It begins te
fori abont the middle of Jannary, and disappears below the surface about the firoe
week of May. ¶he pericu of the greatest quantity of ice is in February, wherO 'i
attains fEmetimes 6 feet in thickuess. It is Jormed in the coves, the result Of the
sordinary drift ice being piled up. It afterwards cracks and moves out with ib
wind and is carried backwards and forwards in laiger or smaller blocks, seVO

hundrcd feet in length and breadth.
9. The shipping passing through the Narrows consists principally of fisbi04

uchooners which corne from the east to fish in the great Bras d'Or Lake, and coasting
vossels, all of which pass on through the canal at St. Peter's. On some days as
as sixty or seventy bave passed backwards and forwards. The season of naviganloP
is from the midole of May to the end of' December. There is a lino of steambo0t

ru2nning each way every second day, between Sydney and Port Mulgraeo
through the canal, besides occasional steamboats belonging to the same compa"f
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hieh ply between ports in the two Bras d'Or Lakes. The steamship " St. Pierre,"
the Anglo-French and American Company, makes fortnightly trips through the

4s between Halifax and Miquelon.
I am, Sir, yours faithfully,

- IDONKEN, Esq. eP. K. HYNDMAN, Central Route Exploration.

hagineer in Charge Cape Breton (Government) Railway Surveys, St. Peter's, C.B.

CAPE BRETON (GOVERNMENT) RAILWAY SURVEYS.

CENTRAL ROUTE-GRAND NARROWS.

TiDU GAvuE RIADINGS.

____ fixed at South Wharf-Inner Angle-Zero of Gauge 3-92 below B.M. at Store.

Date.

sept., 1885.

4*I1day, 21st.....

'Ie4day, 22nd...

leedT4esday, 23rd

1Ursday, 24th..

ay, 25th......

'tar day, 26th ...

X day, 28th...

es day, 29th ...

wedilesday, 
3Oth

Hour.

A.X. P.M.

......... 4.30
... 6.30

7.00 ........
8.00 .........
9.30 .........

10.30 ........
11.45 .........

12.30
2 00

......... 3.45
4.35
6.20
8.30

......... 1·20
4'10
5'00
6'15

7. 0 .........
10.30 .........
11.45 .........

1.30
3.40
8.30

7-00 ........
9.45 .........

11'35.
1.40
5.00
7.00

6.00 .........
7.00 .........
8.00 .........

11·40 .........
2.00
3.00
6.30

7. 00 .........
10.00 .... ...

4.00
8.00 .........
9.00 .........

10.00 ........
. .00

7.00 ..

1-'85
l'80

165
1-70
1·75
1·80
1·82
1'75

1'401 50

2100
180
1*70
1·65
2•10
2·20
2·30
2-40

1'90
1·70
1'80
2·00
1.95
1'75
1'60
1-60
1'55
1'60
1·75
1·80
1·75
1·40
1-60
1.55
1 -80
i1·65
i ·60
1-55
1'90
1·70
1•60
1·80

East......
do ......

West....
do
do
do
do ...
do ...

East.....
do ......
do .....
do ......
do .....

West....
do ...

East......
do ......
do.

West....
do ...
do ...
do ...

East.....
do ......

West....
do ...
do ...

East....
do ......
do.

West....
do ...
do ...
do ...

East....
do
do .
do ...

obange.
West...
East.....
do
do ......

West....
East.....
West....
...... ......

Intensity.

South-west..
do
do
do
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...
do
do
do
do
do

South..........
do .........
do .........
..... ..... 1.......

South..........
West ..........
do.
do.
........ ,. .......
North-enat ..

do ...
do
do
do
do
do ...
do ...

South .........
do .........

North-west .
do ...
do ...
do ...
do ...

E ast...........
...- ............
East...........
do ..... .....
do ...... ......
do ...........
do ........... ,
do ............
do ............

..................

27

Remarks.

Cloudy.
Heavy se& running.

do

Rain.

Rough sea.

With rain.

Squally, with rain.

Rain..

A. 1886.

Pleasant breeze.
do .

Strong breeze....
do ...
do ...
do
do ...
do
do ...

........ ................
Strong breeze....

do ...
do ...

High wind.........
do .........
do .........

..... ...... ............
High wind........
Strong.. ........
do ...............
do ..... . ......

...... ..............Squally.............

...... ................trong...........
do ..............
do ..... ........

Mdor...............do ......
do ............

Moderate...........

do ............do ............
do ...... .....do ......

do ............do ... ..

Oalm................
Fresh breeze......

do ......
do ......
do .
do
do
do
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CAPE BRETON (GOVERNMENT) RAILWAY SURVEYS-Concluded.

Date. Rour. Q Intensity. Remarks.

Oct, 1885. A.X. P.M.

Thursday, 1st ... 7.30 ......... 2·00 East..... South ...... ............
..... 1.10 1·80 West...4 Easit.. .... Pesn ree

5.00 1-90 do ,.. do ........ .........
......... 6.00 1•95 do ... . . ....... .......................

. 4 ... 8 .0 0 1 -9. s. .t. . ... Ea t .. .. .... ... ....... .... . . . .
-Vriday, 2nd ....... 7·*00 , ......... 1·80 do ...... do ............ ........ ...............

10.40 ......... 1 65 do ..... do ............ ......... ....... .......
......... 1.00 150o do. do........... .................

2.15 1·45 do do...... do ...... ...............
....... 8.00 1•60 West.... do ........ .......................

Saturday, 3rd.... 8.00 ......... 1·70 dat. do.. d ..... Ca ..... a ..... Misty.
11.10 ........ 1·50 do ...... do ......... .........

1.30 1-40 do ...... do ........... ........................ Thick fog.
7.05 1-55 West.... do ............ ........................

P. K. HYNDMAN,
Central Route Exploration.

-CAPE BRETON RA.ILWAY-OENTRAL ROUTE-ICE AT THE GRANI)
NARROWS.

OTwAwÂ, 4th May, 1886.
Si,-With reference to the above subject I have the houor to forward, for your

information, copy of a letter, of to-day's date, froni Mr. H. F. McDougall, M.P. for
the County of Cape Breton, as requested by him, and to explain the discrepancies
apparent and actual, between the statements made therein and those given by mel 1

paragraph 8 of my report, dated 3rd October last, to Mr. H. F. Donkei, Engineer.1"'
charge, Cape Breton Railway erveys.

2. F'r facility of reference I herewith transcribe that paragraph in full.
" Ice.-8. Excepting durirng a very severe winter, it is said, the ice is never fast

but floats with the tide. The thickness of the ice is generally about 3 feet. l
begins to form about the middle of January and disappears below the surface abo11t
the first week in May. The period of the greatest quantity of ice is in Februar r
when it attains sometimeï 6 feet in thickness. It is formed in the coves, the reL
of the drift ice being piled up. It afterwards cracks and moves out with the wind,
and is carried backwards and forwards in larger or smaller blocks, several hundrea
feet in length and breadth."

3. Last summer being my first and only visit to Cape Breton I had, necessarilf,
to obtain the required information from residents. My principal informant was gre
,Edward A. MoNeil, the merehant at the south side of the Grand Narrows, who hd
lived there for the last eight years I put my questions to him in detail, which ho
answered, and where a simple reply was insufficient I requested him to describe thO
point more fully. After writing down the substance of hie information I read it o1t
to him, asking him if it was correct, to which he replied in the affirmative.

4. In an interview previons to my leaving Cape Breton with Mr. McDougatl
Mr. Donken being also present, the question of the ice at the Grand Narrows 0

referred to, and Mr. McDougall stiated that from hie knowledge the ice never attainj
the thickness given in my re ort, and requested that this should be rhade clear to the
Department. Mr. Donken, 1undbrtand, on arrival with his survey at the Graa
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a4rrows, enquired again of Mr. McNeil, and also of the ferrymen and mail drivers,
ad has given the result of the information obtained in his report.

5. Mr. MoNeil bas said that I must have misunderstood him. I am quite certain
t I did not, and that what I wrote in paragraph 8 was exactly what he told me.

hremember the occasion very distinctly, and referring to my original draft I find
tbat I wrote, sometime previously, the first half of the paragraph as far as "quantity

.lee is," leaving blank spaces for thickness and times, and that I wrote the word
Ilches" for the thickness. Owing to Mr. McNeil's information I drew my peu

troughl "inches " and wrote "three feet," and filled in the other spaces with the
tl)eO8. I then added, from his description, the remainder of the paragraph, the last.

4entence of which, I may say, explains how the ice attains the thickness of 6 feet. I
Sulderstood it, and not as would appear from Mr. McDougall's letter, that 6 feet
a the thickness of the originally formed ice.

6. Mr. McDougall says that this original ice is never thicker than 1 foot. This
8 the only actual discrepancy between his knowledge and the information obtained

a oI. Further on, Mr. McDougall admits a possibility of there being a thickness
t0 6 feet from the piling up of the ice on the shore, which is exactly what I have

Stated.
. 7. Mr. Donken has told me that lie was informed that outside the Narrows the

Inight form to a thickness of 3 feet, but there was no permanent ice in the Nar -
s and for some distance east and west, the current keeping it moving. Mr.

D.Qougall says with reference to the piled up ice, that it is not formed in the imme-
ate neighborhood of the crossing. In obtaining the information from Mr. McNeil,

1 distinctly questioned him as to the ice in the Narrows, and if the thickness of 3
et and the moving out of the piled-up ice had reference to the lake waters on eachý1de, the information would have been irrelevant.

8. I remember being informed, I think by Mr. McNeil and other parties, that
tce an Indian had succeeded in getting across the Narrows between the points on
he ice, but that usually there was only floating ice. It is most likely that when the
'led-up ice flo'ats out, it is in a very rotten condition. From Mr. Donken's informa-
1bO', ice does form to a thickness of 3 feet in the lakes, and. some of it may possibly

off and float backwards and forwards through the Narrows.
9. In obtaining my information from Mr. McNeil, I contend his constant resi-

e)3ce there for eight years, his experience as a mariner, and his intelligence, were a
e11rcient guarantee for correct information. Mr. McDougall's letter is a most valu-

ebî addition to the facts relating to this very impoitant subject. I hope that anydOubt or misapprehension may now be fully cleared up, as I understand it would be
hen the final reports of the surveys were sent in.

10. in conclusion, I would observe that the information required on physical
Poi1ts, in cases where it is conternplated to erect great engineering structures,thonld embrace the most unfavorable circumstances, if even of only occasional occur-
eyace, as well as those which take place ordinarily, and this principle I had in view

Putting my questions,
I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,

P. K. HYN DMAN,
Lately on Exploratory Duty, Cape Breton Railway Surveys.

the Chief Engineer Canadian Government Railways, Ottawa.

Copy of a letter from H. F. McDougall, Esq., M.P.

" HoUSe oF COMMONs, OTTAWA, 4th May, 1886.
«DIAR SI,-You will remember that when diseussing the subject of the Grand

arrows crossing with you before leaving Cape Breton last fall, I learned from you
at Acting on information received from Mr. McNeil, you reported to the Depart-

oelat of Railways that the ice in the Grand Narroivs attained a thickness of some g
et at certain periods in the winter. I subsequently called Mr. McNeil's attention to
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this, and he told me that you could not have possibly understood him, as no perman"I
ice forming at or near the Grand Narrows scarcely ever exceeds one foot in thickneD
and at the crossing points in the Narrows there is seldom any ice at all; none, how*
ever, to impede regular crossing with an open boat during any period in the winteri
The only reference which Mr McNeil or any other person could have made to ic
forming a thickness of 6 feet is, that in some parts of the lake when the ice is broket
the force of strong winds would cause such ice to be piled up in a crumbled forni 00
the shore to a height or thickness of 6 feet, but does not apply to the immedilte
points at which the crossing is made. I can only refer you for corroboration of the*
facts to the ferry men of forty years' experience on both sides of the Narrows. I nigh
farther add that the mails fromPort Hastings for North Sydney have been cross
over the Grand Narrows in an open row boat during the last two winters every night
(excepting Sunday), and although the winter of 1885 was an exceptionally seV6r
winter the service had been accomplished without a single interruption by ice sinoe
first established. The same may bo said with regard to the mail service perforurd
across the ferry for à poriod of some fifteen or tweaty years in day time, previ"o0
to the establishing the present night service in connection with the mail to and frior
North Sydney. And I trust you will be pleased to represent this matter to the
Department in conjunction with your former report, if you have not done so alreadl

"I beg to remain, Sir, your obedient servant,
"H. F. MoDOUGALL.

"P. K. HYNDMAN, Esq., Civil Engineer, &c."
OTTAWA, 4th May, 1886.

True coyy.
P. K. HYNDMAN.

CAPE RRETON RA[LWAY-ROUTE TO SYDNEY, VIA ST. PETER'S A
THE SOUTII SIDE OF EAST BAY.

OTTAWA, lst March, 1886.
SIR,-Tn accordance with instructions received from Mr. L. F. Donken, Engineer

in Charge of Cape Breton Railway Surveys, I examined the south side of East B11
between the 7th and 1lth December last, with a view to its practicability for a 110
of railway to reach Sydney from the Straits of Canso, without requiring to cross
Grand Narrows. I have now the honor to submit herewith a report of that exi'ar
nation, together with a tracing exhibiting the topography of that part of the country

2. As in previous reports, I have described the ground from west to east, I i
do so in this report, though I pass over it in the opposite direction. Starting froo,
a point on the line recently surveyed from the Straits of Canso to Louisburg, abOlt
1¾ miles east of St. Peter's Canal, the line will follow the easterly sido of St. Peter I
Inlet, and the south side of East Bay to the head of the Bay, a short distance east o,
which it will join in with the line also recently surveyed for the " central route
from Sydney to the Grand Narrows, along the north side of East Bay. ThroughO*
its whole length it is very near the St. Peter's and Sydney post road.

3. The route may be conveniently divided into two sections: the westerif'
between St. Peter's and Red Islands Seulement; and the easterly, from Red Islando
to the head of East Bay. The westerly section crossing the ends of the high SPr
torming the western extremity of the East Bay hills, necessitates a very tortuous f
unduiaung line, while the easterly section, lying at the foot of the northern slop09
the same range, will allow of a much straighter and more level lino.

4. From St. Peter's (starting point) to Red Islands is about 16 miles, and theP°
to the junction with the " centrat route " near the head of East Bay, 28â miles mor0
altogether, 44J miles. By the Louisburg line, the distance from the Straiti of Gan6
to St. Peter's Canal is 28# miles, and to the starting point, 29¾ miles. From tn
junction at the head of East Bal, the dieance to the terminus at Sydney (Battef

A. 1886,49 Victoria.
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i s il miles, the total (approximate) distance from Point Tupper, Straits of
anso, to Battery Point, Sydney, being thus 851 miles, which may be shortenud to
i miles.

Westerly Section.

5. Prom the starting point to Soldier's Cove, a distance of eight miles, the line
Would not require to rise and fall very mach. At Lynch Creek, the west side of

ae4rapbell Hill is very precipitous for a short distance, involving very heavy rock
ork- The rest of the hill will be side-hill work; two Fmall creeks are croqsed,
ich sharp curves, and a ridge of moderate height, till Salmon Creek, a small inlet, is

reached at the chapel. Into this inlet flow several small streams from differentdirections forming a wide vale with gentle slopes. The line thence wili follow on aeep graient the easterly stream, up a narrow valley, to its head on the southerly
bndary of the Indian reserve. Thence, descending aloog a side hill across the

Otheasterly corner of the Indian reserve, it emerges through a depression into
ýOtdier's Cove. From this point an alternative line, as shown by the dotted rad lino
?r the map, will be shorter by half a mile than following the hill sides, but will

olt'Ove a high embankment of considerable length. The hilisides are hure of
nloderate siopes.

h 6. Between Soldier's Cove and Hay Cove the country is very rough and broken.e Post Road passes over the hills, and down into a low ground formed by McNab
treek and the River Tom, two streams of considerable size. The line must keep by
the shore for three miles to McNab Creek Inlet, the hilliside being favorable but
r'ather steep. Thence either the inlet, which is nearly a quarter of a mile in breadth,St be crossed, or a great sweep of two miles mast be made to hua 1 it round, adding

tittie more than one mile to the longth of the line, and requiring hoavy work and
arP curves, crossing McNab Creek and the River Tom, and keeping along a side

into the head of Hay Cove. ere the ground iU m ru level, witti ro,>m for a ftarm
Or two; thence, on to Red Islands settlement, about two miles, there are a few low5Pnlrs running down to the water, which will not involve very hleavy work.

Easterly Section.

7. The distance from Red Islands to Irish Cove is about 5 miles. As shown by
dOtted line, a small saving in distance-say a furlong-may be made by crossing

4]inlet at the school house. Thence to the chapel the ground is undulating.
etween this and Irish Cove the post road rises and falls very much, passing over, at
considerable neight, a succession of rocky spurs. Hure the line must be kept close

.40ng the shore, leaving it suddenly when approaching Irish Cove, where the high
er0tand recedes. The slopus here are moderate, and are all cleared, with a smaallsettlement.

8. For the next 5 miles, to Middle Cape, the ground is more favorable, though all
e way a more or less steep and rocky hill-side obtains. There are a few cross

t'avines, and at Cape Rhumore the line will follow the shore by the old road. TChe
Present road winds up a steep valley, and descends anothler. From Middle Cape to
"'g Pond, another 5 miles, there is much more flattish ground, though some gradients
'til be required, especially approaching Big Pond, Hure, Breac Brook, a large

tream, will be crossed. Its banks are rough and broken, and heavy work will be
equired

9. From Big Pond to East Bay chapel, a distance of 1o miles, the line must
.s along a steep rocky face for the greater part of the way. Round Porphyry

eint, a great deal of blasting and possibly a short tunnel will be necessary, the turn
tlJIgvery sharp. At Ben Eoinn, for two miles, the slope is almost prem pitous,

teOugh not broken by ravines. Beyond this, to the chape, 4j mile-, the groun lis
y mch brkn with flat spaces, low rocky spurs, and outlying ridges-, requiring
ch work, and heavy short gradients. The only stream of any size is at Gillis'
. From the chapel to the junction with the recontly surveyed lino from

'49 Victoria. A. 1889



Sessional Papers (Ne. 67.)

Sydney to the Grand Narrows, a distance of about 3 miles, the ground is favorabler
but a slight descent must be made into the low depression east of the head of the bol-

10. The character of the country into the town of Sydney, 10 miles distant, bao
been described in a former report of 22nd October last, in paragraphs 2:_' and 45
Moreover, an instrumental survey of it having been made, the plans will give al'
necessary information.

11. On the whole, the route in itself cannot be considered a favorable one, owiin
to its natural features, which have been described in deiail. In the report of 22n
October last, the East Bay route (on the north @ide of the bay) was described S
somewhat unfavorable, involving considerable work. Its subsequent instrumental
survey, it is understood, has fully borne this ont. But the south side of the bay
having similar features, is much less favorable for railway construction than th16
opposite aide. The hill-sides are steep and rocky, and in many places precipitoS,
-while on the north aide the slopes are easy, and the ground, to a great extent, culti'
vated, sbowing less rock. As may be supposed, the farms on the south side are fe*
and miiserable.

12. The sole recommendation of this route would appear to be, to reach the
town of Sydney, and Sydney Harbor, by avoiding the crossing of the Grand
Narrows.

I have the honor to be, Sir, y our obedient servant,
P. K. HYNDMAN,

M. I. C. E., on Exploratory Duty, Cape Breton Railway Surveys. .

P.S.-I have omitted to mention that a suggestion was made to me by RcV
Father McDougall. of Red Islands, to cross St. Peter's Inlet at the Narrows, near
Sandy's Point, and thus avoid Campbell Hill. I was not able to go over the groulndi
but the proposal is worthy of consideration sbould this route be adopted. By joil'
ing the Louisburg line at St. Peter's village, a saving in distance of î of a mile
would be gained. By a junction further west near the mouth of the River Tillard,
there would be a saving of 1i miles. Shortest distance to Sydney, 82 miles.

P. K. HYNDMAN.
The Chief Engineer, Canadian Government Railways, Ottawa.

CAPE BRETON RAILWAY.-PROPOSED BRANCHI TO ARICHAT.-FRO%
THE LOUISBURG LINE.

OTTAWA, 18th May, 1886.
!IR,-I have the honor to submit, herewith, a tracing and report of an explors

tion made by me during the 16th to the 18th December last, for a branch line O
railway to Arichat, the county town of Richmond, and which is situated on the
southern shore of Isle Madame.

2. This island is separated from Cape Breton by a strait, called Lennox Passag0e
which is about 15 miles in length, varying in width from j to 1 mile, and having .
depth of from 20 to 60 feet. It is the highway of steamers passing from the Stiito
of Canso through the Bras d'Or Lakes, and is used by numerous fishing vessel•
The rise and fall of the tide is from 5 to 6 feet, and the current runs about 3 knots ao
hour. The passage is generally frozen over during the winter, the ice formifg
about one foot thick. lu the spring, with a west wind, drift ice from the Gulf and the
Straits of Canso will fill up the passage.

3. There is a ferry at Grand Digne, where the passage is only î of a mile wide.
There was formerly a steam ferry, which was burnt, and the only means of crossitIg
at present is in au old scow. The steamers touch at Lennox Ferry, on Isle Madane'
opposite Giand Digne. From this point there is an excellent road to Ariebat, distant
7 miles across tbe Island. During fine weather passengers are taken in an open boa'
from St. Peter's to D'Escousse 7 miles. It is 7 miles farther by road to Ariebat.

4. At Burnt Islands, about 3 miles west of Grand Digue Ferry, there are te
islands, viz., Burnt Island and Benoit Island, lying acrosa the middle of the passage'
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.ch is here î of a mile wide. The deepest water is between Burnt Island and Burnt
pont, on the Cape Breton coast, the width across being about 800 feet. Between

turnt and Benoit Islands the channel is not so deep, and between the latter island andthe South shore, it is uncovered at low water. This plade has, therefore, been pro-
Dosed for many years as a suitable site for a bridge to connect Isle Madame with
Cape Breton. I took soundings on the 16th December, between Burnt Point and

Iuirnt Island, and between Burnt and Benoit Islands. The depth at full tide, for
about 300 feet in the centre of the northern channel is 30 feet, lessening gradually
tWards each shore. Between the Islands, a widtU of about 600 feet, the greatest
depth was found to be 18 feet in one spot. Elsewhere in mid-channel, the depth is
rot 9 to 12 feet. From Bonoit Island to the south shore, the width is only 200 or

300 feet.
5. The crossing at Burnt Tsland being an obligatory point, the country to the
h was examined as far as the recently surveyed lino between the Straits of Canso

and Louisburg. Had it been feasible, a north-westerly direction, towards White Lake,
Would have been of advantage, as making the distance to Port Hawkesbury shorter,
Sil a direction at right angles to the Louisburg line, as giving the sho rtest length

'f branch line. The country did not admit of this, as it presents a series of parallel
7dges and valleys lying across the desired route. The line must be taken from Bunt

int close along the west and north sides of Seal Cove, to the settlement of Barasois,
St. Louis. Thence the outlet of Shola Lake can be followed, and the west side of the
take northerly, to a point on the Louisburg lino, at McPherson's and near to where
e road to Grand Digne Ferry branches off from the St. Peter's Pots Road, being

toout 161 miles from the Straits of Canso. The distance from the proposed junction
Burnt Point is about 3 miles. The work and gradients over this portion will

Probably be light.
6. Before passing over the proposed route from the bridge site to Arichat, a

4ort description of Isle Madame will be given. The island is from twelve to' six
iles across from east to west, and six miles from Lennox Passage to Arichat flar-
r, with a small peninsula to the south-east, and the small island of Pettdegrat

uGYond. Janvrin Island lies to the north-west. The country is in general barren,
there being very little farming. No part attains a greater elevation above the sea
Grn 250 feet, but it is far from being level. The centre of the island is occupied by

d Lake, a large sheet of water about 2j miles in length from east to west. Sha w
B is to the east of Grand Lake, and is one mile in length. From the passage to

.'chat, the surface consists of a succession of long continuous ridges and depres.
s lying east and west across the entire island. Immediately above the town of

archat, the ridge is 100 feet high. The western side of the island is much indented,aed affords some excellent land locked harbors which are frequented by fishinganesels. Port Royal and West Arichat are two villages situated on these harbore,
yd through them is the only means of approach for a railway to Arichat itself.
boî1. Port Royal, southerly, the ridges have terminated before reaching the water,t fortherly, to the bridge site, there are three which extend farther to the west-

aird. .'Escousse, in the north-east, is another village. The population of the'i8and 18 about 6,000, and is chiefly engaged in fishing.
er 7. Starting from Benoit Point opposite Burnt Islands the first ridge must be
50 osed in a side long direction, both ascending and descending at a height of 40 or
1o feet above the water. The depression leading into Martinique Cove is next
frsised, and advantage taken of a dip in the second ridge, through which the road
the Martinique to Port Royal passes, to reach the next valley. This is wider than

d ast, and the lino must be taken more westorly along its southerly slope, in orderdouble round the end of the third ridge, from which a descent must be made to]t. Royal. This portion of the route is about 3¾ miles, and will be heaviest in
9adjents, and, except near Arichat, in work.
b 8. At Port Royal, the head of Le Blanc Harbor (across which there is a road
rldgO) will be crossed, and a direct course, over nearly level ground, taken to Westchat, a distance of il miles. Here a small inlet muast be crossed, and the line
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will charge its direction from southerly to easterly, approaching the western end of
siehnt lar bor. Up to the outlet of the chain of small ponds, one mile beyond
Wcst Aricht.t, the gronnd is slightly undulain, and the work will be very light.

9. Thence to Ariehat, the line must be kept a slort distance back from the
water's edge, taking advartage of some depressions and hollows amongst the nuner
ons rock knols h er met with for a distance of one miin. The line will then paSS,
by a deep 'utting, in front of the Glebe House and under the cross street leading to
the chapel and conrent, and in the rear of some dwelling houses beyond, when it
will reach Main street a little eist of the hotel. Crosýing the street at an acute
angle, the line will follow the slope between the street and the water's edge until
it reache the post offie, where it is propned to terminate it on a laning pier. r
this approach, the line will pass to the rear of all the wharves and the main street,
and very little private property is interfered with.

10. The harbor of Arichat is completely land locked, with two entrances, and
is deep, and capacious. The upper end of it, east of Kavanagh Point, is one milo
long, from one-half to one-forrth of a mile wide, and from 40 to 60 feet deep. Frorai
its easterly end to Crid Pass, a narrower entrance, it is more than :- miles in lengtb
and from 40 to 80 feet deep. Tho principal entrance, between Jerseyman Island
and Barache Point, is thrce quarters of ai mile wide, with a depth of from 40 to 90
feet over two-thirds of its width. H.M.S. "Northampton," one of the largest war'
ships afloat, has steamed i ight around Jerseyman Island. The harbor is principallY
frequent# by fishing vessels, but steamers call there occasionally, and sometiies
Me C of ': :. One steamer, the "I Rimouski," plies regu arly once or twice a Week
b'w~e Arichat and the neighboring ports in Chedabucto Bay and the Straits of
Caso. Another steamer, which plies between Halifax and Prince Edward Islanid,
cals at A-ichat. There are 1 5 vesseis owned in Arichat, according to the register.
These trado at home and abroad, Tho harbor is generally free from ice during the
winter, except where a little formas at the eastern end and along the shore. Opposite
Crid Pass the water is always open, and it is intended to build a public wharf at this
point. In the spriig, according to the wind, the harbor may be closed with GuIf
ice for a few days.

11. The terminus at the post office is in the direct line for vessels entering the
harbor. It is in a central position for the town, wbich consists of a narrow striP
extending neai ly the whole length of the harbor. The Dominion Government, in
the Public Works Department, has latterly acquired some property as a site for a
new post office and custom house, with the accompanying water frontage. A sharp
cu-ve will be required to run out on the pier into deep water, a distance of 200 Or
300 feet from the shore. Sufficient siding accommodation can be obtained in exter"
sion of the lino alorg the shore, and between it and the head of the landing pier.
The approach to the pier and the sidings, being partly ouiside the present shore lino,
some fillin in will be required.

12. Stations will be required at Arichat, and between West Arichat and Port
Royal ; also at the south end of Burnt Ivlands Crossing, for the accommodation o
D'Escousse and the northern part of the island. A station will also be necessary a
the north sýide, for the steamboat traffic. By making a central one on Barnt Island,
to wuich a roadway approach could be made from the south, three stations, besideO
the jnction, would probablv be found sufficient.

13. The principal structure on the whole line will be the swing bridge at Barld
Islands, the style of which will require speoial eonsiderAtion. Between Burnt an
Beno>it Islands a small bridge, but not too open, may be preferable to closing up the
charnel entirely. North of the pasisage, the Moulin River and two smaller strea 5i'
which di-charge into Seal Cove, will require small bridges. South of the passage,
besides two or thee smn:l streams between it and Port Royal, a bridge will be
required across the head of Le Blanc Harbor, at the mouth cf the "Buissea." A
West Arichat there is a small inlet to be embauked across aud bridged, and the las'
streaa to be ci ossed is the outlet of the chain of small ponds.
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14. The total length of line from the proposed janction at Shoal Lake will be,
aPProximatoly, 12 miles. Except between Lennox Passage and Port Royal, the
gradients will be very easy, and over thi. portion, though perhaps a little steep, they

ill be short, and alternately up and down. The work, generally, will be light,
aPart from the crossing at Burnt Islands. There will be considerable rock cutting
approaching and through Arichat, for a length of l miles.

15. The claims for this branch are mainly, two. Firstly-It will give railway
cOmamunication to Arichat, which is the county town of Richmond, and is also the
Centre of the fishing industry of nearly the whole southern coast of Cape Breton.
Secondly-It will ensure access for the people of Isle Madame, at all times, with the
O3ter world, by the building of a bridge across Lennox Passage.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
P. K. HYNDMAN,

On Exploratory Duty, 'ape Breton Railway Survey$.
Chief Engineer Government Railways.

A. 1886
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MESSAGE.

LNSDoWNE. (75)

The Governor General transmits to the House of Commons, for its
1foriamation, copies of certain Despatches from the Right Honorable the
Secretary of State for the Colonies, and of other papers, with reference to
the Aspy Bay affair.
1OVERNMENT HOUSE,

O'TAwA, 20th April, 1886.

Okt of a Tclegraphic Message received by His Rxcellency the Governor General fmn
the Secretary of State for the Colonies, 3'st May, 1881.

3lst MAY.
Aspy Bay claims of United States Government settled in conjunction with

orttne Bay claims. Despatch by mail explaining.

DoWNING STREET, 2nd June, 1881.
MY I.oRD,-I had the honor to inform you in my telegram of the 31st ultimo

.ut the Aspy Bay question has been settled in conjunction with the Fortune Bay
The depositions of the American fisherman, with regard to the occurrences at

-Py Bay, are contained on pages 138 to 141 of the message from the President of
the United States (46th Congreus, 2nd Session, Ex. Doc., No. 84), a copy of which is,
,ao doubt in the possession of your Lordship's Government.

-er Majesty's Government had ben for some time in communication with the
nited States Government on the subject of the Fortune Bay claims, and in order to
old an expensive enquiry with a view to the assesment of compensation to

the American fishermen, and the consequent protraction of an irritating contro.
'Versy, it was at length agreed the question should be settled ut once by the payment
of a sum of £15,000. In this amount has been further included the settlement of
the Aspy Bay claims and all other claims up to the 4th of March last, it being

n5derstood that this payment is made without prejudice to any question of the
r'ghts of either Government under the Treaty of Washington.

I have, &c.,
KIMBERLEY.

Governor General, the Right Hon. the Marquis of Lorne, K.T., G.C.M.C.

GLOUCESTER, 8th September, 1879.
t)EPostTIoNs of James L. Anderson, James D. Norwood, Peter Thibodeau, James

Challoner and Charles Dagle, taken in relation to the trouble between the Can.
ad ian and American fishermen at Aspy Bay, Cape Breton:
1, James L. Anderson, of Gloucester, Mass-, and master of the schooner " Cadet,"

of Gloucester, do, on oath, depose and say that I left Gloucester on the 7th June,
1 bound for Aspy Bai, Cape Breton, to take squid. y vessel was fitted and far-
4 ed S With a seine for e kidvof Qpid, as L oniu tat udwe th# prtii0m

40 victoria.,
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of the Treaty of Washington I had the right to take fish of any kind within three
miles of the shores of the Dominion, and also to use seines or other apparatus for the
purpose. I arrived at Aspy Bay on the 20th June, the American schooner "Bay
State," Capt. Goodwin, arrived the same day. fie was fitted with a seine for thO
purpose of taking squid. The inhabitants of Aspy B)ay came off to my vessel, and
seeing the seine on deck, asked me what I intended to do with it; I told them that
it was for the purposo of taking squid; they then loit my vessel and wen t on sbore.
The next morning I went on shore and was met by a fisherman named Gwin, Who
informed me that the fishermen of the place had consulted together and had made
up their minds that no seine should be set in the bay, and if it was attempted theY
wquid ont it up and destroy it, and that they would serve me the saie.

He gave as a reason for this that they bolieved the using of the seine would
drive away the squid and deprive them of bait for their own fisheries, and ruin their
business of jigging squid. I explained to them that squid had been seined iO
Chebucto for several years with no more preceptible decrease of the squid than whe
they were caught by jigs; that the same amount of squid would be taken from the
water by the jigs, as there are some two hundred men who fish at that place. 1
found that it was useless to argue, as every time I went on shore the threats wOr
repeated, and that they would be carried out.

I then attempted to compromise by offering to pay them for all the squid I
might take in the seine, at the same rate as if they caught them with jigs, and divide
the money among them equally. They said that if my seine was used in the bal
that it would establish a precedent for seining there, and other vessels would not
thon be prevented, after one had been allowed to seine, Finding I could not use iinf
seine, and knowing that if it was cut up I should not have it to use in other place0'
and be deprived of the means of getting my cargo, I felt obliged to give it up. Wh9
the squid came into the bay there was a large fleet of bankers, and il I could haVO
used my seine, I could have supplied every vessel with bait and have also loaded 0n1
own vessel with squid to sell to the vessels on the banks. For ton successive days the
bay was swarming with squid, but not one would take the hook, and the peoPle
could not take any.

All of the vessels lying there were obliged to leave without obtaining any bait, and
I left also for Chetticamp. Failing to find squid there, I returned to Aspy Bay on tho
21st July, and I found squid in the bay that at that time would take the hook. . 00'
menced buying of the fishermen, having over sixty boats with 180 mon employed. 
paid for this lot of squid 8561 in cash, getting about two-thirds of the cargo. 'io
cargo I. carried to St. Pierre and sold the squid for 61 francs per hundred to the
Jersey fishermen. In a week's time I came back to Aspy Bay and I found sqiid
plenty in the bay but they would not take the hook. I could have taken al the squ
I wanted if I could have used my seine. I remained three days and finding that
could not obtain any squid as they would not bite, I left the bay and I then starte
for Newfoundland, and in the dense fog the current sent the vessel on the Little
Miquelon, where she was lost. My loss on being deprived of the use of my seine 00
my frst trip would be 85,000. As for this season I could have loaded my vessel 10
three days on the first trip and would have had them in St. Pierre at least thre
weeks ahead of any other baiter, and as the squid failed at St. Pierre this season I cold
have got $1.50 per hundred for them. The cargo I carried there three weeks latt
I got $1.25 per hundred for. I should have been at no expense in buying the sqIîd
as my crew oould have set the seine and handled the fish. On my second visit I Paîd
the people $561 for a partial cargo, and the third trip I could have saved my cargo,
but was not allowed to, and the squid not biting, I could not purchase from the peoP1l

My third trip, by being so deprived, I suffered a loss of at least $2,000. Th
delay. the uncertainty and the consequent waste of time, and the continued expOe2
of my vessel and crew obliging me to cruise from port to port in search of fish, who
I could have realised full cargoes every time I was there with certain sales, will 0
be oomputed in this amount, but simp 1 the cot of the squid to mo at Aspy Balaveseined, and the value ole Ud am $t. Piorro.

A. 1886
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In this whole matter no fishery officer or officer of the law forbade my seinin ;
the threats and all the demonstrations came from the local fishermen, acting in -
Pendent of all law and combined together to act as a mob, violence enforoed by
l'rambers being their only authority. I told them time and again that under the
Tlreaty of Washington I had a right to seine, as the Government had paid flive and
a half millions of dollars for this right; they replied, that they cared nothing for
treaties or rights; they were going to take care of themselves; the money the
Government had got done them no good, when they got cash for squid it did them
c0ille good.

The squid on those shores are about a third grown and are not mature enough
or spawning; they are about six inches long and they grow about two inches in a
Smaer, they are the young squid, and every season they come on these coaste,
always the young fish; by the use of the seine it makes the catch a certainty, while
he hooking process cannot be depended upon.

t On this trip My vessel was under a fishing license, with a permit to touch and
rde. I had a few boots and shoes and some cottons, in case I had. occasion to trade.

91 arriving at Aspy Bay I reported to the Customs officer at North-West Harbor,
a4d entered my vessel; the most of my goods I carried to St. Pierre.

CAPT. JAMES L. ANDERSON, Esex s.s.

GLOUCESTER, 12th September, 1819.

t Personally appeared the above-named JamesL. Anderson, who made oath that
the above statemenit by him subscribed is true before me.

ADDISON CENTER, Justice of the Peace.

GLOUCEITER, IOth September, 1879.
t, , James D. Norwood, master of the American schooner " Messina," of Glouces-
er, do on oath depose and say that I left Gloucester for St. Ann's, or Aspy Bay,

9.ape Breton, for a cargo of squid to sell for bait. I had been in these ports in pre-
enOQs years, and knew that the inhabitants would oppose the use of a seine in that

8Y; and consequently I went prepared to buy my squid.
I stopped at St. Ann's about a fortnight; got no squid, as they would not bite;

en went to Aspy Bay and found that the squid would not take the hook, and that
r people had opposed the use of any seine by Capt. Anderson, or any other person.
.ould have hirect a seine and loaded my vessel if I had been allowed what I con-

1ldered my rights under the Treaty of Washington, but finding the people in such a
e'termined and threatening attitude I knew it would be useless to try to get my

targo there, and left for Newfoundland. I arrived at Torbay, where I bought000 squid of the local fishermen, paying $900 in oash for them.
The same hostility to Americans tazing their own bait with seines exista at

ewfoundland as at Cape Breton. The fishermen can make twice the amount of
loney, taking squid for the American bankers and baiters than they can in their
ý1lal avocation of cWl fishing, and they will not be deprived of this lucrative trade

they can help it. It is cash to them, and the women and boys join with the local
hermen in the light work of taking squid with jigs. The whole community shares

1the squid fishery and in the money they receive for them. In my judgment fully8140,000 is paid annually on these shores for bait alone, and this could all be savedif the Americans could use their seines to take bait, and the bait, If not purcbased bythe Anerican fleet, would be useless and valueleps to the people.
I bave been informed that there is a local law against seining squid at Newfound-

and. The present mode of taking fquid by jigs is a slow process, costing the
niericans a great loss of time when if the seine could be used it would save two.

thirds the time it now takes to get bait. Each banker now has to spend at leastthirty days out of each trip in going around from place to place for bait, as whenthe squid will not take the hook, none can be obtained, and the seine makes the catch

JAMES D. NORWOOD, Afaster of Schooner "Messin,"
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GLOUCESTIR, 30th September, 1879.

Personally appeared the above named James D. Norwood, who made oath thst
the above statement by him subscribed is true before me.

ADDISON OENTER, Justice of the Peace.

GLOUCESTER, September 10th, 1879.
1, Peter Thibodeau, master of the American schooner, " Lizzie J. Jones " 0f

Gloucester, do, on oath, depose and say that I left Gloucester on the said vessel on the
3rd June, 1879, for Aspy Bay, Cape Breton, on a trip for squid. I was not fitted
with a seine but was prepared to buy for this season ; that the previous year I was at
Aspy Bay with Capt. Dagle and knew that the fishermen there would not, under
any circumstances, permit a seine to be used there.

I ws at Aspy Bay when Capt. Anderson, of the schooner " Cadet," tried to us0

his seine, and Çapt. Anderson asked me to assist him in using his seine for seining
the squid, but the local fishermen, to a man, united in threatening destruction to the
seine or anyone who attempted to use it in that bay.

I am perfectly sure that the seine would have been destroyed as the people
warne4 me from having anything to do with it and were constantly on the watch to
see if Anderson attempted to use it, and were prepared to attack him on the first
demonstration on his part. I did not get but 3,000 squid at Aspy Bay. My vesse1

would take? as a çargo, 500,000.
Al of the vessels could bave been loaded with squid oould the seine have be0e

used; the bay was swarming with them.
I told the people that Americans had the right to take these squid with seineer

and they said they cared nothing for that; they should and would protect themselves;
if they allowed seining it would ruin their business of jigging squid, and then thel
thought the seining would drive away the squid from the bay.

At this place the local fishermen had no money except what they get from tbe
Amoricans for squid and they say if this trade is taken from them they will have 30
money to pay their taxes, &c.

They usually receive from the local traders goods and groceries for the fish tbey
take during the season, while the Americans pay cash for the sqpid and bait they buy.

I was obliged to leave Aspy Bay as I could not obtain an y squid, as they woui
not bite, I then went to Newfoundland and to Conception and Trinity Bays, wher
I boug ht my squid from the local fishermen.

The feeling is the same at Newfoundland as at Aspy Bay against seining. 50,
Amerian will be allowed to use the seine to take squid in any of the bays or coves Of
Newfoundland under penalty of destruction of the seine. I have hoard the people
0y this over and over again, and know that it is impossible to obtain what we cou'
sider our rights in this respect under the Treaty of Washington.

PETER THIBODEAU, [L.S.] Master of Schr. " Lizzie J. Jones."

GLOUoESTER 10th September, 1879.
Personally appeared the above-named Peter Thibodeau, before me and made oath

that the above statement by him subscribed is true.
ADDISON QEE TER, Juttice of the Peace.

WHITE POINT, BR. Via, 17th August, 1879.
James Challoner, of White Point, Aspy Bay, boing duly sworn, do depOO

and say :
That about 20th Jaly, 1879, (aptain Anderson of the schooner "Cadet," 01

G)pouester, came to see me, and said that his vessel the previous season had done
voey well with squid which they had purchased here and sold at St. Pierre MigueO'f
and that there were ton vessels this year engaged in the same business, and eight O
thep 414 eqçle t this bay fer thae purpose of getting squid and carrying them to tih

A, 886
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banks for sale to the bankers, and remained bore until about the 16th of July.
Captain Anderson and Captain Goodwin, of the Bay State, bad a seine for the pur.
Pose of seining squid in the bay, and did not attempt to use it, because the fishermen
WOuld not allow them to do so. They threatened to cut the seine if they placed it in
the water. There nover bas been but one seine cast in this bay, an had Captain
Anderson thrown bis seine ho would have swept the whole school of squid in the
cOve, and the fishermen would have been deprived of ail their bait for the season.
Last season the Americans purchased their squid, givicng 20 cents per hundred, and
this, when the equid are plenty, is a source of profit and a large part of the business
Of the inhabitants. Ca ptain Anderson could have purchased ail ho wished, but if the
Qsbermen bad allowed him to seine, they would have lost the money paid for the
squid by the cod-fishermen from the banks. N) opposition was made to Captain
A&nderson's catching squid by hook and line.

Amerioan and French bankers come bere every summer for bait, and if Captain
Anderson had taken ail the squid by his seine the bankers would have been forced
to purchase of him instead of the native fishermen, of whom there are about one
hulndred and fifty. I am not aware of any colonial law against securing squid. The
only reason the inhabitants threatened Ca tain Anderson was that he would ruin
their squid catch. The only fishery officer lives at Fragnish, down the coast. Some

effloundlanders living near hore attempted a little while ago ta use seines for
taking capelin, but the natives would not permit them to do so. I have been a rosi.
dont bore for thirty years and engaged in the business of purchasing flsh.

8 ubscribed and sworn to before me this 1 J. A. CHALLONER.

1lth day of August, 1879. 5

J. H. SIARs, Ensign U. S. Navy, U. S.S. AEarsarge.

Charles Dagle, captain of the schooner "Joseph Story," being duly sworn,
4 oth depose and say, that ho was at Aspy Bay, Cape Breton, in the latter part of
Julne, 1879, for the purpose of pnrchasing squid to carry to St. Pierre for bait for the
1fl'ench bankers; that while ho was there Captain Anderson, of the schooner
'Cadet," of Gloucester, Massachusetts, who came for the purpose of catching squid
4t that place, and squid not being obtained in sufficient numbers by jigging, attempted

use a s quid seine for the purpose of catching the squid, which schooled in great
th abers, but would not bite at the jig. The inhabitants of Aspy Bay threatened
hat if ho set his seine they would eut it and there would be trouble, as selling squid

'9a their only way of making money during the summer season, and If a seine was
s'5ed in the cove all the squid would be taken or driven away, and they would lose all

.heir summer's employment, as sq uid was the only bait they could obtain for catch-
"g cod. They were willing that Captain Anderson should jig his squid or purchase0fthem. Captain Anderson left the bay without a trip of squid, while if ho had used

a seine ho would probably have filled his vessel.
That I have just come back from Torbay. Nfld, near St. John's, with ninety-four

tousand squid, which were all purchased of the inhabitants there; that there is a
w in force in Newfoundland against seining squid which forces us to purchase of

t'e natives, as we have no time to take them by the slow process of jigging.

5WOrn to before me at St. Pierre, Miquelon, CHAS. DAGLE.

this 19th August, 1879. 1

W.9.F. McLAUGHLIN, Vice Commissioner, Agent U.S.A.

FTIPIXD Copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved
by Bis Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 1st March, 1882.

The Committee of the Council have had under consideration the despateh, No.
dated 30th June, 1881, from Uer Majesty's Secrotary of State for the Colonies,

0
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on which it is represented that in an agreement made between the British and
American Government to settle certain elaims made against Great Britain for inter-
ference by the inhabitants of Newfoundland with United States fishermen at Fortune
Bay, it was considered advisable to include, amongst the definite claims, losses alleged
to have been sustained by American fishing vessels at Aspy Bay, N.S., and that part
of the compensation, amounting to the sum of £150, was applied te that purpose,
which amount the Canadian Government is requested to refund.

The acting Minister of Marine and Fisheries, to whom the despatch has been
referred, states that he is of opinion, considering all the circumstances described in
his report dated 28th February, 1882, hereto annexed, Parliament cannot properlY
be asked to vote any sum of money for the purpose specified in Lord Kimberly's
despatch.

The Committee concur in the report of the acting Minister of Marine and
Fisheries and submit the same for Your Excellency's approval, and they recommend
that a copy of this minute. when approved, and of the report hereto annexed, be for-
warded to ler Majesty's Secretary of State for the Colonies.

JOHN J. MoGEE, Clerk Privy Council.

MARINE AND FIsHERIEs, CANADA, OTTAWA, 28th February, 1882.
Referring te a despateh of the Earl of Kimberly, dated 30th June, 1881, rep•

resenting that in an agreement made between the British and American Govern-
ments te settle certain claims made against Great Britain for interference by the in-
habitants of Newfoundland with United States fishermen at Fortune Bay, it Ws
considered advisable to include (amongst the definite claims) losses alleged te have
been sustained by American fishing vessels at Aspy Bay, Nova Scotia, and that part
of the compensation amounting te the sum of £150, was applied te that purpse,
which amount the Canadian Government is'requested te refund; the undersigned has
the honor to report as follows:-

1. The Govern ment of Canada having been invited te assist in negotiating the
fishery articles of the Treaty of Washington, which were afterwards ratifled by the
Dominion Parliament and the Provincial Legislature of Prince EdwardIsland, sinc
inpluded in the Dominion, it is presumable that in carrying out these articles al
differences affecting matters of detail would necessorily be referred, before settlement,
to the Canadian authorities who are sincerely desirous te maintain their reciprocal
obligations, and te protect, if necessary, United States citizons in the full enjoyment
of the rights and privileges accorded to them by that treaty. They would be als0

ready and willing to make just compensation for any injury or loss te American fish-
ermen, which, upon enquiry, they should be found te have sustained through inter'
ference with their legitimate fishing operations by inhabitants of Canada. It
is, however, considered essential that any such instances where claims te indemni tf
arise, should be carefully investigated, as otherwise precedents might occur which
would involve the Government, sooner or later, in frequent disputes of a trivial
character.

2. The present correspondence between the British and American Government$,
and the accompanying documents, show that complaints were made by the AmericO
Government of interference with American fishermen when exercising, or about to
exercise, the rights claimed to them by the treaty.

These complaints are of two classes -
(a ) Whore it is alleged in the complaint that violence was used, and the neOt

and seines of the American fishermen were destroyed, and they themselves drivO"
from the fishing grounds, viz., at Fortune Bay and Job's Cove, in Newfoundland, ald
damag2oa were alleged te the amount of $105,000.

(b.) Where the complaint did not charge violence, but simply that resident
fishermen (baving no legal or judicial authority) forbid them te fish in certai,"
localities and by certain means, as in the case of the schooner " Mist," Ca talià
OCzzens, intsttr, who complains of threats at Broad Cove, Newfoundland, and claim'
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$800 damages. Also of the schooner "Cadet," James L. Anderson, master, who
rnakes a similar complaint against certain fishermen at Aspy Bay, in Cape Breton,
Within the Dominion of Canada.

In the voluminous correspcndence which passed tetween the British and
.&nerican Governments, and in the action of the United States Bouse of Representa.
tives, the latter class of complaints (which includes the occurrence at Aspy Bay) is
evidently dropped, and forms no part of the grounds upon which a formal cl tim for
dams es exceeding $100,000 is urged.
, nder the date 7th March, 1881, in referring to one of these cases, that of the
'oistt Mr. Evarts specifically states that h I does not entertain the claim, and had
so informed the claimant."

3. The first mention made in the correspondence connected with these negotiations
?f any claim arising ont of alleged interference at Aspy Bty, in Nova Scotia, occurs
'U a reported conversation between Sir Edward Thornton and Mr. Blaine, on the 5th
May, 1881, after the lump sum liid been settled, when Sir Edward Thornton volun-
tarily "concluded that although Aspy Bay was not on the coast of Newfoundland,
these claims were among those for which a demand had been made by Mr. Evarts,
Of the sum of $105,3t5.02."

The Aspy Bay depositions having been made in September, 1879, about a month
after the claims forming the demand for $105,305.02, were made up by Mr. Evarts
aId presented to Mr. Welsh, it seems impossible that any sum could have been
reckoned on account of the occurrence at that place.

The original claims for the Fortune Bay affair (class a) in 1878, amounted to
,103,162.73. There were twenty-two specific claims, ranging from 82,496.09 to

#8,506.05 each, the total of which amounted to that sum of 8103,762.73. Other two
claims for cases at Job's Cove, in 1879, were afterwards admitted without specifying
their amount, but the ultimate demand on the British Government was for 8120,000,
being the original demand, with interest, and theqe two special claims added.

The telogram of Mr. Evarts to Mr. Lowell, dated 3rd March, 1881, makes this
Oteilusive, as follows:-

* * *I "All the previous communications either way related to Fortune Bay
laimrs. Claims of number hundred nine (Job's Cove claims) were introduced

sPeoifically by secretary as additional to Fortune Bay, and I accepted the sum
offered for both, I cannot consent to any modification of the completed settlemont
ofspecific claims. I have at no time treated except of definite pecuniary interests
Of claimants in my charge. The agreed sum measured these claims and goes to
hose claimants. .I have been willing to give every assurance to cover all claimstrought to the knowledge of either Government, and authorizo you to inform secre-tary that as a matter of fact no others were entertained by this Government." * *

4. On the 27th October, 1880, long after the occurrence at Aspy Bay, BarlGranville in a despatch to Mr. Lowell says:-
"UHer Majesty's Government have no hesitation in admitting that the conduct01 the Newtoundland fishermen in violently interfering with United States fishermen

aild destroying or damaging some of their nets, is indefensible and much to be
"(gretted, and further informs him that "I Her Majesty's Government " are quite
Wding that they (the American fishermen) should be indemnified for any injuries
ud losses which, upon a joint enquiry, may be found to be sustained by them, and
a respect of which they are reasonably entitled to be compensated."

For the purpose of a full enquiry it .is presumed that the Newfoundland
.overnment was duly notified of the claims preferred, and assurances were

given by Her Majesty's Government that every opportunity would bu afforded for a
46fence, particularly in view of the probable necessity of requiring tho Colonial

yernment to refund whatever damvges might be awarded.
The undersigned cannot suppose that fier Majesty's Government would have

1 les considerate to the Dominion of Canada had the Aspy Bay occurrences been
a0tertained or oonsiderod by either of the negotiating parties a4 forming a portion

A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 15.)

5..It is shown by the correspondence that an offer of a lump sum of £15,000 or
$15,000 was made by the British Government as a settlement in full. Exception was
taken by the United States Government to the words " in full," because of the possi'
bility, as remarked by Mr. Evarts to Sir Edward Thornton, on the 28th February,
1880, that "soinething might be occurring on the coasts of Newfoundland of which
we must necessarily be ignorant."

The proposition wae then mado to refer the claims to Sir Edward Thornton and
Mr. Blaine for assessment of damages, and on the 2nd April, 1881, Earl Granville, in
his despatch to Sir Edward Thornton, informs him that the colonial authorities prefer
this mode of settlement to the payment of a lump sum " in view of the desirabilitg
of obtaining the co-operation and concurrence of the Government of Newfoundland,
and authorizes him to settle either by a lump sum or by assessment of individual
claims, and adds " under present circumstances they would prefer an arrangement
by assessment."

The original mode of settlement preferred by Her Majesty's Government being
by a lump sum, it is presumable that this change was made at the instance of the
Governmont of Newtoundland.

On the 3rd May, 1881, concurrent instructions were given by the Earl of Kin-
berly to communicate with the Government of Newfoundland to send a competent
person to assist Sir Edward Thornton in the settlement, and by Lord Granville to
Sir Edward Thornton to arrange that time be afforded to Ier Majesty's Government
to communicate with the authorities of Newfoundland.

Her Majesty's Government having more than two months previously, on the
24th February, 1881, offered £ 15,000 in settlement of the American fishery clain,
which sum was eventually accepted, it would, after the careful consideration sho«D
towards the Newfoundland authorities, be unjust to Ier Majesty's Government to
suppose that they held or admitted that the Dominion of Canada had any pecuniarf
interest in the settlement either by lump sum or assessment.

6. On the 4th of April, 1881, Mr. Blaine offers to accept £16,000 and give a
reccipt in full. On the 25th he offers to take £15,500, as lie is convinced there ar
no other claims than those presented. On the 27th Her Majesty's Governmeilt
refused to exceed £15,000, the original offer of February, 1881. On the 5th of Ma'?
Mr. Blaine informed Sir Edward Thornton that he had caused searching enquirieB
to be made as to whether there existed any other claims besides those which had
been already brought before the two Governments, and that lie had %tisfied himself
" that there were none," and " as his Government therefore did not wish to place
any obstacles in the way of the settlement of the claims in question, it would be pre-
pared to accept the sum of £15,000 originally offered by Her Majesty's Govern ment
in full of the Fortune Bay claims and of all claims arising out of wrongs do ne to
United States fishermen on the coasts of Newfoundland and its dependencies up to
the 4th of March last."

Tbis closes the negotiations, and the final settlement is effected.
7. The earliest intimation of the existence of a claim of this nature made to the

Dominion Government was by the despatch of the Earl of Kimberly to His Excel'
lency the Governor General on the 2nd June, 1881, stating that it had been settled
in conjunction with the Fortune Bay claims. A later despatch of the 30th of the
same month refers to the case as of a comparatively unimportant character, whiob
was settled without consulting the Government of Canada, because such a referedOe
would have delayed the general settlement agreed upon. If, however, the matter
had been considered in the nature of a serions claim when referred to in Sir Edward
Thornton's despatch to Earl Granville, dated 7th June, 1880, there was ample tirne to
communicate the fact to Canada; also between the date 5th May, 1881, when Sil'
Edward Thornton voluntarily suggested to Mr. Blaine the inclusion of such a cla,1
in the pending settlement, there was sufficient time for the Government of Canada to
be consulted. It was two days later that the Newfoundland Government was n
to send a reprmeetative to Washington, The whQol mattr wu olo.e$d CM the?
WX&V.'

A. 1880



Iad the Canadian Government at any time since the occurrence been informed
of this complaint, the particulars would have been investigated, and if the complaint
was well founded, prompt reparation would have been offered.

8. Apart from these substantial reasons, there is another serions objection to the
recognition of this payment as a claim against the Dominion Government, to
which it is desirable in this connection to advert. The documents referred to this
Department with the despatch of the Barl of Kimberly, embrace copieà of reports 'by
the Committee on Foreign Affairs of the House of Representatives, on which the
proposed Bill, of 1880, to re-impose Customs duties on fish imported into the United
States from Newfoundland and Canada was based.

These reports and the preamble to the Bill set forth:-
" Whereas, the fishermen of the Jnited States have been driven by violence froni

the fishing grounds in which such freedom of fishing has been granted by said treaty,
.and laws in limitation of their rights have been passed by the Lcal Lagislatures of
said Dominion, and iler Britannic Majesty's Government have refused all redress
therefore, and have supported the claim of the said Dominion to enforce said legia,
lation," &c., &c.

The Committee on Foreign Affairs also reported a joint resolution in terms fol-
lowing: " Whereas, American fishermen are deprived of the privileges of fishing
conceded to the United States by the treaty with Great Britain, dated the 8th May,
1871, by hostile legislation, and the unlawfal violence of the inhabitants of the
British Provinces; and, whereas, said hostile legislation is sustained and said unlaw-
ful violence is 4ot rebuked or restrained by the Government of Great Britain,"&o., &c.

The state of affairs to which these documents relate existed solely in Newfound-
land, and although it was proposed by the Bill to collect duties also ou fish imported
from Canada to form a fand for the satisfaction of claims against that colony, no such
interferences and no such legislation had taken place in the Dominion of Canada.

In 1879, agents were commissioned by the Amerioan Government to enquire
into " the conduct of the inshore fisheries by American fishermen, and the treat-
ment which they had received at the hands of the local authorities and population."

These commissioners are reported, in the despatch of Sir Elward Tbiornton to
Barl Granville, dated 7th June, 1880, to have found but this single occurrence at Aspy
Bay of which to complain. The acceptance of any responsibility whatever for the
dissatisfaction thus forcibly expressed, coupled as it is with phrases and proposals
affecting Canada which the adoption of this payment, however small the sum, might
seem to admitiought therefore to be carefully avoided.

The present opportunity should also be taken to disclaim the unfriendly acts and
illiberal spirit imputed to Canada by these unqualifled statements. - It is sufficient
corroboration of this disclaimer to observe that while the only appreciable interrup-
tions of the spursuits of American fishermen were confined to " the waters of
Newfoundlanûd and its dependencies " on the occasions described in these negotiations
United States citizens have, with this single exception at Aspy Bay, which b>th Kr.
Evarts and Mr. B!aine appear to have treated as an incident of no practical moment
during nearly ton years past, exercised their treaty rights in the inshores of Canada
without any restriction and free from molestation.

9. The undersigned is of opinion that, considering ail of the circumstances above
described, Parliament cannot properly be asked to vote any sum of money for the
purpose specified in Lord Kimberly's despatch.

The whole respectfully submitted.
A. W. McLELAN, Acting Minister of Marine and Fisheries.

(Earl Iimberly to the Marquis of Lorne.)

DoWNING STREET, 30th June, 1881.
My LORD, ~In my despatch, No. 156, of the 2nd instant, I explained to you that

the agreement with the United States Government, under which* the Fortune Bay
claims and all other claims preferred up to the 4th of March laàt have been settled.
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by the payment of a sum of £15,000, included the settlement of the Aspy BaY
claims.

2. The occurr ence at Aspy Bay, Cape Breton, in June, 1879, where JameO
Ander son, of the schooner "lCadet," of Gloucester, Mass., alloged that he was pre-
vented by the inhabitants from taking squid with his seine and thereby suffered 100
and certain other masters of American schooners alleged that in consequene of thig
prohibition they suffered similar loss, was of a comparatively unimportant character,
and did not in fact present itself for consideration until a late stage of the negot*
tions, when, in coming to an agreement that the fixed sum to be paid should cover ll
outstanding claims, it was observed that there was this claim against the Dominioa
Government in addition to the claims against the Government of Newfoundland.

3. ler Majesty's Government felt it their duty, having an opportunity Of
settling this matter, of which advantage could rot have been taken if the decisiol'
Lad been delayed in order to give time for consultation with the Dominion Goverw
ment, to act at once in the interests of your Government in the manner which they
could not doubt that your Ministers would approve, more especially as it was clear
that this course would commit Canada to the payment of a very inconsiderable suin,
far less than the cost of an enquiry would have been if the affairs had not been
aummarily disposed of.

4. I have requested the Secretary of State for Foreign Affairs to ascertain frolo
Sir E. Thornton what proportion of the sum of £15,000 represents the amount O
the claims in respect of the Aspy Bay transaction, and Sir E. Thornton has repli'
that £150 should be amply sufficient to cover it.

5. I trust that your advisers will be of opinion that, in this matter, Her Majesty
Government have acted for the best in the interest of the Dominion, and I shal be
obliged by your requesting them to make the necessary provision for the repaymeI
to, Her Majesty's exchequer of the amount thus paid on account of Canada.

I have, &c.,
KIMBERLY.

Governor General the Right Honorable the Marquis of Lorne, K.T., G.C.M.G.

(Earl Kimberly to the Governor General.)

DoWNING STREET, 18th July, 1881.
My LoR,-With reference to my despatch, No. 187, of the 30th of June, I haie

the honor to transmit to you for your information and for that of your Government,
a copy of a despatch received through the Foreign Office from Sir E. Thornton r0o*
pecting the amount which will probably be awarded on account of the Aspy Bay
claim out of the sum paid to the United States Government in consideration of the
occurrences at Fortune Bay and elsewhere.

I have, &c.,
KIMBERLY.

Governor General the Right Hon. the Marquis of Lorne, K.T., G.C.M.G.

(Sir E. Thornton to Earl Granville.)

WAsHINGToN, 22nd June, 1881.
MY LOB,-With reference to your Lordship's telegram, No. 32, of the 20th i i3t

I have the horor to state that the claim made by certain United States fishermen
baving been prevcnted from fishing for bait in Aspy Bay has always appeared to
a very small affair, and has, 1 know, been so considered by both Mr. Evars and
Blaine. But sa(h little claims, if neglected, are apt to ho magnified in course
time, and as it could not be considered as one having arisen in a dependency of N0 Ç'
foundland I thought it would be desirable to mention it separately.
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I am, however, of opinion that £150 would fully satisfy the Aspy Bay claims
ontioned above, and I am convinced that the United States Government will not

a88ign more than that sum to thoir satisfaction.
I have, &c.,

The Earl Granville, K.G., &c., &c., &c. E. THORNTON.

aErTIFIED Copy of a Report of a Committee of the -Honorable the Privy Council approved
by Ris Excelency the Governor General in Council on the 22nd July, 1882.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had under consideration a despatch
dated 30th June, 1881, setting forth a claim on the Dominion Government for pay-
7'Xent of £150 sterling, as a part of the sum paid by the Imperial Government to the
.overnment of the United States in settlement of certain claims for alleged interrup-

tions of their fishing rights under the Washington Treaty by inhabitants of Newfound-
1anid, including the affair at Aspy Bay.

The Minister of Marine and Fisheries to whom the said despatch was referred,
reported under date 28th February, 1882, that he saw no sufficient reason why such
PaYnment should be made, but since that time there has been placed hefore him com-
"n'Qications of a confidential nature which lead him (notwithstanding the circum.
stances set forth and the reasons given in his report of the 28th February last) to
advise the payment, and he the Minister, therefore, recommends that a payment of
4150 sterling be made to Sir John Rose, Bart., G.C.M.G., to settle the Aspy Bay
claim with the Imperial Government.

The Committee concur in the foregoing recommendation of the Minister of
karine and Fisheries, and submit the same for Your Excellency's approval,
at the same time the Committee must repeat their regret that this claim
Was entertained without the knowledge or consent of the Canadian Government, and
they desire that it should not be understood that they admit the justice of the claim.
They also advise that this minute be communicated to ler Majesty's Principal Sec-
retary of State for the Colonies.

JO IEN J. McGEE, Clerk Privy Council.

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE AND FIsHEItus, OTTAWA, 20th July, 1882.
The undersigned has the honor to report to Council, that on a despatch from
arimberly to Lord Lorne, of date 30th June, 1881, a claim was made upon the

Oraintjion Government, for paymont of £150 sterling, as a part of the sum paid by
the Imperial Government to the Government of the United States, in settlement of
etain claims made by fishermen of the latter nation, for alleged interruptions of

teir fishery riglits under the Washington treaty, by inhabitants of Newfoundland, in-
'hding the affair at Aspy Bay. That on the 28th February last he had the honor to
leport to the Council that he saw no sufficient reasons why such payment should be
.ade, but since that time he has had submitted to him communications of a confiden-

tal nture, which leads him (nothwithstanding the circumstances set forth and the
easns given in his former report) to advise the payment and he therefore recom-
ends that a payment of £150 sterling, be made to Sir John Rose, Bart., G.C.M.G., to

ettle the claim made by the Imperial Government.
The whole respectfully submitted.

A. W. McLELAN, Minister of Marine and Psheries.

(Earl of Kimberly to the Marquis of Lorne.)

DoWNING STREET, ilth April, 1882.
MY Lonn,-I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your Lordship's

espatch, No. 52, of the 11th ultimo, enclosing a copy of a report of a Committee of
our Privy Council, with a memorandum by the acting Minister of Marine and

il

E Victoria.
A. 1886



Sessional Papers (No, 75.)

Fisheries, stating that in his opinion that Parliament cannot properly be asked to
vote a sum of money in repayment of the amount of £150 advanced by the Imperial
Government in settlement of what are known as the Aspy Bay claims.

2. Her Majesty's Government have received with regret this expression of
opinion on the part of the Government of Canada.

The repayment of the amount at which the Aspy Bay claims were assessed by
Her Majesty's Minister at Washington was requested in my despatoh of the 30th of
June last, not on the ground that the responsibility of Canada for the alleged
occurrences at Aspy Bay had been established or admitted by HIer Majesty's
Goverument, but on the ground that an enquiry could not be refused if pressed for,
and that it did not appear worth while when the opportunity presented itself of
settling these claims at once for a trifling sum in connection with the settlement of
the Fortune Bay claims, to incur the cost and trouble of a formal investigation.

There can be no diificulty in placing on record that in reimbursing Her Majesty's
Government the sum in question, Canada in no way admits the validity of these
claims or its respousibility for the transaction, and Her Majesty's Government will
be much disappointed if their action in this matter is now repudiated by the Domin-
ion Government.

3. With regard to the contention in Mr. McLelan's memorandum that Canada
should have been consulted before any decision was arrived at, you will assure your
Ministers that the action of Hier Majesty's Government did not proceed from the
alightest desire to pass them over. They fully recognized that it would, on every
ground, have been proper and desirable to obtain the previous concurrence of the Do-
minion Government, had the circumstances permitted. But it was felt that such
consultation would involve considerable delay and correspondence which might have
prejudiced the whole negotiation, and in so very small a matter as the Aspy Bay
claims, Hier Majesty's Government had confidence that the Government of the
Dominion would not decline to acquiesce in a settlement made in their interest by
the diplomatie representative of Her Majesty, acting as he believed for the best at
the moment.

I have, &o.,
KIMBEIRLY,

Governor General, the Right Hon. the Marquis of Lorne, K.T., G.C.M.G.

(The Barl of Kimberly to the Marquis of Lorne.)

DowNING STREET, 22nd August, 1882.
Mr LoRD,-I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch, No.

214, of the 29th July, enclosing an approved report of a Committee of the Privy
Council of Canada, relating to the payment of the sum of £150 to Her Majesty'a
Government, on account of the Aspy Bay affair.

I have, &o.,
KIMBERLEY.

Governor General, the Rt. Hon. the Marquis of Lorne, K.T., G.C.M.G.

CERTIFIED CoPY of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved
by Ris Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 28th October, 188Z.
On a memorandum, dated 26th October, 1882, from the Minister of Marine and

Fisheries, recommending the payment of a sum of £150 sterling, in connection with
the claim made upon the Imperial Government in the Aspy Bay affair, and that the
a.mount be charged against the appropriation for " Unforeseen Expenses, 1881-82 ;"

The Committee submit the above recommendation for Your Excellency's
approval.

JOHN J. McGEE, Clerk Privy Council.
12
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DEPARTMENT OF MIARINE AND FIsHERIEs, Ottawa, 29th July, 1882.
The undersiLned has the honor to report to Council that, on a despatch from

larl Kimborly to Lord Lorne. of date June, 1881, a claim was malo upon the
tIomiinion Government for payment of £15i sterling, as a part of the sum paid by
the Imperial Government to the Government of the United States, in settlement of
certain claims made by fishermen of the latter nation for alleged interruptions of
their fishery rights, under the Washington Treaty, by inhabitants of Newfoundland,
inlcluding " the affair at Aspy Bay." That on the 28th of February, ho bad the
honor to report to council that he saw no sufficient reasons why such payment should
be made; but, since that time, ho bas had submitted to him communications of a
confidential nature, which lead him (notwithstanding the circumstances set forth
¾fld the roasons given in his former report) to advise the payment-and he there.
fore recommends that a payment of £150 sterling be made to Sir John Rose, Bart.,G.C.M.G., to settle the claim made by the Imperial Governmont.

The whole respectfully submitted.
A. W. McLELAN, Minister of Marine and Fisheries.
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RETURN
('76)

O an ADDRESS of the HOUSE OF COMMONs, dated 19th April, 1886;-For

copies of all despatches from or correspondence with the Imperial

Government, respecting the complaint of the Legislature or Govern-
ment of Prince Edward Island, that the Terms of Union between that
Island and the Dominion have not been carried out, or with respect to
the mission of Delegates to the Imperial Government from Prince

Edward Island on the subject of such complaint.

By Command.
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

bepartment of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.

Ottawa, 16th April, 1886.

Barl Granvile to the Marquis of Lansdowne.

DoWNING STREET, 30th March, 1886.

My LORD,- I duly received your Lordship's despatch of the 19th November
14t, enclosing an approved report of a Committee of the Privy Council for Canada,

f0rarding, with other papers, a joint address to the Queen froi the Legislative
0OI1acil and House of Assembly of Prince Edward Island. This address prays that
]ter Majesty wilI require that justice be done by the Government of Canada to Her

ajesty's loyal subjects of that province by the immediate " establishment and
'aiDtenance of efficient steam service for the conveyance of mails and pa1sengers
etWeen this island and the mainland of the Dominion, both winter rid summer, 80

4s to place the island in continuous communication with the lntoreolonal Railway
ad the railway system of the Dominion; " and further, that 11er Majesty would be

Pleased to require that the Government of Canada should compensate the island for
O loss which it is alleged has retsulted to its inhabitants by reason of the non-

flIfiliment of the terme of Confederation in the particulars comrplained of in the
4dress.

I also received your despatch of 30th January, with a further report of a Com-
'littee of the Privy Council on the subject of the delegation appointedi to support the
praYer of the address.

Since the receipt of these papers I have had the pleasýure of receiving Mr.
8nllivan, the Premier and Attorney-General, and Mr. Fergusor, the Provincial Secre-

7 of Prince Edward Island, who had been appointed as delegte.Ls to Uer Majesty's
vernment, and on the 24th of lsst month they attended hero by appointment and
ored me with a gencral statement of the circumstances under which the Legisla-
e Of Prince Edward Island had addressed the Queen. I explained to them that
e Queen had no power, either by statute or otherwise under the constitution of

andaeto give any direction in this matter, and that therefbre I should not be able

to advise Her Majesty (who had been pleased to receive the address very graciously)
u take any action upon it, but that it would give me much satisfaction if, by the
eercis6 of any friendly offices which I could tender, I should be able to contribute

' the settlement of a question in which the Provincial Government were so much
76-1
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interested. I added that I had confidence in the kindly spirit in which the matter at
issue would be dealt with on both sides, and this led me to hope that some acceptable
arrangement might be corne to.

I then gave the delegates a copy of the report of the Privy Council of Canada
dated the 7th of November last, which they had not previously received, and I
informed them that after receiving and considering the observations which they
might desire to make upon that report, I should be happy to see them again, and, if
it should te izca'btle to both parties, to invite Sir Charles Tupper to be present, OU
behalf of the )ominion Government, at the interview.

On the 4th instant I received from the delegates the statement, of which a copy
is enclosed, and I communicated a copy of it to Sir C. Tupper, wbo favored me with
his commenis thereon in a memorandum, of which a copy is also encloed. After
perusing these papers I invited the delegates and Sir Charles Tupper to meet me
t this office on the 12th inst. The delegates urged at length the claims and con-

tentions of the province, and laid before me the plans of a submarine line of cornu-
nication which they understood to be feasible. Sir Charles Tupper then justified
and explained the action of the Dominion Government, adding personally, and not
speaking under instructions, that if it could be shown that the scheme of a "metallic
subway " is really feasible at a moderate cost, the Dominion Governmont would, nO
doubt, be ready to give their serions consideration to such a schome.

As I stated in the earlier part of this despatch, although Her Majesty's Goveri-
ment is urable to take the question out of the hands of the Dominion Government,
and although I havxie not seen more than a primâ facie opinion as to feasibi!ity at a
moderato cost of the proposal for its solution, I hope that it will be found to admit
of a satisfactory set lement. On the one hand, the expectations cf the Province in
regard to the est,.blishment of a constant and cficient communication with the maiO
land have not been fulfiled, but, on the other hand, the Dominion Governmont has
shown that it has made considerable efforts to improve the communication in the
face of serious physical difficulties, especially during the winter season. There seems
to be reason for doubting whether any really satisfactory communication by stoam-
ship can be regularly maintained all the year round, which makes it all the more
important that the proposed " metallic subm ay " should receive a full ard, if feasible,
favorable conlide raon on the part of the Government of the Dominion.

The establishment of constant and speedy communication by rail would be a
great advantoge both to the province and to the Dominion; and I should suppOs0

that the developrnerit of the traffic on the island railroads, and of the capabilities Of
the province genorally, would produoe a large direct and indirect return on the
expenditure.

It would reflect great credit on the Dominion Government if, after connecting
British Columbia, with the Eastern Provinces by the Canadian Pacific Railway, ie
should now be able to complete its system of railway communication by an extensio5

to Prince Edward Ilaod.
I have, &c.,

GRANVILLE.

LONDON, ist March, 1886.
My LoRD,-The undersigned having, at the interview with which your LordshiP

honored thom on Wednesday last, been favored by your Lordship with a copy of *
report of a Comm ittee of the Honorable the Privy Council of Canada upon the j3Int
.address of the Legislative Council and Hlouse of Assembly of Prince Edward Istand
to Her Majesty the Quen on the subject of the non-fulfilment by the Dominion GOl'
ernment of the terni, of union with respect to communication between the island and
the mainland of Canada, desiro to offer the following commente thereon :-

Your Lordshi p, whose successful administration of colonial affairs is well remfeni'
bered in the Dominion in a despatch to Sir John Young, Governor qeneral Of
Canada, dated 4th September, 1869, when commending the action of the Domiuio

2
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Goverument in re-opening negotiations with the island with a viow to its admission
into the Confederation, used the following words :-

"I trust that in settling the terms proposed as the basis of this arrangement, the
Government will deal liberally as well as justly with the island."

The undersigned deeply regret that it has been found necessary to appeal to Her
Majesty to obtain that justice in the carrying out of the terms agrod upon, which
has hitherto been denied the island.

The Committee of the Privy Council of Canada give it as their opinion " that it
iS altogether improbable that any man who had seen the Straits of Northumberland
or had any knowledge of the ice obstruction in mid-winter, coul: htve supposed it
Possible to construct a steamer capable of crossing when the ice is at its heaviest in
that season."

The undersigned submit that the offer of continuous steam commanication sum-
mer and winter was an entirely voluntary act on the part of the Dominion, made in
1869, when Canada endeavored, at the instance of the Imperial Governmaent, to induce
Prince Edward Island to enter the Confederation, to which the inhabitants of the
island had previously been trongly opposed. The terms of union then proposed
Were rejected by the island, but upon a more favorable basis; in other respects the
Union was affectel on 1st July, 1873, the condition containing the same stipulation
for continuons communication as were offered in 1869. The undersigned have every
reason to.believe that the terms were concluded in good faith, and they submit that
Such terms should be carried ont. Ample time has been fforded ie the consum-
14ation of the union to effect this communication, yet the under2 igndo must repeat
the language of the memorial to Her Majesty, that "no suffiltirl disporition has
been shown by the Dominion Government to fulfil thoir ob1igttions towards the
Island in this matter."

The first steamer which was engaged to attempt the croFsng between George-
tOwn and Pictou was notoriously unfit, as the Committee of C ,untcil acknowledge.
She possessed no qualifications for the service, having been originally enployed as a
Wood b'at, and not having been constructed to receive steaa nachinery. After
remaining on the route for two seasons, the Government was oblig3d to cancel the
contract with her owner. The "Northern Light," whieh was iot designed for the
Service, was purchased by the Government in 1876 and placed upon the route. Her
incapacity for the work was early made manifest, and has bcen patent to the Govern-
ment for many years, yet no stops have been taken to -b1titu a more efficient
'Vessel, or to supplement her with another steamer. Here the utidorsigned would
call attention to a speech in the Senate, in 1884, wherein Sir Alexander Campbell,
onle of the sub-committee, whose names are signed to the report now under review,

romised that a second steamer would be placed on the route to assist the "Northern
J-ight." Sir Alexander made use of the following language :-

"The notice that the hon. gentleman f orm Charlottetown has given, is that ho
Will call the attention of the Government to the expediency of making timely prepara-
tion for replacing the steamship ' Northern Light' by a nuw vessel combining such
,lanprovements in design and construction as modern experienc dictates. In reply to
the eiquiry I may say that the Marine Department lias entered into a coatract far the
building ot a wooden screw steamer for lighthouse service in the Maritime Provinces,
and it is intended to build this vessel with extra strong timbors, sheath her with
green-heart, and plate her bows with steel or iron, so as to fit her for iuc navigation
4nd to assist the ' Northern Light' when necessary. She will bc ready for service
in October next. It is also intended to repair the ' Northern Light' thoroughly
next season, replacing all defective timbers and planks, and other wise strengthening
the vesseland fittiug her thoroughly for winter navigatton. Tnere wculd then b3,
therefore, for the service of the Goverament in or near these straits, the ' Northern
Light' thoroughly restored and strengthened, and this now vossel which is now
being constructed, and which is to be finished in October, so thar, the valuable sug-
gestions of my hon. triend would be acted upon, and there would be another vessd
here in the event of an accident happening to one of thom."

3
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Strange as it may seem, the new vessel bas never been employed to assist the
"Northern Light," although the latter was unavailaule for service last winter from
the 2!th Jaîriy till the 28th April, aperiod of ninety-one days.

It is truc that a branch railway has been built to Cape Traverse, but it was not
comploted until January, 1885, nearly three years after the appropriation for its
construction and nearly twelve years after the island entered the union. A pier bas
also been constructed at thut point, but until some natural obstructions are removed,
it is available only for vessels of light draught, and a steamer cannot lie ut it. A
branch railroad is also in course of construction to Cape Tormentine, in New Bruns-
wick, but it is even at tbis date, only about one-half finishod, and being in the hands of
a private company there is no certainty when it will be completed, notwithstanding
that the Dominion Government have voted a subsidy to the undertaking. An ap-
propriation was also made some years ago, for the construction of a pier at Cape Tor-
mentine, but up to the present time so far as is known to the undersigned, the site
even has not been finally determined, and no attempt bas ever been made to run a
steamer, at any season, between Capes Traverse and Tormentine.

The Committee of Council assume that the Island Government were fully con-
versant with the whole action and plans of the Dominion Government towards
improving the winter communication, yet the underigned have reason to believe that
the Dominion Government themselves were not fully advised of *hat was being done
in the matter. Although a Committee of Parliament in 1883, recommonded the
erection of boathouses at both capes, for the accommodation of the mon engaged in
the service, and for the shelter of the boats, they were not finished until the winter
of this year. Sir Alexander Campbell, speaking in the Senate in 1884, said -

"1 am surprised to heur from my hon. iriend opposite that the boathouses have
not been built. I called the attention of the Minister of Marine (Mr. McLeian) to the
matter last session, and ho told me that the boathouses would be provided. I shall
again call his attention to that question, and to the various suggestions that have
been made."

Again, in the Parliamentary Session of 1885, Sir Alexander Campbell, speaking
on the samo subject, said:-

" My hon. friend from Prince Edward Island, who introduced this subject to the
notice of the louse, has, t think, just ground for coinplaint-ground for complaint,
1 am sorry to think, perhaps against myself, although really, as ho has almot
admitted, I am not responsible for the non execution of the measures which frorn
time to time I have beon authorized by the Governmont to promise in this flouse.
I remember quite distinctly the undertaking which I gave that the boathouses should
be constructed, one on each side of the ferry. I made that promise with the
authority of the then Minister of Marine and Fisheries, and as is my constant prac-
tice, the very day the promise was made I wrote to the Minister of Marine and
Fisheries that, pursuant to what ho had told me I uade the promise, and that I
hoped ho would keep it in mind. I afterwards called attention to it, and there were
reasons which weie more or less sound-I can hardly say sound-which made the
delay more or less excusable. It was thought for a tirme that the orders had been
given, and that the buathouses were in coursò of construction."

The Dominion Government have totally neglected ever since Çonfederation to
make any provision whatever for the tran-port of passengers, when compelled to
resort to the capes' route. While the contract with the ice couriers stipulated for
the carriage of nails, no arrangements were made for passenges, who were forced to
effect the croising Ds best they could, although the terms of union require liko
provision to be made for passengers as for mails. The undersigned would remark,
that the benefits conferred by the branch railway to Cape Traverse are very question-
able, when it is understood that after landing passengers at that point the Govern-
ment made no arrangements for carrying them across the stiaits.

Nearly thirteen years have elapsed since the island became a member of the
Confederation, and all that bas been accomplished in the fulfilment of the guarantee
to provide continuous communication bas been the purchase for the Georgetown-
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Picton route of a steamer, which, during the last five years, has been laid up an
average, of seventy days each winter, and the completion on the capes' route of a
branch railroad, twelve miles in length, only a small part of the distance intervening
between the island railway and the Intercolonial Railway. Even the promises made
by a Minister of the Crown (Sir Alexander Campbell) have received only tardy fulfil-
Ment, and his assurance that a steamer should be employed to assist the " Northern
Ligbt " bas never been carried out.

Referring to the report of the Committee of Parliament in the Sesion of 1883
to investigate the question of steam communication with the island, the Committee
Of Council say that after long and careful consideration of the subject, and examina-
tion of persons, papers and records, the Parliamentary Committee reported on the
18th April, 1883, in the foBlowing words:-

" It is the unanimous opinion of the members of committee, confirmed by the
testimony of witnesses of large practical experience, that no steambhips can be built
Capable of keeping up continuous communication in mid-winter."

The undersigned have examined the report of the said Parliamentary Committee
and have failed to discover ther in that they come to this conclusion.

The 1sland Legislature, in their memorial to Her Majesty, having instanced the
4 nxiety of the Dominion to fulfil its obligations to British Columbia by the construc-
tion, at an enormous cost, of the Caniidian Pacific Railway, as contrasted with the
Apathy and neglect exhibited in carrying out its pledged faith with Prince Edwaid
lsland in the matter of continuous communication, the Committee of Council pro-
ceeded to institute a com parison between the amounts contributed to the general
revenue by Britah Columbia and Prince Edward Island, stating them at $942,095.10
and $ 193,478.66 respectively.

Before proceeding to remark upon this point, the undersigned desire to submit
that the question of comparative contributions, on cither side, is one altogether apart
from the issue in this case, which is simply one of performing the terms of a most
eOlemn compact.

There is a not unimportant factor, which should enter into a consideration of
the amounts contributed by the two Provinces, to which reference bas been made.
The Halifax Commission, sitting under the provisions of the Treaty of Washington,
aWarded Great Britain the sum of 85,500,000, to be paid by the United States, for the
Privilege of using, for twelve years, the fisheries in waters of Eastern Canada and
'Upon the coast of Newfoundland. This amount was duly paid by the United States
to the lmperial Government, who thereupon handed over to Newfoundland the sum
Of 81,000,000 as the share of that island. Prince Edward Island, like Newfoundland,
ratified the treaty while a separate Province, and did not, at the time of Confedera-
tion, cede to Canada its right to compensation, and as the whole consensus of evidence
before the Commission tended to prove that the fisheries on the coast of Prince
]dward Island were the most valuable of any to which the United States fishermen
were admitted, the island claimed the sum of 81,250,000 as its share urider the award.
This demand, although frequently presented, the Dominion Government hava steadily
ignored and have retained in the Federal Treasury, the amount which the island still
claims as justly its right. The undersigned submit, that in any consideration of the
contribution to tho general revenue, Prince Edward Island bas a right to receive
ceodit for the interest at four per cent. upon the sum claimEd, and which would
amount annually to $50,000.

The undersigned cannot refrain from expressing their surprise that the Commit-
tee of Council, aware, as they must have been, of the unequal circumstances of the
two Provinces, should have adopted so unfair a comparison as that they propose now
to revier, and which is based upon partial and misleading returns. The position of
the tw7 rovinces present no points of similarity. The figures quoted are for the
Year ended 30th June, 1884. At that time British Columbia possessed no direct
1feans of communication with the settled portions of the Dominion at any season of
the year, and accordingly was compelled to purchase almost all its supplies directly
tom other countries. These imports all paid duty at the ports of entry in British
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Columbia, and the amounts collected arc crodited to that Province. With Prince
Edward Island, however, the circumstances are vastly different. Owing to the prox-
imity to the older Provinces a very large proportion (at least three-fourths) of the
dutiable goods which its people use is purchased from wholesale houses in Quebec,
Ontario, Nova Scotia and New Brunswick. As will be readily understood, the duties
upon these goods are collected at the ports of entry, and go to swell the apparent
contributions of the other Provinces to the Dominion Exchequer. The Customs
receipts ($171,443.89, quoted by the Committee of Council at $170,863,40) ropresent
only the duties upon the goods which the island imports directly fromn countries out-
side of Canada, so that it is manifestly unfair, under such circumstances, to institute
a comparison between British Columbia and Prince Edward Island. It is much
to be regretted that the Dominion Government should labor under the grave mis-
appreh ension that the Customs duties collected in the ports of a Province can at all
indicate its contributions to the general revenue. By a parity of reasoning the metro-
politan county of Middlesex, in Great Britain, might claim that it contributes the
greaier proportion of the Customs revenues of the United Kingdom, while outlying
or inland agricultural counties, such as Suffolk or Bucks, might be held as neot yield-
ing adequately to the Imperial Exchequer.

The difficulty of arriving at an absolutely correct calculation of the amount of
dutia ble goods which the people of Prince Edward Island consume cannot fail to be
appreciated, yet the undersigned submit that there are several methods by which it
may fairly be estimated. It must be premised that the people of the island are very
large consumers of dutiable goods for the reason that they being chiefly engaged in
agriculture and fisbing, their manufactures are very small compared with the rest of
Canada, valuing, according to the last census returns, only $31.33 per head to $72.63
per head of the other Provinces.

In proof of the assertion that the people of the island are principally engaged in
agriculture and fishing, the undersigned would again advert to the census rcturns of
1881, which show that (the North-West Territories not being included).

One-half the area of Prince Edward Island is cultivated.
Only one-twenty-fifth of the other Provinces is cultivated.
Prince Edward Island has a population of 51 to the square mile.
The other Provinces only 4.72.
Prince Edward Island owns 55 animals of live stock for every 100 acres of

improved land.
The other Provinces only 38.
In field products Prince Ed ward Island raises to the acre of improved land 108¾

bushels.
The other Provinces only 61½ bushels.
From the fisheries Prince Edward Island produces $17.08 per head value.
The other Provinces $3.55.
The peopie of the island are generally in comfortable circumstances, in proof of

which may be adduced the amount of deposits per head in the savings banks, which
averages $16.59 for the island against $7.66 for the rest of the Dominion.

These figures clearly prove that the people of Prince Edwaîd Island, from the
fact of their not bcing extensive manulacturers, are under the neeessity of usin6
imported goods to a large extent, while the fertility of their soil, the value of their
fisheries and their gencral independence demonstrate their ability to purchase. This
being understood the undersigned submit the following calculations, designed to show
that the imports of dutiable goods into the island are very much larger than sug-
gested by the Committee of Council, and consequently the contributions to the
revenue proportionately greater.

Method 1.

The average revenue of the Dominion from Customs and Excise for the tbree
years ended 30th June, 1884, was $27,603,479. The population of Prince Edwald
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-Island to that of the whole Dominion is in the proportion of 1 to 39-7 Upon this
ratio, the island's share of the Customs and Excise revenue would amount to $695,301.

Method 2.

In 1872, the year before its admission into the
Union, Prince Edward Island imported
directly from countries beyond Canada,
goods valued at.................................$1,372,581

The duty on which amounted to........................ ......... $184,227
And from Canada goods the growth and

manufacture of other countries, valued
approximately at......... 429,354

The duty on which amounted t ..................... 89,168

81,801,935 8273.395

It will surely not be argued that in thirteen years with a largo increaso in popu.-
lation the island's imports from countries outside the Dominion have decreased from
81,801,935 to $822,966, or over 45 per cent., yet this would appear to be the conten-
tion of the Committee of Council.

In 1861, the imports of the island amounted to $1,021,669 ; in 1872, they had
increased to $2,439,064, or at the rate of 138-9 per cent. At the same rate its imports
from countries beyond the Dominion should have ineressed from 81,801,935 in 1872
to 84 304.S24 in 1884, which at the present average tariff (tree and dutiable combined)
of 18-64 per cent., would give a Customs revenue of 8802,419.

Method 3.
It is a well established principle that the imports and exports of a country bear

r reasonable relation to each other. The imports of the island for the ton years pre-
eeding Confederation aggregated in value £3,543,147 sterling, tho exports in the
8fMe period, £2,559.691 sterling, showing that the imports exceeded the exports by
about £100,000 stirling or $500,000 annually The imports of the Dominion for the

seventeen years aggregated in value $1,7J2,9ý5,486; the exports in the same
Ieriod, 81,390,946,803, showing that the imports exceeded the exports by about
!20,000,000 annually, or in the same proportion, according to population, as the
1ports of Prince Edward Island exceed the exports in the yea-.s already quoted.

The exports of the island have steadily increased during the last twenty-five
ýears. In 1861 it exported to all countries goods valued at $793,810, which had
Increased in 1872 to 8 1,497,058, or at the rate of 88¾ per cent.

lu 1872 the island exported to countries beyond the Dominion goods valued ut
4722,333, which had increased in 1884 to $1,310,039, or at the rate of 81- per cent.
.&pply this rate of increase to the island's importa from countries beyoud the

moixiinion in 1872, and we have as a result for 1884, imports valued at $3,267,509,
But the figures, contained in the Dominion Trade and Navigation Returns, do

,ot represent the total exports of the island to countries bByond the Dominion, inas-
ouch as a considerable proportion, being shipped through Nova Scotia and New

'runswick territory, is credited to the exports of those provinces. The annual
Oport of horses from the island to the United States is not less than 1,500, valued
At 8150,000. The Dominion returns for 18b3-84 credit the island with only 256,

lued at 827,486. This is but one instance of many. A considorable part of the
l1rge trade which the island does in eggs with the United States, is credited to New
]Brunswick, while fish and potatoes, which are largely exported to Nowfoundland, St.
1ierre, and the West Indies are much of them credited to Nova Scotia, being shipped
by the way of Halifax. In view of these facts, it would be within tho mark to
%timate, as indeed the Committee of Council ad mit, that the island's foreign export
trade has doubled since 1872. Apply the same rate of increase to its imports frona
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countries beyond the Dominion, as they stood in 1872, and we have as a resuit fot
1884, impot ts valued at $3,603,,71, yielding, under an 18 per ce t. tariff, an annual
revenue of $671,c68.

The exports of Prince Edward Island, since Confederation, have increased in a
much larger ratio than have those of the Dominion, as the following figures Wil
show :-

The total exports of the Dominion for 1871-72 were $82.639,683; for 1883-841
exclusive of the iland, $90,096,437, or an increase of only 91 per cent., as against
100 per cent., by which the iý land's exports have increased in the same time.

To recapitulate the results of the varions methods:
M ethod 1 ............................................................ 8695,301

do 2 ............................................................ 802,4 )
do 3 ........... . .................................. 671,668

Average annual contribution by the island from Cus-
toms and Excise ............................................. 723,1z9

To which add interest on the sum claimed as island's
share of fishery award (less amount expended for
fishing bounties, 68,569) ......... .............. 41,430

$764,559

This sum of $764,559, the undersigned submit, should be accepted as closell
pproximating the annual contributions of Prince Edward Island to the Dominio

Eichequer, and is much more likely to be within than in excess of the amount.
In proof of the assertion that a vast proportion of the dutiàble goods which 1oe

only Prince Edward Island consumes, but Nova Scotia and New Brunswick as well
is imported from wholesale houses principally in the Province of Quebec, the under-
signed present the following table, showing the amount per head apparentif
contributed to the Customs and Excise revenues, in the following Provinces, in 1881
and 1884, respectively:-

1881. 1884.
Quebec ................................................... .29 8 754
Ontario.......................................... 4-78 5-14
New Brunswick......... . ................... 4-84 493
N ova Scotia........ ..................................... 4-00 477
British Columbia...... ................................. 13-09 19-10
Prince Edward Island................................. 2.76 1.7d

It is absurd to suppose that the foregoing figures represent the actual cO'
eumption, per head, of dutiable goods by the people of the various Provinces; rather
do they prove that Quebec is the great importing and distributing Province for the
wholo of Eastern Canada. The extraordinary poicentage for British Columbia iO
due, as the undersigned have already pointed out, to the peculiar circumstances O
that Province in being compelled to import, almost exclusively, from countrieé
beyond the Dominion, as well as to the inflation of trade, consequent upon the
construction of the Canadian Pacifie Railway and other large public works, no les
than twelve millions of dollars having been expended thereon in 1885. Now thant,
the Canadian Pacitic Railway has been completed, it cannot be expected that the
collections in British Columbia will be so large in the future as they have baon io
Sihe past. As bas been the case with Prince Edward Island, so it will be in thlt
Province. While the Canadian Pacifie Railway will pour into British Colnbia
British and Wost Indian goods, Quebec will continue to be the great importing and
distributing Province, and in proportion as the Customs returns of British Columnbitt
decrease, those of Quobec will increase.

The Cornmittee of Cou ncil then proceed to make a comparison as between Britisb
Colunbia, Manitoba, the North-West Territories and the island, their figures being
as follows: -
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Total revenue contributed by British Columbia, Manitoba and the North-West
Territories 8 ,83,698.86, am against Prince Edward Iland, $193,478.66.

The undersigned have only to remark that the same observations which they
ae applied to British Columbia hold good in the case of Manitoba and the North.

West Teiritories. No direct communication existed between these portions of the
onlrainDion and the rest of Canada when these returns were compiled, and consequently

darge imports of dutiable goods were made from the United States, with which country
direct communication did exist. The immense inflation of trade, consequent upon
the construction, at so rapid a rate, of the Canadian Pacific Railway, upon which not
less than one hundred millions of dollars have been expended since 1881, accounts
ehiefly for the large returns from Manitoba and the North-West Territories, as well
aS from British Columbia.

- The undersigned feel that no further arguments are necessary to prove that
Prce Edward Island pays directly and indirectly into the Dominion Exchequer,0natoms and Excise duties, at least four times as great as that stated by the Committea

'O Council, while if the annual interest upon the amount claimed by the islarid as its
re of the fishery award be included, its contributions will be still further in excess

of the sum estimated.
As evidence of the desire of the Dominion Government to pr omote the interest

Prince Edward Island, the Committee of Council submit a table of the expenditure
'lon the island in the year 1884, amounting in the aggregate of $68 9 ,9 5 4 .9 1.
th Upon the first item, that of interest charged the island on the public debt which

e Dominion assumed, the undersigned observe that it is calculated at à per cent.
As the whole amount of the island bonds, which the Dominion assumed at the lime

u ynion, has been paid off, with the exception possibly of $1,000, the undersigned
'COnsider that it is unreasonable to charge the island 5 per cent. on her proportion
« the public debt, while the Dominion is able to borrow at 4 per cent. and while the
1&tter is the average rate paid upon the aggregate debt of Canada. The difference
betWeen the two rates would cause a decrease in the amount charged of $39,081.51.

In like manner interest is charged at 5 per cent. upon the capital expenditure on
e Island Railway. Calculating the interest at 4 per cent., would reduce the san

,b 5,789.20.
The undersigned observe, also, that the expense of operating the railway, in

tcess of the receipts, is charged at $91,924.01. They desire to remark that this
ouant includes the sum of $16,000 of extraordinary expenditure, which should not

4 debited to the island, and they consider that it should be deducted.
The undersigned also observe that the subsidies to the steamers employed in the
mQ]nrQer and winter service, and to the men engaged in the capes' crossing, iaount-

1 tO $32,876, are charged in full to the island. This they consider unfair. Mlany
O the inhabitants of the other Provinces derive equal advantages from this service
'Wth the people of the island, and the means of communication provided are used to
4 'uch larger extent by the rosidents of the mainland than by those of the island.
the undersigned, therefore, consider it only just that a portion of the expenditure

U incurred should be charged to Canada, and submit that not more than one-half
the sum expended in such connection should be debited to the island, in which
e an abatement would result of $16,438.

The subsidy to Fishwick's steamboat of 83,000 for communication between
alifax, Cape Breton and the island, the undersigned submit, bas no right to be

boarged in full to the island; they object to more than one.third of the amouat being
debited, and then a further reduction would be affected of $2,000.

Le These sums, which the undersigned consider should not in justice be charged to
18esland, amount in the aggregate to $79,308.71, thus reducing the expenditure for1884, as stated by the Committee of Council, to 8610,646.20.

To recapitulate, the undersigned submit the following cornparative statement of
t the island annually conLribates to the general revenue, and what it recoives in

irtur],n
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Average annual contribution by the island for
Customs and Excise................. 8723,129

To which add interest on the sum claimed by
the island as its share of the fishery award,
less the sum paid for fishing bounties..... 41,430

- - $764,559
Sum claimed by Committee of Council to be

expended on the island......... ........ ...... $689,954
Less amoun ts which undersigned contend

should be deducted............................ 79,308
-- 610,646

Excess of annual contributions of Prince
Edward Island over Dominion expenditure .......... 8153,913

In proof of the efforts of the Dominion Goverument to provide improved meanE
of communication, the Committee pf Council adduce various items of expenditure
since Confederation aggregating $151,698. Among these items appears the sum Of
$150,000, apropriated for the construction of a pier at Cape Tormentine, which bas
not been ex perded, the site, so far as the undersigned are aware, not having yet beep
determined. Another item is that of 8118,400, subsidy for the construction of a
branch railway to Cape Tormentine. This road is only about half completed, and the
subsidy paid up to November last, when the report of the Committee of Council Ws
adopted, did rot exceed $20,000. INeither do the undersigned consider that the
whole of Ibis subsidy should be charged against the island. The work is situate ill
the Province of New Brunswick, and must be presumed to be of great benefit thereto,
otherwise a private company would not undertake to build it without any previolle
assurance of assistance from the Federal Government. Besides, the subsidy has only
been granted in accordance with a policy pursued by the Dominion Goverument O
giving aid to certain ines of railway on the mainland. The sum of 812,400, to pay
the Island Government for a pier at Cape Traverse, is also included in the expendi-
ture, though at the time the Committee ot Council made their report, that amonlnu
had not becn paid. Another item is for cable service, which doubtless means the
subsidy of £400 eterling annually, paid to the Anglo-American Telegraph Company-
As the assumption of this subsidy by the General Government was under a distincd
and seperate article of the terms of Confederation, and bas no communication bf
steeni across the straits, the undersigned object to its being included in the expendí-
ture for the improvement of steam communication. This subsidy, for twelve year,
suncunts to 823,372. The Committee of Council include also in their memorandUat
the tubsidies for the summer mail service and for the winter crossing at the capeO'

As timilar vmounis were paid by the Island Government previous to ConfederatiO-'
and as 1 bey represent only the cost of maintaining the communication which the
island ld before the union, the undersigred cannot admit that they should be
included as expenditu e for improving the means of communication.

The undersigned censider that these varions items to which they have take"
objectior, should be deducted from the amount which the Committee of Council
claim to have expended, when the memorandum of expenditure would read a0
follows:-

Amount claimed to have been expended...................... $951,698
Deduct for Cape Tormentine pier, not expended.. $150,000
Allow one-half paid as subsidy to Cape Tormen-

tine Branch Railway and dedUct balance... 108,400
Deduct balf of summer mail and ice-boat service 196,073
Deduct for Cape Traverse pier...................... 12,400
Deduct cable service................................... 23,372

-- 490,245

Leaving............... ....................... ........... 8461,453
10
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the amount actually expended within the last twelve years to meet the wishes of
t4e island and to give improved means of communication with the mainland.

In the foregoing pages the undersigned have endeavored to show and, as they
%sider, have clearly established:-

1. That the Dominion Goverument voluntarily, and without anv solicitation on
part of the is}and, covenanted to provide continuons communication by efficient

8tam service, winter and summer, between the island and the maýnland-that this
egagement they have entirely failed to carry out. Further, that the Dominion

a vernment have never, up to the present winter, provided in any manner for the
tsport of passengers when obliged to resort to the capes' route, where they have
t even attempted the use of steamers; that they have failed to carry out the

PemOrises made by the Ministers to the representatives of the island; and, generally,at they have displayed great inactivity and reluctance to improve such communi-
lOn as has been afforded.

2. That the Committee of Council have erred in representing that the Dominion
t Penditures exceed, by more than three times, the amount received from the island;
te Undersigned having plainly demonstrated, as they believe, that the island con-

btes to the Dominion Exchequer an amount far in excess of what is expended.
3. That the amount which the Committee of Council claim to have been

eePended by the Dominion Government in the improvement of the meaus of com-
X4ication with the mainland is largely in excess of the sum actually paid therefor.

Referring to'other points, the Committee of Council state that " since the union,
gubsidy of $1,OO a year bas been paid by the Dominion Goverriment to the Prince

ard Island Steam Navigation Company, to run steamers daily during the season
open navigation, from Shediac, in New Brunswick, to Summerside, on the island,

d from Pictou, in Nova Scotia, to Charlottetown and Georgetown." The under-
Ened desire to correct a misapprehension under which the Committee of Council
. to labor, that daily communication exists between Nova Scotia and the island.
s is not the case, as the steamers connect with Pictou only four times a week. Lest

ieaight be inferred that the payment of 810,000 a year for this service waq under a
tient agreement entered into by the Dominion Goverument with the Steam Naviga-

T Company, the undersigned desire to say that such agreement was made by the
and Government previons to Confederation, and the Dominion, in now paying the
Ourt, is only carrying out that agreement.

The statement of the Committee of Council that " previous to the union, paddle-
eel steamers were employed," might lead to the supposition that since then the

.ltûllion Government have obtained the substitution of screw-steamers. The under-
sned desire to say that the identical boats, which plied on the route for nearly tenyears previous to the union, are still the only ones employed in that service.

-Adverting to the report of the Committee of Parliament in 1883, upon the best
eans of improving the communication between the island and the mainland, the

t4ersigred find that many recommendations were made upon which they desire to
er some remarks.

That Committee recommended that the crossing at the cape should be under-
en1 by the Government, rather than let by contract, yet this suggestion was not

upon until the present winter.
In regard to the iceboat service at the capes, the Committee of Parliament recom-ended that stations for observation and signal service should be adopted for the

idance of the boats while crossing. No such stations have been provided.
heThe Committee of Parliament also stated it as their opinion, from the evidence

fOre them, that a small screw-steamer could be used during a considerable portion
fthe Winter in connection with the iceboats, and could be safolydocked in the board

" wheu not at work, and they recommended the Government to take measures to test,
actual experiment, the feasibility of this project. No suci steamer bas been pro-vlded, nor bas any attempt been made to test the practicability of Puch a pi oject.
. The Committee of Parliament further reported that the boats of the Steam Navi-
0tion Company, subsidised by the Dominion Government, wei e altogether inade.
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quate to perform the work required of them, that, being driven by paddle-wheeîol
they are not capable of contending with ice, and that suitable screw-boats could 00o
tinue crossing about three weeks later in the fall, and commence two or three wee
earlier in the spring, and they recommend that good substantial boats should 40
provided to meet the requirernents or the island, and that at least one of these boit$
should be, a screw-boat, of such construction as would enable her to run as late W
the fall and as early in the spring as a proper regard for the safety of life and Pe
perty would permit.

This recommendation has been wholly disregarded, and, notwithstanding the
fact that the contract with the Steam Navigation Company expired two yead
ago, the same paddle-wheel boats, which have been engaged in the service for the
last twenty-two years, are still employed.

The Committee of Parliament further recommended that, inasmuch as 40
evidence taken before them went to show that the "TNorthern Light " was fast becOe
ing unfit for service, another suitable steamer should be provIded to take her place.

This recommendation has also been disregarded, the " Northern Light " beil%
still employed, and although she annually undergoes some repairs, lier seaworthinfl
is open to grave question.

The undersigned have thus deemed it necessary to call attention, at considerab
length, to the indifference shown by the Dominion Government to the recommefndy
tions of a Committee of Parliament who, the Committee of Council state, reached thbe
conclusions "after long and careful consideration of the subject, an examination
persons, papers and records."

The Committee of Council say that " the change from sailing vessels to steamal'
for summer, appears to have been the only improvement effected by the Island G0'l"
ernment in their meaus of communication in fifty years, although having control
a larger sum in revenue than the island now pays into the Dominion." The unfise,
noss of the latter part of this statement, the undersigned having already pointed o04
they need not again refer to it. They would merely remark, that the promise E
overcono the obstructions which, for so large a portion of the year, had cut the p0e'
pie of the island off from connection with the mainland, was one of the princiPf
inducements for them to enter the union, and they considered that, by confedet
ating with Canada, the co-operation of many of the people of the other provinceeh
who were interested equally with the people of the island, would be secured.

The correctness of this calculation, it is instructive to note that about three Y00
ago an order was issued by the Department of Marine, restricting the number
passengers upon any trp te 30. The making of such an order, the undersigo
submit, is sufficient proof that at times the passenger travel is large; indeed th
steamer has occasionally carried from 80 to 100 persons. It may be remarked t
the officers of the " Northern Light " have found it impossible to enforce the orde
restlicting the number of passengers to 30, and that it bas remained inoperatf
alnost ever since its promulgatioL.

On this point the undersigned desire to introduce an extract from a speech de
livered last sussion in the Senate by the lon. Mr. Haythorne, whorein he called a%
ten tion to the very large number of passengers crossing at times in the " Northero
Light," and to the warit of accommodation afforded by that steamer. He spoke s0
follows :-

" On my return home from my duties in this Blouse last spring, I was detaiIne
on he maiuland for two or three days awaiting a change of weather, which 
enable the " Northern Light " to come to Pictou. A telegram informed us that Ih
ha I let't Georgetown on her passage. Ultimately she arrived, bringing, as it
said, about 100 passengers. The point to which I wish to draw the attention of the
Hlouse, and particularly the attention of the Government, is, that there were froli
to 87 passengers on board on her return. My hon. friend who sits opposite (&f'
Montgomery) says there were 87 passengers on board, but this I have no hesitatioo'
in saying, there was barely standing room, to say nothing of sitting accommodatioo
which one expects to find in a passenger steamer. Hon. gentlemen might suppom
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t there was a simple ren dy for this b instructing the captain not to take more
le certain number of Ksengers on Lard. Well, that of course would be a

niedy, but it would be a vast inconvenience, and it would be something more, it
hod be a cruel thing, because it is within my knowledge that last spring nî'nbers

thepoor people were waiting for a passage across and they had not the means to pay
%ir expenses if they had been long dotai ned there. I was informed that som.e of

went out and sought work while waiting for the arrival of the " Northern
ht" and therefore, while taking lewer passengers might be a remedy for the

geit would be cruel, when the Government have another vessel fully capable of
Isting the " Northern Light," to detain passengers there."

The Committee of Council state that the small passenger list of the " Northern
ght" and the large annual deficit in working the Island Railway are the best
dence of the limited travel to be provided for. The undersigned submit that this
utnMent constitutes no justification for the failure of the Dominion Government to

ont their obligations to the island. So long as communication with the main-
is at all certain the traffic is large, but with the irregular movements of the

orthern Light " and the doubt that existe as to her seaworthiness, it is not extra-
hiary that travel and traffic are limited. So far as the Island Railway is concerned,
e is restricted for the reason that after the close of navigation no shipments can

' nade from the island. Were the island's communication with the Intercolonial
h"i'ay and the other railways of the Dominion continuons, as Canada solemn ly
>01nised it should be, the case would be different.

The Committee of Council desire it to be borne in mind that the Dominion
% erument did not undertake the carrying of agricultural produce, nor freight of

4Y kind, although they have at all times afforded facility for the transport of any
1ght offering. The facility afforded may be judged of when it is explained that the

0'ght capacity of the "Northern Light " is not more than 200 barrels. But while
a true that the Dominion Government did not expressly undertake the carcying of

lght, it is well known that the freight traffic is more remunerative than passenger
alie, and that if a large and more powerful steamer had been providod, havmgn

acreased cargo room, the returns would have been much greater and the outlay pro-
lioftLnately less.

The Committee of Council say " that it will be claimed, on behalf of the island,
at the population consumes goods the produce of the máiniand, but that while this
true, the same occurred previous to the Confederation," and they proceed to quoto
"'value of the importa of the island from the Dominion in 1872, upon which du- ies
are collected at $1,067,480. The undersigned desire to say that this amount

-%Urately represents the value of the island's imports in 1872, from and through the
th linion of Canada, but that in those importe there were included dutiable goods
he growth and manufacture of other countries, valued at 8371,163, as also articles on
Ich the island levied no duty, valued at $58,190; so that, these amounts being

theucted, the sum of' 8638,1z7, would represent the real value of our imports froni
Dominion.

v The Committee of Council state that the total value of goods entered for consump-
. In Prince Edward Island from all countries in 1872, was $1,605,241. The under-
È9ed cannot conceive where such information was obtained. They have carefully

?e4rxined the trade returns of the island for that year and they find that the total
ports into the island amounted in value to $2,439,078, nearly, if not all, of which

t er0 entered for home consumption. The undersigned muet express their regret
that so grave a misapprehension should be entertained by the Committee of Council
% to the trade of the island.

The Committee of Council say that " no doubt the same interprovincýial trade
qOntiues with this change in favor of Prince Edward Island, that the good s from the

er provinces are now free of duty, whilst previous to the union they paid duties
e same as on importations from other countries." There can be no doubt that
torprovincial trade continues as the present tariff of the Dominion is framed with

sPOcial view of encouraging manufactures. This trade is, however, much more
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advantageous to the other provinces than to the island, as it is impossible that maO'n
factures can be carried on on the island to any great ext6t, while regular comma»'"
cation with the mainland is interrupted for over four months of the year. That th
peoplo of the island obtain certain goods from the other provinces, free of duty, e
true, bt the statement is, nevertheless, misleading. Protected by a high Custoco
duty, the Quobec or Ontario manufacturer is able to obtain, in many lines, priOf
nearly, if iot altogether, equal to the cost on duty of the same goods of British _j
foreign rinanufacture. Situated as Canada is, and having a view to the infant stateO
her manufactures and the tariff policy of the United States, the undersigned belie
the fiscal policy of Canada to be a justifiable one, but while the terms of union
the matter of ,team comnunication remain unfulfilled, the people of the island aee
precluded to a considerable extent from participating in the benefits which that poli'
is calculated to confer.

The Committee of Council, while admitting that the island may have feit incOn
venience from the interruption of the trips of the "Northern Ligbt," yet consider tb
the material interests of the province have not greatly suffered owing to the fact th$
its exports to foreign countries have nearly doubled from 1872 to 1884. The undersigued
fail to comprchend why this argument Fhould be admitted in justification of the failIar
of the Domimon Government to carry out the terms of union. That the island bO
improved, is notwithstanding the inaction of the Dominion Govornment and its Pre
gress is duc to its natural resources and the great industry of its people and tends tO
show hoiw inuoh greater its prosperity would have been had it enjoyed the continuou0
communication which was guaranteed it, and which it had a right to expect. The
island's contributions to the Federal Treasury in excess of the expenditure, togethr
with the oney which has been uselessly expended upon the inefficient commuli10
tion afforded would very properly be adequate to defray the interest upon a s110
nccesary to construct a work which would effectually overcome its isolation. gare
the undersigrned desire to say that tte Ministry of Prince Edward Island so far fro
regardig the Canadian Pacific Railway as a local work for the benefit O
British Columbia only (as alleged by the Committee of Council) have always wariu'y
supported the present administration of the Dominion in their policy of constructii
that great national highway, and all that they now ask is that a work of vast impr
tance not only to the island but to the whole of the Dominion as solemnly guara'
teed as was the railway to British Columbia, should be undertaken and brought to '

successful completion.
WTithin the past few months a scheme has been proposed, which, it is claimedu

will successfully remove the disabilities from which the island has so long suffered•
Engineers of the highest standing in America and whose reputations are well esta
lished in Britain, have given it as their o inion that it is practicable to lay a metall'o
sub-way across the btraits of Northum erland, through which railway commune
tion could be effected, and that the cost of such an undertaking would not exceed
sum which it would not be unreasonable to ask the Government of Canada to expeu'l
During the past summer soundings were taken, and the bed of the straits was fOUî
to be admirably adapted for the lying of the tube, the Admiralty charts ceorroborati"
the results of the examination which was made.

Tho Committee of Council speak of the " liberal treatment " of the islanîd bY
the Dominion Government, and that it has received special consideration on accO11i
of its isolated position, though possessing a population less than some cities 00
the mainland. To this statement the undersigried desire to except. Thal
have clearly proved, as they believe, that Prince Edward Island contributes to the
general revenue more than is returned in expenditure. To the unfortunate mislly
preheision that the island is being treated with exceptional liberality, and that '
does not return to the general revenue one.third of the amount expended, is probaibll
due the invidious distinction made by the General Government in the remuneratioo
of their officials on the island. The same erroneous impression has possibly influeneà
the General Government in declining, up to the present time, to maintain manY 0
the public piers in the Provinee, although expressly bound to do so by the Britli
North America Act.

A. 180
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The Committee of Council say the " Northern Light " was placed at Cbrlotte-
toWn as headquarters, her officers and crew are inhabitants of the ishind, and her
7aYeasing and bazardous efforts to make communication, in the soverest weather,
cannot be unknown to the Island Government. The Committee of Connoil seem to
entertain the idea that the officers and crew of the " Northern Light," being island
tlen, are consequently, bold enthusiasts, and would be willing to incur great risk in
the effort to maintain communication with the mainland. The undersignecd desire to

nertark that, whatever zeal the ofliers of the " Northern Light " have displayed inthe performance of their duties, their ardor must have been considerab!y dampened
y the instructions which were issued some time ago by the Department of
arine, and which are as follows:-

" OTTAWA, 16th January, 1883.
CAPTAIN FINLAYSON, steamer ' Northern Light.'

I Telegram received urging Department order you run. Rcsponsibility is with
e. Expect you to run no undue risks.

" A. W. McLEL AN."

Two days later, on receipt of a telegram from Captain Finlayson asking instrue-
B, the following was sent him:-

"l OTTAWA, 18th January, -1883.
CAPTiAIN FINLAYSON, steamer ' Northern Light.'

" With knowledge of the ice, you must be judge, and held responsiblo for safety
OF boat. Incur no undue risks.

" Wm. SUITII."

"OrrAwA, 12tth January, 1884.
"Sia,-Referring to my letter of 14th December, 188-e, I have again to instruct

You to use your own judgment as to whether the " Northern Light " should run, and
You are to incur no risk whereby the safety of the vessel may be endangered by
being caught in the ice No risk also is to bo incurred for the purpose of carrying
Oer any particular passenger or passengers, and the Department expects that yon
Will use your judgment in ali matters affecting the running of the boat, and wili

lld you responsible for lier safety.
" WM. SMIT , Deputy Minister of Marine."

CAPTAIN A. FINLAYSON, steamer " Northern Light."
The undersigned submit that these instructions were quite sufficient to dis-

eourage and deter the officers of the "Northern Light " from making those strenuous6fforts to effect a crossing which otherwise they might have been disposed to do.
Under the British North America Act, and the terms agreed upon subsequently,

With the various Provinces, Canada undertook to effect the following great publie
WOrks, with the object of connecting, by the bonds of commercial relationship, the
political union which had been entered into, viz. :-The Canadian Pacific Railway,the Intercolonial Railway, the deepening and widening of the great canalq, and com-
thunication by. steam, winter and summer, with Prince Edward Island, The fir8t
"hree of these undertakings have been carried out with the cordial concurrence andSuPport of the people of Prince Edward Island. The sum of ahout 843,000,000, a

Uch larger amount than was anticipated, has been spent on the Intercolonial Rail-
ay, and although that road has not yet paid more than tho working expenses, the

2eneral Government have granted large subsidies to a competing line of ralway.
'he People of Prince Edward Island are verv làr fron objecting to the faith of the
'-OUntry beiig rnaintained inv*ohtlt, and to li beral expenditure boirng made for neces.
Sary Public works, and have cheerfully borne their share of the buriens, but they do
OrnPlain that the communication guaranteed then by the terms of Confederation

not providel, altbough tho expenditure necessary to doso would be very smatl
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compared with the enormous outlay incurred on the other public works to which
the undersigned have referred.

With regard to the claim for compensation by reason of the non-fulfilment of the
terms of Confederation, the undersigned submiit that a review of the facts adduced
will conclusively show that the island has suffered great loss, and is therefore entitled
to indemnity. Should further evidence on this point be needed, the undersigned will
be pleased to supply the same, as well as to furnish any other information that may
be required by your Lordship, in order to obtain a full consideration of the whole
case.

We have the honor to be your Lordship's most obedient humble servants,
W. W. SULLIVAN.
D. FERGUSON.

Right Hon. Earl Granville, K.G., Secretary of State for the Colonies.

(Conßidential .)
Printed for the use of the Colonial OQice.

North American,
No. 117.

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND.

MEMORANDUM by Sir Charles Tupper on the observations submitted by the Prince Edward
Island delegates to Earl Granville in their paper of 1st March, 1886.

The rejoinder, addressed to Earl Granville, of the Prince Edward Island dele-
gates, Measrs. Sullivan and Ferguson, to the report of the Committee of the Privy
Council of Canada, respecting the memorial to Her Majesty on the subject of the
communication betwóen the island and the mainland, commences by a general justifi-
cation of the memorial in question.

Then they quote from the report of the Committee of the Privy Council, Messrè.
McLelan and Campbell, " that it is altogether improbable that any man who had
seen the Straits of Northumberland, or had any knowledge of ice obstruction in mid-
winter, could have supposed it possible to construct a steamer capable of crossing
when the ice is at its heaviest in that season." They do not, however, comment upon
this statement or deny it, but content themselves by remarking that the offer of con-
tinuons steam communication, summer and winter, was entirely a voluntary act on
the part of the Dominion and they submit that it should be carried out. They do
not contend that it is practicable to do so, but merely repeat the language of the
memorial to Her Majesty that "'no sufficient disposition bas been shown by the
Dominon Government to fulfil their obligations towards the island in this matter."
Then they state the failure of the first vessel employed in 1874 and 1875, the " Albert."
The unsuitability of the " Northern Light," put in the service in 1876, is also com-
mented upon and it is added that "she was specially designed for the service." The
report of M essrs. McLelan and Campbell gives a clear answer to the allegations so far
mentioned. In the first place they point out very fairly that prior to Confederation
there was a regular service during the summer season, but that for five months or
more during the latter part of the autumn, the winter and the early spring, there waS
no steam service at all, the mails, and presumably passengers, being'carried by ice
boats from Cape Traverse to Cape Tormentine and thence by sleigh to Amherst, the
land carriage being 52 miles and a distance from cape to cape nine miles. This,
appears to demonstrate very clearly that the Island Government had not found
"contituons steam service" practicable during the winter season, otherwise the
assumption is that they would have adopted it before Confederation. But they appear
to imavine that all the difficulties which to them had been insurmountable should
have entirely vanished when the island joined the Dominion. In the circumstances
the phrase " continuons stvam service " might fairly and properly have been accepted
with the qualification " as far as practicable," and the obligations have been carried
ont by the Dominion Government in this spirit. The impossibility of continuouâ
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Steam communication in mid-winter has been fully demonstrated, as pointed out by
kessrs. MoLelan and Campbell, but the efforts of the Dominion have been so far
successful as to reduce the period of interruption to an average of one-third ot what
It Was previous to the union. Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson say that the " Northern

ght " is not suitable for the service, and was not specially designed for the work.
Tey apparently forget that in the joint address to the Governor General from the
Legislative Council and the House of Assembly, in 1881, this same vessel is spoken
Of as having been " constructed expressly for the work and placed upon the route,"
although complaint was made of the irregular and unsatisfactory trips she made.
4on this point Messrs. McLelan and Campbell say: " The Dominion Government,
Ufter a most careful and anxious enquiry, contracted with a Mr. Sewell, of Quebec,
to complete a powerful steamer on a model specially designed for ice service. In

ecemher, 1876, this steamer, named the " Northern Light," was completed and
?laced upon the route between Pictou and Charlottetown, and bas been maintained
eh winter to date at an aggregate cost, including construction, of $249,956.57.

No representation appears to have been made in the matter to the Dominion
Qovernment until 1881, altbough the " Northern Light " was put on in 1876. Messrs.
8 lllivan and Ferguson state the average period the vessel is unavailable during the
'Winter as seventy days; ir the address to Her Majesty, sixty-four days is given.
and the Parliamentary Committee at Ottawa, 1883, gave forty-eight days as the
aVerage. The latter also said in their report that " the early records kept by the
'Captar of the ' Ncrthern Light,' and the testimony given by the omcers, show that
the beavy ice encountered was the cause that compelled him to discontinue crossing in
blid-winter," and lurther that " the evidence of the officers examined is also to the
effect that the steamer is not sufficient to overcome the difficulties of the winter
14avigation, and although they suggest slight improvements on ber model, which

oWuld better fit ber for the purposes for which she was intended, still are unani-
kously of opinion that no steamship can be built capable of keeping up continuous
Commxnunication in mid-winter between the island and the mainland." They add:
'We examined personally several gentlemen of large practical experience in cross-
ng from the island in the winter season, all of whom confirmed the above, and
Wbose evidence is hereto appended." This committee consisted of three representa-
tive from Prince Edward Island and two from the mainland, and surely their opinions
are wortby of credence and justify the contention of the Dominion Government thatt he utmot bas been done to carry out the terms under which the island entered the

nilion. Messrs. McLelan and Campbell, in their report aliso say: " If con tinuous
steam communication bas not been maintained, it is certainly not because the

molilnion Goverument sought to avoid expense. The 'Nortbern Light ' is as
1arge and powerful a steamer as experience in Arctic exploration bas proved advis-
able, and she is kept on full expense, equipped and ready to run at all times during
the entire winter, and were it possible to do so no additional expense would be incur-
Ired, except for fuel, whilst the cost of the ice-boat service would be saved, and the
Olitruction of railways, piers and boathouses to and at Capes Traverse and Tormen-

'tine rendered unnecessary." The Government have, it may be added, or are com-
1nitted to spend about $951,698 in connection with the communication between
1rince Edward Island and the mainland. The remainder of the rejoinder addressed
o Loi d Granville refers to other matters, some of which do not directly refer to the

iqnestions at issue.
Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson call attention to the speech of Sir Alexander

%apbell in the Senate, in 1884, respecting the provisions of one of the lighthouse
steamers to supplement the " Northern Light " during the winter, which certainly
eemls to have been promised. Considering the narrowness of the strait, it appears
doUbtful if a second steamer would be of much advantage. But in any case there is

o 1 lMention of the matter in the papers in the possession of the High Commissioner
:or Canada.

They admit, as Mesers. McLelan and Campbell contended, that a railway to Cape
arverse had been built and a pier constructed, although stating that the latter

76-2
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requires some aiterations; also that the railway to Cape Tormentine is being madO
with the aid of a large subsidy from the Dominion Government. Complaint is mado
that although appropriation has been made for a pier at, Cape Tormentine, its cou-
struction has not yet been commenced. But the Dominion Government have said
that it will be built, and no doubt the delay is owing to the time taken in laying thO
railway with which it will be connected.

Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson combat the statement of Messrs. McLelan and
Campbell that the Island Government were fully conversant with the whole actioU
and plans of the Dominion Government, and raise a question respecting the erectioa
of ooathouses in which somo delay ocourred. Thu boathouses were, howover, finisheJ
last year, and the criticisin moutioned therofore seemns, in this view, to bu rather cap'
tious, specially as nothing is said in the same paragiaph about the railway and piar
at Cape Traverse, and the railway to, and the pier ut Cape Tormentine, which the
Government have warmly taken up and of which it must be presumed tei IslanJ
Government were fully informed.

It is stated also by Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson that " the Dominion Govera-
ment have totally neglected, ever since ConfeIet ation, to make any provitsio wak
ever for the transport of passengers when compelled to resort to the capes' route."
In explanation of this may be quoted an extraut from, a letter that has recently beeo
received from Mr. MeLolan, the late Minister of Marine and Fisheries of Canada.
"' The Northern Light' made regular trips this season untill the 27th January, or
some time last week. I took, as Minister of Marine and Fisheries, charge of the
crossing at the capes and there is now a good organization and equipment. The delO'
gates crossed by that route and I believe they said it was the first tine that thoy had
ever been brought over-that is, they had, on all previous occasions, to work their
passage."

Messrs. McLelan and Campbell, referring to the Parliamentary Committee of 1883,
state " it is the unanimous opinion of members of the Committee, confirmed by the tes'
timony of witnesses of large practical experience, that no steamaships a-eu capable Of
keeping up continuous communication in mid-winter." Messrs. Sullivan uad FergU-
son say: " The undersigned have examined the report of the said Parliamentary CoIW
mittee and have failed to discover therein that they came to this conclusion." This May
be literally correct, but the actual wording of the report quoted below, of the Commi
tee, shows that Messrs. McLelan and Campbell had every foundation for making the
statement. "The evidence of the oflicers examined is also to the effect that the steamer
is not suíficient to overcome the difficulties of the winter navigation, and although
they suggest slight improvements on lier model which would botter fit her for the
pur poses for whîèh she was intended, still are unanimously of opinion that no stearr
ship can be built capable of keeping up continuous communication in mid-wintef
between the island and the mainland." " We examined personally several gentle'
men of large practical experience in crossing from the island in the winter seasons,
all of whom confirmed the above, and whose evidence is hereto appended."

Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson in their rejoinder deprecate the action of Messrs•
MoLelan and Campbell in comparing the amounts contributed to the revenue bf'
-British Columbia and Prince Edward Island respectively. But they should remember
that the controversy was started in the memorial to Her Majesty by drawing attentiop
to the treatment the former Province was said to have received by the rapid c0e
struction of the Canadian Pacific Railway, alLhough its population of white people
was comparatively smali. It would have been far botter had the special question at
issue been dealt with upon its merits; but for the departure from this sound principle
the Dominion Government caunot be blamed.

Messrp. Sullivan and Ferguson dispute altogether the accuracy of the proportiop
of the revenue of the Dominion contributed by tie island as specified by Mesr1
MoLolan and Campbell, but before going into detaila they remark that in any sa
calculations interest should be allowed on $1,250,000, the proportion of the Ialifa%
fishery award claimed by th island, which they say would annually amount tO
450,000. It must be remombeod in the firat plawo that the position i» tis matteO
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Prince Edward Island is precisely the same as that of Nova Scotia and New Brans.
wick and different to that of Newfoundland, which has not joined the Confederation,
and is therefore a separate colony. Prince Edward Island has been treated similarly
to the other Maritime Provinces in every respect, and has shared in the general
benefit derived from the measures taken by the Government in conneotion with the
fiheries and has participated in the payments of bounties to fishermen. Messrs.
Sullivan and Ferguson do not appear to be aware also that prior to Prince Edward
Island joining the Confederation the island made arrangements with the United
States in regard to the inshore fisheries differing from those made by Canada. In
fact they allowed the United States fishermea to share tie inshore fisheries on the
unratified understanding that the exports of fish to the United States should not be
charged duty, or in any case that any duty charged should be refunded. Whu the
American Government refused to ratify these arrangements, the Dominion Govern-
ment refunded the duties to Prince Edward Island, and this should be taken into con-
sideration in connection with the matter.

The long discussion entered into by !dlessrs. Sullivan and Ferguson, with the
object of showing that the revenue contributed by the island to the Dominion, as
stated in the Trade and Navigation Returns, is incorrent, and gives an inaccurate idea
of the actual position of the island in this respect, opens up an interminable source
of argument. Messrs. McLelan and Campbell q note this revenue as 8193,474. as
against $942,095 in British Columbia and 8891,683 in Manitoba and the North-West.
Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson based their objection to the figures on the ground
that the island's importa, upon which the revenue is collected, oome from countries
outside Canada, and that since Confederation a very large portion of the articles
consumed come from the Maritime Provinces and Quebec and Ontario, having
already paid duty in thoseProvinces, which should, in any revenue calculation, be
credited to the island. They proceed to make hypothetical estimates of the actual
imports and of the actual revenue, on various bases, assuming the importations to have
been made direct, and chargeable at an average duty of 18-64 par cent. By these
methods they bring up the revenue contributed by the island to $764,559
as the average of free calculation. Then the larger figures of British Colum-
bia and Manitoba and the. North-West Territories are accounted for by stating
that at that time (1884) British Columbia possessed no direct means of
communication with the settled portions of the Dominion, at any season of
the year, and accordingly was compelled to purchase almost all its supplies
directly from other countries. These imports all pay duty at tho ports of entry in
.British Columbia, and the amounts collected are credited to that province. The
same reasons they allege also applied to Manitoba and the North-West Territories.
This does not seem to bear upon the question of " continuous steam service." It can-
not, however, be too often stated that the communication between the island and the
mainland has been more regular in winter since 1873, than before Confederation, and
that the period of interruption is now not more than one-third of what it 'was, and
that a regular daily steam service is an impossibility as evidenced by the report of
the Parliamentary Committee, which, in 1883, enquired into the matter. But apart
from this, the reasons advanced by Prince Edward Island to account for its small
revenue, apply to every province more or less as there is a large general interproviniat
trade and as the island admittedly participates in such trade it must be presumôd that
the inhabitants of the province find it to their advantage to do so rather than toget
their importa from other sources.

The amounts spent annually in Prince Edward Island (in 1884 it was 8689,954,
aIthough this is disputed also) demonstrates the way in which the island has been
treated by the Dominion Government, and npon this point Messrs. McLelan and
Campbell say: " The liberal treatment of Prince Edward Lland results from
the policy and practice of the Dominion Government, to watch over the interests
Of the smaller provinces, and Prince Edward Island from her isolated position,
and with a population leas than some cities on the mainland has received a specisl
consideration.! Mesars. Sullivan and Ferguson admit that the exporta from th0
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island to countries beyond the Dominion in 1884 were 814 per cent. more than theY
were in 1872, and that the amount per head deposited in the savings bank average0
$16.59, as agni ist $7.66 for the rest of the Dominion. This does not indicate that
much injûry has resulted to the island from the want of continuous steam service,
and clearly proves the benefit derived from the connection of the island with the
Confederation ïnd the improved service since 1873. The total Customs revenue Of
the island in 1872 was about $302,000, and admitting for the sake of argument that
it amounts to 8764,559, now this inerease of 120 per cent. does not support their
case that injury bas resulted to the island from the terms of the union not having
been fulfilled, and that it has obtained no advantage from joining the Dominion, and
from the encouragement that has been given to inter-provincial trade and manl'
facturing industries. Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson also object to the figures givel'
by Messrs. McLeIan an'd Campboll as representing the expenditure upon the isiand
in 1884. The amount specified is $689,954, but they contend that 879,308 should be
deducted. The total they admit, however, is $610,646, and the difference relates tO
controversial matters.

Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson say " the statement.of the Committee of Councin
that previous to the union paddle-wheel steamers were employed, might lead to the3
supposition that since then the Dominion Government had obtained the substitutioO
of screw steamers, but the undersigned desire to say that the identical boats which
plied on the route for nearly ten years previous to the union are still the only on&0
employed in the servies." What Messrs. McLelan and Campbell did say was, "pro-
vious to the union paddle-wheeled steamers were employed, and it was very gener-
ally believed, and for good reasons, that a screw steamer would maintain steam cor'
munication to a much later poriod, but it is altogether improbable that any man Who
had seen the Straits of Northumberland, or had any knowledge of the ice obstructiol'
in midwinter, could have supposed it possible to construct a steamer capable of crose'
ing when the ice is at its heaviest in that season, and it is proper to assume that
both contracting parties to the union, having such knowledge, undorstood tLat the
Dominion Government would provide and maintain the means which science and
experience might determine as the best and most efficient for the end in view withiO
the range of possibility." This full extract places a different light upon the matter,
and it has been amply demonstrated above that the Dominion Government has d0oD
its best to provide continuous steam service " within the range of possibility," aâid
that its efforts have been beneficial to the island.

Objection is also taken to the remarks of the Committee of Council " that the
change from sailing vessels to steamers for summer appears to have been the o]iY
improvement effected by the Island Government in their means of communication io
fifty years, although having control of a larger sum in revenue than the island nO<
pays into the Dominion." The first part is not denied by Messrs. Sullivan and
Ferguson, but the revenue question is again disputed. They go on to say that the
prospect of continuous steam service was one of the principal inducements that led
the island to enter the Dominion. Messrs. MeLelan and Campbell's report givLs the
impression that they desired to convey the idea that although the Island Governmet
had not done much before Confederation to provide continuous steam service 10
winter, the Dominion Government had since that time much improved communic'
tion, and this cannot be denied.

The next point of differeuce is the number of passengers using the route. Mesra4
McLelan and Campbell say that during the past two winter seasons the averago nul-
ber of passengers in each crossing of the " Northern Light " was only nine (the
average of the present season so far is said to have been only six); also, that the 1o
on the Island Railway since its opening has been 8843,911, besides an expenditure
thereon on capital account of about $500,000. Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson "'
reply give instances of 100 passengers crossing at one time. This only proves hof
small the number must have been on othez occasions if the average of each crosstl'
is only nine. Then they say that the number of passengers would be greater if the
service were more regular, and the seaworthiness ofithe ship more assured. Tbio

20



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 76.) A. 1886

latter is a grave charge against the Dominion Government and cannot be allowed to
pass without protest, and especially as the statement is but a general one and unsub-
ltantiated.

Exception is also made to the remark of the Com mittee of Council "that the
bomXinion Government did not undertake the carrying of agricultural produce or
reight of any kind, aithough they have at all times afforded facility for the trans-

Port of any offering." Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson say: " The facility afforded
an'y bo judged of when it is explained that the freight capacity of the " Northern

Iight " is not more than 200 barrels." It must be remembered that the phrase
continuous steam service " applied to passengers and mails only, and any provision

£Or freight is therefore a gain to the province.
Messrs. McLelan and Campbell say: " It will be claimed on behalf of the island

tht the population consumes goods the produce of the mainland. No doubt this isre, but the same occurred previous to the Confederation." The figures for 1872
32' given as $1,667,480. The Prince Edward Island delegates staîte that of this
'71,t63 came from countries other than Canada, although through Douminion ports,
educing the imports from Canada to $638,127. The accuracy of these figures (there
s no means of checking them in the office of the High Commissioner) does not
aect the general question.

The Dominion Government gave the total value of the goods entered for con-
anption in the island in 1872 as $1,605,241. This Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson
oblect to, and state that the figures should be $2,469,078. There are no means of
checking this in the office of the High Commissioner.

Messrs. MeLelan and Campbell say that. " No doubt the same inter-provincial
tde continues with this change in favor of Prince Edward Island, that

e goods from the other Provinces are now free of duty, whilst previous
the union they paid duties the same as on importations from other

%untries." Messrs Sullivan and Ferguson do not objeot to this, and express
their concurrence in the present fiscal policy of Canada; but they say
that the existing tariff is more favorable to other Provinces than to the island,
a8 the latter has no manufactures, and that the Quebec and Ontario manufacturers

protected by a high Customs duty," are able to obtain in many lines of goods prices
early if not altogether equal to the cost and duty of the same goods of British or

.reign manufacture. This sounds rather paradoxical, but it is evident from the
11acreased prosperity of the island, from its increased exports, and from its increased

iV"1ngs bank deposits, that no injury has resulted to the Province from the presentRscal policy of the Dominion; but, on the other hand, much benefit. Besides what
1PPIies to the consumer of home manufactured lines of goods in Prince Edward Is-4ad, affects equally the people of the other Provinces; and instead of enhancing the
pl'e Of roods, it is notorious that since the adoption of the present fiscal policy, of

ich Messrs Sullivan and Ferguson approve, the prices of many articles of con-
MP1ion have declined in every part of Canada.

h Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson admit in a subsequent paragraph that the island
er s prospered, as they put it, "notwithstanding the inaction of the Dominion Gov-
teJment." This statement, in view of what has already been stated, may be left toe care of itself; but the object of the representation appears to be to secure theaying f a metallic sub-way across the Straits of Northumberland, through which
1$lay communication could be effected, the cost of which undertaking, Messrs

rulhvn and Ferguson say, would not exceed a sum of which it would not be un-
asonable to ask the Government of Canada to expend. If it can be shown that,

%nch a work is practicable, that it can be constructed fdr a reasonable outlay and
'1aintained without a large expenditure, the matter seems to be the one that may

fatrly be placed before the Canadian Government for consideration.
Mesars. Sullivan and Ferguson again return to the charge of the revenue con-

t1ibuted to the Dominion. They take exception to the statement that the island has
]reeived liberal treatment from the Dominion and repeat that it pays more to the
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Dominion annually than it receives, which is certainly open to argument, although
it does not bear upon the question of the feasibility of " continuous steam service."

Messrs. MiLelan and Campbell say the " Northern Light " was placed St
Charlottetown as headquarters, her cfficers and crew are inhabitants of the island,
and her unceasing and hazardous efforts to make communication in the seversi
weRther, carnot be unlknown to the Island Government. The delegates remark upou
this : " The Committee of Council seem to entertain the idea that the officers and
crew of the ' Northern Light' being island men, are consequently bold enthusiasts,
and would be willing to incur great risk in the effort to maintain communication
with the mainlanrd." They then go on apparently to complain that the running 0f
the ship was left to the discretion of the officer in charge, and tbat he was ordered
not to ineur any urdue risks. That unceasing and hazardous efforts have been made is
proved by the mcmorial from Prince Edward Island to Her Majesty, which states that
" at times she ( Northerr Light') bas been ice-bound for periods varying from ten to
twenty-four days, to the imminent danger of passengers and mails. Upon one OCC*
sion, four years tgo, some cf the passengers, among them women and children, were
forced, after rcmaining on board several days, to leave her and walk a distance of
many miles to the shoxe, when, night cvertaking them, they received injuries fro0
cold and exposure which result<d ultimately in the death of one of the party." ThiO
shows ihat the (fficers and crew have made hazardous efforts to keep up communica-
tion, and the recessity of discretion and the avoidance of undue risks. It also provew
the impossibility of ecntin uous steam service which the island insists on. It must
be remar#ed that it was the officers of the "I Northern Light " who gave evidence to
the effect "that lO steamship can be built capable of keeping up continuous CoM0
munication in mid-wminter betwccn the isla.d and the mainland."

Messrs. Sullivan and Ferguson conclude their rejoinder by saying: " With regard
to the claim for compensation by reason of the non-fulfilment of the terms of COO'
federation, the undersigncd submit that a review of the facts addeced will conclusivel
show that the islard hus suflered great loss, and is therefore entitled to indemnity.
lin the first place, it is incorrect to say that the terms of Confederation have not beeo
complied with. Only one cf the "terms " bas been brought forward as Dot havig
being carried (ut, and prcof has been adduced that continuous steam service has been
provided, so lar :s was piacticable. Daily steam communication is not feasible, li
bcing impossible, in the opinien (f competent witnesses, to construct a steamsbip 10
fulfil such conditions. The period of intcrruption prior to Confederation has bee"
reduced by two-ihxids, and irsitead of suffeiing any injury the island las, since 1873,
made rapid advanres in wealth ar-d prosperity, which may fairly be attributable to
the more advanwtgecns position the islard occupies as a member of the union, to the
efforts of the ]Icmiuion Goveirment to aid in the develot ment of its resources as
to the vastly imp oted communication with Ihe mainland that has been provided.

The foregoirg unnrls upon Meîrrs. Sullivan and Ferguson's letter are not so
complete as they might be made, owing to the short time that the undersigned bo
been in possession of the views of those gentlemen. OIARES TUPPER

9 Victoria Chambers, LONDON, S.W., 12th March, 1886
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(suPLmMrANTART)

(76a)
o an ADD-RESS of the HousE OF COMMONS, dated 19th April, 1886 ;-For

copies of al Despatches from or correspondence with the Imperial
Government respecting the complaint of the Legislature or Govern-
inent of Prince Edward Island, that the Terms of Union between that
Island and the Dominion have not been carried out, or with respect to
the mission of Delegates to the Imperial Government from Prince
Edward Island on the subject of such complaint,

By Command.

partment of the Secretary of State,
30th April, 1886.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Secretary of State.

CTIFID Cpr1 of a Report of a Comnittee of the lionorable the Privy Council, approved
by Dis Excellency the Governtor General in Council on the 7th November, 18b5.
The Committee of the Privy Counicil have had urder consideration a despatch,

dated 4th August, 185, from the Lieutenant-Governor of Prince Edward Island,
ns$mitting Joint Addrenes of th, Legislative Council and Bouse of Assembly of

t 1 8at Province to Ber Majesty the Queen, praying her intervention on behalf of
:brinDce Edwîrd Iland to obtain from the Dominion Governjnent a fulfilment of its
eO]gagement " to maintain efficient steam service for the conveyance of mails and
passengers between the island and the mainland, summer and wiiter."

. The Committee advise that Your Excellency be moved to forward the aforesaid
oInt Addresses of the Legielative Coun cil and Assembly of Prince Edward Island to
er -Majesty the Queen.

The Committee, concurring in the report herewith of the Sub-Committee of
9ouncil, to whom the despatch and enclosures were referred, further advise that a
ePY of this minute and of the annexed report, if approved, be forwarded, together
wth a copy of the said Joint Addresses, to the Right Hon. the Secretary of State for
the Colonies.

All which is respectfully submitted for Your Excellenoy's approval.

JOHN J. MoGEE, Clerk Privy Council.

Your Sub-Committee find that the Governinent of P. E. Island, previous to Con-
foderation, subsidized two steamers for the conveyance of mails and passengers to and

n the mainland during the summer season, and that for a period of five months or
1 re mails were carried by ice-boats from Cape Traverse to Cape Tormentine, and
hene by sleigh to Amherst, the land carriage being fifty-two miles, and from cape

I ape, over ice and water, nine miles.
.ince the union, a subsidy of ten thousand dollars a year has been paid by the

tmmUi'on Government to the P. & Island Steam Navigation Company, to run steam.
23
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ers daily during the season of open navigation, from Shediac, in New Brunswick, to
Summerside, in the island, and from Pictou, in Nova Scotia, to Charlottetown and
Georgetown. Thbis service bas been regularly and satisfactorily maintained by that
company; but as their steamers have to lay up early in the fall, the Dominion Gov-
ernment steamer " Northern Light" then takes up the service and continues it s0
long as the ice permits.

Previous to the union, paddle-wheel steamers only were employed, and it waO
very generally believed, and for good reasons, that a screw steamer would maintain
steam communication to a much later period; but it is altogether improbable that
any man who had seen the Straits of Northumberland, or had any knowledge of th&
ice obstruction in midwinter, could have supposed it possible to construct a steamer
capable of crossing when the ice is at its heaviest in that season, and it is proper to
assume that both contracting parties to the union, having such knowledge, under-
stood that the Dominion Government would provide and maintain the means which
science and experience might determine as the best and most efficient for the end in
view, within the range of possibility.

The Dominion Government, willing and most anxious to do ail that was possible
in the interests of P. E. Island, in the season next following the union, sought by
public advertisements for persons to undertake the service, and eventually secured &
contract for ten years with a Mr. King, who claimed to have a steamer speciallÎ
fitted for ice work. She proved, however, unable to run longer than until the fourti
of January. On the part of Mr. King, it was claimed that the season was of unusul'1
severity, and by the inhabitants of P. E. Island it was alleged that the steamer Was
wanting in power, and of a model unsuited to the service. The contract, after thisl
trial, was annulled, and the Dominion Government, after the most careful and anxioe
enquiry, contracted with a Mr. Sewell, of Quebec, to complete a powerful steamer O0
a model specially designed for ice service.

In December, 1876, this steamer, named the " Northern Light," was completd0
and placed upon the route betwee'n Pietou and Charlottetown, and has been mai'-
tained each winter to date at an aggregate cost, including construction, of $249,956.51•

As was feared, the " Northern Light " bas been, during the severest parts of the
winters, unable to force a way through the enormous fields of ice which block thO
straits at that season, but whilst demonstrating fully the impossibility of coiitinuosa
steam communication in midwinter bas reduced the period of interruption to aI
average of one-third of that previons to the union.

In the session of the Dominion Parliament of 1883 a Committee of the House of
Commons, composed of three representatives from Prince Edward .Island an i twO
from the mainland, was appointed on the 23rd February to investigate the questionl
of steam communication with the island. All the members of the Committe hd
personal knowledge of the obstruction to navigation in the straits by ice in winte1rr
and were well qualified for the duty assigned to them.

After long and careful consideration of the subject and examination " of person6'
papers and records," the Committee reported on the 18th April, 1883, in the follo'
ing woids:-" It is the unanimous opinion of the members of the Committee, cOI'-
firmed by the testimony of witnesses of large practical experience, that no steamshiPe
can be built capable of keeping up continuous communication in mid-winter." Tho
following extracts from the report set this forth more at large:-

" OUsE oF CoMMoNs, COMMITTEE DooM, 18th April, 1883.
"Your Committee beg leave to report as follows:-
"When Prince Edward Island was admitted into the union the following Was

one of the stipulations on the part of the Dominion Government contained in the
terms of union:

"' Efficient steam service for the conveyance of mails and pasengers to be
established and maintained between the island and the Dominion, winter and sari-
mer, thus placing the island in continuons communication with the [ntercolonial
Railway and the railway system of the Dominion.'
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"This communication has been maintained in the summer season by the Prince
dlkward Island Steam Navigation Cor4pany between Summerside and Shediac, and

between Charlottetown and Pictou, calling at Georgetown, and in the winter season
by the " Northern Light " between Georgetown and Pictou and by ice boats between
Capes Traverse and Tormentine.

" To determine the efficiency of this service in the past, and how communication
I]ay be most regularly and efficiently maintained in the future, the Committee care-
fully examined the records of the trips made by the " Northern Light " during the
seasons she has been on the route; also summoned and examined some of the officers
in charge, and find that she performed the following number of trips, and failed the
lumber of days marked opposite each season:-

* * * * * * * * *
"That on an average there were forty-eight days in mid-winter she was unable

to effect the crossing.
" The daily records kept by the captain of the " Northern Light " and the testi-

lnony given by the officers show that the heavy ice encountered was the cause whick
%ompelled him to discontinue crossing in mid-winter.

" The evidence of the officers examined is also to the effect that the steamer is
not sufficient to overcome the difficulties of the winter navigation, and although they
etuggest slight improvements on her model which would botter fit her for the pur-
Poses for which she was intended, still are unanimously of opinion that no steamship
1tan be built capable of keeping up continuons communication in mid-winter between
the island and the mainland.

" We examined personally ' several gentlemen of large praotical exporience in
crossing from the island in the winter season, ail of whom confirm the above, and
Whose evidence is hereto appended.'"

The committee having reached this conclusion made certain suggestions for the
Ibprovement of the route by the capes. The most important of which, viz., the con-
truction of lines of railway to the capes, and suitable shipping piers had been pro-

Viously decided upon by the Dominion Government.
The address points out that the distance from the Intercolonial Rail way to Cape

Tormentine is forty miles, and from the Island Railway to Cape Traverse, twelve
3Xiles, which, it is stated, had to be travelled " in open sleighs in the coldest and
Iost stormy portion of the year," but omits to state that a railway to Cape Tor men-
tine was under construction, and a large sum provided for the erection of a shippng
Pier, whilst t, Cape Traverse, on the island side, the railway had been comploted,
and, as suggested by the committee of Parliament, houses of sholter for passongers,boatmoen and boats had been erected.

The language of the address i q alleging that the Dominion Governmen have
shown no sufficient disposition to fulfil its obligation toward the islaid," and with

!aving " unaccountably neglected and treatel with apathy and indifference " tihe
interests of the island, seoms to the undersigned, in view of ail the circumstances,
unwarranted.

For half a century the Government of Prince Edward Island forwarded maiIs
and passengers by ice-boats across the straits, and by open sleighs overland for five
tnonths in each year, and more roecently by subsidized steamers, in summer, instead
Of sailing packets. This change from sailing vessels to steame-s for summer appears
to have been the only change or improvement made by the Island Goverrnent in

Y Vears, although having control of a larger sum in revenue than the island now
Pays into the Dominion treasury.

The efforts of the Dominion Government, as marked by expenditure to met the
'Wishes of the people of Prince Edward Island and to give thom improved means of
orimunication with the mainland, are of course known to the Legisiative Council

and Assembly, although they have been overlooked by them when preparing the
address. That expenditure may be summarily stated as follows :-

Cost and maintenance of 'l Northern Light "........8249,956 57
Subsidies for summer service and for ice-boats at capes 196,073 75

25

A. 188t;49 Victoria.,



Sessional Papers (No. 76.)

Construction of Cape Traverse Branch Railway and
enlargement of pier..................... ... 199,190 03

Expended by Publie Works Department in connection
with piers, boathouses and cable service............. 25,678 53

To pay Island Government for pier required in cape
services....................................................... 12,400 00

Subsidv for construction of railway to Cape Tormentine 118,400 00
Appropriation for pier at Cape Tormentine............... 150,000 00

Total ............................... 8951,698 00

This large expenditure.for the transmission, in comfort, of passengers to and fr0o
1he capes, is worthy of more consideration in view of the fact that in the last two seasons
the average number of passeugers in each crossing of the Northern Light was only a
fraction over Line, and of the luither fact that the Dominion Government bas mail-
tained the Island Railway at a cost, since its opening to 30th June, 1884, of $843,911
in excess of ail its receipts, besides an expenditure thereon on capital account of aboatU
lhalf a million dollars.

The pastenger list of the " Northern Light " for the winters 1884-85, averaging
only nine per trip, and the large annual deficit in working the Island Railway are the
best evidence of the limited travel to be provided for, and although it may be soime
inconvenience to have steam communication suspended for a period of forty-eight
days, yet it does not warrant the laiguage of the address that " an incalculable 1000
has been sufiered by the people of Prince Edward islanid by the failure of the Domf'
niou Government " to do wbat a Committee of Parliament says is impossible.

lIn the accompanying address, passed by the Legislature in 1884, it is claiMed
that the loss is great, because the chief pursuit of the island people is agriculture, ard
the compensation for damnages is placed at five million dollars, as due to the date Of
the ad<ress.

In conFidering this assertion it must be borne in mind that the Dominion GoV
erniment did not undertake the carrying of agricultural produce nor freight of any
kir d, although it bas, at all times, aiforded facility for the transport of any freight

offering.
It is further stated in the addrefs that Prince Edward Island has been urjustlY

and invidiously treated, inasmuch as the Dominion Goverument has contracted at a
cost of many millions of dollars " for 3,000 miles of a railway to British Columbia, a
Province with 10,000 of a population, exclusive of Indians and Chinese, whilst in the
case oi Pinuce hdward Island, a sacred obligation is being violated and an immenbO
injury doue to a large body of people."

IL the distribution of public moneys Princ Edward Island has no cause of cO0
plaint. lit is tiue that large expenditures have been made for railways and canals iO
the general interest, but the local wants of the Provinces have not been overlooked,
and Prince Edward Island Las been dealt with in a most liberal mauner, and appar
enuiy without regard to ber contribution to the general revenue.

The address seeks in its reference to the constructing of the Canadian PaciÎO
Railway an opportunity to establish and emphasize a wrong to Prince Edward I slan'd
Doubtless the maintenance of continuous steam communication between the island
and the mainland in mid-winter is of as much interest to the people of the Province
as is the construction of the Canadian Pacifie Railway, although in the one case it
incans the transport of nine passengers a day for an average period of forty-eight
days a year in mid-winter, whilst in the other it is a gîeat national work, providig e
bighway in common for the eastern and western Provinces, and the opening upof
vast areas of the richest soil, upon which; many settlers from the older yr-
vinces, including Prince Edwar d lsland, are finding homes, instead of in the United
States. To take the view indicated by the address, that the construction of the
Canadian Pacifie Railway is merely a local work, the comparison then suggested
with Prince Edward lIsland thould not be confined to British Columbia, as Ontariop
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tanitoba and the North-West Territories receive as much local benefft therefrom as
does British Columbia.

In a strictly local view, it is not unjust to say that expenditure shall in some
Ileasure be gcverned by receipts, present or prospective, and the tone of the Legisla-
ture of Prince Edwai d Island in speaking, in 1884, of " British Columbia as a Pro-
vince of 10,000 people, exclusive of Indians and Chinese," and in 1885 "of 15,000,"
deimands a comparison of revenue returns from the two Provinces.

lu the re.turns last published-30th June, 1884-Prince Edward Island is
'eredited with :

From Customs........................... ............... ...... 8170,863 40
Excise.................. ................................. 22,615 26

Total contribution to revenues......... 8193,478 66

In the same year British Columbia is credited with:
From Customs........ ...................... 8884,076 21

Excise........ ......... .................................... 58,018 89

Total contribution to revenues.............. $942,095 10
lQearly five times as much as Prince Edward Island.

In the comparison which is callcd for by the reference to
the Canadian Pacifie Railway, in the address, Manitoba and the
Xorth-West Territories should be included as follows:

From Customs........... ......... 8734,185 77
Excise .................................... 157,417 99

--- 891,683 76

Total revenue co;ntributed by British Columbia, Mani-
toha and the North-West Territories................81,833,698 86

As against Prince Edward Island......................... 193,478 66

If evidcnce were wrtirg of the anxious desire of the Dominion Government to
pr0note the interests of Prince Edwaid Islard in every possibl way,.it may be found
in the same public returns of the experditure in and for the island in 1884, which is
by no means exceptional, viz.:

Payment of interest upon her public debt...............8195,407 55
Subsidy to Local Goverument for local purposes ...... 164510 00
Postal expenses.................... $46,465 21
Less postal revenue ........................ 29,154 80

-- 17,311 41
Expenses of operating railway in excess rev. receipts. 91924 01
Militia and Defence......... ................. 12.141 .O
Collection of Customs............. ............. 2056 21
Collection of Excise...................... .... .. 2.06 89
Administration of Justice .................................. 18,800 00
Maintenance of lights and buoys ......................... 19,059 62
Protection of fisheries and fish breeding, exclusive of

bounty payments.................................. 3,539 38
Superannuation ..... ............................. 2056 00
Lieutenant Governor's salary ............................... 3287 00
Subsidies to steamers and winter service .................
Subsidy to Fishwick's steamboat ........... ................ 3,000 00
Outside Expenses:

Lights ..... .............................. 3,0000
Indians................ ..................... ... 1)993 8
Public health.............................................. 88540
Audit and Asst. iReceiver General's Offices......... 4,845 9Z
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Subsidy to telegraph connection ............ ......... 946 66
Expenditure on harbors and rivers................. 28,581 88
Publie buildings............................ 7,861 89
Construction of lights .................................. 2,158 60
Interest upon a capital expenditure on Island

iRailway of 8578,920................. ............ 28,946 00
Relief of sick seamen............81,226 31
Less dues....................................... 684 46

- 541 75
Expenditure by Department of Agriculture....... 1389 88
Representation-say ............. ..................... 15000 00
]Repairs of dredges................................ 1,7.14 99

Total.1........................... ,$69954 91
It will thus be observed that while the expenditure for the fiscal year ended 3Oth

June, 1884, is $689,954.91, the total revenue derived froin ail sources is but
$193,478.66.

Making an expenditure of over 86 per head of the population (112,000) of the
island, whilst the total receipts are only $1.72 per head.

It wilt he claimeci ou behaif of the island tLiat the population consumes goods, the
produce of the rnainland. No doubt this is true, but the saine occurred previous t»
the Confederation. In 1872 the importa of the colony of Prince Edward Island fr00.
the Dominion was:

From Old Canada........................................ $38l,179
Nova Scotia....................................... 358,961
New Brunswick .................................. 327,340

Total ..................................... 81)067,480
upon which duties were colleoted.

The total entered for consumption froin ail countries was $1,605,241
And the total revenue................................... 302,757

The total exports of the colony were .......... S1,497,058
0f which Nova Scotia and New Brunswick took $749 129; or, say, one haîf.

No doubt the saine interprovincial trade continues, witFi this change in favor
of Prince Edward Island: that the gooda froin the other Provinces are now free of duty,
whilst previous to the union they paid duties, the saine as on importations fr00.
other countries. Tftat Priîce Edward Island may have fait inconvenience from the inter-
ruption in the trip3 of the IlNorthern Light " may be adinitted; bnut that her
material interMts, have snffered greatly is disproved by tic fact that her exports to
foreign contries ha.ve ne!irly doubled front 1872 to 1884, whilst tie increase of the
whole Dominion for the marne period Fias beeu only ten and a.hatf per cent. (10joloi)

ln making this cotuparigon of the payrnents to the generat revenue by P. B~.
Island and British Columbia, and the North-West, and in stating the annat expel-
ditures for the isian 1, the uudersigned are moved thereto, only, by the impiied
charge on the address, that the western Provinces are being treated be the Dom~in-
ion Governinent more generously than the Island, and it is not intended that thO
liberai manner in which ail the public services of the island have been deait witl'
regardicas of the revenue receipts, shial be takan as a cousideration or recompense for
the allered failare tg carry ont the tenus of the union.

The liberai treatinent of Prince Edward Island resuits from. the policy and practieO
of the Dominion Gxveranant to watch over the interests of the sinaller provincBl
and Prince Edwarcl Island, fron Fier isolated positiou and with a population less thil
sorne cities on the mainland, his received espe¶3ial consideration.

If continuons steain commtunication has flot been maintained, it i.a certainly I10t
28
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!eeause the Dominion Government sought to avoid expense. The " Northern Light"
is as large and powerful a steamer as experience in Arcti ex loration has proved
advisable and she is kept on full expense, equipped and ready to run at all times
during the entire winter, and were it possible to do so, no additional expense would
be incurred, except for fuel, whilst the cost of the ice boat service would be saved,
anad the construction of railways, piers, and boathouses to and at Capes Traverse and
Tornentine, rendered unnecessary.

It is stated in the addresses that " beyond the formal acknowledgments of mem-
Orials from the Island Government, no other answers were given," but the action
taken by the Dominion Government was a better answer than any paper declaration.
The " Northern Light " was constructed and placed at Charlottetown, as headquarters.
Iler officers and crew are inhabitants of the Island, and her unceasing and hazardous
efforts to make communication in the severest weather, cannot be unkriown to the
1sland Government. The representatives of the island were in Parliament when
appropriations were made for the construction of the railway to Cape Traverse, and
for the erection of piers. It was publicly known that a railway was under construe-
tion to Cape Tormentine, where the Dominion Government had appropriated
$150,000 to erect a suitable shipping pier in connection with the road (to hasten the
corpletion of which a subsidy of $118,400 has now been granted), and that boat
bouses had been erected at the capes as recommended by the Committee of Parlia-
'luent hereinbefore referred to. That the Island Government was fully conversant
'ith the whole action and plans of the Dominion Government may be assumed from
the fact that it demanded payment of $12,400 for an old publie wharf that was
ntilized in the construction of the pier at Cape Traverse.

In brief, the Island Governmert knew that every possible effort had been made
by the Dominion Government to navigate the Straits from Charlottetown and
Georgetown to Pictou, with a failure of an average of 48 days; it knew that the
boninion Government in making great expenditures on railway lines to the Capes,
*as most anxious to reorganize and improve, if possible, that route, notwithstanding
that in the ordinary annual local services of the island, the Dominion Government
was returning more than three dollars for every dollar received.

GOVERNMENT HOUsE, P. E. I., CHARLOTTETOWN, 4th August, 1885.
S1R,-I have the honor to forward herewith to His Excellency the Governor

General of Canada for tranEmission to Her Majesty the Queen a joint address from
the Legislative Council and Bouse of Assembly of this Province, praying Her Majesty's
nlOst gracious intervention in order to obtain from the Government of'Canada a fulil-
r4ent of the terms upon which this island entered the Confederation in respect to
comimunication with the mainland, and also of compensation to this Province for the
10$ sustained by its people in consequence of the failure of the Dominion Govern-
'nent to carry out the aforesaid terms. I also enclose copies of the following papers
relating to this subject to be forwarded with said address.

Despatch No. 18, of 7th April, 1881, from Lieutenant-Governor of Prince Edward
Island to Secretary of State, Ottawa, transmitting joint address of both branches of
this Legislature to His Excellency the Governor General, praying that immediate
!ieasures may be adopted by the Dominion Government to fulfil the terms of Con-
federation with this Province; also a copy of that address and the acknowledgment
of its receipt by the Secretary of State at Ottawa, bearing date 16th April, 1881.

Despatch No. 9. of 28th February, 1882, from the Lieutenant-Governor to the
8eeretary of State, Ottawa, informing him that no reply had been received to the
a.bove address, and that this Government is anxious to have the reply with as little
delay as possible, also the acknowledgment of the receipt of this despatch by the
Secretary of State, dated 8th March, 1882.

Extraet from the minutes of the Executive Couneil of this island, dated 31st
JanQuary, 1883, to His Honor the Lieutenant-Governor, forwarded by him to the
Secretary of State, Ottawa, again bringing the subject to the notice of His Excellency
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in Coui cil, und requesting a reply to the former address of the Council and Assembil
thin referred to.

Teleà mn dated Charlottetown, 27th March, 1883, from the Lieutenant-Governor
to tho Secrutary of State, Ottawa, requesting reply be laid before the Legislature
thon in eionü, with acknowledgment from the Secretary of State, informing the
Lieutenant-Governor that the subject was under consideration.

Despatch No. 8, of L'th April, 1884, from the Lieutenant-Governor transmitting
a joint uddrss of the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of this Province to
His Excelleacy the Governor General, again representing the failure of the Dominiol
GovornmenL to carry out part of the terms of Confederation, and praying that His
Excnllncy tho Governor Goneral in Council will take such action as shall cause this
grievance to be remedied, and also that compensation be paid to this island for non-
fulâimant f iaid termas, with the joint address referred to and the despatch No. 1770
of 24th of Aprll, 1884, from the Under Secretary of State, Ottawa, acknowledging
receipt thereof, and stating that the matter will receive due consideration.

Dospatch No. 27, of 28th February, 1885, from the Lieutenant-Governor to the
Sccretary of State, Ottawa, transmitting for the consideration of His Excellency the'
Govrnrror Gonral in Council, an approved minute of Council on the non-fulfilment
of the terms of Confederation, with the minute thorein neutioned and despatch No.
1788, dat-d Ottawa, 6th March, 1885, acknowledging the receipt of the above.

Address from the Legislative Council and another from the louse of Assembly
of this PrVorinco, at the last session, to the Lieutenaut-Governor, with respect to the
trasmiionL of the joint address then passed by bith branches of the Legislature to
Her Majisty the Queen.

Exîrct from the minutes of the Executive Council of this island, dated the 4th
August, 1885, advising, for the reason therein stated, that the joint address of both
brcauchs of 'he Legislature to Her Majesty the Queen, together with enclosureo
Lhercia r to, and the separate addresses to the Lieutenant-Governor from the
Provincial Legislative Council and House of Assemnbly, and the Minutes of Council
in connoctiXou therewith, be immediately forwarded to His Excellency the Governor
Geneýal for trnsnission to Her Majesty the Queen.

I have, &0.,
A. A. MACDONALD, Lieutenant-Governor.

DEPARTMENT oF Ti SEcRETAuY op STATE, OTTAwA, 10th August, 1885.
SIR, -I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch of the 4th

instant, transmitting a joint address to Her Majesty the Queen from the Logislative
Council and House of Assembly of Prince Edward Island on the subject of commun-
ication. with the mainland, together with other documents relative thereto and
specified in your despatch.

I have, &c.,
G. POWELL, Under Secretary of State.

To His Honor the Lieutenant-Governor of Prince Edward Island, Charlottetown.

To the Queen's Most Excellent Majesty:
MOST GaAclous SoViiIoN:-We, your Majesty's most dutiful and loyal subjects,

the Legislative Council and louse of Assembly of Prince Edward Island, in genera
assiembly convened, humbly approach Your Majesty, and represent that:-

1. Prince Edward Islana entered the Confederation of the Dominion of Canada
upon the 1st July, 1873, on certain terms and conditions set forth in the Order of
Your Majasty in Council,dated 26th June,1873,and of which terms the following is one i
" The Dominion Government shall assume and defray all the charges for the folloW
ing service, -iz., of efficient stea&m service for theoonveyanceof mails and passengor
to be established and maintained between the island and the mainland of the Domi-
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On, winter and summer, thus placing the island in continuous communication with
the Intercolonial Railway and the railway system of the Dominion."

2. Daring no winter season since the time of the said union bas the service
Provided by the Dominion Government been efficient or the communication with the
'1ainland continuous.

3. The Dominion Government having shown no sufficient disposition to fulfil
their obligation towards the island in this matter, we are reluctantly compelled to
approach Your Majesty as one of the parties to the articles of Confederation ani pray
YOur Ma.jesty's intervention to obtain for us that justice to which as a Province of
Canada we are entitled by the terms of union.

4 Prince Edward Island is separated from the mainland Provinces of Canada by
the Strait of Northumberland, and during the winter season which gencerally beging

Out the first of December and lasts until the end of April the harbors and rivers
4e frozen, while the passage of the strait is impeded, though at no ime wholly pre-
"ented by floating ice. Previous to the union the only connection with the main-
and during the winter was by means of ordinary boats dragged across the drifting
e and propelled by oars through the stretches of open wator betwoon Cape Traverse

On the island, and Cape Tormentine in Now Brunswick, a distance of nine miles.
b 5. During the first winter after Confederation (1873-74) no attompt was ma-1O
y the Dominion Goverument to provide such steam service. Daring thes two sub-

sequent years (1874-5 1875-6) an old wooden steamboat which had for yoars been
e.gaged in ordinary navigation, but without a single qualification to fit her for the
Winter. navigation of the strait, was placed upon the route botwooa Georetoavu, one
of the island ports, and Pictou, in the Province of Nova S-cotia, and ai was to ba ex-
Pected, she uttorly failed in the service required of her. At the commencoment of
the Winter of 1876-77 a new steamer, called the " Northern Light," wis placed upon
th e route. This steamer was not constructed f)r the service, but waýs designd for
anOther purpose, and therefore her work can bu regarded only in tho light of an
'eperiment.

6 The service performed by the " Northern Light " ha been most unsati'sfactory,
her trips being, irregular and the accommodation she has afforded has been nieither con-
tinUous nor efficient. According to the official returns for the last four years thore
ha& been an average in each winter of 64 days during which she had been entirely
taid up, nor does this furnish any idea of the irregularity of her trips before she en-
tirely ceased running in each of these years, but only of the continued period when
She Was laid up and inoperative. At times she has been icebound for periods ranging
'roi 10 to 24 days to the imminent danger of passongers and mails. Upon one
occasion four years ago, some of the passengers, among them womon and children,
Were forced, after remaining on board severai days, to leave her and walk a distance
1I tany miles to the shore, when night overtaking them they received injuries from
Cold and exposure which resulted ultimately in the death of one of the party.

7. During the time when the " Northern Light " is laid up the people of the islan<f
re obliged to resort to the old method of crossing between the capes (Traverse and

methentine) already described, a route attended with much hardship and great danger.
ays month of January last, a party of 22 persons were detained on the ice for two

and one night in one attempt to make the passage when they suffered most
8 erly from cold and exposure-the majority of them being badly frozen- and
sev'Veral have since suffered amputation of their limbs as a result of the injuries thon
feOceived,

the 8. One of the principal inducements held out to the people of this island to enter
Confederation was the promise contained in that clause of the terms of union

lnoted at the opening of this memorial, and they naturally expected that a union
With the Dominion would bring them uninterrupted communication at all seasons of
the Year with the rest of Canada and of the world. They believed that they would
thereaf ter enjoy equal facilities for intercourse with the other provinces as those pro-
'iT1ces enjoy between themaselves, and that thenceforth they would participate in the
rany benetits and advantages accruing from the Intercolonial Railway and other
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public works upon the mainland, from which they had previously been debarred for
a great portion of the year. Cut off, as they had always been, for nearly five months
of the twelve, from all communication with the mainland, except by a most uncertaiu
and dangerous route, the promise of continuous communication with the Intercolonial
iRailway and the railway system of the Dominion was indeed a strong incentive tO
them to surrender their self-government and unite with Canada.

9. The inconvenience and loss which they had suffered in consequence of the
failure of the Dominion Government to provide them with the efficient communica-
tion promised are incalculable, while the disappointment in their reasonable expe-
tations has not tended to enhance, in their estimation, the value of a connection with
the Dominion, but, on the contrary, bas awakened a feeling of discontent which,
though a matter of regret, is not unnatural under the circumstances. Were it only
the transport of freight and merchandise that was stopped during the winter, thef.
would have good reason to complain of being precluded from the benefits of the
Intercolonial and other railways which their more fortunate neighbors on the main-
land enjoy, but their chief grievance is that, in direct violation of the solemn compact
upon which they entered the Confederation, and to which Your Majesty was
graciously pleased to be a party, the Dominion Government have not provided that
efficient or continuous means whereby mails and passengers can be transported to
and from the mainland.

10. The people of this province, we submit, have just ground of complaint at the
inaction of the Dominion Government and at the extraordinary apathy which has
been shown in regard to the interest of this island in the matter of communication
with the mainland. Nine winters have passed since the " Northern Light " Wa
placed on the route and notwithstanding the fact that ber inefficiency for the service
was apparent from the outset no other steps have been taken to fulfil the terms Of
union. From the time the "I Northern Light " ceases running until she again
resumes her, tri ps, a period averaging as already mentioned sixty-four days each year,
the Post Office Department transmits the mails by the route between Capes Traverse
and Tormentine, and during this period in each year the Dominion Government have
at no time since Confederation made any provision whatever for the transport of pas-
sengers, who are forced to make such arrangements as best they eau for crossing to
and from the mainland. This inaccountable neglect on the part of the Government
of Canada is the most direct violation of the terms of union which we are called u pOn
to represent to Your Majesty; moreover,the Dominion Government have established no
communication between the Intercolonial Railway and Cape Tormentine so that trw
vellers are compelled in passing between these points to drive in open sleighs a distance
offorty miles. in the coldest and most stormy portion of the year.

Between Cape Traverse and the line of the Prince Edward Island Railway, a dis'
tance of about twelve miles, railway connection bas been opened and that but partiallY,
only this winter, although provided for by Parliament three years ago.

11. The derangement of business consequent upon the irregularity of the mail
service, when for many days at times no communication is had with the rest Of
Canada, exercises a most prejudicial effect upon the interest of the island. The hard-
ships of travelling, which only the strong and robust are able to endure, and the
dangers attendant upon the present mode, which have been most painfally exemplified
this winter are other disadvantages from which the people of this province suffer most
acutely.

12. The feeling that they are being unjustly treated is not without strong founds-
tion. In order to fulfil the terms of union with British Columbia, a province of les0
than 15,000 of a population, exclusive of Indians and Chinese, Canada has contracted
for the construction of nearly 3,000 miles of railway at a cost of more than
880,000,000. This gigantic undertaking is being pushed forwafd at a rate unparalleled
in the world's history, and a vast expenditure is being made and still more is conteln'
plated in acquiring and subsidizing other railroads and in forging the links to bilnd
the scattered provinces froi the Atlantic to the Pacifie, yet the fulfilment of the
terms of union with this island, by providing the means of communication over
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strait only nine miles wide is postponed from year to year, without any thought ; it
'Wold seem that thereby a sacred obligation is being violated and an immense injury
being done to a large body of people.

.13 This grievance, of which we here complain, has been repeatedly brought to
he notice of the General Grvernment, while, session after session, the representa-

tives of the island in the Dominion Govornmont have called attention to the non-
fulfilment by Canada of ber pledged faith with this island. In 1881 we addressed
the Governor General in Council upon the subject, and prayed for the adoption of
reasures to remedy the state of affairs complained of, as well as for compensation
for the loss sustained on account of the non-fulfilment of the terms of union. This
address was only acknowledged, but no practical results followed, and, upon the
1tice of the Dominion Government being again directed thereto, assurances were
returned in both of the years 1882 and 1883, that the question was under their con-
sideration.

Again last year we addressed His Excellency in Council with a like petition,
and laiming $5,0001,000 for the loss sustained to that time on account of the non-
fulfiment of the said terms, and we also informed the Dominion Government that
We then approached them for the last time, and that unless a favorable answer was
accorded without delay Your Majesty's interference would be invoked.
. Beyond a simple acknowledgment of this address no attention bas been paid to

&· Again on 20th February last, the Executive Council of this island called the
attention of the Dominion Government to the various steps which has been taken by
the island to obtain a settlement of the question, and reininded them the decision at
Which we had arrived last year to appeal to Your Majesty, and that no alternative
w'as left except to carry that determination into effect. To this minute the same
lnsatisfactory answer was received which has been invariably given ; copies of the
correspondence referred to will be transmitted to Your Majesty herewith.

14. In this the twelfth year of their connection with the Dominion, instead of
enjoying that efficient and continuons steam communication with the mainland
Which was gaaranteed them, the people of Prince Edward Island are, for a very
?onsiderable portion of the year, dependent upon the mode which their fathers
ltitiated upwards of sixty years ago, before steam power was ever applied for
PurPoses of locomotion. During these twelve years they have patiently awaited the
fnlfilment by the General Government of the terms of the union in this particular
1.til we are reluctantly constrained to say that the Dominion Government have

evinced a marked indifference, not only for the welfare of this island, but for tbe
sanctity of their own obligations as well.

15. Satisfied that this state of things cannot longer continue without a breach of
that harmony which is so indisp. nsable between the provinces of the Confederation,and
feeling that the island is being treated unjustly and its prosperity seriously retarded,
We appeal to Your Majesty, and humbly pray that you will take the premises into your
rn0st gracious consideration, and require that justice be done by the Government of

anada to Your Majesty's loyal subjects of this Province, by the immediate " estab.
llshment and maintenance of efficient steam service for the conveyance of mails and
Passengers between this island and the mainland of the Dominion both winter and
t1mer, so as to place the island in continuous communication with the Intercolonial

Railway and the railway system of the Dominion;" and further, that Your Majesty
11 be pleased to require that the Government of Canada compensate this island for

the 0of which bas resulted to its inhabitants by reason of the non-fulfilment of the
erms Of Confederation in the particulars complained therein.

LeISLATIvE CoUNCIL CHAMBER, 27th March, 1885.
JOHN BALDERSON, President.

oUsâ OP ASSEMBLY, 27th March, 1885.

JOHN A. MAÂDONALD, Speder,
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PAPERS RELATING TO COMMUNICATION BETWEEN PRLNCR EDWARD
ISLAND AND TIUE MAINLAND OF THE DU4INION, UNIER THí
TERMS OF cONFEDERATLON, TO BE FORWARDED TO HER MAJESTY
THE QUEEN.

PRoVINcE or PRINCE EDWAaD IsLAND,
GOVERNMENT HloUsE, 7th April, 1881.

SI,-I have the honor to transmit herewith a joint address from the Legislative
Council and louse of Assembly to His Excellency the Governor General, pray ing
that immediate measures may be adopted by the Dominion Government to fulfil the
terms of Confederation with Prince Edward Island, by establishing and maintaining
efficient >team service for the conveyance of mails and passengers between the island
and the mainland of the Dominion winter and summer, thus placing the province in
continuous communication with the Intercolonial Railway and the railway system of
the Dominion, and by causing to be placed at the disposal of the island compensation
for the failure on the part of the Dominion to carry out said terms, and also a joint
address from the Council and Assembly requesting me to cause the said address to
Mis Exceilency to be laid before him.

I have, &c.,
T. IEATH HAVILAND, Lieutenant-Governor.

JOINT ADDRESs, SEssIoN oF 1881.
To Ris JExcellency the Right Honorable Sir John Douglas Sutherland Campbell (conr

monly called the Marquis of Lorne), Knight of the Most Ancient and Most Noble Order
of the Thistle, Kniglt Grand Cross of the Most distinguished Order of Saint Michael
and Saint George, Governor General of Canada and Vice Admiral of the same,
&c., &c., &c.
We, Her Majesty's dutiful and loyal subjects, the Legislative Council and House

of Assembly of Prince Edward Island, in general assembly convened, approach Your
Excellency and represent :-

1. That upon the lst day of July, 1873, Prince Edward Island entered the Con-
federation of the Dominion of Canada upon certain terms and conditions set forth in
an Order of Her Majesty the Queen in Council, dated 26th June, 1873.

2. That in the said terms and conditions of union it was expressly stipulated
that the Dominion Government should assume and defray all the charges for the
establishment and maintenance of efficient steam service for the conveyance of mails
and passengers between this island and the mainland of the Dominion, winter and
summer, to as to place this island in continuous communication with the Intercolonial
Railway and the railway system of the Dominion.

3. That during no winter scason intervening between the year 1873 and the
present time has the steam service provided by the Dominion Goverment been
efficient, or the communication with the mainland in any degree continuous.

4. That during the first winter season after the union no attempt was made by
the General Government to provide such steam service; that during the two sub-
sequent winter seasons, viz., those of 1874-75 and 1875-76, a wooden steamboat
calied the "Albert " was placed upon the route between Georgetown and Pictou, but
she failed to perform the service satisfactorily. That at the commencement of the
winter season of 1876-74, a Dew steamer called the " Northern Light," which had
been constructed expressly for the work, was placed upon the route.

5. That the records of the trips made by this steamboat are inaccessible to us,
bat it is notorious that these trips have been most irregular and unsatisfactory,
and that at times she has been detained, ice- bound, tor periods ran ging from ten to
twenty-four days, to the imminent danger of the passengers and mails. On more than
one occasion during the present winter, some of the passengers, among whom were
several females and children, were forceci, after remaining on board the vessel for
»veral days, tg leave her and walk a distance of many miles to the shore, when night
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overtaking them they received severe injuries from cold and exposure and one of
themn bas been crippled for life.

6. That the people of this province have suffered gre'at loss by reason of the
frequent interruption of the winter steam service, involving extraordinary delay, not
oIly in the transmission of important letters by rail, but also in the conveyance of
Passengers, thereby causing serious dorargement of trade and immense inconvenience
to the entire community.

7. That the experience of the last five years fully convinces us that the steamer
Northern Light " is totally unfitted to perform that efficient service undertaken by

the Dominion Government, and as we are of opinion that ample time has been allowed
foexperment, we submit that means should be adopted without further delay to
secure to this province continuous communication in accordance with the terms of
union.

8. That one of the principal inducements held out to this province to enter Con-
federation was the promise of constant communication with the mainland, and the
Prospect of participating in the benefits arising from the Intercolonial Railway and
Other public works, from which its inhabitants had been previously debarred for a
a9ge portion of the year, and to the maintenance of which they are called upon to con.

tribute without deriving any corresponding advantage.
9. We submit that the good faith of the Dominion Government is pledged to the

fulfilment of the compact of Confederation, involving the establishment and mainten-
ance of efficient steam service with the mainland and continuous communication with
the Intercolonial and other Dominion railways, and we represent that Prince Edward
]sland is justly entitled to receive from the Dominion, compensation for the non-

lflment by the Dominion Governrment of the terms of union in the particular here-
raentioned.

Wherefore, the Legislative Council and House of Assembly pray that your
.xcellency in Council will take the foregoing facts into your most serious considera-

tion, and adopt vigorous and immediate measures to remedy the grievances com-
Plained of, and cause to be placed at the disposal of Prince Edward Island the com-
pDensation to which the Province is entitled by reason of the non-fulfilment by the
Dominion Government of the terms of Confederation.

And as in duty bound we will ever pray.
A true copy,

FREDERICK W. HUGHES, Ast. Olerk Bouse of Asembly.

OTTAWA, 16th April, 1881.
8IR,-I am directed to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch of the 7th inst.

nel1loing a joint address of the Legislative Council and fouse of Assembly of the
rovmee of Prince Edward Island, in reference to the establishment and maintenance

Of steam service for the conveyance of mails and passengers between the province
ad the mainland.

I have, &c.,
EDOUARD J. LANGEVIN, Under Secretary of State.

1i Sonor The Lieutenant-Governor of Prince Edward Island, Charlottetown.

PROVINCE OF PRINCE EDWARD IsLAND,

GOVERNMENT HIoUsE, 28th February, 1882.

t thIR,-My Government having by a Minute of Council recommended me to bring
rol th otice of the Dominion Government that this province is yet without a reply
om the Privy Council of Canada to the joint address of the Legislative Council and

1 6 Of Assembly, passed last session, on the subject of the failure of the Dominion
OVerment to carry out the terms of Confederation by providing continuous com-
A'nenication winter and summer, be tween this island and the mainland provinces of
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the Dominion. As the General Assembly meets on the 8th March, my Governnent
are anxious to have the reply with as little delay as poshble.

I have, &c.
T. IIEATH HAVILAN D, Lieutenant-Governor.

The Honorable the Secretary of State, Ottawa.

OTTAWA, 8th March, 1882.
SBr,-I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your dospatch, No. 9 of the

28th ultimo, requesting a reply to a joint Address of the Legislative Council and loise
of Assembly of the Province of Prince Edward Island passed during their last sessioC"
respecting continuous communication between that province and the mainland
provinces of the Dominion.

I have, &c.,
EDOUARD J. LANGEVIN, Under Secretary of State.

His Honor the Lieutenant-Governor of Prince Edward Island, Charlottetown.

This Minute was handed to His Honor the Lieutenant-Governor and by him Was
forwarded to the Secretary of State, Ottawa, the receipt thereof was acknowledged.

EXTRACT from the Minutes of the Bxecutive Council of Prince Edward Island.
COUNCIL CHAMBER, 31st January, 1883.

At a meeting of the Executive Council in Committee.
PRESENT:

The Honorable Messieurs:
Sullivan, Ferguson,
Campbell, Prowse,
McLeod, Lefurgey,

Arsenault.
The Executive Council in Committee has had under consideration the failure Of

the Dominion to fulfil that condition of the terms of Confederation which stipulateo
that the Government of Canada shall assume " and defray all the charges for the
establishment and maintenance of efficient steam service for the conveyance of ralle
and passengers between Prince Eiward Island and the mainland of the Domini 0

winter and summer, so as to place the island in continuons communication with the
Intercolonial Railway and the railway system of the Dominion."

In a joint address of the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of thi0
province to His Excellency the Governor General, adopted in the session of 18811
were set forth the enormous disadvantages under which the inhabitants of this isld
labor by reason of the insufficiency of the means provided for the transport of i
and passengers during the winter season, and a request was made for the immediat e
adoption of vigorous measures for the removal of the grievances complained of, ab
well as for the allowance of compensation by reason of the non.tulfilment in sue
respect of the terms of Confederation. The receipt of this address was dol
acknowledged by the Secretary of State in a despatch dated 16th Apiil, 1881, al
upon the notice of the Dominion Government being again directed thereto, and b
reply requested,, it was learned that the question was receiving their earne0
consideration.

The Council in Committee desire to draw the attention of the General Governneji
to the fact that although nearly two years have elapsed since the acknowledgmeCII t

of the receipt of the said address, no attempt has been made to improve the Mea0
of communication with the mainland provinces of the Dominion, and that the
grievances of therein still remain.
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During the first winter succeeding the union, it was not expected that much
o1uld be effected towards providing " continuons communication," but the inhabi-
ts.Jts of the island patiently awaited the result of the experiment being made by the

tnmion Government, to demonstrate the practicability of the winter navigation of
e Gulf of St. Lawrence. The futile attempts of the steamer " Northern Light "

uring the last seven years to maintain " continuons commuuication " are notorious.
dperience warrants the assertion that she is unfitted for the service. fier trips
during the few weeks of winter in wbich she runs are irregular; ber carrying
eaPacity is exceedingly limited, and her model is generally condemned.

A strong inducement for this province to enter Confederation was the promise
continuous communication with the Intercolonial Railway and the railway sys-31 of the Dominion." A service that would be as thoroughly efficient and regular

a.the railways with which such communication was guaranteed; in short, that
rince Edward Island should have equal facilities for intercourse with the other

Provinces as those provinces enjoy between themselves, and should participate in all
the benefits arising from the Intercolonial Railway and other public works upon the
"ainland, from which it had formerly been debarred for a great portion of the year,an4 to which it contributes without receiving any corresponding advantage.

The inconvenience and loss sustained by the people of this Province in conse-
qence of the imperfect means of winter transport are incalculable. Irregularity of
the mail service in which delays of ton consecutive days are often experienced, the
Onsequent derangement of business, the hardships of travelling, which only thethrong and robust are able to endure, the dargers attendant upon the winter routes,.e total stoppage of all transport for freight or merchandise; these are some of thedisadvantages attending the present mode of winter communication between this

Province and the mainland.
. Of continuous steam communication summer and winter, with the mainland,

. rince Edward Island received an assurance and guarantee at the time of its entry
Ito the Confederation in 1873. Nearly ten years have now elapsed since that event,

a1nd but one abortive attempt has been made hy the General Government to carry
aQt the solemn engagement into which they then entered. It is not the office of the

Sovernment of this province to dictate to the Dominion Government as to the way
Which they shall carry out the terms of union in respect to continuons communica-

tion, but the Council in Committee are bound to express the opinion that only a
Very feeble attempt has been made to accomplish this object, and that the means of
Obtaining this most desirable end have not been nearly exhausted.

To carry out the terms of Confederation with British Columbia, the Government
"expending an immense sum of money in the construction of the Pacific Railway; yet

Provide the means of communication between two provinces, over a distance
5carcely nine miles, and thus fulfil an obligation equally as binding as that with
ritish Columbia, the general Government have displayed a marked indifference.

The Council in Committee feel that the Government of Canada are justly charge-4ble with a most serions violation of the terms of union in this respect; they desire
mce ore to bring the matter prominently before the notice of Your Excellency intQuncil with the earnest holie that the ensuing session of Parliament will not be allowed

t Pass without the adoption of effective measures for the immediate fulfilment of the
8ms Of Confederation; they request that they may be furnished with a reply to the

Address of the Council and Assembly herein referred to, as well as to this minute in
flicient time to submit the sanme to the Legislature of this province at the approach-

îng session thereof. Should the Dominion Government fail to comply with the just
eqlest of this province, its Government will be reluctantly compelled to lay the griev-

4ce Complained of at the foot of the Throne, and to appeal for redress to Her Majesty
the Queen as one of the parties to the articles of Confederation.

Certified a true extract.

a F. DEBLOIS, Clerk Executive Council.
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(Telegram.)
CHARLOTTEOWN, 27th March, 1883.

To the Secretary of State, Ottawa.
Required immediately to lay before the Legislature now in session, Domi

G )vernment's answer to joint address of Legislature of April, 1881, relative to sto
communication with mainland, and also to Minute of Council of January last up0

the same subject.
T. HEATH HIAVILAND, Lieutenant Governor

(Telegram.)
OTTAWA, 28th March, 1883.

To the Lieutenant Governor of Prince Edward Island, Charlottetown.

Subject referred to in your message of the 27th instant, under consideration.
G. POWELL, Under Secretary of State.

GOVERNMENT floUsE, Charlottetown, P. E. ., 18th April, 1884.
Sia,-I have the honor to transmit herewith to be laid before His Excele0O

the Giovernor General, a joint address from the Legislative Council and House b
Assembly to Ris Excellency the Governor General representing the failure of tb
DOminion Government to carry out that part of the terms of Confederation Wb
requires the Government of Canada "to establish and maintain efficient sten
scrvice for the conveyance of mails and passengers between the island and the 1i
land of the Dominion, winter and summer, thus placing the island in continuo
communication with the Intercolonial Railway and the railway system of the 0
inion," and praying that His Excellency in Council will take such action as Oh.
case the grievance complained of to be remedied and the terms of union to be
fil ed, as well as praying that compensation be paid to Prince Edward Island for
non fulfilment of the said terms.

I have, &c.,
T. HEATH HAVILAND, Lieutenant Governor.

To the Hon. the Secretary of State, Ottawa.

OTTAWA, 24th April, 1884.
Sia,-I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch, No.

the 18th inst., tranismitting, in order that the same may be laid before His
lency the Governor General, a joint address from the Logislative Council and
of Assembly of Prince Edward Island, on the subject of at efficient steam service
the coriveyance of mails and passengers between that province and the mainlando
the Dominion winter and summer, and to state that the matter will receive due
sideration.

I have, &c.,
G. POWELL, Under Secretary of State.

His Honor the Lieutenant.Governor of Prince Edward Island, Charlottetown.

GOVERNMENT HlOUsE, CHARLOTTETOWN, P. E.I., 28th February, 1885.

SIR,-I have the honor to transmit herewith, for the consideration of aci0
Excellency the Governor General in Council, an approved minute of my COtf
passed on the 28th instant, upon the subject of the non-fulfilment of the term5 O

Confederation in respect to communication with the mainland, together with ,
eopy therein referred to of the address of the Legislature of the island as passed
the Session of 1884 on the same subject. 1 &c,

A. A. MACDONALD, Lieutenant-Governor.
The Honorable the Secretary of State, Ottawa.

38

A. 1



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. i6. A. 1886

OTTAWA, 6th March, 1885.
SIR,-I have the honor to acknowledgo the receipt of your despatch of the 28th

ult., transmnitting for submission to His Excallency the Governor General an approved
Minute of the Executive Coancil of Prince Edward Island in respect to winter com-
munication with the inaiiland, together with a copy to which the same refers of the
address of the Legislature of the island as passed in the session of 1881 upon the
subject, and to state that the sanme will receive due consideration.

I have, &c.,
G. POWELL, Under Secretary of State.

His ionor the Lieutenant-Governor of Prince Edward Island, Charlottetown.

LEGISLATIVE CoUNÇIL, SEssIoN oF 1885.

To fHis Honor the Honorable Andrew Archibald Macdonald, Lieutenant Governor of the
Province of Prince Edward island, &c., &c., &c.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR HONOR,-
Whereas, during the present session of the General Assembly this House did

join with the louse of Assembly in a memorial to Her Majesty the Queen, praying
ier Majesty's most gracious intervention in order to obtain from the Government of

Canada a fulfilment of the terms upon which this island entered the Confederation
in respect to communication with the mainland, and also the payment of compensa.
tion to this province for the loss sustained by its people in consequence of the failure
of the Dominion Government to carry out the said terme, and a joint address of both
flouses has been adopted requesting your Honor to forward the said memorial to His
Excellency the Governor General for transmission to Her Majesty the Queen;

And whereas since the adoption of the said memorial and address, an insurrection
has unfortunately been incited in the North-West Provinces, whereby not only the
peace and welfare of the Dominion have been disturbed, but the lives and property
of the citizens are endangered, while some of Her Majesty's subjects have met their
death in bravely endeavoring to uphold the authority of the British Crown;

And, whereas, this House recognizes the paramount obligation of the General
Government to suppress lawlessness and rebellion, and it is the imperative duty of
every British subject to assist the constituted authorities in the restoration of quiet.
ness and good order and in the maintenance of the Queen's supremacy;

Therefore, this flouse unwilling to embarrass the General Goverament while
occupied with matters of such weighty moment to the Empire, and looking to a
speedy termination of the insurrection, desire to postpone for the present the carry.
ing out of the constitutional means of which it seeks to redress a grievance of the
people of this province, and request your Honor not to forward the said memorial
until su h time during the approaching legislative. recess as in the opinion of your
advisers shall be deemed opportune.

Whilst this flouse regrets that an insurrection has been incited in the North.
West Territories, whereby not only the peace and welfare of the Dominion has been
disturbed, but that the lives and property of its citizens have been endangered, yet
as our case is a very urgent one in Our opinion, there should be no unnecessary delay
in forwarding the said memorial to fier Most Gracious Majesty the Queen, praying
fier Majesty's most gracious intervention, in order to obtain from the Government of
Canada a fulfilment of the termas of Confederation in respect to communication with
the mainland, and also compensation to the province for the loss sustained by its
people in consequence of the failure of the Dominion Government to carry out said
terms.

A true copy.

JOHN BALL, Olerk Legislative Counciz.
8?
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HlOUSE OF ASSEMBLY, SESSION OF 1885.
To Hs Honor the Honorable Andrew Archibald Mc Donald, Lieutenant-Governor of l

Province of Prince Edward Island, &c., &c., &c.
MAT IT PLEASE YOUR HONoR,-Whereas, during the present Session of the

General Assembly the House of Assembly did join with the Legislative Council in a
memorial to ler Majesty the Queen, praying Her Majesty's most gracious intervefl
tion in order to obtain lrom the Government of Canada a fuifilment of the terro
upon which this island entered the Confederation in respect to communication with
the mainland and also the payment of compensation to this province for the loss sU
tained by its people in consequence of the failure of the Dominion Government 0
carry out the said terms, and a joint address of both Houses has been adopted
requesting your Ilonor to forward the said memorial to His Excellency the Governor
General for transmission to Her Majesty the Queen;

And, whereas, since the adoption of the said memorial and address, an ins1r-t
rection has unfortunately been incited in the North-West Territories whereby I 0d
only the peace and welfare of the Dominion have been disturbed, but the lives
property of its citizens are endangered, while some of Her Majesty's subjects ha8e
met their death in bravely endeavoring to uphold the authority of the Britisb
Crown;

And, whereas, this House recognizes the paramount obligation of the Gelers'
Government to suppress lawlessness and rebellion, and it is the impe'ative duty
every British subject to assist the constituted authorities in the restoration of qule
ness and good order and in the maintenance of the Queen's supremacy;

Therefore, this louse unwilling to embarrass the General Government Whi'l
occupied with matters of such weighty moment to the Empire, and looking to a sped
termination of the insurrection, desire to postpone for the present the carrying out
the constitutional means by which it seeks to redress a grievance of the peolo o
this province, and request your Honor not to forward the said memorial until sa
time during the approaching legislative recess as in the opinion of your adviser
shall be deemed opportune.

A true copy.
FREDERICK W. H UGHES, Assistant ClerkHouse of Assenbly.

EXTRACT from Minutes of the Executive Council of Prince Edward lsland.
COUNCIL CHAMBER, 4th August, 1885.

The Executive Council in Committee have had under consideration thesepar
addresses of the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of this province, tO
flortor the Lieutenant-Governor, passed during their last session, requesting tbo
owing to their unwillingness to embarrass the Gcvernment of Canada during t4e
existence of the insurrection in the North-West Territories, their joint memorial to
Her Majesty the Queen, praying Her Majesty's most gracious inteivention, in ord
to obtain from the Governmont of Canada a fulfilment of the terms upon which thio
island entered the Confederation in respect to communication with the mainland,
also the payment of compensation to this province for the loss sustained by
people in consequence of the failure of the Dominion Government to carry OUt
aforesaid terms should not be forwarded until such time during the then approachi
recess as in the opinion of His Hlonor's advisers should be deemed opportune.

The Council in Committee advise that, as the insurrection has been effectUa sto
suppressed and order restored in the North-West Territories, the said joint addrOs
Her Majesty the Queen, together with the enclosures therein referred to, the de'1
separate addresses to His Honor and a copy of this Minute, be immediately forward
to His Excellency the Governor for transmission to Her Majesty the Queen.

Certified a true extract.
B. F. DiBLOIS, Cierk Executive CouC 4•
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RETURN
(17b.)

T0 aU ADDIRESS of the HOUsE OF CoMMoNs, dated 29th March, 1886; For a

copy of Report of the Minister of Marine and Fisheries to the Privy

Council under date of 15th of December, 1869.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEA U,
)Partment of the Secretary of State, Secretary of Btate.

22nd .April, 1886.

(strictly confidential.)

DEPARTMENT OF MARINE AND FIsHERIEs, OTTAWA, 15th December, 1869.
The Minister of Marine and Pisheries respectfully offers the following observv-

ons on a memorandum submitted in July last by the late Minister of Finance, in
oference at Washington with the British Minister and the American Secretary of

te, as the basis of proposed negotiations on the part of Great Britain and the
nkited States relative to fisheries and navigatior, in connection with existing trade

relations between the United States and Carada.
Article 1 proposes (in substance) to grant the United States citizens the same

%hing privileges which were secured to them by the Treaty of 1854, with the impor-
tant addition of similar freedom of our inland fishings, and whatever extension of the
privileges accorded by the former compact the altered circumstances of the time may
render necessary.

The ostensible equivalent for such extensive concessions is, from reference to
Article 5, an interchange of the natural productions of both countries-the same as
are enumerated in the free schedule adopted under the Reciprocity Treaty of 1854-
on reciprocal terms, subject to certain Customs duties, the measure of which impost
tO be the seale of interna] revenue taxation in the United States.

This proposal is objectionable chiefly with respect to the fisbing privileges it
Wotld concede to Americans, and the omission of corresponding privileges in favor
of Canadians.

The Treaty of Washington admitted American fishermen, in common, to all the
privileges of " sea-fishery "-taking and curing fish, landing, drying nets, &c., &c.,-
which are reserved exclusively to British subjects by the Convention of 1818; but it
Blaade Special reservations as regards the inshore and river fisheries-the salmon,
shad and sbell-fish fishery being excepted in express terms. Also, it defended the
Prior occupancy of British fishermen, and ail private or proprietary rights, both
actual and prospective.

teciprocal privileges of a precisely similar nature were, by the same instrument,
oextnded to Her Majesty's subjects along the eastern sea-coasts of the union from

taine to North Qarolina.
The present proposal would superadd to the advantages of unrestricted access to

o'tr coast and river fisheries, freedom of fisbing throughout the inland waters of the
the inion, whilst no reciprocal stipulation is made for concurrent privileges in either
thO tidal or fresh waters of the United States.

77b-1
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Practically, there fore, such a condition would at once add immeasurably to the
already ample cquivalent for frec trade afforded by the concessions made in 1854,
while ut the same time relinquishing all of the'corresponding privileges which were
allowed to British subjects, besides abandoning the important exemptions then made;

The effects of such an arrangement would prove most obiioxious to both our
interior and seaboard populations, and in the highest degree injurious to that large
class of persons and the very lucrative business dependent more or less on the
abundant fisheries of our tidal estuaries, lakes and rivers.

The undersigned is well aware that the recipi ocal privileges of fishing in certain
United States waters as described in the Reciprocity Treaty, amounted to a more
formal concession, of no practical use to colonial fishermen and of no material benefit
to Great Britain. The omission to provide anew for its continuance is not herD
remarked upon as involving any curtailment of the reciprocity in fishing which waS
stipulated for in the former treaty, but rather to mark the absence of reciprocal pro-
visions in this proposal. If it La likely to be regarded as a su bstantial part of the
recipi ocity we propose to secure, its omission may be thus explained ; but it should
nevertheless appear as a nominal concession among the provisions of any treaty that
nay hereafter be agreed upon.

The proposed extension of Amorican fishing privileges to our inland waters, and
the implied waiver of reservations which were contained in the Treaty of 1854,
demand serious notice. Such a proposal, even with the most unequivocal compen-
satory benefits, is liable to many objections ; and presented as it is without like con-
cessions from the other of the high contracting parties, is perfectly inadmissible oe
any grounds of reciprocity or justice.

The specific fishings which were mutually reserved by the first article of the
Reciprocity Treaty, were the salmon, shad and shell-fish fisheries, and generally ail
fisheries in rivers and the mouths of rivers. These important privileges are peculiar
in their nature, value and situation. In British waters they are protiic, conveni ent
and rapidly improving under the system of protection and management applied to'
them through our fishery laws and regulations. Those in American waters are,
comparatively speaking, barren, inaccessible to us, and fast deteriorating. We have
a regularly organized system of protection; the United Stales authorities have none.
They have refused and persistently neglected to legislate for the protection of fish
in the waters wbich border on our on n, and whc e the pi operty in them may b1
said to be common to both. Where our salmon and shad fishings are carried ou
large establishments have been formed, and considerable private capital is noW'
invested. The rivers are in numerous instances under leabe for several y ears At
annual rentals. Their productive capacity has been enlarged by improvements botà
at public and individual expense, and their natural produce yearly increasos througbh
the economical fishing imposed by law, and the efficient pro'ection applied to themn.
Besides the acqu red rights of porsons holding titles from the Crown, there exiMe
other vested rights associated with grants of the soil and oi fishery, and also the
preferences of riparian settlers, none of which culd now be disturbed witlout
giving rise to claims for compensation. The idea, therefore, of admittiug foreignore
to the possible enjoyment of any of the fruits of' such private enterprise and publio
outlay, either inside of the rivers, in the estuaries, or along the coast outside of the
mouths of rivers, cannot, with just regard to ourselves and the industry of OUr
people, be favorably entertained.

Then, as affects the lake fisheries, there could in reality be no reciprocity, sinee
the fishing grounds on the United States shores are so much inferior to our own, ant
are now so densely pre-occupied and over-fisbed as to render it improbable that Can
dian fishermen could obtain any vacant places, even if it was worth their while tO
forsake the superior limits which they now enjoy on the norbern coasts of the great
lakes. The numerous rivers and streams emptying into these lakes along their
northern shores, being peculiarly adapted to the breeding and feeding of the variol 0

kinds of fish which frequent the lake region, give to the Canadian fresh-water fish-
Ings a value and perma:ency which are not possessed by those of the southern coaste'

2
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]1utuaî freedom of resort would be on this account alone, so unequal as to operate
altogether to the detriment of Canada, and inure to the advantage of foreigners. And
besides injuring such of our people as are engaged in fishing pursuits, the admission
of Arnericans, whose catch would largely be exp<)rted fresh to United States ports,WouId, by diminishing our catch, cause a scarcity of fish in Canadian markets and
th1s increase their cost to consumers. The competition and rivalry which would
ensue between native and foreign fishermen must necessarily expose our inland
ýaters to the dangers of excessive fishing, and would devolve on the public greatly
1rcreased experise for regulating and protecting them. In the case of the Magdalen
.slands, tor instance, the presence of a fleet of United States vessels and boats resort-
ing there every spring for the mackerel and herring fisheries, compels our Govern-

aent to send there an armed vessel to preserve order and protect the inhabitants
t iniary and outrage. Sometimes it becomes necessary to employ a boat's crew
there throughout the spring, summer and autumn fishery. Daring these seasons the

ays and harbors are crowded with American vessels and fishermen, who, combining
together and having superior numbers and botter means, crowd out the residentfisbers. These foreigners occupy the shores and seining places without regarding
the prior right and just privileges of the natives. They ignore also the effect of
aetual settlement on the coasts of these islands, which precludes them under the
0 onvention of 1818 from continuing to fish and land thora without the previous con-
Sent of the settlers. It is not at all advisable to reproduce this state of things on the
Coasts of the great lakes.

At present, owing to the improved condition of our lake and river fisheries since
they have been properly protected by fishery officers and subjected to judicious re-
Strictions imposed by the fishery laws their occupation has become more than ever

esirable to our own people. There is every reason to consider this improvement
Progressive in its character, and the signal success attendino our endeavors to
ellgment the natural supplies of fish food by means of artificial propagation place it
9h 5ost þeyond a doubt that the inland fishings of the Dominion will soon become a
source of great wealth to the country. The definition of exclusive holdings and the
Placing of them under leases or licenses to native fishormen is calculated to ensure
greater regularity in the prosecution of this branch of industry and to croate more
Confidence in the pursuit. Americans have already offered cQniderable rents for
eases of exclusive fishery limits in our inland waters. Were these waters to be now

GPOned to United States citizens, under whatsoever reservations as to prior occupancy,. y would at once cut off the run of fish to and fro between the deep water and the
'1shore fishing places now laid out and rented as stations. Take for an example, the
tase of Lake Erie and the Detroit river. The islands and reefs situated off the pen-
1 sular section of the Province of Ontario are chief resorts of fish which breed in the
Western part of Lake Erie, and the channels to the north-west of these along the
Vanadian side of the boundary line are the routes by wbich fish enter the Detroit and
't. Clair rivers and pass upwards to the north. Were United States fishermen to be
a lowed to place their nets in these localities, the river and island fithings would be
StOpped, and gradually the fishery at both would bocome extinct. There are manyOther places in the various lakes where the greatest possible injury might be thus

on4 by Americans without any actual trespass on the inshore limits of our fishermen.
Purthermore, we are now entering into possession of the North-Western Terri-

tories extending from Lake Superior to the Rocky Mountains, in which are com-
iVhsed immense bodies of fresh water teaming with fish of the most valuable kinds.

e resources of these waters will be of moment in the current settlement of that
etensive tract, and must in due course open up a new field for domestic production.

erhOy Occupy everywhere the valley region, and are so situated in relation to the
"eighboring countries as to afford those ready and permanent supplies of fish-food so

eeessary to the vigorous and hardy settlers of North-West America. Their exclusive
%otrol should be joalously preserved as well on our own behalf as for the sake of the

dian population. The forest hunting grounds of the Indian tribes cannot co-exist
'With agricultural and lumbering enterprises, and the game of the plains will here, a
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it bas done everywhere else, disappear as the country becomes settled. But the
waters may be fished without sensibly diminishing their supplies- so long as kept
under our own control, and the Iadians can always rely on them for fish-food when
the chase shall no longer afford them the means of subsistence to which they are
accustomed.

It is remarked that Mr. Thornton says, in reply to an enquiry by Mr. SecretarfY
Fish, as to the conditions on which Canada expects to export fish to the Unitd
States, that, if Americans are allowed free fishing in British waters, provincial caUght
fish should be admitted equally free into United States markets. This is a suggestio1i
which, while it undervalues the right of fishery, is inconsistent with our previoa0

policy and declarations. It was advanebd by Mr. Seward, in 1866-it was suggested
also by Mr. Meirelil hefore the colonial delegation at Washington-and again
adverted to in 1868. On each occasion it was met by most enphatic disapproval ot
the part of the Canadian Government. (Reference is requested to the Minute oft
Couicil, dated 18th June, 1866; also a report from this Department of 27th Februar'
1868, afterwards approved by the Privy CounciL)

It is submitted that the terms of the Treaty of 1854, in so far as they relate to the
isheries, are sufficiently favorable to the United States without any such extensionO
as would probably be demanded under article 1 of Mr. Rose's memorandum. Thy
very liberal and conciliatory spirit in which those terms were conceived was further
supplemented by the decisions of the joint commission named by the British and
Anerican Governments to define the limits of reserved privileges. The awards Of
that commission, of which the present Secretary of State for the Provinces (Hon-
Jos. Howe) was a distinguished member, are conspicuous for their liberality, and
have greatiy enhanced the value of the original concessions made in the treaty to
United States citizens.

The undersigned is, for the several reasons above stated, clearly of opinion that
no new or additional concessions affecting the Canadian fisheries should be offered of
sanctioned in any proposais for another commercial treaty.

Article 2 enlaiges on the right of navigating the inland waters of Canada, as
existed under the toi mer treaty, without however making such extension mutul,
but leaves the otber reciprocal rights named in the fourth article of the said treatl
the same. It adds a conditional obligation to undertake certain canal improvemente
adapted to the better accommodation of American vessels. Such an undertaking
would doubtless occasion a heavy expenditure, which should not be lost si ght of iI
computing rates of duty intended to equalize the internai taxation of te iUnited
States.

In this connection also it is of some consequence to bear in mind that there are
other projects of internal navigation more directly beneficial to the country at large,
and of much greater urgencýy as relates to the Lecessary interior communicatiol
which our north-western extension will necessitate. It is very probable indeed that
the general desire of the country to improve the great natural opportunities which
the valley of the Upper Ottawa presents, at the earliest possible moment when.the
public exchequer admits of such an outlay, may defer, for the time being, any frontier
improvements designed for the immediate benefit of foreign commerce.

The limited extent to which Canadian crafts avail themselves of this feature 19
the pioposed reciprocity, compared with the facilities it affords to the Anierican
carrying trade, renders the concession an important one, entirely favorable to the
United States, and such as should ensure some adequate equivalent. Our experience
of the reciprocal use of American canals, with which Canadian tonnage has bee¤
'heretofore favored, is not calculated to inspire hopes of any equivalent in kind. The
almost entire exclusion from the various state canais of ail merchandise carried iO
British bottoms, even during the existence of the Reciprocity Treaty, in which the
Federal Government engaged to urge upon the state authorities to secure to us their
use on terms of equality with American inhabitants, but which they faited to ac0rn-
plish, forbids us to expect anything from engagements of an indirect nature.
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Article 3 proposes to deal, firstly (a), with the laws regulating the coasting trade.e POlicy of the United States on this subject is of the most restrictive and
thfriendly character. It is not merely a defensivo one on their part, conceived in

spirit of protection, but is levelled and enforced against Canadian shipping with
t'rme rigor-notwithstanding that both Imperial and colonial legislation, affecting

the foreign mercantile marine have been, meanwhile, of the most liberal tendency.
re invidious operation of this policy is explained in another part of the present
trport; and some remedial changes should be insisted upon in any future disposal ofth" Subject. No new treaty of commerce would, in the opinion of the undersigned,
lroVe acceptable to the Dominion in which the required alterations are not provided

or after which Canadian vebsels shall be excluded from registration in the United
esO8. Tne terms on which this reciprocal privilege may be secured might bu

ereed upon on the basis of a Customs tax proportioned to the internal revenue tax.
n, as in other cases;
Secondly (b), to revise the patent and copyright laws. There are strong objec-S to abandoning the vantage ground we at present occupy as regards foreign

!t"enttions. And unless, in relaxing our patent laws for the advantage of American
ventors as part of a general scheme of reciprocity, it ensures some general privi-

eges to British publishers, we should retain the advantages at our command;
Thirdly (c), to extend the principle of extradition. The moral considerations

F3upport of such provisions as shall reach other offences than those for which
tgitives from justice may now be extradited apply equally to both countries, buttre larger extent and population of the United States, and necessarily the greater
requency of divers grades of crime which it is the commercial no less than the

cial interest of the American Government and people to be enabled to suppress,
he his proposal rather favorable towards them.

t Article 4 provides for the continuance of transit through American and Canadian
tritories respectively. This system, as at present existing, is, so far as Canada is
nCerned, quite as free from restrictions as it is possible to make it; but the chargesd hindrances to which goods in transitu through United States territory are sub-
t for protective reasons, make the arrangement burdensome only to our trade.

1Order to ba mutually beneficial these facilities should be as nearly as may be,
udUced to a uniform system, having some guarantee of permanence.

Article 5 being the chief of these propositions as relating to an exchange of the
ltral products of both countries, agrees in the main with the principle of recipro-tty and mutual advantage on which the negotiations profess to be based.

tre There is an omission in the schedule referred to as adopted under the former
Of aty of the article of " hay," which occasion should be taken to supply. It is one

td ea staple agrieultural productions in certain portions of the Maritime Provinces,
o' Was probably overlooked in the preparation of the free list. The omission ought

to be Supplied in any future arrangements.
int .If the duties to be placed on the articles enumerated are to be mensured by the
lernal revenue taxes of the United States, as suggested in this clause, it will be
aecessary to distinguish between the existing and exceptional state of taxation there,
4t'd the altered condition of things which it is reasonable to anticipate as a near
lesult of the vast resources and the great energy and industry of the American people.

Article 6 promises to assimilate the Excise duty on certain articles ef luxury, and
devise means to assist United States officials in the prevention of smuggling. This

neo involves a small amount of taxation on our people which may not be at all
1 cessary for our own revenue purposes. It might be difficult to compute the value
'ne uch assistance as could be afforded through the co-operation of our Customs and

elelse officers; but as the local burden of thue rendering aid reste on us, while it
th* Our neighlbors from extra exertions and may save them from revenue losses,

ei offer amounts to something more than a proof of friendly disposition towards

The foregoing proposals by the late Finance Minister, taken as a whole, seem to
int i the most advantageous form those concessions which it may be found

5
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advisable to make, in order to bring about renewed commercial intercourse betwOe0

the United States and Canada. They appear, however, to be, in some respects, tO#
indefinite, and are not quite consistent with the prin-,iple of reciprocity on which it
is desirable to adjust the trade relations of these adjacent countries. The arrange'
inent of details would, of course, determine whethor or not snch discrepancihs maYr
be reconciled with tolerable satisfaction to both parties. But it should be-recolleuLe
that we contend the reciprocal trade which subsisted for eleven years under the ol4
treaty was as profitable to the United States as it was to Canada. This boing the
case, it should be sufficient, on reciprocal principles, to reckon the additional col'
cessions made by us as equivalents for the extraordinary burdens created by sube
quent events.

There is a striking similarity between these proposals and those which were
discussed in the abortive conferences on the same subject held in 1866, the uttar
rejection of which, and the views thon indicated, give smal promise of their preset
adoption. The vague purport of the resolution of Congress, in pursuance of WNoiciÎ
negotiations were commenced last summer, taken in conjunction with the deocided
expression of an adverse policy made by the American Cabinet, through the recent
Message of President Grant, against any treaty of reciprocity between the United
States and Great Britain, and affirmed, as it has since been, by the endorsement Of
the Hom e of Representatives-these utterances being an official pre-judgment on the
whole question-suffice, in the opinion of the undersigned, to dispel whatever hoPe
inight have been entertained of bringing resumed negotiations to a satisfactory col"
clusion. Instead, therefore, of resuming conferences the futility of which already
appears cbvious, it is respectfully submitted that it would better consist with oUr
own dignity and interest to review at once the whole subject of our commerce with
the United States, the fisheries and navigation, with the view of adapting thom t
our relative position and necessities. If it shall be found expedient to adopt retalia
tory measures, contingent on some modification of commercial policy on the part Of
the Amorican Government, let us make up our minds that such is the only practiwe
"reciprocity " our neighbors are likely to appreciate. Canadians may profit further
by the lesson in self-reliance, and will bear with patriotic spirit and loyal patience
whatever temporary disadvantages can attend the trial.

The invitation of the American Secretary of State to the British Minister a
Washington, in June last, to open nogotiations touching the fisheries and navigation,
had reference to the resolution then recontly passed by Congress.

That resolution proposes securing to United States citizens "the rightw
claimed by them in the fisheries of the British provinces in America."

The undersigned perceives in this expression the chief obstacle to arranging aUY
ternis of reciprocal trade into which the concession of fishing privileges enters as a
etquivalent. Americans do not realize either the extent or value of the commnoe
privileges of fishery thus acquired in our waters. They have been taught, and DO*
firmly believe, that their rights on our shores are nearly as extensive and almost as
valuable as our own. Their fishermen have carried out in practice this cherished
belief. The habitual fact of their free and easy admission everywhere among Our
inshore fishing grounds is regarded by them as a tacit acknowledgment of the clai"i
always set up in their bohalf and maintained at critical junctures by their Goverl"
ment.

They are educated to assert a construction of the Convention of 1818 favorabl
to United Statos citizîns, and subversive of the claims of British subjects. In their
official reports, sanctioned by authority, in their state papers, in the speeches of the;t
representatives, in their public press, the American people advance claims affecti«-
our inshore fisheries which are extravagant in fact, and which the highest 1ega
authorities of Great Britain have declared to be untenable in law. United State
fishermen not 'having for some fourteen years past been brought face to face With
anything more than a more formal donial of such extreme pretensions, whili
etudiously informed of only the popular version of them, amplified in many instanlO1
beyond the bounds of reason, they have.really no practical idea of the wide difforeDO
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'ylWeen what is maintainable at public law as the exclusive property of Her
'JCsty's subjects, and what they, as foreigners, can establish under treaty stipula-

ch01s which they are bound to respect. And just so long as they shall continue to
ChEirish this undefined and exaggerated conviction there can be no real appreciation
On their part of any concessions, however extensive and valuable that are made by

n4ada. Feeling no pressure from the narrowness of their national liberty of fishing,
not being compelle to join issue on the whole fishery question, they will

assuredly continue to enjoy what they call their privileges, without any equivalent,
despite of license systems or warnings which experience teaches and circum-

et4ices enable them easily to evade.
The prevalence of this convenient misapprehension is fraught with danger to

he peace of both nations. Long continuance of a temporizing policy transparent to
'eryone as conceived in fear of bringing to speedy settlement a troublesome inter-
aht1Omal dispute, and executed, also, with such tender formalities as to defeat itself,
ta have no other influence than to confirm unjust pretensions and embolden aggres-
iOn, Nor can we, in the light of human experience, anticipate any other result as.
te legitimate sequel to our weak demands than that, ultimately, wo shall be con-

onted by sone sudden individual enforcement of a firm belief in the national claim,
he danger of a crisis of this kind is strikingly illustrated by the public intima-

tie0 brought under the notice of our Government by Mr. Thornton's despatch of
2Oth October last, enclosing a copy of an article from the New York Tribune of thatdate, in which the Gloucetcr fishermen are represented as arming thensolves tr
enforce their " right " to cruite in Cariadian waters without licenses, and to resist
.8titikh crusiers molesting them. The languale of this article is just such as would
11pel United States fishormen to act in the manner indicated, and it suggests what
ýY be at any moment the grievous effect of those undisputed convictions on this
1bject which American fishermen have come to regard as irresistible from any British'

e t of view. Allusion is made to the persistent and annoying interference of
ritish cruisers " in their legitimate pursuit " of cruising and taking fish in our fish-

11grounds. The determination is expressed no longer to submit " to expulsion
'1rnrû waters in which they believe themselves ent>tled to cruise and fish; " they ar*
4tisfied "that their just privileges have been invaded," and they will not hesitate

t fire on any naval or fishery officers who shal molest them.
In the true interests of peace, therefore, no less than in justice to the present

'oant 5 and future prospects of this country, it is desirable to put an end to such au
W'kward misbelief, and to insist on rights of exclusion which the laws of civilized

tations declare to be ours.
The material worth and national importauce to Canada of the coast and inshore

heries in British American waters, can scarcely be overestimated. Their produca
$&d control are of especial value to Nova Scotia, and that province might reasonably-
lPect from the union of colonial interesits some accession to the vigor and authoritywith which our claim to exclusive fishcry rights within treaty limits have beek

eady maintained by the Maritime Provinces. These rights are based on public law,?d are limited only by treaty stipulations. The extent to which they are so limited
ythe Convention of London, dated 20th Octobor, 1818, between G eat Britain and

.ielJnited States, is still in controversy. Giat Brttain contends that the prescribed
ct of three marine miles, as the limit of exclusion, should be measured from head-

d to headiand; while the UniteL States Goveriment contends that it should be,
14ensured from the interior of the bays and sinuosities of the coast. In support ofthe British view reference is made as well to the exact terms of the convention as.
to the law and practice of nations regarding tâeir sovareign rights and territorial

sdiction. The legal authorities on theso points are cited at length in a special
ePort herewith, by au officer of this Department, marked A, to which reference is
s1Pectfnly requested. Tho American Government, on the other hand, claims that
A COptional definition of tha limit of a marine league running everywhere parallel
the coast line, describing the course of indentation, &c., instead of detinng the
oiths of bays and other indentations, by lines drawn across from one headland to
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another, is founded in the peculiar circumstances of the case. That, as United State
citizens hsd formerly used these inshore fisheries under a favorable construction f
certain liberties of fishing accorde] them by the treaty of peace with Great Brita1l
in 1783, and as the subsequent Convention of 1818 was an amicable adjustment '
differences growing out of such user, the renunciation of their claim to concurre'0
privileges in the inshore fisheries, made in the latter convention, should not be
rigidly construed to their entire exclusion.

Sach is substantially the " fishery question " as it stood at the time of enteriI9
into the Reciprocity Treaty of 1854, and as it was revived on the abrogation of tht
treaty by the United States.

This brief resumé of the fishery dispute between Great Britain and the Uniw
States, and a passing reference to the considerate measures subsequently adopted
will serve to explain the attitude which it is at present recommended that Canado
ahould assume.

The various departmental reports and minutes of Council, forming part of the
printed return berewith, marked B, relate to the continuance of the system of issuing
season licenses to American fishing vessels on merely nominal terms, and also proa"
by referring to Imperial despatches, that Her Majesty's Government and the Ca"e-
dian Executive distinctly provided at the outset that such system should be of ten'
porary duration and contingent on the mutual adoption, at an early date, of a treatf
of commerce between Great Britain and the United States. This provisional systen'
bas now continuod for four years, its renewal each successive year having b0ee
assented to by Canada as a temporary expedient, the termination of which 'W4
iooked forward to before the recurrence of another season. The expectation tbat

such temperate and moderate measures-if the Americans really desired to reDe «
the commercial intercourse which had subsisted in former times between themselveo
and these colonies-would lead to at least a tolerably satisfactory arrangAment
some kind sufficient to obviate any iinmediate revival of those irritating differenc
ao amicably compromised by the reciprocal concessions acceded to in 1854, had 110t
been realized.

The undersigned further begs to call the attention of Council to the position
our maritime interests and the questions raised by the United States with refere" 8

to navigating the River St. Lawrence and the Gut of Canso. In a report prepared
by direction of Council and submitted on the 2nd April, 1868, a copy of which le
hereto annexed, marked C, occasion was taken to point out the disabilities under
which the colonial merchant marine labors, and to contrast the relative treatment 1î
respect of tonnage ard other dues of British and American vessels in the ports of th'
respective countries. It was shown that the duties on British tonnage and othe
Customs charges imposed on British vessels entering United States ports, are unU0t
and burdensome, and that they are further aggravated by various other advantage
conferred on American craft to such an extent as virtually to prohibit competitio
in British bottoms in the carrying trade of the lakes and seaboard. These adva»'
tages induce parties to invest in American tonnage to the detriment of Canadit
ship-owners.

It will be perceived, on referring to the above-montioned report, that the Britioh
vessels are prohibited from calrying passengers or freight between United State
ports, and from state to state, while down to last season American vessels could carrf
goods and passengers between any or all of the provinces of the Empire. SiBo
1849 the liberal policy of the Imperial Government bas permitted the ships of forei9g
nations to trade freely between the different colonies, and also between each col0"0
and the mother country. The statutes giving such important privileges to foreigDer9
provided, moreover, that any colony could, if it so desired, by an address to the Cr0o,«O
throw open the local coasting trade. The Act 32 Vic., cap. 2, cited as " b
Merchant Shipping (Colonial) Act, 1869," alters the position of this colony as rot
pects this trade, It provides that unless within two years from the date of its proc
ination (which in Canada took place on the 23rd October, 1869), any colonY ,
olonies shall by positive enactment legislate to the contrary, their coasting tra;
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shall remain open to all foreign nations. Thus, without the legislative action above
prescribed, Americans will, in addition to the privileges they already enjoy, be freely
admitted to participate in our coasting trade, while they jealously exclude us from all
Participation in theirs.

The same report also shows that, although we permit all foreign built vessels to be
registered in Canada, American laws and regulation deny to British-built vessels the
privilege of registration in United States ports; and that, while no duties are charged
UPOI American ships in Canada, other than those chargeable to our own vessels, and
there are no Government charges of any kind for United States vessels frequenting
0 nr lake ports-except in cases where they may use the canals, paying only the same
tolls las !our own vessels-yet àBritish craft entering their ports on the lakes are
8lbject to a special tax of 30 cents (in gold) per ton. Their own vessels are exempted
fromu this charge, if holding licenses, to trade between different districts within the

1'qion, and nearly all of them hold such licenses-or when engaged in the fisheries,
or Plying between Mexican, North American and West Indian ports, and pay tonnage
dity annually. But as foreign vessels cannot procure licenses, this special tax is
evied on each entry into United States ports during every season. The lake trafflo

Consequently becomes a bsorbed by American tonnage, and the development of our
shipping interests sustains a serious check. This constructive method of exclusion
bY a licensing system available only to Americans, approximates very closely to a
d'fferential duty against our ships and in favor of their own. Canada would have been
authorized under the 173rd section of the Imperial Statute 16 and 17 Vie., cap. 107,
ad justified by the circumstances, to impose on United States vessels counter-vail-
"'g charges; but bas refrained from doing so, in accordance with the conciliatory for-
harance which has in other respects prompted our policy towards the Americans.

A practice also prevails in United States ports of exacting an arbitrary fee of $5
PaYable to customs officers, together with some minor charges, for each entry and
clearance of Canadian vessels, although no such fees are collected in our ports. This
tax bears so heavily in the case of steamers as practically to prohibit the employ-

n'at of colonial tonnage in that kind of business, especially since such drawback on
?Ur trade is supplemented by exemptions applied to American steamcraft, discrim-
lt atory in their effect as against Canadians.

Also, in connection with pilota-ge, there is a studied disfavor evinced towards
Canada.

American vessels are exempted from compulsory pilotage in voyaging between
Oertain United States ports on the Atlantic frontier, but are compelled, as are all

s08els of certain dimensions, to engage pilots when Foing to, or returning fron
hitish waters, and clearing to and from colonial ports.

Then, again, in the matter of light-dues which, anterior to the union of these
reovinces, were in certain ports chargeable on all shipping, but have been reinoved
y the Dominion Government, there was no exception made against American ves-

Bel. The law imposing a tax of ten cents per ton on vessels navigating the Gut of
Panso, has also been allowed to expire. As the American fishing fleet reach the fish-
itig grounds through this passage, and have been so permitted so to use it for years
Past, these free terms certainly enhance a concession which might be at any time
Withheld, it being the opinion of Her Majesty's Government (referred to elsewhere)
that foreigners have no right whatever to navigate the same.
. Americans have enjoyed the use of our canals on the same footing with Cana-

dians, and still deny our tonnage the use of theirs on reciprocal conditions. They
e treciate this boon. In the course of discussion among the delegates at Washington,

1864, the Chairman of the Committee of Ways and Means affirmed that the use of
Mr canais by United States vessels was rather an advantage to us than a favor to

thema. Even in the carrying trade through these canals, as for example, from Chicago
S'Detroit to Oswego, a distinction is made against colonial tonnage, on the ground

of it8 being a coasting voyage, although it is impossible for any vessel to make it
thithout passing through British territory. We are thus completely excluded fromn
the bene of this considerable trade,

17b-2 9
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The same want of appreciation exhibited in respect of our fisheries and canals,
is observable with reference to the navigation of the St. Lawrence, to which Amer"-
cans lay claim of national right, as the natural onlt of partially conterminous
territories. In the same resolution of Congress, quot. ý bove, the claim is re-asserted
to freely navigate the River St. Lawrence " from its sources to the sea." The
Council is aware that this claim has already formed the subject of diplomatie disos-
sion, and that the weight of authority derived from the law of nations is adverse to
Anerican views. The controversy was put in suspense by the Reciprocity Treaty-
Now, whethor the United States might or might not use the St. Lawrence River as
a thoroughfare, from the Great Lakes to the Atlantic Ocean, as a matter of state
right, and not merely aq a conventional one -which it is-there could be no question
ab)ut the right of user being applicable to the river, if at all, only in its natural
state, and noe as its navigability bas been rendered feasible by artificial improve-
ments, located within the jurisdiction and forming the property of a foreign power.
A formal decision on the dispute, still in abeyance on this point, might bring about
a realization of the value of such a concession.

Recent legislation by the Americans regarding the import of lumber into their
ports fromu the St. John River, New Brunswick, also works very detrimentally to
the interests of British subjects.

Under the Ashburton Treaty, so called, our richest timbered limits on the
upper S. John were ceded to the United States by Great Britain. The lumber of
these lands requires to be floated down the St. John River, whereon it is afterwards
manufactured. If owned by an American citizen, it enters duty free on beinlg
exported to the United States.

This offers a premium to mill-owners in the vicinity of St. John to release them-
selves from British atllegiance and take the oath of citizenship in the United States.
It has been done in several instances, by prominent citizons, as a measure of neces-
sity and because it was otherwise impossible to compote with American manu'
facturers.

A still harder case exists, which absolutely closes that peculiar branch of trade
against British subjects. The American citizen entering his lumber at Boston or else-
where, values it on entry, say at $40 per thousand superficial feet, which price he
claims it to be worth to him at St. John, the place ofshipment, thus takingthe market
value in Boston, $45, less freight and charges of $5, as the nominal value at the place
of export, and enters it accordingly.

The British shipper, adopting the same rule of taking the value at
Boston, say...... ... ....................................... $45

Less freight and charges...........................................$. 5
Also less duty, 20 per cent., which, though he bas to pay,

the American exporter escapes from, say.................... 9
- 14

$31
leaves S31, as the value at St. John. Such valuation, manifestly fair, the United
Siates auti orities refuse to recognize, but exact duty on, just one-fifth more than the
actual wortih or cost at 1 ho place of shipment. This \action is felt to be a great in-
justice to Canadians, and tends to force persons engaged in manufacturing lumber to
either abandon the business or protect themselves by becoming naturalized as A1-
erican citizens in order to carry on their operations without loss.

The undersigned has endeavored to show, by reference to existing facts and
instances of hardship, that the policy of concession and conciliation has failed il
obtaining fi om the A merican Government the removal of restraints on international
trade and navigation, and how effectually the legislation and executive action of the
United States have been directed towards monopolizing trade between the two cou"-
tries, and to what extent such restrictions and discrimination have succeeded il
excluding Canadian tonnage from all participation in carrying trade. The continu'
ance of such a one-sided state of things is not only detrimental to our trade and ship-

10
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P.iig interests, but it is calculated to sap the loyalty of our intelligent populations
'Iving along the great lakes, or who are interested in our tonnage and commerce,
aId weakening their confidence in our too complacent system of government. These

eople cannot fail to draw unfavorable comparisons between the treatment which
their interests receive on the other side of the boundary line and that which is
enjoyed by Americans trading in Canada. There are, as respects the article of coal
411d sait strong reasons why we should consider the m specially with reference to
the United States tariff; but as the Ministers of Finan ce and Customs will doubtless
emlIbrace the subject in matters coming within their province, it is unnecessary to
elllarge upon it.

It is, in conclusion, respectfully recommended that ail privileges of a concessory
11atIre, affecting our inshore fisheries and the navigation of the Gut of Canso, be
Withdrawn, and that the same tonnage duties and other charges as are now imposed
bY American legislation on British tonnage be reciprocally applied to American
tonaRge, as provided for by the Imperial Act, 32 Vic., chap. 11, sec. 173, and that if
it bdeemed inexpedient to prohibit altogether the use of the Gut of Canso, its pas-
8age being intimately connected with fishing pursuits in or near our own waters, a
ePecial tonnage tax be levied on foreign vessels navigating the same. Also that
during the ensuing session of Parliament the necessary legislation shall be proposed
tforeclose foreign nations from the freedom of our coasting trade, as prescribed by
the Colonial Merchant Shipping Act of 1869.

The undersigned wishes to be clearly understood that in making the above
rommendations, he has no leaning whatever to a policy of imposing restrictions on

OImnerce. On the contrary, his views are entirely favorable to the fullest freedom
of commercial intercourse between ail nations on fair and reciprocal terms. But in
the present case it would be idle to conceal from ourselves the entire absence, on the
Peart of the United States, of that equitable spirit which should govern the commer-
ial relations of contignous countries at peace with each other, and rival only in the

entergetic pursuit of national development conducive to their mutual prosperity.
The course now recommended is one of expediency, based on the only principle

Of reciprocity which seems to find favor in the estimation of American statesmen,
hamnely, protecting ourselves by equalizing the burdens which circumstances impose

O Our natural products and domestic industries, and on our privileges of fishery and
aavig'ation.

The whole respectfnlly submitted.
P. MITCHELL, Minister of Marine and Fisheries.
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RE T J RN
(77d)

To an ADDRESS of the HO USE of COMMONs, dated 5th April, 18 6 ;-For copies

of all correspondence between the Government of British Columbia, or
any person, and the Dominion Government, with regard to the deep
water Fisheries on the coast of British Columbia.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,

epartment of the Secretary of State.

29th April, 1886,

001Y of a Report of a Comnittee of the Honorable the Executive Council, approved by
His Honor the Lieutenant Governor the 16th February, 1884.

On a memorandum from the Honorable the Provincial Secretary, dated the 15th
Pebraary, 1884, recommending approval of an Address to lis Honor the Lieutenant

overnor which bas been passed by tho Legisiative Assembly, viz.:-
"That whereas it is generally admitted that valuable deep water fisheries exist

along the coast of this Province that would contribute largely to the interest and
Welfare of the country if they were thoroughly known and developed ;

" And whereas no survey bas ever been made with the oject of discovering and
iaking public the localities where fish may betaken in sudic'ent quantities to indice

capital aud labor to profitably engage in the development of the deep-water fisherieo;
"And whereas under section 5, tub-+eetion E of the terms of Union, Canada

agreed to assume and defray the charges for the pruteetion and encouragemunt of thc
fiaheries in this Province ;

"And whereas it is absolutely necessary, in order to fully develop the deep-
Water fiheries of this Province, that a thorough survey should be made to discover
and make known the localities where deep water fish may be tiken;

" Be it therefore resolved, That an humble Address be presented to His Honor
the Lievtenant Governor, praying that His Honor may be pleased to urge upon the

LIjinion Government that it is desirable and necessary to equip and maintain a
vessel on this coast for the purpose of searching for codtish and halibut banks, oyster
beds, and other kinds of shell-fish which may be found, and to take land-marks, and
define and make an accurate survey of all fishing banks that may be disoovered, aud
]r'ePort from time to time to this Government."

The Committeeadvise that this Minute be approved, and a copy hereof forwarded
the Honorable the Secretary of State for Canada.

Certified.
JOHN RO BSON, Clerk Executive Council.
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RETURN
(78b)

O an ADDriss of the HousE of COMMONS, dated lst April, 1886 ;-For copies.
of all Petitions from the Legislature of Nova Scotia and all correspon-
dence between the Government of Nova Scotia, or any member thereof,
and the Dominion Government, or any member thereof ; and all the
Orders in Council of either Government respecting the re-adjustment
Or increase of the money subsidy paid, or to be paid by the Dominion.
Government to the Government of Nova Scotia, not already brought
dlown,

By Command.
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

elpartiment of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.

29th May, 1886.

< anPIED Copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved
6Y Ris Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 12th May, 1880.

On a report, dated 3ist March, 1880, from the Honorable the Minister of Finance,
ae t1gthat he has had under consideration a memorandum from the accountant to

ût easury Board, approved by the Deputy Minister of Finance, upon the subject
e accounts in dispute between the Province of Nova Scotia and the Dominion.
Ihe Minister states that the first item is the claim of the Province, for interest

o the value of the lighthouse and other stores taken over at Confederation, from
t 'st July, 1867, to 30th June, 1878, the date the value of the stores was allowed
the Province, that the amount claimed is $32,430.41, and he recommends that, as

t1 asimilar case interest was allowed to New Brunswick, authority be given to credit
e Province with the amount.

That the second is in connection with a charge made against the Province in
8 for the amount ($S4,367.77) of the defalcation in the Halifax post office.
That as there is no doubt the entry was an erroneous one he recommends that
reversed and that the interest upon the amount from the date the entry was,

ed to the date of tho next adjustment of the balance, viz., 30th of Jane next,
1onuting to 81,004.13 be also allowed to the Province.

1818That with regard to the charge of $19,873.08 also made against the Province in
on money order account, and which the Provincial Secretary claims is not a

ate charge, he, the Minister, is unable to recommend that any alteration be

That the next and final matter referred to in the memorandum is the claim of
bominion against the Province for the balance, $31,295.20, standing at the debit
e ova Scotia, Railway suspense agcoant.
Por the raons stated in the memorandum and in that of Mr. Tims, which

4%panies it, the Minister states that he is of opinion that the claim is a valid one
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against the Province and he accordingly recommends that the amount be charged to
the Province of Nova Scotia debt account.

The Committee submit the foregoing recommendations for Your Excellency'e
approval.

Clerk Privy Coyncil.

IFURTHER M ÀÍemorandum upon the accounts in dispute between the Dominion and the Province
of -Nova Scotza.

I have examined the letter of Mr. Costly, dated the 26th February, and ad-
dressed to the Hon. L. H. Holmes, in relation to the previous correspondence upoB
the subject of the accounts in dispute between the Dominion and the Province of
Nova Scotia, and am of opinion that, as there is a precedent in the case of New Brune-
wick, it would he but right to allow interest upon the amount granted to the Province
as the value of the lighthouse and other stores taken over at Confederation; this
being interest at 5 per cent. from Ist July, 1867, to 30th June, 1878, the date of pay-
ment, upon 858,961. 38 would amount to 832,430. 41.

I would also recommend that authority be obtained to credit the Province with
$9,371 90, being in reversal of the entry passed on the 4th February, 1878, erroneously
charging the Province with $8,367 77, the amount of the defalcation in the Halifa%
post office in 1873, and for interest from the date of the entry to the date of the next
adjustment of the balance, viz, 30 June neirt.

I am unable to coincide with Mr. Costly's opinion as to the larger amont,
$19,873 08 charged on money order account. There is no doubt the provincial
authorities were aware of the claim. lu fact the Order in Council of the 5th NoV
ember, 1874, states as much, and I feel compelled still to hold this to be a legitimate
charge against the Province.

With regard to the claim for the balance of $31,295 20, standing at the debit Of
the Nova Scotia Railway suspense account, which is objected to: it will be seen frota
the statement of account annexed, and from the accompanying memorandum of MIr.
Tims who had the settlement of these accounts, that Mr. Costly only perpetuates tb
error fallen into by both Governments at the time of their adjustment, the error
being the apportionment between the Dominion and the Province of the final balancO
paid to Mr. Fleming only, no notice whatever being taken of a previous payment 012
account, part of which was also properly chargeable against Nova Scotia.

The conclusions arrived at are susceptible of the clearest proof and are supported
by original documents in the possession of the Department, and from a personal e%
amination of fhese documents I am more than ever convinced that the claim is 
valid one and should not be relinquished.

W. REGINALJD BAKER.
I concur with the above.

- J. M. COURTNEY, Deputy Minister of Finance.
INANCE DEPARTMENT, 31st-March, 1880.

THE NOVA SCOTIA RAILWAY SUSPENSE ACCOUNT.

This account originated in an error made in 1869, in apportioning between the
Dominion and the Province of Nova Scotia certain claims of Mr. Sandford Flemic5
for extras in connection with his contract for the construction of the railway betwOe"
'Truro and Picton.

The whole of these claims amounted te..................... 895,245 52
Of which the Dominion Government assumed............. 47,498 0

Leaving a balance chargeable to debt of Nova Scotia of. 647,747 49
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Composed of the following items:-
Payments to old contractors.................................... 820,034 32
Baring & Co., balance......... ................................... 3,723 50
Construction of telegraph................................. 8,943 46
Platform cars......... ......................... .................. 6,334 55
Rails and clips.... ...... ............ $41,537 06
Maintenance.......................................... 12,031 25
Half expenditure working telegraph.......... 1,182 02

854,750 33
Of which payable by Dominion (vide S.

Fleming's Report)..................... ... 47,502 03
-- 7,248 30

Paid Esson & Jo.............................. 1,459 36

$47,743 49

Instead, however, of dividing the extras, both Governments fell into the same
inistake in apportioning only the balance of Mr. Fleming's general account with the
]Railway Department, which, owing to a payment in the interim, on account, had
been reduced to $63,092.92 when the final settlement was effected.

Of this sum 847,498.03 was correctly assumed by the Dominion, and the balance
of $15,594.89 only charged to the Province. The difference, therefore, between the
latter amount and the $47,747.49 really chargeable to Nova Scotia, is, therefore,
$32,152.60 Nova Scotia currency, equal to $31,295.20 Canada currency.

A summary of Mr. Fleming's account, of which a copy is annexed, was handed
to the then Provincial Secretary, in Halifax, in May, 1875.

The original reports and accounts connected with the whole matter, which I
then left in the hands of the Hon. Mr. Vail and the Hon. Stayler Brown, for
examination, were subsequently returned to me and still remain in my possession.

The error was discovered by me during my first audit of the railway accounts;
in Halifax, in Suly, 1870, and immediately reported to the then Auditor General,
Under whose directions the amount was placed at debit of a suspense account, pend-
ing the formal sanction from the Local Government being obtained to transfer it to
the debt of their Province.

Although I have frequently called attention to the matter since then, no formal
decision appears to have been come to in reference to it, although there can be no
doubt that the amount is really a proper charge to the debt of the Province of Nova
Scotia.

Respectfully submitted.
TIIOMAS D. TIMS, Financial Inspector.

?INANcE DEPARTMENT, OTTAWA, 31st March, 1880.

78-1à
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GOVEhNMENT HOUsE, HALIFAX, N.S., 3rd March, 1880.
SIR,-I have the honor to enclose you, for the information of Ris Excellency the

Governor General, a certified copy of a minute of our Executive Council made on the
28th ult., adopting the report of the Honorable the Attorney-General on the subjeot
of the claim of Nova Scotia to arrears of interest on certain parts of the sum allowed
to this Province by the Parliament of Canada on debt account, together with the
report of the Attorney-General therein referred t>, and have to request that you will
be good enough to transmit these papers to Ris Excellency the dovernor General
with a view to their being brought as early as possible to the notice of the Govern-
inent of the Dominion.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
AD'AMS G. ARCHIIBALD, Lieutenant-Governor.

lon. Secretary of State, Ottawa.

Cory of Minute of Council passed and approved by His Honor the Lieutenant-Governor
in Council 28th February, 1880.

The Council having had under consideration the report of the Attorney-Gen-
eral, dated 27th February, 1880, on the subject of the claims of Nova Scotia for
arrears of interest upon the additional advances made to the Province on debt
account, under the Canadian Statutes of 1869 and 1873. It is recommended that
Baid report be adopted, and that the same be transmitted by Ris Honor the Lieuten-
ant-Governor to Ris Excellency the Governor General, with a respectful request that
the subject thereoi may be taken into early and favorable consideration.

I certify that the above is a correct copy of Minute of Couneil passed .28th
Pebruary, 1880. S. H. HOLM ES, Clerk of Councit.

ATTORNEY-GENERAL'S OFFICE, HAL1FAX, N.S., 27th February, 1880.
The undersigned has had his attention directed to the provisions of the Canadian

8tatutes of 1869 and 1873 by which the debts of Nova Scotia and the other provinesa
of the Dominion were re-arranged, a question having arisen as to the true interpreta-
tion of these statutes as regards the interest moneys which the Province of Nova
Scotia is entitled to draw from the Dominion Treasury upon the amount by which
the allowance of debt thereby made to this province exceedod the actual debt which
she had incurred.

By the 112th section of the British North America Act (1867) the Provinces of
Ontario and Quebec were made liable to Canada for the amnoant of debt, if any, by
Which the debt of the Province of Canada exceeded at the union 6 2,500,000 and
Per interest on such excess at the rate of 5 per cent. per annrium.

By the 114th section, Nova Scotia was made liable for the amount, if any, by
Which its publie debt exceeded at the union $8,00,000 and pur interest thereon at
the rate of 5 per cent.

By the 116th section it was provided that in case the de bt of Nova S3otia did not
amount to $8,000,000 she should receive interest from Canala at 5 per cent. per
alnum on the difference between the actual amouat of her dobt and such stipulated
anount.

By section 1 of chap. 2 of the Dominion statutes of 1869, it is provided: "Nova
Scotia shall be liable to Canada for the amount (if any) by watch its public debt a&
the union exceeded $9,186,756, and shall be chargeable with interest on such excess
Only, and shall be entitled to interest on any amoant by which its public debt then
feul short of that sum as if the said sum were mentioned in sections 114 and 116 of
the British North America Act, 1867, inst3ad of that of $3,000,000."

Chapter 30 of the Dominion Acts of 1873 as construed under chap. 3 of 1874,
etended the allowance of debt which had been made to Ontario and Quebec from.

5
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462,500,000 to $73,006,088.84 and the allowance to N'ova Scotia in the same propor
tion, making ber debt allowance then $10,731,026 instead of $8,000,000.

The following statement shows how the increase to Nova Scotia progressed:-
Allowance by British North America Act, 1867......... 88,000,000

do Act of 1869 ........ .................. ....... 1,186,756
do do 1873 .................................... 1,344,780
do do 18ï4 .................................... 199,490

$10,731,026

From the passage of these statutes of 1869, 1873 and 1874 the Province of Nova
Scotia bas been paid an interest regularly on the sum by which ber actual debt fell
below the increased allowance, and the question has arisen whether she is not entitled
to be paid intoiest thereon from the date of the union; or, in other words, whether
the Acts of 1869 and 1873 are not retrospective and do not rectify, as from the
beginning, the aeknowledged inadequacy of the original debt allowance.

The preamble to the statute of 1869 admits that "I it s just and expedient to add
to the sums payable to Nova Scotia under the British iNorth America Act, 1867."

Y'he demand that these sums should be added to, was based on the state of affairs
existing in the province at the time of the union, and if it was just in 1869 that they
should be increased it was equally so in 1867. The words, however, upon which. 1
would lay particular stress are these quoted; "(Nova Scotia) shall be entitled to
interest on any amount by which its public debt then " (that is, at the time of the
-union) " fell short of that sum " (that is the increased sum), "as if the said sum were
inentioned in sections 114 and 116 of the British North America Act, 1867, instead
of that of eight million dollars."

I claim that this statuto is by its express terms retrospective and should relate
back to 1867. If it were intended to be otherwise there need not have been and should
not have been any reference in the passage which I have just quoted, to the amount
of our debt existing at the time of the union ; the Act would have said "Nova Scotia
shall be entitled to interest on any amount by which its public debt now falls short of
that sum." But I think that the concluding words are likewise exceedingly strong
in favor of such a construction and operate in sucih a way as to place Nova Scotia il
just the same position as though the larger amount were mentioned in sections 114
and 116 ol the British Noith America Act instead of eight millions.

The second section of the Act supports to the fullest extent my contention, that
the inereased a1lowances made in 186Ù were made in consequence of the province
having establisbed her right to have received better terms at the time of the union,
because it is still more plain and strong in its language in dealing with the matter
of additional subsidy. The words are these : " The arrears thereof un to the first
days of July, 1869, being capitalized," &c., &c. It may be contended that inasmuch
as the arrears are specially mentioned in the second section and not in the first, aD
inierence is to be drawn that arrears on subsidy account were intended to be paid,
but not ariears on debt account, under the principle of expressum facit cesser6

acitum, and this would piobably be a cogent argument if the second sectioni e xpressl
<eclared that Nova Seotia should receive the arrears of subsidy since 1867, but J
contend that in both cases the arrears are intended to be paid, and that the arresr
of subsidy are only mentioned specifically in the second section in order to provide
that they should be capitalized for ten years, instead of boing paid to the province at
once.

The statute of 1873 is equally stroi g as supporting this construction. The
amounts payable to and chargeable against the said province respectively, in so far
as they depend on the amount of debt witb which each province entered the unioni
shall be calculated, &c. Ilere is a similar reference back to the state of thingo
existing at the time of the union, and then the Act proceeds: "As if the sum fized
by the 112th section of the British North America Act were increased," &0'
Obviously " the amounts payable to and chargeable against " Nova Scotia " in 0
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far as they depend on the amount of debt with which " she " entered the union
oeaUnot " be calculated and allowed as if the time fixed by the British North America
Act 1867, were increased," unless she recoives from the datu of tho British

oirth America Act coming into force the fruit of that increase, nanely, an allow-
ance of interest on the larger amount.

In relation to this statute of 1873, it bas been contended that the preamble fore-
8hadows a different meaning than that which I claim fo. it, beause of tbese words,"and whereas it is expedient to relieve the said Provinces of Oritario and Que beu
fr0n the said change ar:d for that purpose hereafter to consider the fixed amount in
their case as increased, &c., &c." On ibis point I must observe ihat theie aipears to
1Ie to be no conflict here with the construction wbich I have put on the Act. If the
etatute expressly declared the right of the Province of Nova Scotia to receive arrears
Of interest there would still be no inconsistency in the prearr hie, reciting that she
shoUiM hereafter be considered as entitled to the incresed allwance. Acts which
a reavowedly ietiospective in their operation only come into lforce from the date of
their passage and there would ho nothing inconsitent in a statute declaring" here-
after it shall be considered that the Province of Nova Soetia wa entitled to enter the
ý[nion with a large allowance of debt, and she shall accordingly be allowed interest
tlereon from the first day of July, 1867." If there would be no inconsistency in such
*Ords then there is none in the preamble read with the Act consti ued retrospectively.
I Would add, however, that the preamble cannot control the plain words of the Act,
anxd that the omission of the word " hereaf ter " in the enacting parts seems to me toc
deprive that word of any significance.

The second section of the Act of 1873, like the second section of the Act of 1869.,
dealt with the question of subsidies, but did not contain any words from which retro-
!ective intention could be inferred, as did the second section of the Act of 1869 and

e first section of the Act of 1873. It is as follows:-
" (2.) The subsidies to the several Provinces in July, 1873, shall ho paid in

acordance with the foregoing provisions of this Act."
In order to make good the defect and-as I contend-to put the matter of sub-

ildies on the same footing as the debt allowance, as regards relating back to the time
of Confederation, cap. 3 of the Dominion Acts of 1874 was passed. It recites that
dcubts had arisen under the Act of 1873 " as to whether the increased subsidy to be
Illowed to the Province of Nova Scotia under the said Act should be based on the
bumn of $8,000,000 mentioned in the 114th section of the British North Ameerca Act
or on the sum of 89,186,756 to which the said sum of $8,000,000 was iicre,.sed by
the Act of 1869." It then enacts :-

" (1.) It was and is the intention of the Act just above mentioned (16 Vi ., cap.
20) that the increased subsidy to be allowed to the Province of Nova Seotia, under
tbe said Act, should be based upon the said sunm of $9,186,756 as if that sum hAd been
1nentioned in the 1 14th section of the British North America Act, 1867, instedi of the
aid sum of $8,OO,000."

It would ho irpossible to give effect to this statute without considering the
lartger amount of debt as instituted for all purposes for the smialler in the British

o0rth America Act of 1867 in the same way and to as full an extont as if it had
enI1 originally inserted therein.

. It nay fairly be claimed, therefore, that the Act of 1873 bas received from Par-
bment the retrospective construction for which I contend, and the statate (f 181P4 is

oI0 less favorable in its terms than that of 1873, and is free from :he pream )le which
have remarked upon before and upon which some argument has been bi ted.

As an argument in favor of the reason and justice of the construction for which
. have contended I would say that it appearts to me to bo but logical and piper that
li the Dominion of Canada was bound, as its Parlianent admitted, by the Acts
Ybereto 1 have quoted, assume on behalf of Nova 'cotia the capital sum cf 9,1 g6,9 56
ii 1867, she should ho likewise bound to allow the province interest from that period
'i the amount by which the actual debt of the proviLce fell short of thut arount.
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In conclusion, I am of opinion that the Acts of 1869 and 1873 were passed iO
recognition of the right of the Province of Nova Scotia to receive the larger debt
allowance in 1867, that they were remedial Acts for the purpose of supplying.,
fully as Parliament could do it, the insufficiency in the British North America A0
of 1867, and that they should receive a retrospective construction and be read 90
declaratory statutes I think, therefore, that the Province of Nova Scotia is entitled
to receive from the Domiuion of Canada interest at the rate of five per cent. per
annual from the 1st July, 1867, ou the sum by which the increased debt allowanoe
exceeded the actual debt of the Province, and that the arrears should be claimed. 1
think, also, that interest should be clairned on these arrears because the province w
entitled, on the passage of these statutem, then to have these arrears placed to bel
credit, in which oase she would have ruceived intejrect on them from time to time.

JNO. S. D. TIIO 1PSOT, Attorney-General.

6th March, 1880.
SIa,-I am directed to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch, No. 11, of the

3rd instant, enclosing a certifiLd copy of a minute of your Executive Council, togetbe
with the reports of tae Attoriney-General therein referred to, on the subject of tào
claims of Nova Scotia Lo arrears of interest on certain parts of the sum allowed-to
that province by the Parliament of Canada, on debt account.

I have, &e.
EDOUARD LANGEVIN, Under Secretary of State.

To His lonor the Lieutenant Governor of Nova Scotia, Halifax.

Cora of a Report of a Committee of the Bonorable the Privy Council, approved by J
ExceUency the Governor General tin Council on the 24th March, 1881.

On a report, dated 29th October, 1880, from the Hon. the Minister of FiaaneO
-submittinp a memorandum at length, dated 29th October, 1880, and hereto annîezeA
from bis deputy, upon tie subject of the application of the Province of Nova Scotio
for an increased an ual grant.

The Minister states that he concurs in the conclusions arrived at, and recoDP'
enends that the Government of Nova Scotia be informed accordingly.

le further recommends that the Province of Nova Scotia railway debt suspenD
account be closed by charging to consolidated fund $ 1,295.20.

The Committee concurs in the foregoing recommendations and submit the sarIo
for your Excellency's approval, with the understanding that the charging to th"
(xnsolidated fund of $31,295.20 must be submitted to Parliament for its ap provaL

Clark Frivy Council.

The undersigned has the honor to submit a memorandum at length from hio
-deputy upon the subject of the application of the Province of Nova Scotia for a0
increased annual grant.

'he unidersigned concurs in the conclusions arrived at and recommends that tbh
Gover or ent of Nova Scotia be informed accordingly.

The undersigned fluther recommends that the Province of Nova Scotia railWaf
<debt suspense account be closed by charging Consolidated Fund $31,295.20.

Respectfully submitted,
S. L. TILL E Y, Minister of Finance.

OTTAWA, 29th October, 1880.

URTBER Menorandum upon the financial affairs of the Province of Nova Scotia.
I have had referred to me a further letter from the Honorable the ProvinciI

$ecretary of Nova Scotia, bearing date lst March, 1880, and transmitting a commUst'
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Cation to his address from the Deputy Secretary replying to a memorandum prepared
by myself in connection with the request of the Provincial Government for a re-adjust-
tuent of the provincial subsidy, and another letter of the 2nd instant from the Pro-
Vincial Secretary on the same subject, has «ilso been referred. I regret that delly has
taken place in replying to the letter of March last, the delay, however, was unavoid-
Able, as the letter arrived in the middle of the session and at a time when I was inca-
Pacitated by serious iliness from attending to business matters; my subsequent
departure for England necessitated further delay, and as the matter involved is one
of great moment I had again to postpone making a report until I could get sufficient
time to look fully into all the circumstances.

Before criticising the allegations contained in the letters or making any commente
thereon, I beg to point ont that throughout the whole of the documents submitted,
Whether in the original communications from the Provincial S»cretary, or whether
ill the separate addresses from both branches of the Legislature, or whetber in the sub-
Sequent correspondence, lies this inadmissible argument that because the province is
fliancially embarrassed the Dominion must come forward and rescue it from its unfor-
tUfnate position.

Whilst I deeply regret that Nova Scotia should be in its present state, I think ir
btt right that this argument should not be entertained; to allow it to stand unnoticed
Would be on the part of the Dominion îrovernment to tacitly consent to its boing
Correct, and if such an idea becomes generIl it would materially help to deïtroy eco-
Uonical tendencies in Provincial Legislatures and might be fraught with dangerous
Onsequences to the Dominion. In pointing out this matter, I do not wish to reflect

for one moment upon either of the political parties in the province, and the mem<rial
it8elf, for that matter, frankly states that " both political parties were in accord from
the beginning that the balance of debt should be appropriated towards the construe-
tiOn of public works to further inter-communication and promote the interests ot the
People of the province in this direction ;" bat I simply wish to point ont that pro-

n9kces like individuals should hold to engagements once made and settled as being
final, especially so in the case of Nova Scotia, when after full examination, the Par-
lianent of Canada revised the terms of union and granted in full settloment an
lucreaè,ed amount of capital.

Having thus far pointed out what I consider to bu erroneous, I propose, in a very
few words, to reply to the friendly strictures of the deputy secretary on the figures in
tuY former memorandum.

Generally, I thought that the statement of revenues as shown in the letter of the2 1ld January, 1879, was under the mark and that the estimated expondituros mon-
tioned in the same letter might be curtailed, I am still of the same opinion--té quote
the words of the original letter will best show the contention; it is there stated, " our
1Peesent and future revenues under existing circumstances have been already
iudicated:

Dominion subsidy ........ ................... 8380,000 00
Crown lands, and royalty on coal, about................. 65,000 00
Gazette Office......... ..................... 4,000 00
Fees frorm Provincial Secretary's office including mar-

riage licenses...............................................6,000 00

$455,000 00

Our Expenditure............................................. $600,000 00
Our Revenue...................................................... 455,000 00

Future annual deficit...... ................................... $145,000 00

Such are the words of the letters. Now, if we tarn to the last letter received,
dated on the 2nd October last, we are told that the '- revenue from alI sources for
1880 will not exceed $470,000, while the expenditure, notwithstanding economy iu
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wvery department, will be at least $520,000." We know that unforeseen expenditure
was ircurred in consequence of the destruction of roads and bridges by coast galeot
and whilst the executive are to be congratulated on the great progress made in reS
turing the equilibrium between income and expenditure, it may be reasonable to
hope that stili further progress may be made and the desired object may be accoou
plished.

I own that it will require careful husbanding ofreceipts and strict economy In
all branches of the public expenditure, but if it has been fcund that such great differ
ence las teen made in the original calculations submitted and the actual result fOt
this year, I lai] to see why my possible estimate may not turn out to be appro%
imately correct. At ail events I can see nothing in the statement of receipts and
expenditures as now shown, to justify the Ministry in asking Parliament for a re
adjustment of the existing terms.

If it be conceded that the Provincial Government could carry on the administr-
lon of provincial affairs, at an annual cost of $520,000 or even at the higher rate Of
$550,000, and I think that no one now will dispute that it might be done at the latter
ligure, and if the Dominion Ministry were to entertain the proposal to grant better
ternis ar d to submit the same to Parliament the question might be raised, why should
this proposal be granted, seeing that the province had not long since an incolOO
equal for ail wants ? For proof thereof reference would be made to the Dominio
Public Accounts of 1874-75, wherein it ik shown that the province recoived from thO
Dominion, on account of subsidy, in round numbers, some $S50,000. It is true that the
ten years' grant of $80,000 has since dropped, but if the provinco had thon, exclusivOlY
of the ton year grant, an annual income from the Dominion of $470,000 to which
nust be added the local revenues, amounting to about $80,00, I confess I do not
see what ankwer could be made to such a point, nor would I think the Ministry dO
right to ask for a concession to restore to a province a position once given and 1ot•

Another point bas been raised and a great deal of ernpbasis is laid theieon. The
point is this, that Nova Scotia should have more because other provinces, and more
]articula, ly the neighboring Province of New Brunswick, receive, it is said, pro'
piortionately larger subsidies than that received by Nova Scotia.

To give eveiy argument its proper weight I have taken the trouble to look intO
the position of each province, and literally I sce no very striking difference bewee"
New Brunswick and Nova Scotia. Eliminating interest on iho balance of the debe
accouiint and îaking the existing subsidy of Nova Scotia at $370,240 in round numberS,
by the last census the province receives 9à cents per capita; follGwing the sarie
course with New Brunswick taking the subsidy at $428,475.20 and deducting stunP'
age tax vr expert duty, amounting to say $75,0(10 and also the interest on its publiO
.debt, which Is, say, $42,000 on a principal of $700,000, the Ploxince receives, in round

nmbers, by the same census, say, $I.C9 per c 1i1a I believe the New Brunswicî
debt is about $900,000 and that the result il the ent figures could be got, woud
mearly appioximate, but even taking the latest published figures 1 canntot really see
that any case bai been made out.

There would, however, be a ground for equitable consideration if it could bO
established ; the ground would te this, if Nova Scutia largely iii excess of other pro-
-vinces contributed to the revenues of the Dominion, if the paid out of this excees the
greater proportion of the public expenditures, and if she coý tributed more largely
towai&d the paynent o the heavy oblgations now being incorred by the Domini">
for iLe settlenent ard tLe developmeit of the newer territories, thon it nîight be
said tIhat although not lgally bound to icadjust ber position, yet it would not bo
unirr te tolae such position into account and endeavor to give ber in some way some
relief fi cm ber cmbarassment, Lut what aie the facts? Charging the province oniW
with inttiest on the debt allowcd to her, ard that at five per cent,, although the
interest paid by the Dominion for such dett incurred before confederation was reallí
isix per cent., and givinbg ber crcdit for ail revenues paid in without deducting the
ieturncd duties, which I estimate at the lowest as $240,000, and only charging her
with the actual expcnditure separately paid on her account, excluding even such

10
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joint expenditures as the dredging and surveys performed on her coast, the con-
tIuetion of the Dorchester penitentiary and other items which, being lumped in the

8tatements, are unable to be separated, and which I estimate at fully in all $300,000,
f lld that from the 1st July, 1867, to the 30th June, 1879, as per statement annexed,

'Jat Nova Scotia paid in $18,203,364.52, and had spent upon her $17,594,937.65, or
& apparent surplus of 8608,426.87, in other words giving her credit for everything,

eh0 has about paid ber way for the local charges; but towards the cost of civil gov-
%ta!ent, federal legislation, the Supreme Court, the Geological Survey and the
0IServatories, the census, pensions and superannuations, the militia, the Dominion
teamers and other marine charges, the working of the railways and other general

'harges, she bas contributed nothing, much less contiibuted towards the heavy obli-
eations for the extensive capital charges incurred by the Dominion, including the
%onstruction of the Intercolonial Railway.

If thon after consideration of the foregoing the Government are of opinion that
)basmuch as Nova Scotia bas not contribmed in proportion to the other provinces
Which first entered into the union towards the general purposes of the ) mirion,

a4t she bas had and lost a position better than that to which she now ag, ns, that
s16e bas not been treated unfairly in comparison with other provinces and that finally
'With care and economy she could still pay ber way, thon it only romains to inform

e Lccal Government that iheir application cannot be entertained, and that the pro-
]'Oition to grant a sum of $200,C00 per annum, for a limited period in consideration
'of the abandounment of the royalty on coal cannot be acceded to.

I have so far referred only to the application made by the Local Government
r a re-adjustment of subsidy, but perbaps it might not be out of place bore to draw
ettOtltion to an apparent outslanding claim (the last) the Dominion has againstNova

If reference is made to the Dominion balarce sheet in the Publie Accounts there
i be found one account called the " Province of Nova Scotia Railway Debt Sus

>akie Account," wilh an alleged balance due the Dominion of 831,295.20.
This account came into existence in the Dominion bocks in June, 1870, through

Iraifer entries made by Mr. Timis for the purpose of adjusting the Nova Scotia rail-
Way accounts, and entirely arises frc m extra claims paid to Mr. Sardford Fleming in
&Ptenber ]869 for the costincltion of the Tiuro and Pictou Railway.

I find'frcm Mr. Tim's memorandum that the total of these claims amounted to
$95,245.52, cf which the share payLble by Nova Scotia was $47,747.49, and by the
bmoinion Goverrment $47,498.03, or nearly hal and half; but when the running
account of Mr. Fkming was bettkd the amount fcund due to him was $63,092.92;

Sanmount unfortunately was taken by both Governments to be the amount to be
4Portiored, ard whikt the Dcrinicn assumed its full share, Nova Scotia was only

arn8ged the differer ce, $15,594.89, the difference between the amount chargec and
the iull amount is that which is now in the above named suspense account.

I cannot fird that any action was taken by the Dominion Government to have
st aount adjusted until scme time in 1875, when Mr. Tims acquainted Mr. Vail

With e matter, and the papers were laid before Mr. Hill. Nothing else seems to.
v1'e been done.

The present Local Goverument objects to the amount being charged to the debt
Count, on the grounds that the pay ments were made ,by Dominion officials after

Cbfederation, that they had no means of verifying the amount and that they pre-
aued with good reason that the sum charged was in full of all demands. I cannot

eay but what there is some reason in their objections, and as the Dominion Govern-
1t was in error in only chaigirg the smaller amount it might be desirable to
Eslme the balance, and by so doing, entirely close up the accounts with the province

Respectfully submitted,
J. M. COURTNEY.

>9 'Victoria. A. 1886



Sessional Papers (No. 78.)

APPENDIX.
Recelpte. Expenditure.

1867-68 . $1,108)104 85 $1,161,t79 87
1868-69 .................... 1,22à,630 99 1,190,673 44
1869-10 ..................... 1,322,598 16 1,225,414 82
1870-71 ..................... 1,602,543 89 1)236,283 36
1871-72 ..................... 1,593,228 07 1,331,683 56
1872-73 ..................... 1,508,449 04 1,575,899 19
1873-74..... ................ 1,677,360 13 1,691,433 52
1874-75.1,788,703 6q 1,673,783 o7
1875-76.1,591,73- 96 1,768)018 67
1876-77. . . . ,58,031 71 1,647,592 13
1877-78.............,566,280 78 1,518,400 09
1878-79 ........................ 1,560,699 66 1)574e575 03

$18,203,364 52 $17,594,9317 65

OTTÂA,, 29th October, 1880.

OTTWA, 3th January, 1884.
Si,-In a conference with Sir Charles Tupper he suggested that I should f00'

ward the enclosed papers to yon. Hoe aiso suggested that 1 should have a confere010
with a committee of yonr Government. il arn anxious to Becure an interview *f
early a day as possible. My address is Grand Union HIotel.

I remain, yours truly,
lION. THIOMAS F. MORRISON,

Hou. Mr. CH&PLEÂU, Secretary of State. per A. S. M.

THE HIALIFAX DEBT.

The following is a statement of clai ms held by the province against the Dou'"
ion on unsettlod accounts under the terms of union and the modification thereof el'
the ,,ct of 1869.

Thte Balifax Debt.
In 1854 the citizens of Halifax potitioned the Government of the day wo 1,0

allowed an interest of £100, 000 N. S. curroncy, iu tho Nova Scotia .Raitway for tb
purpose, of enabling the Government to ex tend the road into the City of 118149$
instead of into the town of Dartmouth, as originally proposed. In complianeWt
tb.is petition an Act passel the Legisiature, in 1854, constituting the citizens of là"
fax part owners in the road te thie extent of £ t00,000, and under the provilsionsd
thia Act, it was extended into the city of Halifax. The Government advancel 00
£100,000 for tbe City of JHalifax at their request diiring the construction of tho. raS'1'
which aniount the citizens of Halifax nover refunded and Lt remained a provinl'

ïset Up te lst of1July, 1867, at which time, under the 107th section of the Briti738
North America A.ct, it becarne the proporty of Canada and should have bo0o
dednctod from the provincial debt.

This has nover been done, and the amount, together with the interest since 1
let of July, 1867, to this time, is jstly due te th province f rom the Dominion.

Better Terms Act of 1869, 1759,

Under the arrangement mad by Messrs. Cowe and MLelan, the Pro
Nova Sotia woere to have the same terle as New Brunswick. The Auditor Gol '
bing caled upon te make the calculation on this bats, reported that the additi 0

to be made t the Nova Scotia debt account was $1188,756, but by a olHriaoter.
12
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t'he Act passed, carrying out this covenant, the amount placed to the credit of the
tVince was 81,186,756. The balance ($2,000), with interest, since lst July, 1867,
due to the Province, and should be placed to its credit.

THOMAS F. MOIRRISON, M.E.C, of Nova Scotia.
HALIVnX, N.S.

'ME DOMINION OF CANADA TO TEE PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA.

lst July, 1867.-To interest on 8400,000, due by the
city of Halifax to the Province,
to date, 8216,749.38. Nova Scotia
currency equal in Dominion cur-
rency to................. ... $210,969 37

lt January, 1884.-Interest on same...................... 265,580 93

8476,550 30

CoPY of a Minute of Council passed at Halifax on the 1st day of October, 1867.
The mayor of the city of Halifax having sent to the Government a resolution,

by the city council of which the following is a copy:
beeolved, That in consideration that the Government of Nova Scotia shall release-

discharge the city of Halifax f-om all present or future liability under the various
of the Province respecting the provincial railways, Ris Worship the Xayor or
Recorder of this city is authorized to discharge and release the said Province of

'Va Scotia, and the Dominion of Canada from all claims in or right to any portion or
in said railways.
It it also hereby further resolved that this council consent that the present suit

ost the city shall be settled upon the terma of each party paying their own

It is resolved by His Excellency and Council that the Attorney-General b..
îtho1rized to discontinue said suit, and that the costs on the part of the Government

paid.
Approved.

W. F. WILLIAMS.
adOctober, 1867.

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and correct copy.

'rAx, 2nd January, 1884. H. CROSSKILL, Deputy Provincial Secretary.

%'Victoria. A. 188e
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PROVINCIAL SECRETARY's OFFICE, HALIFAX, N.S.
THE Dominion of Canada to the Province of Nova Scotia.

To $2,000 allowed the Pro-
vince of Nova Scotia
under the arrangement
of 1869 that has never
yet been paid. .......

To 6 monthe' interest.....

6 do .....

1867.
July 1...

Dec. 31...

1868.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1869.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1870.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1871.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1872
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1873.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1874.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1875.
June 30...

$ cts.

2,000 00
50 0

2,050 00
51 251

2,101 25
52 53

2,153 78
53 84

2,207 62
55 19

2,262 81
56 57

2,319 38
57 93

2,377 36
59 43

2,436 79
60 92

2,497 71
62 44

2,560 15
64 00

2,624 15
65 60

2,689 75
67 24

2,756 99
68 92

2,825 91
70 65

2,896 56
72 41

2,968 97

1875.

Dec. 31...

1876.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1877.
June 30...

Dec 31...

1878.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1879.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1880.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1881.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1880.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1883.
June 30...

Dec. 31...
6 do

Carried forward.......

Brought forward. 2,968 9
6 months' interest...... 74 2

3,043 19
6 do ...... 7600

3,119 21
6 do 77 9

3,197 26
6 do ...... 79 91

3,277 Io
6 do ...... 810.

3,359 i
6 do 839

3,443 C9
6 do ... 8601

3,529 16
6 do ...... 882e

3,617 39
6 do ...... 90 43

3,707 8
6 do 92 69

3,805 51
6 do . 9501

3,895 52
6 do ...... 97 39

3,992 91
4 do ...... 99 81

4,092 73
e do ...... 102 si

4,195 04
6 do ,.... 10481

4,299 91
6 do ...... 107

4,407 'il
6 do 110 16

Total................. 4,517 59
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PaoVINOIAL SECRETARY'S OFFICE, HALIPAX, N.S.
The Dominion of Canada to the Province of Nova Scotia.

fec. 31...

To $400,000.00 due by the
city of Halifax to the
Province o f Nova
Scotia in Nova Scotia
currency-equal in
Dominion currency
t. ......

6 monthe' interest......

6 do ......

6 do ......

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do ......

6 do ......

6 do ......

6 do ......

6 do ......

6 do ......

6 do

O do

6 do

6 do ......

Oarried forward...

$ cto.

889,333 32
9,733 33

399,066 65
9,976 66

409,043 31
10,226 08

419,269 39
10,481 73

429,751 12
10,743 78

440,494 90
11,012 37

451,507 27
11,287 68

462,794 95
11,569 87

474,364 82
11,859 12

486,223 94
12,155 60

498,379 54
12,459 49

510,839 03
12,770 97

523,610 00
13,090 25

536,700 25
13,417 50

550,117 75
13,752 94

563,870 69
14,096 76

577,967 45

Brought forward...

To 6 months' interest......

1875.

Dec. 31...

1876.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1877.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1878.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1879.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1880.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1881.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1882.
June 30...

Dec. 31...

1883.
June 30...

Dec. 31... 6 do ......

Total................

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

6 do

ec. 31...

1873.
ne 30...

e.31...

1875.14Ue 30...

$ ti.

577,967 45

14,449 18

592,416 63
14,810 41

607,227 04
15,180 67

622,407 71
15,560 19

637,967 90
15,919 20

653,917 10
16,347 93

670,265 03
16,756 62

687,021 65
17,175 54

704,197 19
17,604 93

721,802 12
18,045 05

739,847 17
18,496 18

758,343 35
18,958 58

777,301 93
19,432 55

796,734 48
19,918 36

816,652 84
20,416 32

837,069 16
20,926 73

857,995 89
21,449 90

879,445 79
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VoIrY of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by Bis
Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 13th May, 1884.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had before them a despatch dated 18th
April, 1884, from the Lieutenant-Governor of Nova Scotia forwarding a joint address
pased by the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of that province, respect-
ing the necessity for the re-adjustment of the financial terms of the union.

The Minister of Finance to whom the despatch and enclosure have been referred,
recommends that a copy of the Act passed at the last Session of the Parliament of
Canada, giving increased subsidies to the several provinces of the Dominion be trans-
mitted to the Lieutenant-Governor of that Province.

The Committee submit the above recommendation &for Your Excellenoy's
val

Clerk Privy Council.

GOVERNMENT HoUsE, HALIFAX, N.S., 18th April, 1884.
Sra,-I have the honor to forward herewith a joint address just passed by the

Legislative Council and House of Assembly of this province, and I have the honor to
xequest you will be so good as to lay the same before His Excellency the Governor
General for his consideration.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
M. I. RICHEY, Lieutenant-Governor.

The Hon. the Secretary of State for Canada, Ottawa.

To fis Excellency the Most Honorable Henry Charles Keith Petty Fitzmaurice,
Marquis of Lansdowne, in the County of Somerset, Earl of Wycombe, of Chip-
ping Wycombe, in the County of Bucks, Viscount Caln and Calnstone, in the
County of Wilts, and Lord Wycombe, Baron of Chipping Wycombe, in the
County of Bucks, in the Peerage of Great Britain ; Earl of Kerry and Earl of
Shelburne, Viscount Clanmaurice and Fitzmaurice, Baron of Kerry, Lixnaw and
Dunkerron, in the Peerage of Ireland, Governor General of Canada, and Vice-
Admiral of the same.
MAY IT PLaasE Youa EXCELL ENCY,-We, the members of the Legislative Conncil

and House of Assembly of Nova Scotia, convened, beg leave to approach Yon
Excellency for the purpose of representing that the financial condition of the Pro-
vince of Nova Sectia *is so unsatisfactory that we must call Your Excellency'0
attention to the urgent necessity for the readjustment of the financial terms of the
amon.

That previous to the union of the provinces the Province of 'Nova Scotia was in
a most healthy financial condition.

That by the terms of the union the chief sources of revenue were transferred to
the Dominion.

That strong objection was taken at the time of the union to the financial terrn
thereof relating to the Province of Nova Scotia as being wholly inadequate to meet
the requiremeints of the varions services left under the management of the Provincial
P'arliament.

That an appeal was made to the Imperial Ministry. for a repeal of the union s0
far as it related to this province.

That while they refused to grant such repeal until a further trial of the uniol-
waa had, they, in their despatchb of the 1oth of June, 1868, through the Colonial
&ecretary to Lord Monck, Your Excellency's predecessor, requested that the Govern-
ment and Parliament of Canada would modify any arrangement respecting taxatiol,
or respecting the regulation of trade and fisheries, which might prejudice the interesti
of Nova Scotia.

That on the 6th day of October, 1868, the Right Honorable Sir John A. MaS-
donald, in a letter to the Honorable Joseph Howe, referring to the above despatch,
antated as follows:-

49 Victoria. A. 1886-
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" The Canadian Government are not only ready but anxions to enter upon a
fraik and full discussion of these points, and are prepared, in case the pressure of
taxation should be shown to be unequal or unjust to Nova Scotia, to relie,- e that pres-
Oure by every means in their power. They are also ready to discuss any financial or
Commercial questions that may be raised bv the Nova Scotia Government or your-
self, and representatives of Nova Scotia in the Parliament of the Dominion." And he
Iflrther said: " You May remember that I suggested to the Committee that Mr.
Annand, the Finance Minister of the province, or any other gentleman selected for
the purpose, should visit Ottawa, and sit down with the Finance Minister here, for the
Purpose of ascertaining whether any inequality or injustice exists, the extent of such
lnequality, and the best remedy. And I now reiterate the absurance I then gave that
the Government here will consider the question, not in a rigid, but in the most liberal
spirit, with a desire to do even more than justice for the sake of securing the co-oper-
ation o f the people of Nova Scotia in working the new constitution. We will enter
1lPon the enquiry whenever it suits your convenience, and tbe Canadian Government
engage to press upon Parliament, with al the influence they possess, the legisiation
'quired to carry out any financial readjustment that may be agreed to."

That the Dominion Government, or the Dominion Parliament, have never carried
out the request or desire of the Imperial Ministry and the promise of the Right
UOnorable Sir John A. Macdonald, as above quoted.

That after sixteen years under tbo union, successive Governments have found
that the objections which were urged against the terms of union at first apply with
still greater force nnw than in the first year of the union, and the feeling of discontent
"ith regard to the financial arrangement is now tuore general and more deeply fixedthan ever before.

That a notable inequality exists in the Customs duties collected in Nova Scotia,
s conpared with Customs duties collected in Ontario and Quebec.

That Nova Scotia paid in 1882 on ber importations of $6,889,508 of dutiable
g0ods 8 197,728 more than the two Provinces of Canada (Ontario and Quebec) did on
the same amount of these dutiable goods in that year, and bas also paid on her
Inportation of $6,550,887 of dutiable goods in 1883, $213,000 more than the above

0o provinces paid on the same amount of their importations of dutiable goods for the
yae year.

That under the request of the Colonial Secretary above referred to, and the
Promise of the Right lionorable Sir John A. Macdonald, this anomalous state of
iation should not be continued, and some arrangement should be made by which
t he Province of Nova Scotia would receive back the amount she pays in excess ofthe
rate paid by the two provinces above referred to.

That the financial condition of Nova Scotia is in a most unsatisfactory state, as
conMpared with the other provinces of the Dominion, after the union, is seen frona
the following statement:

That Nova Scotia in 1861 had a population of 330,8à7, and in 1866, the year
fore the union of the provinces, she imported $14,381,008 worth of goods, dutiable

,,'id free, on which she collected $1,226,398.87 of duties, being $8.54 on each $100
worth of goods imported, and she collected in the same year $3, 106.08 Excise duties,being less than one cent on each of her population. With the above revenue, and
b' revenue derived from her public works, mines, Crown lands and other minor

sources of revenue, she paid the interest on her public debt, and paid the expense of
UIintaining and operating her railroads, building and maintaining her lighthouses

IId other public works, provided liberally for education, and the maintenance of
Jn8tice. She paid ber legislative expenses, and provided fairly for all her wants,

1 gave to the road and bridge service a very liberal amount per year. In 1881
ofva Scotia had a population of 440,572, and she imported in 1882 8,701,589 worth

9f goods, dutiable and free, on which the Dominion Government collected $1,757,-
.07 in duties, being $20.20 on each $100 worth of goods imported, and on the

8,89,508 of dutiable goods, Nova Scotia has paid $25.51 for every $100 worth im-
Ported.

78b-2 17
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Nova Seotia imports a large quantity of goods from New Brunswick and the
Provinces of Onitario and Quebec, which bave paid duties in those provinces. She
also purchases h ge quantities of goods mauifactured in Ontario, Quebec and New
Brunswick, which sell as high in Nova Scotia as those paying duties, so that Nova
ßcotia has to pay the high duties direct]> or indirectly on all her importations.

Nova Scotia paid Excise duties in 1882 to the amount of $262,231.43, which is
59' cents on each of ber population of 440,6)72, and notwilhstanding this great in-
creuse in Customs and Excise duties, Nova Seotia, after providing very scantily for
her other local wants, can give only 8 120,000 for her road, and bridge service, just
one-half the amount she could and did give before the union.

The importation into the Provinces of Ontario and Quebec in 1865, amounted to
$44,620,469, the duties collected on which amounted to 85,663,277, being $12.69 on
each $100 worth of their importations- dutiable and free-or about 50 per cent. more
than Nova Scotia paid; and they paid in the same year, $1,302,975,31 Excise
duties, which was about 52 cents per head of their population, or more than fifty
times as much as each of the population of Nova Scotia had to pay in the same year.

In 1881, the two Provinces of Ontario and Quebec had a population of 3,882,255.
They imported $73,616,816 worth of goods, on which they paid about $17.44 on
each $100 worth of goods they imported ; while Nova Scotia paid 820.20 on each W100
of her importations.

Ontario, in 1881, had a population of 1,923,228, and she had a revenue in 1885
for local purposes of $2,880,450.40, which gave her $1.49¾ for each of her populatioD.

Quebec, in 1881, had a population of 1,3:39,027, and she had a revenue 0f
$2,864,612, which gave ber $2. 10î per head of her population.

New Brunswick bad a population, in 1881, of 321,233, and she had a revenue Of
$628,447, which gave her 8 L.9ó per head of her population for local purposes.

Nova Scotia ha], in 1881, a population of 440,572, and she had, in 1882,
revenue of $522,998.22, which gave her only $1.18î per head of her population fOr
local purposes.

Ontario has, for local purposes, 31 cents more per head of her population thaU
Nova Scotia bats. Quebec has 91 cents more; and New Brunswick has 76t cents more.

Nova Scotia, previous to the union, had the lowest tariff, and was in the bese
financial condition of any of the provinces entering the union, therefore we submi t

that the Province of Nova Scotia should be placed on an equal footing with the othO
provinces ; she having m ade the greatest sacrifices at the time of the union, should
not be left in a worse financial condition than any of the other provinces.

At the time of the union it was calculated that a sum amounting to 28J per
cent. of the Customs revenue collected under a 15 per cent. tariff, together with the
revenue obtainable from local source- in the several provinces, would be sufficient to
meet all demands against the Local Government, and that the balance of the Customa'5
duties amounting to 71J per cent., together with the Excise duties and other source'
of revenue conceded to the General Government would be sufficient to meet ail
demands against it. Experience has shown that the calculation was erroneous, and
that the 15 per cent. tariff did not give enough revenue to meet the wants of t00
country. The Dominion Government, having the power, bas added 50 or 55 per
cent. to the 15 per cent tariff, and has taken the whole amount of the increase and
applied it to the wants of the General Government, leaving the provinces with increas-
ing demands upon them in the same financial position they were placed in at the
time of the union.

That the several governments of this province since the union, after exercising
the most rigid economy. bave found it impossible to provide for the increasing wanto
of the province with the revenue granted under the present terms of union.

That an additior al revenue bas become an absolute necessity to this provinc
and the only available means of securing it is through the Federal Government, as
our people will not submit to direct taxation for local purposes, while they believe
that if justice were done, Nova Scotia would have ample means to provide for her
local wants.

A. 188649 Vict oriia.
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That the Dominion Government and Parliament have recently still further
affected the interests of this province by appropriating, to the generat purposes of the
Dominion, the amount received under the fishery award for privileges conceded
&nerican fishermen within the territorial limits of Nova Scotia and the other mari-

timle provinces.
That we submit as the taxation of this country has been increased since the

union at least 50 per cent., the same ratio should be added to the provincial subsidy
given to this province in 1867.

That we make these representations to your Excellency, firmly believing and
With the full assurance that they will receive the consideration and attention at your
bands which their great importance to the people of Nova Scotia merit.

ROBT. BOAK, President Legislative Council.

4. MACGILLIVRAY, Speaker Bouse of Assembly.

11ALIFAX, NovA ScoTIA, 16th April, A.D. 1884.
COPY of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by Ris

Excellency the]Governor General in Council on the 13th -May, 1884.
The Committee of the Privy Council have had before them a despatch dated 18ti

April, 1884, from the Lieutenant-Governor of Nova Scotia forwarding a joint address
Passed by the Legislative Council and House of Assembly of that province respecting
the necessity for the re adjustment of the inancial terms of the union.

The Minister of Finance, to whom the despatch and enclosure have been referred,
recommends that a copy of the Act passed at the last session of the Parliament of
'Canada giving increased subsidies to the several provinces of the Dominion, be trans-
ritted to the Lieutenant Governor of that province.

The Committee submit the above recommendation for your Excellency's approval
JOHN J. McGEH, Clerk Privy Council.

TIhe Bien. Secretary of State.

June, 1884.

SiR,-With reference to the joint address of the Legislative Council and House of
Assembly of the Province of Nova Scotia, transmitted with your Honor's despatch
Of the 18th of April last, respecting the necessity of a re-adjustment of the financial
termns of the union, I have the honor to transmit to you, herewith, for the informa-
tion of your Government, a copy of an Act passed during the last session of the
1Eariament of Canada, 47 Vie., chap. 34, intituled : " An Act to readjust the yearly
suibsidies to be allowed by Canada to the several Provinces now included in the
bominion."

I have, &c.,
J. A. CHAPLEAU, Secretary of State.

lis Hon. the Lieutenent Governor of Nova Scotia, Halifax, N.S.

GOVERNMENT HousE, HALIFAX, NOVA SCOTIA, 1 [th June, 1884.
S1R,-I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 7th inst,

transmitting a copy of an Act passed during the last Session of the Parliament of
Canada, intitaled: " An Act to re-adjust the yearly subsidies to be allowed by Canada
to the severat Provinces in the Dominion," and I have the honor to say that I have
forwarded the same to the members of my Government for their information.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
M. H. RICHIEY, LieutenantGovernor.

'£()n. the Secretary of State for Canada, Ottawa.
78b-2½ 19



5th January, 1885.
SIR,-I have the honor to transmit, at the instance of my Goverument, a certi-

fied copy of a Minute of the Executive Council of this province, bearing date the 30th
of December last, and relating to the claim which this province makes upon the
Government of the Dominion for a refund cf moneys expended since 1st July, 1867,
on the construction and repair of piers, breakwaters, public wharves, &c. The
detailed statement of such expenditures for each year, and showing a total of
$153,677.45, not including interest referred to in the said minute, is also enclosed
herewith, and 1 have the honor to submit the request of my Government that th&
same may be laid before His Excellency the Governor General in Council, and that
Ris Excellency may be requested to cause the proper action to be taken to enquire,
into the claim, and to pay to the Province of Nova Scotia the sum to which it shall
be foand to be justly entitled.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your most obedient servant,
M. H. RICHEY, Lieutenant-Governor.

Hon. the Secretary of State for Canada, Ottawa.

EXTRAcT from the Minutes of the Executive Council of the Province of Nova Scotia of tA6-
31st December, A.D. 1884, approved by His Honor the Lieutenant Governor.
On a memorandum from the Honorable Provincial Secretary respecting the

claim of the province upon the Government of the Dominion for a refund of moneyf
expended since 1st July, 1867, on the construction and repair of piers, breakwaters,
public wharves, &c.

The Secretary submits a detailed statement of such expenditures for each year,
showing a total of 815 3 ,677.45, not including interest, It being understood that the
Government of the Dominion have now fully recognized their responsibility for
expenditures of this character, in the case of the claim of the Province of Prince
Edward lstand, the Secretary recommends that the detailed statement be forwarded
to Ottawa-through fis Hlonor the Lieutenant.Governor, to be laid before His Excel-
lency the Governor General in Council, and that His Excellency bo requested to
cause the proper action to be taken to enquire into the claim, and to pay to the fro-
vince of Nova Scotia the sum to which it shall be found justly entitled.

The Council approve the recommendation and respectlully request His Honor
the Lieutenant-Governor to forward the statement, together with a copy of this
minute, to be laid before His Excellency the Governor General in Council.

I hereby ceitify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a minute of
Council passed and approved as aforesaid.

H . CIROSS KTL L, Deputy Provincial Secretary.
HALIFAX, N.S., 30th December, 1884.
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;TATEMENT of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia for the service
known as Navigation Securities-construction and repair of piers, breakwaters,
public wharves, &c., from lst July, 1867, for which the Government of Nova
Scotia claim to be reimbursed by the Governmnent of the Dominion with interest
from date of each payment.

To whom Paid.

1867.

. M ac ab ........................
Alex. M cNab ...... ...... ........

do ....................
John MLteler. ...............

• 1) A rchibald ..................
!imnon Chompe. ...... .......

. W Freeman ................
•. Moses .............~. Westhaver..............

V.E Everett. ............
John Xunroe ............ ...
]. Young ...................

O»ss & Foote. .. .........
George Robar ...... ..............

a det & Foret ...................
1. Therian... ...........
Chuirchill & Wright.....
4unroe & McNeil . ..............
eack & Butler................
&. M cNab ... .................
Ja . Crichton ......................

• McLeod .......... ..
. Forbes ....... .....

El. . Chute............
Charles Tooker. .........
George Ord.,.......................

ühas. Boyd.............
SW. Freeman ..........

•. W . Goodwin......... ..........
John O'Brien ..........

m. LeBlance...............
no. Forbes .............

lhos. Saulnier.............
tban Doucette..............o. Mockler ................

Ira Raymond .....................
Satders & Mack ..................

Robert Donkin ...............

Woodworth.....................
Churchill..............

1868.

Chas. McCabe ............ Parrsboro' Pier, Cumberland County ...........................
Geo. Griffin ........................ Breakwater at Lewis' Head, Shelburne County .............

l0 Sheridan.................. fmproving harbor at Herring Cove ........ ... .........
iOs. Buddick....... .... ... Repairing pier at Digby ...... .............................. •.........

obt. McDougali. ..... ..... Beach, west side of Port Hood ............. .....-- •..................
ex. Rankin...................... Breakwater at Cape Mabou ............................................

io. & B. Murphy.,............. Repairing wharf at Port Hood...... .......... ........................
Holdsworth & Quirk... Digby Pier ...... . ... . ...... ............................ .....

Muir ........ , ,................ Pier, Shelburne Harbor ...........................
'hdd, Holdsworth & Quirk... Digby Pier................., ........... ........... .................

%u el & T . Boyd............... do ................................-.-.... ..................... ..
Hdd, oldsworth & Quirk... do .................. .................. ............................... •.

. D. Macks ............. West branch of Bear River ................. •••... .. •..

21

Place of Expenditure.

Repairs to Parraboro' Wharf.............................................
Wharf at Plaster Cove ....... .........................................
l'o complete Parrsboro' Pier.. ............... .................... ......
E-xpenditure on Brule Wharf............................. ........... ..
Breakwtter at Cow Bay ............................... ... ........ .....
Grant to uheticamp...... .... ...... ............................ .......
Removing obstructions, Jordan River...............................

do Misener (o Lunenburg County Line
Wharf at Young's Landing. .................................. .........
Break at St. Mary's Bay..... ...... .............................. .......
Yeal's Harbor............ ............................. ...........
Slip at Entrance, Back Harbor..........................................
Chipman's Brook Pier .... ............ .... .... ............
Clearing river below Robar's Mills, Lunenburg County......
Grant to Arichat Harbor ... .......... ................ .... . ...
Comeauville Breakwater ............. .............................
Public Pier at Digby ................... ..............................
Deepening Harbor, Portuguese fJove.... ........ .........
Clearing obstructions, Bear River, Digby ..... .......... ........
Wharf at Plaster Cove ....................... ... ............ .........
Wharf at Pictou Island ...... ................. ................ .........
Broad Cove Whrf ........... ..... ...............
Pictou Wharf, Abercrombie Point ............ ...................
Removing obstructions from BeRr River, Annapolis County.
Removing obstructions, Yarmouth Harbor............... .........

do from Milford Brook, Annapolis
County ......... ....... ..............

do Clyde River, Shelbarne County.....
do Jordan River do ...
do Sissiboo River, Digby County.......
do from N.E. Branch Digby Harbor.....
do Salmon River, Digby Oounty.........

Repairing wharf at Point Brale ........ ......... ..
Breakwater at Saulnierville Cove, Digby County...............
Public pi-r at Meteghan, Digby County...............
Coint Bruile Wharf ...... .......... ......... ... ..... ....................
Bartlett Breakwater .......... ..................
To remove obstructions from Lake George, to County Line,

K ing's County ... ......... ............. .. ............. .......
To remove obstructions from South Branch River Philip,

Cumberland County .. ....... .............................-
Pier, Oak Point, King's County ....................................
Expenditure on pier, Digby......... ................ ......... .......

74
175
995
20

263
399

38
2,100

17
1,088

400
1,937

200

A. 1886

Amount.

$ ets.

1,000 00
2,000 00

600 00
53 29

2,000 OU
1,000 00

130 00
199 99

50 ou
100 00
300 00
200 00
300 00
200 00

2,000 00
200 00

2,500 00
400 00
200 00

1,000 00
400 00
400 0
260) t
400 00
911

100 00
150 00
150 00
450 00
200 00
100 OU

80 00
200 00
300 00

20 00
200 00

400 00

100 00
200 0)
246 07
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STATEMENT of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &c.-Continued.

To whom Paid. Place of Expenditure. Ai ount.

1868.

]3udd, Holdsworth & Quirk...
do do ...

Eunt & Pinkney.............
Vincent Comeau............
Budd, Holdsworth & Quirk...
Jno. Munr.e........ ..............
Jno. Tynell .................. .....
George Murray......... ....
Thos. Buddicks ......... .........
David Patterson.........
Juo. Monroe................

1869.

Justemin Comeau ...............
Budd, Holdsworth & Quirk...
George Fraser.......... ..........
David Pinkney ...... ...... .....
G. C. Laurence..................
Jno. Murphy...................
Alex. Rankin ...........
'Vincent Comeau.................
J. B. Young ........................
D. M. Dickey ........ ............
George Fraser ...................
David Patterson...............,

A. McLean ..... , ..... ............
Joseph White ...... ..... .........
Thos. Perry .................
Ed. Newcomb ....................
Alex. MeGinnes ..... ............
J. H. Minhard . ..................
Wm. Barn e................
J. H. Minhard ................ ..
Duncan Cameron. ..............
Fmith & McAdam...... ......
kamuel Babine...............
W . H. Ryer ..... .... ,............
Peter Donaboe...... . .
John Munroe ..............
Jno. Jarrin ..... ......... ........
Cohoon & Parnell ..............

David Pinkney ................
J. R. Hunt........ ...............
.A. 8 bielanson ....... ,..........
'Urbin Saulnier .................
l. F. Kenney ...........
'Wm. McKay............

A. Thurston............
Jas. F. Rice.......................
R. W. Freeman ..............

.Ed. Lockwood....................
Cjhas. Bower................. .....

Jno. Baxter......................
J. M. Roscoe...................,..
.Augustus Levinger..............

Jas. Phelan ............... ,
Jer. Hutt....... ........

Digby Pier.................. .............................................
do ......... ...........................................................

Repairing Victoria Bridge, Digby................ .....................
Breakwater at Meteghan River ......... ...........................
I>igby Pier.. .................................. . ...
Breakwater at McNeil's Harbor, Victoria County...............
Breakwater at Gros Nez, Richmond Conty ...... ..............
Deepening Barney's River, Pictou County ... ....... ..
Repairing wharf at Digby.............. .......... .
Deepening Barney's River.................. .................
Breakwater, Neil's tiarbor, Victoria County......................

Meteghan River breakwater.................,............................
Digby Pier ... .. . . .............. ..................................
Landing at Big Harbor Ferry, Victoria County .............
Repairing draw of Victoria Bridge ......... ...................
Port Hood wharf............ .........................................

do do . ..... .... .... ............................
Wharf at Port Bain, Inverness County ....................
Breakwater, Meteghan River, Digby County ....................
Liverpool Bar, Queen's County...................
Grant to County of King's..............................
Landing at Big Harbor Ferry, Victoria.........................
Deepening bar of river from bridge to main channel, County

of Pictou ........................... ......................................
Building pier in Shelburne Harbor...................
Replacing buoy on Tusket River, Yarmouth .....................
Building block at Green Cove Breakwater, Yarmouth Co....
Breakwater at Avonport, County of King's .......... .........
Bridge from Port Hood to Scuth-West Mabou................
Repairing Ledge dam, Liverpool River.. ...... .......
Surveying site for bridge over St. Mary's River.............
Ledge dam, Liverpool River, balance ......... ............... .....
Repairing bridge across South-West River, Inverness .........
Arisaig Pier, County of Antigonish...... . ..............
Clearing out Ell Brook, County of Yarmouth..... ..............
ro improve river from Shelburne Bridge to Philip Bowser's
Repairing bank of Gilbert's Cove, Digby County ...........
Repairing Neil's Breakwater, Vicloria ..............................
Repairing breastwork, Tracadie Harbor.................
To improve the river from Charlestown to Mill Village,

Queen's C ounty. .................. ............
Reoairing Victoria Bridge, Annapolis County. ...... ,.....
Repairing Victoria Bridge, Digby County .............

do Clare Cove Wharf ..............................
do Saulnier's W harf................. ............. .. .......
do Barrington Landing................ .....

To improve river from Clyde River to head, County ot
Shelbure......... ...... ................. . ...........

Repairing Cranberry Head Breakwater, Yarmouth ..... .......
Renoving obstructions from West Branch Bear River ........
Improving river from Jordan River to head, County of

Q ueen's....... . ... ......... ............ ...........................
Clearing out Allan River, Annapolis County...........
To improve river from Bower's to Big Lake, Shelburne

County ................. ............. ..........................
Repairing breakwater, King's County ............... ,...............

do do ...... ,.......... ...........
Road towards Backland's Harbor, Bouchie, Antigonish

County ............................. ,........,
Grant for County of Richmond ........... ......................
Breakwater, County of King's .... ..............................

22

$ eto.

1,754 04
2,032 16

60 13
200 00

1,560 09
400 00
106 95
100 00
48 25

302 78
100 00

100 00
564 93
100 00

8 71
202 38

29 00
648 16

50 00
73 62

700 OU
41 26

205 68
150 00

75 00,
166 66
200 00
98 42
66 66
57 00

204 46
115 07
200 00

25 0O
120 00
60 O

500 00
200 00

200 00
150 00
150 00-
100 00
100 0
46 lO'

200 00
100 00
100 OU

300 00
150 00

80 OU
40 00
60 00

5o 00
316 66
100 00
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STATEMENT Of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &c.-Continud.

To whom Paid. Place of Expenditure. Amount.

1869.

Thoi. Perry .................
Wt.Snîmith ............ ............
&- F. Comeau .....................
IhOS. Robertson.......
JUo. McHulay ....................
0. M. Melanson ..........
Robert Innis.................
Jas. M&cDonald ..............,.......

Rugh McLean ...........
niCholas Deveau .............
10. R. Dodsworth..................
&b. Gavel.....................
*Ordon Corcum .....11ot. P. Jacques. ..................

Ja8. Moody......... ....a1 3 . Bezanson.............
1lhver M. Doucette.......
J10. Munroe...... ................
Peter McDougall...... ...........
'>. J. Davidson.................,
Jkras & Saunder.............

1870.

Green Cove Breakwater, County of Yarmnouth . ................
Improving navigation, Barney's River, Pictou. .................
Repairing Thireau Wharf, Digby County................. .....
Ferry Landing, Barrington Passage ......... ...... ...............
Repairing shelter beacon, St. Anne's Gut, Victoria ............

do Church Point Wharf, County of Digby.
do breakwater, Hunt's Point, Queen's i ounty .......

To improve Beach Locke's Island with mainland, County of
Shelburne .... ....... ...........................

Breakwater at Port Mutton, Queen's ...... .....................
do Salmon River, County of Digby ...... ,...........

Repairing bridge, Mills Village, Cumberland County .........
Replacing buoys in Joggin's River, Digby........ -......
Removing rocks from Corcum's Boat Harbor, Queen's County
Repairing Victoria Wharf, County of King's ........ ...........

do breakwater at Port Mutton, Queen's County...- ..
do Blaukrock Breakwater, King's County ...... ........
do do Cape St. Mary's, Digby ...

Breakwater at Neil's Harbor, Victoria County. ........... .....
do at Judique Intervale ..... ......... ...............
do and repair road near Capt. Dill's, Colchester....

Repairing sea wall, Digby County....................... ...........

Justemin Comeau ...... ........ do Meteghan River breakwater, Digby County.........
oJha Munroe......... ............... Neil's Haibor breakwater, Victoria .......................... ,.......

14gh McLean ,............ Breakwater at Port Mutton .......... ,......... ........................
Jaties Phelan..................... Wharf at Lennox Passage, Richmond County ..................

no. Myra ................ ......... do Law Pitt, Lunenburg County ...........................
no. Perry ............... Pier at Ross' Beach, Sbelburne County ...............

E. C. Campbell..................... Breakwater at Neil's Harbor, Victoria .,.......................
Meil Kennedy ..................... do Ligbt Point, Inverness .................
&lex. Rankin ............. Port Bain wharf, Inverness........................
0. C. Laurence ................... Public wharf at Port Hood, Inverness ..................... ........

11gus Smith ................ Arisaig pier, Antigonish,................. .............................
DVoUald McLeod ....... ........... Breakwater, Marsh Point, Broad Cove, Inverness ...............
"'1o. McLellan ......... ........... Margaree Island wharf ........ ..... .............. ......

lex. McNab ................ Survey of Main.-Dieu Harbor, C.B ...................
J11o. lcLellan............ Breakwater at Widow Allan's Brook, Inverness..................
Donald McDonald..... ..... Repairing Boat Harbor, Black Rock, Victoria.............-
Iigles & ('Dell . ............... do Annapolis ferry slip ........................................

UOS. Perry.......... .............. Green Cove breakwater, Yarmouth ,............... ..................
1ph. Bockman..................... Bridge across Annapolis River .... ................. ..................
obt. Donahoe..................... Breakwater at Gilbert's Cove, Digby County ...........

R J. Fitzrandolph, ........ Repairin g embankment north of pier, Digby......... ..........
JOB. White.,..................... do buoys, Tusket River, Yarmouth......................
J11o. Quirk.. ............... do embankment, southern part Digby Harbor ........
Gilbert Lent................ do Lent's wharf, St. Mary's Bay, Digby .............
14com McLean..............do boat landing, Washabuck, Victoria............ .....
Jno. Tyneil.............. .......... do Grandigue ferry, Richmond ..............................

a>vid Fraser ...................... Abutments to ferry wharf, north side Grandique, County of
Richm ond .... .................................................... .....

David Murray ............ Deepening Barney's River, Pictou County.. . . . ......
tO. McLeod and others.. Public wharf at Brooklyn, Queen'a County ...... ......

Donald Mc Donald.. .......... .do Port Hood, Inverness ..... .......... ...... .........
»Onald McLean...........Boat landing, Englishtown, Victoria .....................

h. Read.......... ...... To improve river from mouth of Shelburne Harbor to head
of river........... .........................

Bellj. Robicheau........... Repairin g Meteghan Cove, bigby County.................. ....
James Harlow .......... . To clear port, Herbert River, She lburne County .... .....

- H. Ryer.............. To im prove river at mouth of harbor at bead of Roseway
River . ... ................................. .

John Smith.............. To open bar at Smith's Harbor, Victoria...............
23

$ ets.

333 34
400 00
250 00
50 00

208 12
200 00
299 84

75 00
157 50
300 00
120 49>

30 00
25 00

250 00
179 50
200 00
200 00
117 70<

22 00
40 00

200 00

100 00
217 50

3 25
633 34
244 14

37 37
35 00

131 97
510 79
256 23

31 14
150 00
150 00
145 00

40 00
90 00

500 00
133 00
500 00
30 00

200 00
40 00

100 00>
60 0»
50 00

120 00

229 36
166 66
200 00

68 34
50 00

100 00
100 00

20 00

100 O0
150 00

A. 1886
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.STATEMENT Of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &.-Continued.

To whom Paid. Place of Expenditure. Amount.

1870. 5 ets,

'R. W. Freeman. ...... For clearing Jordan River, Shelburne County.................... 200 00
Ed. Newcombs.................... Repairin4 avonport Wharf, King's County............ ........... 200 u>
Eldred Cohoon........... ........ To improve harbor, Port 9-dway, Qaeen's......................... 200 00
J. E. Woodworth.......... Repairing Oak Point Pier, Kiug's county... ....................... 300 O0
John MeLean.............. ........ To clear out boat il iding, North Shore, Victoria. ............ i7 00
Plast. Belliveau,.................. To repairing Bellev, au'& Cove Breakwater, Digby............ 400 00
Just. Comeau.. ......... do Metegha Wharf. .. ...... .... ..... ......... 433 33
Wm. McKay.................... To clear Clyde River, Shelburne County ......................... 150 00
Wentzell & Leslie................ Rreakwater at Eaziehead, Queen's County .... ........... 200 00
John Harris ............... ......... Clearing Bricktown River, -h'lburae County.................... 20 00
Peter Belliveau.................... Repairing Clan C(,ve Breakwater do ................. 150 00
Augst. Comeau................... do Little Brook do do ................. 250 00
Jos. Smith...... ........ ,.......... Removing obstructions from West Branch of Avon River,

County of Hants,. ........ ......... ................ 100 00
C. . Rawling...................... County of King's . ..................... .... ... 200 00
C. B. Weaver....................... Repairing Port George Pier, Annapolis........................... 100 00
P. A. Margeson................... do Margaretville do .... ..................... 100 00
G. Dunbar......, ............... Clearing obstructions on N.E. Branch Sissiboo River, Digby

County .......... ............. ............ .......................... 53 45
J. F. Rice............................ West Branch Bear River ........... ..... ...... ........ 100 00
Thomas Perry. .................. ,IGreen Cove Breakwater, Yarmouth County ...................... 266 66
David Murray. . .................. Deepening Barney's River, Pictou County....................... 333 34
Jos. H. Graves............ Repairing Port William's Pier... ...................... 100 00
Roderick McNeil......... Wharf landing at Grand Narrow, C B. ..... ........................ 50 00
Ezkl. Dexter....................... Repairing dams on Sissiboo River, Digby......................... I75 00
8nmith & McAdams..... ......... Arisaig Pier, Antigonish................................................. 2m0 00
R ibert lunes ............. ..... Hant's Point Breakwater, Queen's County.....,..... ............ 200 00
Chandler & Cockburn........... To rf-move rock f rom boat harbor do .................... 20 00
Hugh McLean,... ......... Breakwater, Port Mutton do ................. . 175 00
Charles Smith ............... do Port Greville, Cumberland County................. 200 00
G. W. A. Lowdon ............. Wharf and landing at Knoydart, Pictou...................... ..... 40 OC
Donald McDonald.............. Boat harbor at Black Rock, Victoria County ..................... 91 6
A. Patterson......... ........... King's County.............. ..................... .... 150 O
Ezkl. Dexter........................ Clearing out stream, North Branch Sissiboo River, Digby

County............... ............ ......... ...... 221 51
David Murray............. .... Deepening Barney's River, Pictou County. . . . .. 110 14

1871.

Thos. Perry......... .............. Repairing Green Core Breakwater, Yarmouth.............. 300 O(
Chris. Smith... ...... do Breakwater, W.S. Harbor, Port Hood............. 140 95
David Esenhauer................. do Beach at Long Island, Shelburne............
Donald alcDonald............... do Port Hood wharf.....................................
J. McDonald & Chisholm..... Building Long Point wharf, Inverness.........................
J. E. Woodworth....... ........ Balance of grant for 1870, Oak Point Pier, King's...............
Robert ,.................. Over expenditure Hunts Point Breakwater, County Queen'
1Neil Kennedy, .................... Balance of grant for 1870, breakwater at site, Point Inver-

ness..... ........................ .......................................
J. E. Woodworth................ Repairing Oak Point Pier, King's County.............. ..........
Cory O' Dell...... ......... do Granville Ferry Slip, Annapolis........................
34d. Nd wcombe................ On account of Avonport wharf, King's,................... .........
Jao. M5!yra........................ Wharf at Law Pit, Lunenburg...... ....................... .....
Hugh M cAdam............ ...... rrisag Pier, Antigonish ........... . .... ..............
lDominie White,.............. Beach at Margaree, Inverness..... ........... ..............
W. H Towensend....... ........ To pay over expenditure on Green Cove Breakwater, 1870,

Yarm outh,........... ....... ..... ....................... ,.......
R. S. Fitzrandolph........... Repairing bank, East Public Pier, Digby. ..... ...........
Hart & Ingraham. ............. Steamboat wharf, Port ýlatwkesbury........ ....................
J. M Bonitent ..... .. ............ Repairing Saulnier wha! f, Digby................ .....................
Doucette & Burns................ do Friar Head, loverness............ .........
Nelsoni Stronish...... ....... argaretville Pier, Annapolis........... .......................
A. F. Comea.............Repairing Comeauville wharf, Digby ............................
Daniel Clough.................... On account of pier, Lennox Passage...... ................ .........
D. Mcl'herson............ ........ Removing rock at Knoydart, Antigonish.....................

24

21 00
221 52
200 00

50 00
35.58

126 60
488 14
258 00
66 00

179 55
20 27

100 00

180 00
204 40

97 33
97 33
39 08

194 67
292 00

97 33
48 6Z

A. 1886
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8TATEMENT of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &c.-Continued.

To whom Paid.

1871.

Jio. Quirk........................
acObL ocke ............. .....
obt. Robertson...................
no. MeLean.... ........
%OB. Perry...... .......
4drew Ma&............... ***

uk eeau...............
aVid Fraser... ........Yital Thibedeau.........
%B. Murray .............

Whitman Leslie ..........
Gares Slocum ............. .....

Wr. McKay ............
tuell Babin...........

Z. wcG ray. .............
4ohn Smith .............

b24 Hollingsworth ............
mas Hogg ......... ...... ,.....

Wer Barnaby ..................
o • Smith .......................irard .................. ....

V aes urray .....................
obicheau ..................

ha.Smith . .....................
eil McLeod .............. ........
lgus Buchanan ................

eVer West...............
eo. Sholes ............
à. Donavan............... .....

a id Fraser ......... ............
ark Lamrock ....... .......
1 an Belliveau .............

jaac Wilson ...........
aes A. Arkill ..................
A. Foster...................

o0nald McDonald ...... ,........
as Buchanan ................

FL Dunlop............a es Davis ............
b Thurston..................

uel Doane ..............
ichardson & Pearl.............

McLeod ........ ...............
. orrison ......... ...............

1872.

. looper .................
Ia murphy ..............
I . Uhrîtie ................
tenry Croft ............Uke Deveau .................
bhisholm & Pascal..........
b. e J. Macdonald ...........
'.lbert Peari............

.O')Connor . ............saae McLeod..... ......
oAualdChisholm........
Sa. Lenoir ...... ......
,I{bert Ro)ach ....................pb 4 Anthony..........

,?ter Sutherland .........1 o. Perry ..... ..............
a ck Bros .. .................

Place of Expenditure.

Repairing Batik at Digby........... ......................... ............
do Lockport Harbor, Shelburne.................. ..... ......

Deepening channel at McLellans Shore, Pictou................
Boat landing, Victoria............ .... ....... .......................
Green Cove Breakwater, Yaimouth...... .. ..................
Removing obstructions in Silver River, Yarmouth. ............
Repairing Cape Cove wharf, Digby...................
Pier N.S., Lennox Passage, Ricbmond.,........................
Repairing Church Point Wharf, Digby ... ... .... ...... .........
Remove obstructions from French River Channel, Pictou ...
Breakwater at Eaglestead...... .......... ..............................
Port W illiam's Pier, Annapolis . ......................................
Remove obstructions from Clyde River, Shelburne ...... .....
Improve landing at Eel Brook ...... ... ..... ...........................

do 'Iusket River . ... ..................
Repairing boat harbor, Victoria County ...... .............. ....
To imp-ove Jordan River........ ........ .............................
Repairing Hamilton Branch, Shelburne............... ...........
ro improve Port Medway, River Queen's.................. .......
Removing rocks, Victoria.... ..................... .........
To improve Liverptol River ......... ........... .. ...... ............
Removing obstructions from French River Channel , .. ......
Repairing Meteghan Cove Waarf, Digby............. ...............
Breakwater at Port Greville, Cumberland..... ........
Build landing, McLean's Brooks, Victoria ........ ...... .........
Repairing North Harbor Breakwater ........................ .........
Build boat harbor, Queen's ...................... ...... ...............
Haulover between Clyde and Port LaTour ..................
Landing French Cove, Victoria ........... ......................
Pier at Grandigue, Richmond ........... .. ......................
Deepen Rocky Creek, Shelburne .................................
Repairing Belliveau's Cove Wharf ....................... ............

do Barrington Passage ........... ......... ....................
Harborville Pier .......... .................................. ..............
Renairing Fisher Grant, Pictou . ...... . .................. .
Build landing, Black Rock, Victoria ........................
Improve landing, Neil's Harbor ....... ..............
Repairing buoys, Liverpool Harbor ..................................
Improve road, Long Lake, Shelburne ................... ..
Hugh Head Breakwater, Yarmouth ...................................
Opening beach, Red Head, Shelburne .......... ..... .
On account breakwater, Tancook Island, Lunenburg Couuty
Service at International Pier . .... ..............................
Whart at Salmon aole, Colchester ...... ........................

Dredge boat for Fouchie Harbor ....... ..............
(In account of pioposed harb jr, L' Ardoise ..... ..............
Repairing breaawater ................................................
Ruilling boat laudin g, Western Head, Queen's.............-.
Cape Cove Breakwater, Digby ......... .... .......................
['racadie Harbor Breakwater, Antigonish...........................
Long Point Wharf, Inverness Courity.............................
Breakwater, Tancook Island, Lunenburg ..... .........
Harbor Bouchie, Antigonish ...... ........ ..............
Margaree fsland Breakwater, Inverness . .........--.......
Tracadie Harbor Breakwater, Antigonish ..............
Breakwater in Lennox Passage, Riichmond........................
Port George Pier .................. .......... .. ~..........
William's Breakwater, Annapolis. ................-......
Breakwater, Shelburne County .. ... .......... .........
To protect beach around Bay .......................
Breakwater, Tracad.e Harbor................. .. ....

49 Victoria.

Amount.

$ etc.

194 67
9887
19 47
97 33

292 0
155 73
389 33
486 67
292 00
243 33
194 67
3s9 33
97 33
19 47
3893
87 60

146 00
97 3%
29 .0
38 40
29 20
77 87
97 33

418 00
48 03

29! 00
19 t 67
24:1 33
97 33

557 93
97 33

245 62
110 50

73 00
97 83
46 00
58 40

433 00
24 33

146 (A
ý46 00
292 00

5 00
142 52

259 87
100 0<
2950

190 77
86 80

333 33
140 0<S
97 33
54 40ý

261 50
C22 01
283 33
20 0<>
4(0 00
100 0
40 0&
E 0



49 Victoria. Sessionai Papers (No. 7$.) A. 1886

BTATEMENT Of MOnOyS expended by the GoverumeDt of Nova Scotia, &c.-Confinete

To whom Paid. Place of Expenditure. AmO2ant-

1872.

Renry Oft ........................ Boat harbor, Western Head, Queen's .......... ...... ............... 52 09
Donald McLeod. ................. Wharf, Marsh Point, Broad Cove, Inverness...................... 275 0
.Ne il McLean........................ Ferry landing, Baddeck, Victoria ...... ............... ..... 50
lsaac Publiconer.............. Placing buoys in Cove Blanford, Lunenbarg..................... 35 00
O B. Bawer .... ... ......-... Improve Shelburne Road River............. .............. 12000'
Thomas F. Walker............... To improve Jordan River, Shelbuine...... .............. .. 125 0
Andrew Mack .................... do Silver do ................................. 1200
il H. Ryer ............... ........ do Shelburne do ................................ 130 CO
John MNeil.... .................. Ferry landing, Big Bras d'Or, Victoria .......... ................... 50 00.
]Richardson & Penr. Breakwater at Tancook Island, Lunenburg ........................ 778 61
John McLean .......... ........... Path End, near Smoky, Victoria ...................................... 100 0
Jark Lamrock.............. ..... Breakwater, Shelburne................................................... 50
Oilbert Roche ...... P.............. port George and Breakwater ............................ 400 00
J. f. Rice ........................... To remove obstructions from Bear River, Digby.................. 100 00
Lewis W hite...... ............... Breakwater, Yarmouth ......................... ,.......................... 30 ou
Chas. Lenoir.......... ...... do Lennox Passage, Richmond ................... 566
James McGregor,....-. Repairing Island Wharf, Pictou........................ ............... 100 00
John Cossit ...-................. Wharf and buoys at Digby. ............................................. 32 00
B. A. Belliveau...... Pier Cove Breakwater........... ........................................ 124 9

A. J. Comeau ,..... ............... Little Brook Breakwater.............. ................. 300 00
Whitman Leslie ................. Breakwater, Eagle Head, Queen' ...... . ... .................. 200 00
'Thos. Hogg ........................ Shelburne ............................ ..................... 50 00
Jesse Roper ..... ..... ...... ... Boat landing, French Cove, Victoria...... ................. 10( 0
James M arl hy..................... Opening boat harbor at Inverness ................................... 109 I
C. E. Burbridge ........ ......... Breakwater, Ross Creek, King's..... ......... .................. ...... 200 00
Oliver West ....................... Boat harbor at W hite Point, Queen's County......... ............ 258
Roland Hulbert ........... Rebuild bridge by meadow, Yarmouth.............................. 60
8u hen Goudy ......... ......... Green Cove Breakwater.......... ......... 300 00
M. 'Entremont ..... ......... Improve landing, Lobster Bay ,......... .............................. 60 00
Jos. Oahill ........ ............... Givan's Wharf, Canada Creek, King's.............................. 150
Geo. Gilroy ........ ............... River Philip Bridge, Cumberland ................................ 23
Wm. Cbapman................... Pugwash Bridge, Cumberland ............. .............. iCO 30
W. E. Woodward................ Chipman Brook Pier, East King's .................. .................. 80 0
Donald McKinnon ........... Embankment, Bailey Brook, Pictou. ............................ ,... 40
Don. Id McLean ............... Boat harbor, Malagwatch, Inverness ........ ,..... .............. 120
Geo. Sholes ...... .............. Breakwater, Ca e Argo, Shelburne ............ ... .............. 1500
W. H. Woodward ...... ......... Chipman's Broo Pier, West Kirg's .............. ......... 100 0
lEd. Cohoon ........................ Port Medway Harbor, Queen's County ............ ................. 93 84

Jos. 0. McDonald........Landing for steamer " Neptune," Grand Narrows, C.B...... 55 C
RichardEon & Pearl ..... ... B. reakwater, Tanccok Island, Lunenburg ... ............... 315 1
John Forbes... ...... ......... Kempt Bridge to Fall,Yqrmou th ..................... ........... 40 00
Ab. Thurston ............. .... Breakwater, Cranberry Head Yarmouth........................... 250 00
-As. Gray ...... ......... ............ Little Brancb, Tusket River, Yt mouth........................... 60 00
1. P. Jacques .................... Victoria W harf, King's .............. ,.... ............... .............. 50 00
-E. E. Burbridge ........... Break water, King's County . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  100
Kenneth Matheson............... Breakwater, North-East Harbor, Victoria ...... ............. 50 0
-Wm. McDonald ........... Pier Harbor, Port Joliy, Queen's.................... ..... 150 0

1873.

D. & J. McDonald .......... Breakwater, Long Point, Inverness County ............ 74
B. M. Bobicheau ......... Metegban River Breakwater, Digby................ 400
Thos. Smith . . Ferry wharf, Merigoish, Pictou..........................12...
Wm. Arbuckles ........ ... Sbore at Arbuekes......... .......................... 38 00
Donald Chisbolm...... ....... Tracadie Harbor, Antigonish............................ 16 0
Jno. McLeod .................. Boat landing, New Haven, Victoria.. ..................... 100 0
Thos. Farmsworth ............. Morden Pier, King's.... ............................... 60 U
Jno. McDonald ............ Deepening Barney's River, Pictou ......................... 70
1D. & J. McDonald ............. Breakwater, Long Point, Invernes County................. 233 0
A. Buchanan ......... ..... Neil'a Harbor Breakwater, Victoria...... .................. 50
JoB. Rawling .............. Morden Pier, Rings ounty ............................ 150 o
Javid Eisenhaur ,...........To improve beach, Lockport, Sheburne .................... 78 43
i. W. Richardson -........... Breakwater at Tancook Iland, Lunenbrg.................. 32
ich. Frippe.e............ epairing buoy i Harbon Buchie, Anigon..................... 200

26



Sessional Papers (No. 78.)

kTEMENT Of MODeys expended by the Government of Nova ScOtia, &o.-Continued.

To whom Paid. Place of Expenditure.

1873.

])Uncan McKinnon.............. Shore road, Bailey's Brook, Pictou............ ........
c l McLean.. ........... Ferry landing, Baddeck, Victoria ...... ..........................

D onald MeLeod.......... Wharf, Malnga Watcb, Inverness......... .... ............... .........
0a8. Lenoir ............. Pier, Grandigue Ferry, Richmond ...................................orton Dawling............. Lockeport Harbor, (Jonnly of Shelburne ......................

On Griffin ..................... Breakwater, Lewis Head, Shelburne .............................
.omeau ................ ..... Saulnierville Breakwater, Digby........... ...................... ....

bert R oche ...... ............... Port George Pier, Annapolis.................................... .........
Graham......... .... ....... Pier, Bayfield, Antigoni ..........................

Woodward. ......... ..... Chipman Brook Pier, King's .... ............................. . ......
cNeil......... ............... Bras d'Or Ferry, Victoia .............. .............. ...... .. .....

al Thibaudeau.. ....... Church Point Breakwater, Digby ......... .............
er West .............. Breakwater, White Point, Queen's........................
] urbridge ............ Ross Creek Breskwater, Kinrg's ............ ....... . .........

McLeod ......... .... New Bave do Victoria ....... ...................
McLeod ............. South side Bras d'Or, Victoria.....................................

itr McL ean ............. Washabuck Ferry............... .. ........ .........
.. . Ryer .............. To improve river mouth, Ehelburne ...... ......... ..................

ilchardson & Pear........Tancook Breakwater. Lunenburg .............................
Walker...... ............ To improve Jordan River, Shelburne.................

• Logan............ . Mill Brock Breakwater ....... ...... .................
urkee...... Carleton River Breakwater, Yarmouth...................,....... .

'o, Robertson. ........ Wharf and Bridge, St. Ames, Victoria.............................
. b'mith .............. Pier, Port Hood Island, Inverness ........................

tikYnard ............... Liverpool River Breakwater, Queen's.................
Os. Bogg ..... ....... ....... Rocky Creek, Clyde River, Shelburne .....................
O. Burbidge ...... ............ Ross Creek Breakwater, King's ............... ........... ....

xot'ald MeLean....... ....... Inglishtown Ferry, Victoria...........................,..................~ Mcean.........Baddeck Ferry doMc Lean......... ... -a de k F rr o ... .......... ............... ...............
Us McNeil ............ Opening bai bor, Big Bond, C.B......... ...... ....................

ienry Robicheau..........Meteghan Cove Breakwater, Digby ........ ...........
Vhary Eaton ............. Repairing packet wharf, King's.......................... .........

S cLean. ........... Path End, near Smoky ................................. ..................
. Comeau..................... Repairing wharf, Little Brook, Digby. .. ...... ..... . .

e Doucette .......... ......... Belliveau's Cove Breskwater do ..................
. ooper ......... Entrance to Fouchie H arbor, Richmond .................... .... ....

tfn Perry ............... Wharf at Brookfield, County of Digby....................
gcan McDonald.........Pier, Long Point, Inverness . ............................. .....
'lhorne............. ... do Hall's Harbor, King's County ........................ .......

. cott ....................... Fisher's Grand F erry Landing, Pictou ...........................
oras Anthony ................ Ogilvie's Pier, King's Ceunty ......................

ln* Graham ....... ......... New wharf, Bayfield Antigonish...........,............................
eorge Shole . . . . . . . . . . . . aulover, Cape Negro, hhelburne .............. , ...................Juh Nicholson .................. Building scow, Long T land Ferry, C.B.,............... .........

SPipes .............. Port Philip Breakwater Bridge . ........................
G lispie................ .... Bar at Partridge Island .......... .......... .........
r ooks ............. Wharf, Hampton eayshore, Annapolis......... ...... ..............

O. Raymond............. do near shipyard, Digby .................................
. Porter........................ Clear bar at W edge, Yarmouth ............. ....... ..................
niUel Bushie..................... Bouchie's Landin g ....... ......... ......... .......

a ren Churchill....... ........ Cheboggin Breakwater, Yarmouth.......... .........
&. Morton . ... ............. Tusket River ..... ,.... ..... .... ......... ............................

S. .................... Port William's Pier, Anna polis ...... ...... ..............
arker ............. Chipman's Brook Breakwater, King's ........ ........

es Littimore ........... Pier at Gian digue Ferry, Richmond .................. ..............

1% g McLellan. ......... Neil's Barbor Breakwater, Victoria .... ,.... .............
'Wmtnas B Smith ................ Wharf and landir g, at Merigomish, Pictou..... ...........

.McGrath .......... .. Canal at Prospect.,.................... -...........

1874.

Clih .......................... Little Narrows Ferry, Victoria......................... ...
on1ny Montague ............ Clear bar, Frost Island, Yarmouth ...................................

ad MMaster................ Long Point Pier, Inverness.......................................
27

Amount.

$ ets.

33 86
50 76
24 DU

617 70,
4 00

200 0>
250 00>
200 00
200 0>

20 0D
50 00

300 oiy
690 63
166 66.
125 00>

50 00
50 00.

150 00
484 43
150 00)
180 00

50 OC
217 20
300 00>

50 00
75 00,

333 34
50 00
60000

400 00
250 00

55 00
50 00,

638 00
400 00
100 00
100 0>
100 M)
50 0)

168 20.
120 0
132 50
150 00
139 53
351 3?

20 (O
400 00
100 00
40 0()
40 0<

100 CtO
60 00

200 o>
50 CO

143 94
500 (1)
24 00,

211 b3

50000
20 00

200 00
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49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No 78.) A. 1

£TATEMENT of Money8 expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &3.- contiwL

To whom Paid. Place of Expenditure. Amount-

1874.$oe

Donald Chisholm................ Repairing Tracadie Harbor ..... ...................................... 24 
Douai McDonald ......... ..... Militia Point Pier, Inverness......................... .............. 240 00
E. J Fitzraudolph ..... ......... Joggin's River Breakwater, Digby ....... .... .................... 20 00
Charles Chinist .................. Repairing buoy near Gilpin's Rock. Lockport .0
kyau Murphy. ..... ..... .. .... Building pier aned openiug channel upper end of Port Hood 180 00
D. McLeod ........... ........ Wharf, Broad Cove Marsh, Inverness.............. ......... 250 00
ID. McLeod ......................... do at Bayfield, Antigonish...... . ................................ 666 66
M. comeau........................ Saulniervlle "Breakwter, Digby ..... ..... ... ....... ...... 250 00
Wm. Arbuckles ................. Public landing, Glf Shore, Pictou ....... ...... .................. 70 00
D. McLaren ......... ......... Building piei, Porter's .ake Bridge. . ...... ................. ...... 219 64
A. F. Comeau ............ ........ Comeau's Breakwater, Digby . ......... ...... ......... 250 00
Vital Thibaudeau ............... Ohurch Point Breakwater, Digby ..... . ......................... 200 00
'Thos. Jenn ir go ..... ...... Draw of Palmerst-n Bridge, Cumberland......... ............ ..... 498 7
D. McRenzie........................ Big Harbor, 8.8 , Victoria ................ .................. . 500
Jos. Smith ................ ...... Removing obstructions from West Branch River Avon, Hanta

C ountv...... ..... ... . ..... ........................... .............. 200
John Forbe ............. Breakwater, Point Brûle, Colchester . ......... .................... 200
J H Mynard,..................... do Liverpool River, Queen'as.................... ..... 500
W L). Smith ....................... Piers, Port Hood, Inverness ...... ..... ........ ............ 6
A. D. McGill .............. ... Iprove Shelburne River from mouth of harbor to head.of

River......... ...... ....... ..... ....... ....... 130 00
C. R. Bower ....................... Improve Jordan River, Shelburne ............... ............... 50 00
AlleK. McKe-nzie .................. South point Neil's Harbor, Victoria............. . 100 00
Randall & Graham ........ Wharf at Bayfield, Antigonish ......... ................. 1,322 8
John MeLean ................ Boat harbor, Path End, Victoria......................... .. 80 00
W. D'Entremont.. .... ....... Landing, West Pubnic., Yarmouth ......... ............... 50 00
G . D. Acker ....................... Birchtown Point, Shelburne ................................... ....... 20 00
M. F. MeD9ougall ................. Steamer landing, Christmas Itland, O.B................... ......... 174 00
Peter McLean .................... Ferry, Washabuck, Victoria ..... .............................. ... .30 0
John Arnold ....... ..... ........ Chipman's Brook Pier, Kin g's Cunty ............. ,.... ... ,... 66 '
L. A. D'Entremont ............. Wharf at Double Islan d, Yarmouth.... ....................... 40 4
John Heattield ................ Public wharf, 1,ort Greville, Cumberland ........ ................. 1000
John Hollingsworth ....... Pier. Jordan Harbor, Shelburne...................................... 15) 00
Charles Lenoir .................... N.S. aide Lenn x Passage ............. , .................. 596 4
F. Rice ............. ......... .Remove obstructions from West Branch Bear River, Digby

County......... . 1 .... .... . .. ........... ....... 100 00
W. Morton ....... ................ Clear East Bran ch Tusket River, Yarmouth .... . ..... ......... 60 00
W. D'Entrermont.................. Complete wharf, W st Pubnico do ...... ...... ......... 52 S1
A . O. Porter............ ........... Tusket W edg'...... ... . .. ..................................... 40 00
Vm. Martzell ..................... Breakwater, Black Point, Queen's ............. ....... 150 00
Donald McLean.................. Oanal between Malagawatch and River Dennis ................ 100 00
]M. Stronich ......... .............. Margaretsville Pier, Annapolis ............ ......... ........ . 100 0,
P J. Morton .................... Centreville Breakwater, Digby ............. 200 00
Jhn Baxter............. Breakwater, Baxter's Harbor,'King's............ ............. ,..... 100 00
Jao. McLteod...... ........ ......... New Haven Landing, Victoria......... ......... ..... ........ 80 00
]P. A. Belliveau ......... .......... Clare Cove Breakwater, Digby ...... ... ....... .. 419 $3
A. Thurston ....... ............... Breakwater, Cranberry Head, Yarmouth ..... ..................... 400 00
R. Hulbert ....... ...... ........... do T isket River do .................. .. . 40 00
M. Forbes ................... .... do Argyle do ...... .... ... .......... . 100 00H. Doucette............... Cape Cove Breakwater, Digby ................ '200 00
Jos. Leslie .................... Eagle Head do Queen's ......................... 450 00
Jas. Cahill ...... ........ Givar's Harbor do King's ........... .................. t 00
E d. Raton ..... .......... ......... Victoria W harf, King's................ ........ ......... ............... 150 00
Thos. McKay ..... . .... ......... Remove obstructions, Bloody Creek, Clyde River, Shelburne 60 00
D. McKean .... .,.......... ..... Breatwater at Port Caledonia, C. R.................. 1,317 3
A. Durkee .. .................. do Catalone, Yarmouth .,.... ........................... 60 0
T. R. Brooks.............. Wharf at Hampton Bay shore, Annapolis .................... 600 00
Geo. .... .................. Haulover, Cape Nezro, Shelburne ......... ......................... 75 00
W. &. Lovitt ............ qChipmran's Brook Pier, King's County............................... 50 00
H. Thorpe ............... Hall's Harbor Pier. King's.,.... ......... .. ........... .................. 150 00
John Arnold ........... ........ Cbipman's Brook Pier, King's ...... ................................... 133 3
Jno. McDonald ........ ....... .Neil's Harbor Landing, Victoria ......................... 100 0
W. O G. Bower ................. Clear and dam East .ranc4 Clyde River, Sheiburne . 150 0
Paul Foster .............. Wharf at Fisher's Grant Ferry, Pictou ......... ..... .............. 150 00

:8



Sessional Papers (No. 78.)

STATIEMENT Of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Seotia-(hcntinued.

To whom Paid.

1874.

.U rquhart........................
as. Moser.......................
' Ryerson ...............
•Robertson ..................

4gus McGillivray ...............
OMas Anthony ................

& . 0. Condlon .... ..... ......
ie Kinnon ............ .. .......

1875.

n. * m ith................ ....
McDonald.............Odk McNell...........

i McNeil .............
Goowin.... ............os. 0Hawby . . . . . . . . . . ..cDonald ......................

nu ce..............S ilson.. .............

b. os> .... •.•..............
. aonl................
riL lla...............

•Dowa e ......... .........
. m U mith..............

j. Meyna.... .............

•oy Riiity...............
i n ................. ........ ,
co ]Barlow ......... ...... .......

r ay ,........... ............
g k Murphy ...............
m cDonald .......... ........
erry .......... .............

tO Wodwin .......................
d- barvey ........ ...... ..

Zs Gamon.............

b .Sutheland.....,.......

SB. ...........

Fraser...,.............

, a & Crowdis ..........
çà es Romkil ............ ........
g • A sker. ...... ....
29 MCDonald .........
].o tICIeod ................

tic preeman . .........
So alker.....................

L est . . .. . . . . . . . . .....
llet ....... .........

Y* 11therland .....................
a08npbell ........... ............

li, atheson.,...... ........
J. Laue . ....... ............n..
Jo P e ..... ................ ..

'JOs . test........ .......
11. y cKay............... »..........

Ja . Me Dogl...... ..........
i. afield ............ .........

Ja are r ....l.... ..............

Z. a0aa------- .......

y, . ülurkee .....................
-Ryer.,9.... 0...... ..........

Place of Expenditure.

Black Rock Landing, Pictou................................... .........
Straightening Leander River, Hants ........................ .........
Repairing Yarmouth Harbor Beacon .................................
Pier, Port Jolly, Queen's ...... .......... , . ..........................
Wharf, Bailey's Brook, Pictou ............... ..........................
Ogilvie's Pier, King's County ...........................
Beach from mainland to Lockeport...................................
Wharf, Bailey's Brook ........ ...................................

Boat Landing, Green Coves, Victoria ........ .........
Bay St. Lawrence and Sligar Reef...................... ...... .........
Building landing for steamer " Neptune" ............ ............
Brefskwater, tig Narrows, C.B . .......................... ..........
Public wharf, Argyle Sound, Yarmouth ...........................
Ferry landing, Ingonish Victoria ...............................
Long Point Pier, Inverness ........................
Little Harbor and L'Ardoise Piers ................ ...................
Breakwater protecting road west side Avon River ............
Ferry landiog, Little Narrows, Victoria ......... ........... .....
Breakwater, Three Sisters, Cumberland..............
Wh arf, Margaree sland, Inverness ... ...................
Public sewers, New Glasgow ... ... ......... ............
Pier, Outer Island, Port Hood....... .................. .......... ......
Militico Point Pier, Inverness ... ..... ..... ...................
To improve narrows at Indian Channel, Lunenburg ..... ......
Breakwater, Lewis' Head. Shelburne ,..... ............
Clear obstruction, Bear River, Digby................. ...
Deepen canal at Chester ........... ...............................
Breakwater, W hitney Point .................... ...... .. ..............
Public wharf, Big Bras d'Or, Victoria .............................
Lighthouse Road, Paririd ge Island.......... ...... .....
Public wharf, Hardinrg Dyke .........................................
Ferry slip at Avondal., IHants ......... .............
Dyke at Lawrencetown, Halifax ......................... ,
Breakwater, Shelburne County.................... ...................
Port Georg e Pier.................. ......... ............ .................. .
Wbarf at Abercrombie Point, Pictou.. .. . ........
Margaree Break water. Inverness ....................................
Deepen channel, Lahave Islands .....................
Olear 3ircbtowia Rive r, Shelburne ........ ......................
Survey, Bayfield Wharf..... .............. ............. .... .......
Pnblic wh' rt, Brooklyn, Queen's............ ........................
Port la Tour, nouth of harbor to head of river, Shelburne...
Indian River to hea 1, Shelburne .......................................
kreakwater, White Point, Queen's ............................
Granville Ferry Slip, Annapolis.......... ....... ........
Obstructions from Rocky Creek, Shelburne.,............
Landing, Bridge Island, Victoria ............ .............. ...

do do ................. .....................
Clyde River, Shelburne ................. ...... .............
Boat landi ig French Cove, Victoria . ..... . ..............
Wbart, , e'h eek Ferry Landing....................................
Repairing draw, Port Phillip bridge ................................
Cutting beach, Little Antz, Richmond .............................
GeddresE bridge to Queen's bridge Shelburne...................
Steamer landing, Christmas Islanâ................................
Public wharf, Port Greville, Cumberland ................ ........
Ferry slip, north shore sides Grandique ferry ...............
Baxter's Harbor, King's ........................ .......... ........
Dover to Peggy's Cove.......... 1 ...... ..........
Garlton River, Martasket, Yarmouth .... ...... ...........
To improve Shelburne River ...... ,.............................

Amount.

ct&

00
0<>
00
00
0S
0*
0S
00

120 0
5u 00

201 43
50 0&

150 0»
20 0

100 00-
253 05
100 0<
30 00

300 00
100 1e
119 49
57 00

420 00
40 0<>

200 00
400 0<

40 0&
100 0<
200 00

30 0»
38 52

150 0
30 77

140 00
1000
41 6

400 00
40C 00

20 01)
9 10

1(8 5»
50 0()

1?0 00
600 0<l
1000
100 0>

40 00
15 00

100 0>
40 0
40 0M

32e 0*
100 00e
100 S0
169 00)
100 0<>
186 4a
300 0M

30 0
60 0

120 0
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Sessional Papers (No. 78.)

STATEMENT Of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Seotia, &.-Contin'À4 '

To whom Paid.

1875.

Rodk. McLeod ,........... .....
Jno. Miller ................
A. Dutfy ...............
C. Melanson ..... . ...............
Jno. Hilty ..... ................
R. C. Hulbert........... ...........
Luke Deveau.......................
En. Arnold......................
Jno. Harris.........................

Luke Comeau.......................
.Angus McLeod....................
David Smith............
Cory O' Dell .............. ........
Donald McLean...................
W. A. Bower ......................
J. W. Roscoe .......................
«Ed. Eaton..................... ....
Jno. Brown. ........................
W. D. D'Entremont.............
Norman McLeod .............
O'Dell & Carbett ..... , ........
Thos. Anthony...............
.Angus Buchanan..................
Wm. McKenzie ......
Jos. D. HcDonald ............
Jno. McDonald .................
Jos. Chandler .....................
Jacob Locke.......................
.A. Thurston.......................

1876.

Place of Expenditure.

Breakwater, Victoria County ............................ .....
Road, sea wall, Peggy's Cove ................. ...... .....
Breakwater, Saulnierville, Digby................... ..................
Church Point breakwater .............................
To improve channel at Narrows, Long Point ......................
Tusket River, Yarmouth.. .............. . . .......................
Breakwater, Cape Cove. Digby ..... .. ...........................
Chipman's Brook pier, King's .... ................................
To improve river from Geo. McKay's bridge to Little Gold

L ake........................ ........................ ........................
Belliveau Cove breakwatpr, Digby ................................
Breakwater, L'Ardoise, Richmond ........................
Abetto at Selmah, Bants ................. ..................
Annapolis ferry slip ...... ..............................
Building slip, Englistown, Victoria ......................
East Branch Long Cape, Clyde River........................ ........
Hall's Harbor pier, King's ............................................
Breakwater, King's ........................ . ... ........ .........

do at Brulé, Colchester.............................
Wharf, We st Pubnico, Yarmouth. ...................
Landing, Pathend, Victoria .................. .........
Breakwater, Annapolis.................................
Ogilvie's wharf, King's County. .......................... ........
Neil's Harbor, Victoria ...........................
Public wharf, L'Ardoise, Victoria........... ...... ......
Breakwater, Long Point, Judique, Inverness ................ ...
Pier, Neil's Harbor, Victoria ...........................
Boat Harbor, Beach Meadow, Queen's ............................
Repairing buoys, Lockeport .....................................
Breakwater, Cranberry tIead, Yarmouth ............ ........

McIntosh & McAchern. Build Victoria wharf, River Inhabitants..............
Thos. Smith.......................Wharf, Smith's Point, Pictou County. ..
Thos. W. Ferguson.............Cana at White Haven, Guysboro' ...................
Jno. Ryder . ...................... t.blic wharf, end Ryder's Road.... .................
Jno. Cameron.... ........ Big Island wharf, Pictou ...........................
Hugh McLean .................... Breakwater at Matou, Queen's ....................
Jas. Sanford ..................... Wharf at Coikengin, Haut....... ...............
Thos. Raper ........... ,.........Publi pier at Jackson Point .......................
Jno. Goodwin .................. Publi. w.arf, Lower Point Sond ...................
Jas. Andro ........................ do pier at Lower East Pubnico....... .. ....
R. McLeod ................ Building wharf, South Gut, St. Anne's.... ............
Isaac Goodwin ... ,. .......... Publi wharf, Hardings Dyke, Argyle...... ...........
Luke Deveau ................... Cape St. Mary's breakwater, Digby ........
Cory O'Dell .................... Anapolis ferry slip..............................
Wm. McKenzie ............ Publi wharf, L'Ardoise... .............. .....
Donald Cameron . ......... Harbor, Bird's Island, Victoria.... ..................
Wm. McKenzie............... Wharf at Bullardoise, Victoria.... ..................
D. Ferguson.......................do Little Narrows, Victoria...................
J. A. Matheson .............. do north side Big Harbor...... ...............
E. Hericau.. .......... Breakwater, ericau Cove, Digby ...................
R. McLeod...... ................... Publi wharf, south side Victoria ....................
Thos. Raper ...... .............. Jackson Point, Victoria................
D. B Woodworth..........R.ig's County.......... ......................
Jas. Brenton.......................Port Williams pier, Anuapolis....... ...............
Wm. Arbuckles ........ ...... Landing, Glf Shore, Pictou .......................
Gates Publicone ................. Public wharf, Luneburg.......... ............
Hyram Spinney ................. .do Argyle .............................
Etridge Hart ..................... Margaree pier, East Iuverness...... .

Thos. H. Ferguson............ Canal, White aven, Guysboro'. .......
Donald Smith ........... ...... Slip at Green Cove, Victoria..... ...............
Martin Rynard ............. Broad Cve breakwater, Lunenburg......................

80

Amount•

100 00
100 00
50000
500 00

8o 00
95 31

325 00
320 00
50 00
75 00

150 00
150 06
100 00
4000
60 00
.50 00
30 00

250 00
40 00
75 00

200 00
20000

20 00
100 00
150 00
4000

100 00

401

430 0
60

40000
50

100 0
99

415
100

50 00
100 0
10000

12 0
103
123
314

Il
24
50 00
40 0
12 5

10000
165 00
9 00
200 00

300<6
166 66
76 60
50 0

133 0
8000

1,00 00

,49 Victoria.
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TEMENT Of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Seotia, &c.--onunued

To whom Paid.

1876.

CDonald ................

ron A rphy ............
]o rmstrong..................
So hosan......................

Bower.................
la~urns ....... ...........
a. Boadroit.................

J3. . Eaton...... ...........
d.O'Brien ......... .............

Sutherland .........
Crooke........................
. Borden... .........

. Harris . . . . . . . . . . . . .
• to ih ....... ,.....

g McLeod..............
Ma- Harlow...... ...... .....

son a McKay....... ...
. Ferguson...................

eton & Walker...... ...........
Jas McKay... .........

o Hatfield............
o. Hilt.

d tz...................
•h DeLoney ..........
o. Daeper ............

.Richeau...........
o- Mathews...........

S Eaton .... ...............
L. Deveau. ......... ......

• . Allison......................
Champ ..............

rew Hiltr ..............
Deniton ...........

SDurke ..........

arkelbe l.................
B. ...... ............ .....

McAndrew...... ............
Di . ........ .........

DeLoney.. .........
. Gates..... .........
d picer....... ..............
* " Andrews ......,....... .......acob Locke . . . . . . . . . . .

T Il enton.... ....... ......
' 4. Belliveau. .........

J .R Comleaue...........
ko. Kelly..
raicKenzie .. ..
P. McDougall..............

la. Bmaith.............
cob Locke.

4 nel Bouchi .................
fo. Sholes.... .......

lrs. Mahar............
obes & Craig...

0* Aoderson

ilrro ......... ..

Place of Expenditure. Amount.

$ et.

Long Point whrf, Inverness .......................................... 35 0
Public wharf, East 'ort Nledway...... ............. ................. 100 00»
Breakwater West Ray, Inverness.............................. ......... 150 00
Port Hood pier, lnve:ness* ............................................. 100 0S
Breakwater at end Avon Bridge .................... ................. 40 00,
Friar Head, Cheticamp, Inverness ........................ 150 00
Mouth Shelburne Harbor to head of River.. . . ..... 120 00
Doucette's Cove, Invernes ........... ............. ...... 100 0»
Repairs to steamer " Richmond "..................................... 500 0S
Public landing, Maitland, Hants........... ............. 150 0<
Road to public landinz, Noël, Hants.......................... ...... 54 75
Obstructions, Clyde River, Shelburne.......... .................... 100 00
Laurencetown Bridge, Halifax......... ................. ........ ...... 70 00
Wharf at Avonport, King's...................... 83 33
Birchtown River, mouth of harbor to head of river........ 80 00
Margaretsville Wharf, Annapolis...................................... 300 00
Breakwater at LArdoise.,................................................. 150 fO'
Improving Port LaBear River...... ....................... 70 00,
Milford Bridge, Draw....................................... ........ ...... 200 00
Canal at White Haven.............., ........ ............................. 266 67
Improving Jordan Harbor................................................ 150 00
Removing obstructions from Clyde River ............. ,...... .... 100 00
Breakwater, Clyde River............................ .............. 50 00.
Public wharf, Port Greville ..... .. ........ ................. 100 00
Repairing Hampton Pier, Annapolis......-.. ...... .............. 250 00
Channel at Narrows, Indian Point, Lunenburg.................. 100 O
Publie wharf, Tracadie, Antigonish ................................ 400 00
Improving Birchtown River ..... ........... . ............ 20 0»
Meteghan River Breakwater..... ....................................... 100 00
Canai on Canso Island............... ................... 100 0<
Breakwater at Eatonville, Cumberland ....................... ..... 225 00

do Round Hill, Digby............................... ...... 100 00
Hants County.... ......................................... ................. 250 00l
Big Port Breakwater, Inverness.......................... 250 00
Binkavon River, Windsor........................... ..................... 12 50<
Wharf at Digby ....... ......... .......... ............................... 285 00

do West Pubnico, Yarmouth................................ 50 00
Clearing Carlton River, Yarmouth ..... .................. 50 00
Tusket River, Yarmouth.................................................. 80 00
Hampton Pier, Annapolis. ... ...... .................................... 250 00
Port George Harbor, Annapolis........................................ 76 75
Breakwater at Lunenburg......................,. ...................... 1li 55
Wharf at Tracadie, Antigonish......... .......................... 197 49

do Blanford, Lunenburg ............ ..... ................... 333 34
Protection bar, Spencer Island, Lunenburg. ..................... 125 00
Bridge, Croxheath, C. B .......... .............. ......... 150 0<
Repairing buoy, Lockport, Shelburne .......... .................... 113 78
Wharf at Port William's, Annapolis......... ..................... 100 00
Clear Cove Breakwater, Digby......... ..... ......................... 297 54
Little Brook Breakwater, Digby....................................... 400 00
Breakwater, Kelly's Cove, Yarmouth.........,..................... 125 00
Gibbon's Bridge, C.B..... .............. ................... 50 0
Steamer landing, Christmas Island ........... ............. ......... 97 0
Port Hood Outer Island Pier ................................... ........ 100 00
Building buoys, Lockport...... ........... ........ .. ............... 16 35
Public landing near Bouchie's Landing......... ......... ........ 25 (0
Haulover port la Tour, Shelburne............... .................... 40 00
Breakwater, Argyle, Yarmouth. ....... 100 00
Opening Andrew's Creek...... ................. ....... .........- 66 66
Repairing Wharf and Breakwater at Brulé........................ 250 00
Draw of Jeddore Bridge................................................... 238 65
Breakwater at Barroi's, St. Anne's.............................. 50 00

do Little River, Victoria............ ..................... 31 0<
31

A. 1889
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STATEM NT of MOneyS oxpended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &o.-ContinWd4

To whom Paid.

1877.

Simon Giffin..................
Jno McAuley........ ............
Jno. McMahon.....................
Geo. A. Borden...................
Hiram Spinney.,............ ......
W. Goodwin.......................
Jno. Goodwin.....................
Norman McAskell............
Wm. McLeod......... ........
Jas. Mahon......... ...............
D. McDonald..................
Randal Graham.............
Jos Goodwin .....................
Hector (armichael...........
R. McLeod .................
Hiram Spinney.....................
Geo. Henessey ...... ............
Geo. L. Deveau., -.......

Randal Graham...................
D. 0. (j. Madden..............
D. McKenaie.................
Blozed Poirier ......... .... ,....
M. Cunningham...................
Peter Himmelmar................
R. McLeod ..................
W. D. Smith, .................
D. McFadden.... .............
D. A. Starratt ....... ...... .....
H. LeBlanc . ... ........
John Payzant ....................
J. Cornwell ..... ..............
S. Cohoon.......................
A. Hobart..................
John Harlow .....................
John Hart..........................
Wm. Wentzell....................
o. Harris. ..................
Jas. E. Dunne ............ ........

il McNeil...................
B. Walsh.......................
Geo. McLeod ......... ...........
L. Romkey ...................
B. Sutherland ..............
John Thomkins.,.............
R. Moody. ......................
J. D. Kelly........................
John Goodwin ....................
W. E. Morris ......................
B. Barris ......... .................
Aj. Harlow ....................
C. Volger .........................
J. B. M c Donald...... ...........
B Burgess.............
Wm ri arlow... .... ~....
T. W. Ferguson.............
P. (ooke. ......................~
I. McKenzie.......................
Geo. D. Arcker .................
A. Bower.. ............. ...........

.L. B Sutherland.............
utton Walker..... ...... .......

John J. Dimock..............
JRandal à Graham ............

Place of Expenditure.

Breakwater, Lewis Head, Shelburne .......................
Boat harbor, Grand River, Richmond........................
Opening Cariboo River, Digby................................ .........
Wharf at Avonpolt, King's....... ........ ,... . ........................
Public wharf, Argyle, Yarmouth.................................

do at Sound do ...................................
Wharf near Pubnico....... . . ... . . . .........
Breakwater, North Shore, Victoria.......... .........
Ferry Slide, Brasdoire Lake, Victoria....... .........
Opening Andersons Creek, Guysboro'...........................
Breakwater, Kelly's Cove, Victoria...............,.......
Public wharf, Bayfieid, Antigonish......................
Public wharf dyke, Yarmouth'......................
Breakwater, Victoria Oounty.~.......................
On account of public wharf, Victoria County...............
Public wharf Yarmouth ...........................
Wharf, Port Hawkesbury, Inverness ............................
Over-expenditure on Pownal;Hill Breakwater, in 1876,

Digby County ...........................................................
Publie wharf, Bayfield, Guysboro' ....................................
Piers, Grandigue Ferry, Richmond ...................................
Slip, Roger's Ferry, Victoria ............................................
Breakwater, Chetticamp Chapel ....... .. ...... ............ .........
Public landing, Antigonish........................
Repairing sluices, eastern passage ....................................
Boat landing, north shore, Victoria ............... ..................
Port Hood, outer island pier ..... ................. ... .....
Dredging head West Bay, Inverness.......... ................

. Breakwater, Colchester ............ ... ......................... .
do Saulnierville, Digby ........... .........

Public wharf, Port Milton, Queen's ,... .............. ......
Bridge over North Cape, St. Mary's Bay.........................
Public wharf, east Port Medway............. ............ ,......

. Cleaning out Five Mile River, Hants.......,......................

. Clearing rocks, Bear River, Digby ....................................
Embankment near Palmer's M 11, Digby ............. ..... ,.....
Breakwater, Peterson's Rock, Queen's.....................
.emoving obstructions, Annapolis River......... ..................
Bridge, Morgan's Road to Negro ill.................................
Slip at MeNeil Ferry, Victoria ..........................................
Removing obstructions, Bear River.. .............
Public wharf, Brooklyn, Queen's.......................................
Passage, East End Beach, Lunenburg ...... ...................

. Removing obstructions, Queen's Fahs and Sutherland Mill.
Breakwater, Friar's Cove Head, Inverness.............. ........
Wallace Ferry slip, Cumberland ............... .................
Breakwater, Kelly's Cove, Yarmouth . .............................
Public pier, Lower Argyle Sound.................................
Public wharf, Cumberland... .... ............. . . .........
Hemlock Creek, branch Cl de River................................
Improving branch Sydney iver .................. .....................
Widening passage across Conrad's Beach .... .... ............
Wharf at Grand Narrows, C. .......... ...... .........
Ferry slip, Burlington, Hants...........................
Port le Bear Harbor, Shelburne .......................................
Canal White Lead, Guysboro' ...........................
Point wharf Chebeque Harbor.................. ............. .........
Slip, Sand lNint Ferry, Victoria ......................................
Birchtown River, Shelburne .......... ,.... ....................... .....
Pier on river near Bower's............ ...............................
Removing obstructions, Clyde River ...... .... . .........
Jordan Harbor River, Shelburne.............. .... ....... ..
Breakwater near Sweet's, Hants .....................
Publie wharf, Bayfield, Antigonish..., ............

32

A. 180

Amount.

$ ct0'
118 15
100 00
200 00
266 67
50 00
76 00
95 00
20 00
20 0
133 34

16 5
796 92
83 00
93 21
69 C0
50 00
60 00

23 80
403 08
146 80

51 7<
168 00,
20 00
40 00

133 33
80 00
37 00

9 34
129 20
100 00

51 36
150 0

60 00
200 0

47 50
357 27
125 00
40 0,
20 00

100 00
177 el
200 00
200 00

60 00'
20 00

140 00
65 0<

175 00O
25 00
25 00

200 00
225 00
100 00

15 00
36 76

100 00
444Q
15 00>
300>
5000
80<>
440<

420 0
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STATEMENT of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &c.-Gouinued.

To whom Paid.

1877.

Comeau ............ ..
Dougall.............

KellyS....er..... . ........

eGall.................
Il arrise.... . ...........
c. Maryatt ......... ............

Sos aulnier.....................

• B. atel...............h MLeoc d...........................n cMaho............
8urrette ... ...........

E M Le d e.............

eveau ........... .........
ounrad .. .....................

n ...... ..............
Dimock .. ..... ,.

' armclo...............

cLean .. ...........
Sackay..... ......... . . . . . . . . .Bain ...... ..................

o DMDonald..............
Ryder .......................

a Porter. ............
Ilarlow ..... ..... .......
.Saughe'n"white *.....*. ....
bar & John. . ......

o'* Doyedal ..... ....... .........
M cMahon ..... ..............
B. Porter .... ..... ...........

1878.

e mars .................

J: Ilit ..de.n..............o. Grn

s. rople .. ...........
aidall & rha .........

g9h McAdam ............
.Cunningham.........

. Loney ... .........
C. conald ...........
& B. Morrio.

4 McLeod & F.ate
I. Denton ,.Sle ..

er R bieleu..................
o - H nt ...........................

Comeau ............. .........
Marry att ,...................

1nIm elman .......,.., .. .....

Lawrence. .......... ....
r. Phillia .McEah

B hitae rn

. r, Son&Morw..,..
Perrior

ruo1ld & Lovitt..........
l ........ .........ners .tr. ' Lahave "........

no. Publicdoeàjý V c v r .... ..... ...
avdteamer (;o.. ..,........

78b-3

Place of Expenditure. Amount.

$ ctu.

Meteghan River Breakwater ........ ..................
Breakwater at Five Mile River, HantE................ . ..........

do Kelly's Cove, Yarmouth ........ ......... ...... ........
Improving Shelburne River. ................................. ..... .....

do Birchtown do ..............................
Bridge, ciong Cove Pennant .............................
Saulnierville Breakwater, Digby .....................................
Building ice breakwater and repairing bridge ........ ...........
Salmon River Breakwater, )igby ........... .........
Boat landing, north shore, Victoria ....... ... .. . ........
Clearing head of water, Tusket River...............................
Public whqrf, Eel Brook, Yarmouth........ .................
Morris' Pier, Wallace Bridge, Cumberland............... .......
Breakwater, L'Ardoise, Richmond County ................
Jos. Melanson's Bridge, Digby - .. ...........................
Widening and deepening Cove Ferry Hill, Lune'iburg. .......
Public landing, Cape Negro Island .. ....................... .......
Breakwater, Scotch Village, Hants....................................
Public wharf, Nortb River, Victoria .................................
Slip, ferry, Englishtown, Victoria ...... ...................
Boat landing, Victoria ....... .................. ......
Repairing Brulé Breskwater, Colchester. ............ .....
Road and wharf, Port Jolly, Queen's....................
Public wharf at Ryder's Cove, Yarmouth ... ..............
Repairing wharf, Tusket Wedge ........................ ,
Bear River obstructions, Digby ...................................
(learing river, Terence Bay .......... .......... ....
Sissiboo River obstructions .........................
Fishway and clearing river and bay . ......................
Tusket and Silver River obstructions....... , ..........
Wharf at Tusket Wedge ......... ........ ..... . ......

Replacing buoy, Victoria Bridge........................... ........
On the Port William River........... ........... ..............

do Pier............. ..... .................. ...........
To repair Bayfield Pier. ........................... ..... ........

do Arisaig Pier............... .. . . .... ..... .........
Public wharf, Antigonish................ ............... .........
To repair Tracadie W harf ........................... ........ ...........
Repairing wharf, Grand Narrows ........ ............
Public wharf at Advocate......................................, .........

do Diligent River ....... ...... . .......................
Breakwater at Centreville .......... ......... ..... .......... .......
N4eteghan Breakwater ........ .............. ...... ,.............
Church Point do ...... .. .........
Buoy at Victoria Bridge ........... ......... ......... ........
Therien Breakwater ....................... ........ ......................
Long Cove Bridge.................. .........................................
Beach Road............... ......... . ........ . . ....................
Repairing Beach Road ............................
Public wharf, Port Hastings .................. ............ ...............
Breakwater, North-East Margaree...... ..........................

do Smith's Cove.................. ..,. ...............
Repairing beach, Margaree.................................-....,......
Goods per bill, Margaree. ...................................
North-eastern harbor wharf, Cheticamp. .................... . ....
Chipman Broke Pier.................. .,..................

do ....................... ................................
Balance of grant .............. . . .. ... .....
Removing obstruct:ons, biverpool Harbor. ... .............
Public wharf at Blanford ..............................................
Clearing channel, Rahar River.,,,,....... .....

88

40 Victoria.

100 00
53 00
28 00
50 80
50 00

100 00
400 00

87 00
29 92

400 00
300 00
50 00

150 00
104 91
204 90
150 00
100 00
150 00
126 62
41 40
17 60

153 00
100 00
50 00

166 66
200 00
100 00
200 00

99 85
200 00
333 34
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STATEMENT of MoDys exponded by the Government of Nova Scotia, &c.-Contined'

To whom Paid.

1878.

Francis Young.........,..........
D. Cameron ....................
A. McKenzie.................
G. R. McKenzie .......... .......
Thomas B. Smith ........
E. Oohoon ..... ..............
John McKay.............. ......
Wiiliam Darrow ................
E. Freeman............. ...........
J. S. Wentzell ................
George McKenzie .... ...........
W.-$. Symonds & Co. ....

do ............
D. O. C. Madden.............
L. bampson.............,...........
A. Harlow...........................
James Sheppard...... ...... ......
Gordon Mcay ......... .....,..
William Harlow........... .......
John Bower.....................
G. J. Acker ............ ...........
Henry Harlow.................
Benj. Hopkins ..............
A. L. Swain........................
John Harris............ ...........
J. F. Swain.....................
William Donavon ............
Donald Smith.............,.......
John McDermott..............
Stephen MeNeil.,........ -
John Matheson.................
John McF arlane..............
Stephen McNeil....... ............
Neil McLean.......... .... ....
John Matheson...........
John McFarlane ..... ............
stephen McNeil .................
R. McLeod.....................
James Matheson....,.........
T. H. Ulman............
Wm. Rulbert ...................
D. Crowell ................ ......
J. Harding ........................
L. King ..... ...........
S. Surrette ......................

1879.

Ragh McDonald ..............
Jas. Reid...............
Hugh McDonald ..............
J. Ji. $alter ........................

do ........................
Jas. Reid . ...... ... ......
J. B. 8now ......................
H . (4os .................... .....
Geo. Joslin ............ .......
Roscoe & Thorpe .......... .
8team-tug " Lahave" .........
D. O. C. Madden...... ........
E. d. Perry. ...... .......
Jno. Ryder .................. ....
Milford Sims ......... ..............
eo, Amero.u.... ... ...

Place of Expenditure.

Public landing at Martin's Brock. . ... ...... . .. .........
Bridge and pier, Boat Harbor....................... .,
A.rchibald Brook, Cape John ...................................
Big Gut Brilge and Pier......... .............. ......... ......... .........
Repairing Merigomish Wharf ............. ..... ........................
Public wharf, E ast Port Nedway.......,. ..... . ...... ... .......
tepairing Summerville flarbor.................. .................
Boat landing, Black Bear,................. ................. ...... ,.....
Building dams, Liverpool River....... ..... .........
ro remove rock, Wenizell Brook ......... ,..... ........................
St. Peter's Ferry to Deconse .................. ........ ......
Boiter and funnel, steamer " Richmond "...........................
supplies do ................ ..........
Repairs steamboat landing, Grandique ....................
To build pier, cutting beach, L' Ardoise ...................
To improve dam, Sydney River ....................... ...............
Build embankment, Shelburne ......... ............................
To improve Jordan River. ,....... ................. ....................

do Port la Bear River............. ........ ...........
do Shelburne do ............... ................... .....
do Birchtown do ....................................
do Sable River...... ......... ............
do do .,...... ........................... ..............

No. 4......... ......... .................... .................................
To improve Birchtown River .......................
No. 2....... .......... ......... ...............
Building slip at ferry, Ingonish ......... , ............

do breakwater, Green's Point..................................
do do ........ ............

On account building public wharf at Grand Narrows...........
Wharf at Littie Narrows. ............................ ....................
Baddeck River Bridge ........ ..........................................
Public wharf, Grand Narrows ......................
Baddeck Ferry Wharf .....................................................
Wharf, Little Narrows. ................. ............................
Baddeck River Bridge.....,............ ......................... .........
Publie wharf, Grand Narrows................. .................. ......

do South Gut............. ...................
Repairing slip, Big Harbor Ferry. »....-.... . . . ........
Carlton zo W entworth, clear river ..... ............. .....
Tusket River .............. .........................

do upper part......... ....... ..........................
Public wharf, Harding's Dyke ...... ..................................
fusket River between Melanson Sabines' Mills .............
Public pier, Eel Brook ..................... ......... ........ ,

Repairing ferry slip ..... .............................................
do Granville Ferry Slip..........................

Pipes, Annapolis Slip ...... ,................ ...... ......................
On Annapolis Slip ..... .................. . . ..........

do do ...... ............ ,....... ...... . .....................
do do ...... ,.................................................

On Hampton Pier ......... .......................
Gosse's Landing .............................. ,.......................
Public do Tatamagouche......... ..................... ............
Wharf and bridge, Hall's Harbor ....... .........................
Keeping open navigation, Lunenburg ...... ...........
Pier, Grandigue, str. " Richmond " ....... ..... . .......
Public landing, Cape Negro Island . .. . . ...... ,,,.
Pier at Argyle .............................................................
Public wharf, Plymouth..... ......... ...... .......

do L. E. Pubnioo....,.....,. .................

Amount.

$ cJ

216 3
264 00

30 00
294
150 00
180 00

51 00
66 60

534 I
4000
50 00

103 40
152 7
453 70
100 00
2000

191 00
100 00
1500
6000
15 00
20 00
2500

160 0
4000
500
3000
7000

117 Il
90 00
47 73
19 5
900
4000
47 '1
19 5

100 00
70 0
2500
500
500
5000
84 7
50 0V
5000

6830
3000

165 00
110 00
7500

168 9
38 Ji
25 00

169 8O
535 7
200 0O
253 46
50 00
2500
50
80 00
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&IýATEMENT of Moneys expended by the Government of Nova Scotia, &c.-Concluded.

To whom Paid. Place of Expenditure. Amount.

1879. $ ets.

cDonald ..................... Public pier at M. McDonald's ....... ........ .......................... 100 00
Payzant ............. Wharf, Port Melton ......... ........ ........ ... .............. 154 71

. Pralick .. ... ........ Hunt's Point Wharf.......... ........... ............... 298 71
wenitzell & Lelie .............. Eagle Head Breakwater ..................... .......... 300 00

• Darrow .............. Poat landing at Blicberry ............ ........... 133 34
os Burnaby .. ................. To repair dams, Big Falls ..................... ... ,.. . ................. 500 00
I. MeDonald ........... Dominion Wharf, Port Jolly ...... . ............................ 100 00

ý* cLeod ....... ......... Wharf at South Gut................. ........ .......... 219 52
Phent McNeil. .................. do Grand Narrows .... .................... .................... 466 70

Total ........................ 153,677 45

M. S. FIELDING, Provincial Secretary.
t')VINCIAL SECRETARY'S OFFICE, HALIFAX, N.S., 29th Dec., 1884.

OTTAWA, 8th January, 1885.

the SIR,- have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch (No. 2) of
the 5th inst., transmitting, at the instance of your Government, ani in order

at the same may be laid before His Excellency the Governor General in Council,certified copy of an approved minute of the Honorable the Executive Council of
Ova Scotia, dated 30th ait., having reference to a claim which your Government
akes for a refund of moneys expended since 1st July, 1857, by the Government of

Scotia, on the construction and repair of piers, breakwaters, public wharves,
te, together with a copy of the detailed statement therein referred to, aud to state

ab',t the matter will receive due consideration.

I have, &c.,
HENRYIJ. MORGAN, Acting Under Secretary of State.

To Ris Honor Lieutenant-Governor of Nova Scotia, Halifax, N.S.

ýT121E Coy of a Report of a Committee of the Ronorable the Privy Council, approved
by URis Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 9th December, 1885.
The Committee of the Privy Council have had under consideration a memorial

lioml the members of the L3gislative Council and flouse of Assembly of the Province
of Ova Scotia on the subject of botter terms for that province.

The Sub Committee of Council, to whom the matter was referred, observes that
he inemorial sets forth. in the first place, that previous to the union of the provinces

the Province of Nova Scotia was in a most hoalthy financial condition ; that by the
terms of the union the chief sources of the revenue were transferred to the
Lon:inion ; that strong objection was taken at tho time of the union to the financial
terms thereof relating to the Province of Nova Scotia as being wholly inadequate to
'neet the requirements of the various services left under the Government of the Pro-
incial Legislature; and that an appeal was made to the Imperial Ministry for a
epeal ot the union as far as it related to the province. It thon proceeds to set forth

cert4in correspondence between the Colonial Ofice and Iord Mrnck, and also a'etter from the IRight Honorable Sir John A. Macdonald to the flonorable Joseph

theWo on the subject of botter terms for the province, and a statement follows that
e0 Dominion Governmert or the Dominion ParViament ha I never carried out the

eonqest or desire of the Imperial Ministry or the promise of the Right Honorable Sir
joli 1 A. Macdonald, as quoted.
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The Sub-Committee observe, further, that irn consequence of the corresponddenc
above referred to, and to carry out the wisbes and promises therein contained, and
with the desire to deal with Nova Scotia in the most liberal possible spirit the Act
32-33 Vic., cap. 2, was passed. By this Act the sum ot $8,000,000, which was fixed
by the 116th section of the British North America Act as the sum on the difference
between which and the actual amount of the public debt of Nova Scotia at the time
of the union the province was to be paid interest by tho Dominion at the rate of fiVe
per cent. per annum, was increased to the sum of 89,186,758. The 81,186,756 thu
added was the amount required to bring up the debt ftom $25 per capita allowed tO
Nova Scotia at confederation to $21.50 per capita allowed to New Brunswick, the
larger amount having been allowed the latter provir ce on account of its thon exist-
ing and maturing liabilities being in excess of those of the Piovince of Nova Scotia.
By the above quoted Act, also, an additional annual allowance of $8-3,698 was granted
Nova Scotia for ton years, that being the equivalent of the sum of $63,000 per annu"m
granted by the Confederation Act to New Brunswick for ton years on account of the
great territory and the larger amount it had to pay for roads and bridges in propor-
tion to its population than the other provinces had. It will thus be seen that the
Act 32-33 Vie., cap. 2, placed Nova Scotia on exactly the same footing as New
Brunswick, and gave her the utmost allowance that had been granted to any other
province, and in view of the foregoing facts the Sub-Committee submit that th"
memorialists are in error in asserting that the Dominion Government or Parliamolt
had never acted upon the request or desire of the Impei ial Ministry and the promise
of the Right Honorable Sir John A. Macdonald ; and they further submit that nO
adverse inequality now exiets with regard to Nova Scotia as compared with the other
provinces regarding the sums and allowances paid that province.

The memorial thon proceeds to state that after sixteen years of the union, suc-
cessive Governments have found that the objections which were urged against the
terms of the union at first, apply with still greater force now than in the first year of
the union, and the feeling of discontent with regard to the financial arrangement is
now more goneral and more deeply fixed thon ever before.

The sub-committee are not prepared to admit that the fc<lirg of discontent with
regard to the financial arrangement is now more general and more deeply fixed than
ever before, and they cannot but feel that when the concessions made to the province
are taken into consideration there should at the present time be no financial
grounds loft for discontent. It must be borne in mind that since the Act of 1869 in
addition to the increased amount placed to the credit of the debt account as above men-
tioned, the Province of Nova Scotia in 1873'and in 1884, in common with the other
provinces of the Dominion, received further increase of the amount to be credited tO
the debt account. These increases will be noticed further on in this report, but it
may be stated in this connection that the province has received in proportion to the
money paid by it into the treasury a larger return in the way of local expenditure
than any other province, with the exception, possibly, of the Province of Prince
Edward Island.

The memorial thon goes on to state that " a notable inequality exists in the
Customs duty collected in Nova Scotia as compared with the Customs duty collected
in Ontario and Quebec."

It then proceeds to illustrate this point by asserting that Nova Scotia in 1882
on her importation of $6,889,508 of dutiable goods paid $197,728 more than the two
Provinces of Canada (Ontario and Quebec) did on the sane amount of these dutiablO
goods in that year, and has also paid on her importations of $6,550,887 of dutia bie
goods in 1883 $213,000 more than the above two provinces paid on the same amount of
their importations of dutiable goods for the same year.

With regard to this the Sub-Committee have to report that although as stated in'

the Customs returns for the year 1883, the percentage of duty paid- on the total of
the several imports, dutiable and free, is apparently greater in Nova Scotia than in
Ontario and Quebec, yet on reference to the same report it will be found that the
amount of Customs duties per hoad of ropulation paid in each province is less in

36
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Nova Scotia than in the provinces named, less in fact than in any other province
With the exception of Prince Ed ward Island, and it will be also found that the higher
rate of percentage of duty in the table of value of imports entered for consumption
dutiable and free, is made up by the following caûses :-
. (a.) That Nova Scotia imported a larger proportion of beer and spirits than were

ported into Ontario and Quebec, the latter province using a larger quantity of
exck.eable beer and spirits, and in th'is connection it must be borLe in Mind that tLo
Province importirg the largest proportion of goods subject to the higher rates of
duties such as spirits and tobacco, will show a proportionately higher percentage.
It will be seen from the statements annexed that while Nova Scotia paid during the
fiscal year 1883 about 56 cents per head on the spirits and beer entered for home
colsumption through the Customs as against 50 cents per head paid by Quebec, and
8 cents per head by Ontario, on the other hand, Nova Scotia paid only 57 Cents
Per head of Excise duty for the same period as comparcd with $1.59 per head paid by
Quebec and $1.70 per head by Ontario. It will also be seen on examination of Ibe
report of the Commissioner of Inland Revenue, appended to the blue book of 1884, that
the percentages of consumption per head during the year 1884 of the undermentiored
articles paying Excise duty are as follows:-

Spirit. Beer. Wine.
Ontario .......................................... -967 4.519 .030
Quebec .......................... 1271 2·069 •265

New Brunswick ............. ................. 815 •805 -056
Nova Scotia...... .............. ............ •573 •782 -061

(b.) That in Nova Scotia a larger amount of duty is collected from the sugar
1 1ported for the use of the sugar refineries at Halifax, the rate on which is from 40
tO 50 per cent., and a large portion of which is now consumed in the other provinces.
Proin the subjoined table it will appear that the duty per capita paid on sugar in,
Nova Scotia is about 94 cents, as compared with $1.07 per head paid in Quebec, and

cents in Ontario.
The menorial then sets out the population of Ontario and Quebec, New Bruns-

Wick and Nova Scotia and the amounts they severally had in 1882 for local purposes,
and the amount per head which these revenues gave each. In reference to this
Point the 8ub Committee beg to submit that had the Government of Nova Scotia not
yithdrawn from the credit of the debt account large amounts which they expended
In railway extension and other public works, the amount which they would have

rceived each year from the Dominion would have been amply sufficient, with their
'local resources for all provincial purposes, even taking the statement of the amounts
required made by the delegation, which was beard in connection with this subject.
It has been mentioned before that the amount ($3,000,000) which was fixed by the
Confederation Act as the amount to be placed to the credit of the debt account, has
been augmented on several occasions, the first increase being made in consequence
of the Act of 1869 before referred to, when the amount was increased to the sum of
$9,186,756, this increase to take effect from the date of Confederation.

Taking this increase into consideration it will be found that the balance at the
credit of the Nova Scotia debt account on the 30th June, 1868, was $924,455.33. In
1873, by the Act 36 Vie., cap. 30, $1.344,780 was added, and this amount was fur.
ther supplemented in the following year under the Act, 37 Vic., cap 3, by $199,490,
and again by Act 47 Vic., cap. 4, another increase of $793,368.71 was made, which
should make the balance at the present time to the credit of the debt account about
83,260,00, on which the province would be receiving interest at the rate of 5 per
cent or say $ 163,000 per annum, had the large w ithdrawals for railway extension
be'ore mentioned not been made from the capital of the account. In consequence of
these withdrawals, however, the amount on the 1st July last actually at the credit of
the account and on which they are receiving interest, is only $1,052,345 representing,
say, $52,615 of income.

49 Victoria. A. 1886
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It will therefore be seen that had the capital been allowed to remain unimpaired
the province would now have been in receipt of over $110,000 more of yearly revenue
from this source.

The memorial goes on to state amongst other things that the Dominion Govern-
ment and Parliament have recently still further affected the interest of the province
by appropriating to the general purposes of the Dominion the amount received under
the fishery award for privileges conceded American fishermen within the territorial
limits of Nova Scotia and the other maritime provinces. A large sum has been
during the past few years returned to the fishermen of Canada in the shape of boun-
ties of which the people of Nova Scotia receive by far the largest portion. In addi-
tion to this the Government has always provided large sums in the interest of Nova
Scotia for the protection of the shore and river fisheries of that province and in the
estimates for the Session of Parliament of 1885 Parliament has been asked to pro-
vide for a large sum to protect the sea fisheries.

The Sub-Committee regret that after the most careful consideration they are
unable to recommend to council that any further allowance should be made to the
Province of Nova Scotia, as they are of opinion that had the extra expenditures
referred to not been made the sums from time to time carried to the credit of the
province placed her in as good a position as any of the other provinces and gave her
a suitable revenue for local purposes.

Before concluding their report, the Sub-Committee venture to observe with regard
to the memorial, that to concede the principle that when, through exceptional ex-
penditures, any of the provinces of the union become financially embarrassed it is the
part of the Dominion Government to go to their relief, would destroy the whole fin-
ancial basis of confederation.

Although not appertaining to the memorial, the Sub-Committee have further tO
notice two matters which were presented to them by the members of the delegation
from Nova Scotia who appeared before them, Messrs. Church and Morrison. The
first is in reference to an alleged clerical error made in the Act 32-33 Vie., cap. 2,
viz., that the figures therein stated as $9,186,756 should be $9,188,756.

The sub-committee find on examination, that the clerical error claimed was made
and that a further clerical error of two dollars was made in the same calculation,
and that therefore the figures in the first section of the Act 32-33 Vic., cap 2, should
have been $9,188,758, which has been rectified during the Session of Parliament of
1885.

The second claim is with reference to the Halifax railway debt, with regard to
which the Sub-Committee beg to report as follows:-

By the revised Statutes of Nova Scotia (2nd series) cap. 70, page 256, it is en-
acted " that the city of Halifax shall be considered as holding stock in such railways"
(i. e, the trunk line from the harbor of Halifax to the frontier of New Brunswick
with branch lines to Pictou and Victoria Beach) " to the extent of one-tenth of the
actual cost, such tenth, however, not to exceed in the whole the sum of £100,000,
and the city is to be assessed for such annual sum as will pay their proportion of the
interest and sinking fund." The railways were constructed by the Governmenti
disputes arose, the city of Halifax complained that faith had been broken with thern
by the railways stopping short of Halifax harbor at one end, and being only carried
half way to the frontier of New Brunswick on the other, and while the trunk line
was thus incomplete, a branch railway was constructed as far as Windsor in a west-
erly direction, and refused to pay. A stringent Act was passed to assess the city ; the
city authorities remonstrated against the royal assent being given (see despatches
of Lord Mulgrave, then Lieutenant-Governor of Nova Scotia, and of the Duke of New-
castle, then Colonial Secretary, in Nova Scotis Journals, 1862, Appendix No. 3, page
1 of that appendix). Time passed on ; other legislation took place dividing the
snm to be constituted by Halifax over five years, but the law was not enforced.
Actions were brought against the city as early as 1862, but none of them reached a
judgment and up to the time of Confoderation Hilifax bad not paid anything upon
the stock assigned to it, and in this state of the question the railways became the
property of the Dominion Government.

49 Victoria. A. 1886
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Mr. Morrison contended that this claim upon the city of Halifax is an asset for
Which Nova Scotia should have receoived credit. Ie brought it up, it soems, in 1874,
and stated the case before the thon Attorney-General of Canada, Sir Aimé Dorion.

In the arrangements for Confederation, the Government of Nova Scotia assumed
to be complote owners of these railways; no mention is made of any interest being
Claimed or alleged to be owned by the city of Halifax, and upon this baksis their
financial position was arranged.

The Sub-Committee are of opinion that if the claim exists, it is one of the Pro-
Vince of Nova Scotia against the city of Halifax for an unpaid debt due by the city
to the province, and that it is impossible now to treat the matter in the light in
which it is presented by Mr. Morrison.

The Sub Committee, therefore, regret that they are unable to recommend that
this claim be allowed.

The Committee concur in the above report, and they advise that a despatch,based upon this minute, be forwarded to the Lieutenant-Governor of Nova Scotia for
the information of his Government, to be conveyed to the momorialists, the members
of the Legislative Council and louse of Assembly of the Province of Nova Scotia.

All which is respectfully submitted for Your Excellency's approval.

Clerk Privy G'ouncil.
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STATEMENT showing Cmount <f Ex<ise Duty pa4id by the Provincüs of Ontario. Quebec
aid INova i5eotia, as p r iand Revenue Returns, 8

Province. Excise Duty. Remarks.

$ .

Ontario,3........ ...................................... .............. ......... 3,273,606 88 $1.70 per capita.

Quebec ............. .............. ............ 2,162,119 12 $1.59 do

ota Scotis ......... ........................... 252,440 37 $0.57 do

TAT]IMENT showing Quatity, Value and DaLy Paid on Sugar entered for Home
Consumption by Ontario, Quebec and Nova Scotia, as per Trade and Navigation
Returns oif 18 .

Ontario. Quebec. Nova Scotie.
Kind

of -

Sugar.
Quantity Value. Duty. Quantity Value. Duty. Quantity. Value. Duty.

Lbs. . $ $ cte. Lbs. $ $ ots. Lbs. $ $ et.

ove No.14 1,028,496 42,763 25,25201 523,698 20,334 112,353 88 1,486,023 52,286 33,160 a1

Os. 9 to 14. 8,164,582 310,696 154,443 40 34,292,942 1,180,515 611,356 97 10,659,944 385,798 195,688 61

No. 9. 407,920 15,6!6 6,736 44 59,142,549 1,821,049 842,027 73 12,566,003 412,252 186,488 60

9,600,998 369,115 186,451 85 93,959,189 3,021,898 1,465,738 58 24,711,970 850,336 4-5,337 05

Duty per capita paid Ontario, 9{Éec.

do do Quebec, $1.07-.

do do Nova Sootia, 94âc.

78 -4
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RETURN
(79)

an A DESS of the RousE OF COMMONS, dated 14th April, 1886 ;-For
a copy of the memorial of the North-West Council, presented to the
Government by Messrs. Wilson and Ross, members of said Council,
and of any answer made to said memorial, and of any correspondence
between the Government and the Lieutenant Governor of the North-
West Territories or other parties in reference thereto.

By Command.
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

ePartment of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.
19th April, 1886.

LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR'S OFFIcE, REQINA, 31st Decomber, 1885.
SI, -I have the honor to enclose you horewith copies of a number of resolutions
eB6d by the Council of the North-West Territories, sitting in Logislative Session on

%15th December, 1885.
I would request that you will please submit the same at an early date for the

sideration of the Government.

I have, &c.,

non. Secretary of State, Ottawa. E. DEWDNEY, Lieutenant-Governor.

InOLUTIONs passed by the Council qf the North- West Territories on 15th December, 1885.
*? is Ronor the Lieutenant-Governor in Councit:

Your Committee appointed to memorialize the Dominion Govornment on certain%tters, beg leave to report :-
That the wishes and representations of the Council would, in the opinion of
rCommittee, be brought more directly to the notice of the soveral heads of the

hernment departments by resolutions of the council separate on each subject,
tead of by memorial as was formerly done.

or And recommend that the following resolutions be passed by the Council, and
Warded by the Lieutenant-Governor to the Governmont at Ottawa.

AIl of which is respectfally submitted.
T. W. JACKSON, Chairman.

p 1. That power should be given to the North-West Council to incorporate com-
es having purely territorial objects.

an 2. That all old established trails should be at once surveyed by the Government
d afterwards vested in the North-West Council.

*3. That this Council is informed that there are yet many old sottlers' claims
sZIettled, principally in the Prince Albert and Edmonton districts, and urgently

ecOmlmuend that immediate steps be taken to determine such matters, and that in the
'lu9- 1

A. 1886
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settlement of claims the possessory rights of squatters to land, as regards extent,
claims, as recognised by the custom of the country prior to the passing of the Do011o"
ion Lands Act of 1879, and the right to transfer such claims should be recognizsed.

4. That notwithstanding the repeated assertions to the oontrary, the frOigh
rates imposed by the Canadian Pacifie Railway are yet found to be a severe taX o
the products of the North-West. This Council therefore respectfully suggest t,
the influence of the Governmont should be used to induce the Canadian Pacificýel
way Company to reduce their rates so as to compare favorably with rates in ti)
provinces of the Dominion, who have the advantage of railway competition, A ro
that exceptionably favorable rates should be given on lumber coming into the Ter-
ritories from British Columbia.

5. That no charge be made for any wood used for fuel purposes by boná
settlers, and not cnt for sale; and that each homestead be allowed 1,000 lineal fed
of building timber on free permit.

6. That the improvement heretofore suggested by the North-West Council ofth
navigation of the North Saskatchewan river should receive the further and favorable
consideration of the Government, in order that the settlements of the northern pare'
of this country, far removed from the benefits of the Canadian Pacific Railway, migb
advantage by the natural highway, as an outlet for the products of that portionlo
the country.

7. That the rights of habeas corpus be granted to the North-West Territories.
8. That all lands cancelled for any cause should be thrown open for free home

steading on ordinary homestead conditions, and not held for purposes of sale.
9. That owing to the great expense now attending appeals to the Court

Queen's Bench of Manitoba, and the rapid settlement of the country and increasO
litigation in the Territories, this Coun cil recommends the establishment of a Torrl'
torial Court of Appeal for the North-West Territories.

10. That this Council recommends to the favorable consideration of the Gover'
ment a certain petition, a copy of which is hereto annexed adopted at a public mOe
ing at Edmonton, 30th Jane, 1884, asking that a trail be constructed from that pol"
into the Peace River country.

To the Lieutenant Governor of the .North-West Territories in Council
The petition of the undersigned residents of the electoral district of EdmontOO'

HUMBLY SHOwT :-

1. The population of the said district already exceeds five thousand, of whof
nearly the entire number is composed of farmers, and others engaged in agricultUl'1
pursuits and stock raising,

2. That the said farmers are now raising a surplus of grain and other agriculture
produce, and are also now raising a surplus of cattle and other stock over and abol"
the requirements both of themselves and of the said district at large; that owing to
the following facts, viz.:

(a.) That there is no lino of railway nearer them than 200 miles.
(b.) That the only means of transportation to said railway is by carts.
(c.) That the freight rates by such means are enormous, and only less excessiv

by said railway to the east, the said farmers and agriculturists are precluded froI01
shipping their said surplus stock and produce to the eastern markets, which being s
prosent the only ones available to them under any (even the above detailed) circIi'
stances, they are practically without any market whatever for such surplus, and the
same consequently romains on their hands, not merely as production, but also l
source of direct loss to them, and as a further consequence of the facts above e
forth, they find it difficult, if not impossible, either to obtain credit from or to pa
their debts to the merchants and the tradesmen of the said district or elsewhere, an
therefore the means of gaining more than a more livelihood, and certainly the meOas
of improving their condition, are at present totally unavailable to them.

49 Victoria.
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3. That on the other hand, your petitioners' natural market lies in the country
to the north and north-west of the said district, where there is a population of twenty
thousand Indians about the water system tributary to the Mackenzie River, but the
said natural market is at present inaccessible to your petitioners; that the said
Indiana trgde chiefly with parties bringing their goods from Great Britain, whereas
if proper communication were opened up and traders could get access to the market
IAst aforesaid, goods manufactured in Canada would be purchased and used by the
Baid Indians, and large quantities of flour, provisions and produce (of which they are
naOw deprived) would be shipped to them, and a valuable trade would be established
With them te the advantage not only of your petitioners, but also of the inhabitants
of other districts in the Territories and of the eastern provinces of Canada.

4. That the said natural market has as its centre the point of confluence of the
Fhnoky River with the Peace River in Athabasca District, and after the said point
bas been reached only three short portages occur till the Arctic Ocean is reached, so
that the vast country between such point and the said ocean would thus also be
thrown open to your petitioners, and the inhabitants of the said other districts and
%astern provinces, but it is impossible to take advantage of the said market, inasrmuch
as the present means of access thereto are by a mixed land and water route, whereas
the- said market can be tapped advantageously and profitably only by constructing a
Waggon and cart road thereto.

6. That there are, three routes practicable from Edmonton to said market, and
they pnay be described as follows:-

(9.) The old Hudson Bay route via Fort Assiniboine. Of this the worst parts are
between the Athabasca and Pembina Rivers, and for the last forty miles before
teaching Little Silver Lake. This, however, is the shortest route, and is recommended
by your petitioners as being on the whole the best.

(b.) The route from Edmonton via Lake St. Anne to the mouth of the McLeod
River, thence up the Big lawk River and on in a north-west direction to the mouth
of Smoky River. This route is almost entirely through small timber f rom Lac Ste.
Anne to the mouth of Smoky River, but it is nevertheless believed that a fair road
Can be secured this way.

(c.) The route from Edmonton to the Athabasca Landing, thence following the
Athabasca River to its northern bend, between the 55th and 56th paraliels of lati.
tide, thence in a direction slightly north of west to the Raspberry Mountains, where
'Un old pack trail is used, thence along the said trail to Slave Lake Post, at the west
end of Little Slave Lake, thence by the Hudson Bay cut route to the conflu3nce of
the Smoky and Peace Rivers. The distance between the Landing and Slave Lake
Post is about one hundred and sixty miles, and the country traversed by this route
la of a rolling and sandy character, with a scattered growth of small poplar and
pitch pine ridges. Only one muskeg has to be crossed, and it is believed that by
building three miles of corduroy this route, as regards said muskeg, would be made
Practicable. This is the longest of the said three available routes.

6. That the easy access to the said natural market, and the said country botween
the same and the said ocean, whioh would be given by the construction of one of the
three above described routes would result, not only in improving your petitioners'
Condition, but also in» materially developing the agricultural, mineral and other
resources of a tract of country containing seven hundred and fifty thousand square
Miles; and, moreover, the Dominion Government would thereby derive great benefit
lA the prosecution of their surveys and explorations, and in the reduction of freights
and other expenses in connection with such surveys and explorations, and in connec-
tiona with their treaties with and government of the Indians in the country under
Consideration.

Wherefore your petitioners humbly pray:
1. That your honorable body will -taken into immediate and eariest considera

tion the facts hereintofore set forth.
2. That you will select and adopt one of the said three routes, and cause the

sae to be so improved and such work to be done upon it as to make it a practicable
rOad for the purposes aforesaid.

49 Victoria. A 1886



Sessional Papers (No. 79.)

3. And that, if necessary, you will memorialize the Dominion Government and
Parliament to assist in promoting the prayer of this petition and in furthering the
objects thereof, as being a fact of more than local importance.

And yourïpetitioners will ever pray.
Dated at Edmonton, in Alberta Territory, this 30th day of June, 1884.

11. This council respectfully submits that it is in the interests of Canada, as a
whole, as well as the North-West Territories, that the people of the Territories should
be represented in the Senate and House of Commons of Canada; and in the sub-divi-
sion of the country for representative purposes, that reference should be had as well
to territorial area as to populaton.

12. That the Torrens system, introduced into Parliament last Session, should be
made applicable to the North-West Territories at once; and so soon as the systen
becomes law all titles to land should come under its operations, so as to avoid two
systems ot registration being in operation at the same time.

134 That settlers who have entered for a homestead and pre-emption, and who
are now, or may hereafter be entitled to a patent for their homestead quarter section,
be allowed to enter their pre-emption as a second homestead on condition of an addi-
tional three years' homestead duties on their former homestead quarter section, and
cultivation duties on present pre-emption or homestead as circumstances will permit.

14. That all settlers who have been in any way engaged in the service of the
Government or in the transport service during and in connection with the late rebel-
lion, be allowed the time so engaged to count as actual residence on their home-
stead.

15. That the Dominion Government should encourage the building of branch
lines of railways, particularly those running north and south through the Territories;
such lines would not only enable those settlements now far removed from the Cana-
dian Pacific Railway to reap the advantages hoped to be derived from the completion
of that national work, but would as well open for settlement some of the finest areas
of land in the Territories. That such encouragement, if at all practicable, should be
by cash subsidy, or guarantee by the Government of the bonds of companies con-
structing such lines, thus preserving the public lands for purposes of settlement.

16. That the benefits derived from the National Policy to the older provinces of
the Dominion do not apply to the North- West Territories as regards agricultural
implements and lumber; and it being necessary to the future development of the
country that every encouragement should be extended to the agricultural interests
of the North-West, this council recommends that a rebate should be given equal to
the duty now imposed on agricultural implements and lumber.

17. That the fact of the odd-numbered sections of land being principally held by
companies and individuals for speculation purposes, and in most instances such lands,
particularly in the Canadian Pacifie Railway belt, being exempt from taxation, is a
bar to settlement and progress. This council recommends that immediate steps
should be taken by the Dominion Government towards acquiring the odd-numbered
sections and opening them for homesteading purposes.

18. That moneys voted by Parliament for expenses of Government in the North-
West Territories, including printing, roads, bridges, ferries, aid to schools, etc,, should
be vested in the North-West Council as representatives of the people.

19. That it is of the utmost importance to the North-West Territories that the
Hudson Bay iRailway may be constructed as rapidly as possible, if the scheme is
found practicable.

That the success of the North-West very largely deponds on the agricultural
industries of the country, and the cost of transport now, and as must be, we fear, in
the future, is a very severe tax on the industries of the North- «est in consequence Of
its great distance from European markets. This Council is of opinion that the most
liberal encouragement should be extended to the scheme by the Governmont of
Canada.
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20. That notwithstanding the settlement of a very large number of claims
4ongst the half-breeds, and the very satisfactory manner in which the commission-

S appointed for that purpose performed their work, so far as the time occupied by
emOfl would permit, there yet remains a very larrge number of half-breeds who are

etitled to a recognition of their claims, we cannot impress, too strongly upon the
tOZI4inion Government the desirability of settling all half-breed claims without

delay, and would strongly urge the immediate app9intment of a commission to con-
'1ue the work until thoroughly completed.

4 21. That claims for compensation from the Government for loss sustained
ring the late rebellion should, in the opinion of this council, be promptly settled

. the Government, it being within our knowledge that great inconvenience and
a4rdship is now being undergone by some, who have lost heavily in consequence of
he outbreak.
, This council would recommend in this connection that most searching and
gProu enquiry be had as to the nature of claims, so that any who were a party

t their own loss may not receive the same considoration as those who were loyal to
te Government.

Also that goods and supplies furnished to troops in good faith by settlers and
1rchants should be paid for.

22. That where stock is kept by a homesteader some rale should be adopted and
ade a part of the land regulations, so that the stock of homesteaders over a fixed

'%nber might be allowed to count as cultivation duties, in whole or in part, ; and
at encouragement should be given to tree-planting in prairie sections of the coun-
p, and to coant also as cultivation duties.

23. That the counoil respectfully intimates that, in their opinion, it would be
iost satisfactory to the people of these Territories were the Government in future to
I appointments to positions of trust and emolument from amongst the residents of

%686 Territories.
24. That owing to the unexpectedly rapid development of the agricultural

esonurces of the territories, and to the erection of gristing mills at several points, as
We1l as the extent of the cattle interests of the North-West, this council recom-
kends both in the interests of the Government and the settler, that in the future all
food supplies, both for the North-West Mounted Police and for the Indians,
should be purchased in the Territories.

We were aware that the issue of beef to Indians instead of the American pork
WOtLld be more satisfactory to all the tribes. We would suggest that contracts be
ca 4ed for in smaller quantities, the sacurity deposit not to exceed 5 per cent., and
w'ithout official routine which has attended the letting of contracts heretofore.

In this manner, we believe the settler will be helped, and the Government will
ecive a cheaper and a botter article.

25. That the position of several town sites in the Territories, in which the Crown
llterested, proves from year to year more unsatisfactory owing to the impossibility

OfcOllecting taxes from unsold lots therein, which are increased in value owing to
e expenditure of taxes paid by the residents of such towns, the Crown thereby
Iing benefitted without sharing any of the bardons of taxation.

And as great difficulties are met with in establishing and sustaining schools and
n1.iJaicipal organizations in such town sites, in the opinion of the Council, it is

v'isable that the Government should at once dispose of their interests in sach town
te0 o that the same may be made available for taxation.

26. Whereas representations have been made to this Council by the elected
'ieOMbers of Prince Albert, St. Albert and Edmonton, that certain colonization
f,"rPanies in and near their eleoctoral districts, viz.: The Prince Albert Colonization
OtMPany, and the Edmonton and Saskatchewan Land and Colonization Company

ave lot complied with their agreements, the effect of which is that large blocks of
ld are locked up from settlement, and the progrese of these districts materially-
ktarded.
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Therefore, this Council requests that immediate steps be taken to have thOO
companies inspected, and if it is found that such representations are correct, to inae
upon such companies carrying out their agreements entered into with the GOVOe
ment, or the cancellation of their grants.

27. That this council has learned with satisfaction that it is the intention ofte
Government to distribute medals to the volunteers who were engaged in suppressiIa
the late rebe!I ion. We would beg to recommend that a !!ke recognition of the valN*
able services rendered by the North-West mounted, and the Prince Albert and Batti
ford special forces should be made. We believe that on every occasion, where t0
forces had an opportunity, they showed themselves of that material of whio
Canada is justly proud. Also that services rendered by many loyal half-breeds dle
ing the outbreak should be recognized by the Government.
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STATE MENT
(80d)

Of Militia Pensions awarded by Orders in Council, consequent upon the
Rebellion of 1885, North-West Territories.

do 3

3

do 3

do 8
do 1

50 8
50 8

do
do 18

0 5

do 85o i
o ~

do 18 ~
do 18
do 18
do 18do 18

18

18
18

d 23
J 3

dodo
do
do
do
do

do
do

Rank.

3 ...... ........
1....................

Captain ...........
Staff Sergeant....
Gunner ...........
Trumpeter ........

orporal.
Priva..

do
do .............
do ....
do ......
do .......

Gunner ...
Bugler..........
Private ......

de .......
do
do
do

Private ... ........
do .............
do .............

Name.

Mary F. French, widow ot
Ca pt. French.............

4 children-girl, 11; boys, 9,
7 and 1....................... ......

Catharine Cook, widow of
Gunner W. Cook ..............

1 daughter 4 years old..........
Marie Lebel Demanally, wi-

dow of Gunner H. Deman-
ally.................. ................

Catharine Armworth, widow
of Gunner 0. Armworth ....

Hannah Dobbs, widow of Pri-
vate H. Dobbs ...............

3 children-girl, 11; boys, 9
and 3 .....................

Wm. Clark...................
W. Mawhinney..... ............
B. A. Aselin............
W. J. Wilson... ........
W. A. Kemp. ..................
0. H. Kemp .....................
D. Hislop ...............
W. W. Mathews..................
H. B. Perrin. .............
A. L. Young .....................
W. H. Canniff.. ................
Albert Mulvey .....................
Michael Gaughan..................
James Bager ........................
James Cane....................
Robert Henry Dunn ............
Henry Joues........................
Richard Jones ......................
A. E. Doucet, A.D.0.............
Alexander S. Martin.............
Simcoe Mackintosh Daly.......
Samuel Gray..................

8 do ............. Thomas Agnew....................
8 Color Sergeant.. Francis Prancis...............
8 Private............. Alexander P. Graham ............
8 Trooper............. Valentine Bruce...................
8 Gunner ............ Samuel Parkhill...................
8 dergeant . ........ Edward Walling...................13 ..................... Catharine Hutchison, widow

of Private James Hutchison.
13 . ......... 1 daughter 11 years old........
Private........ Samuel Bell..................

Corps.

PINSION.

Rate Rate
per per

diem. annum.

$ 0ts.

French's Scouts.

............. ....... ........

"A 1 ' Battery..........
..... ....... .......- .........

"A " Battery.... .........

do .... .........

Battleford Rides. .... ...

................... 
90tb Batt.........
" A " Battery....

do
do

90th Batt..
do .....
do .........
do .........

Boulton's Scouts
90th Batt........

do . ......
"A " Battery....
10th Batt..........

do
do

" C" Co., I.S. C.
do ...
do

.................. .....
10th Batt. .....
Midland Batt.....
10th Batt..........

0 90
0 55
0 55
0 45
0 30
0 30
0 30
0 30
0 23

0 60
0 16
0 50
0 55
0 55
0 30
0 50

0 50
0 40

2nd do ... . 0 25
10th do ... .. 0 30
2nd do ......... 0 25
Boulton's M. I ... 0 55
"A " Battery. ... 0 30

do .... 0 90

90th Batt. ......... .........
........................ . .60
Midland Batt .... 0 60

A 1886

Remarks.

ea. 102.93

es. 18.25

$ ets.

514 65

411 72

73 00
14 60

73 00

73 00

91 25

54 75
400 00
328 50
200 75
200 75
164 25
109 50
109 50
109 50
109 50
83 95

200 00
219 00

58 40
182 50
200 75
200 75
109 50
182 59
280 00
250 00
182 50
146 00

91 25
109 50
91 25

200 75
109 50
328 50

91 25
18 2

219 00
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STATEMENT of Militia Pensions-Contnued.

Date
of

O. m 0.

1886.

Jan.
do 2
do 2
do 2
do 2
.o

40 2
do 2

do 2

Feb.
do
do

do 2

do 2

do 2
do 2
do 2
do 2
do 2
do 2
do 2
do 2
do 2
do 2

do
Mar.

do
do

do
do
do
do

April

iplu
Rank.

6 Captain ............
6 Lieutenant........
6 Sergeant ..........
16 Gunner ..... ......
6 Private............
16 ....... ...........

6 Private.............
6 ............ ..... ......

6 ........

6 Act'g. Bombard
6 Private....... ......
61 . ......................

........«................
Gunner ............
Private.............

do .. ..........
Sergeant ..........

do .......
Driver .............
Act'g. Bombard.
Gunner ...... .....

do
do ............

Corporal ..........
Qr. Mr. Sergt....
Bugler ...... . .....
......... ...............

27 . .. ...................
27.................

27 Corporal .
27 Gunner ......
27 Private............
271 do ............

à Transport clerk.

Name.

Samuel F. Peters .................
John B. Halliwell ................
John W. McLintock ..... .......
Thos. J. Stout ............... .....
John Davidson . . .... . .
Jeremiah Osgoode, father of

Private Wm. Osgoode.........
George Phillips ...... ...... ....
Mrs. Hannah larvey, grand-

mother of Pte. Wm. Ennis
H. H. Swinford, father of

Lieut. Chas. Swinford .......
Douglas H. Taylor................
Joseph McIlveen....... ..
Miss Ella D. Osgoode, sister of

Private Wm. Osgoode.........
Mrs. Elizabeth Lydia Brown,

mother of Oapt. Brown ......
Kra. Marois, widow of Private

Th'ophile Marois ...............
Her five ebildren ...... .... ......
James Harrison...................
James Henderson..................
Chas. P. Guy .................
James F. Gaffeny........ .........
James Young ...........
Gaudias Houde................
Thos. Rernolds ....................
Victor 01éroult.......... .... ......
Walter Y. Woodman.............
Pierre Langlois......... ...........
Alex. Biucher......................
Mathew Donnelly...............
Edward Gilbert .............. .....
Ruby Jane Maligh, widow of

Private W. H. Muligh .........
Her infant cbild ..........
Margaret McDonald, widow of

Private Frederick Marwick.
John Bdward Lethbridge......
Eugène Moisan...................
Jacques Zachariah.............
Jean-Baptiste Fortin..........
John Vinen . ... .........

Corps.

7.th Batt.........
Midland Batt
7th do
" A" Battery....
7th Batt ..........

Ottawa 8 8 ......
1oth Batt..........

90th do ..........

90th do . ........
"A" Battery....
loth Batt..........

Ottawa8. ......

B. M. I.............

9th Batt ..........
......... .............
" A " Battery....
Midland Batt....

do
"B " Battery....
R. P. B.............
"B " Battery....

do
do

"A " Battery....
do

9th Batt..........
14th do.
Battleford Rifles.

H. P. Batt ........
........................

H. P. Batt ........
9Oth do .........
"A" Battery....
"0 " Co., 1.8.0.
9th Bats............
Str. Northeote....

Total Pensions awarded up to 30th April, 1886.....................

A. 1886

ReznarkSRate

dpwer

0 80
0 60
0 60

0 15

0 26-

2 00
0 23
0 20

0 71

0 30
0 55
0 25
090
0 60
0 55
0 55
0 55
0 50
0 50
0 23
0 20
0 30

9 25
S05

0 18
0 90
0 50
0 30
0 55
0 45

Rate
per

annum.

$ ets.
1,000 00

280 00
292 00
219 00
219 00

91 25
54 75

91 25

730 00
83 95
73 00

45 621
259 15

68 44
70 19

109 50
200 75
91 25

328 50
219 00
200 75
200 75
200 75
182 50
182 50
8395
73 00

109 50

91 25
18 25

6844
328 50
182 50
109 50
200 75
164 251

$13,517 06
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0 P Y
(80e)

Of a Report of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by His Excel.
lency the Governor General in Council on the 8th July, 1885,
respecting Regulations as to Pensions and Gratuities, Rebellion, North-
West Territories.

CoPY of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by His
Excellency the Goveraor General in Councdi on the 8th July, 1b8à.

On a memorandum, dated 30th June, ISS5 from the Minister of Militia and
befen-ce submitting for Your Excellency's approval the annexed regulations relating

gratuities and pensions to be granted under the provisions of section 68 of the
COnlsolidated Militia Act of 1883. to officers and men of- the Active Militia, who have
bOlen or may be killed or wounded in actual service after the 20th day of March, 1885,
?r Who have died since that date, or may die hereafter irom illness or injuries contracted

actual service.
The Minister observes that the proposed rates of pension to officers and soldiers

Wounds or injuries received in action, and the regulations under which they are
to be issued are the same as granted by order of the Governor General in Council,
dlated 21st of August, 1866, to officers and sildiers wounded or injared during the
"Ivasion of Canada by Fenians in 1866 and following years.

The Minister represents that the rates of pensions and gratuities proposed to be
gralted to widows, children and relatives of officers and soldiers killed in action, or
Who have died or may hereafter die from wouads recoived in action, or from illuessor injuries contracted on actual service, are based as far as practicable upon Imperial

mray Regulations, but as on that army pensions are not granted to th3 widows an<1
failies of deceased soldiers, the Minister considers that a change should be made for
the reason that the conditions of service of Canada bring to the ranks of the active
1ilitia a class of the community whose claims are in his opinion as deserving of
'0onsideration as those of the officers. He bas, therefore, adoptel as far as practic-
4ble the rates allowed on the Imperial Regular service to Lhe widw s and families of

deceased officers, and made similar provisions for the widows and families of
doeeased soldiers, based as in the case of offlers on the respective ranks of those on
"*hose account the pensions and gratuities are to be issued.

The Minister further represents that the distinction made in the Imperial .Rega-
atons bas been followed in granting a higher rate of pension to those killed in

ction or who die from wounds received in action than to those who die from injuries
orillness contracted on actual service, In both cases the rates fixed for lieutenants
cl-Oonels, majors and captains closely approximate thoase adopted in the Imperial
4 rny but are less for Lieutenants owing to the Imporial rate for that rank being in
excess of the actual difference in pay. Also there are two rates of pay for lieuten-
alts in the active militia, the one in the permanent corps being higher than the
Other, and ho, therefore, recommends in order to bring the rate of pension in that
rnk nearr to that in the Imperial army, that the minimum rate of pay for pension

oit account of deceased lieutenants, in all corps of the active mnilitia be counted at
-2.44 per diem, which is the rate paid to lieutenants on app>iitmont on the per-

klanent corps of the Dominion. The Committee advise the adoption of the annexed
tegulations and they submit the same for Your Excelloncy's approval.

JO U N J. MoGB 8, Clerk Privy Council.
Yide Militia General Order No. 14, of the 9th July, 1885, attached, showing

'rates ot pen,;ions, etc.
80d-li 3



(Extract from " The Canada Gazette " of Saturday, Ilth July, 1885.)

MILITIA GENERAL ORDERS.

HEAD QUARTEBS, OTTAWA, 9th JuIy, 1885.

GENERAL ORDERS (14).

No. 1.
The Regalations and Ord ers for the Militia, 1883, having been amended byf

order of His Excellency the Governor General in Council, dated 8th July, 1885, by
adding 17 paragraphs under the heading of " Gratuities and Pensions," the Regula-
tions under the heading "Casuaties" so amended are now published for geieral
information:-

CASUALTIES.

Casualties-Actual Service.

995. When any officer or man is killed in actual service, or dies from wounds Or
diaease contracted on actual service, provision shall be made for bis wife and famill
out of the public funds.

996. And all cases of permanent disability, arising from injuries received or
iliness contracted on actual service shall be reported on by a Medical Board, and
compensation awarded, un der such regulations as may be made from time to time by
the Governor in Council; and any medical practitioner who shall sign a false certi-
ficate in any such case, shall incur a penalty of four hundred dollars. 46 Vie., chapt
11, see. 68.

Injury or Illness-Actual Service.

997. If any officer of the Militia shall receive injury or contract illness on actual
service, which, although of a temporary nature, shall necessitate bis discharge fron,
such service, ho shall bo conveyed to bis home at the public expense, and shall receiVO
a sum equal to the daily pay aud allowance of bis rank, for the period during whicb,
according to the certificate of two qualified medical practitioners, ho shall have beeD
actually and necessarily incapacitated from following his usual occupation. And DO
allowance for modical attendance shall in any such case be made. Par. 149, R. & O.,
1870.

998. If any militiaman shall receive injury or contract illness on actual service,
which, although of a temporary nature, shall necessitate his discharge from such
service, ho shall be placed either in a military or civil hospital, and on bis discharge
from hospital ho shall be conveyed to his home at the public expense; and he shall
rect.ive compensation for loss of time at the rate of one dollar a day, for the period
during which ho has been detained in hospital. But in case ho should elect to be
sent to his own home in place of the hospital, ho shall receive compensation for 1ose
of time at the rate of one dollar a day, for the period during which, according to the
certificate of two qualified medical practitioners, ho shall have been actually and
necessarily incapacitated from following his ordinary occupation; and no allowance
for medical atiendance shall in any such case be given. Par. 150, R. & O., 1870.

GRATUITIES AND PENSIONS.

The following rates of compensation by gratuity and pension will be allowed
under the provisions of sec. 68, chap. Il ot 46 Victoria.-The Consolidated Militia
Act, 1883, to mihtiamen wounded or disabled, or who may be hereafter wounded Ot
disabled in actual service, and to the widows and children of those who have been
killed in battle or have clied from injuries or illness contracted on actual servicea
O. C. July, 1885.
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WOUNDS AND INJURIES RECEIVED IN AcTIoN.

1. An officer who shall be certified to have received a wound in action which
8hail have occasioned the loss of an eye, or a limb, or the use of a limb; or to have
eeeived bodily injury equivalent to the loss of a limb, shall in the first instance,

receive a gratuity in money of one year's tull pay of the appointment held by him at
the time of his wound.

2. From the expiration of one year, from the date of the wound or injury, the
Wolunded officer referred to in the preceding paragraph, may, subject to the conditions
"Of paragraphs 3 to 5, be granted a pension according to the following scale:-

Rank or relative rank of officer. Annual pension.

Lieutenant Colonel .................................................. S1,200
M ajor .................................................................... 800
Captain.................................................................... 400
Lieutenant ............................................................. 280

3. No claim to a gratuity or pension shall be entertained unless the officer shall
1'pply for the same within five years after being wounded.

4. A pension shall not be granted for the loss of an eye, consequent upon a
Wound received in action, unless loss of vision shall have occurred within five years
after the wound, and shall be solely attributable to such wound.

5. A pension shall be granted according to Militia rank, or in the case of a.
departmental officer, relative rank, held by the officer at the time of being wounded.

SoLDIERS' PENsIoNs.

6. Pensions may be granted to militiamen discharged as unfit for further service
frorn wound or injuries received in action.

First Second Third Fourth
degree. degree. degree. degre.

Rank. a
ce

ce,&,

From To From To From To From To

. .................. 75 1.10 60 90 45 60 90 45

. . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . 60 90 45 60 30 45 23 

Pri ................... ... 45 60 30 55 23 30 15 23
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PENSIONS TO WIDoWs AND CHII DREN OF OFFICERS AND SOLDIERS IF IN BEDUCED OF
NEEDY oIROUMSTANCES.

Bates of Pemion.

7. If the deceased cmcer or soldier bas been killed in action, or has died fro0
wounds -eceived in action, within twelve months of having been wounded:-

(a.) To the widow a pension annually equal to one half the daily pay of the
officer or soldier during twelve months, and in addition for the first year a
gratuity equal to twelve montbs' pay.

(b.) To each child, a compassionate allowance annually at the rate of one tenth
of the pay of the officer or soldier, and in addition for the first year a grataity
equal to four months' pay.

If the deceased officer or soldier died from illness which can be directly traced to
fatigue, privation or exposure incident to active operations in the field, within si%
months after his having been finally incapacitated for duty, or if the deceased officer
or soldier shall have lost his life in consequence of wounds received in the executiOn
of military duty otherwise than in action.

(a.) To the widow a pension annually equel to three eighths of the daily pay of
the cffleer or soldier during twelve months.

(b.) To each child a compassionate allowance annually at the rate of one
thirteenth of the pay of the officer or soldier.

8. A pension to the wicow or other relative of a deceased officer or soldier shall
only he granted as a reward of good, faithful and gallant service rendered, and shall
not be claimed as a right. It shall notbe conferred if the applicant be left in wealth
circumstances, or is already in possession of any pension, provision, or allowance
from the public.

9. A widow's pension shall, as a rule, commence the day following that of her
husband's death, and shall be discontinued should she subeequently prove unwortbY
of it, or attain to wealthy circumstances.

10. The pension of a widow who re-marries shall be suspended from the date of
her re-marriage; but in the event of ber again becoming a widow, her pension may
be restored, upon prcof that she is not in wealthy circumistances, and is otherwisO
deserving. 1

Children.

11. Compassionate allowances as shown in paragraph 7, may, subject to the co'
ditions which apply to widows' pensions, te granted to the children of deceased
officers and soldiers. They shallnot be granted to sons over the age ofeighteen, nOr
to daughters over the age of twenty-one except in very special cases in which it shall
be sbown that the sons or daughters became aficted during the officer's or soldier'0
life with some mental or bodily infirmity rendering them dependent upon him, and
permanently incapable of making adequate exertion for their support; and that suchl
incapacity dates from a period before the children reached the limit of age, as abo'V
laid down, and that they are in distressed circumstances.

12. The allowances granted under paragraph 11, to the sons of officers an
soldiers may be continued until they respectively attain the age of eighteen, or are
otherwise previously provided for; and those to the daughters may be continued uni
they respectively marry or attain the age of twenty-one, whichever shall first happea1 r
ana no longer; except in very special cases, in which it shall be shown that such
children are afflicted with any mental or bodily infirmity rendering them incapable
cf making adequate exertion for their own support; and that they are in distreSed
circumstances.

13. In the case of an officer or soldier killed in action or dying from woundO
received in action within twelve months after such wounds shall have beEn receive1È
and not leaving a widow, but a daughter or daughters only, an annual alJowan1c0
equal to half the rate of widow's pensic n nay, under special circumstances,- W h5
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determirned by the Minister of Militia and Defence, be granted, instead of the com-
pEsionate allowances referred to in paragraph 11, to such daughter or to such
Eanghters collectively. $uch allowance ray be continued until the daughter, or the

sot survivor of them in case there be more than one, may become disqualified by
mlarriage or otherwise.

14. A compassionate allowance shall be paid from the date of the officer's or
soldier's death to the 30th June next ensuing; and subsequent payments shall be
inade yearly in advance from Lst July in each year.

Mother.

15. The mother of an ofEcer or soldier killed in action, or dying of wounds
received in action within twelve months after such wounds shall have been received,
without leaving either widow, or legitimate child, such mother being herself a widow
and in distressed circumstances, and having been mainly dependent upon the deceased
officer or soldier for support, may be granted an annual allowance, according to the
rank of the officer or soldier, and at half the rate of widow's pension; but if she shal
be in receipt of a pension as an officer's or soldier's widow, or shall have any other
provision of any kIind from the public, no allowance shall be made to her on account
of ber son, unless she relinquish such pension or provision. In the event of her
allowance ceasing in consequence of re-marriage or death, it shall not be transferable
to her daughters.

&sters.

16. The sister or sisters collectively of an officer or soldier killed in action or
dying of wounds received in action, within twelve months after such wounds shall
have been received, without leaving widow, legitimate child, or mother, and provided
she or they be an orphan or orphans, without surviving brother, and mainly depen-
dent for support upon the officer or soldier deceased, may, under special circunm.
stances, to be determined by the Minister of Militia and Defence, be granted an
allowance equal to half the rate of widow's pension.

17. ln instances where the regulations do not meet the circumstances of indivi-
dual cases, they may be specially considered by fis Excellency the Governor
General in Council.

The minimum rate of pay for pension on account of deceased lieutenants in all
Morps of the Active Militia will be counted at two dollars per diem.

Permanent Disability.

1007. All cases of permanent disability, arising from injuries received or illness
oontracted by officers or men on actual service, shall be reported on by a medical
board, and compensation awarded for the same according to the merits of the cases
Par. 152, R, & O.

Regulati<ns for Claims.

The following regulations apply when claims to pensions, orgratuity on account
of death or wounds, of officers or men, or of disability from illness contracted while on
actual service, require to be established.

1008. A board of officers composed of one field officer and two captains of the
Aetive Militia, will be assembled at such time and place as may bu ordered, and shall
take cognizance and report on the various claims presented for its consideration.
Par. 374, R & O., 1870.

1009. Where ihe claims are on account of disability, the cause, degree and pro
lable duration of the disability must be established by evidence before a medical
boaO d, and the report of such board will form part of the evidencerequired to be pro.
d'iced before the board of officers referred to in the above paragraph. The claims

ill be divided into three classes.
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1st class.
(1.) Claims on the part of relatives of militiamen who have been killed in action,

or who have died of wounds or injuries received, or of disease contracted on actual
service.

(2.) The evidence required to be produced bofore the board in support of claims
of thi-. class, is, in the case of a militiaman killed in action, a certificate from the con-
imanding officer of his corps, stating that ho was killed in action or on actual servie&
(Form marked A, par. 1013.)

(3.) In ihe case of a militiaman who bas died of wounds or injuries received 01M
actual service, a certificate from the medical officer who first saw him after ho was
wounded or injured, countersigned by the commanding offioer, stating the nature of the
-wound or injury which caused death; also a certificate from the medical attendant at
the time of death, stating the cause and date of death, (form B, par. 1014,) the same i
to be corroborated by any other material evidence that can be procured.

(4.) Inthe case of a militiaman who has died of disease contracted on actual
service, a certificate from the medical officer who first attended him after he was taken1
iii, countersigned by the commanding officer, stating the nature of the disease, and
that it was contracted on actual service (form B, par. 1014); Also a certificate frot
the medical attendant at the time of death, stating the cause and date of death.
(Form B, par. 1014.)

(5.) la al[ the foregoing cases, evidence muet be produced of the circumstances of
the deceased, and the amount of income he was in receipt of at the time of bis going
on service; and whether his income died with him in whole or in part, stating what

part, if any, was independent of bis life; also evidence of the number, age, sex and
proximity of relatives who were dependent for support on the life of the deceased;
also evidence of the amount of medical attendance received by the deceased (suppOs-
ing him to have died of woundh or disease,) between the time of bis discharge froM
actual service and the date of his death, with the names and residences of the medical
attendants who had charge of him during that period. (Form 0, par. 1015.)

2nd Class.
(1.) Claims on the part of militiamen who have received wounds or injuriei, or

have contracted disease on service, which may incapacitate thom wholly from follow-
ing their former trade or profession.

(2.) The evidence required to be produced is as follows:-Report of medical
board referred to in first part of this paragraph 1009. (Form D, 1016) Evidence
as to the circumstances of claimants:-the amount of income ho was in receipt of at
the time of his going on service-wbether bis income depended in whole or in part
on his personal exertions; and what portion thereof, if any, was independe nt of his per-
sonal exertions; also evidence of the age, sex and proximity of relatives who depended
for support on the claimant's personal exertions; also evidence of the medical atten-
dance received by the claimant between the time of his discharge from actual service
and the date of investigation of lis claim, with the names and residences of the
medical attendants who had charge of him during that period. (Form C, par. 1015.)

3rd Class.
(1.) Claims on the part of militiamen who have received wounds or injuries,

or have contracted disease on actual service, such as to incapacitate themr for a time
from following their usual trade or profession. The evidence required to be producd
is as follows: report of medical board referred to in the first part of this paragraph
1009, which shall establish the amount and probable duration of ineapacity (foria
D, par. 1016). Also evidence of the same nature as prescribed for claimants under
the 2nd Class. Par. 375 R & O. 1870.

1010. The Board. having taken the necessary evidence, will make its report-
and will recommend such amounts of pension and gratnity, subject to the regulea
tions on that head, as May appear equitable. The report of the board will be solelY
on the evidence which is embodied in the proceedings. Par. 376, R. & O. 1870.
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Boards of Medical Of7icers.

1011. The following applies to such boards as may be assembled for purpose
entioned in paragraph 1009, to investigate cases of disability of militiamen occa-

iOned by wounds or injuries received, or by disease contracted on actual service.
''hese cases are divided into two classes. Par. 387, R. & 0. 1870.

1. Cases of militiamen who have received wounds or injuries, or have contracted
disease on actual service, such as to incapacitate them wholly from following their
former trade or profession.

2. Cases of militiamen who have received wounds or injuries, or have contracte&
disease, on actual service, such as to incapacitate them for a time from following their
former trade or profession.

1012. The board will take such evidence as may be produced, and will report its
'Wfn opinion thereupon, either as to the total or partial disability of the claimant; if
the disability is partial, the board will state the amount of injury or incapacity under
Wbich the claimant is suffering at the date of investigation, and its probable dura.
'iOn ; the opinion of the board will, of course, be based solely on the evidence which
as eibodied in the proceedings Par. 378, R. & 0. 1370.

1013. FORM Ai
....................................................... 18 .

I hereby certify.................. .............. Battalo

.day f........................................18 .~yôf....................1
Commanding......Batt.

1014. FORI B.
............................ 18

I hereby certify that ......................... of.....................Battalio=
*As†.................................... ........on................day of.. ............... 18

The nature of‡
ThS.............................rgeon..... Battalion.

A duplicate copy of the certificate is to be forwarded, through the Deputy-
Adjutant General of District, to the Adjutant-General of Militia.

1015. FORM C.
FORK OF PRITATE PRACrITIONER'S BILL.

--........... .... Battalion. ................................ 18

DR. TO..............................................

Daily Prescrip- Charges. Remarkeby Surgm
R~ank. Patient Date. tionh, - and

Name. Visits, kc. 5 ets. Commanding Offlim.

Tota ............. .........

o Here state whether killed in action with the enemy, or was wounded, or died of injuries received,
8icknes contracted on service, or is still suffering from woun is or injuries received, or disease cou-

,tedon actual service.
Rere state wounded in action with the enemy, or otherwise, whilst on active service.
Here give a detailed account of wound or disease.

9
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This form is to be made ont in duplicate, to be submitted to the commandilg
eoicer for Remarks, and to be forwarded by him to the Deputy Adjutant-General of
the District, who will forward one copy to the Adjutant.General, and have the othe
laid before the board of executive officers.

1016. FORM D.

Proceedings of a Board of Medical Officers, assembled by order of..................
to enquire into the nature of the disability of.......of.......on......day1
...L............18 .

...................... ....... ...... President.
................................ Members.

We declare, upon our honor, that we have duly and impartially enquired int
tlhe case of .......... of ...... Battalion, who appeared before this Board thi'
day, s'nd we fInd the above-named........................is (1)

We do further declare, upon our honor, that we consider the above (2)......
to be (3)..................and that the injury is equal to (4)...........and that he 
be (à)..... .. ......... for service or his usual occupation.

Signed, ................ President.
.. . . . .. ........... embers.

By Command,
WALKER POWELL, Colonel,

Adjutant General of Militia, Canada.

(1) Here give a particular description of wound or disease.
(2) Here state sickness incurred on actual service or wound received in action.
(3) Het e say severe, dangerous or elight, as the case may be.
(4) Here say if the disability is equal to the loss cf arm or leg, or eye; or any other observati0n

th board may deem sufficientito meet the case.
(5) Bere state he will ever be fit or never be fit, or probable length of time in which he will be fi'

RETURN
(80f.)

To an ORDER of the ilOUSE OF COMMOI18, dated the Blst March, 1886 ,
For Copies of Instructions to Major Bell, Major-General Laurie, S. 11*
Bedson and other Non-combatants employed during the North-WeBt
Campaign, from the Minister of Militia, Major-General Middleton Or
the Adjutant-General of Militia, and of Correspondence between thie
last named authorities and such Non-combatants.

By Command.
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

Department of the Secretary of State, 2ecretary of State.
Brd May, 1886.

49 Victoria.



iessional Papers (No. 80.)

DEPARTMENT OF MILITiA AND DEFENcE, OTTAWA, 1st May, 1886.
Si,-I am directed by the Minister of Militia and Defence to transmit to you,

herewith, copy of the correspondence exchanged between the general officer com-
Inanding the Militia and Major-General Laurie during the last campaign in the
Worth-West, in reply to an Order of the Bouse of Commons, dated 3lst3March, 1886.

The general officer cômmanding states, in connection with ibis return, that he
has given no written instructions, as far as he can remember, to either Major Bell or
Mr. S. L. Bedson mentioned in the Order above quoted.

The Department has paid the sum of S1.50 for the copying of the said document,
and the time employed by the staff of the Department in correcting and revising the
arne is valued at 81.50.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
EUG. C. PANET, Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.

The 'Under Secretary of State, Ottawa.

30 Miles from FoRT QU'APPELLE, April 7th, 1885.

Mqajor-General LAuRiiE, Winnipeg.
Am well on my way to relieve Battleford, and there is only a small detachment

a1 Tioy, and as a number of troops are coming up you might remain at Winnipeg
till they arrive. It may be well for you to buy a horse.

FRED. MIDDLETON, Major-General.

CLARKE's CRossING, 16th April, 1885.

To O9icer Commanding at Swift Current.
Send the four pompanies of the 35th, Col. O'Brien's Battalion, to join the head,

Quarters at Fort Qu'Appelle.
FRED. MIDDLETON, Major-General.

CLARnE's CnossINa, 22nd April, 1885.

Iajor-General LAURIE, Swift Current.
Send oats on flat boats, or in whatever way is most expeditious. Very much ia

7eed of them.
FRED. MIDDLETON, Major-General.

CAMP CENTRAL, THE SALT PLAIN, 13th April, 1885.
General MIDDLETON.

Five tons hay and 850 bushels oats arrived here to-night; 30 tons of loose hay
and 1,500 bushels oats reported at Touchwood, and 30 tons baled bay. Plenty of
Oats at Qu'Appelle Hill. I hope to reach Indian Farm to-night.

GENERAL LAURIE.

WINNIPEG, 21st April, 1885.
eneral MIDDLETON.

Copy of telegram just received from our officers at Battleford. Are we going to
have assistance; when and how; we hold place. WRIGLEY.

SwIrT COURRENT, 21st April, 1885.
General MIDDLETON.

I telegraphed on Saturday that Otter had started, and he is probably to-night
lYVer 50 miles on his way. Be expected to arrive on Wednesday or Thursday. He
Is pushing on fast, and our difficulty is to follow with supplies, but no effort is spared.

J. W. LAURIE.

*f 'Victoria. A. 1886 ý
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SWIFT CuTRRENT, 21st April, 1885.
General MIDDLETON.

Ferry at landing has again broken down. I am wiring Captain Short to try and
repair it. Some more teams have corne and I send about fifty tons of freight and
one-half Midland Bittalion, and No. 1 Ambulance to-morrow. They will do the
thirty miles by night, and the steamer will start Thursday morning. I send half of
Intelligence Corps to-morrow to Elbow to meet steamer, thence to Clarke's Crossing,
and half go with Toronto Ambulance to you. Otter's teamsters refused to cross
river yesterday without arms. I have tried repeatedly but can only obtain fifty,
which are just received; meantime, have sent small escort from detachment Midtand
Regiment with teams going to Otter.

J. W. LAURIE, Major-General.

CLAM's CRossING, 22nd April, 1885.
General LAuRiE.

I received information from Straubenzie of arrival of corps of surveyors, and I
answered, thinking it was really sent by you, directing them to patrol between Old
Wives Lake and Cypress Hills. I did not want them divided. Please do not make
any dispositions without referring to me, unless something ser:ous necessitates it.
Do not send any more escorts of troops with teams. I have ordered some more arms
to be sent for teamsters, but it is all nonsense. They only want them to shoot ducks
and geese with. We want oats badly. Send rest of Midland Regiment up here by
first opportunity; 7th Regiment will go to Swift Current,

FRED. MIDDLETON, Major-General.

SWIFT CURRENT, 23rd April, 1885.
Major-GeneralMIDDLETON.

" Northcote " left before noon to day with Williams' half regiment and load provi-
'sions and forage. Surveyors' Corps has gone to Elbow as centre and thence east and
West. I will open communication with them via Moose Jaw. I have instructed
Lieutenant Beatty to examine best possible route between railway and river so as to
use " Northcote " to Clarke's Crossing, as I find ferry on Battleford route very
unsatisfactory. I have sent Leonard to expedite transport to Otter at ferry and
north side; it was imperatively necessary, and I have taken Lieutenant Weller, of late
military college, as staff-adjutant, and hold Midland Battalion ready to proceed in
"Northcote's " next trip. There is no news of Galt's steamer.

J. W. LAURIE.

FIsH CREEK, 25th April, 1885.
General LAURIE, Swift Current.

Improve the ferry by all means. Where is the field hospital and doctors? I
thought I had ordered them to Clarke's Crossing, but now fancy they are at Swift
,urrent. Am sending my wounded and sick baek to Clarke's Crossing, and woald
wish a hospital formed there for the bad cases not able to travel, the remainder
going to Swift Current to the chief hospital at Swift Current. Arrange to send
.Halifax Regiment to Medicine Hat to remain there. Shall get your telegraMs
through Humboldt. Ail right about Moose Jaw.

FRED. MIDDLETON, Major-General.

FISH CaE:, 25th April, 1885.
Major-General LAuRIE, Swift Current.

Send the 9th on to Calgary with orders to report to General Strange. Lt.-Col.
Williams' whole regiment to go to Clarke's Crossing, and the 7th also to be pushed

-on to Clarke's Crossing. Halifax Regiment ordered to Swift Current. Shall bO
12
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away from the telegraph for a few days. Had an affair yesterday; was attacked and
drove off enemy after a sharp fight. My two A. D. C.'s both shot-one in arm, the
Other in leg, and I had a shot through my fur cap. Keep steamers going and send
SUpplies, oats and ammunition, and as rapidly as possible.

FRED. MIDDLETON, Major-General.

SwIFT CURRENT, 26th and 27th April, 1885.
General MIDDLETON, Front.

Field hospital of two doctors, nine dressers, and one orderly, with fair supply
Of comforts, and surgical instruments, splints and bandages, left on " Northoote " on
23 rd, but if you wish more assistance Dr. Roddick is prepared to join you vid
Qu'Appelle. Ninth Battalion leaves on Tuesday for Calgary, and 7th will
follow Midland to Clarke's Crossing, and if Halifax Battalion go to Medicine Hat,
Swift Current and Saskatchewan Landing will be left entirely without troops to
Protect stores. Have arranged with Dennis of Surveyors' Corps that if fugitives in
any numbers attempt to pass pickets he will advise me and I will support him by
Ioving body infantry out on trail.

J. W. LAURIE.

SwIrT CURRENT, 27th April, 1885.
General MIDDLETON, Camp.

What arrangements do you wish made in regard to forwarding supplies to Colonel
Otter, to what point shall they be sent, and whether for stationary or moving force?

J. W. LAURIE.

SWIFT CURRENT, 27th and 28th April, 1885.
General MIDDLETON.

Small Galt's steamer " Minnow " arrived to-day. Barges said to be following
ia day or two. " Minnow " cannot carry passengers or freight, but captain thinks
he can tow barges down the river, but not up, and believes barges will go down
quicker without steamer. Shall I load barges ? Probably thirty tons each, and lot
steamer go with them ? What freight do you wish on them ?

J. W. LAURIE.

General MIDDLEToN. SwIFT CURRENT, 29th April, 1885.

As no building exists here suitable, principal medical officer purposes immediate
erection of temporary wooden hospital to receive forty patients, and will take tenders.
have eut off "Minnow " to take surgeons and comforts off "Northcote " and bring
back wounded, and Dr. Roddick and staff leave to-night to cross by Moose Jaw to
Join you. " Northcote " makes slow progreus over shoals at Elbow. In arranging
distribution of troops along railway, I would submit that fifty men fatigue daily here.
It is very desirable that whole battalion should romain here, and detachment of another
at ferry, as about thirty are employed in transferring stores, besides wood cutting
Party.

J. W. LAURIE.

eneral MIDDLETON. 
SWIPT CURRENT, 1st May, 1885.

You will see by my last despatch that I am using every means to get surgeona
to go and to relieve wounded. Men on barge have struck, and I am sending barges
'With her well experienced rafters from Midland Regiment under Lieutenant Weller.
"Minnow" has left to pick up surgeons. Otter is sending back almost all his teams,and I am still sending him oats and provisions; same trails as before. River has risea-
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eight inches to-day, and hope steamer will soon have water to leave. Wrigley sends
material and workmen to build ten barges, and will convey theni to river to-morrow.
]Route from Chaplin Station to river highly recommended as being short and goodi
but Moose Jaw has railway facilities for large business. Bell thinks with me We
might try pony transport from Moose Jaw and save carrying hay.

J. W. LAURIE.

From Swift Current, N.W.T., 30th, to fion. A. P. Oaron.

OTTAWA, Ist May, 1885.
As soon as received positive news that "Northcote " was aground in river I

ordered " Minnow " to proceed to take off doctors and Gatling gun and poander and
ammunition, and proceed immediately to Clarke's Crossing, and Dr. Sullivan for-
warded ambulance outfit f rom Qu'Appelle two days ago to General Middeton, and
Surgeon-General Roddick, after consulting with me, proceeded yesterday with si%
medical staff vid Moose Jaw across country to Clarke's Crossing. Nothing will be
neglected to assuage suffering of wounded.

J. W. LAURIE.

Telegram to Major-General Laurie, Swift Current, N. W. T.

OTTAWA, 1st May, 1885.
You have done well. Hurry supplies to General. What has become of Williamt8

and his command?
A. P. CARON.

SwIFT OURRENT, 2nd May, 1885.
General MIDDLETON.

Very happy to say that the river has risen two feet to-day and have had to
employ detachment ail night in movin storqes from sand ; also my courier frOnl
Elbaw reports that the " Northcote" is of and has passed the Elbow, but the rise Of
water has not yet reached that point, though it will probably bring you the doctoro
and Lieut. Weller with his Peterborough men, and wili, I trust, bring you the bargeo•
Wrigley's barge contractor will arrive with eight tons of ba-ge material, however,
moving and provisions, to furnish barges to carry one hundred tons in twenty-fOuIr
bours after I deliver material at the river, and it shall be there to-morrow night and
the supplies will also be there in good time. I believe you may now rely upon the
river, and I think there will be no need to unload the " Northcote." Galt also reportS
the river rising at Medicine Hat and that barge steamers wilI soon come on, and io
this case do you wish other supplies aiso forwarded down river to Clarke's Cross
ing? If the river works well it will be most economical. The detauhment at the
river is very mueh driven with fatigue, and ail the mon who are emaployed ail day
with duties are complaining. It would be very advisable to give working pay at
the rate of five cents an hour if you will approve. The fatigues are heavy but donI'
come daily on the same men. Governor Dewdney has requested a detachment Of
seventy-five men at Maple Creek, to allow the Mountd Police to patrol the countr,
as the Indians were t hreatening, and I send Col. Deacon and two companies Of
the Midland to-morrow, who have reports of strange Indians and hait-breeds attemnpt'
ing to pass [ntelligence pickets, and hold men and engine in readiness to move
alonig the railway. Halifax regiment arrived with orers to stay here. I would
strongly recommend they remain a few days, as they have not knowledge of cam3lP
life and will benefit alongside an experienced regiment. If you find river ronte
satisfuctory, and retain this as base, will you authorize the ereoction of a temporarY
wooden hospital as proposed ? It will cost eighthnndred dollars and will probablY
sel for a store when no longer wanted far hospital.

J. W. LAURIE.
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From Swift Current, 1. W.T., 2nd., to Hon. A. P. Caron.

OTTAwA, 3rd May, 1885.
0ol. Williams, with half battalion, Midland Regiment, by river in " Northoote"

to join General Middleton, and last advices was still on board with Gatling gun. My
Putrols from surveyors' corps, who are at Elbow, report " Northcote " passed there
t hree days ago, but she may have grounded lower down, although river has risen 2
fet in two days. The crews of Galt barges struck, and I send Lieut. Weller with
t0 n barges, and he will do it. Contractor Boyd bas arrived with them and material
to build ton barges, which will be ready on Tuesday to take down 200 tons of sup-
Plies; and Galt steamers start to-morrow from Medicine Hat, and will, I hope, carry
-about 400 tons to Clark's Crossing. J. W. LAURIE.

OTTAWA, 3rd May, 1885.
To Major.Generai LAuaIE, Swift Current.

Please provision steamers when they arrive at Swift Cnrrent, and save delay.
Keep memorandum of what they get.

A. P. CARON.

From Swift Current, N. W.I., 4th, to Hon. A. P. Caron.

OTTAWA, 4th May, 1885.
If the water holds at present depth, the " Northcote " would be rost service-able in transporting sick and wounded, as she has a state-room. I shall have great

faith in utilizing the water for which Canadians are specially qualified, and would
'Wish to not await report from Capt. Sheets before sendJing, but would also like to
know terms on which the steamers are hired, 8o a. to ascertain comparative cost of

1oVing supplies. J. W. LAURIE.

From Swift Current, N W.T., 4th, to Bon. A. P. Caron.

OTTAWA, 4th May, 1885.
Steamer has been as yet delayed from any cause that of our service coald

'reledy. Every requisition has been immediately complied with, and captain hore
bas been offered every assistance, and shall do in future.

J. W. LAURIE.

Fisa CRERK, 5th May, 1885.
Genera1 LAUaIE, Swift Current.

One hundred and forty-four Shrapnel and 88 common shell arrived by steamer
Northcote." Only 60 percussion fuses; wanted 50 more. Also 150 " five second "

tirme fuses and 300 friction tubes; also 25 pounds of IR. P. G. powder and 75 filled
eartridges for 9 pounder. Rush them on if with you.

PRED MIDDLETON, Major-General.

SASKATOiTEwAN LANDING vid SWIFT CURRENT, 6th May, 1885.
General MIDDLIETON.

Very pleased to hear that "Northcote " has reached you, and trust your urgent
Wants are now supplied. " Baroness " will be loaded to-morrow night with 200 tons,
kainly oats and provisions, and Captain Davis expects to reach you in three days,
and " Alberta " will follow in two days with 150 tons, whilst Boyd's barges wili be
ready on Wednesday, and will take 200 tons of this forward to work. Should I send
5applies for Otter by Clarke's Crossing it will save me 100 miles of land hauling. 1
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pose sending two companies, Midland, in the two steamers, and will send on Colonel
fleacn's detachment from Maple Creek as soon as I can call it in, and I will hold
&eventh ready to follow if the river route keeps good.

J. W. LAURIE.

OTTAWA, 7th May, 1885.
Major-General LAumiE, Swift Current.

Please lot me know what orders were given by General Middleton in referenc,
to Williams' regiment, and if his orders were carried out.

A. P. CARON.

From Swift Current, 7th, to Hon. A. P. Caron.

OTTAWA, 8th May, 1885.
Am not aware of any order given by General Middleton in reference to Williams'

regiments, or any other except that ho and his battalion were to go on th&
" Northoote," and they were sent, but I believe they want water bottles and cloth-
ing, and I have repeatedly asked for both, but I have not recoived either.

J. W. LAURIE.

From Swift Current, 12th, to Hon. A. P. Caron.

OTTAWA, 13th May, 1885.
Teams now at Calgary would be most conveniently employed with Genoral

Strange's brigade. North of Calgary, just now, there are plenty teans on lino running
from Swift Jurrent and if we move base to Moose Jaw shall not require any more
but ox-teams; would probably be best at the extreme north end of the lino as the
oxen would not want any hay but few oats. Will wire General Middleton to kBow
if he wants any with him.

J. W. LAURIE.

OTTAWA, 13th May, 1885.
To Major.General LauBim, Swift Current.

Al right. I think your suggestion a good one. You can act upon it.
A. P. CARON.

OTTAWA, 16th May, 1885.
To Major-General LAuRi, Swift Carrent.

Can't you send boat to give fully communication by river with Strange's col-
mand?

A. P. CARON.

A-17om Winnipeg, 16th, to Hon. A. P. Caron.

OTTAWA, 16th May, 1885.
I have a report from Col. Otter that supply teams were captured thirteen mil0e

from Battleford. They contained provisions and forage but no ammunition. I wired
Col. Otter askirg if ho can clear danger part of road near Battleford so as to alloW
teams to pass for the present, and meantime have stopped outgoing teams at river.
It was most providential that river ferry had been ont of order for some days, and,
consequently very few teams were on road. I had received orders that no esortd
should be sent north of river, and there should not be any danger for strong convoYO
till it ieached within forty miles of Battleford. Since my proposal to Col. Otter to
clear out that part of that road, I am now preparing convoy of provisions at river
numberirg one hundred and thirty teams, and with this number of armed teamaters
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and smail party of convalescents returning to duty, and some newly engaged scouts,
all under Lieut. Blake's command I propose sending ammunition provided strong
escort can be sent out from Battleford to meet it.

J. W. LAURIE.

From Winnipeg, Manitoba, 17th, to Hon. A. P. Caron.

OTTAWA, 17th May, 1885.

I have loaded with supplies and sent forward to General Middleton ail the.
steamers that reported to me for service, and they are now with him, but water com-
Munication with General Strange could only be establisbed on the North Saskat-
Chewan, and I understand General Middleton is moving with steamers towards
Prince Albert, when, if water is high enough, ho will doubtlies open up communica-
tion with General Strange.

J. W. LAURIE.

OTTAWA, 21st May, 1885.

To Major-General LAURIE, Swift Current.

Please forward with all possible despatch supplies for Grenadiers, by Moose Jaw-
Trail.

A. P. CARON.

From Swift Current, N. W.T., 22nd, to Bon. A. P. Caron.
OTTAWA, '43rd May, 1885.

Car from Toronto for Grenadiers delayed on railway, and arrived just too late to,
be sent forward by troops, but [ have just accepted contract for Moose J aw Trail, and
1 hope teams will go on road to-morrow, and the contents of car will be at once for-
Warded, but since arrival to present moment there has been no oplportueity te send
it forward. The presents for Queen's Own were brought back to river, to save theni
froin capture by Indians.

'J. W. LXAURIE.

Telegram to General Middleton at Battleford.

MooSE JAw, 24th May, 1885.

Moved detachment Halifax regiment and teams from Swift Carrent to Moose
Jaw yesterday and commenced hauling to Eibow on new contract to-day. I sent
Surgeon Corbett to Col. Turnbull last Tuesday and have ordered Coshry forward from
8askatchewan landing with escort, and send ammunition as Otter specially requir ed

it. There will be about five hundred tons supplies piled at Short's landing ready to
load, and have half detachment of Halifax regiment at landing for protection, and as
'Water is now three and a half feet above low level, " Northcote " should be able to
bring all to Clarke's Crossing in two loads by taking barge with Galt Company have
8ent down, Can you spare " Northcote " for this purpose ? She could bring up inva-
lids to Elbow each trip. J. W. LAUBIE.

Telegram to General Middleton at Battleford.

SWIPT CURRENT, 21st May, vid PRINcE ALBERT, 26th Uay, 1885.

I reported to you that I had accepted tenders by which goods could be taken
m Moose Jaw to Clarke's Crossing much more economically than by days' work,

and that I was prepared to move the troops now here as soon as I could get supply
depôt cleared out, and as Col. Otter now reports road open to Battieford. I hope
with escort ot a few scouts to get supply teams away. I have not interfered witli the
Q'Appelle route but work froin Moose Jaw instead of Swift Current as you directed
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and will report 10 you whon experience and coatract figures will show which is most
satisfactory. I have refused, however, to'take any teams on day work at five
dollars and found wbich is a material reduction on rates lately paid. I have ruated
hospital and accommodation for female nurses at Moose Jaw and arranged for trans-
port of wounided from Elbow. Mr. Wrigley tells me that no stipulation was made
that troops should go as escort on barges, but contractors at first claimed it was a
condition and his men would not go alone. I refused to send men to Medicine [Lat
lor steamer but tent a detachment with each to cut wood, and so have trains ai 1
know you wished these to arrive as quickly as p>ssible. t arn advised that Otter's
suppli os can bo sent by trail from Clarke's Crossing to Telegraph Creek and theneO
by North Branch to Battleford. Do you wish this route adopted ?

J. W. LAURIE.

Telegram to General Middleton at Battleford.
REoINA, 26th May, 1885.

Have received following frorn Swift Current: Thompson, scout, and Todd, half'
breed mail carrier, just arrived with mail from Battleford. They left on SaturdaY
morning. Thompson reports having seen a fresh trait about sixty miles this side of
Battleford. Trait appears to lead from Out Kuife Creek, and is supposed to be made
by a largo body, under Big Bear, who are going to Poundmaker, who is encamped ia
Eagle Hills. They had evidently crossed eastwards on Satuid-ay night. ThompsoO,
-reports having seen Iridian scouts only twenty-five miles west of trail, uritil theY
crossed Eagle Croek. Ail traces of them lost at Eagle Creek.

J. W. LAURIE.

Telegram to General Middleton at Battleford.
MoosE JAw, 29th May, 1885.

Major Bell now here to consult as to most desirous moans of removing about four
Ihundred tons supplies, forage, Swift Current, Saskatchewan Landing. If any steamier
could be obtained, and barges used, it could be taken to Clarke's Crossing probably
for $30 a ton, and then to Battleford. By trail would cost nearly $100, and stores
aay deteriorate, and it may be less loss to pay a little more and move by land at
once. Major Bell says net oost of teaming from Landing to Battleford would nOt
exceed $150 a ton, and I agree with him, and probably lower figures 3an be obtained
by contract, if you decide to employ teams Major Beil could immediately obtaiO
sufficient of them now being discharged, and action could be taken forthwith.

J. W. LAURIE.

MoosE JAw, 22nd June, 1885.
General MIDDLESTON, Pitt.

Have carried ont instructions, and notified Mr. White, pransport Officer, that
you intend sending " Alberta " for supplies to Saskatchewan Landing, and not to
ship more by rail. Have also instructed hir to collect ali Government property
and Iurnish lists, and will forward when collected, arid to state how soon ho 0ao
dispense depôt clerks and other employés, so that they can be paid off by staff pJ'
master, and if you instruct him to accept my signatures as vouchers it will avoid mun"e4

delay.
J. W. LAURIE.

Mooss JAw, 23rd June, 1885.
Major-General MIDDLETON.

Otter's scouts returned fromn Battleford with certified accounts. Sent on to col'
Forrest for payment, and matter referred to Col. Jack-on, but pïyment refused. T'ai
Lis now been outstanding threo weeks at heavy expense. I an referred from' 00e
Department to another. Will you piease wire authority ?

J. W. LAURmE.

49 Victoria. A. 1886
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(Memorandum.)-Fifteen scouts were employed at Swift Current by Gerierat
Ibaurie to accompany supplies to Battleford for Lieut. Colonel Otter's column. Tiese
!nen claimed $5 per day. I referred the matter to General Middleton, who author-
lzed 84 per day where the men furnished thoir own horses; consequently I deduated
41 per day from those who rode Government horses. The pay lists show that ail
Were paid $4 per day except one.

W. H. JACKSON, Lt.-Col., D.A.G., Chairman War Claims Commission.

Moos JAw, 23rd June, 1885.

General MIDDLETON.

Immediately on receipt of your message about " Alberta " brin ging bargas for
freight on Saskatchewan River, I notified Mr. White, who roplied; wvri-ttei coutract

iven Thos. Howard by Whitehead, of which I have written notice in My possesion.
n pursuance of same, contractor has about 100 teams now here and h's ongaged 100

rnore from convoys returned from Battlefbrd. Lewis ferry having p: veri useless, [
took over Galt's barge for ferrying, discharred tearms to south side of river for ship.
tnent, and taking supplies across on return trip. The system is working satisfactowily,
thoughi slow. About 150 tons already goue north under contract, leaving about 300
tons on south side river, and balance consamed and being loaded on contrautor's
Waggons on north side. Under above circumstances, and taking into accourt con-
tractor's prospecting claims for compensation for his large expense already incurred
in bringing teams here, I should strongly advise that above cn tract be completed,
tlsing all possible dispatch. Please advise me further in matter. In view of above, I
replied, asking termas of contract, whether by day or by hundred, as to transport of
teans, and when bound to complete work by rail. I cannot get reply. Shal I allow
lin, uider circumstances, to carry ont contract, or to cancel it, and let steamer take
freight ? If te;der, as I recommended, had been accepted by transport officer, all
annplies unloaded would have left river ton days ago and have been delivered in
Battleford for $6.75 a hundred. And now ferry is broken, and great delay ensues ;
even if tears carry portion it will be well to lot steamer and barges clear up river
banks.

J. W. LAURIE.

Moosz JAw, 24th Jane, 1885.

Major Goneral MIDDLETON, Front.
Just hoard frorm White at Saskatchewan Landing. Contract for hauling to Bat-

tleford made with Whitehead. Winnipeg is by hundred, and time is not essentiat to
Oontract, and Government forage team, which waiting ut Landing, as ferry has been
broken for eleven days. J. W. LAURIE.

MOOsE JAw, 24th June, 1885.

Major General MIDDLETON, Pitt.

Telegram just received from Purveyor General frora Minister Militia instructing
ormnion auctioneer to sell hospital stores here and to consult with tue and make

.rra-ùgements in concert. l view oflast of freighting, sCoti' horses aad other pub-
lie property which could not be economically st'>red, and better prices couLd be got
here than in Winnipeg, and quantity of forage now stacked or stored here which is
Peishable, ho strongly recommends all to be auctionoi hore samuo tine as hospital
stores. Lirge sale will bring in people from distance and comrnand botter prces
D,'ad close up more rapidly, he thinks. Auction could come off in a woek's time if you
pprov.

J. W, L AURIE.
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Moosi JÂw, 26th June, 1885.

Major General MIDDLETON.

Mr. Metcalfe, good auctioneer, gave cogent reasons for sale at local points,
which led to my recommending this action as it appears financially advantageous,
but will, of course, carry out whatever instructions you may give, if you wish me to
co-operate with Dr. Sullivan and Mr. Metcalfe and dispose of horses and other
property along with medical stores.

J. W. LAURIE.

MoosE JAw, 27th June, 1885.
General MIDDLETON, Pitt.

All civil supply and transport staff, but ore transport officer discharged, and he
leaves to-morrow, and business temporarily conducted with military assistance.
Ambulance now on road bringing in wounded from Saskatoon. - When aboard will
complete unloading, and all Governiment property will be collected for storage for
sale as you may direct. Repeated applications were rnade to authorities, both police
and militia, to pay off scouts who could not be dismissed without funds to carry them
home, but each placed responsibility on officer; so telegraphed Minister urging set-
tlement and took the responsibility of dismissing them, but they cannot leave with-
out money.

J. W. LAURIE.

BATTLEFORD, 5th July, 1885.
General LAuR1.

Astonished to find you still at Moose Jaw, your duties having ceased with the
breaking up of the base. The Minister in answer to a question was informed by me
some days ago that you had left Moose Jaw.

Lt..Col. BrennÂan must carry out the duties now required at Moose Jaw.
FRED MIDDLETON, Major-General.

RETURN
(80g)

To an ORDER of the HOUSE OF COMMONS, dated 81st March, 1 -86 ;-For a
Return showing names of all Militia Officers and Non-cofbatants
appointed as Transport and Supply Officers, giving rank and Porps Of
Militia Officers, with dates of appointment, rates of pay, by whoin
appointed, and whose recommendation, and total payments to eaý9h to
date.

By Command.
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.
Ottawa, 12th May, 1886.

20
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EEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DE'ENCE

OTTAwA, 3rd May, 1886.
SIR,-n transmitting to you, herewith, a statement showing the names of

rnilitia offlcers and non.combatants appointed as transport and supplies officers,
during the campaign in the North-West Territories last year, in accordance with an
Order of the louse of Commons, dated 31st March, 1886, I am directed by the
Minister of Militia and Defence to inform you that some of the appointmenta
rteferred to were made on different trails, as circumstances required, by those
previously appointed by offioers on the spot, without reference to any higher author-
Ity; in consequence, we have no record showing the names of the persons who
Inade the appointments.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
EUGÉNE 0. PANET.

Deputy Minister of .Militia and Defence.

2To the tUnder Secretary of State, Ottawa.
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RETURN
(80À.)

To an ORDER of the HOUsE OF COMMONS, dated 81st March, 1886;-For a
Return of all horses, ponies, cattle, furs, waggons, carts and other pro..
perty seized by the Mounted Police or Expeditionary Force, while on
service in the North-West, between March 27th and August 1st, with
the disposition made of the same, the names of persons from whorm
such seizures were made, and the amount (if any) paid, received, or
now payable or receivable, on account of such property.

By Command.
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

bepartment of the Secretary of State, Becretary of Btate.
12th May, 1886.

To OÊicers Commanding N W.M. Police, Battleford.
CAMP, FORT PITT, 30th June, 1885.

It would be advisable to take in charge ail the property of all those half-breeds
Inow at Battleford, who lately delivered themeelves up from rebel camp, until their
innocence is proved, there being strong doubts on the loyalty of the whole of themn.

FRED. MIDDLETON, Major-General.

RETURN
(80i)

To an ORDEn of the HOUsE OF CoMMoNs, dated 8lst March, 1886 ;-For a

Return stating name, rank and corps of all officers composing the
Staff of Major-General Middleton, and the capacity in which each
Served.

By Command.
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

bepartment of the Secretary of State, Becretary of St te.
12th Mlay, 1886.

wÀVictoria. A. 1886



49 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 80.)

NAMI, Rank and Corps of al Officers composing the Staff of Major-General
Middleton, and the capacity in which each served.

Name.

Sir F. D. Middleton, K.0.M. G
Eenry E. Wise...... ..... ........
A. E. Doneet~....,..........
A. 0. Freer......... ........
Viscount gel gund ...
Charles P. Houghton...........
Herbert de H. Haig......
B. VanStraubenzie.......
Oharles G. Iarston.............
gamuel L. Bedson................
J. H. E. Secretan ....

Major Henry Smith ...........
Hon. Oapt. H iwiuford......
George F. Cole..................

Rank.

aj.-Gen.......
(apt. in Mil...........
Lient.............
do ................

Lieut.-Colonel......
do .........

Capain ........
Lieut. -Colonel.........
0aptain .. .....
Esq.......................

do.
Captain .........
Quartermaster.
Late Lieutenat....

Corps.

ý .... ......... ..... ....-....

Lt. eo Rif.............
Act. Mil ........ .... à..
S. Staff R ...............
Act Militia.......,
AcR. >Staff.. .. ....... .

Staff .......................
16th Battalion
.......... ..... ......... ....

' O o.I.. 0.
9tJh Battalion....,
. 3. Bde. G. A......

capacity.

coSmanding.
A. D. 0. to G. O. (.

do
hief of Staff.

D. A. G.
î.·Q. M. G.
Comdg. Inf Brigade.
rigade Major.

Ohief Transport Officer.
IAsistaat do
Aest. Adjt. Gea.
Chief Commissariat Offcer.
Camp Quartermaster.

E UGÉ-NE C. PA-NET,

OTTAWA, 3rd May, 1886. Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.

RETURN
(80j)

To an ORDR of the Hous oF COMMONS, dated Siat March, 1886 :-For
copies of all correspondence between one James Anderson and the
Minister of Militia, Major-General Middleton, and any Member of the
Government, with respect to the purchasing of supplies, cost of trans-
port, and other expenditure incurred during the North-West Rebellion.

By Command.

Department of the Seoretary of State,
12th May, 1886.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Secretary of State.

DEPARTMENT Op *ILI!TA AND DEFENoE, OTTAWA, 4th Hay, 1886.
Snt,-In reply to an Order of the House of Comifions, dated 31st March last,

asking for copy of correspondenûe between James Anderson and the Minister of
Militia and Defence, the Major-General Commanding, and any members of the Gov-
ernment, with respect to the purdhaiig of supplies during the North-West rebellioli
of 1885, I am directed by the Minister of Militia and Defence to inform you that nO
suoh correspondence exista in this Department relating to above matter.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
EUG. C. PANET,

The Under Secretary of State, Ottawa. Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.

A. 1886
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RETURN
(80k)

Io an ORDic of the HOUSE OF CoMMONS, dated 31st March, 1886 :-For a,
Return of names of all persons employed as purchasing agents, showing
when, by whom, and on whose recommendation appointed, rate of pay
and length of employment.

By Command.
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

-1partment <f the Secretary of State, Secretary of Blate.
12th May, 18 6.

)EPARTMENt OF MILITIA ANX DEPFENE,. TTAWA, 3rd May, 1886.
Sxa,-Jn reply to an Order of the House of Com mons, dated 31st March last, aske

'tg for a return showing the names of persea employed ae prehasiug agent, for
ýhi8 department, during the late rebelion in the North-Weas, I am directed by the
'Lllister of Mititia and Defence to inform yoe that n> sueù agents were appointed or
'detailed, during the campaign of 1845, in the North-West, and that the purchasing
'8 done by the Hudson Bay Company.

I have the bonor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
EUGÈNE C. PAN ET, Deputy Minister of Nilitia and Defrnce.

eB Under Secretary of State, Ottawa.

RETURN
(801)

o'0 an ORnER of the HOUSE OF CoMmoNs, dated 31st March, 1886:-Por

a Return showing names of all Contractors from whom Teama were
engaged for transport, number of Teams engaged from each, with rate
of pay per day per team, and the total amount paid te each of suck
Contractors.

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
epartnent of the Secretary of State, Becretary of State.

21st May, 1886.

"49 'Victoria. A. 1886
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DEPARTMENT O1, MILITIA AND DzFEoez, AcoouNiT BRANOH,
OTTAWA, 22nd Febrnary, 1886.

MEKORANDUM, in re the proceeding of the Commission on War Claims, under date
23rd ultimo.

War claim No. 1, Bell, Lewis & Co., for hauling freight by the ton, 85,093.24;
and for hire of teams, at $5 a day, $6,718.24,

The Honorable the Minister of Militia and Defence, on the recommendation of
the Commission, has approved of certain reducti<sus, and ordered Bell, Lewis & Co.
to be firnished with a transcript from the proceeding, and 'paid in accordance with
the award as stated hereunder, viz.:--" It baing iacessary to make dedations to
cover rations and forage supplied by Governuaent (in accordance with the terms of
contract) upon all stores hauted by the ton,'' in this account as well as in previous
accounts, the following amounts are deducted, viz.:

716k tons, at 810.00................. osasses&. a.te 87,165 00
1001 do 7.50 ............................. 753 76

do 6.50 ........................................ 3 25
3j do 5.50 .............................................. 17 87

66J do 3.75.............................................. 249 35
9 do 2.25.............. ............ 20 25

19k do 1.00.............................................. 19 50

$8,228 97
Less deducted from previous vouchers....... 2,985 30

$5,243 67

sUMMAar.

Total amount of the two claims................... $6,718 24
Deduct above amont............................................ 5,243 67

Balance............ ..................... ............. 81,474 57

This balance is recommended for payment in full of all claims. A copy of this
report to be forwarded to Messrs. Bell, Lewis & Co. with the chaque.

By order, GEORGE GUY, Major, P. M. N.- W. Forees.

To Messrs. BELL, Lzwis & Co., Lachine, P.Q.

A. 188649 Victoria.
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RETURN
(80m)

TO an ADDRESS of the HOUSE OF COMMONS, dated 8lst March, 1886 ;-For
copies of all correspondence between the Government of the United
Kingdom and the Canadian Government, or any members, officers or
employees thereof, respecting the medals to be given to the volunteers
who served in the recent insurrection in the North-West.

By Command.
J. A. CHAPLEAU,

bepartment of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.
21st May, 1886.

OTTAWA, 20th May, 1886.
Sir,-In reply to your Order of Reference of the 1st April, on a motion of the

ouse of Commons for " copies of correspondence between the Governments of the
United Kingdom and Canada respecting the medals to be given to the volunteers,"

bave the honor to forward herewith copies of the correspondence in question,
as per schedule annexed. No order of reference is herewith returned.

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
HENRY STREATFIELD, Captain,

The Under Secretary of State. Governor General's Secretary.

Lord Lansdowne to Lord Derby.

(Confidential.) OTTAWA, 19th May, 1885.
MY LoRD,-It is, I think, almost a matter of certainty that a proposalwill be

lZade that th froops which have been engaged in the suppression of the recent out-
break in the North-West should receive some reccgnition of the services which they
bave rendered.

2. From the reports which I have received from General Middleton and from
Other sources, I do not hesitate to say that such a reward would be well deserved.

3. The hardships and difficulties of the campaign have been exceptional ; the
dangere encountered, owing to the nature of the ground and the character of the
enemy, bave been unusually great, and the loss sustained by our forces has, 1 am
sorry to say, been considerable. Of their conduct, Geneial Middleton speaks in
terlms of high commendation. It is, moreover, to be remembered that nearly the
whole of the men engaged bave pursuits or professions in civil life which they have
abandoned at great personal inconvenience, and, in many case, at considerable loss.

4. No proposal has yet been made to me by my Ministers, nor have 1 had any
communication with them upon this subject, but I ihink it likely that i shall be
r'equested to approve the issue by the Dominion Government cf a Canadian medal to
the forces engaged.

I have, however, no doubt, that if the medal was to be awarded by the
I'perial Government the distinction would be much more appreciated by the
"ecipients of the medal, by the volunteers of the Dominionand by the people of thia
Country generally. -

49victoria. A. 1886ý
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5. Under the above circumstances 1 should be glad to learn from your Lordship.
1. Whether there would be any objection to the grant of a modal by the Caia-

dian Government.
2. Whether there would be any prospect of the grant of an Imperial modal.
6. As this matter may corne under discussion at any moment, I should be verY

glad if your Lordship could advise me by toiegraph in regard to it.
I have, &c.

LANSDOWNE.
The Earl of DEmy.

Lord Lansdowne to Colonel Stanley.

(Confidential.) OTTAWA, 10th July, 1885.
SIR,-1 had the honor of addressing to your predecessor, on the 19th gay last, aà

despatch marked confidential, in which I mentioned to him that it was probable that
an application might be made for the grant of a modal to the forces engagel in the
recent operations against the half-breeds in the North-West, and I requosted his
instructions upon the subject.

2. Now that most of the troops are on their way home, the recognition which is
likoly to be accorded to their services is being generally discussed, and a hope has
been exprossed in many quarters that they will be allowed to recoive a medal.

3. I enquired of your predecessor wheth3r there was any prospect of the grant
of an Imperial medal, and, if not, whether any.objection would be raised to the grant
of a medal by the Colonial Government. It is, however, my decided impression that
the modal would not be valued by the recipients, and had better not bo granted
unless it is the gift of the Crown.

4. I have, as stated in my despatch already referred to, no means of ascertaii-
ing the precedent which would be applicable in such a case. I would, howeger,
venture to urge upon you that a favorable consideration should, if possible, be giveil
to the suggestion which I have made.

5. The operations in the North-West were conducted in the face of very serious
difficulties, and have been completely successfuil. Nothing could be more commend-
able than the spirit in which the volunteers have responded to the call which has
been made upon thora. They have shown much courage and endurance, both in
action and during the long and tedious marches which precoded it. They have sus-
tained considerable losses in killed and wounded and from sickness, and they have
submitted cheerfully to the sacrifices which are inevitable when the soldions of a
volunteer army are obliged to relinquish thcir engagements in civil life for actiVe
service in the field.

6. The campaign has been the means3 of greatly stimilating the military spirit
of the country, and of creating a disposition among iLs poople to rely more Upo"
themselves for its defence. Under such circumstances, the oncouragement which
would be undoubtedly afforded by the grant of an Imporial modal could not fail to
have excellent effects.

7. It is desirable that I should be made aware as soon as possible of the views of
ler Majesty's Governmont with respect to this matter, and I have therefore the
honor to request that you will be so good as to acquaint me of your decision by
telegraph. 

I have, &c.,
Colonel STANLEY. LANSDO WNE.

Colonel Stanley to Lord Lansdowne.

(Cana la -Conidential.) DowNING STRIEET, 22nd July, 1885.
My Loa,-l have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your confidential des-

patch of the 19th May, on the subject of the grant of a modal to the troops which have
been engaged in the suppression of the recenL outbreak in the Nortb-West.
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Your Lordship enquires whether, in the event of the subject coming under dis-
enssion with your ministers, there would be objections to the grant of a medal by the
Caradian Government, and whether there would be any prospect of the grant of an
1Inperial medal.

I have ascertained, after communicating with the Secretary of State for War, that
thore would be no objection to submitting to the Queen the proposal that au Imperial1aedal should oe issued on this occasion.

Should the subject therefore be brought before you by your Ministers, your Lord-
ship will be at liberty to state that any formal recommendation which the Governmnent

the D >miinion might wish to make, f>r the grant of an Imperial modal in recogni.
tion of the services recently rendered by the Canadian troops, would receive favorable
'Onideration.

I have, &c.,

o)vernor General, FRED. STANLEY.

Tie Most lion. the Marquis of LANSDOWNE, G.CM.,G., &c., &c.,
Lord Lansdowne to Colonel Stanley.

(Jon/idential.) ToaosTo, 5th August, 1885.
S1R,-I have the honor to acknowledge your confidential despatch of the 22nd

Y, up)n the subject of the grant of a modal to the troopq which have been engIged
ln the suppression of the recent outbreak in the North-West. You will, since the
tho date ot' that despaLch, have recoived mine of the 10th Jaly, dealirg with the
same matter

2. It gives me mach pleasure to learn that Ier Majesty's Gvernment see no
objection to submitting to the Queen a propoaal that an Imperial medal shoulI be
nlued upon this occasion. For the.reasons that [ have already givon, I bolieve that
the grant of such a modal will have an exceliont effect upon the militia force,
and that it will be generally appreciated by the people of this country.

3. I should be glad to be favored with any suggestions which thel ar Officea
'nay he able to make as to the design of the medal, which shoild, I approhend,
resemble those usaally granted to the Imperial forces. The obverse will, I asiume,
represent the Queen's head, and the reverse might be engraved witi a desigit dis-
tînctive of the Dominion.

I have, &c.,
Colonel STANLET. LANSDOWNE.

Lord Lansdowne to Colonel Stanley.
(Confldential.) OTTAWA, 31st August, 1885.

SIR.-With reference to my despatches, marked confidential, of the 19th May,10th July and 5th August of the present year upon this subject of the modal to be
ee'On to the'volunteors engaged in the suppression of the recent rebellion in the

North-West, I should be glad if, whother the expense be borne by the Canadian
GovOrnment or not, the medals could be supplied through the War Dapartnent. if
tis c-uld be done it would bo desirable that a design should be prepared under in-
strutionis from that Department, and that it sbould be forwarded to me for consider-
ation before it is finally approved.

The modal should be of the kind usually bestowed upon the Imperial troops and
elhould have fier Majesty's head apon the obverse side. The dies neuessary for this
irnpression are I presame already in existence. The reverse of the medal should be
oramented with a wreath of maple leaves, in the centre cf which the words " The
NOrth-West, 1885," might be impressed.

Patterns of the ribbon might be forwarded to me at the same time.
I have, &c.,

LANSDOWNE.
- Colonel, the Hon. F. A. STANLEY.

Sessional Papers (No. 80.) A .1886
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Sir W. J. Ritchie to Colonel Stanley.

OTTAWA, 21st September, 1885.
Sin,- I have the horor to forward berewith for your information ihree copies of

the-Canada Gazette of the 19th inst., containing a notification in the Militia General
Orders of the 18th inst., of the grant of an Imperial medal to the troops recently
engaged in the suppression of the rebellion in the North-West Territories.

I have, &c.,
W. J. RI[ICHIE.

Colonel Stanley to Lord Lansdowne.

DOwNING STREET, 6th November, 1885.
My LoR»,-With reference to previous correspondence respecting the g-ant of

an Imperial medal to the Canadian troops employed in suppressing the recent ont-
break in the North-West, I have the honor to acquaint you, for the information of
your Lordship's Government, t bat Her Majesty's Government bave decided to defray
the expenses connected with the gift of the medals from Imperial funds.

I have, &c.,
F. A. STANLEY.

Governor General,
The Most Hon. the Marquis of LANsDoWNE, G.O M.G., &c., &c.,

Colonel Stanley to Lord Lansdowne.

DowNING STREET, 23rd November, 1885.
My LoRD,-With refereuce to my despatch,. No. 266, of the 6th instant, on the

subject of the defrayal from Imperial funds of expenses in connection with the grant
of war m çalis to the troops engaged in repressing the rebellion in the North-West, I
have the :nor te request that you will inform me, as accurately as possible, of the
number of medals that are likely to be required, with a view to the preparation of a
Supplementary Estimate for the service in question.

I have, &c.,
FRED. STANLEY.

Governor General,
The Most Hon. the Marquis of LANSDOwNE, G.C.M.G., &c., &c.,

Lord Lansdowne to Colonel Stanley.

OTTAWA, 14th December, 1885.
S1a,-I communicated to my Ministers a copy of your despatch, No. 266, of the

6th ultime, acquainting me of the decision of Her Majesty's Goverument to defray,
from Imperial funds, the expenses connected with the grant of a medal to the volun-
teers who were employed in ihe suppression of the late outbreak in the North-West
Territories, and I have now the honor to forward herewith a copy of an approved
report of a Committee of the Privy Council, conveying to, Her Majesty's Government
"lthe thanks of the Government of Canada for this generous and courteoas favor."

I have, &c.,
LANSDOWNE.

Colonel STANLEY.

CERTIFI.ED Copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council,
approved by Bis Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 9th Deeember,
1885.
The Committee of the Privy Council Lave had before them a deFpatch dated 6th

November, 1E85, from the Right Honorable the Secretary of State for the Colonies,
respect ing the grant of an Imperial medal to the Canadian troops employed in sup-

32

49 Victoria. A. 1886-



- B -~ -

49 liotoria. 1essional Papers (NO. 80.) A.1886

pressing the recent outbreak in the North-West, and advising that Her Majesty's
Government have decided to defray the expenses connected with the gift of the
modal from Imperial funds.

The Minister of Militia and Defence, to whom the despatch has been referred
reocommands that the thanks of the Government of Canada be ofered to Rer Majes.
t> 's Government for this generous and courteous favor.

The Committee concur in the recommondation of the Minister of Militia and
Dofence, and they respectfully advise that Your Excellency be moved to convey to
Colonel Stanley the thanks of the Government of Canada for thi generoue and
courteous favor.

30OH N 3. MOGEE, Clerk Privy Council.

Lord bansdowne to Colonel Stanley.

OTTAWA, 16th December, 1885.
SI,-In reply to your despatch marked " Parliamentary Grant," of the 23rd

ult., I have the honor to forward herewith a oopy of a communication from the
Depari ment of Militia and Defence, stating that the probable number of war modale
for the Canadian Volunteers who were employed in repressing the rebellion in the
North-West Territories will be 5,20.

I have, &., LANSDOWNE.

Colonel STANLEY.

DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DEFENcE,
OTTAWA, 15th December, 1885.

SI,-In reply to the enquiry contained in the despatch from the Right Honor.
able the Secretary of State for the Colonies, dated the 23rd ultimo, I have t be honor
by direction of the Minister of Militia and Defence, to state that the probable number
of war medals for the Canadian troops engaged in repressing the rebellion in the
North-West, will be five thousand two hundred and fifty (5,250).

I have, &c.,
EUG. C. PANET, Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.

The Governor General's Secretary, OLtawa.

Lord Lansdowne to Colonel Stanley.

OTTAWA, 29th December, 1885.
Sin,-With reference to previous correspondence relating to the grant of an

Imperial modal to the Canadian troops who were employed in suppressing the late
rebellion in the North-West Territory, I have the honor to enclose a copy of a letter
from Major General Sir F. D. Middleton, C.B, K.C.M.G., commanding the militia of
the Dominion, recommending " that a clasp with 'Saskatchewan' on it should be
granted to all those troops actually engaged at Fiah Creek, Cut Knife, Batoohe and
Frenchman's Butte, and that a second clasp with 'Batoche' on it, be given to all
those actually engaged there, including those on board the steamer ' Northcote,' that
engagement having been the decisive and final engagement of the campaign."

2. The proposal made by Major General Sir F. Middleton is warmly supported
by my Minister of Militia, upon the ground that it is highly desirable that some dis.
tinction should be made between those volunteers who were engaged in the principal
actions of the campaign, and those who, though present in the North-West while the
campai gn was in progress and consequently entitled to receive the modal, were not
under fire or actually engaged in the operations whioh led to the suppression of the
rebellion.

8. I am glad to recommend Sir F, Middleton's eugiestion to your favorable cOn.
Mçwiwga , I have, &c.,
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OTTAwA, 18th Docomber, 1886.
SI,-With referehce to the issue, by the Imperial Government, of a modal to

the troops engaged in the late North-West campaign, I have the honor to strongly
recommend that a clasp, with "Saskatchewan' où it, sbould be granted to all those
troops actually engaged at Pish Çrçek, Qut Knife, Batoche and Frenchman's Batte,
and that a second clasp, with " Batoche " on it, be given to all those atuaiy
engaged there, including those on board the steamer "NurthOote," that engagement
having been the docisive and final engagement of the campaign.

I have, &c.,
FRED. MIDDLETON, Major General Commanding Canadian Militia.

Hon. Sir ADOLPHE GARON, K.C.&.G., Minister of Militia and Dofence.

Col. Stanley to Lord Lansd'wnre.

Dowxisme oTRJEET, 5th February, 1886.
Mi LoRD,-I caused to be forwarded, for the consideration of the Seocretary of

State for War, a copy of Your Lordship's despatoh, No. 353 , of the 29th of Decembei
last, recommending that clasps should be added to the medals now being propared
for presentation to such of the Canadian troops as were actually engaged with the
rebels during the recent operations in the Noi th-West Territories.

J have now the honor to inform you that a lutter has been received from the
\Var otIce, stating that His Royal Highness the Field Marshal Commanding in
Uhief, in concurrence with the Secretay ot State for War, is of opinion that this
aipplication cannot properly be acceded to, as the issue of clasps for small engage.
ments, during an inteirnal rebellionf would be unavoidable.

I have, &c.,
JOHN BRAMSTON for the &eormtary of &ati.

Governor General,
The. arquis of LANODOWNe, G.C.Nà G., &q., &o.,
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RETURN
(81)

To an DDRESS of the HOUSE OF COMMONS, dated 19th April, 1886 ;-For

copies of all petitions, despatches and correspondence, Reports to

Council and Orders in Council, touching upon and relating to the

disallowance of Railway Charters in Manitoba, not already brought

down,

By Command.

J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Department of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.

28th April, 1886.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, OTTAWA, 25th August, 1885.
SIa,-I am directed by the Minister of Justice to call the attention of the Minis.

ter of Railways and Canals to the following Acts, respecting railways, passed by the
1Jegislature of the Province of Manitoba, in the Session holden at Winnipeg, on the13 th March, 1884, and closed by prorogation on the 3rd June following.

1. Chapter 66, intituled: " An Act to amend the Act to incorporate the
Xorthern Junction Railway Company."

The second section of this Act is as follows:
2. The third section of the said Act of incorporation is bereby amended by

striking thereout the words: " the terminus of the Canadian Pacific ]Railway at
Stonewall," in the fourth and fifth lines thereof, and inserting therein in the place of
the said words so struck out the words " the city of Winnipeg," and adding thereto
the following: "Provided always, that the said company is hereby authorized to
construct and operate a branch line of railway from any point of their lino between
Stonewall and Shoal Lake to the town of Selkirk."
. The third section of the Act of Incorporation is further amended by Chapter 67,intituled, " An Act to further amend the Act to incorporate the Northern Junction

ailway Corpany," the first section of which is as follows:

fol -. The third section of the Act of incorporation is hereby repealed, and the
owing substituted therefor:
"' The said company shall have full power and authority to locate, build, make,furnish, operate, alter and keep in repair a railway with double or single track, and

electric telegraph along the same, commencing at or near the city of Winnipeg,
4nid running thence north-westerly to the northern boundary of the Province of
ibiaitoba, with power to construct a branch lino from any point on the main lino to
a POint at or near the city of Brandon, and the company shall have power to con

truet the different sections of the said railway in such order as they se fit, keepingin View the general directions as herein provided.' "
2. Chapter 68, intituled, " An Act to incorporate the Emerson and North-

Western Railway Company."
Ry the secon section the company have full power and authority to lay out,

construet, omplet and operate an iron or steel railway, from a point in the city of
reon, in a north.westeily direction to the tNo of Portage la Prairie, also a

1
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branch lino from some point on the said lino north of the Pembina Mountain Branch
of the Canadian Pacifie Railway, in a westerly or north-westerly direction to the
western boundary of the Province.

Provided, that nothing herein contained shall be held as authorizing the building
of the road within fifteen miles of the International boundary, in the territory lately
added to the Province.

3. Chapter 69, intituled, " An Act to incorporate the Manitoba Central Railway
Company."

By this Act, section 2 of Chapter 56, 46-47 Victoria, intituled, " An Aet to
incorporate the Manitoba Central Iailway Company," is repealed and the tollowing
substituted therefor:

" 2. The said company shall have full power and auth rity to lay ont, construct
and operate a railway with double or single iron or steel track, and an electrie tele-
graph line or linos along the same, such railway to commence at the town of Morris,
thence runuing westerly or north-westerly to the western boundary of the Province,
and from the town of Morris northerly to the city of Winnipeg, and a branch of said
railway running ebasterly or north easterly from the town of Morris to the Lake of
the Woods. Provided always, that no lino of railway constructed under the author-
ity of this Act shall run within fifteen miles of the International Boundary lino, in
that portion of the Province which was added by Acts of the Parliament of Canada,
and of the Legislature of Manitoba, in the year one thousand eight hundred and
eighty-one."

4. Chapter 70, intituled: " An Act to amend an Act to incorporate the Manitobâ
Central Railway Company, and amending Acts."

" By the first section of this Act, the Act last mentioned (chapter 69) is amended
as follows: ' By adding after the word ' Winnipeg,' in the seventh lino thereof, tbe
following words: ' and from the town of Horris southerly to the boundary lino of the
said Provincô, between the Red River and the first principal meridian in the said
Province,' and by adding the following words to said section: ' Provided also that 11O
portion of said railway shall be built in the portion of territory added to this Pro-
vince in the year 1881, in such a way as to contravene the terms on which such ter-
ritory was added to the Province.'

5. Chapter 71, intituled: "An Act to incorporate the Brandon, Souris and
Turtle Mountain Railwayà"

By the third section of this Act, the company " shall have full power and
authority to locate, lay out, construct, build, make, furnish, operate, alter and keop
in repair, a railway witb one or more sets of rails or tracks, commencing fron 0
point at or near the city of Brandon, thence south-westerly to a point at or near
Turtle Mountain, and westerly to the western boundary of the said Province Of
Manitoba, with the power to build bridges and construct and operate an electriO
telegraph lino along the said railway, and the company shall have power to construot
the different sections of the said railway in such order as they see fit, keeping in
view the general directions as herein provided. Provided always that the said corei
pany shal not construct any portion of its linos within fifteen miles of the Interlo'
tional boundary lino between this Province and the United States."

6. Chapter 72, intituled : " An Act to incorporate the 'Winnipeg and North-
Eastern Railway Company of Manitoba."'

By the 2nd section, the company have full power to "lay out, construct, con
plate, maintain and operate an iron or steel railway from a point at or near the towe
of East Selkirk, in a northerly direction on the oast side of Lake Winnipeg to a pOile
within the Province at or near Family Lake or Berens' River, and from the first ne'
tioned point southerly to Lhe city o Winnipeg; and thence westerly on the south
side of the River Assiniboine to the town of Portage la Prairie, crossing the River
Assiniboine at such point as may appear to the company to be best; also a bralc
lino from the town of East Selkirk westerly ta any point on the main lino of tlhe
Canadian Pacifie Railway, or upon the Manitoba and North-Weste.n Railway, east o
the White Mud River."
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7. Chapter 73, intituled: " An Act to give the town of Nelson certain powers
for the construction of a railway."

By the lst section " the town of Nelson, hereinafter called 'the town,' shall be,
anid hereby is, authorized and empowered to lay out, construct, complote, equip and
oPerate a line of railway and electric telegraph from any point within the town, to
cOnnect with the Pembina Mountain Branch of the Canadian Pacifie Railway, at or
nIear Morden, a station on the said branch."

I am to state that the Minister of Justice sees no objection to leaving these Acts
to their operation, except there are objections touching the general railway policy of
the Dominion, and so far as he is able to judge, there is no objection from this point
of view, to leaving chapters 66, 67 and 71 to their operation, but with respect to this
as well as to the question as to how far the other charters may be in accordance with
the Policy of the Governmont, respecting the granting of charters to railways in
Manitoba and the North-West Territory, ho would be glad to be favored with the
'9ews of the Minister of Railways and Canals.

I have, &c.,
GEO. W. BURBIDGE, D.M.J.

OTTAWA, 2lst October, 1885.
SIR,-With reference to your letter of the 25th August last, I send, by direction,herewith a copy of the general map published by the Department of the Interior,

Which shows the location of the different linos of railway of which your communica.
tion makes mention.

I am, Sir, your obedient servant,
A. P. BRADLEY, Becretary.

G• W. BURBIDGE, Esq., Deputy Minister of Justice, Ottawa.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTIoE, OTTAWA, 21st January, 1886.

Sia,-On the 25th August last I addressed yon a letter calling the attention of
Minister of Railways and Canals to certain Acts (Chaps. 66, 67, 68, 69, 70, 71, 72

and 73) respecting railwa s, passed by the Legislature of the Province of Manitoba
"n the Session of 1884, an requesting to be favored with the view of the Minister of
ViIwayfs and Canals thereon.

I ar to ask for an early reply to my letter.
I have, &c.,

GEO. W. BURBIDGE, D. M.J.

The Secretary of the Department of Railways and Canals.

DEPARTMENT oF RAILWAYS AND CANALS, OTTAWA, 20th February, 1886.

SIR,-Replying to your letters of the 25th of August and 21st of January last,
!y which you ask to be informed as to the views of the Minister of this Department
lu respect to certain railway Acts, passed by the Legislature of the Province of
ktitoba in the session of 1884, I have the honor, by direction, to state that the
o- ,trs so granted to the undermentioned railways should be disallowed, viz. : The

ersen and North-Western Railway Company, pnd the Manitoba Central Railway

* MIth regard to the other linos enumerated, the Minister does not consider that
'nterference is necessary.

I have, &c.,

%e ,Deputy of the Minister of Justice. A. P. BRADLEY, Secretary.

9 "Victoria. L. 1886
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DzPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, OTTAWA, 25th February, 1886.

To His Excellency the Governor General in Council:

The undersigned has the honor to report upon the Acts of the Legislature of the
Province of Manitoba, passed in the Session held in the year 1884, which are men
tioned in the annexed schedule, and which were reserved for a separate report.

With the papers will be found correspondence between the Minister of Justice
and the Minister of Railways and Canals with respect to these Acts. From this cor-
respondence it will be observed that the Minister of Railways and Canals is of opiniQn
that the Acts relating to the Emerson and North-Western Railway Company, and
the Manitoba Central Railway Company, should be disallowed.

The undersigned understands that the objection of the Minister to these Acts i8
based upon an apprehension that thereby the companies mentioned will be able tO
divert trade from the Canadian system of railways to the railways of the United
States, and that the objection applies to chapter 68, intituled, " An Act to incorporate
the Emerson and North- Western Railway Company," and Chapter 70, intituled,
" An Act to amend an Act to incorporate the Manitoba Central Railway CompanY
and amending Acts," but not to Chapter 69, intituled, " An Act to amend an Act tO
incorporate the Manitoba Central Railway Company."

The undersigned bas the honor respectfully to submit the correspondence for the
consideration of Your Excellency in Council.

JOHN S. D. THOMPSON,
.Minister of Justice.

ÇERTIFIED CoPY of a report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved
by His Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 22nd March, 1886.

On a memorandum, dated 25th February, 1886, from the Minister of Justice, sub-
mitting the annexed correspondence with the Minister of Railways and Canalis, with
respect to certain Acts of the Legislature of the Province of Manitoba, passed in the
session held in the year 1884, and which were reserved for a separate report.

The Minister observes that it will be seen from this correspondence that the
Minister of Railways and Canals is of opinion that the Acts relating to the Emerso0
and North-Western Railway Company and the Manitoba Central Railway Companl
should be disallowed.

The Minister further observes that the objection of the Minister of Railways and
Canals to these Acts is based upon an apprehension that thereby the companies men'
tioned will be able to divert trade from the Canadian system of railways to the rail-
ways of the United States, and that the objection applies to chapter 68, intituled :
" An Act to incorporate the Emerson and North-Western Railway Company," and
chapter 70, intituled : " An Act to amend an Act to incorporate the Manitoba
Central Railway Company, and amending Acts," but not to chapter 69, intituled
"An Act to amend an Act to incorporate the Manitoba Central Railway CompalnY

The Minister submits the correspondence for the consideration of Your Exce
lency in Council.

The Committee advises that the Acts of the Legislature of Manitoba, passed 1
the session held in the year 1884, chapter 68, intituled: " An Act to incorporate the
Emerson and North-Western Railway Company," and chapter 70, intituled : "A
Act to amend an Act to incorporate the Manitoba Central Railway Company, and
amending Acts," be disallowed accordingly, but that the powers of disallowance be
not exercised with regard to the Act, chapter 69, intituled : " An Act to amiend
au Act to incorporate the Manitoba Central Railway Company."

JOHN J. MoGEBe Cerk Privy Counçit

A. 188649 Victoria.



GOVERNMENT loUsE, OTTAWA, Monday, 22nd day of March, 1883.

Present :
HIS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNoR GENERAL IN CoUNCIL.

Wher eas the Lieutenant Governor of the Province of Manitoba, with the Legis-
lative Assembly of that Province, did, on the 29th day of April, 1884, pass the Act,
chapAered 68, intituled " An Act to incorporate the Emerson and North Western
Rlailway Company," and did, on the 3rd June, 1884, pass the Act, chaptered 70,
intituled " An Act to amend an Act to incorporate the Manitoba Central Railway
Conpany and amending Acts."

And whereas these Acts have been laid before the Governor General in Council,
together with a report from the Minister of Justice, recommending that they should
be disallowed,-

Sliis Excellency the Governor General has thereupon this day been pleased, by
and with the advice of the Queens Privy Council for Canada, to declare his disallow-
ance of the said Acts, and the same are disallowed accordingly.

Whereof the Lieutenant Governor of the Province of Manitoba and all other
Persons whom it may concern are to take notice and govern themselves accordingly.

JOHN J. McGEE, Clerk Privy Council.

I, Sir lenry Charles Keith Petty Fitzmaurice, Marquis of Lansd'owne, Governor
General of Canada, do hereby certify that the undermentioned Acts passed by the
Legislature of the Province of Manitoba, in the Session of 1884, chapter 68, intitaled
" An Act to incorporate the Emerson and North Western Railway Company," and
chapter 70, intituled "An Act to amend au Act to incorporate the Manitoba Central
Railway Company, and amending Acts " were received by me on the 28th day of
March, 1885.

Given under my hand and seal this 22nd day of March, 1886.
[L.S.] LANSDOWNE.

DEPARTMENT o1 STATE, OTTAWA, 2nd April, 1886.
SIR,-I have the honor to acquaint you, for the information of your Governnent,

that His Excellency the Governor General has had under bis consideration in Council
ce tain Acts of the Legislaturo of the Province of Manitob%, passed in the session
held in the year 1884, which wero reserved for separate consideration, and that Hie

xZcelency is advised that the power of disallowance be exercised with regard to
tWo of the said Acts, viz.:-Chap. 68, inlituled: " An Act to incorporate the Ernerson
"aId North-Western Railway Company," and Cap. 70, intituled: " An Act to amend
an Act incorporating the Manitoba and North-Western Railway Company, and
anending Acts."

I enclose an order of His Excellency the Governor General declaring bis disal-
1owance of the Acts above mentioned, to which is attached the certificate of His
lLxcellency as to the date of the receipt of the said Acts.

The objection to the Acts disallowed is based upon an apprehension that the
comIpanies to which they relate would be able to divert trade from the Canadian
5Ystem of railways to the railways of the United States.

I have at the same time to inform you that Hie Excellency is advised that the
Power of disallowance be not exercised with regard to the Act passed in the said
session, Chap. 69, intituled: " An Act to amend an Act to incorporate the Manitoba
Central Railway Company."

I have the honor to be, Sir, your obedient servant,
J. A, CHAPLEAU, Secretary of State.

Nis Honoi the Lieutenant.Governor of Manitoba, Winnipeg.
81-2 §
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RETURN
(86)

an ORDER of the HOUsE OF COMMONS, dated 29th March, 1886 ;-For
a Return giving :-

1. The number of Chinese immigrants that have arrived in
Canada from the 20th day of August, 1885, to the 8lst day of
January, 1886, specifying the ports at which such immigrants
have arrived.

2. The number that have arrived direct from China.
3. The number that have arrived from other countries, specify-

ing the countries.
4. The total amount of duty collected from such immigrants.
5. The number of Chinese that have entered as tourists, merchants,

men of science or students.
6. Whether in either case (if any) certificates were presented from

the Chinese Government, endorsed by the Chargé d'Affaires,
Consul or Consular Agent, or other representative of Her

Majesty, at the place where the same was granted, or at the

port or place of departure.
7. The cost to the Department of Customs in consequence of the

adninistration by that Department of the Acts restricting
and regulating Chinese immigration into Canada.

8. Copies of all the correspondence (if any) between Trades Unions

or other Societies, corporate or incorporate, or persons and the

Department of Customs, urging more strict supervision over

Chinese immigration, together with complaints (if any) against

any Officer of Customs in connection with the administration

of said Chinese Restriction Act.
9. The total number of Chinese persons that have left Canada

during the same period.

By Command.

b J. A. CHAPLEAU,
epartraent Of the Secretary of State, Secretary of State.

8 6 7th May, 1886.



RETURN as asked for by an Order of the House of Commons, dated 29th March, 1886,
giving the number of Chinese Immigrants that have arrivqd in Canada from the
20th of August, 1885, to 31st of January, 1886, specifying the ports at whicb
they have arrived, &c.
1. The number of Chinese immigrants that have arrived in Canada from the 20e

of August, 1885, to 31st of January, 1886, specifying the ports at which such imîll'
grants have arrived: 234 arrived at Victoria and I at Nanaimo, B.C.

2. The number that have arrived direct from China: Nil.
3. The number that have arrived from other countries, specifying the countrie$

235 arrived from the United States.
4. The total amount of duty collected from such immigrants: $8,550.
5. The number of Chinese that have entered as tourists, merchants, menf

science or students : 64.
6. Whether in either case (if any) certificates were presented from the Chines0

Government, endorsed by the chargé d'affaires, consul or consular agent, or other
representative of Her Majesty, at the place where the same was granted, or at the
port or place of departure: No certificates wére presented.

7. The cost to the Department of Customs in consequence of the administratiO0
by that Department of the Act restricting and regulating Chinese immigration ilIt
Canada: 6616.59.

8. Copies of all the correspondence (if any) between Trades Unions or other
societies, corporate or incorporate, or persons and the Department of Customs, urging
more strict supervision over Chinese immigration; together with complaints (if anY)
against any officer of Customs in connection with the administration of said Chineco
Restriction Act : Attached.

9. The total number of Chinese persons that have left Canada during the sa00
period: 686 left Victoria and 2 left Nanaimo.

CusToM HousE, VICTORIA, B.C., 3rd November, 1885.
SRa,-I enclose for your perusal a correspondence which was published on S00,

day morning in the Colonist newspaper, on which I may perhaps be expected t"
make some observations. I enclose also an extract from the Victoria Tmes of th
day before which contains (what the Colonist does not) a tolerable correct account
the matters in question. The letters I am told were taken first to the editor of %
Victoria Times to publish, which he had the good sense and the good feeling t
refuse to do.

From the lst of September, when the Chinese Act came in f&ce, to this preo08,
day, every dollar due under the Act bas been collected, there has been no breachO
the Act requiring legal proceedings, and no Chir-aman has gone away fromrL
Custom bouse without having his case attended to. 1 don't see how it would be P
sible, with sncb means as were at my disposal, for the Act more perfectly to be P
in force. If a controller was appointed, as the law provides, he could give his whaî
time to it, and go among the Chinamen and enquire into particular cases. An iitee

preter could examine them and find out if their statements were true. I have tO do
the best I can and trust to what they say themselves.

Mr. Shakespeare mentions one particular case brought, he says, to my knowl0 dge
where I refused to prosecute. I told him of this myself ; he came to the Custo
house to see the printed forms, and among other things said he had beard that fa
certificates were used. I told him one case only had come to my knowledge ad
gave him the particulars.

Several Chinamen came over by the " Olympian " from Port Townsend. O
of them we suspected had a certificate not issued to himself. He had no money
pay the $50 fee, his friends in the town tried to make it up for him and failed.
was kept on board the steamer, not allowed to land, and sent back to the Ameri00
side. Mr. Shakespeare said I ought to have prosecuted. I told him it would ha
been difficult to prove the case, very expensive to the Government, and if we
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ceeded in getting a conviction, the man had not a dollar in the world to pay the fine.
Re said it would have made an example. I doubt very much if the American Gov-
ernment would have been pleased to hear of a man dragged by force from one of
their vessels lying in our port, for the sake of a prosecution and an example.
UJnless you send me positive orders to the contrary, I should do again what I did
then, and believe that I am doing right. The folly of the Chinamen on the other
side using certificates granted here is almost transparent at the firet glance. If they
Wanvt to come here on business, they have only to go to their own Custom house and
a permit to leave and return, vised by the British consul, is granted to them for
nothing. They do it constantly, exactly as our Chinamen get permits to leave and
return here. There is no trouble about it, and no secret, and nothing to tempt them
to resort to the practice of fraud.

That I concerned myself in any way with the Act itself-the necessity for it or
its utility-if anyone has made such a statement, I give it an emphatic denial. No
man in the community has kept himself more aloof from all political questions and
Public matters. I had scarcely heard of the existence of this Act till I was told, by
telegram, to put it in force. For several weeks I was left without forme and without
assistance to make the best of as troublesome a business as could w'ell fall to a public
servant.

I cannot say I expected the treatment I have met with, but the people before
Whom one side of the matter has been so freely placed, willjudge for themselves and
find nothing, I am sure, derogatory to me.

I am, Sir, your obedient servant,
W. IIAMLEY.

To Ris Excellency Sir HENRY CHARLEs KEITH PETTv FITZMAUBICE, Marquis of Lans-
downe, in the County of Somerset, Barl of Wycombe, of Chipping Wycombe, in
the County of Bucks, Viscount Calne and Calnestone, in the County of Wilts, and
Lord Wycombe, Baron of Chipping Wycombe, in the County of Bucks in the
Peerage of Great Britain; Earl of Kerry and Earl of Shelbourne, Viscount Clan-
maurice and Fitzmaurice, Baron of Kerry, Lixnaw and Dunkerron, in the Peer-
age of Ireland ; Knight Grand Cross of the Most Honorable Order of Saint
Michael and Saint George; Governor General of the Dominion of Canada, and
Vice-Admiral of the sane.
MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY,-We, the members of the Anti-Chinese

Union, beg heartily to welcome you to our shores and humbly to thank you as head
of the Executive, and the members of your Cabinet, for the Act passed last session
of Parliament restricting the immigration of Chinese.

We would, furthermore, represent to Your Excellency that the Act, though in
itself a wise one, is made virtually inoperative by the fact that proper means have
not been secured to insure its being carried into effect.

We beg most respectfully to say that in our judgment the Customs authorities
are not the proper persons to enforce the Act, as the whole of their time is already
occupied without these extra and unpaid duties being given them; and hence we
think that a controller should be appointed whose sole business it shall be to carry
out the provisions of the Act.

We respectfully call Your Excellency's attention to this fact, begging that you
Ilay be pleased to give such instructions as may cause a remedy to be brought to the
evil, and so, as in duty bound, your humble petitioners will ever pray.

A small deputation would be glad to lay the facts before you if Your Excellency
be Pleased to find it convenient to receive them.

Signed on behalf of the Executive Committee of Anti-Chinese Union.

ARQHIBALD DODS, Secretary.
8 PUING RIDGE, VICTORIA, B. C., 7th October, 1885.
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OTTAWA, 20th November, 1885.
The undersigned, Minister of Customs, having had referred to him by the Gov-

ernor General in Council the petition of the anti-Chinese Union, of Victoria, British
Columbia, bearing date the 7th October, 1885, signed on behalf of said Union by its
Secretary, Archibald Dods, Esq., addressed to fis Excellency the Marquis of Lans-
downe, etc., Governor General of Canada, " thanking the members of His Excellency's
Cabinet for the Act passed last Seesion of Parliament restricting the immigration of
Chinese into Canada, and complaining that the Act, though in itself a wise one, is
made virtually inoperative by the fact that proper means have not been secured to
insure its being carried into effect," lias the honor to report thereon as follows:-

The Act provides, among other things, that His Excellency the Governor Gen-
eral may appoint one or more persons to carry the provisions of the Act into effect,
and assign the duties in connection therewith to any officer or person in the employ
of the Government. As the Department of Customs is constituted, it has the neces-
sary and complete machinery in the personnel of its staff for the effective and eco-
nomical administration of the Act, its officers being stationed in every port, town
and city of importance in the Dominion. These officers, with such assistance as may
be found necessary at one or two places, are competent and available for the service.

Every care has been taken to provide for the effective enforcing of the provi-
sions of the Act, collectors of Customs at the varions ports in the Dominion having
been appointed controllers and furnished with forme and explicit instructions, calca-
lated to guard against preventable errors and to meet all foreseen difficulties.

The appointaient of special controllers at the varions ports of entry, under -the
circumstances, is wholly unnocesary.

The Minister submits that in putting into force the provisions of a law restrict-
ing the immigration of Chinese into Canada, some friction and errors may occur;
but with the aid of a staff of experienced Customs officers such friction and errors
muet be less than would be the case were the administration of the Act entrusted to
new and inexperienced officers.

The officer of the Department of Customs to whom has been entrusted the
important duties of inaugurating a system by which the provisions of the Chinese
Restriction Act can be enforced, has given much attention and study to the work-
ing of somewhat similar Acts in the neighboring Repu blic and other countries, and
is therefore eminently qualified to prepare such rules and regulations as will fully
and effectively carry out the intentions of Parliament in placing such a law upon the
Statute-book, and to provide against the failures and diffieulties which have been
experienced in countries where laws of a somewhat similar character are being
enforced.

For these reasons the undersigned is of opinion that it would be impolitie and
detrimental to the proper and effective working of the Act to make any change in
the regulations which have been adopted providing for its enforcement.

M. BOWELL.

VIcToRIA, B.C., 13th October, 1885.
DEAR SiR,-I desire to call your attention to the fact that in my opinion the

appointing of Customs officials to carry out the provisions of the Chinese Restriction
Act is a farce. I propose to give one or two reasons why I think so.

In the first place, so far as Victoria is concerned, the whole of their time is taken
up in connection with the Customs, and if they had time they have not been notified
that they were to recoive any extra pay for the extra work, and hence they could
not be expected to take the interest in it as is necessary; the result is, the law is
hardly enforced in any one particular. I know of cases myself where one Chinaman
has been guilty of personating another Chinaman, and the matter has been brought
to the notice of Mr. Hamley, and yet the provisions of the sixteenth clause of the
Chinese Act has not been put in force.
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If the Government intend carrying out the provisions of the law, it can only be
done by appointing a proper erson to fill the position of controller, and pay him a
dOcent salary so as to induce him to take a pleasure in his work. Mr. Hamley takes
noD interest in it at all, in fact he says it is impossible for him to attend to it.

The Government can well afford to pay an offleer; the receipts already under
this Act at this port are nearly four thousand dollars within six weeks.

I hope you will do your best to have the necessary machinery set to work at
0Ce for the proper enforcement of the Act.

I remain, yours obediently,

To the Hon. the Minister of Customs, Ottawa. E . SHAKESPEARE, M.P.

OTTAWA, 22nd October, 1885.
MY DE&R SHAKEsPEARE,-I have your favor of the 13th inst., in re Chinese Act.

bu That there may be a little friction in the boginning, I am not at all surprised,
t very stop has been taken that can be to enforce the Act, and as difficulties arise

thOy Will be provided for.
You may rest assured that it is not only the desire but the intention of the Gov.

'eOrrnment to enforce the Act.
The collector has been inatructed to employ a man to assist him in carrying out

.he provisions, and I am satisfied it will be done botter in this way than by multiply-
Elag Officials, and if Mr. Hamley does not attend to it ho will be called to account.

I note you say that " the Customs officials if they had time " to do the work
neOessary in connection with the enforcement of the Act "have not been notified
that they were to receive any extra pay."

I take it for granted that men in the employment of the Goverument should be
t'eated in precisely the same way as if employed by any business man, that it je
their duty to attend to any duties allotted to them during their working hours, with.
out asking additional remuneration, but it seems to be a general opinion that when
One is employed by the Government, ho must only do a certain thing, and boyond
that receive extra payment.

That is not the principle on which I have endeavored to conduct the Department.
CistomS officers must do such work as is relegated to them, during the proper hours,Without extra pay.

If Mr. Hamley knows of personation by any Chinaman, ho je culpable for not
Punishing, and will be so informed.
s It is not for the collector to say whether ho approves of the Act or not. His duty

tO enforce its provisions, and we will see that ho does so.
I shall be very glad, at any time, to receive anything from you pointing out any

defects in the working of the Act, or dereliction of duty on the part of the officers.
Trusting you are enjoying goed health, and that we shall see you here as vigorous

ever i a few monthe.
I am, yours truly, M. BOWELL.

. SIIAXEaEAEZ, IEsq., M.P., Victoria, B.C.
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